
 
 

  

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday, May 18, 2022  

5:00pm 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843  

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): US: +1 669 900 
6833 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 301 715 8592 or 

888 475 4499 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5257 (Toll Free)  
Webinar ID: 870 2307 1843  

 
Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special 
assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this 
meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for the 
meeting materials, should contact the Clerk of the Board at least 2 working days before 
the meeting at (510) 906-0491 or cob@ebce.org.  
 
If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the Board of Directors, please 
email it to the clerk by 5:00 pm the day prior to the meeting. 

 
1. Welcome & Roll Call 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Public Comment 

This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any EBCE-related 
matters that are not otherwise on this meeting agenda. Public comments on matters 
listed on the agenda shall be heard at the time the matter is called. As with all public 
comment, members of the public who wish to address the Board are customarily limited 
to two minutes per speaker and must complete an electronic speaker slip. The Board 
Chair may increase or decrease the time allotted to each speaker. 

 
4. Closed Session 

a) Conference with Labor Negotiations pursuant to Government Code 54957.6. (Labor 
negotiators: Dianne Martinez, Board Chair; Corina Lopez, Executive Committee Chair) 
(Unrepresented employees) 
 

5. General Counsel Report Out of Closed Session 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

6. Approval of Minutes from April 7, 2022 and April 20, 2022 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843
mailto:cob@ebce.org
mailto:cob@ebce.org


East Bay Community Energy                        
Board of Directors                                  Page | 2 
 

7. AB 361 - Finding for Continued Remote Meetings 
Find that conducting in person meetings of the Board would present imminent risks to 
attendees’ health and authorize the Board to continue meeting via teleconferencing 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e). 

 
8. Contracts entered into (Informational Item) 

 
9. Amendment to Rate setting protocol (Action Item) 

Present proposed amendment to rate setting protocol  
 

10. Amendment to Procurement Policy (Action Item) 
Present proposed Amendments to clarify parts of Procurement Policy  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
11. CEO REPORT 

 
12. Community Advisory Committee Report 

 
13. Legislative Update (Action Item) 

Update on recommended bill positions and EBCE’s bill tracker 

14. FY 2022-2023 Budget (Informational Item) 
Present draft FY 2022-2023 Budget 

15. Energy Prepay Transaction #2 Approval (Action Item) 
Seek approval to enter into a 2nd energy prepay transaction 

 
16. Board Member and Staff Announcements including requests to place items on 

future Board Agendas 
 
17. Adjournment to Wednesday, June 15, 2022 at 5:00pm 

 



 

Consent Item 6A 

 

  

Draft Agenda 
Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Wednesday, April 7, 2022 
10:00 am 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): US: +1 669 900 
6833 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 301 715 8592 or 

888 475 4499 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5257 (Toll Free) 
Webinar ID: 870 2307 1843 

 
Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special 
assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in 
this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for 
the meeting materials, should contact the Clerk of the Board at least 2 working days 
before the meeting at (510) 906-0491 or cob@ebce.org.  

If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the Board, please email it to 
the clerk by 5:00 pm the day prior to the meeting. 

 
1. Welcome & Roll Call 

Present: Directors: Valle (Alameda County), Tiedemann (Albany), Kumagai (Dublin), Marquez 
(Hayward), Munro (Livermore), Hannon (Newark), Kalb (Oakland), Cavenaugh (Piedmont), 
Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City), Vice-Chair Lopez (San Leandro) and Chair Martinez 
(Emeryville) 
 
Excused: Directors: Harrison (Berkeley), Cox (Fremont), Arriola (Tracy), Eldred (CAC) 
 

2. Public Comment 
This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any EBCE-related 
matters that are not otherwise on this meeting agenda. Public comments on matters 
listed on the agenda shall be heard at the time the matter is called. As with all 
public comment, members of the public who wish to address the Board are 
customarily limited to two minutes per speaker and must complete an 
electronic speaker slip. The Board Chair may increase or decrease the time allotted 
to each speaker.  

There were no speakers for public comment. 

 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843
mailto:cob@ebce.org
mailto:cob@ebce.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfuwXhnJkDvrIZMuHpL-1P3H23ofjY72GpWBcWMY_smFN4lZA/viewform
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfuwXhnJkDvrIZMuHpL-1P3H23ofjY72GpWBcWMY_smFN4lZA/viewform


East Bay Community Energy                        
Board of Directors                                  Page | 2 
 

Consent Item 6A 

REGULAR AGENDA 

3. Closed Session  
 

a) Conference with Labor Negotiations pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 (Labor 
negotiators: Dianne Martinez, Board Chair; Corina Lopez, Executive Committee 
Chair) (Unrepresented employees)  

 
4. General Counsel Report Out of Closed Session 

 
No reportable actions were taken in closed session. 
 

5. Board Member and Staff Announcements including requests to place items on future Board 
Agendas 
 
There were no announcements or future Board agenda item requests. 

 
6. Adjournment to  Wednesday, April 20, 2022 at 5pm. 



 

Consent Item 6B 

 

  

Draft Agenda 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Wednesday, April 20, 2022 
5:00 pm 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843 
Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): US: +1 669 900 
6833 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 301 715 8592 or 

888 475 4499 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5257 (Toll Free) 
Webinar ID: 870 2307 1843 

 
Meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. Individuals who need special 
assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in 
this meeting, or who have a disability and wish to request an alternative format for 
the meeting materials, should contact the Clerk of the Board at least 2 working days 
before the meeting at (510) 906-0491 or cob@ebce.org.  

If you have anything that you wish to be distributed to the Board, please email it to 
the clerk by 5:00 pm the day prior to the meeting. 

 
1. Welcome & Roll Call 

Present: Directors: Tiedemann (Albany), Harrison (Berkeley), Kumagai (Dublin), Cox (Fremont), 
Marquez (Hayward), Munro (Livermore), Hannon (Newark), Kalb (Oakland), Cavenaugh 
(Piedmont), Arriola (Tracy), Patino (Union City), Vice-Chair Lopez (San Leandro) and Chair 
Martinez (Emeryville) 
 
Excused: Directors: Valle (Alameda County), Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City) 
 
Director Harrison (Berkeley) joined the meeting at 5:07pm. 
Director Kumagai (Dublin) left the meeting before 7:30pm. 
Director Harrison (Berkeley) left the meeting before 8:00pm. 
Director Hannon (Newark) left the meeting before 8:00pm. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Public Comment 
This item is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any EBCE-related 
matters that are not otherwise on this meeting agenda. Public comments on matters 
listed on the agenda shall be heard at the time the matter is called. As with all 
public comment, members of the public who wish to address the Board are 
customarily limited to two minutes per speaker and must complete an 
electronic speaker slip. The Board Chair may increase or decrease the time allotted 
to each speaker.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87023071843
mailto:cob@ebce.org
mailto:cob@ebce.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfuwXhnJkDvrIZMuHpL-1P3H23ofjY72GpWBcWMY_smFN4lZA/viewform
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSfuwXhnJkDvrIZMuHpL-1P3H23ofjY72GpWBcWMY_smFN4lZA/viewform


East Bay Community Energy                        
Board of Directors                                  Page | 2 
 

Consent Item 6B 

  

Jessica Tovar, on behalf of East Bay Clean Power Alliance, spoke regarding four 
Transformative Climate Communities Grants, one of which is for $35 million dollars, 
which could be used toward community-based micro-grids, decarbonization upgrades, 
and electrification upgrades, but it is just one of many examples of potential state 
and federal money outside EBCE’s funds that EBCE could apply for and regrant to 
community groups in EBCE territory. Jessica Tovar announced that Dave McCord from 
the Sierra Club and who was active in advocating for EBCE had passed away.  

Chair Martinez indicated that Item 16 – Board Member and Staff Announcements,  
would be heard after the Consent Agenda. 

4. Closed Session  
 

a) Conference with Labor Negotiations pursuant to Government Code 54957.6 (Labor 
negotiators: Dianne Martinez, Board Chair; Corina Lopez, Executive Committee Chair) 
(Unrepresented employees) 

 
5. General Counsel Report Out of Closed Session 

 
No reportable actions were taken in closed session. 
 
Board Clerk Bankhead indicated that Directors Tiedemann (Albany) and Kalb (Oakland) were 
present at the meeting, although not reflected in the roll call. 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
6. Approval of Minutes from March 16, 2022 

 
7. AB 361 – Finding for Continued Remote Meetings 

Find that conducting in person meetings of the Board would present imminent risks to 
attendees’ health and authorize the Board to continue meeting via teleconferencing pursuant 
to Government Code Section 54953(e). 

  
8. Contracts entered into (Informational Item) 

 
9. Treasurer’s Report (Informational Item)  

Report on cash balances.  
 

10. 2021 Supplier Diversity Report Overview (Informational Item) 
Overview of 2021 Supplier Diversity Report to CPUC 

 
11. Amendment to CSA with Acterra (Action Item) 

Amend existing CSA with Acterra to correct errors in the CSA and add budget for local 
procurement of cooktops  
 
Tom Kelly pointed out that the Consent Calendar includes financial reports, but other 
committees have seen more extensive reports. Tom Kelly did not believe the Board could 



East Bay Community Energy                        
Board of Directors                                  Page | 3 
 

Consent Item 6B 

adequately analyze issues like Agenda Item 17, Renewables Procurement, without actually 
seeing a more in depth report on the agency’s financial status.  

 
Director Hannon (Newark) motioned to approve the Consent Agenda.  Director Cox 
(Fremont) seconded the motion, which passed 11/0.  Excused: Valle (Alameda 
County), Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City) 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

17. Renewables Procurement (Action Item) 
Adopt a schedule with annual power procurement goals for renewable and carbon-free 
electricity purchases as a path to reach zero emission electricity by 2030. 
 
Tom Kelly stated this is not a plan to get to 100% renewable by 2030; it is a plan to get to 60% 
renewable by 2030 and 100% carbon free. Tom Kelly noted that in 2019 EBCE’s Bright Choice 
had already 60% renewable content, but it would take another eight years to get to that point 
if the Board approves this plan. Tom Kelly took exception to CEO Chaset’s contention that 
this is something that can be changed in the future and stated the Board is giving the agency 
a plan that will lock them into some decisions that would be different if the Board rejected 
this plan and instituted something more aggressive. Tom Kelly noted that a number of CCAs 
are at 100% renewable already, with PCE promising to get to 100% carbon free by 2025, and 
add that the IRP is really a document required by the CPUC to ensure the agency will be able 
to deliver electricity to its customers, but does not constrain EBCE from taking a more 
aggressive approach to reducing carbon emissions.  
 
Chris Gilbert stated something missing from the presentation is any reference to other CCAs, 
utilities, etc., to see how they are doing, but it is important to measure EBCE’s progress 
against how others are doing, and while increasing renewable and decreasing emissions is 
reasonable, is it the best way? Chris Gilbert stated that Tom Kelly’s letter shows that EBCE is 
off the chart for emissions compared to other CCAs, and asked if that would be changed with 
this plan? Chris Gilbert urged the Board to look at others in the field and not just rely on 
internal projections. 
 
Jim Lutz stated the presentation is about the Bright Choice mix, but EBCE has several cities 
opting up to make the renewable 100 their default. Jim Lutz asked what fraction of EBCE’s 
total sales are Bright Choice now and how it is going to be changing with the different 
jurisdictions changing their defaults?  
 
Jessica Tovar, on behalf of East Bay Clean Power Alliance, stated that in 2016 when 
they advocated for the East Bay Community Choice program one thing that came up 
was a huge emphasis on not using the unbundled RECs, what is referred to as the PCC-
3 in the document, and they didn’t want it because the RECs enable certain types of 
un clean energy to be sold and used as if it is. Jessica Tovar added that another thing 
they also emphasize is a strong commitment to not including nuclear energy. Jessica 
Tovar highlighted that forms of incineration are considered renewable in California, 
which is problematic with respect to environmental justice.  
 

CAC Chair Eldred reported: 



East Bay Community Energy                        
Board of Directors                                  Page | 4 
 

Consent Item 6B 

• Technically CAC voted to support the Renewables Procurement schedule, but that vote 
was 4 yes, 2 no, 3 abstentions, and 3 absences, so it did not pass with a majority.  

• The presentation lacks important details on items CAC cares about, and CAC wished to 
see additional detail with respect to work force, risk, and local development.  

• The vagueness of the presentation and the lack of detail in how this would affect EBCE 
constituencies in each community was evident in the inability to get strong support for 
a plan to reduce emissions, something CAC would usually be enthusiastic about.  

 
The Board Discussed: 

• Concern that the presentation does not show EBCE being at 100% by 2030, and how 
the presentation numbers weigh in with the demand of the jurisdictions that have 
opted up and will be opting up to be at 100% renewable by 2030.  

• What is the path to make Bright Choice more renewable by next year? 
• Cost to move the 100% renewable goal to 2025, which is the goal of many other CCAs. 
• Budgeting for new renewable resource creation beyond what is represented in the 

presentation.  
• Are behind the meter resources being explored?  
• Is there any benefit to EBCE self-imposing a restriction where they would only do half 

as much as the state RPS allows for bucket 2 RECs, and would that get EBCE any more 
carbon free energy?  

• Ways to structure PPC-2 transactions such that they carry zero emissions and is priced 
similar to a PPC-1. 

• If EBCE created its Bright Choice product starting at 0.5% discount instead of 1%, 
would that help speed up the pathway in reducing the amount of dirty energy in the 
Bright Choice portfolio? 

• Pathway to reducing rates more quickly in the next four years, allowing EBCE to take 
a pause before pushing on another four years to 2030.  

• Providing additional savings to low-income residents in this time of skyrocketing 
electricity rates.  

• Priority for EBCE to have cheaper rates than PG&E as EBCE moves into the Central 
Valley where customers are more concerned about economics than being green.  

 
Director Kumara (Dublin) moved to adopt the schedule with annual power procurement 
goals for renewable and carbon free electricity purchases, with a path to zero emissions 
by 2030. Director Lopez (San Leandro) seconded the motion, which passed 12/0. 
Excused: Valle (Alameda County), Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City) 
 

12. CEO REPORT 
 

13. Community Advisory Committee Report 
 

• Chair Eldred reported that CAC is interested in agendizing and bringing back to the 
Board the issue for the Community Innovation Grants. 

• Chair Eldred reported that staff had made significant progress on metrics for measuring 
advances in equity in social, economic, and environmental balance of public projects, 
and will bring the item to the Board in the future.  
 

14. Prepay Follow-on (Action Item) 
Present a follow-on prepay transaction and seek approval to be enabled with consultants to 
facilitate the transaction.  



East Bay Community Energy                        
Board of Directors                                  Page | 5 
 

Consent Item 6B 

 
There were no speakers for public comment. 
 
Vice-Chair Lopez (San Leandro) motioned to approve the prepay follow-on.  Director 
Cavenaugh (Piedmont) seconded the motion, which passed 11/0. Excused: Valle 
(Alameda County), Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City) 

 
15. Legislative Update (Action Item) 

Update on recommended bill positions and EBCE’s bill tracker 
 
There were no speakers for public comment.  
 
The Board Discussed: 

• Backstory on AB 1960, which recommends the Governor consider certain geographic 
diversity, and potential for supporters try to make it a requirement and slip it through 
the assembly now.  

• CAC urges the Board to take a support position in favor of staff’s recommendations, 
with the exception of asking the Board to direct staff to change its support position for 
AB 2765, the Santiago bill, from a support position to a watch position.  

 
Director Munro moved to accept the recommended bill positions with the caveat for AB 
1960 that if the bill goes from considering to requirement that the Board or Executive 
Committee rediscuss the possibility of EBCE no longer supporting it; and with respect to 
AB 2765, should there be significant changes to the decision it be elevated to the 
Executive Board. Director Tiedemann seconded the motion, which passed 9/0. Excused: 
Valle (Alameda County), Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City) 
 

16. Approval of Default Product Change Requests: Emeryville and Dublin (Action Item) 
Request Board of Directors approval for City of Emeryville to default residential (non-CARE) 
plus commercial customers to R100 
 
There were no speakers for public comment.  
 
The Board Discussed: 

• Updated enrollment numbers for the cities that have most recently opted back down. 
 
Director Tiedemann moved to approve City of Emeryville to default residential (non-CARE) 
plus commercial customers to R100. Director Lopez seconded the motion, which passed 
9/0. Excused: Valle (Alameda County), Narum (Pleasanton), Patino (Union City) 
 

18. Board Member and Staff Announcements including requests to place items on future Board 
Agendas 
 
There were no announcements or future agenda item requests. 

 
19. Adjournment to  Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 5:00pm 



Consent Item 7 

 
 

Consent Item 7 
 

TO:   East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors 
 

FROM: Inder Khalsa, General Counsel 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of Imminent Risks Findings Pursuant to AB 361 and   
  Authorization to Continue Meeting via Teleconferencing 

 
DATE:  April 20, 2022 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Find that conducting in-person meetings of the Board would present imminent risks to 
attendees’ health and authorize the Board to continue meeting via teleconferencing 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e).   
 
Background and Discussion  
 
On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed a state of emergency related 
to COVID-19, pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, which is still in effect.  On 
March 10, 2020, the Alameda County Board of Supervisors ratified the County Health 
Officer’s declaration of a local health emergency due to COVID-19.   
 
The Brown Act allows legislative bodies to meet by “teleconference,” but only if the 
agenda listed the remote location of each member, the agenda was posted at all 
remote locations, and the public could access any of the remote locations. 
Additionally, a quorum of the legislative body had to be within the legislative body’s 
jurisdiction. See Government Code Section 54953(b)(3)  
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20, 
suspending certain sections of the Brown Act. Pursuant to the Executive Order, 
legislative bodies no longer needed to list the location of each remote attendee, post 
agendas at each remote location, or allow the public to access each location. Further, 
a quorum of the legislative body does not need to be within the legislative body’s 



Consent Item 7 

jurisdiction. After several extensions, Executive Order N-29-20 expired on September 
30, 2021. 
 
On September 16, 2021 Governor Newsom signed AB 361, new legislation that amends 
the Brown Act to allow local agencies to meet remotely during Governor declared 
emergencies under certain conditions.  AB 361 took effect immediately as an urgency 
measure, but the Governor subsequently suspended application of the legislation  ̶  
with limited exceptions  ̶  until October 1, 2021.  The provisions of AB 361 relevant to 
local agencies are codified at Government Code Section 54953(e). 
 
AB 361 authorizes local agencies to continue meeting remotely without following the 
Brown Act’s standard teleconferencing provisions if the meeting is held during a state 
of emergency proclaimed by the Governor and either of the following applies: (1) 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social 
distancing; or (2) the agency has already determined or is determining whether, as a 
result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees.   
 
The legislative body must make the required findings every 30 days, until the end of 
the state of emergency or recommended or required social distancing.  
 
AB 361 also requires legislative bodies to make remote public meetings accessible 
telephonically or otherwise electronically to all members of the public seeking to 
observe and to address the local legislative body, and to make reasonable efforts to 
adhere as closely as reasonably possible to the provisions of the Brown Act.  AB 361 
adds new procedures and clarifies the requirements for conducting remote meetings. 
A legislative body that meets remotely must allow members of the public to access 
the meeting via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and the agenda 
for the remote meeting must provide an opportunity for members of the public to 
directly address the body in real time.  
 
Due to the rise in COVID-19 cases caused by the Delta Variant, Alameda County is still 
impacted by the effects of the COVID-19 emergency. The Centers for Disease Control 
(CDC) recommends physical distancing of at least six (6) feet whenever possible, 
avoiding crowds, and avoiding spaces that do not offer fresh air from the outdoors, 
particularly for people who are not fully vaccinated or who are at higher risk of 
getting very sick from COVID-19.  The CDC also recommends that people who live with 
unvaccinated people avoid activities that make physical distancing hard. 
 



Consent Item 7 

EBCE’s public-meetings are held at indoor facilities not designed to ensure circulation 
of fresh or outdoor air, particularly during periods of cold and/or rainy weather, and 
were not designed to ensure that attendees can remain six (6) feet apart.  
Additionally, holding in-person meetings may encourage community members to come 
to EBCE facilities to participate in EBCE meetings in-person, and some of them could 
be at high risk of getting very sick from COVID-19 and/or live with someone who is at 
high risk. At this point in time, there are few in-person locations available for the 
EBCE to meet in, since most of the agencies in Alameda County are still holding 
remote meetings. 
  
In-person meetings could also tempt community members who are experiencing 
COVID-19 symptoms to leave their homes in order to come to EBCE Board meetings to 
participate. Attendees may need to use ride-share services and/or public transit to 
travel to in-person meetings, thereby putting them in close and prolonged contact 
with additional people outside of their households.  
 
For these reasons, staff recommends that the Board adopt findings that, as a result of 
the state of emergency caused by COVID-19, meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees.  
  
Staff will continue to monitor the situation and will return to the Board every 30 days 
or as needed with additional recommendations related to the conduct of public 
meetings. 
 
Attachments 

• Proclamation of Governor Newson of a State of Emergency due to COVID-19 
• Resolution No. R-2020-91 of the Alameda County Board of Supervisors Ratifying 

the Declaration of a Local Health Emergency due to COVID-19 
 



EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS in December 2019, an outbreak of respiratory illness due 
to a novel coronavirus (a disease now known as COVID-19), was first 
identified in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China, and has spread outside 
of China, impacting more than 75 countries, including the United States; 
and 

WHEREAS the State of California has been working in close 
collaboration with the national Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC), with the United States Health and Human Services Agency, and 
with local health departments since December 2019 to monitor and plan 
for the potential spread of COVID-19 to the United States; and 

WHEREAS on January 23, 2020, the CDC activated its Emergency 
Response System to provide ongoing support for the response to COVID-
19 across the country; and 

WHEREAS on January 24, 2020, the California Department of Public 
Health activated its Medical and Health Coordination Center and on 
March 2, 2020, the Office of Emergency Services activated the State 
Operations Center to support and guide state and local actions to 
preserve public health; and 

WHEREAS the California Department of Public Health has been in 
regular communication with hospitals, clinics and other health providers 
and has provided guidance to health facilities and providers regarding 
COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS as of March 4, 2020, across the globe, there are more 
than 94,000 confirmed cases of COVID-19, tragically resulting in more than 
3,000 deaths worldwide; and 

WHEREAS as of March 4, 2020, there are 129 confirmed cases of 
COVID-19 in the United States, including 53 in California, and more than 
9,400 Californians across 49 counties are in home monitoring based on 
possible travel-based exposure to the virus, and officials expect the 
number of cases in California, the United States, and worldwide to 
increase; and 

WHEREAS for more than a decade California has had a robust 
pandemic influenza plan, supported local governments in the 
development of local plans, and required that state and local plans be 
regularly updated and exercised; and 

WHEREAS California has a strong federa l, state and local public 
health and health care delivery system that has effectively responded to 
prior events including the Hl N 1 influenza virus in 2009, and most recently 
Ebola; and 

Attachment Consent Item 7A



WHEREAS experts anticipate that while a high percentage of 
individuals affected by COVID-19 will experience mild flu-like symptoms, 
some will have more serious symptoms and require hospitalization, 
particularly individuals who are elderly or already have underlying chronic 
health conditions; and 

WHEREAS it is imperative to prepare for and respond to suspected or 
confirmed COVID-19 cases in California, to implement measures to 
mitigate the spread of COVID-19, and to prepare to respond to an 
increasing number of individuals requiring medical care and 
hospitalization; and 

WHEREAS if COVID-19 spreads in California at a rate comparable to 
the rate of spread in other countries, the number of persons requiring 
medical care may exceed locally available resources, and controlling 
outbreaks minimizes the risk to the public, maintains the health and safety 
of the people of California, and limits the spread of infection in our 
communities and within the healthcare delivery system; and 

WHEREAS personal protective equipment [PPE) is not necessary for 
use by the general population but appropriate PPE is one of the most 
effective ways to preserve and protect California's healthcare workforce 
at this critical time and to prevent the spread of COVID-19 broadly; and 

WHEREAS state and local health departments must use all available 
preventative measures to combat the spread of COVID-19, which will 
require access to services, personnel, equipment, facilities, and other 
resources, potentially including resources beyond those currently 
available, to prepare for and respond to any potential cases and the 
spread of the virus; and 

WHEREAS I find that conditions of Government Code section 
8558(b), relating to the declaration of a State of Emergency, have been 
met; and 

WHEREAS I find that the conditions caused by COVID-19 are likely to 
require the combined forces of a mutual aid region or regions to 
appropriately respond; and 

WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 
8625(c), I find that local authority is inadequate to cope with the threat 
posed by COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS under the provisions of Government Code section 8571 , I 
find that strict compliance with various statutes and regulations specified 
in this order would prevent, hinder, or delay appropriate actions to 
prevent and mitigate the effects of the COVID-19. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor of the State of 
California, in accordance with the authority vested in me by the State 
Constitution and statutes, including the California Emergency Services 
Act, and in particular, Government Code section 8625, HEREBY PROCLAIM 
A STATE OF EMERGENCY to exist in California. 

Attachment Consent Item 7A



IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

1. In preparing for and responding to COVID-19, all agencies of the 
state government use and employ state personnel, equipment, 
and facilities or perform any and all activities consistent with the 
direction of the Office of Emergency Services and the State 
Emergency Plan, as well as the California Department of Public 
Health and the Emergency Medical Services Authority. Also, all 
residents are to heed the advice of emergency officials with 
regard to this emergency in order to protect their safety. 

2. As necessary to assist local governments and for the protection 
of public health, state agencies shall enter into contracts to 
arrange for the procurement of materials, goods, and services 
needed to assist in preparing for, containing, responding to, 
mitigating the effects of, and recovering from the spread of 
COVID-19. Applicable provisions of the Government Code and 
the Public Contract Code, including but not limited to travel, 
advertising, and competitive bidding requirements, are 
suspended to the extent necessary to address the effects of 
COVID-19. 

3. Any out-of-state personnel, including, but not limited to, medical 
personnel, entering California to assist in preparing for, 
responding to, mitigating the effects of, and recovering from 
COVID-19 shall be permitted to provide services in the same 
manner as prescribed in Government Code section 179.5, with 
respect to licensing and certification. Permission for any such 
individual rendering service is subject to the approval of the 
Director of the Emergency Medical Services Authority for 
medical personnel and the Director of the Office of Emergency 
Services for non-medical personnel and shall be in effect for a 
period of time not to exceed the duration of this emergency. 

4. The time limitation set forth in Penal Code section 396, subdivision 
{b), prohibiting price gouging in time of emergency is hereby 
waived as it relates to emergency supplies and medical supplies. 
These price gouging protections shall be in effect through 
September 4, 2020. 

5. Any state-owned properties that the Office of Emergency 
Services determines are suitable for use to assist in preparing for, 
responding to, mitigating the effects of, or recovering from 
COVID-19 shall be made available to the Office of Emergency 
Services for this purpose, notwithstanding any state or local law 
that would restrict, delay, or otherwise inhibit such use. 

6. Any fairgrounds that the Office of Emergency Services 
determines are suitable to assist in preparing for, responding to, 
mitigating the effects of, or recovering from COVID-19 shall be 
made available to the Office of Emergency Services pursuant to 
the Emergency Services Act, Government Code section 8589. 
The Office of Emergency Services shall notify the fairgrounds of 
the intended use and can immediately use the fairgrounds 
without the fairground board of directors' approval, and 

Attachment Consent Item 7A



notwithstanding any state or local law that would restrict, delay, 
or otherwise inhibit such use. 

7. The 30-day time period in Health and Safety Code section 
101080, within which a local governing authority must renew a 
local health emergency, is hereby waived for the duration of this 
statewide emergency. Any such local health emergency will 
remain in effect until each local governing authority terminates 
its respective local health emergency. 

8. The 60-day time period in Government Code section 8630, within 
which local government authorities must renew a local 
emergency, is hereby waived for the duration of this statewide 
emergency. Any local emergency proclaimed will remain in 
effect until each local governing authority terminates its 
respective local emergency. 

9. The Office of Emergency Services shall provide assistance to 
local governments that have demonstrated extraordinary or 
disproportionate impacts from COVID-19, if appropriate and 
necessary, under the authority of the Ca lifornia Disaster 
Assistance Act, Government Code section 8680 et seq., and 
California Code of Regulations, ntle 19, section 2900 et seq. 

l 0. To ensure hospitals and other health facilities are able to 
adequately treat patients legally isolated as a result of COVID-
19, the Director of the California Department of Public Health 
may waive any of the licensing requirements of Chapter 2 of 
Division 2 of the Health and Safety Code and accompanying 
regulations with respect to any hospital or health facility 
identified in Health and Safety Code section 1250. Any waiver 
shall include alternative measures that, under the circumstances, 
will allow the facilities to treat legally isolated patients while 
protecting public health and safety. Any facilities being granted 
a waiver shall be established and operated in accordance with 
the facility's required disaster and mass casualty plan. Any 
waivers granted pursuant to this paragraph shall be posted on 
the Department's website. 

11.To support consistent practices across California, state 
departments, in coordination with the Office of Emergency 
Services, shall provide updated and specific guidance relating 
to preventing and mitigating COVID-19 to schools, employers, 
employees, first responders and community care facilities by no 
later than March 10, 2020. 

12.To promptly respond for the protection of public health, state 
entities are, notwithstanding any other state or local law, 
authorized to share relevant medical information, limited to the 
patient's underlying health conditions, age, current condition, 
date of exposure, and possible contact tracing, as necessary to 
address the effect of the COVID-19 outbreak with state, local, 
federal, and nongovernmental partners, with such information to 
be used for the limited purposes of monitoring, investigation and 
control, and treatment and coordination of care. The 

Attachment Consent Item 7A



ernor of California 

notification requirement of Civil Code section 1798.24, 
subdivision (i), is suspended. 

13. Notwithstanding Health and Safety Code sections 1797.52 and 
1797.218, during the course of this emergency, any EMT-P 
licensees shall have the authority to transport patients to 
medical facilities other than acute care hospitals when 
approved by the California EMS Authority. In order to carry out 
this order, to the extent that the provisions of Health and Safety 
Code sections 1797.52 and 1797.218 may prohibit EMT-P 
licensees from transporting patients to facilities other than acute 
care hospitals, those statutes are hereby suspended until the 
termination of this State of Emergency. 

14.The Department of Social Services may, to the extent the 
Department deems necessary to respond to the threat of 
COVID-19, waive any provisions of the Health and Safety Code 
or Welfare and Institutions Code, and accompanying 
regulations, interim licensing standards, or other written policies 
or procedures with respect to the use, licensing, or approval of 
facilities or homes within the Department's jurisdiction set forth in 
the California Community Care Facilities Act (Health and Safety 
Code section 1500 et seq.), the California Child Day Care 
Facilities Act (Health and Safety Code section 1596.70 et seq.), 
and the California Residential Care Facilities for the Elderly Act 
(Health and Safety Code section 1569 et seq.). Any waivers 
granted pursuant to this paragraph shall be posted on the 
Department's website. 

I FURTHER DIRECT that as soon as hereafter possible, this 
proclamation be filed in the Office of the Secretary of State and that 
widespread publicity and notice be given of this proclamation. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have 
hereunto set my hand and caused 
the Great Seal of the State of 

affixed this 4th day 

ATTEST: 

ALEX PADILLA 
Secretary of State 

Attachment Consent Item 7A



AGENDA _____ March 10, 2020 

ALAMEDA COUNTY  

HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
AGENCY 

COLLEEN CHAWLA, Director 

OFFICE OF THE AGENCY DIRECTOR 

1000 San Leandro Boulevard, Suite 300 
San Leandro, CA 94577 

TEL (510) 618-3452 
FAX (510) 351-1367 

 

 

March 6, 2020 
 
The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
County Administration Building 
1221 Oak Street 
Oakland, CA 94612 
 

SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE DECLARATION OF A LOCAL HEALTH 
EMERGENCY BY THE COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER RELATED TO THE 2019 NOVEL 
CORONAVIRUS 

 
Dear Board Members: 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Adopt a Resolution ratifying the Declaration of a Local Health Emergency by the County Health Officer 
related to the 2019 Novel Coronavirus 
 
DISCUSSION/SUMMARY 
 
In December 2019, an outbreak of a respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease known as 
2019 Novel Coronavirus or COVID-19) was first identified in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China. Since 
then, the outbreak has spread to more than 75 countries, including the United States. As of March 5, 14 
California counties have had at least one citizen infected with the virus. The County of Alameda is 
among those counties, as are several Bay Area counties including Contra Costa, San Francisco, San 
Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, and Sonoma. 
 
The United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) considers COVID-19 to present a 
very serious threat to public health. On January 23, 2020, the CDC activated its Emergency Response 
System to provide ongoing support for the response to COVID-19 across the United States. On January 
31, 2020, the Secretary of the US Department of Health and Human Services declared a public health 
emergency in the United States. 
 
As of March 6, 2020, the CDC has identified 164 confirmed cases of COVID-19 infection, across 19 states, 
including 45 in California. The number of reported cases has escalated dramatically, with more than 
94,000 confirmed cases and more than 3,300 deaths worldwide. 
 
On March 1, 2020, the California Department of Public Health confirmed that an Oakland resident had 
become infected with COVID-19 after providing healthcare to the Solano County COVID-19 patient.    
Two days later, an individual in Berkeley also tested positive for COVID-19 Infection. 
 

Attachment Consent Item 7B



The Honorable Board of Supervisors 
March 6, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

California Health and Safety Code section 101080 allows a local health officer to declare a local health 
emergency in the health officer’s jurisdiction, or any part thereof, “whenever the health officer 
reasonably determines that there is an imminent and proximate threat of the introduction of any 
contagious, infectious, or communicable disease, chemical agent, noncommunicable biologic agent, 
toxin, or radioactive agent.” On March 1, 2020, Alameda County Interim Health Officer Erica Pan, MD, 
MPH, FAAP declared a local health emergency. Dr. Pan found that with “multiple cases of COVID-19 and 
evidence of community transmission in the region, there is an ongoing risk and likelihood of additional 
COVID-19 positive patients and community spread in the County of Alameda.” Dr. Pan renewed this 
declaration of emergency on March 5, 2020. 
 
The declaration of a local health emergency provides the following benefits: it allows other jurisdictions 
and state agencies to provide mutual aid; it allows the extraordinary costs of providing mutual aid to be 
a legal charge against the state; and it provides immunity to healthcare providers who render aid during 
the emergency. The declaration also provides the local Health Officer with the authority to exercise the 
full range of her power to protect the community’s public health, which includes issuance and 
enforcement of orders for quarantine and isolation. 
 
Under section 101080, your Board is required to ratify the Health Officer’s declaration of emergency.  
Ordinarily, your Board would need to renew this ratification every thirty (30) days; however,  on March 
4, 2020, California Governor Gavin Newsom issued a Proclamation of a State of Emergency relating to 
the COVID-19 outbreak that included a waiver of the renewal requirement: “The 30-day time period in 
Health & Safety Code section 101080, within which a local governing authority must renew a local 
health emergency, is hereby waived for the duration of this statewide emergency. Any such local health 
emergency will remain in effect until each local governing authority terminates its respective local 
emergency.” The Governor similarly waived the renewal requirement for a declaration of local 
emergency. 
 
VISION 2026 GOAL 
 
This Resolution meets the 10X goal pathway of Healthcare for All in support of our shared visions of Safe 
and Livable Communities, Thriving and Resilient Population, and Healthy Environment. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Colleen Chawla, Director 
Health Care Services Agency 

Attachment Consent Item 7B



Attachment Consent Item 7B



Attachment Consent Item 7B



Attachment Consent Item 7B



Attachment Consent Item 7B



   
 

Consent Item 8 
 

 
  

Consent Item 8 
  

TO:     East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors  
  
FROM:   Nick Chaset, Chief Executive Officer   
  
SUBJECT:   Contracts Entered Into  
  
DATE:    May 18, 2022 
________________________________________________________________________  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Accept the CEO’s report on contracts that EBCE has entered, as required by the 
Administrative Procurement Policy. Items executed between April 14, 2022 and May 10, 
2022; 
 
C-2022-030 DocuSign Order Form, eSignature Business Pro Edition Subscription from 
April 12, 2022, to April 2024, including Premier Support, cost of $7,728. 
 
C-2022-031 Rayshine (Santa Monica, CA) Consulting Services Agreement for brand, 
marketing, and communications strategic planning services to EBCE through June 1, 
2022, compensation not to exceed $30,000. 
 
C-2022-032 Komorous-Towney Architects (Oakland) Consulting Services Agreement for 
Architectural engineering and design services for 251 8th Street, compensation not to 
exceed $400,000 through December 31, 2023. 
 
C-2022-033 Oakland Private Industry Council 2022 Community Outreach Grant 
Agreement awarded in the amount of $30,000 to support the AMP outreach program 
through September 1, 2022. 
 
C-2022-034 Read Oak Engineering (Spring Hill, TN) Consulting Services Agreement for 
the Services of Scott Haggerty, who will provide political consulting services to EBCE, 
with compensation not to exceed $20,000 through December 31, 2022. 
 
C-2022-035 Municipal Resource Group (Wilton, CA) Consulting Services Agreement for 
Human resource services with compensation not to exceed $25,000 through October 
25, 2022. 



   
 

Consent Item 8 
 

 
C-2022-037 Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe (San Francisco) Consulting Services 
Agreement for bond and tax counsel services to EBCE with total compensation not to 
exceed $275,000 or $300,000 based on the efficiency of the transaction, with a term 
of no more than three years. 
 
C-2022-038 SMUD Amendment 7 to Exhibit A, Task Order 2; For on-going DAC-GT 
enrollment work, adds $16,000 in costs. 
 
C-2022-039 Acterra First Amendment to CSA adds $6,375 in compensation for a total 
amount not to exceed $141,375, updates the scope of work, corrects clerical errors, 
and extends the termination date to March 21, 2023. 
 
C-2022-040 Bay Alarm Commercial Fire Alarm System Purchase and/or Services 
Agreement; Installation, testing, and monitoring of panel & fire devices at 251 8th 
Street for a three-year term, with a setup & installation cost of $3,450 and an $85 
monthly fee. 
 
C-2022-041 Bay Alarm Commercial Purchase and/or Services Agreement; Installation, 
testing, and monitoring of an intrusion alarm at 251 8th street for a three-year term, 
with a setup & installation cost of $450 and a $65 monthly fee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Consent Item 9 

  

Consent Item 9 

TO:                 East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors 

FROM:             Kelly Brezovec, Sr. Manager of Account Services 

 SUBJECT:          Request Amendment to Rate Setting Protocol (Action Item) 

 DATE:                May 18, 2022 
___________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendations 

Adopt an amendment to the Rate Setting Protocol to remove the community workshop 
requirement in a year when there is no change to the value proposition. 

 Background 

The EBCE Board of Directors approved the original Rate Setting Protocol on September 26, 
2018, and additional amendments on December 18, 2019, to address changes in the billing 
engine configuration. Public engagement is outlined in the rate setting protocol as follows 
presentations to the Executive Committee, Community Advisory Committee, and Board of 
Directors. Additionally, the protocol calls for three community workshops and a period for 
written comments. 

Discussion 

Staff has facilitated public engagement annually in May 2019, 2020, and 2021. 

Year Rate Setting Written Comments Workshop Attendance 

2019 No Changes Proposed 2 5 



Consent Item 9 

2020 Bright Choice Discount Change: 1.5% 
to 1.0% 

Brilliant 100 Proposed Sunset 

8 15 

2021 No Changes Proposed 0 2 

  

EBCE defines the value proposition as the price differential between EBCE’s and PG&E’s 
generation rates. Today’s value proposition is: Bright Choice with a 1% savings compared to 
PG&E’s generation rate and Renewable 100 at $0.01 per kilowatt-hour more than PG&E’s 
generation rate.  

Staff recommends removing the requirement for workshops in a year when there are no 
proposed changes to the value proposition. This is supported by the limited public 
participation in workshops in 2019 and 2021.  

Staff recommends including the option of a webinar style meeting in addition to the option of 
in-person, reducing the required meetings to two, and maintaining the requirements to 
present to the Executive Committee, Community Advisory Committee, and Board of Directors, 
and the period of written comments each year when there are proposed changes to the value 
proposition.  

In years when there are no proposed changes to the value proposition, staff will continue with 
public outreach to encourage participation via the public comment process and public 
meetings when the annual budget is being discussed. Staff may also consider hosting an 
informal educational webinar, hosted during a similar timeframe as the value proposition 
meeting might have been held, as a means of maintaining the annual meeting cadence to 
encourage participation.  

Financial Impact 

There is no expected financial impact due to this policy change. 

Attachment 

A. Resolution Authorizing Staff to Amend the Rate Setting Protocol to Remove the 
Community Workshop Requirement in a Year When there is no Change to the Value 
Proposition 

B. Amended Rate Setting Policy 



Amendment Consent Item 9A 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2022-xx  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING STAFF TO AMEND 
THE RATE SETTING PROTOCOL TO REMOVE THE COMMUNITY WORKSHOP 

REQUIREMENT IN A YEAR WHEN THERE IS NO CHANGE TO THE VALUE PROPOSITION 

 

 WHEREAS The East Bay Community Energy Authority (“EBCE”) was formed as a 
community choice aggregation agency (“CCA”) on December 1, 2016, Under the Joint 
Exercise of Power Act, California Government Code sections 6500 et seq., among the 
County of Alameda, and the Cities of Albany, Berkeley, Dublin, Emeryville, Fremont, 
Hayward, Livermore, Piedmont, Oakland, San Leandro, and Union City to study, 
promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy-related climate change 
programs in all of the member jurisdictions. The cities of Newark and Pleasanton, 
located in Alameda County, along with the City of Tracy, located in San Joaquin 
County, were added as members of EBCE and parties to the JPA in March of 2020. 

 WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018, the Board approved by motion a Rate 
Setting Protocol; 

 WHEREAS, on December 17, 2019, the Board approved an amendment to the 
Rate Setting Protocol to allow for rate setting by vintage; 

 WHEREAS, it is in the interest of EBCE to maintain customer engagement in 
establishing the value proposition; and 

 WHEREAS, it is in the interest of EBCE to operate efficiently, streamlining 
requirements as the organization learns from past experiences. 

 WHEREAS, the Rate Setting Protocol requires that EBCE host a community 
workshop with each rate setting;   

 WHEREAS, limited public participation in community workshops in years where 
there is no change to the EBCE value proposition indicates that there may not be a 
need for these workshops in those years;  

 WHEREAS, EBCE would like to streamline its process to eliminate this 
unncessary requirement in years where there is no change to the value proposition; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EAST BAY COMMUNITY 
ENERGY AUTHORITY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Board hereby adopts the Amended and Restated Rate Setting 
Policy which (among other things) eliminates the requirement for a community 
workshop in years where there is no change to the value proposition.   
  
 



Amendment Consent Item 9A 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 18th day of May, 2022. 

 

     

             

     Dianne Martinez, Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Adrian Bankhead, Clerk of the Board 



Amendment Consent Item 9B 

 
 

Amended Rate Setting Protocol 

  

AMENDED AND RESTATED RATE SETTING POLICY 

From original protocol approved by motion on 9/26/18 and amended on 12/18/19 

  

Policy Number 14.2 

May 18, 2022 

Item # 

     I.          Purpose 

This policy serves to provide direction to EBCE staff on actions related to electric rates. 

   II.          Rate Actions 

  a.      Rate Setting 

 EBCE Staff must receive Board approval to revise the service level value propositions (e.g. offering a 
greater or lesser discount on Bright Choice). 

   b.     Rate Setting Process 

 EBCE’s Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent (August 2017) states that “EBCE will review its 
rates at a minimum once a year”. 

 The rate review and setting process is as follows: 



Amendment Consent Item 9B 

1.      Executive Committee meeting. Staff will provide a staff report containing analysis of PG&E 
rates and preliminary recommendations for changes to EBCE’s value proposition, if any. 

 2.      Community workshops. In a year when there is a proposed change to the value 
proposition, staff will conduct community workshops. Based on feedback received at the 
Executive Committee meeting, staff will revise analysis if needed, and solicit comments from the 
community. This will be achieved through a minimum of two (2) community meetings in 
geographically diverse locations, or online in a webinar-style format. Staff will consolidate 
feedback from these meetings into a supporting document that will be presented to the Board. 

3.      Written comments. Each year when there is a proposed change to the value proposition, 
written comments will be accepted in lieu of, or in addition to, verbal comments made during 
these workshops.  A period of time will be designated for written comments. A specific email 
address will be provided to the public to submit comments, along with a clear deadline for 
submission. 

4.      Community Advisory Committee meeting. The CAC will receive a presentation from staff 
and discuss the staff recommendation. 

5.      Board meeting. Staff will present analysis, findings, and recommendations derived from 
feedback from an Executive Committee meeting, Community Workshops, and a Community 
Advisory Committee meeting. The Board will have the opportunity to vote on staff 
recommendations. If Board requests further analysis, the process will return to the Executive 
Committee. The Executive Committee can then make a final recommendation that will be 
brought to the next Board meeting. 

 c.      Rate Modification 

 EBCE Staff is authorized to adjust EBCE’s rates to maintain the approved value proposition for each 
service level.  If there are changes to PG&E generation rates or fees that result in a more beneficial value 
proposition for customers, EBCE Staff is authorized to not adjust the rates. 

 



Consent Item 10 

 
 

Consent Item 10 
 

TO:   East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors 
 

FROM:  Howard Chang, Chief Operating Officer 
 
SUBJECT:  Amend Administrative Procurement Policy 

 
DATE:   May 18, 2022  
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Adopt a Resolution to amend the Administrative Procurement Policy. The amendments clarify 
what types of contracts are reported on, outline the requirements for purchases of goods and 
services under $5,000, explain that signing authority is based on contract amounts during 
each fiscal year, and format the document for better comprehension. 
 
Background and Discussion 
 
On February 7, 2018, the Board of Directors approved a Resolution adopting an Administrative 
Procurement Policy. The policy was most recently amended and restated on December 15, 
2021. Staff worked with General Counsel to make necessary and appropriate changes to the 
policy.  
 
This Amendment clarifies the following:  
 

1. Exactly what contracts will be reported monthly to the Board: all contracts excluding 
non-disclosure agreements, personnel agreements, and power purchase agreements 
(Section 4.5). 

2. A Purchase Order may be used for the purchase of goods or low-risk off-site services 
under $5,000, a contract is not required (Section III, Table 1). 

3. That the dollar amounts mentioned in Section III, Table 2, Table 4 and Table 5, related 
to signing authority apply to limits per fiscal year. 

 
The Amendment also includes formatting changes that allow for better comprehension.  
 
Fiscal Impact  
 
There is no anticipated fiscal impact associated with these amendments. 
 
Attachments 
 



Consent Item 10 

A. Resolution to Amend the Administrative Procurement Policy 
B. Amended and Restated Procurement Policy (with redline changes from previous 

version) 
C. Amended and Restated Procurement Policy (clean) 



Attachment Consent Item 10A 

RESOLUTION NO. R-2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY TO ADOPT AN AMENDED AND 
RESTATED ADMINISTRATIVE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 

 WHEREAS The East Bay Community Energy Authority (“EBCE”) was formed as a 
community choice aggregation agency (“CCA”) on December 1, 2016, under the Joint 
Exercise of Powers Act, California Government Code sections 6500 et seq., among the 
County of Alameda, and the Cities of Albany, Berkeley, Dublin, Emeryville, Fremont, 
Hayward, Livermore, Piedmont, Oakland, San Leandro, and Union City to study, 
promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy-related climate change 
programs in all of the member jurisdictions. The cities of Newark and Pleasanton, 
located in Alameda County, along with the City of Tracy, located in San Joaquin 
County, were added as members of EBCE and parties to the JPA in March of 2020. 

 WHEREAS It is in the interest of EBCE to establish administrative procurement 
practices that facilitate efficient business operations and provide fair compensation 
and local workforce opportunities whenever possible within a framework of high 
quality, competitive service offerings; 

 WHEREAS On February 7, 2018, the Board approved an Administrative 
Procurement Policy. Recently, on December 15, 2021, the Board approved an 
Amended and Restated Administrative Procurement Policy 1.7; and 

 WHEREAS EBCE staff feel it would be useful to make certain clarifications and 
adjustments to the formatting to make the Policy easier to read and understand. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EAST BAY COMMUNITY 
ENERGY AUTHORITY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Board hereby adopts the Eighth Amended and Restated 
Administrative Procurement Policy, attached as Exhibit A and listed as Policy # 1.8, 
which makes clarifications regarding: the categories of contracts that staff will report 
to the Board on, utilizing purchase orders for purchases of goods and low-risk off-site 
services under $5,000, and signing authority per fiscal year, as well as adjustments to 
formatting 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 18th day of May, 2022. 

 

 

     



Attachment Consent Item 10A 

             

     Dianne Martinez, Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Adrian Bankhead, Clerk of the Board 



 
SEVENTHFIFTH AMENDED AND RESTATED ADMINISTRATIVE PROCUREMENT 
POLICY 

 
 

Policy Number 1.87 
 

December 15, 2021May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item # 13 
Resolution Number R-2021-54 

 
 

I. PURPOSE 
 

It is in the interest of East Bay Community Energy (“EBCE”) to establish administrative procurement 
practices that facilitate efficient business operations and provide fair compensation and local 
workforce opportunities whenever possible within a framework of high quality, competitive service 
offerings. 

 

II. TYPES OF CONTRACTS 
II.  

1. Contracts for Goods and Non-Professional Services. As used in this policy, “General 
Contractual Services” means: 
1.1. Any and all supplies, articles, equipment, or personal property furnished to or used 

by an organizational unit of EBCE; and 
 

1.2. Most types of services, excluding professional services as defined below, under which 
the contractor provides services which are required by EBCE, but not furnished by the 
EBCE’s own employees. 

 
2. Contracts for Professional Services. As used in this policy, “Professional Services” means: 

2.1. The services of attorneys, physicians, architects, engineers, consultants, auditors, or 
other individuals or organizations possessing a high degree of professional, unique 
specialized technical skill or expertise, not always adaptable to competitive bidding. 
Professional Services are not considered General Contractual Services for the 
purpose of these procurement procedures. 

 
3. Power Procurement Contracts 

3.1. Contracts for energy (also known as Power Purchase Agreements or PPAs) or energy 
related products shall be subject to the requirements and signing authorities set out in 
Section IX of this Policy. 

 
4. All Contracts 

4.1. When procuring goods and services utilizing federal funds (e.g. grant funds), EBCE shall 
comply with all federal project requirements and Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. (See 2 CFR § 200) 

Formatted: Character scale: 100%

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.96",  No bullets or
numbering

Attachment Consent Item 10B



4.2. No EBCE employee, official, or director shall split purchases into more than one 
purchase in order to avoid the procurement requirements in this policy. Splitting purchases 
does not allow for a competitive marketplace, increases administrative workflow, and may 
create ethical issues. 

 
4.3. No EBCE employee, officer, or Director shall accept, directly or indirectly, any gift, rebate, 

money or anything else of value from any person or entity if such gift, rebate, money or 
anything of value is intended to reward or be an inducement for conducting business, 
placing orders with, or otherwise using the employee’s position to secure an agreement 
with EBCE. 

 
4.4. Prior to signing any agreement for General Contractual Services or Professional Services, 

the individual signing shall ensure all of the following: 
 

4.4.1. The contract compensation has been budgeted for in the current EBCE budget; 
 

4.4.2. That adequate funds have been appropriated by the Board; 
 

4.4.3. That such funds are unexpended and unencumbered sufficient to pay the expense of 
the contract; and 

 
4.4.4. That any agreement for General Contractual Services or Professional Services for 

an amount of $5,000 or more in one calendar year has been approved as to form and 
content by the General Counsel or his/her designee. 

 
4.5. EBCE shall report on all new contracts, regardless of scope or contract value, at each 

Board meeting, except non-disclosure agreements, personnel contracts, and Power 
Purchase Agreements. Unless subject to the attorney client privilege or some other 
legal protection, as a public agency, EBCE shall release all public records, including contracts, 
as required by the Public Records Act. 

 
4.6. Agreements with existing vendors may be amended and/or extended to allow for the 

continuation of services for no more than a total term of five (5) years. Such 
amendments/extensions are subject to the applicable signing authority identified in Tables 
1-4 based on the total dollar amount of the agreement. 

 
4.7. The CEO may suspend the requirements of Section III (General Contractual Services 

Procurement) or Section V (Professional Services Procurement) for any agreement. 
Furthermore, the COO may suspend the requirements of Section III or Section V for 
any agreement they would otherwise have the authority to sign. However, all agreements 
for which the required procurement procedures have been suspended pursuant to this 
Section II. 4.7 must be approved by the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Directors 
and must comply with signing authority restrictions identified in Section III, Table 2, 
and Section V, Table 4. 

 
5. Promotional Items and Bulk Purchases 

5.1. The purchase of office supplies, promotional items, and similarly low risk goods bought in 
bulk online or otherwise are subject to the relevant procurement methods identified in 
Section III, but do not require a Consulting Services Agreement or other agreement. 

Attachment Consent Item 10B



III. GENERAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT 
 

1. Procurement Method 
1.1. Table 1 indicates the appropriate procurement method for the purchase of General 

Contractual Services of certain dollar amounts. 
 

1.2. Nothing in this section prohibits the use of a more stringent procurement method than 
the one indicated by Table 1. At his or her discretion, the CEO may direct that an agreement 
for General Contractual Services is awarded through the Formal Bidding Procedures 
described herein. 

Table 1 
 

PROCUREMENT METHOD DOLLAR AMOUNT per 
FISCAL YEAR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

Formal Bidding Procedure > $100,000 RFP/RFQ 
 

Solicit 3 written quotes; may 
be in electronic format 

 
$50,000 - $100,000 

Quotes must include provider’s 
name, address, phone number, 
professional 
license number, if applicable 

 

Solicit 3 verbal quotes 

 

$10,000 - $49,999.99 

Staff shall note quotes by 
including the providers’ name, 
address, phone number and 
amount of the verbal l 
proposal in EBCE’s records 

No solicitation necessary < $10,000 Seek the lowest price for the  
highest quality 

Purchase Order Can Be Used <$5,000 * A contract is not required for 
theContracts  purchase offor 
goods or low-risk off- site 
services under $5,000only 

 
2. Signing Authority 

2.1. Table 2 indicates the appropriate signing authority for the purchase of General 
Contractual Services of certain dollar amounts. 

 
2.2. Nothing in this section prohibits EBCE staff from seeking approval of a more senior 

signing authority than is permitted by this policy. 
 

Table 2 
 

SIGNING AUTHORITY DOLLAR AMOUNT 
per FISCAL YEAR 

CONTRACT TYPE 

Board Approval > $100,000 All contracts 
Chief Executive Officer, or 
his/her designee $0 - $100,000 All contracts 

 
General Counsel 

 
$0-$50,000 

All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the General 
Counsel 

Chief Operating Officer $0-$25,000 All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the COO 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.1", Hanging:  0.13"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.17"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.17", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.17", Right:  0.1", Space
Before:  0.1 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.06 li

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.17", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.17", First line:  0"

Formatted: Character scale: 95%

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.12"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.06", First line:  0.03"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.12", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.06", First line:  0.03"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.12"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.12"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.06", First line:  0.03"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.12"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.06", First line:  0.03"

Attachment Consent Item 10B



 

Senior Director or 
Vice President 

 
$0-$10,000 

All contracts whose object or purpose is 
related to the activities or functions of 
that Senior Director or Vice President 

 
Director 

 
$0-$5,000 

All contracts whose object or purpose is 
related to the activities or functions of 
that Director 

 
 

IV. FORMAL BIDDING PROCEDURES 
 

Except as otherwise specifically directed in writing by the CEO, agreements for the purchase of 
General Contractual Services for a total amount that exceeds $100,000 per fiscal year shall be 
procured as follows: 

 
1. Formal Bid Invitations. Invitations to participate in the Request for Proposal/Request for 

Qualifications process shall include a general description of the supplies or services sought by 
EBCE, and shall specify the time, place and date for opening bids. 

 
2. Evaluation. Bids and proposals received through a competitive solicitation shall be subject to a 

set of criteria and a scoring system, reviewed and evaluated by relevant EBCE staff and an 
evaluation committee selected by the relevant staff, CEO, COO or General Counsel, or at the 
discretion of the Board, members of a designated Board subcommittee. 

 
3. Lowest Responsible Bidder. “Lowest responsible bidder” as used in this policy shall mean that 

bidder who best responds in price, quality, service, fitness, or capacity to the particular 
requirements of EBCE. Price alone shall not be the determining factor but shall be considered 
along with other factors, including but not limited to the following: 

 
3.1. EBCE seeks to support companies and contractors that reflect its values and has identified 

four vendor/contractor categories that shall be given special consideration during bid 
evaluation and selection. In competitive solicitations, these categories shall receive bonus 
percentages/points ranging from 2.5% - 5% for a maximum bonus total of 12.5% in a 
bid scoring process: 

 
3.1.1 Businesses within Service Territory: EBCE desires to support business within its 
service territory. Businesses with office(s) located in EBCE’s service territory and 
businesses that have at least 25% of their workforce who reside in EBCE’s service 
territory shall receive a bonus equal to 5% or 5 points out of a 100-point scoring 
system in competitive solicitations. 

 
3.1.2 Union Labor: EBCE desires to support the use of union labor where possible. EBCE 
shall make its best effort to work with unionized contractors and subcontractors in the 
provision of goods and services to EBCE. Businesses who use union labor and/or 
unionized contractors shall receive a bonus equal to 2.5% or 2.5 points out of a 100-
point scoring system in competitive solicitations. 

 
3.1.3 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises: EBCE desires to support Disabled Veteran 
Business Enterprises (DVBEs). Businesses that are registered with the California 
Department of General Services as a DVBE shall receive a bonus equal to 2.5% or 2.5 
points out of a 100-point scoring system in competitive solicitations. 

  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.18", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.18"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.18"

Formatted: Left

Attachment Consent Item 10B



3.1.4 Disadvantaged Communities: EBCE desires to support businesses located in a 
Disadvantaged Community (DAC) as identified by the California Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (CalEPA) CalEnviroScreen Tool. Businesses with a primary office (i.e. where 
work is primarily conducted for EBCE) located in a DAC, as determined by the latest 
version of the Tool at the time, shall receive a bonus equal to 2.5% or 2.5 points out of 
a 100-point scoring system in competitive solicitations. 
 

3.2. EBCE is committed to the highest standards of responsible behavior and integrity in all of 
its business relationships. EBCE will consider a company’s business practices, environmental 
track record, and commitment to fair employment practices and compensation in its 
procurement decisions. 

 
3.3. Award of Contract. EBCE shall award the contract to purchase goods or services to the 

lowest responsible bidder, unless such an award would be prohibited by California 
law. 

 
 
 

V. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT 
 

1. Procurement Method 
1.1. Table 3 indicates the appropriate procurement method for the purchase of Professional 

Services of certain dollar amounts. 
 

1.2. Nothing in this section prohibits the use of a more stringent procurement method than the 
one indicated by Table 3. At his or her discretion, the CEO may direct that an 
agreement for Professional Services is awarded through the Formal Bidding Procedures 
described herein. 

 

Table 3 
 

PROCUREMENT METHOD DOLLAR AMOUNT per 
FISCAL YEAR 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
Solicit 3 written quotes; may 

be in electronic format 

 

$50,000 and above 

Proposal must include provider’s 
name, address, phone number, 
professional license number, if 
applicable 

 

Solicit 3 verbal quotes 

 

$10,000 - $49,999.99 

Staff shall note quotes by including 
the providers’ name, address, 
phone number and amount of the 
verbal 
proposal in EBCE’s records 

No solicitation is necessary $0 - $10,000 Seek the lowest price for the 
highest quality 

 
2. Signing Authority 

2.1. Table 4 indicates the appropriate signing authority for an agreement for Professional 
Services of certain dollar amounts. 

 
2.2. Nothing in this section prohibits EBCE staff from seeking approval of a more senior 

signing authority than is permitted by this policy. 

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.11"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.11", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.11"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.11", First line:  0"

Attachment Consent Item 10B



 
Table 4 

 

SIGNING AUTHORITY DOLLAR AMOUNT 
per FISCAL YEAR 

CONTRACT TYPE 

Board Approval > $100,000 per 
fiscal year All contracts 

Chief Executive Officer, or 
his/her designee 

   $0 - $100,000 per 
fiscal year All contracts 

 
General Counsel $0-$50,000 per fiscal 

year 

All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the General 
Counsel 

Chief Operating Officer $0-$25,000 per fiscal 
year 

All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the COO 

Senior Director or Vice 
President 

$0-$10,000 per fiscal 
year 

All contracts whose object or purpose 
is related to the activities or functions 
of that  
Senior Director or Vice President 

 
Director $0-$5,000 per fiscal 

year 

All contracts whose object or purpose 
is  
related to the activities or functions of 
that Director 

 
VI. SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT 

 
1. Under some circumstances, EBCE competitive solicitation requirements may be dispensed with when 

the goods or services are only available from one source either because the brand or trade 
name article, goods, or product or proprietary service is the only one which will properly meet 
the needs of the EBCE or the item or service is unique and available only from a sole 
source. 

 
2. Sole source purchasing, whereby the procurement methods identified in Tables 1-4 are not 

required, is authorized when the goods or services contemplated are only able to be 
performed by a sole provider, such as the holder of an exclusive patent or franchise, for the 
purchase of unique or innovative goods or services including but not limited to computer 
software and technology, or for purchases of goods or services when there is a demonstrated 
need for compatibility with an existing item or service used by EBCE. 

 
3. A sole source may be designated when it is apparent that a needed product or service is 

uniquely available from the source, or for all practical purposes, it is justifiably in the best 
interest of EBCE. 

 
4. The following factors are not sufficient to justify a sole source procurement: 

4.1. Personal preference for product or vendor 
4.2. Cost 
4.3. Vendor performance 
4.4. Local service (this may be considered an award factor in competitive bidding) 
4.5. Features that exceed the minimum requirements for the goods or services 

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.13"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.11", Hanging:  0.07"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.13"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.11", Hanging:  0.07"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.11", Hanging:  0.07"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.13", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.11", Hanging:  0.07"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.13", First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.11", Hanging:  0.07"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.13", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.13"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.13", Right:  0.08",
Space Before:  0.1 pt, Line spacing:  single

Attachment Consent Item 10B



VI. EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT 
 

1. In the event of an emergency, the CEO may suspend the normal purchasing and 
procurement requirements for goods and services related to abatement of the 
impacts or effects of the emergency. 

 
2. An emergency is deemed to exist in the following circumstances: 

2.1. There is an unexpected occurrence requiring immediate action to prevent or mitigate the 
loss or impairment of life, health, property, or essential public services, including the 
provision of energy or power to EBCE customers; or 

2.2. There is immediate need to prepare for national or local defense; or 
2.3. There is a breakdown in infrastructure or an essential service which requires the 

immediate purchase of supplies or contractual services to protect the public heath, or 
safety or property; or 

2.4. A local emergency or disaster has been declared. 
 
 
 

VII. COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 
 

1. The procurement methods identified in Table 1 -4 shall not be required when the contract for 
goods or services will be provided by another governmental agency. 

 
2. EBCE may adopt another governmental agency’s agreement with a contractor (“Piggyback 

Agreement”) as its own without adhering to the procurement methods identified in Table 1-4 if 
that Piggyback Agreement is the product of the respective governmental agency’s formal 
competitive solicitation process, provided that that agency’s procurement is not in conflict with 
California law. 

 
 
 

VIII. PUBLIC PROJECTS 
 

1. Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act. EBCE adheres to the alternative bidding 
procedures provided by the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, California Public 
Contract Code section 22000 et seq. (UPCCAA) Public projects (as defined in Section 22002 of 
the California Public Contract Code) that do not exceed the dollar limits in Section 22032(b) of 
the Public Contract Code (as such limits currently exist or may subsequently be amended), 
may be let to contract by informal procedures as set forth in the UPCCAA. 

 
2. At the time of the adoption of this Policy, the UPCCAA applied to the following types of 

projects: 
 

2.1. Public projects include construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, 
improvement, demolition, and repair work involving any publicly owned, leased, or 
operated facility. This includes painting or repainting of any publicly owned, leased, or 
operated facility. 

Attachment Consent Item 10B



 

2.2. Public projects up to $60,000 may be performed by EBCE employees, by negotiated 
contract, or by purchase order pursuant to the UPCCAA. 

 
2.3. Public projects up to $200,000 may be contracted using informal procedures as set forth in 

the UPCCAA. 
 

3. Pre-Qualified List. A list of contractors may be developed and maintained in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 22034 of the Public Contract Code and criteria promulgated from 
time to time by the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission 
(CUCCAC). 

 
4. Notice. 

4.1. Where a public project is to be performed, a notice inviting informal bids shall be mailed, 
faxed, or emailed not less than ten (10) days before bids are due to all contractors for 
the category of work to be bid as shown on the Pre-Qualified list developed in accordance 
with this Section IV, and to all construction trade journals as specified by the CUCCAC in 
accordance with Section 22036 of the Public Contract Code. Additional contractors and/or 
construction trade journals may be notified at the discretion of the department soliciting bids, 
provided, however; if there is no list of qualified contractors maintained by EBCE for the 
particular category of work to be performed, the notice inviting bids shall be sent only to 
the construction trade journals specified by the CUCCAC. 

 
4.2. The notice inviting informal bids shall describe the project in general terms and how to 

obtain more detailed information about the project and state the time and place for the 
submission of bids. 

 
5. Award of Contract. The CEO and his or her designee is authorized to award public 
project contracts, subject to the signing authority permitted by Table 5. Nothing in this section 
prohibits EBCE staff from seeking approval of a more senior signing authority than is 
permitted by this policy. 

 
Table 5 

 
SIGNING AUTHORITY DOLLAR AMOUNT 

per fiscal year 

Executive Committee of the Board of 
Directors or Board of Directors 
Approval 

 
> $100,000 per fiscal year 

Chief Executive Officer, or his/her 
designee 

$0 - $100,000 per fiscal  year 

 
General Counsel 

$0-$50,000 per fiscal year 

Chief Operating Officer $0-$25,000 per fiscal year 

Senior Director or Vice President $0-$10,000 per fiscal year 

 
Director 

$0-$5,000 per fiscal year 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06"

Formatted: Centered, Right:  0"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.18", First line:  0",
Right:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06", Space
Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.18", First line:  0",
Right:  0", Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06", Space
Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.18", Space Before:
 0 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06",
Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06",
Space Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.18", Space Before:
 0 pt

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06", Space
Before:  0 pt

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.43", Hanging:  0.06"

Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left:  0.18", Space Before:
 0 pt

Attachment Consent Item 10B



IX. PROCUREMENT OF POWER

1. EBCE must secure sufficient power resources and energy attributes to serve its customers,
comply with State law and meet EBCE’s and its member agencies’ goals. The Board shall
approve the form of all master power purchase agreements. The signing authority in Section 4
shall not apply to power and energy attribute procurement. The following EBCE staff shall be
authorized to enter into power purchase agreements and other agreements to secure power
and energy attributes providing such agreements are in substantially the same form as the
Board-approved master power purchase agreements, and that all transactions and
agreements are in strict compliance with EBCE’s Risk Management Policy:

1.1. The CEO is authorized to enter into agreements in accordance to the approved
Risk Management Policy. 

1.2. The COO is authorized to enter into agreements in accordance to the approved 
Risk Management Policy, provided that transactions shall not be over two years in 
duration and  

1.2. $10,000,000 in total compensation. 

1.3. The Director of Power Resources is authorized to enter into agreements in accordance 
to the approved Risk Management Policy, provided that transactions shall not be over 
one year in duration and not be over $2,000,000 in compensation. 

1.4. With dual signatures, the COO and Director of Power Resources are authorized to 
enter into agreements with equivalent authority as the CEO in accordance with the 
approved Risk Management Policy. 

X. MISCELLANEOUS

1. The following signing authorities shall apply, after review and approval of the named agreements
by the General Counsel, or his/her designee, except where in conflict with the Joint Powers
Agreement, state or federal law:

1.1. Non-Disclosure Agreements – Director level and above,

1.2. Banking and Treasury Administration – COO level and above, and

1.3. Release of Liability and Indemnification – Director level and above.

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  0.71", Line spacing: 
Multiple 1.06 li, Outline numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  1.07" + Indent at:  1.37", Tab stops: 
1.37", Left

Attachment Consent Item 10B



 
SEVENTH AMENDED AND RESTATED ADMINISTRATIVE PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 
 

Policy Number 1.8 
 

May 18, 2022 
Agenda Item #  
Resolution Number  

 
 

I. PURPOSE 
 

It is in the interest of East Bay Community Energy (“EBCE”) to establish administrative procurement practices 
that facilitate efficient business operations and provide fair compensation and local workforce opportunities 
whenever possible within a framework of high quality, competitive service offerings. 

 

II. TYPES OF CONTRACTS 
 

1. Contracts for Goods and Non-Professional Services. As used in this policy, “General Contractual 
Services” means: 
1.1. Any and all supplies, articles, equipment, or personal property furnished to or used by an 

organizational unit of EBCE; and 
 

1.2. Most types of services, excluding professional services as defined below, under which the 
contractor provides services which are required by EBCE, but not furnished by the EBCE’s own 
employees. 

 
2. Contracts for Professional Services. As used in this policy, “Professional Services” means: 

2.1. The services of attorneys, physicians, architects, engineers, consultants, auditors, or other 
individuals or organizations possessing a high degree of professional, unique specialized technical 
skill or expertise, not always adaptable to competitive bidding. Professional Services are not 
considered General Contractual Services for the purpose of these procurement procedures. 

 
3. Power Procurement Contracts 

3.1. Contracts for energy (also known as Power Purchase Agreements or PPAs) or energy related 
products shall be subject to the requirements and signing authorities set out in Section IX of this 
Policy. 

 
4. All Contracts 

4.1. When procuring goods and services utilizing federal funds (e.g. grant funds), EBCE shall comply 
with all federal project requirements and Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. (See 2 CFR § 200) 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



4.2. No EBCE employee, official, or director shall split purchases into more than one purchase in 
order to avoid the procurement requirements in this policy. Splitting purchases does not allow for a 
competitive marketplace, increases administrative workflow, and may create ethical issues. 

 
4.3. No EBCE employee, officer, or Director shall accept, directly or indirectly, any gift, rebate, money or 

anything else of value from any person or entity if such gift, rebate, money or anything of value 
is intended to reward or be an inducement for conducting business, placing orders with, or otherwise 
using the employee’s position to secure an agreement with EBCE. 

 
4.4. Prior to signing any agreement for General Contractual Services or Professional Services, the 

individual signing shall ensure all of the following: 
 

4.4.1. The contract compensation has been budgeted for in the current EBCE budget; 
 

4.4.2. That adequate funds have been appropriated by the Board; 
 

4.4.3. That such funds are unexpended and unencumbered sufficient to pay the expense of the 
contract; and 

 
4.4.4. That any agreement for General Contractual Services or Professional Services for an 

amount of $5,000 or more in one calendar year has been approved as to form and content by 
the General Counsel or his/her designee. 

 
4.5. EBCE shall report on all new contracts, regardless of scope or contract value, at each Board 

meeting, except non-disclosure agreements, personnel contracts, and Power Purchase 
Agreements. Unless subject to the attorney client privilege or some other legal protection, as a 
public agency, EBCE shall release all public records, including contracts, as required by the Public 
Records Act. 

 
4.6. Agreements with existing vendors may be amended and/or extended to allow for the 

continuation of services for no more than a total term of five (5) years. Such 
amendments/extensions are subject to the applicable signing authority identified in Tables 1-4 
based on the total dollar amount of the agreement. 

 
4.7. The CEO may suspend the requirements of Section III (General Contractual Services 

Procurement) or Section V (Professional Services Procurement) for any agreement. 
Furthermore, the COO may suspend the requirements of Section III or Section V for any 
agreement they would otherwise have the authority to sign. However, all agreements for which the 
required procurement procedures have been suspended pursuant to this Section II. 4.7 must be 
approved by the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Directors and must comply with signing 
authority restrictions identified in Section III, Table 2, and Section V, Table 4. 

 
5. Promotional Items and Bulk Purchases 

5.1. The purchase of office supplies, promotional items, and similarly low risk goods bought in bulk 
online or otherwise are subject to the relevant procurement methods identified in Section III, but 
do not require a Consulting Services Agreement or other agreement. 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



III. GENERAL CONTRACTUAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT 
 

1. Procurement Method 
1.1. Table 1 indicates the appropriate procurement method for the purchase of General Contractual 

Services of certain dollar amounts. 
 

1.2. Nothing in this section prohibits the use of a more stringent procurement method than the one 
indicated by Table 1. At his or her discretion, the CEO may direct that an agreement for General 
Contractual Services is awarded through the Formal Bidding Procedures described herein. 

Table 1 
 

PROCUREMENT METHOD DOLLAR AMOUNT per 
FISCAL YEAR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

Formal Bidding Procedure > $100,000 RFP/RFQ 
 

Solicit 3 written quotes; may be 
in electronic format 

 
$50,000 - $100,000 

Quotes must include provider’s name, 
address, phone number, professional 
license number, if applicable 

 

Solicit 3 verbal quotes 

 

$10,000 - $49,999.99 

Staff shall note quotes by including 
the providers’ name, address, phone 
number and amount of the verbal 
proposal in EBCE’s records 

No solicitation necessary < $10,000 Seek the lowest price for the highest 
quality 

Purchase Order Can Be Used <$5,000 * A contract is not required for the 
purchase of goods or low-risk off- 
site services under $5,000 

 
2. Signing Authority 

2.1. Table 2 indicates the appropriate signing authority for the purchase of General Contractual 
Services of certain dollar amounts. 

 
2.2. Nothing in this section prohibits EBCE staff from seeking approval of a more senior signing 

authority than is permitted by this policy. 
 

Table 2 
 

SIGNING AUTHORITY DOLLAR AMOUNT 
per FISCAL YEAR 

CONTRACT TYPE 

Board Approval > $100,000 All contracts 
Chief Executive Officer, or 
his/her designee $0 - $100,000 All contracts 

 
General Counsel 

 
$0-$50,000 

All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the General 
Counsel 

Chief Operating Officer $0-$25,000  All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the COO 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



 

Senior Director or Vice 
President 

 
$0-$10,000  

All contracts whose object or purpose is 
related to the activities or functions of that 
Senior Director or Vice President 

 
Director 

 
$0-$5,000  

All contracts whose object or purpose is 
related to the activities or functions of that 
Director 

 
 

IV. FORMAL BIDDING PROCEDURES 
 

Except as otherwise specifically directed in writing by the CEO, agreements for the purchase of General 
Contractual Services for a total amount that exceeds $100,000 per fiscal year shall be procured as follows: 

 
1. Formal Bid Invitations. Invitations to participate in the Request for Proposal/Request for 

Qualifications process shall include a general description of the supplies or services sought by EBCE, and 
shall specify the time, place and date for opening bids. 

 
2. Evaluation. Bids and proposals received through a competitive solicitation shall be subject to a set of 

criteria and a scoring system, reviewed and evaluated by relevant EBCE staff and an evaluation 
committee selected by the relevant staff, CEO, COO or General Counsel, or at the discretion of the 
Board, members of a designated Board subcommittee. 

 
3. Lowest Responsible Bidder. “Lowest responsible bidder” as used in this policy shall mean that bidder who 

best responds in price, quality, service, fitness, or capacity to the particular requirements of EBCE. 
Price alone shall not be the determining factor but shall be considered along with other factors, including 
but not limited to the following: 

 
3.1. EBCE seeks to support companies and contractors that reflect its values and has identified four 

vendor/contractor categories that shall be given special consideration during bid evaluation and 
selection. In competitive solicitations, these categories shall receive bonus percentages/points 
ranging from 2.5% - 5% for a maximum bonus total of 12.5% in a bid scoring process: 

 
3.1.1 Businesses within Service Territory: EBCE desires to support business within its service 
territory. Businesses with office(s) located in EBCE’s service territory and businesses that have at 
least 25% of their workforce who reside in EBCE’s service territory shall receive a bonus 
equal to 5% or 5 points out of a 100-point scoring system in competitive solicitations. 

 
3.1.2 Union Labor: EBCE desires to support the use of union labor where possible. EBCE shall 
make its best effort to work with unionized contractors and subcontractors in the provision of 
goods and services to EBCE. Businesses who use union labor and/or unionized contractors shall 
receive a bonus equal to 2.5% or 2.5 points out of a 100-point scoring system in competitive 
solicitations. 

 
3.1.3 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprises: EBCE desires to support Disabled Veteran Business 
Enterprises (DVBEs). Businesses that are registered with the California Department of General 
Services as a DVBE shall receive a bonus equal to 2.5% or 2.5 points out of a 100-point 
scoring system in competitive solicitations. 

  

Attachment Consent Item 10C



3.1.4 Disadvantaged Communities: EBCE desires to support businesses located in a 
Disadvantaged Community (DAC) as identified by the California Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (CalEPA) CalEnviroScreen Tool. Businesses with a primary office (i.e. where work is 
primarily conducted for EBCE) located in a DAC, as determined by the latest version of the Tool 
at the time, shall receive a bonus equal to 2.5% or 2.5 points out of a 100-point scoring system 
in competitive solicitations. 
 

3.2. EBCE is committed to the highest standards of responsible behavior and integrity in all of its 
business relationships. EBCE will consider a company’s business practices, environmental track record, 
and commitment to fair employment practices and compensation in its procurement decisions. 

 
3.3. Award of Contract. EBCE shall award the contract to purchase goods or services to the lowest 

responsible bidder, unless such an award would be prohibited by California law. 
 
 
 

V. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROCUREMENT 
 

1. Procurement Method 
1.1. Table 3 indicates the appropriate procurement method for the purchase of Professional Services of 

certain dollar amounts. 
 

1.2. Nothing in this section prohibits the use of a more stringent procurement method than the one 
indicated by Table 3. At his or her discretion, the CEO may direct that an agreement for 
Professional Services is awarded through the Formal Bidding Procedures described herein. 

 

Table 3 
 

PROCUREMENT METHOD DOLLAR AMOUNT per 
FISCAL YEAR 

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
Solicit 3 written quotes; may be 

in electronic format 

 

$50,000 and above 

Proposal must include provider’s name, 
address, phone number, 
professional license number, if 
applicable 

 

Solicit 3 verbal quotes 

 

$10,000 - $49,999.99 

Staff shall note quotes by including the 
providers’ name, address, phone 
number and amount of the verbal 
proposal in EBCE’s records 

No solicitation is necessary $0 - $10,000 Seek the lowest price for the highest 
quality 

 
2. Signing Authority 

2.1. Table 4 indicates the appropriate signing authority for an agreement for Professional Services of 
certain dollar amounts. 

 
2.2. Nothing in this section prohibits EBCE staff from seeking approval of a more senior signing 

authority than is permitted by this policy. 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



 
Table 4 

 

SIGNING AUTHORITY DOLLAR AMOUNT 
per Fiscal Year 

CONTRACT TYPE 

Board Approval > $100,000  All contracts 

Chief Executive Officer, or 
his/her designee 

    $0 - $100,000  All contracts 

 
General Counsel $0-$50,000  All contracts related to the activities or 

functions of the Office of the General 
Counsel 

Chief Operating Officer $0-$25,000  All contracts related to the activities or 
functions of the Office of the COO 

Senior Director or Vice 
President 

$0-$10,000  All contracts whose object or purpose is 
related to the activities or functions of that 
Senior Director or Vice President 

 
Director $0-$5,000  All contracts whose object or purpose is 

related to the activities or functions of that 
Director 

 
VI. SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT 

 
1. Under some circumstances, EBCE competitive solicitation requirements may be dispensed with when the 

goods or services are only available from one source either because the brand or trade name article, 
goods, or product or proprietary service is the only one which will properly meet the needs of the EBCE 
or the item or service is unique and available only from a sole source. 

 
2. Sole source purchasing, whereby the procurement methods identified in Tables 1-4 are not required, is 

authorized when the goods or services contemplated are only able to be performed by a sole 
provider, such as the holder of an exclusive patent or franchise, for the purchase of unique or 
innovative goods or services including but not limited to computer software and technology, or for 
purchases of goods or services when there is a demonstrated need for compatibility with an existing item 
or service used by EBCE. 

 
3. A sole source may be designated when it is apparent that a needed product or service is uniquely 

available from the source, or for all practical purposes, it is justifiably in the best interest of EBCE. 
 

4. The following factors are not sufficient to justify a sole source procurement: 
4.1. Personal preference for product or vendor 
4.2. Cost 
4.3. Vendor performance 
4.4. Local service (this may be considered an award factor in competitive bidding) 
4.5. Features that exceed the minimum requirements for the goods or services 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



VI. EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT 
 

1. In the event of an emergency, the CEO may suspend the normal purchasing and procurement 
requirements for goods and services related to abatement of the impacts or effects of the 
emergency. 

 
2. An emergency is deemed to exist in the following circumstances: 

2.1. There is an unexpected occurrence requiring immediate action to prevent or mitigate the loss or 
impairment of life, health, property, or essential public services, including the provision of 
energy or power to EBCE customers; or 

2.2. There is immediate need to prepare for national or local defense; or 
2.3. There is a breakdown in infrastructure or an essential service which requires the immediate 

purchase of supplies or contractual services to protect the public heath, or safety or property; or 
2.4. A local emergency or disaster has been declared. 

 
 
 

VII. COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 
 

1. The procurement methods identified in Table 1 -4 shall not be required when the contract for goods or 
services will be provided by another governmental agency. 

 
2. EBCE may adopt another governmental agency’s agreement with a contractor (“Piggyback 

Agreement”) as its own without adhering to the procurement methods identified in Table 1-4 if that 
Piggyback Agreement is the product of the respective governmental agency’s formal competitive 
solicitation process, provided that that agency’s procurement is not in conflict with California law. 

 
 
 

VIII. PUBLIC PROJECTS 
 

1. Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act. EBCE adheres to the alternative bidding 
procedures provided by the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, California Public 
Contract Code section 22000 et seq. (UPCCAA) Public projects (as defined in Section 22002 of the 
California Public Contract Code) that do not exceed the dollar limits in Section 22032(b) of the Public 
Contract Code (as such limits currently exist or may subsequently be amended), may be let to 
contract by informal procedures as set forth in the UPCCAA. 

 
2. At the time of the adoption of this Policy, the UPCCAA applied to the following types of projects: 

 
2.1. Public projects include construction, reconstruction, erection, alteration, renovation, 

improvement, demolition, and repair work involving any publicly owned, leased, or operated 
facility. This includes painting or repainting of any publicly owned, leased, or operated facility. 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



 

2.2. Public projects up to $60,000 may be performed by EBCE employees, by negotiated contract, or by 
purchase order pursuant to the UPCCAA. 

 
2.3. Public projects up to $200,000 may be contracted using informal procedures as set forth in the 

UPCCAA. 
 

3. Pre-Qualified List. A list of contractors may be developed and maintained in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 22034 of the Public Contract Code and criteria promulgated from time to time by 
the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission (CUCCAC). 

 
4. Notice. 

4.1. Where a public project is to be performed, a notice inviting informal bids shall be mailed, faxed, or 
emailed not less than ten (10) days before bids are due to all contractors for the category of work 
to be bid as shown on the Pre-Qualified list developed in accordance with this Section IV, and to all 
construction trade journals as specified by the CUCCAC in accordance with Section 22036 of the 
Public Contract Code. Additional contractors and/or construction trade journals may be notified at the 
discretion of the department soliciting bids, provided, however; if there is no list of qualified 
contractors maintained by EBCE for the particular category of work to be performed, the notice 
inviting bids shall be sent only to the construction trade journals specified by the CUCCAC. 

 
4.2. The notice inviting informal bids shall describe the project in general terms and how to obtain 

more detailed information about the project and state the time and place for the submission of bids. 
 

5. Award of Contract. The CEO and his or her designee is authorized to award public project 
contracts, subject to the signing authority permitted by Table 5. Nothing in this section prohibits EBCE 
staff from seeking approval of a more senior signing authority than is permitted by this policy. 

 
Table 5 

 
SIGNING AUTHORITY DOLLAR AMOUNT 

per fiscal year 

Executive Committee of the Board of 
Directors or Board of Directors Approval 

 
> $100,000 

Chief Executive Officer, or his/her 
designee 

$0 - $100,000 

 
General Counsel $0-$50,000 

Chief Operating Officer $0-$25,000 

Senior Director or Vice President $0-$10,000 

 
Director $0-$5,000 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



IX. PROCUREMENT OF POWER 
 

1. EBCE must secure sufficient power resources and energy attributes to serve its customers, comply with 
State law and meet EBCE’s and its member agencies’ goals. The Board shall approve the form of all 
master power purchase agreements. The signing authority in Section 4 shall not apply to power and 
energy attribute procurement. The following EBCE staff shall be authorized to enter into power purchase 
agreements and other agreements to secure power and energy attributes providing such agreements are 
in substantially the same form as the Board-approved master power purchase agreements, and that all 
transactions and agreements are in strict compliance with EBCE’s Risk Management Policy: 

 

1.1. The CEO is authorized to enter into agreements in accordance to the approved Risk 
Management Policy. 

 
1.2. The COO is authorized to enter into agreements in accordance to the approved Risk 

Management Policy, provided that transactions shall not be over two years in duration and 
$10,000,000 in total compensation. 

 
1.3. The Director of Power Resources is authorized to enter into agreements in accordance to the 

approved Risk Management Policy, provided that transactions shall not be over one year in 
duration and not be over $2,000,000 in compensation. 

 
1.4. With dual signatures, the COO and Director of Power Resources are authorized to enter into 

agreements with equivalent authority as the CEO in accordance with the approved Risk 
Management Policy. 

 
X. MISCELLANEOUS 

 

1. The following signing authorities shall apply, after review and approval of the named agreements by the 
General Counsel, or his/her designee, except where in conflict with the Joint Powers Agreement, state, or 
federal law: 

 
1.1. Non-Disclosure Agreements – Director level and above, 

 
1.2. Banking and Treasury Administration – COO level and above, and 

 
1.3. Release of Liability and Indemnification – Director level and above. 

Attachment Consent Item 10C



CEO Report Item 11 

  
  

CEO Report Item 11 
  

TO:   East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors  
  
FROM:  Nick Chaset, Chief Executive Officer  
  
SUBJECT:  CEO Report (Informational Item)   
  
DATE:   May 18, 2022 
________________________________________________________________________  
    
Recommendation  
Accept Chief Executive Officer (CEO) report on update items below.  
 
Executive Committee 
The Executive Committee met on April 29, 2022 at 12pm.  Members received a review of the 
FY 2022/2023 Draft Budget.  The next meeting is scheduled for Friday, May 27, 2022 at 12pm. 
  
New Staff 
 
Mariana Hamilton-Atkins, Salesforce Administrator 
Mariana joined EBCE's Technology and Analytics team in April 2022 as the Salesforce 
Administrator. Mariana assists with project implementation and administrative duties as it 
relates to EBCE's growing Salesforce application. 
 
Prior to joining EBCE, Mariana was the Development Coordinator at the Ecology Center in 
Berkeley, where she assisted managing internal operations, platform development as it 
pertained to fundraising, as well serving as the main Salesforce administrator.  
 
Mariana earned a Masters of Science in Clinical Psychology from Notre Dame de Namur 
University in Belmont. 
 
Trevor Cherr, Senior Director, Human Resources 
Trevor joined EBCE on 4/25/22 to lead the Human Resources department. Trevor is 
responsible for designing and driving culture programs, recruitment and retention strategies, 
as well as performance management and talent development for EBCE team members. 
 
Before joining EBCE, Trevor worked at companies within the outdoor and renewable energy 
sectors including CamelBak Products, Vista Outdoor, and Soligent Distribution, leading Human 
Resources as well as other strategic initiatives inclusive of DEI, community activism, land and 
resource conservation, and corporate sustainability.  



CEO Report Item 11 

 
Trevor holds a M.S. in Industrial and Organizational Psychology from San Francisco State 
University and a certificate in Sustainable Business Practices from Dominican University. 
 
Aaron Ruder, Senior Salesforce Associate 
Aaron joined EBCE on 4/25/22 as the Senior Salesforce Associate on the Data and Analytics 
team.  Aaron will be responsible for improving data quality and visibility, and for enhancing 
the user experience in Salesforce. 
 
Prior to EBCE, Aaron worked in Revenue Operations for Startups on the in-house and 
consulting ends. He has Six Salesforce Certifications and counting.   
 
Aaron earned an MPA from Northern Illinois University.  He loves classical music, cats and 
building things in Salesforce. 
 
Izzy Carson, Power Resources Manager 
Izzy joined EBCE on 5/4/2022 as Power Resources Manager.  Izzy will be responsible for 
managing EBCE’s renewable energy and carbon-free energy position and entering into 
transactions to optimize our position.  She will also support negotiations of long-term 
contracts for renewable energy and energy storage resources. 
 
Izzy has more than 13 years of experience working in the energy field working. She has work 
for both developers of renewable energy projects and in energy procurement at PG&E, where 
she lead procurement of renewable energy for programs targeted to the needs of different 
customer groups. Most recently, Izzy managed PG&E’s energy efficiency programs and 
represented the organization on the Statewide Energy Efficiency Team. 
 
Izzy holds a BS in Environmental Studies and Economics from the University of California at 
Santa Cruz and an MBA from the University of San Francisco. 
 
Ray Dai, Power Resources and Credit Risk Manager 
Ray joined EBCE on 5/4/2022 as Power Resources Market and Credit Risk Manager.  Ray will 
be responsible for modeling EBCE’s risk exposure across any unhedged positions and across 
positions hedged through short and long-term transactions. He will also evaluate core market 
drivers and provide strategic guidance on potential for changes in market volatility and 
analysis on market-wide disturbances. 
 
Ray has more than 20 years of electric utility experience in energy wholesale markets & 
transactions, risk management and compliance, power supply contract negotiation & portfolio 
optimization, load forecast & resource planning, and power generation resources 
development. 
 
Ray holds a MA in International Economics & Policy in Energy Environment, Science & 
Technology from Johns Hopkins University. 
 
John Newton, Principal Regulatory Analyst 
John joined EBCE’s Public Policy Team on 5/11/22 as a Principal Regulatory Analyst. John 
assists with EBCE’s activities around Integrated Resource Plans (IRP) and Resource Adequacy 
(RA), as well as broader regulatory advocacy at state agencies.     



CEO Report Item 11 

Prior to joining EBCE, John was with PG&E.  There, he managed PG&E's engagement in IRP 
proceedings, and helped develop PG&E’s 2020 IRP filing and continuing IRP activities.  John 
was also involved in the coordination of regulatory advocacy regarding electric and gas 
wholesale market operations and transactions, and concerning transmission rates. 
 
John has a B.A. from St. John's college, and a J.D. from Hastings College of the Law.   
 
Marketing and Account Services Update 
 
Time-of-Use Transition 
Per California Public Utilities Commission regulation, eligible residential customers  
In the city of Tracy and other areas of the San Joaquin County and Central Valley transitioned 
to a Time-of-Use rate with peak hours from 4 PM to 9 PM. The opt-out rate of residential 
customers in Tracy increased by approximately 0.54% between January (base case) and early 
May (post-transition). Both PG&E and EBCE will provide bill protection to transitioned 
customers, meaning each entity will reimburse the customer for any increase in actual 
payments after one year on the rate as compared to what they would have paid on their 
previous tiered rate. 
 
A similar transition occurred for residential customers in Alameda County in May 2021. PG&E 
bill protection credits are showing up on applicable customer bills in May. EBCE bill protection 
credits will appear on customer bills in June. 
 
Renewable 100 Default Transitions 
Residential customers in Berkeley and San Leandro transitioned to Renewable 100 in March 
2022. We are now over one month out from customer transitions and changes in opt out rates 
remain below the expected target of 0.50%, as shown in the chart below. The cities of 
Albany, Hayward, and Pleasanton transitioned all customers to Renewable 100 in January 
2022, while the city of Dublin transitioned only residential customers to Renewable 100 in 
that same month.  
 

 
 

New Community Inclusion Update 
EBCE staff has completed and presented to Stockton staff the first iteration of Stockton’s 
electricity data analysis.  The initial analysis included the following key results: 

• Stockton would add approximately 1.34 terawatt-hours (TWh) to the existing EBCE load 
of 6.45 TWh. 

• Stockton load is “peakier” than EBCE's current load. Diversity in the timing of peaks 
means that the addition of Stockton would not substantially impact EBCE’s load 
distribution throughout the year. 



CEO Report Item 11 

• In 2021, EBCE’s “Bright Choice” product would have theoretically reduced Stockton 
customer expenditures by $1.49M and increased renewable consumption by at least 6% 
(80 GWh or enough to power 15,700 homes for a year) 

• EBCE CEO and staff met with Stockton’s City Manager on May 11. The initial analysis was 
well received and EBCE staff is working with the City of Stockton staff on next steps 



Staff Report Item 13 

Staff Report Item 13 

TO: East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors 

FROM: Melissa Brandt, Vice President of Public Policy & Deputy General Counsel 

SUBJECT: Approval of Legislative Positions (Action Item) 

DATE: May 18, 2022 
__________________________________________________________________ 

Recommendation 

Take a “support” position on Assembly Bill (“AB”) AB 2765 (Santiago), take a “support 
if amended” position on Senate Bill (“SB”) 1020 (Laird), and move to a neutral 
position on AB 2070 (Bauer-Kahan). 

Background and Discussion 

At the April 20, 2022, EBCE Board Meeting, the Board decided to watch AB 2765.  
Subsequently, the Senate Working Group on Climate Change introduced SB 1020.  Both 
bills address concerns about electric ratepayer rate increases and bill affordability by 
using newly created funds to pay for certain electric programs with broad public 
benefit using taxpayer revenue.  The goal is to mitigate electric ratepayers’ rising 
rates, particularly since income taxes in California are regressive and electric rates 
are regressive.  While CARE and FERA programs help the lowest-income customers, 
hardest hit are often the low-income customers just above the CARE/FERA eligibility 
threshold, who on average have a higher number of residents living in one household 
compared to middle income households, energy inefficient housing (often rentals), 
and correspondingly high electric bills.  These customers are burdened with the high 
cost of housing in the Bay Area and its surrounds, coupled with high electricity bills on 
account of their high volumetric usage.  They receive no relief if their incomes 
exceed the CARE/FERA thresholds which are very low versus the cost of living in the 
Bay Area, as CARE/FERA eligibility is based on a multiplier of the Federal Poverty 
Index.  In addition to the regressive cost impact on customers (and associated 
expected customer disconnections), high electric rates are a disincentive to vehicle 
and building electrification, as they make fuel switching from gas to electric more 
expensive.   



   
 

Staff Report Item 13 

Also at the April 20, 2022, EBCE Board Meeting, at the recommendation of Staff the 
Board decided to support AB 2070.  However, AB 2070 has since been amended to no 
longer include the language that led EBCE to recommend taking a support position.  
Specifically, the language requiring a notification to the fire protection district when 
the utility initiates a deenergization event has been struck, likely due to concerns 
that the requirement may conflict with existing California Public Utilities Commission 
(CPUC) notice mandates.  While taking no position on the broader public policy merits 
of the bill as amended, the bill is no longer directly relevant to EBCE’s interests or 
legislative principles, making a neutral position appropriate.   
 
Recommended EBCE Bill Positions: 
 

• SUPPORT: AB 2765 (Santiago) would establish a taxpayer-funded Public Utilities 
Public Purpose Programs Fund and would require the CPUC to use the fund to 
pay for programs currently funded through an electrical corporation’s public 
purpose program rate component except for the California Alternate Rates for 
Energy (CARE) program, and other programs determined by the CPUC to 
provide public benefits.  If the fund does not have sufficient moneys for those 
purposes, the bill would authorize the CPUC to permit electrical corporations 
to recover the costs of those programs from ratepayers, as they do today 
through a charge on electric service, which is collected through customer 
delivery rates.  The CPUC must consider the continuity of the public purpose 
programs and minimize customer disruptions. This bill would lower the electric 
delivery rates for all customers including EBCE customers, helping both with 
customer bill affordability and lower service disconnection rates, and 
supporting the growth of electrification by keeping electricity costs 
competitive.  This aligns with EBCE’s legislative principle of accelerating 
decarbonization through electrification, as well as promoting local 
development through incentivizing transportation and building electrification.  
It would further align with our policy position on Disadvantaged Communities 
by supporting rate relief for our low-income customers. 
 

• SUPPORT IF AMENDED: SB 1020 (Laird) would set interim targets for serving 
load with 100% renewable/zero-carbon energy by 2045: 90% by end-2035, 95% 
by end-2040, and 100% for state agencies by 2030.  Given EBCE’s goal of 100% 
clean energy by 2030, staff expects to exceed these interim targets and 
supporting the targets for others aligns with our legislative principle of 
accelerating decarbonization.  
 
While state agencies can meet their 100% obligation through their load-serving 
entity’s purchases, the purchases on behalf of state agencies are subject to a 
number of requirements including that the resource be newly developed and 
that the compliance obligations be separate from other load the entity serves.  
These requirements would not allow EBCE to simply serve its state agency load 
with its Renewable 100 product; rather, EBCE would have to maintain a 
separate procurement portfolio for its state agency load.  This would be 



   
 

Staff Report Item 13 

unnecessarily bureaucratic, expensive, and risky.  EBCE staff recommends 
seeking amendments to the state agency procurement requirements so that 
EBCE could enable any state agency load to satisfy its 100% clean energy 
requirements simply by enrolling in EBCE’s Renewable 100 product.   
 
SB 1020 additionally creates the Climate and Equity Trust Fund, to be 
administered by a new nonprofit benefit corporation, the California Affordable 
Decarbonization Authority.  The Trust Fund would support the costs of 
decarbonization, clean energy, and wildfire mitigation activities with funding 
sources outside of electricity rates.  The CPUC would approve the disbursement 
of funds from the Trust Fund for eligible costs, including disbursements to CCAs 
such as EBCE.  The Trust Fund would consist of federal funds, state legislative 
appropriations, Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funds, noncompliance penalties, 
and any other sources identified by the legislature.  Disbursements would be 
made as direct credits on ratepayer bills, direct rebates or incentives, or 
reimbursement of eligible costs incurred by load-serving entities in the form of 
matching funds.  In order to ensure that there is no competitive disadvantage 
to CCAs who only have generation revenues, EBCE staff recommends seeking 
amendments to ensure that eligible costs incurred by load-serving entities may 
be reimbursed in full, not only as matching funds. 
 
If amended as suggested, this bill has the potential to lower the electric 
delivery rates for all customers including EBCE customers, helping both with 
customer bill affordability and lower service disconnection rates, and 
supporting the growth of electrification by keeping electricity costs 
competitive.  This aligns with EBCE’s legislative principle of accelerating 
decarbonization through electrification, as well as promoting local 
development through incentivizing transportation and building electrification.  
It would further align with our policy position on Disadvantaged Communities 
by supporting rate relief for our low-income customers. 
 

• MOVE TO NEUTRAL: AB 2070 (Bauer-Kahan) would require an electrical 
corporation or local publicly owned electric utility to notify a fire protection 
district at least 24 hours before performing scheduled, nonemergency hot 
work, deploying a safety and infrastructure protection team, or performing a 
prescribed or controlled burn within the district’s jurisdiction.  Bauer-Kahan is 
a member of EBCE’s legislative delegation.  The bill was amended before EBCE 
formally communicated its support position, so moving to neutral would mean 
that EBCE would simply remove its support position from its website and would 
not communicate a formal position to the author or committees. 

 
Fiscal Impact  
AB 2765 and SB 1020 may result in lower customer utility delivery charges. 
 
 
Attachments:  



Staff Report Item 13 

A. Author Fact Sheets: AB 2765 and SB 1020
B. Presentation



Page 1 of 2 
Status: Assembly Appropriations Committee | Last updated: 4.28.22 

Bill Summary 

AB 2765 would sunset some Public Purpose 

Program (PPP) surcharges on utility customers 

and continue the programs with funding from 

the State’s General Fund to continue 

supporting low-income consumers and help 

meet California’s climate goals. 

Existing Law 

Establishes energy efficiency, cost saving, and 

rate assistance programs to help reduce energy 

costs for consumers (Public Utilities Code 

Section 381, 399.4, 739.1, 739.3; Public 

Resources Code Section 25710). 

Background 

Electric rates continue to increase dramatically 

in California. Inflation is hitting goods across 

the board, and the economic impacts of the 

pandemic and the Russian invasion of Ukraine 

are causing financial challenges for many 

Californians, especially at the gas pump and on 

their utility bills.  

California’s PPP includes cost-effective energy 

efficiency, conservation, and rate assistance 

programs to help meet the state’s climate goals 

and subsidize energy costs for low-income 

consumers. Electric customers in investor-

owned utility (IOU) territories pay for these 

state-mandated public benefits programs 

through a surcharge on their utility bill.  

Although the PPP is, in part, meant to provide 

discounts on utility bills for low-income 

households, not all low-income households 

benefit from the utility discounts. Some low-

income residential customers do not qualify for 

PPP low-income assistance programs, such as 

the California Alternate Rates for Energy (CARE) 

and Family Electric Rate Assistance (FERA) 

programs. These households are effectively 

low-income, don’t benefit from utility relief, 

and still have to pay into the programs through 

a monthly surcharge on their utility bill. PPP 

surcharges for programs such as the School 

Energy Efficiency Stimulus Program help 

California reach its climate goals, but do not 

directly benefit the low-income residential 

customer.  

Need for AB 2765 

In California, high electric bills are hitting low-

income households hard. Their utility bills are 

saturated with various add-on costs that don’t 

actually reflect the cost of supplying electricity. 

These add-ons include subsidies for clean 

energy and EV charging stations, climate 

change adaptation costs, and more.  

One of the best ways to help the working poor 

is by reducing their utility bills and taking some 

of these costs out of electricity prices to make 

them more closely reflect their true social cost. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 13A

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2765


Page 2 of 2 
Status: Assembly Appropriations Committee | Last updated: 4.28.22 

Since the PPP’s climate benefits accrue to 

everyone in California, it is more appropriate 

for all taxpayers to fund these programs, not 

just a subset of electric customers. 

Furthermore, if all taxpayers paid for the PPP, 

then electric customers would pay lower utility 

bills, especially low-income households. For 

example, as of January 1, 2022, if the public 

purpose program costs considered in AB 2765 

were removed from San Diego Gas & Electric’s 

electric rates, system average rates would be 

about 2.6% lower.  

To ensure that the cost of the PPP is equitably 

distributed, AB 2765 would sunset some of the 

PPP surcharges on utility customers and 

continue the programs with funding from the 

State’s General Fund, thus reducing the cost of 

utility bills for low-income utility customers 

experiencing rising energy costs and equitably 

distributing the costs of achieving California’s 

climate goals.  

Support 

Coalition of California Utility Employees 
California State Association of Electrical 
Workers 
San Diego Gas & Electric Company 

Opposition 

None on File. 

For More Information 

Tom Steel, Legislative Aide 

Office of Assembly Member Santiago 

(916) 319-2053 | Tom.Steel@asm.ca.gov

Attachment Staff Report Item 13A

mailto:Tom.Steel@asm.ca.gov


Provides Greater Specificity to SB 100 Targets and Establishes New State Agency 
leadership in Clean Energy.  The bill does the following: 

1. Adds 90% by 2035 and 95% by 2040 interim zero carbon electric sector targets to the existing
SB 100 framework.
• Existing law requires that all Load Serving Entities procure at least 60% of retail sales from renewable generation

by 2030 and 100% of retail sales from zero carbon resources by 2045.
– The definition of “renewable generation” is based on eligibility rules under the Renewable Portfolio Standard

(RPS) program.
– The definition of “zero carbon resources” is more expansive and includes generation eligible under the RPS

` plus other non-emitting technologies such as nuclear and large hydroelectric generation.
– State agencies have not yet aligned on a formal definition of “zero carbon” for purposes of SB 100 compliance.

This bill would not provide any additional guidance relating to this definition.
• The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) recently adopted Integrated Resource Planning goals intended to

result in 86% zero carbon resources serving customer loads by 2032. These goals apply to all Investor-Owned
Utilities (IOUs), Community Choice Aggregators, and Electric Service Providers.

• The two largest Publicly Owned Utilities (POUs) have committed to achieve the SB 100 targets on an
accelerated basis.
– The Los Angeles Department of Water and Power plans to rely on 100% zero carbon electricity by 2035.
– The Sacramento Municipal Utility District is committed to 100% zero carbon electricity by 2030.

2. Require all state agencies to purchase 100% zero carbon electricity to serve their own needs by 2030.
• Applies to all electricity serving state agency facilities or operations.

– Under existing law (SB 100), state agencies are required to meet the 100% zero carbon electricity target by 2045.
• State agencies that are customers of a Load Serving Entity (IOUs, Community Choice Aggregator, or POUs)

may comply in either of the following ways:
– Installation of behind the meter zero carbon generation on owned or leased buildings.
– Purchase of newly developed zero carbon resources through their Load Serving Entity.

• For the State Water Project (approximately 70% of total state agency electricity consumption), compliance via
procurement of new zero carbon resources by the Department of Water Resources (DWR).
– DWR currently procures electricity on behalf of the State Water Project and projects that approximately 70%

of total needs will be served with zero carbon generation by the end of 2022. Absent any acceleration, DWR
forecasts that contribution of zero carbon resources will be 75% by 2030.

• SB 1020 requires procurement of new zero carbon resources to serve state agency needs give preference to
resource options expected to yield maximum long-term employment, stimulate new economic activity, generate
local and state tax revenues, and assist with the development of new industries.

SB
1020 Clean Energy, Jobs and

Affordability Act of 2022
(Laird, Caballero, Durazo and Atkins)

4.18.22

Attachment Staff Report Item 13A



Establishes the Climate and Equity Trust

1. Climate and Equity Trust fund
• Establishes a separate trust fund outside of the state budget to ensure the integrity of all funds deposited into the account.
• The source of trust funds may be from the federal government, the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF), state

legislative appropriations, mitigation fees, noncompliance penalties assessed by the California Energy Commission
(CEC)/CPUC/California Air Resources Board (CARB) and any other sources identified by the Legislature.

• Legislature must separately identify and authorize specific funding sources.
– New long-term funding streams required to provide meaningful benefits.
– Potential funding options include new mitigation fees, budget surplus, and a climate bond.

• Annual and multi-year spending plans/disbursements authorized by CPUC and CEC.
• Trust funds can be used for any of the following costs included in retail electricity rates (depending upon funding source):

– Transportation/building electrification initiatives.
– Public Purpose Programs (including energy efficiency, research and development, and low-income

customer discounts).
– Programs to promote equity and affordability for low-income customers.
– Wildfire Mitigation Costs.
– Other decarbonization programs.
– Distributed Energy Resource subsidies.

• Annual funding needs vary by objective and beneficiaries:
– Approximately $5 billion to reduce rates for all retail customers by 2 cents/kilowatt hour (kWh)

(includes IOUs and POUs).
– Approximately $1.75 billion to reduce residential customer rates by 2 cents/kWh.
– Approximately $450 million to reduce low-income customer rates by 2 cents/kWh.

• Allowable methods of disbursement:
– Direct credits to retail customer bills (via IOU/POU billing).
– Direct rebates/incentives to market participants, vendors, installers or customers.
– Reimbursement of eligible costs incurred by a Load Serving Entity in the form of matching funds.

2. Establishment of California Affordable Decarbonization Authority (CADA) to administer the Trust fund.
• Non-profit public benefit corporation with a board appointed by the Governor and Legislature.
• Regulated by the CEC (for disbursements to customers of POUs) and CPUC (for disbursements to customers of

IOUs, Community Choice Aggregators and Electric Service Providers).
• Subject to Bagley-Keene open meeting requirements and the California Public Records Act.
• Submits annual and multi-year spending plans for review/approval by CPUC and CEC, including reasonable

overhead and operations costs.

Coordinates State Agencies to Support Informed Transmission Planning

1. Authorizes the CPUC and CEC to disclose confidential information to the California Independent System
Operator (CAISO) relating to power purchase agreements to assist with transmission planning.
• Clarifies that sharing of confidential information does not constitute a waiver of confidentiality under the

Public Records Act.
• Purpose it to assist CAISO with its transmission planning process by allowing review of relevant details of

contractual agreements for new resources.
• This change to state law was recommended by the CPUC, CEC, CARB and CAISO in a September 2021 report.1

– The Joint Agencies found that, absent a statutory change, legal barriers currently prevent the CPUC and CEC
from sharing confidential information with the CAISO without waiving protections for market sensitive information.

1. Report to the Governor on Priority SB 100 Actions to Accelerate the Transition to Carbon-Free Energy issued jointly by the CPUC, CEC, CARB and CAISO
(September 2021), pages 10-11, 26.

Attachment Staff Report Item 13A



Legislative
Update

MAY 18, 2022

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Legislative Highlights

• New Recommended Bill Positions: AB 2765, SB 1020, AB 2070

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Key Deadlines for the 2022 Legislative Year

• 1/3: Legislature reconvened
• 1/10: Governor submitted budget

• 1/31: Deadline to move 2-year bills out of 1st house

• 2/18: Bill introduction deadline
• 4/29: Policy cmtes to move fiscal bills to fiscal cmtes (1st house)

• 5/6: Policy cmtes to move nonfiscal bills to floor (1st house)

• 5/20: Fiscal cmtes must move bills to floor (1st house)
• 5/27: Last day for bills to be passed out of 1st house

• 6/15: Budget bill must be passed

• 7/1: Policy cmtes to meet and report bills (2nd house)
• 8/12: Fiscal cmtes to move bills to floor (2nd house)

• 8/31: Last day for each house to pass bills

• 9/30: Last day for Governor to sign/veto bills

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Recommended Bill Positions

Bill # Author Description Sponsor Status
Recommended 
EBCE Position

AB 2765 Santiago

Creates a new taxpayer-funded fund to cover the costs of CPUC 
Public Purpose Programs including energy efficiency and 
conservation, and arrearage management, instead of continuing to 
rely on customer delivery rates.  Reverts to utility ratepayers if fund 
isn’t sufficiently funded by the legislature.  Excludes CARE/FERA.

Sempra Asm Approps 
Cmte

SUPPORT

SB 1020 Laird

Sets interim targets for meeting renewable/zero-carbon goals: 90% 
by end-2035, 95% by end-2040; 100% for state agencies by 2030.  
State agencies can comply through their LSE, but LSE procurement for 
the state agency must meet certain criteria.  Establishes new fund to 
support the costs of decarbonization, clean energy, and wildfire 
mitigation activities with funding sources outside of electricity rates. 
Establishes new nonprofit public benefit corporation to 
administer the fund.

Senate 
Climate 
Change 
Working 
Group

Sen Approps 
Suspense File

SUPPORT IF 
AMENDED

AB 2070 Bauer-
Kahan

Requires an electrical corporation or local publicly owned electric 
utility to notify the fire protection district 24+ hours before 
performing scheduled, nonemergency hot work, deploying a safety 
and infrastructure protection team, or performing a prescribed or 
controlled burn, or else face a $500 penalty.

Asm Approps 
Cmte NEUTRAL (formerly 

SUPPORT)

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1020
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2070


Funding Programs Through Taxes Instead of Rates

5

What is being proposed?
• Fund the costs of public purpose programs or other broad societal benefit

programs with a fund using state tax revenues instead of electric utility rates

What does it accomplish?
• Supports SB 100/electrification goals by reducing the rate of utility bill increases

to prevent reaching a threshold where electrification is disincentivized
• Social policy program costs are paid for in a more progressive way, reducing the

burden on lower-income customers

Estimated Costs
• EBCE’s estimate: Current public purpose program including CARE is ~ $2.7B/year

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Why is it important?  Equity.

6

• Customers who are not CARE/FERA-eligible but
nevertheless lower-income are paying as much as
customers who have higher incomes – this
regressive rate structure lies in stark contrast to
state taxes which are progressive

• When EBCE has expanded its customers’ program
eligibility for its own electrification programs
using Area Mean Income (AMI) instead of Federal
Poverty Level (FPL), it has resulted in an increase
in eligibility – these customers are struggling the
most to bear the cost of utility rates today

Utility rates are not equitable

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Why is it important?  Electrification.

7

Electric rates need to stay below a threshold to incentivize fuel-
switching to electric

• Goal is to prevent electric rates from
reaching a point that discourages
electrification

• Gas/EV charging station signage
example: Electric rates need be lower
than gas or people won’t buy EVs

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Bill Tracker - Assembly

Bill # Author Description Sponsor Status
EBCE 

Position

AB 1814 Grayson Authorizes CCAs to file applications for PUC programs and investments to accelerate 
widespread transportation electrification. CalCCA Author 

withdrawn SUPPORT

AB 1960 Villapudua
Encourages the Senate and the Governor to consider permanent residents of 
northern, southern and the central valley regions of the state to provide more 
regional diversity among CPUC commissioners.

Sen EUC 
Cmte SUPPORT

AB 2061 Ting
Requires data disclosure on EV charging station availability for stations using public or 
ratepayer money and requires the CEC to assess reliability and equitable access 
issues.

Flo Asm Approps 
Cmte 5/11

AB 2667 Friedman

Establishes and requires CEC to administer state IDER Fund to incentivize eligible 
resources to support consumer adoption of clean DERs, creates a system to equitably 
award incentives, and establishes a process to allow an LSE to apply for incentives on 
behalf of a customer as part of that LSE's program to reduce its RA obligations.

NRG / EDF Asm Approps 
Cmte 5/11 SUPPORT

AB 2700 McCarty

Requires IOUs and POUs to ensure that their distribution systems are upgraded to 
support the state’s anticipated level of EV charging; requires the CPUC to develop an 
expedited process to ensure that IOUs can meet the requirements to upgrade, and to 
direct IOUs to expedite interconnection; requires CARB to share fleet data to inform 
electrical grid planning and requires CEC to forecast distribution needs for DERs.

Asm Approps 
Cmte 5/11

AB 2703 Muratsuchi Establishes reliability standards for ZEV refueling/charging stations. Asm Approps 
Cmte 5/11

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1814
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB1960
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2061
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2667
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2700
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB2703


Bill Tracker - Senate

Bill # Author Description Sponsor Status
EBCE 

Position

SB 45 Portantino Requires Dept of Res Recycling and Recovery to analyze progress in achieving organic waste 
reduction goals and assist local jurisdictions with funding to comply.

Asm Nat Res 
Cmte

SB 833 Dodd
Community Energy Resiliency Act of 2022: requires the CEC to develop and implement a 
grant program for local govts to develop community energy resilience plans and expedite 
permit review of DERs.

The Climate 
Center

Sen Approps 
Suspense File

SB 881 Min Gives CPUC authority to monitor compliance with LSE's IRP GHG emission reductions and 
penalties/CPUC-ordered procurement for non-compliance. UCS Sen Approps 

Cmte 5/16

SB 1112 Becker
Requires energy suppliers (including CCAs) offering decarb programs to record a decarb 
charge notice, then notice of full cost recovery, then notice of charge removal with the 
project's county.

Sen Approps 
Suspense File SUPPORT

SB 1158 Becker
Changes the Power Source Disclosure rules to require utilities and CCAs to report 
comparisons of their energy and capacity purchases with their electricity demand on an 
hourly basis including the associated GHG emissions.

Sen Approps 
Cmte 5/16

SB 1393 Archuleta Requires local jurisdictions to consider CEC guidance before mandating that retrofits to a 
bldg. must upgrade fossil appliances to electric and to file records with CEC.

Sen Approps 
Suspense File OPPOSE

SB 1482 Allen Requires mandatory building standards for installation of EV charging infrastructure for 
parking spaces in new multifamily units. Acterra Sen Approps 

Suspense File

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB45
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB833
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB881
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1112
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1158
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1393
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB1482


Next Steps

• Review and analyze new amendments
• Monitor bills on our watch list; determine when EBCE should

formally take a position
• Send position letters for bills once EBCE formally takes a

position
• Monitor Governor’s Budget request, which includes $6.1B

over 5 years for Zero Emission Vehicles (ZEV)
• Engage with CalCCA on legislative efforts

Attachment Staff Report Item 13B



Staff Report Item 14 

 
 

Staff Report Item 14 
 

TO: East Bay Community Energy Board of Supervisors 
 

FROM:  Nick Chaset, CEO 
 
SUBJECT:  Draft EBCE Budget Fiscal Year 2022-2023 (Informational Item)  

 
DATE:   May 18, 2022 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
Receive and review the draft budget for fiscal year 2022-2023. 
 
Background and Discussion  
EBCE’s fiscal year is from July 1 through June 30.  Staff is presenting a proposed draft budget 
for fiscal year 2022-2023.   
 
This budget presents changes to EBCE’s value proposition by recommending an increase from 
1% to 3% discount relative to PG&E rates for EBCE’s Bright Choice product and decreasing the 
premium of the Renewable 100 product from $0.01 to $0.0075. 
 
This budget also presents a large net position surplus as a base-case scenario. Staff is 
recommending a method to manage this surplus to increase EBCE’s value to the community 
through four processes:   
 

1. Significant contributions to working capital and reserves to ensure agency solvency in 
the event of possible risk contingencies 

2. Increase value proposition customer discount and establish on-bill credits as levels of 
net position surplus are realized through the year 

3. Increase renewable procurement with short and long-term investments 
4. Meaningful increases to Local Development programs and donation of a local public 

health grant to treat a common ailment of fossil fuel combustion—asthma.   
 
This presented budget is based on feedback from a draft version presented at the Finance, 
Administrative, and Procurement Committee on April 15, 2022.  The budget outlines staff’s 
best expected estimates for costs and revenues anticipated for the next fiscal year based on 
load, market prices, and PCIA charges.   
 
 
 
 
 



Staff Report Item 14 

Summary of Draft EBCE Budget FY 2022-2023 
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22

DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST
OPERATING ACTIVITY

REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES
GASB 62 Unrecognized Revenue Balance 15,814,000 15,814,000 15,814,000
Operating Revenue

Electricity Sales 895,427,000 508,636,000 551,368,000
Uncollectables (17,908,000) (8,939,000) (10,045,000)
Other Operations Revenue (6,229,000) 0 7,448,000

Total Operating Revenue 871,290,000 499,697,000 548,771,000

EXPENSES & OTHER USES
Energy Operating Expenses

Cost of Energy 565,675,000 442,337,000 463,253,000
Energy Operating Services 11,262,000 12,240,000 11,478,000

Total Energy Operating Expenses 576,937,000 454,577,000 474,731,000

Overhead Operating Expenses
Personnel 15,712,000 10,171,000 8,204,000
Marketing & Communications 2,876,000 1,686,000 1,294,000
Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs 1,988,000 1,592,000 1,173,000
Other Professional Services 2,292,000 850,000 901,000
General & Administrative 3,884,000 2,961,000 2,465,000
Depreciation 180,000 60,000 59,000

Total Overhead Operating Expenses 26,932,000 17,320,000 14,096,000

Total Operating Expenses 603,869,000 471,897,000 488,827,000

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY
Total Non-Operating Revenue 277,000 1,692,000 2,649,000

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Borrowing Interest 1,440,000 898,000 907,000
Local Development Funding 20,600,000 8,475,000 8,475,000
Grant 15,000,000 0 0
Capital Expenditures 7,000,000 5,500,000 8,519,000

Total Non-Operating Expenses 44,040,000 14,873,000 17,901,000

NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY (43,763,000) (13,181,000) (15,252,000)

TOTAL REVENUES 871,567,000 501,389,000 551,420,000
TOTAL EXPENSES 647,909,000 486,770,000 506,728,000

NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION 223,658,000 14,619,000 44,692,000

RESERVE BALANCE
Beginning Reserve Balance TBD 90,218,000 90,218,000

# Operating Target (50%) 323,955,000 243,385,000 253,364,000



Staff Report Item 14 

Fiscal Impact  
This establishes the forecast of EBCE’s fiscal position for the next 12 months with a positive 
net position. 
 
Attachments 

A. Presentation of the Draft EBCE Budget FY 2022-2023 
 



Draft Budget Review for 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023

MAY 18, 2022

PRESENTED BY:

NICK CHASET, CEO

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



2

Executive Summary

• In the face of rising energy costs, EBCE is able to continue to serve our local community and 
customers with cost competitive & cleaner energy while providing local jobs and equitable 
programs.

• Rates are up and PCIA is down, driven by a historic increase in market energy prices starting in 
2021 and forecasted to persist in 2022-2023.

• With EBCE rates indexed to PG&E rates, we are forecasting significant headroom to operate and a 
strong financial surplus, helping to offset calendar 2021, which operated at a loss.

• Draft budget includes the following:

o Significant contributions to working capital and reserves
o Improvements to the Value Proposition (increased discount and bill credits)
o Increased renewables procurement (short-term and new long-term investments)
o Meaningful increase to local development budget and local public health grant
o Expand on staff expertise, build more depth, and scale operations further
o Investment in EBCE's new headquarters in a downtown Oakland DAC

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



3

Summary Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022

Notes: 

YTD* reflects actuals through March 31, 2022

Net Position through FY March 31, 2022: ($22.8MM)

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

OPERATING ACTIVITY
REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

GASB 62 Unrecognized Revenue Balance 15,814,000 15,814,000 15,814,000
Total Operating Revenue 871,290,000 499,697,000 548,771,000

EXPENSES & OTHER USES
Total Energy Operating Expenses 576,937,000 454,577,000 474,731,000

Total Overhead Operating Expenses 26,932,000 17,320,000 14,096,000

Total Operating Expenses 603,869,000 471,897,000 488,827,000

NET OPERATING POSITION

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY
Total Non-Operating Revenue 277,000 1,692,000 2,649,000

Total Non-Operating Expenses 44,040,000 14,873,000 17,901,000

NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY (43,763,000) (13,181,000) (15,252,000)

TOTAL REVENUES 871,567,000 501,389,000 551,420,000
TOTAL EXPENSES 647,909,000 486,770,000 506,728,000

NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION 223,658,000 14,619,000 44,692,000

RESERVE BALANCE
Beginning Reserve Balance TBD 90,218,000 90,218,000

# Operating Target (50%) 323,955,000 243,385,000 253,364,000

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



4

Draft Budget Base Case Assumptions
Revenues
• Increase to customer value proposition by

o Bright Choice from 1% to 3% discount to PG&E
o R100 from $0.01 to $0.0075 above PG&E
o Estimated revenue reduction of $18.6MM

• $50 bill credit applied to all CARE & FERA customers in
Q1/Q2 of FY 22-
23, totaling an estimated $6.25MM in one time bill 
savings

• Assumes current rates and PCIA are unchanged 
through 2022

• Rates and PCIA for 2023 are non-stressed, or as 
forecasted, energy rates

• 2.0% uncollectable rate
• No recognition of GASB 62 revenue ($15,814,000)
• Non-operating revenue assumes 0.25% interest 

earned on treasury backed cash balance accounts

Energy Costs
• Costs are derived from a blend of contracted and 

open positions for all energy, attributes, and RA
o Open prices are non-stressed, or as forecasted

• Renewable Energy has additional 5% above recent 
board approved calendar 2022 and 2023 Bright 
Choice targets. 
o 2022: Renewables 45% --> 50%; CF 63% --> 68%
o 2023: Renewables 49% --> 54%; CF 66% --> 71%
o Adds $3.3MM to costs (Each 1% is ~$667,000)

Other Costs
• Additional staffing requirements of 19 FTE
• New building use date assumed in January 2023

o $7MM capital improvement costs
• Program funding increased by 143% to $20.6MM
• $15MM for UCSF Children’s Hospital Grant

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



5

Draft Budget Proposed Surplus Allocations

Net Position Estimated at $223.7MM

Proposed Budget Surplus Waterfall Allocation:

1) Working Capital Needs: $50MM*

2) Reserve Account Funding: $75MM*

3) 50/50% split of any excess to:**

o Incremental Long-Term Renewable Energy/Clean Energy Storage Investments: ~$50MM

oOne-time On-Bill Credits to Customers: ~$50MM

*Allocations to be made after the end of the fiscal period ending June 30, 2023
**Assuming a budget surplus that is materially consistent with this forecast, staff would plan for an even 
allocation. Formal action would be brought forth to the board in Q3 of the fiscal year (Jan-Mar 2023) to 
formally adopt in conjunction with a mid-year budget update. This timing would allow for staff to have good 
visibility into calendar 2023 rates and forecasted surplus.

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



6

Energy Price Risk Scenarios
• In a rising energy cost environment, indexing to PG&E rates, creates more headroom for EBCE to operate. 

However, in addition to customer energy costs increasing, it increases EBCE energy costs, reserve requirements, 
and general operating risk

• In a low energy price environment, indexing to PG&E rates, reduces headroom for EBCE to operate. Customer 
energy costs are going down and EBCE faces considerable competitive rate pressure.

• From a budgeting perspective, a mismatch of forecast and actuals presents considerable risk:
• Scenario 1: Rate forecasts are low and actual energy prices are high

o Hedges perform well but open position is costly

o Rates/PCIA will adjust favorably next year but we have a very significant working capital drain bc rates may not be 

sufficient to cover energy costs, creating near-term liquidity risk.
• Scenario 2: Rate forecasts are high and actual energy prices go down

o Hedges perform poorly but open position is at a low cost

o Rates/PCIA will adjust unfavorably next year. Near term liquidity and net position are strong, but we have to 

reserve for future corrections due to overcollections.

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



7

Draft Budget Energy/Rate/PCIA Scenarios
• While no forecast proves to be fully reliable, EBCE evaluates a number of short and long-term forward price 

curves through 3rd parties and further computationally simulates risk on multiple curves. The curves reflect a 
variety of renewable generation, storage adoption, climate, and policy scenarios.

• The current base case draft budget is based on forward energy costs over the fiscal period averaging at $78.39
• If prices were to decrease approximately to simulated P5 levels, which average to $55.52, the forecasted net 

position would reduce by about $154.2MM
• If prices were to increase to simulated P95 levels, which average to $126.40, the forecasted net position would 

increase by about $63.1MM
• Under a highly stressed scenario, if rates and PCIA were set at the forecasted P5 scenario, but then actualize 

at P95 actuals, the estimated net position could go as low as much as negative $135.2MM

Base P5 P95 Stress
Net Revenues 871,290,000 614,622,000 1,036,589,000 614,622,000
Energy Costs 565,675,000 463,173,000 667,830,000 667,830,000
All Other Costs 81,957,000 81,957,000 81,957,000 81,957,000
Net Position 223,658,000 69,492,000 286,802,000 (135,165,000)

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



8

Energy Prices and Risk Bands (P5-P95)Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



9

Draft Budget Operating Revenues

• Increase to value proposition
o Bright Choice from 1% to 3% discount to PG&E
o Renewable 100 from $0.01 to $0.0075 above PG&E
o $50 bill credit to all CARE & FERA customers in July-Sept 2022, shown as Other Operations 

Revenue reduction
• Assumes current rates and PCIA are unchanged through 2022
• Rates and PCIA for 2023 are non-stressed, or as expected, energy rates
• 2.0% uncollectable rate
• No recognition of GASB 62 revenue ($15,814,000)
• Current Year Other Operations Revenue is CAPP payments

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES
GASB 62 Unrecognized Revenue Balance 15,814,000 15,814,000 15,814,000
Operating Revenue

Electricity Sales 895,427,000 508,636,000 551,368,000
Uncollectables (17,908,000) (8,939,000) (10,045,000)
Other Operations Revenue (6,229,000) 0 7,448,000

Total Operating Revenue 871,290,000 499,697,000 548,771,000

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



10

COMPARISON OF CCA RATES OVER TIME 

CCA 2020 2021 2022
2022

w/new value 
proposition

EBCE -1.00% -1.00% -1.00% -3.00%

MCE Clean Energy 2.94% 18.30% -12.69%

CleanPowerSF -1.00% 2.25% 0.00%

San Jose Clean Energy -1.00% -0.25% 0.00%

Clean Power Alliance 3.99% 18.41% 22.59%

CCA 2020 2021 2022
2022

w/new value 
proposition

EBCE 8.51% 9.13% 6.79% 4.85%

MCE Clean Energy 10.96% 27.06% -5.90%

CleanPowerSF 7.51% 11.38% 6.79%

San Jose Clean Energy 7.51% 8.69% 8.00%

Clean Power Alliance 23.98% 28.68% 22.52%

Base Product comparison to IOU for prominent 
residential rate

100% Renewable Energy Product comparison to IOU for 
prominent residential rate

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



11

Value Proposition Changes

• The proposed changes to the value proposition are intended to:
o Establish a discount rate that is sustainable through future market cycles, which is 

essential in establishing a clear and consistent value proposition to our customers
o Prioritize CARE/FERA customer with pre-emptive bill credits ($6.25MM immediate savings)
o Cautious fiscal management by ensure a budget surplus before issuing a more expansive 

customer-wide bill credit

Change in Value Proposition Relative to PG&E
Bright Choice Discount Customer Savings (MM) Renewable 100 Premium Customer Savings (MM) Total Savings (MM)

1% $7.10 $0.0075 $4.40 $11.50 
2% $14.20 $0.0050 $8.80 $23.00 
3% $21.30 $0.0025 $13.20 $34.50 
4% $28.40 $0.0000 $17.60 $46.00 

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



12

Draft Budget Energy Expenses
Energy Costs
• Costs are derived from a blend of contracted and open 

positions for all energy, attributes, and RA

o Open prices are non-stressed, or as forecasted
o FY 22/23 are 30% higher than FY 21/22 on 

average

• Renewable Energy has additional 5% above recent 
board approved calendar 2022 and 2023 Bright Choice 
targets. 
o 2022: Renewables 45% --> 50%; CF 63% --> 68%
o 2023: Renewables 49% --> 54%; CF 66% --> 71%
o Adds $3.2MM to costs (Each 1% is ~$620,000)

• Note: We are in a period of historically high energy 
pricing and significant uncertainty/volatility
o Forecasted market energy costs in 2022 and 

2023 are approximately double the historical 12-
year average

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

Energy Operating Expenses
Cost of Energy 565,675,000 442,337,000 463,253,000
Data Management/Customer Service 7,847,000 8,645,000 8,002,000
PG&E Service Fees (Billing/Metering) 2,719,000 2,752,000 2,712,000
CAISO Scheduling Coordinator 696,000 843,000 764,000
Energy Operating Services 11,262,000 12,240,000 11,478,000

Total Energy Operating Expenses 576,937,000 454,577,000 474,731,000

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



13

Draft Budget Overhead Expenses

• Personnel costs will be discussed more in-depth on the next slide
• Increase in Marketing costs is Local Development marketing activity needs
• Increase in Legal, Policy , & Regulatory affairs is due to a couple of factors

o Possible membership expansion (Stockton)
o Additional volume of consulting/vendor agreements and power contracts

• Larger staffing demand, from Personnel costs, increases in Professional Services with 
HR/recruiting and additional project support

• Increase to G&A is primarily driven by expected increase operating expenses related 
to the new building

• Depreciation increases due to new building use expected in January, 2023

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

Overhead Operating Expenses
Personnel 15,712,000 10,171,000 8,204,000
Marketing & Communications 2,876,000 1,686,000 1,294,000
Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs 1,988,000 1,592,000 1,173,000
Other Professional Services 2,292,000 850,000 901,000
General & Administrative 3,884,000 2,961,000 2,465,000
Depreciation 180,000 60,000 59,000

Total Overhead Operating Expenses 26,932,000 17,320,000 14,096,000

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



14

Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Personnel

• FY 2020-21 Budget was established at 37 FTE
o No COLA was allocated that fiscal year
o Personnel transitions left vacancies

• FY 2021-22 Budget was initially approved at 43 FTE and expanded mid-year to 49
o 2.5% COLA and up to 5% merit-based/promotional compensation allotted
o Currently at 45 FTE and interviewing for an additional 4 roles

• FY 2022-23 Budget seeks to increase to 68 FTE to accommodate additional work requirements 
in all areas. Additional headcount will expand on internal expertise/skills, build more depth, 
and scale operations:
o 3.5% COLA and up to 10% merit-based/promotional compensation pool
o 5 Marketing, 4 Local Programs, 3 Operations, 3 Technology, 2 Power Resources, 2 Legal

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

Salaries & Wages 11,598,000 7,058,000    6,468,000    
Retirement 1,544,000 993,000       879,000        
Health Care/Benefits 2,292,000 1,196,000    614,000        
Payroll Expenses 277,000 174,000       131,000        
Total 15,711,000 9,421,000    8,092,000    

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A


Charts



Monthly Total Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	48168723.913830005	51183140.688839994	49750988.660069995	35371258.354719006	34410917.803480998	38080685.813529	42552265.815147996	37869444.295437746	38241900.486005001	34261561.861407511	35489144.936528996	56009803.376869999	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	56307517.468945079	60392456.220035322	78430222.509262666	







Monthly Energy Expense



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	30304056.459926616	36303942.133049972	28558835.304881319	26023553.156420294	25751116.512792129	29936459.32951086	32104705.028238781	25323181.210161332	23208849.453909054	16455121.625950679	17957911.617441896	23519788.092076175	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	26938363.379999999	25980734.300000001	28478321.32	







Monthly Energy Attributes



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	13725288.688846	13043787.37851	13282200.082196001	10351695.225124	9732787.1680459995	10392312.223015999	9179356.7244050987	8463785.0560494997	8262196.4491365002	9242307.5155074	10654498.6396593	10560101.4140689	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11834916	12492845	12395895	







Monthly Total Energy Expense



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	44029345.148772612	49347729.511559971	41841035.387077317	36375248.381544292	35483903.68083813	40328771.552526861	41284061.752643883	33786966.266210832	31471045.903045554	25697429.141458079	28612410.257101197	34079889.506145075	Actual	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	38773279.379999995	38473579.299999997	40874216.32	







Monthly Net Sales Revenue



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	48106457.053830005	51120647.928839996	49688231.040069997	35302734.864719003	34337959.073481001	38010595.193529002	42489998.955147997	37806951.535437748	38179142.866005003	34193038.371407509	35416186.206528999	55045712.756870002	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	56298113.474433795	60383050.658191621	77526815.379825324	







Monthly Overhead



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	







Monthly Net Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	847956.90172405541	-1456984.0860533118	-880955.24034065753	-4298332.090158619	-4365841.1906904727	-5544374.6023311988	-1927482.9608292207	893323.66589357704	3573471.9596261159	5368362.4466160983	3677656.4560944661	18732447.997391589	Actuals	-706250	-706250	-1132387.1400000001	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	14358005.285611749	18739460.36670199	34378326.185929328	







Cumulative Net Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	847956.90172405541	-609027.18432925642	-1489982.4246699139	-5788314.5148285329	-10154155.705519006	-15698530.307850204	-17626013.268679425	-16732689.602785848	-13159217.643159732	-7790855.1965436339	-4113198.7404491678	14619249.256942421	Actuals	-706250	-1412500	-2544887.14	-3251137.14	-3957387.14	-4663637.1400000006	-5369887.1400000006	-6076137.1400000006	-6782387.1400000006	7575618.1456117481	26315078.512313738	60693404.698243067	







Total Expenses



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	47320767.012105949	52640124.774893306	50631943.900410652	39669590.444877625	38776758.99417147	43625060.415860198	44479748.775977217	36976120.629544169	34668428.526378885	28893199.414791413	31811488.480434529	37277355.37947841	Actuals	706250	706250	1132387.1400000001	706250	706250	706250	706250	706250	706250	41949512.18333333	41652995.853333332	44051896.323333338	









Dashboard

										MO		3												3

										YR		2022												2022

												Mar		Mar				Mar		Mar				Q3		Q3				Q3		Q3				FY		FY				FY		FY

												BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D				BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D				BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D

		OPERATIONS

				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						Operating Revenue

								Electricity Sales		A		38,761,000		0				(38,761,000)		-100.0%				120,280,000		0				(120,280,000)		-100.0%				508,636,000		196,455,000				(312,181,000)		-61.4%

								Uncollectables		B		(581,000)		0				581,000		-100.0%				(1,804,000)		0				1,804,000		-100.0%				(8,939,000)		(2,947,000)				5,992,000		-67.0%

								Other Operations Revenue		A1		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				0		700,000				700,000		0.0%



						Total Operating Revenue						38,180,000		0				(38,180,000)		-100.0%				118,476,000		0				(118,476,000)		-100.0%				499,697,000		194,208,000				(305,489,000)		-61.1%



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Energy Operating Expenses

								Cost of Energy		E		31,471,000		0				(31,471,000)		-100.0%				106,542,000		0				(106,542,000)		-100.0%				442,338,000		118,121,000				(324,217,000)		-73.3%

								Data Management/CRM		F1		657,000		0				(657,000)		-100.0%				1,968,000		0				(1,968,000)		-100.0%				8,645,000		1,930,000				(6,715,000)		-77.7%

								Billing & Metering		F3		230,000		0				(230,000)		-100.0%				689,000		0				(689,000)		-100.0%				2,752,000		676,000				(2,076,000)		-75.4%

								Scheduling		F2		85,000		0				(85,000)		-100.0%				255,000		0				(255,000)		-100.0%				843,000		255,000				(588,000)		-69.8%



						Total Energy Operating Expenses						32,443,000		0				(32,443,000)		-100.0%				109,454,000		0				(109,454,000)		-100.0%				454,578,000		120,982,000				(333,596,000)		-73.4%



						Overhead Operating Expenses

								Personnel		P		848,000		0				(848,000)		-100.0%				2,543,000		0				(2,543,000)		-100.0%				10,171,000		2,543,000				(7,628,000)		-75.0%

								Marketing & Communications		M		141,000		0				(141,000)		-100.0%				422,000		0				(422,000)		-100.0%				1,686,000		422,000				(1,264,000)		-75.0%

								Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs		L		133,000		0				(133,000)		-100.0%				398,000		0				(398,000)		-100.0%				1,592,000		398,000				(1,194,000)		-75.0%

								Other Professional Services		J		71,000		0				(71,000)		-100.0%				213,000		0				(213,000)		-100.0%				850,000		213,000				(637,000)		-74.9%

								General & Administrative		O		247,000		0				(247,000)		-100.0%				740,000		0				(740,000)		-100.0%				2,961,000		740,000				(2,221,000)		-75.0%

								Depreciation		Y		5,000		0				(5,000)		-100.0%				15,000		0				(15,000)		-100.0%				60,000		15,000				(45,000)		-75.0%



						Total Overhead Operating Expenses						1,445,000		0				(1,445,000)		-100.0%				4,331,000		0				(4,331,000)		-100.0%				17,320,000		4,331,000				(12,989,000)		-75.0%



						Total Operating Expenses						33,888,000		0				(33,888,000)		-100.0%				113,785,000		0				(113,785,000)		-100.0%				471,898,000		125,313,000				(346,585,000)		-73.4%



				NET OPERATING POSITION								4,292,000		0				(4,292,000)						4,691,000		0				(4,691,000)						27,799,000		68,895,000				41,096,000



		NON-OPERATIONS

				NON-OPERATING REVENUE

								Interest Income		C		63,000		0				(63,000)		-100.0%				188,000		0				(188,000)		-100.0%				798,000		28,000				(770,000)		-96.5%

								Grants		D		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				894,000		894,000				0		0.0%

								Other Non-Operating Revenue		A2		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%



						Total Non-Operating Revenue						63,000		0				(63,000)		-100.0%				188,000		0				(188,000)		-100.0%				1,692,000		922,000				(770,000)		-45.5%



				NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

								Borrowing Interest		K		76,000		0				(76,000)		-100.0%				221,000		0				(221,000)		-100.0%				898,000		224,000				(674,000)		-75.1%

								Local Development Funding				706,000		706,000				0		0.0%				2,119,000		2,119,000				0		0.0%				8,475,000		8,475,000				0		0.0%

								Capital Expenditures		Z		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				5,500,000		426,000				(5,074,000)		-92.3%



						Total Non-Operating Expenses						782,000		706,000				(76,000)		-9.7%				2,340,000		2,119,000				(221,000)		-9.4%				14,873,000		9,125,000				(5,748,000)		-38.6%



				NET NON-OPERATING POSITION								(719,000)		(706,000)				13,000		-1.8%				(2,152,000)		(2,119,000)				33,000		-1.5%				(13,181,000)		(8,203,000)				4,978,000		-37.8%



				TOTAL REVENUES								38,243,000		0				(38,243,000)		-100.0%				118,664,000		0				(118,664,000)		-100.0%				501,389,000		195,130,000				(306,259,000)		-61.1%

				TOTAL EXPENSES								34,670,000		706,000				(33,964,000)		-98.0%				116,125,000		2,119,000				(114,006,000)		-98.2%				486,771,000		134,438,000				(352,333,000)		-72.4%



		NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION										3,573,000		(706,000)				(4,279,000)						2,539,000		(2,119,000)				(4,658,000)						14,618,000		60,692,000				46,074,000		315.2%



		LOAD

				Wholesale								620,411		564,591				(55,820)		-9.0%				1,860,609		1,714,056				(146,553)		-7.9%				7,461,842		7,086,497				(375,345)		-5.0%

				Retail								576,103		552,114				(23,989)		-4.2%				1,736,535		1,629,187				(107,348)		-6.2%				6,935,221		6,644,759				(290,462)		-4.2%

												7.1%		2.2%

		PRICES

				Energy ($/MWh)								37.41		0.00				(37.41)		-100.0%				43.34		0.00				(43.34)		-100.0%				42.27		11.49				(30.79)		-72.8%





ChangeLog

		Date		FY Initial		FY Final		Delta		Sheet		Item		Notes

		10/7/21		(28,114,971)		(28,114,971)		0		None		None		Initialization 

		10/7/21		(28,114,971)		(19,199,810)		8,915,161		Actuals		Open		Updated Nov forward with 10/7/2021 forward curve data from Chris

		10/7/21		(19,199,810)		(19,115,781)		84,029		Actuals		Basis		Updated Nov forward with 10/7/2021 forward curve data from Chris

		10/7/21		(19,115,781)		(18,956,104)		159,677		Actuals		CAISO		Updated based on FCAST updates

		10/11/21		(18,956,104)		(18,489,681)		466,423		Actuals		Revenues		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(18,489,681)		(18,401,853)		87,828		Actuals		Energy Services		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(18,401,853)		(17,942,147)		459,706		Actuals		Overhead		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(17,942,147)		(17,943,685)		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		August GL actuals

		10/20/21		(17,943,685)		(11,883,249)		6,060,436		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		12/10/21		(11,883,249)		(14,212,058)		(2,328,809)		Actuals		Revenues		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(14,212,058)		(20,074,225)		(5,862,167)		Actuals		Energy		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(20,074,225)		(19,985,274)		88,951		Actuals		Energy Services		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(19,985,274)		(20,008,922)		(23,648)		Actuals		Overhead		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(20,008,922)		(22,591,733)		(2,582,812)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(22,591,733)		(22,510,149)		81,584		Actuals		Accounts		Updated based on SMUD invoices

		12/10/21		(22,510,149)		12,272,128		34,782,277		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		12/10/21		12,272,128		31,832,168		19,560,041		Actuals		Energy		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		12/10/21		31,832,168		29,168,898		(2,663,270)		Actuals		Attributes		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		12/15/21		29,168,898		29,188,432		19,534		GL		CAISO		Recalc Adjustment for credit

		12/15/21		29,188,432		30,197,864		1,009,432		Actuals		Revenues		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		30,197,864		35,137,441		4,939,577		Actuals		Energy 		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,137,441		35,226,496		89,055		Actuals		Energy Services		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,226,496		35,653,424		426,929		Actuals		Overhead		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,653,424		35,651,887		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Oct GL Actuals

		1/3/22		35,651,887		46,336,321		10,684,435		Actuals		Energy		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		1/3/22		46,336,321		47,129,825		793,504		Actuals		Attributes		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		1/3/22		47,129,825		25,032,754		(22,097,071)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		1/10/22		25,032,754		28,726,549		3,693,796		Actuals		Open		Updated with NCPA Hourly CAISO workbook from 1/10/2022

		1/10/22		28,726,549		27,114,279		(1,612,271)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated with 18 Month scenario

		1/10/22		27,114,279		27,229,963		115,685		Actuals		Wholesale Load		Updated with 1/3 FCAST

		1/13/22		27,229,963		28,380,736		1,150,773		Actuals		Revenues		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		28,380,736		31,513,302		3,132,566		Actuals		Energy		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,513,302		31,603,445		90,143		Actuals		Energy Services		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,603,445		31,991,009		387,564		Actuals		Overhead		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,991,009		31,989,521		(1,488)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,989,521		37,221,736		5,232,214		Actuals		Energy		Reduced Jan Open position to reflect actuals being seen

		1/13/22		37,221,736		36,795,782		(425,954)		COA		CapEx		Updated cost of building for Sept to match statement

		2/10/22		36,795,782		36,783,058		(12,724)		GL		Overhead		Added AmEx placeholder until we get receipts

		2/10/22		36,783,058		38,074,193		1,291,135		Actuals		Revenues		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		38,074,193		40,799,830		2,725,637		Actuals		Energy		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		40,799,830		42,287,480		1,487,650		Actuals		Attributes		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,287,480		42,373,867		86,387		Actuals		Energy Services		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,373,867		42,635,044		261,177		Actuals		Overhead		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,635,044		42,628,487		(6,557)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,628,487		47,301,774		4,673,287		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		2/10/22		47,301,774		53,092,557		5,790,783		Actuals		Open		Updated Open position from Contracts DB

		2/10/22		53,092,557		52,904,290		(188,267)		Actuals		Basis		Updated Basis position form Contracts DB

		2/10/22		52,904,290		54,872,270		1,967,980		Actuals		Capacity		Updated Capacity from Contracts DB

		2/10/22		54,872,270		46,908,682		(7,963,588)		Actuals		PPA		Updated PPA from Contracts DB

		3/15/22		46,908,682		45,511,697		(1,396,985)		Actuals		Revenues		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		45,511,697		55,250,754		9,739,057		Actuals		Energy		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		55,250,754		57,138,595		1,887,841		Actuals		Attributes		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,138,595		57,106,832		(31,763)		Actuals		Energy Services		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,106,832		57,395,148		288,316		Actuals		Overhead		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,395,148		57,393,611		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Jan GL Actuals

		3/16/22		57,393,611		54,019,525		(3,374,086)		GL		CAISO Charges 		Corrected for missing CAISO charges in 50xxx accounts for Jan

		4/4/22		54,019,525		54,562,642		543,117		Budget		Local Development		Corrected to approved budget 

		4/8/22		54,562,642		54,250,142		(312,500)		GL		Contractors		Corrected for some missing contractor invoices

		4/12/22		54,250,142		57,078,919		2,828,777		Actuals		Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		57,078,919		63,167,231		6,088,312		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		63,167,231		67,086,154		3,918,923		Actuals		Energy		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		67,086,154		68,840,834		1,754,680		Actuals		Attributes		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		68,840,834		68,862,046		21,212		Actuals		Energy Services		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		68,862,046		69,200,712		338,666		Actuals		Overhead		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		69,200,712		69,190,401		(10,311)		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		69,190,401		72,119,856		2,929,455		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		4/12/22		72,119,856		66,327,409		(5,792,447)		Actuals		Energy 		Updated Open, Basis, and Capacity from Contracts DB

		5/3/22		66,327,409		65,355,494		(971,915)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		5/3/22		65,355,494		66,855,494		1,500,000		Actuals		Revenues		Final CAPP money

		5/3/22		66,855,494		57,697,588		(9,157,906)		Actuals		Open		Updated Open and Basis from Contracts DB

		5/3/22		57,697,588		49,039,619		(8,657,969)		Actuals		Open		Updated March and April CAISO open actuals

		5/10/22		49,039,619		40,857,646		(8,181,972)		Actuals		Revenues		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		40,857,646		42,146,864		1,289,217		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		42,146,864		41,475,579		(671,285)		Actuals		Energy		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		41,475,579		43,829,472		2,353,892		Actuals		Attributes		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,829,472		43,850,868		21,396		Actuals		Energy Services		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,850,868		43,988,264		137,396		Actuals		Overhead		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,988,264		43,994,157		5,893		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Mar GL Actuals

				43,994,157		60,693,405		16,699,247

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0





Actuals

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4

								MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

										1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16		17		18		19		20		21		22		23		24		25		26		27		28		29		30		31		32		33		34		35		36		37		38		39		40		41		42		43		44		45		46		47		48

		REVENUES

				OPERATING																																																						0.02		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%

						Electricity Sales		A		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,444,785		61,302,590		78,707,426		5/3/22		Updated from Doug's Revenue Model for 18 Month scenario

						Uncollectables		B		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-846,672		-919,539		-1,180,611

						Other Operations Revenue		A1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		700,000		0		0



						Total Operating Revenues				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,298,113		60,383,051		77,526,815



				NON-OPERATING

						Interest Income		C		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		9,404		9,406		9,407		10/4/21		Updated from Working Capital

						Grants		D		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		894,000

						Other Non-Operating Revenue		A2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		9,404		9,406		903,407

				TOTAL REVENUES						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,307,517		60,392,456		78,430,223

		EXPENSES

						CAISO $/MWh Estimate																																																				1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54

		ENERGY

				ISTs				E		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		7,671,083		8,068,418		10,473,152		5/3/22		Updated from Contracts DB

				OPEN				E1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		18,800,000		16,301,265		15,480,529		5/3/22		2 FWD months from CAISO NLA

				BASIS						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		338,018		415,513		490,296		5/3/22

				CAISO				E6		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		805,415		873,018		913,463

				NEM				E7		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-676,153		322,520		1,120,881



				Total Energy						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		26,938,363		25,980,734		28,478,321

		ATTRIBUTES

				CAPACITY				E2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		5,903,172		6,611,253		6,728,174		4/12/22		Updated from Contracts DB

				PPA				E5		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		4,088,118		4,298,263		4,337,133		2/10/22

				RECs				E3		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,668,624		1,403,570		1,143,815		2/10/22

				CO2				E4		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		135,002		139,759		146,773		2/10/22

				Broker				E8		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		40,000		40,000		40,000



				Total Attributes						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		11,834,916		12,492,845		12,395,895

		SERVICES								1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00

				CRM				F1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		642,848		643,384		643,920

				Metering				F2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		224,997		225,184		225,372

				Scheduling				F3		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		85,000		85,000		85,000



				Total Services						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		952,845		953,568		954,292

		OPERATING OVERHEAD

				Personnel				P		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		847,583		847,583		847,583

				Marketing, Outreach, Communications				M		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		140,500		140,500		140,500

				Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs				L		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		132,667		132,667		132,667

				Other Professional Services				J		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		70,833		70,833		70,833

				General & Administrative				O		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		246,750		246,750		246,750

				Depreciation				Y		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		5,000		5,000		5,000



				Total Internal Costs						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333



		NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

				Borrowing Interest				K		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		73,805		76,265		73,805

				Local Development Funding						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250

				Grants

				Capital Expenditures				Z		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		426,137		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Non-Operating Expenses						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		780,055		782,515		780,055

		TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		38,773,279		38,473,579		40,874,216

		TOTAL ENERGY SERVICES EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		952,845		953,568		954,292

		TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333

		TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES								522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		780,055		782,515		780,055



		TOTAL EXPENSES								522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		41,949,512		41,652,996		44,051,896

		NET REVENUES								-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-706,250		-706,250		-1,132,387		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		14,358,005		18,739,460		34,378,326

		Cumulative Net Revenues by FY																																																								-706,250		-1,412,500		-2,544,887		-3,251,137		-3,957,387		-4,663,637		-5,369,887		-6,076,137		-6,782,387		7,575,618		26,315,079		60,693,405		1,405

		ACCOUNTS						466		548,475		552,540		551,476		554,082		553,732		556,676		557,567		557,954		560,131		558,558		558,440		558,967		557,722		558,053		557,137		556,692		557,930		559,030		561,627		561,928		562,393		641,697		642,208		641,450		641,207		641,370		642,026		641,669		641,676		642,351		642,110		641,776		642,312		642,848		643,384		643,920		644,456		644,992		645,528		646,064		646,600		647,136		647,672		648,208		648,744		649,280		649,816		650,352



		WHOLESALE LOAD (MWh)								522,383		559,607		522,325		511,741		505,872		557,113		568,424		491,509		512,247		461,311		486,716		490,135		505,355		574,007		551,749		539,896		517,154		570,626		553,068		474,002		504,879		491,467		549,079		582,888		621,602		635,793		612,303		585,900		572,941		660,852		617,616		531,849		564,591		522,997		566,895		593,158		1/3/22		Projections updated from FCAST

		RETAIL LOAD (MWh)								489,162		517,587		489,704		483,983		480,056		520,514		526,526		467,598		479,378		434,315		454,479		458,242		482,895		524,361		509,505		511,837		494,038		529,233		518,102		445,894		473,726		464,869		519,706		534,394		577,166		593,132		565,469		550,883		539,754		601,204		577,402		499,671		552,114		506,873		529,384		551,707		5/5/22		Historicals updated from CAISO and Calendar Month Dashboard/SMUD

										6.4%		7.5%		6.2%		5.4%		5.1%		6.6%		7.4%		4.9%		6.4%		5.9%		6.6%		6.5%		4.4%		8.6%		7.7%		5.2%		4.5%		7.3%		6.3%		5.9%		6.2%		5.4%		5.3%		8.3%		7.1%		6.7%		7.6%		6.0%		5.8%		9.0%		6.5%		6.1%		2.2%		3.1%		6.6%		7.0%

		Average Price																																																						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		74.14		67.87		68.91

		VWAP/FY																																																						15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4





GL

		FY		YR		Mo		Date		Num		Name		Memo		Account		Acct Name		Class		Amount		Meta		Chart Indx		INDX		LocINDX		Notes

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41010		Commercial - Gen				(13,914,514.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41010		Commercial - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		41010		Commercial - Gen				20,184,704.79		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41010		Commercial - Gen				11,968.86		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41010		Commercial - Gen				(24,308.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41010		Commercial - Gen				19,091,195.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41010		Commercial - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41020		Residential - Gen				(12,762,135.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Residential Generation from transaction summary report		41020		Residential - Gen				15,820,892.84		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41020		Residential - Gen				172,213.86		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41020		Residential - Gen				(19,053.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Admust to SMUD AR BALANCE		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41020		Residential - Gen				13,524,854.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				(258,102.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				AG/Street Generation from transaction summary report		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				358,419.16		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				165.03		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				(431.65)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				389,934.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42010		Commercial - Green Premium				545,285.02		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42020		Residential - Green Premium				427,397.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre				9,682.61		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		mar baddebt				Estimated Bad debt expense		42999		Bad Debt expense				(871,164.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				CAPP Funds applied in Feb'22		43000		CAPP Proceeds				197,415.57		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				8,932.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				4,660.48		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				218.70		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Data-2021		SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY (CUST)		Data Model Review / Recommendation and Data Studio Dashboard Design Review from October through ...		45000		Miscellaneous income				3,918.75		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44621		E3 - Energy and Environmental Economics		PIR-20-009 - TASK 3 Billable Services provided for March 2022		45000		Miscellaneous income				1,752.18		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 7/1/21		46000		Grant Revenue				707,757.75		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 9/28/21		46000		Grant Revenue				235,919.25		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 3/11/21		46000		Grant Revenue				335,460.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/18/22						Damage payment from Greenbacker for the Altamont wind project		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue				350,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Clear-0322		CLEARWAY ENERGY (CUST)		Failure to comply 103.04 MWh		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue				1,703.35		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		EASTBAY0060780015		TENASKA POWER SERVICES CO.		March 2022 - Physical RA System Forwards -  50  MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(317,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188756		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(171,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188757		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(134,200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188758		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(256,428.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44642		AES REDONDO BEACH, LLC (Inc)		March 2022 - RA - AES Redondo Beach Generating Station  (142.48MW)		50120		Capacity purchases				(1,479,037.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		397		LEAPFROG POWER, INC.		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 12.9 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(24,123.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2789713		SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), LP		March 2022 - Capacity Purchases - 44 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(288,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2237269		EDF TRADING NORTH AMERICA, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 4 MWh		50120		Capacity purchases				(28,400.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2237269		EDF TRADING NORTH AMERICA, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Sale - 2MWh		50120		Capacity purchases				14,900.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		85710		CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L. P.		March 2022 - RA Capacity Sell - 50 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				400,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		85710		CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L. P.		March 2022 - RA Capacity Buy - 420 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(2,881,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE Mar2022		Resi Station LLC a/c 7437		Proxy Demand Response EBCE Mar2022 - 17 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(96,050.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03 12		BOLT ENERGY MARKETING, LLC		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 7 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(36,400.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03		WELLHEAD POWER EXCHANGE, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Charge 47 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(223,250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		67		CITY OF SAN JOSE		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 70 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(147,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		67		CITY OF SAN JOSE		March 2022 - RA Sale - 70 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				122,500.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		157117		San Diego Gas and Electric (SDGE)		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 2,108 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(234,620.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		169132		SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 4.47 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(18,550.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		January 2022 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				1,694,968.53		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		December 2021 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				1,097,942.76		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Clear-0322		CLEARWAY ENERGY (CUST)		March 2022 PPA Generation -  28,401.77  MWh		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				172,725.15		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		TCW-EBCE-03 v2		TECOLOTE WIND LLC (PATTERN)		March 2022 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				781,294.18		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		January 2022 - Energy Production 33,355.55 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(1,471,313.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		December 2021 - Energy Production 16,596.95 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(732,091.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2		HENRIETTA D ENERGY STORAGE LLC		February 2022 - Total Storage Rate Charge - 10 MW		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(148,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1759155		GREENBACKER RENEWABLE (SEGO LILY SOLAR)		March 2022 - PPA and Test Energy - 15,876.7163  MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(682,712.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		TCW-EBCE-03 v2		TECOLOTE WIND LLC (PATTERN)		March 2022 - Energy Production - 18,946.38 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(827,971.03)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3		HENRIETTA D ENERGY STORAGE LLC		March 2022 - Total Storage Rate Charge - 10 MW		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(146,514.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2087258-1		MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP,  INC.		February 2022 - Energy Purchase - 16,800 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(584,304.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		706149		NEXTERA ENERGY MARKETING, LLC*		March 2022 - Power Purchases - 122,250 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(4,905,092.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2789712		SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), LP		March 2022 - Energy Purchases - 69,986 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(2,484,906.32)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		796812		Exelon/ Constellation		March 2022 - Energy purchases - 36938 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,293,568.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1020		CCCFA - Discount Settlement (BNY 10733184		March 2022 - Settlement Monthly Quantity - 43,837 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,870,060.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2087790-1		MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP,  INC.		March 2022 - Energy Purchase - 26,350 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,231,690.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1021		CCCFA - Retained Obligation (BNY 10749284		March 2022 - 2021B Energy Sales - Specified Source Premium - 50,772 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(20,308.80)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD2022000537		BROOKFIELD RENEWABLE T&M lp		March 2022 -  ACS Energy Purchase - 8,546 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(34,184.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD2022000537		BROOKFIELD RENEWABLE T&M lp		March 2022 - Carbon Free Purchase - 12,584 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(75,504.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		34234		XCEL-PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO		December 2021 -  RECs - 17,478 MWh		50160		RECs purchases				(170,410.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EAS220308		3 PHASES RENEWABLES (3PR)		Vintage 2021 Green Attributes from PCC2 Product		50160		RECs purchases				(110,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		169183		SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY		March 2022 - REC Purchase - 110,000 MW		50160		RECs purchases				(1,268,250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Marrc22				To estimate March 2022 REC		50160		RECs purchases				(450,640.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		Reverse of GJE CAISO -- To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the follow...		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				11,246,194.77		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(7,567,149.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(3,679,045.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(2,827,289.27)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(5,777,746.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(5,611,348.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(12,703,457.54)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				(6,524,366.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				4,282,745.08		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				2,241,621.35		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				1,505,437.15		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				3,079,349.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				3,092,654.28		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				7,299,103.80		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				880,961.42		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022020132-53208812		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		January 2022 - TFR Invoice		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(82,077.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(596,057.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(284,903.78)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(128,667.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(263,307.71)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/24/22		009040-0322006		Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)		March 2022 All Resources Bill - Prior Month Adjustment: Transmission & Generation Resources		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(52,540.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(695,826.89)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(1,501,542.52)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		46		SMUD		March 2022 - Data Management and Call Center Services -- {po:1038}		50200		Data Manager				(641,975.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		46		SMUD		March  2022 - Share My Data -- {po:1190}		50200		Data Manager		Technological		(6,419.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/24/22		009040-0322006		Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)		March 2022 All Resources Bill - Management Services		50300		Scheduling Fees				(56,597.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022137		KARBONE INC.		Brokerage of California System RA (Flex) between EBCEA and WGP Redwood Holdings, LLC- Confirmati...		50310		Broker fees				(39,891.60)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		08181-3098460322-00		TULLETT PREBON		March 2022 - RA Purchase - Counterparty: Shell Energy North America		50310		Broker fees				(1,125.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		572242 1018-032022		EQUUS ENERGY GROUP LLC		March 2022 - Broker Fees		50310		Broker fees				(475.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Record NEM Liability		50400		NEM Expense				(184,347.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				nem true up		50400		NEM Expense				9,079.74		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Adjust to SMUD NEM BALANCE		50400		NEM Expense				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44663		PG&E #8050-2		March 2022 - service  provider fees		50500		Service Fees - PG&E				(225,733.20)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		197699		PG&E (RA)		March 2022 RA Notional - 8 MW at $6,25/MW-Month		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA				50,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43680		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Community Solar Welcome Kit Mailing -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(3,721.47)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43718		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Enrollment Notices -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(51,942.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43814		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Berkeley and Albany Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(218.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43876		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Hayward Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(218.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44205		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(328.13)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44075		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Berkeley and San Leandro Enrollment Notices - 1st Notification -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(43,384.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44481		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Postage from October 2021 through March 2022 -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(108,186.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		facebook - Advertising on facebook - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(404.19)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(140.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(160.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(60.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(40.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		WC887780		EFFECTV (COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS)		March 2022 - San Francisco-Oak-San Jose - Digital TV -- {po:1212}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(2,308.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1330932		BAY AREA NEWS GROUP		March 2022 - Interactive Advertising - Quantum Banner -- {po:1213}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(5,555.84)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		6974		SOUND OF HOPE RADIO NETWORK		March 2022 - Online Targeted Display, 100,000 Impressions/month $1000/month -- {po:1106}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(1,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(24.69)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		facebook - Advertising on facebook - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(504.93)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(175.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		1000282		VELOZ		To recognize expenses for the months of July'21 - March'22		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Local Development		(37,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		0001-2022		TRACY EARTH PROJECT		Donation to Sponsor 2022 Tracy Earth Day		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		0102069-IN		ALAMEDA COUNTY FAIR		Marketing Sponsorship		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(8,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1502		CALIFORNIA GREEN BUSINESS NETWORK		March 2022 - Alameda County Green Business Plan Support		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		790		CITYSIDE		March 2022 - Culture Makers 2022: Bronze Level & Dedicated Eblast: Q2 Date TBD		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Happy hour staff event during offsite meeting during March in person meeting...		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(939.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Rental fees and beverage package for Two Pitchers - venue for offiste meetin...		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(1,636.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Snacks during March offsite - Meagan		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(195.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Snacks during March offsite - Meagan		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(35.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		black mesa - Coffee shop @ ABQ airport - Nick		56030		Business meals		Operations		(3.51)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		church street caf? - Meal during trip to Albuquerque - Nick		56030		Business meals		Operations		(47.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		poke parlor - Lunch for Nick @ office - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(21.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		dinner at airport		56030		Business meals		Operations		(30.52)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE team lunch		56030		Business meals		Operations		(142.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		poke parlor - Lunch for Nick @ office - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(22.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		calavera - Functional Leads Dinner during March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(569.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		senor sisig - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(649.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		caf? gabriela - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(704.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		falafel boy - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(391.13)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wooden table caf? - Breakfast during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(161.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		sweet bar bakery - Breakfast during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(400.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		paypal - WSPP conference registration refund - Meagan		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		190.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		california foundation on the environment and the economy - Cancellation fee for Nick's CFEE trip...		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(550.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conference Registration		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(180.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conference Parking		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conferenece Parking		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		barefoot movement - Yoga during March in person staff retreat - Meagan		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		466153541		U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE		KONICA MINOLTA C659 COPIER : 02/20/22 - 03/20/22		56050		Equipment lease		Operations		(330.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(546.26)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(509.54)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(505.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(552.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(574.34)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(511.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(139.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(595.49)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(593.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(504.07)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(532.08)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(139.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(515.84)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Inv 1877		California Community Choice Association		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		(30,971.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		red bridge education - Mailed citation form and check to CPUC - Meagan		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		(40.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 69203		ARROYO INSURANCE SERVICES, INC(KNAUF)		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense		56070		Insurance		Operations		(3,737.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased replacement bluetooth headphones for Meagan - previous pair stopped working -...		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(55.07)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchase tea and phone cases for office - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(390.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		customink - EBCE branded can coozy - Juan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(445.41)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		fedex - Letter of Credit return - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(50.09)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Deposit for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(510.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25493		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Microsoft Ergonomic Keyboard		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(90.05)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		122040784		ASSOCIATED SERVICES		February 2022 - Nat choice ION Water		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(129.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		DYNES, LORI		March 2022 - shipping boxes - marketing materials CBO offices		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(46.24)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		eco promotional - EBCE Branded Frisbees - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(1,825.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Accidentally purchased headphones - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(77.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon -  - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(36.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		eco promotional - Charge for Additional 200 Drawstring Bags - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(256.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Remaining balance for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(508.71)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased oat milk for the office - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(25.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Howard purchased office supplies - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(29.51)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Howard purchased office supplies - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(22.04)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Shipping cost for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(59.70)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Refund for accidentally purchased headphones - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		77.12		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased surge protectors with USB ports for printer and mail scales - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(31.96)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		heybike - Purchased an eBike to be raffled off at Roots game - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(899.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza - Monthly parking pass for Meagan - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(275.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		oakland parking meter - Howard paid for parking during tour of KTA (architects for new EBCE HQ) ...		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(1.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		LEWBIN, DAVID		parking for on-sight all-staff		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(10.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE all-staff parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		Gilmore, Molly		Parking at 1999 Harrison		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		Gilmore, Molly		Parking at 3 pitchers		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Lak - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Monthly parking pass for Meagan - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(275.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		258589		IGOE, INC. (ACH)		February 2022 - Medical and/or Dependent Care FSA Monthly Participation Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(75.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/7/22		March				Payroll Service Fee - EIB		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(231.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/18/22		March				Payroll Service Fee - EIB		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(171.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/21/22		March		Paychex		Paychex-OAB Flex Time		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(183.30)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		256612		IGOE (COBRA)		COBRA Monthly Service Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(65.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		260411		IGOE, INC. (ACH)		March 2022 - Medical and/or Dependent Care FSA Monthly Participation Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 2022-03		MECHANICS BANK (1999 Harrison Street) INC		To recognize March 2022 rent paid in advance		56130		Rent		Operations		(37,368.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD_000369587		RingCentral Inc.		Hardware -- {po: 1096}		56140		Small equipment		Operations		(191.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25352		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Logitech C925e Webcams x8		56140		Small equipment		Operations		(916.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Inv 1084		MYST AI, INC.		To recognize March 2022 expense that was prepaid		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(9,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		netlify - Hosting and serverless backend services for web applications and static websites. - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(14.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		cloudinary - Cloud-based image and video management services  - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(99.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dialpad - Conference call manager (formerly Uberconference) - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		1password  - Password manager for employees - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(132.24)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		atlassian - Process and controls management software - Jason		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(753.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		smartystreets - Address standardization tool for Analytics and Technology monthly charge - Kevin		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(80.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wallstreet - Online News Subscription - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(38.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(8.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		github - GitHub Pro Membership for analytics provenance tracking and version control. - Diego		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(997.14)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(18.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		energy gps - Newsletter Subscription - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		mailgun technologies - cloud-based email service for sending, receiving and tracking emails. Use...		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1.09)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Monthly membership fee - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Purchased printable stamp templates - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(211.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		zoom - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(465.37)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		44637		GOOGLE		March 2022 - Google Cloud		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(10,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/21/22		4040021004 CR		GOOGLE		Invoice paid by Amex credit card #2021-01-31		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		18.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		20778		TYMEWARE INCORPORATED		NRGSTREAM Client Access, West Region: March - May 2022		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(8,985.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3630&3646		ADAPT2 SOLUTIONS, INC.		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense - Invoice # 3630&3646		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(15,937.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		141368		GRANICUS		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense - Invoice # 141368		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(4,207.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		20174199		SALESFORCE.COM INC.		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance - Invoice#20174199		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(10,733.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2021-10042		cQUANT.IO, INC.		Subscription fee for SaaS March 2022		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(13,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		115692061-1		COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION, INC.		March 2022 - CoStar Suite Monthly License Fees -- {po:1199}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,050.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		21932185		SALESFORCE.COM INC.		Subscription - Service Dates: 3/10/22 - 8/14/22		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(330.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv-LLC1706		FLUENCE ENERGY, LLC		March 2022 - Revenue from SaaS integration - Integration Fee -- {po:1255}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(2,284.95)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		322023654088		ICE US OTC Commodity Mkts LLC		March 2022 - Market Data Exchange Fee		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-10076		cQUANT.IO, INC.		March 2022 - Dedicated Server Fees -- {po:1148}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - 365 business		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1,040.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - 365 business		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - av security		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - rmm-saas cloud backup		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(585.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - visio online plan 1		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(26.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - defender for endpoint		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(285.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(25.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		1password - Password manager for employees - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(129.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wallstreet journal - Online News Subscription - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(38.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1,053.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(18.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		smartystreets.com - Address standardization tool for Analytics and Technology monthly charge - K...		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(80.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		energy gps - Newsletter Subscription - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		netlify - Hosting and serverless backend services for web applications and static websites. - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(7.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		helioscope - Annual subscription for web-based sales and design tool for solar professionals  - JP		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Local Development		(950.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(9.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(2.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(3.22)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		cloudinary - Cloud-based image and video management services  - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(99.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dialpad - Conference call manager (formerly Uberconference) - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		github - GitHub Pro Membership for analytics provenance tracking and version control. - Diego		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		atlassian - Process and controls management software - Jason		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(768.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Monthly membership fee - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(125.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(483.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		airtable - Online Project management platform used by Programs & Marketing - JP		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(480.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		220716445		ACC Business (AT&T)		AT&T Bill for Internet 2/11/22-3/10/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(689.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		comcast - Primary internet for office - Meagan		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(116.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD_000369587		RingCentral Inc.		Telephone line -- {po: 1096}		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(502.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		T-Mobile		Mobile phone service for 2/21/22-3/20/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(1,473.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		221026556		ACC Business (AT&T)		AT&T Bill for Internet 3/11/22-04/10/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(689.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		comcast - Primary internet for office - Meagan		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(116.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Q122.102.1561		LT Trust		TOTAL Q1 2022 FEES for 401(A) PLAN- Automated payments this is just to record the fee.		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		(2,233.03)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Q122.102.1521		LT Trust		TOTAL Q1 2022 FEES for 457(B) PLAN- Automated payments this is just to record the fee.		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		(1,790.63)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44657		EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST (#50141)		2/1/22-4/4/22 - Deposit Required, Water Charges, Wastewater Charges		56190		Utilities		Operations		(185.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44657		EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST (#72375)		2/1/22 -4/4/22 - Water Charges, Wastewater Charges		56190		Utilities		Operations		(37.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44665		PG&E #461-4		March 2022 - Service provider fees for 251 8th Street Unit 3		56190		Utilities		Operations		(553.30)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44635		CORTEZ, JUAN		Gas to St. Patrick's Day Event x2		56210		Mileage/fuel		Operations		(51.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		VENTURA, FELIZ		Parking at 1999 Harrison		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		VENTURA, FELIZ		Parking at Alexan Webster Garage		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		ace parking - Parking during March in person meeting - Meagan		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(10.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Fee for preferred seat on flight SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(16.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Fee for preferred seat on flight SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(16.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Airfare to and from  SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(437.20)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(68.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(163.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(98.60)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(73.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		chateau - Hotel for WSPP conference - refund bc Howard cancelled his trip - Meagan		56240		Lodging		Operations		813.50		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		chateau - Hotel for Howard for  WSPP conference  - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(811.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		los pablanos inn - Hotel for Nick during ABQ trip - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(454.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		los poblanos inn - Deposit for Nick's hotel in ABQ - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(373.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		JW Marriott		56240		Lodging		Operations		(903.08)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		hotel		56240		Lodging		Operations		(2,716.80)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		claremont hotel -  -		56240		Lodging		Operations		(11.92)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		state wide transport oakland - Nick took a cab in SF  - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(72.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		taxi - to airport		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(19.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		taxi - to home		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(32.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		uber - Ride to office during in person March meeting - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(19.94)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lyft - Ride to the offiste during March in person meeting - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(16.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lyft - Ride to the March in person meeting at the office - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(14.85)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LUTZ, JIM		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LOPEZ, CORINA N.		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MARTINEZ, DIANNE		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LAKSHMAN, VIJAY		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MUETZENBERG, WILLIAM		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		CAVENAUGH, JEN		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LIU, YAZHOU (JOEL)		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		HANNON, MIKE		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		KUMAGAI, SHAWN		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		TIEDEMANN, AARON		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MARQUEZ, ELISA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		SIMON, FRED		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MEI,  LILY		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		NARUM, KATHY		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		FRANCH, JANE		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		COX, TERESA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		BONANNO, REGINA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ARRIOLA, DAN		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LANDRY, CYNTHIA		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		KALB, DAN		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		PACHECO, ERNESTO		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44627		SPECTRUM COMMUNITY SERVICES, Inc		EBCE AMP Outreach Grant		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development		(15,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44637		CITY OF BERKELEY		March 2022 - Grant for electrification of senior center kitchens -- {po:1211}		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(2,921.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44643		CITY OF BERKELEY		March 2022 - Myer Foodservice Equipment for the Senior Center Kitchen Electrification grant -- {...		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(13,987.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		23299		Maher Accountancy		March  2022 - Accounting Services -- {po:1262}		59010		Accounting		Operations		(18,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		INV55220		MINERAL, INC.		March 2022 - March 2023 - Workplace Harassment Prevention		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		(1,152.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13392		REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY		March 2022 - Contract Services -- {po:1256}		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		(750.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25644		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Monthly Outsource - Onsite/Remote Service -- {po:1245}		59040		IT Consulting		Operations		(5,501.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		236497		Richards Watson & Gershon		February 2022 - Professional Services -- {po:1239}		59050		Legal		Legal		(28,363.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related legal costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59050		Legal		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(5,341.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related legal costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59050		Legal		Legal		5,341.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454449		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		February 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-016 --  {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Local Development		(6,892.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454446		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-009-- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Legal		(14,162.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454448		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		February 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-015 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(3,225.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454450		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-013 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(470.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454447		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-012 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Local Development		(1,114.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		26746		Keyes & Fox LLP		March 2022 - Services  -- {po:1241}		59050		Legal		Policy		(5,204.55)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		6896463		DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP		March 2022 - RPS Procurement Plan - Matter Number: 0110408.000004 -- {po:1240}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(4,317.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2020010589		HALL ENERGY LAW PC		March 2022 - legal services - Transaction Support -- {po:1238}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(23,685.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Mar acc		Richards Watson & Gershon		To estimate March 2022 expense		59050		Legal		Legal		(20,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3612		Weideman Group, Inc		March 2022 - Legislative Strategy/Planning -- {po:1035}		59060		Legislative		Policy		(10,277.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		36265		TRC Engineers, Inc.		February 2022 - EBCE Reach Code Analysis 2019 - Project 335171 -- {po:1049}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(3,382.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		36024		TRC Engineers, Inc.		January 2022 - EBCE Reach Code Analysis 2019 - Project 335171 -- {po:1049}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(4,846.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		21619		MHC ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.		July 2021 - engineering services for 251 8th Street, Oakland -- {po:1219}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(2,160.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 1 - Funding Determination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,402.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 3 - Program Ideation & Design		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,625.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 4 - Stakeholder Coordination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(205.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 5 - Cost Effectiveness & Technical Assistance		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,347.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 6 - Tier 3 Advice Letter		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 1 - Funding Determination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(367.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 3 - Program Ideation & Design		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(623.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 7 - Project Management		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(97.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Feb accR		Richards Watson & Gershon		Reverse of GJE Feb acc -- To estimate February 2022 expense		59050		Legal		Legal		20,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Mar accR		TRC Engineers, Inc.		Reverse of GJE Mar acc -- To accrue expenses for December 2021		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		1,500.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/11/22		0008086046-3		PG&E - ENGINEERING ADVANCE		March 2022 - Electrical engineering assessment for City of Oakland public parking garage		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(2,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/14/22		EBCE-0322-A		PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY		March 2022 - Aces invoice #22A4572-IN- 1/5 of RA Management and Procurement		59070		Other Consultants		Power Procurement		(1,324.17)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE March 2022		MISSIONCTRL		March 2022 - base retainer -- {po:1234}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(9,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1012		CCCFA - General Payments		March 2022 -  2021B Specific - Funding for costs and minimum bank account balance		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(21,600.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE43		CLEAN ENERGY REGULATORY RESEARCH, LLC		March 2022- Regulatory Compliance Support  -- {po:1155}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(2,345.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE-002		NP ENERGY LLC		March 2022 - Resource Adequacy Policy Updates -- {po:1263}		59070		Other Consultants		Power Procurement		(2,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		112474		CALSTART, INC.		March 2022 - Phase 3: Pilot Project Technical Assistance Implementation -- {po:1142}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,789.55)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13385		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PG&E 2019 ERRA Compliance -- {po:1119}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(99.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13398		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PGE 2023 GRC Phase I -- {po:1118}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(3,485.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13386		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PGE 2022 ERRA Forecast -- {po:1195}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(163.61)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		112471		CALSTART, INC.		March 2022 - Blueprints for Medium - and Heavy-Duty Zero-Emission Vehicle Infrastructure -- {po:...		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(17,233.63)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE2203		ECOMOTION INC.		March 2022 - Energy Resilient Municipal Facilities Project, Ecomotion Labor Cost -- {po:1204}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P009-Resiliency		(11,620.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		69333		CLEARESULT CONSULTING, INC.		March 2022 - Professional Services -- {po:1162}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(25,752.53)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		21-REVISED		BENTHAM PAULOS		January-February 2022 - targeted communications invoice #21 --  {po:1244}		59090		Communications consultants		Policy		(8,175.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		1		RAYSHINE LLC		March 2022 - Retainer -- {po:1265}		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		(20,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		03-21-22-2		AFAF TRANSLATIONS LLC		Translation of "CC221016-COPY DECK_AMP marketing toolkit_translation" into 9 different languages...		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(335.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related Communications costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(337.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related Communications costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		337.50		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		General Web Services		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		(9,142.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: General		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(600.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: AMP		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(4,162.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: CAPP		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Heat Pump Water Heater		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(75.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Induction Campaign		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(5,962.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Medical Baseline		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(1,875.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Resilient Home		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(324.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		22		BENTHAM PAULOS		March 2022 - targeted communications invoice #22 --  {po:1244}		59090		Communications consultants		Policy		(1,800.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		4369702516		THE LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMPANY		March 2022 - Life Insurance Premium --  {po:1041}		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(1,765.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - Commuter Benefits		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - PIA VLI EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		26.33		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - TO-PIA MED EE (FSA)		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		2,848.87		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22 - PIA VLI EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		29.73		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22 - PIA MED EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		2,375.98		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		22042002169		Blue Shield of California		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(23,846.14)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		53475560648		KAISER PERMANENTE		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(9,275.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22		60520		Payroll tax expense		Payroll		(4,246.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60520		Payroll tax expense		Payroll		(4,073.89)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		ER March				Payroll 3/1/22-3/15/22 - ER portion		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Payroll		(45,636.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		ER March				Payroll 3/16/22-3/31/22 - ER portion		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Payroll		(48,794.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2/28/22 PRR				Reverse of GJE 2/28/22 PR -- 13 of 13 days of 2/16/22-2/28/22 payroll period paid in following m...		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		265,725.27		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(261,478.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(268,384.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3/31/22 PR				16 of 16 days of 3/16/22-3/31/22 payroll period paid in following month		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(308,582.32)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - Workers' Comp		60550		Workers comp insurance		Payroll		(568.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60550		Workers comp insurance		Payroll		(585.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44642				Estimated Accrued compensated Absences and supplemental PTO at 3/31/22		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Payroll		(17,255.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Jan intR		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		Reverse of GJE Jan int -- Accrue January 2022 interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		77,802.38		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Feb intR		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		Reverse of GJE Feb int -- Accrue February 2022 interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		68,095.34		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03-15 LC&REV		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		January - March 2022 - LOC & Revolver - interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		(149,568.87)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03-15 LC 26494		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		January - March 2022 - Letter of Credit Facility 26494 - Interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		(66,700.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Mar22 Depr				To record monthly depreciation expense		80200		Depreciation Expense				(5,654.22)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		







								

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1





COA

						FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

						CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

						MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Account		Account Name		Code

		41010		Commercial - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		41020		Residential - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42010		Commercial - Green Premium		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42020		Residential - Green Premium		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42999		Bad Debt expense		B		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		43000		CAPP Proceeds		A1																																																																- 0		- 0

		44000		Interest Income		C		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		45000		Miscellaneous income		A2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		46000		Grant Revenue		D		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		47000		Damages		A1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		61000		Bad Debt expense		B		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				REV TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50120		Capacity purchases		E2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA		E5		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50135		PPA Energy Purchase		E5		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50140		Energy purchases		E		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50145		Carbon Free Energy		E4		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50160		RECs purchases		E3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50165		GHG Offset expense		E4		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy		E1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades		E1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges		E6		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50200		Data Manager		F1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50300		Scheduling Co		F3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50310		Broker Fees		E8		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50400		NEM Expense		E7		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50500		Service Fees - PG&E		F2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50510		Wholesale Sales - Energy		E		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50520		Wholesale Sales - REC/CO2		E3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA		E2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				ENERGY TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50200		Data Manager		F1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50901		Other Noticing		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50902		Required Mailings		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55010		Advertising		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55055		Promotional Items		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55060		Communications - misc expenses		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55070		Special Events		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56010		Bank service fee		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56030		Business Meals		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56020		Building maintenance		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56040		Conferences & Prof Development		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56050		Equipment lease		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56060		Industry memberships and dues		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56070		Insurance		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56080		Interest and Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56100		Office supplies and postage		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56110		Parking at office		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56120		Payroll service fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56130		Rent		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56140		Small equipment		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56160		Telephone and internet		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56180		Miscellaneous Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56181		Retirement admin fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56190		Utilities		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56210		Mileage/fuel		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56220		Parking and Tolls		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56230		Airfare		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56240		Lodging		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56330		Director's Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		57010		Community Investment Grants		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		57020		Program Incentives		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59010		Accounting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59030		Human resources consulting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59040		IT Consulting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59050		Legal		L		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59060		Legislative		L		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59070		Other Consultants		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59090		Communications consultants		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59200		Technical Consultants		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60510		Employee welfare		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60520		Payroll tax expense		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60530		Retirement plan contributions		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60540		Salaries and wages		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60550		Workers comp insurance		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60560		Life Insurance		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60590		Temporary Employees		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



		63400		Interest Expense		K		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		80200		Depreciation Expense		Y		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		80400		Penalties and fines		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99991		Adjust Equipment Modified (neg)		Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99992		Adjust Equipment Modified (pos)		Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99995				Z																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99996				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99997				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99998				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		UUT C				A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				OPERATIONS TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Ops less Capital				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Comp to Chart				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				TOTAL EXPENSES				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				NET REVENUE				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		426,137		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				SumGL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Comp to GL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

																																																												8,081,323.84







OpsChart

								Total		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

		Area		Account		Account Name		Rsrc		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		L		50200		Data Manager		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50200		Data Manager		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				50200		Data Manager		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50901		Other Noticing		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50902		Required Mailings		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		50902		Required Mailings		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55010		Advertising		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55055		Promotional Items		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		55055		Promotional Items		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		55070		Special Events		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55070		Special Events		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56010		Bank service fee		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56020		Building maintenance		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56030		Business meals		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56040		Conferences & prof development		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56050		Equipment Lease		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56070		Insurance		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56080		Interest and fees expense		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56100		Office supplies and postage		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56110		Parking at office		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56120		Payroll service fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56130		Rent		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56160		Telephone and internet		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56181		Retirement admin fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56190		Utilities		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56210		Mileage/fuel		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56220		Parking and Tolls		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56230		Airfare		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56240		Lodging		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56250		Other Travel		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56310		Board Meeting Rental		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56330		Director's Fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		57010		Community Grants		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		57010		Community Grants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		57020		Program Incentives		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59010		Accounting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59040		IT Consulting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				59050		Legal		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59060		Legislative		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		59070		Consultants		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59070		Consultants		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants (CRM)		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		59090		Communications consultants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		59090		Communications consultants		Loc																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59090		Communications consultants		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60510		Employee welfare		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60520		Payroll tax expense		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60540		Salaries and wages		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60550		Workers comp insurance		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Pay																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		60590		Temp Employees		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		99999		Local Development--Unassigned		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

						New Communities		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A				Energy Pre-pay		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



						CHECK AND TRUE UP

				AK		AJ		0

				Chart		COA		D

		50200		0		0		0

		50200		0		0		0

		50300		0		0		0

		50310		0		0		0

		50400		0		0		0

		50500		0		0		0

		50510		0		0		0

		50520		0		0		0

		50530		0		0		0

		50901		0		0		0

		50902		0		0		0

		55010		0		0		0

		55040		0		0		0

		55055		0		0		0

		55060		0		0		0

		55070		0		0		0

		56010		0		0		0

		56020		0		0		0

		56030		0		0		0

		56040		0		0		0

		56050		0		0		0

		56055		0		0		0

		56060		0		0		0

		56070		0		0		0

		56080		0		0		0

		56090		0		0		0

		56100		0		0		0

		56110		0		0		0

		56120		0		0		0

		56130		0		0		0

		56140		0		0		0

		56150		0		0		0

		56160		0		0		0

		56180		0		0		0

		56181		0		0		0

		56190		0		0		0

		56210		0		0		0

		56220		0		0		0

		56230		0		0		0

		56240		0		0		0

		56250		0		0		0

		56330		0		0		0

		57010		0		0		0

		57020		0		0		0

		59010		0		0		0

		59030		0		0		0

		59040		0		0		0

		59050		0		0		0

		59060		0		0		0

		59070		0		0		0

		59090		0		0		0

		59200		0		0		0

		60510		0		0		0

		60520		0		0		0

		60530		0		0		0

		60540		0		0		0

		60550		0		0		0

		60560		0		0		0

		60580		0		0		0

		60590		0		0		0

		61000		0		0		0





LocDev

				FY		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

				CY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

				Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4

				MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Program Funding

				Beginning Balance		4,871,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000

				Funding from General Fund Revenues		6,340,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		8,475,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		D		Grants/Credits		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Mid-Year adjustment		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Available Funding		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000

				Net Expenses		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Ending Balance		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000



		Program Areas Resources

		P001		Building Electrification		1,609,000																								900,000

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		925,000																								0

		P003		Demand Response		236,000																								0

		P004		Energy Efficiency		824,000																								0

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		6,043,000				252,000				500																5,545,000

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		805,000																137,500						-288,001		0

		P007		Community Investment		211,000																								1,150,000

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		5,000																								100,000

		P009		Resiliency		458,000																						322,621		580,000

		L		Legal Resources		100,000																						-34,620		100,000

		M		MAS Resources		0																								100,000

		P		Policy Resources		0																								0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0																								0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0																								0



				Total Program Resources		11,216,000		0		252,000		0		500		0		0		0		137,500		0		0		0		8,475,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



		Program Areas Expenses

		P001		Building Electrification		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P003		Demand Response		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P004		Energy Efficiency		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P007		Community Investment		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P009		Resiliency		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		L		Legal Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		M		MAS Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P		Policy Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Program Expenses		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



		Program Area Remaining

		P001		Building Electrification		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000

		P003		Demand Response		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000

		P004		Energy Efficiency		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		6,043,000		6,043,000		6,295,000		6,295,000		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		942,500		942,500		942,500		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499

		P007		Community Investment		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000

		P009		Resiliency		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		780,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621

		L		Legal Resources		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		65,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380

		M		MAS Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000

		P		Policy Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Program Remaining		11,216,000		11,216,000		11,468,000		11,468,000		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,606,000		11,606,000		11,606,000		11,606,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000

																														2,509,000

																														925,000

																														236,000

																														824,000

																														11,840,500

																														654,499

																														1,361,000

																														105,000

																														1,360,621

																														165,380

																														100,000

																														0

																														0

																														0

																														0

																														20,081,000





Budget

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4				10642		MedBaseline

								MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6				4064		FERA

																																																										202107		202108		202109		202110		202111		202112		202201		202202		202203		202204		202205		202206		202207		202208		202209		202210		202211		202212		202301		202302		202303		202304		202305		202306				111925		CARE

		REVENUES

				OPERATING																																																																														2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%

						Electricity Sales				46,348,347		46,453,034		44,816,941		44,349,561		42,893,970		47,529,054		38,753,799		35,004,005		36,253,837		34,013,830		34,848,777		35,749,216		41,499,196		41,861,697		41,160,584		38,467,515		28,815,763		32,651,733		27,498,127		23,792,812		25,311,536		27,697,242		34,902,402		37,745,980		49,088,221		52,163,926		50,702,277		36,023,199		35,038,734		38,786,322		43,137,055		38,382,692		38,760,551		34,713,745		35,955,519		55,883,972		81,284,333		84,296,780		79,690,797		65,405,956		63,385,914		70,989,546		78,808,860		71,179,538		72,932,106		66,902,770		71,206,193		89,344,226		895,427,018		5/3/22		Doug's ST model

						Uncollectables				-232,742		-233,265		-225,085		-222,748		-215,470		-238,645		-194,769		-176,020		-182,269		-171,069		-175,244		-179,746		-1,037,480		-1,046,542		-1,029,015		-961,688		-720,394		-816,293		-687,453		-594,820		-632,788		-676,945		-821,048		-877,920		-981,764		-1,043,279		-1,014,046		-720,464		-700,775		-775,726		-647,056		-575,740		-581,408		-520,706		-539,333		-838,260		(1,625,687)		(1,685,936)		(1,593,816)		(1,308,119)		(1,267,718)		(1,419,791)		(1,576,177)		(1,423,591)		(1,458,642)		(1,338,055)		(1,424,124)		(1,786,885)		-17,908,541

						Other Operations Revenue																																																																																(6,229,350)																				-6,229,350		124587		CARE/FERA 5/9/2022 Account Explorer



						Total Operating Revenues				46,115,605		46,219,769		44,591,856		44,126,813		42,678,500		47,290,409		38,559,030		34,827,985		36,071,568		33,842,761		34,673,533		35,569,470		40,461,716		40,815,155		40,131,569		37,505,827		28,095,369		31,835,440		26,810,674		23,197,992		24,678,747		27,020,297		34,081,354		36,868,060		48,106,457		51,120,648		49,688,231		35,302,735		34,337,959		38,010,595		42,489,999		37,806,952		38,179,143		34,193,038		35,416,186		55,045,713		79,658,646		82,610,844		71,867,631		64,097,837		62,118,196		69,569,755		77,232,683		69,755,947		71,473,464		65,564,715		69,782,069		87,557,341		871,289,127

				NON-OPERATING

						Interest Income				30,210		33,743		37,277		40,810		44,343		47,877		55,547		56,261		56,975		57,689		58,403		59,117		102,204		102,370		102,536		102,703		102,870		103,037		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		9,000		9,000		8,000		7,000		9,000		16,583		19,567		23,551		30,534		37,518		44,501		46,484		260,738		5/9/22		Working capital + BlocPower Interest

						Grants				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		894,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

						Other Non-Operating Revenue																																																																																				15,000																15,000



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				30,210		33,743		37,277		40,810		44,343		47,877		55,547		56,261		56,975		57,689		58,403		59,117		102,204		171,120		102,536		102,703		171,620		103,037		102,620		171,370		102,620		102,620		171,370		102,620		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		964,091		9,000		9,000		8,000		7,000		24,000		16,583		19,567		23,551		30,534		37,518		44,501		46,484		275,738

				TOTAL REVENUES						46,145,815		46,253,513		44,629,132		44,167,623		42,722,843		47,338,286		38,614,577		34,884,246		36,128,543		33,900,450		34,731,936		35,628,587		40,563,920		40,986,274		40,234,106		37,608,530		28,266,989		31,938,477		26,913,294		23,369,362		24,781,367		27,122,917		34,252,724		36,970,680		48,168,724		51,183,141		49,750,989		35,371,258		34,410,918		38,080,686		42,552,266		37,869,444		38,241,900		34,261,562		35,489,145		56,009,803		79,667,646		82,619,844		71,875,631		64,104,837		62,142,196		69,586,338		77,252,250		69,779,498		71,503,998		65,602,233		69,826,570		87,603,825		871,564,865

		EXPENSES

				CAISO $/MWh Estimate																																																																														1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54

		ENERGY

				ISTs						21,647,856		23,673,828		21,222,360		18,113,520		17,301,826		19,087,768		9,382,212		8,570,196		8,625,859		7,599,240		7,895,700		8,147,160		20,548,896		20,705,136		19,248,360		19,553,736		17,502,432		18,673,566		6,357,944		5,850,672		6,504,156		9,784,987		9,852,611		9,784,987		21,807,757		22,550,204		20,070,025		17,072,794		15,448,088		16,228,326		8,070,184		7,112,702		7,474,114		6,825,983		7,195,148		10,123,820		14,904,899		15,666,755		14,041,246		14,759,599		11,868,415		12,411,230		6,495,855		5,328,312		5,664,133		5,344,404		5,528,462		5,359,292		117,372,602		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				OPEN						4,038,717		3,168,151		2,266,562		3,014,803		2,795,651		5,567,683		17,200,844		13,765,842		10,654,710		7,328,907		7,431,717		11,193,313		1,936,590		2,532,409		2,197,478		1,105,385		2,505,528		4,417,928		15,362,577		11,626,759		9,598,118		6,792,359		6,904,685		7,600,498		5,388,816		10,820,801		6,554,432		7,274,583		8,919,626		12,485,533		23,111,050		17,197,715		14,489,875		9,127,048		9,194,964		10,841,922		16,100,379		23,147,050		18,056,043		13,954,916		19,530,497		28,825,028		43,407,705		33,067,398		25,634,433		11,476,943		11,830,988		17,269,298		262,300,678		5/3/22		Contracts DB Test w/Prepay

				BASIS																														850,441		832,968		568,007		453,607		450,137		560,533		222,613		175,254		186,614		305,313		341,585		381,274		996,899		1,136,123		717,862		519,906		584,534		614,902		268,577		302,274		322,891		325,212		361,708		502,183		845,390		871,134		566,092		480,742		485,557		456,159		227,810		229,670		244,496		447,673		459,087		435,300		5,749,110		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				CAISO						1,945,392		1,946,982		1,874,759		1,850,155		1,786,284		1,978,199		1,989,229		1,796,947		1,860,945		1,747,029		1,792,019		1,846,726		662,885		669,805		652,316		641,876		626,125		695,398		681,866		590,727		632,815		586,940		604,324		618,708		993,239		1,055,811		985,905		960,005		933,998		1,029,355		1,030,004		879,901		955,433		853,032		883,572		930,982		949,698		993,549		935,267		898,145		880,845		977,805		970,790		842,913		914,192		827,085		872,515		908,287		10,971,091

				NEM																																																						1,117,345		741,004		230,612		196,265		-135,130		-421,656		-375,110		-169,411		-33,463		-676,153		322,520		1,120,881		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-225,384		107,507		373,627		255,750



				Total Energy						27,631,965		28,788,960		25,363,681		22,978,477		21,883,761		26,633,651		28,572,285		24,132,984		21,141,515		16,675,177		17,119,436		21,187,199		23,998,812		24,740,318		22,666,161		21,754,604		21,084,222		24,347,425		22,625,000		18,243,412		16,921,703		17,469,599		17,703,205		18,385,467		30,304,056		36,303,942		28,558,835		26,023,553		25,751,117		29,936,459		32,104,705		25,323,181		23,208,849		16,455,122		17,957,912		23,519,788		32,800,366		40,678,488		33,598,648		30,093,402		32,765,314		42,670,222		51,102,160		39,468,293		32,457,254		17,870,721		18,798,559		24,345,804		396,649,231

		ATTRIBUTES

				CAPACITY						4,168,343		4,800,714		3,614,495		2,927,362		2,620,493		2,830,725		4,447,599		4,396,640		3,439,562		4,511,298		4,624,287		4,808,713		5,928,814		7,569,593		6,360,850		4,426,707		4,083,057		5,122,865		5,785,902		5,478,057		4,550,795		4,553,744		4,698,162		4,713,287		9,101,974		8,240,112		8,757,145		6,247,015		5,808,860		6,156,532		4,830,937		4,592,669		3,971,949		4,873,765		6,094,666		5,825,309		7,608,188		10,082,187		10,593,531		8,515,282		6,595,178		6,969,295		5,611,116		5,505,898		4,789,465		4,459,266		7,187,740		8,207,248		86,124,394		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				PPA																														0		0		0		0		0		0		490,757		490,757		490,757		1,880,563		2,027,444		2,054,612		1,866,528		1,812,190		1,675,498		1,098,943		889,235		808,578		1,025,339		1,205,116		1,557,382		2,291,887		2,502,032		2,540,902		3,821,882		3,744,140		3,548,572		2,185,978		1,885,944		1,770,547		1,869,606		2,052,254		2,410,147		5,182,276		5,586,014		5,660,694		39,718,054		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				RECs						2,475,538		2,475,538		2,395,682		2,475,538		2,395,682		2,475,538		3,759,884		3,517,311		3,759,884		3,638,597		3,759,884		3,638,597		2,921,920		2,954,999		2,885,247		2,849,256		2,780,887		3,082,842		3,388,993		2,911,602		3,135,619		2,032,708		2,011,029		2,051,606		2,293,219		2,500,061		2,388,208		2,555,612		2,596,036		2,946,449		3,133,977		2,500,914		2,555,839		1,915,737		1,892,125		2,021,201		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		36,450,000		5/3/22

				CO2						1,655,689		1,655,689		1,602,280		1,655,689		1,602,280		1,655,689		1,875,236		1,754,253		1,875,236		1,814,745		1,875,236		1,814,745		402,940		408,949		396,279		389,741		377,323		432,170		316,672		257,994		285,529		255,971		266,787		274,268		423,568		451,424		421,349		410,125		398,656		440,753		149,104		125,086		137,026		120,919		125,676		132,689		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		4,221,000		5/9/22		Contracts DB

				Broker																														30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		480,000



				Total Attributes						8,299,570		8,931,941		7,612,456		7,058,589		6,618,455		6,961,952		10,082,719		9,668,204		9,074,682		9,964,640		10,259,407		10,262,055		9,283,674		10,963,541		9,672,376		7,695,704		7,271,267		8,667,877		10,012,324		9,168,410		8,492,700		8,752,986		9,033,422		9,123,773		13,725,289		13,043,787		13,282,200		10,351,695		9,732,787		10,392,312		9,179,357		8,463,785		8,262,196		9,242,308		10,654,499		10,560,101		14,859,320		17,255,577		17,571,353		14,130,510		11,910,372		12,169,092		10,909,972		10,987,402		10,628,862		13,070,792		16,203,004		17,297,192		166,993,448

		SERVICES

				CRM						558,552		559,400		560,247		561,069		561,916		562,736		563,584		564,433		565,226		566,073		566,894		567,741		592,073		593,317		594,561		595,806		597,050		598,294		685,187		686,609		788,031		789,453		789,875		692,297		782,002		782,755		783,509		784,263		785,016		785,770		655,436		656,064		656,692		657,320		657,948		658,576		650,901		651,442		651,983		652,525		653,066		653,607		654,149		654,690		655,231		655,773		656,314		656,856		7,846,536

				Metering						186,184		186,467		186,749		187,023		187,305		187,579		187,861		188,144		188,409		188,691		188,965		189,247		197,358		197,772		198,187		198,602		199,017		199,431		199,846		200,261		229,676		230,090		230,505		201,920		228,084		228,304		228,523		228,743		228,963		229,183		229,403		229,622		229,842		230,062		230,282		230,502		225,560		225,747		225,935		226,122		226,310		226,498		226,685		226,873		227,060		227,248		227,436		227,623		2,719,097

				Scheduling						54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		696,144



				Total Services						799,136		800,267		801,397		802,491		803,621		804,715		805,846		806,977		808,034		809,164		810,259		811,388		844,431		846,090		847,749		849,408		851,067		852,726		940,033		941,870		1,072,706		1,074,543		1,075,380		949,217		1,065,574		1,066,547		1,067,521		1,068,494		1,069,467		1,070,441		969,839		970,687		971,534		972,382		973,230		974,078		933,058		933,786		934,515		935,244		935,973		936,702		940,261		940,990		941,718		942,448		943,177		943,906		11,261,777

		OPERATING OVERHEAD

				Personnel						497,015		513,385		546,039		567,066		581,812		580,673		578,095		575,154		571,305		567,150		566,137		559,149		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		15,711,000		5/1/22		From Staffing_v2

				Marketing, Outreach, Communications						188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		2,874,000		4/4/22		From MAS Budget 

				Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs						132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		1,936,000

				Other Professional Services						101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		2,293,000

				General & Administrative						190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		3,807,000

				Depreciation						5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		180,000



				Total Internal Costs						1,114,832		1,131,202		1,163,856		1,184,883		1,199,629		1,198,490		1,195,912		1,192,971		1,189,121		1,184,967		1,183,954		1,176,965		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		26,801,000



		NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

				Borrowing Interest						117,429		118,415		115,427		108,735		109,253		102,647		102,842		99,556		89,977		92,778		86,421		85,778		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		76,265		76,265		73,805		76,265		73,805		76,265		76,265		68,884		76,265		73,805		76,265		73,805		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		1,440,000

				Local Development Funding						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		20,600,000		4/1/22		Guidance from Nick

				Grants																																																																														15,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		15,000,000

				Capital Expenditures																																																										5,500,000																				1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		7,000,000

						Building Improvements																																																																												1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		7,000,000

						Investments



				Total Non-Operating Expenses						640,345		641,332		638,343		631,652		632,169		625,564		625,759		622,473		612,894		615,695		609,338		608,695		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		782,515		782,515		6,280,055		782,515		780,055		782,515		782,515		775,134		782,515		780,055		782,515		780,055		18,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		51,040,000

		TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES								35,931,535		37,720,901		32,976,138		30,037,066		28,502,216		33,595,603		38,655,004		33,801,188		30,216,197		26,639,817		27,378,843		31,449,254		33,282,486		35,703,859		32,338,537		29,450,308		28,355,489		33,015,302		32,637,324		27,411,822		25,414,403		26,222,585		26,736,627		27,509,240		44,029,345		49,347,730		41,841,035		36,375,248		35,483,904		40,328,772		41,284,062		33,786,966		31,471,046		25,697,429		28,612,410		34,079,890		47,659,686		57,934,065		51,170,001		44,223,912		44,675,686		54,839,314		62,012,132		50,455,695		43,086,116		30,941,513		35,001,563		41,642,996		563,642,679

		TOTAL ENERGY SERVICES EXPENSES								799,136		800,267		801,397		802,491		803,621		804,715		805,846		806,977		808,034		809,164		810,259		811,388		844,431		846,090		847,749		849,408		851,067		852,726		940,033		941,870		1,072,706		1,074,543		1,075,380		949,217		1,065,574		1,066,547		1,067,521		1,068,494		1,069,467		1,070,441		969,839		970,687		971,534		972,382		973,230		974,078		933,058		933,786		934,515		935,244		935,973		936,702		940,261		940,990		941,718		942,448		943,177		943,906		11,261,777

		TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES								1,114,832		1,131,202		1,163,856		1,184,883		1,199,629		1,198,490		1,195,912		1,192,971		1,189,121		1,184,967		1,183,954		1,176,965		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		26,801,000

		TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES								640,345		641,332		638,343		631,652		632,169		625,564		625,759		622,473		612,894		615,695		609,338		608,695		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		782,515		782,515		6,280,055		782,515		780,055		782,515		782,515		775,134		782,515		780,055		782,515		780,055		18,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		51,040,000



		TOTAL EXPENSES								38,485,848		40,293,701		35,579,733		32,656,093		31,137,635		36,224,371		41,282,521		36,423,609		32,826,246		29,249,642		29,982,393		34,046,303		35,874,000		38,297,032		34,933,369		32,046,799		30,953,639		35,615,111		35,324,440		30,100,775		28,234,193		29,044,211		29,559,090		30,205,540		47,320,767		52,640,125		50,631,944		39,669,590		38,776,759		43,625,060		44,479,749		36,976,121		34,668,429		28,893,199		31,811,488		37,277,355		69,652,827		64,927,934		58,164,600		51,219,239		51,671,742		61,836,100		69,032,476		55,476,768		48,107,918		35,964,044		40,024,823		46,666,985		652,745,456

		NET REVENUES								7,659,968		5,959,812		9,049,399		11,511,530		11,585,208		11,113,915		-2,667,944		-1,539,362		3,302,298		4,650,808		4,749,543		1,582,285		4,689,920		2,689,243		5,300,737		5,561,731		-2,686,650		-3,676,634		-8,411,147		-6,731,413		-3,452,826		-1,921,294		4,693,634		6,765,140		847,957		-1,456,984		-880,955		-4,298,332		-4,365,841		-5,544,375		-1,927,483		893,324		3,573,472		5,368,362		3,677,656		18,732,448		10,014,819		17,691,910		13,711,031		12,885,598		10,470,453		7,750,238		8,219,774		14,302,729		23,396,081		29,638,189		29,801,746		40,936,840		218,819,408

		Cumulative Net Revenues by FY																																																								847,957		-609,027		-1,489,982		-5,788,315		-10,154,156		-15,698,530		-17,626,013		-16,732,690		-13,159,218		-7,790,855		-4,113,199		14,619,249		10,014,819		27,706,729		41,417,760		54,303,357		64,773,811		72,524,049		80,743,823		95,046,552		118,442,633		148,080,822		177,882,568		218,819,408



		ACCOUNTS								531,954		532,762		533,569		534,351		535,158		535,939		536,747		537,555		538,310		539,117		539,899		540,706		563,879		565,064		566,249		567,434		568,619		569,804		570,989		572,174		573,359		574,544		575,729		576,914		651,668		652,296		652,924		653,552		654,180		654,808		655,436		656,064		656,692		657,320		657,948		658,576		644,456		644,992		645,528		646,064		646,600		647,136		647,672		648,208		648,744		649,280		649,816		650,352

		WHOLESALE LOAD (MWh)								555,826		556,280		535,645		528,616		510,367		565,200		568,351		513,413		531,699		499,151		512,005		527,636		547,839		553,558		539,104		530,476		517,459		574,709		563,526		488,204		522,988		485,074		499,441		511,329		644,961		685,592		640,198		623,380		606,492		668,412		668,834		571,364		620,411		553,917		573,748		604,534		616,687		645,162		607,316		583,211		571,977		634,938		630,383		547,346		593,631		537,068		566,568		589,797				4/1/22		Contracts DB

		RETAIL LOAD (MWh)								519,302		520,411		502,208		497,300		480,302		531,458		534,086		482,838		500,334		469,868		481,325		494,053		511,814		517,650		505,344		498,994		486,932		540,205		529,694		459,163		492,260		456,731		469,732		478,724		604,125		615,923		594,130		574,639		562,863		614,990		620,403		540,029		576,103		523,354		546,204		562,458		575,281		601,786		568,117		547,507		537,369		595,837		591,797		514,112		557,853		504,840		531,843		551,238				4/1/22		Contracts DB

										6.6%		6.4%		6.2%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.0%		6.0%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.4%		6.6%		6.5%		6.3%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.0%		5.9%		5.9%		5.8%		5.9%		6.4%		6.3%		10.2%		7.2%		7.8%		7.2%		8.0%		7.2%		5.5%		7.1%		5.5%		4.8%		7.0%		6.7%		6.7%		6.5%		6.1%		6.1%		6.2%		6.1%		6.1%		6.0%		6.0%		6.1%		6.5%

		Average Price																																																						53.80		68.27		71.98		65.36		58.35		58.51		60.34		61.73		59.13		50.73		46.39		49.87		56.37		77.28		89.80		84.26		75.83		78.11		86.37		98.37		92.18		72.58		57.61		61.78		70.61

		VWAP/FY																																																								59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12





DevDash

																		2023		2022		2022				2021				2020

										1		2		3		4

										Q1		Q2		Q3		Q4		FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2021-22				FY 2020-21				FY 2019-20

										Jul-Sep		Oct-Dec		Jan-Mar		Apr-Jun		DRAFT BUDGET		BUDGET		YTD* + EST				BUDGET				BUDGET

		OPERATING ACTIVITY

				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						GASB 62 Unrecognized Revenue Balance												15,814,000		15,814,000		15,814,000				12,680,000				0

						Operating Revenue

								Electricity Sales		245,272,000		199,781,000		222,921,000		227,453,000		895,427,000		508,636,000		196,455,000				401,405,000				487,014,000

								Uncollectables		(4,905,000)		(3,996,000)		(4,458,000)		(4,549,000)		(17,908,000)		(8,939,000)		(2,947,000)				(9,902,000)				(2,447,000)

								Other Operations Revenue		(6,229,000)		0		0		0		(6,229,000)		0		700,000				0				0



						Total Operating Revenue				234,138,000		195,785,000		218,463,000		222,904,000		871,290,000		499,697,000		194,208,000				391,503,000				484,567,000



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Energy Operating Expenses

								Open										262,301,000		135,406,000		50,582,000				72,580,000				88,427,000		46.5%

								Hedges										117,373,000		159,979,000		26,213,000				164,367,000				171,268,000		20.8%

								Capacity										86,124,000		74,501,000		19,243,000				63,272,000				47,190,000		15.3%

								PPA										39,718,000		19,274,000		12,724,000				7,435,000				0		7.0%

								REC										36,450,000		29,299,000		4,216,000				33,007,000				36,768,000		6.5%

								CAISO										10,971,000		11,491,000		2,592,000				7,664,000				22,415,000		1.9%

								Basis										5,749,000		6,653,000		1,244,000				5,328,000				0		1.0%

								CO2										4,221,000		3,336,000		422,000				4,065,000				20,837,000		0.7%

								NEM										256,000		1,918,000		767,000				0				0		0.0%

								Broker										480,000		480,000		120,000				360,000				0		0.1%

								Cost of Energy		156,764,000		143,739,000		155,554,000		107,586,000		563,643,000		442,337,000		118,123,000				358,078,000				386,905,000

								Data Management/Customer Service										7,847,000		8,645,000		1,930,000				8,003,000				6,758,000

								PG&E Service Fees (Billing/Metering)										2,719,000		2,752,000		676,000				2,483,000				2,253,000

								CAISO Scheduling Coordinator										696,000		843,000		255,000				660,000				653,000

								Energy Operating Services		2,801,000		2,808,000		2,823,000		2,829,000		11,262,000		12,240,000		2,861,000				11,146,000				9,664,000



						Total Energy Operating Expenses				159,565,000		146,547,000		158,377,000		110,415,000		574,905,000		454,577,000		120,984,000				369,224,000				396,569,000



						Overhead Operating Expenses

								Personnel		3,928,000		3,928,000		3,928,000		3,928,000		15,712,000		10,171,000		2,543,000				7,429,000				6,703,000

								Marketing & Communications		719,000		719,000		719,000		719,000		2,876,000		1,686,000		422,000				1,544,000				2,263,000

								Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs		484,000		484,000		484,000		484,000		1,936,000		1,592,000		398,000				1,297,000				1,586,000

								Other Professional Services		573,000		573,000		573,000		573,000		2,292,000		850,000		213,000				1,345,000				1,214,000

								General & Administrative		952,000		952,000		952,000		952,000		3,808,000		2,961,000		740,000				2,146,000				2,290,000

								Depreciation		15,000		15,000		75,000		75,000		180,000		60,000		15,000				60,000				61,000



						Total Overhead Operating Expenses				6,671,000		6,671,000		6,731,000		6,731,000		26,804,000		17,320,000		4,331,000				13,821,000				14,117,000



						Total Operating Expenses				166,236,000		153,218,000		165,108,000		117,146,000		601,709,000		471,897,000		125,315,000				383,045,000				410,686,000



				NET OPERATING POSITION						67,902,000		42,567,000



		NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY

				NON-OPERATING REVENUE

								Interest Income		26,000		33,000		74,000		129,000		262,000		798,000		28,000				1,231,000				578,000

								Grants		0		0		0		0		0		894,000		894,000				275,000				0

								Other Non-Operating Revenue		0		15,000		0		0		15,000		0		0				0				0



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				26,000		48,000		74,000		129,000		277,000		1,692,000		922,000				1,506,000				578,000



				NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

								Borrowing Interest		360,000		360,000		360,000		360,000		1,440,000		898,000		224,000				804,000				1,229,000

								Local Development Funding		5,150,000		5,150,000		5,150,000		5,150,000		20,600,000		8,475,000		8,475,000				6,340,000				6,275,000		1.4306784661

								Grant		15,000,000		0		0		0		15,000,000		0		0				0				0

								Capital Expenditures		3,000,000		3,000,000		1,000,000		0		7,000,000		5,500,000		426,000				0				0



						Total Non-Operating Expenses				23,510,000		8,510,000		6,510,000		5,510,000		44,040,000		14,873,000		9,125,000				7,144,000				7,504,000



				NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY						(23,484,000)		(8,462,000)		(6,436,000)		(5,381,000)		(43,763,000)		(13,181,000)		(8,203,000)				(5,638,000)				(6,926,000)



				TOTAL REVENUES						234,164,000		195,833,000		218,537,000		223,033,000		871,567,000		501,389,000		195,130,000				393,009,000				485,145,000

				TOTAL EXPENSES						189,746,000		161,728,000		171,618,000		122,656,000		645,749,000		486,770,000		134,440,000				390,189,000				418,190,000



		NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION								44,418,000		34,105,000		46,919,000		100,377,000		225,818,000		14,619,000		60,690,000				2,820,000				66,955,000



		RESERVE BALANCE

						Beginning Reserve Balance												TBD		90,218,000		90,218,000				90,218,000				40,514,000

						FY Contribution												TBD		TBD		TBD				0				49,704,000

						Reserve Balance												TBD		90,218,000		90,218,000				90,218,000				90,218,000

						Percent of Expenses														18.5%		67.1%				23.1%				21.6%

				0.2500		Minimum Target (25%)												161,437,000		121,693,000		33,610,000				97,547,000				104,548,000

				0.5000		Operating Target (50%)												322,875,000		243,385,000		67,220,000				195,095,000				209,095,000

				0.7500		Maximum Target (75%)												484,312,000		365,078,000		100,830,000				292,642,000				313,643,000



		LOAD

				Wholesale						1,869,165		1,790,126		1,771,360		1,693,433		7,124,084		7,461,842		7,086,497				6,333,709				6,404,190

				Retail						1,745,184		1,680,713		1,663,762		1,587,921		6,677,580		6,935,221		6,644,759				5,947,243				6,013,486

										6.6%		6.1%		6.1%		6.2%		6.3%		7.1%		6.2%				6.1%				6.1%

		PRICES

				Energy ($/MWh)						83.87		80.30		87.82		63.53		79.12		59.28		16.67				56.54				60.41

				Effective ($/MWh)						101.51		90.34		96.88		72.43		90.64		65.23		18.97				61.61				65.30





Energy Operating Expenses



Energy Operating Expenses	



Energy Cost Distribution	

Relative Monthly Average Energy Costs



FY 21/22 Budget	7	8	9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4	5	6	68.27	71.98	65.36	58.35	58.51	60.34	61.73	59.13	50.73	46.39	49.87	56.37	FY 21/22 Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	74.14	67.87	68.91	FY 22/23 Budget	77.28	89.8	84.26	75.83	78.11	86.37	98.37	92.18	72.58	57.61	61.78	70.61	Month by Number (7=July)











DevChangLog

		Date		FY Initial		FY Final		Delta		Sheet		Item		Notes

		3/29/22		222,175,000		222,175,000		0		None		None		Initialization 

		4/1/22		222,175,000		199,359,000		(22,816,000)		Budget		Open		Update from E-Dash line 62

		4/1/22		199,359,000		199,466,000		107,000		Budget		Basis		Update from E-Dash line 67

		4/1/22		199,466,000		197,953,000		(1,513,000)		Budget		RA		Update from RA-Dash line 61

		4/1/22		197,953,000		199,232,000		1,279,000		Budget		PPA		Update from PPA-Dash line 20

		4/1/22		199,232,000		199,195,000		(37,000)		Budget		CO2		Update from Sheet3 line 29

		4/1/22		199,195,000		199,206,000		11,000		Budget		Wholesale Load		Update from E-Dash line  19

		4/1/22		199,206,000		199,217,000		11,000		Actuals		Accounts		Added January account total from SMUD invoice 44

		4/1/22		199,217,000		179,017,000		(20,200,000)		Budget		REC		Update from REC-Annual line 73

		4/1/22		179,017,000		176,617,000		(2,400,000)		Budget		Local Development 		Update guidance from Nick via Slack

		4/1/22		176,617,000		176,633,000		16,000		Actuals		Accounts		Added February account total from SMUD invoice 45

		4/1/22		176,633,000		170,261,000		(6,372,000)		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total less deffered comp

		4/1/22		170,261,000		229,286,000		59,025,000		Budget		Revenues		Update from ST-Case20220330

		4/4/22		229,286,000		227,650,000		(1,636,000)		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total

		4/4/22		227,650,000		227,862,000		212,000		DevChart		Marketing		Added Marketing Budget for 2023

		4/5/22		227,862,000		223,862,000		(4,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Building improvements

		4/5/22		223,862,000		226,262,000		2,400,000		Budget		REC		Reduced to $4M/mo. Still think it's high

		4/6/22		226,262,000		226,978,000		716,000		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total

		4/6/22		226,978,000		224,978,000		(2,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Building improvements adjustments re Howard

		4/6/22		224,978,000		224,498,000		(480,000)		Budget		Borrowing Costs		Increased to reflect increased facility commitment fee

		4/6/22		224,498,000		223,958,000		(540,000)		Budget		Overhead		Increased by 10% from last year as placeholder

		4/7/22		223,958,000		221,693,000		(2,265,000)		Budget		Uncollectables		Adjusted to keep 2022 @ 1.5% from 1%

		4/8/22		221,693,000		211,693,000		(10,000,000)		Budget		Local Development 		Increased per Nick

		4/14/22		211,693,000		211,615,000		(78,000)		Actuals		Accounts		Updated with February accounts, which updated projections

		4/29/22		211,615,000		210,963,000		(652,000)		DevChart		Personnel		Updated from Staff_v2 on 20220429

		5/3/22		210,963,000		210,947,000		(16,000)		DevChart		Operations G&A		Completed G&A estimates

		5/3/22		210,947,000		297,049,000		86,102,000		Budget		Revenues		Updated with new base case from 20220503(3%BC…)

		5/3/22		297,049,000		244,743,000		(52,306,000)		Budget		Open		Updated from E-Dash line 62

		5/3/22		244,743,000		244,638,000		(105,000)		Budget		Basis		Update from E-Dash line 67

		5/3/22		244,638,000		237,638,000		(7,000,000)		Budget		Grants		Added UCSF Benioff grant

		5/3/22		237,638,000		230,910,000		(6,728,000)		Budget		Uncollectables		Increased uncollectables to 2% for full FY

		5/3/22		230,910,000		242,459,000		11,549,000		Budget		RECs		Updated RECs to match expected costs, including 5% increase in PCL

		5/4/22		242,459,000		241,974,000		(485,000)		Budget		Legal & Consultants		Increased expected increase to 30%

		5/4/22		241,974,000		241,638,000		(336,000)		DevChart		OPS		Updated some operating expenses related to new building

		5/4/22		241,638,000		240,354,000		(1,284,000)		Budget		Legal & Consultants		Integrated DevChart with Budget to complete Overhead integration

		5/4/22		240,354,000		232,354,000		(8,000,000)		Budget		Grants		Increased budget to $15MM for UCSF grant

		5/5/22		232,354,000		232,382,000		28,000		DevChart		HR Consultants		Removed the amount allocated to Account 59030 as it is covered in 59070

		5/5/22		232,382,000		232,222,000		(160,000)		DevChart		Retirement		Updated based on bonus structure

		5/9/22		232,222,000		226,423,000		(5,799,000)		Budget		Other Revenue		Reduced by $50 per CARE and FERA account in July

		5/9/22		226,423,000		225,023,000		(1,400,000)		DevChart		Marketing		Added Program costs to Marketing budget

		5/9/22		225,023,000		226,423,000		1,400,000		Budget		Local Development 		Reduced Programs to match marketing adjustment

		5/9/22		226,423,000		225,993,000		(430,000)		Budget		Other Revenue		Updated CARE & FERA count per Taj and Annie in Slack

		5/9/22		225,993,000		226,008,000		15,000		Budget		Other Revenue		Revenue from SaaS services with SVCE

		5/9/22		226,008,000		223,763,000		(2,245,000)		Budget		Carbon Free		Updated to 5/9 values @ $5.50

		5/9/22		223,763,000		225,575,000		1,812,000		DevChart		Personnel		Updated with references to updated Staff sheet

		5/9/22		225,575,000		225,608,000		33,000		Budget		Interest Income		Added BlocPower loan interest: 15Y, $1.0M, 5.5%

		5/10/22		225,608,000		224,608,000		(1,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Increased capex for building rehab by $1M per Howard comment in presentation

		5/10/22		224,608,000		224,538,000		(70,000)		Actuals		Accounts		Change in current accounts carried over to Services cost increase

				224,538,000		225,818,000		1,280,000

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0





DevChart

														16,163,000		0		16,163,000				19,748,000		0		16,410,000				32,469,000

												FY		2021								2022								2023

		Indx		BudgetMap		Account		Account Name		Contractor		Rsrc		Budget		Actual		Delta				Budget		YTD		Delta				Budget

		7		A		50200		Data Manager				Tec		0		0		0				120,000		0		120,000				84,000

		6		M		50200		Data Manager				Mar		300,000		0		300,000				185,000		0		185,000				100,000

		8		M		50901		Other Noticing				Mar		75,000		0		75,000				0		0		0				0

		9		M		50902		Required Mailings				Mar		580,000		0		580,000				395,000		0		395,000				320,000

		9		M		50902		Required Mailings		For Programs		Mar																		200,000

		11		M		55010		Advertising				Mar		154,000		0		154,000				134,000		0		134,000				121,000

		11		M		55010		Advertising		For Programs		Mar																		450,000

		15		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				5,000

		14		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Mar		130,000		0		130,000				430,000		0		430,000				285,000

		14		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		For Programs		Mar																		125,000

		16		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Pol		0		0		0				25,000		0		25,000				25,000

		18		A		55055		Promotional Items				Ops		3,000		0		3,000				3,000		0		3,000				10,000

		17		M		55055		Promotional Items				Mar		10,000		0		10,000				10,000		0		10,000				25,000

		19		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses				Mar		8,000		0		8,000				8,000		0		8,000				15,000

		21		M		55070		Special Events				Mar		5,000		0		5,000				5,000		0		5,000				5,000

		22		A		56010		Bank service fee				Ops		1,000		0		1,000				1,000		0		1,000				1,000

		23		A		56020		Building maintenance				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				100,000

		24		A		56030		Business meals				Ops		18,000		0		18,000				15,000		0		15,000				25,000

		25		A		56040		Conferences & prof development				Ops		14,000		0		14,000				20,000		0		20,000				25,000

		26		A		56050		Equipment Lease				Ops		7,000		0		7,000				7,000		0		7,000				10,000

		27		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)				Ops		20,000		0		20,000				20,000		0		20,000				40,000

		29		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues				Ops		400,000		0		400,000				400,000		0		400,000				412,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				10,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				400,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues		Bar Dues		Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				2,000

		30		A		56070		Insurance				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				18,000		0		18,000				100,000

		31		A		56080		Interest and fees expense				Ops		1,000		0		1,000				1,000		0		1,000				1,000

		32		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A				Ops		100,000		0		100,000				100,000		0		100,000				100,000

		33		A		56100		Office supplies and postage				Ops		75,000		0		75,000				40,000		0		40,000				100,000

		34		A		56110		Parking at office				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				12,000		0		12,000				12,000

		35		A		56120		Payroll service fees				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				10,000		0		10,000				10,000

		36		A		56130		Rent				Ops		429,000		0		429,000				438,000		0		438,000				250,000

		38		A		56140		Small equipment				Ops		65,000		0		65,000				100,000		0		100,000				200,000

		39		A		56140		Small equipment				Pow		50,000		0		50,000				0		0		0				0

		40		A		56140		Small equipment				Tec		75,000		0		75,000				0		0		0				0

		43		M		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Mar		50,000		0		50,000				72,000		0		72,000				50,000

		44		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Ops		40,000		0		40,000				50,000		0		50,000				60,000

		45		R		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Pol		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		41		G		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Leg		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		46		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Pow		250,000		0		250,000				726,000		0		726,000				975,000

		47		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Tec		560,000		0		560,000				630,000		0		630,000				1,064,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Aiqueous, LLC		Tec		15,000		0		15,000				0								90,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Battery Optimization		Pow		0		0		0				150,000								300,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		cQuant.io, Inc.		Pow		80,000		0		80,000				151,000								200,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Deal Capture		Pow		140,000		0		140,000				260,000								260,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Structured Finance		Pow		0		0		0				0								50,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Google		Tec		135,000		0		135,000				186,000								200,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Miscellaneous		Pow		30,000		0		30,000				165,000								165,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Miscellaneous		Tec		10,000		0		10,000				140,000								100,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Camus Energy		Tec		0		0		0				0								70,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Myst AI, Inc.		Tec		50,000		0		50,000				144,000								204,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Customer Portal Development		Tec		0		0		0				0								250,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Salesforce.com Inc.		Tec		350,000		0		350,000				160,000								150,000

		48		A		56160		Telephone and internet				Ops		35,000		0		35,000				30,000		0		30,000				50,000

		49		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				1,000

		50		A		56181		Retirement admin fees				Ops		18,000		0		18,000				15,000		0		15,000				15,000

		51		A		56190		Utilities				Ops		3,000		0		3,000				3,000		0		3,000				30,000

		52		A		56210		Mileage/fuel				Ops		11,000		0		11,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		53		A		56220		Parking and Tolls				Ops		4,000		0		4,000				2,000		0		2,000				2,000

		54		A		56230		Airfare				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		55		A		56240		Lodging				Ops		19,000		0		19,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		56		A		56250		Other Travel				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		57		A		56310		Board Meeting - Rental				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		58		A		56330		Director's Fees				Ops		24,000		0		24,000				50,000		0		50,000				50,000

		60		M		57010		Community Grants				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		62		B		59010		Accounting				Ops		220,000		0		220,000				250,000		0		250,000				265,000

		63		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting				Ops		0		0		0				100,000		0		100,000				0

		64		B		59040		IT Consulting				Ops		45,000		0		45,000				40,000		0		40,000				75,000

		65		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Leg		410,000		0		410,000				720,000		0		720,000				950,000

		67		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Pol		210,000		0		210,000				180,000		0		180,000				200,000

		68		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Pow		250,000		0		250,000				415,000		0		415,000				485,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Barclay's		Leg		0		0		0				30,000								100,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Braun Blaising Smith Wynne, P.C.		Pol		60,000		0		60,000				22,000								30,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Davis Wright Tremaine LLP		Pow		0		0		0				165,000								185,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Hall Energy Law PC		Pow		250,000		0		250,000				150,000								200,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Joe Wiedman		Pol		0		0		0				48,000								40,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Keyes & Fox LLP		Pol		150,000		0		150,000				110,000								130,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		General JPA Costs		Leg		0		0		0				30,000								50,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Miscellaneous		Leg		60,000		0		60,000				310,000								350,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Richards Watson & Gershon		Leg		350,000		0		350,000				350,000								450,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati		Pow		0		0		0				100,000								100,000

		69		R		59060		Legislative Consultants				Pol		132,000		0		132,000				132,000		0		132,000				132,000

		69				59060		Legislative Consultants		Weideman Group, Inc		Pol		132,000		0		132,000				132,000								132,000

		71		M		59070		Consultants				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				15,000

		72		B		59070		Consultants				Ops		50,000		0		50,000				50,000		0		50,000				1,098,000

		73		R		59070		Consultants				Pol		150,000		0		150,000				75,000		0		75,000				99,000

		74		B		59070		Consultants				Pow		680,000		0		680,000				410,000		0		410,000				605,000

		75		B		59070		Consultants				Tec		0		0		0				0		0		0				250,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Aces		Pow		50,000		0		50,000				50,000								110,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Miscellaneous		Pow		400,000		0		400,000				35,000								100,000

		73				59070		Consultants		Crossboarder		Pol		150,000		0		150,000				0								0

		74				59070		Consultants		Energy GPS Consulting LLC		Pow		100,000		0		100,000				75,000								75,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Alan Comnes		Pow		0		0		0				0								50,000

		74				59070		Consultants		IRP		Pow		100,000		0		100,000				250,000								250,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Green-e Audit		Pow																		15,000

		74				59070		Consultants		CARB Audit		Pow																		5,000

		73				59070		Consultants		M.Cubed		Pol		0		0		0				15,000								15,000

		73				59070		Consultants		Miscellaneous		Pol		0		0		0				0								0

		73				59070		Consultants		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		Pol		0		0		0				60,000								60,000

		73				59070		Consultants		NP Energy		Pol		0		0		0				0								24,000

		74				59070		Consultants		PCL		Pow		30,000		0		30,000				0								0

		72				59070		Consultants		CERR		Ops		0		0		0				25,000								48,000

		72				59070		Consultants		PFM		Ops		0		0		0				25,000								50,000

		75				59070		Consultants		Rate Consultants for Cost of Service		Tec		0		0		0				0								250,000

		72				59070		Consultants		HR Needs		Ops		0		0		0				0								1,000,000

		76		M		59090		Communications consultants				Mar		282,000		0		282,000				447,000		0		447,000				528,000

		76		M		59090		Communications consultants		For Programs		Mar																		625,000

		78		R		59090		Communications consultants		Bentham Paulos		Pol		45,000		0		45,000				45,000		0		45,000				45,000

		79		S		60510		Employee welfare		Healthcare		Pay		526,000		0		526,000				765,000		0		765,000				1,632,000

		80		S		60520		Payroll tax expense				Pay		120,000		0		120,000				162,000		0		162,000				262,000

		81		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions				Pay		809,000		0		809,000				993,000		0		993,000				1,544,000

		82		S		60540		Salaries and wages		Salary, Bonus, & Other		Pay		5,931,000		0		5,931,000				7,058,000		0		7,058,000				11,598,000

		83		S		60550		Workers comp insurance				Pay		15,000		0		15,000				12,000		0		12,000				15,000

		84		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance				Pay		28,000		0		28,000				34,000		0		34,000				53,000

		85		S		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset				Pay		0		0		0				397,000		0		397,000				607,000

				S		60590		Temp Employees				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

				D		80200		Depreciation Expense				Dep		60,000		52,603		7,397				60,000		32,394		27,606				180,000

				A		99999		Energy Pre-pay--JPA operations				Ops		100,000		0		100,000				100,000		0		100,000				0

				L		99999		Local Development--Capital Transfer				Loc		6,340,000		6,340,000		0				8,475,000		0		8,475,000				22,000,000



















DevChartTables

								FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2021-22

								DRAFT BUDGET		BUDGET		YTD* + EST

						Salaries & Wages		11,598,000		7,058,000		1,765,000

				0.1331264011		Retirement		1,544,000		993,000		248,000

						Health Care/Benefits		2,292,000		1,196,000		376,000

						Payroll Expenses		277,000		174,000		44,000

						Total		15,711,000		9,421,000		2,433,000

		S		60510		Employee welfare		1,632,000		765,000		268,000

		S		60520		Payroll tax expense		262,000		162,000		41,000

		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions		1,544,000		993,000		248,000

		S		60540		Salaries and wages		11,598,000		7,058,000		1,765,000

		S		60550		Workers comp insurance		15,000		12,000		3,000

		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance		53,000		34,000		9,000

		S		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		607,000		397,000		99,000

		S		60590		Temp Employees		0		- 0		- 0



		B		59010		Accounting		265,000		250,000		63,000

		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting		1,000,000		100,000		25,000

		B		59040		IT Consulting		75,000		40,000		10,000

		B		59070		Consultants		953,000		460,000		115,000

						Total		2,293,000		850,000		213,000



						Data Manager		100,000		185,000		65,000

						Required Mailings		520,000		395,000		138,000

						Advertising		986,000		569,000		200,000

						Promotional Items		25,000		10,000		4,000

						Communications		1,233,000		455,000		184,000

						Total		2,864,000		1,614,000		591,000

		M		50200		Data Manager		100,000		185,000		65,000

		M		50901		Other Noticing		0		- 0		- 0

		M		50902		Required Mailings		520,000		395,000		138,000

		M		55010		Advertising		571,000		134,000		47,000

		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		410,000		430,000		151,000

		M		55055		Promotional Items		25,000		10,000		4,000

		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses		15,000		8,000		3,000

		M		55070		Special Events		5,000		5,000		2,000

		M		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		50,000		72,000		25,000

		M		57010		Community Grants		0		- 0		- 0

		M		59070		Consultants		15,000		- 0		- 0

		M		59090		Communications consultants		1,153,000		447,000		156,000



						Legal Consultants		1,635,000		1,315,000		1,315,000

						Legislative Consultants		132,000		132,000		132,000

						Other Consultants		144,000		120,000		42,000

						Sponsorships & Memberships		25,000		25,000		25,000

						Total		1,936,000		1,592,000		1,514,000

		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		25,000		25,000		9,000

		R		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		0		- 0		- 0

		G		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal Consultants		1,635,000		1,315,000		460,000

		R		59060		Legislative Consultants		132,000		132,000		46,000

		R		59070		Consultants		99,000		75,000		26,000

		R		59090		Communications consultants		45,000		45,000		16,000





						Operational Expenses		748,000		877,000		307,000

						New Building Related Expenses		300,000		- 0		- 0

						Software, Subscriptions, SaaS		2,099,000		1,406,000		492,000

						Small Equipment		210,000		107,000		37,000

						Rent & Utilties		330,000		471,000		165,000

						Conferences & Prof. Development		55,000		40,000		15,000

						Board & Director Fees		65,000		60,000		22,000

						Total		3,807,000		2,961,000		1,038,000

		A		50200		Data Manager		84,000		120,000		42,000

		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		5,000		- 0		- 0

		A		55055		Promotional Items		10,000		3,000		1,000

		A		56010		Bank service fee		1,000		1,000		- 0

		A		56020		Building maintenance		100,000		- 0		- 0

		A		56030		Business meals		25,000		15,000		5,000

		A		56040		Conferences & prof development		25,000		20,000		7,000

		A		56050		Equipment Lease		10,000		7,000		2,000

		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		40,000		20,000		7,000

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		412,000		400,000		140,000

		A		56070		Insurance		100,000		18,000		6,000

		A		56080		Interest and fees expense		1,000		1,000		- 0

		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		100,000		100,000		35,000

		A		56100		Office supplies and postage		100,000		40,000		14,000

		A		56110		Parking at office		12,000		12,000		4,000

		A		56120		Payroll service fees		10,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56130		Rent		250,000		438,000		153,000

		A		56140		Small equipment		200,000		100,000		35,000

		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		2,099,000		1,406,000		492,000

		A		56160		Telephone and internet		50,000		30,000		11,000

		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees		1,000		- 0		- 0

		A		56181		Retirement admin fees		15,000		15,000		5,000

		A		56190		Utilities		30,000		3,000		1,000

		A		56210		Mileage/fuel		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56220		Parking and Tolls		2,000		2,000		1,000

		A		56230		Airfare		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56240		Lodging		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56250		Other Travel		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56310		Board Meeting - Rental		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56330		Director's Fees		50,000		50,000		18,000

		A		99999		Energy Pre-pay--JPA operations		0		100,000		35,000





Surplus

				NET POSITION WATERFALL						Dollars		Percent

				Projected Net Position Surplus						$   225,818,000



				Working Capital Demand*						$   50,000,000		22%

				Reserve Account Funding*						$   75,000,000		33%

				On-Bill Credits to Customers**						$   60,818,000		27%		$   100,818,000

						Expected Customer MWh Usage				6,678,000				$   50,409,000

						Customer Credit per kWh				$   0.009

				Renewable Content Development						$   40,000,000		18%



				*To be credited at end of year after net position realized

				**To be confirmed at end of year after net position realized

										0





LocDevDash

				LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

								FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2020-21		FY 2019-2020



				BEGINNING BALANCE				16,580,737		11,605,737		4,870,737		0



				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						Transfer from Operating Fund		20,600,000		8,475,000		6,340,000		6,275,000

						Grants/Credits		- 0		- 0		395,000		- 0

						Total Revenues & Other Sources		20,600,000		8,475,000		6,735,000		6,275,000



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Actual Program Expenses 		- 0		- 0		- 0		1,404,263

						Expected Remaing Expenses		37,180,737		3,500,000		- 0		- 0

						Total Expenses & Other Uses		37,180,737		3,500,000		- 0		1,404,263



				ENDING BALANCE				- 0		16,580,737		11,605,737		4,870,737



						Program Balances		FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2020-21

				P001		Building Electrification				2,509,000		1,609,000		1,609,000

				P002		Collaborative Procurement				925,000		925,000

				P003		Demand Response				236,000		236,000

				P004		Energy Efficiency				824,000		824,000

				P005		Vehicle Electrification				11,841,000		6,043,000

				P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants				654,000		805,000

				P007		Community Investment				1,361,000		211,000

				P008		Sponsorships/Events				105,000		5,000

				P009		Resiliency				1,361,000		458,000

				L		Legal Resources				165,000		100,000

				M		MAS Resources				100,000		0

								0		20,081,000		11,216,000





Staff

								TOTALS										4,638,745		7,728,084		10,519,110				888,966				1,543,792		1,632,000		606,870		52,601		190,400		261,572		15,695,316								Jan 1 2022 Proposal:

																																																		21/22 - Low		21/22 - High		22/23 - Low		22/23 - High		Floor Bonus		Target Bonus		Max Bonus		Job Band		Job Level

																						7.50%		10.00%						6%		Increase by 25%																		$57,503		$64,574				$69,417		5%		15%		20%		1		Entry

																		FY 2021		FY 2022		FY 2023								8%				120		0.50%														$64,575		$83,639				$89,912		5%		15%		20%		2		Entry

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Retention/Bonus %		Retention/Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost								$83,640		$109,777				$118,010		5%		15%		20%		3		Entry

		1		12		Senior/Exec		Chief Executive Officer		Y		Chaset		Nicolas		O		350,000		374,500		425,000				50,000		13.5%		63,500		24,000		24,519		2,125		2,800

: Wellness benefit plus commuter benefit		10,084		602,028								$109,778		$124,530				$133,870		5%		15%		20%		4		Intermediate

		3		12		Senior/Exec		Chief Operating Officer		Y		Chang		Howard		O		332,500		355,775		400,000				50,000		12.4%		60,000		24,000		23,077		2,000		2,800		9,576		571,453								$124,531		$141,257				$151,851		5%		15%		20%		5		Intermediate

		4		10		Senior		VP Marketing & Account Services		Y		Henderson		Joanne		M		232,265		241,556		259,673		10.0%		25,967		7.5%		38,432		24,000		14,981		1,298		2,800		6,239		373,390								$141,258		$156,055				$167,759		5%		15%		20%		6		Intermediate

		6		10		Senior		VP Public Policy/Deputy General Counsel		Y		Brandt		Melissa		R		205,871		231,394		248,749		10.0%		24,875		7.5%		36,815		24,000		14,351		1,244		2,800		5,996		358,830								$156,056		$177,734				$191,064		5%		15%		20%		7		Senior

		7		8		Senior		Marketing Director		Y		Lieberman		Daniel		M		189,625		195,314		209,963		10.0%		20,996		7.5%		31,075		24,000		12,113		1,050		2,800		5,129		307,126								$177,735		$204,487				$219,824		5%		15%		20%		8		Senior

		8		10		Senior		VP Technology & Analytics		Y		Ait-Laoussine		Taj		T		237,930		249,827		268,564		10.0%		26,856		7.5%		39,747		24,000		15,494		1,343		2,800		6,438		385,243								$204,488		$231,393				$248,747		10%		30%		45%		9		Senior

		13		6		Intermediate		Data Scientist		Y		Li		Kevin		T		148,350		154,284		165,855		10.0%		16,586		7.5%		24,547		24,000		9,569		829		2,800		4,145		248,331								$231,394		$269,062				$289,242		10%		30%		45%		10		Senior/Exec

		14		8		Senior		Director of Regulatory Affairs & Deputy General Counsel		Y		Edmister		Todd		R		185,554		192,976		207,449		10.0%		20,745		7.5%		30,702		24,000		11,968		1,037		2,800		5,073		303,774								$269,063		$295,968				$318,166		25%		100%		150%		11		Senior/Exec

		17		3		Entry		Regulatory Analyst		Y		Boediarto		Feby		R		81,600		85,680		92,106		10.0%		9,211		7.5%		13,632		24,000		5,314		461		2,800		2,498		150,022

		18		6		Intermediate		Finance Manager		Y		Bartlett		Jason		O		146,549		150,945		162,266		10.0%		16,227		7.5%		24,015		24,000		9,362		811		2,800		4,064		243,545

		19		3		Entry		Executive Assistant		N		Smith		Meagan		O		99,646		102,635		110,333		10.0%		11,033		7.5%		16,329		24,000		6,365		552		2,800		2,905		174,317

		20		7		Intermediate		Senior Manager, Account Services		Y		Brezovec		Kelly		M		155,000		162,750		174,956		10.0%		17,496		7.5%		25,893		24,000		10,094		875		2,800		4,348		260,462

		21		10		Senior		VP Local Development		Y		Ross		John Peter		L		226,600		235,664		253,339		10.0%		25,334		7.5%		37,494		24,000		14,616		1,267		2,800		6,098		364,948

		22		7		Intermediate		Power Resources Manager		Y		Dorrance		James		P		135,211		156,056		167,760		10.0%		16,776		7.5%		24,828		24,000		9,678		839		2,800		4,187		250,868

		23		7		Intermediate		Senior Distributed Energy Resources Manager		Y		Denver		Jessie		L		155,150		161,356		173,458		10.0%		17,346		7.5%		25,672		24,000		10,007		867		2,800		4,314		258,464

		25		6		Intermediate		Public Engagement Manager		Y		DiGiorgio		Alex		M		143,500		147,805		158,890		10.0%		15,889		7.5%		23,516		24,000		9,167		794		2,800		3,989		239,045

		27		8		Senior		Power Resources Senior Mananger		Y		Eshleman		Christopher		P		153,750		190,000		204,250		10.0%		20,425		7.5%		30,229		24,000		11,784		1,021		2,800		5,002		299,511

		28		4		Intermediate		Strategic Operations Associate		Y		Gerber		Vanessa		O		94,125		112,522		120,961		10.0%		12,096		7.5%		17,902		24,000		6,979		605		2,800		3,142		188,485

		30		4		Intermediate		Contract Management Associate		Y		Gilmore		Molly		R		110,513		116,039		124,742		10.0%		12,474		7.5%		18,462		24,000		7,197		624		2,800		3,226		193,525

		31		10		Senior		Power Resources Senior Director		Y		Fontenot		Marie		P		213,500		229,905		247,148		30.0%		74,144		7.5%		40,532		24,000		14,259		1,236		2,800		6,963		411,083

		32		1		Entry		Outreach Fellow		N		Cortez		Juan		M		52,000		61,039		65,616		10.0%		6,562		7.5%		9,711		24,000		3,786		328		2,800		1,906		114,709

		33		7		Intermediate		Modeler in Chief		Y		Allen		Douglas		T		157,583		163,886		176,177		10.0%		17,618		7.5%		26,074		24,000		10,164		881		2,800		4,375		262,089

		34		4		Intermediate		DER Program Associate		Y		Thompson		Zachary		L		116,917		121,594		130,714		10.0%		13,071		7.5%		19,346		24,000		7,541		654		2,800		3,360		201,487

		35		6		Intermediate		Program Manager Energy Efficiency & Building Electricifation		Y		Menten		Rebecca		L		147,115		151,528		162,893		10.0%		16,289		7.5%		24,108		24,000		9,398		814		2,800		4,078		244,380

		36		3		Entry		Customer Care Coordinator		N		Tsotu		Gabrielle		M		65,948		83,640		89,913		10.0%		8,991		7.5%		13,307		24,000		5,187		450		2,800		2,449		147,097

		39		3		Entry		Clerk of the Board		N		Bankhead		Adrian		O		79,318		88,150		94,761		10.0%		9,476		7.5%		14,025		24,000		5,467		474		2,800		2,557		153,560

		40		8		Senior		Director of Analytics		Y		Ponce de Leon Barido		Diego		T		181,875		189,150		203,336		10.0%		20,334		7.5%		30,094		24,000		11,731		1,017		2,800		4,981		298,293

		44		5		Intermediate		HR Business Partner		Y		Taylor		Mari-Len		O		109,500		134,266		144,336		10.0%		14,434		7.5%		21,362		24,000		8,327		722		2,800		3,664		219,645

		45		6		Intermediate		Data Engineer		Y		Subramanian		Sanjay		T		131,250		150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191

		46		5		Intermediate		Power Resources Senior Associate		Y		Lee		Karen		P				141,258		151,852		10.0%		15,185		7.5%		22,474		24,000		8,761		759		2,800		3,832		229,663

		47		6		Intermediate		Programs Marketing Manager		Y		Dynes		Lori		M				140,000		150,500		10.0%		15,050		7.5%		22,274		24,000		8,683		753		2,800		3,802		227,862

		50		6		Intermediate		Principal Regulatory Analyst, Transportation Electrification		Y		Hernandez		Paul		R				150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191

		51		6		Intermediate		Associate Policy Manager		Y		Ward		Alec		R				141,000		151,575		10.0%		15,158		7.5%		22,433		24,000		8,745		758		2,800		3,826		229,295

		52		4		Intermediate		Account Svcs Business Associate		Y		Lewbin		David		M				131,000		140,825		10.0%		14,083		7.5%		20,842		24,000		8,125		704		2,800		3,586		214,965

		53		2		Entry		Public Engagement Coordinator		Y		Cady		Caitlyn		M				70,000		75,250		10.0%		7,525		7.5%		11,137		24,000		4,341		376		2,800		2,121		127,550

		54		4		Intermediate		Finance and Ops Associate		Y		Sit		Joseph		O				117,500		126,313		10.0%		12,631		7.5%		18,694		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,262		195,619

		55		6		Intermediate		Resilience Manager		Y		Ventura		Feliz		L				150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191



		Additional 2021-22 Hires

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Bonus %		Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost

		56		4		Intermediate		Salesforce Administrator		Y		Hamilton-Atkins		Mariana		T				110,000		110,000		10.0%		11,000		0.0%		16,280		24,000		6,346		550		2,800		2,897		173,873

		57		9		Senior		HR Senior Director		Y		Cherr		Trevor		O				230,000		230,000		10.0%		23,000		0.0%		34,040		24,000		13,269		1,150		2,800		5,577		333,836

		58		7		Senior		Power Resources Manager		Y		Carson		Izzy 		P				163,000		163,000		10.0%		16,300		0.0%		24,124		24,000		9,404		815		2,800		4,081		244,524

		59		5		Intermediate		Senior SalesForce Lead		Y		Ruder		Aaron 		T				140,000		140,000		10.0%		14,000		0.0%		20,720		24,000		8,077		700		2,800		3,567		213,864

		60		6,7		Interm/Senior		(Senior) Principal Regulatory Analyst		Y		Hiring in Process		John		R				159,496		159,496		10.0%		15,950		0.0%		23,605		24,000		9,202		797		2,800		4,003		239,853

		61		4		Intermediate		Contracts & Compliance Analyst 		Y		Gay		Harper		P				117,000		117,000		10.0%		11,700		0.0%		17,316		24,000		6,750		585		2,800		3,054		183,205

		62		7		Senior		Market & Credit Risk Manager		Y		Dai		Ray		P				177,000		177,000		10.0%		17,700		0.0%		26,196		24,000		10,212		885		2,800		4,393		263,186

		63		4		Intermediate		Resource Planning & Portfolio Management Analyst		Y		Siebhur		Alan		P				110,000		110,000		10.0%		11,000		0.0%		16,280		24,000		6,346		550		2,800		2,897		173,873

		64		9		Senior		Director of Clean Energy Structured Finance		Y		Hiring in Process				P				193,724		193,724		10.0%		19,372		0.0%		28,671		24,000		11,176		969		2,800		4,767		285,480

		66		2		Entry		Receptionist and Asst Board Clerk		N		Hiring in Process				O				74,107		74,107		10.0%		7,411		0.0%		10,968		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		2,096		126,028

		65		2		Entry		Market Content Coordinator				Replacement for Jamal				M				74,107		74,107		10.0%		7,411		0.0%		10,968		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		2,096		126,028

		67		6		Intermediate		Connected Communities Manager		Y		Replacement for Sam				L				148,657		148,657		10.0%		14,866		0.0%		22,001		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,760		225,402



		Additional 2022-23 Hires

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Bonus %/Retention		Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost

		68		3,4		Entry/Interm		Technology & Analytics Data Engineer/Analyst 		Y						T						$104,085								14,572		24,000		6,005		520		2,800		2,554		154,536

		69		5,6		Intermediate		IT Manager 		Y						T						$140,293								19,641		24,000		8,094		701		2,800		3,289		198,818

		70		4,5		Intermediate		Deputy Modeler 		Y						T						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		71		3		Entry		Office Manager 								O						$96,709								13,539		24,000		5,579		484		2,800		2,404		145,515

		72		4,5		Intermediate		HR Recruiter		Y						O						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		73		8		Senior		Director of Infrastructure Delivery 		Y						O						$191,111								26,756		24,000		11,026		956		2,800		4,321		260,970

		74		7,8		Senior		PR VPP Role 		Y						P						$180,272								25,238		24,000		10,400		901		2,800		4,101		247,712

		75		4		Intermediate		PR Junior quant analyst 		Y						P						$117,154								16,402		24,000		6,759		586		2,800		2,819		170,520

		76		6		Intermediate		Compliance Manager		Y						R						$148,657								20,812		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,459		209,047

		77				Entry		Outreach - SJC								M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		78				Entry/Interm		Commercial Account Services Analyst		Y						M						89,913								12,588		24,000		5,187		450		2,800		2,266		137,204

		79				Entry		Programs Customer Service		Y						M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		80				Entry		Programs Marketing		Y						M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		81				Intermediate		Marketing Communications		Y						M						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		82				Entry		Local Programs - quantitative analysis		Y						L						$104,085								14,572		24,000		6,005		520		2,800		2,554		154,536

		83				Intermediate		Local Programs - CPUC programs compliance/reporting/PM		Y						L						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		84				Intermediate		Programs Project Management		Y						L						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		85				Intermediate		Legal Manager		Y						R						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		86				Intermediate		Local Programs - EV Adoption programs		Y						L						$148,657								20,812		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,459		209,047







































DIR

		Account		Account Name		Meta		INDX				Mo #		Mo Name		Quarter				Jan 1 2022 Proposal:

		41010		Commercial - Gen		Revenue		A				1		Jan		3				21/22 - Low		21/22 - High				Power Resource						Legal 		Sumif 59050						Local Development:P001-Building Electrification

		41020		Residential - Gen		Revenue		A				2		Feb		3				$57,503		$64,574		Fellow										Subtract if Loc						Local Development:P004-Energy Efficiency

		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen		Revenue		A				3		Mar		3				$64,575		$83,639		Coordinator		Fellow														Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification

		42010		Commercial - Green Premium		Revenue		A				4		Apr		4				$83,640		$109,777		Analyst		Coordinator														Local Development:P006-COVID-19 Relief Fund

		42020		Residential - Green Premium		Revenue		A				5		May		4				$109,778		$124,530		Associate		Analyst												Community Investment		Local Development:P009-Resiliency

		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre		Revenue		A				6		Jun		4				$124,531		$141,257		Sr Associate		Associate

		42999		Bad Debt expense		Revenue		B				7		Jul		1				$141,258		$156,055		Manager/Principal		Sr Associate

		43000		CAPP Payment		Revenue		A1				8		Aug		1				$156,056		$177,734		Sr Manager/Sr Principal		Manager/Principal

		44000		Interest Income		NOR		C				9		Sep		1				$177,735		$204,487		Director		Sr Manager/Sr Principal

		45000		Miscellaneous income		NOR		A2				10		Oct		2				$204,488		$231,393		Sr Dir		Director

		46000		Grant Revenue		NOR		D				11		Nov		2				$231,394		$269,062		VP		Sr Dir

		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue		Revenue		A1				12		Dec		2				$269,063		$295,968		SVP		VP

		50120		Capacity purchases		Energy		E2												$295,969		$348,004		Exec		SVP

		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA		Energy		E5

		50135		PPA Energy Purchase		Energy		E5

		50140		Energy purchases		Energy		E

		50145		Carbon Free Energy		Energy		E4

		50160		RECs purchases		Energy		E3

		50165		GHG Offset expense		Energy		E4

		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy		Energy		E1

		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades		Energy		E1

		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges		Energy		E6

		50200		Data Manager		E-Service		F1

		50300		Scheduling Co		E-Service		F3

		50310		Broker Fees		Energy		E8

		50400		NEM Expense		Energy		E7

		50500		Service Fees - PG&E		E-Service		F2

		50510		Wholesale Sales - Energy		Energy		E

		50520		Wholesale Sales - REC/CO2		Energy		E3

		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA		Energy		E2

		50901		Other Noticing		Operations		M

		50902		Required Mailings		Operations		M

		55010		Advertising		Operations		M

		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Operations		M

		55055		Promotional Items		Operations		M

		55060		Communications - misc expenses		Operations		M

		55070		Special Events		Operations		M

		56010		Bank service fee		Operations		O

		56020		Building maintenance		Operations		O

		56030		Business meals		Operations		O

		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		O

		56050		Equipment lease		Operations		O

		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		O

		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		O

		56070		Insurance		Operations		O

		56080		Interest and fees expense		Operations		O

		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		Operations		O

		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		O

		56110		Parking at office		Operations		O

		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		O

		56130		Rent		Operations		O

		56140		Small equipment		Operations		O

		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		O

		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		O

		56180		Miscellaneous fees		Operations		O

		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		O

		56190		Utilities		Operations		O

		56210		Mileage/fuel		Operations		O

		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		O

		56230		Airfare		Operations		O

		56240		Lodging		Operations		O

		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		O

		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		O

		57010		Community Investment Grants		Operations		O

		57020		Program Incentives		Local Development		O

		59010		Accounting		Operations		J

		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		J

		59040		IT Consulting		Operations		J

		59050		Legal		Operations		L

		59060		Legislative		Operations		L

		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		J

		59090		Communications consultants		Operations		M

		59200		Technical consultants		Operations		J

		60510		Employee welfare		Operations		P

		60520		Payroll tax expense		Operations		P

		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Operations		P

		60540		Salaries and wages		Operations		P

		60550		Workers comp insurance		Operations		P

		60560		Life Insurance		Operations		P

		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Operations		P

		60590		Temp Employees		Payroll		P

		61000		Bad Debt expense		Revenue		B

		63400		Interest Expense		NOE		K

		80200		Depreciation Expense		Capital		Y

		80400		Penalties and fines		Operations		O

		99991		Adjust Equipment Modified (neg)		Capital		Z

		99992		Adjust Equipment Modified (pos)		Capital		Z

		99995		Adjust Principal Modified (neg)		Capital		Z

		99996		Adjust Principal Modified (pos)		Capital		Z

		99997		Adjust Leashold Improvement-Neg		Capital		Z

		99998		Adjust Leashold Improvement-Pos		Capital		Z

		UUT C		UUT Credits		Revenue		A







15

Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Marketing & 
Account Services

• Data Manager: Change orders to data management system, reduced through contract 
negotiations this year

• Required Mailings: Joint Rate Mailer w/ PG&E, Power Content Label, New Account 
Noticing

• Advertising: Active community presence activities, sponsorships, local events
• Promotional Items: Give away items
• Communications: Public relations, media, newsletters, consultants, minor software 

needs (like for website maintenance and updates)
• $1.4MM of the $2.9MM is Local Development Marketing needs and is distributed 

across the categories

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

Data Manager 100,000 185,000       65,000          
Required Mailings 520,000 395,000       515,000        
Advertising 986,000 569,000       497,000        
Promotional Items 25,000 10,000          23,000          
Communications 1,233,000 455,000       386,000        
Total 2,864,000 1,614,000    1,486,000    

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A


Charts



Monthly Total Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	48168723.913830005	51183140.688839994	49750988.660069995	35371258.354719006	34410917.803480998	38080685.813529	42552265.815147996	37869444.295437746	38241900.486005001	34261561.861407511	35489144.936528996	56009803.376869999	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	56307517.468945079	60392456.220035322	78430222.509262666	







Monthly Energy Expense



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	30304056.459926616	36303942.133049972	28558835.304881319	26023553.156420294	25751116.512792129	29936459.32951086	32104705.028238781	25323181.210161332	23208849.453909054	16455121.625950679	17957911.617441896	23519788.092076175	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	26938363.379999999	25980734.300000001	28478321.32	







Monthly Energy Attributes



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	13725288.688846	13043787.37851	13282200.082196001	10351695.225124	9732787.1680459995	10392312.223015999	9179356.7244050987	8463785.0560494997	8262196.4491365002	9242307.5155074	10654498.6396593	10560101.4140689	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11834916	12492845	12395895	







Monthly Total Energy Expense



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	44029345.148772612	49347729.511559971	41841035.387077317	36375248.381544292	35483903.68083813	40328771.552526861	41284061.752643883	33786966.266210832	31471045.903045554	25697429.141458079	28612410.257101197	34079889.506145075	Actual	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	38773279.379999995	38473579.299999997	40874216.32	







Monthly Net Sales Revenue



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	48106457.053830005	51120647.928839996	49688231.040069997	35302734.864719003	34337959.073481001	38010595.193529002	42489998.955147997	37806951.535437748	38179142.866005003	34193038.371407509	35416186.206528999	55045712.756870002	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	56298113.474433795	60383050.658191621	77526815.379825324	







Monthly Overhead



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	







Monthly Net Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	847956.90172405541	-1456984.0860533118	-880955.24034065753	-4298332.090158619	-4365841.1906904727	-5544374.6023311988	-1927482.9608292207	893323.66589357704	3573471.9596261159	5368362.4466160983	3677656.4560944661	18732447.997391589	Actuals	-706250	-706250	-1132387.1400000001	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	14358005.285611749	18739460.36670199	34378326.185929328	







Cumulative Net Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	847956.90172405541	-609027.18432925642	-1489982.4246699139	-5788314.5148285329	-10154155.705519006	-15698530.307850204	-17626013.268679425	-16732689.602785848	-13159217.643159732	-7790855.1965436339	-4113198.7404491678	14619249.256942421	Actuals	-706250	-1412500	-2544887.14	-3251137.14	-3957387.14	-4663637.1400000006	-5369887.1400000006	-6076137.1400000006	-6782387.1400000006	7575618.1456117481	26315078.512313738	60693404.698243067	







Total Expenses



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	47320767.012105949	52640124.774893306	50631943.900410652	39669590.444877625	38776758.99417147	43625060.415860198	44479748.775977217	36976120.629544169	34668428.526378885	28893199.414791413	31811488.480434529	37277355.37947841	Actuals	706250	706250	1132387.1400000001	706250	706250	706250	706250	706250	706250	41949512.18333333	41652995.853333332	44051896.323333338	









Dashboard

										MO		3												3

										YR		2022												2022

												Mar		Mar				Mar		Mar				Q3		Q3				Q3		Q3				FY		FY				FY		FY

												BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D				BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D				BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D

		OPERATIONS

				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						Operating Revenue

								Electricity Sales		A		38,761,000		0				(38,761,000)		-100.0%				120,280,000		0				(120,280,000)		-100.0%				508,636,000		196,455,000				(312,181,000)		-61.4%

								Uncollectables		B		(581,000)		0				581,000		-100.0%				(1,804,000)		0				1,804,000		-100.0%				(8,939,000)		(2,947,000)				5,992,000		-67.0%

								Other Operations Revenue		A1		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				0		700,000				700,000		0.0%



						Total Operating Revenue						38,180,000		0				(38,180,000)		-100.0%				118,476,000		0				(118,476,000)		-100.0%				499,697,000		194,208,000				(305,489,000)		-61.1%



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Energy Operating Expenses

								Cost of Energy		E		31,471,000		0				(31,471,000)		-100.0%				106,542,000		0				(106,542,000)		-100.0%				442,338,000		118,121,000				(324,217,000)		-73.3%

								Data Management/CRM		F1		657,000		0				(657,000)		-100.0%				1,968,000		0				(1,968,000)		-100.0%				8,645,000		1,930,000				(6,715,000)		-77.7%

								Billing & Metering		F3		230,000		0				(230,000)		-100.0%				689,000		0				(689,000)		-100.0%				2,752,000		676,000				(2,076,000)		-75.4%

								Scheduling		F2		85,000		0				(85,000)		-100.0%				255,000		0				(255,000)		-100.0%				843,000		255,000				(588,000)		-69.8%



						Total Energy Operating Expenses						32,443,000		0				(32,443,000)		-100.0%				109,454,000		0				(109,454,000)		-100.0%				454,578,000		120,982,000				(333,596,000)		-73.4%



						Overhead Operating Expenses

								Personnel		P		848,000		0				(848,000)		-100.0%				2,543,000		0				(2,543,000)		-100.0%				10,171,000		2,543,000				(7,628,000)		-75.0%

								Marketing & Communications		M		141,000		0				(141,000)		-100.0%				422,000		0				(422,000)		-100.0%				1,686,000		422,000				(1,264,000)		-75.0%

								Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs		L		133,000		0				(133,000)		-100.0%				398,000		0				(398,000)		-100.0%				1,592,000		398,000				(1,194,000)		-75.0%

								Other Professional Services		J		71,000		0				(71,000)		-100.0%				213,000		0				(213,000)		-100.0%				850,000		213,000				(637,000)		-74.9%

								General & Administrative		O		247,000		0				(247,000)		-100.0%				740,000		0				(740,000)		-100.0%				2,961,000		740,000				(2,221,000)		-75.0%

								Depreciation		Y		5,000		0				(5,000)		-100.0%				15,000		0				(15,000)		-100.0%				60,000		15,000				(45,000)		-75.0%



						Total Overhead Operating Expenses						1,445,000		0				(1,445,000)		-100.0%				4,331,000		0				(4,331,000)		-100.0%				17,320,000		4,331,000				(12,989,000)		-75.0%



						Total Operating Expenses						33,888,000		0				(33,888,000)		-100.0%				113,785,000		0				(113,785,000)		-100.0%				471,898,000		125,313,000				(346,585,000)		-73.4%



				NET OPERATING POSITION								4,292,000		0				(4,292,000)						4,691,000		0				(4,691,000)						27,799,000		68,895,000				41,096,000



		NON-OPERATIONS

				NON-OPERATING REVENUE

								Interest Income		C		63,000		0				(63,000)		-100.0%				188,000		0				(188,000)		-100.0%				798,000		28,000				(770,000)		-96.5%

								Grants		D		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				894,000		894,000				0		0.0%

								Other Non-Operating Revenue		A2		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%



						Total Non-Operating Revenue						63,000		0				(63,000)		-100.0%				188,000		0				(188,000)		-100.0%				1,692,000		922,000				(770,000)		-45.5%



				NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

								Borrowing Interest		K		76,000		0				(76,000)		-100.0%				221,000		0				(221,000)		-100.0%				898,000		224,000				(674,000)		-75.1%

								Local Development Funding				706,000		706,000				0		0.0%				2,119,000		2,119,000				0		0.0%				8,475,000		8,475,000				0		0.0%

								Capital Expenditures		Z		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				5,500,000		426,000				(5,074,000)		-92.3%



						Total Non-Operating Expenses						782,000		706,000				(76,000)		-9.7%				2,340,000		2,119,000				(221,000)		-9.4%				14,873,000		9,125,000				(5,748,000)		-38.6%



				NET NON-OPERATING POSITION								(719,000)		(706,000)				13,000		-1.8%				(2,152,000)		(2,119,000)				33,000		-1.5%				(13,181,000)		(8,203,000)				4,978,000		-37.8%



				TOTAL REVENUES								38,243,000		0				(38,243,000)		-100.0%				118,664,000		0				(118,664,000)		-100.0%				501,389,000		195,130,000				(306,259,000)		-61.1%

				TOTAL EXPENSES								34,670,000		706,000				(33,964,000)		-98.0%				116,125,000		2,119,000				(114,006,000)		-98.2%				486,771,000		134,438,000				(352,333,000)		-72.4%



		NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION										3,573,000		(706,000)				(4,279,000)						2,539,000		(2,119,000)				(4,658,000)						14,618,000		60,692,000				46,074,000		315.2%



		LOAD

				Wholesale								620,411		564,591				(55,820)		-9.0%				1,860,609		1,714,056				(146,553)		-7.9%				7,461,842		7,086,497				(375,345)		-5.0%

				Retail								576,103		552,114				(23,989)		-4.2%				1,736,535		1,629,187				(107,348)		-6.2%				6,935,221		6,644,759				(290,462)		-4.2%

												7.1%		2.2%

		PRICES

				Energy ($/MWh)								37.41		0.00				(37.41)		-100.0%				43.34		0.00				(43.34)		-100.0%				42.27		11.49				(30.79)		-72.8%





ChangeLog

		Date		FY Initial		FY Final		Delta		Sheet		Item		Notes

		10/7/21		(28,114,971)		(28,114,971)		0		None		None		Initialization 

		10/7/21		(28,114,971)		(19,199,810)		8,915,161		Actuals		Open		Updated Nov forward with 10/7/2021 forward curve data from Chris

		10/7/21		(19,199,810)		(19,115,781)		84,029		Actuals		Basis		Updated Nov forward with 10/7/2021 forward curve data from Chris

		10/7/21		(19,115,781)		(18,956,104)		159,677		Actuals		CAISO		Updated based on FCAST updates

		10/11/21		(18,956,104)		(18,489,681)		466,423		Actuals		Revenues		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(18,489,681)		(18,401,853)		87,828		Actuals		Energy Services		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(18,401,853)		(17,942,147)		459,706		Actuals		Overhead		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(17,942,147)		(17,943,685)		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		August GL actuals

		10/20/21		(17,943,685)		(11,883,249)		6,060,436		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		12/10/21		(11,883,249)		(14,212,058)		(2,328,809)		Actuals		Revenues		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(14,212,058)		(20,074,225)		(5,862,167)		Actuals		Energy		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(20,074,225)		(19,985,274)		88,951		Actuals		Energy Services		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(19,985,274)		(20,008,922)		(23,648)		Actuals		Overhead		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(20,008,922)		(22,591,733)		(2,582,812)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(22,591,733)		(22,510,149)		81,584		Actuals		Accounts		Updated based on SMUD invoices

		12/10/21		(22,510,149)		12,272,128		34,782,277		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		12/10/21		12,272,128		31,832,168		19,560,041		Actuals		Energy		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		12/10/21		31,832,168		29,168,898		(2,663,270)		Actuals		Attributes		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		12/15/21		29,168,898		29,188,432		19,534		GL		CAISO		Recalc Adjustment for credit

		12/15/21		29,188,432		30,197,864		1,009,432		Actuals		Revenues		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		30,197,864		35,137,441		4,939,577		Actuals		Energy 		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,137,441		35,226,496		89,055		Actuals		Energy Services		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,226,496		35,653,424		426,929		Actuals		Overhead		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,653,424		35,651,887		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Oct GL Actuals

		1/3/22		35,651,887		46,336,321		10,684,435		Actuals		Energy		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		1/3/22		46,336,321		47,129,825		793,504		Actuals		Attributes		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		1/3/22		47,129,825		25,032,754		(22,097,071)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		1/10/22		25,032,754		28,726,549		3,693,796		Actuals		Open		Updated with NCPA Hourly CAISO workbook from 1/10/2022

		1/10/22		28,726,549		27,114,279		(1,612,271)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated with 18 Month scenario

		1/10/22		27,114,279		27,229,963		115,685		Actuals		Wholesale Load		Updated with 1/3 FCAST

		1/13/22		27,229,963		28,380,736		1,150,773		Actuals		Revenues		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		28,380,736		31,513,302		3,132,566		Actuals		Energy		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,513,302		31,603,445		90,143		Actuals		Energy Services		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,603,445		31,991,009		387,564		Actuals		Overhead		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,991,009		31,989,521		(1,488)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,989,521		37,221,736		5,232,214		Actuals		Energy		Reduced Jan Open position to reflect actuals being seen

		1/13/22		37,221,736		36,795,782		(425,954)		COA		CapEx		Updated cost of building for Sept to match statement

		2/10/22		36,795,782		36,783,058		(12,724)		GL		Overhead		Added AmEx placeholder until we get receipts

		2/10/22		36,783,058		38,074,193		1,291,135		Actuals		Revenues		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		38,074,193		40,799,830		2,725,637		Actuals		Energy		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		40,799,830		42,287,480		1,487,650		Actuals		Attributes		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,287,480		42,373,867		86,387		Actuals		Energy Services		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,373,867		42,635,044		261,177		Actuals		Overhead		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,635,044		42,628,487		(6,557)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,628,487		47,301,774		4,673,287		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		2/10/22		47,301,774		53,092,557		5,790,783		Actuals		Open		Updated Open position from Contracts DB

		2/10/22		53,092,557		52,904,290		(188,267)		Actuals		Basis		Updated Basis position form Contracts DB

		2/10/22		52,904,290		54,872,270		1,967,980		Actuals		Capacity		Updated Capacity from Contracts DB

		2/10/22		54,872,270		46,908,682		(7,963,588)		Actuals		PPA		Updated PPA from Contracts DB

		3/15/22		46,908,682		45,511,697		(1,396,985)		Actuals		Revenues		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		45,511,697		55,250,754		9,739,057		Actuals		Energy		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		55,250,754		57,138,595		1,887,841		Actuals		Attributes		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,138,595		57,106,832		(31,763)		Actuals		Energy Services		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,106,832		57,395,148		288,316		Actuals		Overhead		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,395,148		57,393,611		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Jan GL Actuals

		3/16/22		57,393,611		54,019,525		(3,374,086)		GL		CAISO Charges 		Corrected for missing CAISO charges in 50xxx accounts for Jan

		4/4/22		54,019,525		54,562,642		543,117		Budget		Local Development		Corrected to approved budget 

		4/8/22		54,562,642		54,250,142		(312,500)		GL		Contractors		Corrected for some missing contractor invoices

		4/12/22		54,250,142		57,078,919		2,828,777		Actuals		Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		57,078,919		63,167,231		6,088,312		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		63,167,231		67,086,154		3,918,923		Actuals		Energy		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		67,086,154		68,840,834		1,754,680		Actuals		Attributes		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		68,840,834		68,862,046		21,212		Actuals		Energy Services		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		68,862,046		69,200,712		338,666		Actuals		Overhead		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		69,200,712		69,190,401		(10,311)		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		69,190,401		72,119,856		2,929,455		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		4/12/22		72,119,856		66,327,409		(5,792,447)		Actuals		Energy 		Updated Open, Basis, and Capacity from Contracts DB

		5/3/22		66,327,409		65,355,494		(971,915)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		5/3/22		65,355,494		66,855,494		1,500,000		Actuals		Revenues		Final CAPP money

		5/3/22		66,855,494		57,697,588		(9,157,906)		Actuals		Open		Updated Open and Basis from Contracts DB

		5/3/22		57,697,588		49,039,619		(8,657,969)		Actuals		Open		Updated March and April CAISO open actuals

		5/10/22		49,039,619		40,857,646		(8,181,972)		Actuals		Revenues		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		40,857,646		42,146,864		1,289,217		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		42,146,864		41,475,579		(671,285)		Actuals		Energy		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		41,475,579		43,829,472		2,353,892		Actuals		Attributes		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,829,472		43,850,868		21,396		Actuals		Energy Services		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,850,868		43,988,264		137,396		Actuals		Overhead		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,988,264		43,994,157		5,893		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Mar GL Actuals

				43,994,157		60,693,405		16,699,247

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0





Actuals

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4

								MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

										1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16		17		18		19		20		21		22		23		24		25		26		27		28		29		30		31		32		33		34		35		36		37		38		39		40		41		42		43		44		45		46		47		48

		REVENUES

				OPERATING																																																						0.02		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%

						Electricity Sales		A		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,444,785		61,302,590		78,707,426		5/3/22		Updated from Doug's Revenue Model for 18 Month scenario

						Uncollectables		B		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-846,672		-919,539		-1,180,611

						Other Operations Revenue		A1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		700,000		0		0



						Total Operating Revenues				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,298,113		60,383,051		77,526,815



				NON-OPERATING

						Interest Income		C		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		9,404		9,406		9,407		10/4/21		Updated from Working Capital

						Grants		D		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		894,000

						Other Non-Operating Revenue		A2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		9,404		9,406		903,407

				TOTAL REVENUES						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,307,517		60,392,456		78,430,223

		EXPENSES

						CAISO $/MWh Estimate																																																				1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54

		ENERGY

				ISTs				E		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		7,671,083		8,068,418		10,473,152		5/3/22		Updated from Contracts DB

				OPEN				E1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		18,800,000		16,301,265		15,480,529		5/3/22		2 FWD months from CAISO NLA

				BASIS						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		338,018		415,513		490,296		5/3/22

				CAISO				E6		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		805,415		873,018		913,463

				NEM				E7		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-676,153		322,520		1,120,881



				Total Energy						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		26,938,363		25,980,734		28,478,321

		ATTRIBUTES

				CAPACITY				E2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		5,903,172		6,611,253		6,728,174		4/12/22		Updated from Contracts DB

				PPA				E5		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		4,088,118		4,298,263		4,337,133		2/10/22

				RECs				E3		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,668,624		1,403,570		1,143,815		2/10/22

				CO2				E4		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		135,002		139,759		146,773		2/10/22

				Broker				E8		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		40,000		40,000		40,000



				Total Attributes						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		11,834,916		12,492,845		12,395,895

		SERVICES								1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00

				CRM				F1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		642,848		643,384		643,920

				Metering				F2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		224,997		225,184		225,372

				Scheduling				F3		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		85,000		85,000		85,000



				Total Services						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		952,845		953,568		954,292

		OPERATING OVERHEAD

				Personnel				P		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		847,583		847,583		847,583

				Marketing, Outreach, Communications				M		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		140,500		140,500		140,500

				Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs				L		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		132,667		132,667		132,667

				Other Professional Services				J		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		70,833		70,833		70,833

				General & Administrative				O		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		246,750		246,750		246,750

				Depreciation				Y		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		5,000		5,000		5,000



				Total Internal Costs						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333



		NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

				Borrowing Interest				K		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		73,805		76,265		73,805

				Local Development Funding						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250

				Grants

				Capital Expenditures				Z		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		426,137		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Non-Operating Expenses						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		780,055		782,515		780,055

		TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		38,773,279		38,473,579		40,874,216

		TOTAL ENERGY SERVICES EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		952,845		953,568		954,292

		TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333

		TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES								522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		780,055		782,515		780,055



		TOTAL EXPENSES								522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		41,949,512		41,652,996		44,051,896

		NET REVENUES								-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-706,250		-706,250		-1,132,387		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		14,358,005		18,739,460		34,378,326

		Cumulative Net Revenues by FY																																																								-706,250		-1,412,500		-2,544,887		-3,251,137		-3,957,387		-4,663,637		-5,369,887		-6,076,137		-6,782,387		7,575,618		26,315,079		60,693,405		1,405

		ACCOUNTS						466		548,475		552,540		551,476		554,082		553,732		556,676		557,567		557,954		560,131		558,558		558,440		558,967		557,722		558,053		557,137		556,692		557,930		559,030		561,627		561,928		562,393		641,697		642,208		641,450		641,207		641,370		642,026		641,669		641,676		642,351		642,110		641,776		642,312		642,848		643,384		643,920		644,456		644,992		645,528		646,064		646,600		647,136		647,672		648,208		648,744		649,280		649,816		650,352



		WHOLESALE LOAD (MWh)								522,383		559,607		522,325		511,741		505,872		557,113		568,424		491,509		512,247		461,311		486,716		490,135		505,355		574,007		551,749		539,896		517,154		570,626		553,068		474,002		504,879		491,467		549,079		582,888		621,602		635,793		612,303		585,900		572,941		660,852		617,616		531,849		564,591		522,997		566,895		593,158		1/3/22		Projections updated from FCAST

		RETAIL LOAD (MWh)								489,162		517,587		489,704		483,983		480,056		520,514		526,526		467,598		479,378		434,315		454,479		458,242		482,895		524,361		509,505		511,837		494,038		529,233		518,102		445,894		473,726		464,869		519,706		534,394		577,166		593,132		565,469		550,883		539,754		601,204		577,402		499,671		552,114		506,873		529,384		551,707		5/5/22		Historicals updated from CAISO and Calendar Month Dashboard/SMUD

										6.4%		7.5%		6.2%		5.4%		5.1%		6.6%		7.4%		4.9%		6.4%		5.9%		6.6%		6.5%		4.4%		8.6%		7.7%		5.2%		4.5%		7.3%		6.3%		5.9%		6.2%		5.4%		5.3%		8.3%		7.1%		6.7%		7.6%		6.0%		5.8%		9.0%		6.5%		6.1%		2.2%		3.1%		6.6%		7.0%

		Average Price																																																						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		74.14		67.87		68.91

		VWAP/FY																																																						15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4





GL

		FY		YR		Mo		Date		Num		Name		Memo		Account		Acct Name		Class		Amount		Meta		Chart Indx		INDX		LocINDX		Notes

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41010		Commercial - Gen				(13,914,514.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41010		Commercial - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		41010		Commercial - Gen				20,184,704.79		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41010		Commercial - Gen				11,968.86		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41010		Commercial - Gen				(24,308.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41010		Commercial - Gen				19,091,195.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41010		Commercial - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41020		Residential - Gen				(12,762,135.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Residential Generation from transaction summary report		41020		Residential - Gen				15,820,892.84		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41020		Residential - Gen				172,213.86		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41020		Residential - Gen				(19,053.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Admust to SMUD AR BALANCE		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41020		Residential - Gen				13,524,854.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				(258,102.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				AG/Street Generation from transaction summary report		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				358,419.16		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				165.03		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				(431.65)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				389,934.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42010		Commercial - Green Premium				545,285.02		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42020		Residential - Green Premium				427,397.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre				9,682.61		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		mar baddebt				Estimated Bad debt expense		42999		Bad Debt expense				(871,164.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				CAPP Funds applied in Feb'22		43000		CAPP Proceeds				197,415.57		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				8,932.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				4,660.48		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				218.70		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Data-2021		SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY (CUST)		Data Model Review / Recommendation and Data Studio Dashboard Design Review from October through ...		45000		Miscellaneous income				3,918.75		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44621		E3 - Energy and Environmental Economics		PIR-20-009 - TASK 3 Billable Services provided for March 2022		45000		Miscellaneous income				1,752.18		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 7/1/21		46000		Grant Revenue				707,757.75		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 9/28/21		46000		Grant Revenue				235,919.25		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 3/11/21		46000		Grant Revenue				335,460.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/18/22						Damage payment from Greenbacker for the Altamont wind project		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue				350,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Clear-0322		CLEARWAY ENERGY (CUST)		Failure to comply 103.04 MWh		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue				1,703.35		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		EASTBAY0060780015		TENASKA POWER SERVICES CO.		March 2022 - Physical RA System Forwards -  50  MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(317,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188756		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(171,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188757		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(134,200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188758		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(256,428.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44642		AES REDONDO BEACH, LLC (Inc)		March 2022 - RA - AES Redondo Beach Generating Station  (142.48MW)		50120		Capacity purchases				(1,479,037.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		397		LEAPFROG POWER, INC.		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 12.9 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(24,123.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2789713		SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), LP		March 2022 - Capacity Purchases - 44 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(288,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2237269		EDF TRADING NORTH AMERICA, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 4 MWh		50120		Capacity purchases				(28,400.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2237269		EDF TRADING NORTH AMERICA, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Sale - 2MWh		50120		Capacity purchases				14,900.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		85710		CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L. P.		March 2022 - RA Capacity Sell - 50 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				400,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		85710		CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L. P.		March 2022 - RA Capacity Buy - 420 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(2,881,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE Mar2022		Resi Station LLC a/c 7437		Proxy Demand Response EBCE Mar2022 - 17 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(96,050.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03 12		BOLT ENERGY MARKETING, LLC		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 7 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(36,400.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03		WELLHEAD POWER EXCHANGE, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Charge 47 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(223,250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		67		CITY OF SAN JOSE		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 70 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(147,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		67		CITY OF SAN JOSE		March 2022 - RA Sale - 70 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				122,500.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		157117		San Diego Gas and Electric (SDGE)		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 2,108 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(234,620.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		169132		SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 4.47 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(18,550.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		January 2022 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				1,694,968.53		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		December 2021 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				1,097,942.76		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Clear-0322		CLEARWAY ENERGY (CUST)		March 2022 PPA Generation -  28,401.77  MWh		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				172,725.15		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		TCW-EBCE-03 v2		TECOLOTE WIND LLC (PATTERN)		March 2022 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				781,294.18		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		January 2022 - Energy Production 33,355.55 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(1,471,313.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		December 2021 - Energy Production 16,596.95 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(732,091.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2		HENRIETTA D ENERGY STORAGE LLC		February 2022 - Total Storage Rate Charge - 10 MW		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(148,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1759155		GREENBACKER RENEWABLE (SEGO LILY SOLAR)		March 2022 - PPA and Test Energy - 15,876.7163  MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(682,712.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		TCW-EBCE-03 v2		TECOLOTE WIND LLC (PATTERN)		March 2022 - Energy Production - 18,946.38 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(827,971.03)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3		HENRIETTA D ENERGY STORAGE LLC		March 2022 - Total Storage Rate Charge - 10 MW		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(146,514.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2087258-1		MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP,  INC.		February 2022 - Energy Purchase - 16,800 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(584,304.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		706149		NEXTERA ENERGY MARKETING, LLC*		March 2022 - Power Purchases - 122,250 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(4,905,092.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2789712		SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), LP		March 2022 - Energy Purchases - 69,986 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(2,484,906.32)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		796812		Exelon/ Constellation		March 2022 - Energy purchases - 36938 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,293,568.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1020		CCCFA - Discount Settlement (BNY 10733184		March 2022 - Settlement Monthly Quantity - 43,837 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,870,060.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2087790-1		MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP,  INC.		March 2022 - Energy Purchase - 26,350 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,231,690.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1021		CCCFA - Retained Obligation (BNY 10749284		March 2022 - 2021B Energy Sales - Specified Source Premium - 50,772 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(20,308.80)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD2022000537		BROOKFIELD RENEWABLE T&M lp		March 2022 -  ACS Energy Purchase - 8,546 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(34,184.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD2022000537		BROOKFIELD RENEWABLE T&M lp		March 2022 - Carbon Free Purchase - 12,584 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(75,504.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		34234		XCEL-PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO		December 2021 -  RECs - 17,478 MWh		50160		RECs purchases				(170,410.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EAS220308		3 PHASES RENEWABLES (3PR)		Vintage 2021 Green Attributes from PCC2 Product		50160		RECs purchases				(110,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		169183		SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY		March 2022 - REC Purchase - 110,000 MW		50160		RECs purchases				(1,268,250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Marrc22				To estimate March 2022 REC		50160		RECs purchases				(450,640.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		Reverse of GJE CAISO -- To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the follow...		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				11,246,194.77		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(7,567,149.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(3,679,045.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(2,827,289.27)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(5,777,746.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(5,611,348.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(12,703,457.54)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				(6,524,366.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				4,282,745.08		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				2,241,621.35		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				1,505,437.15		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				3,079,349.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				3,092,654.28		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				7,299,103.80		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				880,961.42		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022020132-53208812		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		January 2022 - TFR Invoice		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(82,077.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(596,057.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(284,903.78)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(128,667.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(263,307.71)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/24/22		009040-0322006		Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)		March 2022 All Resources Bill - Prior Month Adjustment: Transmission & Generation Resources		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(52,540.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(695,826.89)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(1,501,542.52)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		46		SMUD		March 2022 - Data Management and Call Center Services -- {po:1038}		50200		Data Manager				(641,975.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		46		SMUD		March  2022 - Share My Data -- {po:1190}		50200		Data Manager		Technological		(6,419.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/24/22		009040-0322006		Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)		March 2022 All Resources Bill - Management Services		50300		Scheduling Fees				(56,597.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022137		KARBONE INC.		Brokerage of California System RA (Flex) between EBCEA and WGP Redwood Holdings, LLC- Confirmati...		50310		Broker fees				(39,891.60)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		08181-3098460322-00		TULLETT PREBON		March 2022 - RA Purchase - Counterparty: Shell Energy North America		50310		Broker fees				(1,125.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		572242 1018-032022		EQUUS ENERGY GROUP LLC		March 2022 - Broker Fees		50310		Broker fees				(475.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Record NEM Liability		50400		NEM Expense				(184,347.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				nem true up		50400		NEM Expense				9,079.74		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Adjust to SMUD NEM BALANCE		50400		NEM Expense				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44663		PG&E #8050-2		March 2022 - service  provider fees		50500		Service Fees - PG&E				(225,733.20)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		197699		PG&E (RA)		March 2022 RA Notional - 8 MW at $6,25/MW-Month		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA				50,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43680		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Community Solar Welcome Kit Mailing -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(3,721.47)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43718		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Enrollment Notices -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(51,942.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43814		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Berkeley and Albany Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(218.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43876		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Hayward Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(218.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44205		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(328.13)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44075		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Berkeley and San Leandro Enrollment Notices - 1st Notification -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(43,384.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44481		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Postage from October 2021 through March 2022 -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(108,186.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		facebook - Advertising on facebook - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(404.19)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(140.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(160.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(60.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(40.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		WC887780		EFFECTV (COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS)		March 2022 - San Francisco-Oak-San Jose - Digital TV -- {po:1212}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(2,308.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1330932		BAY AREA NEWS GROUP		March 2022 - Interactive Advertising - Quantum Banner -- {po:1213}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(5,555.84)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		6974		SOUND OF HOPE RADIO NETWORK		March 2022 - Online Targeted Display, 100,000 Impressions/month $1000/month -- {po:1106}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(1,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(24.69)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		facebook - Advertising on facebook - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(504.93)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(175.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		1000282		VELOZ		To recognize expenses for the months of July'21 - March'22		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Local Development		(37,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		0001-2022		TRACY EARTH PROJECT		Donation to Sponsor 2022 Tracy Earth Day		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		0102069-IN		ALAMEDA COUNTY FAIR		Marketing Sponsorship		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(8,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1502		CALIFORNIA GREEN BUSINESS NETWORK		March 2022 - Alameda County Green Business Plan Support		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		790		CITYSIDE		March 2022 - Culture Makers 2022: Bronze Level & Dedicated Eblast: Q2 Date TBD		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Happy hour staff event during offsite meeting during March in person meeting...		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(939.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Rental fees and beverage package for Two Pitchers - venue for offiste meetin...		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(1,636.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Snacks during March offsite - Meagan		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(195.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Snacks during March offsite - Meagan		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(35.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		black mesa - Coffee shop @ ABQ airport - Nick		56030		Business meals		Operations		(3.51)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		church street caf? - Meal during trip to Albuquerque - Nick		56030		Business meals		Operations		(47.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		poke parlor - Lunch for Nick @ office - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(21.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		dinner at airport		56030		Business meals		Operations		(30.52)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE team lunch		56030		Business meals		Operations		(142.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		poke parlor - Lunch for Nick @ office - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(22.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		calavera - Functional Leads Dinner during March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(569.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		senor sisig - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(649.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		caf? gabriela - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(704.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		falafel boy - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(391.13)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wooden table caf? - Breakfast during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(161.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		sweet bar bakery - Breakfast during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(400.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		paypal - WSPP conference registration refund - Meagan		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		190.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		california foundation on the environment and the economy - Cancellation fee for Nick's CFEE trip...		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(550.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conference Registration		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(180.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conference Parking		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conferenece Parking		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		barefoot movement - Yoga during March in person staff retreat - Meagan		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		466153541		U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE		KONICA MINOLTA C659 COPIER : 02/20/22 - 03/20/22		56050		Equipment lease		Operations		(330.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(546.26)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(509.54)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(505.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(552.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(574.34)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(511.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(139.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(595.49)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(593.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(504.07)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(532.08)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(139.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(515.84)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Inv 1877		California Community Choice Association		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		(30,971.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		red bridge education - Mailed citation form and check to CPUC - Meagan		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		(40.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 69203		ARROYO INSURANCE SERVICES, INC(KNAUF)		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense		56070		Insurance		Operations		(3,737.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased replacement bluetooth headphones for Meagan - previous pair stopped working -...		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(55.07)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchase tea and phone cases for office - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(390.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		customink - EBCE branded can coozy - Juan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(445.41)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		fedex - Letter of Credit return - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(50.09)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Deposit for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(510.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25493		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Microsoft Ergonomic Keyboard		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(90.05)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		122040784		ASSOCIATED SERVICES		February 2022 - Nat choice ION Water		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(129.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		DYNES, LORI		March 2022 - shipping boxes - marketing materials CBO offices		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(46.24)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		eco promotional - EBCE Branded Frisbees - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(1,825.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Accidentally purchased headphones - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(77.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon -  - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(36.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		eco promotional - Charge for Additional 200 Drawstring Bags - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(256.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Remaining balance for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(508.71)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased oat milk for the office - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(25.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Howard purchased office supplies - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(29.51)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Howard purchased office supplies - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(22.04)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Shipping cost for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(59.70)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Refund for accidentally purchased headphones - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		77.12		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased surge protectors with USB ports for printer and mail scales - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(31.96)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		heybike - Purchased an eBike to be raffled off at Roots game - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(899.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza - Monthly parking pass for Meagan - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(275.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		oakland parking meter - Howard paid for parking during tour of KTA (architects for new EBCE HQ) ...		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(1.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		LEWBIN, DAVID		parking for on-sight all-staff		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(10.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE all-staff parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		Gilmore, Molly		Parking at 1999 Harrison		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		Gilmore, Molly		Parking at 3 pitchers		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Lak - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Monthly parking pass for Meagan - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(275.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		258589		IGOE, INC. (ACH)		February 2022 - Medical and/or Dependent Care FSA Monthly Participation Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(75.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/7/22		March				Payroll Service Fee - EIB		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(231.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/18/22		March				Payroll Service Fee - EIB		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(171.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/21/22		March		Paychex		Paychex-OAB Flex Time		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(183.30)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		256612		IGOE (COBRA)		COBRA Monthly Service Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(65.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		260411		IGOE, INC. (ACH)		March 2022 - Medical and/or Dependent Care FSA Monthly Participation Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 2022-03		MECHANICS BANK (1999 Harrison Street) INC		To recognize March 2022 rent paid in advance		56130		Rent		Operations		(37,368.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD_000369587		RingCentral Inc.		Hardware -- {po: 1096}		56140		Small equipment		Operations		(191.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25352		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Logitech C925e Webcams x8		56140		Small equipment		Operations		(916.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Inv 1084		MYST AI, INC.		To recognize March 2022 expense that was prepaid		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(9,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		netlify - Hosting and serverless backend services for web applications and static websites. - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(14.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		cloudinary - Cloud-based image and video management services  - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(99.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dialpad - Conference call manager (formerly Uberconference) - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		1password  - Password manager for employees - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(132.24)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		atlassian - Process and controls management software - Jason		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(753.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		smartystreets - Address standardization tool for Analytics and Technology monthly charge - Kevin		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(80.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wallstreet - Online News Subscription - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(38.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(8.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		github - GitHub Pro Membership for analytics provenance tracking and version control. - Diego		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(997.14)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(18.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		energy gps - Newsletter Subscription - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		mailgun technologies - cloud-based email service for sending, receiving and tracking emails. Use...		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1.09)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Monthly membership fee - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Purchased printable stamp templates - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(211.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		zoom - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(465.37)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		44637		GOOGLE		March 2022 - Google Cloud		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(10,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/21/22		4040021004 CR		GOOGLE		Invoice paid by Amex credit card #2021-01-31		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		18.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		20778		TYMEWARE INCORPORATED		NRGSTREAM Client Access, West Region: March - May 2022		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(8,985.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3630&3646		ADAPT2 SOLUTIONS, INC.		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense - Invoice # 3630&3646		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(15,937.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		141368		GRANICUS		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense - Invoice # 141368		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(4,207.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		20174199		SALESFORCE.COM INC.		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance - Invoice#20174199		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(10,733.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2021-10042		cQUANT.IO, INC.		Subscription fee for SaaS March 2022		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(13,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		115692061-1		COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION, INC.		March 2022 - CoStar Suite Monthly License Fees -- {po:1199}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,050.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		21932185		SALESFORCE.COM INC.		Subscription - Service Dates: 3/10/22 - 8/14/22		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(330.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv-LLC1706		FLUENCE ENERGY, LLC		March 2022 - Revenue from SaaS integration - Integration Fee -- {po:1255}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(2,284.95)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		322023654088		ICE US OTC Commodity Mkts LLC		March 2022 - Market Data Exchange Fee		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-10076		cQUANT.IO, INC.		March 2022 - Dedicated Server Fees -- {po:1148}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - 365 business		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1,040.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - 365 business		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - av security		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - rmm-saas cloud backup		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(585.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - visio online plan 1		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(26.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - defender for endpoint		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(285.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(25.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		1password - Password manager for employees - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(129.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wallstreet journal - Online News Subscription - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(38.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1,053.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(18.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		smartystreets.com - Address standardization tool for Analytics and Technology monthly charge - K...		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(80.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		energy gps - Newsletter Subscription - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		netlify - Hosting and serverless backend services for web applications and static websites. - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(7.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		helioscope - Annual subscription for web-based sales and design tool for solar professionals  - JP		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Local Development		(950.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(9.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(2.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(3.22)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		cloudinary - Cloud-based image and video management services  - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(99.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dialpad - Conference call manager (formerly Uberconference) - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		github - GitHub Pro Membership for analytics provenance tracking and version control. - Diego		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		atlassian - Process and controls management software - Jason		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(768.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Monthly membership fee - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(125.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(483.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		airtable - Online Project management platform used by Programs & Marketing - JP		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(480.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		220716445		ACC Business (AT&T)		AT&T Bill for Internet 2/11/22-3/10/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(689.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		comcast - Primary internet for office - Meagan		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(116.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD_000369587		RingCentral Inc.		Telephone line -- {po: 1096}		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(502.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		T-Mobile		Mobile phone service for 2/21/22-3/20/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(1,473.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		221026556		ACC Business (AT&T)		AT&T Bill for Internet 3/11/22-04/10/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(689.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		comcast - Primary internet for office - Meagan		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(116.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Q122.102.1561		LT Trust		TOTAL Q1 2022 FEES for 401(A) PLAN- Automated payments this is just to record the fee.		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		(2,233.03)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Q122.102.1521		LT Trust		TOTAL Q1 2022 FEES for 457(B) PLAN- Automated payments this is just to record the fee.		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		(1,790.63)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44657		EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST (#50141)		2/1/22-4/4/22 - Deposit Required, Water Charges, Wastewater Charges		56190		Utilities		Operations		(185.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44657		EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST (#72375)		2/1/22 -4/4/22 - Water Charges, Wastewater Charges		56190		Utilities		Operations		(37.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44665		PG&E #461-4		March 2022 - Service provider fees for 251 8th Street Unit 3		56190		Utilities		Operations		(553.30)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44635		CORTEZ, JUAN		Gas to St. Patrick's Day Event x2		56210		Mileage/fuel		Operations		(51.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		VENTURA, FELIZ		Parking at 1999 Harrison		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		VENTURA, FELIZ		Parking at Alexan Webster Garage		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		ace parking - Parking during March in person meeting - Meagan		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(10.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Fee for preferred seat on flight SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(16.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Fee for preferred seat on flight SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(16.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Airfare to and from  SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(437.20)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(68.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(163.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(98.60)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(73.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		chateau - Hotel for WSPP conference - refund bc Howard cancelled his trip - Meagan		56240		Lodging		Operations		813.50		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		chateau - Hotel for Howard for  WSPP conference  - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(811.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		los pablanos inn - Hotel for Nick during ABQ trip - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(454.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		los poblanos inn - Deposit for Nick's hotel in ABQ - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(373.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		JW Marriott		56240		Lodging		Operations		(903.08)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		hotel		56240		Lodging		Operations		(2,716.80)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		claremont hotel -  -		56240		Lodging		Operations		(11.92)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		state wide transport oakland - Nick took a cab in SF  - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(72.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		taxi - to airport		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(19.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		taxi - to home		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(32.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		uber - Ride to office during in person March meeting - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(19.94)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lyft - Ride to the offiste during March in person meeting - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(16.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lyft - Ride to the March in person meeting at the office - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(14.85)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LUTZ, JIM		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LOPEZ, CORINA N.		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MARTINEZ, DIANNE		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LAKSHMAN, VIJAY		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MUETZENBERG, WILLIAM		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		CAVENAUGH, JEN		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LIU, YAZHOU (JOEL)		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		HANNON, MIKE		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		KUMAGAI, SHAWN		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		TIEDEMANN, AARON		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MARQUEZ, ELISA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		SIMON, FRED		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MEI,  LILY		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		NARUM, KATHY		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		FRANCH, JANE		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		COX, TERESA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		BONANNO, REGINA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ARRIOLA, DAN		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LANDRY, CYNTHIA		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		KALB, DAN		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		PACHECO, ERNESTO		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44627		SPECTRUM COMMUNITY SERVICES, Inc		EBCE AMP Outreach Grant		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development		(15,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44637		CITY OF BERKELEY		March 2022 - Grant for electrification of senior center kitchens -- {po:1211}		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(2,921.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44643		CITY OF BERKELEY		March 2022 - Myer Foodservice Equipment for the Senior Center Kitchen Electrification grant -- {...		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(13,987.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		23299		Maher Accountancy		March  2022 - Accounting Services -- {po:1262}		59010		Accounting		Operations		(18,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		INV55220		MINERAL, INC.		March 2022 - March 2023 - Workplace Harassment Prevention		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		(1,152.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13392		REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY		March 2022 - Contract Services -- {po:1256}		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		(750.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25644		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Monthly Outsource - Onsite/Remote Service -- {po:1245}		59040		IT Consulting		Operations		(5,501.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		236497		Richards Watson & Gershon		February 2022 - Professional Services -- {po:1239}		59050		Legal		Legal		(28,363.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related legal costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59050		Legal		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(5,341.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related legal costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59050		Legal		Legal		5,341.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454449		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		February 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-016 --  {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Local Development		(6,892.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454446		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-009-- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Legal		(14,162.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454448		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		February 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-015 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(3,225.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454450		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-013 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(470.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454447		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-012 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Local Development		(1,114.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		26746		Keyes & Fox LLP		March 2022 - Services  -- {po:1241}		59050		Legal		Policy		(5,204.55)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		6896463		DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP		March 2022 - RPS Procurement Plan - Matter Number: 0110408.000004 -- {po:1240}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(4,317.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2020010589		HALL ENERGY LAW PC		March 2022 - legal services - Transaction Support -- {po:1238}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(23,685.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Mar acc		Richards Watson & Gershon		To estimate March 2022 expense		59050		Legal		Legal		(20,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3612		Weideman Group, Inc		March 2022 - Legislative Strategy/Planning -- {po:1035}		59060		Legislative		Policy		(10,277.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		36265		TRC Engineers, Inc.		February 2022 - EBCE Reach Code Analysis 2019 - Project 335171 -- {po:1049}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(3,382.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		36024		TRC Engineers, Inc.		January 2022 - EBCE Reach Code Analysis 2019 - Project 335171 -- {po:1049}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(4,846.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		21619		MHC ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.		July 2021 - engineering services for 251 8th Street, Oakland -- {po:1219}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(2,160.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 1 - Funding Determination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,402.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 3 - Program Ideation & Design		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,625.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 4 - Stakeholder Coordination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(205.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 5 - Cost Effectiveness & Technical Assistance		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,347.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 6 - Tier 3 Advice Letter		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 1 - Funding Determination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(367.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 3 - Program Ideation & Design		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(623.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 7 - Project Management		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(97.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Feb accR		Richards Watson & Gershon		Reverse of GJE Feb acc -- To estimate February 2022 expense		59050		Legal		Legal		20,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Mar accR		TRC Engineers, Inc.		Reverse of GJE Mar acc -- To accrue expenses for December 2021		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		1,500.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/11/22		0008086046-3		PG&E - ENGINEERING ADVANCE		March 2022 - Electrical engineering assessment for City of Oakland public parking garage		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(2,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/14/22		EBCE-0322-A		PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY		March 2022 - Aces invoice #22A4572-IN- 1/5 of RA Management and Procurement		59070		Other Consultants		Power Procurement		(1,324.17)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE March 2022		MISSIONCTRL		March 2022 - base retainer -- {po:1234}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(9,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1012		CCCFA - General Payments		March 2022 -  2021B Specific - Funding for costs and minimum bank account balance		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(21,600.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE43		CLEAN ENERGY REGULATORY RESEARCH, LLC		March 2022- Regulatory Compliance Support  -- {po:1155}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(2,345.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE-002		NP ENERGY LLC		March 2022 - Resource Adequacy Policy Updates -- {po:1263}		59070		Other Consultants		Power Procurement		(2,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		112474		CALSTART, INC.		March 2022 - Phase 3: Pilot Project Technical Assistance Implementation -- {po:1142}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,789.55)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13385		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PG&E 2019 ERRA Compliance -- {po:1119}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(99.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13398		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PGE 2023 GRC Phase I -- {po:1118}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(3,485.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13386		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PGE 2022 ERRA Forecast -- {po:1195}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(163.61)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		112471		CALSTART, INC.		March 2022 - Blueprints for Medium - and Heavy-Duty Zero-Emission Vehicle Infrastructure -- {po:...		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(17,233.63)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE2203		ECOMOTION INC.		March 2022 - Energy Resilient Municipal Facilities Project, Ecomotion Labor Cost -- {po:1204}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P009-Resiliency		(11,620.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		69333		CLEARESULT CONSULTING, INC.		March 2022 - Professional Services -- {po:1162}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(25,752.53)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		21-REVISED		BENTHAM PAULOS		January-February 2022 - targeted communications invoice #21 --  {po:1244}		59090		Communications consultants		Policy		(8,175.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		1		RAYSHINE LLC		March 2022 - Retainer -- {po:1265}		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		(20,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		03-21-22-2		AFAF TRANSLATIONS LLC		Translation of "CC221016-COPY DECK_AMP marketing toolkit_translation" into 9 different languages...		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(335.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related Communications costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(337.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related Communications costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		337.50		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		General Web Services		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		(9,142.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: General		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(600.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: AMP		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(4,162.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: CAPP		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Heat Pump Water Heater		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(75.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Induction Campaign		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(5,962.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Medical Baseline		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(1,875.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Resilient Home		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(324.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		22		BENTHAM PAULOS		March 2022 - targeted communications invoice #22 --  {po:1244}		59090		Communications consultants		Policy		(1,800.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		4369702516		THE LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMPANY		March 2022 - Life Insurance Premium --  {po:1041}		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(1,765.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - Commuter Benefits		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - PIA VLI EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		26.33		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - TO-PIA MED EE (FSA)		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		2,848.87		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22 - PIA VLI EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		29.73		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22 - PIA MED EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		2,375.98		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		22042002169		Blue Shield of California		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(23,846.14)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		53475560648		KAISER PERMANENTE		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(9,275.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22		60520		Payroll tax expense		Payroll		(4,246.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60520		Payroll tax expense		Payroll		(4,073.89)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		ER March				Payroll 3/1/22-3/15/22 - ER portion		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Payroll		(45,636.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		ER March				Payroll 3/16/22-3/31/22 - ER portion		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Payroll		(48,794.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2/28/22 PRR				Reverse of GJE 2/28/22 PR -- 13 of 13 days of 2/16/22-2/28/22 payroll period paid in following m...		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		265,725.27		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(261,478.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(268,384.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3/31/22 PR				16 of 16 days of 3/16/22-3/31/22 payroll period paid in following month		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(308,582.32)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - Workers' Comp		60550		Workers comp insurance		Payroll		(568.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60550		Workers comp insurance		Payroll		(585.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44642				Estimated Accrued compensated Absences and supplemental PTO at 3/31/22		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Payroll		(17,255.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Jan intR		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		Reverse of GJE Jan int -- Accrue January 2022 interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		77,802.38		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Feb intR		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		Reverse of GJE Feb int -- Accrue February 2022 interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		68,095.34		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03-15 LC&REV		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		January - March 2022 - LOC & Revolver - interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		(149,568.87)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03-15 LC 26494		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		January - March 2022 - Letter of Credit Facility 26494 - Interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		(66,700.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Mar22 Depr				To record monthly depreciation expense		80200		Depreciation Expense				(5,654.22)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		







								

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1





COA

						FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

						CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

						MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Account		Account Name		Code

		41010		Commercial - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		41020		Residential - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42010		Commercial - Green Premium		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42020		Residential - Green Premium		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42999		Bad Debt expense		B		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		43000		CAPP Proceeds		A1																																																																- 0		- 0

		44000		Interest Income		C		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		45000		Miscellaneous income		A2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		46000		Grant Revenue		D		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		47000		Damages		A1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		61000		Bad Debt expense		B		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				REV TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50120		Capacity purchases		E2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA		E5		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50135		PPA Energy Purchase		E5		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50140		Energy purchases		E		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50145		Carbon Free Energy		E4		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50160		RECs purchases		E3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50165		GHG Offset expense		E4		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy		E1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades		E1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges		E6		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50200		Data Manager		F1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50300		Scheduling Co		F3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50310		Broker Fees		E8		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50400		NEM Expense		E7		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50500		Service Fees - PG&E		F2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50510		Wholesale Sales - Energy		E		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50520		Wholesale Sales - REC/CO2		E3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA		E2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				ENERGY TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50200		Data Manager		F1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50901		Other Noticing		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50902		Required Mailings		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55010		Advertising		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55055		Promotional Items		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55060		Communications - misc expenses		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55070		Special Events		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56010		Bank service fee		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56030		Business Meals		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56020		Building maintenance		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56040		Conferences & Prof Development		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56050		Equipment lease		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56060		Industry memberships and dues		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56070		Insurance		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56080		Interest and Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56100		Office supplies and postage		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56110		Parking at office		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56120		Payroll service fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56130		Rent		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56140		Small equipment		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56160		Telephone and internet		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56180		Miscellaneous Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56181		Retirement admin fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56190		Utilities		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56210		Mileage/fuel		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56220		Parking and Tolls		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56230		Airfare		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56240		Lodging		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56330		Director's Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		57010		Community Investment Grants		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		57020		Program Incentives		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59010		Accounting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59030		Human resources consulting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59040		IT Consulting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59050		Legal		L		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59060		Legislative		L		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59070		Other Consultants		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59090		Communications consultants		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59200		Technical Consultants		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60510		Employee welfare		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60520		Payroll tax expense		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60530		Retirement plan contributions		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60540		Salaries and wages		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60550		Workers comp insurance		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60560		Life Insurance		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60590		Temporary Employees		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



		63400		Interest Expense		K		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		80200		Depreciation Expense		Y		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		80400		Penalties and fines		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99991		Adjust Equipment Modified (neg)		Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99992		Adjust Equipment Modified (pos)		Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99995				Z																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99996				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99997				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99998				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		UUT C				A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				OPERATIONS TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Ops less Capital				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Comp to Chart				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				TOTAL EXPENSES				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				NET REVENUE				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		426,137		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				SumGL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Comp to GL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

																																																												8,081,323.84







OpsChart

								Total		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

		Area		Account		Account Name		Rsrc		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		L		50200		Data Manager		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50200		Data Manager		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				50200		Data Manager		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50901		Other Noticing		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50902		Required Mailings		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		50902		Required Mailings		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55010		Advertising		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55055		Promotional Items		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		55055		Promotional Items		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		55070		Special Events		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55070		Special Events		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56010		Bank service fee		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56020		Building maintenance		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56030		Business meals		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56040		Conferences & prof development		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56050		Equipment Lease		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56070		Insurance		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56080		Interest and fees expense		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56100		Office supplies and postage		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56110		Parking at office		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56120		Payroll service fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56130		Rent		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56160		Telephone and internet		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56181		Retirement admin fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56190		Utilities		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56210		Mileage/fuel		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56220		Parking and Tolls		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56230		Airfare		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56240		Lodging		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56250		Other Travel		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56310		Board Meeting Rental		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56330		Director's Fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		57010		Community Grants		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		57010		Community Grants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		57020		Program Incentives		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59010		Accounting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59040		IT Consulting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				59050		Legal		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59060		Legislative		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		59070		Consultants		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59070		Consultants		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants (CRM)		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		59090		Communications consultants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		59090		Communications consultants		Loc																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59090		Communications consultants		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60510		Employee welfare		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60520		Payroll tax expense		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60540		Salaries and wages		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60550		Workers comp insurance		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Pay																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		60590		Temp Employees		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		99999		Local Development--Unassigned		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

						New Communities		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A				Energy Pre-pay		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



						CHECK AND TRUE UP

				AK		AJ		0

				Chart		COA		D

		50200		0		0		0

		50200		0		0		0

		50300		0		0		0

		50310		0		0		0

		50400		0		0		0

		50500		0		0		0

		50510		0		0		0

		50520		0		0		0

		50530		0		0		0

		50901		0		0		0

		50902		0		0		0

		55010		0		0		0

		55040		0		0		0

		55055		0		0		0

		55060		0		0		0

		55070		0		0		0

		56010		0		0		0

		56020		0		0		0

		56030		0		0		0

		56040		0		0		0

		56050		0		0		0

		56055		0		0		0

		56060		0		0		0

		56070		0		0		0

		56080		0		0		0

		56090		0		0		0

		56100		0		0		0

		56110		0		0		0

		56120		0		0		0

		56130		0		0		0

		56140		0		0		0

		56150		0		0		0

		56160		0		0		0

		56180		0		0		0

		56181		0		0		0

		56190		0		0		0

		56210		0		0		0

		56220		0		0		0

		56230		0		0		0

		56240		0		0		0

		56250		0		0		0

		56330		0		0		0

		57010		0		0		0

		57020		0		0		0

		59010		0		0		0

		59030		0		0		0

		59040		0		0		0

		59050		0		0		0

		59060		0		0		0

		59070		0		0		0

		59090		0		0		0

		59200		0		0		0

		60510		0		0		0

		60520		0		0		0

		60530		0		0		0

		60540		0		0		0

		60550		0		0		0

		60560		0		0		0

		60580		0		0		0

		60590		0		0		0

		61000		0		0		0





LocDev

				FY		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

				CY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

				Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4

				MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Program Funding

				Beginning Balance		4,871,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000

				Funding from General Fund Revenues		6,340,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		8,475,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		D		Grants/Credits		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Mid-Year adjustment		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Available Funding		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000

				Net Expenses		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Ending Balance		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000



		Program Areas Resources

		P001		Building Electrification		1,609,000																								900,000

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		925,000																								0

		P003		Demand Response		236,000																								0

		P004		Energy Efficiency		824,000																								0

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		6,043,000				252,000				500																5,545,000

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		805,000																137,500						-288,001		0

		P007		Community Investment		211,000																								1,150,000

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		5,000																								100,000

		P009		Resiliency		458,000																						322,621		580,000

		L		Legal Resources		100,000																						-34,620		100,000

		M		MAS Resources		0																								100,000

		P		Policy Resources		0																								0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0																								0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0																								0



				Total Program Resources		11,216,000		0		252,000		0		500		0		0		0		137,500		0		0		0		8,475,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



		Program Areas Expenses

		P001		Building Electrification		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P003		Demand Response		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P004		Energy Efficiency		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P007		Community Investment		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P009		Resiliency		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		L		Legal Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		M		MAS Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P		Policy Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Program Expenses		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



		Program Area Remaining

		P001		Building Electrification		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000

		P003		Demand Response		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000

		P004		Energy Efficiency		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		6,043,000		6,043,000		6,295,000		6,295,000		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		942,500		942,500		942,500		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499

		P007		Community Investment		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000

		P009		Resiliency		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		780,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621

		L		Legal Resources		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		65,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380

		M		MAS Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000

		P		Policy Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Program Remaining		11,216,000		11,216,000		11,468,000		11,468,000		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,606,000		11,606,000		11,606,000		11,606,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000

																														2,509,000

																														925,000

																														236,000

																														824,000

																														11,840,500

																														654,499

																														1,361,000

																														105,000

																														1,360,621

																														165,380

																														100,000

																														0

																														0

																														0

																														0

																														20,081,000





Budget

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4				10642		MedBaseline

								MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6				4064		FERA

																																																										202107		202108		202109		202110		202111		202112		202201		202202		202203		202204		202205		202206		202207		202208		202209		202210		202211		202212		202301		202302		202303		202304		202305		202306				111925		CARE

		REVENUES

				OPERATING																																																																														2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%

						Electricity Sales				46,348,347		46,453,034		44,816,941		44,349,561		42,893,970		47,529,054		38,753,799		35,004,005		36,253,837		34,013,830		34,848,777		35,749,216		41,499,196		41,861,697		41,160,584		38,467,515		28,815,763		32,651,733		27,498,127		23,792,812		25,311,536		27,697,242		34,902,402		37,745,980		49,088,221		52,163,926		50,702,277		36,023,199		35,038,734		38,786,322		43,137,055		38,382,692		38,760,551		34,713,745		35,955,519		55,883,972		81,284,333		84,296,780		79,690,797		65,405,956		63,385,914		70,989,546		78,808,860		71,179,538		72,932,106		66,902,770		71,206,193		89,344,226		895,427,018		5/3/22		Doug's ST model

						Uncollectables				-232,742		-233,265		-225,085		-222,748		-215,470		-238,645		-194,769		-176,020		-182,269		-171,069		-175,244		-179,746		-1,037,480		-1,046,542		-1,029,015		-961,688		-720,394		-816,293		-687,453		-594,820		-632,788		-676,945		-821,048		-877,920		-981,764		-1,043,279		-1,014,046		-720,464		-700,775		-775,726		-647,056		-575,740		-581,408		-520,706		-539,333		-838,260		(1,625,687)		(1,685,936)		(1,593,816)		(1,308,119)		(1,267,718)		(1,419,791)		(1,576,177)		(1,423,591)		(1,458,642)		(1,338,055)		(1,424,124)		(1,786,885)		-17,908,541

						Other Operations Revenue																																																																																(6,229,350)																				-6,229,350		124587		CARE/FERA 5/9/2022 Account Explorer



						Total Operating Revenues				46,115,605		46,219,769		44,591,856		44,126,813		42,678,500		47,290,409		38,559,030		34,827,985		36,071,568		33,842,761		34,673,533		35,569,470		40,461,716		40,815,155		40,131,569		37,505,827		28,095,369		31,835,440		26,810,674		23,197,992		24,678,747		27,020,297		34,081,354		36,868,060		48,106,457		51,120,648		49,688,231		35,302,735		34,337,959		38,010,595		42,489,999		37,806,952		38,179,143		34,193,038		35,416,186		55,045,713		79,658,646		82,610,844		71,867,631		64,097,837		62,118,196		69,569,755		77,232,683		69,755,947		71,473,464		65,564,715		69,782,069		87,557,341		871,289,127

				NON-OPERATING

						Interest Income				30,210		33,743		37,277		40,810		44,343		47,877		55,547		56,261		56,975		57,689		58,403		59,117		102,204		102,370		102,536		102,703		102,870		103,037		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		9,000		9,000		8,000		7,000		9,000		16,583		19,567		23,551		30,534		37,518		44,501		46,484		260,738		5/9/22		Working capital + BlocPower Interest

						Grants				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		894,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

						Other Non-Operating Revenue																																																																																				15,000																15,000



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				30,210		33,743		37,277		40,810		44,343		47,877		55,547		56,261		56,975		57,689		58,403		59,117		102,204		171,120		102,536		102,703		171,620		103,037		102,620		171,370		102,620		102,620		171,370		102,620		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		964,091		9,000		9,000		8,000		7,000		24,000		16,583		19,567		23,551		30,534		37,518		44,501		46,484		275,738

				TOTAL REVENUES						46,145,815		46,253,513		44,629,132		44,167,623		42,722,843		47,338,286		38,614,577		34,884,246		36,128,543		33,900,450		34,731,936		35,628,587		40,563,920		40,986,274		40,234,106		37,608,530		28,266,989		31,938,477		26,913,294		23,369,362		24,781,367		27,122,917		34,252,724		36,970,680		48,168,724		51,183,141		49,750,989		35,371,258		34,410,918		38,080,686		42,552,266		37,869,444		38,241,900		34,261,562		35,489,145		56,009,803		79,667,646		82,619,844		71,875,631		64,104,837		62,142,196		69,586,338		77,252,250		69,779,498		71,503,998		65,602,233		69,826,570		87,603,825		871,564,865

		EXPENSES

				CAISO $/MWh Estimate																																																																														1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54

		ENERGY

				ISTs						21,647,856		23,673,828		21,222,360		18,113,520		17,301,826		19,087,768		9,382,212		8,570,196		8,625,859		7,599,240		7,895,700		8,147,160		20,548,896		20,705,136		19,248,360		19,553,736		17,502,432		18,673,566		6,357,944		5,850,672		6,504,156		9,784,987		9,852,611		9,784,987		21,807,757		22,550,204		20,070,025		17,072,794		15,448,088		16,228,326		8,070,184		7,112,702		7,474,114		6,825,983		7,195,148		10,123,820		14,904,899		15,666,755		14,041,246		14,759,599		11,868,415		12,411,230		6,495,855		5,328,312		5,664,133		5,344,404		5,528,462		5,359,292		117,372,602		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				OPEN						4,038,717		3,168,151		2,266,562		3,014,803		2,795,651		5,567,683		17,200,844		13,765,842		10,654,710		7,328,907		7,431,717		11,193,313		1,936,590		2,532,409		2,197,478		1,105,385		2,505,528		4,417,928		15,362,577		11,626,759		9,598,118		6,792,359		6,904,685		7,600,498		5,388,816		10,820,801		6,554,432		7,274,583		8,919,626		12,485,533		23,111,050		17,197,715		14,489,875		9,127,048		9,194,964		10,841,922		16,100,379		23,147,050		18,056,043		13,954,916		19,530,497		28,825,028		43,407,705		33,067,398		25,634,433		11,476,943		11,830,988		17,269,298		262,300,678		5/3/22		Contracts DB Test w/Prepay

				BASIS																														850,441		832,968		568,007		453,607		450,137		560,533		222,613		175,254		186,614		305,313		341,585		381,274		996,899		1,136,123		717,862		519,906		584,534		614,902		268,577		302,274		322,891		325,212		361,708		502,183		845,390		871,134		566,092		480,742		485,557		456,159		227,810		229,670		244,496		447,673		459,087		435,300		5,749,110		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				CAISO						1,945,392		1,946,982		1,874,759		1,850,155		1,786,284		1,978,199		1,989,229		1,796,947		1,860,945		1,747,029		1,792,019		1,846,726		662,885		669,805		652,316		641,876		626,125		695,398		681,866		590,727		632,815		586,940		604,324		618,708		993,239		1,055,811		985,905		960,005		933,998		1,029,355		1,030,004		879,901		955,433		853,032		883,572		930,982		949,698		993,549		935,267		898,145		880,845		977,805		970,790		842,913		914,192		827,085		872,515		908,287		10,971,091

				NEM																																																						1,117,345		741,004		230,612		196,265		-135,130		-421,656		-375,110		-169,411		-33,463		-676,153		322,520		1,120,881		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-225,384		107,507		373,627		255,750



				Total Energy						27,631,965		28,788,960		25,363,681		22,978,477		21,883,761		26,633,651		28,572,285		24,132,984		21,141,515		16,675,177		17,119,436		21,187,199		23,998,812		24,740,318		22,666,161		21,754,604		21,084,222		24,347,425		22,625,000		18,243,412		16,921,703		17,469,599		17,703,205		18,385,467		30,304,056		36,303,942		28,558,835		26,023,553		25,751,117		29,936,459		32,104,705		25,323,181		23,208,849		16,455,122		17,957,912		23,519,788		32,800,366		40,678,488		33,598,648		30,093,402		32,765,314		42,670,222		51,102,160		39,468,293		32,457,254		17,870,721		18,798,559		24,345,804		396,649,231

		ATTRIBUTES

				CAPACITY						4,168,343		4,800,714		3,614,495		2,927,362		2,620,493		2,830,725		4,447,599		4,396,640		3,439,562		4,511,298		4,624,287		4,808,713		5,928,814		7,569,593		6,360,850		4,426,707		4,083,057		5,122,865		5,785,902		5,478,057		4,550,795		4,553,744		4,698,162		4,713,287		9,101,974		8,240,112		8,757,145		6,247,015		5,808,860		6,156,532		4,830,937		4,592,669		3,971,949		4,873,765		6,094,666		5,825,309		7,608,188		10,082,187		10,593,531		8,515,282		6,595,178		6,969,295		5,611,116		5,505,898		4,789,465		4,459,266		7,187,740		8,207,248		86,124,394		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				PPA																														0		0		0		0		0		0		490,757		490,757		490,757		1,880,563		2,027,444		2,054,612		1,866,528		1,812,190		1,675,498		1,098,943		889,235		808,578		1,025,339		1,205,116		1,557,382		2,291,887		2,502,032		2,540,902		3,821,882		3,744,140		3,548,572		2,185,978		1,885,944		1,770,547		1,869,606		2,052,254		2,410,147		5,182,276		5,586,014		5,660,694		39,718,054		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				RECs						2,475,538		2,475,538		2,395,682		2,475,538		2,395,682		2,475,538		3,759,884		3,517,311		3,759,884		3,638,597		3,759,884		3,638,597		2,921,920		2,954,999		2,885,247		2,849,256		2,780,887		3,082,842		3,388,993		2,911,602		3,135,619		2,032,708		2,011,029		2,051,606		2,293,219		2,500,061		2,388,208		2,555,612		2,596,036		2,946,449		3,133,977		2,500,914		2,555,839		1,915,737		1,892,125		2,021,201		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		36,450,000		5/3/22

				CO2						1,655,689		1,655,689		1,602,280		1,655,689		1,602,280		1,655,689		1,875,236		1,754,253		1,875,236		1,814,745		1,875,236		1,814,745		402,940		408,949		396,279		389,741		377,323		432,170		316,672		257,994		285,529		255,971		266,787		274,268		423,568		451,424		421,349		410,125		398,656		440,753		149,104		125,086		137,026		120,919		125,676		132,689		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		4,221,000		5/9/22		Contracts DB

				Broker																														30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		480,000



				Total Attributes						8,299,570		8,931,941		7,612,456		7,058,589		6,618,455		6,961,952		10,082,719		9,668,204		9,074,682		9,964,640		10,259,407		10,262,055		9,283,674		10,963,541		9,672,376		7,695,704		7,271,267		8,667,877		10,012,324		9,168,410		8,492,700		8,752,986		9,033,422		9,123,773		13,725,289		13,043,787		13,282,200		10,351,695		9,732,787		10,392,312		9,179,357		8,463,785		8,262,196		9,242,308		10,654,499		10,560,101		14,859,320		17,255,577		17,571,353		14,130,510		11,910,372		12,169,092		10,909,972		10,987,402		10,628,862		13,070,792		16,203,004		17,297,192		166,993,448

		SERVICES

				CRM						558,552		559,400		560,247		561,069		561,916		562,736		563,584		564,433		565,226		566,073		566,894		567,741		592,073		593,317		594,561		595,806		597,050		598,294		685,187		686,609		788,031		789,453		789,875		692,297		782,002		782,755		783,509		784,263		785,016		785,770		655,436		656,064		656,692		657,320		657,948		658,576		650,901		651,442		651,983		652,525		653,066		653,607		654,149		654,690		655,231		655,773		656,314		656,856		7,846,536

				Metering						186,184		186,467		186,749		187,023		187,305		187,579		187,861		188,144		188,409		188,691		188,965		189,247		197,358		197,772		198,187		198,602		199,017		199,431		199,846		200,261		229,676		230,090		230,505		201,920		228,084		228,304		228,523		228,743		228,963		229,183		229,403		229,622		229,842		230,062		230,282		230,502		225,560		225,747		225,935		226,122		226,310		226,498		226,685		226,873		227,060		227,248		227,436		227,623		2,719,097

				Scheduling						54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		696,144



				Total Services						799,136		800,267		801,397		802,491		803,621		804,715		805,846		806,977		808,034		809,164		810,259		811,388		844,431		846,090		847,749		849,408		851,067		852,726		940,033		941,870		1,072,706		1,074,543		1,075,380		949,217		1,065,574		1,066,547		1,067,521		1,068,494		1,069,467		1,070,441		969,839		970,687		971,534		972,382		973,230		974,078		933,058		933,786		934,515		935,244		935,973		936,702		940,261		940,990		941,718		942,448		943,177		943,906		11,261,777

		OPERATING OVERHEAD

				Personnel						497,015		513,385		546,039		567,066		581,812		580,673		578,095		575,154		571,305		567,150		566,137		559,149		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		15,711,000		5/1/22		From Staffing_v2

				Marketing, Outreach, Communications						188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		2,874,000		4/4/22		From MAS Budget 

				Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs						132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		1,936,000

				Other Professional Services						101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		2,293,000

				General & Administrative						190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		3,807,000

				Depreciation						5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		180,000



				Total Internal Costs						1,114,832		1,131,202		1,163,856		1,184,883		1,199,629		1,198,490		1,195,912		1,192,971		1,189,121		1,184,967		1,183,954		1,176,965		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		26,801,000



		NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

				Borrowing Interest						117,429		118,415		115,427		108,735		109,253		102,647		102,842		99,556		89,977		92,778		86,421		85,778		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		76,265		76,265		73,805		76,265		73,805		76,265		76,265		68,884		76,265		73,805		76,265		73,805		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		1,440,000

				Local Development Funding						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		20,600,000		4/1/22		Guidance from Nick

				Grants																																																																														15,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		15,000,000

				Capital Expenditures																																																										5,500,000																				1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		7,000,000

						Building Improvements																																																																												1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		7,000,000

						Investments



				Total Non-Operating Expenses						640,345		641,332		638,343		631,652		632,169		625,564		625,759		622,473		612,894		615,695		609,338		608,695		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		782,515		782,515		6,280,055		782,515		780,055		782,515		782,515		775,134		782,515		780,055		782,515		780,055		18,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		51,040,000

		TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES								35,931,535		37,720,901		32,976,138		30,037,066		28,502,216		33,595,603		38,655,004		33,801,188		30,216,197		26,639,817		27,378,843		31,449,254		33,282,486		35,703,859		32,338,537		29,450,308		28,355,489		33,015,302		32,637,324		27,411,822		25,414,403		26,222,585		26,736,627		27,509,240		44,029,345		49,347,730		41,841,035		36,375,248		35,483,904		40,328,772		41,284,062		33,786,966		31,471,046		25,697,429		28,612,410		34,079,890		47,659,686		57,934,065		51,170,001		44,223,912		44,675,686		54,839,314		62,012,132		50,455,695		43,086,116		30,941,513		35,001,563		41,642,996		563,642,679

		TOTAL ENERGY SERVICES EXPENSES								799,136		800,267		801,397		802,491		803,621		804,715		805,846		806,977		808,034		809,164		810,259		811,388		844,431		846,090		847,749		849,408		851,067		852,726		940,033		941,870		1,072,706		1,074,543		1,075,380		949,217		1,065,574		1,066,547		1,067,521		1,068,494		1,069,467		1,070,441		969,839		970,687		971,534		972,382		973,230		974,078		933,058		933,786		934,515		935,244		935,973		936,702		940,261		940,990		941,718		942,448		943,177		943,906		11,261,777

		TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES								1,114,832		1,131,202		1,163,856		1,184,883		1,199,629		1,198,490		1,195,912		1,192,971		1,189,121		1,184,967		1,183,954		1,176,965		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		26,801,000

		TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES								640,345		641,332		638,343		631,652		632,169		625,564		625,759		622,473		612,894		615,695		609,338		608,695		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		782,515		782,515		6,280,055		782,515		780,055		782,515		782,515		775,134		782,515		780,055		782,515		780,055		18,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		51,040,000



		TOTAL EXPENSES								38,485,848		40,293,701		35,579,733		32,656,093		31,137,635		36,224,371		41,282,521		36,423,609		32,826,246		29,249,642		29,982,393		34,046,303		35,874,000		38,297,032		34,933,369		32,046,799		30,953,639		35,615,111		35,324,440		30,100,775		28,234,193		29,044,211		29,559,090		30,205,540		47,320,767		52,640,125		50,631,944		39,669,590		38,776,759		43,625,060		44,479,749		36,976,121		34,668,429		28,893,199		31,811,488		37,277,355		69,652,827		64,927,934		58,164,600		51,219,239		51,671,742		61,836,100		69,032,476		55,476,768		48,107,918		35,964,044		40,024,823		46,666,985		652,745,456

		NET REVENUES								7,659,968		5,959,812		9,049,399		11,511,530		11,585,208		11,113,915		-2,667,944		-1,539,362		3,302,298		4,650,808		4,749,543		1,582,285		4,689,920		2,689,243		5,300,737		5,561,731		-2,686,650		-3,676,634		-8,411,147		-6,731,413		-3,452,826		-1,921,294		4,693,634		6,765,140		847,957		-1,456,984		-880,955		-4,298,332		-4,365,841		-5,544,375		-1,927,483		893,324		3,573,472		5,368,362		3,677,656		18,732,448		10,014,819		17,691,910		13,711,031		12,885,598		10,470,453		7,750,238		8,219,774		14,302,729		23,396,081		29,638,189		29,801,746		40,936,840		218,819,408

		Cumulative Net Revenues by FY																																																								847,957		-609,027		-1,489,982		-5,788,315		-10,154,156		-15,698,530		-17,626,013		-16,732,690		-13,159,218		-7,790,855		-4,113,199		14,619,249		10,014,819		27,706,729		41,417,760		54,303,357		64,773,811		72,524,049		80,743,823		95,046,552		118,442,633		148,080,822		177,882,568		218,819,408



		ACCOUNTS								531,954		532,762		533,569		534,351		535,158		535,939		536,747		537,555		538,310		539,117		539,899		540,706		563,879		565,064		566,249		567,434		568,619		569,804		570,989		572,174		573,359		574,544		575,729		576,914		651,668		652,296		652,924		653,552		654,180		654,808		655,436		656,064		656,692		657,320		657,948		658,576		644,456		644,992		645,528		646,064		646,600		647,136		647,672		648,208		648,744		649,280		649,816		650,352

		WHOLESALE LOAD (MWh)								555,826		556,280		535,645		528,616		510,367		565,200		568,351		513,413		531,699		499,151		512,005		527,636		547,839		553,558		539,104		530,476		517,459		574,709		563,526		488,204		522,988		485,074		499,441		511,329		644,961		685,592		640,198		623,380		606,492		668,412		668,834		571,364		620,411		553,917		573,748		604,534		616,687		645,162		607,316		583,211		571,977		634,938		630,383		547,346		593,631		537,068		566,568		589,797				4/1/22		Contracts DB

		RETAIL LOAD (MWh)								519,302		520,411		502,208		497,300		480,302		531,458		534,086		482,838		500,334		469,868		481,325		494,053		511,814		517,650		505,344		498,994		486,932		540,205		529,694		459,163		492,260		456,731		469,732		478,724		604,125		615,923		594,130		574,639		562,863		614,990		620,403		540,029		576,103		523,354		546,204		562,458		575,281		601,786		568,117		547,507		537,369		595,837		591,797		514,112		557,853		504,840		531,843		551,238				4/1/22		Contracts DB

										6.6%		6.4%		6.2%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.0%		6.0%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.4%		6.6%		6.5%		6.3%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.0%		5.9%		5.9%		5.8%		5.9%		6.4%		6.3%		10.2%		7.2%		7.8%		7.2%		8.0%		7.2%		5.5%		7.1%		5.5%		4.8%		7.0%		6.7%		6.7%		6.5%		6.1%		6.1%		6.2%		6.1%		6.1%		6.0%		6.0%		6.1%		6.5%

		Average Price																																																						53.80		68.27		71.98		65.36		58.35		58.51		60.34		61.73		59.13		50.73		46.39		49.87		56.37		77.28		89.80		84.26		75.83		78.11		86.37		98.37		92.18		72.58		57.61		61.78		70.61

		VWAP/FY																																																								59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12





DevDash

																		2023		2022		2022				2021				2020

										1		2		3		4

										Q1		Q2		Q3		Q4		FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2021-22				FY 2020-21				FY 2019-20

										Jul-Sep		Oct-Dec		Jan-Mar		Apr-Jun		DRAFT BUDGET		BUDGET		YTD* + EST				BUDGET				BUDGET

		OPERATING ACTIVITY

				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						GASB 62 Unrecognized Revenue Balance												15,814,000		15,814,000		15,814,000				12,680,000				0

						Operating Revenue

								Electricity Sales		245,272,000		199,781,000		222,921,000		227,453,000		895,427,000		508,636,000		196,455,000				401,405,000				487,014,000

								Uncollectables		(4,905,000)		(3,996,000)		(4,458,000)		(4,549,000)		(17,908,000)		(8,939,000)		(2,947,000)				(9,902,000)				(2,447,000)

								Other Operations Revenue		(6,229,000)		0		0		0		(6,229,000)		0		700,000				0				0



						Total Operating Revenue				234,138,000		195,785,000		218,463,000		222,904,000		871,290,000		499,697,000		194,208,000				391,503,000				484,567,000



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Energy Operating Expenses

								Open										262,301,000		135,406,000		50,582,000				72,580,000				88,427,000		46.5%

								Hedges										117,373,000		159,979,000		26,213,000				164,367,000				171,268,000		20.8%

								Capacity										86,124,000		74,501,000		19,243,000				63,272,000				47,190,000		15.3%

								PPA										39,718,000		19,274,000		12,724,000				7,435,000				0		7.0%

								REC										36,450,000		29,299,000		4,216,000				33,007,000				36,768,000		6.5%

								CAISO										10,971,000		11,491,000		2,592,000				7,664,000				22,415,000		1.9%

								Basis										5,749,000		6,653,000		1,244,000				5,328,000				0		1.0%

								CO2										4,221,000		3,336,000		422,000				4,065,000				20,837,000		0.7%

								NEM										256,000		1,918,000		767,000				0				0		0.0%

								Broker										480,000		480,000		120,000				360,000				0		0.1%

								Cost of Energy		156,764,000		143,739,000		155,554,000		107,586,000		563,643,000		442,337,000		118,123,000				358,078,000				386,905,000

								Data Management/Customer Service										7,847,000		8,645,000		1,930,000				8,003,000				6,758,000

								PG&E Service Fees (Billing/Metering)										2,719,000		2,752,000		676,000				2,483,000				2,253,000

								CAISO Scheduling Coordinator										696,000		843,000		255,000				660,000				653,000

								Energy Operating Services		2,801,000		2,808,000		2,823,000		2,829,000		11,262,000		12,240,000		2,861,000				11,146,000				9,664,000



						Total Energy Operating Expenses				159,565,000		146,547,000		158,377,000		110,415,000		574,905,000		454,577,000		120,984,000				369,224,000				396,569,000



						Overhead Operating Expenses

								Personnel		3,928,000		3,928,000		3,928,000		3,928,000		15,712,000		10,171,000		2,543,000				7,429,000				6,703,000

								Marketing & Communications		719,000		719,000		719,000		719,000		2,876,000		1,686,000		422,000				1,544,000				2,263,000

								Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs		484,000		484,000		484,000		484,000		1,936,000		1,592,000		398,000				1,297,000				1,586,000

								Other Professional Services		573,000		573,000		573,000		573,000		2,292,000		850,000		213,000				1,345,000				1,214,000

								General & Administrative		952,000		952,000		952,000		952,000		3,808,000		2,961,000		740,000				2,146,000				2,290,000

								Depreciation		15,000		15,000		75,000		75,000		180,000		60,000		15,000				60,000				61,000



						Total Overhead Operating Expenses				6,671,000		6,671,000		6,731,000		6,731,000		26,804,000		17,320,000		4,331,000				13,821,000				14,117,000



						Total Operating Expenses				166,236,000		153,218,000		165,108,000		117,146,000		601,709,000		471,897,000		125,315,000				383,045,000				410,686,000



				NET OPERATING POSITION						67,902,000		42,567,000



		NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY

				NON-OPERATING REVENUE

								Interest Income		26,000		33,000		74,000		129,000		262,000		798,000		28,000				1,231,000				578,000

								Grants		0		0		0		0		0		894,000		894,000				275,000				0

								Other Non-Operating Revenue		0		15,000		0		0		15,000		0		0				0				0



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				26,000		48,000		74,000		129,000		277,000		1,692,000		922,000				1,506,000				578,000



				NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

								Borrowing Interest		360,000		360,000		360,000		360,000		1,440,000		898,000		224,000				804,000				1,229,000

								Local Development Funding		5,150,000		5,150,000		5,150,000		5,150,000		20,600,000		8,475,000		8,475,000				6,340,000				6,275,000		1.4306784661

								Grant		15,000,000		0		0		0		15,000,000		0		0				0				0

								Capital Expenditures		3,000,000		3,000,000		1,000,000		0		7,000,000		5,500,000		426,000				0				0



						Total Non-Operating Expenses				23,510,000		8,510,000		6,510,000		5,510,000		44,040,000		14,873,000		9,125,000				7,144,000				7,504,000



				NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY						(23,484,000)		(8,462,000)		(6,436,000)		(5,381,000)		(43,763,000)		(13,181,000)		(8,203,000)				(5,638,000)				(6,926,000)



				TOTAL REVENUES						234,164,000		195,833,000		218,537,000		223,033,000		871,567,000		501,389,000		195,130,000				393,009,000				485,145,000

				TOTAL EXPENSES						189,746,000		161,728,000		171,618,000		122,656,000		645,749,000		486,770,000		134,440,000				390,189,000				418,190,000



		NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION								44,418,000		34,105,000		46,919,000		100,377,000		225,818,000		14,619,000		60,690,000				2,820,000				66,955,000



		RESERVE BALANCE

						Beginning Reserve Balance												TBD		90,218,000		90,218,000				90,218,000				40,514,000

						FY Contribution												TBD		TBD		TBD				0				49,704,000

						Reserve Balance												TBD		90,218,000		90,218,000				90,218,000				90,218,000

						Percent of Expenses														18.5%		67.1%				23.1%				21.6%

				0.2500		Minimum Target (25%)												161,437,000		121,693,000		33,610,000				97,547,000				104,548,000

				0.5000		Operating Target (50%)												322,875,000		243,385,000		67,220,000				195,095,000				209,095,000

				0.7500		Maximum Target (75%)												484,312,000		365,078,000		100,830,000				292,642,000				313,643,000



		LOAD

				Wholesale						1,869,165		1,790,126		1,771,360		1,693,433		7,124,084		7,461,842		7,086,497				6,333,709				6,404,190

				Retail						1,745,184		1,680,713		1,663,762		1,587,921		6,677,580		6,935,221		6,644,759				5,947,243				6,013,486

										6.6%		6.1%		6.1%		6.2%		6.3%		7.1%		6.2%				6.1%				6.1%

		PRICES

				Energy ($/MWh)						83.87		80.30		87.82		63.53		79.12		59.28		16.67				56.54				60.41

				Effective ($/MWh)						101.51		90.34		96.88		72.43		90.64		65.23		18.97				61.61				65.30





Energy Operating Expenses



Energy Operating Expenses	



Energy Cost Distribution	

Relative Monthly Average Energy Costs



FY 21/22 Budget	7	8	9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4	5	6	68.27	71.98	65.36	58.35	58.51	60.34	61.73	59.13	50.73	46.39	49.87	56.37	FY 21/22 Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	74.14	67.87	68.91	FY 22/23 Budget	77.28	89.8	84.26	75.83	78.11	86.37	98.37	92.18	72.58	57.61	61.78	70.61	Month by Number (7=July)











DevChangLog

		Date		FY Initial		FY Final		Delta		Sheet		Item		Notes

		3/29/22		222,175,000		222,175,000		0		None		None		Initialization 

		4/1/22		222,175,000		199,359,000		(22,816,000)		Budget		Open		Update from E-Dash line 62

		4/1/22		199,359,000		199,466,000		107,000		Budget		Basis		Update from E-Dash line 67

		4/1/22		199,466,000		197,953,000		(1,513,000)		Budget		RA		Update from RA-Dash line 61

		4/1/22		197,953,000		199,232,000		1,279,000		Budget		PPA		Update from PPA-Dash line 20

		4/1/22		199,232,000		199,195,000		(37,000)		Budget		CO2		Update from Sheet3 line 29

		4/1/22		199,195,000		199,206,000		11,000		Budget		Wholesale Load		Update from E-Dash line  19

		4/1/22		199,206,000		199,217,000		11,000		Actuals		Accounts		Added January account total from SMUD invoice 44

		4/1/22		199,217,000		179,017,000		(20,200,000)		Budget		REC		Update from REC-Annual line 73

		4/1/22		179,017,000		176,617,000		(2,400,000)		Budget		Local Development 		Update guidance from Nick via Slack

		4/1/22		176,617,000		176,633,000		16,000		Actuals		Accounts		Added February account total from SMUD invoice 45

		4/1/22		176,633,000		170,261,000		(6,372,000)		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total less deffered comp

		4/1/22		170,261,000		229,286,000		59,025,000		Budget		Revenues		Update from ST-Case20220330

		4/4/22		229,286,000		227,650,000		(1,636,000)		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total

		4/4/22		227,650,000		227,862,000		212,000		DevChart		Marketing		Added Marketing Budget for 2023

		4/5/22		227,862,000		223,862,000		(4,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Building improvements

		4/5/22		223,862,000		226,262,000		2,400,000		Budget		REC		Reduced to $4M/mo. Still think it's high

		4/6/22		226,262,000		226,978,000		716,000		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total

		4/6/22		226,978,000		224,978,000		(2,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Building improvements adjustments re Howard

		4/6/22		224,978,000		224,498,000		(480,000)		Budget		Borrowing Costs		Increased to reflect increased facility commitment fee

		4/6/22		224,498,000		223,958,000		(540,000)		Budget		Overhead		Increased by 10% from last year as placeholder

		4/7/22		223,958,000		221,693,000		(2,265,000)		Budget		Uncollectables		Adjusted to keep 2022 @ 1.5% from 1%

		4/8/22		221,693,000		211,693,000		(10,000,000)		Budget		Local Development 		Increased per Nick

		4/14/22		211,693,000		211,615,000		(78,000)		Actuals		Accounts		Updated with February accounts, which updated projections

		4/29/22		211,615,000		210,963,000		(652,000)		DevChart		Personnel		Updated from Staff_v2 on 20220429

		5/3/22		210,963,000		210,947,000		(16,000)		DevChart		Operations G&A		Completed G&A estimates

		5/3/22		210,947,000		297,049,000		86,102,000		Budget		Revenues		Updated with new base case from 20220503(3%BC…)

		5/3/22		297,049,000		244,743,000		(52,306,000)		Budget		Open		Updated from E-Dash line 62

		5/3/22		244,743,000		244,638,000		(105,000)		Budget		Basis		Update from E-Dash line 67

		5/3/22		244,638,000		237,638,000		(7,000,000)		Budget		Grants		Added UCSF Benioff grant

		5/3/22		237,638,000		230,910,000		(6,728,000)		Budget		Uncollectables		Increased uncollectables to 2% for full FY

		5/3/22		230,910,000		242,459,000		11,549,000		Budget		RECs		Updated RECs to match expected costs, including 5% increase in PCL

		5/4/22		242,459,000		241,974,000		(485,000)		Budget		Legal & Consultants		Increased expected increase to 30%

		5/4/22		241,974,000		241,638,000		(336,000)		DevChart		OPS		Updated some operating expenses related to new building

		5/4/22		241,638,000		240,354,000		(1,284,000)		Budget		Legal & Consultants		Integrated DevChart with Budget to complete Overhead integration

		5/4/22		240,354,000		232,354,000		(8,000,000)		Budget		Grants		Increased budget to $15MM for UCSF grant

		5/5/22		232,354,000		232,382,000		28,000		DevChart		HR Consultants		Removed the amount allocated to Account 59030 as it is covered in 59070

		5/5/22		232,382,000		232,222,000		(160,000)		DevChart		Retirement		Updated based on bonus structure

		5/9/22		232,222,000		226,423,000		(5,799,000)		Budget		Other Revenue		Reduced by $50 per CARE and FERA account in July

		5/9/22		226,423,000		225,023,000		(1,400,000)		DevChart		Marketing		Added Program costs to Marketing budget

		5/9/22		225,023,000		226,423,000		1,400,000		Budget		Local Development 		Reduced Programs to match marketing adjustment

		5/9/22		226,423,000		225,993,000		(430,000)		Budget		Other Revenue		Updated CARE & FERA count per Taj and Annie in Slack

		5/9/22		225,993,000		226,008,000		15,000		Budget		Other Revenue		Revenue from SaaS services with SVCE

		5/9/22		226,008,000		223,763,000		(2,245,000)		Budget		Carbon Free		Updated to 5/9 values @ $5.50

		5/9/22		223,763,000		225,575,000		1,812,000		DevChart		Personnel		Updated with references to updated Staff sheet

		5/9/22		225,575,000		225,608,000		33,000		Budget		Interest Income		Added BlocPower loan interest: 15Y, $1.0M, 5.5%

		5/10/22		225,608,000		224,608,000		(1,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Increased capex for building rehab by $1M per Howard comment in presentation

		5/10/22		224,608,000		224,538,000		(70,000)		Actuals		Accounts		Change in current accounts carried over to Services cost increase

				224,538,000		225,818,000		1,280,000

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0





DevChart

														16,163,000		0		16,163,000				19,748,000		0		16,410,000				32,469,000

												FY		2021								2022								2023

		Indx		BudgetMap		Account		Account Name		Contractor		Rsrc		Budget		Actual		Delta				Budget		YTD		Delta				Budget

		7		A		50200		Data Manager				Tec		0		0		0				120,000		0		120,000				84,000

		6		M		50200		Data Manager				Mar		300,000		0		300,000				185,000		0		185,000				100,000

		8		M		50901		Other Noticing				Mar		75,000		0		75,000				0		0		0				0

		9		M		50902		Required Mailings				Mar		580,000		0		580,000				395,000		0		395,000				320,000

		9		M		50902		Required Mailings		For Programs		Mar																		200,000

		11		M		55010		Advertising				Mar		154,000		0		154,000				134,000		0		134,000				121,000

		11		M		55010		Advertising		For Programs		Mar																		450,000

		15		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				5,000

		14		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Mar		130,000		0		130,000				430,000		0		430,000				285,000

		14		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		For Programs		Mar																		125,000

		16		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Pol		0		0		0				25,000		0		25,000				25,000

		18		A		55055		Promotional Items				Ops		3,000		0		3,000				3,000		0		3,000				10,000

		17		M		55055		Promotional Items				Mar		10,000		0		10,000				10,000		0		10,000				25,000

		19		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses				Mar		8,000		0		8,000				8,000		0		8,000				15,000

		21		M		55070		Special Events				Mar		5,000		0		5,000				5,000		0		5,000				5,000

		22		A		56010		Bank service fee				Ops		1,000		0		1,000				1,000		0		1,000				1,000

		23		A		56020		Building maintenance				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				100,000

		24		A		56030		Business meals				Ops		18,000		0		18,000				15,000		0		15,000				25,000

		25		A		56040		Conferences & prof development				Ops		14,000		0		14,000				20,000		0		20,000				25,000

		26		A		56050		Equipment Lease				Ops		7,000		0		7,000				7,000		0		7,000				10,000

		27		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)				Ops		20,000		0		20,000				20,000		0		20,000				40,000

		29		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues				Ops		400,000		0		400,000				400,000		0		400,000				412,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				10,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				400,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues		Bar Dues		Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				2,000

		30		A		56070		Insurance				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				18,000		0		18,000				100,000

		31		A		56080		Interest and fees expense				Ops		1,000		0		1,000				1,000		0		1,000				1,000

		32		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A				Ops		100,000		0		100,000				100,000		0		100,000				100,000

		33		A		56100		Office supplies and postage				Ops		75,000		0		75,000				40,000		0		40,000				100,000

		34		A		56110		Parking at office				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				12,000		0		12,000				12,000

		35		A		56120		Payroll service fees				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				10,000		0		10,000				10,000

		36		A		56130		Rent				Ops		429,000		0		429,000				438,000		0		438,000				250,000

		38		A		56140		Small equipment				Ops		65,000		0		65,000				100,000		0		100,000				200,000

		39		A		56140		Small equipment				Pow		50,000		0		50,000				0		0		0				0

		40		A		56140		Small equipment				Tec		75,000		0		75,000				0		0		0				0

		43		M		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Mar		50,000		0		50,000				72,000		0		72,000				50,000

		44		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Ops		40,000		0		40,000				50,000		0		50,000				60,000

		45		R		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Pol		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		41		G		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Leg		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		46		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Pow		250,000		0		250,000				726,000		0		726,000				975,000

		47		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Tec		560,000		0		560,000				630,000		0		630,000				1,064,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Aiqueous, LLC		Tec		15,000		0		15,000				0								90,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Battery Optimization		Pow		0		0		0				150,000								300,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		cQuant.io, Inc.		Pow		80,000		0		80,000				151,000								200,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Deal Capture		Pow		140,000		0		140,000				260,000								260,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Structured Finance		Pow		0		0		0				0								50,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Google		Tec		135,000		0		135,000				186,000								200,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Miscellaneous		Pow		30,000		0		30,000				165,000								165,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Miscellaneous		Tec		10,000		0		10,000				140,000								100,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Camus Energy		Tec		0		0		0				0								70,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Myst AI, Inc.		Tec		50,000		0		50,000				144,000								204,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Customer Portal Development		Tec		0		0		0				0								250,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Salesforce.com Inc.		Tec		350,000		0		350,000				160,000								150,000

		48		A		56160		Telephone and internet				Ops		35,000		0		35,000				30,000		0		30,000				50,000

		49		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				1,000

		50		A		56181		Retirement admin fees				Ops		18,000		0		18,000				15,000		0		15,000				15,000

		51		A		56190		Utilities				Ops		3,000		0		3,000				3,000		0		3,000				30,000

		52		A		56210		Mileage/fuel				Ops		11,000		0		11,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		53		A		56220		Parking and Tolls				Ops		4,000		0		4,000				2,000		0		2,000				2,000

		54		A		56230		Airfare				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		55		A		56240		Lodging				Ops		19,000		0		19,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		56		A		56250		Other Travel				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		57		A		56310		Board Meeting - Rental				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		58		A		56330		Director's Fees				Ops		24,000		0		24,000				50,000		0		50,000				50,000

		60		M		57010		Community Grants				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		62		B		59010		Accounting				Ops		220,000		0		220,000				250,000		0		250,000				265,000

		63		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting				Ops		0		0		0				100,000		0		100,000				0

		64		B		59040		IT Consulting				Ops		45,000		0		45,000				40,000		0		40,000				75,000

		65		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Leg		410,000		0		410,000				720,000		0		720,000				950,000

		67		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Pol		210,000		0		210,000				180,000		0		180,000				200,000

		68		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Pow		250,000		0		250,000				415,000		0		415,000				485,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Barclay's		Leg		0		0		0				30,000								100,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Braun Blaising Smith Wynne, P.C.		Pol		60,000		0		60,000				22,000								30,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Davis Wright Tremaine LLP		Pow		0		0		0				165,000								185,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Hall Energy Law PC		Pow		250,000		0		250,000				150,000								200,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Joe Wiedman		Pol		0		0		0				48,000								40,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Keyes & Fox LLP		Pol		150,000		0		150,000				110,000								130,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		General JPA Costs		Leg		0		0		0				30,000								50,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Miscellaneous		Leg		60,000		0		60,000				310,000								350,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Richards Watson & Gershon		Leg		350,000		0		350,000				350,000								450,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati		Pow		0		0		0				100,000								100,000

		69		R		59060		Legislative Consultants				Pol		132,000		0		132,000				132,000		0		132,000				132,000

		69				59060		Legislative Consultants		Weideman Group, Inc		Pol		132,000		0		132,000				132,000								132,000

		71		M		59070		Consultants				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				15,000

		72		B		59070		Consultants				Ops		50,000		0		50,000				50,000		0		50,000				1,098,000

		73		R		59070		Consultants				Pol		150,000		0		150,000				75,000		0		75,000				99,000

		74		B		59070		Consultants				Pow		680,000		0		680,000				410,000		0		410,000				605,000

		75		B		59070		Consultants				Tec		0		0		0				0		0		0				250,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Aces		Pow		50,000		0		50,000				50,000								110,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Miscellaneous		Pow		400,000		0		400,000				35,000								100,000

		73				59070		Consultants		Crossboarder		Pol		150,000		0		150,000				0								0

		74				59070		Consultants		Energy GPS Consulting LLC		Pow		100,000		0		100,000				75,000								75,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Alan Comnes		Pow		0		0		0				0								50,000

		74				59070		Consultants		IRP		Pow		100,000		0		100,000				250,000								250,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Green-e Audit		Pow																		15,000

		74				59070		Consultants		CARB Audit		Pow																		5,000

		73				59070		Consultants		M.Cubed		Pol		0		0		0				15,000								15,000

		73				59070		Consultants		Miscellaneous		Pol		0		0		0				0								0

		73				59070		Consultants		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		Pol		0		0		0				60,000								60,000

		73				59070		Consultants		NP Energy		Pol		0		0		0				0								24,000

		74				59070		Consultants		PCL		Pow		30,000		0		30,000				0								0

		72				59070		Consultants		CERR		Ops		0		0		0				25,000								48,000

		72				59070		Consultants		PFM		Ops		0		0		0				25,000								50,000

		75				59070		Consultants		Rate Consultants for Cost of Service		Tec		0		0		0				0								250,000

		72				59070		Consultants		HR Needs		Ops		0		0		0				0								1,000,000

		76		M		59090		Communications consultants				Mar		282,000		0		282,000				447,000		0		447,000				528,000

		76		M		59090		Communications consultants		For Programs		Mar																		625,000

		78		R		59090		Communications consultants		Bentham Paulos		Pol		45,000		0		45,000				45,000		0		45,000				45,000

		79		S		60510		Employee welfare		Healthcare		Pay		526,000		0		526,000				765,000		0		765,000				1,632,000

		80		S		60520		Payroll tax expense				Pay		120,000		0		120,000				162,000		0		162,000				262,000

		81		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions				Pay		809,000		0		809,000				993,000		0		993,000				1,544,000

		82		S		60540		Salaries and wages		Salary, Bonus, & Other		Pay		5,931,000		0		5,931,000				7,058,000		0		7,058,000				11,598,000

		83		S		60550		Workers comp insurance				Pay		15,000		0		15,000				12,000		0		12,000				15,000

		84		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance				Pay		28,000		0		28,000				34,000		0		34,000				53,000

		85		S		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset				Pay		0		0		0				397,000		0		397,000				607,000

				S		60590		Temp Employees				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

				D		80200		Depreciation Expense				Dep		60,000		52,603		7,397				60,000		32,394		27,606				180,000

				A		99999		Energy Pre-pay--JPA operations				Ops		100,000		0		100,000				100,000		0		100,000				0

				L		99999		Local Development--Capital Transfer				Loc		6,340,000		6,340,000		0				8,475,000		0		8,475,000				22,000,000



















DevChartTables

								FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2021-22

								DRAFT BUDGET		BUDGET		YTD* + EST

						Salaries & Wages		11,598,000		7,058,000		1,765,000

				0.1331264011		Retirement		1,544,000		993,000		248,000

						Health Care/Benefits		2,292,000		1,196,000		376,000

						Payroll Expenses		277,000		174,000		44,000

						Total		15,711,000		9,421,000		2,433,000

		S		60510		Employee welfare		1,632,000		765,000		268,000

		S		60520		Payroll tax expense		262,000		162,000		41,000

		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions		1,544,000		993,000		248,000

		S		60540		Salaries and wages		11,598,000		7,058,000		1,765,000

		S		60550		Workers comp insurance		15,000		12,000		3,000

		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance		53,000		34,000		9,000

		S		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		607,000		397,000		99,000

		S		60590		Temp Employees		0		- 0		- 0



		B		59010		Accounting		265,000		250,000		63,000

		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting		1,000,000		100,000		25,000

		B		59040		IT Consulting		75,000		40,000		10,000

		B		59070		Consultants		953,000		460,000		115,000

						Total		2,293,000		850,000		213,000



						Data Manager		100,000		185,000		65,000

						Required Mailings		520,000		395,000		138,000

						Advertising		986,000		569,000		200,000

						Promotional Items		25,000		10,000		4,000

						Communications		1,233,000		455,000		184,000

						Total		2,864,000		1,614,000		591,000

		M		50200		Data Manager		100,000		185,000		65,000

		M		50901		Other Noticing		0		- 0		- 0

		M		50902		Required Mailings		520,000		395,000		138,000

		M		55010		Advertising		571,000		134,000		47,000

		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		410,000		430,000		151,000

		M		55055		Promotional Items		25,000		10,000		4,000

		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses		15,000		8,000		3,000

		M		55070		Special Events		5,000		5,000		2,000

		M		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		50,000		72,000		25,000

		M		57010		Community Grants		0		- 0		- 0

		M		59070		Consultants		15,000		- 0		- 0

		M		59090		Communications consultants		1,153,000		447,000		156,000



						Legal Consultants		1,635,000		1,315,000		1,315,000

						Legislative Consultants		132,000		132,000		132,000

						Other Consultants		144,000		120,000		42,000

						Sponsorships & Memberships		25,000		25,000		25,000

						Total		1,936,000		1,592,000		1,514,000

		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		25,000		25,000		9,000

		R		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		0		- 0		- 0

		G		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal Consultants		1,635,000		1,315,000		460,000

		R		59060		Legislative Consultants		132,000		132,000		46,000

		R		59070		Consultants		99,000		75,000		26,000

		R		59090		Communications consultants		45,000		45,000		16,000





						Operational Expenses		748,000		877,000		307,000

						New Building Related Expenses		300,000		- 0		- 0

						Software, Subscriptions, SaaS		2,099,000		1,406,000		492,000

						Small Equipment		210,000		107,000		37,000

						Rent & Utilties		330,000		471,000		165,000

						Conferences & Prof. Development		55,000		40,000		15,000

						Board & Director Fees		65,000		60,000		22,000

						Total		3,807,000		2,961,000		1,038,000

		A		50200		Data Manager		84,000		120,000		42,000

		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		5,000		- 0		- 0

		A		55055		Promotional Items		10,000		3,000		1,000

		A		56010		Bank service fee		1,000		1,000		- 0

		A		56020		Building maintenance		100,000		- 0		- 0

		A		56030		Business meals		25,000		15,000		5,000

		A		56040		Conferences & prof development		25,000		20,000		7,000

		A		56050		Equipment Lease		10,000		7,000		2,000

		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		40,000		20,000		7,000

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		412,000		400,000		140,000

		A		56070		Insurance		100,000		18,000		6,000

		A		56080		Interest and fees expense		1,000		1,000		- 0

		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		100,000		100,000		35,000

		A		56100		Office supplies and postage		100,000		40,000		14,000

		A		56110		Parking at office		12,000		12,000		4,000

		A		56120		Payroll service fees		10,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56130		Rent		250,000		438,000		153,000

		A		56140		Small equipment		200,000		100,000		35,000

		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		2,099,000		1,406,000		492,000

		A		56160		Telephone and internet		50,000		30,000		11,000

		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees		1,000		- 0		- 0

		A		56181		Retirement admin fees		15,000		15,000		5,000

		A		56190		Utilities		30,000		3,000		1,000

		A		56210		Mileage/fuel		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56220		Parking and Tolls		2,000		2,000		1,000

		A		56230		Airfare		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56240		Lodging		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56250		Other Travel		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56310		Board Meeting - Rental		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56330		Director's Fees		50,000		50,000		18,000

		A		99999		Energy Pre-pay--JPA operations		0		100,000		35,000





Surplus

				NET POSITION WATERFALL						Dollars		Percent

				Projected Net Position Surplus						$   225,818,000



				Working Capital Demand*						$   50,000,000		22%

				Reserve Account Funding*						$   75,000,000		33%

				On-Bill Credits to Customers**						$   60,818,000		27%		$   100,818,000

						Expected Customer MWh Usage				6,678,000				$   50,409,000

						Customer Credit per kWh				$   0.009

				Renewable Content Development						$   40,000,000		18%



				*To be credited at end of year after net position realized

				**To be confirmed at end of year after net position realized

										0





LocDevDash

				LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

								FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2020-21		FY 2019-2020



				BEGINNING BALANCE				16,580,737		11,605,737		4,870,737		0



				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						Transfer from Operating Fund		20,600,000		8,475,000		6,340,000		6,275,000

						Grants/Credits		- 0		- 0		395,000		- 0

						Total Revenues & Other Sources		20,600,000		8,475,000		6,735,000		6,275,000



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Actual Program Expenses 		- 0		- 0		- 0		1,404,263

						Expected Remaing Expenses		37,180,737		3,500,000		- 0		- 0

						Total Expenses & Other Uses		37,180,737		3,500,000		- 0		1,404,263



				ENDING BALANCE				- 0		16,580,737		11,605,737		4,870,737



						Program Balances		FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2020-21

				P001		Building Electrification				2,509,000		1,609,000		1,609,000

				P002		Collaborative Procurement				925,000		925,000

				P003		Demand Response				236,000		236,000

				P004		Energy Efficiency				824,000		824,000

				P005		Vehicle Electrification				11,841,000		6,043,000

				P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants				654,000		805,000

				P007		Community Investment				1,361,000		211,000

				P008		Sponsorships/Events				105,000		5,000

				P009		Resiliency				1,361,000		458,000

				L		Legal Resources				165,000		100,000

				M		MAS Resources				100,000		0

								0		20,081,000		11,216,000





Staff

								TOTALS										4,638,745		7,728,084		10,519,110				888,966				1,543,792		1,632,000		606,870		52,601		190,400		261,572		15,695,316								Jan 1 2022 Proposal:

																																																		21/22 - Low		21/22 - High		22/23 - Low		22/23 - High		Floor Bonus		Target Bonus		Max Bonus		Job Band		Job Level

																						7.50%		10.00%						6%		Increase by 25%																		$57,503		$64,574				$69,417		5%		15%		20%		1		Entry

																		FY 2021		FY 2022		FY 2023								8%				120		0.50%														$64,575		$83,639				$89,912		5%		15%		20%		2		Entry

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Retention/Bonus %		Retention/Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost								$83,640		$109,777				$118,010		5%		15%		20%		3		Entry

		1		12		Senior/Exec		Chief Executive Officer		Y		Chaset		Nicolas		O		350,000		374,500		425,000				50,000		13.5%		63,500		24,000		24,519		2,125		2,800

: Wellness benefit plus commuter benefit		10,084		602,028								$109,778		$124,530				$133,870		5%		15%		20%		4		Intermediate

		3		12		Senior/Exec		Chief Operating Officer		Y		Chang		Howard		O		332,500		355,775		400,000				50,000		12.4%		60,000		24,000		23,077		2,000		2,800		9,576		571,453								$124,531		$141,257				$151,851		5%		15%		20%		5		Intermediate

		4		10		Senior		VP Marketing & Account Services		Y		Henderson		Joanne		M		232,265		241,556		259,673		10.0%		25,967		7.5%		38,432		24,000		14,981		1,298		2,800		6,239		373,390								$141,258		$156,055				$167,759		5%		15%		20%		6		Intermediate

		6		10		Senior		VP Public Policy/Deputy General Counsel		Y		Brandt		Melissa		R		205,871		231,394		248,749		10.0%		24,875		7.5%		36,815		24,000		14,351		1,244		2,800		5,996		358,830								$156,056		$177,734				$191,064		5%		15%		20%		7		Senior

		7		8		Senior		Marketing Director		Y		Lieberman		Daniel		M		189,625		195,314		209,963		10.0%		20,996		7.5%		31,075		24,000		12,113		1,050		2,800		5,129		307,126								$177,735		$204,487				$219,824		5%		15%		20%		8		Senior

		8		10		Senior		VP Technology & Analytics		Y		Ait-Laoussine		Taj		T		237,930		249,827		268,564		10.0%		26,856		7.5%		39,747		24,000		15,494		1,343		2,800		6,438		385,243								$204,488		$231,393				$248,747		10%		30%		45%		9		Senior

		13		6		Intermediate		Data Scientist		Y		Li		Kevin		T		148,350		154,284		165,855		10.0%		16,586		7.5%		24,547		24,000		9,569		829		2,800		4,145		248,331								$231,394		$269,062				$289,242		10%		30%		45%		10		Senior/Exec

		14		8		Senior		Director of Regulatory Affairs & Deputy General Counsel		Y		Edmister		Todd		R		185,554		192,976		207,449		10.0%		20,745		7.5%		30,702		24,000		11,968		1,037		2,800		5,073		303,774								$269,063		$295,968				$318,166		25%		100%		150%		11		Senior/Exec

		17		3		Entry		Regulatory Analyst		Y		Boediarto		Feby		R		81,600		85,680		92,106		10.0%		9,211		7.5%		13,632		24,000		5,314		461		2,800		2,498		150,022

		18		6		Intermediate		Finance Manager		Y		Bartlett		Jason		O		146,549		150,945		162,266		10.0%		16,227		7.5%		24,015		24,000		9,362		811		2,800		4,064		243,545

		19		3		Entry		Executive Assistant		N		Smith		Meagan		O		99,646		102,635		110,333		10.0%		11,033		7.5%		16,329		24,000		6,365		552		2,800		2,905		174,317

		20		7		Intermediate		Senior Manager, Account Services		Y		Brezovec		Kelly		M		155,000		162,750		174,956		10.0%		17,496		7.5%		25,893		24,000		10,094		875		2,800		4,348		260,462

		21		10		Senior		VP Local Development		Y		Ross		John Peter		L		226,600		235,664		253,339		10.0%		25,334		7.5%		37,494		24,000		14,616		1,267		2,800		6,098		364,948

		22		7		Intermediate		Power Resources Manager		Y		Dorrance		James		P		135,211		156,056		167,760		10.0%		16,776		7.5%		24,828		24,000		9,678		839		2,800		4,187		250,868

		23		7		Intermediate		Senior Distributed Energy Resources Manager		Y		Denver		Jessie		L		155,150		161,356		173,458		10.0%		17,346		7.5%		25,672		24,000		10,007		867		2,800		4,314		258,464

		25		6		Intermediate		Public Engagement Manager		Y		DiGiorgio		Alex		M		143,500		147,805		158,890		10.0%		15,889		7.5%		23,516		24,000		9,167		794		2,800		3,989		239,045

		27		8		Senior		Power Resources Senior Mananger		Y		Eshleman		Christopher		P		153,750		190,000		204,250		10.0%		20,425		7.5%		30,229		24,000		11,784		1,021		2,800		5,002		299,511

		28		4		Intermediate		Strategic Operations Associate		Y		Gerber		Vanessa		O		94,125		112,522		120,961		10.0%		12,096		7.5%		17,902		24,000		6,979		605		2,800		3,142		188,485

		30		4		Intermediate		Contract Management Associate		Y		Gilmore		Molly		R		110,513		116,039		124,742		10.0%		12,474		7.5%		18,462		24,000		7,197		624		2,800		3,226		193,525

		31		10		Senior		Power Resources Senior Director		Y		Fontenot		Marie		P		213,500		229,905		247,148		30.0%		74,144		7.5%		40,532		24,000		14,259		1,236		2,800		6,963		411,083

		32		1		Entry		Outreach Fellow		N		Cortez		Juan		M		52,000		61,039		65,616		10.0%		6,562		7.5%		9,711		24,000		3,786		328		2,800		1,906		114,709

		33		7		Intermediate		Modeler in Chief		Y		Allen		Douglas		T		157,583		163,886		176,177		10.0%		17,618		7.5%		26,074		24,000		10,164		881		2,800		4,375		262,089

		34		4		Intermediate		DER Program Associate		Y		Thompson		Zachary		L		116,917		121,594		130,714		10.0%		13,071		7.5%		19,346		24,000		7,541		654		2,800		3,360		201,487

		35		6		Intermediate		Program Manager Energy Efficiency & Building Electricifation		Y		Menten		Rebecca		L		147,115		151,528		162,893		10.0%		16,289		7.5%		24,108		24,000		9,398		814		2,800		4,078		244,380

		36		3		Entry		Customer Care Coordinator		N		Tsotu		Gabrielle		M		65,948		83,640		89,913		10.0%		8,991		7.5%		13,307		24,000		5,187		450		2,800		2,449		147,097

		39		3		Entry		Clerk of the Board		N		Bankhead		Adrian		O		79,318		88,150		94,761		10.0%		9,476		7.5%		14,025		24,000		5,467		474		2,800		2,557		153,560

		40		8		Senior		Director of Analytics		Y		Ponce de Leon Barido		Diego		T		181,875		189,150		203,336		10.0%		20,334		7.5%		30,094		24,000		11,731		1,017		2,800		4,981		298,293

		44		5		Intermediate		HR Business Partner		Y		Taylor		Mari-Len		O		109,500		134,266		144,336		10.0%		14,434		7.5%		21,362		24,000		8,327		722		2,800		3,664		219,645

		45		6		Intermediate		Data Engineer		Y		Subramanian		Sanjay		T		131,250		150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191

		46		5		Intermediate		Power Resources Senior Associate		Y		Lee		Karen		P				141,258		151,852		10.0%		15,185		7.5%		22,474		24,000		8,761		759		2,800		3,832		229,663

		47		6		Intermediate		Programs Marketing Manager		Y		Dynes		Lori		M				140,000		150,500		10.0%		15,050		7.5%		22,274		24,000		8,683		753		2,800		3,802		227,862

		50		6		Intermediate		Principal Regulatory Analyst, Transportation Electrification		Y		Hernandez		Paul		R				150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191

		51		6		Intermediate		Associate Policy Manager		Y		Ward		Alec		R				141,000		151,575		10.0%		15,158		7.5%		22,433		24,000		8,745		758		2,800		3,826		229,295

		52		4		Intermediate		Account Svcs Business Associate		Y		Lewbin		David		M				131,000		140,825		10.0%		14,083		7.5%		20,842		24,000		8,125		704		2,800		3,586		214,965

		53		2		Entry		Public Engagement Coordinator		Y		Cady		Caitlyn		M				70,000		75,250		10.0%		7,525		7.5%		11,137		24,000		4,341		376		2,800		2,121		127,550

		54		4		Intermediate		Finance and Ops Associate		Y		Sit		Joseph		O				117,500		126,313		10.0%		12,631		7.5%		18,694		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,262		195,619

		55		6		Intermediate		Resilience Manager		Y		Ventura		Feliz		L				150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191



		Additional 2021-22 Hires

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Bonus %		Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost

		56		4		Intermediate		Salesforce Administrator		Y		Hamilton-Atkins		Mariana		T				110,000		110,000		10.0%		11,000		0.0%		16,280		24,000		6,346		550		2,800		2,897		173,873

		57		9		Senior		HR Senior Director		Y		Cherr		Trevor		O				230,000		230,000		10.0%		23,000		0.0%		34,040		24,000		13,269		1,150		2,800		5,577		333,836

		58		7		Senior		Power Resources Manager		Y		Carson		Izzy 		P				163,000		163,000		10.0%		16,300		0.0%		24,124		24,000		9,404		815		2,800		4,081		244,524

		59		5		Intermediate		Senior SalesForce Lead		Y		Ruder		Aaron 		T				140,000		140,000		10.0%		14,000		0.0%		20,720		24,000		8,077		700		2,800		3,567		213,864

		60		6,7		Interm/Senior		(Senior) Principal Regulatory Analyst		Y		Hiring in Process		John		R				159,496		159,496		10.0%		15,950		0.0%		23,605		24,000		9,202		797		2,800		4,003		239,853

		61		4		Intermediate		Contracts & Compliance Analyst 		Y		Gay		Harper		P				117,000		117,000		10.0%		11,700		0.0%		17,316		24,000		6,750		585		2,800		3,054		183,205

		62		7		Senior		Market & Credit Risk Manager		Y		Dai		Ray		P				177,000		177,000		10.0%		17,700		0.0%		26,196		24,000		10,212		885		2,800		4,393		263,186

		63		4		Intermediate		Resource Planning & Portfolio Management Analyst		Y		Siebhur		Alan		P				110,000		110,000		10.0%		11,000		0.0%		16,280		24,000		6,346		550		2,800		2,897		173,873

		64		9		Senior		Director of Clean Energy Structured Finance		Y		Hiring in Process				P				193,724		193,724		10.0%		19,372		0.0%		28,671		24,000		11,176		969		2,800		4,767		285,480

		66		2		Entry		Receptionist and Asst Board Clerk		N		Hiring in Process				O				74,107		74,107		10.0%		7,411		0.0%		10,968		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		2,096		126,028

		65		2		Entry		Market Content Coordinator				Replacement for Jamal				M				74,107		74,107		10.0%		7,411		0.0%		10,968		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		2,096		126,028

		67		6		Intermediate		Connected Communities Manager		Y		Replacement for Sam				L				148,657		148,657		10.0%		14,866		0.0%		22,001		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,760		225,402



		Additional 2022-23 Hires

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Bonus %/Retention		Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost

		68		3,4		Entry/Interm		Technology & Analytics Data Engineer/Analyst 		Y						T						$104,085								14,572		24,000		6,005		520		2,800		2,554		154,536

		69		5,6		Intermediate		IT Manager 		Y						T						$140,293								19,641		24,000		8,094		701		2,800		3,289		198,818

		70		4,5		Intermediate		Deputy Modeler 		Y						T						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		71		3		Entry		Office Manager 								O						$96,709								13,539		24,000		5,579		484		2,800		2,404		145,515

		72		4,5		Intermediate		HR Recruiter		Y						O						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		73		8		Senior		Director of Infrastructure Delivery 		Y						O						$191,111								26,756		24,000		11,026		956		2,800		4,321		260,970

		74		7,8		Senior		PR VPP Role 		Y						P						$180,272								25,238		24,000		10,400		901		2,800		4,101		247,712

		75		4		Intermediate		PR Junior quant analyst 		Y						P						$117,154								16,402		24,000		6,759		586		2,800		2,819		170,520

		76		6		Intermediate		Compliance Manager		Y						R						$148,657								20,812		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,459		209,047

		77				Entry		Outreach - SJC								M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		78				Entry/Interm		Commercial Account Services Analyst		Y						M						89,913								12,588		24,000		5,187		450		2,800		2,266		137,204

		79				Entry		Programs Customer Service		Y						M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		80				Entry		Programs Marketing		Y						M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		81				Intermediate		Marketing Communications		Y						M						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		82				Entry		Local Programs - quantitative analysis		Y						L						$104,085								14,572		24,000		6,005		520		2,800		2,554		154,536

		83				Intermediate		Local Programs - CPUC programs compliance/reporting/PM		Y						L						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		84				Intermediate		Programs Project Management		Y						L						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		85				Intermediate		Legal Manager		Y						R						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		86				Intermediate		Local Programs - EV Adoption programs		Y						L						$148,657								20,812		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,459		209,047







































DIR

		Account		Account Name		Meta		INDX				Mo #		Mo Name		Quarter				Jan 1 2022 Proposal:

		41010		Commercial - Gen		Revenue		A				1		Jan		3				21/22 - Low		21/22 - High				Power Resource						Legal 		Sumif 59050						Local Development:P001-Building Electrification

		41020		Residential - Gen		Revenue		A				2		Feb		3				$57,503		$64,574		Fellow										Subtract if Loc						Local Development:P004-Energy Efficiency

		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen		Revenue		A				3		Mar		3				$64,575		$83,639		Coordinator		Fellow														Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification

		42010		Commercial - Green Premium		Revenue		A				4		Apr		4				$83,640		$109,777		Analyst		Coordinator														Local Development:P006-COVID-19 Relief Fund

		42020		Residential - Green Premium		Revenue		A				5		May		4				$109,778		$124,530		Associate		Analyst												Community Investment		Local Development:P009-Resiliency

		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre		Revenue		A				6		Jun		4				$124,531		$141,257		Sr Associate		Associate

		42999		Bad Debt expense		Revenue		B				7		Jul		1				$141,258		$156,055		Manager/Principal		Sr Associate

		43000		CAPP Payment		Revenue		A1				8		Aug		1				$156,056		$177,734		Sr Manager/Sr Principal		Manager/Principal

		44000		Interest Income		NOR		C				9		Sep		1				$177,735		$204,487		Director		Sr Manager/Sr Principal

		45000		Miscellaneous income		NOR		A2				10		Oct		2				$204,488		$231,393		Sr Dir		Director

		46000		Grant Revenue		NOR		D				11		Nov		2				$231,394		$269,062		VP		Sr Dir

		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue		Revenue		A1				12		Dec		2				$269,063		$295,968		SVP		VP

		50120		Capacity purchases		Energy		E2												$295,969		$348,004		Exec		SVP

		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA		Energy		E5

		50135		PPA Energy Purchase		Energy		E5

		50140		Energy purchases		Energy		E

		50145		Carbon Free Energy		Energy		E4

		50160		RECs purchases		Energy		E3

		50165		GHG Offset expense		Energy		E4

		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy		Energy		E1

		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades		Energy		E1

		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges		Energy		E6

		50200		Data Manager		E-Service		F1

		50300		Scheduling Co		E-Service		F3

		50310		Broker Fees		Energy		E8

		50400		NEM Expense		Energy		E7

		50500		Service Fees - PG&E		E-Service		F2

		50510		Wholesale Sales - Energy		Energy		E

		50520		Wholesale Sales - REC/CO2		Energy		E3

		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA		Energy		E2

		50901		Other Noticing		Operations		M

		50902		Required Mailings		Operations		M

		55010		Advertising		Operations		M

		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Operations		M

		55055		Promotional Items		Operations		M

		55060		Communications - misc expenses		Operations		M

		55070		Special Events		Operations		M

		56010		Bank service fee		Operations		O

		56020		Building maintenance		Operations		O

		56030		Business meals		Operations		O

		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		O

		56050		Equipment lease		Operations		O

		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		O

		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		O

		56070		Insurance		Operations		O

		56080		Interest and fees expense		Operations		O

		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		Operations		O

		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		O

		56110		Parking at office		Operations		O

		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		O

		56130		Rent		Operations		O

		56140		Small equipment		Operations		O

		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		O

		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		O

		56180		Miscellaneous fees		Operations		O

		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		O

		56190		Utilities		Operations		O

		56210		Mileage/fuel		Operations		O

		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		O

		56230		Airfare		Operations		O

		56240		Lodging		Operations		O

		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		O

		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		O

		57010		Community Investment Grants		Operations		O

		57020		Program Incentives		Local Development		O

		59010		Accounting		Operations		J

		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		J

		59040		IT Consulting		Operations		J

		59050		Legal		Operations		L

		59060		Legislative		Operations		L

		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		J

		59090		Communications consultants		Operations		M

		59200		Technical consultants		Operations		J

		60510		Employee welfare		Operations		P

		60520		Payroll tax expense		Operations		P

		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Operations		P

		60540		Salaries and wages		Operations		P

		60550		Workers comp insurance		Operations		P

		60560		Life Insurance		Operations		P

		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Operations		P

		60590		Temp Employees		Payroll		P

		61000		Bad Debt expense		Revenue		B

		63400		Interest Expense		NOE		K

		80200		Depreciation Expense		Capital		Y

		80400		Penalties and fines		Operations		O

		99991		Adjust Equipment Modified (neg)		Capital		Z

		99992		Adjust Equipment Modified (pos)		Capital		Z

		99995		Adjust Principal Modified (neg)		Capital		Z

		99996		Adjust Principal Modified (pos)		Capital		Z

		99997		Adjust Leashold Improvement-Neg		Capital		Z

		99998		Adjust Leashold Improvement-Pos		Capital		Z

		UUT C		UUT Credits		Revenue		A







16

Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Legal, Policy, & 
Regulatory Affairs

• Legal Consultants: Outside general counsel for procurement, analysis, and general 
operations

• Legislative Consultants: Retainer for Weideman Group legislative advocacy
• Other Consultants: Economic analysis in regulatory and legislative cases and 

communications consultant
• Sponsorships & Memberships: Occasional sponsorships for policy related events and 

Bar dues

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

Legal Consultants 1,635,000 1,315,000    1,315,000    
Legislative Consultants 132,000 132,000       132,000        
Other Consultants 144,000 120,000       105,000        
Sponsorships & Memberships 75,000 25,000          25,000          
Total 1,986,000 1,592,000    1,577,000    

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



17

Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Other Professional 
Services

• Accounting: Accounting and auditing for financial compliance
• Human Resources Consulting: Support for additional HR demand for increased 

staffing recruitment, professional development, and training
• IT Consulting: Technical network assistance
• Other Consultants: Technical consulting for Power Resources and Technology & 

Analytics; as well as operational compliance support and other various tasks

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST 

Accounting 265,000 250,000 258,000 
Human Resources Consulting 1,000,000 100,000 33,000 
IT Consulting 75,000 40,000 68,000 
Consultants 953,000 460,000 444,000 
Total 2,293,000 850,000 803,000 

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



18

Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—General & Administrative

• Operational Expenses: Service fees, supplies, membership dues, operational services, and other 
relevant G&A

• New Building Expenses: Expected costs to operating within the new building, such as general 
maintenance, insurance requirements, and additional stocking materials

• Software, Subscriptions, SaaS: Increase covers additional software needs for Power Resource and 
Technology operations, as well as essential subscriptions for ongoing operations 

• Rent & Utilities: Decrease because paying rent for only part of year, but expect some increase in 
utilities with new building space

• Conferences & Professional Development: Trainings, conferences, and related expenses
• Board & Director Fees: Monthly stipends for board members

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22 
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST 

Operational Expenses 1,048,000 877,000 818,000 
Software, Subscriptions, SaaS 2,099,000 1,406,000 1,297,000 
Small Equipment 210,000 107,000 56,000 
Rent & Utilties 330,000 471,000 521,000 
Conferences & Prof. Development 130,000 40,000 29,000 
Board & Director Fees 65,000 60,000 40,000 
Total 3,882,000 2,961,000 2,761,000 

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



19

Draft Budget Non-Operating Activity

• Non-Operational Revenue: Interest earned on Treasury backed cash account balances (estimated 
at 0.25%) and BlocPower loan (5.5% on $1.0MM)

• Other Non-Operational Revenue: SaaS services provided to SVCE
• Borrowing Interest Expenses: Expected costs associated with expanded credit facility
• Local Development Funding: Capital transfer to Local Development Fund
• Grant: Proposed grant to UCSF Benioff Oakland Children’s Hospital for EBCE Pediatric Asthma 

partnership
• Capital Expenditures: New building improvement costs to allow for use

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2021-22
DRAFT BUDGET BUDGET YTD* + EST

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Interest Income 262,000 798,000 150,000
Grants 0 894,000 2,173,000
Other Non-Operating Revenue 15,000 0 326,000

Total Non-Operating Revenue 277,000 1,692,000 2,649,000

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Borrowing Interest 1,440,000 898,000 907,000
Local Development Funding 20,600,000 8,475,000 8,475,000
Grant 15,000,000 0 0
Capital Expenditures 7,000,000 5,500,000 8,519,000

Total Non-Operating Expenses 44,040,000 14,873,000 17,901,000

NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY (43,763,000) (13,181,000) (15,252,000)

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



The Problem: Across the communities EBCE serves, a staggering 18% of children suffer from 
asthma – 33% above the statewide average. The highest rates (up to 21% in Ashland and 
Cherryland) are concentrated along the 880 and 580 corridors. In West Oakland, 1 in 2 new 
cases of pediatric asthma is attributable to high levels of air pollution from fossil fuel 
combustion in cars and trucks.

Why EBCE: Since our founding, addressing the legacy of fossil fuel pollution has been one 
our foundational goals. EBCE has invested tens of millions into new, local clean energy 
projects – from wind turbines to rooftop solar + storage to electric vehicle to mitigate 
pollution. And now is the right time to consider other opportunities to systematically 
address the effects of air pollution on our most vulnerable neighbors.

The Opportunity: Partner with UCSF Benioff Children’s Hospital Oakland (BCH Oakland) –
the East Bay’s only Children’s Hospital – to invest $15M to fund the development of a world 
class pediatric asthma program focused on serving children across the East Bay (and beyond)

Grant to Establish a World Class Pediatric Asthma 
Program to Serve the East Bay

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Through the creation of the East Bay Community Energy Asthma Program, UCSF Benioff Children’s Hospital 
Oakland will secure the staff, equipment and spaces needed to reach deep into our community and provide 
underserved families with world-class asthma care and education. 

More specifically, the program will:

• More powerfully connect BCH Oakland’s existing asthma care delivery channels – including the 
Pulmonology Clinic, primary care, inpatient care, emergency department and new allergy services – into 
a well-coordinated and easily accessible program that connects families with more preventative and 
timely treatment services. 

• Provide patients with access to the social workers, mental health care providers and patient navigators 
they need to effectively manage their condition. 

• Expand education and community outreach, including through local schools and local primary care 
providers, to connect patients to better care and additional management resources. 

• Prioritize prevention through BCH Oakland’s multi-disciplinary team, by pre-empting common triggers 
such as allergies and mental health challenges. 

Grant to Establish a World Class Pediatric 
Asthma Program to Serve the East Bay

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Grant to Establish a World Class Pediatric 
Asthma Program to Serve the East Bay
This investment will also endow the East Bay Community Energy Distinguished Professorship in Asthma. 
This endowed professorship would allow UCSF Benioff Children’s Hospitals to appoint a nationally recognized 
physician scientist to play a leadership role in the East Bay Community Energy Asthma Program. 

Specifically, the Distinguished Professor will: 

• Collaborate with leading experts from across UCSF’s pulmonology, allergy and immunology divisions to 
conduct research focused on improving outcomes for children with asthma across the East Bay. 

• Conduct research in underexplored priority areas. The exact focus will depend on the physician scientist 
appointed/recruited. Possible areas of investigation may include the association and interaction of 
asthma and sickle cell disease; and how environment, stress and genetics contribute to the higher rates 
and worse outcomes of Black children affected by asthma.

Next Steps: If the East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors approves the allocation of funding towards 
this new initiative, EBCE staff will engage with UCSF Children’s Hospital Oakland to develop a detailed 
proposal and associated grant agreement that will be brought back to the Board for review and approval at 
some point in 2022 (or 2023 at the latest).

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



23

Draft Budget: Local Development Fund

• 2022-2023 Local Development budget set at 
$20.6M

• Allocating budget for capital 
intensive infrastructure development 
projects

• Allocating EBCE capital to reduce cost of 
ownership for building and vehicle 
electrification

• Initiating programs to accelerate heavy and 
light duty vehicle adoption as well as 
eMobility

• Increased funding for Community Grants
• $1.4M in Program marketing in the MAS 

budget
• Unspent Local Development 

budget carries forward year to year

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-2020

BEGINNING BALANCE 13,470,962  10,067,572  4,870,737    0

REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES
Transfer from Operating Fund 20,600,000  8,475,000    6,340,000 6,275,000
Grants/Credits -                -                395,000       -                 
Total Revenues & Other Sources 20,600,000  8,475,000    6,735,000    6,275,000      

EXPENSES & OTHER USES
Actual Program Expenses -                1,571,610    1,538,165    1,404,263      
Expected Remaing Expenses 34,070,962  3,500,000    -                -                 
Total Expenses & Other Uses 34,070,962  5,071,610    1,538,165    1,404,263      

ENDING BALANCE -                13,470,962  10,067,572  4,870,737      

Local Development Areas of Emphasis Budget Allocation

Transportation Electrification $12.75M

Building Electrification $4.7M

Energy Efficiency No Direct EBCE Cost

Community Resilience/Local RE $660k

Community Grants $2.25M (granted over 3 years)

Sponsorships/Memberships $250k

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A


Charts



Monthly Total Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	48168723.913830005	51183140.688839994	49750988.660069995	35371258.354719006	34410917.803480998	38080685.813529	42552265.815147996	37869444.295437746	38241900.486005001	34261561.861407511	35489144.936528996	56009803.376869999	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	56307517.468945079	60392456.220035322	78430222.509262666	







Monthly Energy Expense



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	30304056.459926616	36303942.133049972	28558835.304881319	26023553.156420294	25751116.512792129	29936459.32951086	32104705.028238781	25323181.210161332	23208849.453909054	16455121.625950679	17957911.617441896	23519788.092076175	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	26938363.379999999	25980734.300000001	28478321.32	







Monthly Energy Attributes



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	13725288.688846	13043787.37851	13282200.082196001	10351695.225124	9732787.1680459995	10392312.223015999	9179356.7244050987	8463785.0560494997	8262196.4491365002	9242307.5155074	10654498.6396593	10560101.4140689	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11834916	12492845	12395895	







Monthly Total Energy Expense



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	44029345.148772612	49347729.511559971	41841035.387077317	36375248.381544292	35483903.68083813	40328771.552526861	41284061.752643883	33786966.266210832	31471045.903045554	25697429.141458079	28612410.257101197	34079889.506145075	Actual	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	38773279.379999995	38473579.299999997	40874216.32	







Monthly Net Sales Revenue



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	48106457.053830005	51120647.928839996	49688231.040069997	35302734.864719003	34337959.073481001	38010595.193529002	42489998.955147997	37806951.535437748	38179142.866005003	34193038.371407509	35416186.206528999	55045712.756870002	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	56298113.474433795	60383050.658191621	77526815.379825324	







Monthly Overhead



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	1443333.333333333	







Monthly Net Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	847956.90172405541	-1456984.0860533118	-880955.24034065753	-4298332.090158619	-4365841.1906904727	-5544374.6023311988	-1927482.9608292207	893323.66589357704	3573471.9596261159	5368362.4466160983	3677656.4560944661	18732447.997391589	Actuals	-706250	-706250	-1132387.1400000001	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	-706250	14358005.285611749	18739460.36670199	34378326.185929328	







Cumulative Net Revenues



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	847956.90172405541	-609027.18432925642	-1489982.4246699139	-5788314.5148285329	-10154155.705519006	-15698530.307850204	-17626013.268679425	-16732689.602785848	-13159217.643159732	-7790855.1965436339	-4113198.7404491678	14619249.256942421	Actuals	-706250	-1412500	-2544887.14	-3251137.14	-3957387.14	-4663637.1400000006	-5369887.1400000006	-6076137.1400000006	-6782387.1400000006	7575618.1456117481	26315078.512313738	60693404.698243067	







Total Expenses



Budget	202107	202108	202109	202110	202111	202112	202201	202202	202203	202204	202205	202206	47320767.012105949	52640124.774893306	50631943.900410652	39669590.444877625	38776758.99417147	43625060.415860198	44479748.775977217	36976120.629544169	34668428.526378885	28893199.414791413	31811488.480434529	37277355.37947841	Actuals	706250	706250	1132387.1400000001	706250	706250	706250	706250	706250	706250	41949512.18333333	41652995.853333332	44051896.323333338	









Dashboard

										MO		3												3

										YR		2022												2022

												Mar		Mar				Mar		Mar				Q3		Q3				Q3		Q3				FY		FY				FY		FY

												BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D				BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D				BUDGET		ACTUAL				DELTA		%D

		OPERATIONS

				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						Operating Revenue

								Electricity Sales		A		38,761,000		0				(38,761,000)		-100.0%				120,280,000		0				(120,280,000)		-100.0%				508,636,000		196,455,000				(312,181,000)		-61.4%

								Uncollectables		B		(581,000)		0				581,000		-100.0%				(1,804,000)		0				1,804,000		-100.0%				(8,939,000)		(2,947,000)				5,992,000		-67.0%

								Other Operations Revenue		A1		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				0		700,000				700,000		0.0%



						Total Operating Revenue						38,180,000		0				(38,180,000)		-100.0%				118,476,000		0				(118,476,000)		-100.0%				499,697,000		194,208,000				(305,489,000)		-61.1%



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Energy Operating Expenses

								Cost of Energy		E		31,471,000		0				(31,471,000)		-100.0%				106,542,000		0				(106,542,000)		-100.0%				442,338,000		118,121,000				(324,217,000)		-73.3%

								Data Management/CRM		F1		657,000		0				(657,000)		-100.0%				1,968,000		0				(1,968,000)		-100.0%				8,645,000		1,930,000				(6,715,000)		-77.7%

								Billing & Metering		F3		230,000		0				(230,000)		-100.0%				689,000		0				(689,000)		-100.0%				2,752,000		676,000				(2,076,000)		-75.4%

								Scheduling		F2		85,000		0				(85,000)		-100.0%				255,000		0				(255,000)		-100.0%				843,000		255,000				(588,000)		-69.8%



						Total Energy Operating Expenses						32,443,000		0				(32,443,000)		-100.0%				109,454,000		0				(109,454,000)		-100.0%				454,578,000		120,982,000				(333,596,000)		-73.4%



						Overhead Operating Expenses

								Personnel		P		848,000		0				(848,000)		-100.0%				2,543,000		0				(2,543,000)		-100.0%				10,171,000		2,543,000				(7,628,000)		-75.0%

								Marketing & Communications		M		141,000		0				(141,000)		-100.0%				422,000		0				(422,000)		-100.0%				1,686,000		422,000				(1,264,000)		-75.0%

								Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs		L		133,000		0				(133,000)		-100.0%				398,000		0				(398,000)		-100.0%				1,592,000		398,000				(1,194,000)		-75.0%

								Other Professional Services		J		71,000		0				(71,000)		-100.0%				213,000		0				(213,000)		-100.0%				850,000		213,000				(637,000)		-74.9%

								General & Administrative		O		247,000		0				(247,000)		-100.0%				740,000		0				(740,000)		-100.0%				2,961,000		740,000				(2,221,000)		-75.0%

								Depreciation		Y		5,000		0				(5,000)		-100.0%				15,000		0				(15,000)		-100.0%				60,000		15,000				(45,000)		-75.0%



						Total Overhead Operating Expenses						1,445,000		0				(1,445,000)		-100.0%				4,331,000		0				(4,331,000)		-100.0%				17,320,000		4,331,000				(12,989,000)		-75.0%



						Total Operating Expenses						33,888,000		0				(33,888,000)		-100.0%				113,785,000		0				(113,785,000)		-100.0%				471,898,000		125,313,000				(346,585,000)		-73.4%



				NET OPERATING POSITION								4,292,000		0				(4,292,000)						4,691,000		0				(4,691,000)						27,799,000		68,895,000				41,096,000



		NON-OPERATIONS

				NON-OPERATING REVENUE

								Interest Income		C		63,000		0				(63,000)		-100.0%				188,000		0				(188,000)		-100.0%				798,000		28,000				(770,000)		-96.5%

								Grants		D		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				894,000		894,000				0		0.0%

								Other Non-Operating Revenue		A2		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%



						Total Non-Operating Revenue						63,000		0				(63,000)		-100.0%				188,000		0				(188,000)		-100.0%				1,692,000		922,000				(770,000)		-45.5%



				NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

								Borrowing Interest		K		76,000		0				(76,000)		-100.0%				221,000		0				(221,000)		-100.0%				898,000		224,000				(674,000)		-75.1%

								Local Development Funding				706,000		706,000				0		0.0%				2,119,000		2,119,000				0		0.0%				8,475,000		8,475,000				0		0.0%

								Capital Expenditures		Z		0		0				0		0.0%				0		0				0		0.0%				5,500,000		426,000				(5,074,000)		-92.3%



						Total Non-Operating Expenses						782,000		706,000				(76,000)		-9.7%				2,340,000		2,119,000				(221,000)		-9.4%				14,873,000		9,125,000				(5,748,000)		-38.6%



				NET NON-OPERATING POSITION								(719,000)		(706,000)				13,000		-1.8%				(2,152,000)		(2,119,000)				33,000		-1.5%				(13,181,000)		(8,203,000)				4,978,000		-37.8%



				TOTAL REVENUES								38,243,000		0				(38,243,000)		-100.0%				118,664,000		0				(118,664,000)		-100.0%				501,389,000		195,130,000				(306,259,000)		-61.1%

				TOTAL EXPENSES								34,670,000		706,000				(33,964,000)		-98.0%				116,125,000		2,119,000				(114,006,000)		-98.2%				486,771,000		134,438,000				(352,333,000)		-72.4%



		NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION										3,573,000		(706,000)				(4,279,000)						2,539,000		(2,119,000)				(4,658,000)						14,618,000		60,692,000				46,074,000		315.2%



		LOAD

				Wholesale								620,411		564,591				(55,820)		-9.0%				1,860,609		1,714,056				(146,553)		-7.9%				7,461,842		7,086,497				(375,345)		-5.0%

				Retail								576,103		552,114				(23,989)		-4.2%				1,736,535		1,629,187				(107,348)		-6.2%				6,935,221		6,644,759				(290,462)		-4.2%

												7.1%		2.2%

		PRICES

				Energy ($/MWh)								37.41		0.00				(37.41)		-100.0%				43.34		0.00				(43.34)		-100.0%				42.27		11.49				(30.79)		-72.8%





ChangeLog

		Date		FY Initial		FY Final		Delta		Sheet		Item		Notes

		10/7/21		(28,114,971)		(28,114,971)		0		None		None		Initialization 

		10/7/21		(28,114,971)		(19,199,810)		8,915,161		Actuals		Open		Updated Nov forward with 10/7/2021 forward curve data from Chris

		10/7/21		(19,199,810)		(19,115,781)		84,029		Actuals		Basis		Updated Nov forward with 10/7/2021 forward curve data from Chris

		10/7/21		(19,115,781)		(18,956,104)		159,677		Actuals		CAISO		Updated based on FCAST updates

		10/11/21		(18,956,104)		(18,489,681)		466,423		Actuals		Revenues		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(18,489,681)		(18,401,853)		87,828		Actuals		Energy Services		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(18,401,853)		(17,942,147)		459,706		Actuals		Overhead		August GL actuals

		10/11/21		(17,942,147)		(17,943,685)		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		August GL actuals

		10/20/21		(17,943,685)		(11,883,249)		6,060,436		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		12/10/21		(11,883,249)		(14,212,058)		(2,328,809)		Actuals		Revenues		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(14,212,058)		(20,074,225)		(5,862,167)		Actuals		Energy		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(20,074,225)		(19,985,274)		88,951		Actuals		Energy Services		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(19,985,274)		(20,008,922)		(23,648)		Actuals		Overhead		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(20,008,922)		(22,591,733)		(2,582,812)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Sept GL Actuals

		12/10/21		(22,591,733)		(22,510,149)		81,584		Actuals		Accounts		Updated based on SMUD invoices

		12/10/21		(22,510,149)		12,272,128		34,782,277		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		12/10/21		12,272,128		31,832,168		19,560,041		Actuals		Energy		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		12/10/21		31,832,168		29,168,898		(2,663,270)		Actuals		Attributes		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		12/15/21		29,168,898		29,188,432		19,534		GL		CAISO		Recalc Adjustment for credit

		12/15/21		29,188,432		30,197,864		1,009,432		Actuals		Revenues		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		30,197,864		35,137,441		4,939,577		Actuals		Energy 		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,137,441		35,226,496		89,055		Actuals		Energy Services		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,226,496		35,653,424		426,929		Actuals		Overhead		Oct GL Actuals

		12/15/21		35,653,424		35,651,887		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Oct GL Actuals

		1/3/22		35,651,887		46,336,321		10,684,435		Actuals		Energy		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		1/3/22		46,336,321		47,129,825		793,504		Actuals		Attributes		Updated projections from Contracts DB

		1/3/22		47,129,825		25,032,754		(22,097,071)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		1/10/22		25,032,754		28,726,549		3,693,796		Actuals		Open		Updated with NCPA Hourly CAISO workbook from 1/10/2022

		1/10/22		28,726,549		27,114,279		(1,612,271)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated with 18 Month scenario

		1/10/22		27,114,279		27,229,963		115,685		Actuals		Wholesale Load		Updated with 1/3 FCAST

		1/13/22		27,229,963		28,380,736		1,150,773		Actuals		Revenues		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		28,380,736		31,513,302		3,132,566		Actuals		Energy		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,513,302		31,603,445		90,143		Actuals		Energy Services		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,603,445		31,991,009		387,564		Actuals		Overhead		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,991,009		31,989,521		(1,488)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Nov GL Actuals

		1/13/22		31,989,521		37,221,736		5,232,214		Actuals		Energy		Reduced Jan Open position to reflect actuals being seen

		1/13/22		37,221,736		36,795,782		(425,954)		COA		CapEx		Updated cost of building for Sept to match statement

		2/10/22		36,795,782		36,783,058		(12,724)		GL		Overhead		Added AmEx placeholder until we get receipts

		2/10/22		36,783,058		38,074,193		1,291,135		Actuals		Revenues		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		38,074,193		40,799,830		2,725,637		Actuals		Energy		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		40,799,830		42,287,480		1,487,650		Actuals		Attributes		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,287,480		42,373,867		86,387		Actuals		Energy Services		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,373,867		42,635,044		261,177		Actuals		Overhead		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,635,044		42,628,487		(6,557)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Dec GL Actuals

		2/10/22		42,628,487		47,301,774		4,673,287		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		2/10/22		47,301,774		53,092,557		5,790,783		Actuals		Open		Updated Open position from Contracts DB

		2/10/22		53,092,557		52,904,290		(188,267)		Actuals		Basis		Updated Basis position form Contracts DB

		2/10/22		52,904,290		54,872,270		1,967,980		Actuals		Capacity		Updated Capacity from Contracts DB

		2/10/22		54,872,270		46,908,682		(7,963,588)		Actuals		PPA		Updated PPA from Contracts DB

		3/15/22		46,908,682		45,511,697		(1,396,985)		Actuals		Revenues		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		45,511,697		55,250,754		9,739,057		Actuals		Energy		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		55,250,754		57,138,595		1,887,841		Actuals		Attributes		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,138,595		57,106,832		(31,763)		Actuals		Energy Services		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,106,832		57,395,148		288,316		Actuals		Overhead		Jan GL Actuals

		3/15/22		57,395,148		57,393,611		(1,538)		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Jan GL Actuals

		3/16/22		57,393,611		54,019,525		(3,374,086)		GL		CAISO Charges 		Corrected for missing CAISO charges in 50xxx accounts for Jan

		4/4/22		54,019,525		54,562,642		543,117		Budget		Local Development		Corrected to approved budget 

		4/8/22		54,562,642		54,250,142		(312,500)		GL		Contractors		Corrected for some missing contractor invoices

		4/12/22		54,250,142		57,078,919		2,828,777		Actuals		Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		57,078,919		63,167,231		6,088,312		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		63,167,231		67,086,154		3,918,923		Actuals		Energy		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		67,086,154		68,840,834		1,754,680		Actuals		Attributes		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		68,840,834		68,862,046		21,212		Actuals		Energy Services		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		68,862,046		69,200,712		338,666		Actuals		Overhead		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		69,200,712		69,190,401		(10,311)		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Feb GL Actuals

		4/12/22		69,190,401		72,119,856		2,929,455		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		4/12/22		72,119,856		66,327,409		(5,792,447)		Actuals		Energy 		Updated Open, Basis, and Capacity from Contracts DB

		5/3/22		66,327,409		65,355,494		(971,915)		Actuals		Revenues		Updated projections from Doug's model

		5/3/22		65,355,494		66,855,494		1,500,000		Actuals		Revenues		Final CAPP money

		5/3/22		66,855,494		57,697,588		(9,157,906)		Actuals		Open		Updated Open and Basis from Contracts DB

		5/3/22		57,697,588		49,039,619		(8,657,969)		Actuals		Open		Updated March and April CAISO open actuals

		5/10/22		49,039,619		40,857,646		(8,181,972)		Actuals		Revenues		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		40,857,646		42,146,864		1,289,217		Actuals		Non-Operating Revenues		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		42,146,864		41,475,579		(671,285)		Actuals		Energy		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		41,475,579		43,829,472		2,353,892		Actuals		Attributes		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,829,472		43,850,868		21,396		Actuals		Energy Services		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,850,868		43,988,264		137,396		Actuals		Overhead		Mar GL Actuals

		5/10/22		43,988,264		43,994,157		5,893		Actuals		Non-Operating Expenses		Mar GL Actuals

				43,994,157		60,693,405		16,699,247

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0

				60,693,405		60,693,405		0





Actuals

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4

								MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

										1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		13		14		15		16		17		18		19		20		21		22		23		24		25		26		27		28		29		30		31		32		33		34		35		36		37		38		39		40		41		42		43		44		45		46		47		48

		REVENUES

				OPERATING																																																						0.02		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%		1.5%

						Electricity Sales		A		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,444,785		61,302,590		78,707,426		5/3/22		Updated from Doug's Revenue Model for 18 Month scenario

						Uncollectables		B		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-846,672		-919,539		-1,180,611

						Other Operations Revenue		A1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		700,000		0		0



						Total Operating Revenues				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,298,113		60,383,051		77,526,815



				NON-OPERATING

						Interest Income		C		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		9,404		9,406		9,407		10/4/21		Updated from Working Capital

						Grants		D		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		894,000

						Other Non-Operating Revenue		A2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		9,404		9,406		903,407

				TOTAL REVENUES						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		56,307,517		60,392,456		78,430,223

		EXPENSES

						CAISO $/MWh Estimate																																																				1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54

		ENERGY

				ISTs				E		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		7,671,083		8,068,418		10,473,152		5/3/22		Updated from Contracts DB

				OPEN				E1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		18,800,000		16,301,265		15,480,529		5/3/22		2 FWD months from CAISO NLA

				BASIS						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		338,018		415,513		490,296		5/3/22

				CAISO				E6		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		805,415		873,018		913,463

				NEM				E7		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-676,153		322,520		1,120,881



				Total Energy						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		26,938,363		25,980,734		28,478,321

		ATTRIBUTES

				CAPACITY				E2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		5,903,172		6,611,253		6,728,174		4/12/22		Updated from Contracts DB

				PPA				E5		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		4,088,118		4,298,263		4,337,133		2/10/22

				RECs				E3		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,668,624		1,403,570		1,143,815		2/10/22

				CO2				E4		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		135,002		139,759		146,773		2/10/22

				Broker				E8		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		40,000		40,000		40,000



				Total Attributes						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		11,834,916		12,492,845		12,395,895

		SERVICES								1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.20		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00		1.00

				CRM				F1		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		642,848		643,384		643,920

				Metering				F2		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		224,997		225,184		225,372

				Scheduling				F3		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		85,000		85,000		85,000



				Total Services						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		952,845		953,568		954,292

		OPERATING OVERHEAD

				Personnel				P		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		847,583		847,583		847,583

				Marketing, Outreach, Communications				M		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		140,500		140,500		140,500

				Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs				L		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		132,667		132,667		132,667

				Other Professional Services				J		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		70,833		70,833		70,833

				General & Administrative				O		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		246,750		246,750		246,750

				Depreciation				Y		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		5,000		5,000		5,000



				Total Internal Costs						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333



		NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

				Borrowing Interest				K		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		73,805		76,265		73,805

				Local Development Funding						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250

				Grants

				Capital Expenditures				Z		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		426,137		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Non-Operating Expenses						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		780,055		782,515		780,055

		TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		38,773,279		38,473,579		40,874,216

		TOTAL ENERGY SERVICES EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		952,845		953,568		954,292

		TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333

		TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES								522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		780,055		782,515		780,055



		TOTAL EXPENSES								522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		1,132,387		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		41,949,512		41,652,996		44,051,896

		NET REVENUES								-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-522,917		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-528,333		-706,250		-706,250		-1,132,387		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		-706,250		14,358,005		18,739,460		34,378,326

		Cumulative Net Revenues by FY																																																								-706,250		-1,412,500		-2,544,887		-3,251,137		-3,957,387		-4,663,637		-5,369,887		-6,076,137		-6,782,387		7,575,618		26,315,079		60,693,405		1,405

		ACCOUNTS						466		548,475		552,540		551,476		554,082		553,732		556,676		557,567		557,954		560,131		558,558		558,440		558,967		557,722		558,053		557,137		556,692		557,930		559,030		561,627		561,928		562,393		641,697		642,208		641,450		641,207		641,370		642,026		641,669		641,676		642,351		642,110		641,776		642,312		642,848		643,384		643,920		644,456		644,992		645,528		646,064		646,600		647,136		647,672		648,208		648,744		649,280		649,816		650,352



		WHOLESALE LOAD (MWh)								522,383		559,607		522,325		511,741		505,872		557,113		568,424		491,509		512,247		461,311		486,716		490,135		505,355		574,007		551,749		539,896		517,154		570,626		553,068		474,002		504,879		491,467		549,079		582,888		621,602		635,793		612,303		585,900		572,941		660,852		617,616		531,849		564,591		522,997		566,895		593,158		1/3/22		Projections updated from FCAST

		RETAIL LOAD (MWh)								489,162		517,587		489,704		483,983		480,056		520,514		526,526		467,598		479,378		434,315		454,479		458,242		482,895		524,361		509,505		511,837		494,038		529,233		518,102		445,894		473,726		464,869		519,706		534,394		577,166		593,132		565,469		550,883		539,754		601,204		577,402		499,671		552,114		506,873		529,384		551,707		5/5/22		Historicals updated from CAISO and Calendar Month Dashboard/SMUD

										6.4%		7.5%		6.2%		5.4%		5.1%		6.6%		7.4%		4.9%		6.4%		5.9%		6.6%		6.5%		4.4%		8.6%		7.7%		5.2%		4.5%		7.3%		6.3%		5.9%		6.2%		5.4%		5.3%		8.3%		7.1%		6.7%		7.6%		6.0%		5.8%		9.0%		6.5%		6.1%		2.2%		3.1%		6.6%		7.0%

		Average Price																																																						0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		74.14		67.87		68.91

		VWAP/FY																																																						15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4		15.4





GL

		FY		YR		Mo		Date		Num		Name		Memo		Account		Acct Name		Class		Amount		Meta		Chart Indx		INDX		LocINDX		Notes

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41010		Commercial - Gen				(13,914,514.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41010		Commercial - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		41010		Commercial - Gen				20,184,704.79		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41010		Commercial - Gen				11,968.86		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41010		Commercial - Gen				(24,308.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41010		Commercial - Gen				19,091,195.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41010		Commercial - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41020		Residential - Gen				(12,762,135.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Residential Generation from transaction summary report		41020		Residential - Gen				15,820,892.84		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41020		Residential - Gen				172,213.86		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41020		Residential - Gen				(19,053.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Admust to SMUD AR BALANCE		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41020		Residential - Gen				13,524,854.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41020		Residential - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				(258,102.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		FebAccrR				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				AG/Street Generation from transaction summary report		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				358,419.16		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				NEM Revenue gross up		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				165.03		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Various adjustments from transaction summary report		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				(431.65)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Accrued Revenue based on pre-final SQMD		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				389,934.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarAccr				Rate adjust billings for Shoulder Month		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42010		Commercial - Green Premium				545,285.02		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42020		Residential - Green Premium				427,397.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Commercial Generation from transaction summary report		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre				9,682.61		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		mar baddebt				Estimated Bad debt expense		42999		Bad Debt expense				(871,164.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				CAPP Funds applied in Feb'22		43000		CAPP Proceeds				197,415.57		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				8,932.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				4,660.48		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22						Interest		44000		Interest Income				218.70		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Data-2021		SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY (CUST)		Data Model Review / Recommendation and Data Studio Dashboard Design Review from October through ...		45000		Miscellaneous income				3,918.75		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44621		E3 - Energy and Environmental Economics		PIR-20-009 - TASK 3 Billable Services provided for March 2022		45000		Miscellaneous income				1,752.18		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 7/1/21		46000		Grant Revenue				707,757.75		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 9/28/21		46000		Grant Revenue				235,919.25		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				PG&E Deposit for the DAC program on 3/11/21		46000		Grant Revenue				335,460.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/18/22						Damage payment from Greenbacker for the Altamont wind project		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue				350,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Clear-0322		CLEARWAY ENERGY (CUST)		Failure to comply 103.04 MWh		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue				1,703.35		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		EASTBAY0060780015		TENASKA POWER SERVICES CO.		March 2022 - Physical RA System Forwards -  50  MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(317,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188756		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(171,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188757		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(134,200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 188758		PG&E - Procurement		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		50120		Capacity purchases				(256,428.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44642		AES REDONDO BEACH, LLC (Inc)		March 2022 - RA - AES Redondo Beach Generating Station  (142.48MW)		50120		Capacity purchases				(1,479,037.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		397		LEAPFROG POWER, INC.		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 12.9 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(24,123.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2789713		SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), LP		March 2022 - Capacity Purchases - 44 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(288,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2237269		EDF TRADING NORTH AMERICA, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 4 MWh		50120		Capacity purchases				(28,400.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2237269		EDF TRADING NORTH AMERICA, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Sale - 2MWh		50120		Capacity purchases				14,900.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		85710		CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L. P.		March 2022 - RA Capacity Sell - 50 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				400,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		85710		CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L. P.		March 2022 - RA Capacity Buy - 420 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(2,881,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE Mar2022		Resi Station LLC a/c 7437		Proxy Demand Response EBCE Mar2022 - 17 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(96,050.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03 12		BOLT ENERGY MARKETING, LLC		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 7 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(36,400.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03		WELLHEAD POWER EXCHANGE, LLC		March 2022 - Capacity Charge 47 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(223,250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		67		CITY OF SAN JOSE		March 2022 - RA Purchase - 70 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(147,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		67		CITY OF SAN JOSE		March 2022 - RA Sale - 70 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				122,500.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		157117		San Diego Gas and Electric (SDGE)		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 2,108 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(234,620.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		169132		SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY		March 2022 - Capacity Purchase - 4.47 MW		50120		Capacity purchases				(18,550.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		January 2022 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				1,694,968.53		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		December 2021 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				1,097,942.76		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Clear-0322		CLEARWAY ENERGY (CUST)		March 2022 PPA Generation -  28,401.77  MWh		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				172,725.15		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		TCW-EBCE-03 v2		TECOLOTE WIND LLC (PATTERN)		March 2022 - Market Settlement Pass Through		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA				781,294.18		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		January 2022 - Energy Production 33,355.55 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(1,471,313.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		TCW-EBCE-01		TELECOTE WIND - PATTERN (CUST)		December 2021 - Energy Production 16,596.95 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(732,091.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2		HENRIETTA D ENERGY STORAGE LLC		February 2022 - Total Storage Rate Charge - 10 MW		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(148,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1759155		GREENBACKER RENEWABLE (SEGO LILY SOLAR)		March 2022 - PPA and Test Energy - 15,876.7163  MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(682,712.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		TCW-EBCE-03 v2		TECOLOTE WIND LLC (PATTERN)		March 2022 - Energy Production - 18,946.38 MWh		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(827,971.03)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3		HENRIETTA D ENERGY STORAGE LLC		March 2022 - Total Storage Rate Charge - 10 MW		50135		PPA Energy Purchase				(146,514.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2087258-1		MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP,  INC.		February 2022 - Energy Purchase - 16,800 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(584,304.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		706149		NEXTERA ENERGY MARKETING, LLC*		March 2022 - Power Purchases - 122,250 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(4,905,092.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2789712		SHELL ENERGY NORTH AMERICA (US), LP		March 2022 - Energy Purchases - 69,986 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(2,484,906.32)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		796812		Exelon/ Constellation		March 2022 - Energy purchases - 36938 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,293,568.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1020		CCCFA - Discount Settlement (BNY 10733184		March 2022 - Settlement Monthly Quantity - 43,837 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,870,060.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2087790-1		MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP,  INC.		March 2022 - Energy Purchase - 26,350 MWh		50140		Energy purchases				(1,231,690.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1021		CCCFA - Retained Obligation (BNY 10749284		March 2022 - 2021B Energy Sales - Specified Source Premium - 50,772 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(20,308.80)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD2022000537		BROOKFIELD RENEWABLE T&M lp		March 2022 -  ACS Energy Purchase - 8,546 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(34,184.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD2022000537		BROOKFIELD RENEWABLE T&M lp		March 2022 - Carbon Free Purchase - 12,584 MWh		50145		Carbon Free Energy				(75,504.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		34234		XCEL-PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF COLORADO		December 2021 -  RECs - 17,478 MWh		50160		RECs purchases				(170,410.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EAS220308		3 PHASES RENEWABLES (3PR)		Vintage 2021 Green Attributes from PCC2 Product		50160		RECs purchases				(110,700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		169183		SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY		March 2022 - REC Purchase - 110,000 MW		50160		RECs purchases				(1,268,250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Marrc22				To estimate March 2022 REC		50160		RECs purchases				(450,640.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		Reverse of GJE CAISO -- To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the follow...		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				11,246,194.77		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(7,567,149.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(3,679,045.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(2,827,289.27)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(5,777,746.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(5,611,348.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy				(12,703,457.54)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				(6,524,366.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				4,282,745.08		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				2,241,621.35		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				1,505,437.15		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				3,079,349.68		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				3,092,654.28		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades				7,299,103.80		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		CAISOR		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue February 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				880,961.42		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022020132-53208812		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		January 2022 - TFR Invoice		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(82,077.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/8/22		2022030831		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-17 to 2022-02-24		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(596,057.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-02-01 to 2022-02-28		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(284,903.78)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		2022031531		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-01 to 2022-03-03		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(128,667.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/22/22		2022032231		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-04 to 2022-03-10		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(263,307.71)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/24/22		009040-0322006		Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)		March 2022 All Resources Bill - Prior Month Adjustment: Transmission & Generation Resources		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(52,540.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/29/22		2022032931		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		From 2022-03-11 to 2022-03-17		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(695,826.89)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CAISO		CALIFORNIA ISO (Market Invoices)		To accrue March 2022 and prior months expenses recorded in the following month		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges				(1,501,542.52)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		46		SMUD		March 2022 - Data Management and Call Center Services -- {po:1038}		50200		Data Manager				(641,975.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		46		SMUD		March  2022 - Share My Data -- {po:1190}		50200		Data Manager		Technological		(6,419.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/24/22		009040-0322006		Northern California Power Agency (NCPA)		March 2022 All Resources Bill - Management Services		50300		Scheduling Fees				(56,597.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022137		KARBONE INC.		Brokerage of California System RA (Flex) between EBCEA and WGP Redwood Holdings, LLC- Confirmati...		50310		Broker fees				(39,891.60)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		08181-3098460322-00		TULLETT PREBON		March 2022 - RA Purchase - Counterparty: Shell Energy North America		50310		Broker fees				(1,125.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		572242 1018-032022		EQUUS ENERGY GROUP LLC		March 2022 - Broker Fees		50310		Broker fees				(475.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Record NEM Liability		50400		NEM Expense				(184,347.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				nem true up		50400		NEM Expense				9,079.74		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		MarRev				Adjust to SMUD NEM BALANCE		50400		NEM Expense				- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44663		PG&E #8050-2		March 2022 - service  provider fees		50500		Service Fees - PG&E				(225,733.20)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		197699		PG&E (RA)		March 2022 RA Notional - 8 MW at $6,25/MW-Month		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA				50,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43680		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Community Solar Welcome Kit Mailing -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(3,721.47)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43718		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Enrollment Notices -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(51,942.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43814		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Berkeley and Albany Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(218.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		43876		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Hayward Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(218.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44205		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Brochures -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(328.13)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44075		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Berkeley and San Leandro Enrollment Notices - 1st Notification -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(43,384.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44481		PACIFIC PRINTING, INC		March 2022 - Postage from October 2021 through March 2022 -- {po:1137}		50902		Required Mailings		Marketing & Communications		(108,186.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		facebook - Advertising on facebook - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(404.19)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(140.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(160.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(60.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(40.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		WC887780		EFFECTV (COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS)		March 2022 - San Francisco-Oak-San Jose - Digital TV -- {po:1212}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(2,308.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1330932		BAY AREA NEWS GROUP		March 2022 - Interactive Advertising - Quantum Banner -- {po:1213}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(5,555.84)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		6974		SOUND OF HOPE RADIO NETWORK		March 2022 - Online Targeted Display, 100,000 Impressions/month $1000/month -- {po:1106}		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(1,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(24.69)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		facebook - Advertising on facebook - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(504.93)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Advertising on Google - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(175.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		twitter - Ads on Twitter - Dan		55010		Advertising		Marketing & Communications		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		1000282		VELOZ		To recognize expenses for the months of July'21 - March'22		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Local Development		(37,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		0001-2022		TRACY EARTH PROJECT		Donation to Sponsor 2022 Tracy Earth Day		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		0102069-IN		ALAMEDA COUNTY FAIR		Marketing Sponsorship		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(8,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		1502		CALIFORNIA GREEN BUSINESS NETWORK		March 2022 - Alameda County Green Business Plan Support		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		790		CITYSIDE		March 2022 - Culture Makers 2022: Bronze Level & Dedicated Eblast: Q2 Date TBD		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Marketing & Communications		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Happy hour staff event during offsite meeting during March in person meeting...		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(939.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Rental fees and beverage package for Two Pitchers - venue for offiste meetin...		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(1,636.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Snacks during March offsite - Meagan		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(195.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		two pitchers brew - Snacks during March offsite - Meagan		55070		Special Events		Marketing & Communications		(35.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		black mesa - Coffee shop @ ABQ airport - Nick		56030		Business meals		Operations		(3.51)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		church street caf? - Meal during trip to Albuquerque - Nick		56030		Business meals		Operations		(47.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		poke parlor - Lunch for Nick @ office - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(21.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		dinner at airport		56030		Business meals		Operations		(30.52)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE team lunch		56030		Business meals		Operations		(142.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		poke parlor - Lunch for Nick @ office - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(22.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		calavera - Functional Leads Dinner during March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(569.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		senor sisig - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(649.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		caf? gabriela - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(704.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		falafel boy - Lunch during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(391.13)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wooden table caf? - Breakfast during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(161.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		sweet bar bakery - Breakfast during three day March in person meeting - Meagan		56030		Business meals		Operations		(400.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		paypal - WSPP conference registration refund - Meagan		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		190.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		california foundation on the environment and the economy - Cancellation fee for Nick's CFEE trip...		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(550.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conference Registration		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(180.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conference Parking		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ESHLEMAN, CHRIS		CESA Conferenece Parking		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		barefoot movement - Yoga during March in person staff retreat - Meagan		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		466153541		U.S. BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE		KONICA MINOLTA C659 COPIER : 02/20/22 - 03/20/22		56050		Equipment lease		Operations		(330.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(546.26)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(509.54)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(505.44)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(552.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(574.34)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(511.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(139.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(595.49)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(593.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(504.07)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(532.08)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(139.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		linkedin - Advertising for open positions - Len		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		(515.84)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Inv 1877		California Community Choice Association		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		(30,971.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		red bridge education - Mailed citation form and check to CPUC - Meagan		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		(40.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 69203		ARROYO INSURANCE SERVICES, INC(KNAUF)		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense		56070		Insurance		Operations		(3,737.40)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased replacement bluetooth headphones for Meagan - previous pair stopped working -...		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(55.07)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchase tea and phone cases for office - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(390.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		customink - EBCE branded can coozy - Juan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(445.41)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		fedex - Letter of Credit return - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(50.09)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Deposit for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(510.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25493		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Microsoft Ergonomic Keyboard		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(90.05)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		122040784		ASSOCIATED SERVICES		February 2022 - Nat choice ION Water		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(129.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		DYNES, LORI		March 2022 - shipping boxes - marketing materials CBO offices		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(46.24)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		eco promotional - EBCE Branded Frisbees - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(1,825.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Accidentally purchased headphones - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(77.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.12)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.28)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.06)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(38.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - iHealth COVID-19 Antigen Rapid Test - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(39.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon -  - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(36.33)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		eco promotional - Charge for Additional 200 Drawstring Bags - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(256.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Remaining balance for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(508.71)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased oat milk for the office - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(25.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Howard purchased office supplies - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(29.51)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Howard purchased office supplies - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(22.04)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		minuteman press - Shipping cost for EBCE Business cards - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(59.70)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Refund for accidentally purchased headphones - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		77.12		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		amazon - Purchased surge protectors with USB ports for printer and mail scales - Meagan		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		(31.96)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		heybike - Purchased an eBike to be raffled off at Roots game - Juan		55055		Promotional Items		Marketing & Communications		(899.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza - Monthly parking pass for Meagan - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(275.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		oakland parking meter - Howard paid for parking during tour of KTA (architects for new EBCE HQ) ...		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(1.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DORRANCE, JIM		Office Parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		LEWBIN, DAVID		parking for on-sight all-staff		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(10.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		WARD, ALEC		EBCE all-staff parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		office parking		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		Gilmore, Molly		Parking at 1999 Harrison		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		Gilmore, Molly		Parking at 3 pitchers		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		DYNES, LORI		Parking at the Office		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Lak - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Parking at 1999 Harrison - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(30.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lake merritt plaza park - Monthly parking pass for Meagan - Meagan		56110		Parking at office		Operations		(275.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		258589		IGOE, INC. (ACH)		February 2022 - Medical and/or Dependent Care FSA Monthly Participation Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(75.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/7/22		March				Payroll Service Fee - EIB		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(231.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/18/22		March				Payroll Service Fee - EIB		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(171.11)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/21/22		March		Paychex		Paychex-OAB Flex Time		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(183.30)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		256612		IGOE (COBRA)		COBRA Monthly Service Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(65.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		260411		IGOE, INC. (ACH)		March 2022 - Medical and/or Dependent Care FSA Monthly Participation Fee		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv 2022-03		MECHANICS BANK (1999 Harrison Street) INC		To recognize March 2022 rent paid in advance		56130		Rent		Operations		(37,368.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD_000369587		RingCentral Inc.		Hardware -- {po: 1096}		56140		Small equipment		Operations		(191.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25352		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Logitech C925e Webcams x8		56140		Small equipment		Operations		(916.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Inv 1084		MYST AI, INC.		To recognize March 2022 expense that was prepaid		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(9,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		netlify - Hosting and serverless backend services for web applications and static websites. - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(14.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		cloudinary - Cloud-based image and video management services  - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(99.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dialpad - Conference call manager (formerly Uberconference) - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		1password  - Password manager for employees - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(132.24)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		atlassian - Process and controls management software - Jason		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(753.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		smartystreets - Address standardization tool for Analytics and Technology monthly charge - Kevin		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(80.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wallstreet - Online News Subscription - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(38.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(8.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		github - GitHub Pro Membership for analytics provenance tracking and version control. - Diego		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(997.14)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(18.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		energy gps - Newsletter Subscription - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		mailgun technologies - cloud-based email service for sending, receiving and tracking emails. Use...		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1.09)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Monthly membership fee - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Purchased printable stamp templates - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(211.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		zoom - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(465.37)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		44637		GOOGLE		March 2022 - Google Cloud		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(10,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/21/22		4040021004 CR		GOOGLE		Invoice paid by Amex credit card #2021-01-31		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		18.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		20778		TYMEWARE INCORPORATED		NRGSTREAM Client Access, West Region: March - May 2022		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(8,985.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3630&3646		ADAPT2 SOLUTIONS, INC.		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense - Invoice # 3630&3646		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(15,937.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		141368		GRANICUS		To recognize March 2022 prepaid expense - Invoice # 141368		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(4,207.29)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		20174199		SALESFORCE.COM INC.		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance - Invoice#20174199		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(10,733.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2021-10042		cQUANT.IO, INC.		Subscription fee for SaaS March 2022		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(13,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		115692061-1		COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION, INC.		March 2022 - CoStar Suite Monthly License Fees -- {po:1199}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,050.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		21932185		SALESFORCE.COM INC.		Subscription - Service Dates: 3/10/22 - 8/14/22		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(330.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Inv-LLC1706		FLUENCE ENERGY, LLC		March 2022 - Revenue from SaaS integration - Integration Fee -- {po:1255}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(2,284.95)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		322023654088		ICE US OTC Commodity Mkts LLC		March 2022 - Market Data Exchange Fee		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(700.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-10076		cQUANT.IO, INC.		March 2022 - Dedicated Server Fees -- {po:1148}		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(5,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - 365 business		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1,040.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - 365 business		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - av security		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - rmm-saas cloud backup		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(585.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - visio online plan 1		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(26.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25710		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - defender for endpoint		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(285.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(25.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		1password - Password manager for employees - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(129.74)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		wallstreet journal - Online News Subscription - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(38.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		expensify - Receipt tracking manager - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(1,053.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		google - Manager of emails and shared drives - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(18.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		smartystreets.com - Address standardization tool for Analytics and Technology monthly charge - K...		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(80.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		energy gps - Newsletter Subscription - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Power Procurement		(250.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		netlify - Hosting and serverless backend services for web applications and static websites. - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Marketing & Communications		(7.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		helioscope - Annual subscription for web-based sales and design tool for solar professionals  - JP		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Local Development		(950.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(9.82)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(2.59)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(3.22)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		cloudinary - Cloud-based image and video management services  - Dan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(99.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dialpad - Conference call manager (formerly Uberconference) - Howard		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		github - GitHub Pro Membership for analytics provenance tracking and version control. - Diego		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(36.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		atlassian - Process and controls management software - Jason		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(768.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		stamps.com - Monthly membership fee - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(17.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		dropbox - Cloud Storage Subscription - Marie		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(125.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		account - Zoom meetings account - Meagan		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		(483.42)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		airtable - Online Project management platform used by Programs & Marketing - JP		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Technological		(480.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		220716445		ACC Business (AT&T)		AT&T Bill for Internet 2/11/22-3/10/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(689.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		comcast - Primary internet for office - Meagan		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(116.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CD_000369587		RingCentral Inc.		Telephone line -- {po: 1096}		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(502.91)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		T-Mobile		Mobile phone service for 2/21/22-3/20/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(1,473.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		221026556		ACC Business (AT&T)		AT&T Bill for Internet 3/11/22-04/10/22		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(689.67)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		comcast - Primary internet for office - Meagan		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		(116.90)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Q122.102.1561		LT Trust		TOTAL Q1 2022 FEES for 401(A) PLAN- Automated payments this is just to record the fee.		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		(2,233.03)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Q122.102.1521		LT Trust		TOTAL Q1 2022 FEES for 457(B) PLAN- Automated payments this is just to record the fee.		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		(1,790.63)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44657		EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST (#50141)		2/1/22-4/4/22 - Deposit Required, Water Charges, Wastewater Charges		56190		Utilities		Operations		(185.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44657		EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DIST (#72375)		2/1/22 -4/4/22 - Water Charges, Wastewater Charges		56190		Utilities		Operations		(37.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44665		PG&E #461-4		March 2022 - Service provider fees for 251 8th Street Unit 3		56190		Utilities		Operations		(553.30)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44635		CORTEZ, JUAN		Gas to St. Patrick's Day Event x2		56210		Mileage/fuel		Operations		(51.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		VENTURA, FELIZ		Parking at 1999 Harrison		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(30.35)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44629		VENTURA, FELIZ		Parking at Alexan Webster Garage		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(15.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		ace parking - Parking during March in person meeting - Meagan		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		(10.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Fee for preferred seat on flight SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(16.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Fee for preferred seat on flight SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(16.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		united - Airfare to and from  SFO &lt;&gt; ABQ - Meagan		56230		Airfare		Operations		(437.20)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(68.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(163.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(98.60)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		flight		56230		Airfare		Operations		(73.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		chateau - Hotel for WSPP conference - refund bc Howard cancelled his trip - Meagan		56240		Lodging		Operations		813.50		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		chateau - Hotel for Howard for  WSPP conference  - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(811.76)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		los pablanos inn - Hotel for Nick during ABQ trip - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(454.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		los poblanos inn - Deposit for Nick's hotel in ABQ - Kevin		56240		Lodging		Operations		(373.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		JW Marriott		56240		Lodging		Operations		(903.08)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44630		LEE, KAREN		hotel		56240		Lodging		Operations		(2,716.80)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		claremont hotel -  -		56240		Lodging		Operations		(11.92)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		44620		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		state wide transport oakland - Nick took a cab in SF  - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(72.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		taxi - to airport		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(19.43)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44628		DORRANCE, JIM		taxi - to home		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(32.98)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		uber - Ride to office during in person March meeting - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(19.94)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lyft - Ride to the offiste during March in person meeting - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(16.99)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		AMERICAN EXPRESS #21007		lyft - Ride to the March in person meeting at the office - Meagan		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		(14.85)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LUTZ, JIM		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LOPEZ, CORINA N.		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MARTINEZ, DIANNE		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LAKSHMAN, VIJAY		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MUETZENBERG, WILLIAM		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		CAVENAUGH, JEN		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LIU, YAZHOU (JOEL)		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		HANNON, MIKE		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		KUMAGAI, SHAWN		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		TIEDEMANN, AARON		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MARQUEZ, ELISA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		SIMON, FRED		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		MEI,  LILY		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		NARUM, KATHY		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		FRANCH, JANE		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		COX, TERESA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		BONANNO, REGINA		Regular Meeting - 3/16/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		ARRIOLA, DAN		Executive Committee Meeting - 03/25/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(100.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		LANDRY, CYNTHIA		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		KALB, DAN		March Meetings		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(200.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44651		PACHECO, ERNESTO		Regular Meeting - 3/14/2022		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		(50.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44627		SPECTRUM COMMUNITY SERVICES, Inc		EBCE AMP Outreach Grant		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development		(15,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44637		CITY OF BERKELEY		March 2022 - Grant for electrification of senior center kitchens -- {po:1211}		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(2,921.83)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44643		CITY OF BERKELEY		March 2022 - Myer Foodservice Equipment for the Senior Center Kitchen Electrification grant -- {...		57010		Community Investment Grants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(13,987.10)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		23299		Maher Accountancy		March  2022 - Accounting Services -- {po:1262}		59010		Accounting		Operations		(18,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		INV55220		MINERAL, INC.		March 2022 - March 2023 - Workplace Harassment Prevention		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		(1,152.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13392		REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES AUTHORITY		March 2022 - Contract Services -- {po:1256}		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		(750.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		25644		PC Professional, Inc.		March 2022 - Monthly Outsource - Onsite/Remote Service -- {po:1245}		59040		IT Consulting		Operations		(5,501.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		236497		Richards Watson & Gershon		February 2022 - Professional Services -- {po:1239}		59050		Legal		Legal		(28,363.36)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related legal costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59050		Legal		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(5,341.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related legal costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59050		Legal		Legal		5,341.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454449		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		February 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-016 --  {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Local Development		(6,892.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454446		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-009-- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Legal		(14,162.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454448		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		February 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-015 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(3,225.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454450		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-013 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(470.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2454447		WILSON SONSINI GOODRICH & ROSATI		March 2022 - Client - Matter: 55367-012 -- {po:1237}		59050		Legal		Local Development		(1,114.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		26746		Keyes & Fox LLP		March 2022 - Services  -- {po:1241}		59050		Legal		Policy		(5,204.55)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		6896463		DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP		March 2022 - RPS Procurement Plan - Matter Number: 0110408.000004 -- {po:1240}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(4,317.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2020010589		HALL ENERGY LAW PC		March 2022 - legal services - Transaction Support -- {po:1238}		59050		Legal		Power Procurement		(23,685.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Mar acc		Richards Watson & Gershon		To estimate March 2022 expense		59050		Legal		Legal		(20,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3612		Weideman Group, Inc		March 2022 - Legislative Strategy/Planning -- {po:1035}		59060		Legislative		Policy		(10,277.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		36265		TRC Engineers, Inc.		February 2022 - EBCE Reach Code Analysis 2019 - Project 335171 -- {po:1049}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(3,382.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		36024		TRC Engineers, Inc.		January 2022 - EBCE Reach Code Analysis 2019 - Project 335171 -- {po:1049}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		(4,846.25)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		21619		MHC ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, INC.		July 2021 - engineering services for 251 8th Street, Oakland -- {po:1219}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(2,160.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 1 - Funding Determination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,402.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 3 - Program Ideation & Design		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,625.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 4 - Stakeholder Coordination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(205.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 5 - Cost Effectiveness & Technical Assistance		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,347.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189334		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 6 - Tier 3 Advice Letter		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(112.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 1 - Funding Determination		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(367.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 3 - Program Ideation & Design		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(623.75)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		189333		FRONTIER ENERGY, INC.		Task 7 - Project Management		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(97.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Feb accR		Richards Watson & Gershon		Reverse of GJE Feb acc -- To estimate February 2022 expense		59050		Legal		Legal		20,000.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Mar accR		TRC Engineers, Inc.		Reverse of GJE Mar acc -- To accrue expenses for December 2021		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P001-Building Electrification		1,500.00		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/11/22		0008086046-3		PG&E - ENGINEERING ADVANCE		March 2022 - Electrical engineering assessment for City of Oakland public parking garage		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(2,500.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/14/22		EBCE-0322-A		PENINSULA CLEAN ENERGY		March 2022 - Aces invoice #22A4572-IN- 1/5 of RA Management and Procurement		59070		Other Consultants		Power Procurement		(1,324.17)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE March 2022		MISSIONCTRL		March 2022 - base retainer -- {po:1234}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(9,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		CCCFA-1012		CCCFA - General Payments		March 2022 -  2021B Specific - Funding for costs and minimum bank account balance		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(21,600.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE43		CLEAN ENERGY REGULATORY RESEARCH, LLC		March 2022- Regulatory Compliance Support  -- {po:1155}		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		(2,345.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE-002		NP ENERGY LLC		March 2022 - Resource Adequacy Policy Updates -- {po:1263}		59070		Other Consultants		Power Procurement		(2,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		112474		CALSTART, INC.		March 2022 - Phase 3: Pilot Project Technical Assistance Implementation -- {po:1142}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(1,789.55)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13385		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PG&E 2019 ERRA Compliance -- {po:1119}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(99.64)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13398		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PGE 2023 GRC Phase I -- {po:1118}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(3,485.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		13386		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		March 2022 - PGE 2022 ERRA Forecast -- {po:1195}		59070		Other Consultants		Policy		(163.61)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		112471		CALSTART, INC.		March 2022 - Blueprints for Medium - and Heavy-Duty Zero-Emission Vehicle Infrastructure -- {po:...		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(17,233.63)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		EBCE2203		ECOMOTION INC.		March 2022 - Energy Resilient Municipal Facilities Project, Ecomotion Labor Cost -- {po:1204}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P009-Resiliency		(11,620.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		69333		CLEARESULT CONSULTING, INC.		March 2022 - Professional Services -- {po:1162}		59070		Other Consultants		Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification		(25,752.53)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		21-REVISED		BENTHAM PAULOS		January-February 2022 - targeted communications invoice #21 --  {po:1244}		59090		Communications consultants		Policy		(8,175.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/30/22		1		RAYSHINE LLC		March 2022 - Retainer -- {po:1265}		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		(20,000.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		03-21-22-2		AFAF TRANSLATIONS LLC		Translation of "CC221016-COPY DECK_AMP marketing toolkit_translation" into 9 different languages...		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(335.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related Communications costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development:P010- DAC-GT Program		(337.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		DAC				To reclassify DAC related Communications costs per Sam's Spreadsheet 3.24.22		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		337.50		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		General Web Services		59090		Communications consultants		Marketing & Communications		(9,142.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: General		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(600.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: AMP		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(4,162.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: CAPP		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(150.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Heat Pump Water Heater		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(75.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Induction Campaign		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(5,962.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Medical Baseline		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(1,875.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		11213		CELERY DESIGN COLLABORATIVE		Programs: Resilient Home		59090		Communications consultants		Local Development		(324.88)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		22		BENTHAM PAULOS		March 2022 - targeted communications invoice #22 --  {po:1244}		59090		Communications consultants		Policy		(1,800.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		4369702516		THE LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMPANY		March 2022 - Life Insurance Premium --  {po:1041}		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(1,765.81)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - Commuter Benefits		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		- 0		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - PIA VLI EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		26.33		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - TO-PIA MED EE (FSA)		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		2,848.87		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22 - PIA VLI EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		29.73		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22 - PIA MED EE		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		2,375.98		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		22042002169		Blue Shield of California		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(23,846.14)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		53475560648		KAISER PERMANENTE		To recognize March 2022 expense paid in advance		60510		Employee welfare		Payroll		(9,275.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22		60520		Payroll tax expense		Payroll		(4,246.50)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60520		Payroll tax expense		Payroll		(4,073.89)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/15/22		ER March				Payroll 3/1/22-3/15/22 - ER portion		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Payroll		(45,636.18)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		ER March				Payroll 3/16/22-3/31/22 - ER portion		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Payroll		(48,794.97)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		2/28/22 PRR				Reverse of GJE 2/28/22 PR -- 13 of 13 days of 2/16/22-2/28/22 payroll period paid in following m...		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		265,725.27		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(261,478.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(268,384.48)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		3/31/22 PR				16 of 16 days of 3/16/22-3/31/22 payroll period paid in following month		60540		Salaries and wages		Payroll		(308,582.32)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/4/22		Feb				2/16/22-2/28/22 - Workers' Comp		60550		Workers comp insurance		Payroll		(568.77)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/17/22		March				3/1/22-3/15/22		60550		Workers comp insurance		Payroll		(585.46)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		44642				Estimated Accrued compensated Absences and supplemental PTO at 3/31/22		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Payroll		(17,255.00)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Jan intR		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		Reverse of GJE Jan int -- Accrue January 2022 interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		77,802.38		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/1/22		Feb intR		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		Reverse of GJE Feb int -- Accrue February 2022 interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		68,095.34		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03-15 LC&REV		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		January - March 2022 - LOC & Revolver - interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		(149,568.87)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		2022-03-15 LC 26494		BARCLAYS BANK PLC		January - March 2022 - Letter of Credit Facility 26494 - Interest		63400		Interest Expense		Operations		(66,700.62)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		

		0		1900		1		3/31/22		Mar22 Depr				To record monthly depreciation expense		80200		Depreciation Expense				(5,654.22)		ERROR:#N/A				ERROR:#N/A		







								

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
		

EBCE06: EBCE06:
Changed from 12/1





COA

						FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

						CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

						MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Account		Account Name		Code

		41010		Commercial - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		41020		Residential - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42010		Commercial - Green Premium		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42020		Residential - Green Premium		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre		A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		42999		Bad Debt expense		B		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		43000		CAPP Proceeds		A1																																																																- 0		- 0

		44000		Interest Income		C		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		45000		Miscellaneous income		A2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		46000		Grant Revenue		D		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		47000		Damages		A1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		61000		Bad Debt expense		B		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				REV TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50120		Capacity purchases		E2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA		E5		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50135		PPA Energy Purchase		E5		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50140		Energy purchases		E		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50145		Carbon Free Energy		E4		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50160		RECs purchases		E3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50165		GHG Offset expense		E4		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy		E1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades		E1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges		E6		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50200		Data Manager		F1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50300		Scheduling Co		F3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50310		Broker Fees		E8		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50400		NEM Expense		E7		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50500		Service Fees - PG&E		F2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50510		Wholesale Sales - Energy		E		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50520		Wholesale Sales - REC/CO2		E3		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA		E2		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				ENERGY TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50200		Data Manager		F1		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50901		Other Noticing		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		50902		Required Mailings		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55010		Advertising		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55055		Promotional Items		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55060		Communications - misc expenses		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		55070		Special Events		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56010		Bank service fee		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56030		Business Meals		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56020		Building maintenance		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56040		Conferences & Prof Development		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56050		Equipment lease		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56060		Industry memberships and dues		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56070		Insurance		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56080		Interest and Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56100		Office supplies and postage		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56110		Parking at office		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56120		Payroll service fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56130		Rent		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56140		Small equipment		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56160		Telephone and internet		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56180		Miscellaneous Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56181		Retirement admin fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56190		Utilities		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56210		Mileage/fuel		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56220		Parking and Tolls		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56230		Airfare		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56240		Lodging		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		56330		Director's Fees		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		57010		Community Investment Grants		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		57020		Program Incentives		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59010		Accounting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59030		Human resources consulting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59040		IT Consulting		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59050		Legal		L		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59060		Legislative		L		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59070		Other Consultants		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59090		Communications consultants		M		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		59200		Technical Consultants		J		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60510		Employee welfare		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60520		Payroll tax expense		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60530		Retirement plan contributions		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60540		Salaries and wages		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60550		Workers comp insurance		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60560		Life Insurance		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		60590		Temporary Employees		P		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



		63400		Interest Expense		K		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		80200		Depreciation Expense		Y		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		80400		Penalties and fines		O		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99991		Adjust Equipment Modified (neg)		Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99992		Adjust Equipment Modified (pos)		Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99995				Z																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99996				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99997				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		99998				Z		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		UUT C				A		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				OPERATIONS TOTAL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Ops less Capital				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Comp to Chart				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



				TOTAL EXPENSES				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				NET REVENUE				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		426,137		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				SumGL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				Comp to GL				- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		(426,137)		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

																																																												8,081,323.84







OpsChart

								Total		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

		Area		Account		Account Name		Rsrc		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		L		50200		Data Manager		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50200		Data Manager		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				50200		Data Manager		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50901		Other Noticing		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		50902		Required Mailings		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		50902		Required Mailings		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55010		Advertising		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55055		Promotional Items		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		55055		Promotional Items		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		55070		Special Events		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		55070		Special Events		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56010		Bank service fee		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56020		Building maintenance		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56030		Business meals		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56040		Conferences & prof development		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56050		Equipment Lease		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56070		Insurance		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56080		Interest and fees expense		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56100		Office supplies and postage		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56110		Parking at office		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56120		Payroll service fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56130		Rent		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56140		Small equipment		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56160		Telephone and internet		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56181		Retirement admin fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56190		Utilities		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56210		Mileage/fuel		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56220		Parking and Tolls		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56230		Airfare		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56240		Lodging		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56250		Other Travel		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56310		Board Meeting Rental		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A		56330		Director's Fees		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		57010		Community Grants		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		57010		Community Grants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		57020		Program Incentives		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59010		Accounting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59040		IT Consulting		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				59050		Legal		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59060		Legislative		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		59070		Consultants		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59070		Consultants		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants		Pow		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		B		59070		Consultants (CRM)		Tec		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		M		59090		Communications consultants		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		59090		Communications consultants		Loc																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		R		59090		Communications consultants		Pol		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60510		Employee welfare		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60520		Payroll tax expense		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60540		Salaries and wages		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60550		Workers comp insurance		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance		Pay		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

				60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Pay																								- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		G		60590		Temp Employees		Leg		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		L		99999		Local Development--Unassigned		Loc		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

						New Communities		Mar		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0

		A				Energy Pre-pay		Ops		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0



						CHECK AND TRUE UP

				AK		AJ		0

				Chart		COA		D

		50200		0		0		0

		50200		0		0		0

		50300		0		0		0

		50310		0		0		0

		50400		0		0		0

		50500		0		0		0

		50510		0		0		0

		50520		0		0		0

		50530		0		0		0

		50901		0		0		0

		50902		0		0		0

		55010		0		0		0

		55040		0		0		0

		55055		0		0		0

		55060		0		0		0

		55070		0		0		0

		56010		0		0		0

		56020		0		0		0

		56030		0		0		0

		56040		0		0		0

		56050		0		0		0

		56055		0		0		0

		56060		0		0		0

		56070		0		0		0

		56080		0		0		0

		56090		0		0		0

		56100		0		0		0

		56110		0		0		0

		56120		0		0		0

		56130		0		0		0

		56140		0		0		0

		56150		0		0		0

		56160		0		0		0

		56180		0		0		0

		56181		0		0		0

		56190		0		0		0

		56210		0		0		0

		56220		0		0		0

		56230		0		0		0

		56240		0		0		0

		56250		0		0		0

		56330		0		0		0

		57010		0		0		0

		57020		0		0		0

		59010		0		0		0

		59030		0		0		0

		59040		0		0		0

		59050		0		0		0

		59060		0		0		0

		59070		0		0		0

		59090		0		0		0

		59200		0		0		0

		60510		0		0		0

		60520		0		0		0

		60530		0		0		0

		60540		0		0		0

		60550		0		0		0

		60560		0		0		0

		60580		0		0		0

		60590		0		0		0

		61000		0		0		0





LocDev

				FY		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

				CY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022

				Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4

				MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6

		Program Funding

				Beginning Balance		4,871,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000

				Funding from General Fund Revenues		6,340,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		8,475,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		D		Grants/Credits		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Mid-Year adjustment		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Available Funding		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000

				Net Expenses		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Ending Balance		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		11,211,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000		19,686,000



		Program Areas Resources

		P001		Building Electrification		1,609,000																								900,000

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		925,000																								0

		P003		Demand Response		236,000																								0

		P004		Energy Efficiency		824,000																								0

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		6,043,000				252,000				500																5,545,000

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		805,000																137,500						-288,001		0

		P007		Community Investment		211,000																								1,150,000

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		5,000																								100,000

		P009		Resiliency		458,000																						322,621		580,000

		L		Legal Resources		100,000																						-34,620		100,000

		M		MAS Resources		0																								100,000

		P		Policy Resources		0																								0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0																								0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0																								0



				Total Program Resources		11,216,000		0		252,000		0		500		0		0		0		137,500		0		0		0		8,475,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



		Program Areas Expenses

		P001		Building Electrification		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P003		Demand Response		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P004		Energy Efficiency		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P007		Community Investment		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P009		Resiliency		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		L		Legal Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		M		MAS Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		P		Policy Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Program Expenses		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



		Program Area Remaining

		P001		Building Electrification		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		1,609,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000		2,509,000

		P002		Collaborative Procurement		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000		925,000

		P003		Demand Response		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000		236,000

		P004		Energy Efficiency		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000		824,000

		P005		Vehicle Electrification		6,043,000		6,043,000		6,295,000		6,295,000		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		6,295,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500		11,840,500

		P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		805,000		942,500		942,500		942,500		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499		654,499

		P007		Community Investment		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		211,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000		1,361,000

		P008		Sponsorships/Events		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000		105,000

		P009		Resiliency		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		458,000		780,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621		1,360,621

		L		Legal Resources		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		65,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380		165,380

		M		MAS Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000		100,000

		P		Policy Resources		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

		zzz		Capital Set Aside		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

				Other (actuals not classified)		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



				Total Program Remaining		11,216,000		11,216,000		11,468,000		11,468,000		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,468,500		11,606,000		11,606,000		11,606,000		11,606,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000		20,081,000

																														2,509,000

																														925,000

																														236,000

																														824,000

																														11,840,500

																														654,499

																														1,361,000

																														105,000

																														1,360,621

																														165,380

																														100,000

																														0

																														0

																														0

																														0

																														20,081,000





Budget

								FY		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								CY		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2019		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2020		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2021		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2022		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023		2023

								Q		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4		1		1		1		2		2		2		3		3		3		4		4		4				10642		MedBaseline

								MO		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6		7		8		9		10		11		12		1		2		3		4		5		6				4064		FERA

																																																										202107		202108		202109		202110		202111		202112		202201		202202		202203		202204		202205		202206		202207		202208		202209		202210		202211		202212		202301		202302		202303		202304		202305		202306				111925		CARE

		REVENUES

				OPERATING																																																																														2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%		2.0%

						Electricity Sales				46,348,347		46,453,034		44,816,941		44,349,561		42,893,970		47,529,054		38,753,799		35,004,005		36,253,837		34,013,830		34,848,777		35,749,216		41,499,196		41,861,697		41,160,584		38,467,515		28,815,763		32,651,733		27,498,127		23,792,812		25,311,536		27,697,242		34,902,402		37,745,980		49,088,221		52,163,926		50,702,277		36,023,199		35,038,734		38,786,322		43,137,055		38,382,692		38,760,551		34,713,745		35,955,519		55,883,972		81,284,333		84,296,780		79,690,797		65,405,956		63,385,914		70,989,546		78,808,860		71,179,538		72,932,106		66,902,770		71,206,193		89,344,226		895,427,018		5/3/22		Doug's ST model

						Uncollectables				-232,742		-233,265		-225,085		-222,748		-215,470		-238,645		-194,769		-176,020		-182,269		-171,069		-175,244		-179,746		-1,037,480		-1,046,542		-1,029,015		-961,688		-720,394		-816,293		-687,453		-594,820		-632,788		-676,945		-821,048		-877,920		-981,764		-1,043,279		-1,014,046		-720,464		-700,775		-775,726		-647,056		-575,740		-581,408		-520,706		-539,333		-838,260		(1,625,687)		(1,685,936)		(1,593,816)		(1,308,119)		(1,267,718)		(1,419,791)		(1,576,177)		(1,423,591)		(1,458,642)		(1,338,055)		(1,424,124)		(1,786,885)		-17,908,541

						Other Operations Revenue																																																																																(6,229,350)																				-6,229,350		124587		CARE/FERA 5/9/2022 Account Explorer



						Total Operating Revenues				46,115,605		46,219,769		44,591,856		44,126,813		42,678,500		47,290,409		38,559,030		34,827,985		36,071,568		33,842,761		34,673,533		35,569,470		40,461,716		40,815,155		40,131,569		37,505,827		28,095,369		31,835,440		26,810,674		23,197,992		24,678,747		27,020,297		34,081,354		36,868,060		48,106,457		51,120,648		49,688,231		35,302,735		34,337,959		38,010,595		42,489,999		37,806,952		38,179,143		34,193,038		35,416,186		55,045,713		79,658,646		82,610,844		71,867,631		64,097,837		62,118,196		69,569,755		77,232,683		69,755,947		71,473,464		65,564,715		69,782,069		87,557,341		871,289,127

				NON-OPERATING

						Interest Income				30,210		33,743		37,277		40,810		44,343		47,877		55,547		56,261		56,975		57,689		58,403		59,117		102,204		102,370		102,536		102,703		102,870		103,037		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		102,620		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		9,000		9,000		8,000		7,000		9,000		16,583		19,567		23,551		30,534		37,518		44,501		46,484		260,738		5/9/22		Working capital + BlocPower Interest

						Grants				0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		68,750		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		894,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0

						Other Non-Operating Revenue																																																																																				15,000																15,000



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				30,210		33,743		37,277		40,810		44,343		47,877		55,547		56,261		56,975		57,689		58,403		59,117		102,204		171,120		102,536		102,703		171,620		103,037		102,620		171,370		102,620		102,620		171,370		102,620		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		70,091		62,267		62,493		62,758		68,523		72,959		964,091		9,000		9,000		8,000		7,000		24,000		16,583		19,567		23,551		30,534		37,518		44,501		46,484		275,738

				TOTAL REVENUES						46,145,815		46,253,513		44,629,132		44,167,623		42,722,843		47,338,286		38,614,577		34,884,246		36,128,543		33,900,450		34,731,936		35,628,587		40,563,920		40,986,274		40,234,106		37,608,530		28,266,989		31,938,477		26,913,294		23,369,362		24,781,367		27,122,917		34,252,724		36,970,680		48,168,724		51,183,141		49,750,989		35,371,258		34,410,918		38,080,686		42,552,266		37,869,444		38,241,900		34,261,562		35,489,145		56,009,803		79,667,646		82,619,844		71,875,631		64,104,837		62,142,196		69,586,338		77,252,250		69,779,498		71,503,998		65,602,233		69,826,570		87,603,825		871,564,865

		EXPENSES

				CAISO $/MWh Estimate																																																																														1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54		1.54

		ENERGY

				ISTs						21,647,856		23,673,828		21,222,360		18,113,520		17,301,826		19,087,768		9,382,212		8,570,196		8,625,859		7,599,240		7,895,700		8,147,160		20,548,896		20,705,136		19,248,360		19,553,736		17,502,432		18,673,566		6,357,944		5,850,672		6,504,156		9,784,987		9,852,611		9,784,987		21,807,757		22,550,204		20,070,025		17,072,794		15,448,088		16,228,326		8,070,184		7,112,702		7,474,114		6,825,983		7,195,148		10,123,820		14,904,899		15,666,755		14,041,246		14,759,599		11,868,415		12,411,230		6,495,855		5,328,312		5,664,133		5,344,404		5,528,462		5,359,292		117,372,602		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				OPEN						4,038,717		3,168,151		2,266,562		3,014,803		2,795,651		5,567,683		17,200,844		13,765,842		10,654,710		7,328,907		7,431,717		11,193,313		1,936,590		2,532,409		2,197,478		1,105,385		2,505,528		4,417,928		15,362,577		11,626,759		9,598,118		6,792,359		6,904,685		7,600,498		5,388,816		10,820,801		6,554,432		7,274,583		8,919,626		12,485,533		23,111,050		17,197,715		14,489,875		9,127,048		9,194,964		10,841,922		16,100,379		23,147,050		18,056,043		13,954,916		19,530,497		28,825,028		43,407,705		33,067,398		25,634,433		11,476,943		11,830,988		17,269,298		262,300,678		5/3/22		Contracts DB Test w/Prepay

				BASIS																														850,441		832,968		568,007		453,607		450,137		560,533		222,613		175,254		186,614		305,313		341,585		381,274		996,899		1,136,123		717,862		519,906		584,534		614,902		268,577		302,274		322,891		325,212		361,708		502,183		845,390		871,134		566,092		480,742		485,557		456,159		227,810		229,670		244,496		447,673		459,087		435,300		5,749,110		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				CAISO						1,945,392		1,946,982		1,874,759		1,850,155		1,786,284		1,978,199		1,989,229		1,796,947		1,860,945		1,747,029		1,792,019		1,846,726		662,885		669,805		652,316		641,876		626,125		695,398		681,866		590,727		632,815		586,940		604,324		618,708		993,239		1,055,811		985,905		960,005		933,998		1,029,355		1,030,004		879,901		955,433		853,032		883,572		930,982		949,698		993,549		935,267		898,145		880,845		977,805		970,790		842,913		914,192		827,085		872,515		908,287		10,971,091

				NEM																																																						1,117,345		741,004		230,612		196,265		-135,130		-421,656		-375,110		-169,411		-33,463		-676,153		322,520		1,120,881		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		-225,384		107,507		373,627		255,750



				Total Energy						27,631,965		28,788,960		25,363,681		22,978,477		21,883,761		26,633,651		28,572,285		24,132,984		21,141,515		16,675,177		17,119,436		21,187,199		23,998,812		24,740,318		22,666,161		21,754,604		21,084,222		24,347,425		22,625,000		18,243,412		16,921,703		17,469,599		17,703,205		18,385,467		30,304,056		36,303,942		28,558,835		26,023,553		25,751,117		29,936,459		32,104,705		25,323,181		23,208,849		16,455,122		17,957,912		23,519,788		32,800,366		40,678,488		33,598,648		30,093,402		32,765,314		42,670,222		51,102,160		39,468,293		32,457,254		17,870,721		18,798,559		24,345,804		396,649,231

		ATTRIBUTES

				CAPACITY						4,168,343		4,800,714		3,614,495		2,927,362		2,620,493		2,830,725		4,447,599		4,396,640		3,439,562		4,511,298		4,624,287		4,808,713		5,928,814		7,569,593		6,360,850		4,426,707		4,083,057		5,122,865		5,785,902		5,478,057		4,550,795		4,553,744		4,698,162		4,713,287		9,101,974		8,240,112		8,757,145		6,247,015		5,808,860		6,156,532		4,830,937		4,592,669		3,971,949		4,873,765		6,094,666		5,825,309		7,608,188		10,082,187		10,593,531		8,515,282		6,595,178		6,969,295		5,611,116		5,505,898		4,789,465		4,459,266		7,187,740		8,207,248		86,124,394		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				PPA																														0		0		0		0		0		0		490,757		490,757		490,757		1,880,563		2,027,444		2,054,612		1,866,528		1,812,190		1,675,498		1,098,943		889,235		808,578		1,025,339		1,205,116		1,557,382		2,291,887		2,502,032		2,540,902		3,821,882		3,744,140		3,548,572		2,185,978		1,885,944		1,770,547		1,869,606		2,052,254		2,410,147		5,182,276		5,586,014		5,660,694		39,718,054		5/3/22		Contracts DB

				RECs						2,475,538		2,475,538		2,395,682		2,475,538		2,395,682		2,475,538		3,759,884		3,517,311		3,759,884		3,638,597		3,759,884		3,638,597		2,921,920		2,954,999		2,885,247		2,849,256		2,780,887		3,082,842		3,388,993		2,911,602		3,135,619		2,032,708		2,011,029		2,051,606		2,293,219		2,500,061		2,388,208		2,555,612		2,596,036		2,946,449		3,133,977		2,500,914		2,555,839		1,915,737		1,892,125		2,021,201		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		3,037,500		36,450,000		5/3/22

				CO2						1,655,689		1,655,689		1,602,280		1,655,689		1,602,280		1,655,689		1,875,236		1,754,253		1,875,236		1,814,745		1,875,236		1,814,745		402,940		408,949		396,279		389,741		377,323		432,170		316,672		257,994		285,529		255,971		266,787		274,268		423,568		451,424		421,349		410,125		398,656		440,753		149,104		125,086		137,026		120,919		125,676		132,689		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		351,750		4,221,000		5/9/22		Contracts DB

				Broker																														30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		30,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		40,000		480,000



				Total Attributes						8,299,570		8,931,941		7,612,456		7,058,589		6,618,455		6,961,952		10,082,719		9,668,204		9,074,682		9,964,640		10,259,407		10,262,055		9,283,674		10,963,541		9,672,376		7,695,704		7,271,267		8,667,877		10,012,324		9,168,410		8,492,700		8,752,986		9,033,422		9,123,773		13,725,289		13,043,787		13,282,200		10,351,695		9,732,787		10,392,312		9,179,357		8,463,785		8,262,196		9,242,308		10,654,499		10,560,101		14,859,320		17,255,577		17,571,353		14,130,510		11,910,372		12,169,092		10,909,972		10,987,402		10,628,862		13,070,792		16,203,004		17,297,192		166,993,448

		SERVICES

				CRM						558,552		559,400		560,247		561,069		561,916		562,736		563,584		564,433		565,226		566,073		566,894		567,741		592,073		593,317		594,561		595,806		597,050		598,294		685,187		686,609		788,031		789,453		789,875		692,297		782,002		782,755		783,509		784,263		785,016		785,770		655,436		656,064		656,692		657,320		657,948		658,576		650,901		651,442		651,983		652,525		653,066		653,607		654,149		654,690		655,231		655,773		656,314		656,856		7,846,536

				Metering						186,184		186,467		186,749		187,023		187,305		187,579		187,861		188,144		188,409		188,691		188,965		189,247		197,358		197,772		198,187		198,602		199,017		199,431		199,846		200,261		229,676		230,090		230,505		201,920		228,084		228,304		228,523		228,743		228,963		229,183		229,403		229,622		229,842		230,062		230,282		230,502		225,560		225,747		225,935		226,122		226,310		226,498		226,685		226,873		227,060		227,248		227,436		227,623		2,719,097

				Scheduling						54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		54,400		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,000		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		55,488		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		85,000		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		56,597		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		59,427		696,144



				Total Services						799,136		800,267		801,397		802,491		803,621		804,715		805,846		806,977		808,034		809,164		810,259		811,388		844,431		846,090		847,749		849,408		851,067		852,726		940,033		941,870		1,072,706		1,074,543		1,075,380		949,217		1,065,574		1,066,547		1,067,521		1,068,494		1,069,467		1,070,441		969,839		970,687		971,534		972,382		973,230		974,078		933,058		933,786		934,515		935,244		935,973		936,702		940,261		940,990		941,718		942,448		943,177		943,906		11,261,777

		OPERATING OVERHEAD

				Personnel						497,015		513,385		546,039		567,066		581,812		580,673		578,095		575,154		571,305		567,150		566,137		559,149		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		619,083		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		847,583		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		1,309,250		15,711,000		5/1/22		From Staffing_v2

				Marketing, Outreach, Communications						188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		188,583		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		128,667		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		140,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		239,500		2,874,000		4/4/22		From MAS Budget 

				Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs						132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		132,167		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		108,083		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		132,667		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		161,333		1,936,000

				Other Professional Services						101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		101,167		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		112,083		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		70,833		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		191,083		2,293,000

				General & Administrative						190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		190,817		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		178,833		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		246,750		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		317,250		3,807,000

				Depreciation						5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,083		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		5,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		25,000		180,000



				Total Internal Costs						1,114,832		1,131,202		1,163,856		1,184,883		1,199,629		1,198,490		1,195,912		1,192,971		1,189,121		1,184,967		1,183,954		1,176,965		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		26,801,000



		NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

				Borrowing Interest						117,429		118,415		115,427		108,735		109,253		102,647		102,842		99,556		89,977		92,778		86,421		85,778		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		67,000		76,265		76,265		73,805		76,265		73,805		76,265		76,265		68,884		76,265		73,805		76,265		73,805		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		120,000		1,440,000

				Local Development Funding						522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		522,917		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		528,333		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		706,250		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		1,716,667		20,600,000		4/1/22		Guidance from Nick

				Grants																																																																														15,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0		15,000,000

				Capital Expenditures																																																										5,500,000																				1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		7,000,000

						Building Improvements																																																																												1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		1,000,000		0		0		0		0		0		7,000,000

						Investments



				Total Non-Operating Expenses						640,345		641,332		638,343		631,652		632,169		625,564		625,759		622,473		612,894		615,695		609,338		608,695		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		782,515		782,515		6,280,055		782,515		780,055		782,515		782,515		775,134		782,515		780,055		782,515		780,055		18,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		51,040,000

		TOTAL ENERGY EXPENSES								35,931,535		37,720,901		32,976,138		30,037,066		28,502,216		33,595,603		38,655,004		33,801,188		30,216,197		26,639,817		27,378,843		31,449,254		33,282,486		35,703,859		32,338,537		29,450,308		28,355,489		33,015,302		32,637,324		27,411,822		25,414,403		26,222,585		26,736,627		27,509,240		44,029,345		49,347,730		41,841,035		36,375,248		35,483,904		40,328,772		41,284,062		33,786,966		31,471,046		25,697,429		28,612,410		34,079,890		47,659,686		57,934,065		51,170,001		44,223,912		44,675,686		54,839,314		62,012,132		50,455,695		43,086,116		30,941,513		35,001,563		41,642,996		563,642,679

		TOTAL ENERGY SERVICES EXPENSES								799,136		800,267		801,397		802,491		803,621		804,715		805,846		806,977		808,034		809,164		810,259		811,388		844,431		846,090		847,749		849,408		851,067		852,726		940,033		941,870		1,072,706		1,074,543		1,075,380		949,217		1,065,574		1,066,547		1,067,521		1,068,494		1,069,467		1,070,441		969,839		970,687		971,534		972,382		973,230		974,078		933,058		933,786		934,515		935,244		935,973		936,702		940,261		940,990		941,718		942,448		943,177		943,906		11,261,777

		TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES								1,114,832		1,131,202		1,163,856		1,184,883		1,199,629		1,198,490		1,195,912		1,192,971		1,189,121		1,184,967		1,183,954		1,176,965		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,151,750		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		1,443,333		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,223,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		2,243,417		26,801,000

		TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES								640,345		641,332		638,343		631,652		632,169		625,564		625,759		622,473		612,894		615,695		609,338		608,695		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		595,333		782,515		782,515		6,280,055		782,515		780,055		782,515		782,515		775,134		782,515		780,055		782,515		780,055		18,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		3,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		1,836,667		51,040,000



		TOTAL EXPENSES								38,485,848		40,293,701		35,579,733		32,656,093		31,137,635		36,224,371		41,282,521		36,423,609		32,826,246		29,249,642		29,982,393		34,046,303		35,874,000		38,297,032		34,933,369		32,046,799		30,953,639		35,615,111		35,324,440		30,100,775		28,234,193		29,044,211		29,559,090		30,205,540		47,320,767		52,640,125		50,631,944		39,669,590		38,776,759		43,625,060		44,479,749		36,976,121		34,668,429		28,893,199		31,811,488		37,277,355		69,652,827		64,927,934		58,164,600		51,219,239		51,671,742		61,836,100		69,032,476		55,476,768		48,107,918		35,964,044		40,024,823		46,666,985		652,745,456

		NET REVENUES								7,659,968		5,959,812		9,049,399		11,511,530		11,585,208		11,113,915		-2,667,944		-1,539,362		3,302,298		4,650,808		4,749,543		1,582,285		4,689,920		2,689,243		5,300,737		5,561,731		-2,686,650		-3,676,634		-8,411,147		-6,731,413		-3,452,826		-1,921,294		4,693,634		6,765,140		847,957		-1,456,984		-880,955		-4,298,332		-4,365,841		-5,544,375		-1,927,483		893,324		3,573,472		5,368,362		3,677,656		18,732,448		10,014,819		17,691,910		13,711,031		12,885,598		10,470,453		7,750,238		8,219,774		14,302,729		23,396,081		29,638,189		29,801,746		40,936,840		218,819,408

		Cumulative Net Revenues by FY																																																								847,957		-609,027		-1,489,982		-5,788,315		-10,154,156		-15,698,530		-17,626,013		-16,732,690		-13,159,218		-7,790,855		-4,113,199		14,619,249		10,014,819		27,706,729		41,417,760		54,303,357		64,773,811		72,524,049		80,743,823		95,046,552		118,442,633		148,080,822		177,882,568		218,819,408



		ACCOUNTS								531,954		532,762		533,569		534,351		535,158		535,939		536,747		537,555		538,310		539,117		539,899		540,706		563,879		565,064		566,249		567,434		568,619		569,804		570,989		572,174		573,359		574,544		575,729		576,914		651,668		652,296		652,924		653,552		654,180		654,808		655,436		656,064		656,692		657,320		657,948		658,576		644,456		644,992		645,528		646,064		646,600		647,136		647,672		648,208		648,744		649,280		649,816		650,352

		WHOLESALE LOAD (MWh)								555,826		556,280		535,645		528,616		510,367		565,200		568,351		513,413		531,699		499,151		512,005		527,636		547,839		553,558		539,104		530,476		517,459		574,709		563,526		488,204		522,988		485,074		499,441		511,329		644,961		685,592		640,198		623,380		606,492		668,412		668,834		571,364		620,411		553,917		573,748		604,534		616,687		645,162		607,316		583,211		571,977		634,938		630,383		547,346		593,631		537,068		566,568		589,797				4/1/22		Contracts DB

		RETAIL LOAD (MWh)								519,302		520,411		502,208		497,300		480,302		531,458		534,086		482,838		500,334		469,868		481,325		494,053		511,814		517,650		505,344		498,994		486,932		540,205		529,694		459,163		492,260		456,731		469,732		478,724		604,125		615,923		594,130		574,639		562,863		614,990		620,403		540,029		576,103		523,354		546,204		562,458		575,281		601,786		568,117		547,507		537,369		595,837		591,797		514,112		557,853		504,840		531,843		551,238				4/1/22		Contracts DB

										6.6%		6.4%		6.2%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.0%		6.0%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.4%		6.6%		6.5%		6.3%		5.9%		5.9%		6.0%		6.0%		5.9%		5.9%		5.8%		5.9%		6.4%		6.3%		10.2%		7.2%		7.8%		7.2%		8.0%		7.2%		5.5%		7.1%		5.5%		4.8%		7.0%		6.7%		6.7%		6.5%		6.1%		6.1%		6.2%		6.1%		6.1%		6.0%		6.0%		6.1%		6.5%

		Average Price																																																						53.80		68.27		71.98		65.36		58.35		58.51		60.34		61.73		59.13		50.73		46.39		49.87		56.37		77.28		89.80		84.26		75.83		78.11		86.37		98.37		92.18		72.58		57.61		61.78		70.61

		VWAP/FY																																																								59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		59.28		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12		79.12





DevDash

																		2023		2022		2022				2021				2020

										1		2		3		4

										Q1		Q2		Q3		Q4		FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2021-22				FY 2020-21				FY 2019-20

										Jul-Sep		Oct-Dec		Jan-Mar		Apr-Jun		DRAFT BUDGET		BUDGET		YTD* + EST				BUDGET				BUDGET

		OPERATING ACTIVITY

				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						GASB 62 Unrecognized Revenue Balance												15,814,000		15,814,000		15,814,000				12,680,000				0

						Operating Revenue

								Electricity Sales		245,272,000		199,781,000		222,921,000		227,453,000		895,427,000		508,636,000		196,455,000				401,405,000				487,014,000

								Uncollectables		(4,905,000)		(3,996,000)		(4,458,000)		(4,549,000)		(17,908,000)		(8,939,000)		(2,947,000)				(9,902,000)				(2,447,000)

								Other Operations Revenue		(6,229,000)		0		0		0		(6,229,000)		0		700,000				0				0



						Total Operating Revenue				234,138,000		195,785,000		218,463,000		222,904,000		871,290,000		499,697,000		194,208,000				391,503,000				484,567,000



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Energy Operating Expenses

								Open										262,301,000		135,406,000		50,582,000				72,580,000				88,427,000		46.5%

								Hedges										117,373,000		159,979,000		26,213,000				164,367,000				171,268,000		20.8%

								Capacity										86,124,000		74,501,000		19,243,000				63,272,000				47,190,000		15.3%

								PPA										39,718,000		19,274,000		12,724,000				7,435,000				0		7.0%

								REC										36,450,000		29,299,000		4,216,000				33,007,000				36,768,000		6.5%

								CAISO										10,971,000		11,491,000		2,592,000				7,664,000				22,415,000		1.9%

								Basis										5,749,000		6,653,000		1,244,000				5,328,000				0		1.0%

								CO2										4,221,000		3,336,000		422,000				4,065,000				20,837,000		0.7%

								NEM										256,000		1,918,000		767,000				0				0		0.0%

								Broker										480,000		480,000		120,000				360,000				0		0.1%

								Cost of Energy		156,764,000		143,739,000		155,554,000		107,586,000		563,643,000		442,337,000		118,123,000				358,078,000				386,905,000

								Data Management/Customer Service										7,847,000		8,645,000		1,930,000				8,003,000				6,758,000

								PG&E Service Fees (Billing/Metering)										2,719,000		2,752,000		676,000				2,483,000				2,253,000

								CAISO Scheduling Coordinator										696,000		843,000		255,000				660,000				653,000

								Energy Operating Services		2,801,000		2,808,000		2,823,000		2,829,000		11,262,000		12,240,000		2,861,000				11,146,000				9,664,000



						Total Energy Operating Expenses				159,565,000		146,547,000		158,377,000		110,415,000		574,905,000		454,577,000		120,984,000				369,224,000				396,569,000



						Overhead Operating Expenses

								Personnel		3,928,000		3,928,000		3,928,000		3,928,000		15,712,000		10,171,000		2,543,000				7,429,000				6,703,000

								Marketing & Communications		719,000		719,000		719,000		719,000		2,876,000		1,686,000		422,000				1,544,000				2,263,000

								Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs		484,000		484,000		484,000		484,000		1,936,000		1,592,000		398,000				1,297,000				1,586,000

								Other Professional Services		573,000		573,000		573,000		573,000		2,292,000		850,000		213,000				1,345,000				1,214,000

								General & Administrative		952,000		952,000		952,000		952,000		3,808,000		2,961,000		740,000				2,146,000				2,290,000

								Depreciation		15,000		15,000		75,000		75,000		180,000		60,000		15,000				60,000				61,000



						Total Overhead Operating Expenses				6,671,000		6,671,000		6,731,000		6,731,000		26,804,000		17,320,000		4,331,000				13,821,000				14,117,000



						Total Operating Expenses				166,236,000		153,218,000		165,108,000		117,146,000		601,709,000		471,897,000		125,315,000				383,045,000				410,686,000



				NET OPERATING POSITION						67,902,000		42,567,000



		NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY

				NON-OPERATING REVENUE

								Interest Income		26,000		33,000		74,000		129,000		262,000		798,000		28,000				1,231,000				578,000

								Grants		0		0		0		0		0		894,000		894,000				275,000				0

								Other Non-Operating Revenue		0		15,000		0		0		15,000		0		0				0				0



						Total Non-Operating Revenue				26,000		48,000		74,000		129,000		277,000		1,692,000		922,000				1,506,000				578,000



				NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

								Borrowing Interest		360,000		360,000		360,000		360,000		1,440,000		898,000		224,000				804,000				1,229,000

								Local Development Funding		5,150,000		5,150,000		5,150,000		5,150,000		20,600,000		8,475,000		8,475,000				6,340,000				6,275,000		1.4306784661

								Grant		15,000,000		0		0		0		15,000,000		0		0				0				0

								Capital Expenditures		3,000,000		3,000,000		1,000,000		0		7,000,000		5,500,000		426,000				0				0



						Total Non-Operating Expenses				23,510,000		8,510,000		6,510,000		5,510,000		44,040,000		14,873,000		9,125,000				7,144,000				7,504,000



				NET NON-OPERATING ACTIVITY						(23,484,000)		(8,462,000)		(6,436,000)		(5,381,000)		(43,763,000)		(13,181,000)		(8,203,000)				(5,638,000)				(6,926,000)



				TOTAL REVENUES						234,164,000		195,833,000		218,537,000		223,033,000		871,567,000		501,389,000		195,130,000				393,009,000				485,145,000

				TOTAL EXPENSES						189,746,000		161,728,000		171,618,000		122,656,000		645,749,000		486,770,000		134,440,000				390,189,000				418,190,000



		NET INCREASE(DECREASE) IN POSITION								44,418,000		34,105,000		46,919,000		100,377,000		225,818,000		14,619,000		60,690,000				2,820,000				66,955,000



		RESERVE BALANCE

						Beginning Reserve Balance												TBD		90,218,000		90,218,000				90,218,000				40,514,000

						FY Contribution												TBD		TBD		TBD				0				49,704,000

						Reserve Balance												TBD		90,218,000		90,218,000				90,218,000				90,218,000

						Percent of Expenses														18.5%		67.1%				23.1%				21.6%

				0.2500		Minimum Target (25%)												161,437,000		121,693,000		33,610,000				97,547,000				104,548,000

				0.5000		Operating Target (50%)												322,875,000		243,385,000		67,220,000				195,095,000				209,095,000

				0.7500		Maximum Target (75%)												484,312,000		365,078,000		100,830,000				292,642,000				313,643,000



		LOAD

				Wholesale						1,869,165		1,790,126		1,771,360		1,693,433		7,124,084		7,461,842		7,086,497				6,333,709				6,404,190

				Retail						1,745,184		1,680,713		1,663,762		1,587,921		6,677,580		6,935,221		6,644,759				5,947,243				6,013,486

										6.6%		6.1%		6.1%		6.2%		6.3%		7.1%		6.2%				6.1%				6.1%

		PRICES

				Energy ($/MWh)						83.87		80.30		87.82		63.53		79.12		59.28		16.67				56.54				60.41

				Effective ($/MWh)						101.51		90.34		96.88		72.43		90.64		65.23		18.97				61.61				65.30





Energy Operating Expenses



Energy Operating Expenses	



Energy Cost Distribution	

Relative Monthly Average Energy Costs



FY 21/22 Budget	7	8	9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4	5	6	68.27	71.98	65.36	58.35	58.51	60.34	61.73	59.13	50.73	46.39	49.87	56.37	FY 21/22 Actuals	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	74.14	67.87	68.91	FY 22/23 Budget	77.28	89.8	84.26	75.83	78.11	86.37	98.37	92.18	72.58	57.61	61.78	70.61	Month by Number (7=July)











DevChangLog

		Date		FY Initial		FY Final		Delta		Sheet		Item		Notes

		3/29/22		222,175,000		222,175,000		0		None		None		Initialization 

		4/1/22		222,175,000		199,359,000		(22,816,000)		Budget		Open		Update from E-Dash line 62

		4/1/22		199,359,000		199,466,000		107,000		Budget		Basis		Update from E-Dash line 67

		4/1/22		199,466,000		197,953,000		(1,513,000)		Budget		RA		Update from RA-Dash line 61

		4/1/22		197,953,000		199,232,000		1,279,000		Budget		PPA		Update from PPA-Dash line 20

		4/1/22		199,232,000		199,195,000		(37,000)		Budget		CO2		Update from Sheet3 line 29

		4/1/22		199,195,000		199,206,000		11,000		Budget		Wholesale Load		Update from E-Dash line  19

		4/1/22		199,206,000		199,217,000		11,000		Actuals		Accounts		Added January account total from SMUD invoice 44

		4/1/22		199,217,000		179,017,000		(20,200,000)		Budget		REC		Update from REC-Annual line 73

		4/1/22		179,017,000		176,617,000		(2,400,000)		Budget		Local Development 		Update guidance from Nick via Slack

		4/1/22		176,617,000		176,633,000		16,000		Actuals		Accounts		Added February account total from SMUD invoice 45

		4/1/22		176,633,000		170,261,000		(6,372,000)		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total less deffered comp

		4/1/22		170,261,000		229,286,000		59,025,000		Budget		Revenues		Update from ST-Case20220330

		4/4/22		229,286,000		227,650,000		(1,636,000)		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total

		4/4/22		227,650,000		227,862,000		212,000		DevChart		Marketing		Added Marketing Budget for 2023

		4/5/22		227,862,000		223,862,000		(4,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Building improvements

		4/5/22		223,862,000		226,262,000		2,400,000		Budget		REC		Reduced to $4M/mo. Still think it's high

		4/6/22		226,262,000		226,978,000		716,000		Budget		Personnel		Update from Staffing_v2 total

		4/6/22		226,978,000		224,978,000		(2,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Building improvements adjustments re Howard

		4/6/22		224,978,000		224,498,000		(480,000)		Budget		Borrowing Costs		Increased to reflect increased facility commitment fee

		4/6/22		224,498,000		223,958,000		(540,000)		Budget		Overhead		Increased by 10% from last year as placeholder

		4/7/22		223,958,000		221,693,000		(2,265,000)		Budget		Uncollectables		Adjusted to keep 2022 @ 1.5% from 1%

		4/8/22		221,693,000		211,693,000		(10,000,000)		Budget		Local Development 		Increased per Nick

		4/14/22		211,693,000		211,615,000		(78,000)		Actuals		Accounts		Updated with February accounts, which updated projections

		4/29/22		211,615,000		210,963,000		(652,000)		DevChart		Personnel		Updated from Staff_v2 on 20220429

		5/3/22		210,963,000		210,947,000		(16,000)		DevChart		Operations G&A		Completed G&A estimates

		5/3/22		210,947,000		297,049,000		86,102,000		Budget		Revenues		Updated with new base case from 20220503(3%BC…)

		5/3/22		297,049,000		244,743,000		(52,306,000)		Budget		Open		Updated from E-Dash line 62

		5/3/22		244,743,000		244,638,000		(105,000)		Budget		Basis		Update from E-Dash line 67

		5/3/22		244,638,000		237,638,000		(7,000,000)		Budget		Grants		Added UCSF Benioff grant

		5/3/22		237,638,000		230,910,000		(6,728,000)		Budget		Uncollectables		Increased uncollectables to 2% for full FY

		5/3/22		230,910,000		242,459,000		11,549,000		Budget		RECs		Updated RECs to match expected costs, including 5% increase in PCL

		5/4/22		242,459,000		241,974,000		(485,000)		Budget		Legal & Consultants		Increased expected increase to 30%

		5/4/22		241,974,000		241,638,000		(336,000)		DevChart		OPS		Updated some operating expenses related to new building

		5/4/22		241,638,000		240,354,000		(1,284,000)		Budget		Legal & Consultants		Integrated DevChart with Budget to complete Overhead integration

		5/4/22		240,354,000		232,354,000		(8,000,000)		Budget		Grants		Increased budget to $15MM for UCSF grant

		5/5/22		232,354,000		232,382,000		28,000		DevChart		HR Consultants		Removed the amount allocated to Account 59030 as it is covered in 59070

		5/5/22		232,382,000		232,222,000		(160,000)		DevChart		Retirement		Updated based on bonus structure

		5/9/22		232,222,000		226,423,000		(5,799,000)		Budget		Other Revenue		Reduced by $50 per CARE and FERA account in July

		5/9/22		226,423,000		225,023,000		(1,400,000)		DevChart		Marketing		Added Program costs to Marketing budget

		5/9/22		225,023,000		226,423,000		1,400,000		Budget		Local Development 		Reduced Programs to match marketing adjustment

		5/9/22		226,423,000		225,993,000		(430,000)		Budget		Other Revenue		Updated CARE & FERA count per Taj and Annie in Slack

		5/9/22		225,993,000		226,008,000		15,000		Budget		Other Revenue		Revenue from SaaS services with SVCE

		5/9/22		226,008,000		223,763,000		(2,245,000)		Budget		Carbon Free		Updated to 5/9 values @ $5.50

		5/9/22		223,763,000		225,575,000		1,812,000		DevChart		Personnel		Updated with references to updated Staff sheet

		5/9/22		225,575,000		225,608,000		33,000		Budget		Interest Income		Added BlocPower loan interest: 15Y, $1.0M, 5.5%

		5/10/22		225,608,000		224,608,000		(1,000,000)		Budget		Capital		Increased capex for building rehab by $1M per Howard comment in presentation

		5/10/22		224,608,000		224,538,000		(70,000)		Actuals		Accounts		Change in current accounts carried over to Services cost increase

				224,538,000		225,818,000		1,280,000

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0

				225,818,000		225,818,000		0





DevChart

														16,163,000		0		16,163,000				19,748,000		0		16,410,000				32,469,000

												FY		2021								2022								2023

		Indx		BudgetMap		Account		Account Name		Contractor		Rsrc		Budget		Actual		Delta				Budget		YTD		Delta				Budget

		7		A		50200		Data Manager				Tec		0		0		0				120,000		0		120,000				84,000

		6		M		50200		Data Manager				Mar		300,000		0		300,000				185,000		0		185,000				100,000

		8		M		50901		Other Noticing				Mar		75,000		0		75,000				0		0		0				0

		9		M		50902		Required Mailings				Mar		580,000		0		580,000				395,000		0		395,000				320,000

		9		M		50902		Required Mailings		For Programs		Mar																		200,000

		11		M		55010		Advertising				Mar		154,000		0		154,000				134,000		0		134,000				121,000

		11		M		55010		Advertising		For Programs		Mar																		450,000

		15		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				5,000

		14		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Mar		130,000		0		130,000				430,000		0		430,000				285,000

		14		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		For Programs		Mar																		125,000

		16		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships				Pol		0		0		0				25,000		0		25,000				25,000

		18		A		55055		Promotional Items				Ops		3,000		0		3,000				3,000		0		3,000				10,000

		17		M		55055		Promotional Items				Mar		10,000		0		10,000				10,000		0		10,000				25,000

		19		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses				Mar		8,000		0		8,000				8,000		0		8,000				15,000

		21		M		55070		Special Events				Mar		5,000		0		5,000				5,000		0		5,000				5,000

		22		A		56010		Bank service fee				Ops		1,000		0		1,000				1,000		0		1,000				1,000

		23		A		56020		Building maintenance				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				100,000

		24		A		56030		Business meals				Ops		18,000		0		18,000				15,000		0		15,000				25,000

		25		A		56040		Conferences & prof development				Ops		14,000		0		14,000				20,000		0		20,000				25,000

		26		A		56050		Equipment Lease				Ops		7,000		0		7,000				7,000		0		7,000				10,000

		27		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)				Ops		20,000		0		20,000				20,000		0		20,000				40,000

		29		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues				Ops		400,000		0		400,000				400,000		0		400,000				412,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				10,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				400,000

						56060		Industry memberships and dues		Bar Dues		Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				2,000

		30		A		56070		Insurance				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				18,000		0		18,000				100,000

		31		A		56080		Interest and fees expense				Ops		1,000		0		1,000				1,000		0		1,000				1,000

		32		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A				Ops		100,000		0		100,000				100,000		0		100,000				100,000

		33		A		56100		Office supplies and postage				Ops		75,000		0		75,000				40,000		0		40,000				100,000

		34		A		56110		Parking at office				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				12,000		0		12,000				12,000

		35		A		56120		Payroll service fees				Ops		12,000		0		12,000				10,000		0		10,000				10,000

		36		A		56130		Rent				Ops		429,000		0		429,000				438,000		0		438,000				250,000

		38		A		56140		Small equipment				Ops		65,000		0		65,000				100,000		0		100,000				200,000

		39		A		56140		Small equipment				Pow		50,000		0		50,000				0		0		0				0

		40		A		56140		Small equipment				Tec		75,000		0		75,000				0		0		0				0

		43		M		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Mar		50,000		0		50,000				72,000		0		72,000				50,000

		44		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Ops		40,000		0		40,000				50,000		0		50,000				60,000

		45		R		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Pol		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		41		G		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Leg		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		46		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Pow		250,000		0		250,000				726,000		0		726,000				975,000

		47		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS				Tec		560,000		0		560,000				630,000		0		630,000				1,064,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Aiqueous, LLC		Tec		15,000		0		15,000				0								90,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Battery Optimization		Pow		0		0		0				150,000								300,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		cQuant.io, Inc.		Pow		80,000		0		80,000				151,000								200,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Deal Capture		Pow		140,000		0		140,000				260,000								260,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Structured Finance		Pow		0		0		0				0								50,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Google		Tec		135,000		0		135,000				186,000								200,000

		46				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Miscellaneous		Pow		30,000		0		30,000				165,000								165,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Miscellaneous		Tec		10,000		0		10,000				140,000								100,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Camus Energy		Tec		0		0		0				0								70,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Myst AI, Inc.		Tec		50,000		0		50,000				144,000								204,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Customer Portal Development		Tec		0		0		0				0								250,000

		47				56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		Salesforce.com Inc.		Tec		350,000		0		350,000				160,000								150,000

		48		A		56160		Telephone and internet				Ops		35,000		0		35,000				30,000		0		30,000				50,000

		49		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				1,000

		50		A		56181		Retirement admin fees				Ops		18,000		0		18,000				15,000		0		15,000				15,000

		51		A		56190		Utilities				Ops		3,000		0		3,000				3,000		0		3,000				30,000

		52		A		56210		Mileage/fuel				Ops		11,000		0		11,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		53		A		56220		Parking and Tolls				Ops		4,000		0		4,000				2,000		0		2,000				2,000

		54		A		56230		Airfare				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		55		A		56240		Lodging				Ops		19,000		0		19,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		56		A		56250		Other Travel				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		57		A		56310		Board Meeting - Rental				Ops		16,000		0		16,000				10,000		0		10,000				15,000

		58		A		56330		Director's Fees				Ops		24,000		0		24,000				50,000		0		50,000				50,000

		60		M		57010		Community Grants				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

		62		B		59010		Accounting				Ops		220,000		0		220,000				250,000		0		250,000				265,000

		63		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting				Ops		0		0		0				100,000		0		100,000				0

		64		B		59040		IT Consulting				Ops		45,000		0		45,000				40,000		0		40,000				75,000

		65		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Leg		410,000		0		410,000				720,000		0		720,000				950,000

		67		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Pol		210,000		0		210,000				180,000		0		180,000				200,000

		68		G		59050		Legal Consultants				Pow		250,000		0		250,000				415,000		0		415,000				485,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Barclay's		Leg		0		0		0				30,000								100,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Braun Blaising Smith Wynne, P.C.		Pol		60,000		0		60,000				22,000								30,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Davis Wright Tremaine LLP		Pow		0		0		0				165,000								185,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Hall Energy Law PC		Pow		250,000		0		250,000				150,000								200,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Joe Wiedman		Pol		0		0		0				48,000								40,000

		67				59050		Legal Consultants		Keyes & Fox LLP		Pol		150,000		0		150,000				110,000								130,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		General JPA Costs		Leg		0		0		0				30,000								50,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Miscellaneous		Leg		60,000		0		60,000				310,000								350,000

		65				59050		Legal Consultants		Richards Watson & Gershon		Leg		350,000		0		350,000				350,000								450,000

		68				59050		Legal Consultants		Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati		Pow		0		0		0				100,000								100,000

		69		R		59060		Legislative Consultants				Pol		132,000		0		132,000				132,000		0		132,000				132,000

		69				59060		Legislative Consultants		Weideman Group, Inc		Pol		132,000		0		132,000				132,000								132,000

		71		M		59070		Consultants				Mar		0		0		0				0		0		0				15,000

		72		B		59070		Consultants				Ops		50,000		0		50,000				50,000		0		50,000				1,098,000

		73		R		59070		Consultants				Pol		150,000		0		150,000				75,000		0		75,000				99,000

		74		B		59070		Consultants				Pow		680,000		0		680,000				410,000		0		410,000				605,000

		75		B		59070		Consultants				Tec		0		0		0				0		0		0				250,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Aces		Pow		50,000		0		50,000				50,000								110,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Miscellaneous		Pow		400,000		0		400,000				35,000								100,000

		73				59070		Consultants		Crossboarder		Pol		150,000		0		150,000				0								0

		74				59070		Consultants		Energy GPS Consulting LLC		Pow		100,000		0		100,000				75,000								75,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Alan Comnes		Pow		0		0		0				0								50,000

		74				59070		Consultants		IRP		Pow		100,000		0		100,000				250,000								250,000

		74				59070		Consultants		Green-e Audit		Pow																		15,000

		74				59070		Consultants		CARB Audit		Pow																		5,000

		73				59070		Consultants		M.Cubed		Pol		0		0		0				15,000								15,000

		73				59070		Consultants		Miscellaneous		Pol		0		0		0				0								0

		73				59070		Consultants		NewGen Strategies and Solutions, LLC		Pol		0		0		0				60,000								60,000

		73				59070		Consultants		NP Energy		Pol		0		0		0				0								24,000

		74				59070		Consultants		PCL		Pow		30,000		0		30,000				0								0

		72				59070		Consultants		CERR		Ops		0		0		0				25,000								48,000

		72				59070		Consultants		PFM		Ops		0		0		0				25,000								50,000

		75				59070		Consultants		Rate Consultants for Cost of Service		Tec		0		0		0				0								250,000

		72				59070		Consultants		HR Needs		Ops		0		0		0				0								1,000,000

		76		M		59090		Communications consultants				Mar		282,000		0		282,000				447,000		0		447,000				528,000

		76		M		59090		Communications consultants		For Programs		Mar																		625,000

		78		R		59090		Communications consultants		Bentham Paulos		Pol		45,000		0		45,000				45,000		0		45,000				45,000

		79		S		60510		Employee welfare		Healthcare		Pay		526,000		0		526,000				765,000		0		765,000				1,632,000

		80		S		60520		Payroll tax expense				Pay		120,000		0		120,000				162,000		0		162,000				262,000

		81		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions				Pay		809,000		0		809,000				993,000		0		993,000				1,544,000

		82		S		60540		Salaries and wages		Salary, Bonus, & Other		Pay		5,931,000		0		5,931,000				7,058,000		0		7,058,000				11,598,000

		83		S		60550		Workers comp insurance				Pay		15,000		0		15,000				12,000		0		12,000				15,000

		84		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance				Pay		28,000		0		28,000				34,000		0		34,000				53,000

		85		S		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset				Pay		0		0		0				397,000		0		397,000				607,000

				S		60590		Temp Employees				Ops		0		0		0				0		0		0				0

				D		80200		Depreciation Expense				Dep		60,000		52,603		7,397				60,000		32,394		27,606				180,000

				A		99999		Energy Pre-pay--JPA operations				Ops		100,000		0		100,000				100,000		0		100,000				0

				L		99999		Local Development--Capital Transfer				Loc		6,340,000		6,340,000		0				8,475,000		0		8,475,000				22,000,000



















DevChartTables

								FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2021-22

								DRAFT BUDGET		BUDGET		YTD* + EST

						Salaries & Wages		11,598,000		7,058,000		1,765,000

				0.1331264011		Retirement		1,544,000		993,000		248,000

						Health Care/Benefits		2,292,000		1,196,000		376,000

						Payroll Expenses		277,000		174,000		44,000

						Total		15,711,000		9,421,000		2,433,000

		S		60510		Employee welfare		1,632,000		765,000		268,000

		S		60520		Payroll tax expense		262,000		162,000		41,000

		S		60530		Retirement plan contributions		1,544,000		993,000		248,000

		S		60540		Salaries and wages		11,598,000		7,058,000		1,765,000

		S		60550		Workers comp insurance		15,000		12,000		3,000

		S		60560		Empl Life Insurance		53,000		34,000		9,000

		S		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		607,000		397,000		99,000

		S		60590		Temp Employees		0		- 0		- 0



		B		59010		Accounting		265,000		250,000		63,000

		B		59030		Human Resources Consulting		1,000,000		100,000		25,000

		B		59040		IT Consulting		75,000		40,000		10,000

		B		59070		Consultants		953,000		460,000		115,000

						Total		2,293,000		850,000		213,000



						Data Manager		100,000		185,000		65,000

						Required Mailings		520,000		395,000		138,000

						Advertising		986,000		569,000		200,000

						Promotional Items		25,000		10,000		4,000

						Communications		1,233,000		455,000		184,000

						Total		2,864,000		1,614,000		591,000

		M		50200		Data Manager		100,000		185,000		65,000

		M		50901		Other Noticing		0		- 0		- 0

		M		50902		Required Mailings		520,000		395,000		138,000

		M		55010		Advertising		571,000		134,000		47,000

		M		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		410,000		430,000		151,000

		M		55055		Promotional Items		25,000		10,000		4,000

		M		55060		Communications - misc expenses		15,000		8,000		3,000

		M		55070		Special Events		5,000		5,000		2,000

		M		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		50,000		72,000		25,000

		M		57010		Community Grants		0		- 0		- 0

		M		59070		Consultants		15,000		- 0		- 0

		M		59090		Communications consultants		1,153,000		447,000		156,000



						Legal Consultants		1,635,000		1,315,000		1,315,000

						Legislative Consultants		132,000		132,000		132,000

						Other Consultants		144,000		120,000		42,000

						Sponsorships & Memberships		25,000		25,000		25,000

						Total		1,936,000		1,592,000		1,514,000

		R		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		25,000		25,000		9,000

		R		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		0		- 0		- 0

		G		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		0		- 0		- 0

		G		59050		Legal Consultants		1,635,000		1,315,000		460,000

		R		59060		Legislative Consultants		132,000		132,000		46,000

		R		59070		Consultants		99,000		75,000		26,000

		R		59090		Communications consultants		45,000		45,000		16,000





						Operational Expenses		748,000		877,000		307,000

						New Building Related Expenses		300,000		- 0		- 0

						Software, Subscriptions, SaaS		2,099,000		1,406,000		492,000

						Small Equipment		210,000		107,000		37,000

						Rent & Utilties		330,000		471,000		165,000

						Conferences & Prof. Development		55,000		40,000		15,000

						Board & Director Fees		65,000		60,000		22,000

						Total		3,807,000		2,961,000		1,038,000

		A		50200		Data Manager		84,000		120,000		42,000

		A		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		5,000		- 0		- 0

		A		55055		Promotional Items		10,000		3,000		1,000

		A		56010		Bank service fee		1,000		1,000		- 0

		A		56020		Building maintenance		100,000		- 0		- 0

		A		56030		Business meals		25,000		15,000		5,000

		A		56040		Conferences & prof development		25,000		20,000		7,000

		A		56050		Equipment Lease		10,000		7,000		2,000

		A		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		40,000		20,000		7,000

		A		56060		Industry memberships and dues		412,000		400,000		140,000

		A		56070		Insurance		100,000		18,000		6,000

		A		56080		Interest and fees expense		1,000		1,000		- 0

		A		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		100,000		100,000		35,000

		A		56100		Office supplies and postage		100,000		40,000		14,000

		A		56110		Parking at office		12,000		12,000		4,000

		A		56120		Payroll service fees		10,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56130		Rent		250,000		438,000		153,000

		A		56140		Small equipment		200,000		100,000		35,000

		A		56150		Subscription, Software, SaaS		2,099,000		1,406,000		492,000

		A		56160		Telephone and internet		50,000		30,000		11,000

		A		56180		Miscellaneous fees		1,000		- 0		- 0

		A		56181		Retirement admin fees		15,000		15,000		5,000

		A		56190		Utilities		30,000		3,000		1,000

		A		56210		Mileage/fuel		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56220		Parking and Tolls		2,000		2,000		1,000

		A		56230		Airfare		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56240		Lodging		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56250		Other Travel		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56310		Board Meeting - Rental		15,000		10,000		4,000

		A		56330		Director's Fees		50,000		50,000		18,000

		A		99999		Energy Pre-pay--JPA operations		0		100,000		35,000





Surplus

				NET POSITION WATERFALL						Dollars		Percent

				Projected Net Position Surplus						$   225,818,000



				Working Capital Demand*						$   50,000,000		22%

				Reserve Account Funding*						$   75,000,000		33%

				On-Bill Credits to Customers**						$   60,818,000		27%		$   100,818,000

						Expected Customer MWh Usage				6,678,000				$   50,409,000

						Customer Credit per kWh				$   0.009

				Renewable Content Development						$   40,000,000		18%



				*To be credited at end of year after net position realized

				**To be confirmed at end of year after net position realized

										0





LocDevDash

				LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

								FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2020-21		FY 2019-2020



				BEGINNING BALANCE				16,580,737		11,605,737		4,870,737		0



				REVENUE & OTHER SOURCES

						Transfer from Operating Fund		20,600,000		8,475,000		6,340,000		6,275,000

						Grants/Credits		- 0		- 0		395,000		- 0

						Total Revenues & Other Sources		20,600,000		8,475,000		6,735,000		6,275,000



				EXPENSES & OTHER USES

						Actual Program Expenses 		- 0		- 0		- 0		1,404,263

						Expected Remaing Expenses		37,180,737		3,500,000		- 0		- 0

						Total Expenses & Other Uses		37,180,737		3,500,000		- 0		1,404,263



				ENDING BALANCE				- 0		16,580,737		11,605,737		4,870,737



						Program Balances		FY 2022-23		FY 2021-22		FY 2020-21

				P001		Building Electrification				2,509,000		1,609,000		1,609,000

				P002		Collaborative Procurement				925,000		925,000

				P003		Demand Response				236,000		236,000

				P004		Energy Efficiency				824,000		824,000

				P005		Vehicle Electrification				11,841,000		6,043,000

				P006		COVID-19 Relief Fund/Community Grants				654,000		805,000

				P007		Community Investment				1,361,000		211,000

				P008		Sponsorships/Events				105,000		5,000

				P009		Resiliency				1,361,000		458,000

				L		Legal Resources				165,000		100,000

				M		MAS Resources				100,000		0

								0		20,081,000		11,216,000





Staff

								TOTALS										4,638,745		7,728,084		10,519,110				888,966				1,543,792		1,632,000		606,870		52,601		190,400		261,572		15,695,316								Jan 1 2022 Proposal:

																																																		21/22 - Low		21/22 - High		22/23 - Low		22/23 - High		Floor Bonus		Target Bonus		Max Bonus		Job Band		Job Level

																						7.50%		10.00%						6%		Increase by 25%																		$57,503		$64,574				$69,417		5%		15%		20%		1		Entry

																		FY 2021		FY 2022		FY 2023								8%				120		0.50%														$64,575		$83,639				$89,912		5%		15%		20%		2		Entry

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Retention/Bonus %		Retention/Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost								$83,640		$109,777				$118,010		5%		15%		20%		3		Entry

		1		12		Senior/Exec		Chief Executive Officer		Y		Chaset		Nicolas		O		350,000		374,500		425,000				50,000		13.5%		63,500		24,000		24,519		2,125		2,800

: Wellness benefit plus commuter benefit		10,084		602,028								$109,778		$124,530				$133,870		5%		15%		20%		4		Intermediate

		3		12		Senior/Exec		Chief Operating Officer		Y		Chang		Howard		O		332,500		355,775		400,000				50,000		12.4%		60,000		24,000		23,077		2,000		2,800		9,576		571,453								$124,531		$141,257				$151,851		5%		15%		20%		5		Intermediate

		4		10		Senior		VP Marketing & Account Services		Y		Henderson		Joanne		M		232,265		241,556		259,673		10.0%		25,967		7.5%		38,432		24,000		14,981		1,298		2,800		6,239		373,390								$141,258		$156,055				$167,759		5%		15%		20%		6		Intermediate

		6		10		Senior		VP Public Policy/Deputy General Counsel		Y		Brandt		Melissa		R		205,871		231,394		248,749		10.0%		24,875		7.5%		36,815		24,000		14,351		1,244		2,800		5,996		358,830								$156,056		$177,734				$191,064		5%		15%		20%		7		Senior

		7		8		Senior		Marketing Director		Y		Lieberman		Daniel		M		189,625		195,314		209,963		10.0%		20,996		7.5%		31,075		24,000		12,113		1,050		2,800		5,129		307,126								$177,735		$204,487				$219,824		5%		15%		20%		8		Senior

		8		10		Senior		VP Technology & Analytics		Y		Ait-Laoussine		Taj		T		237,930		249,827		268,564		10.0%		26,856		7.5%		39,747		24,000		15,494		1,343		2,800		6,438		385,243								$204,488		$231,393				$248,747		10%		30%		45%		9		Senior

		13		6		Intermediate		Data Scientist		Y		Li		Kevin		T		148,350		154,284		165,855		10.0%		16,586		7.5%		24,547		24,000		9,569		829		2,800		4,145		248,331								$231,394		$269,062				$289,242		10%		30%		45%		10		Senior/Exec

		14		8		Senior		Director of Regulatory Affairs & Deputy General Counsel		Y		Edmister		Todd		R		185,554		192,976		207,449		10.0%		20,745		7.5%		30,702		24,000		11,968		1,037		2,800		5,073		303,774								$269,063		$295,968				$318,166		25%		100%		150%		11		Senior/Exec

		17		3		Entry		Regulatory Analyst		Y		Boediarto		Feby		R		81,600		85,680		92,106		10.0%		9,211		7.5%		13,632		24,000		5,314		461		2,800		2,498		150,022

		18		6		Intermediate		Finance Manager		Y		Bartlett		Jason		O		146,549		150,945		162,266		10.0%		16,227		7.5%		24,015		24,000		9,362		811		2,800		4,064		243,545

		19		3		Entry		Executive Assistant		N		Smith		Meagan		O		99,646		102,635		110,333		10.0%		11,033		7.5%		16,329		24,000		6,365		552		2,800		2,905		174,317

		20		7		Intermediate		Senior Manager, Account Services		Y		Brezovec		Kelly		M		155,000		162,750		174,956		10.0%		17,496		7.5%		25,893		24,000		10,094		875		2,800		4,348		260,462

		21		10		Senior		VP Local Development		Y		Ross		John Peter		L		226,600		235,664		253,339		10.0%		25,334		7.5%		37,494		24,000		14,616		1,267		2,800		6,098		364,948

		22		7		Intermediate		Power Resources Manager		Y		Dorrance		James		P		135,211		156,056		167,760		10.0%		16,776		7.5%		24,828		24,000		9,678		839		2,800		4,187		250,868

		23		7		Intermediate		Senior Distributed Energy Resources Manager		Y		Denver		Jessie		L		155,150		161,356		173,458		10.0%		17,346		7.5%		25,672		24,000		10,007		867		2,800		4,314		258,464

		25		6		Intermediate		Public Engagement Manager		Y		DiGiorgio		Alex		M		143,500		147,805		158,890		10.0%		15,889		7.5%		23,516		24,000		9,167		794		2,800		3,989		239,045

		27		8		Senior		Power Resources Senior Mananger		Y		Eshleman		Christopher		P		153,750		190,000		204,250		10.0%		20,425		7.5%		30,229		24,000		11,784		1,021		2,800		5,002		299,511

		28		4		Intermediate		Strategic Operations Associate		Y		Gerber		Vanessa		O		94,125		112,522		120,961		10.0%		12,096		7.5%		17,902		24,000		6,979		605		2,800		3,142		188,485

		30		4		Intermediate		Contract Management Associate		Y		Gilmore		Molly		R		110,513		116,039		124,742		10.0%		12,474		7.5%		18,462		24,000		7,197		624		2,800		3,226		193,525

		31		10		Senior		Power Resources Senior Director		Y		Fontenot		Marie		P		213,500		229,905		247,148		30.0%		74,144		7.5%		40,532		24,000		14,259		1,236		2,800		6,963		411,083

		32		1		Entry		Outreach Fellow		N		Cortez		Juan		M		52,000		61,039		65,616		10.0%		6,562		7.5%		9,711		24,000		3,786		328		2,800		1,906		114,709

		33		7		Intermediate		Modeler in Chief		Y		Allen		Douglas		T		157,583		163,886		176,177		10.0%		17,618		7.5%		26,074		24,000		10,164		881		2,800		4,375		262,089

		34		4		Intermediate		DER Program Associate		Y		Thompson		Zachary		L		116,917		121,594		130,714		10.0%		13,071		7.5%		19,346		24,000		7,541		654		2,800		3,360		201,487

		35		6		Intermediate		Program Manager Energy Efficiency & Building Electricifation		Y		Menten		Rebecca		L		147,115		151,528		162,893		10.0%		16,289		7.5%		24,108		24,000		9,398		814		2,800		4,078		244,380

		36		3		Entry		Customer Care Coordinator		N		Tsotu		Gabrielle		M		65,948		83,640		89,913		10.0%		8,991		7.5%		13,307		24,000		5,187		450		2,800		2,449		147,097

		39		3		Entry		Clerk of the Board		N		Bankhead		Adrian		O		79,318		88,150		94,761		10.0%		9,476		7.5%		14,025		24,000		5,467		474		2,800		2,557		153,560

		40		8		Senior		Director of Analytics		Y		Ponce de Leon Barido		Diego		T		181,875		189,150		203,336		10.0%		20,334		7.5%		30,094		24,000		11,731		1,017		2,800		4,981		298,293

		44		5		Intermediate		HR Business Partner		Y		Taylor		Mari-Len		O		109,500		134,266		144,336		10.0%		14,434		7.5%		21,362		24,000		8,327		722		2,800		3,664		219,645

		45		6		Intermediate		Data Engineer		Y		Subramanian		Sanjay		T		131,250		150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191

		46		5		Intermediate		Power Resources Senior Associate		Y		Lee		Karen		P				141,258		151,852		10.0%		15,185		7.5%		22,474		24,000		8,761		759		2,800		3,832		229,663

		47		6		Intermediate		Programs Marketing Manager		Y		Dynes		Lori		M				140,000		150,500		10.0%		15,050		7.5%		22,274		24,000		8,683		753		2,800		3,802		227,862

		50		6		Intermediate		Principal Regulatory Analyst, Transportation Electrification		Y		Hernandez		Paul		R				150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191

		51		6		Intermediate		Associate Policy Manager		Y		Ward		Alec		R				141,000		151,575		10.0%		15,158		7.5%		22,433		24,000		8,745		758		2,800		3,826		229,295

		52		4		Intermediate		Account Svcs Business Associate		Y		Lewbin		David		M				131,000		140,825		10.0%		14,083		7.5%		20,842		24,000		8,125		704		2,800		3,586		214,965

		53		2		Entry		Public Engagement Coordinator		Y		Cady		Caitlyn		M				70,000		75,250		10.0%		7,525		7.5%		11,137		24,000		4,341		376		2,800		2,121		127,550

		54		4		Intermediate		Finance and Ops Associate		Y		Sit		Joseph		O				117,500		126,313		10.0%		12,631		7.5%		18,694		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,262		195,619

		55		6		Intermediate		Resilience Manager		Y		Ventura		Feliz		L				150,000		161,250		10.0%		16,125		7.5%		23,865		24,000		9,303		806		2,800		4,042		242,191



		Additional 2021-22 Hires

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Bonus %		Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost

		56		4		Intermediate		Salesforce Administrator		Y		Hamilton-Atkins		Mariana		T				110,000		110,000		10.0%		11,000		0.0%		16,280		24,000		6,346		550		2,800		2,897		173,873

		57		9		Senior		HR Senior Director		Y		Cherr		Trevor		O				230,000		230,000		10.0%		23,000		0.0%		34,040		24,000		13,269		1,150		2,800		5,577		333,836

		58		7		Senior		Power Resources Manager		Y		Carson		Izzy 		P				163,000		163,000		10.0%		16,300		0.0%		24,124		24,000		9,404		815		2,800		4,081		244,524

		59		5		Intermediate		Senior SalesForce Lead		Y		Ruder		Aaron 		T				140,000		140,000		10.0%		14,000		0.0%		20,720		24,000		8,077		700		2,800		3,567		213,864

		60		6,7		Interm/Senior		(Senior) Principal Regulatory Analyst		Y		Hiring in Process		John		R				159,496		159,496		10.0%		15,950		0.0%		23,605		24,000		9,202		797		2,800		4,003		239,853

		61		4		Intermediate		Contracts & Compliance Analyst 		Y		Gay		Harper		P				117,000		117,000		10.0%		11,700		0.0%		17,316		24,000		6,750		585		2,800		3,054		183,205

		62		7		Senior		Market & Credit Risk Manager		Y		Dai		Ray		P				177,000		177,000		10.0%		17,700		0.0%		26,196		24,000		10,212		885		2,800		4,393		263,186

		63		4		Intermediate		Resource Planning & Portfolio Management Analyst		Y		Siebhur		Alan		P				110,000		110,000		10.0%		11,000		0.0%		16,280		24,000		6,346		550		2,800		2,897		173,873

		64		9		Senior		Director of Clean Energy Structured Finance		Y		Hiring in Process				P				193,724		193,724		10.0%		19,372		0.0%		28,671		24,000		11,176		969		2,800		4,767		285,480

		66		2		Entry		Receptionist and Asst Board Clerk		N		Hiring in Process				O				74,107		74,107		10.0%		7,411		0.0%		10,968		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		2,096		126,028

		65		2		Entry		Market Content Coordinator				Replacement for Jamal				M				74,107		74,107		10.0%		7,411		0.0%		10,968		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		2,096		126,028

		67		6		Intermediate		Connected Communities Manager		Y		Replacement for Sam				L				148,657		148,657		10.0%		14,866		0.0%		22,001		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,760		225,402



		Additional 2022-23 Hires

		Emp #		Band		Level		Title		Exempt?		LastName		FirstName		Area		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Salary/Wages		Bonus %/Retention		Bonus $		COLA		Retirement		Health		PTO		Life Ins		Other		PayRollTaxes		Total Cost

		68		3,4		Entry/Interm		Technology & Analytics Data Engineer/Analyst 		Y						T						$104,085								14,572		24,000		6,005		520		2,800		2,554		154,536

		69		5,6		Intermediate		IT Manager 		Y						T						$140,293								19,641		24,000		8,094		701		2,800		3,289		198,818

		70		4,5		Intermediate		Deputy Modeler 		Y						T						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		71		3		Entry		Office Manager 								O						$96,709								13,539		24,000		5,579		484		2,800		2,404		145,515

		72		4,5		Intermediate		HR Recruiter		Y						O						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		73		8		Senior		Director of Infrastructure Delivery 		Y						O						$191,111								26,756		24,000		11,026		956		2,800		4,321		260,970

		74		7,8		Senior		PR VPP Role 		Y						P						$180,272								25,238		24,000		10,400		901		2,800		4,101		247,712

		75		4		Intermediate		PR Junior quant analyst 		Y						P						$117,154								16,402		24,000		6,759		586		2,800		2,819		170,520

		76		6		Intermediate		Compliance Manager		Y						R						$148,657								20,812		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,459		209,047

		77				Entry		Outreach - SJC								M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		78				Entry/Interm		Commercial Account Services Analyst		Y						M						89,913								12,588		24,000		5,187		450		2,800		2,266		137,204

		79				Entry		Programs Customer Service		Y						M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		80				Entry		Programs Marketing		Y						M						74,107								10,375		24,000		4,275		371		2,800		1,945		117,873

		81				Intermediate		Marketing Communications		Y						M						$125,518								17,572		24,000		7,241		628		2,800		2,989		180,748

		82				Entry		Local Programs - quantitative analysis		Y						L						$104,085								14,572		24,000		6,005		520		2,800		2,554		154,536

		83				Intermediate		Local Programs - CPUC programs compliance/reporting/PM		Y						L						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		84				Intermediate		Programs Project Management		Y						L						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		85				Intermediate		Legal Manager		Y						R						126,313								17,684		24,000		7,287		632		2,800		3,005		181,721

		86				Intermediate		Local Programs - EV Adoption programs		Y						L						$148,657								20,812		24,000		8,576		743		2,800		3,459		209,047







































DIR

		Account		Account Name		Meta		INDX				Mo #		Mo Name		Quarter				Jan 1 2022 Proposal:

		41010		Commercial - Gen		Revenue		A				1		Jan		3				21/22 - Low		21/22 - High				Power Resource						Legal 		Sumif 59050						Local Development:P001-Building Electrification

		41020		Residential - Gen		Revenue		A				2		Feb		3				$57,503		$64,574		Fellow										Subtract if Loc						Local Development:P004-Energy Efficiency

		41030		Street lighting and Agr - Gen		Revenue		A				3		Mar		3				$64,575		$83,639		Coordinator		Fellow														Local Development:P005-Vehicle Electrification

		42010		Commercial - Green Premium		Revenue		A				4		Apr		4				$83,640		$109,777		Analyst		Coordinator														Local Development:P006-COVID-19 Relief Fund

		42020		Residential - Green Premium		Revenue		A				5		May		4				$109,778		$124,530		Associate		Analyst												Community Investment		Local Development:P009-Resiliency

		42030		Streetlight and Agr - Green Pre		Revenue		A				6		Jun		4				$124,531		$141,257		Sr Associate		Associate

		42999		Bad Debt expense		Revenue		B				7		Jul		1				$141,258		$156,055		Manager/Principal		Sr Associate

		43000		CAPP Payment		Revenue		A1				8		Aug		1				$156,056		$177,734		Sr Manager/Sr Principal		Manager/Principal

		44000		Interest Income		NOR		C				9		Sep		1				$177,735		$204,487		Director		Sr Manager/Sr Principal

		45000		Miscellaneous income		NOR		A2				10		Oct		2				$204,488		$231,393		Sr Dir		Director

		46000		Grant Revenue		NOR		D				11		Nov		2				$231,394		$269,062		VP		Sr Dir

		47000		Liquidated Damages Revenue		Revenue		A1				12		Dec		2				$269,063		$295,968		SVP		VP

		50120		Capacity purchases		Energy		E2												$295,969		$348,004		Exec		SVP

		50130		Energy generation Credit - PPA		Energy		E5

		50135		PPA Energy Purchase		Energy		E5

		50140		Energy purchases		Energy		E

		50145		Carbon Free Energy		Energy		E4

		50160		RECs purchases		Energy		E3

		50165		GHG Offset expense		Energy		E4

		50170		CAISO Chg/Cr Day Ahead Energy		Energy		E1

		50185		CAISO Chg/Cred InterSC Trades		Energy		E1

		50196		CAISO Chg/Cred Other Charges		Energy		E6

		50200		Data Manager		E-Service		F1

		50300		Scheduling Co		E-Service		F3

		50310		Broker Fees		Energy		E8

		50400		NEM Expense		Energy		E7

		50500		Service Fees - PG&E		E-Service		F2

		50510		Wholesale Sales - Energy		Energy		E

		50520		Wholesale Sales - REC/CO2		Energy		E3

		50530		Wholesale Sales - RA		Energy		E2

		50901		Other Noticing		Operations		M

		50902		Required Mailings		Operations		M

		55010		Advertising		Operations		M

		55040		Sponsorships and memberships		Operations		M

		55055		Promotional Items		Operations		M

		55060		Communications - misc expenses		Operations		M

		55070		Special Events		Operations		M

		56010		Bank service fee		Operations		O

		56020		Building maintenance		Operations		O

		56030		Business meals		Operations		O

		56040		Conferences & prof development		Operations		O

		56050		Equipment lease		Operations		O

		56055		HR & Related (G&A)		Operations		O

		56060		Industry memberships and dues		Operations		O

		56070		Insurance		Operations		O

		56080		Interest and fees expense		Operations		O

		56090		Miscellaneous G&A		Operations		O

		56100		Office supplies and postage		Operations		O

		56110		Parking at office		Operations		O

		56120		Payroll service fees		Operations		O

		56130		Rent		Operations		O

		56140		Small equipment		Operations		O

		56150		Software, Subscriptions, & SAAS		Operations		O

		56160		Telephone and internet		Operations		O

		56180		Miscellaneous fees		Operations		O

		56181		Retirement admin fees		Operations		O

		56190		Utilities		Operations		O

		56210		Mileage/fuel		Operations		O

		56220		Parking and Tolls		Operations		O

		56230		Airfare		Operations		O

		56240		Lodging		Operations		O

		56250		Taxi / Other Travel		Operations		O

		56330		Director's Fees		Operations		O

		57010		Community Investment Grants		Operations		O

		57020		Program Incentives		Local Development		O

		59010		Accounting		Operations		J

		59030		Human resources consulting		Operations		J

		59040		IT Consulting		Operations		J

		59050		Legal		Operations		L

		59060		Legislative		Operations		L

		59070		Other Consultants		Operations		J

		59090		Communications consultants		Operations		M

		59200		Technical consultants		Operations		J

		60510		Employee welfare		Operations		P

		60520		Payroll tax expense		Operations		P

		60530		Retirement plan contributions		Operations		P

		60540		Salaries and wages		Operations		P

		60550		Workers comp insurance		Operations		P

		60560		Life Insurance		Operations		P

		60580		Employee PTO exp accrual offset		Operations		P

		60590		Temp Employees		Payroll		P

		61000		Bad Debt expense		Revenue		B

		63400		Interest Expense		NOE		K

		80200		Depreciation Expense		Capital		Y

		80400		Penalties and fines		Operations		O

		99991		Adjust Equipment Modified (neg)		Capital		Z

		99992		Adjust Equipment Modified (pos)		Capital		Z

		99995		Adjust Principal Modified (neg)		Capital		Z

		99996		Adjust Principal Modified (pos)		Capital		Z

		99997		Adjust Leashold Improvement-Neg		Capital		Z

		99998		Adjust Leashold Improvement-Pos		Capital		Z

		UUT C		UUT Credits		Revenue		A







Transportation Electrification

24

• Transportation is the largest source of emissions of GHG and particulate matter from Light, Medium and 
Heavy-duty vehicles

• EBCE is developing publicly available charging infrastructure tailored to renters and low-income 
communities to ensure these residents can transition to EVs (currently developing the first 3 charging 
hubs)

• Goods movement is particularly important with Port impacts to communities and access through the 
territory and into the Central Valley

• EBCE will continue assisting Cities to electrify fleets; providing fleet electrification technical assistance 
and offering to develop and operate charging infrastructure for Cities with "Charging as a Service" 
product

• With more vehicle models becoming available EBCE will develop programs to facilitate the buying process 
and make EVs accessible across all customer income levels

• Partner with local agencies and local business to increase access to eMobility solutions

• Provide capital to reduce cost of ownership through credit enhancements across multiple vehicle classes

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Charging Infrastructure Deployment

25

Development Capital for Charging Infrastructure
• Equitable Public Fast Charging Hubs($3M)

• Funds to support EBCEs efforts to build a network of public fast chargers across the communities we serve with 
an emphasis on siting these chargers close to high densities of multi-family housing where home charging is often 
not accessible

• Medium/Heavy Duty Charging Station pilot ($1M)
• Funds to support investments in fast chargers infrastructure to support goods movement electrification with an 

emphasis supporting electrification of trucking and drayage

• Municipal Fleet Charging as a Service Projects ($2M)
• Funds to support municipal fleet electrification through provision of Charging as a Service

Fleet Technical Assistance
• Municipal Fleet TA ($250k)

• M/H Duty Fleet TA ($500k)

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Electric Vehicle and eMobility Innovation Fund

26

Invest in vehicle adoption and eMobility
• Lower costs and improve experience to accelerate EV adoption with emphasis on access 

for low and moderate income consumers ($2M)
• Funds to support one or more projects to drive consumer adoption of EVs. Ex: supporting electrification of 

rideshare services to direct consumer leasing/purchase of EVs

• Heavy duty loan loss reserve / credit enhancement to reduce barriers to electric 
Drayage ownership ($2M)

• Funds to support one or more projects to directly support conversion of older diesel drayage to all electric

• Partner with local transit agencies and local businesses to increase access to 
microMobility and eMobility solutions ($2M)

• Funds to support one or more projects to increase access to electric microMobility/eMobility

The specific details of each of these initiatives are under development and will be brought 
to the Board as they are ready to implement

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Community Resilience

27

Continue to deploy Energy Resilient Public Facilities across EBCE 
communities
• Independent Engineer for Phase 2 Municipal Critical Facility Projects ($500k)

• EBCE PPA development and negotiation for Phase 1 Procurement ($100k)

• Salesforce PPA billing capability ($60k)

Phase 1 Update: EBCE is finalizing the Phase 1 portfolio of projects and will be issuing 
RFO for Resilience projects in June. Initiating Phase 2 enrollment with other Cities to 
build on Phase 1 success and deliver more resilience across the community.

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Energy Efficiency

28

Launch and run CPUC Funded Energy Efficiency Program
• Launch Commercial pay for Performance Program Pending approval of EBCE AL

• 3-year Program budget of $13.5M ($4.5M/year)

• Expected CPUC Approval July/August

• Planned program launch within 6 months of CPUC approval

• Incentives paid on measured, cost-effective savings

• Higher payments during peak periods

• Program will target combined demand response and energy efficiency installations

Commercial P4P Pilot learnings: Pilot program over-subscribed, incentives to be paid 12 
months after project completion. Implementors awaiting additional EE funds.

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Building Electrification

29

Electrifying buildings is key to meeting climate action plans and improving indoor air 
quality. 
LMI Electrification
• Year 2 of BlocPower funding commitment ($650k)

• Scaling BlocPower program upon phase 1 success ($500k)

Clean Cooking with Induction
• Induction lending Program - ($200k)

• EBCE HQ Clean Cooking Demonstration Center - ($500k)

• Local point of sale partnership for residential adoption ($200k)

• Commercial electrification Technical Assistance ($150k)

Accelerating Building Electrification
• Municipal Electrification TA ($250k)

• Building Electrification Credit enhancement ($2M)

• BE Workforce Development ($250k)

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Community Grants

30

EBCE will continue working with community-based organizations and local businesses to 
deliver benefits across the EBCE service area

• Community Grants ($2.25M over 3 years)

Funding 
Category

Transportation 
Electrification

Building 
Electrification

Community 
Resilience

Energy 
Efficiency

Program 
Enrollment

Workforce
Development

Education / 
Awareness

• Staff will work with BOD 
and CAC to determine 
funding priorities and 
manage grants

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A



Thank You!

@PoweredbyEBCE

customer-support@ebce.org

31

Questions? Give us a call:

1-833-699-EBCE (3223)

Español
ebce.org/es

中文

ebce.org/cn

Attachment Staff Report Item 14A

https://ebce.org/es/
https://ebce.org/cn/


   
 

  Staff Report Item 15 
 

  
  

Staff Report Item 15 
  

TO:   East Bay Community Energy Board of Directors 
  
FROM:  Howard Chang, Chief Operating Officer  
  
SUBJECT: Energy Prepay Transaction #2 Request for Approval (Action Item)  
  
DATE:  May 18, 2022 
__________________________________________________________________ 
  
Recommendation   

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the execution of a Power Supply Contract and certain other 
documents to enable EBCE to enter into its second energy prepayment transaction.  
 
Background and Discussion  

In 2021, EBCE successfully executed its first 30-year energy prepay transaction for renewable 
and carbon free energy with an associated bond transaction issued through the California 
Community Choice Finance Authority (CCCFA). This was the first energy prepay transaction by 
a CCA. Beginning on January 1, 2022 energy began to flow through that transaction, with 
EBCE realizing over $2MM in annual savings as a result. These savings allow for EBCE to utilize 
its tax-exempt status to lower our overall procurement costs. EBCE is preparing to execute a 
second prepay transaction, largely replicating the first transaction. One distinct change in 
this second transaction is that EBCE will be executing this as an individual CCA, whereas the 
initial transaction was done jointly with SVCE.  

With these energy prepay transactions EBCE will assign in existing and/or forthcoming Power 
Purchase Agreements (PPAs). Based on the number of eligible source specified PPAs that EBCE 
will seek to continue to execute on additional prepay transactions in the coming years to 
maximize the available savings. This second transaction is expected to be a 30-year  
transaction. Following EBCE board approval, we will seek CCCFA approval. We anticipate 
being fully enabled with documents prepared so that we are able to go out to market in the 
June timeframe. The actual issuance of bonds and closing of the transaction will be 
dependent on market conditions and the necessary interest rate spreads.   

 
Prepay Parties: 
The prepay transaction requires the selection and involvement of multiple parties. Names and 
functions are as follows: 
Prepay Buyer: East Bay Community Energy 



   
 

  Staff Report Item 15 
 

• Role: Provide energy contracts to flow through prepay and receive discount 
Prepay Supplier and Bond Underwriter: Morgan Stanley 

• Role: Structure transaction and pay contract price to PPA provider 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by EBCE in November 2019 

Municipal Advisor: PFM 
• Role: Advise Prepay Buyer in negotiations; required by Municipal Securities Rulemaking 

Board (MSRB) 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by EBCE in September 2020 

Bond Counsel: Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe 
• Role: Represent bondholders 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by EBCE in June 2020 

Tax Counsel: Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe 
• Role: Provide tax opinion on transaction 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by EBCE in June 2020 

Issuer’s Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP 
• Role: Represent issuer’s interests, supporting drafting and negotiating terms of prepay 

agreement and associated energy supply agreements 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by EBCE in June 2020 

Disclosure Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP 
• Role: Prepare Official Statement 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by EBCE in June 2020 

Bond Issuer: California Community Choice Financing Authority (CCCFA) 
• Role: Issue municipal bonds for prepay 
• Selection Process: via JPA formation - EBCE membership approved April 2021, 

executed June 2021 
Custodian: Bank of New York 

• Role: Manage the various Payment Accounts 
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued in July 2021 

Commodity Swap Counterparty: Natixis  
• Role: Provide commodity swap for any periods with floating/indexed power prices  
• Selection Process: via solicitation issued by Morgan Stanley in April 2022. The swap 

counterparty is the one role that is being transitioned to a new party due to pricing 
improvements and to diversify the number of counterparties providing this service. 

Credit Rating Agency: Moody’s 
• Role: Rate the bonds 
• Selection Process: based on an evaluation of the limited providers in the market and 

chosen due to accepted market standards 
 
Prepay Documents: 
The prepay transaction requires the preparation of numerous documents. Below are the key 
documents (all included as attachments to this item): 
Power Supply Contract 

• Function: Sets forth terms for which CCA receives energy for 30-year term 
• Signed by: EBCE and Issuer (CCCFA) 

Letter Agreement Regarding PPA Assignments 



   
 

  Staff Report Item 15 
 

• Function: Details the terms of the limited assignment of PPAs between EBCE and third-
party energy sellers 

• Signed by: EBCE and Prepay Supplier (Morgan Stanley) 
Form of Limited Assignment 

• Function: Signed for each PPA assigned into prepay; Exhibit to “Letter Agreement 
Regarding PPA Assignments” 

• Signed by: EBCE, Original PPA Counterparty, and Prepay Supplier (Morgan Stanley) 
Project Administration Agreement 

• Function: Sets out terms for CCA to act on behalf of the Issuer 
• Signed by: EBCE and Issuer (CCCFA) 

PPA Payments Custodial Agreement 
• Function: Details cash flows between PPA Buyer (CCA), Prepay Supplier, and Custodian 
• Signed by: EBCE, Prepay Supplier (Morgan Stanley), and custodian  

Trust Indenture 
• Function: Sets forth terms of bond issuance and rights of bondholders 
• Signed by: Issuer (CCCFA) and trustee (BONY) 

Prepaid Agreement 
• Function: Details the flow of power and payments between the Prepay Supplier and 

the Issuer 
• Signed by: Issuer (CCCFA) and Prepay Supplier (Morgan Stanley) 

Re-pricing Agreement 
• Function: Sets forth terms for remarketing and repricing for future bond repricing 

periods 
• Signed by: Issuer (CCCFA) and Prepay Supplier (Morgan Stanley) 

Preliminary Offering Statement (POS) 
• Function: Details parties (including appendix of info on CCA operational history), 

transaction size and key terms; used to market the bonds 
• Signed by: Not a signed document 

Cost Share Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

• Function: Details the cost share arrangement with MS to cover rating agency and green 
bond designation fees and EBCE responsibility to cover costs in place of CCCFA 

 
Details of Requested Board Approval 

Adopt the Resolution which authorizes EBCE to sign: 
• Power Supply Contract with CCCFA (Issuer) 
• Letter Agreement Regarding PPA Assignments with Morgan Stanley (Prepay Supplier) 
• Limited Assignment Agreements with Morgan Stanley (Prepay Supplier) and future PPA 

sellers 
• Project Administration Agreement with CCCFA (Issuer) 
• PPA Payments Custodial Agreement with Morgan Stanley and BONY 

The adoption of the Resolution and the execution of the above documents by the EBCE board 
would enable EBCE to then seek approval for the transaction by the CCCFA board, further 
enabling the municipal bond raise required to initiate the prepay and start receiving a 
discount. The approvals provided shall be subject to the following parameters: 



   
 

  Staff Report Item 15 
 

(a) the Bonds will not be obligations of EBCE, but will be limited obligations of the 
Issuer payable solely from the revenues and other amounts pledged therefor under the 
Indenture, including amounts payable by EBCE under the Power Supply Contract;  
(b) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed $1,000,000,000  
(c) the annual energy savings to EBCE under the Power Supply Contract shall be at 

 least $4.50 per MWh 

 

Previous Background Information: 

An energy prepayment is a long-term financial transaction available to municipal utilities and 
tax-exempt entities such as CCAs that enables a meaningful power procurement cost savings 
opportunity. This prepay structure has historically been utilized for natural gas procurement 
and is now being applied towards renewable energy. To date, EBCE, Silicon Valley Clean 
Energy (SVCE), and MCE have executed prepay transactions and currently a number of other 
CCAs are also in the process of initiating a similar structure. 
 
Prepay Process: 
Utilizing the municipal bond market, a tax-exempt Load Serving Entity (LSE, also called 
“Prepay Buyer”) and a taxable financial counterparty (bank, called “Prepay Supplier") enter 
into a 30-year agreement through which the LSE assigns existing power supply contracts (or 
power purchase agreements, “PPA”) to the Prepay Supplier. The Prepay Supplier pays the 
contract price to the PPA provider, while the LSE pays the Prepay Supplier at a discounted 
rate. The discounted rate is agreed upon in the prepay documents and is based in part on the 
spread between the taxable and tax-exempt bond interest rates. The market availability of 
this interest rate spread is critical to the savings opportunity available to the LSE. 
 
Tax-exempt bonds are issued by a third-party conduit to raise funds for the prepay 
transaction. The funds flow from the Issuer to the Prepay Supplier. The LSE does a limited 
assignment of one or more of their PPAs to the Prepay Supplier. The LSE is required to 
continue to perform under the contract, while maintaining rights to the electricity and 
attributes under the PPA. The Prepay Supplier utilizes the bond funds and provides a discount 
on the PPA to the LSE based on the spread between the taxable and tax-exempt rates. The 
discount is historically estimated at 8-12% but is subject to change based on market 
conditions at bond re-issuance. For this prepay, the initial discount target is 10% and the 
minimum discount will likely be set around 6-7%. The typical bond tenors are in the 7-10 year 
range, so there will be a reissuance and reset of the discount several times throughout the life 
of the 30-year prepay. There is a negotiated minimum discount over the life of the transaction 
that, if not met by the Prepay Supplier, allows the LSE a walkaway right. 
 
The total combined notional value of the assigned contracts flowing through the prepay over 
the 30 years will likely be no greater than $1.25bn; these contracts can be long-term 
renewables PPAs or other source specified commodity supply contracts, such as large hydro. 
The contracts are a limited assignment to the Prepay Supplier and the LSE continues to 
ultimately take and pay for all the energy and attributes delivered through the contract; all 
other terms of the PPA remain unchanged. If the prepay program terminates early for any 
reason – either the Prepay Supplier or the LSE fail to perform – the LSE forgoes future savings 
and the assigned PPA is put back completely to the LSE. 
 
Financial Impact 



   
 

  Staff Report Item 15 
 

The purpose of pursuing the prepay transaction is to achieve meaningful energy procurement 
cost savings. This transaction is targeting a 10% discount at the outset, which translates to $2-
3MM of annual savings. 

The majority of fees paid to various parties involved in the prepay will be payable from the 
proceeds of the prepay bonds. That is to say, there is limited out-of-pocket cost to EBCE; the 
cost will be paid out of the savings realized from the prepay transaction. With that said there 
are a portion of fees, such as certain counsel fees, rating agency fees, and green bond 
designation fees that are not contingent. We have negotiated to have MS split these costs 
with EBCE if the deal does not close. Additionally, we will only move forward in authorizing 
these fees when necessary.  

Additionally, it is important to note that the prepay is non-recourse to EBCE. The ultimate 
counterparty with the Prepay Supplier is the CCCFA JPA, so CCCFA is therefore the 
counterparty to all the underlying agreements. CCCFA is a public entity separate and apart 
from the parties to the JPA Agreement, and the debts, liabilities and obligations of the CCCFA 
will not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of EBCE or any representative of EBCE 
serving on the governing body of EBCE. 
 
Attachments 

A. Resolution 
B. Presentation 
C. Power Supply Contract 
D. Letter Agreement Regarding PPA Assignments 
E. Form of Limited Assignment 
F. Project Administration Agreement 
G. PPA Payments Custodial Agreement 
H. Trust Indenture 
I. Prepaid Agreement 
J. Re-pricing Agreement 
K. Preliminary Offering Statement 
L. Cost Share MOU 



Attachment Staff Report Item 15A 

RESOLUTION 2022-[__] 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EAST BAY 
COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT AND CERTAIN OTHER 
DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF THE CALIFORNIA 
COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY CLEAN ENERGY 
PROJECT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022 EBCE; AND CERTAIN OTHER 
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, The East Bay Community Energy Authority (“EBCE”) was 
formed as a community choice aggregation agency (“CCA”) on December 1, 2016, under 
the Joint Exercise of Power Act, California Government Code sections 6500 et seq. (the 
“Act”), among the County of Alameda, and the Cities of Albany, Berkeley, Dublin, 
Emeryville, Fremont, Hayward, Livermore, Piedmont, Oakland, San Leandro, and Union 
City to study, promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy-related climate 
change programs in all of the member jurisdictions. The cities of Newark and Pleasanton, 
located in Alameda County, along with the City of Tracy, located in San Joaquin County, 
were added as members of EBCE and parties to the Joint Powers Agreement (as defined 
below) in March of 2020; 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, EBCE and certain other 

California “community choice aggregators” entered into a joint powers agreement (the 
“Joint Powers Agreement”) pursuant to which the California Community Choice Financing 
Authority (the “Issuer”) was organized for the purpose, among other things, of entering 
into contracts and issuing bonds to assist EBCE in financing the acquisition of supplies of 
clean energy; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized by its Joint Powers Agreement to 
acquire supplies of clean energy by any means and to issue revenue bonds to finance the 
cost of acquisition of such supplies, and is vested with all powers necessary to accomplish 
the purposes for which it was created; 

WHEREAS, EBCE has determined that it is desireable to acquire a long-
term supply of clean energy from the Issuer; 

WHEREAS, EBCE is requesting that the Issuer agree to purchase certain 
quantities of clean energy from Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware 
limited liability company (the “Prepaid Supplier”) on a prepaid basis (the “Project”) and 
to sell such clean energy to EBCE, as described herein; 

WHEREAS, EBCE is requesting that the Issuer finance the costs of the 
Project with the proceeds of its Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 EBCE 
(the “Bonds”); 



 Attachment Staff Report Item 15A 
 

 2 

WHEREAS, EBCE has determined to authorize the officers of EBCE to 
take all necessary action to accomplish the purchase of clean energy from the Issuer and to 
assist the Issuer in the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, there have been made available to the Board of Directors of 
EBCE for approval forms of the following agreements to which EBCE is a party 
(collectively, the “EBCE Documents”): 

1. Power Supply Contract between EBCE and the Issuer; 

2. Custodial Agreement by and among EBCE, Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a 
Delaware corporation (“MSCG”), the Prepaid Supplier, the Issuer and the custodian to be 
named therein; 

3. Form of Limited Assignment Agreement, by and among EBCE, the counterparty 
to the power purchase agreement described therein, and MSCG; 

4. Letter Agreement among EBCE, the Prepaid Supplier and MSCG regarding matters 
relating to Assignment Agreements; and 

5. Prepaid Energy Project Administration Agreement, by and between EBCE and the 
Issuer; and 

6.  Cost Share Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), by and between EBCE, MS, 
and CCCFA; and  

WHEREAS, there have also been made available to the Board of Directors of 
EBCE forms of the following additional documents relating to the Project: 

1. Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”) between the Issuer and the trustee to be named 
therein, providing for, among other things, the issuance of and security for the Bonds; 

2. Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (the “Prepaid Agreement”) between the Issuer 
and the Prepaid Supplier, providing for the delivery of the prepaid energy supply to the 
Issuer; 

3. Re-pricing Agreement (the “Re-pricing Agreement”) between the Issuer and the 
Prepaid Supplier providing for the remarketing or refunding of the Bonds from time to time 
and the establishment of the Monthly Discount available to EBCE under the Power Supply 
Agreement from time to time during the term of the transaction; and 

4. Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), to be used 
in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds, including the information relating to 
EBCE included in Appendix A thereto (the Indenture, the Prepaid Agreement, the Re-
pricing Agreement and the Preliminary Official Statement, together with the EBCE 
Documents, the “Project Documents”); 



 Attachment Staff Report Item 15A 
 

 3 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the EBCE Board of 
Directors, as follows: 

Section 1.  The proposed forms of the EBCE Documents, as made available 
to the Board of Directors for this meeting, are hereby approved. The form of Limited 
Assignment Agreement may be used, in substantially the same form, for the initial 
assignments of EBCE power purchase agreements, and in a similar form for additional 
power purchase agreements as needed to maintain the transactions approved hereby, with 
such changes as may be necessary to conform to the requirements of such power purchase 
agreement or as may be necessary to effect such assignment, and any such Limited 
Assignment Agreements shall be included in the EBCE Documents hereby approved. 
Subject to the parameters set forth in Section 4 of this Resolution, any of the Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Operations Officer or Chair of the Board (each an “Authorized 
Officer”) is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of EBCE, to execute and 
deliver the EBCE Documents in substantially said form, with such changes and insertions 
therein as the Authorized Officer executing the same may approve, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof. 

Section 2.  The proposed form of the Preliminary Official Statement, as 
made available to the Board of Directors for this meeting, is hereby approved.  Any 
Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of EBCE, to 
execute and deliver a certificate as to the information regarding EBCE contained therein 
and in the final version of the Official Statement, with such changes and insertions therein 
as the Authorized Officer approving the same may deem necessary or appropriate.  Subject 
to approval by the Issuer, EBCE hereby authorizes the distribution of the Preliminary 
Official Statement to persons who may be interested in the purchase of the Bonds, and the 
delivery of the Official Statement in final form to the purchasers of the Bonds, in each case 
with such changes as may be approved as aforesaid. 

Section 3.  Each Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed, for 
and in the name and on behalf of EBCE, to execute and deliver any and all documents, 
including, without limitation, any tax certificate relating to its expected use of the energy 
to be purchased by it from the Project, any continuing disclosure certificate or similar 
agreement required for the offering or sale of the Bonds, and any and all closing certificates 
to be executed in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and to take any and all actions 
which may be necessary or advisable, in the discretion of such Authorized Officers, to 
effectuate the actions which EBCE has approved in this Resolution, for the issuance, sale 
and delivery of the Bonds, and to consummate by EBCE the transactions contemplated by 
the EBCE Documents approved hereby and the other Project Documents presented to the 
Board herewith, including any subsequent amendments, waivers or consents entered into 
or given under or in accordance with such documents. 

Section 4.  The approvals provided for herein shall be subject to the 
following parameters: 

(a) the Bonds will not be obligations of EBCE, but will be limited 
obligations of the Issuer payable solely from the revenues and other amounts pledged 



 Attachment Staff Report Item 15A 
 

 4 

therefor under the Indenture, including amounts payable by EBCE under the Power Supply 
Contract; 

(b) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed 
$1,000,000,000; and 

(c) the annual energy savings to EBCE under the Power Supply 
Contract shall be at least $4.50 per MWh. 

Section 5.  Execution and delivery of the EBCE Documents by an 
Authorized Officer or Officers shall be conclusive evidence that the parameters set forth in 
Section 4 have been met, and all actions heretofore taken by the Authorized Officers with 
respect to the issuance of the Bonds are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 

Section 6. If the conditions set forth in Section 4 have been met, an 
Authorized Officer may direct the payment to professionals that provided services to EBCE 
in connection with the Project. These professional services include legal counsel, bond 
counsel, tax counsel, Municipal Financial Advisor, Swap Advisor, and any other consultant 
needed to complete the transactions contemplated herein for EBCE. Payment to these 
professionals will be made from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds and pursuant to the 
terms of the applicable agreement executed with EBCE. 

Section 7. If the conditions set forth in Section 4 have been met, an 
Authorized Officer may direct the payment to additional vendors and/or parties to the 
EBCE Documents or other Project Documents to complete the issuance of the Bonds. 
These vendors, if any, will be paid pursuant to an agreement for services rendered in 
completing the issuance of the Bonds and from the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds. 

Section 8.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 



Attachment Staff Report Item 15A 

5 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the EBCE Board of 
Directors on this [____] day of [_____], 2022 

______________________________________ 
Dianne Martinez, Chair 

Attest: 

___________________________________________ 
Adrian Bankhead, Clerk of the Board 



Energy Prepay 
Transaction
#2 Request for 
Approval

MAY 18, 2022

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Proposed Follow-on Prepay Transaction
● Standalone EBCE Prepay transaction issuing through CA Community Choice Financing Authority

(CCCFA), the JPA in which EBCE is a member
● Largely replicating the initial transaction to get to market efficiently. Utilizing the prior RFPs

issued/awarded in 2020 and 2021 to renew various counsel and advisory roles.
● Prior transactions required >1.5yrs to complete and targeting 3 to 6 months for the second

transaction
● Anticipate $500M to $1bn total size in principal

Next Steps:
● May: Seek EBCE board and CCCFA board approval to transact
● June onwards: Go out to market and determine optimal timing to price
● Taxable vs. tax-exempt spreads have been very volatile with uncertainty as to when conditions

will be suitable. With this volatility it is difficult to predict the exact timing for execution of this
transaction but may take 3 to 6 months.

2

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Prepay Overview 

3

An energy prepayment is a long-term non-recourse financial transaction between a tax-exempt Load Serving Entity (LSE) and a taxable financial 
counterparty (bank, called “Prepay Supplier") utilizing the municipal bond market.
• Municipal utilities (and tax-exempt entities such as CCAs) in the US can prepay for a supply of electricity or natural gas from a taxable entity

and fund that prepayment with tax-exempt municipal bonds.
• The LSE must sell the commodity to their retail end-users residing within their traditional service area.
• This structure is well known and regularly used for gas and is now being applied towards renewables PPAs. Codified in US Tax Law. Since first

prepayments of natural gas were done in the early 1990s, the IRS issued rules allowing tax-exempt prepayments and Congress enacted
legislation specifically allowing the transactions (National Energy Policy Act of 2005; Section 1327)

Structure:
• Term: Typically 30-year term with repricing periods every 5-10 years due to the optimal taxable vs. tax-exempt spreads
• Transacting Parties:

1. Tax-exempt Load Serving Entity (LSE, also called “Prepay Buyer”) – EBCE
2. Taxable financial counterparty (bank, called “Prepay Supplier”) - Morgan Stanley

• Process:
1. LSE enters into a 30-year power supply arrangement
2. Prepay Supplier is assigned the existing energy supply contract(s) held by LSE through a limited assignment agreement
3. Municipal bonds issued by a conduit, amounting to combined notional value of assigned contracts
4. Prepay Supplier pays the contract price to PPA Seller, immediately transferring all electricity and attributes to LSE
5. LSE pays the Prepay Supplier at discounted rate, achieving procurement cost savings

• Takeaway: Prepay Supplier is effectively the energy supplier and is prepaid for future energy deliveries. The Prepay Supplier holds and
utilizes capital and provides a discount to the Prepay Buyer that is enabled via the spread between the taxable and tax-exempt borrowing
costs.

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Prepay Sizing and Discount

4

• The total bond proceeds may be as high as $1.25bn and will be dependent on the CA bond market appetite. 
– EBCE will seek the maximum bond raise while maintaining optimal bond rates
– The amount represents the present value of the PPA cashflows over the 30-year life of the transaction

• This transaction will translate to an estimated $2-3MM of annual savings for EBCE for the initial bond term.
– The transaction assumes an increase in the cashflows running through the prepay over the 30-year life.
– As the transaction moves forward, the arbitrage value goes down since the present value benefits reduce with a shorter remaining tenor. 

The future discount rates will be reset every 5-10 years based on bond tenors and be dependent on future bond market conditions, but 
this puts downward pressure on the future discounts.

– There is a negotiated minimum discount that, if not met by the Prepay Supplier, allows the LSE not to move forward in the repricing.

• Ultimately the discount is established by the spread between taxable and tax-exempt rates and deducts all transaction related costs, which 
include fees associated with bond underwriting, counsel (bond, disclosure, underwriter’s, prepay), financial adviser, swap counterparty, 
credit rating, custodian, etc.

• 5-10 years is the optimal bond spread tenor currently. Maintaining this spread over a 30-year transaction life maximizes the available 
discount. This requires a repricing and re-issuance of bonds every 5-10 years and a reset of the discount rate. In general, a high interest rate 
environment will lead to a higher discount.

• The initial power flows for the transaction are anticipated to begin in April 2023

Attachment Consent Item 15B



EBCE Prepay Parties

5

Prepay Supplier: Morgan Stanley
– Selected through solicitation issued November 2019

Municipal Financial Advisor: PFM
– Selected through solicitation issued September 2020

Counsel: Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe (Bond & Tax Counsel) | Chapman & Cutler LLP (POS, Disclosure & Issuer’s Counsel)
– Both firms selected through solicitation issued June 2020

Bond Issuer: California Community Choice Financing Authority
– EBCE membership approved by Board in April 2021, JPA formed June 2021; Founding Members are EBCE, MCE, SVCE, 3CE

Custodian: BONY
– PFM issued solicitation early July 2021; final selection in process

Commodity Swap Counterparty: Natixis
– This is one of the few counterparties that is new to this transaction after going back out to market in April 2022. A new

counterparty was selected due to improved pricing and an interest in diversification
Credit Rating Agency: Moody's

– Discussions in process

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Documents Overview: EBCE Signs

6

1. Power Supply Contract
– Sets forth terms for which CCA receives energy for 30-year term
– Signed by EBCE and CCCFA

2. Letter Agreement Regarding PPA Assignments
– Details the terms of the limited assignment of PPAs between EBCE and 3rd party energy sellers
– Signed by EBCE and Morgan Stanley (Prepay Supplier)

3. Form of Limited Assignment
– Details the terms of the limited assignment of each energy PPA EBCE assigns into prepay
– Signed by EBCE, the original PPA counterparty, and Morgan Stanley (Prepay Supplier)

4. Project Administration Agreement
– Sets out terms for CCA to act on behalf of the Issuer
– Signed by EBCE and CCCFA

5. PPA Payments Custodial Agreement
– Details cash flows between PPA Buyer (CCA), Prepay Supplier, and Custodian
– Signed by EBCE, Morgan Stanley, and BONY

6. Cost Share Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
– Details the cost share arrangement with MS to cover rating agency and green bond designation fees and EBCE responsibility to cover 

costs in place of CCCFA

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Documents Overview: CCCFA Signs

7

1. Prepaid Agreement
– Details the flow of power and payments between the Prepay Supplier and the Issuer (CCCFA)
– Terms are largely mirrored in the Power Supply Contract

2. Re-pricing Agreement
– Sets forth terms for remarketing and repricing for future bond repricing periods

3. Trust Indenture
– Sets forth terms of bond issuance and rights of bondholders
– Details that all revenues relevant to transaction flow to and through conduit issuer (CCCFA)

4. Commodity Swap documents
– Docs pursuant to which the commodity price is hedged with a 3rd-party swap counterparty (to insulate transaction from market variations)

5. Parent Guarantee
– Guarantee of “due and punctual payment” from Prepay Supplier to conduit issuer (CCCFA)
– Flows in favor of conduit issuer and swap counterparty, respectively

6. Front-End Custodial Agreement
– Outlines payment flows through the transaction, signed by CCCFA, Custodian, and Bond Trustee
– Also a Back-End Custodial Agreement which is signed by Morgan Stanley, Custodian, and Bond Trustee

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Documents Overview: Other

8

1. Preliminary Offering Statement (POS)
– Official offering document used to market the bonds
– Details parties (including appendix of info on EBCEs operational history), transaction size and key terms
– Not a signed document

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Requested Approval

9

• Adopt the Resolution which authorizes EBCE to:
- Sign Power Supply Contract with CCCFA (Issuer)
- Sign Letter Agreement Regarding PPA Assignments with Morgan Stanley (Prepay Supplier)
- Sign Limited Assignment Agreements with Morgan Stanley (Prepay Supplier) and future PPA sellers
- Sign Project Administration Agreement with CCCFA (Issuer)
- Sign PPA Payments Custodial Agreement with Morgan Stanley and BONY

• The adoption of the Resolution and the execution of the above documents by the EBCE board would enable 
EBCE to then seek approval for the transaction by the CCCFA board, further enabling the municipal bond raise 
required to initiate the prepay and start receiving a discount.

• The approvals provided shall be subject to the following parameters:
a) the Bonds will not be obligations of EBCE, but will be limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely from the 

revenues and other amounts pledged therefor under the Indenture, including amounts payable by EBCE under 
the Power Supply Contract;

b) the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds shall not exceed $1,000,000,000; and
c) the annual energy savings to EBCE under the Power Supply Contract shall be at least $4.50 per MWh.

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Appendix

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Existing Prepay Overview

Recap:
● Closed: Sept. 23, 2021
● Total Bond Proceeds: $1.48 Billion
● Rating: A1, “Green Bond” Certified
● Volume to EBCE: 59 MW Around-the-Clock Carbon-Free Energy
● Power Supply Start: January 1, 2022
● Savings, Years 1-10: $2 Million / year

In progress / Ongoing:
● Settlements and invoicing were initiated on January 1, 2022
● Assessing future PPAs to be put through prepay structure

11

Attachment Consent Item 15B



12

Prepay Structure

Prepay Supplier Municipal 
Conduit LSE/CCA

Existing PPA to 
be Assigned

Non-Recourse 
Tax-Exempt 

Bonds

Existing PPA 
Counterparty

Contract Price 
Prepayment $$

Contract Price 
Less Discount

MWhs + RECsMWhs + RECs         
+ Debt Service

MWhs + RECs
Debt 

Service
Bond 
Proceeds

Attachment Consent Item 15B



Market Statistics

13

• Nationwide: 90+ municipal transactions
– $50+ Billion combined notional contract value

• California: 11 municipal transactions
– $5.7 Billion combined notional contract value

• Active Suppliers: Morgan Stanley, Goldman Sachs, Royal Bank of Canada, Citi, TD Securities
– All investment grade rated financial institutions

• Resource Types:
– Majority of transactions to date have been exclusively for natural gas, remainder including an electricity ‘switch’ at a

certain year.
– The same tax law and similar transaction structure enables the program for electricity from renewables contracts, as

well. The market is seeing activity and preparation for these transactions, particularly from CCAs.

Attachment Consent Item 15B



• An energy prepayment is a long-term non-recourse financial transaction between a tax-exempt Load Serving 
Entity (LSE) and a taxable financial counterparty (bank, called “Prepay Supplier") utilizing the municipal 
bond market.

o Typically 30-year term, LSE committing ~$350MM-$850MM of energy supply contracts (combined contract 
notional values)

o LSE utilizes in order to lower customer energy costs

• Prepay Supplier is assigned an existing energy supply contract, pays the contract price to PPA Seller and 
immediately transfers all electricity and attributes to LSE. LSE pays the Prepay Supplier.

• Municipal utilities (and tax-exempt entities such as CCAs) in the US can prepay for a supply of electricity or 
natural gas from a taxable entity and fund that prepayment with tax-exempt municipal bonds. The LSE must 
sell the commodity to their retail end-users residing within their traditional service area.

o This structure is well known and regularly used for gas and is now being applied towards renewables PPAs

o Codified in US Tax Law. Since first prepayments of natural gas were done in the early 1990’s, the IRS issued 
rules allowing tax-exempt prepayments and Congress enacted legislation specifically allowing the 
transactions (National Energy Policy Act of 2005; Section 1327)

14

Prepay Overview Attachment Consent Item 15B



Power Contract Assignment:

• Existing renewable PPAs are assigned to the taxable Prepay Supplier. The LSE continues to take and pay for 
energy and attributes delivered through the contract.

• All other terms of the PPA are unchanged

• If the prepay program terminates early, prepaid supplier fails to perform, or LSE fails to perform, the LSE 
forgoes the future savings and the assigned PPA contract is put back to the original LSE

• Active Suppliers: Goldman Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Royal Bank of Canada, Citi, Bank of America are all 
investment grade rated financial institutions

Debt:

• Non-Recourse: Prepays utilize non-recourse municipal bonds and are not secured or guaranteed by the 
referenced entity (i.e. the CCA). Rather the debt is recourse to the Prepay Supplier (i.e. the bank receiving 
the prepayment). This significantly protects the CCA and mitigates risk related to the payment of power 
contracts novated through the prepay.

• Off Balance sheet for LSE: Bonds are issued by a municipal bond conduit and arranged by the Prepay Supplier

15

Key Elements of a Prepay TransactionAttachment Consent Item 15B



Key Risks

16

• If this transaction does not materialize: Loss of out-of-pocket costs and staff time
‒ Consultants are primarily contingent on successful deal, with the exception of certain counsel fees, rating agency, 

and green bond designation fees
‒ Consultants are primarily paid from deal proceeds vs. EBCE directly

• Opportunity cost of higher savings through a prepay transaction or alternative structure initiated at a different time.
‒ To the extent that MS does not provide the minimum discount EBCE will have a right not to proceed in future 

repricing periods. Minimum discount will likely be set at around 6-7%. Target initial discount is 10%.

‒ EBCE also has a right to shop the prepay provider if we view that the offered discounts are not at market

• Load loss or inability to assign a PPA into the prepay due to contractual limitations would likely lead to remediation
or remarketing activities and potentially result in the loss of the discount.
‒ Note that costs would not increase above contractual levels

• Regulatory risks, such as reclassifying a long-term PPA as a short-term PPA making it ineligible for SB350 qualification or
disruption to PCC1 bundled classification due to the assignment of PPA

• Political risk associated with a transaction collapsing due to non-compliance to tax codes

Attachment Consent Item 15B



HB Draft 6 May 2022 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT 

between 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

and 

EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 

Dated as of [____], 2022

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 -i- 

 

Article I Definitions...................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 1.1 Defined Terms ..................................................................................... 2 

Section 1.2 Definitions; Interpretation .................................................................. 10 

Article II Execution Date and Delivery Period; Nature of Energy Project .......................... 10 

Section 2.1 Execution Date; Delivery Period ....................................................... 10 

Section 2.2 Termination Due to Failure to Issue Bonds or Provide 
Minimum Discount ............................................................................ 10 

Section 2.3 Nature of Energy Project ................................................................... 10 

Section 2.4 Pledge of this Agreement ................................................................... 11 

Article III Sale and Purchase .................................................................................................... 11 

Section 3.1 Sale and Purchase of Energy .............................................................. 11 

Section 3.2 Pricing ................................................................................................ 11 

Section 3.3 No Obligation to Take Base Energy .................................................. 11 

Section 3.4 Reset Period Remarketing.................................................................. 12 

Article IV Failure to Deliver or Take Energy ......................................................................... 13 

Article V Transmission and Delivery; Communications ....................................................... 13 

Section 5.1 Delivery of Energy ............................................................................. 13 

Section 5.2 Scheduling.......................................................................................... 13 

Section 5.3 Title and Risk of Loss ........................................................................ 14 

Section 5.4 PCC1 Product and Long-Term PCC1 Product .................................. 14 

Section 5.5 Deliveries within CAISO or Another Balancing Authority ............... 16 

Section 5.6 Assigned Products .............................................................................. 16 

Article VI Partial Assignments of PPAs .................................................................................. 17 

Section 6.1 Future PPA Assignments ................................................................... 17 

Section 6.2 Updates to Exhibits A-1 and A-2 ....................................................... 17 

Article VII Use of Energy .......................................................................................................... 17 

Section 7.1 Tax Exempt Status of the Bonds ........................................................ 17 

Section 7.2 Priority Energy ................................................................................... 17 

Section 7.3 Remarketing Sales ............................................................................. 17 

Section 7.4 Qualifying Use ................................................................................... 18 

Section 7.5 Remediation ....................................................................................... 18 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

-ii-

Article VIII Representations and Warranties; Additional Covenants ................................. 19 

Section 8.1 Representations and Warranties of the Parties ................................... 19 

Section 8.2 Warranty of Title................................................................................ 20 

Section 8.3 Disclaimer of Warranties ................................................................... 20 

Section 8.4 Continuing Disclosure ....................................................................... 21 

Article IX Taxes ......................................................................................................................... 21 

Article X Dispute Resolution..................................................................................................... 21 

Section 10.1 Arbitration .......................................................................................... 21 

Section 10.2 Judicial Reference. ............................................................................. 22 

Article XI Force Majeure .......................................................................................................... 24 

Section 11.1 Applicability of Force Majeure .......................................................... 24 

Section 11.2 Settlement of Labor Disputes............................................................. 24 

Article XII Governmental Rules and Regulations .................................................................. 24 

Section 12.1 Compliance with Laws ...................................................................... 24 

Section 12.2 Contests .............................................................................................. 24 

Section 12.3 Defense of Agreement ....................................................................... 24 

Article XIII Assignment ............................................................................................................ 25 

Article XIV Payments ................................................................................................................ 25 

Section 14.1 Monthly Statements ........................................................................... 25 

Section 14.2 Payment.............................................................................................. 26 

Section 14.3 Payment of Disputed Amounts; Correction of Index Price ............... 26 

Section 14.4 Late Payment ..................................................................................... 27 

Section 14.5 Audit; Adjustments ............................................................................ 27 

Section 14.6 Netting; No Set-Off............................................................................ 27 

Section 14.7 Source of Purchaser’s Payments ........................................................ 27 

Section 14.8 Rate Covenant .................................................................................... 27 

Section 14.9 Pledge of CCA Revenues................................................................... 28 

Section 14.10 Financial Responsibility..................................................................... 28 

Article XV [Reserved]................................................................................................................ 28 

Article XVI Notices .................................................................................................................... 28 

Article XVII Default; Remedies; Termination........................................................................ 29 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

-iii- 

 

Section 17.1 Issuer Default ..................................................................................... 29 

Section 17.2 Purchaser Default ............................................................................... 29 

Section 17.3 Remedies Upon Default ..................................................................... 30 

Section 17.4 Termination of Prepaid Agreement ................................................... 31 

Section 17.5 Limitation on Damages ...................................................................... 31 

Article XVIII Miscellaneous ..................................................................................................... 32 

Section 18.1 Indemnification Procedure ................................................................. 32 

Section 18.2 Deliveries ........................................................................................... 32 

Section 18.3 Entirety; Amendments ....................................................................... 32 

Section 18.4 Governing Law .................................................................................. 33 

Section 18.5 Non-Waiver........................................................................................ 33 

Section 18.6 Severability ........................................................................................ 33 

Section 18.7 Exhibits .............................................................................................. 33 

Section 18.8 Winding Up Arrangements ................................................................ 33 

Section 18.9 Relationships of Parties...................................................................... 33 

Section 18.10 Immunity ............................................................................................ 33 

Section 18.11 Rates and Indices ............................................................................... 34 

Section 18.12 Limitation of Liability........................................................................ 34 

Section 18.13 Counterparts ....................................................................................... 34 

Section 18.14 Third Party Beneficiaries; Rights of Trustee ..................................... 34 

Section 18.15 Waiver of Defenses ............................................................................ 35 

Exhibits 
Exhibit A-1 -  Base Energy Hourly Quantities  
Exhibit A-2 -  EPS Energy Period Monthly Quantity 
Exhibit B -  Notices 
Exhibit C -  Form of Remarketing Election Notice 
Exhibit D -  Form of Federal Tax Certificate 
Exhibit E -  Form of Opinion of Counsel to Purchaser 
Exhibit F -  Monthly Discount 
Exhibit G -  Form of Closing Certificate 
Exhibit H -  Form of Remediation Certificate  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 
 

1 

 

POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT 

This Power Supply Contract (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made and entered into as 
of [____], 2022 (the “Execution Date”), by and between California Community Choice Financing 
Authority, a joint powers authority and a public entity of the State of California established 
pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, 
Title 1, Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code, as amended) (“Issuer”) and East 
Bay Community Energy Authority, a joint powers authority and a community choice aggregator 
organized under the Laws of the State of California (“Purchaser”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Issuer has planned and developed a project to acquire long-term 
Energy supplies from Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. (“MSES”) pursuant to a Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement (as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to 
time, the “Prepaid Agreement”) to meet a portion of the Energy supply requirements of Purchaser 
through an energy prepayment project (the “Energy Project”); and 

WHEREAS, Issuer will finance the prepayment under the Prepaid Agreement, and 
the other costs of, the Energy Project by issuing the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, Purchaser is a joint powers authority organized pursuant to the 
provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 6500 et seq.) of the California 
Government Code and a community choice aggregator pursuant to the provisions of Section 366.2 
of the California Public Utilities Code with authority to sell electricity to retail electric consumers 
within its service area; and 

WHEREAS, Purchaser is agreeable to purchasing a portion of its Energy 
requirements from Issuer under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and Issuer is 
agreeable to selling to Purchaser such supplies of Energy under the terms and conditions set forth 
in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, Purchaser has 
assigned to MSES certain Assigned Rights and Obligations, including the right to receive Assigned 
Product, which Assigned Product will be delivered to Issuer under the Prepaid Agreement and then 
resold by Issuer hereunder; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of the Parties’ 
obligations under this Agreement, Issuer shall have entered into the Prepaid Agreement and shall 
have issued the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants set 
forth in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



2 

of which are hereby acknowledged, Issuer and Purchaser (the “Parties” hereto; each is a “Party”) 
agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Defined Terms.  The following terms, when used in this Agreement and 
identified by the capitalization of the first letter thereof, have the respective meanings set forth 
below, unless the context otherwise requires: 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to either Party, any entity which is a direct or 
indirect parent or subsidiary of such Party or which directly or indirectly (i) owns or controls such 
Party, (ii) is owned or controlled by such Party, or (iii) is under common ownership or control with 
such Party.  For purposes of this definition, “control” of an entity means the power, directly or 
indirectly, either to (a) vote 50% or more of the securities having ordinary voting power for the 
election of directors or Persons performing similar functions or (b) direct or cause the direction of 
the management and policies, whether by contract or otherwise.  

“Agreement” has the meaning specified in the preamble and shall include exhibits, 
recitals and attachments referenced herein and attached hereto and all amendments, supplements 
and modifications hereto and thereto. 

“Annual Refund” means the annual refund, if any, provided to Purchaser and 
calculated pursuant to the procedures specified in Section 3.2(c). 

“Applicable Rating Agencies” means, at any given time, each Rating Agency then 
rating the Bonds.  

“Assigned Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in the applicable Assignment 
Agreement. 

“Assigned Energy” has the meaning specified in the applicable Assignment 
Agreement; provided that any Assigned Energy shall be EPS Compliant Energy as set forth in the 
Assignment Letter Agreement. 

“Assigned Product” means, as applicable, PCC1 Product, Long-Term PCC1 
Product, Assigned Energy, Assigned RECs and any other product included in an Assignment 
Agreement. 

“Assigned RECs” means any RECs to be delivered to MSCG or MSES pursuant to 
any Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Assigned Rights and Obligations” means a portion of Purchaser’s rights and 
obligations under a power purchase agreement assigned pursuant to an Assignment Agreement. 

“Assignment Agreement” means the Initial Assignment Agreement and any 
subsequent assignment agreement entered into consistent with the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



3 

“Assignment Letter Agreement” means that certain Letter Agreement, dated as of 
the date hereof, by and among MSCG, MSES, Issuer and Purchaser. 

“Available Discount” means, for each Reset Period, the amount, expressed in cents 
per MWh (rounded down to the nearest one-half cent), determined by the Calculation Agent 
pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement for such Reset Period.  The Available Discount shall equal 
the sum of the Monthly Discount and any anticipated Annual Refunds for the applicable Reset 
Period. 

“Balancing Authority” has the meaning specified in the CAISO Tariff. 

“Base Energy” means Firm (LD) Energy. 

“Billing Date” has the meaning specified in Section 14.1(b). 

“Billing Statement” has the meaning specified in Section 14.1(b). 

“Bond Closing Date” means the first date on which the Bonds are issued pursuant 
to the Bond Indenture. 

“Bond Indenture” means (i) the Trust Indenture to be entered into prior to the 
commencement of the Delivery Period between Issuer and the Trustee, as supplemented and 
amended from time to time in accordance with its terms, and (ii) any trust indenture entered into 
in connection with the commencement of any Interest Rate Period after the initial Interest Rate 
Period between Issuer and the Trustee containing substantially the same terms as the indenture 
described in clause (i) and which is intended to replace the indenture described in clause (i) as of 
the commencement of such Interest Rate Period. 

“Bonds” means the bonds issued pursuant to the Bond Indenture. 

“Business Day” means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a Federal 
Reserve Bank Holiday, (iii) any other day on which commercial banks in either New York, 
New York or the State of California are authorized or required by Law to close, or (iv) any other 
day excluded pursuant to the Bond Indenture. 

“CAISO” means California Independent System Operator or its successor. 

“CAISO Tariff” means CAISO’s FERC-approved tariff, as modified, amended or 
supplemented from time to time. 

“Calculation Agent” has the meaning specified in the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“California Long-Term Contracting Requirements” means the long-term 
contracting requirement set forth in the Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015 (SB 
350), California Public Utilities Code section 399.13(b), and CPUC Decision 17-06-026 and 
CPUC Decision 18-05-026, as may be modified by subsequent decision of the California Public 
Utilities Commission or by other Law. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



4 

“CCA Revenues” means all charges received for, and all other income and receipts 
derived by Purchaser from, the operation of its CCA System, including income derived from the 
sale of electric energy by its CCA System. 

“CCA System” means Purchaser’s community choice aggregation program that 
provides electric energy supply service to retail customers located with its service area. 

“Claiming Party” has the meaning specified in Section 11.1. 

“Claims” means all claims or actions, threatened or filed, that directly or indirectly 
relate to the indemnities provided herein, and the resulting losses, damages, expenses, attorneys’ 
fees, experts’ fees, and court costs, whether incurred by settlement or otherwise, and whether such 
claims or actions are threatened or filed prior to or after the termination of this Agreement. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Commercially Reasonable” or “Commercially Reasonable Efforts” means, with 
respect to any purchase or sale or other action required to be made, attempted or taken by a Party 
under this Agreement, such efforts as a reasonably prudent Person would undertake for the 
protection of its own interest under the conditions affecting such purchase or sale or other action, 
including without limitation, the amount of notice of the need to take such action, the duration and 
type of the purchase or sale or other action, the competitive environment in which such purchase 
or sale or other action occurs, and the risk to the Party required to take such action. 

“Contract Price” has the meaning specified in Section 3.2(a). 

“Contract Quantity” means, with respect to each Month during the Delivery Period, 
(i) the Monthly Quantity of Assigned Energy set forth in Exhibit A-2 for such Month and (ii) the
Hourly Quantity of Base Energy set forth in Exhibit A-1 for such Month, as such Exhibits A-1 and
A-2 shall be updated from time to time in accordance with Section 6.2.

“Day-Ahead Average Price” means, for any Assigned Energy after the Initial EPS 
Energy Period, (x) the sum of the Day-Ahead Market Prices for each Pricing Interval in a Month 
divided by (y) the number of Pricing Intervals in such Month; provided that in no case shall the 
Day-Ahead Average Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh.  As used in this definition, “Pricing 
Interval” means the unit of time for which CAISO establishes a separate price. 

“Day-Ahead Market Price” means The Day Ahead Market or Locational Marginal 
Price for the Energy Delivery Point for each applicable hour as published by CAISO, or as such 
price may be corrected or revised from time to time by such independent system operator or other 
entity in accordance with its rules; provided that in no case shall the Day-Ahead Market Price 
hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

“Default Rate” means, as of any date of determination, the lesser of (a) the sum of 
(i) the rate of interest per annum quoted in The Wall Street Journal (Eastern Edition) under the
“Money Rates” section as the “Prime Rate” for such date of determination, plus (ii) one percent

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

5 

per annum, or (b) if a lower maximum rate is imposed by applicable Law, such maximum lawful 
rate. 

“Delivery Hours” means each Hour commencing at 00:00 (PPT) on the first day of 
the Delivery Period, and each Hour thereafter during the Delivery Period. 

“Delivery Period” means the period beginning on [____], 2022 and ending on 
[____], 20[__]; provided that the Delivery Period shall end immediately upon the effective 
termination date of the Prepaid Agreement or early termination of this Agreement pursuant to 
Article XVII hereof. 

“Delivery Point” means (i) the applicable Assigned Delivery Point(s) for Assigned 
Energy and (ii) the applicable Energy Delivery Point for Base Energy (as set forth in Exhibits A-
1 and A-2). 

“Energy” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, 
expressed in MWhs. 

“Energy Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in Exhibit A-1. 

“Energy Project” has the meaning specified in the recitals. 

“EPS” means California’s Emissions Performance Standards, as set forth in 
Sections 8340 and 8341 of the California Public Utilities Code, as implemented and amended from 
time to time, and any successor Law. 

“EPS Compliant Energy” means Energy that Purchaser can contract for and 
purchase in compliance with EPS requirements that are applicable to Purchaser. 

“EPS Energy Period” means the Initial EPS Energy Period and any subsequent EPS 
Energy Period established by a future assignment of a power purchase agreement consistent with 
the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

“Execution Date” has the meaning specified in the preamble. 

“Federal Tax Certificate” means the executed Federal Tax Certificate delivered by 
Purchaser in the form attached as Exhibit D.   

“FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and any successor 
thereto. 

“Firm (LD)” means, with respect to the obligation to deliver Energy, that either 
Party shall be relieved of its obligations to sell and deliver or purchase and receive without liability 
only to the extent that, and for the period during which, such performance is prevented by Force 
Majeure. 

“Force Majeure” means an event or circumstance which prevents one Party from 
performing its obligations under this Agreement, which event or circumstance was not anticipated 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

6 

as of the Execution Date, which is not within the reasonable control of, or the result of the 
negligence of, the Claiming Party, and which, by the exercise of due diligence, the Claiming Party 
is unable to overcome or avoid or cause to be avoided.  Force Majeure shall not be based on (i) the 
loss of Purchaser’s markets; (ii) Purchaser’s inability economically to use or resell the Energy 
purchased hereunder; (iii) the loss or failure of Issuer’s supply except if such loss or failure results 
from curtailment by a Transmission Provider; or (iv) Issuer’s ability to sell the Energy at a higher 
price.  Neither Party may raise a claim of Force Majeure based in whole or in part on curtailment 
by a Transmission Provider unless (a) such Party has contracted for firm transmission with such 
Transmission Provider for the Energy to be delivered to or received at the Delivery Point and (b) 
such curtailment is due to “force majeure” or “uncontrollable force” or a similar term as defined 
under the Transmission Provider’s tariff; provided, however, that existence of the foregoing factors 
shall not be sufficient to conclusively or presumptively prove the existence of Force Majeure 
absent a showing of other facts and circumstances which in the aggregate with such factors 
establish that Force Majeure as defined in the first sentence hereof has occurred.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing or anything to the contrary herein, (I) any invocation of Force Majeure by MSES 
under the Prepaid Agreement shall constitute Force Majeure in respect of Issuer hereunder; (II) to 
the extent that a PPA Supplier fails to deliver any Assigned Energy and claims force majeure with 
respect to such failure to deliver, then such event shall be deemed to constitute Force Majeure in 
respect of Issuer hereunder; and (III) to the extent that an Assignment Agreement is terminated 
early, such termination shall constitute Force Majeure with respect to Issuer until the earlier of (A) 
the commencement of an “Assignment Period” under a replacement Assignment Agreement, (B) 
the commencement of the delivery of EPS Compliant Energy procured by MSCG consistent with 
the Assignment Letter Agreement or (C) the end of the second Month following the Month in 
which such early termination occurs.   

“Government Agency” means the United States of America, any state thereof, any 
municipality, or any local jurisdiction, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, 
including, but not limited to, courts, administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, 
bureaus, agencies, or instrumentalities. 

“Hour” means each 60-minute period commencing at 00:00 PPT during the 
Delivery Period. The term “Hourly” shall be construed accordingly. 

“Hourly Quantity” means, with respect to each Delivery Hour during the Delivery 
Period, the quantity (in MWh) of Base Energy set forth on Exhibit A-1 for the Month in which 
such Delivery Hour occurs (as such Exhibit A-1 may be updated from time to time in accordance 
with Section 6.2). 

“Initial Assigned PPA” means that certain Master Power Purchase and Sale 
Agreement dated February 12, 2018 and the Confirmation thereunder dated as of the date hereof 
between the Initial PPA Supplier and Purchaser.   

“Initial Assignment Agreement” means that certain Limited Assignment 
Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and among Purchaser, MSES and the Initial PPA 
Supplier.   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



7 

“Initial EPS Energy Period” means the “Assignment Period” as defined in the 
Initial Assignment Agreement. 

“Initial PPA Supplier” means MSCG. 

“Initial Reset Period” means the period beginning on [____], 2022 and ending on 
[____], 20[__]. 

“Interest Rate Period” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“Issuer” has the meaning specified in the preamble. 

“Issuer Default” has the meaning specified in Section 17.1.  

“Law” means any statute, law, rule or regulation or any judicial or administrative 
interpretation thereof having the effect of the foregoing enacted, promulgated, or issued by a 
Government Agency whether in effect as of the Execution Date or at any time in the future. 

“Long-Term PCC1 Product” means bundled renewable energy and RECs meeting 
the requirements of Portfolio Content Category 1, and the California Long-Term Contracting 
Requirements, to be delivered to MSCG, MSES or any successors thereto pursuant to any 
Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Minimum Discount” means $[____] per MWh for the Initial Rate Period and 
thereafter no less than $[____] per MWh.  Both amounts are inclusive of any projected Annual 
Refund. 

“Month” means, during the Delivery Period, a calendar month.  The term 
“Monthly” shall be construed accordingly. 

“Monthly Discount” means (i) for the Initial Reset Period, an amount (when taken 
together with any Annual Refund) that is not less than the Minimum Discount and is specified in 
Exhibit F, which Exhibit F shall be provided by Issuer to Purchaser on the Bond Closing Date, and 
(ii) for each subsequent Reset Period, a portion of the Available Discount for such Reset Period
determined by the Calculation Agent pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement and set forth in an
updated Exhibit F provided by Issuer after such determination.

“Monthly Quantity” means, with respect to each Month of the Delivery Period for 
which, the quantity (in MWh) of Assigned Energy for such Month as set forth on Exhibit A-2 (as 
such Exhibit A-2 may be updated from time to time in accordance with Section 6.2).  

“MSCG” means Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation. 

“MSES” has the meaning specified in the recitals. 

“Municipal Utility” means any Person that (a)(i) is a “governmental person” as 
defined in the implementing regulations under Section 141 of the Code and any successor 
provision and owns a natural gas or electric distribution utility (or provides Energy at wholesale 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

8 

to, or that is sold to entities that provide natural gas or Energy at wholesale to, governmental 
Persons that own such utilities) or (ii) is a community choice aggregator organized under the Laws 
of the State of California, and (b) agrees in writing to use the Energy purchased by it (or cause 
such as to be used) for a qualifying use as defined in U.S. Treas. Reg. § 1.148-1(e)(2)(iii).   

“MWh” means megawatt-hour. 

“Non-Priority Energy” means Energy that is not Priority Energy. 

“Party” has the meaning specified in the recitals. 

“PCC1 Product” means bundled renewable energy and RECs meeting the 
requirements of Portfolio Content Category 1 to be delivered to MSCG, MSES or any successors 
thereto pursuant to any Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Person” means any individual, limited liability company, corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, trust, unincorporated organization or Government Agency. 

“Portfolio Content Category 1” means any Renewable Energy Credit associated 
with the generation of electricity from an “Eligible Renewable Energy Resource” consisting of the 
portfolio content set forth in California Public Utilities Code Section 399.16(b)(1), as may be 
amended from time to time or as further defined or supplemented by Law. 

“Potential Remarketing Event” has the meaning specified in Section 3.4(b). 

“PPA Supplier” means the Initial PPA Supplier and any subsequent supplier who 
enters into an Assignment Agreement consistent with the terms of the Assignment Letter 
Agreement.  

“PPT” means Pacific Prevailing Time. 

“Prepaid Agreement” has the meaning specified in the recitals. 

“Priority Energy” means the Contract Quantity to be purchased by Purchaser under 
this Agreement, together with Energy that Purchaser is obligated to take under a long-term 
agreement, which Energy either (i) has been purchased by Purchaser or a joint action agency in a 
prepayment transaction using the proceeds of bonds, notes, or other obligations, the interest on 
which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, or (ii) is generated using 
capacity that was constructed using the proceeds of bonds, notes, or other obligations, the interest 
on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes (provided that, with 
respect to clause (ii), Priority Energy shall not include Energy that is generated using capacity that 
was wholly or partially financed through the monetization of renewable tax credits, whether such 
monetization is accomplished through a tax equity investment or otherwise, or that is generated 
from federally owned and operated hydroelectric facilities, including through the United States 
Army Corps of Engineers and the United States Bureau of Reclamation, and marketed by the 
Bonneville Power Administration or the Western Area Power Administration). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

9 

“Project Administration Fee” means the annual fee payable by Purchaser as 
described in Section 3.2(b). 

“Project Participant” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“Purchaser” has the meaning specified in the preamble. 

“Purchaser Default” has the meaning specified in Section 17.2. 

“Purchaser’s Statement” has the meaning specified in Section 14.1(a).  

“Qualifying Use Requirements” means, with respect to any Energy delivered under 
this Agreement, such Energy is used (i) for a “qualifying use” as defined in U.S. Treas. Reg. § 
1.148-1(e)(2)(iii), (ii) in a manner that will not result in any “private business use” within the 
meaning of Section 141 of the Code, and (iii) in a manner that is consistent with the Federal Tax 
Certificate attached as Exhibit D. 

“Rating Agency” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“Re-Pricing Agreement” means the Re-Pricing Agreement, dated as of the Bond 
Closing Date, by and between Issuer and MSES. 

“Real-Time Market Price” means The Five Minute Market (FMM) Locational 
Marginal Price for the Energy Delivery Point for each applicable interval as published by CAISO, 
or as such price may be corrected or revised from time to time by such independent system operator 
or other entity in accordance with its rules; provided that in no case shall the Real-Time Market 
Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

 
“Remarketing Election Deadline” means, for any Reset Period, the last date and 

time by which the Purchaser may provide a Remarketing Election Notice, which shall be 4:00 p.m. 
PPT on the 10th day of the Month (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding 
Business Day) prior to the first delivery Month of a Reset Period with respect to which a Potential 
Remarketing Event has occurred. 

“Remarketing Election Notice” has the meaning specified in Section 3.4(b). 

“Renewable Energy Credit” or “REC” has the meaning specified for “Renewable 
Energy Credit” in California Public Utilities Code Section 399.12(h), as may be amended from 
time to time or as further defined or supplemented by Law. 

“Reset Period” means each “Reset Period” under the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“Reset Period Notice” has the meaning specified in Section 3.4(a). 

“Schedule”, “Scheduled” or “Scheduling” means the actions of Issuer, Purchaser 
and/or their designated representatives, including each Party’s Transmission Providers, if 
applicable, of notifying, requesting and confirming to each other the quantity of Energy to be 
delivered during any given portion of the Delivery Period at a specified Delivery Point. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



10 

“Transmission Provider(s)” means any entity or entities transmitting or transporting 
Energy on behalf of Issuer or Purchaser to or from the Delivery Point.  

“Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., and its 
successors as Trustee under the Bond Indenture. 

“Voided Remarketing Election Notice” has the meaning specified in Section 3.4(b). 

“WREGIS” means the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System 
or its successor. 

Section 1.2 Definitions; Interpretation.  References to “Articles,” “Sections,” 
“Schedules” and “Exhibits” shall be to Articles, Sections, Schedules and Exhibits, as the case 
may be, of this Agreement unless otherwise specifically provided.  Section headings in this 
Agreement are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part 
of this Agreement for any other purpose or be given any substantive effect.  Any of the terms 
defined herein may, unless the context otherwise requires, be used in the singular or the plural, 
depending on the reference.  The use herein of the word “include” or “including”, when following 
any general statement, term or matter, shall not be construed to limit such statement, term or 
matter to the specific items or matters set forth immediately following such word or to similar 
items or matters, whether or not nonlimiting language (such as “without limitation” or “but not 
limited to” or words of similar import) is used with reference thereto, but rather shall be deemed 
to refer to all other items or matters that fall within the scope of such general statement, term or 
matter.  Any reference herein to any agreement or document includes all amendments, 
supplements or restatements to and of such agreement or document as may occur from time to 
time, and any reference to a party to any such agreement includes all successors and assigns of 
such party thereunder permitted by the terms hereof and thereof.   

ARTICLE II 
EXECUTION DATE AND DELIVERY PERIOD; NATURE OF ENERGY PROJECT 

Section 2.1 Execution Date; Delivery Period.  Unless this Agreement is terminated 
pursuant to Article XVII, delivery of Energy under this Agreement shall commence and continue 
for the Delivery Period.   

Section 2.2 Termination Due to Failure to Issue Bonds or Provide Minimum Discount.  
Each Party shall have a right to terminate this Agreement with the effect that this Agreement shall 
be of no further force or effect and the Parties shall have no rights or obligations hereunder if (a) 
the Bonds are not issued on or before [____], 2022, or (b) Issuer notifies Purchaser that the 
expected Available Discount for the Initial Reset Period is less than the Minimum Discount.   

Section 2.3 Nature of Energy Project.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Issuer 
will meet its obligations to provide Energy to Purchaser under this Agreement exclusively through 
its purchase of long-term supplies of Energy from MSES pursuant to the Energy Project and that 
Issuer is financing its purchase of such long-term supplies through the issuance of the Bonds.  As 
provided in Section 3.2(a) below, Purchaser shall pay a fixed price for Energy during the Initial 
EPS Energy Period and thereafter shall pay a floating price, less the Monthly Discount in each 
case. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



11 

Section 2.4 Pledge of this Agreement.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Issuer 
will pledge its right, title, and interest under this Agreement and the revenues to be received under 
this Agreement (other than revenues attributable to the Project Administration Fee) to secure 
Issuer’s obligations under the Bond Indenture. 

ARTICLE III 
SALE AND PURCHASE 

Section 3.1 Sale and Purchase of Energy.  Issuer agrees to sell and deliver or cause to 
be delivered to Purchaser, and Purchaser agrees to purchase and take or cause to be taken from 
Issuer, in each case, on a Firm (LD) basis, the Contract Quantity of Energy pursuant to the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement.   

Section 3.2 Pricing.  

(a) For each MWh of Energy delivered to Purchaser, Purchaser shall pay Issuer
the applicable Contract Price.  With respect to each MWh delivered under this Agreement, 
“Contract Price” means: 

(i) for Assigned Energy during the Initial EPS Energy Period, (A) the Day-
Ahead Market Price minus (B) the Monthly Discount; and 

(ii) for Assigned Energy after the Initial EPS Energy Period, (A) the Day-
Ahead Average Price for the Month in which Energy is delivered, minus (B) the Monthly 
Discount.  The Contract Price for Assigned Energy is inclusive of any amounts due in 
respect of other Assigned Products. 

(b) Issuer shall bill and Purchaser shall pay in January of each year during the
Delivery Period a “Project Administration Fee” equal to the result of (x) $[75,000.00] minus the 
balance of the Administrative Fee Fund (as defined in the Bond Indenture) as of January 1 of such 
year, multiplied by (y) 0.54. 

(c) During the term of this Agreement, promptly following completion of the
annual audit of Issuer’s financial statements at the end of each fiscal year (currently the twelve-
month period ending December 31), Issuer shall compare its revenues (as determined in 
accordance with the Bond Indenture) and expenses under the Energy Project for that fiscal year. 
If this annual comparison demonstrates that such revenues exceeded such expenses during the 
applicable fiscal year and there are amounts on deposit in the fund established by the Bond 
Indenture available for such purpose, then Issuer shall make refunds to the Project Participant in 
the amount available after making allowances for any necessary and appropriate reserves and 
contingencies (including but not limited to amounts deemed reasonably necessary by Issuer to 
fund any working capital reserve and to reserve or account for unfunded liabilities, including future 
sinking fund or other principal amortization of the Bonds.  As of the Execution Date, the projected 
Annual Refund for the Initial Rate Period is $[____] per MWh.  

Section 3.3 No Obligation to Take Base Energy.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary in this Agreement, Purchaser shall not be required to purchase and receive any Base 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

12 

Energy hereunder, and Issuer shall cause MSES to remarket any portion of the Contract Quantity 
that is Base Energy pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C to the Prepaid Agreement.   

Section 3.4 Reset Period Remarketing.   

(a) Reset Period Notice.  For each Reset Period, Issuer shall provide to 
Purchaser, at least ten (10) days prior to the Remarketing Election Deadline, formal written notice 
setting forth (i) the duration of such Reset Period, (ii) the Estimated Available Discount (as defined 
in the Re-Pricing Agreement) for such Reset Period, and (iii) the applicable Remarketing Election 
Deadline (a “Reset Period Notice”).  Issuer may thereafter update such notice at any time prior to 
the Remarketing Election Deadline and may extend the Remarketing Election Deadline in its sole 
discretion in any such update. 

(b) Remarketing Election.  If the Reset Period Notice (or any update thereto) 
indicates that the Available Discount in such notice is not at least equal to the Minimum Discount 
for that Reset Period, then: (i) a “Potential Remarketing Event” shall be deemed to exist, and (ii) 
Purchaser may, not later than the Remarketing Election Deadline, issue a written notice in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit C (a “Remarketing Election Notice”) to Issuer, MSES and the Trustee 
electing for all of Purchaser’s Energy that would otherwise be delivered hereunder to be 
remarketed during the applicable Reset Period; provided, however, if the actual Available 
Discount, as finally determined under the Re-Pricing Agreement, is equal to or greater than the 
Minimum Discount, then Issuer may, in its sole discretion, elect by written notice to Purchaser to 
treat such Remarketing Election Notice as void (a “Voided Remarketing Election Notice”).  For 
the avoidance of doubt, in the event that Purchaser issues a Remarketing Election Notice (other 
than a Voided Remarketing Notice), any rights and obligations assigned to MSCG under the Initial 
Assigned PPA or a subsequent Assignment Agreement including, without limitation, the right to 
receive Assigned Energy, shall revert to Purchaser as of the end of the Initial Reset Period or the 
then-current Reset Period, as applicable.    

(c) Final Determination of Available Discount.  The Parties acknowledge and 
agree that the final Available Discount for any Reset Period following the Initial Reset Period will 
be determined on the applicable Re-Pricing Date (as defined in the Re-Pricing Agreement), and 
that such Available Discount may differ from the estimate or estimates of such Available Discount 
provided to Purchaser prior to the applicable Remarketing Election Deadline.  Accordingly, the 
Parties agree that: 

(i) the Available Discount for any Reset Period will not be less than the 
Minimum Discount applicable to such Reset Period, unless Issuer has provided notice of a 
Potential Remarketing Event to Purchaser in accordance with  Section 3.4(b); and 

(ii) if Purchaser receives notice of a Potential Remarketing Event and 
has not provided a Remarketing Election Notice prior to the applicable Remarketing 
Election Deadline, Purchaser shall be deemed to have elected to continue to purchase and 
receive its Contract Quantity at a Contract Price that reflects the Monthly Discount portion 
of the Available Discount as finally determined on the applicable Re-Pricing Date, plus 
Purchaser’s right to its share of Annual Refunds, if any, and all delivery and purchase 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

13 

obligations under this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for the applicable 
Reset Period. 

(d) Resumption of Deliveries.  Notwithstanding the issuance of any 
Remarketing Election Notice for a Reset Period, Purchaser will (i) remain obligated to purchase 
the Contract Quantities hereunder for each subsequent Reset Period, unless Purchaser issues a new 
valid Remarketing Election Notice (other than a Voided Remarketing Election Notice) for any 
such Reset Period in accordance with Section 3.4(b) and (ii) not make any new commitment to 
purchase Priority Energy during such Reset Period to the extent any such commitment could 
reasonably be expected to cause, during any portion of the Delivery Period after such Reset Period, 
Purchaser’s aggregate obligations to purchase Priority Energy (including its obligation to purchase 
Priority Energy hereunder) to exceed Purchaser’s expected aggregate requirements for Energy that 
will be used (A) for a “qualifying use” as defined in U.S. Treas. Reg. § 1.148-1(e)(2)(iii) and (B) 
in a manner that will not result in any “private business use” within the meaning of Section 141 of 
the Code.   

(e) Reduction of Contract Quantity.  The Parties recognize and agree that the 
Contract Quantity may be reduced in a Reset Period pursuant to the re-pricing methodology 
described in the Re-Pricing Agreement if necessary to achieve a successful remarketing of the 
Bonds.  The Parties agree further that if, pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement, Issuer and the 
Calculation Agent determine in connection with the establishment of any new Reset Period that: 
(i) such Reset Period will be the final Reset Period and (ii) such Reset Period will end prior to the 
end of the original Delivery Period, then (A) Issuer will notify Purchaser, (B) the Delivery Period 
will be deemed to be modified so that it ends at the end of such Reset Period, and (C) the Contract 
Quantity for the last Month in such Reset Period may be reduced as provided in the Re-Pricing 
Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE IV 
FAILURE TO DELIVER OR TAKE ENERGY 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, neither Purchaser nor Issuer shall have 
any liability or other obligation to one another for any failure to Schedule, take, or deliver Assigned 
Product. 

ARTICLE V 
TRANSMISSION AND DELIVERY; COMMUNICATIONS 

Section 5.1 Delivery of Energy.  All Assigned Energy delivered under this Agreement 
shall be Scheduled at the applicable Assigned Delivery Point and in accordance with the terms of 
the applicable Assignment Agreement.  All other Assigned Product shall be delivered consistent 
with the terms of the applicable Assignment Agreement.  Except as set forth in the two foregoing 
sentences, Buyer and Seller shall have no liability or obligations under this Article V with respect 
to Assigned Product. 

Section 5.2 Scheduling.  Scheduling of Assigned Energy shall be in accordance with 
the applicable Assignment Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

14 

Section 5.3 Title and Risk of Loss.  Title to the Energy delivered under this Agreement 
and risk of loss shall pass from Seller to Buyer at the Assigned Delivery Point.  The transfer of 
title and risk of loss for all Assigned Product other than Assigned Energy shall be in accordance 
with the applicable Assignment Agreement; provided that all Assignment Agreements shall 
provide for the transfer of Renewable Energy Credits in accordance with WREGIS. 

Section 5.4 PCC1 Product and Long-Term PCC1 Product.  To the extent that any 
Assigned Product is PCC1 Product or Long-Term PCC1 Product, the following provisions apply: 

(a) Eligibility.  Seller, and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants 
that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement that: (i) the Project qualifies and is certified 
by the CEC as an Eligible Renewable Energy Resource (“ERR”) as such term is defined in Public 
Utilities Code Section 399.12 or Section 399.16; and (ii) the Project’s output delivered to Buyer 
qualifies under the requirements of the California Renewables Portfolio Standard.  To the extent a 
change in law occurs after execution of this Agreement that causes this representation and warranty 
to be materially false or misleading, it shall not be an Event of Default if Seller has used 
commercially reasonable efforts to comply with such change in law.  [STC 6, Non-Modifiable. 
(Source: D.07-11-025, Attachment A.) D.08-04-009].  As used above, “Seller” means “Issuer”, 
Buyer means “Purchaser”, and any other capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meaning specified in the Assigned Agreement. 

(b) Transfer of Renewable Energy Credits.  Seller and, if applicable, its 
successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement the 
renewable energy credits transferred to Buyer conform to the definition and attributes required for 
compliance with the California Renewables Portfolio Standard, as set forth in California Public 
Utilities Commission Decision 08-08-028, and as may be modified by subsequent decision of the 
California Public Utilities Commission or by subsequent legislation.  To the extent a change in 
law occurs after execution of this Agreement that causes this representation and warranty to be 
materially false or misleading, it shall not be an Event of Default if Seller has used commercially 
reasonable efforts to comply with such change in law. [STC REC-1, Non-modifiable. D.11-01-
025].  As used above, “Seller” means “Issuer”, Buyer means “Purchaser”, and any other capitalized 
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning specified in the Assigned Agreement. 

(c) Tracking of RECs in WREGIS.  Seller warrants that all necessary steps to 
allow the Renewable Energy Credits transferred to Buyer to be tracked in the Western Renewable 
Energy Generation Information System will be taken prior to the first delivery under the contract. 
[STC REC-2, Non-modifiable. D.11-01-025].  As used above, “Seller” means “Issuer”, Buyer 
means “Purchaser”, and any other capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meaning specified in the Assigned Agreement. 

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties 
hereunder shall be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the 
laws of the state of California, without regard to principles of conflicts of law. To the extent 
enforceable at such time, each Party waives its respective right to any jury trial with respect to any 
litigation arising under or in connection with this Agreement. [STC 17, Non-Modifiable. (Source: 
D.07-11-025, Attachment A) D.08-04-009] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



15 

(e) Issuer Representations and Warranties.

Issuer represents and warrants: 

(i) Issuer has the right to sell the Assigned Product from the Applicable
Project;

(ii) Issuer has not sold the Assigned Product or any REC or other
attributes of the Assigned Product to be transferred to Purchaser to
any other person or entity;

(iii) the Energy component of the Assigned Product produced by the
Applicable Project and purchased by Issuer for resale to Purchaser
hereunder is not being sold by Issuer back to the Applicable Project
or PPA Seller;

(iv) Assigned Energy and Assigned RECs to be purchased and sold
pursuant to this Agreement are not committed to another party;

(v) The Assigned Product is free and clear of all liens or other
encumbrances;

(vi) Issuer will deliver to Purchaser all Assigned Energy and associated
RECs generated by the Applicable Project for Long-Term PCC1
Product in compliance with the California Long-Term Contracting
Requirements, if applicable

(vii) The Assigned Product supplied to Purchaser under this Agreement
that is Long-Term PCC1 Product will be sourced solely from
Applicable Projects that have an Assignment Period of ten years or
more in length, or otherwise in compliance with the California Long
Term Contracting Requirements; and

(viii) Issuer will cooperate and work with Purchaser, the CEC, and/or the
CPUC to provide any documentation required by the CPUC or CEC
to support the Product’s classification as a Portfolio Content
Category 1 Product as set forth in California Public Utilities Code
Section 399.16(b)(1) or, if applicable, or compliance with the
California Long-Term Contracting Requirements.

Issuer further represents and warrants to Purchaser that, to the extent that the 
Product sold by Issuer is a resale of part or all of a contract between Issuer and one 
or more third parties, Issuer represents, warrants and covenants that the resale 
complies with the following conditions in (i) through (iv) below during the 
Assignment Period and throughout the generation period: 

(i) The original upstream third-party contract(s) meets the criteria of
California Public Utilities Code Section 399.16(b)(1);

(ii) This Agreement transfers only electricity and RECs that have not
yet been generated prior to the Assignment Period;

(iii) The electricity transferred by this Agreement is transferred to

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



16 

Purchaser in real time; and 

(iv) If the Applicable Project has an agreement to dynamically transfer
electricity to a California balancing authority, the transactions
implemented under this Agreement are not contrary to any condition
imposed by a balancing authority participating in the dynamic
transfer arrangement.

(f) Subsequent Changes in Law.  In the event that the qualifications or
requirements of the RPS program, PCC1 Product or the California Long-Term Contracting 
Requirements change, Issuer shall take commercially reasonable actions to meet the amended 
qualifications or requirements of the RPS Law, PCC1 Product or the California Long-Term 
Contracting Requirements but will not be required to incur any unreimbursed costs to comply with 
the RPS Law, PCC1 or the California Long- Term Contracting Requirements, collectively. 

(g) Limitations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement,
the Parties acknowledge and agree as follows: 

(i) Issuer has relied exclusively upon the representations and warranties
of each respective seller set forth in the Assigned Agreements in
making the representations and warranties set forth in this Section
5.4 and has not performed any independent investigation with
respect thereto;

(ii) MSES has agreed under the Prepaid Agreement to terminate or
cause MSCG to terminate the applicable Assignment Period in the
event that any representation or warranty in this Section 5.4 proves
to be incorrect in any respect; and

(iii) Purchaser agrees that its sole recourse for any breach of the
provisions of this Section 5.4 shall be the termination of the
applicable Assignment Period and Purchaser shall have no other
recourse against Issuer or remedies under this Agreement.

Section 5.5 Deliveries within CAISO or Another Balancing Authority.  The Parties 
acknowledge that Energy delivered by Issuer at a Delivery Point within CAISO or another 
Balancing Authority will be delivered in accordance with the CAISO Tariff and rules of the 
Balancing Authority as applicable.  Scheduling such Energy in accordance with the requirements 
of the applicable Energy into the applicable Balancing Authority shall constitute delivery of such 
Energy to Purchaser hereunder. 

Section 5.6 Assigned Products.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the 
Parties shall have no liability under this Article V with respect to any Assigned Products. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

17 

ARTICLE VI 
PARTIAL ASSIGNMENTS OF PPAS 

Section 6.1 Future PPA Assignments.  In connection with the expiration or termination 
of an EPS Energy Period, each of the Parties agrees to satisfy its obligations under the Assignment 
Letter Agreement, including but not limited to (a) Purchaser’s obligation to exercise 
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to assign a portion of Purchaser’s rights and obligations under 
a power purchase agreement under which Project Participant is purchasing EPS Compliant 
Energy to MSCG or MSES pursuant to an Assignment Agreement and (b) the Parties’ obligations 
to cooperate in good faith with MSCG and MSES with respect to any proposed assignments. 

Section 6.2 Updates to Exhibits A-1 and A-2.   

(a) To the extent that an EPS Energy Period terminates or expires and Assigned 
Energy is not available for delivery immediately following (i) the end of the period for which Force 
Majeure is deemed to occur in the event of an early termination or (ii) the expiration of an EPS 
Energy Period, the Parties shall update (i) Exhibit A-1 to reflect an increase in the Hourly 
Quantities and (ii) Exhibit A-2 to reflect a decrease in the Monthly Quantities thereunder, in each 
case, in an amount equal to the Assigned Energy associated with the EPS Energy Period that 
terminated or expired.   

(b) In connection with the execution of any subsequent Assignment Agreement, 
the Parties shall update Exhibits A-1 and A-2 to reflect any changes in the Hourly Quantities of 
Base Energy and Monthly Quantities of Assigned Energy and any other changes in connection 
therewith.   

ARTICLE VII 
USE OF ENERGY 

Section 7.1 Tax Exempt Status of the Bonds.  Purchaser acknowledges that the Bonds 
will be issued with the intention that the interest thereon will be exempt from federal taxes under 
Section 103 of the Code.  Accordingly, Purchaser agrees that it will (a) provide such information 
with respect to its CCA System as may be requested by Issuer in order to establish the tax-exempt 
status of the Bonds, and (b) act in accordance with such written instructions as Issuer may provide 
from time to time in order to maintain the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  Purchaser further 
agrees that it will not at any time take any action, or fail to take any action, that would adversely 
affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. 

Section 7.2 Priority Energy.  Subject to Section 7.5(a), Purchaser agrees to take the 
Contract Quantities to be delivered under this Agreement (a) in priority over and in preference to 
all Non-Priority Energy; and (b) on at least a pari passu and non-discriminatory basis with other 
Priority Energy. 

Section 7.3 Remarketing Sales .  

(a) Remarketing of Assigned Energy.  If notwithstanding Purchaser’s 
compliance with Section 7.1, a quantity of Assigned Energy less than the Monthly Quantity is 
delivered hereunder in any Month for any reason, then (i) MSCG shall remarket such undelivered 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

18 

quantity of Assigned Energy to the PPA Supplier at the Contract Price plus the Monthly Discount 
then in effect, and (ii) Purchaser shall remain responsible for the Project Administration Fee for 
such quantity of Assigned Energy not delivered hereunder.  For the avoidance of doubt, Purchaser 
will not have any payment obligation with respect to Assigned Energy that is remarketed pursuant 
to the foregoing sentence.    

(b) Remarketing of Base Energy.  Consistent with Section 3.3, to the extent any 
portion of the Contract Quantity is Base Energy, Issuer shall cause MSES to remarket or purchase 
such Energy for the account of MSES under the remarketing provisions of the Prepaid Agreement, 
and Issuer shall credit against the amount owed by Purchaser for such Contract Quantities the 
amounts received from MSES for such remarketing services, less all directly incurred costs or 
expenses, including but not limited to remarketing administrative charges paid to MSES under the 
Prepaid Agreement, but in no event shall the amount of such credit be more than the Contract 
Price.  For the avoidance of doubt, Purchaser will not have any payment obligation with respect to 
Base Energy that is remarketed pursuant to the foregoing sentence.    

(c) MSES Remarketing Fees.  Purchaser shall not in any case have an 
obligation to make a payment to Issuer with respect to any Remarketing Fee (as defined in the 
Prepaid Agreement) charged by MSES under the Prepaid Agreement  

Section 7.4 Qualifying Use.  Subject to Section 7.5, Purchaser agrees that, without 
limiting Purchaser’s other obligations under this Article VII, it will use all of the Energy 
purchased under this Agreement in compliance with the Qualifying Use Requirements.  Purchaser 
agrees that it will provide such additional information, records and certificates as Issuer may 
reasonably request to confirm Purchaser’s compliance with this Section 7.4.  

Section 7.5 Remediation.  To the extent that (a) all or a portion of the Contract Quantity 
is remarketed under Section 7.3(a) or Section 7.3(b), (b) Purchaser has exercised Commercially 
Reasonable Efforts (as determined by Special Tax Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture)) to 
obtain EPS Compliant Energy for delivery hereunder consistent with the Assignment Letter 
Agreement and (c) Purchaser is not otherwise in default under this Agreement, then:  

(a) MSES shall be obligated under the remarketing provisions of the Prepaid 
Agreement to purchase the remarketed Energy for its own account at the Day-Ahead Market Price 
(the proceeds of any such purchases, “Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds”), which Disqualified 
Remarketing Proceeds are for the benefit of Purchaser in that such proceeds reduce its payment 
obligations hereunder; 

(b) Purchaser shall (i) exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to use an 
amount equivalent to such Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds to purchase Non-Priority Energy 
and use such Non-Priority Energy in compliance with the Qualifying Use Requirements in order 
to remediate such Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds and (ii) apply its purchases of Non-Priority 
Energy to remediate Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds under this Agreement prior to 
remediating such proceeds under any other contract that provides for the purchase of Priority 
Energy;  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

19 

(c) in order to track compliance with Purchaser’s obligations under Section 
7.5(b) above, Purchaser shall deliver a Remediation Certificate in the form of Exhibit H hereto to 
Issuer and MSES by the tenth day of the Month subsequent to any relevant Non-Priority Energy 
purchases (which may include purchases of Energy from CAISO to the extent such Energy is used 
in compliance with the Qualifying Use Requirements);  

(d) for Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds remediated under this Section 7.5, 
Issuer shall pay Purchaser the Monthly Discount associated with such Disqualified Remarketing 
Proceeds on the last Business Day of the Month following the Month in which Purchaser provides 
a certificate under clause (c) evidencing such remediation; and 

(e) to the extent any Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds are not remediated 
within twelve Months of the date on which such proceeds were received by Issuer, then MSES 
shall be obligated under the Prepaid Agreement to exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to 
remediate such Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds under the Prepaid Agreement and Purchaser’s 
ability to remediate such remarketing proceeds shall be subject to MSES’s successful remediation 
of such proceeds through sales to other purchaser(s);  

provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, to the extent Special Tax Counsel (as defined in the 
Bond Indenture) determines at any time that Purchaser has failed to exercise Commercially 
Reasonable Efforts to obtain EPS Compliant Energy for delivery hereunder consistent with the 
Assignment Letter Agreement, then Purchaser shall not be entitled to remediate any Disqualified 
Remarketing Proceeds related to the resulting remarketing of Base Energy by MSES. 

ARTICLE VIII 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

Section 8.1 Representations and Warranties of the Parties.  As a material inducement to 
entering into this Agreement, each Party, with respect to itself, hereby represents and warrants to 
the other Party as of the Execution Date as follows: 

(a) For Issuer as the representing Party, Issuer is a is a joint powers authority 
organized pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 6500 et 
seq.) of the California Government Code; 

(b) For Purchaser as the representing Party, Purchaser is a joint powers 
authority organized pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 
6500 et seq.) of the California Government Code and a community choice aggregator pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 366.2 of the California Public Utilities Code, duly organized and validly 
existing under the Laws of the State of California; 

(c) it has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business, to own its 
properties and to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement; 

(d) there is no litigation, action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or, to 
the best of such Party’s knowledge, threatened, before or by any Government Agency, which could 
reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the performance by such Party of its 
obligations under this Agreement or that questions the validity, binding effect or enforceability 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



20 

hereof, any action taken or to be taken by such Party pursuant hereto, or any of the transactions 
contemplated hereby; 

(e) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party
has been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Party and does not require any 
approval or consent of any security holder of such Party or any holder (or any trustee for any 
holder) of any indebtedness or other obligation of such Party; 

(f) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such
Party by an appropriate officer or authorized Person of such Party and constitutes the legal, valid 
and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, as such 
enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 
and similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity; 

(g) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party
shall not violate any provision of any Law, decree or other legal or regulatory determination 
applicable to it; 

(h) the execution, delivery and performance by such Party of this Agreement,
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such 
Party of its financial obligations under this Agreement, shall not result in any violation of any term 
of any material contract or agreement applicable to it, or any of its charter or bylaws or of any 
license, permit, franchise, judgment, writ, injunction or regulation, decree, order, charter, Law or 
ordinance applicable to it or any of its properties or to any obligations incurred by it or by which 
it or any of its properties or obligations are bound or affected, or of any determination or award of 
any arbitrator applicable to it, and shall not conflict with, or cause a breach of, or default under, 
any such term or result in the creation of any lien upon any of its properties or assets, except with 
respect to Issuer, the lien of the Bond Indenture; 

(i) to the best of the knowledge and belief of such Party, no consent, approval,
order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or giving of notice to, obtaining 
of any license or permit from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Government 
Agency is required in connection with the valid authorization, execution, delivery and performance 
by such Party of this Agreement or the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated 
hereby other than those that have been obtained; and 

(j) it enters this Agreement as a bona-fide, arm’s-length transaction involving
the mutual exchange of consideration and, once executed by both Parties, considers this Agreement 
a legally enforceable contract. 

Section 8.2 Warranty of Title.  Issuer warrants that it will have the right to convey and 
will transfer good and merchantable title to all Energy sold under this Agreement and delivered 
by it to Purchaser, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, and claims.   

Section 8.3 Disclaimer of Warranties.  EXCEPT FOR THE WARRANTIES 
EXPRESSLY MADE BY ISSUER IN THIS ARTICLE VIII, ISSUER HEREBY DISCLAIMS 
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



21 

Section 8.4 Continuing Disclosure.  Purchaser agrees to provide to Issuer: (a) such 
financial and operating information as may be requested by Issuer including its most recent 
audited financial statements for use in Issuer’s offering documents for the Bonds; and (b) annual 
updates to such information and statements to enable Issuer to comply with its continuing 
disclosure undertakings under Rule 15(c)2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission.  Failure by Purchaser to comply with its agreement to provide such annual updates 
shall not be a default under this Agreement, but any such failure shall entitle Issuer or an owner 
of the Bonds to take such actions and to initiate such proceedings as may be necessary and 
appropriate to cause Purchaser to comply with such agreement, including without limitation the 
remedies of mandamus and specific performance. 

ARTICLE IX 
TAXES 

Issuer shall (i) be responsible for all ad valorem, excise and other taxes assessed 
with respect to Energy delivered pursuant to this Agreement upstream of the Delivery Point, and 
(ii) indemnify Purchaser and its Affiliates for any such taxes paid by Purchaser or its Affiliates.
Purchaser shall (i) be responsible for all such taxes assessed at or downstream of the Delivery
Point, and (ii) indemnify Issuer and its Affiliates for any such taxes paid by Issuer or its Affiliates.

ARTICLE X 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Section 10.1 Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, 
including the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by 
final, non-appealable binding arbitration in San Francisco, California before three arbitrators.  The 
arbitration shall be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (“JAMS”) 
pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Within 15 days after the 
commencement of arbitration, each of the Parties shall select one person to act as arbitrator, and 
the two so-selected arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator (the “chairperson”) within 30 days of 
the commencement of the arbitration.  If either Party is unable or fails to select one person to act 
as arbitrator, such arbitrator shall be appointed by JAMS.  If the Party-selected arbitrators are 
unable or fail to agree upon a chairperson, the chairperson shall be appointed by JAMS.  The 
chairperson shall be a person who has experience in renewable energy-related transactions, and 
none of the arbitrators shall have been previously employed by either Party or have any direct 
pecuniary interest in either Party or the subject matter of the arbitration, unless such conflict is 
expressly acknowledged and waived in writing by each of the Parties.  The Parties shall maintain 
the confidential nature of the arbitration proceeding and any award, including any hearing(s), 
except as may be necessary to prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the merits, or 
except as necessary in connection with a court application for a preliminary remedy, a judicial 
challenge to an award or its enforcement, or unless otherwise required by law or judicial decision. 
Any arbitration proceedings, decision or award rendered hereunder and the validity, effect and 
interpretation of this arbitration provision shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act.  The 
arbitrator(s) shall have no authority to award consequential, treble, exemplary, or punitive 
damages of any type or kind regardless of whether such damages may be available under any law 
or right, with the Parties hereby affirmatively waiving their rights, if any, to recover or claim such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

22 

damages.  In any arbitration arising out of or related to this Agreement, the arbitrators shall award 
to the prevailing Party, if any, the costs and attorneys’ fees reasonably incurred in seeking to 
enforce the application of this Section 10.1 and by the prevailing party in connection with the 
arbitration.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 10.1, any costs incurred by 
a Party in seeking judicial enforcement of any written decision of the arbitrators shall be 
chargeable to and borne exclusively by the Party against whom such court order is obtained.  The 
award shall be final and binding on the Parties and judgment upon any award may be entered in 
any court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 10.2 Judicial Reference.  

(a) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 10.1, if 
Section 10.1 is ineffective or unenforceable, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (including the 
existence, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the applicability of any statute of 
limitation period) (each, a “Dispute”) shall be resolved by a reference proceeding in California in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 638 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure 
(“CCP”), or their successor sections (a “Reference Proceeding”), which shall constitute the 
exclusive remedy for the resolution of any Dispute.  As a condition precedent to initiating a 
Reference Proceeding with respect to any Dispute, the Parties shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 10.2(b). 

(b) Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the 
“Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Party (the “Responding Party”) with a written notice of 
each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue, and support for such position 
(the “Notice of Dispute”).  Within 10 days after receiving the Notice of Dispute, the Responding 
Party shall provide the Disputing Party with a written Notice of each additional issue (if any) with 
respect to the dispute raised by the Notice of Dispute, a proposed means for resolving every issue 
in dispute, and support for such position (the “Dispute Response”).  Thereafter, the Parties shall 
meet to discuss the matter and attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution of the dispute. 
If the Parties do not resolve the dispute by mutual agreement within 60 days after receipt of the 
Dispute Response, (the “Negotiation Period”), then either Party may provide to the other Party 
written notice of intent for judicial reference (the “Impasse Notice”) in accordance with the further 
provisions of this Section 10.2. 

(c) Applicability; Selection of Referees. 

(i) The Party that provides the Impasse Notice shall nominate one (1) 
referee at the same time it provides the Impasse Notice.  The other Party shall nominate 
one referee within 10 days of receiving the Impasse Notice.  The two (2) referees (the 
“Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, together 
with the Party-Appointed Referees, the “Referees”).  The Party-Appointed Referees shall 
be competent and experienced in matters involving the electric energy business in the 
United States, with at least 10 years of electric industry experience as a practicing attorney. 
The Third Referee shall be an active or retired California state or federal judge. Each of the 
Party-Appointed Referees and the Third Referee shall be impartial and independent of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



23 

either Party and of the other referees and not employed by any of the Parties in any prior 
matter. 

(ii) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third
Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall 
be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of 
California, County of San Francisco (the “Court”), and with due regard given to the 
selection criteria above.  A request for appointment of a referee may be heard on an ex 
parte or expedited basis, and the Parties agree that irreparable harm would result if ex parte 
relief is not granted. Pursuant to CCP Section 170.6, each Party shall have one (1) 
peremptory challenge to the referee selected by the Court.  

(d) Discovery; Proceedings.

(i) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the
Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in 
the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and 
trial-setting conference within 20 days after the date of selection of the Third Referee, (ii) 
if practicable, try all issues of law or fact within 180 days after the date of the conference, 
and (iii) report a statement of decision within 20 days after the matter has been submitted 
for decision.  

(ii) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as
agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after 
discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing 
procedures.   

(iii) Any matter before the Referees shall be governed by the substantive
law of California, its Code of Civil Procedure, Rules of Court, and Evidence Code, except 
as otherwise specifically agreed by the Parties and approved by the Referees.  Except as 
expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall determine the manner in which the 
Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time and place of hearings, the order of 
presentation of evidence, and all other questions that arise with respect to the course of the 
Reference Proceeding. The Reference Proceeding, including the trial, shall be conducted 
at a neutral location selected by the Parties, or if not agreed by the Parties, by the Third 
Referee, in San Francisco, California.  

(iv) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except
for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, 
a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the referees 
will be provided a courtesy copy of the transcript.  The Party making such a request shall 
have the obligation to arrange for and pay the court reporter. 

(e) Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting
forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the 
court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  The decision shall be 
appealable to the same extent and in the same manner that such decision would be appealable if 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



24 

rendered by a judge of the Court. The Parties intend this general reference agreement to be 
specifically enforceable in accordance with the CCP. 

(f) Expenses.  Each Party shall bear the compensation and expenses of its
respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All 
other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally between the Parties. 

ARTICLE XI 
FORCE MAJEURE 

Section 11.1 Applicability of Force Majeure.  To the extent either Party is prevented by 
Force Majeure from carrying out, in whole or part, its obligations under this Agreement and such 
Party (the “Claiming Party”) gives notice and details of the Force Majeure to the other Party as 
soon as practicable, then the Claiming Party shall be excused from the performance of its 
obligations with respect to this Agreement (other than the obligation to make payments then due 
or becoming due with respect to performance prior to the Force Majeure).  The Claiming Party 
shall mitigate the Force Majeure with all reasonable dispatch.  For the duration of the Claiming 
Party’s non-performance (and only for such period), the non-Claiming Party shall not be required 
to perform or resume performance of its obligations to the Claiming Party corresponding to the 
obligations of the Claiming Party excused by Force Majeure. 

Section 11.2 Settlement of Labor Disputes.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein, the Parties agree that the settlement of strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances 
shall be within the sole discretion of the Party experiencing such disturbance, and the failure of a 
Party to settle such strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances shall not prevent the existence 
of Force Majeure or of reasonable dispatch to remedy the same. 

ARTICLE XII 
GOVERNMENTAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Section 12.1 Compliance with Laws.  This Agreement shall be subject to all present and 
future Laws of any Government Agency having jurisdiction, and neither Party has knowingly 
undertaken or will knowingly undertake or knowingly cause to be undertaken any activity that 
would conflict with such Laws; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be construed to 
restrict or limit either Party’s right to object to or contest any such Law, or its application to this 
Agreement or the transactions undertaken hereunder, and neither acquiescence therein or 
compliance therewith for any period of time shall be construed as a waiver of such right. 

Section 12.2 Contests.  Excluding all matters involving a contractual dispute between the 
Parties, no Party shall contest, cause to be contested or in any way actively support the contest of 
the equity, fairness, reasonableness or lawfulness of any terms or conditions set forth or 
established pursuant to this Agreement, as those terms or conditions may be at issue before any 
Government Agency in any proceeding, if the successful result of such contest would be to 
preclude or excuse the performance of this Agreement by either Party. 

Section 12.3 Defense of Agreement.  Excluding all matters involving a contractual 
dispute between the Parties, each Party shall hereafter defend and support this Agreement before 
any Government Agency in any proceeding, if the substance, validity or enforceability of all or 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

25 

any part of this Agreement is hereafter directly challenged or if any proposed changes in 
regulatory practices or procedures would have the effect of making this Agreement invalid or 
unenforceable or would otherwise materially affect the rights or obligations of the Parties under 
this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XIII 
ASSIGNMENT 

The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon 
the Parties and their respective successors, assigns, and legal representatives; provided, however, 
that, subject to Section 18.14, neither Party may assign this Agreement or its rights and interests, 
in whole or in part, under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.  Prior 
to assigning this Agreement, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer (i) written confirmation from each 
of the Applicable Rating Agencies, provided that such agency has rated and continues to rate the 
Bonds, that the assignment will not result in a reduction, qualification, or withdrawal of the then-
current ratings assigned by the Applicable Rating Agencies to the Bonds; or (ii) written 
confirmation from each of the Applicable Rating Agencies, that the assignee has an outstanding 
long-term senior, unsecured, unenhanced debt rating equivalent to or higher than the ratings 
assigned by the Applicable Rating Agencies to the Bonds.  Whenever an assignment or a transfer 
of a Party’s interest in this Agreement is requested to be made with the written consent of the other 
Party, the assigning or transferring Party’s assignee or transferee shall expressly agree to assume, 
in writing, the duties and obligations under this Agreement of the assigning or transferring Party.  
Upon the agreement of a Party to any such assignment or transfer, the assigning or transferring 
Party shall furnish or cause to be furnished to the other Party a true and correct copy of such 
assignment or transfer and assumption of duties and obligations.   

ARTICLE XIV 
PAYMENTS 

Section 14.1 Monthly Statements. 

(a) No later than the 5th day of each Month during the Delivery Period 
(excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the 
Delivery Period, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer a statement (a “Purchaser’s Statement”) listing 
any other amounts due to Purchaser in connection with this Agreement with respect to the prior 
Month(s). 

(b) No later than the 10th day of each Month during the Delivery Period 
(excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the 
Delivery Period (the “Billing Date”), Issuer shall deliver a statement (a “Billing Statement”) to 
Purchaser indicating (i) the total amount due to Issuer for Energy delivered in the prior Month, (ii) 
any other amounts due to Issuer or Purchaser in connection with this Agreement with respect to 
the prior Month(s), and (iii) the net amount due to Issuer or Purchaser.  If the actual quantity 
delivered is not known by the Billing Date, Issuer may provisionally prepare a Billing Statement 
based on Issuer’s best available knowledge of the quantity of Energy delivered, which shall not 
exceed the Monthly Quantity or the sum of the Hourly Quantities in such Month, as applicable, 
plus any make-up quantities delivered during such Month.  The invoiced quantity and amounts 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



26 

paid thereon (with interest calculated on the amount overpaid or underpaid by Purchaser at the 
Default Rate) will then be adjusted on the following Month’s Billing Statement, as actual delivery 
information becomes available based on the actual quantity delivered. 

(c) Upon request by either Party, the other Party shall deliver such supporting
documentation of the foregoing as such requesting Party may reasonably request. 

Section 14.2 Payment.  

(a) If the Billing Statement indicates an amount due from Purchaser, then
Purchaser shall remit such amount to the Trustee for the benefit of the Issuer by wire transfer 
(pursuant to the Trustee’s instructions), in immediately available funds, on or before the 20th day 
of the Month following the most recent Month to which such Billing Statement relates, or if such 
day is not a Business Day, the preceding Business Day.  If the Billing Statement indicates an 
amount due from Issuer, then Issuer shall remit such amount to Purchaser by wire transfer 
(pursuant to Purchaser’s instructions), in immediately available funds, on or before the 28th day 
of the Month following the most recent Month to which such Billing Statement relates, or if such 
day is not a Business Day, the following Business Day. 

(b) If Purchaser fails to issue a Purchaser’s Statement with respect to any
Month, Issuer shall not be required to estimate any amounts due to Purchaser for such Month, 
provided that Purchaser may include any such amount on subsequent Purchaser’s Statements 
issued within the next sixty (60) days.  The sixty (60) day deadline in this subsection (b) replaces 
the two (2) year deadline in Section 14.5(b) with respect to any claim by any non-delivering Party 
of inaccuracy in any estimated invoice issued or payment made pursuant to this subsection (b). 

Section 14.3 Payment of Disputed Amounts; Correction of Index Price. 

(a) If Purchaser disputes any amounts included in the Issuer’s Billing
Statement, Purchaser shall (except in the case of manifest error) nonetheless pay any amount 
required by the Billing Statement in accordance with Section 14.2 without regard to any right of 
set-off, counterclaim, recoupment or other defenses to payment that Purchaser may have; provided, 
however, that Purchaser shall have the right, after payment, to dispute any amounts included in a 
Billing Statement or otherwise used to calculate payments due under this Agreement pursuant to 
Section 14.5.  If Issuer disputes any amounts included in the Purchaser’s Statement, Issuer may 
withhold payment to the extent of the disputed amount; provided, however, that interest shall be 
due at the Default Rate for any withheld amount later found to have been properly due. 

(b) If a value published for any rate or index used or to be used in this
Agreement is subsequently corrected and the correction is published or announced by the Person 
responsible for that publication or announcement within 30 days after the original publication or 
announcement, either Party may notify the other Party of (i) that correction and (ii) the amount (if 
any) that is payable as a result of that correction.  If, not later than 30 days after publication or 
announcement of that correction, a Party gives notice that an amount is so payable, the Party that 
originally either received or retained such amount shall, not later than three Business Days after 
the effectiveness of that notice, pay, subject to any other applicable provisions of this Agreement, 
to the other Party that amount, together with interest on that amount at the Default Rate for the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



27 

period from and including the day on which a payment originally was (or was not) made to but 
excluding the day of payment of the refund or payment resulting from that correction. 

Section 14.4 Late Payment.  If Purchaser fails to remit the full amount payable within 
one Business Day of when due, interest on the unpaid portion shall accrue from the date due until 
the date of payment at the Default Rate. 

Section 14.5 Audit; Adjustments. 

(a) A Party shall have the right, at its own expense, upon reasonable notice to
the other Party and at reasonable times, to examine and audit and to obtain copies of the relevant 
portion of the books, records, and telephone recordings of the other Party to the extent reasonably 
necessary, but only to such extent, to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge, payment, or 
computation made under this Agreement.  This right to examine, audit, and obtain copies shall not 
be available with respect to proprietary information not directly relevant to transactions under this 
Agreement. 

(b) Each Purchaser’s Statement and each Billing Statement shall be
conclusively presumed final and accurate and all associated claims for under- or overpayments 
shall be deemed waived unless such Purchaser’s Statement or Billing Statement is objected to in 
writing, with adequate explanation and/or documentation, within two (2) years after the applicable 
Month of Energy delivery. 

(c) All retroactive adjustments shall be paid in full by the Party owing payment
within thirty (30) days of notice and substantiation of such inaccuracy.  If the Parties are unable to 
agree upon any retroactive adjustments requested by either Party within the time period specified 
in Section 14.5(b), then either Party may pursue any remedies available with respect to such 
adjustments at law or in equity.  Retroactive adjustments for payments made based on an incorrect 
Billing Statement shall bear interest at the Default Rate from the date such payment was made. 

Section 14.6 Netting; No Set-Off.  The Parties shall net all amounts due and owing, 
including any past due amounts (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall include any accrued 
interest), arising under this Agreement such that the Party owing the greater amount shall make a 
single payment of the net amount to the other Party in accordance with this Article XIV. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, payment for all amounts set forth in a Billing Statement provided 
to Purchaser shall be made without set-off or counterclaim of any kind. 

Section 14.7 Source of Purchaser’s Payments.  Purchaser covenants and agrees to make 
payments due hereunder from CCA Revenues, and only from such CCA Revenues, as an 
operating expense of its CCA System; provided, however, that Purchaser may apply any legally 
available monies to the payment of amounts due hereunder. 

Section 14.8 Rate Covenant.  Purchaser hereby covenants and agrees that it will establish, 
fix, prescribe, maintain, and collect rates, fees, and charges from the customers of its CCA System 
so as to provide CCA Revenues sufficient to enable Purchaser to pay any other amounts legally 
payable from CCA Revenues, and to maintain any required reserves for Purchaser’s CCA System.  
Purchaser further covenants and agrees that it shall not furnish or supply Energy services free of 
charge to any Person, except any such service free of charge that Purchaser is supplying on the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

28 

date hereof as has been specifically identified by Purchaser to Issuer in writing, and it shall 
promptly enforce the payment of any and all accounts owing to Purchaser for the sale of Energy 
to its customers.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Purchaser shall not be 
obligated to make any payments hereunder except from CCA Revenues. 

Section 14.9 Pledge of CCA Revenues.  Purchaser shall not grant any lien on or security 
interest in, or otherwise pledge or encumber, the CCA Revenues if the terms or effect of such 
lien, pledge or other encumbrance results in such lien, pledge or other encumbrance having 
priority over the obligations of Purchaser to pay the Contract Price, which obligations constitute 
operating expenses of Purchaser. 

Section 14.10 Financial Responsibility.  When reasonable grounds for insecurity of 
payments due under this Agreement arise, Issuer may demand, and Purchaser shall provide within 
48 Hours but at least one Business Day if demanded, adequate assurance of performance.  
Reasonable grounds include but are not limited to the occurrence of an insolvency or liquidation 
proceeding with respect to Purchaser or the downgrading of Purchaser’s credit rating, if any, to a 
level below investment grade, or such facts and circumstances which would constitute reasonable 
grounds for insecurity under applicable Law.  Adequate assurance shall mean sufficient security 
in the form and for a term reasonably specified by Issuer, including but not limited to a standby 
irrevocable letter of credit, a prepayment, a deposit to an escrow account, or a performance bond 
or guaranty by a creditworthy entity.  In the event Issuer is entitled to demand adequate assurance 
of performance under this Section 14.10, Issuer may demand at a minimum a prepayment by 
Purchaser of an amount equal to (a) the amount owed by Purchaser with respect to all Energy 
delivered by Issuer to Purchaser as of the date of the demand for Adequate assurance of 
performance, plus (b) the amount, as determined and adjusted from time to time by Issuer (with 
the input of MSES pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions (as defined in the Bond 
Indenture)) in a Commercially Reasonable manner, expected to be owed by Purchaser with 
respect to the Energy to be delivered by Issuer to Purchaser during the remainder of the then-
current Month and the following Month.  The Parties agree that in the event Purchaser fails to 
provide such adequate assurance as demanded, Issuer shall have the right to suspend its 
performance under this Agreement, including the making of deliveries of Energy to Purchaser, 
immediately upon written notice and shall not be obligated to restore such performance until the 
later of (i) the first day of the Month after such demand has been satisfied, and (ii) the completion 
of the term of deliveries to any replacement sales customer to which MSES has remarketed the 
Energy on behalf of Issuer. 

ARTICLE XV 
[RESERVED] 

ARTICLE XVI 
NOTICES 

Any notice, demand, or request required or authorized by this Agreement to be 
given by one Party to the other Party (or to a third party) shall be in writing and shall either be sent 
by electronic means, courier, or personally delivered (including overnight delivery service) to each 
of the notice recipients and addresses specified in Exhibit B for the receiving Party.  Any such 
notice, demand, or request shall be deemed to be given (i) on the date it is delivered by electronic 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

29 

means or (ii) when actually received if delivered by courier or personal delivery (including 
overnight delivery service).  Each Party shall have the right, upon 10 days’ prior written notice to 
the other Party, to change its list of notice recipients and addresses in Exhibit B.  The Parties may 
mutually agree in writing at any time to deliver notices, demands or requests through alternate or 
additional methods.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Party may at any time notify the other Party 
that any notice, demand, statement or request to it must be provided by email transmission for a 
specified period of time or until further notice, and any communications delivered by means other 
than email transmission during the specified period of time shall be ineffective. 

ARTICLE XVII 
DEFAULT; REMEDIES; TERMINATION 

Section 17.1 Issuer Default.  Each of the following events shall constitute an “Issuer 
Default” under this Agreement: 

(a) any representation or warranty made by Issuer in this Agreement proves to 
have been incorrect in any material respect when made; or 

(b) Issuer fails to perform, observe or comply with any covenant, agreement or 
term contained in this Agreement, and such failure continues for more than thirty (30) days 
following the earlier of (i) receipt by Issuer of notice thereof or (ii) an officer of Issuer obtaining 
actual knowledge of such default. 

Section 17.2 Purchaser Default.  Each of the following events shall constitute a 
“Purchaser Default” under this Agreement: 

(a) Purchaser fails to pay when due any amounts owed to Issuer pursuant to this 
Agreement and such failure continues for one (1) Business Day following the earlier of (i) receipt 
by Purchaser of notice thereof or (ii) an officer of Purchaser becoming aware of such default; 

(b) Purchaser (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, 
amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in 
writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes a general assignment, 
arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) institutes or has instituted 
against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under 
any bankruptcy or insolvency Law or other similar Law affecting creditors’ rights, or a petition is 
presented for its winding-up or liquidation, and, in the case of any such proceeding or petition 
instituted or presented against it, such proceeding or petition (A) results in a judgment of 
insolvency or bankruptcy or the entry of an order for relief or the making of an order for its 
winding-up or liquidation or (B) is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case 
within thirty (30) days of the institution or presentation thereof; (v) has a resolution passed for its 
winding-up, official management or liquidation (other than pursuant to a consolidation, 
amalgamation or merger); (vi) seeks or becomes subject to the appointment of an administrator, 
provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for 
all or substantially all of its assets; (vii) has a secured party take possession of all or substantially 
all of its assets or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other legal process levied, 
enforced or sued on or against all or substantially all its of assets and such secured party maintains 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

30 

possession, or any such process is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case 
within thirty (30) days thereafter; (viii) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, 
under the applicable Laws of any jurisdiction, has an analogous effect to any of the events specified 
in clauses (i) through (vii); or (ix) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, 
approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts; 

(c) any representation or warranty made by Purchaser in this Agreement proves 
to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; or 

(d) Purchaser fails to perform, observe or comply with any covenant, agreement 
or term contained in this Agreement, and such failure continues for more than fifteen (15) days 
following the earlier of (i) receipt by Purchaser of notice thereof or (ii) an officer of Purchaser 
becoming aware of such default. 

Section 17.3 Remedies Upon Default. 

(a) Termination.  If at any time an Issuer Default or a Purchaser Default has 
occurred and is continuing, then the non-defaulting Party may do any or all of the following (i) by 
notice to the defaulting Party specifying the relevant Issuer Default or Purchaser Default, as 
applicable, terminate this Agreement effective as of a day not earlier than the day such notice is 
deemed given under Article XVI and/or (ii) declare all amounts due to the non-defaulting Party 
under this Agreement or any part thereof immediately due and payable, and the same shall 
thereupon become immediately due and payable, without notice, demand, presentment, notice of 
dishonor, notice of intent to demand, protest or other formalities of any kind, all of which are 
hereby expressly waived by the defaulting Party; provided, however, this Agreement shall 
automatically terminate and all amounts due to the non-defaulting Party hereunder shall 
immediately become due and payable as of the time immediately preceding the institution of the 
relevant proceeding or the presentation of the relevant petition that upon the occurrence of a 
Purchaser Default specified in Section 17.2(b)(iv) or, to the extent analogous thereto, Section 
17.2(b)(viii).  In addition, during the existence of an Issuer Default or a Purchaser Default, as 
applicable, the non-defaulting Party may exercise all other rights and remedies available to it at 
Law or in equity, including without limitation mandamus, injunction and action for specific 
performance, to enforce any covenant, agreement or term of this Agreement. 

(b) Additional Remedies.  In addition to the remedies set forth in Section 
17.3(a) (and without limiting any other provisions of this Agreement), during the existence of any 
Purchaser Default, Issuer may suspend its performance hereunder and discontinue the supply of 
all or any portion of the Energy otherwise to be delivered to Purchaser by it under this Agreement.  
If Issuer exercises its right to suspend performance under this Section 17.3(b), Purchaser shall 
remain fully liable for payment of all amounts in default and shall not be relieved of any of its 
payment obligations under this Agreement.  Deliveries of Energy may only be reinstated, at a time 
to be determined by Issuer, upon (i) payment in full by Purchaser of all amounts then due and 
payable under this Agreement and (ii) payment in advance by Purchaser at the beginning of each 
Month of amounts estimated by Issuer to be due to Issuer for the future delivery of Energy under 
this Agreement for such Month.  Issuer may continue to require payment in advance from 
Purchaser after the reinstatement of Issuer’s supply services under this Agreement for such period 
of time as Issuer in its sole discretion may determine is appropriate.  In addition, and without 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

31 

limiting any other provisions of or remedies available under this Agreement, if Purchaser fails to 
accept from Issuer any Energy tendered for delivery under this Agreement, Issuer shall have the 
right to sell such Energy to third parties on any terms that Issuer, in its sole discretion, determines 
are appropriate. 

(c) Effect of Early Termination.  As of the effectiveness of any termination date 
in accordance with clause (i) of Section 17.3(a), (i) the Delivery Period shall end, (ii) the obligation 
of Issuer to make any further deliveries of Energy to Purchaser under this Agreement shall 
terminate, and (iii) the obligation of Purchaser to receive deliveries of Energy from Issuer under 
this Agreement will terminate. Neither this Agreement nor the Delivery Period may be terminated 
for any reason except as specified in this Article XVII.  Without prejudice to any payment 
obligation in respect of periods prior to termination, no payments will be due from either Party in 
respect of periods occurring after the effective termination date of this Agreement. 

Section 17.4 Termination of Prepaid Agreement.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees 
that (i) in the event the Prepaid Agreement terminates for any reason prior to the end of the 
Delivery Period, this Agreement shall terminate on the effective date of early termination of the 
Prepaid Agreement (which date shall be the last date upon which deliveries are required 
thereunder, subject to all winding up arrangements) and (ii) Issuer’s obligation to deliver Energy 
under this Agreement shall terminate upon the termination of deliveries of Energy to Issuer under 
the Prepaid Agreement.  Issuer shall provide notice to Purchaser of any early termination date of 
the Prepaid Agreement.  The Parties recognize and agree that, in the event that the Prepaid 
Agreement terminates because of a Failed Remarketing (as defined in the Bond Indenture) of the 
Bonds that occurs in the first Month of a Reset Period, Issuer shall deliver Energy under this 
Agreement for the remainder of such first Month, and, notwithstanding anything in this 
Agreement to the contrary, no Monthly Discount or Annual Refunds shall be associated with such 
deliveries and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly. 

Section 17.5 Limitation on Damages.  THE PARTIES CONFIRM THAT THE 
EXPRESS REMEDIES AND MEASURES OF DAMAGES PROVIDED IN THIS 
AGREEMENT SATISFY THE ESSENTIAL PURPOSES HEREOF.  FOR BREACH OF ANY 
PROVISION FOR WHICH AN EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES IS 
HEREIN PROVIDED, SUCH EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES SHALL 
BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, THE OBLIGOR’S LIABILITY SHALL BE 
LIMITED AS SET FORTH IN SUCH PROVISION, AND ALL OTHER REMEDIES OR 
DAMAGES AT LAW OR IN EQUITY ARE WAIVED.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE 
LIABLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, OR 
INDIRECT DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS OR OTHER BUSINESS INTERRUPTION 
DAMAGES, BY STATUTE, IN TORT OR CONTRACT, UNDER ANY INDEMNITY 
PROVISION, OR OTHERWISE.  IT IS THE INTENT OF THE PARTIES THAT THE 
LIMITATIONS HEREIN IMPOSED ON REMEDIES AND THE MEASURE OF DAMAGES 
BE WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CAUSE OR CAUSES RELATED THERETO, INCLUDING 
WITHOUT LIMITATION THE NEGLIGENCE OF EITHER PARTY, WHETHER SUCH 
NEGLIGENCE BE SOLE, JOINT OR CONCURRENT, OR ACTIVE OR PASSIVE.  TO THE 
EXTENT ANY DAMAGES REQUIRED TO BE PAID UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE 
LIQUIDATED, THE PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE DAMAGES ARE DIFFICULT 
OR IMPOSSIBLE TO DETERMINE, OTHERWISE OBTAINING AN ADEQUATE REMEDY 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

32 

IS INCONVENIENT, AND THE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CONSTITUTE A 
REASONABLE APPROXIMATION OF THE HARM OR LOSS.  IN DETERMINING THE 
APPROPRIATE MEASURE OF DAMAGES THAT WOULD MAKE THE PARTIES WHOLE, 
THE PARTIES HAVE THOROUGHLY CONSIDERED, INTER ALIA, THE UNCERTAINTY 
OF FLUCTUATIONS IN COMMODITY PRICES, THE ABILITY AND INTENTION OF THE 
PARTIES TO HEDGE SUCH FLUCTUATIONS, THE BARGAINED-FOR ALLOCATION OF 
RISK, THE KNOWLEDGE, SOPHISTICATION AND EQUAL BARGAINING POWER OF 
THE PARTIES, THE ARMS-LENGTH NATURE OF THE NEGOTIATIONS, THE SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS TRANSACTION, THE ACCOUNTING AND TAX 
TREATMENT OF THE TRANSACTION BY THE PARTIES, AND THE ENTERING INTO 
OF OTHER TRANSACTIONS IN RELIANCE ON THE ENFORCEABILITY OF THE 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES PROVISIONS CONTAINED HEREIN.  

ARTICLE XVIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 18.1 Indemnification Procedure.  With respect to each indemnification included 
in this Agreement, the indemnity is given to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law and 
the following provisions shall be applicable.  The indemnified Party shall promptly notify the 
indemnifying Party in writing of any Claim and the indemnifying Party shall have the right to 
assume its investigation and defense, including employment of counsel, and shall be obligated to 
pay related court costs, attorneys’ fees and experts’ fees and to post any appeals bonds; provided, 
however, that the indemnified Party shall have the right to employ at its expense separate counsel 
and participate in the defense of any Claim.  The indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any 
settlement of a Claim without its express written consent thereto.  In order to prevent double 
recovery, the indemnified Party shall reimburse the indemnifying Party for payments or costs 
incurred in respect of an indemnity with the proceeds of any judgment, insurance, bond, surety or 
other recovery made by the indemnified Party with respect to a covered event. 

Section 18.2 Deliveries.  Contemporaneously with this Agreement (unless otherwise 
specified): Each Party shall deliver to the other Party evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of 
(i) such Party’s authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement 
and (ii) the appropriate individuals who are authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of such 
Party; 

(a) as of the date hereof, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer a fully executed 
Federal Tax Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D; 

(b) on the Bond Closing Date, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer an opinion of 
counsel to Purchaser in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E;  

(c) on the Bond Closing Date, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer a Closing 
Certificate in substantially the form set forth hereto as Exhibit G. 

Section 18.3 Entirety; Amendments.  This Agreement, including the exhibits and 
attachments hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior 
discussions and agreements between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  There 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



33 

are no prior or contemporaneous agreements or representations affecting the same subject matter 
other than those expressed herein.  Except for any matters that, in accordance with the express 
provisions of this Agreement, may be resolved by oral agreement between the Parties, no 
amendment, modification, supplement or change hereto shall be enforceable unless reduced to 
writing and executed by both Parties. 

Section 18.4 Governing Law.  THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES 
OF THE PARTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND 
CONSTRUED, ENFORCED AND PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF 
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW 
PRINCIPLE THAT WOULD DIRECT THE APPLICATION OF ANOTHER 
JURISDICTION’S LAW. 

Section 18.5 Non-Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any of the terms of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the Party against 
whom such waiver is claimed.  No waiver of any breach shall be deemed a waiver of any other 
subsequent breach. 

Section 18.6 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof, 
shall for any reason be invalid or unenforceable, then to the extent of such invalidity or 
unenforceability, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to other 
Persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby, but rather shall be enforced to the 
maximum extent permissible under applicable Law, so long as the economic and legal substance 
of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any materially adverse manner as to 
either Party. 

Section 18.7 Exhibits.  Any and all Exhibits referenced in this Agreement are hereby 
incorporated herein by reference and shall be deemed to be an integral part hereof. 

Section 18.8 Winding Up Arrangements.  All indemnity and confidentiality obligations, 
audit rights, and other provisions specifically providing for survival shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement.  The expiration or termination of this Agreement shall not 
relieve either Party of (a) any unfulfilled obligation or undischarged liability of such Party on the 
date of such termination or (b) the consequences of any breach or default of any warranty or 
covenant contained in this Agreement.  All obligations and liabilities described in the preceding 
sentence of this Section 18.8, and applicable provisions of this Agreement creating or relating to 
such obligations and liabilities, shall survive such expiration or termination. 

Section 18.9 Relationships of Parties.  The Parties shall not be deemed to be in a 
relationship of partners or joint venturers by virtue of this Agreement, nor shall either Party be an 
agent, representative, trustee or fiduciary of the other.  Neither Party shall have any authority to 
bind the other to any agreement.  This Agreement is intended to secure and provide for the 
services of each Party as an independent contractor. 

Section 18.10 Immunity.  Each Party represents and covenants to and agrees with the other 
Party that it is not entitled to and shall not assert the defense of sovereign immunity or 
governmental immunity with respect to its obligations or any Claims under this Agreement, and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

34 

each hereby waives any such defense of sovereign or governmental immunity to the full extent 
permitted by Law. 

Section 18.11 Rates and Indices.  If the source of any publication used to determine the 
index or other price used in the Contract Price should cease to publish the relevant prices or should 
cease to be published entirely, an alternative index or other price will be used based on the 
determinations made by Issuer and MSES under Section 18.11 of the Prepaid Agreement.  Issuer 
shall provide Purchaser the opportunity to provide its recommendations and other input to Issuer 
for Issuer’s use in the process for selecting such alternative index or other price under Section 
18.11 of the Prepaid Agreement. 

Section 18.12 Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, 
all obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations to 
make payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of Issuer, payable solely 
from the Trust Estate (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) as and to the extent provided 
in the Bond Indenture, including with respect to Operating Expenses (as such term is defined in 
the Bond Indenture).  Issuer shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source 
other than the Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) and other assets pledged 
under the Bond Indenture for any of the purposes in this Agreement mentioned.  Neither the faith 
and credit of Issuer nor the taxing power of the State of California or any political subdivision 
thereof is pledged to payments pursuant to this Agreement. Issuer shall not be directly, indirectly, 
contingently or otherwise liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions, of 
any conceivable kind on any conceivable theory, under or by reasons of or in connection with this 
Agreement, except solely to the extent Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) 
are received for the payment thereof and may be applied therefor pursuant to the terms of the 
Bond Indenture. 

Section 18.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed and acknowledged in 
multiple counterparts and by the Parties in separate counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original and all of which shall be and constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 18.14 Third Party Beneficiaries; Rights of Trustee.  Purchaser acknowledges and 
agrees that (a) Issuer will pledge and assign its rights, title and interest in this Agreement and the 
amounts payable by Purchaser under this Agreement (other than amounts payable in respect of 
the Project Administration Fee) to secure Issuer’s obligations under the Bond Indenture, (b) the 
Trustee shall be a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement with the right to enforce Purchaser’s 
obligations under this Agreement, (c) the Trustee or any receiver appointed under the Bond 
Indenture shall have the right to perform all obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, and (d) 
in the event of any Purchaser Defaults under Section 17.2(a), (i) MSES may, to the extent 
provided for in, and in accordance with, the Receivables Purchase Provisions (as defined in the 
Bond Indenture), take assignment from Issuer of receivables owed by Purchaser to Issuer under 
this Agreement, and shall thereafter have all rights of collection with respect to such receivables, 
and (ii) if such receivables are not so assigned, the Commodity Swap Counterparty (as defined in 
the Bond Indenture) shall have the right to pursue collection of such receivables to the extent of 
any non-payment by Issuer to the Commodity Swap Counterparty was caused by Purchaser’s 
payment default.  Pursuant to the terms of the Bond Indenture, Issuer has irrevocably appointed 
the Trustee as its agent to issue notices and as directed under the Bond Indenture, to take any 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

35 

other actions that Issuer is required or permitted to take under this Agreement.  Purchaser may 
rely on notices or other actions taken by Issuer or the Trustee and Purchaser has the right to 
exclusively rely on any notices delivered by the Trustee, regardless of any conflicting notices that 
it may receive from Issuer. 

Section 18.15 Waiver of Defenses.  Purchaser waives all rights to set-off, counterclaim, 
recoupment and any other defenses that might otherwise be available to Purchaser with regard to 
Purchaser’s obligations pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Power Supply Contract to 
be duly executed and delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date 
first above written. 

[Separate Signature Page(s) Attached]

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

  Signature Page to Power Supply Contract 

 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

By: _____________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

  Signature Page to Power Supply Contract 

 

EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 

By: _____________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

A-1 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 
BASE ENERGY HOURLY QUANTITIES 

 

[To come.]  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

A-2 

 

EXHIBIT A-2 
EPS ENERGY PERIOD MONTHLY QUANTITY  

[To come.]  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 
NOTICES  

IF TO ISSUER: California Community Choice Financing Authority 
1125 Tamalpais Avenue 
San Rafael, CA 94901 
Email: [____] 

 
IF TO PURCHASER: East Bay Community Energy Authority 

1999 Harrison Street, Suite 800  
Oakland, CA 94612 
Email: powernotices@ebce.org 

 
Energy Related: powersettlements@ebce.org 
 
Invoicing/Payments: ap@ebce.org; powersettlements@ebce.org

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C

mailto:powersettlements@ebce.org
mailto:powersettlements@ebce.org


C-1

EXHIBIT C 
FORM OF REMARKETING ELECTION NOTICE 

[_____] 

Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 
1585 Broadway 
New York, NY 10036-8293 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
4655 Salisbury Road, Suite 300 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 

To the Addressees: 

The undersigned, duly authorized representative of East Bay Community Energy 
Authority (the "Purchaser"), is providing this notice (the “Remarketing Election Notice”) pursuant 
to the Power Supply Contract, dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Supply Contract”), between 
California Community Choice Financing Authority and Purchaser.  Capitalized terms used herein 
shall have the meanings set forth in the Supply Contract. 

Pursuant to Section 3.4(b) of the Supply Contract, the Purchaser has elected to have 
its Contract Quantity for the applicable Reset Period remarketed beginning as of the 
commencement of such Reset Period.  The resumption of deliveries in any future Reset Period 
shall be in accordance with Section 3.4(d) of the Supply Contract.  

Given this [___] day of [_________], 20[__]. 

East Bay Community Energy Authority 

By: _____________________ 
Printed Name: 
Title: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

D-1 

 

EXHIBIT D 

FORM OF FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE 
 

This Federal Tax Certificate is executed in connection with the Power Supply Contract 
dated as of [_______], 2022 (the “Supply Contract”), by and between California Community 
Choice Financing Authority (“Issuer”) and East Bay Community Energy Authority (“Purchaser”).  
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in 
the Supply Contract or in the Bond Indenture. 

WHEREAS Purchaser acknowledges that Issuer is issuing the Bonds to fund the 
prepayment price under the Prepaid Agreement; and 

WHEREAS the Bonds are intended to qualify for tax exemption under Section 103 of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and 

WHEREAS Purchaser’s use of Energy acquired pursuant to the Supply Contract and 
certain funds and accounts of Purchaser will affect the Bonds’ qualification for such tax exemption. 

NOW, THEREFORE, PURCHASER HEREBY CERTIFIES AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Purchaser is a community choice aggregator organized as a joint powers authority under 
the laws of the State of California.  As a community choice aggregator, the Purchaser is a load-
serving entity providing electricity to customers within the boundaries of cities and/or counties 
that have elected to participate in Purchaser’s community choice aggregation program.  For 
purposes of this Certificate, the term “service area” of the Purchaser means the boundaries of the 
cities and/or counties that have elected to participate in the Purchaser’s community choice 
aggregation program, as well as any other area recognized as the service area of the Purchaser 
under state or federal law. 

2. Purchaser will resell all of the Energy acquired pursuant to the Supply Contract to its retail 
Energy customers within its service area, with retail sales in all cases being made pursuant to 
regularly established and generally applicable tariffs or under authorized requirements contracts. 

3. From [___, __] to [____, 2022] the annual average amount of Energy purchased (other than 
for resale) by customers of Purchaser who are located within the service area of Purchaser is 
[________] MWh.  Over the term of the Supply Contract, the Purchaser expects the annual average 
amount of Energy purchased (other than for resale) by customers of the Purchaser who are located 
within the service area of the Purchaser to be at least [_____] MWh.   The maximum annual amount 
of Energy in any year being acquired pursuant to the Supply Contract is [_______] MWh.  The 
annual average amount of Energy which Purchaser otherwise has a right to acquire as of the 
Closing Date (including rights to capacity to generate electricity, whether owned, leased or 
otherwise contracted for) is [________] MWh.  The sum of (a) the maximum amount of Energy 
in any year being acquired pursuant to the Supply Contract, and (b) the amount of Energy that 
Purchaser otherwise has a right to acquire (including rights to capacity to generate electricity, 
whether owned, leased or otherwise contracted for) in the year described in the foregoing clause 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

D-2 

 

(a), is [________] MWh.  Accordingly, the amount of Energy to be acquired under the Supply 
Contract by Purchaser, supplemented by the amount of Energy otherwise available to Purchaser 
as of the Closing Date, during any year does not exceed [___]% of the expected annual average 
amount of Energy to be purchased (other than for resale) by customers of Purchaser who are 
located within the service area of Purchaser.   

3. In the event of the expiration or termination of an EPS Energy Period, Purchaser agrees 
to comply with its obligations under the Assignment Letter Agreement, including but not limited 
to its obligations to (a) exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to assign a portion of 
Purchaser’s rights and obligations under a power purchase agreement under which Purchaser is 
purchasing EPS Compliant Energy to MSCG or MSES pursuant to an Assignment Agreement and 
(b) cooperate in good faith with Issuer, MSCG and MSES with respect to any proposed 
assignments. 

4. Purchaser expects to pay for Energy acquired pursuant to the Supply Contract solely from 
funds derived from its operations as a community choice aggregator. Purchaser expects to use 
current CCA Revenues of its CCA System to pay for current Energy acquisitions.  Neither the 
Purchaser nor any person who is a related party to the Purchaser will hold any funds or accounts 
in which monies are set aside and invested and which are reasonably expected to be used to pay 
for Energy more than one year after such monies are set aside.  No portion of the proceeds of the 
Bonds will be used directly or indirectly to replace funds of Purchaser or any persons who are 
related Persons to Purchaser that are or were intended to be used for the purpose for which the 
Bonds were issued. 

 

_______________, 2022 

 

By:  ________________________________ 
  [Name] 
        [Title] 

 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

E-1 

EXHIBIT E 
FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO PURCHASER 

 
California Community Choice Financing Authority 
San Rafael, CA 
 
Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 
New York, NY  
 
Morgan Stanley 
New York, NY 
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee  
Jacksonville, FL 
 
[Royal Bank of Canada] 
[Toronto, Ontario] 
 
 

Re: Power Supply Contract between East Bay Community 
Energy Authority and California Community Choice 
Financing Authority dated as of [____], 2022 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We are Counsel to East Bay Community Energy Authority (“Purchaser”).  Purchaser is a 
Purchaser in the Energy Project undertaken by California Community Choice Financing Authority 
(“Issuer”).  We are furnishing this opinion to you in connection with the Power Supply Contract 
between Issuer and Purchaser dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Supply Contract”). 

Unless otherwise specified herein, all terms used but not defined in this opinion shall have 
the same meaning as is ascribed to them in the Supply Contract. 

In connection with this opinion, we have examined originals or copies, certified or 
otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of the following: 

(a) The Constitution and laws of the State of California (the “State”) including, as 
applicable, acts, ordinances, certificates, articles, charters, bylaws, and agreements pursuant to 
which Purchaser was created and by which it is governed;  

 
(b) Resolution No. [__], duly adopted by Purchaser on [___________] (the 

“Resolution”) and certified as true and correct by certificate and seal, authorizing Purchaser to 
execute and deliver the Supply Contract; 

 
(c) A copy of the Supply Contract executed by Purchaser; and 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

E-2 

(d) All outstanding instruments relating to bonds, notes, or other indebtedness of or 
relating to Purchaser and Purchaser's CCA System (as defined in the Supply Contract). 
 

We have also examined and relied upon originals or copies, certified or otherwise 
authenticated to our satisfaction, of such records, documents, certificates, and other instruments, 
and made such investigations of law, as in our judgment we have deemed necessary or appropriate 
to enable us to render the opinions expressed below. 

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

1. Purchaser is a joint powers authority of the State, duly organized and validly 
existing as a community choice aggregator under the laws of the State, and has the power and 
authority to own its properties, to carry on its business as now being conducted, and to enter into 
and to perform its obligations under the Agreement. 

 
2. The execution, delivery, and performance by Purchaser of the Supply Contract have 

been duly authorized by the governing body of Purchaser and do not and will not require, 
subsequent to the execution of the Supply Contract by Purchaser, any consent or approval of the 
governing body or any officers of Purchaser. 
 

3. The Supply Contract is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of Purchaser, 
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to (i) the 
exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity and (ii) bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights 
heretofore or hereafter enacted, to the extent constitutionally applicable. 
 

4. No approval, consent or authorization of any governmental or public agency, 
authority, commission or person, or, to our knowledge, of any holder of any outstanding bonds or 
other indebtedness of Purchaser, is required with respect to the execution, delivery and 
performance by Purchaser of the Supply Contract or Purchaser's participation in the transactions 
contemplated thereby other than those approvals, consents and/or authorizations that have already 
been obtained. 
 

5. The authorization, execution and delivery of the Supply Contract and compliance 
with the provisions thereof (a) will not conflict with or constitute a breach of, or default under, (i) 
any instrument relating to the organization, existence or operation of Purchaser, (ii) any ruling, 
regulation, ordinance, judgment, order or decree to which Purchaser (or any of its officers in their 
respective capacities as such) is subject or (iii) any provision of the laws of the State relating to 
Purchaser and its affairs, and (b) to our knowledge will not result in, or require the creation or 
imposition of, any lien on any of the properties or revenues of Purchaser pursuant to any of the 
foregoing. 
 

6. Purchaser is not in breach of or default under any applicable constitutional 
provision or any law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States or any applicable 
judgment or decree or, to our knowledge, any loan or other agreement, resolution, indenture, bond, 
note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which Purchaser is a party or to which Purchaser 
or any of its property or assets is otherwise subject, and to our knowledge no event has occurred 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

E-3 

and is continuing which with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute 
a default or event of default under any such instrument. 

 
7. Payments to be made by Purchaser under the Supply Contract shall constitute 

operating expenses of Purchaser's CCA System payable solely from the revenues and other 
available funds of Purchaser's CCA System as a cost of purchased electricity.  The application of 
the revenues and other available funds of Purchaser's CCA System to make such payments is not 
subject to any prior lien, encumbrance or other restriction. 
 

8. As of the date of this opinion, to the best of our knowledge after due inquiry, there 
is no pending or threatened action or proceeding at law or in equity or by any court, government 
agency, public board or body affecting or questioning the existence of Purchaser or the titles of its 
officers to their respective offices or affecting or questioning the legality, validity, or enforceability 
of this Supply Contract nor to our knowledge is there any basis therefor. 
 

This opinion is rendered solely for the use and benefit of the addressees listed above in 
connection with the Supply Contract and may not be relied upon other than in connection with the 
transactions contemplated by the Supply Contract, or by any other person or entity for any purpose 
whatsoever, nor may this opinion be quoted in whole or in part or otherwise referred to in any 
document or delivered to any other person or entity, without the prior written consent of the 
undersigned. 

Very truly yours, 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



F-1

EXHIBIT F 

MONTHLY DISCOUNT 

Monthly Discount: $[____]/MWh 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



 

G-1 

EXHIBIT G 
FORM OF CLOSING CERTIFICATE  

 
 

CLOSING CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASER 
 
 

__________, 2022 

Re: California Community Choice Financing Authority 
 Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds  
  

 

The undersigned _____________________________ of East Bay Community Energy 
Authority (the “Purchaser”), hereby certifies as follows in connection with the Power Supply 
Contract dated as of __________, 2022 (the “Agreement”) between the Purchaser and California 
Community Choice Financing Authority (“Issuer”) and the issuance and sale by Issuer of the 
above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”) (capitalized terms used and not defined herein shall have 
the meanings given to them in the Agreement): 

1. Purchaser is a community choice aggregator, duly created and validly existing as a 
joint powers authority, and is in good standing, under the laws of the State of California (the 
“State”), and has the corporate power and authority to enter into and perform its obligations under 
the Agreement. 

2. By all necessary official action on its part, the Purchaser has duly authorized and 
approved the execution and delivery of, and the performance by the Purchaser of the obligations 
on its part contained in the Agreement, and such authorization and approval has not been amended, 
supplemented, rescinded or modified in any respect since the date thereof. 

3. The Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Purchaser. 

4. The authorization, execution and delivery of the Agreement and compliance with 
the provisions on the Purchaser's part contained therein (a) will not conflict with or constitute a 
breach of or default under (i) any instrument relating to the organization, existence or operation of 
Purchaser, (ii) any ruling, regulation, ordinance, judgment, order or decree to which Purchaser (or 
any of its officers in their respective capacities as such) is subject or (iii) any provision of the laws 
of the State relating to Purchaser and its affairs, and (b) will not result in, or require the creation 
or imposition of, any lien on any of the properties or revenues of Purchaser pursuant to any of the 
foregoing. 

5 The Purchaser is not in breach of or default under any applicable constitutional 
provision, law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States or any applicable 
judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or other 
instrument to which the Purchaser is a party or to which the Purchaser or any of its property or 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



G-2

assets are subject, and no event has occurred and is continuing which constitutes or with the 
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or event of default by 
the Purchaser under any of the foregoing. 

6. Payments to be made by the Purchaser under the Agreement shall constitute
operating expenses of the Purchaser’s CCA System (as defined in the Agreement) payable solely 
from the revenues and other available funds of Purchaser’s CCA System as a cost of purchased 
electricity.  The application of the revenues and other available funds of the Purchaser’s CCA 
System to make such payments is not subject to any prior lien, encumbrance or other restriction. 

7. No litigation, proceeding or tax challenge is pending or, to its knowledge,
threatened, against the Purchaser in any court or administrative body which would (a) contest the 
right of the officials of the Purchaser to hold and exercise their respective positions, (b) contest the 
due organization and valid existence of the Purchaser, (c) contest the validity, due authorization 
and execution of the Agreement or (d) attempt to limit, enjoin or otherwise restrict or prevent the 
Purchaser from executing, delivering and performing the Agreement, nor to the knowledge of the 
Purchaser is there any basis therefor. 

8. All authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and orders of any
governmental authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the 
matter which are required for the due authorization of, which would constitute a condition 
precedent to, or the absence of which would materially adversely affect the due performance by 
the Purchaser of its obligations under the Agreement have been duly obtained. 

9. The representations and warranties of the Purchaser contained in the Agreement
were true, complete and correct on and as of the date thereof and are true, complete and correct on 
and as of the date hereof. 

10. The statements and information with respect to the Purchaser contained in the
Official Statement dated ___________, 2022 with respect to the Bonds, including Appendix B 
thereto (the “Official Statement”), fairly and accurately describe and summarize the financial and 
operating position of the Purchaser for the periods shown therein, and such statements and 
information did not as of the date of the Official Statement and do not as of the date hereof contain 
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein 
or necessary to make such statements and information, in the light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. 

11. No event affecting the Purchaser has occurred since the date of the Official
Statement which should be disclosed therein in order to make the statements and information with 
respect to the Purchaser contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading in any material respect. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



G-3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned has executed this Certificate on and as of the 
date first written above. 

EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY 
AUTHORITY 

By 

Name: 

Title: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



H-1

EXHIBIT H 

FORM OF REMEDIATION CERTIFICATE 

[_____], 20__ 
[_____] 

Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 
1585 Broadway 
New York, NY 10036-8293 
Attn:  Miscellaneous Notices 
Email:  [CCCFA_2022a_mses_notices@morganstanley.com] 

Re: Power Supply Contract with California Community Choice Financing Authority: Section 
7.5 Remediation 

To the addressees: 

The undersigned, duly authorized representative of East Bay Community Energy 
Authority (“Purchaser”), hereby certifies as follows in connection with the Power Supply Contract, 
dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Contract”), between Purchaser and California Community Choice 
Financing Authority and remediation of Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds pursuant to Section 
7.5 of the Contract.  Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Contract. 

Set forth as Attachment 1 hereto is a copy of Purchaser’s invoice for the Month of 
[____] for purchases of Energy from [____] [NOTE: Insert reference to supplier.] pursuant that 
certain [____] [NOTE: Insert reference to applicable supply agreement.], and all of such Energy 
was used in compliance with the Qualifying Use Requirements.  

In witness whereof the undersigned has executed this Certificate on and as of the 
date first written above. 

EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY 
AUTHORITY 

By  ___________________________________ 
[Name] 
[Title] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15C



HB Draft 6 May 2022 

LETTER AGREEMENT 

[____], 2022 

East Bay Community Energy Authority 
1999 Harrison Street, Suite 800  
Oakland, CA 94612 
Email: powernotices@ebce.org 

California Community Choice Financing Authority 
1125 Tamalpais Avenue 
San Rafael, CA 94901 
Email: [_____] 

Re: PPA Assignments for Delivery under Prepay Energy Agreements 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

This Letter Agreement (this “Letter Agreement”) confirms our mutual agreement with 
respect to the matters set forth below and relates to (i) that certain Power Supply Contract (the 
“Power Supply Contract”), dated as of the date hereof, by and between California Community 
Choice Financing Authority (“Issuer”) and East Bay Community Energy Authority (“Project 
Participant”), (ii) that certain Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (the “Prepaid Agreement”), dated 
as of the date hereof, by and between Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. (“MSES”) and 
Issuer, and (iii) that certain Energy Management Contract (together with the Power Supply 
Contract and the Prepaid Agreement, the “Prepay Energy Agreements”), dated as of the date 
hereof, by and between Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc. (“MSCG”) and MSES.  Any 
capitalized term used in this Letter Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the 
meaning assigned to such term in the Power Supply Contract.  In consideration of each party’s 
execution of the respective Prepay Energy Agreements, as well as the premises above and the 
mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, Issuer, Project Participant, MSES and MSCG 
(collectively, the “Parties”) agree as follows: 

1. PPA Assignments for Delivery under Prepay Energy Agreements.

(a) Initial Assignment.  Concurrently with the execution of the Prepay Energy
Agreements, Project Participant has assigned and MSES has agreed to assume a portion of 
Project Participant’s rights and obligations under the Initial Assigned PPA.   

(b) Replacement Assignments.  Commencing (i) six months prior to the
expiration of any EPS Energy Period or the resumption of deliveries in a new Reset Period 
following Participant’s issuance of a Remarketing Election Notice pursuant to Section 3.4 
of the Power Supply Contract or (ii) otherwise immediately upon the early termination or 
anticipated early termination of an EPS Energy Period, Project Participant shall exercise 
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to assign a portion of Project Participant’s rights and 
obligations (the “Assigned Rights and Obligations”) under one or more power purchase 
agreements under which Project Participant is purchasing EPS Compliant Energy pursuant 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



2 

to an Assignment Agreement substantially in the form of (A) the Limited Assignment 
Agreement set forth as Exhibit A hereto if the PPA Supplier is an unrelated third party or 
(B) the Limited Assignment Agreement set forth as Exhibit B hereto if the PPA Supplier
is MSCG, and the Parties shall cooperate in good faith with respect to any proposed
assignments; provided that

(1) any subsequent Assignment Agreement shall provide (I) for the assignment by
Project Participant to either (a) MSES if MSCG is the PPA Supplier or (b) MSCG
if the PPA Supplier is an unrelated third party of its right to receive a portion of the
Energy (and any associated products set forth in the Assignment Agreement)
delivered under the applicable power purchase agreement for each Month of the
applicable EPS Energy Period and (II) for payment by MSES or MSCG as
applicable to the PPA Supplier under such subsequent power purchase agreement
of the Day-Ahead Average Price for each Month of the applicable EPS Energy
Period, with such amounts to be credited in the PPA Supplier’s monthly invoice to
Project Participant against other amounts owed by Project Participant under the
Assigned PPA during the EPS Energy Period;

(2) any third party PPA Supplier must satisfy MSCG’s internal credit and approval
requirements and other requirements applied on a nondiscriminatory basis,
including any “know your customer” rules, policies and procedures, anti-money
laundering rules and regulations, Dodd-Frank Act, Commodity Exchange Act,
Patriot Act and similar rules, regulations, requirements and corresponding policies;

(3) any such assignment must be agreed and consented to by Project Participant, MSES
and MSCG in their reasonable discretion; and

(4) the Parties recognize that MSCG will be obligated to sell and deliver Assigned
Product it receives from a third party PPA Supplier to MSES under the Energy
Management Agreement; MSES will be obligated to deliver Assigned Product that
it acquires to Issuer under the terms of the Prepaid Agreement; and Issuer will be
obligated to deliver Assigned Product that it acquires to Project Participant under
the terms of the Power Supply Contract.

(c) MSCG Procurement of EPS Compliant Energy.  To the extent that (i)
Project Participant, MSES and MSCG have not agreed upon a replacement assignment of 
a power purchase agreement by the date that is 75 days prior to (A) the end of any EPS 
Energy Period or (B) the resumption of deliveries in a new Reset Period following 
Participant’s issuance of a Remarketing Election Notice pursuant to Section 3.4 of the 
Power Supply Contract, or (ii) an early termination of an EPS Energy Period has occurred 
and Project Participant, MSES and MSCG have not agreed upon a replacement assignment 
of a power purchase agreement, then MSCG shall exercise Commercially Reasonable 
Efforts to obtain EPS Compliant Energy for ultimate redelivery to Project Participant, 
provided that: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 3 

(1) Project Participant must consent to MSCG’s procurement of any such EPS 
Compliant Energy for ultimate redelivery to Project Participant, with such consent 
not to be unreasonably withheld;  

 
(2) the Parties shall act in good faith and in a Commercially Reasonable manner to 

negotiate any necessary amendments to the Prepay Energy Agreements to facilitate 
the delivery of such EPS Compliant Energy; and  

 
(3) the period of delivery for any such EPS Compliant Energy (any such period, a 

“MSCG EPS Energy Period”) shall not exceed the length, as applicable, of (A) the 
then-current Reset Period if such EPS Compliant Energy is obtained for delivery 
for the remainder of a Reset Period and (B) the length of the next succeeding Reset 
Period if such EPS Compliant Energy is obtained for delivery commencing in a 
subsequent Reset Period. 
 
(d) Tax Opinion.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that their ability to enter 

into a new Reset Period will be contingent on obtaining an Opinion of Bond Counsel (as 
defined in the Bond Indenture), which will be dependent on the availability of EPS 
Compliant Energy for delivery in such Reset Period. 
 
2. Failure to Obtain EPS Compliant Energy.  To the extent an EPS Energy Period 

terminates or expires and Project Participant and MSCG have been unable to obtain EPS 
Compliant Energy for delivery under the Prepay Energy Agreements pursuant to the provisions of 
Paragraph 1, then MSES shall remarket the Base Energy pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C 
to the Prepaid Agreement, subject to the following: 

(a) the Parties’ obligations set forth in Paragraph 1 shall continue to apply;  
 
(b) Project Participant shall not make any new commitment to purchase Priority 

Energy during such a remarketing; and 
 
(c) consistent with Section 7.5 of the Power Supply Contract, Project 

Participant shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate any Disqualifed 
Remarketing Proceeds resulting from MSES’s remarketing;. 
 
3. Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties: 

(a) Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good 
standing. 

 
(b) Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other 

documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement 
and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this 
Agreement to deliver and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and has taken all 
necessary action to authorize such execution, delivery and performance. 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 4 

(c) No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including 
the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in any 
violation of, or conflict with: (i) any term of any material contract or agreement applicable 
to it; (ii) any of its charter, bylaws, or other constitutional documents; (iii) any 
determination or award of any arbitrator applicable to it; or (iv) any license, permit, 
franchise, judgment, writ, injunction or regulation, decree, order, charter, law, ordinance, 
rule or regulation of any Government Agency, applicable to it or any of its assets or 
properties or to any obligations incurred by it or by which it or any of its assets or properties 
or obligations are bound or affected, and shall not cause a breach of, or default under, any 
such term or result in the creation of any lien upon any of its properties or assets. 

 
(d) Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, 

registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or 
permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government 
Agency that are required to have been obtained by such Party with respect to this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the due authorization of 
such Party and its governing body and any approval or consent of any security holder of 
such Party or any holder (or any trustee for any holder) of any indebtedness or other 
obligation of such Party, have been obtained and are in full force and effect and all 
conditions of any such consents have been complied with. 

 
(e) Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its 

legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms 
(subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject, as to enforceability, to equitable principles 
of general application (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in 
equity or at law)). 

 
(f) Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own 

independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is 
appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such 
advisers as it has deemed necessary. It is not relying on any communication (written or 
oral) of the other Parties as investment advice or as a recommendation to enter into this 
Agreement; it being understood that information and explanations related to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered investment advice or a 
recommendation to enter into this Agreement. It is entering into this Agreement as a bona-
fide, arm’s-length transaction involving the mutual exchange of consideration and, once 
executed by all Parties, considers this Agreement a legally enforceable contract. No 
communication (written or oral) received from any of the other Parties shall be deemed to 
be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of this Agreement. 

 
(g) Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of 

and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and 
understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also 
capable of assuming, and assumes, the risks of this Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 5 

 
(h) Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or 

an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement. 
 
4. Counterparts.  This Agreement (and each amendment, modification and waiver in 

respect of it) may be executed and delivered in counterparts (including by facsimile or electronic 
transmission), each of which will be deemed an original. 

5. Costs and Expenses.  The Parties will each pay their own costs and expenses 
(including legal fees) incurred in connection with this Agreement and as a result of the negotiation, 
preparation, and execution of this Agreement. 

6. Amendments.  No amendment, modification, or waiver in respect of this 
Agreement will be effective unless in writing (including a writing evidenced by a facsimile or 
electronic transmission) and executed by each of the Parties or confirmed by an exchange of 
telexes or electronic messages on an electronic messaging system. 

7. Notices.  Any notice, demand, statement or request required or authorized by this 
Agreement to be given by one Party to another shall be in writing, except as otherwise expressly 
provided herein.  It shall be sent by email transmission, courier, or personal delivery (including 
overnight delivery service) to each of the notice recipients and addresses for each of the other 
Parties designated in Appendix 2 hereto.  Any such notice, demand, or request shall be deemed to 
be given (i) when delivered by email transmission, or (ii) when actually received if delivered by 
courier or personal delivery (including overnight delivery service).  Each Party shall have the right, 
upon written 10 days’ prior written notice to the other Parties, to change its address at any time, 
and to designate that copies of all such notices be directed to another person at another address.  
The Parties may mutually agree in writing at any time to deliver notices, demands or requests 
through alternate or additional methods.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Party may at any 
time notify the other Parties that any notice, demand, statement or request to it must be provided 
by email transmission for a specified period of time or until further notice, and any 
communications delivered by means other than email transmission during such  time shall be 
ineffective.   

8. Dispute Resolution. 

(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under 
this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with 
the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws provisions that would 
direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws; provided, however, that the authority of 
Project Participant and Issuer to enter into and perform their obligations under this Agreement 
shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

(b) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including 
the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by final, non-
appealable binding arbitration in San Francisco, California before three (3) arbitrators.  The 
arbitration shall be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (“JAMS”) 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 6 

pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Within fifteen (15) days after 
the commencement of arbitration, each of MSCG and Project Participant shall select one person 
to act as arbitrator, and the two so-selected arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator (the 
“chairperson”) within thirty (30) days of the commencement of the arbitration.  If either MSCG 
or Project Participant is unable or fails to select one person to act as arbitrator, such arbitrator shall 
be appointed by JAMS.  If MSCG and Project Participant-selected arbitrators are unable or fail to 
agree upon a chairperson, the chairperson shall be appointed by JAMS.  The chairperson shall be 
a person who has experience in renewable energy-related transactions, and none of the arbitrators 
shall have been previously employed by any Party or have any direct pecuniary interest in any 
Party or the subject matter of the arbitration, unless such conflict is expressly acknowledged and 
waived in writing by all of the Parties.  The Parties shall maintain the confidential nature of the 
arbitration proceeding and any award, including any hearing(s), except as may be necessary to 
prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the merits, or except as necessary in connection 
with a court application for a preliminary remedy, a judicial challenge to an award or its 
enforcement, or unless otherwise required by law or judicial decision.  Any arbitration 
proceedings, decision or award rendered hereunder and the validity, effect and interpretation of 
this arbitration provision shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act.  The arbitrator(s) shall 
have no authority to award consequential, treble, exemplary, or punitive damages of any type or 
kind regardless of whether such damages may be available under any law or right, with the Parties 
hereby affirmatively waiving their rights, if any, to recover or claim such damages.  In any 
arbitration arising out of or related to this Agreement, the arbitrators shall award to the prevailing 
Party or Parties, if any, the costs and attorneys’ fees reasonably incurred in seeking to enforce the 
application of this Section 8(b) and by the prevailing party in connection with the arbitration.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 8(b), any costs incurred by a Party in 
seeking judicial enforcement of any written decision of the arbitrators shall be chargeable to and 
borne exclusively by the Party against whom such court order is obtained.  The award shall be 
final and binding on the Parties and judgment upon any award may be entered in any court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(c) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 8(b), if Section 
8(b) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (including 
the existence, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the applicability of any statute of 
limitation period) (each, a “Dispute”) shall be resolved by a reference proceeding in California in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 638 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure 
(“CCP”), or their successor sections (a “Reference Proceeding”), which shall constitute the 
exclusive remedy for the resolution of any Dispute.  As a condition precedent to initiating a 
Reference Proceeding with respect to any Dispute, the Parties shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 8(c)(i). 

i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the 
“Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a 
written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue, and 
support for such position (the “Notice of Dispute”).  Within ten (10) Days after receiving 
the Notice of Dispute, the Responding Parties shall provide the Disputing Party with a 
written Notice of each additional issue (if any) with respect to the dispute raised by the 
Notice of Dispute, a proposed means for resolving every issue in dispute, and support for 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 7 

such position (the “Dispute Response”).  Thereafter, the Parties shall meet to discuss the 
matter and attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution of the dispute.  If the 
Parties do not resolve the dispute by unanimous agreement within sixty (60) Days after 
receipt of the Dispute Response, (the “Negotiation Period”), then any Party may provide 
to the other Parties written notice of intent for judicial reference (the “Impasse Notice”) in 
accordance with the further provisions of this Section 8(c). 

ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees. 

(A) Within ten days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of MSCG 
and Project Participant shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the 
“Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”).  
The Party-Appointed Referees shall be competent and experienced in matters 
involving the electric energy business in the United States, with at least ten (10) 
years of electric industry experience as a practicing attorney. The Third Referee 
shall be an active or retired California state or federal judge. Each of the Party-
Appointed Referees and the Third Referee shall be impartial and independent of 
each of the Parties and of the other referees and not employed by any of the Parties 
in any prior matter. 

(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third 
Referee within forty-five (45) Days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the 
Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed 
in the Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco (the “Court”), and 
with due regard given to the selection criteria above.  A request for appointment of 
a referee may be heard on an ex parte or expedited basis, and the Parties agree that 
irreparable harm would result if ex parte relief is not granted. Pursuant to CCP 
Section 170.6, each of Project Participant and MSCG shall have one (1) peremptory 
challenge to the referee selected by the Court.  

iii. Discovery; Proceedings.   

(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the 
Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to 
change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the 
matter for a status and trial-setting conference within twenty (20) days after the date 
of selection of the Third Referee, (ii) if practicable, try all issues of law or fact 
within one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of the conference, and (iii) 
report a statement of decision within twenty (20) days after the matter has been 
submitted for decision.  

(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as 
agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee 
after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-
hearing procedures.   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 8 

(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall 
determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including 
the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other 
questions that arise with respect to the course of the Reference Proceeding. The 
Reference Proceeding, including the trial, shall be conducted at a neutral location 
selected by the Parties, or if not agreed by the Parties, by the Third Referee, in San 
Francisco, California.  

(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except 
for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so 
requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, 
and the referees will be provided a courtesy copy of the transcript.  The Party 
making such a request shall have the obligation to arrange for and pay the court 
reporter. 

iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting 
forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment 
in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  The decision 
shall be appealable to the same extent and in the same manner that such decision would be 
appealable if rendered by a judge of the Court.  The Parties intend this general reference 
agreement to be specifically enforceable in accordance with the CCP. 

v. Expenses.  Each of MSCG and Project Participant shall bear the 
compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, 
witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be 
split equally between MSCG and Project Participant. 

9. Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all 
obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations to make 
payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of Issuer, payable solely from 
the Trust Estate (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) as and to the extent provided in 
the Bond Indenture, including with respect to Operating Expenses (as such term is defined in the 
Bond Indenture).  Issuer shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source 
other than the Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) and other assets pledged 
under the Bond Indenture for any of the purposes in this Agreement mentioned.  Neither the faith 
and credit of Issuer nor the taxing power of the State of California or any political subdivision 
thereof is pledged to payments pursuant to this Agreement.  Issuer shall not be directly, indirectly, 
contingently or otherwise liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions, of any 
conceivable kind on any conceivable theory, under or by reasons of or in connection with this 
Agreement, except solely to the extent Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) 
are received for the payment thereof and may be applied therefor pursuant to the terms of the Bond 
Indenture. 

[Signature Pages to Follow]

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



Signature Page to Letter Agreement 

Very truly yours, 
      

MSES 
      

MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, 
L.L.C. 

 
 
     By:       

Name:       
Title:         

 
 
MSCG 

      
MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP INC. 

 
     By:       

Name:       
Title:         
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGED, ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO as of the date first set forth 
above: 
 
PARTICIPANT 
 
EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:        
 
ISSUER 
 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:        
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF LIMITED ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT FOR THIRD PARTY AS PPA 
SUPPLIER 

 
This Limited Assignment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of [____] by 

and among [____], a [____] (“PPA Seller”), East Bay Community Energy Authority, a joint 
powers authority and a community choice aggregator organized under the laws of the State of 
California (“PPA Buyer”), and Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation 
(“MSCG”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, PPA Buyer and PPA Seller are parties to that certain [____], dated as of [____] 
(the “PPA”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with a prepaid electricity transaction between [_______] 

(“Issuer”) and Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. (“MSES”), and with effect from and 
including the Assignment Period Start Date (as defined below), PPA Buyer wishes to transfer by 
limited assignment to MSCG, and MSCG wishes to accept the transfer by limited assignment of, 
the Assigned Rights and Obligations (as defined below) for the duration of the Assignment Period 
(as defined below); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this Agreement, MSCG will receive the Assigned Product and 

MSCG will deliver the Assigned Product to MSES, which will redeliver the Assigned Product to 
Issuer for ultimate redelivery to PPA Buyer; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this Agreement, MSCG will assume responsibility for the Delivered 

Product Payment Obligation. 
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises above and the mutual covenants and 

agreements herein set forth, PPA Seller, PPA Buyer and MSCG (the “Parties” hereto; each is a 
“Party”) agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Definitions. 

The following terms, when used in this Agreement and identified by the capitalization of the first 
letter thereof, have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context otherwise requires: 
 

“Agreement” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph above. 
 
“Assigned Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in Appendix 1. 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 2 

“Assigned Energy” means any Electricity associated with the Assigned Product to be 
delivered to MSCG hereunder pursuant to the Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

 
“Assigned Monthly Quantity” means the first [___] MWhs delivered in accordance with 

the PPA by PPA Seller in each Month during the Assignment Period.   
 
“Assigned Product” includes all (i) Energy and (ii) Green Attributes (PCC1) (as defined 

in the PPA)  produced by the Facility (as defined in the PPA) associated with the Assigned Monthly 
Quantity. 

 
“Assigned Product Price” means [NOTE: To be the Day-Ahead Price averaged for 

each day of the prior month if the assignment occurs after the commencement of the prepay 
transaction or the fixed price for energy under the PPA if assigned in connection with 
execution of the prepay transaction.]. 

 
“Assigned Rights and Obligations” means (i) the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to 

receive the Assigned Monthly Quantity of Assigned Product in each Month during the Assignment 
Period, as such rights may be limited or further described in the “Further Information” section on 
Appendix 1, and (ii) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation, which right and obligation are 
transferred and conveyed to MSCG hereunder, but which shall not relieve PPA Buyer of its 
obligations under the PPA in any respects. 

 
“Assignment Early Termination Date” has the meaning specified in Section 5(b). 
 
“Assignment Period” has the meaning specified in Section 5(a). 
 
“Assignment Period End Date” means 11:59:59 p.m. pacific prevailing time on [____]. 
 
“Assignment Period Start Date” means [_____]. 
 
“Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or a Federal Reserve Bank 

holiday. A Business Day begins at 8:00 a.m. and ends at 5:00 p.m. local time for the Party sending 
a notice, or payment, or performing a specified action. 

 
“CAISO Tariff” means the California Independent System Operator Corporation 

Agreement and Tariff, Business Practice Manuals (BPMs), and Operating Procedures, including 
the rules, protocols, procedures and standards attached thereto, as the same may be amended or 
modified from time-to-time and approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 

 
“Claims” means all claims or actions, threatened or filed, and the resulting losses, 

damages, expenses, attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and court costs, whether incurred by settlement 
or otherwise, and whether such claims or actions are threatened or filed prior to or after the 
termination of this Agreement, in each case arising under, in respect of or related in any way to 
the PPA or any transaction thereunder, except for the Delivered Product Payment Obligation. 

 
“Delivered Product Payment Obligation” has the meaning specified in Section 3(a). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 3 

 
“Electricity” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, expressed in 

megawatt hours (MWh). 
 
“Government Agency” means the United States of America, any state thereof, any 

municipality, or any local jurisdiction, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, 
including, but not limited to, courts, administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, 
bureaus, agencies, or instrumentalities. 

 
“Issuer” means [____], a [____] [NOTE: This will be the JPA or other entity formed 

for purposes of issuing municipal bonds for the prepaid transaction.]. 
 
“Inter-SC Trade” or “IST” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff. 

 
“Month” means a calendar month.   
 
“MSCG” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“MSES” means Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability 

company. 
 
“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, 

unincorporated organization, or Government Agency. 
 

“PPA Buyer” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“PPA Seller” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“Prepaid Agreement” means that certain Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement dated as of 

[____] by and between MSES and Issuer. 
 
“Prepay Power Supply Contract” means that certain Prepay Power Supply Contract 

dated [____] by and between PPA Buyer and Issuer. 
 
“Receivables” has the meaning given to such term in Section 3(e). 
 
“Retained Rights and Obligations” has the meaning specified in Section 3. 
 
“Scheduling Coordinator” or “SC” means an entity certified by the CAISO as 

qualifying as a Scheduling Coordinator pursuant to the CAISO Tariff for the purposes of 
undertaking the functions specified in “Responsibilities of a Scheduling Coordinator,” of the 
CAISO Tariff, as amended from time to time. 

 
2. Transfer and Undertakings. 

(a) PPA Buyer hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to MSCG all right, title and 
interest in and to the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to receive delivery of the Assigned 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 4 

Product during the Assignment Period.  In connection with this assignment, PPA Buyer hereby 
delegates to MSCG the Assigned Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period. 

(b) PPA Seller hereby consents and agrees to PPA Buyer’s assignment, transfer and 
conveyance of all right, title and interest in and to the Assigned Product and Assigned Rights and 
Obligations to MSCG and the exercise and performance by MSCG of the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations during the Assignment Period. 

(c) MSCG hereby accepts such assignment, transfer and conveyance of the Assigned 
Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period and agrees to perform any such Assigned 
Rights and Obligations due from it during the Assignment Period to the extent expressly set forth 
in this Agreement. 

3. Limited Assignment. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that (i) the Assigned Rights and Obligations include only a 
portion of PPA Buyer’s rights and obligations under the PPA, and that all rights and obligations 
arising under the PPA that are not expressly included in the Assigned Rights and Obligations shall 
be “Retained Rights and Obligations”, and (ii) the Retained Rights and Obligations include all 
rights and obligations of PPA Buyer arising during the Assignment Period except the rights and 
obligations expressly included in the Assigned Rights and Obligations.  In this regard: 
 

(a) Limited to Delivered Product Payment Obligation; Invoicing.   

i. MSCG’s sole obligation to PPA Seller will be to pay the Assigned Product 
Price (as defined in the PPA) to PPA Seller for the Assigned Product delivered during each 
Month of the Assignment Period on each applicable payment date under Section [__] of 
the PPA for a quantity up to, but not exceeding, the Assigned Monthly Quantity (the 
“Delivered Product Payment Obligation”).  To the extent MSCG fails to pay the 
Delivered Product Payment Obligation by the due date for payment set forth in the PPA, 
notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, PPA Buyer agrees that it 
remains responsible for such payment; provided that, to the extent PPA Buyer makes a 
payment to PPA Seller with respect to the Delivery Product Payment Obligation because 
MSCG has failed to pay the Delivered Product Payment Obligation, PPA Seller will have 
no further claim against MSCG for such amounts, and MSCG will be obligated to pay such 
amounts to PPA Buyer. 

ii. PPA Buyer shall remain solely responsible for any payment obligations 
other than the Delivered Product Payment Obligation due under the PPA during the 
Assignment Period (the “Retained Payment Obligation”).  Any Claims arising or existing 
in connection with or related to the PPA, whether related to performance by PPA Seller, 
PPA Buyer or MSCG, and whether arising before, during or after the Assignment Period, 
in each case excluding the Delivered Product Payment Obligation, will be included in the 
Retained Rights and Obligations and any such Claims will be resolved exclusively between 
PPA Seller and PPA Buyer in accordance with the PPA. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 5 

iii. Promptly following PPA Buyer’s receipt of each monthly invoice from PPA 
Seller during the Assignment Period and, in any event, no later than seven days thereafter, 
PPA Buyer shall deliver (i) a copy of such monthly invoice and the related supporting data 
to MSCG (ii) a statement to each of MSCG and the custodian described below indicating 
(A) the total amount due to PPA Seller under the PPA for such Month (the “Monthly Gross 
Amount”); (B) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation; and (C) the Retained Payment 
Obligation, which (I) shall be determined by subtracting the Delivered Product Payment 
Obligation from the Monthly Gross Amount and (II) shall reflect an amount due from PPA 
Buyer to the extent it is a positive number and an amount due to PPA Buyer to the extent 
it is a negative number.  The Delivered Product Payment Obligation and Retained Payment 
Obligation shall be administered by a custodian who will pay (1) the Monthly Gross 
Amount to PPA Seller on each payment due date and (2) the absolute value of the Retained 
Payment Obligation to PPA Buyer to the extent such amount is negative for any given 
Month.  

(b) Scheduling.  All scheduling of Electricity associated with Assigned Product and 
other communications related to the PPA shall take place between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller 
pursuant to the terms of the PPA; provided that (i) title to Assigned Product will pass to MSCG 
upon delivery by PPA Seller at the Assigned Delivery Point in accordance with the PPA; (ii) 
immediately thereafter, title to such Assigned Product will pass to MSES, Issuer and then to PPA 
Buyer upon delivery by MSCG at the same point where title is passed to MSCG pursuant to clause 
(i) above; (iii) PPA Buyer will be deemed to be acting as MSCG’s agent with regard to scheduling 
Assigned Energy; provided, however, that PPA Buyer shall be entitled to retain for its own account 
all CAISO revenues associated with delivery of the Assigned Product to CAISO, including where 
PPA Buyer is acting as Scheduling Coordinator for the Facility (as defined in the PPA) and through 
scheduling of ISTs; and (iv) (A) PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide copies to MSCG of (I) 
any notice of force majeure delivered under the PPA and (II) any notice of a default or of a breach 
or other event that, if not cured within an applicable grace period, could result in a default; (B) 
PPA Seller will provide copies to MSCG of annual forecasts and monthly forecasts and generation 
reports delivered under the PPA; and (C) PPA Buyer and PPA Seller, as applicable, will provide 
copies to MSCG of any other information reasonably requested by MSCG relating to Assigned 
Product. 

(c) Amendments.  PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide written notice (including 
copies thereof) of any amendment, waiver, supplement, modification, or other changes to the PPA 
to MSCG relating to the Assigned Rights and Obligations, and the Parties hereby acknowledge 
and agree that an amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or other change will not have any 
effect on MSCG’s rights or obligations under this Agreement until and unless MSCG receives 
written notice thereof.  

(d) Setoff of Receivables.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES has agreed to 
purchase the rights to payment of the net amounts owed by PPA Buyer under the Prepay Power 
Supply Contract (“Receivables”) in the case of non-payment by PPA Buyer.  To the extent any 
such Receivables relate to Assigned Product purchased by MSCG pursuant to the Assigned Rights 
and Obligations, MSES may sell such Receivables to MSCG and MSCG may transfer such 
Receivables (excluding any penalties, late payment fees, late payment interest or other fees, costs 
or interest included in such Receivables) to PPA Seller and apply the face amount of such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 6 

Receivables (excluding any penalties, late payment fees, late payment interest or other fees, costs 
or interest included in such Receivables) as a reduction to any Delivered Product Payment 
Obligations; provided, however, that at no time shall PPA Seller be required to pay MSCG for any 
amounts by which such Receivables exceed any Delivered Product Payment Obligations then due 
and owed to PPA Seller.  

4. Forward Contract.   

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” and that 
the Parties shall constitute “forward contract merchants” within the meaning of the United States 
Bankruptcy Code. 

5. Assignment Period; Assignment Early Termination. 

(a) Assignment Period.  The “Assignment Period” shall begin on the Assignment 
Period Start Date and extend until the Assignment Period End Date; provided that in no event shall 
the Assignment Period extend past an Assignment Early Termination Date. 

(b) Early Termination.  An “Assignment Early Termination Date” will occur under 
the following circumstances and as of the dates specified below: 

i. the assignment of the Prepay Power Supply Contract by PPA Buyer or 
Issuer pursuant to Article XIII thereof, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall 
occur immediately as of the time of such assignment; 

ii. the suspension, expiration, or termination of performance of the PPA by 
either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller for any reason other than the occurrence of Force Majeure 
under and as defined in the PPA, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur 
immediately as of the time of PPA Seller’s last performance under the PPA following such 
suspension, expiration, or termination; 

iii. the election of MSCG in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early 
Termination Date as a result of (a) any event or circumstance that would give either PPA 
Buyer or PPA Seller the right to terminate or suspend performance under the PPA 
(regardless of whether PPA Buyer or PPA Seller exercises such right) or (b) the execution 
of an amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or other change to the PPA that 
adversely affects the Assigned Rights and Obligations or MSCG’s rights or obligations 
under this Agreement (provided that MSCG shall not have a right to terminate under this 
clause (b) to the extent that MSCG (i) receives prior notice of such change and (ii) provides 
its written consent thereto), which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon 
the date set forth in a written notice of such election delivered by MSCG to PPA Buyer and 
PPA Seller; 

iv. termination or suspension of deliveries for any reason other than force 
majeure under the Prepaid Agreement or Prepay Power Supply Contract, which 
Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of the last 
deliveries under the relevant contract following such suspension or termination; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 7 

v. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an 
Assignment Early Termination Date if MSCG fails to pay when due any amounts owed to 
PPA Seller in respect of any Delivered Product Payment Obligation and such failure 
continues for five Business Days following receipt by MSCG of written notice thereof, 
which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon the date set forth in a written 
notice of such election delivered by PPA Seller or PPA Buyer, as applicable, to MSCG, 
and with a copy to PPA Buyer or PPA Seller, as applicable;  

vi. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an 
Assignment Early Termination Date if either (a) an involuntary case or other proceeding is 
commenced against MSCG seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with respect 
to it or its debts under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent 
transfer, reorganization, moratorium or similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking 
the appointment of a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or 
similar official of it or any substantial part of its property, and such involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall remain undismissed and unstayed, or an order or decree approving 
or ordering any of the foregoing is entered and continued unstayed and in effect, in any 
such event, for a period of 60 days, or (b) MSCG commences a voluntary case or 
proceeding under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent 
transfer, reorganization, moratorium or other similar law or any other case or proceeding 
to be adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent, or MSCG consents to the entry of a decree or 
order for relief in an involuntary case or proceeding under any applicable Federal or State 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar law or to the commencement of 
any bankruptcy or insolvency case or proceeding against it, files a petition or answer or 
consent seeking reorganization or relief under any applicable Federal or State law, or 
consents to the filing of such petition or to the appointment of or taking possession by a 
custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or similar official of MSCG 
or any substantial part of its property, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 
or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, which 
Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon the earliest date set forth in a written 
notice of such election delivered by PPA Seller or PPA Buyer, as applicable, to MSCG, 
and with a copy to PPA Buyer or PPA Seller, as applicable; 

vii. either MSCG or PPA Buyer may designate an Assignment Early 
Termination Date with written notice to the other Parties to the extent that MSCG and PPA 
Buyer have mutually agreed upon a replacement Assignment Agreement (as defined in the 
Prepay Power Supply Contract) that will replace the Assigned Rights and Obligations 
hereunder immediately following the termination hereof, which Assignment Early 
Termination Date shall occur effective as of the end of the Month preceding the 
commencement of the “Assignment Period” under the replacement Assignment Agreement 
as specified in the notice from MSCG or PPA Buyer to the other Parties; and 

 
viii. PPA Buyer may deliver written notice of termination to the other Parties if 

any change, event or effect occurs, including but not limited a change in applicable laws 
or regulations, any issues with the PPA Seller or the PPA, a dispute under the PPA or other 
similar circumstance, that individually or collectively have or are reasonably expected by 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 8 

PPA Buyer to have a material adverse effect upon (A) the PPA Buyer, (B) its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement, the Prepay Power Supply Contract, or the PPA, or (C) 
the benefit the PPA Buyer is receiving by assigning the Assigned Rights and Obligations, 
with such Assignment Early Termination Date to be the date set forth in a written notice 
delivered by PPA Buyer to the other Parties; provided that (x) PPA Buyer will provide 
notice to the other Parties as soon as is reasonably possible that PPA Buyer anticipates 
exercising this termination right, and (y) PPA Buyer shall exercise commercially 
reasonable efforts to propose and agree with MSCG upon a replacement Assignment 
Agreement prior to exercising this termination right. 

(c) Reversion of Assigned Rights and Obligations.  The parties acknowledge and 
agree that upon the occurrence of an Assignment Early Termination Date the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations will revert from MSCG to PPA Buyer.  Any Assigned Rights and Obligations that 
would become due for payment or performance on or after such Assignment Early Termination 
Date shall immediately and automatically revert from MSCG to PPA Buyer, provided that (i) 
MSCG shall remain responsible for the Delivered Product Payment Obligation with respect to any 
Assigned Product delivered to MSCG prior to the Assignment Early Termination Date, and (ii) 
any legal restrictions on the effectiveness of such reversion (whether arising under bankruptcy law 
or otherwise) shall not affect the occurrence of the Assignment Early Termination Date. 

6. Representations and Warranties. 

(a) Copy of PPA.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSCG that a 
true, complete, and correct copy of the PPA is attached hereto as Appendix 3. 

(b) No Default.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSCG that no 
event or circumstance exists (or would exist with the passage of time or the giving of notice) that 
would give either of them the right to terminate the PPA or suspend performance thereunder. 

(c) Other.  Each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller represents and warrants to each other 
and to MSCG that: 

i. it has made no prior transfer (whether by way of security or otherwise) of 
any interest in the Assigned Rights and Obligations; and 

ii. all obligations of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller under the PPA required to be 
performed on or before the Assignment Period Start Date have been fulfilled. 

(d) Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties: 

i. Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good 
standing. 

ii. Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other 
documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement 
and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 9 

Agreement to deliver and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and has taken all 
necessary action to authorize such execution, delivery and performance. 

iii. No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including 
the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in any 
violation of, or conflict with: (i) any term of any material contract or agreement applicable 
to it; (ii) any of its charter, bylaws, or other constitutional documents; (iii) any 
determination or award of any arbitrator applicable to it; or (iv) any license, permit, 
franchise, judgment, writ, injunction or regulation, decree, order, charter, law, ordinance, 
rule or regulation of any Government Agency, applicable to it or any of its assets or 
properties or to any obligations incurred by it or by which it or any of its assets or properties 
or obligations are bound or affected, and shall not cause a breach of, or default under, any 
such term or result in the creation of any lien upon any of its properties or assets. 

iv. Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, 
registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or 
permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government 
Agency that are required to have been obtained by such Party with respect to this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the due authorization of 
such Party and its governing body and any approval or consent of any security holder of 
such Party or any holder (or any trustee for any holder) of any indebtedness or other 
obligation of such Party, have been obtained and are in full force and effect and all 
conditions of any such consents have been complied with. 

v. Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its 
legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms 
(subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject, as to enforceability, to equitable principles 
of general application (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in 
equity or at law)). 

vi. Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own 
independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is 
appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such 
advisers as it has deemed necessary. It is not relying on any communication (written or 
oral) of the other Parties as investment advice or as a recommendation to enter into this 
Agreement; it being understood that information and explanations related to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered investment advice or a 
recommendation to enter into this Agreement. It is entering into this Agreement as a bona-
fide, arm’s-length transaction involving the mutual exchange of consideration and, once 
executed by all Parties, considers this Agreement a legally enforceable contract. No 
communication (written or oral) received from any of the other Parties shall be deemed to 
be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of this Agreement. 

vii. Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of 
and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 10 

understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also 
capable of assuming, and assumes, the risks of this Agreement. 

viii. Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or 
an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement. 

7. Counterparts. 

This Agreement (and each amendment, modification and waiver in respect of it) may be executed 
and delivered in counterparts (including by facsimile or electronic transmission), each of which 
will be deemed an original. 
 
8. Costs and Expenses. 

The Parties will each pay their own costs and expenses (including legal fees) incurred in 
connection with this Agreement and as a result of the negotiation, preparation, and execution of 
this Agreement. 
 
9. Amendments. 

No amendment, modification, or waiver in respect of this Agreement will be effective unless in 
writing (including a writing evidenced by an electronic transmission) and executed by each of the 
Parties or confirmed by emails or electronic messages on an electronic messaging system. 
 
10. Notices. 

Any notice, demand, statement or request required or authorized by this Agreement to be given by 
one Party to another shall be in writing, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.  It shall be 
sent by email transmission, courier, or personal delivery (including overnight delivery service) to 
each of the notice recipients and addresses for each of the other Parties designated in Appendix 2 
hereto.  Any such notice, demand, or request shall be deemed to be given (i) when sent by email 
transmission, or (ii) when actually received if delivered by courier or personal delivery (including 
overnight delivery service).  Each Party shall have the right, upon 10 days’ prior written notice to 
the other Parties, to change its address at any time, and to designate that copies of all such notices 
be directed to another person at another address.  The Parties may mutually agree in writing at any 
time to deliver notices, demands or requests through alternate or additional methods.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Party may at any time notify the other Parties that any notice, 
demand, statement or request to it must be provided by email transmission for a specified period 
of time or until further notice, and any communications delivered by means other than email 
transmission during such time shall be ineffective.   
 
11. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under 
this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with 
the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws provisions that would 
direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws; provided, however, that the authority of PPA 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 11 

Buyer to enter into and perform its obligations under this agreement shall be determined in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California. 

(b) U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties hereby confirm that they are adherents to the 
ISDA 2018 U.S. Resolution Stay Protocol (“ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol”), the terms of the ISDA 
U.S. Stay Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement, and this Agreement 
shall be deemed a Protocol Covered Agreement for purposes thereof.  For purposes of 
incorporating the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol, MSCG shall be deemed to be a Regulated Entity, and 
PPA Buyer and PPA Seller each shall be deemed to be an Adhering Party.  In the event of any 
inconsistences between this Agreement and the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol, the ISDA U.S. Stay 
Protocol will prevail.   

(c) Reserved.   

(d) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including 
the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by final, non-
appealable binding arbitration in San Francisco, California before three (3) arbitrators.  The 
arbitration shall be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (“JAMS”) 
pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Within fifteen (15) days after 
the commencement of arbitration, each of MSCG and PPA Buyer shall select one person to act as 
arbitrator, and the two so-selected arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator (the “chairperson”) 
within thirty (30) days of the commencement of the arbitration.  If either MSCG or PPA Buyer is 
unable or fails to select one person to act as arbitrator, such arbitrator shall be appointed by JAMS.  
If the MSCG and PPA Buyer-selected arbitrators are unable or fail to agree upon a chairperson, 
the chairperson shall be appointed by JAMS.  The chairperson shall be a person who has 
experience in renewable energy-related transactions, and none of the arbitrators shall have been 
previously employed by any Party or have any direct pecuniary interest in any Party or the subject 
matter of the arbitration, unless such conflict is expressly acknowledged and waived in writing by 
all of the Parties.  The Parties shall maintain the confidential nature of the arbitration proceeding 
and any award, including any hearing(s), except as may be necessary to prepare for or conduct the 
arbitration hearing on the merits, or except as necessary in connection with a court application for 
a preliminary remedy, a judicial challenge to an award or its enforcement, or unless otherwise 
required by law or judicial decision.  Any arbitration proceedings, decision or award rendered 
hereunder and the validity, effect and interpretation of this arbitration provision shall be governed 
by the Federal Arbitration Act.  The arbitrator(s) shall have no authority to award consequential, 
treble, exemplary, or punitive damages of any type or kind regardless of whether such damages 
may be available under any law or right, with the Parties hereby affirmatively waiving their rights, 
if any, to recover or claim such damages.  In any arbitration arising out of or related to this 
Agreement, the arbitrators shall award to the prevailing Party or Parties, if any, the costs and 
attorney’s fees reasonably incurred in seeking to enforce the application of this Section 11(d) and 
by the prevailing party in connection with the arbitration.  Notwithstanding the foregoing 
provisions of this Section 11(d), any costs incurred by a Party in seeking judicial enforcement of 
any written decision of the arbitrators shall be chargeable to and borne exclusively by the Party 
against whom such court order is obtained.  The award shall be final and binding on the Parties 
and judgment upon any award may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 12 

(e) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 11(d), if Section 
11(d) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (including 
the existence, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the applicability of any statute of 
limitation period) (each, a “Dispute”) shall be resolved by a reference proceeding in California in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 638 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure 
(“CCP”), or their successor sections (a “Reference Proceeding”), which shall constitute the 
exclusive remedy for the resolution of any Dispute.  As a condition precedent to initiating a 
Reference Proceeding with respect to any Dispute, the Parties shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 11(e)(i). 

i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the 
“Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a 
written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue, and 
support for such position (the “Notice of Dispute”).  Within 10 days after receiving the 
Notice of Dispute, the Responding Parties shall provide the Disputing Party with a written 
Notice of each additional issue (if any) with respect to the dispute raised by the Notice of 
Dispute, a proposed means for resolving every issue in dispute, and support for such 
position (the “Dispute Response”).  Thereafter, the Parties shall meet to discuss the matter 
and attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution of the dispute.  If the Parties do 
not resolve the dispute by unanimous agreement within sixty 60 days after receipt of the 
Dispute Response, (the “Negotiation Period”), then any Party may provide to the other 
Parties written notice of intent for judicial reference (the “Impasse Notice”) in accordance 
with the further provisions of this Section 11. 

ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees. 

(A) Within 10 days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of MSCG 
and PPA Buyer shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the “Party-
Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, together 
with the Party-Appointed Referees, the “Referees”).  The Party-Appointed 
Referees shall be competent and experienced in matters involving the electric 
energy business in the United States, with at least ten (10) years of electric industry 
experience as a practicing attorney. The Third Referee shall be an active or retired 
California state or federal judge. Each of the Party-Appointed Referees and the 
Third Referee shall be impartial and independent of each of the Parties and of the 
other referees and not employed by any of the Parties in any prior matter. 

(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third 
Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee 
shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior 
Court of California, County of San Francisco (the “Court”), and with due regard 
given to the selection criteria above.  A request for appointment of a referee may 
be heard on an ex parte or expedited basis, and the Parties agree that irreparable 
harm would result if ex parte relief is not granted. Pursuant to CCP Section 170.6, 
each of PPA Buyer and MSCG shall have one (1) peremptory challenge to the 
referee selected by the Court.  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 13 

iii. Discovery; Proceedings.   

(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the 
Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to 
change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the 
matter for a status and trial-setting conference within 20 days after the date of 
selection of the Third Referee, (ii) if practicable, try all issues of law or fact within 
180 days after the date of the conference, and (iii) report a statement of decision 
within 20 days after the matter has been submitted for decision.  

(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as 
agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee 
after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-
hearing procedures.   

(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall 
determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including 
the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other 
questions that arise with respect to the course of the Reference Proceeding. The 
Reference Proceeding, including the trial, shall be conducted at a neutral location 
selected by the Parties, or if not agreed by the Parties, by the Third Referee, in San 
Francisco, California.  

(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except 
for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so 
requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, 
and the referees will be provided a courtesy copy of the transcript.  The Party 
making such a request shall have the obligation to arrange for and pay the court 
reporter. 

iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting 
forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment 
in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  The decision 
shall be appealable to the same extent and in the same manner that such decision would be 
appealable if rendered by a judge of the Court.  The Parties intend this general reference 
agreement to be specifically enforceable in accordance with the CCP. 

v. Expenses.  Each of MSCG and PPA Buyer shall bear the compensation and 
expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants 
and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally between 
MSCG and PPA Buyer. 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Signature Page to Limited Assignment Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first 
set forth above. 
 
 
[PPA SELLER] 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP INC. 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Appendix 1 - 1 

Appendix 1 
Assigned Rights and Obligations 

 
PPA:  Renewable Power Purchase Agreement dated as of [____], by and between PPA Buyer 
and PPA Seller 
 
Assigned Delivery Point: [Facility PNode/Settlement Point (as defined in the PPA)] 
 
Further Information:  PPA Seller shall continue to transfer the WREGIS Certificates associated 
with all Renewable Energy Credits corresponding to all Facility Energy under the PPA, provided 
that the transferee of such WREGIS Certificates may be changed from time to time in accordance 
with the written instructions of both MSCG and PPA Buyer upon fifteen (15) Business Days’ 
notice, which change shall be effective as of the first day of the next calendar month, unless 
otherwise agreed.  Terms with initial capitalization used in this paragraph but not otherwise defined 
in this Agreement have the meaning set forth in the PPA.  
 
[Include additional requirements, if any] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Appendix 2 - 1 

Appendix 2 
Notice Information 

[To be completed before signing.] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Appendix 3 - 1 

Appendix 3 
Copy of Power Sales Contract 

[To be attached.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FORM OF LIMITED ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT FOR MSCG AS PPA SUPPLIER 
 

This Limited Assignment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of [____] by 
and among Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (“PPA Seller”), East Bay 
Community Energy Authority, a joint powers authority and a community choice aggregator 
organized under the laws of the State of California (“PPA Buyer”), California Community Choice 
Financing Authority, a joint powers authority and a public entity of the State of California 
established pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Article 1, Chapter 5, 
Division 7, Title 1, Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code, as amended) 
(“Issuer”), and Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company 
(“MSES”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, PPA Buyer and PPA Seller are parties to that certain [____], dated as of [____] 
(the “PPA”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with a prepaid electricity transaction between Issuer and MSES, 

and with effect from and including the Assignment Period Start Date (as defined below), PPA 
Buyer wishes to transfer by limited assignment to MSES, and MSES wishes to accept the transfer 
by limited assignment of, the Assigned Rights and Obligations (as defined below) for the duration 
of the Assignment Period (as defined below); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this Agreement, MSES will receive the Assigned Product and 

MSES will deliver the Assigned Product to MSES, which will redeliver the Assigned Product to 
Issuer for ultimate redelivery to PPA Buyer; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this Agreement, MSES will assume responsibility for the Delivered 

Product Payment Obligation. 
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises above and the mutual covenants and 

agreements herein set forth, Issuer, PPA Seller, PPA Buyer and MSES (the “Parties” hereto; each 
is a “Party”) agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Definitions. 

The following terms, when used in this Agreement and identified by the capitalization of the first 
letter thereof, have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context otherwise requires: 
 

“Agreement” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph above. 
 
“Assigned Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in Appendix 1. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 2 

 
“Assigned Energy” means any Electricity associated with the Assigned Product to be 

delivered to MSES hereunder pursuant to the Assigned Rights and Obligations. 
 
“Assigned Quantity” means all Assigned Product delivered in accordance with the PPA 

by PPA Seller in each year during the Assignment Period.   
 
“Assigned Product” includes all [Specified Source Energy]/[Carbon Free Energy] (as 

defined in the PPA) associated with the Assigned Quantity. 
 
“Assigned Product Price” means the [Energy Price]/[Flat Price] (as defined in the PPA 

and specified in Appendix 1). 
 
“Assigned Rights and Obligations” means (i) the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to 

receive the Assigned Quantity of Assigned Product during the Assignment Period, as such rights 
may be limited or further described in the “Further Information” section on Appendix 1, and (ii) 
the Delivered Product Payment Obligation, which right and obligation are transferred and 
conveyed to MSES hereunder. 

 
“Assignment Early Termination Date” has the meaning specified in Section 5(b). 
 
“Assignment Period” has the meaning specified in Section 5(a). 
 
“Assignment Period End Date” means 11:59:59 p.m. pacific prevailing time on [____]. 
 
“Assignment Period Start Date” means [_____]. 
 
“Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or a Federal Reserve Bank 

holiday. A Business Day begins at 8:00 a.m. and ends at 5:00 p.m. local time for the Party sending 
a notice, or payment, or performing a specified action. 

 
“CAISO Tariff” means the California Independent System Operator Corporation 

Agreement and Tariff, Business Practice Manuals (BPMs), and Operating Procedures, including 
the rules, protocols, procedures and standards attached thereto, as the same may be amended or 
modified from time-to-time and approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 

 
“Claims” means all claims or actions, threatened or filed, and the resulting losses, 

damages, expenses, attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and court costs, whether incurred by settlement 
or otherwise, and whether such claims or actions are threatened or filed prior to or after the 
termination of this Agreement, in each case arising under, in respect of or related in any way to 
the PPA or any transaction thereunder, except for the Delivered Product Payment Obligation. 

 
“Delivered Product Payment Obligation” has the meaning specified in Section 3(a). 
 
“Electricity” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, expressed in 

megawatt hours (MWh). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 3 

 
“Government Agency” means the United States of America, any state thereof, any 

municipality, or any local jurisdiction, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, 
including, but not limited to, courts, administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, 
bureaus, agencies, or instrumentalities. 

 
“Issuer” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“Inter-SC Trade” or “IST” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff. 

 
“Month” means a calendar month.   
 
“MSES” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 

 
“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, 

unincorporated organization, or Government Agency. 
 

“PPA Buyer” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“PPA Seller” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“Prepaid Agreement” means that certain Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement dated as of 

[____] by and between MSES and Issuer. 
 
“Prepay Power Supply Contract” means that certain Prepay Power Supply Contract 

dated [____] by and between PPA Buyer and Issuer. 
 
“Receivables” has the meaning given to such term in Section 3(e). 
 
“Retained Rights and Obligations” has the meaning specified in Section 3. 
 
“Scheduling Coordinator” or “SC” means an entity certified by the CAISO as 

qualifying as a Scheduling Coordinator pursuant to the CAISO Tariff for the purposes of 
undertaking the functions specified in “Responsibilities of a Scheduling Coordinator,” of the 
CAISO Tariff, as amended from time to time. 

 
2. Transfer and Undertakings. 

(a) PPA Buyer hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to MSES all right, title and 
interest in and to the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to receive delivery of the Assigned 
Product during the Assignment Period.  In connection with this assignment, PPA Buyer hereby 
delegates to MSES the Assigned Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period. 

(b) PPA Seller hereby consents and agrees to PPA Buyer’s assignment, transfer and 
conveyance of all right, title and interest in and to the Assigned Product and Assigned Rights and 
Obligations to MSES and the exercise and performance by MSES of the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations during the Assignment Period. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 4 

(c) MSES hereby accepts such assignment, transfer and conveyance of the Assigned 
Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period and agrees to perform any such Assigned 
Rights and Obligations due from it during the Assignment Period to the extent expressly set forth 
in this Agreement. 

3. Limited Assignment. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that (i) the Assigned Rights and Obligations include only a 
portion of PPA Buyer’s rights and obligations under the PPA, and that all rights and obligations 
arising under the PPA that are not expressly included in the Assigned Rights and Obligations shall 
be “Retained Rights and Obligations”, and (ii) the Retained Rights and Obligations include all 
rights and obligations of PPA Buyer arising during the Assignment Period except the rights and 
obligations expressly included in the Assigned Rights and Obligations.  In this regard: 
 

(a) Limited to Delivered Product Payment Obligation; Invoicing.   

i. MSES’s sole obligation to PPA Seller will be to pay the Assigned Product 
Price to PPA Seller for the Assigned Product delivered during each Month of the 
Assignment Period on each applicable payment date under Section [4.2] of the 
Confirmation to the PPA for a quantity determined under this Section 3(a)i (the “Delivered 
Product Payment Obligation”).  PPA Buyer shall remain solely responsible for any 
payment obligations other than the Delivered Product Payment Obligation due under the 
PPA during the Assignment Period (the “Retained Payment Obligation”).  For purposes 
of determining the Delivered Product Payment Obligation and other related payment 
obligations during the Assignment Period, each Party acknowledges and agrees as follows:  

(A) the PPA provides for the delivery of the Assigned Quantity on an 
annual basis, but, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Assigned Quantity shall be 
settled on a monthly basis by multiplying the [Hourly Quantity (as defined in the 
PPA)] the number CAISO Energy Delivery Hours (as defined in the PPA) in each 
month (the “Settlement Monthly Quantity”), for purposes of determining amounts 
due under this Agreement, the Prepay Power Supply Contract and the Prepaid 
Agreement for each month of the Assignment Period (as futher described below); 

(B) regardless of the Assigned Quantity actually delivered in any month 
during the Assignment Period, (I) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation shall 
be an amount equal to the result of (x) the Settlement Monthly Quantity, multiplied 
by (y) the Assigned Product Price; and (II) the payment due from PPA Buyer to 
Issuer under the Prepay Power Supply Contract shall be an amount equal to the 
result of (x) the Settlement Monthly Quantity, multiplied by (y) the Contract Price 
(as defined in the Prepay Power Supply Contract); and 

(C) to the extent that (I) an amount less than the Annual Quantity (as 
defined in the PPA) has been delivered as of the end of December for any year 
during the Assignment Period or (II) an Assignment Early Termination Date occurs 
and the Assigned Quantity actually delivered prior to such date is less than the 
Settlement Monthly Quantity through such date (any such shortfall amount under 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 5 

clauses (I) or (II), an “Assigned Shortfall Quantity”), then PPA Buyer will be 
deemed to have remarketed the Assigned Shortfall Quantity in a Private Business 
Sale (as defined in Exhibit C to the Prepaid Agreement), and MSES will record any 
such Assigned Shortfall Quantity as a Ledger Entry on the Private Business Sales 
Ledger (as each such term is defined in Exhibit C to the Prepaid Agreement 
effective as of the first day of the month of December or the month in which an 
Assignment Early Termination Date occurs, as applicable; provided in addition 
that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Prepaid Agreement, MSES 
shall have no remarketing payment obligations with respect to any such Assigned 
Shortfall Quantity.  

ii. PPA Seller shall deliver each monthly invoice and related supporting data 
during the Assignment Period to each of PPA Buyer and MSES, and each such invoice 
shall indicate (A) the total amount due to PPA Seller under the PPA for such Month (the 
“Monthly Gross Amount”); (B) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation; and (C) the 
Retained Payment Obligation, which (I) shall be determined by subtracting the Delivered 
Product Payment Obligation from the Monthly Gross Amount and (II) shall reflect an 
amount due from PPA Buyer to the extent it is a positive number and an amount due to 
PPA Buyer to the extent it is a negative number; provided in addition that any payment 
adjustments or subsequent reconciliations occurring after the date that is 10 days prior to 
the payment due date for a monthly invoice will be resolved solely between PPA Buyer 
and PPA Seller.  The Delivered Product Payment Obligation and Retained Payment 
Obligation shall be administered by a custodian who will pay (1) the Monthly Gross 
Amount to PPA Seller on each payment due date and (2) the absolute value of the Retained 
Payment Obligation to PPA Buyer to the extent such amount is negative for any given 
Month.   

(b) Retained Rights and Obligations.  Any Claims (other than the Delivered Product 
Payment Obligation or a failure to perform the same) arising or existing in connection with or 
related to the PPA, whether related to performance by PPA Seller, PPA Buyer or MSES, and 
whether arising before, during or after the Assignment Period, in each case excluding the Delivered 
Product Payment Obligation, will be included in the Retained Rights and Obligations and any such 
Claims will be resolved exclusively between PPA Seller and PPA Buyer in accordance with the 
PPA. 

(c) Scheduling.  All scheduling of Electricity associated with Assigned Product and 
other communications related to the PPA shall take place between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller 
pursuant to the terms of the PPA; provided that (i) title to Assigned Product will pass to MSES 
upon delivery by PPA Seller at the Assigned Delivery Point in accordance with the PPA; (ii) 
immediately thereafter, title to such Assigned Product will pass to MSES, Issuer and then to PPA 
Buyer upon delivery by MSES at the same point where title is passed to MSES pursuant to clause 
(i) above; (iii) PPA Buyer will be deemed to be acting as MSES’s agent with regard to scheduling 
Assigned Energy; provided, however, that PPA Buyer shall be entitled to retain for its own account 
all CAISO revenues associated with delivery of the Assigned Product to CAISO, including where 
PPA Buyer is acting as Scheduling Coordinator for the Facility (as defined in the PPA) and through 
scheduling of ISTs; and (iv) (A) PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide copies to MSES of (I) 
any notice of force majeure delivered under the PPA and (II) any notice of a default or of a breach 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 6 

or other event that, if not cured within an applicable grace period, could result in a default; (B) 
PPA Seller will provide copies to MSES of annual forecasts and monthly forecasts and generation 
reports delivered under the PPA; and (C) PPA Buyer and PPA Seller, as applicable, will provide 
copies to MSES of any other information reasonably requested by MSES relating to Assigned 
Product. 

(d) Amendments.  PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide written notice (including 
copies thereof) of any amendment, waiver, supplement, modification, or other changes to the PPA 
to MSES relating to the Assigned Rights and Obligations, and the Parties hereby acknowledge and 
agree that an amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or other change will not have any 
effect on MSES’s rights or obligations under this Agreement until and unless MSES receives 
written notice thereof.  

(e) Setoff of Receivables.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES has agreed to 
purchase the rights to payment of the net amounts owed by PPA Buyer under the Prepay Power 
Supply Contract (“Receivables”) in the case of non-payment by PPA Buyer.  To the extent any 
such Receivables relate to Assigned Product purchased by MSES pursuant to the Assigned Rights 
and Obligations, MSES may transfer such Receivables (excluding any penalties, late payment fees, 
late payment interest or other fees, costs or interest included in such Receivables) to PPA Seller 
and apply the face amount of such Receivables (excluding any penalties, late payment fees, late 
payment interest or other fees, costs or interest included in such Receivables) as a reduction to any 
Delivered Product Payment Obligations; provided, however, that at no time shall PPA Seller be 
required to pay MSES for any amounts by which such Receivables exceed any Delivered Product 
Payment Obligations then due and owed to PPA Seller.  

(f) Joinder to Intercreditor Agreement.  In connection with the execution of this 
Agreement and as a condition precedent to the effectiveness hereof, Issuer shall execute a joinder 
to the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement (as defined in the PPA), which will provide 
Issuer with certain rights under the Security Documents (as defined in the PPA).  PPA Buyer agrees 
that it shall make payments with respect to the Assigned Quantity to Issuer under the Prepay Power 
Supply Contract on the 20th or preceding business day of the month following deliveries consistent 
with the terms thereof, and such payments will be made from PPA Buyer’s available funds not 
pledged to the Special Fund (as defined in the PPA); provided that, in the event PPA Buyer fails 
to make any such payment when due, PPA Buyer shall cause such payment due to Issuer to be 
included as Regular Charges (as defined in the Security Documents) on the first Distribution Date 
Certificate (as defined in the Security Documents) to be issued thereafter.  If PPA Buyer fails to 
do so, Issuer shall dispute such Distribution Date Certificate and otherwise pursue its rights to 
payment thereon pursuant to the terms of the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement.  To 
the extent Issuer receives any amounts under the Security Documents or Intercreditor and 
Collateral Agency Agreement in respect of any Receivables purchased by MSES, Issuer shall (i) 
hold such amounts in trust for the benefit of MSES, (ii) promptly notify MSES thereof and (iii) 
promptly remit such amounts directly to an account specified by MSES. 

4. Forward Contract.   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 7 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” and that 
the Parties shall constitute “forward contract merchants” within the meaning of the United States 
Bankruptcy Code. 

5. Assignment Period; Assignment Early Termination. 

(a) Assignment Period.  The “Assignment Period” shall begin on the Assignment 
Period Start Date and extend until the Assignment Period End Date; provided that in no event shall 
the Assignment Period extend past an Assignment Early Termination Date. 

(b) Early Termination.  An “Assignment Early Termination Date” will occur under 
the following circumstances and as of the dates specified below: 

i. the assignment of the Prepay Power Supply Contract by PPA Buyer or 
Issuer pursuant to Article XIII thereof, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall 
occur immediately as of the time of such assignment; 

ii. the suspension, expiration, or termination of performance of the PPA by 
either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller for any reason other than the occurrence of Force Majeure 
under and as defined in the PPA, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur 
immediately as of the time of PPA Seller’s last performance under the PPA following such 
suspension, expiration, or termination; 

iii. the election of MSES in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early 
Termination Date as a result of (a) any event or circumstance that would give either PPA 
Buyer or PPA Seller the right to terminate or suspend performance under the PPA 
(regardless of whether PPA Buyer or PPA Seller exercises such right) or (b) the execution 
of an amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or other change to the PPA that 
adversely affects the Assigned Rights and Obligations or MSES’s rights or obligations 
under this Agreement (provided that MSES shall not have a right to terminate under this 
clause (b) to the extent that MSES (i) receives prior notice of such change and (ii) provides 
its written consent thereto), which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon 
the date set forth in a written notice of such election delivered by MSES to PPA Buyer and 
PPA Seller; 

iv. termination or suspension of deliveries for any reason other than force 
majeure under the Prepaid Agreement or Prepay Power Supply Contract, which 
Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of the last 
deliveries under the relevant contract following such suspension or termination; 

v. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an 
Assignment Early Termination Date if MSES fails to pay when due any amounts owed to 
PPA Seller in respect of any Delivered Product Payment Obligation and such failure 
continues for five Business Days following receipt by MSES of written notice thereof, 
which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon the date set forth in a written 
notice of such election delivered by PPA Seller or PPA Buyer, as applicable, to MSES, and 
with a copy to PPA Buyer or PPA Seller, as applicable;  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 8 

vi. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an 
Assignment Early Termination Date if either (a) an involuntary case or other proceeding is 
commenced against MSES seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with respect 
to it or its debts under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent 
transfer, reorganization, moratorium or similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking 
the appointment of a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or 
similar official of it or any substantial part of its property, and such involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall remain undismissed and unstayed, or an order or decree approving 
or ordering any of the foregoing is entered and continued unstayed and in effect, in any 
such event, for a period of 60 days, or (b) MSES commences a voluntary case or proceeding 
under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, 
reorganization, moratorium or other similar law or any other case or proceeding to be 
adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent, or MSES consents to the entry of a decree or order 
for relief in an involuntary case or proceeding under any applicable Federal or State 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar law or to the commencement of 
any bankruptcy or insolvency case or proceeding against it, files a petition or answer or 
consent seeking reorganization or relief under any applicable Federal or State law, or 
consents to the filing of such petition or to the appointment of or taking possession by a 
custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or similar official of MSES 
or any substantial part of its property, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 
or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, which 
Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon the earliest date set forth in a written 
notice of such election delivered by PPA Seller or PPA Buyer, as applicable, to MSES, and 
with a copy to PPA Buyer or PPA Seller, as applicable; 

vii. either MSES or PPA Buyer may designate an Assignment Early 
Termination Date with written notice to the other Parties to the extent that MSES and PPA 
Buyer have mutually agreed upon a replacement Assignment Agreement (as defined in the 
Prepay Power Supply Contract) that will replace the Assigned Rights and Obligations 
hereunder immediately following the termination hereof, which Assignment Early 
Termination Date shall occur effective as of the end of the Month preceding the 
commencement of the “Assignment Period” under the replacement Assignment Agreement 
as specified in the notice from MSES or PPA Buyer to the other Parties; and 

 
viii. PPA Buyer may deliver written notice of termination to the other Parties if 

any change, event or effect occurs, including but not limited a change in applicable laws 
or regulations, any issues with the PPA Seller or the PPA, a dispute under the PPA or other 
similar circumstance, that individually or collectively have or are reasonably expected by 
PPA Buyer to have a material adverse effect upon (A) the PPA Buyer, (B) its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement, the Prepay Power Supply Contract, or the PPA, or (C) 
the benefit the PPA Buyer is receiving by assigning the Assigned Rights and Obligations, 
with such Assignment Early Termination Date to be the date set forth in a written notice 
delivered by PPA Buyer to the other Parties; provided that (x) PPA Buyer will provide 
notice to the other Parties as soon as is reasonably possible that PPA Buyer anticipates 
exercising this termination right, and (y) PPA Buyer shall exercise commercially 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 9 

reasonable efforts to propose and agree with MSES upon a replacement Assignment 
Agreement prior to exercising this termination right. 

(c) Reversion of Assigned Rights and Obligations.  The parties acknowledge and 
agree that upon the occurrence of an Assignment Early Termination Date the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations will revert from MSES to PPA Buyer.  Any Assigned Rights and Obligations that 
would become due for payment or performance on or after such Assignment Early Termination 
Date shall immediately and automatically revert from MSES to PPA Buyer, provided that (i) 
MSES shall remain responsible for the Delivered Product Payment Obligation with respect to any 
Assigned Product delivered to MSES prior to the Assignment Early Termination Date, and (ii) any 
legal restrictions on the effectiveness of such reversion (whether arising under bankruptcy law or 
otherwise) shall not affect the occurrence of the Assignment Early Termination Date. 

6. Representations and Warranties. 

(a) Copy of PPA.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that a 
true, complete, and correct copy of the PPA is attached hereto as Appendix 3. 

(b) No Default.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that no 
event or circumstance exists (or would exist with the passage of time or the giving of notice) that 
would give either of them the right to terminate the PPA or suspend performance thereunder. 

(c) Other.  Each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller represents and warrants to each other 
and to MSES that: 

i. it has made no prior transfer (whether by way of security or otherwise) of 
any interest in the Assigned Rights and Obligations; and 

ii. all obligations of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller under the PPA required to be 
performed on or before the Assignment Period Start Date have been fulfilled. 

(d) Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties: 

i. Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good 
standing. 

ii. Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other 
documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement 
and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this 
Agreement to deliver and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and has taken all 
necessary action to authorize such execution, delivery and performance. 

iii. No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including 
the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in any 
violation of, or conflict with: (i) any term of any material contract or agreement applicable 
to it; (ii) any of its charter, bylaws, or other constitutional documents; (iii) any 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 10 

determination or award of any arbitrator applicable to it; or (iv) any license, permit, 
franchise, judgment, writ, injunction or regulation, decree, order, charter, law, ordinance, 
rule or regulation of any Government Agency, applicable to it or any of its assets or 
properties or to any obligations incurred by it or by which it or any of its assets or properties 
or obligations are bound or affected, and shall not cause a breach of, or default under, any 
such term or result in the creation of any lien upon any of its properties or assets. 

iv. Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, 
registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or 
permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government 
Agency that are required to have been obtained by such Party with respect to this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the due authorization of 
such Party and its governing body and any approval or consent of any security holder of 
such Party or any holder (or any trustee for any holder) of any indebtedness or other 
obligation of such Party, have been obtained and are in full force and effect and all 
conditions of any such consents have been complied with. 

v. Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its 
legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms 
(subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject, as to enforceability, to equitable principles 
of general application (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in 
equity or at law)). 

vi. Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own 
independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is 
appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such 
advisers as it has deemed necessary. It is not relying on any communication (written or 
oral) of the other Parties as investment advice or as a recommendation to enter into this 
Agreement; it being understood that information and explanations related to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered investment advice or a 
recommendation to enter into this Agreement. It is entering into this Agreement as a bona-
fide, arm’s-length transaction involving the mutual exchange of consideration and, once 
executed by all Parties, considers this Agreement a legally enforceable contract. No 
communication (written or oral) received from any of the other Parties shall be deemed to 
be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of this Agreement. 

vii. Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of 
and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and 
understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also 
capable of assuming, and assumes, the risks of this Agreement. 

viii. Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or 
an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement. 

7. Counterparts. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 11 

This Agreement (and each amendment, modification and waiver in respect of it) may be executed 
and delivered in counterparts (including by facsimile or electronic transmission), each of which 
will be deemed an original. 
 
8. Costs and Expenses. 

The Parties will each pay their own costs and expenses (including legal fees) incurred in 
connection with this Agreement and as a result of the negotiation, preparation, and execution of 
this Agreement. 
 
9. Amendments. 

No amendment, modification, or waiver in respect of this Agreement will be effective unless in 
writing (including a writing evidenced by an electronic transmission) and executed by each of the 
Parties or confirmed by emails or electronic messages on an electronic messaging system. 
 
10. Notices. 

Any notice, demand, statement or request required or authorized by this Agreement to be given by 
one Party to another shall be in writing, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.  It shall be 
sent by email transmission, courier, or personal delivery (including overnight delivery service) to 
each of the notice recipients and addresses for each of the other Parties designated in Appendix 2 
hereto.  Any such notice, demand, or request shall be deemed to be given (i) when sent by email 
transmission, or (ii) when actually received if delivered by courier or personal delivery (including 
overnight delivery service).  Each Party shall have the right, upon 10 days’ prior written notice to 
the other Parties, to change its address at any time, and to designate that copies of all such notices 
be directed to another person at another address.  The Parties may mutually agree in writing at any 
time to deliver notices, demands or requests through alternate or additional methods.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Party may at any time notify the other Parties that any notice, 
demand, statement or request to it must be provided by email transmission for a specified period 
of time or until further notice, and any communications delivered by means other than email 
transmission during such time shall be ineffective.   
 
11. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under 
this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with 
the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws provisions that would 
direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws; provided, however, that the authority of PPA 
Buyer to enter into and perform its obligations under this agreement shall be determined in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California. 

(b) U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties hereby confirm that they are adherents to the 
ISDA 2018 U.S. Resolution Stay Protocol (“ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol”), the terms of the ISDA 
U.S. Stay Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement, and this Agreement 
shall be deemed a Protocol Covered Agreement for purposes thereof.  For purposes of 
incorporating the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol, MSES and PPA Seller shall each be deemed to be a 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 12 

Regulated Entity, and PPA Buyer shall be deemed to be an Adhering Party.  In the event of any 
inconsistences between this Agreement and the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol, the ISDA U.S. Stay 
Protocol will prevail.   

(c) Reserved.   

(d) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including 
the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by final, non-
appealable binding arbitration in San Francisco, California before three (3) arbitrators.  The 
arbitration shall be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (“JAMS”) 
pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Within fifteen (15) days after 
the commencement of arbitration, each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall select one person to 
act as arbitrator, and the two so-selected arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator (the 
“chairperson”) within thirty (30) days of the commencement of the arbitration.  If either PPA 
Seller or PPA Buyer is unable or fails to select one person to act as arbitrator, such arbitrator shall 
be appointed by JAMS.  If the PPA Seller and PPA Buyer-selected arbitrators are unable or fail to 
agree upon a chairperson, the chairperson shall be appointed by JAMS.  The chairperson shall be 
a person who has experience in renewable energy-related transactions, and none of the arbitrators 
shall have been previously employed by any Party or have any direct pecuniary interest in any 
Party or the subject matter of the arbitration, unless such conflict is expressly acknowledged and 
waived in writing by all of the Parties.  The Parties shall maintain the confidential nature of the 
arbitration proceeding and any award, including any hearing(s), except as may be necessary to 
prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the merits, or except as necessary in connection 
with a court application for a preliminary remedy, a judicial challenge to an award or its 
enforcement, or unless otherwise required by law or judicial decision.  Any arbitration 
proceedings, decision or award rendered hereunder and the validity, effect and interpretation of 
this arbitration provision shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act.  The arbitrator(s) shall 
have no authority to award consequential, treble, exemplary, or punitive damages of any type or 
kind regardless of whether such damages may be available under any law or right, with the Parties 
hereby affirmatively waiving their rights, if any, to recover or claim such damages.  In any 
arbitration arising out of or related to this Agreement, the arbitrators shall award to the prevailing 
Party or Parties, if any, the costs and attorney’s fees reasonably incurred in seeking to enforce the 
application of this Section 11(d) and by the prevailing party in connection with the arbitration.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 11(d), any costs incurred by a Party in 
seeking judicial enforcement of any written decision of the arbitrators shall be chargeable to and 
borne exclusively by the Party against whom such court order is obtained.  The award shall be 
final and binding on the Parties and judgment upon any award may be entered in any court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(e) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 11(d), if Section 
11(d) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (including 
the existence, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the applicability of any statute of 
limitation period) (each, a “Dispute”) shall be resolved by a reference proceeding in California in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 638 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure 
(“CCP”), or their successor sections (a “Reference Proceeding”), which shall constitute the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 13 

exclusive remedy for the resolution of any Dispute.  As a condition precedent to initiating a 
Reference Proceeding with respect to any Dispute, the Parties shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 11(e)(i). 

i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the 
“Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a 
written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue, and 
support for such position (the “Notice of Dispute”).  Within 10 days after receiving the 
Notice of Dispute, the Responding Parties shall provide the Disputing Party with a written 
Notice of each additional issue (if any) with respect to the dispute raised by the Notice of 
Dispute, a proposed means for resolving every issue in dispute, and support for such 
position (the “Dispute Response”).  Thereafter, the Parties shall meet to discuss the matter 
and attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution of the dispute.  If the Parties do 
not resolve the dispute by unanimous agreement within sixty 60 days after receipt of the 
Dispute Response, (the “Negotiation Period”), then any Party may provide to the other 
Parties written notice of intent for judicial reference (the “Impasse Notice”) in accordance 
with the further provisions of this Section 11. 

ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees. 

(A) Within 10 days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of PPA 
Seller and PPA Buyer shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the 
“Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, 
together with the Party-Appointed Referees, the “Referees”).  The Party-Appointed 
Referees shall be competent and experienced in matters involving the electric 
energy business in the United States, with at least ten (10) years of electric industry 
experience as a practicing attorney. The Third Referee shall be an active or retired 
California state or federal judge. Each of the Party-Appointed Referees and the 
Third Referee shall be impartial and independent of each of the Parties and of the 
other referees and not employed by any of the Parties in any prior matter. 

(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third 
Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee 
shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior 
Court of California, County of San Francisco (the “Court”), and with due regard 
given to the selection criteria above.  A request for appointment of a referee may 
be heard on an ex parte or expedited basis, and the Parties agree that irreparable 
harm would result if ex parte relief is not granted. Pursuant to CCP Section 170.6, 
each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller shall have one (1) peremptory challenge to the 
referee selected by the Court.  

iii. Discovery; Proceedings.   

(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the 
Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to 
change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the 
matter for a status and trial-setting conference within 20 days after the date of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 14 

selection of the Third Referee, (ii) if practicable, try all issues of law or fact within 
180 days after the date of the conference, and (iii) report a statement of decision 
within 20 days after the matter has been submitted for decision.  

(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as 
agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee 
after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-
hearing procedures.   

(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall 
determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including 
the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other 
questions that arise with respect to the course of the Reference Proceeding. The 
Reference Proceeding, including the trial, shall be conducted at a neutral location 
selected by the Parties, or if not agreed by the Parties, by the Third Referee, in San 
Francisco, California.  

(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except 
for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so 
requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, 
and the referees will be provided a courtesy copy of the transcript.  The Party 
making such a request shall have the obligation to arrange for and pay the court 
reporter. 

iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting 
forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment 
in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  The decision 
shall be appealable to the same extent and in the same manner that such decision would be 
appealable if rendered by a judge of the Court.  The Parties intend this general reference 
agreement to be specifically enforceable in accordance with the CCP. 

v. Expenses.  Each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall bear the compensation 
and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, 
consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally 
between PPA Seller and PPA Buyer. 

 

(f) Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all  
obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations to make 
payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of Issuer, payable solely from 
the Trust Estate (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) as and to the extent provided in 
the Bond Indenture, including with respect to Operating Expenses (as such term is defined in the 
Bond Indenture).  Issuer shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source 
other than the Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) and other assets pledged 
under the Bond Indenture for any of the purposes in this Agreement mentioned.  Neither the faith 
and credit of Issuer nor the taxing power of the State of California or any political subdivision 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

 15 

thereof is pledged to payments pursuant to this Agreement.  Issuer shall not be directly, indirectly, 
contingently or otherwise liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions, of any 
conceivable kind on any conceivable theory, under or by reasons of or in connection with this 
Agreement, except solely to the extent Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) 
are received for the payment thereof and may be applied therefor pursuant to the terms of the Bond 
Indenture

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Signature Page to Limited Assignment Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first 
set forth above. 
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP INC. 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 

 
 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Appendix 1 - 1 

Appendix 1 
Assigned Rights and Obligations 

 
PPA:  Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of [____] and the Confirmation 
thereunder dated as of [____], by and between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller 
 
Assigned Delivery Point: [NP15 EZ GEN HUB)] 
 
Assigned Product Price: [To list applicable Energy Price or Flat Price specified in the PPA] 
 
Further Information: [Include additional requirements, if any] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Appendix 2 - 1 

Appendix 2 
Notice Information 

[To be completed before signing.] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



 

Appendix 3 - 1 

Appendix 3 
Copy of Power Sales Contract 

[To be attached.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15D



HB Draft 7 April 2022 

 

LIMITED ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT  
 

This Limited Assignment Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of [____], 2022 
by and among Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (“PPA Seller”), East 
Bay Community Energy Authority, a joint powers authority and a community choice aggregator 
organized under the laws of the State of California (“PPA Buyer”), California Community Choice 
Financing Authority, a joint powers authority and a public entity of the State of California 
established pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Article 1, Chapter 5, 
Division 7, Title 1, Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code, as amended) 
(“Issuer”), and Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company 
(“MSES”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, PPA Buyer and PPA Seller are parties to that certain Master Power Purchase 
and Sale Agreement dated [____], 20[__] and the Specified Source Product Confirmation 
thereunder dated as of the date hereof (the “PPA”); 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with a prepaid electricity transaction between Issuer and MSES, 

and with effect from and including the Assignment Period Start Date (as defined below), PPA 
Buyer wishes to transfer by limited assignment to MSES, and MSES wishes to accept the transfer 
by limited assignment of, the Assigned Rights and Obligations (as defined below) for the duration 
of the Assignment Period (as defined below); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this Agreement, MSES will receive the Assigned Product and 

MSES will deliver the Assigned Product to MSES, which will redeliver the Assigned Product to 
Issuer for ultimate redelivery to PPA Buyer; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to this Agreement, MSES will assume responsibility for the Delivered 

Product Payment Obligation. 
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises above and the mutual covenants and 

agreements herein set forth, Issuer, PPA Seller, PPA Buyer and MSES (the “Parties” hereto; each 
is a “Party”) agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

1. Definitions. 

The following terms, when used in this Agreement and identified by the capitalization of the first 
letter thereof, have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context otherwise requires: 
 

“Agreement” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph above. 
 
“Assigned Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in Appendix 1. 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 2 

“Assigned Energy” means any Electricity associated with the Assigned Product to be 
delivered to MSES hereunder pursuant to the Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

 
“Assigned Quantity” means all Assigned Product delivered in accordance with the PPA 

by PPA Seller in each year during the Assignment Period.   
 
“Assigned Product” includes all Specified Source Energy and Carbon Free Energy (as 

such terms are defined in the PPA) associated with the Assigned Quantity. 
 
“Assigned Product Price” means the Energy Price (as defined in the PPA and specified 

in Appendix 1). 
 
“Assigned Rights and Obligations” means (i) the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to 

receive the Assigned Quantity of Assigned Product during the Assignment Period, as such rights 
may be limited or further described in the “Further Information” section on Appendix 1, and (ii) 
the Delivered Product Payment Obligation, which right and obligation are transferred and 
conveyed to MSES hereunder. 

 
“Assignment Early Termination Date” has the meaning specified in Section 5(b). 
 
“Assignment Period” has the meaning specified in Section 5(a). 
 
“Assignment Period End Date” means 11:59:59 p.m. pacific prevailing time on [____], 

20[__]. 
 
“Assignment Period Start Date” means means 00:00 pacific prevailing time on [____], 

2022. 
 
“Business Day” means any day except a Saturday, Sunday, or a Federal Reserve Bank 

holiday. A Business Day begins at 8:00 a.m. and ends at 5:00 p.m. local time for the Party sending 
a notice, or payment, or performing a specified action. 

 
“CAISO Tariff” means the California Independent System Operator Corporation 

Agreement and Tariff, Business Practice Manuals (BPMs), and Operating Procedures, including 
the rules, protocols, procedures and standards attached thereto, as the same may be amended or 
modified from time-to-time and approved by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 

 
“Claims” means all claims or actions, threatened or filed, and the resulting losses, 

damages, expenses, attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and court costs, whether incurred by settlement 
or otherwise, and whether such claims or actions are threatened or filed prior to or after the 
termination of this Agreement, in each case arising under, in respect of or related in any way to 
the PPA or any transaction thereunder, except for the Delivered Product Payment Obligation. 

 
“Delivered Product Payment Obligation” has the meaning specified in Section 3(a). 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 3 

“Electricity” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, expressed in 
megawatt hours (MWh). 

 
“Government Agency” means the United States of America, any state thereof, any 

municipality, or any local jurisdiction, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, 
including, but not limited to, courts, administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, 
bureaus, agencies, or instrumentalities. 

 
“Issuer” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“Inter-SC Trade” or “IST” has the meaning set forth in the CAISO Tariff. 

 
“Month” means a calendar month.   
 
“MSES” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 

 
“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, 

unincorporated organization, or Government Agency. 
 

“PPA Buyer” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“PPA Seller” has the meaning specified in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
 
“Prepaid Agreement” means that certain Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement dated as of the 

date hereof by and between MSES and Issuer. 
 
“Prepay Power Supply Contract” means that certain Prepay Power Supply Contract 

dated as of the date hereof by and between PPA Buyer and Issuer. 
 
“Receivables” has the meaning given to such term in Section 3(e). 
 
“Retained Rights and Obligations” has the meaning specified in Section 3. 
 
“Scheduling Coordinator” or “SC” means an entity certified by the CAISO as 

qualifying as a Scheduling Coordinator pursuant to the CAISO Tariff for the purposes of 
undertaking the functions specified in “Responsibilities of a Scheduling Coordinator,” of the 
CAISO Tariff, as amended from time to time. 

 
2. Transfer and Undertakings. 

(a) PPA Buyer hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to MSES all right, title and 
interest in and to the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to receive delivery of the Assigned 
Product during the Assignment Period.  In connection with this assignment, PPA Buyer hereby 
delegates to MSES the Assigned Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period. 

(b) PPA Seller hereby consents and agrees to PPA Buyer’s assignment, transfer and 
conveyance of all right, title and interest in and to the Assigned Product and Assigned Rights and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 4 

Obligations to MSES and the exercise and performance by MSES of the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations during the Assignment Period. 

(c) MSES hereby accepts such assignment, transfer and conveyance of the Assigned 
Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period and agrees to perform any such Assigned 
Rights and Obligations due from it during the Assignment Period to the extent expressly set forth 
in this Agreement. 

3. Limited Assignment. 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that (i) the Assigned Rights and Obligations include only a 
portion of PPA Buyer’s rights and obligations under the PPA, and that all rights and obligations 
arising under the PPA that are not expressly included in the Assigned Rights and Obligations shall 
be “Retained Rights and Obligations”, and (ii) the Retained Rights and Obligations include all 
rights and obligations of PPA Buyer arising during the Assignment Period except the rights and 
obligations expressly included in the Assigned Rights and Obligations.  In this regard: 
 

(a) Limited to Delivered Product Payment Obligation; Invoicing.   

i. MSES’s sole obligation to PPA Seller will be to pay the Assigned Product 
Price to PPA Seller for the Assigned Product delivered during each Month of the 
Assignment Period on each applicable payment date under Section 5.2 of the Confirmation 
to the PPA for a quantity determined under this Section 3(a)i (the “Delivered Product 
Payment Obligation”).  PPA Buyer shall remain solely responsible for any payment 
obligations other than the Delivered Product Payment Obligation due under the PPA during 
the Assignment Period (the “Retained Payment Obligation”).  For purposes of 
determining the Delivered Product Payment Obligation and other related payment 
obligations during the Assignment Period, each Party acknowledges and agrees as follows:  

(A) the PPA provides for the delivery of the Assigned Quantity on an 
annual basis, but, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Assigned Quantity shall be 
settled on a monthly basis by multiplying the [Hourly Quantity (as defined in the 
PPA)] the number CAISO Energy Delivery Hours (as defined in the PPA) in each 
month (the “Settlement Monthly Quantity”), for purposes of determining amounts 
due under this Agreement, the Prepay Power Supply Contract and the Prepaid 
Agreement for each month of the Assignment Period (as futher described below); 

(B) regardless of the Assigned Quantity actually delivered in any month 
during the Assignment Period, (I) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation shall 
be an amount equal to the result of (x) the Settlement Monthly Quantity, multiplied 
by (y) the Assigned Product Price; and (II) the payment due from PPA Buyer to 
Issuer under the Prepay Power Supply Contract shall be an amount equal to the 
result of (x) the Settlement Monthly Quantity, multiplied by (y) the Contract Price 
(as defined in the Prepay Power Supply Contract); and 

(C) to the extent that (I) an amount less than the Annual Quantity (as 
defined in the PPA) has been delivered as of the end of December for any year 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 5 

during the Assignment Period or (II) an Assignment Early Termination Date occurs 
and the Assigned Quantity actually delivered prior to such date is less than the 
Settlement Monthly Quantity through such date (any such shortfall amount under 
clauses (I) or (II), an “Assigned Shortfall Quantity”), then PPA Buyer will be 
deemed to have remarketed the Assigned Shortfall Quantity in a Private Business 
Sale (as defined in Exhibit C to the Prepaid Agreement), and MSES will record any 
such Assigned Shortfall Quantity as a Ledger Entry on the Private Business Sales 
Ledger (as each such term is defined in Exhibit C to the Prepaid Agreement 
effective as of the first day of the month of December or the month in which an 
Assignment Early Termination Date occurs, as applicable; provided in addition 
that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Prepaid Agreement, MSES 
shall have no remarketing payment obligations with respect to any such Assigned 
Shortfall Quantity.  

ii. PPA Seller shall deliver each monthly invoice and related supporting data 
during the Assignment Period to each of PPA Buyer and MSES, and each such invoice 
shall indicate (A) the total amount due to PPA Seller under the PPA for such Month (the 
“Monthly Gross Amount”); (B) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation; and (C) the 
Retained Payment Obligation, which (I) shall be determined by subtracting the Delivered 
Product Payment Obligation from the Monthly Gross Amount and (II) shall reflect an 
amount due from PPA Buyer to the extent it is a positive number and an amount due to 
PPA Buyer to the extent it is a negative number; provided in addition that any payment 
adjustments or subsequent reconciliations occurring after the date that is 10 days prior to 
the payment due date for a monthly invoice will be resolved solely between PPA Buyer 
and PPA Seller.  The Delivered Product Payment Obligation and Retained Payment 
Obligation shall be administered by a custodian who will pay (1) the Monthly Gross 
Amount to PPA Seller on each payment due date and (2) the absolute value of the Retained 
Payment Obligation to PPA Buyer to the extent such amount is negative for any given 
Month.   

(b) Retained Rights and Obligations.  Any Claims (other than the Delivered Product 
Payment Obligation or a failure to perform the same) arising or existing in connection with or 
related to the PPA, whether related to performance by PPA Seller, PPA Buyer or MSES, and 
whether arising before, during or after the Assignment Period, in each case excluding the Delivered 
Product Payment Obligation, will be included in the Retained Rights and Obligations and any such 
Claims will be resolved exclusively between PPA Seller and PPA Buyer in accordance with the 
PPA. 

(c) Scheduling.  All scheduling of Electricity associated with Assigned Product and 
other communications related to the PPA shall take place between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller 
pursuant to the terms of the PPA; provided that (i) title to Assigned Product will pass to MSES 
upon delivery by PPA Seller at the Assigned Delivery Point in accordance with the PPA; (ii) 
immediately thereafter, title to such Assigned Product will pass to MSES, Issuer and then to PPA 
Buyer upon delivery by MSES at the same point where title is passed to MSES pursuant to clause 
(i) above; (iii) PPA Buyer will be deemed to be acting as MSES’s agent with regard to scheduling 
Assigned Energy; provided, however, that PPA Buyer shall be entitled to retain for its own account 
all CAISO revenues associated with delivery of the Assigned Product to CAISO, including where 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 6 

PPA Buyer is acting as Scheduling Coordinator for the Facility (as defined in the PPA) and through 
scheduling of ISTs; and (iv) (A) PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide copies to MSES of (I) 
any notice of force majeure delivered under the PPA and (II) any notice of a default or of a breach 
or other event that, if not cured within an applicable grace period, could result in a default; (B) 
PPA Seller will provide copies to MSES of annual forecasts and monthly forecasts and generation 
reports delivered under the PPA; and (C) PPA Buyer and PPA Seller, as applicable, will provide 
copies to MSES of any other information reasonably requested by MSES relating to Assigned 
Product. 

(d) Amendments.  PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide written notice (including 
copies thereof) of any amendment, waiver, supplement, modification, or other changes to the PPA 
to MSES relating to the Assigned Rights and Obligations, and the Parties hereby acknowledge and 
agree that an amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or other change will not have any 
effect on MSES’s rights or obligations under this Agreement until and unless MSES receives 
written notice thereof.  

(e) Setoff of Receivables.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES has agreed to 
purchase the rights to payment of the net amounts owed by PPA Buyer under the Prepay Power 
Supply Contract (“Receivables”) in the case of non-payment by PPA Buyer.  To the extent any 
such Receivables relate to Assigned Product purchased by MSES pursuant to the Assigned Rights 
and Obligations, MSES may transfer such Receivables (excluding any penalties, late payment fees, 
late payment interest or other fees, costs or interest included in such Receivables) to PPA Seller 
and apply the face amount of such Receivables (excluding any penalties, late payment fees, late 
payment interest or other fees, costs or interest included in such Receivables) as a reduction to any 
Delivered Product Payment Obligations; provided, however, that at no time shall PPA Seller be 
required to pay MSES for any amounts by which such Receivables exceed any Delivered Product 
Payment Obligations then due and owed to PPA Seller.  

(f) Joinder to Intercreditor Agreement.  In connection with the execution of this 
Agreement and as a condition precedent to the effectiveness hereof, Issuer shall execute a joinder 
to that certain Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of [____], 20[__], by and 
among River City Bank, as Collateral Agent, the PPA Providers from time to time party thereto 
and [Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority] (the “Intercreditor and Collateral Agency 
Agreement”), which will provide Issuer with certain rights as a PPA Provider and Secured 
Creditor under the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, the Security Agreement (as 
defined in the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement), and the Control Agreement (as 
defined in the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement) (collectively, the  “Security 
Documents”) for the portion of the payments under the Prepay Power Supply Contract with 
respect to the Assigned Quantity.  The Prepay Power Supply Contract shall have the same meaning 
as “Power Purchase Agreement” under the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement.  PPA 
Buyer agrees that it shall make payments with respect to the Assigned Quantity to Issuer under the 
Prepay Power Supply Contract on the 20th or preceding business day of the month following 
deliveries consistent with the terms thereof, and such payments will not be made through the 
Lockbox Account (as defined in the Security Agreement) but will be made from PPA Buyer’s 
available funds not pledged as Collateral (as defined in the Security Agreement); provided that, in 
the event PPA Buyer fails to make any such payment when due under Prepay Power Supply 
Contract with respect to the Assigned Quantity, upon written request of Issuer, PPA Buyer shall 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 7 

cause such payment due to Issuer to be included as Regular Charges (as defined in the Security 
Agreement) on the first Distribution Date Certificate (as defined in the Security Agreement) to be 
issued at least ten (10) or more Business Days thereafter.  If PPA Buyer fails to do so, Issuer may 
dispute such Distribution Date Certificate and otherwise pursue its rights to payment thereon 
pursuant to the terms of the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement.  To the extent Issuer 
receives any amounts under the Security Documents or Intercreditor and Collateral Agency 
Agreement in respect of any Receivables purchased by MSES, Issuer shall (i) hold such amounts 
in trust for the benefit of MSES, (ii) promptly notify MSES thereof and (iii) promptly remit such 
amounts directly to an account specified by MSES.  Issuer’s rights as a Secured Creditor and PPA 
Provider under the Security Documents (x) are limited to amounts owed in connection with the 
Assigned Quantity, (y) shall terminate automatically following the end of the Assignment Period, 
subject to payment of any amounts then owing to Issuer pursuant to the Prepay Power Supply 
Contract in connection with the Assigned Quantity, and (z) upon written request from PPA Buyer, 
provided that PPA Buyer has no further obligations to Issuer, under the Prepay Power Supply 
Contract, Issuer shall provide a written termination statement as described under Section 7.12(d) 
of the Security Agreement consenting to termination of Issuer’s rights as a Secured Creditor under 
the Security Documents, including with respect to the Collateral, and Issuer agrees that such 
written termination statement shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. 

4. Forward Contract.   

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” and that 
the Parties shall constitute “forward contract merchants” within the meaning of the United States 
Bankruptcy Code. 

5. Assignment Period; Assignment Early Termination. 

(a) Assignment Period.  The “Assignment Period” shall begin on the Assignment 
Period Start Date and extend until the Assignment Period End Date; provided that in no event shall 
the Assignment Period extend past an Assignment Early Termination Date. 

(b) Early Termination.  An “Assignment Early Termination Date” will occur under 
the following circumstances and as of the dates specified below: 

i. the assignment of the Prepay Power Supply Contract by PPA Buyer or 
Issuer pursuant to Article XIII thereof, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall 
occur immediately as of the time of such assignment; 

ii. the suspension, expiration, or termination of performance of the PPA by 
either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller for any reason other than the occurrence of Force Majeure 
under and as defined in the PPA, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur 
immediately as of the time of PPA Seller’s last performance under the PPA following such 
suspension, expiration, or termination; 

iii. the election of MSES in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early 
Termination Date as a result of (a) any event or circumstance that would give either PPA 
Buyer or PPA Seller the right to terminate or suspend performance under the PPA 
(regardless of whether PPA Buyer or PPA Seller exercises such right) or (b) the execution 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 8 

of an amendment, waiver, supplement, modification or other change to the PPA that 
adversely affects the Assigned Rights and Obligations or MSES’s rights or obligations 
under this Agreement (provided that MSES shall not have a right to terminate under this 
clause (b) to the extent that MSES (i) receives prior notice of such change and (ii) provides 
its written consent thereto), which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon 
the date set forth in a written notice of such election delivered by MSES to PPA Buyer and 
PPA Seller; 

iv. termination or suspension of deliveries for any reason other than force 
majeure under the Prepaid Agreement or Prepay Power Supply Contract, which 
Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of the last 
deliveries under the relevant contract following such suspension or termination; 

v. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an 
Assignment Early Termination Date if MSES fails to pay when due any amounts owed to 
PPA Seller in respect of any Delivered Product Payment Obligation and such failure 
continues for five Business Days following receipt by MSES of written notice thereof, 
which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon the date set forth in a written 
notice of such election delivered by PPA Seller or PPA Buyer, as applicable, to MSES, and 
with a copy to PPA Buyer or PPA Seller, as applicable;  

vi. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an 
Assignment Early Termination Date if either (a) an involuntary case or other proceeding is 
commenced against MSES seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with respect 
to it or its debts under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent 
transfer, reorganization, moratorium or similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking 
the appointment of a custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or 
similar official of it or any substantial part of its property, and such involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall remain undismissed and unstayed, or an order or decree approving 
or ordering any of the foregoing is entered and continued unstayed and in effect, in any 
such event, for a period of 60 days, or (b) MSES commences a voluntary case or proceeding 
under any applicable Federal or State bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, 
reorganization, moratorium or other similar law or any other case or proceeding to be 
adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent, or MSES consents to the entry of a decree or order 
for relief in an involuntary case or proceeding under any applicable Federal or State 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar law or to the commencement of 
any bankruptcy or insolvency case or proceeding against it, files a petition or answer or 
consent seeking reorganization or relief under any applicable Federal or State law, or 
consents to the filing of such petition or to the appointment of or taking possession by a 
custodian, receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, sequestrator or similar official of MSES 
or any substantial part of its property, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, 
or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, which 
Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur upon the earliest date set forth in a written 
notice of such election delivered by PPA Seller or PPA Buyer, as applicable, to MSES, and 
with a copy to PPA Buyer or PPA Seller, as applicable; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 9 

vii. either MSES or PPA Buyer may designate an Assignment Early 
Termination Date with written notice to the other Parties to the extent that MSES and PPA 
Buyer have mutually agreed upon a replacement Assignment Agreement (as defined in the 
Prepay Power Supply Contract) that will replace the Assigned Rights and Obligations 
hereunder immediately following the termination hereof, which Assignment Early 
Termination Date shall occur effective as of the end of the Month preceding the 
commencement of the “Assignment Period” under the replacement Assignment Agreement 
as specified in the notice from MSES or PPA Buyer to the other Parties; and 

 
viii. PPA Buyer may deliver written notice of termination to the other Parties if 

any change, event or effect occurs, including but not limited a change in applicable laws 
or regulations, any issues with the PPA Seller or the PPA, a dispute under the PPA or other 
similar circumstance, that individually or collectively have or are reasonably expected by 
PPA Buyer to have a material adverse effect upon (A) the PPA Buyer, (B) its rights and 
obligations under this Agreement, the Prepay Power Supply Contract, or the PPA, or (C) 
the benefit the PPA Buyer is receiving by assigning the Assigned Rights and Obligations, 
with such Assignment Early Termination Date to be the date set forth in a written notice 
delivered by PPA Buyer to the other Parties; provided that (x) PPA Buyer will provide 
notice to the other Parties as soon as is reasonably possible that PPA Buyer anticipates 
exercising this termination right, and (y) PPA Buyer shall exercise commercially 
reasonable efforts to propose and agree with MSES upon a replacement Assignment 
Agreement prior to exercising this termination right. 

(c) Reversion of Assigned Rights and Obligations.  The parties acknowledge and 
agree that upon the occurrence of an Assignment Early Termination Date the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations will revert from MSES to PPA Buyer.  Any Assigned Rights and Obligations that 
would become due for payment or performance on or after such Assignment Early Termination 
Date shall immediately and automatically revert from MSES to PPA Buyer, provided that (i) 
MSES shall remain responsible for the Delivered Product Payment Obligation with respect to any 
Assigned Product delivered to MSES prior to the Assignment Early Termination Date, and (ii) any 
legal restrictions on the effectiveness of such reversion (whether arising under bankruptcy law or 
otherwise) shall not affect the occurrence of the Assignment Early Termination Date. 

6. Representations and Warranties. 

(a) Copy of PPA.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that a 
true, complete, and correct copy of the PPA is attached hereto as Appendix 3. 

(b) No Default.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that no 
event or circumstance exists (or would exist with the passage of time or the giving of notice) that 
would give either of them the right to terminate the PPA or suspend performance thereunder. 

(c) Other.  Each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller represents and warrants to each other 
and to MSES that: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 10 

i. it has made no prior transfer (whether by way of security or otherwise) of 
any interest in the Assigned Rights and Obligations; and 

ii. all obligations of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller under the PPA required to be 
performed on or before the Assignment Period Start Date have been fulfilled. 

(d) Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties: 

i. Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good 
standing. 

ii. Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other 
documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement 
and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this 
Agreement to deliver and to perform its obligations under this Agreement and has taken all 
necessary action to authorize such execution, delivery and performance. 

iii. No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including 
the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in any 
violation of, or conflict with: (i) any term of any material contract or agreement applicable 
to it; (ii) any of its charter, bylaws, or other constitutional documents; (iii) any 
determination or award of any arbitrator applicable to it; or (iv) any license, permit, 
franchise, judgment, writ, injunction or regulation, decree, order, charter, law, ordinance, 
rule or regulation of any Government Agency, applicable to it or any of its assets or 
properties or to any obligations incurred by it or by which it or any of its assets or properties 
or obligations are bound or affected, and shall not cause a breach of, or default under, any 
such term or result in the creation of any lien upon any of its properties or assets. 

iv. Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, 
registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or 
permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government 
Agency that are required to have been obtained by such Party with respect to this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the due authorization of 
such Party and its governing body and any approval or consent of any security holder of 
such Party or any holder (or any trustee for any holder) of any indebtedness or other 
obligation of such Party, have been obtained and are in full force and effect and all 
conditions of any such consents have been complied with. 

v. Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its 
legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms 
(subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting creditors’ rights generally and subject, as to enforceability, to equitable principles 
of general application (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in 
equity or at law)). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 11 

vi. Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own 
independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is 
appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such 
advisers as it has deemed necessary. It is not relying on any communication (written or 
oral) of the other Parties as investment advice or as a recommendation to enter into this 
Agreement; it being understood that information and explanations related to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement shall not be considered investment advice or a 
recommendation to enter into this Agreement. It is entering into this Agreement as a bona-
fide, arm’s-length transaction involving the mutual exchange of consideration and, once 
executed by all Parties, considers this Agreement a legally enforceable contract. No 
communication (written or oral) received from any of the other Parties shall be deemed to 
be an assurance or guarantee as to the expected results of this Agreement. 

vii. Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of 
and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and 
understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also 
capable of assuming, and assumes, the risks of this Agreement. 

viii. Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or 
an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement. 

7. Counterparts. 

This Agreement (and each amendment, modification and waiver in respect of it) may be executed 
and delivered in counterparts (including by facsimile or electronic transmission), each of which 
will be deemed an original. 
 
8. Costs and Expenses. 

The Parties will each pay their own costs and expenses (including legal fees) incurred in 
connection with this Agreement and as a result of the negotiation, preparation, and execution of 
this Agreement. 
 
9. Amendments. 

No amendment, modification, or waiver in respect of this Agreement will be effective unless in 
writing (including a writing evidenced by an electronic transmission) and executed by each of the 
Parties or confirmed by emails or electronic messages on an electronic messaging system. 
 
10. Notices. 

Any notice, demand, statement or request required or authorized by this Agreement to be given by 
one Party to another shall be in writing, except as otherwise expressly provided herein.  It shall be 
sent by email transmission, courier, or personal delivery (including overnight delivery service) to 
each of the notice recipients and addresses for each of the other Parties designated in Appendix 2 
hereto.  Any such notice, demand, or request shall be deemed to be given (i) when sent by email 
transmission, or (ii) when actually received if delivered by courier or personal delivery (including 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 12 

overnight delivery service).  Each Party shall have the right, upon 10 days’ prior written notice to 
the other Parties, to change its address at any time, and to designate that copies of all such notices 
be directed to another person at another address.  The Parties may mutually agree in writing at any 
time to deliver notices, demands or requests through alternate or additional methods.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Party may at any time notify the other Parties that any notice, 
demand, statement or request to it must be provided by email transmission for a specified period 
of time or until further notice, and any communications delivered by means other than email 
transmission during such time shall be ineffective.   
 
11. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under 
this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with 
the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws provisions that would 
direct the application of another jurisdiction’s laws; provided, however, that the authority of PPA 
Buyer to enter into and perform its obligations under this agreement shall be determined in 
accordance with the laws of the state of California. 

(b) U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties hereby confirm that they are adherents to the 
ISDA 2018 U.S. Resolution Stay Protocol (“ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol”), the terms of the ISDA 
U.S. Stay Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement, and this Agreement 
shall be deemed a Protocol Covered Agreement for purposes thereof.  For purposes of 
incorporating the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol, MSES and PPA Seller shall each be deemed to be a 
Regulated Entity, and PPA Buyer shall be deemed to be an Adhering Party.  In the event of any 
inconsistences between this Agreement and the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol, the ISDA U.S. Stay 
Protocol will prevail.   

(c) Reserved.   

(d) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including 
the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined by final, non-
appealable binding arbitration in San Francisco, California before three (3) arbitrators.  The 
arbitration shall be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (“JAMS”) 
pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Within fifteen (15) days after 
the commencement of arbitration, each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall select one person to 
act as arbitrator, and the two so-selected arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator (the 
“chairperson”) within thirty (30) days of the commencement of the arbitration.  If either PPA 
Seller or PPA Buyer is unable or fails to select one person to act as arbitrator, such arbitrator shall 
be appointed by JAMS.  If the PPA Seller and PPA Buyer-selected arbitrators are unable or fail to 
agree upon a chairperson, the chairperson shall be appointed by JAMS.  The chairperson shall be 
a person who has experience in renewable energy-related transactions, and none of the arbitrators 
shall have been previously employed by any Party or have any direct pecuniary interest in any 
Party or the subject matter of the arbitration, unless such conflict is expressly acknowledged and 
waived in writing by all of the Parties.  The Parties shall maintain the confidential nature of the 
arbitration proceeding and any award, including any hearing(s), except as may be necessary to 
prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the merits, or except as necessary in connection 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 13 

with a court application for a preliminary remedy, a judicial challenge to an award or its 
enforcement, or unless otherwise required by law or judicial decision.  Any arbitration 
proceedings, decision or award rendered hereunder and the validity, effect and interpretation of 
this arbitration provision shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act.  The arbitrator(s) shall 
have no authority to award consequential, treble, exemplary, or punitive damages of any type or 
kind regardless of whether such damages may be available under any law or right, with the Parties 
hereby affirmatively waiving their rights, if any, to recover or claim such damages.  In any 
arbitration arising out of or related to this Agreement, the arbitrators shall award to the prevailing 
Party or Parties, if any, the costs and attorney’s fees reasonably incurred in seeking to enforce the 
application of this Section 11(d) and by the prevailing party in connection with the arbitration.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 11(d), any costs incurred by a Party in 
seeking judicial enforcement of any written decision of the arbitrators shall be chargeable to and 
borne exclusively by the Party against whom such court order is obtained.  The award shall be 
final and binding on the Parties and judgment upon any award may be entered in any court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(e) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 11(d), if Section 
11(d) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising 
out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (including 
the existence, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the applicability of any statute of 
limitation period) (each, a “Dispute”) shall be resolved by a reference proceeding in California in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 638 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure 
(“CCP”), or their successor sections (a “Reference Proceeding”), which shall constitute the 
exclusive remedy for the resolution of any Dispute.  As a condition precedent to initiating a 
Reference Proceeding with respect to any Dispute, the Parties shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 11(e)(i). 

i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the 
“Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a 
written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue, and 
support for such position (the “Notice of Dispute”).  Within 10 days after receiving the 
Notice of Dispute, the Responding Parties shall provide the Disputing Party with a written 
Notice of each additional issue (if any) with respect to the dispute raised by the Notice of 
Dispute, a proposed means for resolving every issue in dispute, and support for such 
position (the “Dispute Response”).  Thereafter, the Parties shall meet to discuss the matter 
and attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution of the dispute.  If the Parties do 
not resolve the dispute by unanimous agreement within sixty 60 days after receipt of the 
Dispute Response, (the “Negotiation Period”), then any Party may provide to the other 
Parties written notice of intent for judicial reference (the “Impasse Notice”) in accordance 
with the further provisions of this Section 11. 

ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees. 

(A) Within 10 days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of PPA 
Seller and PPA Buyer shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the 
“Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, 
together with the Party-Appointed Referees, the “Referees”).  The Party-Appointed 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 14 

Referees shall be competent and experienced in matters involving the electric 
energy business in the United States, with at least ten (10) years of electric industry 
experience as a practicing attorney. The Third Referee shall be an active or retired 
California state or federal judge. Each of the Party-Appointed Referees and the 
Third Referee shall be impartial and independent of each of the Parties and of the 
other referees and not employed by any of the Parties in any prior matter. 

(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third 
Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee 
shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior 
Court of California, County of San Francisco (the “Court”), and with due regard 
given to the selection criteria above.  A request for appointment of a referee may 
be heard on an ex parte or expedited basis, and the Parties agree that irreparable 
harm would result if ex parte relief is not granted. Pursuant to CCP Section 170.6, 
each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller shall have one (1) peremptory challenge to the 
referee selected by the Court.  

iii. Discovery; Proceedings.   

(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the 
Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to 
change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the 
matter for a status and trial-setting conference within 20 days after the date of 
selection of the Third Referee, (ii) if practicable, try all issues of law or fact within 
180 days after the date of the conference, and (iii) report a statement of decision 
within 20 days after the matter has been submitted for decision.  

(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as 
agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee 
after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-
hearing procedures.   

(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall 
determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including 
the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other 
questions that arise with respect to the course of the Reference Proceeding. The 
Reference Proceeding, including the trial, shall be conducted at a neutral location 
selected by the Parties, or if not agreed by the Parties, by the Third Referee, in San 
Francisco, California.  

(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except 
for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so 
requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, 
and the referees will be provided a courtesy copy of the transcript.  The Party 
making such a request shall have the obligation to arrange for and pay the court 
reporter. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 15 

iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting 
forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment 
in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  The decision 
shall be appealable to the same extent and in the same manner that such decision would be 
appealable if rendered by a judge of the Court.  The Parties intend this general reference 
agreement to be specifically enforceable in accordance with the CCP. 

v. Expenses.  Each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall bear the compensation 
and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, 
consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally 
between PPA Seller and PPA Buyer. 

(f) Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all  
obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations to make 
payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of Issuer, payable solely from 
the Trust Estate (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) as and to the extent provided in 
the Bond Indenture, including with respect to Operating Expenses (as such term is defined in the 
Bond Indenture).  Issuer shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source 
other than the Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) and other assets pledged 
under the Bond Indenture for any of the purposes in this Agreement mentioned.  Neither the faith 
and credit of Issuer nor the taxing power of the State of California or any political subdivision 
thereof is pledged to payments pursuant to this Agreement.  Issuer shall not be directly, indirectly, 
contingently or otherwise liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions, of any 
conceivable kind on any conceivable theory, under or by reasons of or in connection with this 
Agreement, except solely to the extent Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) 
are received for the payment thereof and may be applied therefor pursuant to the terms of the Bond 
Indenture

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 

Signature Page to Limited Assignment Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first 
set forth above. 
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY CAPITAL GROUP INC. 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 

 
 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

By:  ____________________________ 
        Name:_______________________ 
        Title:________________________ 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 

Appendix 1 - 1 

Appendix 1 
Assigned Rights and Obligations 

 
PPA:  Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 12, 2018 and the Specified 
Source Product Confirmation thereunder dated as of the date hereof, by and between PPA Buyer 
and PPA Seller 
 
Assigned Delivery Point: [NP15 EZ GEN HUB)] 
 
Assigned Product Price: [CAISO NP15 Day Ahead Index for Hour Ending 01 through Hour 
Ending 24] 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 

Appendix 2 - 1 

Appendix 2 
Notice Information 

 
IF TO PPA 
SELLER: 

As set forth in the PPA 

 
IF TO MSES: Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 
 1585 Broadway 
 New York, NY 10036-8293 

Email: [CCCFA_2022a_mses_notices@morganstanley.com] 
 
IF TO ISSUER: California Community Choice Financing Authority 

1125 Tamalpais Avenue 
San Rafael, CA 94901 
Email: [SeriesAInvoices@cccfa.org] 

 
IF TO PPA BUYER: As set forth in the PPA 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



 

Appendix 3 - 1 

Appendix 3 
Copy of Power Sales Contract 

[To be attached.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15E



1 

Chapman Draft 05.09.22 

PREPAID ENERGY PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT 

This Prepaid Energy Project Administration Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered 
into as of [________], 2022, by and between California Community Choice Financing Authority 
(“CCCFA”) and East Bay Community Energy Authority (“EBCE”), with respect to the Prepaid Energy 
Project (defined below).  CCCFA and EBCE may be referred to individually herein as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”.  Capitalized terms used herein (including in the following Recitals) have the 
meanings given to such terms in Section 1.  

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, EBCE is a “community choice aggregator” under the Public Utilities Code; and 

WHEREAS, EBCE and certain other community choice aggregators have created CCCFA as a 
joint exercise of powers authority under and pursuant to the Act and the Joint Powers Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, CCCFA’s purpose is to assist its Members (as defined in the Joint Powers 
Agreement), including EBCE, by undertaking the financing or refinancing of energy prepayments that can 
be financed with tax advantaged bonds and other obligations on behalf of one or more of the Members by, 
among other things, issuing or incurring Bonds (as such term is defined in the Joint Powers Agreement) 
and entering into related contracts with Members; and 

WHEREAS, CCCFA and EBCE are entering into a Power Supply Contract pursuant to which 
CCCFA has agreed to supply Energy to EBCE under the terms set forth therein; and 

WHEREAS, in order to provide such Energy to EBCE under the Power Supply Contract, CCCFA 
is entering into the Prepaid Agreement with MSES, under which it will make a prepayment to MSES for 
the purchase and delivery of such Energy; and 

WHEREAS, CCCFA will finance the prepayment under the Prepaid Agreement and related costs 
by issuing the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants set forth in this 
Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth 
below: 

“Act” means Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code, being 
Section 6500 and following, as amended. 

“Alternate Energy Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in Section 5.1(a) of the Power 
Supply Contract. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15F



2 

“Annual Refund” means the annual refund, if any, to be provided to EBCE pursuant to 
Section 3.2(c) of the Power Supply Contract. 

“Assigned Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in the Assignment Agreement. 

“Assigned Energy” has the meaning specified in the Assignment Agreement. 

“Assigned Product” means Assigned Energy and associated renewable energy credits, 
green energy attributes and any other product included in the Assignment Agreement. 

“Assignment Agreement” means the Initial Assignment Agreement and any subsequent 
assignment agreement entered into consistent with the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

“Assignment Letter Agreement” has the meaning specified in the Power Supply Contract. 

“Base Energy” means Energy to be delivered to an Energy Delivery Point. 

“Bonds” means the bonds issued by CCCFA pursuant to the Indenture on or about the date 
of this Agreement in order to finance the prepayment required to be made to MSES under the 
Prepaid Agreement and related costs of the Prepaid Energy Project, and any bonds issued to refund 
such bonds. 

“CCCFA” means California Community Choice Financing Authority, a joint exercise of 
powers authority created under and pursuant to the Act and the Joint Powers Agreement. 

“CCCFA Commodity Swap” means the ISDA Master Agreement, Schedule and 
transaction Confirmation entered into by CCCFA and the swap counterparty named therein, and 
any replacement swap entered into pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement. 

“Contract Quantity” means the quantity of Base Energy or Assigned Energy, as applicable, 
specified in Exhibits A-1 and A-2 of the Power Supply Contract, as such Exhibits A-1 and A-2 
may be updated from time to time in accordance with the terms of the Power Supply Contract. 

“EBCE” means East Bay Community Energy Authority, a community choice aggregator 
as defined in Section 331.1 of the Public Utilities Code. 

“Energy” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, expressed in 
megawatt-hours. 

“Energy Delivery Point” means the delivery point for delivery of EBCE’s Contract 
Quantity as specified in the Power Supply Contract, and shall include, if applicable, any Assigned 
Delivery Point and any Alternate Delivery Point for EBCE. 

“Indenture” means the Trust Indenture, dated as of [_______] 1, 2022, between CCCFA 
and the Trustee, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time. 

“Initial Assignment Agreement” with respect to EBCE, the initial assignment agreement 
or agreements specified in the Power Supply Contract. 

“Joint Powers Agreement” means the Joint Powers Agreement by and among the Members 
of CCCFA named therein, including EBCE, providing for the creation, purposes and powers of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15F



3 

CCCFA, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its 
terms. 

“MSES” means Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring L.L.C., its successors and permitted 
assigns. 

“Power Supply Contract” means the Power Supply Contract, dated [________], 2022, 
between CCCFA and EBCE relating to the purchase by EBCE of Energy acquired by CCCFA 
pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified 
from time to time. 

“Prepaid Agreement” means the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, dated [_______], 2022, 
between CCCFA, as buyer, and MSES, as seller, as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise 
modified from time to time. 

“Prepaid Energy Project” means the issuance of the Bonds by CCCFA pursuant to the 
Indenture, the acquisition of Energy and related undertakings of CCCFA under the Prepaid 
Agreement and the Indenture, and the sale to EBCE of such Energy and related undertakings of 
CCCFA under the Power Supply Contract. 

“Public Utilities Code” means the Public Utilities Code of the State of California, as 
amended. 

“Qualifying Use Requirements” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1 of the Power 
Supply Contract. 

“Re-Pricing Agreement” means the Re-Pricing Agreement, dated as of the date of issuance 
of the Bonds, by and between CCCFA and MSES. 

“Schedule”, “Scheduled” or “Scheduling” means the actions of a Party and/or its 
designated representatives, including each Party’s Transmission Providers, if applicable, of 
notifying, requesting and confirming to each other the quantity of Energy to be delivered during 
any given portion of the Delivery Period at a specified Delivery Point. 

“Tax Certificate and Agreement” means the Tax Certificate and Agreement executed and 
delivered by CCCFA in connection with the issuance of the Bonds relating to certain federal 
income tax compliance requirements relating to the Prepaid Energy Project. 

“Transmission Provider(s)” means any entity or entities transmitting or transporting 
Energy on behalf of a Party to or from an Energy Delivery Point. 

“Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., and its successors 
as Trustee under the Indenture. 

Section 2. Assignment Agreements.  With respect to any Assignment Agreement, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree as follows: 

(a) as of the date of this Agreement, EBCE has entered into the Initial Assignment 
Agreement specified in the Power Supply Contract with respect to its entire Contract Quantity; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15F



4 

(b) subject to the terms of the applicable Assignment Letter Agreement, EBCE may 
from time to time enter into additional Assignment Agreements with respect to all or a portion of 
its Contract Quantity; and 

(c) EBCE shall determine, independent of CCCFA, when and if any Assignment 
Agreement is entered into or terminated and the underlying agreement and portion of its Contract 
Quantity to which such Assignment Agreement relates. 

Section 3. Scheduling and Delivery of Assigned Energy.  Assigned Energy and any other 
Assigned Product delivered to CCCFA under the Prepaid Agreement that is attributable to an Assignment 
Agreement(s) entered into by EBCE shall be attributable to EBCE under the Power Supply Contract, and 
CCCFA shall have no responsibility for (a) any Scheduling or other operational requirements necessary 
for the delivery of Assigned Energy to EBCE’s Assigned Delivery Point and the transfer of other Assigned 
Product to EBCE, or (b) any accounting for under-deliveries or over-deliveries or other record-keeping 
requirements with respect to any Assigned Energy and other Assigned Product, all of which shall be the 
sole responsibility of EBCE pursuant to the related Assignment Agreement(s). 

Section 4. Qualified Use; Remarketing of Base Energy.  As provided in the Power Supply 
Contract, any portion of EBCE’s Contract Quantity that is not delivered as Assigned Energy is required 
to be delivered as Base Energy and simultaneously remarketed by MSES pursuant to the Prepaid 
Agreement.  EBCE shall be responsible for accounting for any portion of EBCE’s Contract Quantity 
deemed delivered as Base Energy and subsequently remarketed, including accounting for any remediation 
of any such remarketing sales as may be required pursuant to the Qualifying Use Requirements.  EBCE 
agrees to provide to CCCFA any information reasonably requested by it in order to comply with any 
reporting or record-keeping requirements related to such deemed deliveries and remarketing of Base 
Energy, including such information relating to compliance with the Qualifying Use Requirements, as may 
be required pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, the Indenture or the Tax Certificate and Agreement. 

Section 5. CCCFA Commodity Swap.  CCCFA shall not take any action to terminate or 
designate the early termination of the CCCFA Commodity Swap except in accordance with written 
instructions of EBCE or unless otherwise required under the terms of the Prepaid Agreement. 

Section 6. Directions, Consents and Waivers.  CCCFA may be requested or required from 
time to time to provide certain directions, consents, or waivers under the terms of the Prepaid Agreement, 
the Indenture and the Re-pricing Agreement.  In the event any such direction, consent or waiver relates 
solely to the Contract Quantity and/or Power Supply Contract of EBCE and no event of default has 
occurred and is continuing with respect to EBCE under the Power Supply Contract, such direction, consent 
or waiver shall only be provided by CCCFA in accordance with written instructions provided by EBCE.  
Otherwise, any such direction, consent or waiver shall only be provided by CCCFA in accordance with 
written instructions of EBCE. 

Section 7. Re-pricing Information.  CCCFA shall provide, or cause MSES to provide, to 
EBCE such information as is required to be provided by MSES to CCCFA in accordance the Re-pricing 
Agreement at such times as are required under the Re-pricing Agreement. 

Section 9. Project Administration Fee; Reimbursement and Refund of Operating Expenses. 

(a) Under Section 3.2(b) of the Power Supply Contract, EBCE is required to include in its 
payment to CCCFA in January of each year, commencing [January 2023], an annual Project 
Administration Fee in the amount specified therein, determined by CCCFA based on the budgeted 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15F



5 

Operating Expenses of CCCFA for the next succeeding annual period.  CCCFA agrees to allocate amounts 
received in respect of the Project Administration Fee to pay Operating Expenses (as defined in the 
Indenture) as the same become due and payable during such annual period.  In the event amounts paid in 
respect of the Project Administration Fee are not sufficient to pay such Operating Expenses when due, 
EBCE agrees to pay such additional amounts as are necessary to pay such Operating Expenses upon 
receipt of notice of the amount due from the Trustee or CCCFA. 

(b) As soon as practicable following the end of each annual period referred to in paragraph (a), 
CCCFA agrees to reconcile the amounts received in respect of the Project Administrative Fee for such 
annual period with the Operating Expenses paid or accrued for such period.  In the event that, following 
each such reconciliation, it is determined that the amounts received in respect of the Project Administration 
Fee during the applicable annual period exceed Operating Expenses paid or accrued for such period, 
CCCFA will provide written notice thereof to EBCE and include the amount of such excess in its Annual 
Refund to EBCE under the Power Supply Contract. 

Section 10. Notices.  Notices and other information to be provided by a Party to any other Party 
under this Agreement shall be provided in accordance with Article XVI of the Power Supply Contract. 

Section 11. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the obligations of the Parties hereunder shall 
be governed by and determined in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

Section 12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed and acknowledged in multiple 
counterparts and by the Parties in separate counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which 
shall be and constitute one and the same instrument. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15F



6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed and 
delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized as of the date first above written.  

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 

By:  ________________________________  
Name: ______________________________  
Title: _______________________________  

EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY AUTHORITY 

By:  ________________________________  
Name: ______________________________  
Title: _______________________________  

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15F



HB Draft 5 May 2022 

CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT 

This Custodial Agreement (the “Custodial Agreement”), dated as of [____], 2022 (the 
“Effective Date”), is entered into by and among Natixis, a bank organized under the laws of the 
Republic of France (the “Swap Counterparty”), California Community Choice Financing 
Authority, a joint powers authority and a public entity of the State of California established 
pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, 
Title 1, Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code, as amended) (the “Issuer”), The 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., a national banking association, in its capacity 
as trustee under the Bond Indenture (defined below) (in such capacity, the “Trustee”), and The 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., a national banking association, in its capacity 
as custodian hereunder (in such capacity, the “Custodian”). 

WHEREAS, Issuer is issuing its Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, [Series 2022A] 
(the “Bonds”) pursuant to the Trust Indenture, dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Indenture”) between 
the Issuer and the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability 
company (“MSES”), as seller, and the Issuer, as purchaser, have entered into a Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement, dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Prepaid Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the execution of the Prepaid Agreement, the Issuer and 
Swap Counterparty are entering into an ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of [____], 2022, 
together with the Schedule, dated as of [____], 2022, and a Confirmation, dated as of [____], 2022, 
evidencing a commodity price hedging transaction thereunder (such ISDA Master Agreement, 
Schedule and Confirmation, the “Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of the Front-End Commodity Swap 
Agreement, the Swap Counterparty and MSES are entering into a corresponding commodity price 
hedging transaction pursuant to an ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of [____], 2022, together 
with the Schedule and Credit Support Annex thereto, dated as of [____], 2022, and a Confirmation, 
dated as of [____], 2022 (such ISDA Master Agreement, Schedule, Credit Support Annex and 
Confirmation, the “Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer, the Swap Counterparty and the Custodian propose to enter into this 
Custodial Agreement in order to administer any payments from Issuer to the Swap Counterparty 
under the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

1. Defined Terms.  Any capitalized term used herein and not otherwise defined herein 
(including in the recitals) shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Indenture. 

2. Appointment of Custodian.  The Issuer and the Swap Counterparty hereby 
appoint The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as Custodian under this Custodial 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 2 - 

Agreement, with such rights and obligations as are specifically set forth herein.  The Custodian 
hereby accepts such appointment under the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

3. Payments Account.   

(a) With respect to any net payments required to be made by Issuer to the Swap 
Counterparty under the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement, there is hereby established with 
the Custodian, a payments account designated as the “[____]”, bearing the Custodian’s Account 
No. [____] (the “Issuer Payments Account”) using the wiring instructions below; and any and all 
net payments payable by Issuer to the Swap Counterparty pursuant to Section 2(a)(i) of the Front-
End Commodity Swap Agreement shall be paid by wire transfer to and deposited in the Issuer 
Payments Account.  The Swap Counterparty agrees that any payments made by Issuer into the 
Issuer Payments Account shall be deemed to have been made directly by Issuer to the Swap 
Counterparty.  

The Bank of New York Mellon 
New York, NY 
ABA: 021000018 
Account No.: [____] 
FBO: [____] 
Attn: Richard Dillard, 904-645-1923 
 

For the avoidance of doubt, payments required to be made by the Swap Counterparty to 
the Issuer pursuant to the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement, payments required to be made 
by the Swap Counterparty to MSES pursuant to the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement and 
payments required to be made by MSES to the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the Back-End 
Commodity Swap Agreement are not subject to this Custodial Agreement. 

(b) Amounts deposited in the Issuer Payments Account shall be held in trust for 
the benefit of Issuer until applied as set forth in paragraph 3(c) below, and there is hereby granted 
to Issuer a lien on and security interest in the Issuer Payments Account pending such application.  
The Custodian shall not be required to comply with any orders, demands or other instructions from 
the Swap Counterparty with respect to the Issuer Payments Account including, without limitation, 
items presented for payment, or any order or instruction directing the disposition of funds or other 
assets held in or credited to the Issuer Payments Account, except to the extent that amounts on 
deposit in the Issuer Payments Account are payable to the Swap Counterparty in accordance with 
the terms hereof and of the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement, and the Swap Counterparty 
agrees that prior to the termination of this Custodial Agreement in accordance with the terms 
hereof, it shall have no right to direct the disposition of funds or other assets held in or credited to 
the Issuer Payments Account, or to withdraw or otherwise obtain funds or other assets held in or 
credited to the Issuer Payments Account, whether by order or instruction to the Custodian or 
otherwise, except to the extent that amounts on deposit in the Issuer Payments Account are payable 
to the Swap Counterparty in accordance with the terms hereof and of the Front-End Commodity 
Swap Agreement. 

(c) In accordance with this subparagraph (c), the Custodian shall withdraw 
amounts on deposit in the Issuer Payments Account for the purpose of paying any net amount 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 3 - 

payable to Swap Counterparty under Section 2(a)(i) of the Front-End Commodity Swap 
Agreement on each date on which such amount is due under the Front-End Commodity Swap 
Agreement, provided that if, prior to any such date, MSES has provided written notice to the 
Custodian, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, by Electronic Means (defined 
below) to hold such payment (a “Hold Notice”), the Custodian shall withdraw such amounts only 
upon confirmation by MSES to the Custodian, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
B, by Electronic Means (defined below) that the amount payable by the Swap Counterparty to 
MSES under the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement on such date has been paid by the Swap 
Counterparty in accordance with the terms of the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement.  Subject 
to paragraph 3(d) below in the case of any withdrawal by the Custodian from the Issuer Payments 
Account and payment to MSES in accordance with paragraph 3(d), upon confirmation by the 
Custodian that MSES has received such payment due from the Swap Counterparty under the Back-
End Commodity Swap Agreement, the Custodian (either automatically or, if a Hold Notice has 
been delivered, upon Custodian’s receipt of confirmation by MSES in accordance with the 
preceding sentence) shall withdraw from the Issuer Payments Account the amount due to the Swap 
Counterparty under the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement on such date (or such later date 
upon which payment from Issuer is received under the terms of the Front-End Commodity Swap 
Agreement and this Custodial Agreement) and pay such amount to the Swap Counterparty by 
wiring funds to the following account: 

For the Account of: Natixis (Natixis Capital Market) 
Bank: Deutsche Bank Trust  
Company Americas, New York (BKTRUS33) 
Fedwire: 021001033 
Ultimate Beneficiary: NATXFRPPMAR 
Account Number: 04437031 

 
(d) Notwithstanding Section 2(a)(iii) of the Back-End Commodity Swap 

Agreement or the exercise by or on behalf of MSES of any right of early termination of the Back-
End Commodity Swap Agreement, in the event that any amount due to MSES under Section 2(a)(i) 
of the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement (including any Unpaid Amounts (as defined in Part 
5(b) of the Schedule to the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement) payable by the Swap 
Counterparty under the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement) is not paid when due and remains 
unpaid as of the close of business on the last day of any grace period for such payment under the 
terms of the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement and the Prepaid Agreement, the Custodian 
shall withdraw from the Issuer Payments Account an amount equal to the amount so due and 
unpaid under the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement and pay such amount to MSES. 
 

(e) If at any time the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement terminates or 
otherwise ceases to be in effect for any reason, then during the period commencing on the date 
when the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement terminates or ceases to be in effect until the 
earlier of (i) the date on which both the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement and the Front-
End Commodity Swap Agreement have been replaced in accordance with Section 17.5 of the 
Prepaid Agreement and (ii) the date of termination of the Prepaid Agreement (the “Issuer Payments 
Period”), Issuer shall deposit into the Issuer Payments any and all net payments that would have 
been payable by the Issuer to Swap Counterparty during the Issuer Payments Period pursuant to 
Section 2(a)(i) of the Front-End Commodity Swap if the Front-End Commodity Swap had not 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 4 - 

terminated.  Deposits made by Issuer to the Issuer Payments Account in accordance with this 
Section 3(e) shall be withdrawn by the Custodian and paid to MSES. 

 
4. Custodian.  The Custodian shall have (a) no liability under any agreement other 

than this Custodial Agreement and (b) no duty to inquire as to the provisions of any agreement 
other than this Custodial Agreement, the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement and the Front-
End Commodity Swap Agreement.  The Custodian may rely upon and shall not be liable for acting 
or refraining from acting upon any written notice, document, instruction or request furnished to it 
hereunder and reasonably believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the 
proper party or parties.  The Custodian shall be under no duty to inquire into or investigate the 
validity, accuracy or content of any such document, notice, instruction or request.  The Custodian 
shall have no duty to solicit or compel any payments which may be due to it.  The Custodian shall 
not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good faith except to the extent that a court of 
competent jurisdiction determines that the Custodian’s gross negligence or willful misconduct was 
the cause of any loss.  In connection with the execution of any of its powers or the performance of 
any of its duties hereunder, the Custodian may consult with counsel, accountants and other skilled 
persons selected and retained by it.  The Custodian shall not be liable for anything done, suffered 
or omitted in good faith by it in accordance with the advice or opinion of any such counsel, 
accountants or other skilled persons, provided the Custodian exercised due care and good faith in 
the selection of such person.  In the event that the Custodian shall be uncertain as to its duties or 
rights hereunder or shall receive instructions, claims or demands from any party hereto which, in 
its opinion, conflict with any of the provisions of this Custodial Agreement, it shall be entitled to 
refrain from taking any action and its sole obligation shall be to keep safely all property held in 
escrow until it shall be directed otherwise in writing by all of the other parties hereto or by a final 
order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction.  The Custodian may interplead all of the 
assets held hereunder into a court of competent jurisdiction or may seek a declaratory judgment 
with respect to certain circumstances, and thereafter be fully relieved from any and all liability or 
obligation with respect to such interpleaded assets or any action or non-action based on such 
declaratory judgment.  Anything in this Custodial Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, in 
no event shall the Custodian be liable for special, indirect, incidental, consequential or punitive 
damages, losses or penalties of any kind whatsoever (including but not limited to lost profits), 
regardless of the form of action.  The Custodian may engage and act through agents and attorneys 
and shall not be liable for the misconduct or negligence of any such agent or attorney appointed 
with due care. Nothing herein shall obligate or be construed to obligate the Custodian to advance 
its own funds, or to expend or risk its own funds.  The Custodian shall not be liable for any action 
taken by it in good faith in accordance with instruction received in accordance with this Custodial 
Agreement, or for the application of funds by or other actions or omissions of other persons. Any 
permissive right or power granted to the Custodian hereunder shall not be construed as a duty to 
act. The Custodian shall not be obliged to invest or pay interest on funds held hereunder, unless 
and except to the extent otherwise expressly agreed in writing. The Custodian shall not be 
responsible for the perfection of any security interest granted hereunder. 

5. Succession.  The Custodian may resign and be discharged from its duties or 
obligations hereunder by giving not less than 30 days’ advance notice in writing of such resignation 
to the other parties hereto specifying a date when such resignation shall take effect; provided, 
however, that in the event of such resignation, The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 5 - 

N.A. (“BNYM”) shall at the same time resign from its duties and obligations as custodian under 
that certain Custodial Agreement dated as of the date hereof by and among MSES, the Swap 
Counterparty, the Trustee and BNYM as custodian thereunder (in such capacity, the “Back-End 
Custodian”) pertaining to the administration of payments under the Back-End Commodity Swap 
Agreement (the “Back-End Swap Custodial Agreement”).  Such resignation under this Custodial 
Agreement shall take effect upon the day specified in such notice unless a successor shall not have 
been appointed by Issuer and the Swap Counterparty (with the consent of MSES, as provided 
below) on such date, in which event such resignation shall not take effect until a successor is 
appointed.  Issuer and the Swap Counterparty shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to 
make such appointment in a timely fashion, provided that any custodian appointed in succession 
to the Custodian shall be a bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state or a national 
banking association and shall have capital stock, surplus and undivided earnings aggregating at 
least $50,000,000 and shall be a bank with trust powers or a trust company willing and able to 
accept the office on reasonable and customary terms and authorized by law to perform all the 
duties imposed upon it by this Custodial Agreement; provided, further, however, that such 
appointment of a successor to the Custodian hereunder shall be subject to the consent of MSES, 
and such appointed successor hereunder shall be the same custodian appointed as successor to the 
Back-End Custodian under the Back-End Swap Custodial Agreement.  If Issuer and the Swap 
Counterparty fail or are unable to appoint a successor within sixty (60) days of such notice of 
resignation, with the consent of MSES, the Custodian shall be entitled to petition a court of 
competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor.  Said court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, 
as such court may deem proper, appoint a successor Custodian.  Any corporation or association 
into which the Custodian may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or 
any corporation or association to which all or substantially all of the Custodian’s corporate trust 
line of business may be transferred, shall be the Custodian under this Custodial Agreement without 
further act.   

6. Fees.  Issuer agrees to (a) pay the Custodian reasonable compensation for the 
services to be rendered hereunder, which compensation shall be $[____] for each year that this 
Custodial Agreement is in effect, and (b) pay or reimburse the Custodian upon request for all 
expenses, disbursements and advances, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, 
incurred or made by it in connection with the preparation, execution, performance, delivery, 
modification and termination of this Custodial Agreement.  The parties hereto acknowledge that 
this provision shall survive the resignation or removal of the Custodian or the termination of this 
Custodial Agreement. 

7. Reimbursement.  Issuer agrees to reimburse the Custodian and its directors, 
officers, agents and employees for any and all loss, liability or expense (including the fees and 
expenses of in-house or outside counsel and experts and their staffs and all expense of document 
location, duplication and shipment) arising out of or in connection with (a) the Custodian’s 
execution and performance of this Custodial Agreement, except to the extent such loss, liability or 
expense is finally adjudicated to have been primarily caused by the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the Custodian or its director, officer, agent or employee seeking reimbursement, or 
(b) its following any instructions or other directions from Issuer, except to the extent that its 
following any such instruction or direction is expressly forbidden by the terms hereof.  The parties 
hereto acknowledge that this provision shall survive the resignation or removal of the Custodian 
or the termination of the Custodial Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 6 - 

8. Taxpayer Identification Numbers; Tax Matters. Issuer and the Swap 
Counterparty each represent that its correct taxpayer identification number assigned by the Internal 
Revenue Service or any other taxing authority is set forth on the signature page hereof.  Any tax 
returns or reports required to be prepared and filed in connection with the Issuer Payments Account 
will be prepared and filed by Issuer or the Swap Counterparty, as appropriate, and the Custodian 
shall have no responsibility for the preparation and/or filing of any tax return with respect to any 
income earned on the Issuer Payments Account.  In addition, any tax or other payments required 
to be made pursuant to such tax return or filing shall be paid by Issuer or the Swap Counterparty, 
as appropriate.  The Custodian shall have no responsibility for making such payment unless 
directed to do so in writing by the appropriate authorized party and fully indemnified to the 
Custodian’s satisfaction. 

9. Notices.  All communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 
be duly given and received (a) upon delivery if delivered personally, upon confirmed transmittal 
if by facsimile and as set forth in the final paragraph of this Section 9 if by e-mail transmission; 
(b) on the next Business Day if sent by overnight courier; or (c) four (4) Business Days after 
mailing if mailed by prepaid registered mail, return receipt requested, to the appropriate notice 
address for Issuer or the Swap Counterparty, as applicable, set forth in the Front-End Commodity 
Swap Agreement.  Notices to the Custodian shall be provided to the following address: 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
4655 Salisbury Road, Suite 300 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
Attention:  Corporate Trust 
Fax: 904.645.1998 
Email: BNYM_Gas-Prepays@bnymellon.com 

 
Any party may provide a new or different address for such notices if furnished to the other parties 
in writing by registered mail, return receipt requested.  Notwithstanding the above provisions of 
this Section 9, in the case of communications delivered to the Custodian pursuant to clause (b) or 
clause (c) of this Section 9, such communications shall be deemed to have been given on the date 
received by the Custodian.  In the event that the Custodian, in its sole discretion, shall determine 
that an emergency exists, the Custodian may use such other means of communication as the 
Custodian deems appropriate. 

The Custodian shall have the right to accept and act upon directions given pursuant to this 
Custodial Agreement, or any other document reasonably relating to the Front-End Commodity 
Swap Agreement, the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement or other matters described herein, 
delivered using Electronic Means (defined below); provided, however, that each party giving 
directions to the Custodian hereunder shall provide to the Custodian an incumbency certificate, 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B-2, listing persons with the authority to 
provide such directions (each an “Authorized Officer”) and containing specimen signatures of such 
Authorized Officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended whenever a person is to be 
added or deleted from the listing.  If a party elects to give the Custodian directions using Electronic 
Means and the Custodian in its discretion elects to act upon such directions, the Custodian’s 
understanding of such directions shall be deemed controlling.  The parties understand and agree 
that the Custodian cannot determine the identity of the actual sender of such directions and that 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 7 - 

the Custodian shall conclusively presume that directions that purport to have been sent by an 
Authorized Officer listed on the incumbency certificate provided by a party to the Custodian have 
been sent by such Authorized Officer.  Each party shall be responsible for ensuring that only 
Authorized Officers transmit such directions to the Custodian and that all Authorized Officers treat 
applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the 
Custodian as confidential and with extreme care.  The Custodian shall not be liable for any losses, 
costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Custodian’s reliance upon and compliance 
with such directions notwithstanding that such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a 
subsequent written direction.  Each party agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out of the use of 
Electronic Means to submit directions to the Custodian, including without limitation the risk of 
the Custodian acting on unauthorized directions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third 
parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods 
of transmitting directions to the Custodian and that there may be more secure methods of 
transmitting directions; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with 
its transmission of directions provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light 
of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to notify the Custodian immediately upon 
learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures. 

As used herein, “Electronic Means” shall mean the following communications methods: e-mail, 
facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, 
passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Custodian, or another method or system 
specified by the Custodian as available for use in connection with its services hereunder. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, a party may at any time notify the other parties 
in accordance with this Custodial Agreement that any subsequent notice or other communication 
hereunder must be provided by e-mail transmission for a specified period of time or until further 
notice, and any notices or other communications delivered by means other than e-mail 
transmission during such time shall be ineffective.  Such notice will not be effective unless it 
includes a valid e-mail address for the party requesting that notices and other communications be 
delivered by e-mail transmission.  Such party will take reasonable steps to ensure the continued 
availability of such e-mail address for the receipt of notices and other communications hereunder 
and will promptly notify the other parties in accordance with this Custodial Agreement of a change 
or modification as to the e-mail address or its availability to receive notices and other 
communications.  Notices or other communications sent by e-mail transmission will be deemed to 
have been delivered when sent, if sent during the recipient’s business hours, or upon the 
commencement of the recipient’s business hours, if sent outside of recipient’s business hours; 
provided that (i) any such notice by e-mail shall not be effective if a “bounce-back”, system error 
message or other notification of non-delivery is received by the sender and (ii) in such case the 
noticing party may provide notices and communications by any other means permitted under this 
Custodial Agreement or may attempt providing notice again by e-mail (and any such follow-up e-
mail notice shall be effective under the terms set forth above so long as a non-delivery notice is 
not received with respect thereto). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 8 - 

10. Miscellaneous. 

(a) The provisions of this Custodial Agreement may be waived, altered, 
amended or supplemented, in whole or in part, only by a writing signed by all of the parties hereto. 

(b) Neither this Custodial Agreement nor any right, title or interest hereunder 
may be assigned in whole or in part by any party, without the prior written consent of the other 
parties, except as provided in Section 5; provided that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties 
acknowledge and agree that Issuer shall assign all of its right, title and interest in, to and under this 
Custodial Agreement in connection with any assignment by Issuer of its right, title and interest in, 
to and under the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement to the assignee thereof, which 
assignment shall constitute a novation. 

(c) This Custodial Agreement and the rights and duties of the parties hereunder 
shall be governed by and construed, enforced, and performed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of New York, without regard to any conflicts of law principle that would direct the 
application of the laws another jurisdiction; provided, however, that the authority of the Issuer to 
enter into and perform its obligations under this Custodial Agreement shall be determined in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California.  

(d) Each party hereto irrevocably waives any objection on the grounds of 
venue, forum non-conveniens or any similar grounds and irrevocably consents to service of 
process by mail or in any other manner permitted by applicable law and consents to the jurisdiction 
of any court of the State of New York located in the Borough of Manhattan, or of the United States 
District Court located in the Borough of Manhattan.  The parties further hereby waive any right to 
a trial by jury with respect to any lawsuit or judicial proceeding arising or relating to this Custodial 
Agreement. 

(e) No party to this Custodial Agreement shall be liable to any other party 
hereto for losses due to, or if it is unable to perform its obligations under the terms of this Custodial 
Agreement because of, acts of God, fire, war, terrorism, floods, strikes, electrical outages, 
equipment or transmission failure, or other causes reasonably beyond its control. 

(f) This Custodial Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument.  All signatures of the parties to this Custodial Agreement may be transmitted by 
facsimile or by digital pdf transmission under the terms set forth in this Section 10(f).  The parties 
agree that the electronic signature of a party to this Custodial Agreement, including all 
acknowledgements, authorizations, directions, waivers and consents thereto (or any amendment 
or supplement thereto) shall be as valid as an original signature of such party and shall be effective 
to bind such party to this Custodial Agreement.  The parties agree that any electronically signed 
document (including this Custodial Agreement) shall be deemed (i) to be “written” or “in writing,” 
(ii) to have been signed, and (iii) to constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary 
course of business and an original written record when printed from electronic files.  For purposes 
hereof, “electronic signature” means a manually signed original signature that is then transmitted 
by electronic means; “transmitted by electronic means” means sent in the form of a facsimile or 
sent via the Internet as a pdf (portable document format) or other replicating image attached to an 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 9 - 

e mail message; and, “electronically signed document” means a document transmitted by 
electronic means and containing, or to which there is affixed, an electronic signature.  Paper copies 
or “printouts”, if introduced as evidence in any judicial, arbitral, mediation or administrative 
proceeding, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the same 
conditions as other original business records created and maintained in documentary form.  Neither 
party shall contest the admissibility of true and accurate copies of electronically signed documents 
on the basis of the best evidence rule or as not satisfying the business records exception to the 
hearsay rule 

11. Compliance with Court Orders.  In the event that any amount held by the 
Custodian hereunder shall be attached, garnished or levied upon by any court order, or the delivery 
thereof shall be stayed or enjoined by an order of a court, or any order, judgment or decree shall 
be made or entered by any court affecting the property deposited under this Custodial Agreement, 
the Custodian is hereby expressly authorized, in its sole discretion, to obey and comply with all 
writs, orders or decrees so entered or issued, which it is advised by legal counsel of its own 
choosing are binding upon it, whether with or without jurisdiction, and in the event that the 
Custodian obeys or complies with any such writ, order or decree it shall not be liable to any of the 
parties hereto or to any other person, firm or corporation, by reason of such compliance 
notwithstanding that such writ, order or decree may be subsequently reversed, modified, annulled, 
set aside or vacated. 

12. Term; Winding Up.  This Custodial Agreement will expire at the later of (i) the 
receipt of written notice from either Issuer or the Swap Counterparty to the other parties that the 
Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement has terminated in accordance with its terms and (ii) the 
expiration of the Issuer Payments Period, if any.  Any remaining balance in the Issuer Payments 
Account following written confirmation from MSES that all required payments by the Swap 
Counterparty to MSES under the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement have been received by 
MSES shall be paid to the Swap Counterparty. 

13. Indemnification.  Issuer and the Swap Counterparty, jointly and severally, agree 
to protect, indemnify, defend and hold harmless, the Custodian, and its affiliates, and each person 
who controls the Custodian from and against all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, actions, suits, 
costs, judgments and expenses (including, without limitation, court costs and reasonable attorneys’ 
fees) arising from its acting as Custodian hereunder, except for any such claim, damage, loss, 
liability, action, suit, cost, judgment or expense resulting from the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of the Custodian; provided, however, that any amounts due under this Section 13 shall 
not duplicate any other amounts due under this Custodial Agreement, including without limitation 
amounts due under Section 7 hereof.  The obligations of this Section 13 shall survive any 
resignation or removal of the Custodian and the termination of this Custodial Agreement. In 
addition, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Custodian shall have all of the rights 
(including the indemnification rights), benefits, privileges and immunities granted to the Trustee 
under the Indenture, all of which are incorporated, mutatis mutandis, into this Custodial 
Agreement. 

14. Patriot Act.  Issuer and the Swap Counterparty acknowledge that the Custodian is 
subject to federal laws, including the Customer Identification Program (“CIP”) requirements under 
the USA PATRIOT Act and its implementing regulations, pursuant to which the Custodian must 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 
 

 
- 10 - 

obtain, verify and record information that allows the Custodian to identify Issuer and the Swap 
Counterparty.  Accordingly, prior to opening the Issuer Payments Account described in Section 3 
of this Custodial Agreement, the Custodian will ask Issuer and the Swap Counterparty to provide 
certain information including but not limited to name, physical address, tax identification number 
and other information that will help the Custodian identify and verify the identity of Issuer and the 
Swap Counterparty, such as organizational documents, certificate of good standing, license to do 
business, or other pertinent identifying information.  Issuer and the Swap Counterparty agree that 
the Custodian cannot open any account hereunder unless and until the Custodian verifies the 
identity of Issuer and the Swap Counterparty each in accordance with its CIP. 

[Signatures appear on the next page] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 

[Signature Page of the Custodial Agreement] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Custodial Agreement as 
of the date first set forth above. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 
 
By:   
Name:  
Title:  
Taxpayer ID Number: ______________________ 

 
 
NATIXIS 
 
By:   
Name:  
Title:  
Taxpayer ID Number: ______________________ 

 
 
 
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 
COMPANY, N.A., as Custodian 
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:  
 

 
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 
COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee 
 
 
By:  
Name:  
Title:  
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

[LETTERHEAD OF MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C.] 
 
[Date] 
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
4655 Salisbury Road, Suite 300 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
Attention:  Corporate Trust 
Fax: 904.645.1998 
Email: BNYM_Gas-Prepays@bnymellon.com 
 
Re: Custodial Agreement by and among California Community Choice Financing Authority 

(“Issuer”), Natixis (“Swap Counterparty”), The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A. (the “Trustee”), and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
(the “Custodian”) dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Custodial Agreement”) 

 
HOLD NOTICE 

 
Pursuant to and in accordance Section 3(c) of the Custodial Agreement, the undersigned 

Authorized Officer of Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. does hereby issue this Hold 
Notice to the Custodian, directing the Custodian to withdraw amounts on deposit in the Issuer 
Payments Account for the purpose of paying any net amount payable to Swap Counterparty under 
Section 2(a)(i) of the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement on the immediately subsequent 
Business Day (as defined in the Indenture) to the date hereof on which such amount is due under 
the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement only upon confirmation by MSES to the Custodian 
in accordance with Section 3(c) of the Custodial Agreement that the amount payable by the Swap 
Counterparty to MSES under the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement on such date has been 
paid by the Swap Counterparty in accordance with the terms of the Back-End Commodity Swap 
Agreement.   
 

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning assigned 
in the Custodial Agreement.  
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 
 
 
By:  ______________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
 
cc: California Community Choice Financing Authority 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 

[LETTERHEAD OF MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C.] 
 
[Date] 
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
4655 Salisbury Road, Suite 300 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
Attention:  Corporate Trust 
Fax: 904.645.1998 
Email: BNYM_Gas-Prepays@bnymellon.com 
 
Re: Custodial Agreement by and among California Community Choice Financing Authority 

(“Issuer”), Natixis (“Swap Counterparty”), The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A. (the “Trustee”), and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
(the “Custodian”) dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Custodial Agreement”) 

 
CONFIRMATION 

 
Pursuant to and in accordance Section 3(c) of the Custodial Agreement, the undersigned 

Authorized MSES Representative does hereby confirm that the full amount of the payment due 
from Swap Counterparty to MSES under the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement has been 
received this day.   
 

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning assigned 
in the Custodial Agreement.  
 
 
MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 
 
 
By:  ______________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
 
cc: [_____] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



 

 

EXHIBIT B-2 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF  
[_________________________________] 

 
 The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of [__________________________], in 
connection with the Custodial Agreement by and among California Community Choice Financing 
Authority (“Issuer”), Natixis (“Swap Counterparty”), The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A. (the “Trustee”), and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. (the 
“Custodian”) dated as of [____], 2022 (the “Custodial Agreement”), HEREBY CERTIFIES that 
the persons whose names, titles and signatures appear below are duly qualified and acting 
representatives of [_______] (“Authorized Representatives”) on the date hereof.  Each holds the 
office set forth beside his/her name, and the signature appearing opposite his/her name is the 
genuine signature of such Authorized Representative.  Only those individuals, or such additional 
individuals as the undersigned may designate prior to written notice to the Custodian in the future, 
shall execute and deliver any written instructions, confirmations or certificates on behalf of 
[_______] in connection with the Custodial Agreement.  Custodian shall not be obligated to accept 
any written instructions, confirmations or certificates executed by an individual other than those 
listed below or so designated in the future. 
 

NAME TITLE PHONE NO. SIGNATURE 

    
    
    
    
    

 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning assigned 

in the Custodial Agreement.  
 [___________] acknowledges that Custodian will accept notices by Electronic Means only 
if [_________] acknowledges and assumes all risks relating to the use of such notices.  [_______] 
hereby acknowledges and assumes all risks relating to the sending of notices by Electronic Means. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this Certificate to be executed for 
and on behalf of [__________] this ___day of __________. 
 
      [NAME OF PARTY] 
 
      By:  _____________________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title:  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15G



OHS DRAFT 3/29/22 

 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 

TRUST INDENTURE 

between 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

and 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY, N.A., 
as Trustee 

$__________ 
Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A-1 (Term Rate) 
and 

Series 2022A-2 ([SIFMA] Index Rate) 

Dated as of __________ 1, 2022 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -i- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
PAGE 

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS AND GOVERNING LAW ...................................................................3 

Section 1.01. Definitions ......................................................................................................3 
Section 1.02. Captions ........................................................................................................29 
Section 1.03. Rules of Construction ...................................................................................29 
Section 1.04. Governing Law .............................................................................................30 
Section 1.05. Consents ........................................................................................................30 

ARTICLE II. AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS ......................................................30 

Section 2.01. Authorization of Bonds and Refunding Bonds; Application of Proceeds ....30 
Section 2.02. Terms of Series 2022A Bonds; Payment ......................................................31 
Section 2.03. Conditions for Issuance of Bonds .................................................................33 
Section 2.04. Initial Interest Rate Periods; Subsequent Interest Rate Periods ....................34 
Section 2.05. Daily Interest Rate Period .............................................................................35 
Section 2.06. Weekly Interest Rate Period .........................................................................36 
Section 2.07. Term  Rate Period .........................................................................................38 
Section 2.08. Commercial Paper Interest Rate Periods ......................................................40 
Section 2.09. Index Rate Periods ........................................................................................42 
Section 2.10. Notice of Conversion ....................................................................................45 
Section 2.11. Liquidity Facility ..........................................................................................46 
Section 2.12. Provisions Regarding Commodity Swap ......................................................46 
Section 2.13. Provisions Regarding Interest Rate Swap .....................................................48 
Section 2.14. CPI Index Rate Periods .................................................................................49 

ARTICLE III.  GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF BONDS ............................................52 

Section 3.01. Medium of Payment; Form and Date; Letters and Numbers ........................52 
Section 3.02. Legends .........................................................................................................53 
Section 3.03. Execution and Authentication .......................................................................53 
Section 3.04. Exchange, Transfer and Registry ..................................................................54 
Section 3.05. Regulations With Respect to Exchanges and Registration of Transfers ......55 
Section 3.06. Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost.................................................55 
Section 3.07. Temporary Bonds .........................................................................................56 
Section 3.08. Payment of Interest on Bonds; Interest Rights Preserved.............................56 
Section 3.09. Book Entry System; Appointment of Securities Depository ........................57 
Section 3.10. Subsidy Payments .........................................................................................59 
Section 3.11. Limitation of Liability of the Issuer ..............................................................59 

ARTICLE IV. REDEMPTION OF BONDS AND TENDER PROVISIONS ..........................................59 

Section 4.01. Extraordinary Redemption ............................................................................59 
Section 4.02. Sinking Fund Redemption ............................................................................60 
Section 4.03. Optional Redemption ....................................................................................62 
Section 4.04. Redemption Notice .......................................................................................64 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -ii- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Section 4.05. Bonds Redeemed in Part ...............................................................................66 
Section 4.06. Redemption at the Election or Direction of Issuer .......................................66 
Section 4.07. Redemption Other Than at Issuer’s Election or Direction ...........................66 
Section 4.08. Selection of Bonds To Be Redeemed ...........................................................66 
Section 4.09. Payment of Redeemed Bonds .......................................................................67 
Section 4.10. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds ........................................................67 
Section 4.11. Optional Tender During Daily or Weekly Interest Rate Periods ..................67 
Section 4.12. Mandatory Tender for Purchase on Day Next Succeeding the Last Day of 

Each CP Interest Term ..................................................................................68 
Section 4.13. Mandatory Tender for Purchase on the Mandatory Purchase Date, Index 

Rate Tender Date or Fixed Rate Tender Date ...............................................68 
Section 4.14. Mandatory Tender for Purchase on Conversion of Interest Rate Period ......69 
Section 4.15. General Provisions Relating to Tenders .......................................................69 
Section 4.16. Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase ...................................................72 
Section 4.17. Irrevocable Notice Deemed to Be Tender of Bond; Undelivered Bonds 

Deemed Purchased on Mandatory Purchase Date ........................................73 
Section 4.18. Remarketing of Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates ..........................................73 
Section 4.19. The Remarketing Agent ................................................................................74 
Section 4.20. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent; Resignation; Removal .....................74 
Section 4.21. Successor Remarketing Agents ....................................................................74 
Section 4.22. Tender Agent ................................................................................................75 

ARTICLE V. ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND APPLICATION THEREOF .................................75 

Section 5.01. Pledge Effected by This Indenture................................................................75 
Section 5.02. Establishment of Funds and Accounts ..........................................................76 
Section 5.03. Project Fund ..................................................................................................77 
Section 5.04. Revenues and Revenue Fund; Other Amounts .............................................78 
Section 5.05. Payments from Revenue Fund ......................................................................79 
Section 5.06. Operating Fund .............................................................................................80 
Section 5.07. Debt Service Fund—Debt Service Account .................................................81 
Section 5.08. Debt Service Fund–Redemption Account ....................................................83 
Section 5.09. Commodity Swap Payment Fund .................................................................83 
Section 5.10. General Fund.................................................................................................83 
Section 5.11. Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund ..............................................................84 
Section 5.12. Assignment Payment Fund ...........................................................................85 
Section 5.13. Purchases of Bonds .......................................................................................85 
Section 5.14. Administrative Fee Fund ..............................................................................85 

ARTICLE VI. DEPOSITORIES OF MONEYS, SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT OF 
FUNDS .........................................................................................................86 

Section 6.01. Depositories ..................................................................................................86 
Section 6.02. Deposits ........................................................................................................86 
Section 6.03. Investment of Certain Funds .........................................................................87 
Section 6.04. Valuation and Sale of Investments ...............................................................88 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -iii- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

ARTICLE VII. PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF ISSUER ................................................................89 

Section 7.01. Payment of Bonds .........................................................................................89 
Section 7.02. Extension of Payment of Bonds ...................................................................89 
Section 7.03. Offices for Servicing Bonds .........................................................................90 
Section 7.04. Further Assurance .........................................................................................90 
Section 7.05. Power To Issue Bonds and Pledge the Trust Estate......................................90 
Section 7.06. Power To Fix and Collect Fees and Charges for the Sale of Energy............90 
Section 7.07. Creation of Liens ..........................................................................................90 
Section 7.08. Reserved........................................................................................................91 
Section 7.09. Limitations on Operating Expenses and Other Costs. ..................................91 
Section 7.10. Amendments to Energy Supply Contracts ....................................................91 
Section 7.11. Power  Supply Contracts; Energy Remarketing ...........................................92 
Section 7.12. Energy Purchase Agreement; Energy Supplier Guaranty .............................93 
Section 7.13. Reserved........................................................................................................93 
Section 7.14. Commodity Swap .........................................................................................93 
Section 7.15. Interest Rate Swap ........................................................................................94 
Section 7.16. Accounts and Reports ...................................................................................94 
Section 7.17. Payment of Taxes and Charges .....................................................................95 
Section 7.18. Tax Covenants ..............................................................................................95 
Section 7.19. General ..........................................................................................................96 
Section 7.20. Bankruptcy ....................................................................................................96 
Section 7.21. Reserved........................................................................................................97 
Section 7.22. Replacement of Energy Supplier Guaranty ..................................................97 
Section 7.23. Avoidance of Failed Remarketing ................................................................97 

ARTICLE VIII. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ...............................................................97 

Section 8.01. Events of Default ..........................................................................................97 
Section 8.02. Accounting and Examination of Records After Default ...............................98 
Section 8.03. Enforcement of Agreements; Application of Moneys after Default .............98 
Section 8.04. Appointment of Receiver ............................................................................100 
Section 8.05. Proceedings Brought by Trustee. ................................................................100 
Section 8.06. Restriction on Bondholder’s Action ...........................................................101 
Section 8.07. Remedies Not Exclusive. ............................................................................101 
Section 8.08. Effect of Waiver and Other Circumstances. ...............................................102 
Section 8.09. Notice of Default ........................................................................................102 

ARTICLE IX. CONCERNING THE FIDUCIARIES ......................................................................102 

Section 9.01. Acceptance by Trustee of Duties ................................................................102 
Section 9.02. Paying Agents; Appointment and Acceptance of Duties............................102 
Section 9.03. Responsibilities of Fiduciaries ....................................................................102 
Section 9.04. Evidence on Which Fiduciaries May Act ...................................................104 
Section 9.05. Compensation .............................................................................................105 
Section 9.06. Certain Permitted Acts ................................................................................105 
Section 9.07. Resignation of Trustee ................................................................................105 
Section 9.08. Removal of the Trustee ...............................................................................105 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -iv- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Section 9.09. Appointment of Successor Trustee .............................................................106 
Section 9.10. Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor Trustee ...............................106 
Section 9.11. Merger or Consolidation .............................................................................107 
Section 9.12. Adoption of Authentication ........................................................................107 
Section 9.13. Resignation or Removal of Paying Agent and Appointment of 

Successor. ...................................................................................................107 
Section 9.14. Trustee’s Reliance.......................................................................................107 
Section 9.15. Trustee’s Liability .......................................................................................108 
Section 9.16. Trustee’s Agents or Attorneys ....................................................................109 
Section 9.17. Notice of Lien Filings .................................................................................109 

ARTICLE X. SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES .........................................................................110 

Section 10.01. Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Bondholders .............110 
Section 10.02. Supplemental Indentures Effective With Consent of Bondholders ............111 
Section 10.03. General Provisions ......................................................................................112 

ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENTS .................................................................................................113 

Section 11.01. Mailing ........................................................................................................113 
Section 11.02. Powers of Amendment................................................................................113 
Section 11.03. Consent of Bondholders..............................................................................113 
Section 11.04. Notifications by Unanimous Consent .........................................................115 
Section 11.05. Exclusion of Bonds .....................................................................................115 
Section 11.06. Notation on Bonds ......................................................................................115 

ARTICLE XII. MISCELLANEOUS ............................................................................................115 

Section 12.01. Defeasance ..................................................................................................115 
Section 12.02. Evidence of Signatures of Bondholders and Ownership of Bonds .............119 
Section 12.03. Moneys Held for Particular Bonds .............................................................119 
Section 12.04. Preservation and Inspection of Documents ................................................120 
Section 12.05. Parties Interested Herein .............................................................................120 
Section 12.06. No Recourse on the Bonds; Non -Liability of the Issuer ............................120 
Section 12.07. Publication of Notice; Suspension of Publication ......................................120 
Section 12.08. Publication of Notice; Suspension of Publication ......................................120 
Section 12.09. Severability of Invalid Provisions...............................................................121 
Section 12.10. Holidays ......................................................................................................121 
Section 12.11. Notices ........................................................................................................121 
Section 12.12. Notices to Rating Agencies.........................................................................122 
Section 12.13. Counterparts ................................................................................................122 
Section 12.14. Waiver of Jury Trial ....................................................................................122 
Section 12.15. Electronic Signatures ..................................................................................123 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -v- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Exhibit A — Form of Bonds 
Exhibit B — Form of Index Rate Determination Certificate 
Exhibit C — [Reserved] 
Exhibit D — [Reserved] 
Exhibit E — [Reserved] 

Schedule I — Initial Project Participants 
Schedule II — Scheduled Debt Service Deposits 
Schedule III — Terms of Commodity Swaps 
Schedule IV — Amortized Value of Series 2022A-1 Bonds 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -1- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

TRUST INDENTURE 

THIS TRUST INDENTURE, dated as of __________ 1, 2022 (this “Indenture”), is by and 
between California Community Choice Financing Authority, a joint powers authority and public 
entity of the State of California (the “Issuer”) and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
N.A., a national banking association organized and existing under the laws of the United States 
and authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein, as trustee (the “Trustee”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Act (capitalized terms used herein and not 
otherwise defined shall have the meanings given such terms in Section 1.01 hereof), Central Coast 
Community Energy, East Bay Community Energy, Marin Clean Energy, and Silicon Valley Clean 
Energy (each a “Member” and, collectively, the “Members”) entered into a joint powers agreement 
pursuant to which the Issuer was organized and established for the purpose, among other things, 
of entering into contracts for electricity and energy services and agreements for services to 
facilitate the sale and purchase of electricity and other related services, and for issuing bonds to 
assist the Members in financing such contracts, agreements, purchases, sales and services; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized under the Act to acquire electricity and energy services 
and enter into agreements for services to facilitate the sale and purchase of electricity and other 
related services, and to issue revenue bonds to finance the cost of acquisition of such electricity 
and energy services and other agreements, and is vested with all powers necessary to accomplish 
the purposes for which it was created; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined to finance the Cost of Acquisition of the Clean Energy 
Project through the issuance of Bonds pursuant to this Indenture; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Indenture has been in all respects duly and 
validly authorized and approved by resolution of the Board of the Issuer; and 

WHEREAS, the Trustee is willing to accept the trusts provided for in this Indenture. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH, and the Issuer and the Trustee agree as 
follows for the benefit of the other, for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds issued pursuant 
hereto and the other parties secured hereby: 

GRANTING CLAUSES 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF the premises, the mutual covenants of the Issuer and the 
Trustee herein, the purchase of the Bonds by the Holders thereof and the obligations of the Interest 
Rate Swap Counterparty under the Interest Rate Swap, and in order to secure: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -2- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (i) the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 
Bonds and the payment of the Interest Rate Swap Payments, in each case according to the 
tenor and effect of the Bonds and the Interest Rate Swap, and 

 (ii) the performance and observance by the Issuer of all the covenants expressed 
or implied in this Indenture and in the Bonds, 

the Issuer does hereby convey, assign and pledge unto the Trustee and its successors in trust, all 
right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to the Trust Estate, subject to conveyance, assignment 
and pledge of the Commodity Swap Payment Fund in favor of the Commodity Swap Counterparty 
as set forth below, and further subject to the provisions of this Indenture permitting the application 
thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture, and all other 
rights hereinafter granted for the further securing of the Bonds; 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF the obligations of the Commodity Swap Counterparty 
under the Commodity Swap and the mutual covenants of the Issuer and the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty thereunder, and in order to secure the payment of the Commodity Swap Payments, 
the Issuer does hereby convey, assign and pledge unto the Trustee and its successors in trust, all 
right, title and interest of the Issuer in the Commodity Swap Payment Fund and the amounts on 
deposit therein, subject to the provisions of this Indenture permitting the application thereof for 
the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture, which conveyance, 
assignment and pledge shall have priority over the foregoing conveyance, assignment and pledge 
of the Commodity Swap Payment Fund and the amounts and investments on deposit therein in 
favor of the Bonds and the Interest Rate Swap Payments; 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all the same with all privileges and appurtenances hereby and 
hereafter conveyed and assigned, or agreed or intended so to be, to the Trustee and its respective 
successors in said trust and assigns forever; 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal and 
proportionate benefit, security and protection of (i) all Holders of the Bonds without privilege, 
priority or distinction as to the lien or otherwise of any Bond over any other Bond or the payment 
of interest with respect to any Bond over the payment of interest with respect to any other Bond, 
except as otherwise provided herein, and (ii) the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty; and 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the Issuer, its successors or assigns shall well and truly pay, 
or cause to be paid, the principal or Redemption Price, if any, on the Bonds and the interest due or 
to become due thereon, the Commodity Swap Payments and the Interest Rate Swap Payments, at 
the times and in the manner provided in the Bonds, the Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate 
Swap, respectively, according to the true intent and meaning thereof, and shall cause the payments 
to be made into the Funds as required hereunder, or shall provide, as permitted hereby, for the 
payment thereof as provided in Section 12.01, and shall well and truly keep and perform and 
observe all the covenants and conditions of this Indenture to be kept, performed and observed by 
it, and shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee all sums of money due or to become due to it in 
accordance with the terms and provisions hereof, then upon such final payments or provisions for 
such payments by the Issuer, the Bonds, the Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate Swap shall 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -3- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under this Indenture, and all covenants, 
agreements and obligations of the Issuer to the Holders of the Bonds shall thereupon cease, 
terminate and be discharged and satisfied; otherwise this Indenture shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

The terms and conditions upon which the Bonds are to be issued, authenticated, delivered, 
secured and accepted by all Persons who from time to time shall be or become the Holders thereof, 
and the trusts and conditions upon which the Revenues, moneys, securities and funds held or set 
aside under this Indenture, subject to the provisions of this Indenture permitting the application 
thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture, are to be held 
and disposed of, which said trusts and conditions the Trustee hereby accepts, and the respective 
parties hereto covenant and agree, are as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS AND GOVERNING LAW 

 Section 1.01. Definitions.  The following terms shall, for all purposes of this Indenture, 
have the following meanings: 

“Account” or “Accounts” means, as the case may be, each or all of the Accounts 
established in Sections 4.15 and 5.02. 

“Accountant’s Certificate” means a certificate signed by an independent certified public 
accountant or a firm of independent certified public accountants, selected by the Issuer, who may 
be the accountant or firm of accountants who regularly audit the books of the Issuer and must be 
identified upon selection in writing to the Trustee. 

“Act” means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act constituting Chapter 5 of Division 7 of 
Title 1 (commencing with Section 6500), as amended or supplemented from time to time. 

“Administrative Fee Fund” means the Administrative Fee Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Alternate Liquidity Facility” means a Liquidity Facility for a Series of Bonds delivered 
to the Trustee in substitution for a Liquidity Facility then in effect with respect to such Bonds. 

“Amortized Value” means, with respect to any Bond to be redeemed when a Term Rate 
Period is in effect with respect to such Bond, the principal amount of such Bond multiplied by the 
price of such Bond expressed as a percentage, calculated by a major market maker in municipal 
securities, as the quotation agent, selected by the Issuer, based on the industry standard method of 
calculating bond prices (as such industry standard prevailed on the date such Bond began to bear 
interest at its current Term Rate), with a delivery date equal to the date of redemption of such 
Bond, a maturity date equal to the earlier of (a) the stated maturity date of such Bond or (b) the 
Term Rate Tender Date of such Bond and a yield equal to such Bond’s original reoffering yield 
on the date such Bond began to bear interest at its current Term Rate, which, in the case of the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -4- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

initial Term Rate Period for the Series 2022A-1 Bonds and certain dates, produces the amounts for 
all of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds set forth in Schedule IV; provided that in the case of a redemption 
of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03(b), the Amortized Value of the Series 
2022A-1 Bonds shall be the percentage of the principal amount thereof for the applicable 
redemption date set forth in Section 4.03(b).  

“Applicable Factor” means (a) with respect to the initial issuance of a Series of Bonds 
bearing interest at a SOFR Index Rate, the percentage or factor of the SOFR Index determined by 
the Underwriter and specified in the Index Rate Determination Certificate for such Series of Bonds, 
or (b) with respect to a Series of Bonds for which the Interest Rate Period is being converted to a 
SOFR Index Rate Period (including a change in such Interest Rate Period from one SOFR Index 
Rate Period to another SOFR Index Rate Period), the percentage or factor of  the SOFR Index 
determined by the Remarketing Agent and specified in the applicable Index Rate Determination 
Certificate or Index Rate Continuation Notice, provided in each case that the Issuer delivers to the 
Trustee a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel addressing the selection of such percentage or 
factor.  The Applicable Factor shall be determined by the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, 
as applicable, in accordance with Section 2.09(a) and included in the applicable Index Rate 
Determination Certificate, and once determined shall remain constant for the duration of the 
applicable SOFR Index Rate Period. 

“Applicable Spread” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds for which the Initial Interest 
Rate Period is an Index Rate Period, or for any Series of Bonds for which the Interest Rate Period 
is converted to an Index Rate Period, the margin or spread, which may be positive or negative, 
determined by the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as applicable, in accordance with 
Section 2.09(a), on or prior to the Issue Date or Conversion Date for such Bonds, as applicable, 
and specified in the applicable Supplemental Indenture or Index Rate Determination Certificate, 
as applicable, which shall be added to the applicable Index (or the product of the Applicable Factor 
and the applicable Index, as the case may be) to determine the Index Rate.  Once so determined, 
Applicable Spread shall remain constant for the duration of the applicable Index Rate Period. 

“Applicable Tax Exempt Municipal Bond Rate” means, for the Bonds of any maturity, the 
“Comparable AAA General Obligations” yield curve rate for the year of such maturity or 
Mandatory Purchase Date, as applicable, as published by Refinity at least one Business Day and 
not more than 15 Business Days prior to the date that notice of redemption is required to be given 
pursuant to Section 4.04.  If no such yield curve rate is established for the applicable year, the 
“Comparable AAA General Obligations” yield curve rate for the two published maturities most 
closely corresponding to the applicable year shall be determined, and the Applicable Tax Exempt 
Municipal Bond Rate will be interpolated or extrapolated from those yield curve rates on a straight 
line basis.  This rate is made available daily by Refinity and is available to its subscribers through 
the internet address:  www.tm3.com.  In calculating the Applicable Tax Exempt Municipal Bond 
Rate, should Refinity no longer publish the “Comparable AAA General Obligations” yield curve 
rate, then the Applicable Tax Exempt Municipal Bond Rate shall equal the Consensus Scale yield 
curve rate for the applicable year.  The Consensus Scale yield curve rate is made available daily 
by Municipal Market Analytics and is available to its subscribers through its internet address:  
www.mma research.com.  In the further event Municipal Market Analytics no longer publishes 
the Consensus Scale, the Applicable Tax Exempt Municipal Bond Rate shall be determined by a 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -5- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

major market maker in municipal securities, as the quotation agent, based upon the rate per annum 
equal to the annual yield to maturity, calculated using semi-annual compounding, of those tax 
exempt general obligation bonds rated in the highest Rating Category by Moody’s and S&P with 
a maturity date equal to the stated maturity date or Mandatory Purchase Date, as applicable, of 
such Bonds having characteristics (other than the ratings) most comparable to those of such Bonds 
in the judgment of the quotation agent.  The quotation agent’s determination of the Applicable Tax 
Exempt Municipal Bond Rate shall be final and binding on all parties in the absence of manifest 
error and may be conclusively relied upon in good faith by the Trustee. 

“Assignment Payment” means any payment received from the Energy Supplier in 
connection with an assignment of the Energy Purchase Agreement to a replacement energy 
supplier. 

“Assignment Payment Fund” means the Assignment Payment Fund established in 
Section 5.02. 

“Attesting Party” means an individual authorized by a resolution of the Board to attest the 
signatures of Authorized Officers. 

“Authorized Denominations” means with respect to any (a) Term Rate Period or Index 
Rate Period, $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof, and (b) Commercial Paper Interest Rate 
Period, Daily Interest Rate Period or Weekly Interest Rate Period, $100,000 and any integral 
multiple of $1,000 in excess of $100,000. 

“Authorized Newspaper” means The Wall Street Journal or The Bond Buyer or any other 
newspaper or journal printed in the English language and customarily published on each Business 
Day devoted to financial news and selected by the Issuer, with prior written notice to and approval 
of the Trustee, whose decision shall be final. 

“Authorized Officer” means (a) the Treasurer/Controller of the Issuer, and (b) any other 
person or persons designated by the Board by resolution to act on behalf of the Issuer under this 
Indenture.  The designation of such person or persons shall be evidenced by a Written Certificate 
of the Issuer delivered to a Responsible Officer of the Trustee containing the specimen signature 
of such person or persons and signed on behalf of the Issuer by its Treasurer/Controller.  Such 
designation as an Authorized Officer shall remain in effect until a Responsible Officer of the 
Trustee receives actual written notice from the Issuer to the contrary, accompanied by a new 
certificate. 

“Beneficial Owner” means, with respect to Bonds registered in the Book Entry System, 
any Person who acquires a beneficial ownership interest in a Bond held by the Securities 
Depository, and the term “Beneficial Ownership” shall be interpreted accordingly. 

“BLS” means the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the U.S. Department of Labor. 

“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Issuer, or if said Board is abolished, the 
board, body, commission or agency succeeding to the principal functions thereof or to whom the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -6- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

power and duties granted or imposed by this Indenture are given by law, and which shall be 
identified in a Written Notice of the Issuer delivered to the Trustee. 

“Bond” or “Bonds” means any of the Bonds and Refunding Bonds authorized by 
Section 2.01 of, and at any time Outstanding pursuant to, this Indenture. 

“Bond Counsel” means Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP or any other counsel of 
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax exempt status of interest on 
obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions and instrumentalities, duly admitted to 
the practice of law before the highest court of any state of the United States, and selected by the 
Issuer. 

“Bond Payment Date” means each date on which (a) interest on the Bonds is due and 
payable, (b) an Interest Rate Swap Payment is due, or (c) principal of the Bonds is payable at 
maturity or pursuant to Sinking Fund Installments. 

“Bond Purchase Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to 
Section 4.15(a), including the Remarketing Proceeds Account and the Issuer Purchase Account 
therein. 

“Bond Registrar” means the Trustee and any other bank or trust company organized under 
the laws of any state of the United States of America or national banking association appointed by 
the Issuer to perform the duties of Bond Registrar under this Indenture. 

“Bondholder” or “Holder of Bonds” or “Holder” or “Owner” means any Person who 
shall be the registered owner of any Bond or Bonds. 

“Book Entry System” means the system maintained by the Securities Depository and 
described in Section 3.09. 

“Business Day” means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday, (b) a day on which 
commercial banks in New York, New York, or the cities in which are located the designated 
corporate trust offices of the Trustee, the Custodian or a Calculation Agent or the operational office 
of the Issuer are authorized by law or executive order to close, (c) a day on which the New York 
Stock Exchange, Inc. is closed, (d) a day on which the payment system of the Federal Reserve 
System is not operational, and (e) for purposes of determining the SIFMA Index Rate and the 
SOFR Index Rate, any day that SIFMA recommends that the fixed income departments of its 
members be closed for purposes of trading in United States government securities. 

“Calculation Agent” means, with respect to any Series of Bonds bearing interest at an 
Index Rate, the Calculation Agent with respect to such Bonds appointed by the Issuer, with written 
notice to the Trustee, pursuant to the applicable Calculation Agent Agreement and the Indenture.  
The initial Calculation Agent for the Series 2022A Bonds shall be The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -7- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Calculation Agent Agreement” means, with respect to any Series of Bonds bearing 
interest at an Index Rate, such agreement as is entered into by the applicable Calculation Agent 
and the Issuer with respect to such Series of Bonds providing for the determination of the 
applicable Index Rate in accordance with Section 2.09 or Section 2.14, as originally executed or 
as it may from time to time be supplemented or modified pursuant to the terms thereof and this 
Indenture, as applicable. 

“Cede” means Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee of DTC with 
respect to the Bonds pursuant to Section 3.09. 

“Clean Energy Project” means the Issuer’s purchase of Energy pursuant to the Energy 
Purchase Agreement and related contractual arrangements and agreements, and the purchase of 
any Energy to replace Energy not delivered as required pursuant to the Energy Purchase 
Agreement. 

“Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each 
period comprised of CP Interest Terms for the Bonds of such Series, during which CP Interest 
Term Rates are in effect for the Bonds of such Series. 

“Commodity Swap” means the ISDA Master Agreement, Schedule and Confirmation 
between the Issuer and the Commodity Swap Counterparty, or any replacement agreement 
permitted by Section 2.12(b), pursuant to which the Issuer will pay to the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty an index based floating price and the Commodity Swap Counterparty will pay to the 
Issuer a fixed price in relation to the quantities of Energy to be delivered under the Energy Purchase 
Agreement. 

“Commodity Swap Counterparty” means Natixis, S. A. and its successors and assigns and 
the counterparty to any replacement Commodity Swap that meets the requirements of 
Section 2.12(b). 

“Commodity Swap Mandatory Termination Event” has the meaning set forth in 
Section 2.12(c)(iii). 

“Commodity Swap Payment Fund” means the Commodity Swap Payment Fund 
established in Section 5.02. 

“Commodity Swap Payments” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in a 
Commodity Swap, the amount, if any, payable to the Commodity Swap Counterparty by the Issuer 
(including any such amount paid to the Custodian pursuant to Section 3 of the Issuer Custodial 
Agreement). 

“Commodity Swap Receipts” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in a 
Commodity Swap, the amount, if any, payable to the Issuer by the Commodity Swap Counterparty. 

“Contract Price” has the meaning assigned to such term in the Power Supply Contracts. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -8- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Conversion” means (a) a conversion of a Series of Bonds from one Interest Rate Period 
to another Interest Rate Period, (b) with respect to a Series of Bonds bearing interest at an Index 
Rate, the establishment of a new Index, a new Index Rate and/or a new Index Rate Period and 
(c) with respect to a Series of Bonds bearing interest in a Term Rate Period, the establishment of 
a new Term Rate and/or a new Term Rate Period.  A Conversion may occur only on a Mandatory 
Purchase Date. 

“Conversion Date” means the effective date of a Conversion of a Series of Bonds and shall 
occur only on a Mandatory Purchase Date. 

“Cost of Acquisition” means all costs of planning, financing, refinancing, acquiring, 
transmitting, storing and implementing Clean Energy Project, including: 

 (a) the amount of the prepayment required to be made by the Issuer under the 
Energy Purchase Agreement; 

 (b) the amount for deposit into the Capitalized Interest Subaccount of the Debt 
Service Account for capitalized interest on the Bonds, with such interest being calculated 
in accordance with the definition of “Debt Service;” 

 (c) the costs and expenses incurred in the issuance and sale of the Bonds, 
including, without limitation, legal, financial advisory, accounting, engineering, 
consulting, municipal advisory, financing, technical, fiscal agent and underwriting costs, 
fees and expenses, bond discount, rating agency fees, and all other costs and expenses 
incurred in connection with the authorization, sale and issuance of the Bonds and 
preparation of this Indenture; 

 (e) all other costs incurred in connection with and properly chargeable to, the 
acquisition or implementation of the Clean Energy Project; 

 (f) the allowance for working capital requirements of the Issuer with respect to 
the Clean Energy Project in such amounts as shall be deemed reasonably necessary by the 
Issuer; and 

 (g) with respect to any Series of Refunding Bonds, the amounts necessary to 
purchase, redeem and discharge Bonds being refunded, including the payment of the 
Purchase Price or the Redemption Price of such Bonds, any necessary deposits to the Debt 
Service Account, and all other costs and expenses incurred in connection with such Series 
of Refunding Bonds, including the costs and expenses described in (e) and (f) above. 

“CP Interest Term” means, with respect to a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period for a 
Series of Bonds, each period established in accordance with Section 2.08 during which a 
CP Interest Term Rate is in effect for the Bonds of such Series. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -9- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“CP Interest Term Rate” means, with respect to any Bond of a Series of Bonds in the 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, an interest rate established periodically for each CP 
Interest Term in accordance with Section 2.08. 

“CP Mandatory Purchase Date” means (i) each Mandatory Purchase Date and (ii) the day 
next succeeding the last day of each CP Interest Term. 

“CPI” means, the non-seasonally adjusted U.S. City Average All Items Consumer Price 
Index for All Urban Consumers (“CPI”), published monthly by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of 
the U.S. Department of Labor (“BLS”) and reported on Bloomberg CPURNSA or any successor 
service (“Bloomberg CPURNSA”).  If such index is not then reported by such source but the CPI 
has otherwise been reported by the BLS, the Calculation Agent will determine the CPI as published 
by the BLS for such Month using a source it deems to be accurate and appropriate. 

“CPI Index Rate Formula” means (i) the total of CPI for the applicable Reference Month 
less CPI for the twelfth month prior to the applicable Reference Month, divided by (ii) CPI for the 
twelfth month prior to the applicable Reference Month, which formula would be expressed 
mathematically as ((CPIt — CPIt-12) / CPIt-12), where: 

CPIt = CPI for the applicable Reference Month; and 

CPIt-12 = CPI for the twelfth month prior to the applicable Reference Month. 

All values used in the CPI Index Rate Formula will be truncated to six decimal places and rounded 
to the nearest fifth decimal place (one hundred thousandth of a percentage point), rounding 
upwards if the sixth decimal place is five or greater (e.g., 9.876555% (or .09876555) would be 
rounded up to 9.87656% (or .0987656) and 9.876554% (or .09876554) would be rounded down 
to 9.87655% (or .0987655)).  All percentages resulting from any calculation of the interest rate 
will be truncated to four decimal places and rounded to the nearest third decimal place (one 
thousandth of a percentage point), rounding upwards if the fourth decimal place is five or greater 
(e.g., 9.8765% (or .098765) would be rounded up to 9.877% (or .09877) and 9.8764% (or .098764) 
would be rounded down to 9.876% (or .09876)).  All dollar amounts used in or resulting from such 
calculation on Bonds bearing interest at the CPI Index Rate will be rounded to the nearest cent 
(with one-half cent being rounded upward). 

If the sum of (i) the CPI Index Rate Formula and (ii) the Applicable Spread on any CPI Index Rate 
Reset Date yields a number equal to or less than zero, the interest rate on such CPI Index Rate 
Bonds shall be 0.00% (zero percent) for the applicable month. 

“CPI Index Rate” means the interest rate per annum determined by the Calculation Agent 
equal to the sum of (a) the result of the CPI Interest Rate Formula, plus (b) the Applicable Spread, 
as set forth in Section 2.14. 

“CPI Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period during 
which a CPI Index Rate is in effect for such Bonds. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -10- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“CPI Index Rate Reset Date” means, the first Business Day of each calendar month. 

“CPI Interest Period” means the period from and including a CPI Index Rate Reset Date, 
to but excluding the next following CPI Index Rate Reset Date. 

“Custodial Agreements” means, collectively, the Energy Supplier Custodial Agreement 
and the Issuer Custodial Agreement. 

“Custodian” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Custodian 
under the Custodial Agreements and its successors and assigns. 

“Daily Interest Rate” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the final daily interest rate 
for such Bonds determined by the Remarketing Agent by 11:00 a.m. New York City time pursuant 
to Section 2.05. 

“Daily Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period during 
which a Daily Interest Rate is in effect for such Bonds. 

“Debt Service” means with respect to any Outstanding Bonds, for any particular period of 
time, an amount equal to the sum of: 

 (a) all interest payable during such period on such Bonds, but excluding any 
interest that is to be paid from Bond proceeds on deposit in the Debt Service Account, plus 

 (b) the Principal Installments payable during such period on such Bonds, 
calculated on the assumption that, on the day of calculation, such Bonds cease to be 
Outstanding by reason of, but only by reason of, payment either upon maturity or 
application of any Sinking Fund Installments required by this Indenture; 

provided that (i) the interest on any Bonds with a related Interest Rate Swap shall be calculated on 
the basis of the fixed interest rate payable by the Issuer under the Interest Rate Swap, and 
(ii) principal and interest due on the first day of a Fiscal Year shall be deemed to have been payable 
and paid on the last day of the immediately preceding Fiscal Year. 

“Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund 
established in Section 5.02. 

“Debt Service Fund” means the Debt Service Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Debt Service Fund Agreement” means any debt service fund agreement, that is a 
Qualified Investment, among the Trustee, the Issuer and a provider, or between the Issuer and a 
provider and assigned to the Trustee, relating to amounts deposited in the Debt Service Account 
of the Debt Service Fund.  The initial Debt Service Fund Agreement shall be the Debt Service 
Account Investment Agreement between the Issuer and Morgan Stanley Capital Group, Inc., dated 
__________, 20__. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -11- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Debt Service Fund Agreement Guaranty” means any unconditional guaranty, in favor of 
the Issuer and the Trustee, guarantying the obligations of the provider under any Debt Service 
Fund Agreement. 

“Defaulted Interest” has the meaning given to such term in Section 3.08. 

“Defeasance Securities” means (a) Government Obligations and (b) to the extent that such 
deposits or certificates of deposit are Qualified Investments, deposits in interest‑bearing time 
deposits or certificates of deposit which shall not be subject to redemption or repayment prior to 
their maturity or due date other than at the option of the depositor or holder thereof or as to which 
an irrevocable notice of redemption or repayment, or irrevocable instructions have been given to 
call for redemption or repayment, of such time deposits or certificates of deposit on a specified 
redemption or repayment date has been given and such time deposits or certificates of deposit are 
not otherwise subject to redemption or repayment prior to such specified date other than at the 
option of the depositor or holder thereof, and which are fully secured by Government Obligations 
to the extent not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

“Depository” means any bank, trust company, national banking association, savings and 
loan association, savings bank or other banking association selected by the Issuer as a depository 
of moneys and securities held under the provisions of this Indenture, and may include the Trustee. 

“Dissemination Agent” means that certain dissemination agent appointed by the Issuer, 
pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and any successor Dissemination Agent 
appointed by the Issuer in accordance with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors 
and assigns. 

“Early Termination Payment Date” has the meaning given to such term in Section 17.4(d) 
of the Energy Purchase Agreement. 

“Electronic Means” means the following communication methods:  e‑mail, facsimile 
transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords 
and/or authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system specified by a 
Responsible Officer of the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder. 

“Eligible Bonds” means any Bonds other than Bonds which a Responsible Officer of the 
Trustee actually knows to be owned by, for the account of, or on behalf of the Issuer or a Project 
Participant. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system, the website currently 
maintained by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and any successor municipal securities 
disclosure website approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Energy” has the meaning given to such term in the Power Supply Contracts. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -12- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Energy Purchase Agreement” means the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, dated as of 
__________, 2022, between the Issuer and the Energy Supplier. 

“Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund” means the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund in 
established in Section 5.02. 

“Energy Supplier” means Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 

“Energy Supplier Custodial Agreement” means the Custodial Agreement dated as of the 
Initial Issue Date among the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the Energy Supplier, the Trustee and 
the Custodian. 

“Energy Supplier Guaranty” means the Morgan Stanley Guarantee, as defined in the 
Energy Purchase Agreement. 

“Event of Default” has the meaning given to such term in Section 8.01. 

“Extraordinary Expenses” means extraordinary and nonrecurring expenses.  Termination 
payments under the Commodity Swap shall not be considered an Extraordinary Expense. 

“Failed Remarketing” means, (a) with respect to the Bonds on any Mandatory Purchase 
Date, a failure to either (i) pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on such 
date or (ii) redeem such Bonds in whole on such date (including from any funds required from an 
Assignment Payment to the Assignment Payment Fund) or (b) with respect to the Bonds (i) if, on 
the last day of the current Reset Period prior to a Mandatory Purchase Date, the Issuer has not 
entered into a bond purchase agreement, firm remarketing agreement or similar agreement with 
respect to the remarketing or refunding of such existing Bonds, or (ii) if the conditions of (b)(i) 
above are satisfied, but the Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on the Mandatory 
Purchase Date is not delivered to the Trustee by noon New York City time on the fifth Business 
Day preceding such Mandatory Purchase Date. 

“Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect 
that an action proposed to be taken is not prohibited by this Indenture and will not, in and of itself, 
cause interest on the applicable Bonds to be included in gross income for purposes of federal 
income taxation. 

“Fiduciary” or “Fiduciaries” means the Trustee, the Paying Agents, the Bond Registrar, 
the Calculation Agents, the Custodian, the tender agent or any or all of them, as may be 
appropriate. 

“Final Fixed Rate Conversion Date” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the date on 
which such Bonds begin to bear interest for a Term Rate Period which extends to the Final Maturity 
Date for such Series of Bonds. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -13- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Final Maturity Date” means (a) with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, ___________ 
1, 20__ and (b) with respect to any other Series of Bonds, the final Maturity Date set forth in the 
related Supplemental Indenture. 

“Fiscal Year” means (a) the twelve-month period beginning on January 1 of each year and 
ending on and including the next December 31, or (b) such other twelve-month period established 
by the Issuer from time to time, upon Written Notice to the Trustee, as its fiscal year. 

“Fitch” means Fitch Ratings, Inc., its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall 
no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Fitch” shall be deemed to refer to 
any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the Issuer in a Written 
Notice delivered to the Trustee. 

“Fund” or “Funds” means, as the case may be, each or all of the Funds established in 
Section 5.02 and Section 4.15. 

“General Reserve Fund” means the General Reserve Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Government Obligations” means: 

 (a) Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry 
form on the books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America, 
obligations unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of 
America, and evidences of ownership interests in such direct or unconditionally guaranteed 
obligations; or 

 (b) Any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America 
or of any agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such state which:  (i) are 
not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable notice 
has been given by the obligor to call such bonds or obligations on the date specified in the 
notice; (ii) are rated in the two highest Rating Categories of S&P and Moody’s; and (iii) are 
fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund 
consisting only of cash or obligations described in clause (a) above, which fund may be 
applied only to the payment of interest when due, principal of and redemption premium, if 
any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified 
redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable notice, as appropriate; or 

 (c) Any other bonds, notes or obligations of the United States of America or 
any agency or instrumentality thereof which, if deposited with the Trustee for the purpose 
described in Section 12.01(c), will result in a rating on the Bonds which are deemed to 
have been paid pursuant to Section 12.01(c) that is in the same Rating Category of the 
obligations listed in subsection (a) above. 

The determination as to whether any bond, note or other obligation constitutes a Government 
Obligation shall be made solely at the time of initial investment or purchase; provided that, the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -14- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Trustee shall have no responsibility for determining whether any bond, note or other obligation is 
a Government Obligation. 

“Indenture” means this Trust Indenture as from time to time amended or supplemented by 
Supplemental Indentures in accordance with the terms hereof. 

“Index” means the SIFMA Index, the SOFR Index or CPI, as applicable. 

“Index Rate” means a SIFMA Index Rate, SOFR Index Rate or a CPI Index Rate, as 
applicable. 

“Index Rate Determination Certificate” means a Written Certificate delivered by the Issuer 
in the form of Exhibit B hereto pursuant to Section 2.09(b)(i) or Section 2.14(b)(i). 

“Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, an Interest Rate Period 
during which the Bonds of such Series bear interest at an Index Rate. 

“Index Rate Reset Date” means, with respect to (i) the Series 2022A-2 Bonds during the 
Initial Interest Rate Period, Thursday of each week or, if the SIFMA Index is not issued on 
Wednesday of such week, the Business Day next succeeding the day on which the SIFMA Index 
for such week is issued, and (ii) with respect to any other Series of Bonds bearing interest at an 
Index Rate, each date on which the applicable Index Rate is determined by the Calculation Agent 
based on the change in the applicable Index as of such date, which shall be the date or dates so 
specified in the applicable Index Rate Determination Certificate with respect to such Index Rate 
Period (including, by way of example and not limitation, Thursday of each week, the first Business 
Day of each calendar month or the first Business Day of a calendar quarter). 

“Index Rate Tender Date” means, with respect to any Index Rate Period for a Series of 
Bonds, the date so specified in the applicable Index Rate Determination Certificate with respect to 
such Index Rate, which date shall be the next-occurring Mandatory Purchase Date, which shall be 
a date not later than the Final Maturity Date.  The Index Rate Tender Date shall always be a 
Business Day, unless such date is the Final Maturity Date.  If a date (other than the Final Maturity 
Date) that is not a Business Day is specified as an Index Rate Tender Date, then the Index Rate 
Tender Date shall be the Business Day immediately following such specified date. 

“Initial Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, the period 
from the Initial Issue Date to and including __________, 20__; provided that in the event that all 
of the Series 2022A Bonds are redeemed (or purchased in lieu of redemption) pursuant to 
Section 4.03, the Initial Interest Rate Period shall end on and as of the day of such redemption or 
purchase. 

“Initial Issue Date” means the date of initial issuance and delivery of the Series 2022A 
Bonds. 

“Initial Mandatory Purchase Date” means __________ 1, 20__, which is the day 
following the last day of the Initial Interest Rate Period for the Series 2022A Bonds. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -15- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Interest Accrual Date” means, with respect to any Bond (a) during any Daily Interest Rate 
Period or Weekly Interest Rate Period for such Bond, the first day thereof and, thereafter, each 
Interest Payment Date in respect thereof other than the last such Interest Payment Date during that 
Daily Interest Rate Period or Weekly Interest Rate Period, as applicable, (b) during any Index Rate 
Period for such Bond, the first day thereof and, thereafter each Interest Payment Date in respect 
thereof other than the last such Interest Payment Date during that Index Rate Period, except as 
otherwise provided in the Supplemental Indenture for such Bond, (c) during any Term Rate Period 
for such Bond, the first day thereof and, thereafter, each Interest Payment Date in respect thereof 
other than the last such Interest Payment Date during that Term Rate Period, and (d) for each CP 
Interest Term for such Bond within a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, the first day thereof. 

“Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to any Bond (a) during any Daily Interest 
Rate Period or Weekly Interest Rate Period for such Bond, the first Business Day of each Month, 
(b) during any Index Rate Period for such Bond, the first Business Day of each Month, except as 
otherwise provided by Supplemental Indenture for such Bond, (c) during any Term Rate Period 
for such Bond, each February 1 and August 1, provided that the first Interest Payment Dade for 
any Term Rate Period shall be at least ninety (90) days from the first day of such period, (d) during 
any Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period for such Bond, the day next succeeding the last day of 
each CP Interest Term for such Bond, (d) any redemption date for such Bond, (e) any Mandatory 
Purchase Date for such Bond, and (f) the Maturity Date of such Bond. 

“Interest Rate Determination Certificate” means a certificate of the Issuer delivered to the 
Trustee no later than 30 days prior to the effective date of the new Interest Rate Period, setting 
forth the applicable Interest Rate Period and, during such Interest Rate Period, the next occurring 
Mandatory Purchase Date, and (i) for Bonds bearing interest at a Term Rate, the interest rate(s) for 
such Bonds during such Interest Rate Period and (ii) for Bonds bearing interest at an Index Rate, 
the Index, the Index Rate Reset Date, the Applicable Spread and the CPI and the CPI Interest 
Period, if applicable, for such Bonds during such Interest Rate Period. 

“Interest Rate Period” means a Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly Interest Rate Period, 
a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, a Term Rate Period or an Index Rate Period.  
Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, all Bonds of a Series shall at all times 
bear interest in the same Interest Rate Period.  All Interest Rate Periods for all Series of Bonds 
shall terminate on the first to occur of the day prior to (a) the next occurring Mandatory Purchase 
Date or (b) the Final Maturity Date. 

“Interest Rate Swap” means (a)  the ISDA Master Agreement, the Schedule thereto and 
each Confirmation thereunder between the Issuer and the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, 
pursuant to which the Issuer agrees to make payments to the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty at a 
fixed rate of interest and the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty agrees to make payments to the 
Issuer at a floating rate equal to the rate of interest borne by a related Series of Variable Rate 
Bonds, in each case with a notional amount equal to the Outstanding principal amount of such 
Series of Bonds, and (b) any replacement interest rate swap agreement permitted by 
Section 2.13(b), in each case as originally executed or as it may from time to time be supplemented, 
modified or amended pursuant to the terms thereof and this Indenture, as applicable; provided that, 
as long as no Interest Rate Swap has been entered into by the Issuer, all references herein to the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -16- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Interest Rate Swap, Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, Interest Rate Swap Receipts and Interest 
Rate Swap Payments (including, without limitation, Section 7.15) shall be disregarded. 

“Interest Rate Swap Counterparty” means the counterparty to the Interest Rate Swap or 
replacement Interest Rate Swap, and any successor and assign thereof, that meets the requirements 
of Section 2.13(b). 

“Interest Rate Swap Payments” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in the 
Interest Rate Swap, the amount, if any, payable to the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty by the 
Issuer. 

“Interest Rate Swap Receipts” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in the 
Interest Rate Swap, the amount, if any, payable to the Issuer by the Interest Rate Swap 
Counterparty. 

“Internal Revenue Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  
References herein to sections of the Internal Revenue Code include the applicable U.S. Treasury 
Regulations promulgated thereunder. 

“Issue Date” means (a) with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, the Initial Issue Date, and 
(b) with respect to any other Series of Bonds, the date of initial issuance and delivery of such 
Series. 

“Issuer” means California Community Choice Financing Authority, a joint powers 
authority organized pursuant to the laws of the State of California, including without limitation, 
the Act. 

“Issuer Custodial Agreement” means the Custodial Agreement dated as of the Initial Issue 
Date among the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the Issuer, the Trustee and the Custodian. 

“Issuer Purchase Account” means the Account by that name in the Bond Purchase Fund. 

“Liquidity Facility” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, a standby bond purchase 
agreement, letter of credit or similar facility providing liquidity support for such Series of Bonds 
and any Alternate Liquidity Facility provided in substitution of the foregoing. 

“Liquidity Facility Provider” means, with respect to a Liquidity Facility for a Series of 
Bonds, the commercial bank or other financial institution providing the same and any other 
commercial bank or other financial institution issuing or providing (or having primary obligation 
for, or acting as agent for the financial institutions obligated under) an Alternate Liquidity Facility. 

“Mandatory Purchase Date” means (i) the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date, and (ii) any 
subsequent date on which Bonds are required to be purchased pursuant to Section 4.13 or 
Section 4.14, respectively. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -17- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Maturity Date” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each date upon which principal 
of such Bonds is due, as set forth in (a) Section 2.02(b) with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, 
and (b) the related Supplemental Indenture with respect to any other Series of Bonds. 

“Maximum Lawful Rate” means the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. 

“Maximum Rate” means the lesser of 12% per annum and the Maximum Lawful Rate. 

“Member” has the meaning given to such term in the recitals to this Indenture. 

“Minimum Daily Interest Rate” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds bearing interest 
at a Daily Rate, the minimum rate determined by the Remarketing Agent by 10:00 a.m. New York 
City time pursuant to Section 2.05. 

“Month” means a calendar month. 

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., its successors and assigns, and, if such 
corporation shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’s” shall 
be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the 
Issuer in a Written Notice delivered to the Trustee. 

“MWh” means a megawatt-hour. 

“Net Participant Shortfall Amount” means, for any Month in which a Project Participant 
fails to pay the full amount due under its Power Supply Contract in time for such amount to be 
credited to the Revenue Fund for application pursuant to Section 5.05(a) and the full amount due 
by such Project Participant is not otherwise paid by the Energy Supplier pursuant to the 
Receivables Purchase Provisions, an amount equal to the positive result (if any) of (i) such Project 
Participant’s Payment Deficiency Index Baseline for such Month minus (ii) the greater of (a) such 
Project Participant’s Payment Deficiency Fixed Baseline for such Month, and (b) the actual 
amount paid by such Project Participant for such Month, provided that if the foregoing does not 
result in a positive number, then no Net Participant Shortfall Amount will exist for such Project 
Participant for such Month. 

“Operating Expenses” means, to the extent properly allocable to the Clean Energy Project, 
(a) the Issuer’s expenses for operation of the Clean Energy Project, including all Rebate Payments, 
costs, collateral deposits and other amounts (other than Commodity Swap Payments) necessary to 
maintain any Commodity Swap; and payments required under the Energy Purchase Agreement 
(which may, under certain circumstances, include imbalance charges and other miscellaneous 
payments) or required to be incurred under or in connection with the performance of the Issuer’s 
obligations under the Power Supply Contracts; (b) any other current expenses or obligations 
required to be paid by the Issuer under the provisions of this Indenture (other than Debt Service 
on the Bonds and deposits to the General Reserve Fund and the Energy Remarketing Reserve 
Fund, or any Cost of Acquisition) or by law or required to be incurred under or in connection with 
the performance of the Issuer’s obligations under the Power Supply Contracts; (c) fees payable by 
the Issuer with respect to any Remarketing Agreement; (d) the fees and expenses of the Fiduciaries; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -18- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

(e) reasonable accounting, legal and other professional fees and expenses, and all other reasonable 
administrative and operating expenses of the Issuer, which are incurred by the Issuer with respect 
to the Bonds, this Indenture, or the Clean Energy Project, including but not limited to those relating 
to the administration of the Trust Estate and compliance by the Issuer with its continuing disclosure 
obligations, if any, with respect to the Bonds; and (f) the costs of any insurance premiums incurred 
by the Issuer, including, without limitation, directors and officers liability insurance allocable to 
the Clean Energy Project; provided that, for purposes of Section 5.05(ii), Operating Expenses shall 
not include any of the foregoing administrative expenses, fees or other costs described in the 
foregoing clauses (a) through (f) that are paid from funds on deposit in the Administrative Fee 
Fund.  Commodity Swap Payments, litigation judgments and settlements and indemnification 
payments in connection with the payment of any litigation judgment or settlement, and 
Extraordinary Expenses are not Operating Expenses.   

“Operating Fund” means the Operating Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means a written opinion of either Bond Counsel or Special 
Tax Counsel (or written opinions of both of them) addressed to the Issuer and delivered to the 
Trustee. 

“Opinion of Counsel” means an opinion signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys (who 
may be counsel to the Issuer) selected by the Issuer. 

“Optional Purchase Date” means any date on which Bonds are to be purchased pursuant 
to Section 4.11. 

“Outstanding” when used with reference to Bonds, means as of any date, Bonds 
theretofore or thereupon being authenticated and delivered under this Indenture except: 

 (a) Bonds cancelled (or portions thereof deemed to have been cancelled) by the 
Trustee at or prior to such date; 

 (b) Bonds (or portions of Bonds) for the payment or redemption of which 
moneys, equal to the principal amount or Redemption Price thereof, as the case may be, 
with interest to the date of maturity or redemption date, shall be held in trust under this 
Indenture and set aside for such payment or redemption (whether at or prior to the maturity 
or redemption date), provided that if such Bonds (or portions of Bonds) are to be redeemed, 
notice of such redemption shall have been given or provision satisfactory to the Trustee 
shall have been made for the giving of such notice as provided in Article IV; 

 (c) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been 
authenticated and delivered pursuant to Article III or Section 4.06 or Section 11.06; 

 (d) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid as provided in Section 12.01; and  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -19- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (e) Bonds (or portions thereof) deemed to have been purchased pursuant to the 
provisions of any Supplemental Indenture in lieu of which other Bonds have been 
authenticated and delivered as provided in such Supplemental Indenture. 

“Outstanding Sold Receivables” means, in respect of any Project Participant, Put 
Receivables that have been sold to the Energy Supplier pursuant to the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, together with any interest accrued thereon pursuant to the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, less any such Put Receivables and interest thereon that has been previously paid or 
repurchased from the Energy Supplier pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions. 

“Participants” means those broker dealers, banks and other financial institutions from time 
to time for which DTC holds Bonds as Securities Depository. 

“Paying Agent” means the Trustee, its successors and assigns, and any other bank or trust 
company organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America or any national 
banking association designated as paying agent for the Bonds, and its successor or successors 
hereafter appointed in the manner provided in this Indenture. 

“Payment Deficiency Fixed Baseline” means, for any Month and any Project Participant, 
the amount such Project Participant would have been required to pay for such Month under its 
Power Supply Contract if the Contract Price for such Month had been determined using an Index 
Price (as defined under its Power Supply Contract) for such Month equal to the Fixed Price (as 
defined under the Commodity Swap) for such Month. 

“Payment Deficiency Index Baseline” means, for any Month and any Project Participant, 
the amount required to be paid by such Project Participant for such Month under its Power Supply 
Contract. 

“Person” means any and all natural persons, firms, associations, corporations and public 
bodies. 

“Pledged Funds” means (a) the Project Fund, (b) the Revenue Fund, (c) the Debt Service 
Fund, (d) the General Reserve Fund, (e) the Assignment Payment Fund and (f) the Commodity 
Swap Payment Fund, in each case including the Accounts in each of such Funds and in the case of 
the Commodity Swap Payment Fund, subject to the prior pledge thereof in favor of the Commodity 
Swap Counterparty. 

“Power Supply Contract” means (a) each of the contracts for the sale by the Issuer of 
Energy from or attributable to the Clean Energy Project to a Project Participant identified on 
Schedule I, as such contracts may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms 
thereof and this Indenture, and (b) any other contract for the sale by the Issuer of Energy from or 
attributable to the Clean Energy Project entered into by a Person that becomes a Project Participant 
in accordance with the assignment and novation requirements set forth in Section 7.10(iv), as such 
contract may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof and this 
Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -20- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Prepaid Clean Energy Project Administration Agreement” means the Prepaid Clean 
Energy Project Administration Agreement, dated as of __________, 2022, between the Issuer and 
East Bay Community Energy Authority, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

“Prevailing Market Conditions” means, without limitation, the following factors:  existing 
short term market rates for securities, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes or, as applicable, qualifies the issuer thereof to receive Subsidy 
Payments or similar benefit; indexes of such short term rates; the existing market supply and 
demand and the existing yield curves for short term and long term securities for obligations of 
credit quality comparable to the Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes; general economic conditions and financial conditions that may affect 
or be relevant to the Bonds; and such other facts, circumstances and conditions as the Remarketing 
Agent, in its sole discretion, shall determine to be relevant to the remarketing of the Bonds at the 
Purchase Price thereof. 

“Principal Installment” means, as of any date of calculation, (a) the principal amount of 
Bonds due on a certain future date for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been established, 
or (b) the unsatisfied balance (determined as provided in Section 5.10(c)) of any Sinking Fund 
Installments due on a certain future date in a principal amount equal to said unsatisfied balance of 
such Sinking Fund Installments. 

“Project Administration Fee” has the meaning assigned to such term in the Energy Supply 
Contracts. 

“Project Fund” means the Project Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Project Participant” means (a) a Public Agency that is an Energy purchaser under a 
Power Supply Contract and identified as a “Project Participant” in Schedule I and (b) any other 
Person that enters into a Power Supply Contract with the Issuer in accordance with the assignment 
and novation requirements set forth in Section 7.10(iv). 

“Public Agency” means a state, a governmental or political subdivision of a state and a 
corporate instrumentality or public corporation of a state or a subdivision of a state, including 
without limitation any of their departments or agencies, counties, county boards of education, 
county superintendents of schools, cities, public corporations, public districts, public commissions 
or joint powers authorities. 

“Purchase Date” means an Optional Purchase Date or a Mandatory Purchase Date, as the 
case may be. 

“Purchase Price” means (a) with respect to any Purchased Bond to be purchased on an 
Optional Purchase Date, an amount equal to the principal amount of such Bond Outstanding on 
such date plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, unless such Optional Purchase Date is an 
Interest Payment Date for such Bond, in which case interest on such Bond shall not be included in 
the Purchase Price of such Bond but shall be paid to the Owner of such Bond in accordance with 
the interest payment provisions of this Indenture, (b) except as provided in clause (c) below, with 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -21- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

respect to any Purchased Bond to be purchased on a Mandatory Purchase Date, an amount equal 
to the principal amount of such Bond Outstanding on such date, and (c) in the case of a purchase 
of a Bond bearing interest at a Term Rate pursuant to Section 4.14 with respect to which the new 
Interest Rate Period commences prior to the day originally established as the last day of the 
preceding Term Rate Period, the optional redemption price for such Bond set forth in 
Section 4.03(b) or in an applicable Supplemental Indenture which would have been applicable to 
such Bond if the preceding Term Rate Period had continued to the day originally established as its 
last day.  Accrued interest due on any Bonds to be purchased on a Mandatory Purchase Date shall 
be paid from amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund on such 
date in accordance with Section 5.07. 

“Purchased Bonds” means any Bonds required to be purchased on a Purchase Date. 

“Put Option Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(a) of the Receivables 
Purchase Provisions. 

“Put Receivable” has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1 of the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions. 

“Qualified Investments” means any of the following investments, if and to the extent that 
the same are rated (or whose financial obligations to the Issuer receive credit support from an entity 
rated) at least at the credit rating of the Energy Supplier, or, if the Energy Supplier is not rated, the 
guarantor of the Energy Supplier (except for (c) below), and are at the time authorized for such 
purpose by law: 

 (a) Direct obligations of the United States government or any of its agencies; 

 (b) Obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States 
government or any of its agencies; 

 (c) Certificates of deposit, including those placed by a third party pursuant to 
an agreement between the Trustee and the Issuer, and other evidences of deposit at state 
and federally chartered banks, savings and loan institutions or savings banks, including the 
Trustee or any of its affiliates (each having the highest short term rating by each Rating 
Agency then rating the Bonds) deposited and collateralized as required by law; 

 (d) Repurchase agreements entered into with the United States or its agencies 
or with any bank, broker dealer or other such entity, including the Trustee and its affiliates, 
so long as the obligation of the obligated party is secured by a perfected pledge of 
obligations that meet the conditions set forth in the preamble to this definition of Qualified 
Investments; 

 (e) Guaranteed investment contracts, forward delivery agreements, interest rate 
exchange agreements or similar agreements providing for a specified rate of return over a 
specified time period; provided, however, that guaranteed investment contracts, forward 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -22- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

delivery agreements or similar agreements shall meet the conditions set forth in the 
preamble to this definition of Qualified Investments; 

 (f) Direct general obligations of a state of the United States, or a political 
subdivision or instrumentality thereof, having general taxing powers; 

 (g) Obligations of any state of the United States or a political subdivision or 
instrumentality thereof, secured solely by revenues received by or on behalf of the state or 
political subdivision or instrumentality thereof irrevocably pledged to the payment of 
principal of and interest on such obligations and that meet the conditions set forth in the 
preamble to this definition of Qualified Investments; 

 (h) Money market funds registered under the federal Investment Company Act 
of 1940, whose shares are registered under the federal Securities Act of 1933, and having 
a rating in the highest Rating Category by each Rating Agency at the time of investment, 
including money market funds of the Trustee and funds for which the Trustee or its 
affiliates (i) provide investment or other management services and (ii) serve as investment 
manager, administrator, shareholder, servicing agent and/or custodian or sub-custodian, 
notwithstanding that (A) the Trustee or its affiliate receives or collects fees from such funds 
for services rendered, and (B) services performed by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture 
may at times duplicate those provided to such funds by the Trustee or its affiliate; or 

 (i) Any other investments permitted by applicable law for the investment of the 
funds of the Issuer and that meet the conditions set forth in the preamble to this definition 
of Qualified Investments; 

provided, that the Issuer shall monitor, or shall cause to be monitored, ratings and shall determine 
whether any investment made is or continues to be a Qualified Investment, and the Trustee shall 
have no responsibility whatsoever for monitoring ratings or determining whether any investment 
is or continues to be a Qualified Investment. 

“Rating Agency” means Fitch, Moody’s or S&P, or any other rating agency so designated 
in a Supplemental Indenture that, at the time, rates the Bonds. 

“Rating Category” means one or more of the generic rating categories of a Rating Agency, 
without regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating category or categories by a numerical 
modifier, a plus or minus, or otherwise. 

“Rating Confirmation” means evidence satisfactory to the Issuer, so designated in a 
Written Statement of the Issuer delivered to the Trustee, that upon the effectiveness of any 
proposed action, all Outstanding Bonds will continue to be assigned at least the same or equivalent 
ratings (including the same or equivalent numerical, plus or minus, or other modifiers within a 
Rating Category) by each Rating Agency then rating such Outstanding Bonds. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -23- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Rebate Payments” means those portions of moneys or securities held in any Fund or 
Account that are required to be paid to the United States Treasury Department under the 
requirements of Section 148(f) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

“Receivables Purchase Provisions” means (i) initially, the provisions set forth in 
Exhibit G to the Energy Purchase Agreement, and (ii) any successor provisions for the purchase 
and sale of receivables in respect of amounts due and unpaid under the Power Supply Contracts 
and provided in a Written Notice of the Issuer to the Trustee. 

“Redemption Account” means the Redemption Account in the Debt Service Fund 
established in Section 5.02. 

“Redemption Price” means, with respect to any Bond, the amount payable upon 
redemption thereof pursuant to such Bond or this Indenture. 

“Reference Month” means, with respect to each CPI Index Rate Reset Date, the third 
calendar month preceding such CPI Index Rate Reset Date.   

“Refunding Bonds” means a Series of Bonds authorized to be issued pursuant to 
Section 2.01(c) for the sole purposes of refunding or defeasing (in accordance with Article XII) in 
whole a Series of Bonds then Outstanding, and paying the Cost of Acquisition with respect to such 
Refunding Bonds. 

“Regular Record Date” means (i) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of 
any Daily Interest Rate Period, Weekly Interest Rate Period, Index Rate Period, Commercial Paper 
Interest Rate Period, the Business Day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date, and 
(ii) with respect to any Interest Payment Date in respect of any Term Rate Period, the 15th day of 
the Month (whether or not such day is a Business Day) immediately preceding the Month in which 
such Interest Payment Date falls. 

“Remarketing Agent” means, with respect to any Series of Bonds, the entity appointed as 
the remarketing agent for such Series pursuant to the related Remarketing Agreement and, if 
applicable, the related Supplemental Indenture. 

“Remarketing Agreement” means, with respect to any Series of Bonds, the remarketing 
agreement, if any, entered into between the Issuer and the Remarketing Agent for such Series of 
Bonds. 

“Remarketing Proceeds Account” means the Account by that name within the Bond 
Purchase Fund. 

“Remarketing Provisions” means the electricity remarketing provisions set forth in 
Exhibit C to the Energy Purchase Agreement. 

“Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price” has the meaning given to such term in the 
Remarketing Provisions. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -24- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Re-Pricing Agreement” means the Re-Pricing Agreement dated as of the Initial Issue 
Date between the Issuer and the Energy Supplier, as the same may be amended in accordance with 
its terms. 

“Reset Period” means Initial Reset Period or Reset Period, as the case may be, each as 
defined in the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“Responsible Officer” means, when used with respect to the Trustee, the Custodian or the 
Calculation Agent, as applicable, any managing director, president, vice president, senior 
associate, associate or other officer of the Trustee, the Custodian or the Calculation Agent, 
respectively, within its designated corporate trust office for delivery of notice specified in 
Section 12.11 (or any successor corporate trust office) customarily performing functions similar 
to those performed by the persons who at the time shall be such officers, respectively, or to whom 
any corporate trust matter is referred at such office because of such person’s knowledge of and 
familiarity with the particular subject and having direct responsibility for the administration of this 
Indenture. 

“Revenue Fund” means the Revenue Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Revenues” means: 

 (a) all revenues, income, rents, user fees or charges, and receipts derived or to 
be derived by the Issuer from or attributable or relating to the ownership and operation of 
the Clean Energy Project, including all revenues attributable or relating to the Clean Energy 
Project or to the payment of the costs thereof received or to be received by the Issuer under 
the Power Supply Contracts and the Energy Purchase Agreement or otherwise payable to 
the Trustee for the account of the Issuer for the sale and/or transmission of Energy or 
otherwise with respect to the Clean Energy Project; 

 (b) interest received or to be received on any moneys or securities (other than 
moneys or securities held in the Project Fund, moneys or securities held in the Redemption 
Account in the Debt Service Fund or that portion of moneys in the Operating Fund required 
for Rebate Payments) held pursuant to this Indenture and paid or required to be paid into 
the Revenue Fund; 

 (c) any Commodity Swap Receipts received by the Trustee on behalf of the 
Issuer; and 

 (d) any Subsidy Payments received by the Trustee, on behalf of the Issuer, in 
accordance with Section 3.10 of this Indenture. 

provided that, the term “Revenues” shall not include:  (u) any Termination Payment pursuant to 
the Energy Purchase Agreement; (v) any amounts received from the Energy Supplier that are 
required to be deposited into the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund pursuant to Section 5.11; 
(w) any amounts paid by the Project Participants under a Prepaid Clean Energy Project 
Administration Agreement; (x) any Assignment Payment received from the Energy Supplier; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -25- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

(y) Interest Rate Swap Receipts; and (z) amounts paid by the Project Participants in respect of the 
Project Administration Fee. 

“S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., its successors and 
assigns, and, if such entity shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, 
“S&P” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency 
designated by the Issuer in a Written Notice delivered to the Trustee. 

“Scheduled Debt Service Deposits” means the required monthly deposits to the Debt 
Service Account in the Debt Service Fund and the required cumulative deposits to the Debt Service 
Account in the Debt Service Fund in respect of the Debt Service coming due on the Bonds on each 
Bond Payment Date pursuant to Section 5.05(a)(iii) and as set forth on Schedule II hereto.  
Schedule II shall be revised (a) by Written Notice of the Issuer delivered at the time of its 
designation of each subsequent Interest Rate Period, and (b) by each Supplemental Indenture 
authorizing the issuance of Refunding Bonds. 

“Securities Depository” means DTC, or its nominee, and its successors and assigns. 

“Series” means the Series 2022A-1 Bonds, Series 2022A-2 Bonds and any other Bonds 
designated as a Series authorized to be issued hereunder pursuant to Section 2.01. 

“Series 2022A Bonds” means, together, the Series 2022A-1 Bonds and Series 2022A-2 
Bonds. 

“Series 2022A-1 Bonds” the Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-1 (Term 
Rate) authorized to be issued under Section 2.01. 

“Series 2022A-2 Bonds” means the Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-2 
([SIFMA][SOFR] Index Rate) authorized to be issued under Section 2.01. 

“SIFMA Index” means the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index, which, for purposes of an Index 
Rate Reset Date for a Series of Bonds bearing interest at a SIFMA Index Rate, will be the level of 
such index which is issued weekly and which is compiled from the weekly interest rate resets of 
tax exempt variable rate issues included in a database maintained by Refinity which meet specific 
criteria established from time to time by SIFMA and issued on Wednesday of each week, or if any 
Wednesday is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day, such date being the same 
day the SIFMA Swap Index is expected to be published or otherwise made available to the 
Calculation Agent.  If the SIFMA Index is not available as of any Index Rate Reset Date, the 
interest rate for such Index Rate Reset Date will be determined using a comparable substitute or 
replacement index for such Index Rate Reset Date selected and designated by the Issuer in 
compliance with Section 2.09(b)(v). 

“SIFMA Index Rate” means a per annum rate of interest equal to the sum of (a) the SIFMA 
Index then in effect, plus (b) the Applicable Spread. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -26- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“SIFMA Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, an Index Rate Period 
during which such Bonds bear interest at the SIFMA Index Rate. 

“Sinking Fund Installment” means, for the Series 2022A Bonds, the amounts so designated 
in Section 4.02, and with respect to any other Series of Bonds, each amount, if any, so designated 
in the applicable Supplemental Indenture. 

“SOFR” means the Secured Overnight Financing Rate reported on the NY Federal 
Reserve’s Website, or reported by any successor to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as 
administrator of such Secured Overnight Financing Rate, as of 3:00 p.m. on each SOFR Publish 
Date representing SOFR as of the SOFR Lookback Date, which will be used to calculate interest 
for the SOFR Effective Period beginning on the SOFR Effective Date.  If SOFR is not available 
as of any Index Rate Reset Date, the interest rate for such Index Rate Reset Date will be determined 
using a comparable substitute or replacement index for such Index Rate Reset Date designated by 
the Issuer in writing (with notice to, and which is available to, the Calculation Agent) in 
compliance with Section 2.09(b). 

“SOFR Accrual Period” means the number of actual days from (but not including) (a) the 
Initial Issue Date or the preceding SOFR Interest Calculation Date, whichever is most recent, to 
(and including) (b) the next succeeding SOFR Interest Calculation Date, regardless of the actual 
number of calendar days in any Month. 

“SOFR Effective Date” shall mean each Business Day.  Each SOFR Effective Date is an 
Index Rate Reset Date for all purposes of this Indenture unless the context clearly requires 
otherwise. 

“SOFR Effective Period” means the number of actual days from a SOFR Effective Date to 
the next SOFR Effective Date. 

“SOFR Index Rate” means a daily variable interest rate equal to the sum of (a) the product 
of SOFR and the Applicable Factor, plus (b) the Applicable Spread on each day of a SOFR 
Effective Period, not to exceed the Maximum Rate. 

“SOFR Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, an Index Rate Period 
during which such Bonds bear interest at the SOFR Index Rate. 

“SOFR Interest Calculation Date” means the last Business Day of each Month. 

“SOFR Lookback Date” means the third Business Day immediately preceding each SOFR 
Effective Date. 

“SOFR Publish Date” means the second Business Day immediately preceding each SOFR 
Effective Date. 

“Special Record Date” has the meaning given to such term in Section 3.08. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -27- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Special Tax Counsel” means Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP or any other counsel of 
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt status of interest on 
obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law 
before the highest court of any state of the United States, and selected by the Issuer.  Bond Counsel 
may serve as Special Tax Counsel. 

“Specified Project Participant” has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 1.1 of the 
Receivables Purchase Provisions. 

“State” means the State of California. 

“Subsidy Payments” means (a) with respect to a Series of Bonds issued under Section 
54AA of the Internal Revenue Code, the amounts relating to such Series of Bonds which are 
payable by the federal government under Section 6431 of the Internal Revenue Code, which the 
Issuer has elected to receive under Section 54AA(g)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code, and (b) with 
respect to a Series of Bonds issued under any other provision of the Internal Revenue Code that 
creates a substantially similar direct-pay subsidy program, the amounts relating to such Series of 
Bonds which are payable by the federal government under the applicable provision of the Internal 
Revenue Code which the Issuer has elected to receive under the applicable provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture supplemental to or amendatory of this 
Indenture executed and delivered by the Issuer and the Trustee in accordance with Article X. 

“Swap Payment Deficiency” means, as of any date, (a) the amount of the next Commodity 
Swap Payment expected to become due, minus (b) the amount on deposit in the Commodity Swap 
Payment Fund; provided, however, that if such difference is a negative number, then the Swap 
Payment Deficiency shall be zero. 

“Tax Agreement” means the Tax Certificate and Agreement of the Issuer with respect to 
the Bonds dated as of the Initial Issue Date. 

“Term Rate” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, a fixed interest rate for each 
maturity of such Bonds established in accordance with Section 2.07. 

“Term Rate Conversion Date” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each date on 
which such Bonds begin to bear interest at a Term Rate pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.07, 
including each date on which a new Term Rate Period is established for such Bonds and the Final 
Fixed Rate Conversion Date with respect to such Bonds. 

“Term Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period during which a 
Term Rate is in effect for such Bonds. 

“Term Rate Tender Date” means (a) with respect to the initial Term Rate Period for the 
Series 2022A Bonds maturing on the Final Maturity Date, the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date, 
and (b) with respect to any other Term Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, the date so specified in 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -28- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

the related Supplemental Indenture or notice of Conversion to or continuation of such Term Rate 
Period provided by the Issuer pursuant to Section 2.07(b), as applicable, which date shall be a 
Mandatory Purchase Date pursuant to Section 4.13 and shall not be later than the Final Maturity 
Date for such Series of Bonds.  The Term Rate Tender Date shall always be a Business Day, unless 
such date is the Final Maturity Date.  If a date (other than the Final Maturity Date) that is not a 
Business Day is specified as a Term Rate Tender Date, then the Term Rate Tender Date shall be 
the Business Day immediately following such specified date. 

“Termination Payment” has the meaning given to such term in the Energy Purchase 
Agreement. 

“Trust Estate” means (a) the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, (b) all right, title and 
interest of the Issuer in, to and under the Power Supply Contracts, except for the right to receive 
the Project Administration Fee, (c) the Revenues, (d) any Termination Payment or the right to 
receive such Termination Payment (e) all right, title and interest of the Issuer in, to and under the 
Receivables Purchase Provisions, including payments received from the Energy Supplier pursuant 
thereto, (f) all right, title and interest of the Issuer in, to and under the Energy Supplier Guaranty, 
(g) all right, title and interest of the Issuer in, to and under each Interest Rate Swap and the Interest 
Rate Swap Receipts, (h) all right, title and interest of the Issuer in, to and under any Debt Service 
Fund Agreement and Debt Service Fund Agreement Guaranty and (i) the Pledged Funds (which 
does not include the Administrative Fee Fund, the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund and the 
Bond Purchase Fund, and excluding Rebate Payments held in any Fund or Account), including the 
investment income, if any, thereof subject only to the provisions of this Indenture permitting the 
application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

“Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. and its successor 
or successors and any other corporation or national banking association which may at any time be 
substituted in its place pursuant to this Indenture. 

“Undelivered Bond” means any Bond which constitutes an Undelivered Bond under the 
provisions of Section 4.16. 

“Underwriter” means (a) with respect to the Series 2022A Bonds, Morgan Stanley & Co. 
LLC, and (b) with respect to any other Series of Bonds, the municipal securities broker dealer 
engaged by the Issuer to underwrite such Series of Bonds. 

“Variable Rate Bonds” means Bonds bearing interest at a Daily Interest Rate, a Weekly 
Interest Rate, CP Interest Term Rates or an Index Rate. 

“Weekly Interest Rate” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, a variable interest rate 
established for such Bonds in accordance with Section 2.06. 

“Weekly Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period during 
which a Weekly Interest Rate is in effect for such Series of Bonds. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -29- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

“Written Certificate,” “Written Direction,” “Written Instrument,” “Written Notice,” 
“Written Request” and “Written Statement” of the Issuer means in each case an instrument in 
writing signed on behalf of the Issuer by an Authorized Officer thereof.  Any such instrument and 
any supporting opinions or certificates may, but need not, be combined in a single instrument with 
any other instrument, opinion or certificate, and the two or more so combined shall be read and 
construed so as to form a single instrument.  Any such instrument may be based, insofar as it 
relates to legal, accounting or engineering matters, upon the opinion or certificate of counsel, 
consultants, accountants or engineers, unless the Authorized Officer signing such Written 
Certificate, Direction, Instrument, Notice, Request or Statement knows, or in the exercise of 
reasonable care should know, that the opinion or certificate with respect to the matters upon which 
such Written Certificate, Direction, Instrument, Notice, Request or Statement may be based, as 
aforesaid, is erroneous.  The same Authorized Officer, or the same counsel, consultant, accountant 
or engineer, as the case may be, need not certify to all of the matters required to be certified under 
any provision of this Indenture, but different Authorized Officers, counsel, consultants, 
accountants or engineers may certify to different facts, respectively.  Every Written Certificate, 
Direction, Instrument Notice, Request or Statement of the Issuer, and every certificate or opinion 
of counsel, consultants, accountants or engineers provided for herein shall include: 

 (a) a statement that the person making such certificate, direction, instrument, 
notice, request, statement or opinion has read the pertinent provisions of this Indenture to 
which such certificate, direction, notice, request, statement or opinion relates; 

 (b) a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or 
investigation upon which the certificate, direction, instrument, notice, request, statement 
or opinion is based; 

 (c) a statement that, in the opinion of such person, he or she has made such 
examination or investigation as is necessary to enable him or her to express an informed 
opinion with respect to the subject matter referred to in the instrument to which his or her 
signature is affixed; and 

 (d) with respect to any statement relating to compliance with any provision 
hereof, a statement whether or not, in the opinion of such person, such provision has been 
complied with. 

 Section 1.02. Captions.  The captions or headings in this Indenture are for convenience 
only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope and intent of any provisions of this Indenture. 

 Section 1.03. Rules of Construction.  Except where the context otherwise requires, words 
of any gender shall include correlative words of the other genders; words importing the singular 
number shall include the plural number and vice versa; and words importing persons shall include 
firms, associations, trusts, corporations or governments or agencies or political subdivisions 
thereof.  The term “include” and its derivations are not limiting. 

References herein to contracts and agreements include all amendments or supplements 
thereto made in accordance with the terms thereof, and any reference to a party to any such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -30- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

agreement includes all successors and assigns of such party thereunder permitted by the terms 
hereof and thereof.  References herein to Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules are references 
to the Articles, Sections, Exhibits and Schedules of and to this Indenture. 

 Section 1.04. Governing Law.  This Indenture shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State. 

 Section 1.05. Consents.  Whenever the consent, notice or direction of the Bondholders, the 
Energy Supplier, the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty or the 
Issuer is required under the terms of this Indenture, such consent, notice or direction, as applicable, 
shall be evidenced by a written instrument providing for such consent, delivered to the Trustee. 

ARTICLE II 

AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

 Section 2.01. Authorization of Bonds and Refunding Bonds; Application of Proceeds. 

 (a) For the purpose of financing the Cost of Acquisition of the Clean Energy 
Project, the $__________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-1 (Term 
Rate), which shall bear interest during the Initial Interest Rate Period at a Term Rate, and 
the $__________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-2 ([SIFMA] Index 
Rate), which shall bear interest during the Initial Interest Rate Period at a [SIFMA] Index  
Rate, and which shall be entitled to the benefit, protection and security of this Indenture 
are hereby authorized to be issued.  

 (b) The proceeds of the Series 2022A Bonds shall be deposited with the Trustee 
and disbursed, transferred and applied as provided in a Written Request of the Issuer 
delivered to the Trustee upon the issuance of the Series 2022A Bonds. 

 (c) In addition to the Series 2022A Bonds, there are hereby authorized to be 
issued by Supplemental Indenture one or more Series of Refunding Bonds for the purpose 
of refunding any Series of Bonds then Outstanding hereunder, subject to the following 
conditions: 

 (i) the Supplemental Indenture providing for issuance of a Series of 
Refunding Bonds shall set forth (A) the Bonds to be refunded, (B) the Series 
designation and aggregate principal amount of the Refunding Bonds, (C) the 
Maturity Dates (which shall be no later than the Final Maturity Date) and any 
Sinking Fund Installments for the Refunding Bonds, (D) the Scheduled Debt 
Service Deposits for such Bonds, (E) the initial Interest Rate Period for such 
Refunding Bonds, and if such Interest Rate Period is to be an Index Rate Period, 
the applicable Index or CPI, and the Applicable Spread, and (F) such other terms 
and provisions concerning the Refunding Bonds as are not inconsistent with this 
Indenture; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -31- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (ii) a Series of Refunding Bonds issued in a Term Rate Period may be 
sold at a premium; 

 (iii) the proceeds of a Series of Refunding Bonds (including any sale 
premium) shall be used exclusively to pay the Cost of Acquisition relating to the 
Refunding Bonds; 

 (iv) if such Bonds are Variable Rate Bonds, and if such Bonds are to 
bear interest at a Daily Interest Rate, a Weekly Interest Rate or CP Interest Term 
Rates, the Issuer shall have appointed a Remarketing Agent for such Bonds and 
shall have entered into an Interest Rate Swap with respect to such Series of Bonds; 

 (v) the delivery to the Trustee of an Accountant’s Certificate verifying 
ongoing cash flow sufficiency and Termination Payment sufficiency, provided that 
the Trustee shall have no duty or obligation to review the contents thereof and shall 
receive such Accountant’s Certificate solely as a repository on behalf of 
Bondholders; 

 (vi) the delivery to the Trustee of the requests, opinions and documents 
required by Section 2.03(c); and 

 (vii) the receipt by the Trustee of a Rating Confirmation with respect to 
any Bonds Outstanding prior to the issuance of such Refunding Bonds that will 
remain Outstanding after the issuance thereof. 

 (d) No bonds, other than the Bonds and any Refunding Bonds, may be issued 
pursuant to this Indenture. 

 Section 2.02. Terms of Series 2022A Bonds; Payment.  (a) The Series 2022A Bonds shall 
be dated as of the date of the initial authentication and delivery thereof, shall bear interest from 
such date, payable on each Interest Payment Date, and shall be subject to redemption as provided 
in Article IV.  The principal and Redemption Price of and interest on the Series 2022A Bonds shall 
be payable by the Trustee at its designated corporate trust office and such banking institution is 
hereby appointed Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Bonds; provided that interest on the 
Bonds may be paid, at the option of the Issuer, by check payable to the order of the Person entitled 
thereto, and mailed by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the address of such Person as shall 
appear on the books of the Bond Registrar as of the close of business on the Regular Record Date 
for such Interest Payment Date, whether or not such Regular Record Date is a Business Day, which 
books the Bond Registrar shall keep for such purposes at its designated corporate trust office.  
Upon the written request of any Owner of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more in aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds received by the Trustee prior to the applicable Regular Record Date 
(which request shall remain in effect until rescinded in writing by such Owner), interest shall be 
paid on each Interest Payment Date by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account 
maintained in any bank or trust company in the United States of America that is a member of the 
Federal Reserve System designated in writing by such Owner.  The principal and Redemption 
Price of and interest on all Bonds shall also be payable at any other place which may be provided 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -32- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

for such payment by the appointment of any other Paying Agent or Paying Agents as permitted by 
this Indenture.  The Issuer shall provide Written Notice to the Trustee of the appointment of any 
additional Paying Agent. 

 (b) The Series 2022A Bonds shall mature on the Maturity Dates in the principal amounts, 
subject to Sinking Fund Installments as set forth in Section 4.02.  The Initial Interest Rate Period 
for the Series 2022A-1 Bonds shall be a Term Rate Period, the Initial Interest Rate Period for the 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds shall be an Index Rate Period ([SIFMA][SOFR] Index) and the Series 
2022A Bonds shall bear interest during such Interest Rate Periods at the rates set forth below: 

SERIES 2022A-1 BONDS 

MATURITY DATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

INTEREST 
RATE 

 $      % 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 

SERIES 2022A-2 BONDS  

MATURITY DATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

INDEX APPLICABLE 
SPREAD [/FACTOR] 

 $ [SIFMA][SOFR] 
Index 

__ basis points 

    
    

 (c) Interest on the Series 2022A Bonds shall be payable to the date on which such Bonds 
shall have been paid in full.  Interest on the Series 2022A-1 Bonds shall be computed on the basis 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -33- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. Interest on the Series 2022A-2 Bonds shall 
be computed on the basis of a 365 or 366-day year, as applicable, and the actual number of days 
elapsed.  Interest on the Series 2022A Bonds shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date for 
the period commencing on the immediately preceding Interest Accrual Date for such period and 
ending on the day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date.  The first Interest Payment 
Date for the Series 2022A-1 Bonds is _________ 1, 2022. The first Interest Payment Date for the 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds is __________ 1, 2022. 

 (d) The initial interest rates for the Bonds of each Series and the determination for such 
Bonds of the Daily Interest Rate, the Weekly Interest Rate, the Index Rate or the Term Rate and 
each CP Interest Term and CP Interest Term Rate by the applicable Calculation Agent or 
Remarketing Agent for such Bonds, as the case may be, and shall be conclusive and binding upon 
the Issuer, the Trustee, the Remarketing Agent and the Owners of the Bonds. 

 (e) In connection with any Term Rate Conversion Date of a Series of Bonds, the Sinking 
Fund Installments, if any, established for such Series pursuant to the applicable Supplemental 
Indenture may be re-designated as Maturity Dates and Sinking Fund Installments for such Bonds 
on the Term Rate Conversion Date for such Bonds as provided for in the applicable Supplemental 
Indenture. 

 Section 2.03. Conditions for Issuance of Bonds.  The Bonds of each Series shall be 
executed by the Issuer and delivered to the Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by the 
Trustee and delivered upon the Written Direction of the Issuer, but only upon the receipt by the 
Trustee of: 

 (a) A copy, certified by an Authorized Officer, of a resolution and/or evidence 
of any other official actions taken by the Issuer that authorize the execution and delivery 
of the Bonds of such Series, together with a Written Request as to the authentication and 
delivery of the Bonds of such Series, signed by an Authorized Officer; 

 (b) An Opinion or Opinions of Counsel to the effect that (i) the Issuer has the 
right and power to authorize and enter into this Indenture, the Power Supply Contracts, the 
Energy Purchase Agreement, the Commodity Swap and any Interest Rate Swap, and (ii) the 
Power Supply Contracts, the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Commodity Swap and any 
Interest Rate Swap have been duly and lawfully authorized, executed and delivered by the 
Issuer and (assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by, and validity and 
binding effect upon, the other parties thereto) are valid and binding obligations of the 
Issuer, and no other authorization for the Power Supply Contracts, the Energy Purchase 
Agreement, the Commodity Swap or any Interest Rate Swap is required; provided, that 
such Opinion(s) of Counsel may take customary exceptions, including as to the effect of, 
or for restrictions or limitations imposed by or resulting from, bankruptcy, insolvency, 
receivership, debt adjustment, moratorium, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent 
conveyance or other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally, the 
application of equitable principles, the exercise of judicial discretion, limitations on legal 
remedies against public entities in the State, and the valid exercise of the sovereign police 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -34- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

powers of the State and of the constitutional power of the United States of America and 
may state that no opinion is being rendered as to the availability of any particular remedy; 

 (c) An Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that (i) the Bonds of such Series 
constitute the valid and binding limited obligations of the Issuer; (ii) this Indenture has 
been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid and binding obligation of, 
the Issuer; and (iii) this Indenture creates a valid pledge to secure the payment of principal 
of and interest on the Bonds, of the Trust Estate, subject to the provisions of this Indenture 
permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth 
in this Indenture; provided, that such Opinion of Bond Counsel may take customary 
exceptions, including as to the effect of, or for restrictions or limitations imposed by or 
resulting from, bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, debt adjustment, moratorium 
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, or other similar laws relating to or 
affecting creditors’ rights generally, the application of equitable principles, the exercise of 
judicial discretion, limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State, and the 
valid exercise of the sovereign police powers of the State, and may state that no opinion is 
being rendered as to the availability of any particular remedy under the financing 
documents; 

 (d) An opinion of Special Tax Counsel to the effect that, if applicable, interest 
on the Bonds of such Series is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code and is exempt from State of California 
personal income taxes (it being agreed that if Special Tax Counsel also serves as Bond 
Counsel, the opinion described in this clause (d) may be consolidated with the Opinion of 
Bond Counsel described in the preceding clause (c)); 

 (e) Executed or certified copies of the Power Supply Contracts with each of the 
Project Participants specified on Schedule I; 

 (f) An opinion of counsel to each of the initial Project Participants to the effect 
that the Power Supply Contract between such Project Participant and the Issuer has been 
duly authorized, executed and delivered by such Project Participant, is the valid and 
binding obligation of such Project Participant and is enforceable in accordance with its 
terms, subject to customary assumptions and exceptions with respect to enforceability and 
such additional exceptions as may be agreed to by the Issuer and the Underwriter; 

 (g) A rating on the Bonds from at least one Rating Agency. 

 Section 2.04. Initial Interest Rate Period; Subsequent Interest Rate Periods.  (a)  The 
Series 2022A Bonds shall be initially issued in the Interest Rate Period set forth in Section 2.02(b).  
Upon the purchase of the Series 2022A Bonds on a Mandatory Purchase Date, the Interest Rate 
Period for each Series of the Series 2022A Bonds may be converted to to a Daily Interest Rate 
Period, a Weekly Interest Rate Period, a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate 
Period, a Term Rate Period or a combination thereof, as provided in this Article II.  In the event 
that two or more Interest Rate Periods are so established, the Series 2022A Bonds shall, by 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -35- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Supplemental Indenture, be divided into separate Series or sub-Series corresponding to such 
Interest Rate Periods. 

 (b) In the manner hereinafter provided, the term of each Series of Bonds will be divided 
into consecutive Interest Rate Periods during each of which such Bonds shall bear interest at the 
Daily Interest Rate, the Weekly Interest Rate, CP Interest Term Rates, Term Rates or an Index 
Rate; provided, however, that the Interest Rate Period shall be the same for all Bonds of a Series, 
and, notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Bond shall bear interest in excess of the 
Maximum Rate.  The initial Interest Rate Period for any Series of Bonds (other than the Initial 
Interest Rate Period for the Series 2022A Bonds) shall be established pursuant to the related 
Supplemental Indenture. 

 Section 2.05. Daily Interest Rate Period. 

 (a) Determination of Daily Interest Rates.  During each Daily Interest Rate 
Period for a Series of Bonds, the Bonds of such Series shall bear interest at the Daily 
Interest Rate, which shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent on or before 
11:00 a.m., New York City time, on each Business Day for such Business Day.  The 
Remarketing Agent will advise the Trustee by Electronic Means of the final Daily Interest 
Rate by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the day such rate is determined.  The Daily 
Interest Rate shall be the rate of interest per annum determined by the Remarketing Agent 
to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by the Bonds of the applicable Series, 
would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell the Bonds of such Series on that Business Day 
at a price (without regard to accrued interest) equal to 100% of the principal amount 
thereof.  With respect to any day that is not a Business Day, the Daily Interest Rate for that 
day shall be the same Daily Interest Rate established for the immediately preceding 
Business Day.  In the event the Remarketing Agent fails to establish a Daily Interest Rate 
for any Business Day, then the Daily Interest Rate for that Business Day shall be the Daily 
Interest Rate for the immediately preceding Business Day if the Daily Interest Rate for the 
immediately preceding Business Day was established by the Remarketing Agent.  Subject 
to the provisions of Section 2.10(d), in the event that the Daily Interest Rate for the 
immediately preceding Business Day was not determined by the Remarketing Agent, or in 
the event that the Daily Interest Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of law, then the Daily Interest Rate shall be 
deemed to be equal to the SIFMA Index on the Business Day such Daily Interest Rate 
would otherwise be determined as provided herein for such Daily Interest Rate Period. 

 (b) Conversion to Daily Interest Rate Period.  Subject to Section 2.10, at any 
time the Issuer, in a Written Direction of the Issuer delivered to the Trustee and the 
Remarketing Agent (if any), may elect that a Series of Bonds shall bear interest at a Daily 
Interest Rate.  Such direction of the Issuer shall specify the proposed effective date of such 
Conversion to a Daily Interest Rate Period, which shall be a Business Day not earlier than 
the 30th day following the second Business Day after receipt by the Trustee of the Written 
Direction of the Issuer, and either (A) in the case of a Conversion from a Commercial Paper 
Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a Term Rate Period, the day immediately 
following the last day of such Interest Rate Period, or (B) a day on which all of the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -36- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Outstanding Bonds of such Series are subject to optional redemption pursuant to Section 
4.03(b) or an applicable Supplemental Indenture.  In addition, such direction shall be 
accompanied by a form of notice required by Section 2.05(c) and the form of a Favorable 
Opinion of Bond Counsel proposed to be delivered on the effective date of the Conversion 
to the Daily Interest Rate Period.  Upon the Conversion of any Series of Bonds to the Daily 
Interest Rate Period and until the day immediately preceding the effective date of the next 
succeeding Interest Rate Period under the terms of this Indenture, the interest rate borne by 
such Series of Bonds shall be a Daily Interest Rate as provided in Section 2.05(a). 

 (c) Notice of Conversion to Daily Interest Rate Period.  Following timely 
receipt of a Written Direction of the Issuer directing the Conversion of a Series of Bonds 
to the Daily Interest Rate Period as provided in Section 2.05(b), the Trustee shall give 
notice by first class mail of the Conversion of such Bonds to bear interest in a Daily Interest 
Rate Period to the Owners of such Bonds not less than 30 days prior to the proposed 
effective date of such Daily Interest Rate Period.  Such notice shall state:  (i) that the 
Interest Rate Period for such Bonds will be converted to a Daily Interest Rate Period unless 
(A) the Issuer rescinds its election to convert the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such 
Series to a Daily Interest Rate Period as provided in Section 2.10(b) or (B) Bond Counsel 
shall fail to deliver a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel as to such Conversion on the 
applicable Conversion Date; (ii) the proposed Conversion Date to the Daily Interest Rate 
Period; (iii) that the Bonds of such Series are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on 
the proposed Conversion Date unless the Issuer rescinds its election to convert the Interest 
Rate Period for the Bonds of such Series to a Daily Interest Rate Period as provided in 
Section 2.10(b); and (iv) the applicable Purchase Price and the place of delivery for 
purchase of such Bonds. 

 Section 2.06. Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

 (a) Determination of Weekly Interest Rates.  The Weekly Interest Rate for the 
initial Weekly Interest Rate Period following the issuance of a Series of Bonds bearing 
interest in a Weekly Interest Rate Period or Conversion of a Series of Bonds to a Weekly 
Interest Rate Period shall be determined on or prior to the first day of such Weekly Interest 
Rate Period and shall apply to the period commencing on the first day of such Weekly 
Interest Rate Period and ending on the succeeding Wednesday (whether or not a Business 
Day).  Thereafter, during each Weekly Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, the Bonds 
of such Series shall bear interest at the Weekly Interest Rate, which shall be determined by 
the Remarketing Agent by no later than 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on Wednesday of 
each week during such Weekly Interest Rate Period, or if such day shall not be a Business 
Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day.  Each Weekly Interest Rate so determined 
shall apply to the period commencing on Thursday (whether or not a Business Day) and 
ending on the next succeeding Wednesday (whether or not a Business Day), unless such 
Weekly Interest Rate Period shall end on a day other than Wednesday, in which event the 
last Weekly Interest Rate for such Weekly Interest Rate Period shall apply to the period 
commencing on Thursday (whether or not a Business Day) and ending on the last day of 
such Weekly Interest Rate Period.  The Weekly Interest Rate shall be the rate of interest 
per annum determined by the Remarketing Agent to be the minimum interest rate which, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -37- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

if borne by the Bonds of the applicable Series, would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell 
the Bonds of such Series on the effective date of such rate at a price (without regard to 
accrued interest) equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof.  In the event that the 
Remarketing Agent fails to establish a Weekly Interest Rate for any week, then the Weekly 
Interest Rate for such week shall be the same as the Weekly Interest Rate for the 
immediately preceding week if the Weekly Interest Rate for such preceding week was 
determined by the Remarketing Agent.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.10(d), in the 
event that the Weekly Interest Rate for the immediately preceding week was not 
determined by the Remarketing Agent, or in the event that the Weekly Interest Rate 
determined by the Remarketing Agent shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable by a 
court of law, then the interest rate for such week shall be equal to the SIFMA Index on the 
day such Weekly Interest Rate would otherwise be determined as provided herein for such 
Weekly Interest Rate Period. 

 (b) Conversion to Weekly Interest Rate Period.  Subject to Section 2.10, at any 
time, the Issuer, in a Written Direction of the Issuer delivered to the Trustee and the 
Remarketing Agent (if any), may elect that a Series of Bonds shall bear interest at a Weekly 
Interest Rate.  Such direction of the Issuer shall specify the proposed effective date of such 
Conversion to a Weekly Interest Rate Period, which shall be a Business Day not earlier 
than the later of (a) the 30th day following the second Business Day after receipt by the 
Trustee of such Written Direction of the Issuer, and either (A) in the case of a Conversion 
from a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a Term Rate Period, 
the day immediately following the last day of such Interest Rate Period, or (B) a day on 
which all of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series are subject to optional redemption 
pursuant to Section 4.03(b) or an applicable Supplemental Indenture.  In addition, such 
direction shall be accompanied by a form of notice required by Section 2.06(c) and the 
form of a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel proposed to be delivered on the effective 
date of the Conversion to the Weekly Interest Rate Period.  Upon Conversion of any Series 
of Bonds to the Weekly Interest Rate Period and until the day immediately preceding the 
effective date of the next succeeding Interest Rate Period under the terms of this Indenture, 
the interest rate borne by such Series of Bonds shall be a Weekly Interest Rate as provided 
in Section 2.06(a). 

 (c) Notice of Conversion to Weekly Interest Rate.  Following timely receipt of 
a Written Direction of the Issuer directing the Conversion of a Series of Bonds to the 
Weekly Interest Rate Period as provided in Section 2.06(b), the Trustee shall give notice 
by first class mail of the Conversion of such Bonds to bear interest in a Weekly Interest 
Rate Period to the Owners of such Bonds not less than 30 days prior to the proposed 
effective date of such Weekly Interest Rate Period.  Such notice shall state:  (i) that the 
Interest Rate Period on such Bonds will be converted to a Weekly Interest Rate unless (A) 
the Issuer rescinds its election to convert the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such 
Series to a Daily Interest Rate Period as provided in Section 2.10(b) or (B) Bond Counsel 
shall fail to deliver a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel as to such Conversion on the 
applicable Conversion Date; (ii) the proposed Conversion Date to the Weekly Interest Rate 
Period; and (iii) that the Bonds of such Series are subject to mandatory tender for purchase 
on the proposed Conversion Date unless the Issuer rescinds its election to convert the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -38- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such Series to a Weekly Interest Rate Period as 
provided in Section 2.10(b); and (iv) the applicable Purchase Price and the place of delivery 
for purchase of such Bonds. 

 Section  2.07. Term Rate Period. 

 (a) Determination of Term Rates.  For each Term Rate Period for a Series of 
Bonds, (i) the Issuer may by Written Notice to the Trustee delivered in connection with a 
Term Rate Conversion Date establish one or more Maturity Dates for the Bonds of such 
Series and Sinking Fund Installments for any maturities of the Bonds of such Series, and 
(ii) each maturity of the Bonds  of such Series shall bear interest at a Term Rate; provided 
that the Term Rate, Maturity Dates and Sinking Fund Installments for each maturity of 
Bonds of any Series upon initial issuance of such Bonds, if any, shall be specified in this 
Indenture or a Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Series of Bonds.  
The Term Rate for each maturity of Bonds of a Series bearing interest in the Term Rate 
Period shall be determined by the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as applicable, on 
a Business Day no later than the Issue Date or the Term Rate Conversion Date for such 
Series of Bonds, as applicable.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.07(d), each Term 
Rate shall be the rate of interest per annum determined by the Underwriter or the 
Remarketing Agent, as applicable, to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by the 
Bonds of the applicable Series and maturity, would enable the Underwriter or the 
Remarketing Agent, as the case may be, to sell such Bonds and maturity on such date at a 
price (without regard to accrued interest) equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof.  
If, for any reason, with respect to any Series of Bonds being converted to a Term Rate 
Period, the Term Rate for such Term Rate Period is not determined by the Remarketing 
Agent on or prior to the first day of such Term Rate Period, then the Interest Rate Period 
for the Bonds of the applicable Series shall be a Weekly Interest Rate Period and such 
Weekly Interest Rate Period shall continue until such time as the Interest Rate Period for 
such Series of Bonds shall have been converted to a Daily Interest Rate Period, a 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, a Term Rate Period or an Index Rate Period as 
provided herein. 

 (b) Conversion to or Continuation of Term Rate Period.  Subject to Section 
2.10, at any time, the Issuer, in a Written Direction of the Issuer delivered to the Trustee 
and the Remarketing Agent (if any), may elect that a Series of Bonds shall bear interest at 
Term Rates.  Such direction of the Issuer shall specify (i) the proposed effective date of the 
Term Rate Period, which date shall be a Business Day not earlier than the 30th day 
following receipt by the Trustee of such Written Direction of the Issuer, and either (A) in 
the case of a Conversion from a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate 
Period or a Term Rate Period, the day immediately following the last day of such Interest 
Rate Period, or (B) a day on which all of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series are subject 
to optional redemption pursuant to Section 4.03(b) or an applicable Supplemental 
Indenture; (ii) the last day of such Term Rate Period, which day shall be either the day 
immediately prior to the Final Maturity Date for the applicable Series of Bonds, or a day 
which both immediately precedes a Business Day and is at least one hundred eighty one 
(181) days after the effective date of the Term Rate Period; (iii) with respect to any such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -39- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Term Rate Period, may specify redemption prices and periods different than those set forth 
in this Indenture or the applicable Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of 
such Series of Bonds, subject to the Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel as provided in 
Section 2.07(b)(iii).  In addition, such direction shall be accompanied by the form of a 
Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel proposed to be delivered on the Term Rate Conversion 
Date and by a form of the notice to be mailed by the Trustee as provided in Section 2.07(c).  
Upon Conversion of any Series of Bonds to the Term Rate Period and until the day 
immediately preceding the effective date of the next succeeding Interest Rate Period under 
the terms of this Indenture, the interest rate or rates borne by such Series of Bonds shall be 
Term Rates as provided in Section 2.07(a).  The day following the last day of any Term 
Rate Period for a Series of Bonds shall be a Term Rate Tender Date for such Series of 
Bonds.  After the Final Fixed Rate Conversion Date for a Series of Bonds, the Bonds of 
such Series shall no longer be subject to or have the benefit of the provisions of Section 
4.11 through Section 4.22. 

 (c) Notice of Conversion to or Continuation of Term Rate.  Following timely 
receipt of a Written Direction of the Issuer directing the Conversion of a Series of Bonds 
to the Term Rate Period as provided in Section 2.07(b), the Trustee shall give notice by 
first-class mail of the Conversion of such Bonds to bear interest in a (or the establishment 
of another) Term Rate Period for a Series of Bonds to the Owners of the Bonds of such 
Series not less than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of such Term Rate 
Period.  Such notice shall state:  (i) that the Interest Rate Period for such Bonds shall be 
converted to, or continue to be, a Term Rate Period unless (A) the Issuer rescinds its 
election to convert the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such Series to a Term Rate 
Period as provided in Section 2.10(b) or (B) Bond Counsel shall fail to deliver a Favorable 
Opinion of Bond Counsel as to such Conversion on the Term Rate Conversion Date; 
(ii) that such Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Term Rate 
Conversion Date and setting forth the applicable Purchase Price and the place of delivery 
for purchase of such Bonds; and (iii) that the Bonds of such Series are subject to mandatory 
tender for purchase on the proposed Conversion Date unless the Issuer rescinds its election 
to convert the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such Series to a Term Rate Period as 
provided in Section 2.10(b)]; and (iv) the applicable Purchase Price and the place of 
delivery for purchase of such Bonds. 

 (d) Sale at Premium or Discount.  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 
2.07(a), the Term Rate for each maturity of any Series of Bonds as initially issued, or the 
Term Rate for each maturity of any other Series of Bonds upon Conversion to a Term Rate 
Period, shall be the rate of interest per annum determined by the Underwriter or the 
Remarketing Agent, as applicable, to be the interest rate which, if borne by the Bonds of 
such Series and maturity, would enable the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as 
applicable, to sell the Bonds of such Series and maturity at a price (without regard to 
accrued interest) which will result in the lowest net interest cost for the Bonds of such 
Series and maturity, after taking into account any premium or discount at which the Bonds 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -40- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

of such Series and maturity are sold by the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as 
applicable, provided that: 

 (i) The Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as applicable, certifies 
in writing to the Trustee and the Issuer that the sale of the Bonds of such Series at 
the interest rate and premium or discount specified by the Underwriter or the 
Remarketing Agent, as applicable, is expected to result in the lowest net interest 
cost for such Bonds; 

 (ii) The Issuer consents in writing to the sale of the Bonds of such Series 
at such premium or discount; 

 (iii) In the case of the Bonds of such Series to be sold at a premium, the 
Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as applicable, shall transfer the amount of 
such premium to the Trustee for deposit into such Funds and Accounts as shall be 
specified in a Written Direction of the Issuer; 

 (iv) On or before the date of determination of the Term Rates for the 
Bonds of such Series, the Issuer delivers to the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent 
a form of a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel proposed to be delivered on the 
Term Rate Conversion Date; and 

 (v) On or before the Conversion Date, a Favorable Opinion of Bond 
Counsel shall have been delivered to the Trustee. 

 Section 2.08. Commercial Paper Interest Rate Periods. 

 (a) Determination of CP Interest Terms and CP Interest Term Rates.  During 
each Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, each Bond of such 
Series shall bear interest during each CP Interest Term for such Bond at the CP Interest 
Term Rate for such Bond.  The CP Interest Term and the CP Interest Term Rate for each 
Bond need not be the same for any two Bonds of such Series, even if determined on the 
same date.  Each of such CP Interest Terms and CP Interest Term Rates for each Bond 
shall be determined by the Remarketing Agent no later than the first day of each CP Interest 
Term.  Each CP Interest Term shall be for a period of days within the range or ranges 
announced as possible CP Interest Terms no later than 9:30 a.m., New York City time, on 
the first day of each CP Interest Term by the Remarketing Agent.  Each CP Interest Term 
for each Bond of the applicable Series shall be a period of not more than two hundred 
seventy (270) days, determined by the Remarketing Agent to be the period which, together 
with all other CP Interest Terms for all Bonds of the applicable Series then Outstanding, 
will result in the lowest overall interest expense on such Bonds over the next succeeding 
two hundred seventy (270) days.  Each CP Interest Term shall end on either a day which 
immediately precedes a Business Day or on the day immediately preceding the Final 
Maturity Date for the applicable Series of Bonds.  If, for any reason, a CP Interest Term 
for any Bond cannot be so determined by the Remarketing Agent, or if the determination 
of such CP Interest Term is held by a court of law to be invalid or unenforceable, then such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -41- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

CP Interest Term shall be thirty (30) days, but if the last day so determined shall not be a 
day immediately preceding a Business Day, such CP Interest Term shall end on the first 
day immediately preceding the Business Day next succeeding such last day, or if such last 
day would be after the day immediately preceding the Final Maturity Date for the 
applicable Series of Bonds, shall end on the day immediately preceding such Final Maturity 
Date.  In determining the number of days in each CP Interest Term, the Remarketing Agent 
shall take into account the following factors:  (i) existing short-term, tax-exempt market 
rates and indices of such short-term rates; (ii) the existing market supply and demand for 
short-term tax-exempt securities; (iii) existing yield curves for short-term and long-term 
tax-exempt securities for obligations of credit quality comparable to the Bonds of the 
applicable Series; (iv) general economic conditions; (v) industry economic and financial 
conditions that may affect or be relevant to the Bonds of the applicable Series; (vi) the CP 
Interest Terms of other Bonds of the applicable Series; and (vii) such other facts, 
circumstances and conditions pertaining to financial markets as the Remarketing Agent, in 
its sole discretion, shall determine to be relevant. 

The CP Interest Term Rate for each CP Interest Term for each Bond in a 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period shall be the rate of interest per annum determined 
by the Remarketing Agent to be the minimum interest rate which, if borne by such Bond, 
would enable the Remarketing Agent to sell such Bond on the effective date of such rate 
at a price equal to the principal amount thereof.  Subject to the provisions of Section 
2.10(d), if, for any reason, a CP Interest Term Rate for any Bond in a Commercial Paper 
Interest Rate Period is not so established by the Remarketing Agent for any CP Interest 
Term, or if such CP Interest Term Rate is determined by a court of law to be invalid or 
unenforceable, then the CP Interest Term Rate for such CP Interest Term shall be a rate per 
annum equal to the SIFMA Index on the first day of such CP Interest Term. 

 (b) Conversion to Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period.  Subject to Section 
2.10, at any time, the Issuer, in a Written Direction of the Issuer to the Trustee and the 
Remarketing Agent (if any), may elect that a Series of Bonds shall bear interest at CP 
Interest Term Rates.  Such Written Direction of the Issuer shall specify (i) the proposed 
effective date of the Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, which shall be a Business Day 
not earlier than the thirtieth (30th) day following the second Business Day after receipt by 
the Trustee of such direction, and either (A) in the case of a Conversion from a Commercial 
Paper Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a Term Rate Period, the day 
immediately following the last day of such Interest Rate Period, or (B) a day on which all 
of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series are subject to optional redemption pursuant to 
Section 4.03(b) or an applicable Supplemental Indenture.  In addition, the Written 
Direction of the Issuer shall be accompanied by the form of a Favorable Opinion of Bond 
Counsel proposed to be delivered on the effective date of the Conversion to the 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period and a form of the notice to be mailed by the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 2.08(c).  Upon Conversion of any Series of Bonds to the Commercial 
Paper Interest Rate Period and until the day immediately preceding the effective date of 
the next succeeding Interest Rate Period under the terms of this Indenture, each Bond of 
such Series shall bear interest at a CP Interest Term Rate applicable to the CP Interest Term 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -42- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

then in effect for such Bond, which may differ from the CP Interest Term Rate and CP 
Interest Term applicable to other Bonds of such Series. 

 (c) Notice of Conversion to CP Interest Term Rates.  Following timely receipt 
of a Written Direction of the Issuer directing the Conversion of a Series of Bonds to the 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period as provided in Section 2.08(b), the Trustee shall 
give notice by first class mail of the Conversion of such Bonds to bear interest in a 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period to the Owners of the Bonds of the applicable Series 
not less than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of such Commercial Paper 
Interest Rate Period.  Such notice shall state:  (i) that such Bonds shall bear interest at CP 
Interest Term Rates unless (A) the Issuer rescinds its election to convert the Interest Rate 
Period for the Bonds of such Series to a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period as provided 
in Section 2.10(b) or (B) Bond Counsel shall fail to deliver a Favorable Opinion of Bond 
Counsel as to such Conversion on the applicable Conversion Date; (ii) the proposed 
Conversion Date to the Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period; and (iii) that Bonds of such 
Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on such proposed Conversion Date 
unless the Issuer rescinds its election to convert the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of 
such Series to a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period as provided in Section 2.10(b); and 
(iv) the applicable Purchase Price and the place of delivery for purchase of such Bonds. 

 (d) Conversion From Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period.  Subject to 
Section 2.10(b), at any time during a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period for a Series 
of Bonds, the Issuer may elect, pursuant to Section 2.05(b), Section 2.06(b), Section 
2.07(b) or Section 2.09(c), that such Bonds no longer shall bear interest at CP Interest Term 
Rates and shall instead bear interest at a Daily Interest Rate, a Weekly Interest Rate, a Term 
Rate or an Index Rate, as specified in such election.  In connection with any such election, 
and notwithstanding any provision contained in this Section 2.08 to the contrary, each CP 
Interest Term established by the Remarketing Agent for the Bonds shall end on the same 
date in order to facilitate the Conversion of such Bonds.  The date on which all CP Interest 
Terms determined for the Bonds end shall be the last day of the then current Commercial 
Paper Interest Rate Period and the day next succeeding such date shall be the effective date 
of the Daily Interest Rate Period, Weekly Interest Rate Period, Term Rate Period or Index 
Rate Period elected by the Issuer for such Bonds. 

 Section 2.09. Index Rate Periods. 

 (a) Determination of Applicable Spread and Applicable Factor.  In connection 
with the issuance of a Series of Bonds bearing interest in an Index Rate Period, the 
Applicable Spread and any Applicable Factor applicable to such Series of Bonds for the 
duration of the initial Index Rate Period for such Series of Bonds shall be specified in this 
Indenture or in the Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such Series of 
Bonds.  In connection with the Conversion of the Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds 
to an Index Rate Period, the Remarketing Agent shall determine the Applicable Spread and 
any Applicable Factor applicable to such Bonds for the duration of the applicable Index 
Rate Period, and shall specify such Applicable Spread and any Applicable Factor selected 
by the Issuer in the Index Rate Determination Certificate for the applicable Index Rate 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -43- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Period.  The Applicable Spread and any Applicable Factor shall be such amount as shall 
result in the minimum Index Rate (as a rate of interest per annum) which, if borne by the 
Bonds of the applicable Series as of the first day of the applicable Index Rate Period, under 
Prevailing Market Conditions, would enable the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as 
applicable, to sell the Bonds on the first day of the applicable Index Rate Period at a price 
(without regard to accrued interest) equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof. 

 (b) Determination of Index Rate. 

 (i) During each Index Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, such Bonds 
shall bear interest at an Index Rate, as specified in the applicable Index Rate 
Determination Certificate delivered to the Trustee on the first day of such Interest 
Rate Period.  One Business Day prior to the Initial Issue Date of the Series 2022A-
2 Bonds, the [SIFMA][SOFR] Index Rate shall be calculated by the Calculation 
Agent and shall be in effect from and including the Initial Issue Date to (but not 
including) the first Index Rate Reset Date.   

 (ii) With respect to each SIFMA Index Rate Period, (A) the Calculation 
Agent shall determine the SIFMA Index by 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on each 
Wednesday or, if such Wednesday is not a Business Day, the Business Day 
immediately succeeding such Wednesday, and (B) the SIFMA Index Rate shall be 
determined by the Calculation Agent at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, 
on each Index Rate Reset Date. 

 (iii) With respect to each SOFR Index Rate Period, the Calculation 
Agent shall (A) determine and provide to the Trustee by Electronic Means the 
SOFR Index by 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on each SOFR Publish Date, and 
(B) determine and provide to the Trustee by Electronic Means the SOFR Index Rate 
at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, on each SOFR Effective Date. 

(iv) During any Index Rate Period, interest shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365/366-day year and actual days elapsed.  The Calculation Agent shall 
calculate and provide by Electronic Means to the Issuer and the Trustee the amount 
of interest due and payable on each Series of Bonds bearing interest at an Index 
Rate at least one Business Day prior to each Interest Payment Date, which in the 
case of a Series of Bonds bearing interest at the SOFR Index Rate shall be the SOFR 
Interest Calculation Date.  The amount of interest due on a Series of Bonds bearing 
interest at the SIFMA Index Rate on any Interest Payment Date shall be calculated 
on the basis of the actual number of days in the calendar month immediately 
preceding such Interest Payment Date.  The amount of interest due on a Series of 
Bonds bearing interest at the SOFR Index Rate on any Interest Payment Date shall 
be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days in the SOFR Accrual Period 
immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date.  All percentages resulting from 
any step in the calculation of interest on a Series of Bonds while in an Index Rate 
Period will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest ten thousandth of a percentage 
point (i.e., to five decimal places) with five hundred thousandths of a percentage 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -44- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

point rounded upward, and all dollar amounts used in or resulting from such 
calculation of interest on such Bonds while in an Index Rate Period will be rounded 
to the nearest cent (with one‑half cent being rounded upward). 

(v) In determining the interest rate that any Bond shall bear as provided 
in this Section 2.09, neither the Underwriter nor the Remarketing Agent, as 
applicable, the Calculation Agent, nor the Trustee shall have any liability to the 
Issuer or the Holder of such Bond, except for its own negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 (vi) If, during any Index Rate Period, the Index or rate used to determine 
an Index Rate is not reported by the relevant source at the time necessary for 
determination of such Index Rate or otherwise ceases to be available, the Issuer or 
its independent financial advisor (as applicable) shall determine a replacement or 
substitute Index Rate (as applicable), including any alternative rate and any 
adjustments, and promptly provide the same via Electronic Means to the 
Calculation Agent and the Trustee, together with the effective date of the substitute 
or replacement Index Rate, which substitute or replacement must be consistent with 
any corresponding substitute or replacement index designated pursuant to the 
relevant Interest Rate Swap. 

 (c) Conversion to or Continuation of Index Rate Period.  Subject to Section 
2.10, at any time, the Issuer, in a Written Direction of the Issuer delivered to the Trustee 
and the Remarketing Agent (if any), may elect that a Series of Bonds shall bear interest at 
an Index Rate.  Such direction of the Issuer shall specify the proposed effective date of the 
Index Rate Period, which date shall be a Business Day not earlier than the 30th day 
following the second Business Day after receipt by the Trustee of the Written Direction of 
the Issuer, and either (A) in the case of a Conversion from a Commercial Paper Interest 
Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a Term Rate Period, the day immediately following 
the last day of such Interest Rate Period, or (B) a day on which all of the Outstanding Bonds 
of such Series are subject to optional redemption pursuant to Section 4.03(b) or an 
applicable Supplemental Indenture; (ii) the last day of such Index Rate Period, which day 
shall be either the day immediately prior to the Final Maturity Date for the applicable Series 
of Bonds, or a day which immediately precedes a Business Day.  In addition, such direction 
of the Issuer shall be accompanied by the form of a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel 
proposed to be delivered on the Conversion Date and a form of the notice to be mailed by 
the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09(d). 

 (d) Notice of Conversion to or Continuation of Index Rate.  Following timely 
receipt of a Written Direction of the Issuer directing the Conversion of a Series of Bonds 
to the Index Rate Period as provided in Section 2.09(b), the Trustee shall give notice by 
first-class mail of the Conversion of such Bonds to bear interest in a (or the establishment 
of another) Index Rate Period for a Series of Bonds to the Owners of the Bonds of such 
Series not less than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed effective date of such Index Rate 
Period.  Such notice shall state:  (i) that the Interest Rate Period for such Bonds shall be 
converted to, or continue to be, an Index Rate Period unless (A) the Issuer rescinds its 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -45- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

election to convert the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such Series to an Index Rate 
Period as provided in Section 2.10(b) or (B) Bond Counsel shall fail to deliver a Favorable 
Opinion of Bond Counsel as to such Conversion on the Index Rate Conversion Date; (ii) 
that such Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Index Rate Conversion 
Date and setting forth the applicable Purchase Price and the place of delivery for purchase 
of such Bonds; and (iii) that the Bonds of such Series are subject to mandatory tender for 
purchase on the proposed Conversion Date unless the Issuer rescinds its election to convert 
the Interest Rate Period for the Bonds of such Series to an Index Rate Period as provided 
in Section 2.10(b); and (iv) the applicable Purchase Price and the place of delivery for 
purchase of such Bonds. 

 Section 2.10. Notice of Conversion.  (a)  In the event that the Issuer shall elect to convert 
the Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds to a Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly Interest 
Rate Period, a Term Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period 
as provided in this Article II, then the Written Direction of the Issuer required to be delivered to 
the Trustee by the applicable provision of this Article II shall be given by registered or certified 
mail, or by Electronic Means. 

 (b) Notwithstanding anything in this Article II, in connection with any Conversion of the 
Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, the Issuer shall have the right to deliver to the Trustee 
and the Remarketing Agent (if any), on or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the third 
Business Day preceding the effective date of any such Conversion a Written Direction of the Issuer 
to the effect that the Issuer elects to rescind its election to make such Conversion.  If the Issuer 
rescinds its election to make such Conversion, then the Interest Rate Period shall not be converted 
and the Bonds of the applicable Series shall continue to bear interest in the Daily Interest Rate 
Period, Weekly Interest Rate Period, Term Rate Period, Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period or 
Index Rate Period, as the case may be, as in effect immediately prior to such proposed Conversion, 
and the Term Rate Tender Date or Index Rate Tender Date, if applicable, for any such Series of 
Bonds shall also remain unchanged from that in effect immediately prior to such proposed 
Conversion. 

 (c) No Conversion of a Series of Bonds from one Interest Rate Period to another, and no 
continuation or establishment of a new Term Rate Period or Index Rate Period, shall take effect 
under this Indenture unless each of the following conditions, to the extent applicable, shall have 
been satisfied: 

 (i) the Trustee shall have received a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel with 
respect to such Conversion; 

 (ii) with respect to any Series of Bonds bearing interest at an Index Rate or a 
Term Rate, no Conversion may occur with respect to such Bonds earlier than (A) the 
Business Day following the last day of the applicable Interest Rate Period or (B) a day on 
which all of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series are subject to optional redemption 
pursuant to Section 4.03(b) or an applicable Supplemental Indenture; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -46- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (iii) in the case of any Conversion of the Interest Rate Period for a Series of 
Bonds to a Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly Interest Rate Period or a Commercial 
Paper Interest Rate Period, prior to the Conversion Date the Issuer shall have appointed a 
Remarketing Agent and shall have executed and delivered a Remarketing Agreement with 
respect to such Series of Bonds, and shall have obtained a Liquidity Facility with respect 
to such Series of Bonds as required by Section 2.11; 

 (iv) in the case of a Conversion of the Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds 
to an Index Rate Period, prior to the Conversion Date the Issuer shall have appointed a 
Calculation Agent and executed and delivered a Calculation Agent Agreement with respect 
to such Series of Bonds; and 

 (v) the remarketing proceeds available on the Conversion Date shall not be less 
than the amount required to purchase all of the Bonds of such Series at the applicable 
Purchase Price (unless the Issuer in its sole discretion elects to transfer to the Trustee the 
amount of such deficiency on or before the Conversion Date). 

 (d) If any condition to the Conversion of the Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds 
shall not have been satisfied, then the Interest Rate Period shall not be converted and the Bonds of 
the applicable Series shall continue in the Daily Interest Rate Period, Weekly Interest Rate Period, 
Index Rate Period, Term Rate Period, or Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, as the case may 
be, as in effect immediately prior to such proposed Conversion (provided, that the period of any 
such continuing Term Rate Period shall be one year), and the Bonds of such Series shall continue 
to be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the date which would have been the effective 
date of the Conversion as provided in Section 4.14. 

 Section 2.11. Liquidity Facility.  In connection with the issuance of any Series of Bonds, 
or the Conversion of any Series of Bonds, to bear interest in a Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly 
Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, the Issuer 
shall obtain a Liquidity Facility for such Series of Bonds, and the Issuer may elect to obtain a 
Liquidity Facility for any Series of Bonds bearing interest in a Term Rate Period or an Index Rate 
Period.  Provisions concerning any Liquidity Facility so obtained with respect to such Series of 
Bonds shall be set forth in a Supplemental Indenture. 

 Section 2.12. Provisions Regarding Commodity Swap.  (a)  In connection with the Clean 
Energy Project, the Issuer shall enter into the initial Commodity Swap with the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty.  The following shall apply to such Commodity Swap: 

 (i) The method for the calculation of the Commodity Swap Payments and 
Commodity Swap Receipts, as applicable, and the scheduled payment dates therefor, are 
set forth in Schedule III hereto. 

 (ii) Commodity Swap Payments shall be made by the Trustee (for the account 
of the Issuer) from the Commodity Swap Payment Fund. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -47- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (iii) Commodity Swap Receipts shall be payable directly to the Trustee (for the 
account of the Issuer) and shall be deposited directly into the Revenue Fund. 

 (b) The following shall apply with respect to restrictions on replacement and termination 
of the Commodity Swap: 

 (i) Except as provided in clause (iii) below, the Issuer agrees that it will not 
exercise any right to declare an early termination date under the Commodity Swap unless 
either (A) the Issuer has entered into a replacement Commodity Swap in accordance with 
clause (ii) or (iii) below, and such replacement Commodity Swap will be effective as of 
such early termination date and cover price exposure from and after such early termination 
date, or (B) the Issuer causes or permits the termination of the Energy Purchase Agreement 
prior to or as of such early termination date. 

 (ii) The Issuer may replace the Commodity Swap (and any related guaranty of 
the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s obligations thereunder) with a similar agreement for 
the same hedging purposes with an alternate Commodity Swap Counterparty at any time 
upon delivery to the Trustee of a Rating Confirmation. 

 (iii) If the Commodity Swap is subject to termination (or, in the case of 
clause (B) below, is terminated) by either party in accordance with its terms, then (A) the 
Issuer may, subject to clause (i) above, terminate the Commodity Swap if the Issuer has 
the right to do so, and (B) the Issuer may enter into a replacement Commodity Swap with 
an alternate Commodity Swap Counterparty without Rating Confirmation, but only if the 
replacement Commodity Swap is identical in all material respects to the existing 
Commodity Swap, except for the identity of the Commodity Swap Counterparty, and 
(1) the replacement Commodity Swap Counterparty (or its credit support provider under 
the Commodity Swap) is then rated at least the lower of (a) the credit rating of the Energy 
Supplier, or if the Energy Supplier is not rated, the guarantor of the Energy Supplier or 
(b) the rating then assigned by each Rating Agency to the Bonds, or (2) the Commodity 
Swap Counterparty provides such collateral and security arrangements as the Issuer shall 
determine to be necessary, and (3) in either case, the replacement Commodity Swap 
Counterparty enters into a replacement Energy Supplier Custodial Agreement with the 
Energy Supplier and the Custodian that is identical in all material respects to the existing 
Energy Supplier Custodial Agreement. 

 (c) The following shall apply with respect to the mandatory termination of the 
Commodity Swap and Energy Purchase Agreement: 

 (i) Upon the occurrence of a Commodity Swap Mandatory Termination Event, 
the Issuer shall (A) notify the Energy Supplier of such event pursuant to Section 17.5(a) of 
the Energy Purchase Agreement, and (B) in accordance with Section 17.5(a) of the Energy 
Purchase Agreement, use its good faith efforts to replace the Commodity Swap with an 
alternate Commodity Swap, subject to the conditions of subsection (b)(ii) above, during 
the 120 day replacement period contemplated by Section 17.5(a) of the Energy Purchase 
Agreement or any period that the Custodian, under the terms of the Custodial Agreements, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -48- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

is making payments (an “Alternate Replacement Period”), provided that any such 
Alternate Replacement Period shall end on the earlier of the date on which the Custodian 
ceases making payments under the Custodial Agreements and the date of the sixth 
consecutive monthly payment by the Custodian. 

 (ii) If the Issuer is unable to enter into an alternate Commodity Swap pursuant 
to clause (i)(B) above during such 120-day replacement period or Alternate Replacement 
Period, as applicable, the Issuer shall (A) designate an Early Termination Date for the 
Energy Purchase Agreement in accordance with Section 17.4(b) of the Energy Purchase 
Agreement, with such Early Termination Date occurring immediately at the end of such 
replacement period, and (B) unless the Commodity Swap has been terminated 
automatically pursuant to Section 6(a) thereof, designate an early termination date for the 
Commodity Swap pursuant to Section 6(a) thereof with such early termination date 
occurring concurrently with the Early Termination Date under the Energy Purchase 
Agreement described in clause (A) above. 

 (iii) A “Commodity Swap Mandatory Termination Event” occurs if the 
Commodity Swap becomes terminable by the Issuer pursuant to Part 1(h)(ii) (failure to pay 
after cure period) of the Schedule to the Commodity Swap. 

 Section 2.13. Provisions Regarding Interest Rate Swap.  (a)  In connection with the 
issuance of any Variable Rate Series of Bonds, or the Conversion of any Series of Bonds, to bear 
interest in a Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly Interest Rate Period, an Index Rate Period or a 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, the Issuer shall enter into an Interest Rate Swap with an 
Interest Rate Swap Counterparty.  The following shall apply to the Interest Rate Swap: 

 (i) The method for the calculation of the Interest Rate Swap Payments and 
Interest Rate Swap Receipts, as applicable, and the scheduled payment dates therefor are 
set forth in the Interest Rate Swap; 

 (ii) Interest Rate Swap Payments shall be made by the Trustee (for the account 
of the Issuer) from the Debt Service Account on parity with principal and interest payments 
on Bonds; and 

 (iii) Interest Rate Swap Receipts shall be payable directly to the Trustee (for the 
account of the Issuer) and shall be deposited directly into the Debt Service Account. 

 (b) The following shall apply with respect to restrictions on replacement and termination 
of the Interest Rate Swap: 

 (i) The Issuer agrees that it will not exercise any right to declare an early 
termination date under the Interest Rate Swap unless either (A) the Issuer has entered into 
a replacement Interest Rate Swap in accordance with clause (ii) and (iii) below, and such 
replacement Interest Rate Swap will be effective as of such early termination date and 
cover interest rate exposure from and after such early termination date, or (B) in all other 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -49- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

cases, the Energy Purchase Agreement will terminate prior to or as of such early 
termination date. 

 (ii) The Issuer may replace the Interest Rate Swap (and any related guaranty of 
the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty’s obligations thereunder) with a similar agreement for 
the same hedging purposes with an alternate Interest Rate Swap Counterparty at any time 
upon delivery to the Trustee of a Rating Confirmation. 

 (iii) If the Interest Rate Swap is subject to termination (or, in the case of 
clause (B) below, is terminated) by either party in accordance with its terms, then (A) the 
Issuer may, subject to clause (i) above, terminate the Interest Rate Swap if the Issuer has 
the right to do so, and (B) the Issuer may enter into a replacement Interest Rate Swap with 
an alternate Interest Rate Swap Counterparty without Rating Confirmation, but only if the 
replacement Interest Rate Swap is identical in all material respects to the existing Interest 
Rate Swap, except for the identity of the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, and (1) the 
alternate Interest Rate Swap Counterparty (or its credit support provider under the Interest 
Rate Swap) is then rated at least the lower of (a) the credit rating of the Energy Supplier, 
or if the Energy Supplier is not rated, the guarantor of the Energy Supplier or (b) at least 
as highly as the rating then assigned by each Rating Agency to the Bonds, or (2) the Interest 
Rate Swap Counterparty provides such collateral and security arrangements as the Issuer 
shall determine to be necessary. 

 Section 2.14. CPI Index Rate Periods.  The provisions of this Section 2.14 shall apply to 
Index Rate Bonds bearing interest in a CPI Index Rate Period. 

 (a) Determination of Applicable Spread.  In connection with the issuance of a 
Series of Bonds bearing interest at a CPI Index Rate, or the Conversion of the Interest Rate 
Period for a Series of Bonds to a CPI Index Rate Period, the Underwriter or Remarketing 
Agent, as applicable, shall determine the Applicable Spread for such Bonds for the duration 
of the applicable CPI Index Rate Period, and such Applicable Spread shall be specified in 
the Supplemental Indenture or Index Rate Determination Certificate for the applicable CPI 
Index Rate Period.  The Applicable Spread for a CPI Index Rate Period shall be such 
amount as shall result in the minimum interest rate(s) which, if borne by the Bonds of the 
applicable Series as of the first day of the applicable CPI Index Rate Period, under 
Prevailing Market Conditions, would enable the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as 
applicable, to sell the Bonds at a price equal to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of 
such Bonds on the first day of the applicable CPI Index Rate Period. 

 (b) Determination of CPI Index Rate. 

 (i) During any CPI Index Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, such Bonds 
shall bear interest at the CPI Index Rate, determined using the CPI Index Rate 
Formula and the Applicable Spread, as specified in the applicable Index Rate 
Determination Certificate delivered to the Trustee on the first day of such CPI Index 
Rate Period. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -50- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (ii) The Calculation Agent shall by noon, New York time, on each 
CPI Index Rate Reset Date (or, if such CPI Index Rate Reset Date is not a Business 
Day, on the next succeeding Business Day) determine the CPI Index Rate for the 
CPI Interest Rate Period that begins on such CPI Index Rate Reset Date.  The 
Calculation Agent shall also calculate and provide to the Issuer and the Trustee the 
amount of interest due and payable on each Interest Payment Date for the applicable 
Series of Bonds at least two Business Days prior to such Interest Payment Date.  
The Calculation Agent shall furnish each CPI Index Rate so determined to the 
Issuer and the Trustee by Electronic Means not later than each CPI Index Rate Reset 
Date.  Upon the written request of any Holder, the Trustee shall confirm the 
CPI Index Rate then in effect.  All percentages resulting from any step in the 
calculation of interest on a Series of Bonds while in a CPI Index Rate Period will 
be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest hundred thousandth of a percentage point 
(i.e., to five decimal places) with five millionths of a percentage point rounded 
upward, and all dollar amounts used in or resulting from such calculation of interest 
on such Bonds while in an Index Rate Period will be rounded to the nearest cent 
(with one‑half cent being rounded upward). 

 (iii) During any CPI Index Rate Period, interest shall be computed on the 
basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30 day calendar months. 

 (iv) In determining the interest rate that any Bond shall bear as provided 
in this Section 2.14, neither the Underwriter nor the Remarketing Agent, as 
applicable, the Calculation Agent, nor the Trustee shall have any liability to the 
Issuer or the Holder of such Bond, except for its negligence or willful misconduct. 

 (v) If the CPI is not reported on Bloomberg CPURNSA for a particular 
month by 11:00 a.m. on a CPI Index Rate Reset Date, but the CPI has otherwise 
been published by the BLS, the Calculation Agent will determine the CPI as 
published by the BLS for such month using a source it deems to be accurate and 
appropriate.  If the CPI is not published by the BLS for a particular month by 
11:00 a.m. on a CPI Index Rate Reset Date, the Calculation Agent will determine 
the CPI with reference to an index number based on the last twelve-month change 
in the CPI available and announced by the Department of the Treasury for its 
Inflation-Indexed Securities as described at 62 Federal Register 846-874 
(January 6, 1997) (the “Treasury Inflation-Indexed Securities Regulation”) or, if 
no such index number is announced, in accordance with general market practice at 
the time. 

 (vi) In calculating CPIt and CPIt-12, the Calculation Agent will use the 
most recently available value of the CPI determined as described above on the 
applicable Interest Reset Date, even if such value has been adjusted from a prior 
reported value for the relevant month.  However, if a value of CPIt and CPIt-12 
used by the Calculation Agent on any Interest Reset Date to determine the interest 
rate on the CPI Bonds (an “Initial CPI Value”) is subsequently revised by the BLS, 
the Calculation Agent will continue to use the Initial CPI Value for all purposes 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -51- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

hereunder, and the interest rate on the related CPI Index Rate Reset Date, as 
determined based upon the Initial CPI Value, will not be revised. 

 (c) CPI Index Rate Continuation. 

 (i) On any Mandatory Purchase Date pursuant to Section 4.13 and 
unless the Issuer has given notice with respect to the Conversion of the Bonds to an 
Interest Rate Period other than the CPI Index Rate Period, the Issuer may establish 
a new CPI Index Rate Period and a new CPI Index Rate for the Bonds with such 
right to be exercised by delivery of an Index Rate Continuation Notice to the 
Trustee no less than 30 days prior to the effective date of the new CPI Index Rate 
Period.  The CPI Index Rate Continuation Notice shall be accompanied by a letter 
of Bond Counsel to the effect that Bond Counsel expects to be able to deliver a 
Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel on the effective date of the new CPI Index 
Rate Period. 

 (ii) Any establishment of a new CPI Index Rate and CPI Index Rate 
Period for a Series of Bonds pursuant to paragraph (i) above must comply with the 
following conditions: 

 (A) the first day of such new CPI Index Rate Period must be a 
Mandatory Purchase Date for such Bonds pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 4.13, and such Bonds shall be required to be tendered for purchase 
on such date; 

 (B) the first day of such new CPI Index Rate Period must be a 
Business Day; and 

 (C) no new CPI Index Rate shall become effective unless (x) the 
Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel referred to in paragraph (i) above is 
delivered on the first day of the new CPI Index Rate Period and (y) there is 
no Failed Remarketing on the Mandatory Purchase Date on which such new 
CPI Index Rate Period is to become effective. 

 (iii) Upon receipt by the Trustee of a CPI Index Rate Continuation 
Notice from an Authorized Officer, as soon as practicable, but in any event not less 
than 10 Business Days prior to the first day of the proposed CPI Index Rate Period, 
the Issuer (or any dissemination agent appointed by the Issuer) shall give notice by 
first class mail or by Electronic Means via EMMA to the Holders of the Bonds of 
the applicable Series, which notice shall state in substance: 

 (A) that a new CPI Index Rate Period and CPI Index Rate is to 
be established for such Bonds and the proposed effective date of such new 
CPI Index Rate Period (which date shall be the Mandatory Purchase Date 
for such Bonds pursuant to Section 4.13), and that such new CPI Index Rate 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -52- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Period and CPI Index Rate will become effective on such date if the 
conditions specified in this Section 2.14 are satisfied on or before such date; 

 (B) that all Bonds of the applicable Series are subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase on the applicable Mandatory Purchase Date 
pursuant to Section 4.13 (whether or not the proposed new CPI Index Rate 
Period becomes effective on such date) at the Purchase Price, which shall 
be specified therein; 

 (C) the first day of the new CPI Index Rate Period; 

 (D) that the new CPI Index Rate Period and CPI Index Rate for 
the Bonds shall not be established unless a Favorable Opinion of Bond 
Counsel is delivered to the Trustee on the first day of the new CPI Index 
Rate Period and no Failed Remarketing occurs on such date; 

 (E) the CUSIP numbers or other identification information of the 
Bonds of the applicable Series; and 

 (F) that, to the extent that there shall be on deposit with the 
Trustee on the first day of the new CPI Index Rate Period an amount of 
money sufficient to pay the Purchase Price thereof, all the Bonds not 
delivered to the Trustee on or prior to such date shall be deemed to have 
been properly tendered for purchase and shall cease to constitute or 
represent a right on behalf of the Holder thereof to the payment of principal 
thereof or interest thereon and shall represent and constitute only the right 
to payment of the Purchase Price on deposit with the Trustee, without 
interest accruing thereon after such date. 

 (d) End of CPI Index Rate Period.  In the event the Issuer has not given a CPI 
Index Rate Continuation Notice or other Written Notice with respect to the Conversion of 
Bonds to an Interest Rate Period other than a CPI Index Rate Period, in either case at the 
time required by this Indenture, or if the conditions to the effectiveness of a new CPI Index 
Rate Period and new CPI Index Rate set forth above are not satisfied, including as a result 
of the Remarketing Agent’s failure to establish a CPI Index Rate as herein provided, then 
the Bonds of the applicable Series shall be purchased on the applicable Mandatory 
Purchase Date pursuant to Section 4.13 and a Failed Remarketing shall be deemed to have 
occurred and the Bonds shall not be remarketed. 

ARTICLE III 

GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF BONDS 

 Section 3.01. Medium of Payment; Form and Date; Letters and Numbers.  (a)  The Bonds 
shall be payable, with respect to interest, principal and Redemption Price, in any coin or currency 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -53- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of 
public and private debts. 

 (b) The Bonds may be issued only in the form of fully registered Bonds without coupons, 
in Authorized Denominations.  The Bonds shall be in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit A 
hereto, and may be printed, engraved, typewritten or otherwise produced. 

 (c) Unless the Issuer shall otherwise direct, the Bonds shall be numbered from one 
upward, with a separate designation for each Series. 

 Section 3.02. Legends.  The Bonds may contain or have endorsed thereon such provisions, 
specifications and descriptive words not inconsistent with the provisions of this Indenture as may 
be necessary or desirable to comply with custom, the rules of any securities exchange or 
commission or brokerage board, or otherwise, as may be determined by the Issuer prior to the 
authentication and delivery thereof. 

 Section 3.03. Execution and Authentication.  (a)  The parties agree that the Electronic 
Signature of a party to this Indenture, including all acknowledgements, authorizations, directions, 
waivers and consents thereto (or any amendment or supplement thereto) shall be as valid as an 
original signature of such party and shall be effective to bind such party to this Indenture.  The 
parties agree that any Electronically Signed document (including this Indenture) shall be deemed 
(i) to be “written” or “be in writing,” (ii) to have been signed, and (iii) to constitute a record 
established and maintained in the ordinary course of business and an original written record when 
printed from electronic files.  For purposes hereof, “Electronic Signature” or “Electronically 
Signed” means a manually signed original signature that is then transmitted by Electronic Means 
and containing, or to which there is affixed, an Electronic Signature. 

 (b) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Issuer by the manual or facsimile 
signature of the Chair or any other Authorized Officer of the Issuer, and attested by the manual or 
facsimile signature of the Secretary of the Issuer or any other Authorized Officer.  In case any one 
or more of the officers who shall have signed any of the Bonds shall cease to be such officer before 
the Bonds so signed shall have been authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, such Bonds may, 
nevertheless, be authenticated and delivered as herein provided, and may be issued as if the Persons 
who signed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such offices.  Any Bond may be signed on behalf 
of the Issuer by such Persons as at the time of the execution of such Bonds shall be duly authorized 
or hold the proper office in the Issuer, although at the date borne by the Bonds such Persons may 
not have been so authorized or have held such office. 

 (c) The Bonds shall bear thereon a certificate of authentication, in the form set forth in 
Exhibit A hereto, executed manually by the Trustee.  Only such Bonds as shall bear thereon such 
certificate of authentication shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Indenture, and no 
Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose until such certificate of authentication shall have 
been duly executed by the Trustee.  Such certificate of the Trustee upon any Bond executed on 
behalf of the Issuer shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond so authenticated has been duly 
authenticated and delivered under this Indenture and that the Holder thereof is entitled to the 
benefits of this Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -54- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (d) The parties agree that the Electronic Signature of a party to this Indenture, including 
all acknowledgements, authorizations, directions, waivers and consents thereto (or any amendment 
or supplement thereto) shall be as valid as an original signature of such party and shall be effective 
to bind such party to this Indenture.  The parties agree that any Electronically Signed Document 
(including this Indenture) shall be deemed (i) to be “written” or “in writing,” (ii) to have been 
signed, and (iii) to constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business 
and an original written record when printed from electronic files.  For purposes hereof, “Electronic 
Signature” means a manually signed original signature that is then transmitted by Electronic 
Means; “transmitted by Electronic Means” means sent in the form of a facsimile or sent via the 
Internet as a pdf (portable document format) or other replicating image attached to an e-mail 
message; and, “Electronically Signed Document” means a document transmitted by Electronic 
Means and containing, or to which there is affixed, an Electronic Signature.  Paper copies or 
“printouts,” if introduced as evidence in any judicial, arbitral, mediation or administrative 
proceeding, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the same 
conditions as other original business records created and maintained in documentary form.  Neither 
party shall contest the admissibility of true and accurate copies of Electronically Signed 
Documents on the basis of the best evidence rule or as not satisfying the business records exception 
to the hearsay rule. 

 Section 3.04. Exchange, Transfer and Registry.  (a)  The Bonds shall be registered and 
transferred only upon the books of the Issuer, which shall be held and controlled by the Bond 
Registrar and kept for such purposes at the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, 
and may be transferred by the registered owner thereof in person or by its attorney duly authorized 
in writing, upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the 
Bond Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney and in 
compliance with the applicable terms of this Indenture.  The transferor shall also provide, or cause 
to be provided, to the Trustee all information reasonably required by the Trustee to allow it to 
comply with any applicable federal, state or local tax reporting obligations, including, without 
limitation, any cost-basis reporting obligations under Internal Revenue Code Section 6045.  The 
Trustee may rely on such information provided to it and shall have no responsibility to verify or 
ensure the accuracy of such information.  Upon the registration of transfer of any Bond, the Issuer 
shall issue in the name of the transferee a new Bond or Bonds of the same Series, aggregate 
principal amount and maturity as the surrendered Bond. 

 (b) The registered owner of any Bond or Bonds of one or more denominations shall have 
the right to exchange such Bond or Bonds for a new Bond or Bonds of any denomination then 
authorized for such Bond or Bonds of the same Series, aggregate principal amount and maturity 
of the surrendered Bond or Bonds.  Such Bond or Bonds shall be exchanged by the Issuer for a 
new Bond or Bonds upon the request of the registered owner thereof in person or by its attorney 
duly authorized in writing, upon surrender of such Bond or Bonds together with a written 
instrument requesting such exchange, in form satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by 
the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney. 

 (c) The Issuer and each Fiduciary may deem and treat the Person in whose name any 
Bond shall be registered upon the Bond registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar as 
the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for the purpose of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -55- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal and Redemption Price, if any, of and interest 
on such Bond and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made to any such registered 
owner or upon its order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such 
Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the Issuer nor any Fiduciary shall be 
affected by any notice to the contrary. 

 Section 3.05. Regulations With Respect to Exchanges and Registration of Transfers.  In all 
cases in which the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of Bonds is exercised, the 
Issuer shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the 
provisions of this Indenture.  All Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges or registration of 
transfer shall forthwith be delivered to the Trustee and cancelled or retained by the Trustee.  Prior 
to every such exchange or registration of transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the 
Issuer or the Bond Registrar may require the Holder to pay an amount sufficient to reimburse it 
for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or 
transfer.  Every applicable person that transfers Bonds in any such exchange or transfer shall also 
timely provide or cause to be provided to the Trustee all information necessary to allow the Trustee 
to comply with any applicable tax reporting obligation, including without limitation any cost-basis 
reporting obligations under section 6045 of the Internal Revenue Code and the applicable Treasury 
Regulations promulgated thereunder.  The Trustee may rely on the information provided to it and 
shall have no responsibility to verify or ensure the accuracy of such information.  Unless otherwise 
provided in a Supplemental Indenture, neither the Issuer nor the Bond Registrar shall be required 
(a) to register the transfer or exchange of Bonds for the period next preceding any Interest Payment 
Date for the Bonds, beginning with the Regular Record Date for such Interest Payment Date and 
ending on such Interest Payment Date, or for the period next preceding any date for the proposed 
payment of Defaulted Interest with respect to such Bonds beginning with the Special Record Date 
for the date of such proposed payment and ending on the date of such proposed payment, (b) to 
register the transfer or exchange of Bonds for a period beginning 15 days before the mailing of 
any notice of redemption of such Bonds and ending on the day of such mailing, or (c) to register 
the transfer or exchange of any Bonds called for redemption.  Every Person that transfers Bonds 
shall timely provide or cause to be timely provided to the Trustee all information necessary to 
allow the Trustee to comply with any applicable tax reporting obligations, including without 
limitation any cost-basis reporting obligations under Section 6045 of the Internal Revenue Code 
and regulations promulgated thereunder.  The Trustee may rely on the information provided to it 
and shall have no responsibility to verify or ensure the accuracy of such information. 

 Section 3.06. Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost.  If any Bond becomes mutilated 
or is lost, stolen or destroyed, the Issuer may execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver 
a new Bond of like Series, date of issue, maturity date, principal amount and interest rate per 
annum as the Bond so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, provided that (a) in the case of such 
mutilated Bond, such Bond is first surrendered to the Trustee, (b) in the case of any such lost, 
stolen or destroyed Bond, there is first furnished evidence of such loss, theft or destruction in form 
satisfactory to the Trustee together with indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee, (c) all other 
reasonable requirements of the Issuer and the Trustee are complied with, and (d) expenses in 
connection with such transaction are paid by the Holder.  Any Bond surrendered for registration 
or transfer shall be cancelled.  Any such new Bonds issued pursuant to this Section in substitution 
for Bonds alleged to be destroyed, stolen or lost shall constitute original additional contractual 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -56- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

obligations on the part of the Issuer, whether or not the Bonds so alleged to be destroyed, stolen 
or lost be at any time enforceable by anyone, and shall be equally secured by and entitled to equal 
and proportionate benefits with all other Bonds issued under this Indenture, in any moneys or 
securities held by the Issuer or any Fiduciary for the benefit of the Bondholders. 

 Section 3.07. Temporary Bonds.  (a)  Until the definitive Bonds are prepared, the Issuer 
may execute, in the same manner as is provided in Section 3.03, and upon the request of the Issuer, 
the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in lieu of definitive Bonds, but subject to the same 
provisions, limitations and conditions as the definitive Bonds, one or more temporary Bonds 
substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which such temporary Bond or Bonds 
are issued, and with such omissions, insertions and variations as may be appropriate to temporary 
Bonds.  The Issuer at its own expense shall prepare and execute and, upon the surrender of such 
temporary Bonds for exchange and the cancellation of such surrendered temporary Bonds, the 
Trustee shall authenticate and, without service charge to the Holder thereof (except a sum 
sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation 
thereto), deliver in exchange therefor, definitive Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount 
and maturity as the temporary Bonds surrendered.  Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall 
in all respects be entitled to the same benefits and security as definitive Bonds authenticated and 
issued pursuant to this Indenture. 

 (b) All temporary Bonds surrendered in exchange either for another temporary Bond or 
Bonds or for a definitive Bond or Bonds shall be forthwith cancelled by the Trustee. 

 Section 3.08. Payment of Interest on Bonds; Interest Rights Preserved.  Interest on any 
Bond which is payable, and is punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest Payment Date 
shall be paid to the Person in whose name that Bond is registered at the close of business on the 
Regular Record Date. 

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided for, 
on any Interest Payment Date (hereinafter, “Defaulted Interest”) shall forthwith cease to be 
payable to the Person who was the registered owner on the relevant Regular Record Date; and such 
Defaulted Interest shall be paid by the Issuer to the Persons in whose names the Bonds are 
registered at the close of business on a date (hereinafter, the “Special Record Date”) for the 
payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fixed in the following manner.  The Issuer shall 
notify the Bond Registrar in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on 
each Bond and the date of the proposed payment, and at the same time the Issuer shall deposit with 
the Paying Agents an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in 
respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to and approved in 
writing by the Paying Agents for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment, such 
money when deposited to be held in trust for the benefit of the Persons entitled to such Defaulted 
Interest as in this Section provided.  Thereupon the Bond Registrar shall fix a Special Record Date 
for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than 15 days or less than 
10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment and not less than 10 days after the receipt by the 
Bond Registrar of the written notice of the proposed payment.  The Bond Registrar shall promptly 
notify the Issuer of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense of the Issuer, 
shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -57- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

therefor to be mailed, first class postage prepaid, to each Bondholder at its address as it appears 
upon the registry books, not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date. 

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Section, each Bond delivered under this 
Indenture upon registration or transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry 
the rights to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bond. 

 Section 3.09. Book Entry System; Appointment of Securities Depository.  All Bonds shall 
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, as Securities Depository, and held 
in the custody or for the account of the Securities Depository.  A single certificate will be issued 
and delivered to the Securities Depository for each maturity of Bonds, and the Beneficial Owners 
will not receive physical delivery of Bond certificates except as provided in this Indenture.  For so 
long as the Securities Depository shall continue to serve as securities depository for the Bonds as 
provided herein, all transfers of Beneficial Ownership interests will be made by book entry only, 
and no investor or other party purchasing, selling or otherwise transferring Beneficial Ownership 
of Bonds is to receive, hold or deliver any Bond certificate.  In connection with any proposed 
transfer outside the Book Entry System, the Issuer or the Securities Depository shall provide, or 
cause to be provided, to the Trustee all information reasonably required by the Trustee to allow it 
to comply with any applicable federal, state or local tax reporting obligations, including, without 
limitation, any cost-basis reporting obligations under Internal Revenue Code Section 6045.  The 
Trustee may rely on such information provided to it and shall have no responsibility to verify or 
ensure the accuracy of such information. 

The Issuer may, with Written Notice to the Trustee but without the consent of any 
Bondholders, appoint a successor Securities Depository and enter into an agreement with the 
successor Securities Depository, to establish procedures with respect to a Book Entry System for 
the Bonds not inconsistent with the provisions of this Indenture.  Any successor Securities 
Depository shall be a “clearing agency” registered under Section 17A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended. 

The Issuer and the Trustee may rely conclusively upon (i) a certificate of the Securities 
Depository as to the identity of the Participants in the Book Entry System with respect to the 
Bonds, and (ii) a certificate of any such Participant as to the identity of, and the respective principal 
amount of the Bonds beneficially owned by the Beneficial Owners. 

Whenever, during the term of the Bonds, the Beneficial Ownership of any Series thereof 
is determined by a book entry at the Securities Depository, the requirements in this Indenture of 
holding, delivering or transferring such Bonds shall be deemed modified to require the appropriate 
Person to meet the requirements of the Securities Depository as to registering or transferring the 
book entry to produce the same effect.  Any provision hereof permitting or requiring delivery of 
the Bonds shall, while such Bonds are in such Book Entry System, be satisfied by the notation on 
the books of the Securities Depository in accordance with applicable state law.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the Trustee shall have no obligation or duty to monitor, determine or inquire as to 
compliance with any restrictions on transfer imposed under this Indenture or under applicable law 
with respect to any transfer of any interest in any security (including any transfers between or 
among Securities Depository Participants or Beneficial Owners) other than to require delivery of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -58- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

such certificates and other documentation or evidence as are expressly required by, and to do so if 
and when expressly required by the terms of, this Indenture, and to examine the same to determine 
substantial compliance as to form with the express requirements hereof. 

Except as otherwise specifically provided herein with respect to the rights of Participants 
and Beneficial Owners, when a Book Entry System is in effect, the Issuer and the Trustee may 
treat the Securities Depository (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the Bonds 
registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal, Redemption Price or Purchase 
Price of and interest on such Bonds or portion thereof to be redeemed or purchased, of giving any 
notice permitted or required to be given to the Bondholders under this Indenture and of voting, and 
neither the Issuer nor the Trustee shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.  Neither the Issuer 
nor the Trustee will have any responsibility or obligations to the Securities Depository, any 
Participant, any Beneficial Owner or any other Person which is not shown on the bond register, 
with respect to (a) the accuracy of any records maintained by the Securities Depository or any 
Participant; (b) the payment by the Securities Depository or by any Participant of any amount due 
to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the principal amount, Redemption Price or Purchase Price 
of, or interest on, any Bonds; (c) the delivery of any notice by the Securities Depository or any 
Participant; (d) the selection of the Beneficial Owners to receive payment in the event of any partial 
redemption of any of the Bonds; or (e) any other action taken by the Securities Depository or any 
Participant.  The Trustee shall pay all principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds 
registered in the name of Cede only to or “upon the order of” the Securities Depository (as that 
term is used in the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the State and New York), and all such 
payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Issuer’s obligations with 
respect to the principal, Redemption Price or purchase price of and interest on such Bonds to the 
extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

The Book Entry System may be discontinued by the Trustee and the Issuer, at the Written 
Direction and expense of the Issuer, and the Issuer and the Trustee will cause the delivery of Bond 
certificates to such Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and registered in the names of such Beneficial 
Owners as shall be specified to the Trustee by the Securities Depository in writing, under the 
following circumstances: 

 (i) The Securities Depository determines to discontinue providing its service 
with respect to any Bonds and no successor Securities Depository is appointed as described 
above.  Such a determination may be made at any time by giving 30 days’ written notice 
to the Issuer and the Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under 
applicable law; or 

 (ii) The Issuer determines, with written notice to the Trustee, not to continue 
the Book Entry System through a Securities Depository for the Bonds. 

When the Book Entry System is not in effect, all references herein to the Securities 
Depository shall be of no further force or effect. 

In connection with any proposed transfer outside the Book Entry System of the Securities 
Depository, the Securities Depository and the Issuer shall provide or cause to be provided to the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -59- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Trustee all information necessary to allow the Trustee to comply with any applicable tax reporting 
obligations, including without limitation cost-basis reporting obligations under Section 6045 of 
the Internal Revenue Code and the applicable Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder.  The 
Trustee may rely on the information provided to it and shall have no responsibility to verify or 
ensure the accuracy of such information. 

 Section 3.10. Subsidy Payments.  In the event that one or more Series of Bonds are issued 
which qualify the Issuer to receive Subsidy Payments and the Issuer, in a Supplemental Indenture, 
pledges such Subsidy Payments to the repayment of the principal of, and interest on, the Bonds, 
then, to the extent such Subsidy Payments are received by the Trustee, they shall constitute 
Revenues under the Indenture. 

 Section 3.11. Limitation of Liability of the Issuer.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein or in the Bonds, all obligations of the Issuer to make payments of any kind pursuant to this 
Indenture are special, limited obligations of the Issuer, payable solely from, and secured solely by, 
the Trust Estate as and to the extent provided herein.  The Issuer shall not be required to advance 
any moneys derived from any source other than the Revenues and other assets pledged under this 
Indenture for any of the purposes in this Indenture mentioned, whether for the payment of the 
principal of or interest on the Bonds or for any other purpose of this Indenture.  Neither the faith 
and credit of the Issuer nor the taxing power of the State or any political subdivision thereof is 
pledged to payments pursuant to this Indenture or the Bonds.  The Issuer shall not be directly, 
indirectly, contingently or otherwise liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or 
actions, of any conceivable kind on any conceivable theory, under or by reasons of or in connection 
with this Indenture or the Clean Energy Project, except solely to the extent Revenues are received 
for the payment thereof. 

ARTICLE IV 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS AND TENDER PROVISIONS 

 Section 4.01. Extraordinary Redemption.  (a)  The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory 
redemption prior to maturity in whole, and not in part, on the first day of the Month following the 
Early Termination Payment Date, which redemption date in the case of a Failed Remarketing will 
be the same day as the current Mandatory Purchase Date, at the following Redemption Prices: 

 (i) in the case of a Series of Bonds bearing interest in a Term Rate Period 
(including the Series 2022A-1 Bonds), the Amortized Value thereof, and 

 (ii) in the case of a Series of Variable Rate Bonds (including the Series 2022A-
2 Bonds), 100% of the principal amount thereof, 

plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. 

 (b) The Issuer shall (i) provide the Trustee with Written Notice of the Early Termination 
Payment Date as provided in Section 7.12(b), and (ii) as of the first day of the Month prior to a 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -60- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Mandatory Purchase Date, direct the Trustee to send a conditional notice of redemption pursuant 
to Section 4.04 in the event that a Failed Remarketing may occur. 

 Section 4.02. Sinking Fund Redemption.  (a) The Series 2022A-[1] Bonds maturing on 
__________, 20__ bearing interest at a rate of _____% shall be subject to mandatory redemption 
prior to their stated maturity in part (by lot) from Sinking Fund Installments, at a Redemption Price 
equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption on the following dates and in the following amounts: 

REDEMPTION 
DATE 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

REDEMPTION 
DATE 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

 $  $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  20__*  
    
    
    

_____________________________ 
*  Stated Maturity 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -61- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

(b)  The Series 2022A-[1] Bonds maturing on __________, 20__ bearing interest 
at a rate of _____% shall be subject to mandatory redemption prior to their stated maturity in part 
(by lot) from Sinking Fund Installments, at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount 
thereof, without premium, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption on the following dates 
and in the following amounts: 

REDEMPTION 
DATE 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

REDEMPTION 
DATE 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

 $  $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  20__*  
    
    
    

_____________________________ 
*  Stated Maturity 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -62- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

(c)  The Series 2022A-2 Bonds maturing on __________, 20__ shall be subject 
to mandatory redemption prior to their stated maturity in part (by lot) from Sinking Fund 
Installments, at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption on the following dates and in the following amounts: 

REDEMPTION 
DATE 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

REDEMPTION 
DATE 

PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

 $  $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  20__*  
    
    
    

_____________________________ 
*  Stated Maturity 

 Section 4.03. Optional Redemption.  (a)  The Series 2022A-1 Bonds are subject to 
redemption at the option of the Issuer in whole or in part (in such amounts and by such maturities 
as may be specified by the Issuer and by lot within a maturity) on any date prior to __________ 1, 
20__ at a Redemption Price, calculated by a quotation agent selected by the Issuer, equal to the 
greater of: 

 (i) the sum of the present values of the remaining unpaid payments of principal 
and interest to be paid on the Series 2022A-1 Bond to be redeemed from and including the 
date of redemption (not including any portion of the interest accrued and unpaid as of the 
redemption date) to the earlier of the stated maturity date of such Series 2022A-1 Bond or 
the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date, discounted to the date of redemption on a semiannual 
basis at a discount rate equal to the Applicable Tax Exempt Municipal Bond Rate for such 
Series 2022A-1 Bonds minus 0.25% per annum, and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -63- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (ii) the Amortized Value thereof; 

in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. 

 (b) The Series 2022A-1 Bonds maturing on or after the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date 
are subject to redemption at the option of the Issuer in whole or in part (in such amounts and by 
such maturities as may be specified by the Issuer and by lot within a maturity) on any date on or 
after ___________ 1, 20__ at a Redemption Price selected by the Issuer, equal to the Amortized 
Value thereof as of the first day of the month of redemption (expressed as a percentage of the 
principal amount of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds to be redeemed), as follows: 

REDEMPTION PERIOD 
(BOTH DATES 
INCLUSIVE) 

__________, 20__ 
MATURITY 

REDEMPTION PRICE 

__________, 20__ 
(__%) MATURITY 

REDEMPTION PRICE 

__________, 20__ 
(__%) MATURITY 

REDEMPTION PRICE 

 % % % 
    
    

in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. 

 (c) The Series 2022A-2 Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Issuer in whole 
or in part (in such amounts and by such maturities as may be specified by the Issuer and at random 
within a maturity), on any day on or after the first day of the third month preceding the Initial 
Mandatory Purchase Date for the Series 2022A-2 Bonds, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of 
redemption.  In lieu of redeeming the Series 2022A-2 Bonds pursuant to this provision, the Trustee 
may, upon the Written Direction of the Issuer, use such funds as may be available by the Issuer or 
as are otherwise available under this Indenture to purchase such Series 2022A-2 Bonds on the 
applicable redemption date at a Purchase Price equal to the applicable Redemption Price of such 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds.  Any Series 2022A-2 Bonds so purchased may be remarketed in a new 
Interest Rate Period. 

 (d) The Issuer shall provide Written Notice of the identity of the quotation agent to the 
Trustee. 

(e) The Series 2022A Bonds shall also be subject to redemption at the option of the 
Issuer, as provided in a Supplemental Indenture executed or Interest Rate Determination 
Certificate delivered in connection with a Conversion of the Bonds. 

 (f) For so long as a Series of Bonds is bearing interest in an Index Rate Period, the Bonds 
of such Series are subject to optional redemption by the Issuer, in whole or in part (in such amounts 
and by such maturities as may be specified by the Issuer and at random within a maturity), on any 
Business Day on or after the first Business Day of the third month preceding the Index Rate Tender 
Date for such Series of Bonds at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof 
to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -64- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (g) For so long as a Series of Bonds is bearing interest in a Daily Interest Rate Period or 
a Weekly Interest Rate Period, the Bonds of such Series are subject to optional redemption by the 
Issuer in whole or in part (in such amounts and by such maturities as may be specified by the Issuer 
and at random within a maturity) on any Business Day at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of 
redemption. 

 (h) For so long as a Series of Bonds is bearing interest in a Commercial Paper Interest 
Rate Period, each Bond of such Series is subject to optional redemption by the Issuer on the day 
succeeding the last day of any CP Interest Term for such Bond at a Redemption Price equal to 
100% of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date 
of redemption. 

 (i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in connection with the 
Conversion of a Series of Bonds from one Interest Rate Period to another or the establishment of 
a new Term Rate Period or Index Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, the Issuer may, in the Written 
Direction to the Trustee delivered in connection with such Conversion or establishment of a new 
Term Rate Period or Index Rate Period, designate additional or different terms upon which the 
Bonds of such Series will be subject to optional redemption during the new Interest Rate Period 
for such Series of Bonds if such additional or different terms of optional redemption are approved 
by Bond Counsel. 

 (j) In lieu of redeeming Series 2022A-1 Bonds pursuant to this Section 4.03, the Trustee 
may, upon the Written Direction of the Issuer, use such funds as may be available by the Issuer or 
as are otherwise available hereunder to purchase such Series 2022A-1 Bonds on the applicable 
redemption date at a Purchase Price equal to the applicable Redemption Price of such Series 
2022A-1 Bonds.  Any Series 2022A-1 Bonds so purchased may be remarketed in a new Interest 
Rate Period or may be cancelled by the Trustee, in either case as set forth in the Written Direction 
of the Issuer. 

 Section 4.04. Redemption Notice.  (a)  When the Trustee receives Written Notice from the 
Issuer of its election or direction to optionally redeem Bonds pursuant to Section 4.06, the Trustee 
shall give notice, in the name of the Issuer, or when redemption of Bonds is authorized or required 
pursuant to Section 4.01 or other than at the election or direction of the Issuer, pursuant to 
Section 4.07 the Trustee shall give notice, in the name of the Issuer, of the redemption of such 
Bonds by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered owner of each Bond being redeemed, 
at its address as it appears on the bond registration books of the Trustee or at such address as such 
owner may have filed with the Trustee in writing for that purpose, as of the Regular Record Date, 
as follows: 

 (i) for any redemption of the Bonds pursuant to Section 4.01, not less than 
15 days prior to the redemption date; 

 (ii) for redemptions of Bonds pursuant to Section 4.02 or Section 4.03(a), not 
less than 30 days prior to the redemption date for Bonds bearing interest in a Term Rate 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -65- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Period, and not less than 15 days prior to the redemption date for Bonds bearing interest in 
any other Interest Rate Period; 

 (iii) for redemptions of Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03(b) or Section 4.02(d), 
not less than 15 days prior to the redemption date. 

A notice of redemption of the Series 2022A Bonds (A) pursuant to clause (iii) above may 
include a statement that, if the Series 2022A Bonds are not redeemed for any reason, the Series 
2022A Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on the Initial Mandatory Purchase 
Date, and (B) pursuant to clause (i) or clause (iii) above may be combined with notice of the 
mandatory tender of the Series 2022A Bonds on the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date pursuant to 
Section 4.16, subject to the condition set forth in Section 4.16(b). 

 (b) In the event that the Bonds may be subject to extraordinary redemption as a result of 
a Failed Remarketing that could occur if the Trustee has not received the Purchase Price of the 
Bonds by noon New York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding a Mandatory Purchase 
Date, a notice of extraordinary redemption of the Bonds pursuant to this Section 4.04 may be a 
conditional notice of redemption, delivered in each case not less than 15 days prior to such 
Mandatory Purchase Date, stating that: (a) such redemption shall be conditioned upon the 
Trustee’s failure to receive, by noon New York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding such 
Mandatory Purchase Date, the Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on such 
Mandatory Purchase Date, and (b) if the full amount of the Purchase Price has been received by 
the Trustee by noon New York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding such Mandatory 
Purchase Date, the Bonds shall be purchased pursuant to Section 4.13 or Section 4.14 hereof on 
such Mandatory Purchase Date rather than redeemed.  If the full amount of the Purchase Price has 
been received by the Trustee by noon New York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding 
such Mandatory Purchase Date, the Trustee shall withdraw such conditional notice of redemption 
prior to such Mandatory Purchase Date and the Bonds shall be purchased pursuant to Section 4.13 
or Section 4.14 hereof on such Mandatory Purchase Date rather than redeemed. 

 (c) Each notice of redemption shall identify the Bonds to be redeemed and shall state 
(i) the redemption date, (ii) the Redemption Price or the manner in which it will be calculated, 
(iii) that the Bonds called for redemption must be surrendered to collect the Redemption Price, 
(iv) the address at which the Bonds must be surrendered, and (v) that interest on the Bonds called 
for redemption ceases to accrue on the redemption date. 

 (d) With respect to any notice of optional redemption of Bonds, unless upon the giving 
of such notice such Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of Section 12.01 
of this Indenture, such notice shall state that such redemption shall be conditioned upon the receipt 
by the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption of money sufficient to pay the 
Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed, and that if such money shall not 
have been so received said notice shall be of no force and effect, and the Issuer shall not be required 
to redeem such Bonds.  In the event that such notice of redemption contains such a condition and 
such money is not so received, the redemption shall not be made and the Trustee shall within a 
reasonable time thereafter give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, 
that such money was not so received and that such redemption was not made. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -66- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (e) Failure of the registered owner of any Bonds which are to be redeemed to receive any 
such notice, or any defect in such notice, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the 
redemption of any Bonds. 

 Section 4.05. Bonds Redeemed in Part.  Upon surrender of a Bond redeemed in part, the 
Issuer will execute and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver to the Holder thereof a new Bond 
or Bonds of the same Series, maturity and tenor in Authorized Denominations equal in principal 
amount to the unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered.  Notwithstanding anything herein to 
the contrary, so long as the Bonds are held in the Book Entry System the Bonds will not be 
delivered as set forth above; rather transfers of Beneficial Ownership of such Bonds to the Person 
indicated above will be effected on the registration books of the Securities Depository pursuant to 
its rules and procedures. 

 Section 4.06. Redemption at the Election or Direction of the Issuer.  In the case of any 
redemption of Bonds at the election or direction of the Issuer, the Issuer shall give Written Notice 
to the Trustee, at least five Business Days prior to the last date on which the Trustee is required to 
give notice of redemption pursuant to Section 4.04, of its election or direction so to redeem, the 
Series, Maturity Dates, principal amounts by Maturity Dates and CUSIP numbers of the Bonds to 
be redeemed, the Redemption Price or the manner in which it will be calculated for each Maturity 
Date of Bonds to be redeemed, and the date on which such Bonds are to be redeemed, and directing 
the Trustee to provide notice of such redemption to the Owners of such Bonds pursuant to 
Section 4.04 (maturities and principal amounts thereof to be redeemed shall be determined by the 
Issuer in its sole discretion).  In the event notice of redemption shall have been given as in 
Section 4.04 provided, there shall be paid on or prior to the redemption date to the appropriate 
Paying Agents an amount in cash which, in addition to other moneys, if any, available therefor 
held by such Paying Agents, will be sufficient to redeem on the redemption date at the Redemption 
Price thereof, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date, all of the Bonds to be 
redeemed.  The Issuer shall promptly notify the Trustee in writing of all such payments by it to 
such Paying Agents. 

 Section 4.07. Redemption Other Than at the Issuer’s Election or Direction.  Whenever by 
the terms of this Indenture the Trustee is required or authorized to redeem Bonds other than at the 
election or direction of the Issuer, the Trustee shall (i) select the Bonds or portions of Bonds to be 
redeemed, (ii) give the notice of redemption and (iii) pay out of moneys available therefor the 
Redemption Price thereof, plus interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date, to the 
appropriate Paying Agents in accordance with the terms of this Article IV and, to the extent 
applicable, Section 5.07 and Section 5.08. 

 Section 4.08. Selection of Bonds To Be Redeemed.  If less than all of the Bonds of like 
Series, tenor and maturity shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds 
of such Series, tenor and maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by lot in such manner as the 
Trustee shall determine, in its sole discretion, from Bonds of such Series, tenor and maturity not 
previously called for redemption; provided, however, that the portion of any Bond of a 
denomination of more than a minimum Authorized Denomination to be redeemed shall be in the 
principal amount of such minimum Authorized Denomination or a multiple thereof, and that, in 
selecting portions of such Bonds for redemption, the Trustee shall treat each such Bond as 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -67- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

representing that number of Bonds of a minimum Authorized Denomination which is obtained by 
dividing by such minimum Authorized Denomination the principal amount of such Bond to be 
redeemed in part. 

 Section 4.09. Payment of Redeemed Bonds.  Notice having been given in the manner 
provided in Section 4.04 and, in the case of optional redemption of Bonds, sufficient moneys for 
payment of the Redemption Price of, together with interest accrued to the redemption date on such 
Bonds being held by the Trustee, the Bonds or portions thereof so called for redemption shall 
become due and payable on the redemption date so designated at the applicable Redemption Price, 
and, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the office specified in such notice, such Bonds, or 
portions thereof, shall be paid at the Redemption Price.  If there shall be drawn for redemption less 
than all of a Bond, the Issuer shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and the Paying Agent 
shall deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without charge to the owner thereof, for the 
unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the Bonds so surrendered, Bonds of like Series, 
maturity and tenor in any of the Authorized Denominations.  If, on the redemption date, moneys 
for the redemption of all the Bonds or portions thereof of any like maturity to be redeemed, together 
with interest to the redemption date, shall be held by the Paying Agents so as to be available 
therefor on said date and if notice of redemption shall have been given as aforesaid, then, from and 
after the redemption date interest on the Bonds or portions thereof of so called for redemption shall 
cease to accrue and become payable.  If said moneys shall not be so available on the redemption 
date, such Bonds or portions thereof shall continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as 
they would have borne had they not been called for redemption.  Upon the payment of the 
Redemption Price of the Bonds or portions thereof being redeemed, each check or other transfer 
of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by maturity, the Bonds 
being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

 Section 4.10. Cancellation and Destruction of Bonds.  All Bonds paid or redeemed either 
at or before maturity shall be delivered to the Trustee at its designated corporate trust office when 
such payment or redemption is made, and such Bonds, together with all Bonds purchased or 
redeemed pursuant to Section 5.10(c) that have been delivered to the Trustee for application as a 
credit against Sinking Fund Installments and all Bonds purchased by the Trustee pursuant to the 
Written Direction of the Issuer, shall thereupon be promptly cancelled (or deemed to have been 
cancelled).  Bonds so cancelled may, to the extent permitted by law, at any time be destroyed by 
the Trustee, who shall execute a certificate of destruction in duplicate by the signature of one of 
its authorized officers describing the Bonds so destroyed, and one executed certificate shall be 
filed with the Issuer and the other executed certificate shall be retained by the Trustee. 

 Section 4.11. Optional Tender During Daily or Weekly Interest Rate Periods.  (a)  During 
any Daily Interest Rate Period or Weekly Interest Rate Period for a Series of Bonds, any Eligible 
Bond of such Series shall be purchased from its Owner at the option of the Owner on any Business 
Day at the applicable Purchase Price, payable in immediately available funds, upon delivery to the 
Trustee at its designated corporate trust office for delivery of notices and the Remarketing Agent 
of an irrevocable written notice which states the name of the Owner, the principal amount and the 
date on which the same shall be purchased, which date shall be a Business Day not prior to the 
seventh day next succeeding the date of the delivery of such notice to the Trustee.  Any notice 
delivered to the Trustee after 4:00 p.m., New York City time, shall be deemed to have been 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -68- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

received on the next succeeding Business Day.  Payment of such Purchase Price shall be made 
from the sources and in the order of priority set forth in Section 4.15(e) on the date specified in 
such notice, provided such Bond is delivered, at or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on 
the date specified in such notice, to the Trustee at its designated corporate trust office, accompanied 
by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, executed in blank by the 
Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized attorney, with such signature guaranteed by a 
commercial bank, trust company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange. 

 (b) So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, 
only direct or indirect Participants may give notice of the election to tender Bonds or portions 
thereof and the Beneficial Owners shall not have the right to tender Bonds directly to the Trustee, 
except through such Participants. 

 Section 4.12. Mandatory Tender for Purchase on Day Next Succeeding the Last Day of 
Each CP Interest Term.  On the day next succeeding the last day of each CP Interest Term for an 
Eligible Bond in a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, unless such day is the first day of a new 
Interest Rate Period for such Bond (in which event such Bond shall be subject to mandatory 
purchase pursuant to Section 4.14), such Bond shall be purchased from its Owner at the applicable 
Purchase Price payable in immediately available funds, provided such Bond is delivered to the 
Trustee on or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on such day, or if delivered after 
10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next succeeding Business Day; provided, however, that in 
any event such Bond will not bear interest at the CP Interest Term Rate after the last day of the 
applicable CP Interest Term.  The Purchase Price of any Bond so purchased shall be payable from 
the sources and in the order of priority set forth in Section 4.15(e) only upon surrender of such 
Bond to the Trustee at its designated corporate trust office, accompanied by an instrument of 
transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, executed in blank by the Owner thereof or by 
the Owner’s duly authorized attorney, with such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, trust 
company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange. 

 Section 4.13. Mandatory Tender for Purchase on the Mandatory Purchase Date, Index 
Rate Tender Date or Term Rate Tender Date.  On the Mandatory Purchase Date, Index Rate Tender 
Date or Term Rate Tender Date for a Series of Bonds (which, for the avoidance of doubt, can occur 
only on a Mandatory Purchase Date), unless such day is the first day of a new Interest Rate Period 
for such Bonds (in which event such Bonds shall be subject to mandatory purchase pursuant to 
Section 4.14), each Eligible Bond of such Series shall be purchased from the Owner thereof at the 
applicable Purchase Price, payable in immediately available funds, provided such Bond is 
delivered to the Trustee on or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on such day, or if delivered 
after 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the next succeeding Business Day; provided, however, 
that in any event such Bond will not bear interest at the applicable Index Rate or Term Rate after 
the last day of the applicable Index Rate Period or Term Rate Period, respectively.  The Purchase 
Price of any Bond so purchased shall be payable from the sources and in the order of priority 
specified in Section 4.15(e) only upon surrender of such Bond to the Trustee at its designated 
corporate trust office, accompanied by an instrument of transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to the 
Trustee, executed in blank by the Owner thereof or by the Owner’s duly authorized attorney, with 
such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, trust company or member firm of the New York 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -69- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Stock Exchange.  The Series 2022A Bonds shall be subject to mandatory tender pursuant to this 
Section 4.13 on the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date. 

 Section 4.14. Mandatory Tender for Purchase on Conversion of Interest Rate Period.  
Eligible Bonds of a Series shall be subject to mandatory tender for purchase on each Conversion 
Date (which shall be a Mandatory Purchase Date) at the applicable Purchase Price, payable in 
immediately available funds.  The Purchase Price of any Bond so purchased shall be payable from 
the sources and in the order of priority specified in Section 4.15(e) only upon surrender of such 
Bond to the Trustee at its designated corporate trust office, accompanied by an instrument of 
transfer thereof, in form satisfactory to such Trustee, executed in blank by the Owner thereof or 
by the Owner’s duly authorized attorney, with such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, 
trust company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange at or prior to 10:00 a.m., 
New York City time, on the date specified for such delivery in this paragraph or in the notice 
provided pursuant to Section 2.10. 

 Section 4.15. General Provisions Relating to Tenders. 

 (a) Creation of Bond Purchase Fund. 

 (i) There shall be created and established hereunder with the Trustee a 
fund to be designated the “Bond Purchase Fund” to be held in trust only for the 
benefit of the Owners of tendered Bonds who shall thereafter be restricted 
exclusively to the moneys held in such fund for the satisfaction of any claim for the 
Purchase Price of such tendered Bonds.  The Bond Purchase Fund and the Accounts 
therein are not Pledged Funds. 

 (ii) There shall be created and designated the following Accounts with 
respect to each Series of Bonds within the Bond Purchase Fund:  the “Remarketing 
Proceeds Account” and the “Issuer Purchase Account.”  Moneys paid to the Trustee 
for the purchase of tendered or deemed tendered Bonds of a Series received from 
(A) the Remarketing Agent shall be deposited in the Remarketing Proceeds 
Account for such Series in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.15(d)(i) and 
(B) the Issuer shall be deposited in the Issuer Purchase Account in accordance with 
the provisions of Section 4.15(d)(ii).  Moneys provided by the Issuer not required 
to be used in connection with the purchase of tendered Bonds shall be returned to 
the Issuer in accordance with Section 4.15(d) and Section 4.15(e). 

 (iii) Moneys in the Issuer Purchase Account and the Remarketing 
Proceeds Account with respect to a Series of Bonds shall not be commingled with 
other funds held by the Trustee and shall remain uninvested.  The Issuer shall have 
no right, title or interest in any of the funds held on deposit in the Remarketing 
Proceeds Account or any remarketing proceeds held for any period of time by the 
Remarketing Agent. 

 (b) Deposit of Bonds.  The Trustee agrees to hold all Bonds delivered to it 
pursuant to Section 4.11, Section 4.12, Section 4.13 or Section 4.14 in trust for the benefit 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -70- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

of the respective Owners which shall have so delivered such Bonds until moneys 
representing the Purchase Price of such Bonds have been delivered to such Owner in 
accordance with the provisions of this Indenture and until such Bonds shall have been 
delivered by the Trustee in accordance with Section 4.15(f). 

 (c) Remarketing of Bonds. 

 (i) Immediately upon its receipt, but not later than noon, New York 
City time on the following Business Day, from an Owner of a Bond bearing interest 
at a Daily Interest Rate or a Weekly Interest Rate of a notice pursuant to 
Section 4.11, the Trustee shall notify the Remarketing Agent by telephone, 
promptly confirmed in writing by Electronic Means, of such receipt, specifying the 
principal amount of Bonds for which it has received such notice, the names of the 
Owners thereof and the date on which such Bonds are to be purchased in 
accordance with Section 4.11. 

 (ii) As soon as practicable, but in no event later than 10:15 a.m., 
New York City time, on a Purchase Date, the Remarketing Agent shall inform the 
Trustee by telephone, promptly confirmed in writing, by Electronic Means, of the 
principal amount of Purchased Bonds to be purchased on such date, the name, 
address and taxpayer identification number of each such purchaser, and the 
Authorized Denominations in which such Purchased Bonds are to be delivered.  
Upon receipt from the Remarketing Agent of such information, and in no event 
later than 12:30 p.m., New York City time, on the Purchase Date, the Trustee shall 
prepare Purchased Bonds in accordance with such information received from the 
Remarketing Agent for the registration of transfer and redelivery to the 
Remarketing Agent pursuant to paragraph (f) of this Section 4.15. 

 (iii) Any Purchased Bonds which are subject to mandatory tender for 
purchase in accordance with Section 4.12, Section 4.13 or Section 4.14 which are 
not presented to the Trustee on the Purchase Date and any Purchased Bonds which 
are the subject of a notice pursuant to Section 4.16 which are not presented to the 
Trustee on the Purchase Date, shall, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 4.16, be deemed to have been purchased upon the deposit of moneys equal 
to the Purchase Price thereof into any or all of the accounts of the Bond Purchase 
Fund. 

 (d) Deposits of Funds. 

 (i) The Trustee shall deposit into the Remarketing Proceeds Account 
for the applicable Series of Bonds any amounts received by it in immediately 
available funds by 12:30 p.m., New York City time, on any Purchase Date from the 
Remarketing Agent against receipt of Bonds by the Remarketing Agent pursuant to 
Section 4.15(f) and on account of Purchased Bonds remarketed pursuant to the 
terms of the Remarketing Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -71- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (ii) The Issuer may, in its sole discretion, pay to the Trustee in 
immediately available funds the amount equal to the difference, if any, between the 
total Purchase Price of Bonds to be purchased and the amount of money deposited 
under Section 4.15(d)(i) (the “Additional Liquidity Drawing Amount”) by 
12:45 p.m., New York City time.  The Trustee shall deposit any Additional 
Liquidity Drawing Amounts into the Issuer Purchase Account for the applicable 
Series of Bonds. 

 (iii) The Trustee shall hold all proceeds received from the Remarketing 
Agent or the Issuer pursuant to this Section 4.15(d) in trust for the tendering 
Owners.  In holding such proceeds and moneys, the Trustee will be acting on behalf 
of such Owners by facilitating the purchase of the Bonds and not on behalf of the 
Issuer and will not be subject to the control of the Issuer.  Subject to the provisions 
of Section 4.15(e), following the discharge of the pledge created by Section 5.01 or 
after payment in full of the Bonds, the Trustee shall pay any moneys remaining in 
any Account of the Bond Purchase Fund directly to the Persons for whom such 
money is held upon presentation of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee 
that such Person is rightfully entitled to such money and the Trustee shall not pay 
such amounts to any other Person. 

 (e) Disbursements; Payment of Purchase Price.  Moneys delivered to the 
Trustee on a Purchase Date shall be applied at or before 1:00 p.m., New York City time, 
on such Purchase Date to pay the Purchase Price of Purchased Bonds of the applicable 
Series in immediately available funds as follows in the indicated order of application and, 
to the extent not so applied on such date, shall be held in the separate and segregated 
Accounts of the Bond Purchase Fund for the benefit of the Owners of the Purchased Bonds 
which were to have been purchased: 

FIRST:  Moneys deposited in the Remarketing Proceeds Account for the 
Bonds of the applicable Series; and 

SECOND:  Moneys deposited in the Issuer Purchase Account for the Bonds 
of the applicable Series. 

Any moneys held by the Trustee in the Issuer Purchase Account remaining 
unclaimed by the Owners of the Purchased Bonds which were to have been purchased for 
two years after the respective Purchase Date for such Bonds shall be paid to the Issuer, 
upon a request in a Written Direction of the Issuer against written receipt therefor.  The 
Owners of Purchased Bonds who have not yet claimed money in respect of such Bonds 
shall thereafter be entitled to look only to the Trustee, to the extent it shall hold moneys on 
deposit in the Bond Purchase Fund, or the Issuer to the extent moneys have been transferred 
in accordance with this Section 4.15(e).  The Trustee shall have no obligation to advance 
its own funds to fund the Bond Purchase Fund or otherwise pay the Purchase Price on any 
Bonds. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -72- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (f) Delivery of Purchased Bonds. 

 (i) The Remarketing Agent shall give telephonic notice, promptly 
confirmed by a written notice, by Electronic Means, to the Trustee on each date on 
which Bonds shall have been purchased pursuant to Section 4.11, Section 4.12, 
Section 4.13, or Section 4.14, specifying the principal amount of such Bonds, if 
any, sold by it and a list of such purchasers showing the names and Authorized 
Denominations in which such Bonds shall be registered, and the addresses and 
social security or taxpayer identification numbers of such purchasers.  By 
12:30 p.m., New York City time, on the Purchase Date, a principal amount of 
Bonds equal to the amount of Purchased Bonds purchased with moneys from the 
Remarketing Proceeds Account shall be made available by the Trustee to the 
Remarketing Agent against payment therefor in immediately available funds. 

 (ii) A principal amount of Bonds equal to the amount of Purchased 
Bonds purchased from moneys on deposit in the Issuer Purchase Account shall be 
delivered on the day of such purchase by the Trustee to or as directed by the Issuer.  
The Trustee shall register such Bonds in the name of the Issuer or as otherwise 
directed by the Issuer. 

 Section 4.16. Notice of Mandatory Tender for Purchase.  In connection with any 
mandatory tender for purchase of Bonds in accordance with Section 4.12, Section 4.13 or 
Section 4.14, the Trustee shall give the notice (which in the case of a mandatory tender pursuant 
to Section 4.14 shall be given as a part of the notice given pursuant to Section 2.06(c), 
Section 2.07(c), Section 2.08(c), Section 2.09(c) or Section 2.14(c)) stating:  (a) that the Purchase 
Price of any Bond so subject to mandatory tender for purchase shall be payable only upon surrender 
of such Bond to the Trustee at the office specified in such notice, accompanied by an instrument 
of transfer thereof in form satisfactory to the Trustee, executed in blank by the Owner thereof or 
by the Owner’s duly authorized attorney, with such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, 
trust company or member firm of the New York Stock Exchange; (b) that all Bonds so subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase shall be purchased on the Mandatory Purchase Date, unless (i) a 
Failed Remarketing shall have occurred prior to such Mandatory Purchase Date, in which case 
such Bonds shall be redeemed rather than purchased on such Mandatory Purchase Date, or (ii) such 
Bonds shall have otherwise been redeemed on or prior to, or are not Outstanding as of, such 
Mandatory Purchase Date; and (c) that in the event that any Owner of a Bond so subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase shall not surrender such Bond to the Trustee for purchase on such 
Mandatory Purchase Date, then such Bond shall be deemed to be an Undelivered Bond, and that 
no interest shall accrue thereon on and after such Mandatory Purchase Date and that the Owner 
thereof shall have no rights under this Indenture other than to receive payment of the Purchase 
Price thereof.  Any such notice of a mandatory tender of Bonds pursuant to Section 4.12, 
Section 4.13 or Section 4.14 shall be given no less than thirty (30) days prior to the applicable 
Mandatory Purchase Date, and the Trustee shall give a conditional notice of extraordinary 
redemption pursuant to Section 4.04 no later than the applicable deadlines set forth in that section 
to provide for the extraordinary redemption of the Bonds if a Failed Remarketing occurs prior to 
the Mandatory Purchase Date.  No later than five (5) Business Days prior to the date on which 
such conditional notice of extraordinary redemption is required to be given by the Trustee pursuant 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -73- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

to Section 4.4, the Issuer shall direct the Trustee to send such conditional redemption notice 
pursuant to a Written Direction in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E, which Written Direction 
shall include the applicable Redemption Date and method(s) for calculating the Redemption Price, 
to be followed by notice of the Redemption Price, as provided in Exhibit E. 

 Section 4.17. Irrevocable Notice Deemed to Be Tender of Bond; Undelivered Bonds 
Deemed Purchased on Mandatory Purchase Date.  (a)  The giving of notice by an Owner of a 
Bond bearing interest at a Daily Interest Rate or a Weekly Interest Rate pursuant to Section 4.11 
shall constitute the irrevocable tender for purchase of each such Bond with respect to which such 
notice shall have been given, regardless of whether such Bond is delivered to the Trustee for 
purchase on the relevant Purchase Date as provided in this Article IV. 

 (b) The Trustee may refuse to accept delivery of any Purchased Bonds for which a proper 
instrument of transfer, with a satisfactory guaranty of signature, has not been provided; such 
refusal, however, shall not affect the validity of the purchase of such Bond as herein described.  
For purposes of this Article IV, the Trustee for the Bonds shall determine timely and proper 
delivery of Purchased Bonds and the proper endorsement of such Bonds.  Such determination shall 
be binding on the Owners of such Bonds, the Issuer and the Remarketing Agent, absent manifest 
error.  If any Owner of a Bond who shall have given notice of tender of purchase pursuant to 
Section 4.11 or any Owner of a Bond subject to mandatory tender for purchase pursuant to 
Section 4.12, Section 4.13 or Section 4.14 shall fail to deliver such Bond to the Trustee at the place 
and on the applicable date and at the time specified, or shall fail to deliver such Bond properly 
endorsed, such Bond shall constitute an Undelivered Bond.  If funds in the amount of the Purchase 
Price of the Undelivered Bond are available for payment to the Owner thereof on the date and at 
the time specified, from and after the date and time of that required delivery, (i) the Undelivered 
Bond shall be deemed to be purchased and shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding under this 
Indenture; (ii) interest shall no longer accrue thereon; and (iii) funds in the amount of the Purchase 
Price of the Undelivered Bond shall be held by the Trustee for such Bond for the benefit of the 
Owner thereof, to be paid on delivery (and proper endorsement) of the Undelivered Bond to the 
Trustee at its designated corporate trust office.  Any funds held by the Trustee as described in 
clause (iii) of the preceding sentence shall be held uninvested. 

 Section 4.18. Remarketing of Bonds; Notice of Interest Rates.  (a)  Upon a mandatory 
tender or notice of the tender for purchase of Bonds, the Remarketing Agent shall offer for sale 
and use its best efforts to sell such Bonds subject to conditions in the Remarketing Agreement, any 
such sale to be made on the Purchase Date in accordance with this Article IV at a price equal to 
the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, thereon to the Purchase Date.  The 
Remarketing Agent agrees that it shall not sell any Bonds purchased pursuant to this Article IV to 
the Issuer or a Project Participant, or to any Person who controls, is controlled by, or is under 
common control with the Issuer or a Project Participant. 

 (b) The Remarketing Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by the Bonds 
bearing interest at a Daily Interest Rate, Weekly Interest Rate, CP Interest Term Rates or a Term 
Rate and the CP Interest Terms for each Bond during each Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, 
and the applicable Calculation Agent shall determine the rate of interest to be borne by each Series 
of Bonds bearing interest at an Index Rate, all as provided in Article II, and shall furnish to the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -74- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Trustee and to the Issuer upon request, in a timely fashion by Electronic Means, each rate of 
interest and CP Interest Term so determined. 

 (c) Anything in this Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, if there shall have 
occurred and is continuing an Event of Default, there shall be no remarketing of Bonds tendered 
or deemed tendered for purchase. 

 Section 4.19. The Remarketing Agent.  (a)  The Remarketing Agent shall be authorized by 
law to perform all the duties imposed upon it pursuant to the Remarketing Agreement.  The 
Remarketing Agent or any successor shall signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations 
imposed upon it pursuant to the Remarketing Agreement by an agreement under which the 
Remarketing Agent will agree to: 

 (i) determine the interest rates applicable to the Bonds of the applicable Series 
and give written notice to the Trustee of such rates and periods in accordance with 
Article II; 

 (ii) keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent industry 
practice; and 

 (iii) use its best efforts to remarket Bonds in accordance with the Remarketing 
Agreement. 

 (b) The Remarketing Agent shall hold all amounts received by it in accordance with any 
remarketing of Bonds in trust only for the benefit of the Owners of tendered Bonds and shall not 
commingle such amounts with any other moneys. 

 Section 4.20. Qualifications of Remarketing Agent; Resignation; Removal.  (a)  Each 
Remarketing Agent shall be a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority or subject 
to supervision by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, having a combined capital stock, 
surplus and undivided profits of at least $50,000,000 and be authorized by law to perform all the 
duties imposed upon it by this Indenture.  Any successor Remarketing Agent shall have senior 
unsecured long term debt which shall be rated by each Rating Agency. 

 (b) A Remarketing Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and 
obligations created by the Remarketing Agreement by giving written notice to the Trustee and the 
Issuer.  A Remarketing Agent may be removed at the direction of the Issuer at any time on 30 days’ 
prior written notice, in a Written Direction of the Issuer, filed with such Remarketing Agent for 
the related Series of Bonds and the Trustee.  No such resignation or removal shall be effective until 
a successor has been appointed and has accepted such duties. 

 Section 4.21. Successor Remarketing Agents.  (a)  Any corporation, association, 
partnership or firm which succeeds to the business of the Remarketing Agent as a whole or 
substantially as a whole, whether by sale, merger, consolidation or otherwise, shall thereby become 
vested with all the property, rights and powers of such Remarketing Agent hereunder. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -75- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (b) In the event that the Remarketing Agent has given written notice of resignation or has 
been notified of its impending removal in accordance with Section 4.20(b), the Issuer shall appoint 
a successor Remarketing Agent. 

 (c) In the event that the property or affairs of the Remarketing Agent shall be taken under 
control of any state or federal court or administrative body because of bankruptcy or insolvency, 
or for any other reason, and the Issuer shall not have appointed its successor, the Issuer shall 
appoint a successor and, if no appointment is made within 30 days, the Trustee shall apply to a 
court of competent jurisdiction for such appointment. 

 Section 4.22. Tender Agent.  The Trustee shall serve as the tender agent for any Series of 
Bonds for which optional or mandatory tender for purchase is applicable under this Article IV, and 
as tender agent it and each successor Trustee appointed in accordance with this Indenture shall: 

 (a) hold all Bonds delivered to it for purchase hereunder in trust for the 
exclusive benefit of the respective Owners that shall have so delivered such Bonds until 
moneys representing the Purchase Price of such Bonds shall have been delivered to or for 
the account of or to the order of such Owners; 

 (b) hold all moneys delivered to it hereunder for the purchase of Bonds in trust 
for the exclusive benefit of the Person that shall have so delivered such moneys until the 
Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to it for the account of such 
Person and, thereafter, for the benefit of the Owners tendering such Bonds; and 

 (c) keep such books and records as shall be consistent with prudent industry 
practice and make such books and records available for inspection at all times during 
regular business hours (upon reasonable prior written notice of inspection) by the Issuer 
and the Remarketing Agent for such Series of Bonds. 

ARTICLE V 

ESTABLISHMENT OF FUNDS AND APPLICATION THEREOF 

 Section 5.01. Pledge Effected by This Indenture.  (a)  The Bonds and the Interest Rate Swap 
are limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely from and secured as to the payment of the 
principal and Redemption Price thereof, and interest thereon, in accordance with their terms and 
the provisions of this Indenture solely by, the Trust Estate.  Pursuant to the Granting Clauses of 
this Indenture, the Trust Estate has been conveyed, assigned and pledged to the payment of the 
principal and Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds and the Interest Rate Swap Payments 
in accordance with their terms, and any other senior, parity and subordinate obligations of the 
Issuer secured by the lien of this Indenture, subject to (i) the pledge of and lien on the Commodity 
Swap Payment Fund and the amounts and investments on deposit therein in favor of the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty, and (ii) the provisions of this Indenture permitting the application 
thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture.  The Trust 
Estate thereby pledged and assigned shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -76- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

any further physical delivery thereof or other further act, and the lien of such pledge shall be a first 
lien and shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract 
or otherwise against the Issuer, irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. 

 (b) None of the Bonds, the Interest Rate Swap or the Commodity Swap constitute a debt 
or liability of the State or of any political subdivision thereof, other than as limited obligations of 
the Issuer, and the Issuer shall not be obligated to pay the principal or Redemption Price of, or 
interest on, the Bonds, the Interest Rate Swap Payments or the Commodity Swap Payments except 
from the funds provided therefor under this Indenture.  Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing 
power of the State or of any political subdivision thereof, including the Issuer, or of any Project 
Participant is pledged to the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on the 
Bonds, the Interest Rate Swap Payments or the Commodity Swap Payments.  The issuance of the 
Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Interest Rate Swap and the Commodity Swap shall 
not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate the State or any political subdivision thereof to 
levy or to pledge any form of taxation or to make any appropriation for their payment.  The Issuer 
has no taxing power. 

 (c) Nothing contained in this Indenture shall be construed to prevent the Issuer from 
acquiring, constructing or financing, through the issuance of its bonds, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness, any facilities or supplies of Energy other than the Clean Energy Project; provided 
that such bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness shall not be payable out of or secured by 
the Trust Estate or any portion thereof, and neither the cost of such facilities or supplies of Energy 
nor any expenditure in connection therewith or with the financing thereof shall be payable from 
the Trust Estate or any portion thereof. 

 Section 5.02. Establishment of Funds and Accounts.  (a)  The following Funds and 
Accounts are hereby established, each of which shall be held by the Trustee except as indicated 
below: 

 (i) Project Fund, 

 (ii) Revenue Fund, 

 (iii) Operating Fund, 

 (iv) Debt Service Fund, consisting of the Debt Service Account (and within such 
Account, a Capitalized Interest Subaccount) and the Redemption Account, 

 (v) Commodity Swap Payment Fund, 

 (vi) General Reserve Fund, 

 (vii) Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund, consisting of a Remediation Account, 

 (viii) Assignment Payment Fund,  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -77- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (ix) Bond Purchase Fund established pursuant to Section 4.15, consisting of the 
Issuer Purchase Account and the Remarketing Proceeds Account; and 

 (x) Administrative Fee Fund. 

 (b) Within the Funds and Accounts established hereunder and held by the Trustee, the 
Trustee may create additional Accounts in any Fund or subaccounts in any Accounts as may 
facilitate the administration of this Indenture.  The Issuer may, by Supplemental Indenture, with 
the prior written approval of the Trustee, establish one or more additional accounts or subaccounts.  
By Supplemental Indenture, the Issuer may also (i) establish custodial accounts to be held by the 
Trustee as custodian to receive Revenues paid by the Project Participants under the Power Supply 
Contracts, and (ii) provide for the application of such amounts for transfer to the Revenue Fund 
and for such other purposes as may be specified therein. 

 Section 5.03. Project Fund.  (a)  There shall be paid into the Project Fund proceeds of the 
Bonds in the amount specified by Written Request of the Issuer, and there may be paid into the 
Project Fund, at the option of the Issuer, any moneys received for or in connection with the Clean 
Energy Project by the Issuer from any other source, unless required to be otherwise applied as 
provided by this Indenture.  Upon delivery of the Bonds, the Trustee shall immediately transfer 
from the Project Fund into the Capitalized Interest Subaccount of the Debt Service Account an 
amount, specified by Written Request of the Issuer, representing capitalized interest on the Bonds 
to the date set forth in such Written Request.  Except as otherwise provided in this Section 5.03, 
amounts in Project Fund shall be applied by the Issuer to pay the Cost of Acquisition and any 
capitalized interest on the Series 2022A Bonds. 

 (b) Before any payment is made by the Trustee from the Project Fund, the Issuer shall 
file with the Trustee a Written Request of the Issuer, showing with respect to each payment to be 
made, the name of the Person to whom payment is due and the amount to be paid, and stating that 
the obligation to be paid was incurred and is a proper charge against the Project Fund.  To the 
extent that the Written Request includes amounts to be paid pursuant to the Energy Purchase 
Agreement, copies of the invoices or requests for direct payments submitted under the Energy 
Purchase Agreement shall be attached to the Written Request.  Each such Written Request shall 
be sufficient evidence to the Trustee:  (i) that obligations in the stated amounts have been incurred 
by the Issuer and that each item thereof is a proper charge against the Project Fund; and (ii) that 
there has not been filed with or served upon Issuer notice of any lien, right to lien or attachment 
upon, or claim affecting the right to receive payment of, any of the moneys payable to any of the 
Persons named in such Written Request which has not been released or will not be released 
simultaneously with the payment of such obligation other than materialmen’s or mechanics’ liens 
accruing by mere operation of law. 

 (c) Upon receipt of each such Written Request, the Trustee shall pay the amounts set 
forth therein as directed by the terms thereof from the applicable Account in accordance with and 
subject to the applicable terms of this Section 5.03. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -78- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (d) Notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this Section, to the extent that other 
moneys are not available therefor, amounts in Project Fund shall be applied to the payment of 
principal of and interest on Bonds when due. 

 (e) Upon Written Direction of the Issuer, but not earlier than six months after the date of 
delivery of the Bonds, the Trustee shall transfer to the Revenue Fund any amounts remaining on 
deposit in Project Fund. 

 Section 5.04. Revenues and Revenue Fund; Other Amounts.  (a)  All Revenues shall be 
deposited promptly by the Trustee upon receipt thereof into the Revenue Fund; provided that, for 
the avoidance of doubt, if any amounts are received from a Project Participant for which 
Outstanding Sold Receivables exist, as identified in a written notice from the Issuer to the Trustee, 
the Trustee shall promptly cause any such receipts to be paid to the Energy Supplier to the extent 
of such Outstanding Sold Receivables without setoff of any kind in accordance with Section 2.7 
of the Receivables Purchase Provisions and any remaining amounts received from such Project 
Participant shall be deposited into the Revenue Fund. 

 (b) In the event that any Specified Project Participant fails to pay the amount due under 
its Power Supply Contract, the Trustee shall perform the following actions on behalf of the Issuer 
under Section 2.1 of the Receivables Purchase Provisions:  (i) provide a preliminary notice by 
email to the Issuer and the Energy Supplier that a Specified Project Participant will fail to make a 
payment as soon as practicable after becoming aware that a payment default will occur and in any 
event no later than the end of the calendar day on which the relevant payment default occurs, and 
(ii) prepare and deliver to the Energy Supplier a Put Option Notice by 12:00 p.m. New York City 
time on the Business Day following any such payment default..  On the twenty-fourth day of the 
Month in which such Put Option Notice was delivered (or if such day is not a Business Day, the 
next Business Day following the twenty-fourth day of such Month), the Trustee shall deliver to 
the Energy Supplier the bill of sale and certificates required by Section 2.3(a) of the Receivables 
Purchase Provisions.  The Trustee is hereby authorized to sell the Put Receivables then owed by 
the Specified Project Participants under their respective Power Supply Contracts pursuant to the 
Receivables Purchase Provisions and to take all actions on its part necessary in connection 
therewith.  All amounts received by the Trustee pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions 
in respect of Put Receivables shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund for application pursuant to 
Section 5.05. 

 (c) Upon receipt of the preliminary notice from the Trustee pursuant to (b)(i) above, the 
Issuer shall: 

 (i) in consultation with the Energy Supplier, determine the amount of the Net 
Participant Shortfall Amount, if any, resulting from such failure to pay; and 

 (ii) give prompt written notice of the amounts of such Net Participant Shortfall 
Amount, if any, and the amount of such nonpayment and the resulting Net Participant 
Shortfall Amount, to the Trustee, the Energy Supplier and the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -79- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (d) The following amounts, which are payable to the Trustee but do not constitute 
Revenues, shall be applied by the Trustee as follows: 

 (i) any Termination Payment shall be deposited directly into the Redemption 
Account of the Debt Service Fund as provided in Section 5.08; 

 (ii) any Assignment Payment shall be deposited directly into the Assignment 
Payment Fund as provided in Section 5.12; 

 (iii) [Reserved]; 

 (iv) amounts representing the Project Administration Fee, together with any 
amounts paid by the Project Participants under a Prepaid Clean Energy Project 
Administration Agreement, shall be paid as received to Issuer into the Administrative Fee 
Fund; 

 (v) any Interest Rate Swap Receipts shall be deposited directly into the Debt 
Service Account as provided in Section 2.13; and 

 (vi) any amounts required by Section 5.11 to be deposited into the Energy 
Remarketing Reserve Fund shall be deposited directly therein. 

 Section 5.05. Payments from Revenue Fund.  (a)  In each Month during which there is a 
deposit of Revenues into the Revenue Fund (but in no case later than the respective dates set forth 
below), the Trustee shall apply the amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund, to the extent available, 
for credit or deposit to the Funds and Accounts indicated below, in the amounts described below 
(such application to be made in such a manner so as to assure good funds are available on the 
respective dates set forth below) in the following order of priority: 

 (i) [Reserved.]; 

 (ii) To the Operating Fund, not later than the twenty-fifth day of such Month 
(or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day), the amount, if 
any, required so that the balance therein shall equal the amount necessary for the payment 
of Operating Expenses coming due for such Month; 

 (iii) Subject to the provisos below, to the Debt Service Fund, not later than the 
twenty-fifth day of such Month (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding 
Business Day) for the credit to the Debt Service Account, an amount equal to the greater 
of (A) the Scheduled Debt Service Deposit, as set forth in Schedule II hereto, or (B) the 
amount necessary to cause an amount equal to the cumulative unpaid Scheduled Debt 
Service Deposits due through such date to be on deposit therein (without credit for 
undisbursed Interest Rate Swap Receipts on deposit therein); 

 (iv) To the Commodity Swap Payment Fund, on or before the twenty-fifth day 
of such Month (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day), 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -80- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

the amount required so that the balance therein shall equal the Commodity Swap Payments 
due for such Month; and  

(v) To the Energy Supplier, not later than the last Business Day of such Month, 
the amount, if any, required for the repurchase of Put Receivables and the payment of 
interest on all Put Receivables sold to the Energy Supplier pursuant to the Receivables 
Purchase Provisions; 

provided, however, that if a Project Participant’s payment failure results in a Net Participant 
Shortfall Amount for such Month, the intent is that such payment failure be allocated between the 
amounts that otherwise would have been deposited to the Debt Service Fund and the Commodity 
Swap Payment Fund.  Therefore, for any Month in which a Net Participant Shortfall Amount 
exists, the Trustee shall reduce the amount transferred under clause (iii) above to the extent 
necessary such that the amount available for transfer under clause (iv) above is not less than (A) the 
amount that would be required to fully fund the Commodity Swap Payments due for such Month, 
minus (B) the sum of all Net Participant Shortfall Amounts for such Month; and 

provided further, the amount required to be transferred to the Debt Service Account pursuant to 
clause (iii) above shall be reduced by the amount of investment earnings scheduled to be deposited 
into the Debt Service Account on or before the last Business Day of such Month. 

 (b) If, after a scheduled monthly deposit to the Debt Service Account, the balance therein 
is below the cumulative Scheduled Debt Service Deposits for such month as specified on 
Schedule II, the Trustee shall immediately notify the Issuer of such deficiency and the Trustee 
shall (i) if the Issuer has not previously done so, cause the Issuer to suspend all deliveries of all 
quantities of Energy under a Power Supply Contract to any Project Participant that is in default 
thereunder, and (ii) promptly give notice to the Energy Supplier to follow the Remarketing 
Provisions. 

 (c) In each Month during which (i) there is a deposit of Revenues into the Revenue Fund 
and (ii) payment of a Principal Installment is due, after making such transfers, credits and deposits 
as required by paragraph (a) above and after the applicable Principal Installment payment date, the 
Trustee shall credit to the General Reserve Fund the remaining balance in the Revenue Fund. 

 (d) So long as there shall be held in the Debt Service Fund an amount sufficient to pay in 
full all Outstanding Bonds and Interest Rate Swap Payments in accordance with their terms 
(including principal or applicable Sinking Fund Installments and interest thereon), no transfers 
shall be required to be made to the Debt Service Fund. 

 Section 5.06. Operating Fund.  (a)  Amounts credited to the Operating Fund shall be 
applied from time to time by the Trustee to the payment of (i) first, Rebate Payments, and 
(ii) second, any other Operating Expenses then due and payable. 

 (b) Amounts credited to the Operating Fund that the Trustee, on the last Business Day of 
each Month, determines to be in excess of the requirements of such Fund for such Month, shall be 
applied to make up any deficiencies in the Debt Service Account.  Any balance of such excess not 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -81- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

required to be so applied shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund for application in accordance 
with Section 5.05(a). 

 Section 5.07. Debt Service Fund—Debt Service Account.  (a)  The amounts deposited into 
the Debt Service Account pursuant to Section 5.05(a)(iii) shall be held in such Account and applied 
to the payment of the Debt Service and Interest Rate Swap Payments payable on each Bond 
Payment Date; provided that, for the purposes of computing the amount to be deposited in such 
Account, there shall be excluded from the required deposit the amount, if any, on deposit in the 
Capitalized Interest Subaccount or set aside in the Debt Service Account from the proceeds of 
Bonds (including amounts, if any, transferred thereto from the Project Fund) for the payment of 
interest on the Bonds.  Amounts in the Capitalized Interest Subaccount shall be applied to Debt 
Service prior to other monies held within the Debt Service Account.   

 (b) The Trustee shall pay out of the Debt Service Account to the Paying Agent:  (i) on or 
before each Interest Payment Date, the amount required for the interest on the Bonds payable on 
such date; (ii) on or before each Bond Payment Date, the Interest Rate Swap Payments then due, 
(iii) on or before the Bond Payment Date on which a Principal Installment is due, the amount 
required for the Principal Installment payable on such date; and (iv) on or before any redemption 
date, the amount required for the payment of the Redemption Price of and accrued interest on such 
Bonds then to be redeemed; provided, however, that if with respect to any Bonds or portions 
thereof the amounts due on any such Bond Payment Date and/or redemption date are intended to 
be paid from a source other than amounts in the Debt Service Account prior to any application of 
amounts in the Debt Service Account to such payments, then the Trustee (after Written Notice 
from the Issuer to the Trustee that the Issuer intends to make payments from a source other than 
amounts in the Debt Service Account) shall not pay any such amounts to the Paying Agent until 
such amounts have failed to be provided from such other source at the time required and if any 
such amounts due are paid from such other source the Trustee shall apply the amounts in the Debt 
Service Account to provide reimbursement for such payment from such other source as provided 
in the agreement governing reimbursement of such amounts to such other source.  Such amounts 
shall be applied by the Paying Agent on and after the due dates thereof.  The Trustee shall also pay 
out of the Debt Service Account the accrued interest included in the purchase price of Bonds 
purchased for retirement. 

 (c) Amounts accumulated in the Debt Service Account with respect to any Sinking Fund 
Installment (together with amounts accumulated therein with respect to interest on the Bonds for 
which such Sinking Fund Installment was established) shall, if so directed by the Issuer in a 
Written Request delivered not less than thirty (30) days before the due date of such Sinking Fund 
Installment, be applied by the Trustee to (i) the purchase of Bonds of the Series, maturity and tenor 
for which such Sinking Fund Installment was established, (ii) the redemption at the applicable 
sinking fund Redemption Price of such Bonds, if then redeemable by their terms, or (iii) any 
combination of (i) and (ii).  All purchases and redemptions of any Bonds pursuant to this 
subsection (c) shall be made at prices not exceeding the applicable sinking fund Redemption Price 
of such Bonds plus accrued interest, and such purchases shall be made in such manner as the Issuer 
shall direct the Trustee in writing.  The applicable sinking fund Redemption Price (or principal 
amount of maturing Bonds) of any Bonds so purchased or redeemed shall be deemed to constitute 
part of the Debt Service Account until such Sinking Fund Installment date, for the purpose of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -82- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

calculating the amount of such Account.  As soon as practicable after the thirtieth (30th) day 
preceding the due date of any such Sinking Fund Installment, the Trustee shall proceed to call for 
the redemption on such due date, by giving notice as required by this Indenture, Bonds of the 
Series, maturity and tenor for which such Sinking Fund Installment was established (except in the 
case of Bonds maturing on a Sinking Fund Installment date) in such amount as shall be necessary 
to complete the retirement of the unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Installment after 
making allowance for any Bonds purchased or redeemed pursuant to Section 5.10 which the Issuer 
has directed the Trustee in writing to apply as a credit against such Sinking Fund Installment as 
provided in Section 5.10(c).  The Trustee shall pay out of the Debt Service Account to the Paying 
Agent, on or before such redemption date or maturity date, as applicable, the amount required for 
the redemption of the Bonds so called for redemption (or for the payment of such Bonds then 
maturing), and such amount shall be applied by such Paying Agents to such redemption or 
payment, as applicable.  All expenses in connection with the purchase or redemption of Bonds 
shall be paid by the Issuer in such manner as the Issuer shall direct the Trustee in writing from the 
Operating Fund. 

All Bonds paid or redeemed, either at or before maturity, shall be delivered to the Trustee 
at its designated corporate trust office when such payment or redemption is made, and such Bonds, 
together with all Bonds purchased or redeemed pursuant to Section 5.10 that have been delivered 
to the Trustee for application as a credit against Sinking Fund Installments and all Bonds purchased 
by the Trustee pursuant to this Section 5.07, shall thereupon be promptly cancelled (or deemed to 
have been cancelled). 

 (d) Amounts accumulated in the Debt Service Account with respect to any principal 
amount of Bonds due on a certain future date for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been 
established (together with amounts accumulated therein with respect to interest on such Bonds) 
shall, upon the reasonable prior Written Direction of the Issuer, be applied by the Trustee on or 
prior to the due date thereof, to (i) the purchase of such Bonds or (ii) the redemption at the principal 
amount of such Bonds, if then redeemable by their terms.  All purchases and redemptions of any 
Bonds pursuant to this subsection (d) shall be made at prices not exceeding the principal amount 
of such Bonds plus accrued interest, and such purchases and redemptions shall be made in such 
manner as the Issuer shall determine.  The principal amount of any Bonds so purchased or 
redeemed shall be deemed to constitute part of the Debt Service Account until such due date, for 
the purpose of calculating the amount of such Account. 

 (e) The amount deposited in the Debt Service Account on the Issue Date of any Series of 
Bonds from the proceeds thereof shall be set aside and applied to the payment of interest on such 
Series of Bonds and related Interest Rate Swap Payments. 

 (f) In the event of the refunding or defeasance of any Bonds, the Trustee shall, if directed 
by the Issuer in writing, withdraw from the Debt Service Account all, or any portion of, the 
amounts accumulated therein with respect to Debt Service on the Bonds being refunded or 
defeased and deposit such amounts with the Trustee to be held for the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds being refunded or defeased; provided 
that such withdrawal shall not be made unless immediately thereafter Bonds being refunded or 
defeased shall be deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 12.01(b).  In the event of such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -83- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

refunding or defeasance, the Issuer may direct the Trustee to withdraw from the Debt Service 
Account all, or any portion of, the amounts accumulated therein with respect to Debt Service on 
the Bonds being refunded or defeased and deposit such amounts in any Fund or Account 
hereunder; provided, however, that such withdrawal shall not be made unless the Bonds being 
defeased shall be deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 12.01(b) and provided, further, 
that, at the time of such withdrawal, there shall exist no deficiency in any Fund or Account held 
hereunder. 

 (g) Any amount remaining in the Debt Service Account after a date for payment of a 
Principal Installment shall, to the extent not required to be retained therein for purposes of making 
future payments, be deposited in the Revenue Fund. 

 Section 5.08. Debt Service Fund–Redemption Account.  (a)  In the event of an early 
termination of the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Issuer shall direct the Energy Supplier to pay 
the Termination Payment directly to the Trustee for the account of the Issuer.  The Trustee shall 
deposit the Termination Payment into the Redemption Account.  Amounts deposited into the 
Redemption Account shall be applied by the Trustee to the redemption of Outstanding Bonds 
pursuant to Section 4.01. 

 (b) Any amounts remaining on deposit in the Redemption Account following the 
redemption and payment of all Outstanding Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee first to pay any 
Swap Payment Deficiency, second to repurchase any Put Receivables owned by the Energy 
Supplier, and third, upon Written Direction of the Issuer to the Trustee, shall be transferred to the 
Revenue Fund. 

 (c) For the avoidance of doubt, no Extraordinary Expenses shall be paid from the 
Redemption Account. 

 Section 5.09. Commodity Swap Payment Fund.  (a)  Amounts credited to the Commodity 
Swap Payment Fund shall be applied from time to time by the Trustee to the payment of the 
Commodity Swap Payments when due. 

 (b) Any amount remaining in the Commodity Swap Payment Fund following the 
payment of the Commodity Swap Payment due in any Month and prior to any deposit therein for 
the following Month shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund for application in accordance with 
Section 5.05(a). 

 Section 5.10. General Reserve Fund.  (a)  The Trustee shall apply moneys on deposit in the 
General Reserve Fund in the following amounts and in the following order of priority:  first, for 
deposit into the Debt Service Account, the amount necessary (or all of the moneys in the General 
Reserve Fund if less than the amount necessary) to make up any deficiencies in the deposits to 
such Account required by Section 5.05(a)(iii); second, for deposit into the Commodity Swap 
Payment Fund, the amount necessary to cause the balance therein to equal a Commodity Swap 
Payment that is then due; and third for deposit into the Operating Fund, the amount necessary for 
the payment of any Operating Expenses then due and payable and for which other funds are not 
available under this Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -84- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (b) Amounts on deposit in the General Reserve Fund not required to meet a deficiency 
or to make a deposit as provided in subsection (a) above shall be applied by the Trustee upon the 
Written Request of the Issuer to the following in the order listed below: 

 (i) payment of Extraordinary Expenses; 

 (ii) payment of any fees owed pursuant to any Qualified Investments; 

 (iii) annual refunds to Project Participants pursuant to the Power Supply 
Contracts; 

 (iv) the purchase or redemption of Bonds and expenses in connection with the 
purchase or redemption of such Bonds or any reserves which the Issuer determines shall 
be required for such purposes; and 

 (viii) any other lawful purpose of the Issuer under the Act; 

provided, however, that, subject to the provisions of subsection (a) of this Section, amounts 
credited to the General Reserve Fund and required by this Indenture to be applied to the purchase 
or redemption of Bonds shall be applied to such purpose. 

 (c) If at any time Bonds of any Series, maturity and tenor for which Sinking Fund 
Installments shall have been established are (i) purchased or redeemed other than pursuant to 
Section 5.07(d) or (ii) deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 12.01(b) and, with respect to 
such Bonds which have been deemed paid, irrevocable written instructions have been given by the 
Issuer to the Trustee to redeem or purchase the same on or prior to the due date of the Sinking 
Fund Installment to be credited under this subsection (c), the Issuer may from time to time and at 
any time by Written Direction to the Trustee specify the portion, if any, of such Bonds so 
purchased, redeemed or deemed to have been paid and not previously applied as a credit against 
any Sinking Fund Installment which are to be credited against future Sinking Fund Installments.  
Such direction shall specify the amounts of such Bonds to be applied as a credit against each 
Sinking Fund Installment or Installments and the particular Sinking Fund Installment or 
Installments against which such Bonds are to be applied as a credit; provided, however, that none 
of such Bonds may be applied as a credit against a Sinking Fund Installment to become due less 
than thirty (30) days after such written notice is delivered to the Trustee.  All such Bonds to be 
applied as a credit shall be surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation on or prior to the due date 
of the Sinking Fund Installment against which they are being applied as a credit.  The portion of 
any such Sinking Fund Installment remaining after the deduction of any such amounts credited 
toward the same (or the original amount of any such Sinking Fund Installment if no such amounts 
shall have been credited toward the same) shall constitute the unsatisfied balance of such Sinking 
Fund Installment for the purpose of calculation of Sinking Fund Installments due on a future date. 

 Section 5.11. Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund.  There shall be paid by the Trustee into 
the Remediation Account of the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund, and within such Remediation 
Account the subaccount appliable to each Project Participant, the amounts, as directed in a Written 
Direction of the Issuer, specified in Section 5(e)(i) of the Remarketing Provisions.  In the case of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -85- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

a Remediation Remarketing (as defined in the Remarketing Provisions) pursuant to Section 8 of 
the Remarketing Provisions, amounts shall be released from the applicable subaccount of the 
Remediation Account upon such remarketing and applied pursuant to a Written Direction of the 
Issuer as follows:  (a) if the proceeds received by the Trustee from the remarketing equal or exceed 
the Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price, the portion of the applicable subaccount of the 
Remediation Account allocable to such remarketing shall be transferred to the General Reserve 
Fund, and (b) if the proceeds received by the Trustee from the remarketing are less than the 
Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price, then (x) the portion of the applicable subaccount of the 
Remediation Account of the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund allocable to such remarketing 
shall be used to make a payment to the Energy Supplier in an amount equal to the excess of such 
Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price over such proceeds received by the Issuer from the 
remarketing, and (y) any remaining amounts allocable to such remarketing shall be transferred to 
the General Reserve Fund.  For purposes of this Section 5.11(a), the portion of the applicable 
subaccount of the Remediation Account of the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund specified in 
writing by the Issuer to the Trustee as the amount allocable to a remarketing shall consist of the 
product of (i) a fraction, the numerator of which is the purchase price of the Energy to be 
remarketed, and the denominator of which is the aggregate amount previously received by the 
Issuer from the sale of such Energy in Non-Private Business Sales (as defined in the Remarketing 
Provisions) or Private Business Sales (as defined in the Remarketing Provisions) that, as of the 
time of the remarketing, has not been remediated in accordance with Section 8 of the Remarketing 
Provisions, multiplied by (ii) the balance of the applicable subaccount of the Remediation Account 
of the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund at the time of the remarketing. 

 Section 5.12. Assignment Payment Fund.  In connection with the issuance of Refunding 
Bonds, any Assignment Payment received from the Energy Supplier shall be deposited into the 
Assignment Payment Fund to be transferred to the replacement energy supplier, provided, 
however, that if the existing Bonds have not been redeemed or defeased on or before the Mandatory 
Purchase Date, in whole, by the Refunding Bonds, all or a portion of the Assignment Payment 
shall be transferred to the Trustee for deposit as directed by the Issuer in writing to the Redemption 
Account in Section 5.08, along with the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds, in order to redeem all 
of the Outstanding Bonds. 

 Section 5.13. Purchases of Bonds.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.07, any 
purchase of Bonds (or portions thereof) by or at the direction of the Issuer pursuant to this 
Indenture may be made with or without tenders of Bonds and at either public or private sale, in 
such manner as the Issuer may determine. 

 Section 5.14. Administrative Fee Fund.  All Project Administration Fees, together with any 
amounts paid by the Project Participants pursuant to a Prepaid Clean Energy Project 
Administration Agreement, shall be deposited by the Trustee into the Administrative Fee Fund.  
The Trustee shall apply amounts on deposit in the Administrative Fee Fund to pay Operating 
Expenses promptly upon receipt of a Written Request of the Issuer directing such payment.  In the 
event amounts on deposit in the Administrative Fee Fund are insufficient to make any payments 
directed in the Written Request of the Issuer, the Trustee shall promptly notify each Project 
Participant, at its respective address shown on Schedule I attached hereto, of the fact and amount 
of such deficiency. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -86- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

ARTICLE VI 

DEPOSITORIES OF MONEYS, SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS 
AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

 Section 6.01. Depositories.  (a)  All moneys held by the Trustee under the provisions of 
this Indenture shall constitute trust funds and the Trustee may deposit such moneys with one or 
more Depositories in trust for the parties secured hereunder.  All moneys deposited under the 
provisions of this Indenture with the Trustee or any Depository shall be held in trust and applied 
only in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture; provided, however, that the Trustee shall 
be entitled to rely, without verification, on any certificate of a bank, trust company, national 
banking association or other entity that certifies that it meets the requirements for being a 
Depository of moneys hereunder and shall not be responsible for any monitoring of such 
requirements after the initial deposit of any moneys pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture. 

 (b) Each Depository shall be a bank or trust company organized under the laws of any 
state of the United States or a national banking association having capital stock, surplus and 
undivided earnings of $50,000,000 or more, and willing and able to accept the office on reasonable 
and customary terms and authorized by law to act in accordance with the provisions of this 
Indenture; provided, however, that the Trustee shall be entitled to rely, without verification, on any 
certificate of a bank, trust company, national banking association or other entity that certifies that 
it meets the requirements for being a Depository of moneys hereunder and shall not be responsible 
for any monitoring of such requirements after the initial deposit of any moneys pursuant to the 
provisions of this Indenture. 

 Section 6.02. Deposits.  (a) All Revenues and moneys held by any Depository under this 
Indenture may be placed on demand or time deposit, if and as directed by the Issuer in writing, 
provided that such deposits shall permit the moneys so held to be available for use at the time when 
needed.  Any such deposit may be made in the commercial banking department of any Fiduciary, 
which may honor checks and drafts on such deposit with the same force and effect as if it were not 
such Fiduciary.  All moneys held by any Fiduciary, as such, may be deposited by such Fiduciary 
in its banking department on demand or, if and to the extent directed by the Issuer in writing and 
acceptable to such Fiduciary, on time deposit, provided that such moneys on deposit be available 
for use at the time when needed.  Such Fiduciary shall allow and credit on such moneys such 
interest, if any, as it customarily allows upon similar funds of similar size and under similar 
conditions or as required by law. 

 (b) All moneys held under this Indenture by the Trustee, the Issuer or any Depository 
shall be held in such manner as may then be required by applicable federal or State laws and 
regulations and applicable state laws and regulations of the state in which such Depository is 
located, regarding security for, or granting a preference in the case of, the deposit of public or trust 
funds or, in the absence of such laws and regulations, shall be either (i) continuously or fully 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or (ii) continuously and fully secured, to 
the extent not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, by lodging with the Trustee, 
as custodian, as collateral security, Qualified Investments having a market value (exclusive of 
accrued interest) not less than the amount of such moneys (or portion thereof not insured by the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -87- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation); provided, however, that, to the extent permitted by law, 
it shall not be necessary for the Fiduciaries to give security under this subsection (b) for the deposit 
of any moneys with them held in trust and set aside by them for the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price of or interest on any Bonds, or for the Trustee, the Issuer or any Depository to 
give security for any moneys which shall be represented by obligations or certificates of deposit 
purchased as an investment of such moneys. 

 (c) All moneys deposited with the Trustee and each Depository shall be credited to the 
particular Fund or Account to which such moneys belong and, except as provided with respect to 
the investment of moneys in Qualified Investments in Section 6.03, the moneys credited to each 
particular Fund or Account shall be kept separate and apart from, and not commingled with, any 
moneys credited to any other Fund or Account or any other moneys deposited with the Trustee, 
the Issuer and each Depository, except as provided in Section 6.03. 

 Section 6.03. Investment of Certain Funds.  Moneys held in the Debt Service Account shall 
be invested and reinvested by the Trustee at the Written Direction of the Issuer to the fullest extent 
practicable in Qualified Investments specified in such Written Direction which mature or are 
payable not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide moneys when needed for 
payments to be made from such Accounts and may take the form of a Debt Service Fund 
Agreement.  To the extent moneys held in the Debt Service Account are invested in a Debt Service 
Fund Agreement, the Issuer covenants and agrees that it will not consent or agree to or permit any 
assignment of, rescission of or amendment to or otherwise take any action under or in connection 
with such Debt Service Fund Agreement without the written consent of the Trustee and the 
delivery to the Trustee of a Rating Confirmation with respect to such amendment.  Moneys held 
in the Revenue Fund and the Project Fund may be invested and reinvested by the Trustee at the 
Written Direction of the Issuer in Qualified Investments specified in such Written Direction which 
mature not later than such times as shall be necessary to provide moneys when needed for 
payments to be made from such Funds.  Moneys in the Operating Fund (other than moneys in the 
Operating Fund held with respect to Rebate Payments) may be invested at the Written Direction 
of the Issuer in Qualified Investments specified in such Written Direction which mature within 
twelve months or which provide funds as needed; moneys held in the Operating Fund with respect 
to Rebate Payments shall be invested at the Written Direction of the Issuer in Qualified 
Investments specified in such Written Direction at fair market value; and moneys in the General 
Reserve Fund and the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund may be invested at the Written Direction 
of the Issuer in Qualified Investments specified in such Written Direction; in any case the Qualified 
Investments in such Funds or in the Accounts therein shall mature not later than such times as shall 
be necessary to provide moneys when needed to provide payments from such Funds or Accounts.  
The Trustee shall only be required to make investments of moneys held by it in the Funds and 
Accounts established under this Indenture in accordance with Written Directions received by the 
Trustee from any Authorized Officer of the Issuer and may rely on such investment directions 
without verifying the suitability or legality of such investment and any deposit or investment 
directed by the Issuer shall constitute a certification by the Issuer that the assets so deposited or to 
be purchased pursuant to such directions are Qualified Investments.  In making any investment in 
any Qualified Investments with moneys in any Fund or Account established under this Indenture, 
the Issuer may give Written Direction to the Trustee to combine such moneys with moneys in any 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -88- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

other Fund or Account, but solely for purposes of making such investment in such Qualified 
Investments. 

The Trustee shall only be required to make investments of moneys held by it in the Funds 
and Accounts established under this Indenture in accordance with Written Directions received by 
the Trustee from any Authorized Officer of the Issuer.  The Trustee shall be entitled to rely in good 
faith on any Written Direction of the Issuer as to the suitability and legality of the directed 
investment and any deposit or investment directed by the Issuer shall constitute a certification by 
the Issuer that the assets so deposited or to be purchased pursuant to such directions are Qualified 
Investments.  In making any investment in any Qualified Investments with moneys in any Fund or 
Account established under this Indenture, the Issuer may give Written Direction to the Trustee to 
combine such moneys with moneys in any other Fund or Account, but solely for purposes of 
making such investment in such Qualified Investments. 

Interest earned on any moneys or investments in the Funds and Accounts established 
hereunder shall be paid into the Revenue Fund, other than interest earned on any moneys or 
investments in (i) the Redemption Account in the Debt Service Fund, (ii) the Operating Fund 
relating to Rebate Payments, (iii) the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund, (iv) and the 
Administrative Fee Fund.  Such interest shall be held in such respective Fund or Account for the 
purposes thereof.  If no written investment directions have been delivered to the Trustee for any 
Fund or Account, moneys shall be held there uninvested by the Trustee. 

Nothing in this Indenture shall prevent any Qualified Investments acquired as investments 
of or security for Funds held under this Indenture from being issued or held in book‑entry form on 
the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States. 

Nothing in this Indenture shall preclude the Trustee from investing or reinvesting moneys 
that it holds in the Funds and Accounts established pursuant to this Indenture through its bond 
department; provided, however, that the Issuer may, in its discretion, give a Written Direction to 
the Trustee that such moneys be invested or reinvested in a manner other than through such bond 
department. 

To the extent any Qualified Investment is insured, guaranteed or otherwise supported by 
any secondary facility, the Trustee shall make a claim under such facility at such time as shall be 
required to receive payment thereunder not later than the date required to make any necessary 
deposit pursuant to Section 5.05 or Section 5.09 or otherwise under Article V. 

 Section 6.04. Valuation and Sale of Investments.  Obligations purchased as an investment 
of moneys in any Fund created under the provisions of this Indenture shall be deemed at all times 
to be a part of such Fund and any profit realized from the liquidation of such investment shall be 
credited to such Fund, and any loss resulting from the liquidation of such investment shall be 
charged to the respective Fund. 

In computing the amount in any Fund created under the provisions of this Indenture for 
any purpose provided in this Indenture, obligations purchased as an investment of moneys therein 
shall be valued at the lower of market value or the amortized cost thereof.  The accrued interest 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -89- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

paid in connection with the purchase of any obligation shall be included in the value thereof until 
interest on such obligation is paid.  Such computation shall be determined at the Written Direction 
of the Issuer to the Trustee as of each Principal Installment payment date and at such other times 
as the Issuer shall reasonably determine.  Guaranteed investment contracts or similar agreements 
shall be valued at their face value to the extent that they provide for withdrawals without market 
adjustment or penalty when they are required to provide payment pursuant to this Indenture. 

Except as otherwise provided in this Indenture, the Trustee shall use reasonable efforts to 
sell at the best price obtainable, or present for redemption, any obligation so purchased as an 
investment whenever it shall be requested to do so by a Written Request of the Issuer.  Whenever 
it shall be necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any payment or transfer from any Fund 
held by the Trustee or the Issuer, the Issuer or the Trustee at the Written Direction of the Issuer 
shall use reasonable efforts to sell at the best price obtainable or present for redemption such 
obligation or obligations designated by an Authorized Officer in a Written Direction of the Issuer 
to the Trustee as necessary to provide sufficient moneys for such payment or transfer.  The Issuer 
acknowledges that, to the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency or other applicable 
regulatory entity grants the Issuer the right to receive from the Trustee brokerage confirmations of 
security transactions as they occur, the Issuer specifically waives receipt of such confirmations to 
the extent permitted by law.  The Trustee shall not be required to provide any brokerage 
information. 

The Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any loss, fee, tax or other charge resulting 
from any such investment, sale or presentation for redemption made in the manner provided above 
in Section 6.02, Section 6.03 or Section 6.04. 

ARTICLE VII 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

The Issuer covenants and agrees with the Trustee and the Bondholders as follows: 

 Section 7.01. Payment of Bonds.  The Issuer shall duly and punctually pay or cause to be 
paid, but solely from the Trust Estate, the principal or Redemption Price, if any, of every Bond 
and the interest thereon, at the dates and places and in the manner provided in the Bonds, according 
to the true intent and meaning thereof. 

 Section 7.02. Extension of Payment of Bonds.  The Issuer shall not directly or indirectly 
extend or assent to the extension of the maturity of any of the Bonds or the time of payment of any 
claims for interest by the purchase or funding of such Bonds or claims for interest or by any other 
arrangement, and in case the maturity of any of the Bonds or the time for payment of any such 
claims for interest shall be extended, such Bonds or claims for interest shall not be entitled, in case 
of any default under this Indenture, to the benefit of this Indenture or to any payment out of 
Revenues or Funds established by this Indenture, including the investment income, if any, thereof, 
pledged under this Indenture or the moneys (except moneys held in trust for the payment of 
particular Bonds or claims for interest pursuant to this Indenture) held by the Fiduciaries, except 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -90- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

subject to the prior payment of the principal of all Bonds Outstanding the maturity of which has 
not been extended and of such portion of the accrued interest on the Bonds as shall not be 
represented by such extended claims for interest. 

 Section 7.03. Offices for Servicing Bonds.  Pursuant to Section 2.02, the Issuer has 
appointed the Trustee as Bond Registrar and Paying Agent for the Bonds and the Trustee hereby 
accepts such appointments.  The Trustee shall at all times maintain one or more agencies or offices 
where Bonds may be presented for registration exchange or transfer, where principal and 
Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds may be paid, where reports, statements and other 
documents furnished to the Trustee hereunder may be inspected and where notices, demands and 
other documents may be served upon the Issuer in respect of the Bonds or of this Indenture, and 
the Trustee shall continuously maintain or make arrangements to provide such services.  The Issuer 
shall maintain one or more offices or agencies where notices, demands and other documents may 
be served upon the Issuer in respect of the Bonds or this Indenture, and the Issuer shall 
continuously maintain or make arrangements to provide such services. 

 Section 7.04. Further Assurance.  At any and all times the Issuer shall, as far as it may be 
authorized by law, comply with any reasonable request of the Trustee to pass, make, do, execute, 
acknowledge and deliver all and every such further resolutions, acts, deeds, conveyances, 
assignments, transfers and assurances as may be necessary or desirable for the better assuring, 
conveying, granting, pledging, assigning and confirming all and singular the rights, Revenues and 
other moneys, securities and funds hereby pledged, or intended so to be, or which the Issuer may 
become bound to pledge. 

 Section 7.05. Power To Issue Bonds and Pledge the Trust Estate.  The Issuer is duly 
authorized under all applicable laws to create and issue the Bonds and to execute and deliver this 
Indenture and to pledge the Trust Estate, in the manner and to the extent provided in this Indenture.  
Except to the extent otherwise provided in or contemplated by this Indenture, the Trust Estate will 
be free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance thereon or with respect thereto prior 
to, or of equal rank with, the security interest, the pledge and assignment created by this Indenture, 
and all action on the part of the Issuer to that end has been and will be duly and validly taken.  The 
Bonds and the provisions of this Indenture are and will be the valid and legally enforceable limited 
obligations of the Issuer in accordance with their terms and the terms of this Indenture.  The Issuer 
shall at all times, to the extent permitted by law, defend, preserve and protect the pledge of the 
Revenues and other moneys, securities and funds pledged under this Indenture and all the rights 
of the Bondholders under this Indenture against all claims and demands of all Persons 
whomsoever. 

 Section 7.06. Power To Fix and Collect Fees and Charges for the Sale of Energy.  The 
Issuer has, and, to the extent permitted by law, will have as long as any Bonds are Outstanding, 
good right and lawful power to fix, establish, maintain and collect fees and charges for the sale of 
Energy or otherwise with respect to the Clean Energy Project, subject to the terms of the Power 
Supply Contracts. 

 Section 7.07. Creation of Liens.  Except as expressly permitted under the terms of this 
Indenture, for so long as any Bonds are Outstanding, the Issuer shall not, without a Rating 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -91- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Confirmation, issue any bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness of similar 
nature payable from or secured by a pledge and assignment of the Trust Estate, other than the 
Bonds and bonds, notes, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness issued to refund 
Outstanding Bonds, or otherwise incur obligations other than those contemplated by this Indenture, 
the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Issuer Custodial Agreements, the 
Commodity Swap, the Interest Rate Swap and any documents or agreements relating to any of the 
foregoing (including, but not limited to, obligations under Qualified Investments), payable out of 
or secured by a pledge or assignment of, or lien on, the Trust Estate; and, except as expressly 
permitted under the terms of this Indenture, shall not, without a Rating Confirmation, create or 
cause to be created any lien or charge on the Trust Estate except as provided in or contemplated 
by this Indenture, the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Issuer 
Custodial Agreements, the Commodity Swap, the Interest Rate Swap and any documents or 
agreements relating to any of the foregoing (including, but not limited to, obligations under 
Qualified Investments); provided, however, that nothing contained in this Indenture shall prevent 
the Issuer from entering into or issuing, if and to the extent permitted by law (A) evidences of 
indebtedness (1) payable out of moneys in the Project Fund as part of the Cost of Acquisition or 
(2) payable out of or secured by a pledge and assignment of the Trust Estate or any part thereof to 
be derived on and after such date as the pledge of the Trust Estate provided in this Indenture shall 
be discharged and satisfied as provided in Section 12.01, or (B) Commodity Swap and Interest 
Rate Swaps upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

 Section 7.08. [Reserved.] 

 Section 7.09. Limitations on Operating Expenses and Other Costs.  The Issuer shall not 
incur Operating Expenses in any Fiscal Year in excess of the reasonable and necessary amount of 
such Operating Expenses. 

 Section 7.10. Amendments to Power Supply Contracts.  The Issuer will not consent or agree 
to or permit any termination or rescission of, assignment or novation (in whole or in part) by a 
Project Participant of, or amendment to or otherwise take any action under or in connection with 
any Power Supply Contract that will impair the ability of the Issuer to collect Revenues in each 
Fiscal Year which, together with the other amounts available therefor, shall provide an amount 
sufficient to pay: 

 (a) The amount estimated by the Issuer to be required to be paid during such 
Fiscal Year into the Operating Fund; 

 (b) The amounts, if any, required to be paid during such Fiscal Year into the 
Debt Service Fund other than any such amounts which the Issuer anticipates shall be 
transferred from other Funds or Accounts; 

 (c) The amounts, if any, to be paid during such Fiscal Year into any other Fund 
established under Section 5.02; and 

 (d) All other charges or liens whatsoever payable out of Revenues during such 
Fiscal Year; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -92- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

provided that: 

 (i) the Issuer may take any other action under or in connection with the 
Power Supply Contracts that is expressly permitted pursuant to the provisions 
thereof; 

 (ii) the Issuer and a Project Participant may amend a Power Supply 
Contract to change any Delivery Point (as defined and provided therein); 

 (iii) a Power Supply Contract may be amended upon receipt of (A) a 
Rating Confirmation with respect to such amendment, and (B) to the extent such 
amendment would have a material adverse effect (including, but not limited to, a 
change in the timing of payments, the source of such payments, or the Issuer’s 
rights of collection thereof) upon the Receivables Purchase Provisions or the 
Commodity Swap, the consent of the Energy Supplier or the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty, respectively, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed; 

 (iv) the Issuer may agree to an assignment or novation of all or a portion 
of a Project Participant’s rights and obligations under a Power Supply Contract 
upon (A) compliance with the restrictions on assignment set forth in such Power 
Supply Contract, and (B) receipt of a Rating Confirmation with respect to such 
assignment or novation; and 

 (v) a Power Supply Contract may also be amended in connection with 
a remediation pursuant to Section 18.3(b) of the Energy Purchase Agreement. 

 Section 7.11. Power Supply Contracts; Energy Remarketing.  (a)  The Issuer shall cause all 
Revenues payable by the Project Participants under the Power Supply Contracts to be payable 
directly to the Trustee for deposit into the Revenue Fund or custodial accounts established pursuant 
to Section 5.02(b).  The Issuer shall enforce the provisions of the Power Supply Contracts, as well 
as any other contract or contracts entered into relating to the Clean Energy Project, and duly 
perform its covenants and agreements thereunder. 

 (b) In the event that any Project Participant fails to pay when due any amounts owed to 
the Issuer under a Power Supply Contract, the Issuer shall: 

 (i) promptly exercise its right to suspend all Energy deliveries to such Project 
Participant; and 

 (ii) promptly give notice to the Energy Supplier to follow the provisions set 
forth in the Remarketing Exhibit to the Energy Purchase Agreement for each Month of 
such suspension with respect to the quantities of Energy for which deliveries have been 
suspended. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -93- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (c) In the event that any Project Participant delivers a Remarketing Election Notice (as 
defined in each Power Supply Contract) in respect of any Reset Period, then the Issuer will 
promptly give notice to the Energy Supplier to follow the provisions set forth in the Remarketing 
Provisions for each month of such Reset Period with respect to any quantities of Energy that would 
otherwise have been delivered to such Project Participant. 

 (d) For the avoidance of doubt, as of the date of this Indenture, the Power Supply 
Contracts with the Project Participants set forth on Schedule I shall be the only Power Supply 
Contracts until such time, if any, that an assignment or novation occurs in accordance with the 
requirements set forth above.  Without prejudice to the rights of the Energy Supplier to remarket 
Energy under the Energy Purchase Agreement or to an assignment or novation of a Power Supply 
Contract in compliance with this Section 7.11, the Issuer may sell the quantities of Energy to be 
delivered under the Energy Purchase Agreement only pursuant to the Power Supply Contracts.  A 
copy of each Power Supply Contract and any amendment to a Power Supply Contract, certified by 
an Authorized Officer, shall be filed with the Trustee. 

 Section 7.12. Energy Purchase Agreement; Energy Supplier Guaranty.  (a)  The Issuer 
shall enforce the provisions of the Energy Purchase Agreement and duly perform its covenants 
and agreements thereunder and shall enforce the provisions of the Energy Supplier Guaranty. 

 (b) The Trustee shall promptly notify the Issuer of any payment default that has occurred 
and is continuing on the part of the Energy Supplier under the Energy Purchase Agreement.  The 
Issuer shall provide the Trustee with Written Notice of the Early Termination Payment Date (i) on 
the date on which a Failed Remarketing occurs, and (ii) in all other cases, not more than five (5) 
Business Days after such date is determined. 

 (c) The Issuer will not consent or agree to or permit any assignment of, rescission of or 
amendment to or otherwise take any action under or in connection with the Energy Purchase 
Agreement or the Energy Supplier Guaranty which will in any manner materially impair or 
materially adversely affect the rights of the Issuer thereunder or the rights or security of the 
Bondholders under this Indenture; provided that the Energy Purchase Agreement may be assigned 
or amended without Bondholder consent upon receipt of a Rating Confirmation with respect to 
such assignment or amendment.  The Energy Purchase Agreement may also be amended in 
connection with a remediation pursuant to Section 18.3(b) of the Energy Purchase Agreement.  
Copies of the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Energy Supplier Guaranty and any amendments 
thereto, certified by an Authorized Officer, shall be filed with the Trustee. 

 Section 7.13. [Reserved]. 

 Section 7.14. Commodity Swap.  The Issuer shall cause all Commodity Swap Receipts and 
any other amounts payable to the Issuer pursuant to the Commodity Swap to be collected and paid 
directly to the Trustee for deposit into the Revenue Fund.  The Issuer shall enforce the provisions 
of the Commodity Swap and duly perform its covenants and agreements thereunder.  The Trustee 
shall promptly notify the Issuer of any payment default that has occurred and is continuing on the 
part of the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the Commodity Swap.  The Issuer will not 
consent or agree to or permit any termination or rescission of or amendment to or otherwise take 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -94- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

any action under or in connection with the Commodity Swap that will impair the ability of the 
Issuer to comply during the current or any future year with the provisions hereof.  The Issuer shall 
only exercise its right to terminate the Commodity Swap in compliance with Section 2.12(b).  A 
copy of the Commodity Swap certified by an Authorized Officer shall be filed with the Trustee, 
and a copy of any amendment to the Commodity Swap, certified by an Authorized Officer, shall 
be filed with the Trustee. 

 Section 7.15. Interest Rate Swap.  The Issuer shall cause all Interest Rate Swap Receipts or 
other amounts payable to the Issuer pursuant to the Interest Rate Swap to be collected and paid to 
the Trustee for deposit into the Debt Service Account.  The Issuer shall enforce the provisions of 
the Interest Rate Swap and duly perform its covenants and agreements thereunder.  The Trustee 
shall promptly notify the Issuer of any payment default that has occurred and is continuing on the 
part of the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty under the Interest Rate Swap.  The Issuer will not 
consent or agree to or permit any termination or rescission of or amendment to or otherwise take 
any action under or in connection with the Interest Rate Swap that will impair the ability of the 
Issuer to comply during the current or any future year with the provisions hereof.  The Issuer shall 
only exercise its right to terminate the Interest Rate Swap in compliance with Section 2.13(b).  A 
copy of the Interest Rate Swap certified by an Authorized Officer shall be filed with the Trustee, 
and a copy of any amendment to the Interest Rate Swap, certified by an Authorized Officer, shall 
be filed with the Trustee. 

 Section 7.16. Accounts and Reports.  (a)  The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept with 
respect to the Clean Energy Project proper books of record and account (separate from all other 
records and accounts) in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as such may 
be modified by the provisions of this Indenture, in which complete and correct entries shall be 
made of its transactions relating to the Clean Energy Project, the amount of Revenues and the 
application thereof and each Fund and Account established under this Indenture and relating to its 
costs and charges under the Power Supply Contracts and any other contracts for the sale or 
purchase of Energy, and which, together with the Energy Purchase Agreement and all contracts 
and all other books and papers of the Issuer relating to the Clean Energy Project, shall, subject to 
the terms thereof, at all times during regular business hours be subject to the inspection of the 
Trustee and the Holders of an aggregate of not less than 5% in principal amount of the Bonds then 
Outstanding or their representatives duly authorized in writing. 

 (b) The Trustee shall advise the Issuer promptly after the end of each month of the 
respective transactions during such month relating to each Fund and Account held by it under this 
Indenture. 

 (c) The Issuer shall file with the Trustee (i) forthwith upon becoming aware of any Event 
of Default or default in the performance by the Issuer of any covenant, agreement or condition 
contained in this Indenture, a Written Certificate of the Issuer and specifying such Event of Default 
or default and (ii) within 180 days after the end of each Fiscal Year, commencing with the first 
Fiscal Year ending following the issuance of the Bonds, a Written Certificate of the Issuer signed 
by an appropriate Authorized Officer stating whether, to the best of such Authorized Officer’s 
knowledge and belief, the Issuer has kept, observed, performed and fulfilled its covenants and 
obligations contained in this Indenture and that there does not exist at the date of such certificate 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -95- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

any default by the Issuer under this Indenture or any Event of Default or other event which, with 
the lapse of time specified in Section 8.01, would become an Event of Default, or, if any such 
default or Event of Default or other event shall so exist, specifying the same and the nature and 
status thereof. 

 (d) The reports, statements and other documents required to be furnished to the Trustee 
pursuant to any provisions of this Indenture shall be available for the inspection of Bondholders at 
all times during regular business hours at the designated corporate trust office of the Trustee (upon 
reasonable prior written notice of inspection delivered to the Trustee), subject to such reasonable 
regulations as the Trustee may from time to time determine to be advisable or required by law, and 
shall be mailed to each Bondholder who shall file a written request therefor with the Issuer.  The 
Issuer may charge each Bondholder requesting such reports, statements and other documents a 
reasonable fee to cover reproduction, handling and postage. 

 Section 7.17. Payment of Taxes and Charges.  The Issuer will from time to time duly pay 
and discharge, or cause to be paid and discharged, all taxes, assessments and other governmental 
charges, or required payments in lieu thereof, lawfully imposed upon the properties of the Issuer 
or upon the rights, revenues, income, receipts, and other moneys, securities and funds of the Issuer 
when the same shall become due (including all rights, moneys and other property transferred, 
assigned or pledged under this Indenture), and all lawful claims for labor and material and supplies, 
except those taxes, assessments, charges or claims which the Issuer shall in good faith contest by 
proper legal proceedings if the Issuer shall in all such cases have set aside on its books reserves 
deemed adequate by the Issuer with respect thereto. 

 Section 7.18. Tax Covenants.  (a)  The Issuer covenants that it shall not take any action, or 
fail to take any action, or permit any action to be taken on its behalf or cause or permit any 
circumstance within its control to arise or continue, if any such action or inaction would adversely 
affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on any of 
the Bonds under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code and the applicable Treasury 
Regulations promulgated thereunder or, as applicable, would adversely affect the Subsidy 
Payments or receipt thereof by the Issuer or the Trustee.  Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the Issuer covenants that it will (i) comply with the instructions and requirements of the 
Tax Agreement and (ii) exercise commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Bonds to be 
redeemed (A) in such amount as may be necessary to maintain the exclusion from federal gross 
income of interest on the Bonds and (B) in whole in the event that interest on the Bonds becomes 
includible in federal gross income.  The Issuer further agrees to follow any directions provided by 
Special Tax Counsel with respect to any such redemption.] This covenant shall survive payment 
in full or defeasance of the Bonds. 

 (b) In the event that at any time the Issuer is of the opinion that for purposes of this 
Section it is necessary or helpful to restrict or limit the yield on the investment of any moneys held 
by the Trustee under this Indenture, the Issuer shall so instruct the Trustee in writing as to the 
specific actions to be taken, and the Trustee shall take such action as specified in such instructions. 

 (c) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Section, if the Issuer shall provide to the 
Trustee an Opinion of Special Tax Counsel that any specified action required under this Section is 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -96- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

no longer required or that some further or different action is required to maintain the exclusion 
from federal income tax of interest on the Bonds or the qualification of the Issuer to receive 
Subsidy Payments with respect to the applicable Series of Bonds, the Issuer and the Trustee may 
conclusively rely on such opinion in complying with the requirements of this Section and of the 
Tax Agreement, and the covenants hereunder shall be deemed to be modified to that extent. 

 (d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture to the contrary, upon the 
Issuer’s failure to observe or refusal to comply with the above covenants, the Holders of the Bonds, 
or the Trustee acting on their behalf pursuant to their written request and direction, shall be entitled 
to the rights and remedies provided to Bondholders under this Indenture based upon the Issuer’s 
failure to observe, or refusal to comply with, the above covenants.  In connection with any action 
taken by it under this Section, the Trustee shall have the benefit of all of the protective provisions 
set forth in Article IX. 

 Section 7.19. General.  (a)  The Issuer shall at all times maintain its existence and shall do 
and perform or cause to be done and performed all acts and things required to be done or performed 
by or on behalf of the Issuer under the provisions of the Act and this Indenture. 

 (b) The Issuer shall not consolidate or amalgamate with, or merge with or into, or transfer 
all or substantially all its assets to (other than the sale in the normal course of business of Energy 
to the Project Participants pursuant to the Power Supply Contracts), or reorganize, reincorporate 
or reconstitute into or as, another entity unless, (i) prior to such event, the Issuer receives 
confirmation from the Commodity Swap Counterparty that such event does not trigger a 
termination event under Section 5(b)(iv) of the Commodity Swap and confirmation from the 
Interest Rate Swap Counterparty that such event does not trigger a termination event under 
Section 5(b)(iv) of the Interest Rate Swap; and (ii) at the time of such consolidation, 
amalgamation, merger, transfer, reorganization, reincorporation or reconstitution, the resulting, 
surviving or transferee entity assumes all the obligations of the Issuer under the Commodity Swap 
and the Interest Rate Swap.   

 (c) The Issuer shall not take any action, or fail to take any action, or permit any action to 
be taken on its behalf or cause or permit any circumstance within its control to arise or continue, 
if any such action or inaction would adversely affect the ratings on the Bonds. 

 (d) Upon the date of authentication and delivery of any of the Bonds, all conditions, acts 
and things required by law and this Indenture to exist, to have happened and to have been 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of such Bonds shall exist, have happened and have 
been performed, and the issuance of such Bonds, together with all other obligations of the Issuer, 
shall comply in all respects with the applicable laws of the State. 

 Section 7.20. Bankruptcy.  To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer shall not, prior to the 
date which is one year and one day after the termination of this Indenture, acquiesce, petition, or 
otherwise invoke the process of any court or government authority for the purpose of commencing 
or sustaining a case under any federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar law or appointing 
a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian or sequestrator for any substantial part of its 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -97- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

property, or ordering the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of the Issuer.  This covenant shall 
survive the termination of this Indenture. 

 Section 7.21. [Reserved]. 

 Section 7.22. Replacement of Energy Supplier Guaranty.  The Issuer covenants that it shall 
not replace Morgan Stanley, as issuer of the Energy Supplier Guaranty, or replace any successor 
issuer thereof, in each case without obtaining a Rating Confirmation.  For the avoidance of doubt, 
this Section 7.22 is in addition to, and does not override, any other provision of this Indenture or 
any other document relating to the replacement of the issuer of the Energy Supplier Guaranty. 

 Section 7.23. Avoidance of Failed Remarketing.  The Issuer covenants that it will exercise 
commercially reasonable efforts to avoid a Failed Remarketing. 

ARTICLE VIII 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 Section 8.01. Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following shall constitute an 
“Event of Default” hereunder: 

 (a) default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price or Purchase Price of any Bond when and as the same shall become due 
and payable, whether at maturity or by call for redemption or tender, or otherwise; 

 (b) default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any installment of 
interest on any Bond or the unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund Installment therefor 
(except when such Sinking Fund Installment is due on the maturity date of such Bond), 
when and as such interest installment or Sinking Fund Installment shall become due and 
payable; 

 (c) default shall be made by the Issuer in the performance or observance of any 
other of the covenants, agreements or conditions on its part in this Indenture or in the Bonds 
contained, and such default shall continue for a period of 60 days or, if such default cannot 
reasonably be remedied within such 60-day period, such longer period so long as diligent 
efforts are being made to remedy such default, after written notice thereof specifying such 
default and requiring that it shall have been remedied and stating that such notice is a 
“Notice of Default” hereunder is given to the Issuer by the Trustee or to the Issuer and to 
the Trustee by the Holders of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds 
Outstanding; 

 (d) default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of any Commodity 
Swap Payment or Interest Rate Swap Payment when and as the same shall become due and 
payable; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -98- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (e) the Issuer shall commence a voluntary case or similar proceeding under any 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect (provided, 
however, that such event shall not constitute an Event of Default hereunder unless in 
addition, (i) the Issuer is unable to meet its debts with respect to the Clean Energy Project 
as such debts mature or (ii) any plan of adjustment or other action in such proceeding would 
affect in any way the Revenues or the Clean Energy Project, or shall authorize, apply for 
or consent to the appointment of or taking possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, 
trustee, custodian, sequestrator or similar official for the Clean Energy Project, or any part 
thereof, and/or the rents, fees, charges or other revenues therefrom, or shall make any 
general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall make a written declaration or 
admission to the effect that it is unable to meet its debts with respect to the Clean Energy 
Project as such debts mature, or shall authorize or take any action in furtherance of any of 
the foregoing; 

 (f) a court having jurisdiction in the premises shall enter a decree or order for 
relief in respect of the Issuer in an involuntary case or similar proceeding under any 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, 
(provided, however, that such event shall not constitute an Event of Default hereunder 
unless in addition, (i) the Issuer is unable to meet its debts with respect to the Clean Energy 
Project as such debts mature or (ii) any plan of adjustment or other action in such 
proceeding would affect in any way the Revenues or the Clean Energy Project, or a decree 
or order appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustee, sequestrator or 
similar official for the Clean Energy Project, or any part thereof, and/or the rents, fees, 
charges or other revenues therefor, or a decree or order for the dissolution, liquidation or 
winding up of the Issuer and its affairs or a decree or order finding or determining that the 
Issuer is unable to meet its debts with respect to the Clean Energy Project as such debts 
mature, and any such decree or order shall remain unstayed and in effect for a period of 
90 consecutive days; and 

 (g) there shall occur any other Event of Default specified in a Supplemental 
Indenture. 

 Section 8.02. Accounting and Examination of Records After Default.  (a)  The Issuer 
covenants that if an Event of Default shall have happened and shall not have been remedied, the 
books of record and accounts of the Issuer and all other records relating to the Clean Energy Project 
shall at all times during regular business hours be subject to the inspection and use of the Trustee 
and of its agents and attorneys. 

 (b) The Issuer covenants that if an Event of Default shall have happened and shall not 
have been remedied, the Issuer, upon demand of the Trustee, will account, as if it were the trustee 
of an express trust, for all Revenues and other moneys, securities and funds pledged or held under 
this Indenture for such period as shall be stated in such demand. 

 Section 8.03. Enforcement of Agreements; Application of Moneys after Default.  (a)  The 
Issuer covenants that, if an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, it shall upon 
the demand of the Trustee (i) take such additional actions on its part as shall be necessary to cause 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -99- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

all Project Participants to make payments of all amounts due under the Power Supply Contracts to 
the Trustee, (ii) take such additional actions on its part as shall be necessary to cause the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty to make payment of all amounts due under the Commodity Swap 
directly to the Trustee, (iii) take such additional actions on its part as shall be necessary to cause 
the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty to make payment of all amounts due under the Interest Rate 
Swap directly to the Trustee, (iv) execute and deliver such additional instruments that may be 
necessary to establish or confirm its pledge and assignment to the Trustee of its rights and remedies 
afforded the Issuer under the Power Supply Contracts, and (v) pay over or cause to be paid over to 
the Trustee any Revenues which have not been paid directly to the Trustee as promptly as 
practicable after receipt thereof.  In addition, to secure its obligations under this Indenture, the 
Issuer hereby irrevocably pledges and collaterally assigns to the Trustee the Issuer’s rights to issue 
notices (including notices to direct the remarketing of Energy) and to take any other actions that 
the Issuer is required or permitted to take under the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Power Supply 
Contracts, the Energy Supplier Guaranty, the Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate Swap, and, 
while an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing under this Indenture, the Trustee is hereby 
authorized and directed, and shall have the authority, to take any such actions as it deems necessary 
under the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Power Supply Contracts, the Energy Supplier 
Guaranty, the Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate Swap.  Notwithstanding this authorization, 
the Issuer shall retain, in the absence of any conflicting action by the Trustee while an Event of 
Default has occurred and is continuing, the right and obligation to exercise any rights which it has 
pledged and collaterally assigned to the Trustee in accordance with the foregoing; provided, 
however, if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall have the right to 
notify the Issuer to cease exercising such rights and, upon receipt of such notice with a copy 
provided to the Energy Supplier under the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Project Participants 
under the Power Supply Contracts, and the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the Commodity 
Swap, subject to the rights of the Energy Supplier with respect to the Power Supply Contracts as 
set forth in the Receivables Purchase Provisions, the Trustee shall have exclusive authority to 
exercise such rights until such time as the Event of Default has been cured pursuant to the terms 
of this Indenture or the Trustee issues a subsequent notice otherwise.  For the avoidance of doubt, 
the Energy Purchase Agreement, the Power Supply Contracts and the Commodity Swap may be 
amended at any time for changes in Delivery Points as provided therein, without the consent of 
the Bondholders, any parties other than those to the relevant agreement, and without the provision 
of opinions or other process hereunder. 

 (b) During the continuance of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall apply all moneys, 
securities, funds and Revenues received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken 
under the provisions of this Article in accordance with Article V of this Indenture, after the 
payment of the reasonable fees, charges, expenses and liabilities of the Fiduciaries (including court 
costs and the fees and expenses of the Fiduciaries’ counsel) payable to or incurred by the 
Fiduciaries in connection with the performance of their duties and the exercise of their rights 
hereunder, provided that (1) moneys held in the Debt Service Account shall not be used for 
purposes other than payment of the interest and principal or Redemption Price then due on the 
Bonds and the payment of Interest Rate Swap Payments then due under the Interest Rate Swap, 
(2) moneys in the Commodity Swap Payment Fund shall be used first to pay any Commodity Swap 
Payments then due, (3) moneys held in the General Reserve Fund shall not be used other than for 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -100- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

the payment of the items specified in Section 5.10(a), and (4) moneys held in the Administrative 
Fee Fund shall not be used other than as specified in Section 5.14. 

 (c) If and whenever all overdue installments of interest on all Bonds, together with the 
reasonable charges, expenses and liabilities of the Fiduciaries, and all other sums payable or 
secured by the Issuer under this Indenture, including the principal and Redemption Price of and 
accrued unpaid interest on all Bonds which shall then be payable by declaration or otherwise, shall 
either be paid by or for the account of the Issuer, or provisions satisfactory to the Trustee shall be 
made for such payment, and all defaults under this Indenture or the Bonds shall be made good or 
secured to the satisfaction of the Trustee or provision deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall 
be made therefor, the Trustee shall pay over to the Issuer all moneys, securities and funds then 
remaining unexpended in the hands of the Trustee (except moneys, securities and funds deposited 
or pledged, or required by the terms of this Indenture, particularly Section 5.02, to be deposited or 
pledged, with the Trustee), and thereupon the Issuer and the Trustee shall be restored, respectively, 
to their former positions and rights under this Indenture.  No such payment over to the Issuer by 
the Trustee nor restoration of the Issuer and the Trustee to their former positions and rights shall 
extend to or affect any subsequent default under this Indenture or impair any right consequent 
thereon. 

 Section 8.04. Appointment of Receiver.  The Trustee shall have the right, upon the 
happening of an Event of Default, to apply in an appropriate proceeding for the appointment of a 
receiver of the Clean Energy Project. 

 Section 8.05. Proceedings Brought by Trustee.  (a)  If an Event of Default shall happen and 
shall not have been remedied, then and in every such case, the Trustee, by its agents and attorneys, 
may proceed, and upon written request of the Holders of not less than a majority in principal 
amount of the Bonds Outstanding and upon being indemnified to its satisfaction shall proceed, to 
protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Holders of the Bonds under this Indenture 
forthwith by a suit or suits in equity or at law, whether for the specific performance of any covenant 
herein contained, or in aid of the execution of any power herein granted, or for an accounting 
against the Issuer as if the Issuer were the trustee of an express trust, or in the enforcement of any 
other legal or equitable right as the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most effectual 
to enforce any of its rights or to perform any of its duties under this Indenture. 

 (b) All rights of action under this Indenture may be enforced by the Trustee without the 
possession of any of the Bonds or the production thereof at the trial or other proceedings, and any 
such suit or proceedings instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its name. 

 (c) The Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds at the time 
Outstanding may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee, provided that 
the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction if the Trustee shall be 
advised by counsel that the action or proceeding so directed may not lawfully be taken, or if the 
Trustee in good faith shall determine that the action or proceeding so directed would involve the 
Trustee in personal liability or be unjustly prejudicial to the Bondholders not parties to such 
direction. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -101- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (d) Upon commencing a suit in equity or upon other commencement of judicial 
proceedings by the Trustee to enforce any right under this Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled 
to exercise any and all rights and powers conferred in this Indenture and provided to be exercised 
by the Trustee upon the occurrence of any Event of Default. 

 (e) Regardless of the happening of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall have power to, 
but unless requested in writing by the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then 
Outstanding and furnished with reasonable security and indemnity, shall be under no obligation 
to, institute and maintain such suits and proceedings as it may be advised shall be necessary or 
expedient to prevent any impairment of the security under this Indenture by any acts which may 
be unlawful or in violation of this Indenture, and such suits and proceedings as the Trustee may be 
advised shall be necessary or expedient to preserve or protect its interests and the interests of the 
Bondholders. 

 Section 8.06. Restriction on Bondholder’s Action.  (a)  No Holder of any Bond shall have 
any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity for the enforcement of any 
provision of this Indenture or the execution of any trust under this Indenture or for any remedy 
under this Indenture, unless such Holder (i) shall have previously given to the Trustee written 
notice of the happening of an Event of Default, as provided in this Article, and the Holders of at 
least a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have filed a written request 
with the Trustee, (ii) shall have offered it reasonable opportunity, either to exercise the powers 
granted in this Indenture or by the laws of the State or to institute such action, suit or proceeding 
in its own name, and (iii) shall have offered to the Trustee adequate security and indemnity against 
the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and the Trustee shall have 
refused to comply with such request for a period of 60 days after receipt by it of such notice, 
request and offer of indemnity, it being understood and intended that no one or more Holders of 
Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatever by its or their action to affect, disturb or 
prejudice the pledge created by this Indenture, or to enforce any right under this Indenture, except 
in the manner therein provided; and that all proceedings at law or in equity to enforce any provision 
of this Indenture shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in this Indenture 
and for the equal benefit of all Holders of the Outstanding Bonds, subject only to the provisions 
of Section 7.02. 

 (b) Nothing in this Indenture or in the Bonds shall affect or impair the obligation of the 
Issuer, which is absolute and unconditional, to pay only from the Trust Estate, in accordance with 
the terms of this Indenture, at the respective dates of maturity and places therein expressed the 
principal of (and premium, if any) and interest on the Bonds to the respective Holders thereof, or 
affect or impair the right of action, which is also absolute and unconditional, of any Holder to 
enforce such payment of its Bond. 

 Section 8.07. Remedies Not Exclusive.  No remedy by the terms of this Indenture conferred 
upon or reserved to the Trustee or the Bondholders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, 
but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy 
given under this Indenture or existing at law or in equity or by statute on or after the date of 
execution and delivery of this Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -102- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 Section 8.08. Effect of Waiver and Other Circumstances.  (a)  No delay or omission of the 
Trustee or any Bondholder to exercise any right or power arising upon the happening of an Event 
of Default shall impair any right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such Event 
of Default or be an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy given by this Article VIII 
to the Trustee or to the Bondholders may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be 
deemed expedient by the Trustee or by the Bondholders. 

 (b) Prior to the declaration of maturity of the Bonds as provided in Section 8.01, the 
Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding, or 
their attorneys-in-fact duly authorized, may on behalf of the Holders of all of the Bonds waive any 
past default under this Indenture and its consequences, except a default in the payment of interest 
on or principal of or premium (if any) on any of the Bonds.  No such waiver shall extend to any 
subsequent or other default or impair any right consequent thereon. 

 Section 8.09. Notice of Default.  The Trustee shall promptly mail written notice of the 
occurrence of any Event of Default to each registered owner of Bonds then Outstanding at its 
address, if any, appearing upon the registry books of the Issuer. 

ARTICLE IX 

CONCERNING THE FIDUCIARIES 

 Section 9.01. Acceptance by Trustee of Duties.  The Trustee accepts the duties and 
obligations imposed upon it by this Indenture and the trusts hereby created, but only, however, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Indenture. 

 Section 9.02. Paying Agents; Appointment and Acceptance of Duties.  (a)  The Issuer shall 
appoint one or more Paying Agents for the Bonds, and may at any time or from time to time appoint 
one or more other Paying Agents.  All Paying Agents appointed shall have the qualifications set 
forth in Section 9.13 for a successor Paying Agent.  The Trustee is hereby appointed as initial 
Paying Agent. 

 (b) Each Paying Agent shall signify its acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed 
upon it by this Indenture by executing and delivering to the Issuer and to the Trustee a written 
acceptance thereof. 

 (c) Unless otherwise provided, the principal corporate trust offices of the Paying Agents 
are designated as the respective offices or agencies of the Issuer for the payment of the interest on 
and principal or Redemption Price of the Bonds. 

 Section 9.03. Responsibilities of Fiduciaries.  (a)  The recitals of fact herein and in the 
Bonds contained shall be taken as the statements of the Issuer and no Fiduciary assumes any 
responsibility for the correctness of the same.  No Fiduciary makes any representations as to the 
validity or sufficiency of this Indenture or of any Bonds issued hereunder or as to the security 
afforded by this Indenture, and no Fiduciary shall incur any liability in respect thereof.  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -103- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Furthermore, no Fiduciary shall be responsible for any offering documents (except for information 
provided by any Fiduciary for inclusion in such offering documents).  The Trustee shall, however, 
be responsible for its representation contained in its certificate of authentication on the Bonds.  No 
Fiduciary shall be under any responsibility or duty with respect to the application of any moneys, 
including bond proceeds, paid by such Fiduciary in accordance with the provisions of this 
Indenture to the Issuer or to any other Person.  No Fiduciary shall be under any obligation or duty 
to perform any act which would involve it in expense or liability or to institute or undertake any 
suit or proceeding under this Indenture or to enter any appearance in or defend any suit in respect 
thereof, or to advance any of its own moneys, expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any 
financial liability unless properly indemnified to its satisfaction against any and all costs and 
expenses, outlays and counsel fees and other anticipated disbursements, and against all liability 
except to the extent determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused by its 
own negligence or willful misconduct.  To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer shall indemnify 
the Trustee for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, damage, claim, liability or expense incurred 
by it, arising out of or in connection with the acceptance or administration of this Indenture or the 
trusts hereunder, including the costs and expenses of defending itself against any claim or liability 
in connection with the exercise or the performance of any of its duties hereunder unless properly 
indemnified to its satisfaction.  Subject to the provisions of subsection (b), no Fiduciary shall be 
liable in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder except to the extent determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused by its own negligence or willful 
misconduct.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the permissive rights of any Fiduciary to 
do things enumerated under this Indenture shall not be construed as duties. 

 (b) The Trustee, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default and after the curing of all 
Events of Default which may have occurred, undertakes to perform such duties and only such 
duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture.  In case an Event of Default has occurred 
(which has not been cured) the Trustee shall exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by 
this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent person 
would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of such person’s own affairs.  Any 
provision of this Indenture relating to action taken or to be taken by the Trustee or to evidence 
upon which the Trustee may rely shall be subject to the provisions of this Section 9.03 and 
Section 9.04. 

 (c) The Trustee shall not be considered in breach of or in default in its obligations 
hereunder or progress in respect thereto in the event of enforced delay (“unavoidable delay”) in 
connection with the performance of such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its 
control and without its fault or negligence, including, but not limited to, Acts of God or of the 
public enemy or terrorists, acts of a government, acts of the other party, fires, floods, epidemics, 
quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, earthquakes, explosion, mob violence, riot, 
inability to procure or general sabotage or rationing of labor, equipment, facilities, sources of 
energy, material or supplies in the open market, litigation or arbitration involving a party or others 
relating to zoning or other governmental action or inaction pertaining to the project, malicious 
mischief, condemnation, and unusually severe weather or delays of suppliers or subcontractors 
due to such causes or any similar event and/or occurrences beyond the control of the Trustee. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -104- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Issuer acknowledges and agrees 
that the Trustee is not acting as the disclosure or dissemination agent for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with any notice required to be posted with 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board via its EMMA system. 

 Section 9.04. Evidence on Which Fiduciaries May Act.  (a)  Each Fiduciary may 
conclusively rely upon any notice, direction, resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, report, 
opinion, bond or other paper or document furnished to it pursuant to any provision of this Indenture 
and shall be protected in acting upon any such instrument believed by it to be genuine and to have 
been signed or presented by the proper party or parties and in conformity with the formal 
requirements of this Indenture.  Each Fiduciary may consult with a consultant, accountant or 
counsel, who may or may not be a consultant, accountant or counsel to the Issuer, and the opinion 
of such consultant, accountant or counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection 
in respect of any action taken or suffered by it under this Indenture in good faith and in accordance 
therewith and the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry into any 
statements contained or matters referred to in any such instrument. 

 (b) Whenever any Fiduciary shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved 
or established prior to taking or suffering any action under this Indenture, such matter (unless other 
evidence in respect thereof be therein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively 
proved and established by a Written Certificate of the Issuer, and such certificate shall be full 
warrant for any action taken or suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Indenture upon 
the faith thereof; but in its discretion the Fiduciary may in lieu thereof accept other evidence of 
such fact or matter or may require such further or additional evidence as it may deem reasonable.  
Neither the Trustee, the Bond Registrar, the tender agent, nor the Paying Agent shall be bound to 
recognize any Person as a Bondholder or to take any action at its request unless its Bond shall be 
deposited with such entity or satisfactory evidence of the ownership of such Bond shall be 
furnished to such entity. 

 (c) The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon directions given pursuant to 
this Indenture, or any other document reasonably relating to the Bonds and delivered using 
Electronic Means; provided, however, that the Issuer shall provide to the Trustee a Written 
Certificate of the Issuer listing Authorized Officers with the authority to provide such directions 
and containing specimen signatures of such Authorized Officers, which Written Certificate of the 
Issuer shall be amended whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing.  If the Issuer 
elects to give the Trustee directions using Electronic Means and the Trustee in its discretion elects 
to act upon such directions, the Trustee’s understanding of such directions shall be deemed 
controlling.  The Issuer understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of 
the actual sender of such directions and that the Trustee shall conclusively presume that directions 
that purport to have been sent by an Authorized Officer listed on the Written Certificate of the 
Issuer provided to the Trustee have been sent by such Authorized Officer.  The Issuer shall be 
responsible for ensuring that only Authorized Officers transmit such directions to the Trustee and 
that all Authorized Officers treat applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or 
authentication keys issued by the Trustee as confidential and with extreme care.  The Trustee shall 
not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee’s 
reliance upon and compliance with such directions notwithstanding such directions conflict or are 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -105- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

inconsistent with a subsequent written direction.  The Issuer agrees:  (i) to assume all risks arising 
out of the use of Electronic Means to submit directions to the Trustee, including without limitation 
the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized directions, and the risk of interception and misuse 
by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various 
methods of transmitting directions to the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of 
transmitting directions; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with 
its transmission of directions provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light 
of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to notify the Trustee immediately upon learning 
of any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures. 

 Section 9.05. Compensation.  The Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid to each Fiduciary 
from time to time reasonable compensation for all services rendered under this Indenture, and also 
all reasonable expenses, charges, legal fees and other disbursements, including those of its 
attorneys, agents and employees, incurred in and about the performance of their powers and duties 
under this Indenture, in accordance with the agreements made from time to time between the Issuer 
and the Fiduciary.  Subject to the provisions of Section 9.03, the Issuer further agrees, to the extent 
permitted by applicable law, to indemnify and save each Fiduciary harmless against any liabilities 
that it may incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties hereunder and that are 
not due to such Fiduciary’s negligence or willful misconduct. 

 Section 9.06. Certain Permitted Acts.  Any Fiduciary, individually or otherwise, may 
become the owner of any Bonds, with the same rights it would have if it were not a Fiduciary.  To 
the extent permitted by law, any Fiduciary may act as depository for, and permit any of its officers 
or directors to act as a member of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any committee formed 
to protect the rights of Bondholders or to effect or aid in any reorganization growing out of the 
enforcement of the Bonds or this Indenture, whether or not any such committee shall represent the 
Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding.  Nothing herein shall be 
deemed to authorize the Trustee to authorize or consent to or accept or adopt on behalf of any 
Bondholder any plan of reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, or composition affecting the 
Bonds or the rights of any Holder thereof, or to authorize the Trustee to vote in respect of the claim 
of any Bondholder in any such proceeding without the approval of the Bondholders so affected. 

 Section 9.07. Resignation of Trustee.  The Trustee may at any time resign and be 
discharged of the duties created by this Indenture by giving not less than 60 days’ written notice 
to the Issuer and mailing notice thereof to the Holders of Bonds then Outstanding, specifying the 
date when such resignation shall take effect, and such resignation shall take effect upon the day 
specified in such notice unless (a) previously a successor shall have been appointed by the Issuer 
or the Bondholders as provided in Section 9.09, in which event such resignation shall take effect 
immediately on the appointment of such successor, or (b) a successor shall not have been 
appointed by the Issuer or the Bondholders as provided in Section 9.09 on such date, in which 
event such resignation shall not take effect until a successor is appointed. 

 Section 9.08. Removal of the Trustee.  The Trustee may be removed with 30 days’ prior 
notice with or without cause by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, filed with the 
Trustee, and signed by the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding 
or their attorneys-in-fact duly authorized, excluding any Bonds held by or for the account of the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -106- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Issuer.  So long as no Event of Default, or an event which, with notice or passage of time, or both, 
would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing, the Trustee may be 
removed at any time with 30 days’ prior Written Notice, with or without cause, by delivery of a 
Written Certificate of the Issuer to the Trustee with respect to the foregoing.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, any such removal of the Trustee shall not be effective until a successor Trustee has been 
appointed pursuant to Section 9.09. 

 Section 9.09. Appointment of Successor Trustee.  (a)  In case at any time the Trustee shall 
resign or shall be removed or shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt or 
insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or conservator of the Trustee, or of its property, shall be 
appointed, or if any public officer shall take charge or control of the Trustee, or of its property or 
affairs, a successor Trustee may be appointed by the Issuer by a duly executed written instrument 
signed by an Authorized Officer. 

 (b) If no appointment of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to the foregoing 
provisions of this Section within 30 days after the Trustee shall have given to the Issuer written 
notice as provided in Section 9.07 or within 30 days after a vacancy in the office of the Trustee 
shall have occurred by reason of its inability to act, removal, or for any other reason whatsoever, 
the Trustee or the Holder of any Bond (in any case) may apply to any court of competent 
jurisdiction to appoint a successor Trustee.  Said court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as 
such court may deem proper, appoint a successor Trustee. 

 (c) Any Trustee appointed under the provisions of this Section 9.09 in succession to the 
Trustee shall be a bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state or a national banking 
association and shall have capital stock, surplus and undivided earnings aggregating at least 
$100,000,000 if there be such a bank with trust powers or trust company or national banking 
association willing and able to accept the office on reasonable and customary terms and authorized 
by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Indenture. 

 Section 9.10. Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor Trustee.  Any successor trustee 
appointed under this Indenture shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor Trustee, 
and also to the Issuer, an instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon such successor 
Trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all moneys, 
estates, properties, rights, powers, duties and obligations of such predecessor Trustee, with like 
effect as if originally named as Trustee; but the Trustee ceasing to act shall nevertheless, on the 
Written Request of the Issuer or of the successor Trustee, at the cost and expense of the Issuer, 
execute, acknowledge and deliver such instrument of conveyance and further assurance and do 
such other things as may reasonably be required for more fully and certainly vesting and 
confirming in such successor Trustee all the right, title and interest of the predecessor Trustee in 
and to any property, rights, interests and estates held by it under this Indenture, and shall pay over, 
assign and deliver to the successor Trustee any money or other property subject to the trusts and 
conditions herein set forth.  Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in writing from the Issuer 
be required by such successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to 
such successor Trustee any such estates, rights, powers and duties, any and all such deeds, 
conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on request, and so far as may be authorized by law, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -107- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer.  Any such successor Trustee shall 
promptly notify the Paying Agents of its appointment as Trustee. 

 Section 9.11. Merger or Consolidation.  Any company into which any Fiduciary may be 
merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any 
merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which any 
Fiduciary may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, provided such 
company shall be a bank with trust powers or trust company organized under the laws of any state 
of the United States or a national banking association and shall be authorized by law to perform 
all the duties imposed upon it by this Indenture and shall meet the qualifications set forth in 
Section 9.09(c), shall be the successor to such Fiduciary without the execution or filing of any 
paper or the performance of any further act. 

 Section 9.12. Adoption of Authentication.  In case any of the Bonds contemplated to be 
issued under this Indenture shall have been authenticated but not delivered, any successor Trustee 
may adopt the certificate of authentication of any predecessor Trustee so authenticating such 
Bonds and deliver such Bonds so authenticated; and in case any of the said Bonds shall not have 
been authenticated, any successor Trustee may authenticate such Bonds in the name of the 
successor Trustee, and in all such cases such certificate shall have the full force which it is 
provided, anywhere in said Bonds or in this Indenture, that the certificate of the Trustee shall have. 

 Section 9.13. Resignation or Removal of Paying Agent and Appointment of Successor.  
(a)  Any Paying Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations 
created by this Indenture by giving at least 60 days’ written notice to the Issuer, the Trustee and 
the other Paying Agents.  Any Paying Agent may be removed at any time by an instrument filed 
with such Paying Agent and the Trustee and signed by an Authorized Officer.  Any successor 
Paying Agent shall be appointed by the Issuer and shall be a bank or trust company organized 
under the laws of any state of the United States or a national banking association, having capital 
stock, surplus and undivided earnings aggregating at least $50,000,000, and willing and able to 
accept the office on reasonable and customary terms and authorized by law to perform all the 
duties imposed upon it by this Indenture. 

 (b) In the event of the resignation or removal of any Paying Agent, such Paying Agent 
shall pay over, assign and deliver any moneys held by it as Paying Agent to its successor, at the 
reasonable cost and expense of the Issuer to the extent such Paying Agent is not acting as the 
Trustee at the time of such resignation or removal, or if there be no successor, to the Trustee.  In 
the event that for any reason there shall be a vacancy in the office of any Paying Agent, the Trustee 
shall act as such Paying Agent. 

 Section 9.14. Trustee’s Reliance.  In the absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may 
conclusively rely, and shall be protected in acting upon any notice, direction, ordinance, resolution, 
request, consent, order, certificate, report, opinion, bond, statement, facsimilie transmission, 
electronic mail or other paper or document furnished to the Trustee pursuant to any provision of 
this Indenture and that is believed by the Trustee to be genuine and to have been signed or 
presented by the proper party or parties and in conformity with the formal requirements of this 
Indenture.  The Trustee may consult with any consultant, account, or counsel, who may or may 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -108- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

not be counsel to the Issuer, and the opinion of such consultant, accountant, or counsel shall be 
full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or suffered by Trustee 
under this Indenture in good faith and in accordance therewith.  The Trustee shall be under no duty 
to make any investigation or inquiry into any statements contained or matters referred to in any 
such instrument.  Any request, direction, authority or consent given by the Holders of any Bond 
shall be conclusive and binding upon all Holders of the same Bond and any Bond issued in its 
place. 

 Section 9.15. Trustee’s Liability.  (a)  The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any 
action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith, in accordance with the provisions of this 
Indenture, in accordance with the direction of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the 
Outstanding Bonds, relating to the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any 
remedy available to the Trustee, or, except for its negligence or willful misconduct, exercising any 
trust or power conferred upon the Trustee, under this Indenture with respect to the Bonds.  In no 
event shall the Trustee be liable for incidental, special, consequential or punitive damages or 
penalties (including, but not limited to, lost profits). 

 (b) The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of an Event of Default except for 
those Events of Default in Sections 8.1(a) and (b) unless a Responsible Officer of the Trustee shall 
have actual knowledge of such Event of Default.  As used herein, “actual knowledge” shall mean 
the actual fact or statement of knowing without any independent duty to make any investigation 
with regard thereto. 

 (c) The Trustee’s rights to immunities and protection from liability hereunder and its 
rights to payment of its fees and expenses shall survive its resignation or removal and final payment 
or defeasance of the Bonds.  All rights, benefits, indemnifications and releases from liability 
granted herein to the Trustee shall extend to the directors, officers, employees and agents of the 
Trustee. 

 (d) Whenever in the administration of the trusts imposed upon it by this Indenture the 
Trustee shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking 
or suffering any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein 
specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a Written 
Certificate of the Issuer, and such Written Certificate shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any 
action taken or suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Indenture in reliance upon such 
Written Instrument, but in its discretion the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept other evidence of 
such matter or may require such additional evidence as it may deem reasonable. 

 (e) No provision of this Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds 
or otherwise incur any financial liability in connection with the performance or exercise of any of 
its duties hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers hereunder, if it shall have 
reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such 
risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it. 

 (f) The Trustee shall not be responsible for any recital in this Indenture or on the Bonds 
(except with respect to the certificate of the Trustee endorsed on the Bonds) or for insuring any 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -109- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

property conveyed or collecting any insurance monies, or for the validity of the execution by the 
Issuer of this Indenture or of any supplements hereto, or instruments of further assurance, or for 
the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds, or for the investment of monies as herein permitted 
(except that no investment shall be made except in compliance with Section 6.02 and Section 6.03 
hereof), or for the recording or re-recording, filing or re-filing of this Indenture, or any supplement 
or amendment thereto, or of any Supplemental Indentures or instruments of further assurance, or 
for the sufficiency of the security for the Bonds issued hereunder or intended to be secured hereby, 
or for the value or title of the property herein conveyed or otherwise as to the maintenance of the 
security hereof.  Except as specifically provided in this Indenture, the Trustee shall not be bound 
to ascertain or inquire as to the performance or observance of any covenants, conditions, or 
agreements on the part of the Issuer, but the Trustee may require of the Issuer full information and 
advice as to the performance of such covenants.  The Trustee shall not be required to give any 
bond or surety in respect of the execution of the said trusts and powers.  Under no circumstances 
shall the Trustee in any of its capacities hereunder be liable in its individual capacity for the 
obligations evidenced by the Bonds or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by 
reason of the issuance of this Bond or in respect of any undertakings by the Trustee under this 
Indenture.  In accepting the trust hereby created, the Trustee acts solely as Trustee for the holders 
of the Bonds and not in its individual capacity, and all persons, including without limitation the 
holders of the Bonds and the Issuer, having any claim against the Trustee arising from this 
Indenture shall look only to the Funds and Accounts held by the Trustee hereunder for payment 
except as otherwise provided herein. 

 (g) To the extent permitted by law, the Issuer shall indemnify the Trustee for, and hold it 
harmless against, any loss, damage, claim, liability or expense incurred by it, arising out of or in 
connection with the acceptance or administration of this Indenture or the trusts hereunder or the 
performance of any of its duties hereunder, except to the extent that any such loss, damage, claim, 
liability or expense was due to Trustee’s own negligence or willful misconduct. 

 (h) The Trustee shall have no responsibility with respect to any information, statement, 
or recital in any official statement, offering memorandum or other disclosure material prepared or 
distributed with respect to the Bonds. 

 Section 9.16. Trustee’s Agents or Attorneys.  The Trustee may execute any of its trusts or 
powers under this Indenture or perform any of its duties hereunder either directly or by or through 
agents, attorneys, custodians or nominees appointed with due care, and shall not be responsible for 
any willful misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent, attorney, custodian or nominee so 
appointed. 

Section 9.17.  Notice of Lien Filings.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 
Indenture, the Trustee shall not be responsible for any initial filings of any financing statements or 
the information contained therein (including the exhibits thereto), the perfection of any such 
security interests, or the accuracy or sufficiency of any description of collateral in such initial 
filings or for filing any modifications or amendments to the initial filings required by any 
amendments to Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code, if applicable.  In addition, unless the 
Trustee shall have received Written Notice from the Issuer that any such initial filing or description 
of collateral was or has become defective, the Trustee shall be fully protected (i) in relying on such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -110- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

initial filing and descriptions in filing any financing or continuation statements or modifications 
thereto pursuant to this Section 9.17 and (ii) in filing any continuation statements in the same filing 
offices as the initial filings were made.  If applicable, the Trustee shall, upon the prior Written 
Direction of the Issuer, cause to be filed, in accordance with such instructions, a continuation 
statement with respect to each Uniform Commercial Code financing statement relating to the 
Bonds which was filed at the time of the issuance thereof, for which the Issuer has directed a 
continuation statement to be filed, in such manner and in such places as the initial filings were 
made, provided that a copy of the filed original financing statement is timely delivered with such 
Written Direction of the Issuer to the Trustee.  The Issuer shall be responsible for the reasonable 
costs incurred by the Trustee in the preparation and filing of all continuation statements hereunder, 
including payment of any filing fees, and shall give the Trustee any assistance it reasonably 
requests in order to enable the Trustee to file continuation statements for the lien established by 
this Indenture. 

ARTICLE X 

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES 

 Section 10.01. Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Bondholders.  The Issuer 
and the Trustee may from time to time, subject to the conditions and restrictions in this Indenture 
contained, enter into a Supplemental Indenture or Indentures, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, 
which shall thereafter form a part hereof, without the consent of the Bondholders for any one or 
more of the following purposes: 

 (a) To cure any ambiguity, supply any omission, or cure or correct any defect 
or inconsistent provision in this Indenture; 

 (b) To insert such provisions clarifying matters or questions arising under this 
Indenture as are necessary or desirable and are not contrary to or inconsistent with this 
Indenture as theretofore in effect; 

 (c) To make any other modification or amendment of this Indenture which the 
Trustee shall in its sole discretion determine will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Bondholders or the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty; and in making such a determination, 
the Trustee shall be entitled to rely conclusively upon an Opinion of Counsel and/or 
certificates of investment bankers or other financial professionals or consultants; 

 (d) To add to the covenants and agreements of the Issuer in this Indenture, other 
covenants and agreements to be observed by the Issuer which are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this Indenture as theretofore in effect; 

 (e) To add to the limitations and restrictions in this Indenture, other limitations 
and restrictions to be observed by the Issuer which are not contrary to or inconsistent with 
this Indenture as theretofore in effect; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -111- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (f) To authorize the issuance of Refunding Bonds; 

 (g) To authorize, in compliance with all applicable law, Bonds to be issued in 
the form of coupon Bonds registrable as to principal only and, in connection therewith, 
specify and determine the matters and things relative to the issuance of such coupon Bonds, 
including provisions relating to the timing and manner of provision of any notice required 
to be given hereunder to the Holders of such coupon Bonds, which are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this Indenture as theretofore in effect, or to amend, modify or rescind any 
such authorization, specification or determination at any time prior to the first 
authentication and delivery of such coupon Bonds; 

 (h) To provide for the execution of a Commodity Swap in accordance with the 
provisions hereof; 

 (i) To provide for a Liquidity Facility and Liquidity Facility Provider in 
accordance with the provisions hereof; 

 (j) To confirm, as further assurance, any security interest, pledge or assignment 
under, and the subjection to any security interest, pledge or assignment created or to be 
created by, this Indenture of the Revenues or of any other moneys, securities or funds; 

 (k) To add to the Events of Default in this Indenture additional Events of 
Default; 

 (l) To add to this Indenture any provisions relating to the application of interest 
earnings on any Fund or Account under this Indenture required by law to preserve the 
exclusion of interest on Bonds issued from gross income for federal income tax purposes; 

 (m) To evidence the appointment of a successor Trustee; or 

 (n) If the Bonds affected by such change are rated by a Rating Agency, to make 
any change upon receipt of a Rating Confirmation with respect to the Bonds so affected. 

Each Supplemental Indenture authorized by this Section shall become effective as of the 
date of its execution and delivery by the Issuer and the Trustee or such later date as shall be 
specified in such Supplemental Indenture. 

A Supplemental Indenture will be deemed to not materially adversely affect the Holders of 
any Bonds that are subject to mandatory tender on or before the effective date of the Supplemental 
Indenture. 

 Section 10.02. Supplemental Indentures Effective With Consent of Bondholders.  At any 
time or from time to time, subject to Section 10.03(e) and Section 11.05(b), a Supplemental 
Indenture may be entered into by the Issuer and the Trustee subject to notice to and consent by 
Bondholders in accordance with and subject to the provisions of Article XI, which Supplemental 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -112- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Indenture, upon compliance with the provisions of said Article XI, shall become fully effective in 
accordance with its terms as provided in said Article XI. 

 Section 10.03. General Provisions.  (a)  This Indenture shall not be modified or amended in 
any respect except as provided in and in accordance with and subject to the provisions of this 
Article X and Article XI.  Nothing contained in this Article X or Article XI shall affect or limit the 
right or obligation of the Issuer to adopt, make, do, execute, acknowledge or deliver any resolution, 
act or other instrument pursuant to the provisions of Section 7.04 or the right or obligation of the 
Issuer to execute and deliver to any Fiduciary any instrument which elsewhere in this Indenture it 
is provided shall be delivered to said Fiduciary. 

 (b) Any Supplemental Indenture referred to and permitted or authorized by Section 10.01 
may be entered into between the Issuer and the Trustee without the consent of any of the 
Bondholders, but shall become effective only on the conditions, to the extent and at the time 
provided in said Section.  A copy of every Supplemental Indenture shall be accompanied by an 
Opinion of Counsel stating that such Supplemental Indenture is authorized or permitted by this 
Indenture, and is valid and binding upon the Issuer; provided, that such Opinion of Counsel may 
take customary exceptions, including as to the effect of, or for restrictions or limitations imposed 
by or resulting from, bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, debt adjustment, moratorium, 
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance or other similar laws relating to or affecting 
creditors’ rights generally, the application of equitable principles, the exercise of judicial 
discretion, limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State, and the valid exercise 
of the sovereign police powers of the State and of the constitutional power of the United States of 
America and may state that no opinion is being rendered as to the availability of any particular 
remedy. 

 (c) The Trustee is hereby authorized to enter into any Supplemental Indenture referred 
to and permitted or authorized by Section 10.01 or Section 10.02 and to make all further 
agreements and stipulations which may be therein contained, and the Trustee, in taking such action, 
shall be fully protected in relying on an Opinion of Counsel that such Supplemental Indenture is 
authorized or permitted by the provisions of this Indenture. 

 (d) No Supplemental Indenture shall change or modify any of the rights or obligations of 
any Fiduciary without its written assent thereto; provided, however this section shall not affect the 
rights of the Holders or the Issuer to remove the Trustee as provided in Section 9.08 herein. 

 (e) Notwithstanding anything in this Article X to the contrary, no Supplemental 
Indenture (or other amendment to this Indenture) shall change or modify (i) the order of priority 
of deposits set forth in Section 5.05(a), (ii) the priority of the application of funds following an 
Event of Default as set forth in Section 8.03, (iii) the definition of Operating Expenses, (iv) any of 
the rights or interests of the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty 
(if any) or the Energy Supplier, as purchaser under the Receivables Purchase Provisions, granted 
herein or in the Commodity Swap, the Interest Rate Swap or the Receivables Purchase Provisions, 
as the case may be, or (v) the provisions of Section 5.04(b) regarding the sale by the Trustee of 
Put Receivables (A) in each case unless the prior written consent of the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty has been obtained, and the Commodity Swap Counterparty shall have full right to 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -113- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

enforce this provision, and (B) in the case of clause (iv) of this Section 10.03(e), unless the prior 
written consent of the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty and/or the Energy Supplier, as applicable, 
has been obtained. 

ARTICLE XI 

AMENDMENTS 

 Section 11.01. Mailing.  Any provision in this Article XI for the mailing of a notice or other 
paper to Bondholders shall be fully complied with if it is mailed postage prepaid only (a) to each 
registered owner of Bonds then Outstanding at its address, if any, appearing upon the registry 
books of the Issuer, and (b) to the Trustee. 

 Section 11.02. Powers of Amendment.  Any modification or amendment of this Indenture 
and of the rights and obligations of the Issuer and of the Holders of the Bonds thereunder may be 
made by a Supplemental Indenture, subject to Section 10.03(e), with the written consent given as 
provided in Section 11.03(a) of the Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of 
Outstanding Bonds, and (b) in case the modification or amendment changes the terms of any 
Sinking Fund Installment, of the Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of 
Outstanding Bonds of the particular maturity entitled to such Sinking Fund Installment; provided, 
however, that if such modification or amendment will, by its terms, not take effect so long as any 
Bonds of any specified like maturity remain Outstanding (or have become subject to mandatory 
purchase) the consent of the Holders of such Bonds shall not be required and such Bonds shall not 
be deemed to be Outstanding for the purpose of any calculation of Outstanding Bonds under this 
Section; and provided further, however, that if such modification or amendment would adversely 
affect the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, such modification or amendment shall be subject to 
the prior written consent of the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty.  No such modification or 
amendment shall permit a change in the terms of redemption or maturity of the principal of any 
Outstanding Bond or of any installment of interest thereon or a reduction in the principal amount 
or the Redemption Price thereof or in the rate of interest thereon without the consent of the Holder 
of such Bond, or shall reduce the percentages or otherwise affect the classes of Bonds the consent 
of the Holders of which is required to effect any such modification or amendment, or shall change 
or modify any of the rights or obligations of any Fiduciary without its written assent thereto.  For 
the purposes of this Section, the Bonds shall be deemed to be affected by a modification or 
amendment of this Indenture if the same adversely affects or diminishes the rights of the Holders 
of Bonds in any material respect.  The Trustee may in its discretion determine whether or not in 
accordance with the foregoing powers of amendment Bonds would be materially affected by any 
modification or amendment of this Indenture and any such determination shall be binding and 
conclusive on the Issuer and all Holders of Bonds.  For purposes of this Section, the Holders of 
any Bonds may include the initial Holders thereof, regardless of whether such Bonds are being 
held for resale. 

 Section 11.03. Consent of Bondholders.  The Issuer and the Trustee may at any time enter 
into a Supplemental Indenture making a modification or amendment permitted by the provisions 
of Section 11.02 to take effect when and as provided in this Section 11.03.  A copy of such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -114- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Supplemental Indenture (or brief summary thereof or reference thereto in form approved by the 
Trustee), together with a request to Bondholders for their consent thereto in form satisfactory to 
the Trustee, shall be mailed by the Issuer to Bondholders (but failure to mail such copy and request 
shall not affect the validity of the Supplemental Indenture when consented to as in this 
Section 11.03 provided).  Such Supplemental Indenture shall not be effective unless and until there 
shall have been filed with the Trustee (a) the written consents of Holders of the percentages of 
Outstanding Bonds specified in Section 11.02, subject to Section 11.05(b), (b) the written consent 
of the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty if required by Section 11.02, and (c) an Opinion of Counsel 
stating that such Supplemental Indenture has been duly and lawfully executed by the Issuer in 
accordance with the provisions of this Indenture, is authorized or permitted by this Indenture, and 
is valid and binding upon the Issuer; provided, that such Opinion(s) of Counsel may take 
customary exceptions, including as to the effect of, or for restrictions or limitations imposed by or 
resulting from, bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, debt adjustment, moratorium, 
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance or other similar laws relating to or affecting 
creditors’ rights generally, the application of equitable principles, the exercise of judicial 
discretion, limitations on legal remedies against public entities in the State, and the valid exercise 
of the sovereign police powers of the State and of the constitutional power of the United States of 
America and may state that no opinion is being rendered as to the availability of any particular 
remedy.  For purposes of clause (a) of the preceding sentence, the written consent of the 
Bondholder shall be deemed to have been received if the amendment is expressly referred to in the 
Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bonds and in the text of such Bonds and such Bonds 
recite that such Bondholder shall be deemed to have consented to such amendments by accepting 
such Bonds.  Otherwise, each such consent shall be effective only if accompanied by proof of the 
holding, at the date of such consent, of the Bonds with respect to which such consent is given, 
which proof shall be such as is permitted by Section 12.02.  A certificate or certificates executed 
by the Trustee and filed with the Trustee and the Issuer stating that it has examined such proof and 
that such proof is sufficient in accordance with Section 12.02 shall be conclusive that the consents 
have been given by the Holders of the Bonds described in such certificate or certificates of the 
Trustee.  Any such consent shall be irrevocable and shall be binding upon the Holder of the Bonds 
giving such consent and, anything in Section 12.02 to the contrary notwithstanding, upon any 
subsequent Holder of such Bonds and of any Bonds issued in exchange therefor (whether or not 
such subsequent Holder thereof has notice of such consent).  At any time after the Holders of the 
required percentages of Bonds shall have filed their consents to the Supplemental Indenture (or 
have deemed to have consented to such Supplemental Indenture), the Trustee shall make and file 
with the Trustee and the Issuer a written statement that the Holders of such required percentages 
of Bonds have consented to, such Supplemental Indenture.  Such written statements shall be 
conclusive that such consents have been received.  At any time thereafter, notice stating in 
substance that the Supplemental Indenture (which may be referred to as a Supplemental Indenture 
entered into by the Issuer and the Trustee on a stated date, a copy of which is on file with the 
Trustee) has been consented to by the Holders of the required percentages of Bonds and will be 
effective as provided in this Section 11.03, may be given to Bondholders by the Trustee by mailing 
such notice to Bondholders (but failure to mail such notice shall not prevent such Supplemental 
Indenture from becoming effective and binding as in this Section 11.03 provided).  A record, 
consisting of the certificates or statements required or permitted by this Section 11.03 to be made 
by the Trustee, shall be proof of the matters therein stated. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -115- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 Section 11.04. Notifications by Unanimous Consent.  The terms and provisions of this 
Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Issuer and of the Holders of the Bonds thereunder 
may be modified or amended in any respect upon the execution of a Supplemental Indenture by 
the Trustee and the Issuer, the consent of the Holders of all of the Bonds then Outstanding (such 
consent to be given as provided in Section 11.03), and the consent of the Interest Rate Swap 
Counterparty if required by Section 11.02; provided, however, that no such modification or 
amendment shall change or modify any of the rights or obligations of any Fiduciary or any of the 
provisions referenced in Section 10.03(e) without the filing with the Trustee of the written assent 
thereto of such Fiduciary or the Commodity Swap Counterparty, respectively, in addition to the 
consent of the Bondholders. 

 Section 11.05. Exclusion of Bonds.  (a)  Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the 
Issuer shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose of consent or other action or any calculation 
of Outstanding Bonds provided for in this Article XI, and the Issuer shall not be entitled with 
respect to such Bonds to give any consent or take any other action provided for in this Article XI.  
At the time of any consent or other action taken under this Article XI, the Issuer shall furnish the 
Trustee a certificate of an Authorized Officer, upon which the Trustee may rely, describing all 
Bonds so to be excluded. 

 (b) Bonds for which a Bondholder has submitted a notice of abstention in response to a 
request for consent received pursuant to Section 11.03 shall not be deemed Outstanding for the 
purpose of consent or other action or any calculation of Outstanding Bonds provided for in this 
Article XI with respect to any Supplemental Indenture to be entered into by the Issuer and the 
Trustee; provided, that, such notice of abstention shall not apply with respect to any proposed 
amendments of Section 8.01. 

 Section 11.06. Notation on Bonds.  Bonds authenticated and delivered after the effective date 
of any action taken as provided in Article X or this Article XI may, and, if the Trustee so 
determines, shall, bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form approved by the Issuer and 
the Trustee as to such action, and in that case upon demand of the Holder of any Bond Outstanding 
at such effective date and presentation of its Bond for the purpose at the principal corporate trust 
office of the Trustee or upon any transfer or exchange of any Bond Outstanding at such effective 
date, suitable notation shall be made on such Bond or upon any Bond issued upon any such transfer 
or exchange by the Trustee as to any such action.  If the Issuer or the Trustee shall so determine, 
new Bonds so modified as in the opinion of the Trustee and the Issuer to conform to such action 
shall be prepared, authenticated and delivered, and upon demand of the Holder of any Bond then 
Outstanding shall be exchanged, without cost to such Bondholder, for Bonds of the same maturity 
then Outstanding, upon surrender of such Bonds. 

ARTICLE XII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 Section 12.01. Defeasance.  (a)  If the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall 
otherwise be paid, to the Holders of all Bonds the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -116- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

interest due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the manner stipulated in the Bonds and 
in this Indenture and shall pay or cause to be paid all amounts due or to become due to the Interest 
Rate Swap Counterparty under the Interest Rate Swap, then the pledge of all covenants, 
agreements and other obligations of the Issuer to the Bondholders, shall thereupon cease, terminate 
and be discharged and satisfied except for remaining rights of registration of transfer and exchange 
of Bonds; provided, however, that this Indenture shall not be discharged until (i) the Issuer shall 
have paid and satisfied all claims, charges and expenses that constitute Operating Expenses 
hereunder, (ii) the Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that all 
conditions precedent to the satisfaction and discharge of this Indenture have been fulfilled and 
(iii) receipt by the Trustee of a Rating Confirmation.  In such event, the Trustee shall cause an 
accounting for such period or periods as shall be requested by the Issuer to be prepared and filed 
with the Issuer and, upon the request of the Issuer, shall execute and deliver to the Issuer all such 
instruments as may be desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the Fiduciaries 
shall pay over or deliver to the Issuer all moneys or securities held by them pursuant to this 
Indenture which are not required for the payment of principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, 
on Bonds not theretofore surrendered for such payment or redemption.  If the Issuer shall pay or 
cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid, to the Holders of any Outstanding Bonds the 
principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due thereon, at the 
times and in the manner stipulated therein and in this Indenture, such Bonds shall cease to be 
entitled to any lien, benefit or security under this Indenture, and all covenants, agreements and 
obligations of the Issuer to the Holders of such Bonds shall thereupon cease, terminate and be 
discharged and satisfied except for remaining rights of registration of transfer and exchange of 
Bonds. 

 (b) Bonds or interest installments for the payment or redemption of which moneys shall 
have been set aside and shall be held in trust by the Paying Agents (through deposit by the Issuer 
of funds for such payment or redemption or otherwise) at the maturity or redemption date thereof 
shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in 
subsection (a).  In addition, any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity or redemption date 
thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in 
subsection (a) upon compliance with the provisions of subsection (c). 

 (c) Subject to the provisions of subsection (d) of this Section, any Outstanding Bonds 
shall prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the 
meaning and with the effect expressed in subsection (a) of this Section if (i) in case any of said 
Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the Issuer shall have given to the 
Trustee irrevocable written instructions accepted in writing by the Trustee to mail as provided in 
Article IV notice of redemption of such Bonds (other than Bonds which have been purchased by 
the Trustee at the direction of the Issuer or purchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer and 
delivered to the Trustee as hereinafter provided prior to the mailing of such notice of redemption) 
on said date, (ii) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either moneys (including moneys 
withdrawn and deposited pursuant to Section 5.07(g)) in an amount which shall be sufficient, or 
Defeasance Securities (including any Defeasance Securities issued or held in book entry form on 
the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States) the principal of and the interest 
on which when due will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, deposited with 
the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient, to pay when due the principal or Redemption 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -117- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become due on said Bonds (with such interest being 
calculated at the Maximum Rate with respect to any Bonds with interest rates that are not fixed to 
their redemption or maturity date, as applicable) on or prior to the redemption date or maturity 
date thereof, as the case may be, and (iii) in the event said Bonds are not by their terms subject to 
redemption within the next succeeding 60 days, the Issuer shall have given the Trustee in form 
satisfactory to it irrevocable written instructions to mail, as soon as practicable, a notice to the 
Holders of such Bonds at their last addresses appearing upon the registry books at the close of 
business on the last Business Day of the month preceding the month for which notice is mailed 
that the deposit required by (ii) above has been made with the Trustee and that said Bonds are 
deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Section 12.01 and stating such maturity or 
redemption date upon which moneys are expected, subject to the provisions of subsection (d) of 
this Section 12.01, to be available for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if 
applicable, on said Bonds (other than Bonds which have been purchased by the Trustee at the 
direction of the Issuer or purchased or otherwise acquired by the Issuer and delivered to the Trustee 
as hereinafter provided prior to the mailing of the notice of redemption referred to in clause (i)).  
Any notice of redemption mailed pursuant to the preceding sentence with respect to Bonds which 
constitute less than all of the Outstanding Bonds of any maturity shall specify the letter and number 
or other distinguishing mark of each such Bond.  The Trustee shall, as and to the extent necessary, 
apply moneys held by it pursuant to this Section 12.01 to the retirement of said Bonds in amounts 
equal to the unsatisfied balances (determined as provided in Section 5.10(c)) of any Sinking Fund 
Installments with respect to such Bonds, all in the manner provided in this Indenture.  The Trustee 
shall, if so directed by the Issuer (A) prior to the maturity date of Bonds deemed to have been paid 
in accordance with this Section 12.01 which are not to be redeemed prior to their maturity date or 
(B) prior to the mailing of the notice of redemption referred to in clause (i) above with respect to 
any Bonds deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Section 12.01 which are to be 
redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, apply moneys deposited with the Trustee in respect 
of such Bonds and redeem or sell Defeasance Securities so deposited with the Trustee and apply 
the proceeds thereof to the purchase of such Bonds and, the Trustee shall immediately thereafter 
cancel all such Bonds so purchased; provided, however, that the moneys and Defeasance Securities 
remaining on deposit with the Trustee after the purchase and cancellation of such Bonds (or the 
deemed cancellation thereof) shall be sufficient to pay when due the Principal Installment or 
Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due on all Bonds (calculated as 
described above), in respect of which such moneys and Defeasance Securities are being held by 
the Trustee on or prior to the redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be.  If, at 
any time (1) prior to the maturity date of Bonds deemed to have been paid in accordance with this 
Section 12.01 which are not to be redeemed prior to their maturity date or (2) prior to the mailing 
of the notice of redemption referred to in clause (i) with respect to any Bonds deemed to have been 
paid in accordance with this Section 12.01 which are to be redeemed on any date prior to their 
maturity, the Issuer shall purchase or otherwise acquire any such Bonds and deliver such Bonds to 
the Trustee prior to their maturity date or redemption date, as the case may be, the Trustee shall 
immediately cancel all such Bonds so delivered; such delivery of Bonds to the Trustee shall be 
accompanied by directions from the Issuer to the Trustee as to the manner in which such Bonds 
are to be applied against the obligation of the Trustee to pay or redeem Bonds deemed paid in 
accordance with this Section 12.01.  The directions given by the Issuer to the Trustee referred to 
in the preceding sentences shall also specify the portion, if any, of such Bonds so purchased or 
delivered and cancelled or deemed cancelled to be applied against the obligation of the Trustee to 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -118- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

pay Bonds deemed paid in accordance with this Section 12.01 upon their maturity date or dates 
and the portion, if any, of such Bonds so purchased or delivered and cancelled or deemed cancelled 
to be applied against the obligation of the Trustee to redeem Bonds deemed paid in accordance 
with this Section 12.01 on any date or dates prior to their maturity.  In the event that on any date 
as a result of any purchases, acquisitions and cancellations or deemed cancellations of Bonds as 
provided in this Section 12.01 the total amount of moneys and Defeasance Securities remaining 
on deposit with the Trustee under this Section 12.01 is in excess of the total amount which would 
have been required to be deposited with the Trustee on such date in respect of the remaining Bonds 
in order to satisfy clause (ii) of this subsection (c) of Section 12.01, the Trustee shall, if requested 
by the Issuer, pay the amount of such excess to the Issuer free and clear of any trust, lien, security 
interest, pledge or assignment securing said Bonds or otherwise existing under this Indenture.  
Except as otherwise provided in subsections (c) and (d) of this Section 12.01, neither Defeasance 
Securities nor moneys deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this Section nor principal or interest 
payments on any such Defeasance Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any purpose other 
than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, 
and interest on said Bonds; provided that any cash received from such principal or interest 
payments on such Defeasance Securities deposited with the Trustee, (x) to the extent such cash 
will not be required at any time for such purpose, shall be paid over to the Issuer as received by 
the Trustee, free and clear of any trust, lien or pledge securing said Bonds or otherwise existing 
under this Indenture, and (y) to the extent such cash will be required for such purpose at a later 
date, shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in Qualified Investments maturing at times and 
in amounts sufficient to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest 
to become due on said Bonds on or prior to such redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the 
case may be, and interest earned from such reinvestments shall be paid over to the Issuer, as 
received by the Trustee, free and clear of any trust, lien, security interest, pledge or assignment 
securing said Bonds or otherwise existing under this Indenture.  Notwithstanding anything 
contained herein to the contrary, the Issuer shall pay and indemnify the Trustee against any tax, 
fee or other charge imposed on or assessed against Defeasance Securities or the principal and 
interest received on Defeasance Securities. 

 (d) Anything in this Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, any moneys held by a 
Fiduciary in trust for the payment and discharge of any of the Bonds which remain unclaimed for 
six years (or, if shorter, one Business Day before such moneys would escheat to the State under 
then applicable State law) after the date when such Bonds have become due and payable, either at 
their stated maturity dates or by call for earlier redemption, if such moneys were held by the 
Fiduciary at such date, or for six years after the date of deposit of such moneys if deposited with 
the Fiduciary after the said date when such Bonds became due and payable, shall, at the Written 
Request of the Issuer, be repaid by the Fiduciary to the Issuer, as its absolute property and free 
from trust, and the Fiduciary shall thereupon be released and discharged with respect thereto and 
the Bondholders shall look only to the Issuer for the payment of such Bonds; provided, however, 
that before being required to make any such payment to the Issuer the Fiduciary shall, at the 
expense of the Issuer, cause to be published at least twice, at an interval of not less than seven days 
between publications, in the Authorized Newspaper, a notice that said moneys remain unclaimed 
and that, after a date named in said notice, which date shall be not less than 30 days after the date 
of the first publication of such notice, the balance of such moneys then unclaimed will be returned 
to the Issuer. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -119- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 Section 12.02. Evidence of Signatures of Bondholders and Ownership of Bonds.  (a) Any 
request, consent, revocation of consent or other instrument which this Indenture may require or 
permit to be signed and executed by the Bondholders may be in one or more instruments of similar 
tenor, and, except as otherwise provided in Section 11.03, shall be signed or executed by such 
Bondholders in person or by their attorneys appointed in writing.  Proof of (1) the execution of 
any such instrument, or of an instrument appointing any such attorney, or (2) the holding by any 
Person of the Bonds shall be sufficient for any purpose of this Indenture (except as otherwise 
therein expressly provided) if made in the following manner, or in any other manner satisfactory 
to the Trustee, which may nevertheless in its discretion require further or other proof in cases 
where it deems the same desirable: 

 (i) The fact and date of the execution by any Bondholder or its attorney of such 
instruments may be proved by a guarantee of the signature thereon by a bank or trust 
company or by the certificate of any notary public or other officer authorized to take 
acknowledgments of deeds, that the Person signing such request or other instrument 
acknowledged to him the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of such 
execution, duly sworn to before such notary public or other officer.  Where such execution 
is by an officer of a corporation or association or a member of a partnership, on behalf of 
such corporation, association or partnership, such signature, guarantee, certificate or 
affidavit shall also constitute sufficient proof of its authority. 

 (ii) The amount of Bonds transferable by delivery held by any Person executing 
any instrument as a Bondholder, the date of holding such Bonds, and the numbers and other 
identification thereof, may be proved by a certificate, which need not be acknowledged or 
verified, in form satisfactory to the Trustee, executed by the Trustee or by a member of a 
financial firm or by an officer of a bank, trust company, insurance company, or financial 
corporation or other depository wherever situated, showing at the date therein mentioned 
that such Person exhibited to such member or officer or had on deposit with such depository 
the Bonds described in such certificate.  Such certificate may be given by a member of a 
financial firm or by an officer of any bank, trust company, insurance company or financial 
corporation or depository with respect to Bonds owned by it, if acceptable to the Trustee.  
In addition to the foregoing provisions, the Trustee may from time to time make such 
reasonable regulations as it may deem advisable permitting other proof of holding of Bonds 
transferable by delivery. 

 (b) The ownership of Bonds registered other than to bearer and the amount, numbers and 
other identification, and date of holding the same shall be proved by the registry books. 

 (c) Any request or consent by the owner of any Bond shall bind all future owners of such 
Bond in respect of anything done or suffered to be done by the Issuer or any Fiduciary in 
accordance therewith. 

 Section 12.03. Moneys Held for Particular Bonds.  The amounts held by any Fiduciary for 
the payment of the interest, principal or Redemption Price due on any date with respect to 
particular Bonds shall, on and after such date and pending such payment, be set aside on its books 
and held in trust by it for the Holders of the Bonds entitled thereto. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -120- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 Section 12.04. Preservation and Inspection of Documents.  All documents received by any 
Fiduciary under the provisions of this Indenture shall be retained in its possession and shall at all 
times during regular business hours (upon reasonable prior written notice) be subject to the 
inspection of the Issuer, any other Fiduciary, and any Bondholder and their agents and their 
representatives, any of whom may make copies thereof, subject to such reasonable regulations as 
such Fiduciary may from time to time determine to be advisable or required by law. 

 Section 12.05. Parties Interested Herein.  Nothing in this Indenture expressed or implied, 
except for the rights and interests of the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the Interest Rate Swap 
Counterparty (if any) and the Energy Supplier, as purchaser under the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, as described in Section 10.03(e), and the pledge of the Commodity Swap Payment 
Fund granted to the Commodity Swap Counterparty, is intended or shall be construed to confer 
upon, or to give to, any Person or corporation, other than the Issuer, the Fiduciaries, the Holders 
of the Bonds, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Indenture or any covenant, 
condition or stipulation thereof; and, except as provided in Section 10.03(e), all the covenants, 
stipulations, promises and agreements in this Indenture contained by and on behalf of the Issuer 
shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Issuer, the Fiduciaries, the Holders of the Bonds 
and the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty. 

 Section 12.06. No Recourse on the Bonds; Non-Liability of the Issuer.  No recourse shall be 
had for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds or for any claim based thereon or 
on this Indenture against any source other than the Trust Estate as provided in this Indenture, 
including against any member of the board or officer of the Issuer, the Project Participants or any 
Person executing the Bonds.  The Issuer shall not be obligated to pay the principal or Redemption 
Price or Purchase Price of or interest on the Bonds, the Interest Rate Swap Payments or the 
Commodity Swap Payments, except from the Trust Estate as provided in this Indenture.  Neither 
the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State or any political subdivision thereof, including 
the Issuer, is pledged to the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the 
Bonds, the Interest Rate Swap Payments or Commodity Swap Payments.  The Issuer shall not be 
liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions, of any conceivable kind on any 
conceivable theory, under or by reason of or in connection with the Bonds, this Indenture, the 
Interest Rate Swap or the Commodity Swap except only to the extent of the Trust Estate as 
provided in this Indenture. 

 Section 12.07. Publication of Notice; Suspension of Publication.  (a)  Any publication to be 
made under the provisions of this Indenture in successive weeks or on successive dates may be 
made in each instance upon any Business Day of the week and need not be made in the same 
Authorized Newspaper for any or all of the successive publications but may be made in a different 
Authorized Newspaper. 

 Section 12.08. Publication of Notice; Suspension of Publication.  (a)  Any publication to be 
made under the provisions of this Indenture in successive weeks or on successive dates may be 
made in each instance upon any Business Day of the week and need not be made in the same 
Authorized Newspaper for any or all of the successive publications but may be made in a different 
Authorized Newspaper. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -121- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (b) If, because of the temporary or permanent suspension of the publication or general 
circulation of any Authorized Newspaper or for any other reason, it is impossible or impractical to 
publish any notice pursuant to this Indenture in the manner herein provided, then such publication 
in lieu thereof as shall be made by the Issuer with the written approval of the Trustee shall 
constitute a sufficient publication of such notice. 

 Section 12.09. Severability of Invalid Provisions.  If any one or more of the covenants or 
agreements provided in this Indenture on the part of the Issuer or any Fiduciary to be performed 
should be contrary to law, then such covenant or covenants or agreement or agreements shall be 
deemed severable from the remaining covenants and agreements, and shall in no way affect the 
validity of the other provisions of this Indenture. 

 Section 12.10. Holidays.  If the date for making any payment or the last date for performance 
of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided in this Indenture, shall not be a Business Day, 
such payment may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding Business 
Day with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this Indenture, and 
no interest shall accrue for the period after such nominal date. 

 Section 12.11. Notices.  (a) Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices, requests, 
demands and other communications required or permitted under this Indenture shall be deemed to 
have been duly given if delivered or mailed, first class, postage prepaid (or sent by Electronic 
Means, confirmed by mail, as aforesaid), as follows: 

If to the Issuer: 

 

California Community Choice Financing Authority 
1125 Tamalpais Avenue 
San Rafael, California 94901 
Attention:  Treasurer/Controller 
Telephone: (415) 464-6037 
Email:  SeriesB@CCCFA.org 

 With a copy to: 
 
East Bay Community Energy Authority 
1999 Harrison Street, Suite 800 
Oakland, California 94612 
Email: powernotices@ebce.org  
 

If to the Trustee, Paying 
Agent, the Bond Registrar, 
the Custodian or the 
Calculation Agent for the 
Index Rate Bonds: 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
4655 Salisbury Road, Suite 300 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
Telephone: (904) 645-1923 
Attention:  Richard Dillard 
Email:  Richard.Dillard@bnymellon.com 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -122- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

If to the Calculation Agent 
for Bonds bearing interest 
at a CPI Index Rate: 

Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC 
1585 Broadway 
New York, NY 10036 
Telephone: (212) 761-4000 
Attention:  agystruct@morganstanley.com 

 With a copy to: 

Keith Cackowsky 
Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 
1585 Broadway 
New York, NY 10036 
Telephone: (914) 225-1548 
Attention:  Keith.Cackowsky@morganstanley.com 

or to such other Person or addresses as the respective party hereafter designates in writing to the 
Issuer and the Trustee. 

(b) The Issuer may, by Written Direction to the Trustee, permit a Project Participant 
that is a Member to deliver to the Trustee on behalf of the Issuer any notices, requests, demands 
and other communications required or permitted to be delivered by the Issuer under this Indenture.  
Such Written Direction shall contain a certificate identifying the Authorized Officers of such 
Project Participant for purposes of delivery of notices under this Indenture.  The Trustee shall treat 
all such notices received from the Project Participant as if they were delivered by the Issuer, unless 
an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing under this Indenture, in which case any notices 
from such Project Participant shall be disregarded by the Trustee and of no force or effect.  The 
Issuer may at any time rescind and annul the Written Direction permitting such Project Participant 
to deliver notices hereunder on behalf of the Issuer by delivering a Written Direction to the Trustee 
stating that such permission has been rescinded and annulled. 

 Section 12.12. Notices to Rating Agencies.  The Issuer shall provide to each Rating Agency 
rating the Bonds at the time notice of any amendment to this Indenture, the Energy Purchase 
Agreement, any Commodity Swap, any Power Supply Contract, and Debt Service Fund 
Agreement or any other document relating to the Bonds or the Clean Energy Project. 

 Section 12.13. Counterparts.  This Indenture may be executed in multiple counterparts, each 
of which shall be regarded for all purposes as an original; and such counterparts shall constitute 
but one and the same instrument. 

 Section 12.14.  Waiver of Jury Trial.  EACH PARTY HEREBY KNOWINGLY, 
VOLUNTARILY, AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT 
PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY 
IN RESPECT OF ANY PROCEEDING INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY 
MATTER IN ANY WAY ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO OR CONNECTED WITH THIS 
INDENTURE OR ANY OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENT, THE TRANSACTIONS 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -123- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY, OR THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED 
HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER, AND AGREES THAT ANY SUCH PROCEEDING 
SHALL BE TRIED BEFORE A JUDGE SITTING WITHOUT A JURY. 

 Section 12.15. Electronic Signatures.  Each of the parties hereto agrees that the transaction 
consisting of this agreement may be conducted by electronic means.  Each party agrees, and 
acknowledges that it is such party’s intent, that if such party signs this agreement using an 
electronic signature, it is signing, adopting, and accepting this agreement and that signing this 
agreement using an electronic signature is the legal equivalent of having placed its handwritten 
signature on this agreement on paper.  Each party acknowledges that it is being provided with an 
electronic or paper copy of this agreement in a usable format. 

[Signature page follows] 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 -124- 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the California Community Choice Financing Authority has caused 
this Indenture to be signed in its own name and on its behalf by an Authorized Officer, and as 
evidence of its acceptance of the trusts hereby created, The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., the duly authorized Trustee, has caused this Indenture to be signed in its name 
and on its behalf by one of its officers duly authorized and its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, 
attested by another of its officers duly authorized, all as of the date first above written. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE 
FINANCING AUTHORITY 

By: ____________________________________ 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: __________________________________ 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

By:   ________________________________ 
Name:   _____________________________ 
Title:   ______________________________ 
 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee 

By: ____________________________________ 
Name: _________________________________ 
Title: __________________________________ 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
 Attesting Party 
 

[Signature page to Trust Indenture] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF BONDS 

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 
Company, a New York corporation (“DTC”), to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, 
exchange, or payment, and any certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in 
such other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made 
to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), 
ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY 
OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., 
has an interest herein. 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NO.         $                   

 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT REVENUE BOND 
SERIES 2022[A-1 (TERM RATE)][A-2 ([SIFMA][SOFR] INDEX RATE)] 

MATURITY 
DATE DATED DATE CUSIP 

[INTEREST 
RATE][APPLICABLE 
SPREAD/FACTOR] 

INTEREST 
RATE 
MODE 

 ________, 2022    

REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:                          DOLLARS 

California Community Choice Financing Authority (the “Issuer”), a joint powers 
authority, organized and existing pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Title 1, Division 7, 
Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”), and the Joint Powers 
Agreement, dated June 25, 2021, as amended from time to time, for value received, hereby 
promises to pay in lawful money of the United States of America, to the Registered Owner 
identified above, or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date stated above, unless this Bond shall 
have been called for redemption (in whole or in part) and payment of the redemption price shall 
have been duly made or provided for, upon presentation and surrender hereof, the principal amount 
identified above, and to pay, in the manner and from the source hereinafter provided, to the 
Registered Owner hereof interest on the balance of said principal amount from time to time 
remaining unpaid at the rate determined as provided in the Indenture identified below, until 
payment in full of such principal amount.  The initial Interest Rate Period, as defined in the 
Indenture, for this Bond is set out in the Indenture.  The Interest Rate Period for this Bond may be 
changed from time to time as provided in the Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-2 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

The following paragraph shall be inserted in the Series 2022A-1 Bonds: 

This Bond bears interest from the Dated Date specified above, or 
from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, at the rate per annum set forth above, 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 thirty-day 
months, payable on [___________] and [___________] of each 
year, commencing [___________], 2022. 

The following paragraph shall be inserted in the [Series 2022A-2] Bonds, and the phrase 
“SIFMA Index Rate” shall be inserted under the caption “Interest Rate” immediately below the 
title of such Bond: 

This Bond bears interest from the Dated Date specified above, or 
from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, at a SIFMA Index Rate equal to the 
sum of (a) the SIFMA Index as of the day of determination plus 
(b) the Applicable Spread of [___________] basis points ([____]%) 
(but not more than the Maximum Rate of 12% per annum), 
computed on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year, as applicable, for 
the actual number of days elapsed and payable on the first Business 
Day of each Month, commencing on the first Business Day of 
20[___]. 

The following paragraph shall be inserted for any [SOFR Index Rate] Bonds, and the 
phrase “SOFR Index Rate” shall be inserted under the caption “Interest Rate” immediately below 
the title of such Bond: 

This Bond bears interest from the Date Date specified above, or 
from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, at a SOFR Index Rate equal to the 
sum of (a) the product of the Applicable Factor of [_____] and 
SOFR as of the day of determination, plus (b) the Applicable Spread 
of [_____] basis points ([____]%) (but not more than the Maximum 
Rate of 12% per annum), computed on the basis of a 365- or 366-day 
year, as applicable, for the actual number of days elapsed and 
payable on the first Business Day of each Month, commencing on 
the first Business Day of 20[___]. 

The following paragraph shall be inserted for any CPI Index Rate Bonds, and the phrase 
“CPI Index Rate” shall be inserted under the caption “Interest Rate” immediately below the title 
of such Bond: 

This Bond bears interest from the Dated Date specified above, or 
from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has 
been paid or duly provided for, at a CPI Index Rate determined 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-3 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

accordance with Section 2.14 of the Indenture (but not more than 
the Maximum Rate of 12% per annum), computed on the basis of a 
360-day year of twelve 30-day calendar months and payable on the 
first Business Day of each Month, commencing on the first Business 
Day of 20[___]. 

The Issuer is obligated to pay the principal, Redemption Price of, and interest on this Bond 
solely from the Trust Estate as defined in and in accordance with the provisions of the Trust 
Indenture, dated as of [__________] 1, 2022, between the Issuer and The Bank of New York 
Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (said trustee and any successor thereto under the Indenture 
being herein referred to as the “Trustee”), as the same may be amended and supplemented from 
time to time (the “Indenture”). 

This Bond is one of the Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds of the Issuer initially issued 
in [two] separate series (collectively, the “Bonds”) under and by virtue of the Act and under and 
pursuant to the Indenture for the purpose of providing funds to pay the Cost of Acquisition of the 
Issuer’s Clean Energy Project.  The aggregate principal amount of Bonds issued pursuant to the 
Indenture is limited to $[____________].  This Bond is one of the Series of Bonds designated as 
“Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022[B-1 (Term Rate)][B-2 ([SIFMA][SOFR] 
Index Rate)],” dated as of the Dated Date identified above.  Except as otherwise provided herein 
and unless the context clearly indicates otherwise, words and phrases used herein shall have the 
same meanings as such words and phrases in the Indenture. 

All Bonds are and will be equally and ratably secured by the pledge and covenants made 
in the Indenture, except as otherwise expressly provided or permitted in or pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

THIS BOND IS A LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE PRINCIPAL 
AND REDEMPTION PRICE OF, AND INTEREST ON, THIS BOND ARE PAYABLE SOLELY 
FROM THE TRUST ESTATE.  THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY 
OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, 
OTHER THAN THE ISSUER, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE FUNDS 
PROVIDED THEREFOR UNDER THE INDENTURE.  THE ISSUER SHALL NOT BE 
OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OR THE REDEMPTION PRICE OF OR INTEREST 
ON THE BONDS EXCEPT FROM THE FUNDS PROVIDED THEREFOR UNDER THE 
INDENTURE AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF 
THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS 
PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR REDEMPTION PRICE OF OR 
INTEREST ON THE BONDS.  THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS SHALL NOT DIRECTLY OR 
INDIRECTLY OR CONTINGENTLY OBLIGATE THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF TO LEVY OR TO PLEDGE ANY FORM OF 
TAXATION OR TO MAKE ANY APPROPRIATION FOR THEIR PAYMENT.  THE ISSUER 
HAS NO TAXING POWER. 

Copies of the Indenture are on file at the office of the office of Trustee in Jacksonville, 
Florida, and reference to the Indenture and the Act is made for a description of the pledge and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-4 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

covenants securing the Bonds, the nature, manner and extent of enforcement of such pledge and 
covenants, the terms and conditions upon which the Bonds are issued, and a statement of the rights, 
duties, immunities and obligations of the Issuer and of the Trustee.  Such pledge and other 
obligations of the Issuer under the Indenture may be discharged at or prior to the maturity or 
redemption of the Bonds upon the making of provision for the payment thereof on the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Indenture. 

The Issuer has established a book-entry system of registration for the Bonds.  Except as 
specifically provided otherwise in the Indenture, the Securities Depository will be the registered 
owner of this Bond.  By acceptance of a confirmation of purchase, delivery or transfer, a Beneficial 
Owner shall be deemed to have agreed to this arrangement.  The Securities Depository, as 
registered owner of this Bond, shall be treated as the Owner of it for all purposes. 

The Issuer will pay the principal or Redemption Price of and interest on this Bond solely 
from the Trust Estate in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture.  Interest will accrue on 
the unpaid portion of the principal of this Bond from the last Interest Payment Date for which 
interest has been paid or duly provided for or if no interest has been paid or duly provided for, 
from the Dated Date of this Bond, until the entire principal amount of this Bond is paid or duly 
provided for, and such interest shall be paid in the manner and on the Interest Payment Dates 
specified in the Indenture. 

This Bond may be transferred or exchanged as provided in the Indenture. 

To the extent and in the respects permitted by the Indenture, the Indenture may be modified 
or amended in the manner and subject to the conditions and exceptions prescribed in the Indenture.  
Certain such modifications and amendments may be made without the consent of the Owners of 
the Bonds to the extent provided in the Indenture. 

The Owner or Beneficial Owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions 
of the Indenture or to institute action to enforce the pledge or covenants made therein or to take 
any action with respect to an Event of Default under the Indenture or to institute, appear in, or 
defend any suit or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Indenture. 

The Bonds are subject to tender or redemption prior to maturity upon the circumstances, at 
the times, in the amounts, upon payment of the amounts, with the notice, upon the other terms and 
provisions and with the effect set forth in the Indenture. 

No director, officer, agent or employee of the Issuer shall be individually or personally 
liable for the payment of any principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the Bonds or any sum 
hereunder or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and 
delivery of the Indenture. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, acts and things required by the 
Constitution or statutes of the State of California or by the Act or the Indenture to exist, to have 
happened or to have been performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Bond exist, have 
happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner, and that the issue of Bonds, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-5 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

together with all other indebtedness of the Issuer, is within every debt and other limit prescribed 
by said Constitution and statutes. 

This Bond shall not be valid until the Certificate of Authentication hereon shall have been 
signed by the Trustee. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the California Community Choice Financing Authority has 
caused this Bond to be signed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature of 
its Chair, and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary, all as of the Dated Date 
specified above. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE 
FINANCING AUTHORITY 

By: ____________________________________ 
Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
 Secretary 
  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-6 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

[FORM OF TRUSTEE’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION AND 
REGISTRATION] 

This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the within mentioned Indenture and is one of 
the Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022[A-1 (Term Rate)][A-2 ([SIFMA][SOFR] 
Index Rate)], of California Community Choice Financing Authority. 

Date of registration and authentication:  __________, 20[___]. 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee 

By: ____________________________________ 
 Name: ______________________________ 
 Title: _______________________________ 

Customary abbreviations may be used in the name of a Bondholder or an assignee, such as 
TEN COM (= tenants in common), TEN ENT (= tenants by the entireties), JT TEN (= joint tenants 
with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common), CUST (= Custodian) and U/T/M/A (= 
Uniform Transfers to Minors Act). 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the within Bond, 
shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or 
regulations: 

TEN COM — as tenants in common UNIF TRAN MIN ACT 
TEN ENT — as tenants by the entirety                    Custodian                   
JT TEN — as joint tenants with right  (Cust)  (Minor) 

of survivorship and not as under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act of 
tenants in common ______________________________________ 

(State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in list above. 
  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 A-7 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

[FORM OF ASSIGNMENT] 

For Value Received, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Please Insert Social Security or 
Other Identifying Number of Assignee 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

the within Bond of the California Community Choice Financing Authority, and hereby irrevocably 
constitutes and appoints _________________________________________ attorney to transfer 
the said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 

Date:  ____________________ 

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED: 
______________________________ 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an “eligible guarantor institution” meeting the 
requirements of the Trustee, which requirements include membership or participation in 
STAMP or such other “signature guarantee program” as may be determined by the 
Trustee in addition to, or in substitution for, STAMP, all in accordance with the 
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon the 
face of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 B-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

EXHIBIT B 

FORM OF INDEX RATE DETERMINATION CERTIFICATE/CONTINUATION NOTICE 

Re: California Community Choice Financing Authority Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2022A-2 ([SIFMA][SOFR] Index Rate) (the “Bonds”) 

Reference is made to Section 2.09 [and Section 2.14] of the Trust Indenture, dated as of 
[__________] 1, 2022 (the “Indenture”), between the California Community Choice Financing 
Authority (the “Issuer”) and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the 
“Trustee”), relating to the above captioned Bonds.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise 
defined herein have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture. 

The undersigned Authorized Representative of the Issuer hereby notifies the Trustee and 
the Rating Agencies as follows with respect to the Index Rate Period commencing on the date 
hereof: 

Include the following text separately for each Series of Index Rate Bonds: 

 (i) the Index Rate shall be the [SIFMA/SOFR] Index Rate and the Index Rate 
Period shall be ________________; 

 (ii) if the Index Rate shall be the SOFR Index Rate, (A) the SOFR Index shall 
be the “Secured Overnight Financing Rate” reported on the NY Federal Reserve’s Website, 
or reported by any successor to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as administrator of 
such Secured Overnight Financing Rate, as of 3:00 p.m. on each SOFR Publish Date 
representing the SOFR Index as of the third Business Day preceding the [Initial Issue 
Date][Index Rate Reset Date], which will be used to calculate interest for the SOFR 
Effective Period beginning on such [Initial Issue Date][Index Rate Reset Date] (the “SOFR 
Effective Date”) (for example, for purposes of determining the SOFR Index for a SOFR 
Effective Date of Thursday, __________, 20__, the Calculation Agent uses SOFR 
published on the SOFR Publish Date of Wednesday, __________, 20__, which is the 
SOFR Index for the SOFR Lookback Date of Monday, __________, 20__), and (B) the 
Applicable Factor, as determined by the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as the case 
may be, shall be       % of SOFR. 

(iii) the Applicable Spread for each Maturity Date, as determined by the 
Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as the case may be, shall be as follows: 

MATURITY DATE APPLICABLE SPREAD MATURITY DATE APPLICABLE SPREAD 

    
    
    

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 B-2 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (iv) if, during any [SIFMA/SOFR] Index Rate Period, the [SIFMA/SOFR] 
Index Rate is not reported by, or otherwise ceases to be available from, the relevant source, 
the substitute or replacement Index Rate, as determined by the Issuer, for the Index Rate 
Period shall be the substitute determined in writing by the Issuer; 

 (v) the Index Rate Tender Date shall be _____________; 

 (vi) the Interest Payment Date[s] shall be _____________; 

(vii) for a Series of Bonds bearing interest at the SIFMA Index Rate, the Index 
Rate Reset Date[s] shall be                     [Thursday of each week, or if the SIFMA Index is 
not issued on Wednesday of such week, the Business Day next succeeding the day on which 
the SIFMA Index for such week is issued]; and 

(viii) for a Series of Bonds bearing interest at the SOFR Index Rate, the SOFR 
Effective Date shall be [each Business Day][[___________], 20[___]]. 

Include the following text for any Series of CPI Bonds: 

 (i) the CPI Interest Period shall be ____________. 

 (ii) the Applicable Spread for each Maturity Date, as determined by the 
Underwriter or the Remarketing Agent, as the case may be, shall be as follows: 

MATURITY DATE APPLICABLE SPREAD MATURITY DATE APPLICABLE SPREAD 

    
    
    

 (iii) the CPI Index Rate for each Maturity Date shall be calculated, in accordance 
with Section 2.14 of the Indenture, using the CPI Index Rate Formula, which means (i) the 
total of CPI for the applicable Reference Month less CPI for the twelfth month prior to the 
applicable Reference Month, divided by (ii) CPI for the twelfth month prior to the 
applicable Reference Month, which formula would be expressed mathematically as ((CPIt 
— CPIt 12) / CPIt 12), where: 

 CPIt = CPI for the applicable Reference Month; 

 CPIt-12 = CPI for the twelfth month prior to the applicable Reference 
Month; 

 Applicable Spread = [     ]%; and 

 Reference Month = the 3rd calendar month preceding each CPI Index Rate 
Reset Date.   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 B-3 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 (iv) the Mandatory Purchase Date shall be ____________; 

 (v) the Interest Payment Date[s] shall be the first Business Day of each Month, 
commencing on the first Business Day of [_____], [20__]; and 

 (vi) CPI Index Rate Reset Date[s] shall be the first Business Day of each 
calendar month; and 

 (vii) if, during any CPI Index Rate Period, the CPI is not reported by, or 
otherwise ceases to be available from, the relevant source, but the CPI  has otherwise been 
reported by the BLS, the Calculation Agent will determine the CPI as published by the 
BLS for such month using a source it deems to be accurate and appropriate.   

  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 B-4 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set forth my hand this ____ day of ____________. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE 
FINANCING AUTHORITY 

By ____________________________________ 
 Name _______________________________ 
 Title ________________________________ 

Please sign below to signify your acknowledgement of receipt of this Certificate and, as to 
the Underwriter or the Remarketing Agreement, as the case may be, your agreement with the terms 
set forth herein. 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND RECEIVED: 
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON  
TRUST COMPANY, N.A., as Trustee 

By _________________________________ 
 Name ____________________________ 
 Title _____________________________ 

ACKNOWLEDGED, RECEIVED AND AGREED TO: 

_____________________________________ 
  as Underwriter 

By _________________________________ 
 Name ____________________________ 
 Title _____________________________ 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 C-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

EXHIBIT C 

[RESERVED] 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 D-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

EXHIBIT D 

[RESERVED] 
 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 E-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

[RESERVED] 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-1-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

SCHEDULE I 

INITIAL PROJECT PARTICIPANT 

East Bay Community Energy Authority 
Notice Address: 
1999 Harrison Street, Suite 800 
Oakland, California 94612 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-2-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

SCHEDULE II 

SCHEDULED DEBT SERVICE DEPOSITS 

DATE 
SCHEDULED MONTHLY 

DEPOSIT 
MINIMUM INTEREST 

EARNINGS ACCRUAL(1) 
CUMULATIVE 

SCHEDULED BALANCE 
 $ $ $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-2-2 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

DATE 
SCHEDULED MONTHLY 

DEPOSIT 
MINIMUM INTEREST 

EARNINGS ACCRUAL(1) 
CUMULATIVE 

SCHEDULED BALANCE 
 $ $ $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-2-3 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

DATE 
SCHEDULED MONTHLY 

DEPOSIT 
MINIMUM INTEREST 

EARNINGS ACCRUAL(1) 
CUMULATIVE 

SCHEDULED BALANCE 
 $ $ $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

__________________ 
(1) [Excludes projected interest earnings on the ISDA Agreement with Morgan Stanley Capital 

Group Inc.] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-3-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

SCHEDULE III 

TERMS OF COMMODITY SWAPS 

For each Month beginning with __________ 2022 and ending with the earlier of (A) an 
Early Termination Date has occurred or has been effectively designated or (B) _________, 20__, 
the Issuer will determine for each “Primary Delivery Point” as set forth on Exhibit A to the Energy 
Purchase Agreement, (i) the price under the “Contract Index Price” (as set forth on such 
Exhibit A), (ii) the difference (which may be positive or negative) between such Contract Index 
Price and the fixed prices for Energy set forth in the Commodity Swap, and (iii) the product of 
such difference and the Energy quantity, as applicable, for such Primary Delivery Point as set forth 
on Exhibit A to the Energy Purchase Agreement. 

The Issuer will then calculate a net settlement amount for all Primary Delivery Points for 
such Month due by or to the Issuer under the Commodity Swap that aggregates the amounts 
determined under clause (iii) above. 

All payments from the Issuer or the Commodity Swap Counterparty will be due on each 
“Payment Date” under the Commodity Swap (which shall be the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the 
Month following the Month of Energy deliveries or, if such day is not a Business Day under the 
Commodity Swap, then the next following Business Day). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-4-1 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

SCHEDULE IV 

AMORTIZED VALUE OF 
SERIES 2022A-1 BONDS 

 
DATE 

AMORTIZED 
VALUE 

 
DATE 

AMORTIZED 
VALUE 

 $  $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



 

 S-4-2 
 4151-0817-6694.2 
 

 
DATE 

AMORTIZED 
VALUE 

 
DATE 

AMORTIZED 
VALUE 

 $  $ 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15H



HB Draft 6 May 2022 

PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT 

between 

MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 

and 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

Dated as of [____], 2022 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 -i-  
 

Article I. Definitions..................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 1.1 Defined Terms ..................................................................................... 1 

Section 1.2 Definitions; Interpretation .................................................................. 10 

Article II. Execution Date and Delivery Period ...................................................................... 10 

Section 2.1 Execution Date; Delivery Period ....................................................... 10 

Section 2.2 Termination by Seller Prior to Prepayment ....................................... 10 

Article III. Sale And Purchase .................................................................................................. 10 

Section 3.1 Sale and Purchase of Energy .............................................................. 11 

Section 3.2 Prepayment ........................................................................................ 11 

Section 3.3 No Obligation to Take Base Energy .................................................. 11 

Section 3.4 Reduction of Contract Quantity ......................................................... 11 

Article IV. Failure to Deliver or Take Energy ........................................................................ 11 

Section 4.1 Assigned Product ............................................................................... 11 

Section 4.2 Failure to Deliver or Take Due to Force Majeure.............................. 11 

Article V. Transmission and Delivery; Communications ...................................................... 12 

Section 5.1 Delivery of Energy ............................................................................. 12 

Section 5.2 Scheduling.......................................................................................... 13 

Section 5.3 Title and Risk of Loss ........................................................................ 13 

Section 5.4 PCC1 Product and Long-Term PCC1 Product .................................. 13 

Section 5.5 Deliveries within CAISO or Another Balancing Authority ............... 15 

Section 5.6 Assigned Products .............................................................................. 15 

Article VI. Partial Assignments of PPAs ................................................................................. 16 

Section 6.1 Future PPA Assignments ................................................................... 16 

Section 6.2 Updates to Exhibits A-1 and A-2 ....................................................... 16 

Article VII. Energy Remarketing ............................................................................................. 16 

Article VIII. Representations and Warranties ........................................................................ 16 

Section 8.1 Representations and Warranties ......................................................... 16 

Section 8.2 Additional Representations and Warranties of Buyer ....................... 17 

Section 8.3 Warranty of Title................................................................................ 19 

Article IX. Taxes ........................................................................................................................ 19 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 -ii-  
 

Article X. Dispute Resolution.................................................................................................... 19 

Section 10.1 Arbitration .......................................................................................... 19 

Section 10.2 Dispute Resolution. ............................................................................ 20 

Article XI. Force Majeure ......................................................................................................... 22 

Section 11.1 Applicability of Force Majeure .......................................................... 22 

Section 11.2 Settlement of Labor Disputes............................................................. 22 

Article XII. Governmental Rules and Regulations ................................................................. 22 

Section 12.1 Compliance with Laws ...................................................................... 22 

Section 12.2 Contests .............................................................................................. 22 

Section 12.3 Defense of Agreement ....................................................................... 23 

Article XIII. Assignment ........................................................................................................... 23 

Article XIV. Payments ............................................................................................................... 24 

Section 14.1 Monthly Statements ........................................................................... 24 

Section 14.2 Payment.............................................................................................. 24 

Section 14.3 Payment of Disputed Amounts .......................................................... 25 

Section 14.4 Late Payment ..................................................................................... 25 

Section 14.5 Audit; Adjustments ............................................................................ 25 

Section 14.6 Netting................................................................................................ 26 

Article XV. Receivables Purchases ........................................................................................... 26 

Article XVI. Notices ................................................................................................................... 26 

Article XVII. Default; Remedies; Termination ....................................................................... 26 

Section 17.1 Seller Default ..................................................................................... 26 

Section 17.2 Buyer Default ..................................................................................... 27 

Section 17.3 Non-Default Termination Events ....................................................... 28 

Section 17.4 Remedies and Termination ................................................................ 30 

Section 17.5 Replacement of Swaps ....................................................................... 31 

Section 17.6 Limitation on Damages ...................................................................... 33 

Section 17.7 Option to Purchase Bonds .................................................................. 33 

Section 17.8 Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule ..................................... 34 

Article XVIII. Miscellaneous .................................................................................................... 34 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 -iii-  
 

Section 18.1 Indemnification Procedure ................................................................. 34 

Section 18.2 Deliveries ........................................................................................... 34 

Section 18.3 Entirety; Amendments ....................................................................... 35 

Section 18.4 Governing Law .................................................................................. 36 

Section 18.5 Non-Waiver........................................................................................ 36 

Section 18.6 Severability ........................................................................................ 36 

Section 18.7 Exhibits .............................................................................................. 36 

Section 18.8 Winding Up Arrangements ................................................................ 36 

Section 18.9 Relationships of Parties...................................................................... 37 

Section 18.10 Immunity ............................................................................................ 37 

Section 18.11 Rates and Indices ............................................................................... 37 

Section 18.12 Limitation of Liability........................................................................ 38 

Section 18.13 Counterparts ....................................................................................... 39 

Section 18.14 Rights of Trustee ................................................................................ 39 

Section 18.15 Waiver of Defenses ............................................................................ 39 

Section 18.16 U.S. Resolution Stay. ......................................................................... 39 

Section 18.17 Rate Changes ..................................................................................... 40 

 

Exhibit A-1 -  Base Energy Hourly Quantities  
Exhibit A-2 -  EPS Energy Period Monthly Quantity 
Exhibit B - Notices 
Exhibit C - Energy Remarketing 
Exhibit D - Termination Payment Schedule 
Exhibit D-1 - Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule 
Exhibit E - Form of Morgan Stanley Guarantee 
Exhibit F - Pricing and Other Terms 
Exhibit G - Receivables Purchases 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 1 

 
PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT 

This Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of [____], 2022 (the “Execution Date”), by and between Morgan Stanley Energy 
Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company (“Seller”), and California Community 
Choice Financing Authority, a joint powers authority and a public entity of the State of California 
established pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Article 1, Chapter 5, 
Division 7, Title 1, Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code, as amended) 
(“Buyer”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell electricity to Buyer, and Buyer desires to 
purchase electricity from Seller, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with Buyer’s execution of the Power Supply Contract 
(as defined below), the Project Participant (as defined below) under such Power Supply Contract 
will assign to Seller certain Assigned Rights and Obligations, including the right to receive 
Assigned Product, which Assigned Product will be resold to Buyer hereunder and then resold to 
the Project Participant under the Power Supply Contract. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises above and the mutual 

covenants and agreements herein set forth, Buyer and Seller (the “Parties” hereto; each is a 
“Party”) agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Defined Terms. The following terms, when used in this Agreement 
and identified by the capitalization of the first letter thereof, have the respective meanings set forth 
below, unless the context otherwise requires: 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to either Party, any entity which is a direct or 
indirect parent or subsidiary of such Party or which directly or indirectly (i) owns or controls such 
Party, (ii) is owned or controlled by such Party, or (iii) is under common ownership or control with 
such Party.  For purposes of this definition, “control” of an entity means the power, directly or 
indirectly, either to (a) vote 50% or more of the securities having ordinary voting power for the 
election of directors or Persons performing similar functions or (b) direct or cause the direction of 
the management and policies, whether by contract or otherwise. 

“Agreement” has the meaning specified in the preamble and shall include exhibits, 
recitals and attachments referenced herein and attached hereto and all amendments, supplements 
and modifications hereto and thereto. 

“Assigned Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in the applicable Assignment 
Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 2 

“Assigned Energy” has the meaning specified in the applicable Assignment 
Agreement; provided that any Assigned Energy shall be EPS Compliant Energy as set forth in the 
Assignment Letter Agreement.  

“Assigned Product” means, as applicable, PCC1 Product, Long-Term PCC1 
Product, Assigned Energy, Assigned RECs and any other product included in an Assignment 
Agreement. 

“Assigned RECs” means any RECs to be delivered to MSCG or Seller pursuant to 
any Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Assigned Rights and Obligations” means a portion of the Project Participant’s 
rights and obligations under a power purchase agreement assigned pursuant to an Assignment 
Agreement. 

“Assignment Agreement” means the Initial Assignment Agreement and any 
subsequent assignment agreement entered into consistent with the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

“Assignment Letter Agreement” means that certain Letter Agreement, dated as of 
the date hereof, by and among MSCG, Seller, Buyer and Project Participant. 

“Automatic Non-Default Termination Event” has the meaning specified in Section 
17.3(b). 

“Available Discount” has the meaning specified in the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“Balancing Authority” has the meaning specified in the CAISO Tariff. 

“Base Energy” means Firm (LD) Energy to be delivered to an Energy Delivery 
Point. 

“Billing Statement” has the meaning specified in Section 14.1(b). 

“Bond Closing Date” means the first date on which the Bonds are issued pursuant 
to the Bond Indenture. 

“Bond Documents” means this Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Bond 
Indenture and all other documents, agreements and instruments entered into or delivered by Buyer 
in connection with any of the foregoing or the transactions thereunder. 

“Bond Indenture” means (i) the Trust Indenture to be entered into prior to the 
commencement of the Delivery Period between Buyer and the Trustee, as supplemented and 
amended from time to time in accordance with its terms, and (ii) any trust indenture entered into 
in connection with the commencement of any Interest Rate Period after the initial Interest Rate 
Period between Buyer and the Trustee containing substantially the same terms as the indenture 
described in clause (i) and which is intended to replace the indenture described in clause (i) as of 
the commencement of such Interest Rate Period. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 3 

“Bonds” means the bonds issued pursuant to the Bond Indenture. 

“Business Day” means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, (ii) a Federal 
Reserve Bank Holiday, (iii) any other day on which commercial banks in either New York, 
New York or the State of California are authorized or required by Law to close, or (iv) any other 
day excluded pursuant to the Bond Indenture. 

“Buyer” has the meaning specified in the preamble. 

“Buyer Custodial Agreement” means that certain Custodial Agreement, dated as of 
the Bond Closing Date, by and among the Swap Counterparty, Buyer, the Trustee and The Bank 
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as custodian, as the same may be amended, modified 
or supplemented from time to time. 

“Buyer Default” has the meaning specified in Section 17.2. 

“Buyer Swap” means (i) the transaction confirmation entered into under the ISDA 
Master Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by Buyer and the Swap Counterparty, and (ii) each 
replacement Buyer Swap entered into pursuant to Section 17.5. 

“Buyer’s Statement” has the meaning specified in Section 14.1(a). 

“CAISO” means California Independent System Operator or its successor. 

“CAISO Tariff” means CAISO’s FERC-approved tariff, as modified, amended or 
supplemented from time to time 

“California Long-Term Contracting Requirements” means the long-term 
contracting requirement set forth in the Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015 (SB 
350), California Public Utilities Code section 399.13(b), and CPUC Decision 17-06-026 and 
CPUC Decision 18-05-026, as may be modified by subsequent decision of the California Public 
Utilities Commission or by other Law. 

“Call Option Notice” has the meaning specified in Exhibit G. 

“Claiming Party” has the meaning specified in Section 11.1. 

“Claims” means all claims or actions, threatened or filed, that directly or indirectly 
relate to the indemnities provided herein, and the resulting losses, damages, expenses, attorneys’ 
fees, experts’ fees, and court costs, whether incurred by settlement or otherwise, and whether such 
claims or actions are threatened or filed prior to or after the termination of this Agreement. 

“Commercially Reasonable” or “Commercially Reasonable Efforts” means, with 
respect to any purchase or sale or other action required to be made, attempted or taken by a Party 
under this Agreement, such efforts as a reasonably prudent Person would undertake for the 
protection of its own interest under the conditions affecting such purchase or sale or other action, 
including without limitation, the amount of notice of the need to take such action, the duration and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 4 

type of the purchase or sale or other action, the competitive environment in which such purchase 
or sale or other action occurs, and the risk to the Party required to take such action. 

“Contract Index Price” means the index price specified on Exhibit A-1 with respect 
to the Hourly Quantity of Energy (which index prices may be Day-Ahead Market Price or Real-
Time Market Price).  

“Contract Quantity” means, with respect to each Month during the Delivery Period, 
(i) the Monthly Quantity of Assigned Energy set forth in Exhibit A-2 for such Month and (ii) the 
Hourly Quantity of Base Energy set forth in Exhibit A-1 for such Month, as such Exhibits A-1 and 
A-2 shall be updated from time to time in accordance with Section 6.2. 

“Custodial Agreements” means the Buyer Custodial Agreement and the Seller 
Custodial Agreement. 

“Daily Basis Differential” has the meaning specified in Section 18.11(a)(ii). 

“Daily Commodity Reference Price” means (A) the Day-Ahead Market Price, (B) 
the Day-Ahead Average Price or (C) the Real-Time Market Price. 

“Daily Replacement Index” has the meaning specified in Section 18.11(a)(ii). 

“Day-Ahead Average Price” means, for any Assigned Energy after the Initial EPS 
Energy Period, (x) the sum of the Day-Ahead Market Prices for each Pricing Interval in a Month 
divided by (y) the number of Pricing Intervals in such Month; provided that in no case shall the 
Day-Ahead Average Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh.  As used in this definition, “Pricing 
Interval” means the unit of time for which CAISO establishes a separate price. 

“Day-Ahead Market Price” means the Day Ahead Market or Locational Marginal 
Price for the Energy Delivery Point for each applicable hour as published by CAISO, or as such 
price may be corrected or revised from time to time by such independent system operator or other 
entity in accordance with its rules; provided that in no case shall the Day-Ahead Market Price 
hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

“Default Rate” means, as of any date of determination, the lesser of (a) the sum of 
(i) the rate of interest per annum quoted in The Wall Street Journal (Eastern Edition) under the 
“Money Rates” section as the “Prime Rate” for such date of determination, plus (ii) one percent 
per annum, or (b) if a lower maximum rate is imposed by applicable Law, such maximum lawful 
rate. 

“Delivery Hours” means each Hour commencing at 00:00 (PPT) on the first day of 
the Delivery Period, and each Hour thereafter during the Delivery Period. 

“Delivery Period” has the meaning specified in Exhibit F. 

“Delivery Point” means (i) the applicable Assigned Delivery Point(s) for Assigned 
Energy and (ii) the applicable Energy Delivery Point for Base Energy (as set forth in Exhibits A-
1 and A-2). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 5 

“Early Termination Date” means a date designated pursuant to Section 17.4(a) or 
Section 17.4(b) upon which the Delivery Period will end and Buyer’s and Seller’s respective 
obligations to receive and deliver Energy under this Agreement will terminate. 

“Early Termination Payment Date” has the meaning specified in Section 17.4(d). 

“Energy” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, 
expressed in MWhs. 

“Energy Delivery Point” has the meaning specified in Exhibit A-1. 

“Energy Project” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“EPS” means California’s Emissions Performance Standards, as set forth in 
Sections 8340 and 8341 of the California Public Utilities Code, as implemented and amended from 
time to time, and any successor Law. 

“EPS Compliant Energy” means Energy that the Project Participant can contract 
for and purchase in compliance with EPS requirements that are applicable to such Project 
Participant. 

“EPS Energy Period” means the Initial EPS Energy Period and any subsequent EPS 
Energy Period established by future assignments of power purchase agreements consistent with 
the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

“Execution Date” has the meaning specified in the preamble. 

“Failed Remarketing” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and any successor 
thereto. 

“Firm (LD)” means, with respect to the obligation to deliver Energy, that either 
Party shall be relieved of its obligations to sell and deliver or purchase and receive without liability 
only to the extent that, and for the period during which, such performance is prevented by Force 
Majeure.  In the absence of Force Majeure, the Party to which performance is owed shall be entitled 
to receive from the Party which failed to deliver/receive an amount determined pursuant to Article 
IV. 

“Force Majeure” means an event or circumstance which prevents one Party from 
performing its obligations under this Agreement, which event or circumstance was not anticipated 
as of the Execution Date, which is not within the reasonable control of, or the result of the 
negligence of, the Claiming Party, and which, by the exercise of due diligence, the Claiming Party 
is unable to overcome or avoid or cause to be avoided.  Force Majeure shall not be based on (i) the 
loss of Buyer’s markets; (ii) Buyer’s inability economically to use or resell any Energy purchased 
hereunder; (iii) the loss or failure of Seller’s supply except if such loss or failure results from 
curtailment by a Transmission Provider; or (iv) Seller’s ability to sell the Energy at a higher price.  
Neither Party may raise a claim of Force Majeure based in whole or in part on curtailment by a 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 6 

Transmission Provider unless (a) such Party (or an upstream supplier with respect to Seller or the 
Project Participant with respect to Buyer) has contracted for firm transmission with such 
Transmission Provider for the Energy to be delivered to or received at the Energy Delivery Point 
and (b) such curtailment is due to “force majeure” or “uncontrollable force” or a similar term as 
defined under the Transmission Provider’s tariff; provided, however, that existence of the 
foregoing factors shall not be sufficient to conclusively or presumptively prove the existence of 
Force Majeure absent a showing of other facts and circumstances which in the aggregate with such 
factors establish that Force Majeure as defined in the first sentence hereof has occurred.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary herein, (I) to the extent that a PPA 
Supplier fails to deliver any Assigned Energy and claims force majeure with respect to such failure 
to deliver, then such event shall be deemed to constitute Force Majeure in respect of Seller 
hereunder; and (II) to the extent that an Assignment Agreement is terminated early, such 
termination shall constitute Force Majeure with respect to Seller until the earlier of (A) the 
commencement of an “Assignment Period” under a replacement Assignment Agreement, (B) the 
commencement of the delivery of EPS Compliant Energy procured by MSCG consistent with the 
Assignment Letter Agreement or (C) the end of the second Month following the Month in which 
such early termination occurs. 

“Government Agency” means the United States of America, any state thereof, any 
municipality, or any local jurisdiction, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, 
including, but not limited to, courts, administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, 
bureaus, agencies, or instrumentalities. 

“Governmental Approval” means any authorization, consent, approval, license, 
ruling, permit, exemption, variance, order, judgment, decree, or similar action by any Government 
Agency relating to the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement as any of the 
foregoing are in effect as of the Execution Date. 

“Hour” means each 60-minute period commencing at 00:00 (PPT) on the first day 
of the Delivery Period. The term “Hourly” shall be construed accordingly. 

“Hourly Quantity” means, with respect to each Delivery Hour during the Delivery 
Period, the quantity (in MWh) of Base Energy set forth on Exhibit A-1 for the Month in which 
such Delivery Hour occurs (as such Exhibit A-1 may be updated from time to time in accordance 
with Section 6.2). 

“Initial Assignment Agreement” means that certain Limited Assignment 
Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and among the Project Participant, MSCG, Seller and 
Buyer.  

“Initial EPS Energy Period” means the “Assignment Period” as defined in the 
Initial Assignment Agreement. 

“Initial PPA Supplier” means MSCG. 

“Interest Rate Period” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture, provided 
that if the Bonds are outstanding in two or more series with separate, concurrent and co-terminus 
Interest Rate Periods, “Interest Rate Period” shall mean all such Interest Rate Periods collectively. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 7 

“Interest Rate Swap” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“Law” means any statute, law, rule or regulation or any judicial or administrative 
interpretation thereof having the effect of the foregoing enacted, promulgated, or issued by a 
Government Agency whether in effect as of the Execution Date or at any time in the future. 

“Long-Term PCC1 Product” means bundled renewable energy and RECs meeting 
the requirements of Portfolio Content Category 1, and the California Long-Term Contracting 
Requirements, to be delivered to MSCG, Seller or any successors thereto pursuant to any Assigned 
Rights and Obligations. 

“Mandatory Purchase Date” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

“Minimum Discount” has the meaning specified in the Power Supply Contract. 

“Month” means a calendar month.  The term “Monthly” shall be construed 
accordingly. 

“Monthly Quantity” means, with respect to each Month of the Delivery Period for 
which, the quantity (in MWh) of Assigned Energy for such Month as set forth on Exhibit A-2 (as 
such Exhibit A-2 may be updated from time to time in accordance with Section 6.2). 

“Morgan Stanley” means Morgan Stanley, a Delaware corporation. 

“Morgan Stanley Guarantee” means a guarantee of Morgan Stanley of Seller’s 
payment obligations under this Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

“MSCG” means Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation. 

“MWh” means megawatt-hour. 

“Optional Non-Default Termination Event” has the meaning specified in Section 
17.3(a). 

“Party” has the meaning specified in the recitals. 

“PCC1 Product” means bundled renewable energy and RECs meeting the 
requirements of Portfolio Content Category 1 to be delivered to MSCG, Seller or any successors 
thereto pursuant to any Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Person” means any individual, limited liability company, corporation, partnership, 
joint venture, trust, unincorporated organization or Government Agency. 

“Portfolio Content Category 1” means any Renewable Energy Credit associated 
with the generation of electricity from an “Eligible Renewable Energy Resource” consisting of the 
portfolio content set forth in California Public Utilities Code Section 399.16(b)(1), as may be 
amended from time to time or as further defined or supplemented by Law. 

“Power Supply Contract” has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 8 

“PPA Supplier” means the Initial PPA Supplier and any subsequent supplier who 
enters into an Assignment Agreement consistent with the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

“PPT” means Pacific Prevailing Time. 

“Prepayment” means the amount specified in Exhibit F. 

“Prepayment Outside Date” means the date specified in Exhibit F. 

“Project Participant” means East Bay Community Energy Authority, a joint powers 
authority organized pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 
6500 et seq.) of the California Government Code. 

“PSC Remarketing Election” means, with respect to the Power Supply Contract, 
that the Project Participant delivered a Remarketing Election Notice (as defined thereunder) for 
any Reset Period. 

“Put Option Notice” has the meaning specified in Exhibit G. 

“Re-Pricing Agreement” means the Re-Pricing Agreement, dated as of the Bond 
Closing Date, by and between Buyer and Seller. 

“Real-Time Market Price” means The Five Minute Market (FMM) Locational 
Marginal Price for the Energy Delivery Point for each applicable interval as published by CAISO, 
or as such price may be corrected or revised from time to time by such independent system operator 
or other entity in accordance with its rules; provided that in no case shall the Real-Time Market 
Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

“Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event” has the meaning specified in 
Exhibit C. 

“Remarketing Notice” has the meaning specified in Exhibit C. 

“Renewable Energy Credit” or “REC” has the meaning specified for “Renewable 
Energy Credit” in California Public Utilities Code Section 399.12(h), as may be amended from 
time to time or as further defined or supplemented by Law. 

“Repurchase Offer” has the meaning specified in Exhibit G. 

“Reset Period” means each “Reset Period” under the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“Schedule”, “Scheduled” or “Scheduling” means the actions of Seller, Buyer and/or 
their designated representatives, including each Party’s Transmission Providers, if applicable, of 
notifying, requesting and confirming to each other the quantity of Energy to be delivered during 
any given portion of the Delivery Period at a specified Delivery Point. 

“Seller” has the meaning specified in the preamble. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 9 

“Seller Custodial Agreement” means that certain Custodial Agreement, dated as of 
the Bond Closing Date, by and among the Swap Counterparty, Seller, the Trustee and The Bank 
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as custodian, as the same may be amended, modified 
or supplemented from time to time. 

“Seller Default” has the meaning specified in Section 17.1. 

“Seller Specified Termination” has the meaning specified in Section 17.5. 

“Seller Swap” means (i) the transaction confirmation entered into under the ISDA 
Master Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by Seller and the Swap Counterparty, and (ii) each 
replacement Seller Swap entered into pursuant to Section 17.5. 

“Specified Discount” means the amount specified in Exhibit F. 

“Specified Fixed Price” means the amount specified in Exhibit F. 

“Specified Investment Agreement” means a guaranteed investment contract 
between the Trustee and a provider concerning the investment of funds in the Debt Service 
Account (as defined in the Bond Indenture). 

“Swap Counterparty” means [____], a [____], and any other Person that becomes 
counterparty to Buyer under a Buyer Swap or to Seller under a Seller Swap, in each case pursuant 
to Section 17.5. 

“Swap Replacement Period” has the meaning specified in Section 17.5(a). 

“Terminating Party” means any Party that has the right to terminate this Agreement 
pursuant to Article XVII. 

“Termination Payment” means, with respect to any Early Termination Payment 
Date, the amount specified on Exhibit D for the calendar month in which such Early Termination 
Payment Date occurs (as adjusted by any applicable Termination Payment Adjustment Amount) 
without any set-off or netting of amounts then due from Buyer. 

“Termination Payment Adjustment Amount” means, with respect to any Early 
Termination Payment Date, the amount specified on Exhibit D-1 for the calendar month in which 
such Early Termination Payment Date occurs.  For the avoidance of doubt, the Termination 
Payment Adjustment Amount for the period commencing on the Execution Date is zero (0). 

“Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule” means the schedule of Termination 
Payment Adjustment Amounts set forth in Exhibit D-1, as such exhibit may be populated and 
amended from time to time in accordance with Section 17.8. 

“Transaction Documents” has the meaning specified in Article XIII. 

“Transmission Provider(s)” means any entity or entities transmitting or transporting 
Energy on behalf of Seller or Buyer to or from an Energy Delivery Point. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 10 

“Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., and its 
successors as Trustee under the Bond Indenture. 

“WREGIS” means the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System 
or its successor. 

Section 1.2 Definitions; Interpretation.  References to “Articles,” “Sections,” 
“Schedules” and “Exhibits” shall be to Articles, Sections, Schedules and Exhibits, as the case may 
be, of this Agreement unless otherwise specifically provided.  Section headings in this Agreement 
are included herein for convenience of reference only and shall not constitute a part of this 
Agreement for any other purpose or be given any substantive effect.  Any of the terms defined 
herein may, unless the context otherwise requires, be used in the singular or the plural, depending 
on the reference.  The use herein of the word “include” or “including”, when following any general 
statement, term or matter, shall not be construed to limit such statement, term or matter to the 
specific items or matters set forth immediately following such word or to similar items or matters, 
whether or not non-limiting language (such as “without limitation” or “but not limited to” or words 
of similar import) is used with reference thereto, but rather shall be deemed to refer to all other 
items or matters that fall within the scope of such general statement, term or matter.  Any reference 
herein to any agreement or document includes all amendments, supplements or restatements to 
and of such agreement or document as may occur from time to time, and any reference to a party 
to any such agreement includes all successors and assigns of such party thereunder permitted by 
the terms hereof and thereof. 

ARTICLE II. 
EXECUTION DATE AND DELIVERY PERIOD 

Section 2.1 Execution Date; Delivery Period.  This Agreement shall become 
effective upon the Execution Date and, unless this Agreement is terminated early pursuant to 
Section 2.2, all of Seller’s and Buyer’s obligations under this Agreement shall be deemed to have 
been incurred upon the Execution Date.  Unless this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 
2.2, then, upon receipt of the Prepayment, the delivery of Energy under this Agreement shall 
commence and continue for the Delivery Period, unless an Early Termination Date occurs. 

Section 2.2 Termination by Seller Prior to Prepayment.  Seller shall have no 
obligation to perform under this Agreement unless and until it has received the Prepayment from 
Buyer pursuant to Section 3.2.  In the event Seller has not received the Prepayment prior to noon 
local time in New York, New York on the Prepayment Outside Date, Seller shall have the right, 
until such Prepayment has been paid, to terminate this Agreement without any further obligation 
or liability of either Party; provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, in the event Seller so 
terminates, such termination shall be effective upon the Prepayment Outside Date regardless of 
whether Buyer tenders the Prepayment after Seller’s notice of termination but prior to the 
Prepayment Outside Date.  For the avoidance of doubt, no Termination Payment shall be payable 
by Seller under any circumstances if this Agreement terminates pursuant to this Section 2.2. 

ARTICLE III. 
SALE AND PURCHASE 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 11 

Section 3.1 Sale and Purchase of Energy.  Seller agrees to sell and deliver or 
cause to be delivered to Buyer, and Buyer agrees to take or cause to be taken from Seller, in each 
case, on a Firm (LD) basis, the Contract Quantity pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Agreement.  Energy delivered to Buyer under this Agreement shall be re-delivered to the 
Project Participant on a floating price basis throughout the Delivery Period.  

Section 3.2 Prepayment.  Prior to the commencement of the Delivery Period, 
Buyer shall pay Seller for all Energy to be delivered during the Delivery Period in an amount equal 
to the Prepayment, and Seller shall accept the Prepayment as payment in full for all Energy to be 
delivered hereunder.  Buyer shall pay the Prepayment in a single lump sum payment by wire 
transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated by Seller.  In no event shall Buyer 
be entitled to any rebate or refund of the Prepayment, but nothing in this Section 3.2 shall limit 
Buyer’s rights under (i) Article IV for Seller’s failure to deliver Energy (whether or not excused), 
(ii)  Article XVII upon early termination of this Agreement or (iii) Exhibit C with respect to 
remarketing of Energy in accordance therewith.  In no event shall Buyer be required to pay the 
Prepayment unless and until the Bonds are issued in exchange for a purchase price sufficient to 
pay costs of issuance, to fund required reserves under the Bond Indenture (or purchase surety 
bonds or enter into any similar arrangements in lieu of funding such reserves), and to pay the 
Prepayment.   

Section 3.3 No Obligation to Take Base Energy.  Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary in this Agreement, Buyer shall not be required to purchase and receive any Base 
Energy hereunder, and Seller shall remarket any portion of the Contract Quantity that is Base 
Energy pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C.   

Section 3.4 Reduction of Contract Quantity.  The Parties recognize and agree 
that the Contract Quantity may be reduced in a Reset Period pursuant to the re-pricing 
methodology described in the Re-Pricing Agreement if necessary to achieve a successful 
remarketing of the Bonds.  The Parties agree further that if, pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement, 
Buyer and the Calculation Agent (as defined in the Bond Indenture) determine in connection with 
the establishment of any new Reset Period that: (i) such Reset Period will be the final Reset Period 
and (ii) such Reset Period will end prior to the end of the original Delivery Period, then (A) the 
Delivery Period will be deemed to be modified so that it ends at the end of such Reset Period, and 
(B) the Contract Quantity for the last Month in such Reset Period may be reduced as provided in 
the Re-Pricing Agreement.   

ARTICLE IV. 
FAILURE TO DELIVER OR TAKE ENERGY 

Section 4.1 Assigned Product.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, 
neither Seller nor Buyer shall have any liability or other obligation to one another under this 
Agreement for any failure to Schedule, take, or deliver Assigned Product other than as set forth in 
(a) Section 5(a) of Exhibit C for any failure to Schedule, take or deliver not due to Force Majeure 
and (b) Section 4.2 regarding a failure to Schedule, take or deliver due to Force Majeure. 

Section 4.2 Failure to Deliver or Take Due to Force Majeure.  If with respect to 
all or any portion of the Contract Quantity (including any Base Energy or Assigned Energy): 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 12 

 
(a) Buyer fails to take or Seller fails to deliver all or any portion of the Contract 

Quantity at any Delivery Point pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; and 

(b) such failure is due to Force Majeure claimed by either Party, 

then Seller shall pay to Buyer the result determined by the following formula with respect to each 
such Delivery Point: 

P = Q x IP 

Where: 

P = The amount payable by Seller under this Section 4.2; 

Q = The quantity of Energy described in the lead-in to this Section 4.2; 
and 

IP = (i) With respect to Base Energy, the Contract Index Price applicable 
to such Delivery Hour and Energy Delivery Point for Base Energy; 
and (ii) with respect to Assigned Energy, (A) the Day-Ahead Market 
Price during the Initial EPS Energy Period, and (B) the Day-Ahead 
Average Price with respect to any other EPS Energy Period. 

ARTICLE V. 
TRANSMISSION AND DELIVERY; COMMUNICATIONS 

Section 5.1 Delivery of Energy.   

(a) Assigned Product.  All Assigned Energy delivered under this Agreement 
shall be Scheduled at the applicable Assigned Delivery Point and in accordance with the terms of 
the applicable Assignment Agreement.  All other Assigned Product shall be delivered consistent 
with the terms of the applicable Assignment Agreement.  Except as set forth in the two foregoing 
sentences, Buyer and Seller shall have no liability or obligations under this Article V with respect 
to Assigned Product. 

(b) Updates to Exhibits.  Buyer and Seller may, upon mutual agreement, update 
Exhibit A-1 to modify the Delivery Points thereunder, provided that the Parties shall promptly 
notify any Swap Counterparty of any such updates and furthermore shall update the corresponding 
exhibits to any Buyer Swap and any Seller Swap in accordance with the terms thereof.  
Furthermore, following the Initial EPS Energy Period and thereafter in connection with the 
establishment, expiration or termination of any subsequent EPS Energy Period, the Parties shall 
update (i) the exhibits hereto in accordance with Section 6.2 and (ii) the exhibits to any Buyer 
Swap and any Seller Swap in accordance with the terms thereof.  For the avoidance doubt, such 
updates will reflect that deliveries will be made to (A) the Energy Delivery Point at the Day-Ahead 
Market Price for any Base Energy and (B) an Assigned Delivery Point at the Day-Ahead Average 
Price for any Assigned Energy. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 13 

Section 5.2 Scheduling.  Scheduling of Assigned Energy shall be in accordance 
with the applicable Assignment Schedule. 

Section 5.3 Title and Risk of Loss.  The transfer of title and risk of loss for all 
Assigned Product other than Assigned Energy shall be in accordance with the applicable 
Assignment Agreement; provided that all Assignment Agreements shall provide for the transfer of 
Renewable Energy Credits in accordance with WREGIS.   

Section 5.4 PCC1 Product and Long-Term PCC1 Product.  To the extent that 
any Assigned Product is PCC1 Product or Long-Term PCC1 Product, the following provisions 
apply: 

(a) Eligibility.  Seller, and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants 
that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement that: (i) the Project qualifies and is certified 
by the CEC as an Eligible Renewable Energy Resource (“ERR”) as such term is defined in Public 
Utilities Code Section 399.12 or Section 399.16; and (ii) the Project’s output delivered to Buyer 
qualifies under the requirements of the California Renewables Portfolio Standard.  To the extent a 
change in law occurs after execution of this Agreement that causes this representation and warranty 
to be materially false or misleading, it shall not be an Event of Default if Seller has used 
commercially reasonable efforts to comply with such change in law.  [STC 6, Non-Modifiable. 
(Source: D.07-11-025, Attachment A.) D.08-04-009].  As used above, any capitalized terms not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning specified in the Assigned Agreement. 

(b) Transfer of Renewable Energy Credits.  Seller and, if applicable, its 
successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement the 
renewable energy credits transferred to Buyer conform to the definition and attributes required for 
compliance with the California Renewables Portfolio Standard, as set forth in California Public 
Utilities Commission Decision 08-08-028, and as may be modified by subsequent decision of the 
California Public Utilities Commission or by subsequent legislation.  To the extent a change in 
law occurs after execution of this Agreement that causes this representation and warranty to be 
materially false or misleading, it shall not be an Event of Default if Seller has used commercially 
reasonable efforts to comply with such change in law. [STC REC-1, Non-modifiable. D.11-01-
025].  As used above, any capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
specified in the Assigned Agreement. 

(c) Tracking of RECs in WREGIS.  Seller warrants that all necessary steps to 
allow the Renewable Energy Credits transferred to Buyer to be tracked in the Western Renewable 
Energy Generation Information System will be taken prior to the first delivery under the contract. 
[STC REC-2, Non-modifiable. D.11-01-025].  As used above, any capitalized terms not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning specified in the Assigned Agreement. 

(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties 
hereunder shall be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the 
laws of the state of California, without regard to principles of conflicts of law. To the extent 
enforceable at such time, each Party waives its respective right to any jury trial with respect to any 
litigation arising under or in connection with this Agreement. [STC 17, Non-Modifiable. (Source: 
D.07-11-025, Attachment A) D.08-04-009] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 14 

(e) Seller Representations and Warranties. 

Seller represents and warrants: 

(i) Seller has the right to sell the Assigned Product from the Applicable 
Project;  

(ii) Seller has not sold the Assigned Product or any REC or other 
attributes of the Assigned Product to be transferred to Buyer to any 
other person or entity; 

(iii) the Energy component of the Assigned Product produced by the 
Applicable Project and purchased by Seller for resale to Buyer 
hereunder is not being sold by Seller back to the Applicable Project 
or PPA Seller;  

(iv) Assigned Energy and Assigned RECs to be purchased and sold 
pursuant to this Agreement are not committed to another party; 

(v) The Assigned Product is free and clear of all liens or other 
encumbrances;  

(vi) Seller will deliver to Buyer all Assigned Energy and associated 
RECs generated by the Applicable Project for Long-Term PCC1 
Product in compliance with the California Long-Term Contracting 
Requirements, if applicable 

(vii) The Assigned Product supplied to Buyer under this Agreement that 
is Long-Term PCC1 Product will be sourced solely from Applicable 
Projects that have an Assignment Period of ten years or more in 
length, or otherwise in compliance with the California Long Term 
Contracting Requirements; and 

(viii) Seller will cooperate and work with Buyer, the CEC, and/or the 
CPUC to provide any documentation required by the CPUC or CEC 
to support the Product’s classification as a Portfolio Content 
Category 1 Product as set forth in California Public Utilities Code 
Section 399.16(b)(1) or, if applicable, or compliance with the 
California Long-Term Contracting Requirements. 

Seller further represents and warrants to Buyer that, to the extent that the Product 
sold by Seller is a resale of part or all of a contract between Seller and one or more 
third parties, Seller represents, warrants and covenants that the resale complies with 
the following conditions in (i) through (iv) below during the Assignment Period 
and throughout the generation period: 

(i) The original upstream third-party contract(s) meets the criteria of 
California Public Utilities Code Section 399.16(b)(1); 

(ii) This Agreement transfers only electricity and RECs that have not 
yet been generated prior to the Assignment Period; 

(iii) The electricity transferred by this Agreement is transferred to Buyer 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 15 

in real time; and 

(iv) If the Applicable Project has an agreement to dynamically transfer 
electricity to a California balancing authority, the transactions 
implemented under this Agreement are not contrary to any condition 
imposed by a balancing authority participating in the dynamic 
transfer arrangement. 

(f) Subsequent Changes in Law.  In the event that the qualifications or 
requirements of the RPS program, PCC1 Product or the California Long-Term Contracting 
Requirements change, Seller shall take commercially reasonable actions to meet the amended 
qualifications or requirements of the RPS Law, PCC1 Product or the California Long-Term 
Contracting Requirements but will not be required to incur any unreimbursed costs to comply with 
the RPS Law, PCC1 or the California Long- Term Contracting Requirements, collectively. 

(g) Limitations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, 
the Parties acknowledge and agree as follows:  

(i) Seller has relied exclusively upon the representations and warranties 
of each respective seller set forth in the Assigned Agreements in 
making the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 
5.4 and has not performed any independent investigation with 
respect thereto;  

(ii) Seller agrees that it will terminate or cause MSCG to terminate the 
applicable Assignment Period in the event that any representation or 
warranty in this Section 5.4 proves to be incorrect in any respect; 

(iii) Buyer agrees that its sole recourse for any breach of the provisions 
of this Section 5.4 shall be the termination of the applicable 
Assignment Period and Buyer shall have no other recourse against 
Seller or remedies under this Agreement; and 

(iv) Section 5.4(d) shall only apply to the provisions of this Section 5.4 
and all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain subject to 
and interpreted in accordance with Section 18.4. 

Section 5.5 Deliveries within CAISO or Another Balancing Authority.  The 
Parties acknowledge that Energy delivered by Seller at a Delivery Point within CAISO or another 
Balancing Authority will be delivered in accordance with the CAISO Tariff and rules of the 
Balancing Authority as applicable.  Scheduling such Energy in accordance with the requirements 
of the applicable Balancing Authority shall constitute delivery of such Energy to Buyer, provided 
that any Assigned Products associated with the Energy are also delivered to Buyer hereunder. 

Section 5.6 Assigned Products.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein, the Parties shall have no liability under this Article V with respect to any Assigned 
Products. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 16 

ARTICLE VI. 
PARTIAL ASSIGNMENTS OF PPAS 

Section 6.1 Future PPA Assignments.  Subsequent to the Initial EPS Energy Period, the 
Project Participant, Seller, Buyer and MSCG shall cooperate to obtain EPS Compliant Energy for 
delivery hereunder in accordance with the Assignment Letter Agreement. 

Section 6.2 Updates to Exhibits A-1 and A-2.   

(a) To the extent that an EPS Energy Period terminates or expires and Assigned 
Energy is not available for delivery immediately following (i) the end of the period for which Force 
Majeure is deemed to occur in the event of an early termination or (ii) the expiration of an EPS 
Energy Period, the Parties shall update (i) Exhibit A-1 to reflect an increase in the Hourly 
Quantities of Base Energy and (ii) Exhibit A-2 to reflect a decrease in the Monthly Quantities of 
Assigned Energy thereunder, in each case, in an amount equal to the Assigned Energy associated 
with the EPS Energy Period that terminated or expired.   

(b) In connection with the execution of any subsequent Assignment Agreement, 
the Parties shall update Exhibits A-1 and A-2 to reflect (i) appropriate decreases in the Hourly 
Quantities of Base Energy and increases in the Monthly Quantities of Assigned Energy and (ii) 
any other changes in connection therewith. 

ARTICLE VII. 
ENERGY REMARKETING 

If (a) the Project Participant is in default under the Power Supply Contract or does 
not require or is unable to receive all or any portion of the Energy purchased by Buyer under this 
Agreement as a result of (i) the Project Participant’s decreased Energy requirements, (ii) decreased 
demand by the Project Participant’s retail customers and its request that such Energy be remarketed 
or (iii) EPS Compliant Energy not being available for delivery hereunder; or (b) a quantity of 
Assigned Energy less than the Monthly Quantity is delivered hereunder in any Month for any 
reason, then Buyer shall request (and pursuant to Exhibit C may be deemed to request) remarketing 
services from Seller pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit C.   

ARTICLE VIII. 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 8.1 Representations and Warranties.  As a material inducement to 
entering into this Agreement, each Party, with respect to itself, hereby represents and warrants to 
the other Party as of the Execution Date as follows: 

(a) it is duly organized and validly existing under the Laws of the state in which 
it is organized; 

(b) it has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business, to own its 
properties and to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 17 

(c) there is no litigation, action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or, to 
the best of such Party’s knowledge, threatened, before or by any Government Agency, which could 
reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the performance by such Party of its 
obligations under this Agreement or that questions the validity, binding effect or enforceability 
hereof, any action taken or to be taken by such Party pursuant hereto, or any of the transactions 
contemplated hereby; 

(d) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party 
has been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Party and does not require any 
approval or consent of any security holder of such Party or any holder (or any trustee for any 
holder) of any indebtedness or other obligation of such Party; 

(e) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such 
Party by an appropriate officer or authorized Person of such Party and constitutes the legal, valid 
and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, as such 
enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 
and similar Laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity; 

(f) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party 
shall not violate any provision of any Law, decree or other legal or regulatory determination 
applicable to it; 

(g) the execution, delivery and performance by such Party of this Agreement, 
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such 
Party of its financial obligations under this Agreement, shall not result in any violation of any term 
of any material contract or agreement applicable to it, or any of its charter or bylaws or of any 
license, permit, franchise, judgment, writ, injunction or regulation, decree, order, charter, Law or 
ordinance applicable to it or any of its properties or to any obligations incurred by it or by which 
it or any of its properties or obligations are bound or affected, or of any determination or award of 
any arbitrator applicable to it, and shall not conflict with, or cause a breach of, or default under, 
any such term or result in the creation of any lien upon any of its properties or assets, except with 
respect to Buyer, the lien of the Bond Indenture; 

(h) to the best of the knowledge and belief of such Party, no consent, approval, 
order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or giving of notice to, obtaining 
of any license or permit from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Government 
Agency is required in connection with the valid authorization, execution, delivery and performance 
by such Party of this Agreement or the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated 
hereby other than those that have been obtained; and 

(i) it enters this Agreement as a bona-fide, arm’s-length transaction involving 
the mutual exchange of consideration and, once executed by both Parties, considers this Agreement 
a legally enforceable contract. 

Section 8.2 Additional Representations and Warranties of Buyer.  As a material 
inducement to entering into this Agreement, Buyer hereby represents and warrants to Seller as of 
the Execution Date as follows: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 18 

(a) Buyer is entering into this Agreement for the purpose of acquiring Energy 
for sale to its Project Participant pursuant to the Power Supply Contract;  

(b) any amounts payable by Buyer under this Agreement shall (i) other than the 
Prepayment, be payable as an item of Operating Expense under (and as defined in) the Bond 
Indenture, and (ii) not constitute an indebtedness or liability of Buyer within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory limitation or restriction applicable to Buyer; 

(c) Buyer will promptly alert Seller of any notice received by Buyer alleging 
a breach under the Bond Indenture or of any covenant of Buyer in the agreements entered into by 
Buyer in connection with the Energy Project; 

(d) Buyer shall not (i) enter into any Bond Documents (excluding any 
contracts applicable to Energy being resold by Buyer or the Project Participant (or a related joint 
powers authority selling Energy to the Project Participant)), (ii) consent to, waive or agree to or 
permit any material amendment to or rescission of any such Bond Documents or (iii) consent to, 
waive or agree to permit any amendment (whether or not material) to or rescission of the Bond 
Indenture, in each case, without the prior written consent of Seller; 

(e) Buyer shall collect and forthwith cause to be deposited in the relevant 
funds pursuant to the Bond Indenture all amounts payable to it pursuant to the Power Supply 
Contract.  Buyer shall enforce the provisions of the Power Supply Contract, as well as any other 
contract or contracts entered into relating to the Energy Project, and duly perform its covenants 
and agreements thereunder.  Buyer shall not consent or agree to or permit any termination or 
rescission of or amendment to or otherwise take any action under or in connection with the Power 
Supply Contract which will impair the ability of Buyer to pay all of its debts and obligations as 
they come due; provided that this provision shall not prevent Buyer from otherwise taking any 
action under or in connection with the Power Supply Contract which is expressly permitted 
pursuant to the provisions thereof.  A copy of the Power Supply Contract and any amendment 
thereto certified by an authorized officer of Buyer shall be provided to Seller.  Buyer shall not 
enter into any new Power Supply Contract following the Bond Closing Date without the prior 
written consent of Seller; 

(f) Buyer shall keep or cause to be kept with respect to the Energy Project 
proper books of record and account (separate from all other records and accounts) in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, as such may be modified by the provisions of the 
Bond Indenture, in which complete and correct entries shall be made of its transactions relating 
to the Energy Project, the amount of revenues and the application thereof and each fund and 
account established under the Bond Indenture and relating to its costs and charges under the 
Power Supply Contract and any other contracts for the sale or purchase of Energy, and which, 
together with all contracts and all other books and papers of Buyer relating to the Energy Project, 
shall, subject to the terms thereof, at all times during regular business hours be subject to the 
inspection of Seller; 

(g) Buyer shall from time to time duly pay and discharge, or cause to be paid 
and discharged, all taxes, assessments and other governmental charges, or required payments in 
lieu thereof, lawfully imposed upon the properties of Buyer or upon the rights, revenues, income, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 19 

receipts, and other moneys, securities and funds of Buyer when the same shall become due, and 
all lawful claims for labor and material and supplies, except those taxes, assessments, charges or 
claims which Buyer shall in good faith contest by proper legal proceedings if Buyer shall in all 
such cases have set aside on its books reserves deemed adequate by Buyer with respect thereto; 

(h) Buyer shall at all times maintain its existence and shall do and perform or 
cause to be done and performed all acts and things required to maintain its existence; and 

(i) Buyer shall not consolidate or amalgamate with, or merge with or into, or 
transfer all or substantially all its assets to, or reorganize, reincorporate or reconstitute into or as, 
another entity unless (i) prior to such event, Buyer receives confirmation from Seller that such 
event does not trigger a termination event under this Agreement or the Buyer Swap and (ii) at the 
time of such consolidation, amalgamation, merger, transfer, reorganization, reincorporation or 
reconstitution, the resulting, surviving or transferee entity assumes all the obligations of Buyer 
under this Agreement and the Buyer Swap. 

Section 8.3 Warranty of Title.  Seller warrants that it will have the right to 
convey and will transfer good and merchantable title to all Energy sold under this Agreement and 
delivered by it to Buyer, free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, and claims.  EXCEPT FOR 
THE WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY MADE BY SELLER IN THIS ARTICLE VIII, SELLER 
HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 
ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. 

ARTICLE IX. 
TAXES 

Seller shall (i) be responsible for all ad valorem, excise and other taxes assessed 
with respect to Energy delivered pursuant to this Agreement upstream of the Delivery Points, and 
(ii) indemnify Buyer and its Affiliates for any such taxes paid by Buyer or its Affiliates.  Buyer 
shall (i) be responsible for all such taxes assessed at or downstream of the Delivery Points, and (ii) 
indemnify Seller and its Affiliates for any such taxes paid by Seller or its Affiliates. 

ARTICLE X. 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Section 10.1 Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity 
thereof, including the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shall be determined 
by final, non-appealable binding arbitration in San Francisco, California before three (3) 
arbitrators.  The arbitration shall be administered by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, 
Inc. (“JAMS”) pursuant to its Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures.  Within 15 days 
after the commencement of arbitration, each of the Parties shall select one person to act as 
arbitrator, and the two so-selected arbitrators shall select a third arbitrator (the “chairperson”) 
within 30 days of the commencement of the arbitration.  If either Party is unable or fails to select 
one person to act as arbitrator, such arbitrator shall be appointed by JAMS.  If the Party-selected 
arbitrators are unable or fail to agree upon a chairperson, the chairperson shall be appointed by 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 20 

JAMS.  The chairperson shall be a person who has experience in renewable energy-related 
transactions, and none of the arbitrators shall have been previously employed by either Party or 
have any direct pecuniary interest in either Party or the subject matter of the arbitration, unless 
such conflict is expressly acknowledged and waived in writing by each of the Parties.  The Parties 
shall maintain the confidential nature of the arbitration proceeding and any award, including any 
hearing(s), except as may be necessary to prepare for or conduct the arbitration hearing on the 
merits, or except as necessary in connection with a court application for a preliminary remedy, a 
judicial challenge to an award or its enforcement, or unless otherwise required by law or judicial 
decision.  Any arbitration proceedings, decision or award rendered hereunder and the validity, 
effect and interpretation of this arbitration provision shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration 
Act.  The arbitrator(s) shall have no authority to award consequential, treble, exemplary, or 
punitive damages of any type or kind regardless of whether such damages may be available under 
any law or right, with the Parties hereby affirmatively waiving their rights, if any, to recover or 
claim such damages.  In any arbitration arising out of or related to this Agreement, the arbitrators 
shall award to the prevailing Party, if any, the costs and attorneys’ fees reasonably incurred in 
seeking to enforce the application of this Section 10.1 and by the prevailing party in connection 
with the arbitration.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 10.1, any costs 
incurred by a Party in seeking judicial enforcement of any written decision of the arbitrators shall 
be chargeable to and borne exclusively by the Party against whom such court order is obtained.  
The award shall be final and binding on the Parties and judgment upon any award may be entered 
in any court of competent jurisdiction. 

Section 10.2 Dispute Resolution.  

(a) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 10.1, if 
Section 10.1 is ineffective or unenforceable, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (including the 
existence, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the applicability of any statute of 
limitation period) (each, a “Dispute”) shall be resolved by a reference proceeding in California in 
accordance with the provisions of Sections 638 et seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure 
(“CCP”), or their successor sections (a “Reference Proceeding”), which shall constitute the 
exclusive remedy for the resolution of any Dispute.  As a condition precedent to initiating a 
Reference Proceeding with respect to any Dispute, the Parties shall comply with the provisions of 
Section 10.2(b). 

(b) Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the 
“Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Party (the “Responding Party”) with a written notice of 
each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue, and support for such position 
(the “Notice of Dispute”).  Within 10 days after receiving the Notice of Dispute, the Responding 
Party shall provide the Disputing Party with a written Notice of each additional issue (if any) with 
respect to the dispute raised by the Notice of Dispute, a proposed means for resolving every issue 
in dispute, and support for such position (the “Dispute Response”).  Thereafter, the Parties shall 
meet to discuss the matter and attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution of the dispute. 
If the Parties do not resolve the dispute by mutual agreement within 60 days after receipt of the 
Dispute Response, (the “Negotiation Period”), then either Party may provide to the other Party 
written notice of intent for judicial reference (the “Impasse Notice”) in accordance with the further 
provisions of this Section 10.2. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 21 

(c) Applicability; Selection of Referees. 

(i) The Party that provides the Impasse Notice shall nominate one 
referee at the same time it provides the Impasse Notice.  The other Party shall nominate 
one referee within 10 days of receiving the Impasse Notice.  The two referees (the “Party-
Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, together with the 
Party-Appointed Referees, the “Referees”).  The Party-Appointed Referees shall be 
competent and experienced in matters involving the electric energy business in the United 
States, with at least 10 years of electric industry experience as a practicing attorney. The 
Third Referee shall be an active or retired California state or federal judge. Each of the 
Party-Appointed Referees and the Third Referee shall be impartial and independent of 
either Party and of the other referees and not employed by any of the Parties in any prior 
matter. 

(ii) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third 
Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall 
be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of 
California, County of San Francisco (the “Court”), and with due regard given to the 
selection criteria above.  A request for appointment of a referee may be heard on an ex 
parte or expedited basis, and the Parties agree that irreparable harm would result if ex parte 
relief is not granted. Pursuant to CCP Section 170.6, each Party shall have one (1) 
peremptory challenge to the referee selected by the Court.  

(d) Discovery; Proceedings.   

(i) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the 
Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in 
the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and 
trial-setting conference within 20 days after the date of selection of the Third Referee, (ii) 
if practicable, try all issues of law or fact within 180 days after the date of the conference, 
and (iii) report a statement of decision within 20 days after the matter has been submitted 
for decision.  

(ii) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as 
agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after 
discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing 
procedures.   

(iii) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall 
determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time 
and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other questions that 
arise with respect to the course of the Reference Proceeding. The Reference Proceeding, 
including the trial, shall be conducted at a neutral location selected by the Parties, or if not 
agreed by the Parties, by the Third Referee, in San Francisco, California.  

(iv) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except 
for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 22 

a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the referees 
will be provided a courtesy copy of the transcript.  The Party making such a request shall 
have the obligation to arrange for and pay the court reporter. 

(e) Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting 
forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the 
court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  The decision shall be 
appealable to the same extent and in the same manner that such decision would be appealable if 
rendered by a judge of the Court. The Parties intend this general reference agreement to be 
specifically enforceable in accordance with the CCP. 

(f) Expenses.  Each Party shall bear the compensation and expenses of its 
respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All 
other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally between the Parties. 

ARTICLE XI. 
FORCE MAJEURE 

Section 11.1 Applicability of Force Majeure.  To the extent either Party is 
prevented by Force Majeure from carrying out, in whole or part, its obligations under this 
Agreement and such Party (the “Claiming Party”) gives notice and details of the Force Majeure to 
the other Party as soon as practicable, then the Claiming Party shall be excused from the 
performance of its obligations with respect to this Agreement (other than the obligation to make 
payments then due or becoming due with respect to performance prior to the Force Majeure).  The 
Claiming Party shall mitigate the Force Majeure with all reasonable dispatch.  For the duration of 
the Claiming Party’s non-performance (and only for such period), the non-Claiming Party shall 
not be required to perform or resume performance of its obligations to the Claiming Party 
corresponding to the obligations of the Claiming Party excused by Force Majeure.  

Section 11.2 Settlement of Labor Disputes.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary herein, the Parties agree that the settlement of strikes, lockouts or other industrial 
disturbances shall be within the sole discretion of the Party experiencing such disturbance, and the 
failure of a Party to settle such strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances shall not prevent 
the existence of Force Majeure or of reasonable dispatch to remedy the same. 

ARTICLE XII. 
GOVERNMENTAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Section 12.1 Compliance with Laws.  This Agreement shall be subject to all 
present and future Laws of any Government Agency having jurisdiction, and neither Party has 
knowingly undertaken or will knowingly undertake or knowingly cause to be undertaken any 
activity that would conflict with such Laws; provided, however, that nothing herein shall be 
construed to restrict or limit either Party’s right to object to or contest any such Law, or its 
application to this Agreement or the transactions undertaken hereunder, and neither acquiescence 
therein or compliance therewith for any period of time shall be construed as a waiver of such right. 

Section 12.2 Contests.  Excluding all matters involving a contractual dispute 
between the Parties, no Party shall contest, cause to be contested or in any way actively support 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 23 

the contest of the equity, fairness, reasonableness or lawfulness of any terms or conditions set forth 
or established pursuant to this Agreement, as those terms or conditions may be at issue before any 
Government Agency in any proceeding, if the successful result of such contest would be to 
preclude or excuse the performance of this Agreement by either Party. 

Section 12.3 Defense of Agreement.  Excluding all matters involving a 
contractual dispute between the Parties, each Party shall hereafter defend and support this 
Agreement before any Government Agency in any proceeding, if the substance, validity or 
enforceability of all or any part of this Agreement is hereafter directly challenged or if any 
proposed changes in regulatory practices or procedures would have the effect of making this 
Agreement invalid or unenforceable or would otherwise materially affect the rights or obligations 
of the Parties under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XIII. 
ASSIGNMENT 

Neither Party shall assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party; provided, however, that: 

(a) pursuant to the Bond Indenture, Buyer may, without the consent of Seller, 
transfer, sell, pledge, encumber or assign this Agreement to the Trustee in connection with any 
financing or other financial arrangements; provided that Buyer shall not assign this Agreement 
unless, contemporaneously with the effectiveness of such assignment, Buyer also assigns the 
Buyer Swap (and the Buyer Custodial Agreement) to the same assignee;  

(b) With the prior written consent of Buyer, not to be unreasonably withheld, Seller 
may assign this Agreement to an Affiliate of Seller, provided that the Morgan Stanley Guarantee 
continues to apply to the obligations of such assignee hereunder or the assignee provides to Buyer 
a parent guarantee and a Rating Confirmation (as defined in the Bond Indenture), which 
assignment shall constitute a novation; provided that, Seller shall not assign this Agreement unless, 
contemporaneously with the effectiveness of such assignment, Seller also assigns the Seller Swap 
(and the Seller Custodial Agreement) to the same assignee; and 

(c) if either (A) Seller notifies Buyer that the Morgan Stanley Guarantee will be 
terminated as of the end of any Interest Rate Period; (B) Seller is unable to provide, under the Re-
Pricing Agreement, an estimated Available Discount (as defined in the Re-Pricing Agreement) 
that is equal to or greater than the Minimum Discount under the Power Supply Contract; or (C) 
the circumstances set forth in Section 5(b)(iii) of the Re-Pricing Agreement regarding replacement 
of Seller with an Alternative Supplier (as defined in the Re-Pricing Agreement) apply, Seller will 
reasonably cooperate with Buyer to cause Seller’s (or Seller’s Affiliate’s, if applicable) right, title 
and interest in this Agreement, the Re-Pricing Agreement, the Seller Swap, the Seller Custodial 
Agreement, the Interest Rate Swap and any Specified Investment Agreement with a term that 
extends past the then-current Interest Rate Period to which Seller or any Affiliate is a party and all 
agreements related to any of the foregoing (the “Transaction Documents”) to be novated to a 
replacement seller; provided that (x) a Rating Confirmation (as defined in the Bond Indenture) is 
obtained for any Bonds required to be redeemed on the first Mandatory Purchase Date following 
the effective date of such novation, (y) the Swap Counterparty shall have provided its prior written 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 24 

consent to such assignment in accordance with the terms of the Seller Swap, and (z) after giving 
effect to such novation, neither Seller nor Morgan Stanley will have any obligations (contingent 
or otherwise, including any obligation to make or repeat any representations or warranties other 
than basic representations on authority and the right to transfer its rights, title and interests under 
this Agreement without encumbrances) or be required to make any payment under any Transaction 
Document, the Morgan Stanley Guarantee or otherwise in connection with or following such 
novation other than any obligations that would have existed or payments that would have been 
required (or guaranteed) had this Agreement terminated as of the end of the last Reset Period that 
commenced prior to such novation.   

ARTICLE XIV. 
PAYMENTS 

Section 14.1 Monthly Statements. 

(a) No later than the 5th day of each Month during the Delivery Period 
(excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the 
Delivery Period, Buyer shall deliver to Seller a statement (a “Buyer’s Statement”) listing any other 
amounts due to Buyer in connection with this Agreement with respect to the prior Month(s). 

(b) No later than the 10th day of each Month during the Delivery Period 
(excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the 
Delivery Period (the “Billing Date”), Seller shall deliver a statement (a “Billing Statement”) to 
Buyer indicating (i) the total amount due to Buyer, if any, under Article IV, Article V, Article VII 
and Exhibit C with respect to the prior Month(s), (ii) any amounts due to Seller in connection with 
this Agreement with respect to the prior Month(s), and (iii) the net amount due to Buyer or Seller.  
If the actual quantity delivered is not known by the Billing Date, Seller may provisionally prepare 
a Billing Statement based on Seller’s best available knowledge of the quantity of Energy delivered, 
which shall not exceed the sum of the Contract Quantity of all Delivery Hours in such Month plus 
any make-up quantities delivered during such Month.  The invoiced quantity and amounts paid 
thereon (with interest calculated on the amount overpaid or underpaid by Buyer at the Default 
Rate) will then be adjusted on the following Month’s Billing Statement, as actual delivery 
information becomes available based on the actual quantity delivered. 

(c) Upon request by either Party, the other Party shall deliver such supporting 
documentation of the foregoing as such requesting Party may reasonably request. 

Section 14.2 Payment.   

(a) If the Billing Statement indicates an amount due from Buyer, then Buyer 
shall remit such amount to Seller by wire transfer (pursuant to Seller’s instructions), in 
immediately available funds, on or before the later of (i) the 25th day of the Month following the 
most recent Month to which such Billing Statement relates, or (ii) the 10th day following Buyer’s 
receipt of Seller’s Billing Statement, or if either such day is not a Business Day, the following 
Business Day.  If the Billing Statement indicates an amount due from Seller, then Seller shall remit 
such amount to Buyer by wire transfer (pursuant to Buyer’s instructions), in immediately available 
funds, on or before the later of (i) the 22nd day of the Month following the most recent Month to 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 25 

which such Billing Statement relates, or (ii) the 10th day following Seller’s receipt of Buyer’s 
Statement, or if either such day is not a Business Day, the preceding Business Day. 

(b) If Buyer fails to issue a Buyer’s Statement with respect to any Month, Seller 
shall not be required to estimate any amounts due to Buyer for such Month, provided that Buyer 
may include any such amount on subsequent Buyer’s Statements issued within the next sixty 
(60) days.  The sixty (60)-day deadline in this subsection (b) replaces the two (2)-year deadline in 
Section 14.5 with respect to any claim by any non-delivering Party of inaccuracy in any estimated 
invoice issued or payment made pursuant to this subsection (b). 

Section 14.3 Payment of Disputed Amounts.  If Seller disputes any amounts 
included in the Buyer’s Statement, Seller shall (a) (except in the case of manifest error) nonetheless 
calculate the Billing Statement based on the amounts included in Buyer’s Statement and (b) pay 
any amount required by the Billing Statement in accordance with Section 14.2 without regard to 
any right of set-off, counterclaim, recoupment or other defenses to payment that Seller may have; 
provided, however, that Seller shall have the right, after payment, to dispute any amounts included 
in a Buyer’s Statement or otherwise used to calculate payments due under this Agreement pursuant 
to Section 14.5(b).  If Buyer disputes any amounts included in the Billing Statement, Buyer may 
withhold payment to the extent of the disputed amount; provided, however, that interest shall be 
due at the Default Rate for any withheld amount later found to have been properly due. 

Section 14.4 Late Payment.  If a Party owing a net payment under Section 14.2 
fails to remit the full amount payable when due, interest on the unpaid portion shall accrue from 
the date due until the date of payment at the Default Rate. 

Section 14.5 Audit; Adjustments.   

(a) A Party shall have the right, at its own expense, upon reasonable notice to 
the other Party and at reasonable times, to examine and audit and to obtain copies of the relevant 
portion of the books, records, and telephone recordings of the other Party to the extent reasonably 
necessary, but only to such extent, to verify the accuracy of any statement, charge, payment, or 
computation made under this Agreement.  This right to examine, audit, and obtain copies shall not 
be available with respect to proprietary information not directly relevant to transactions under this 
Agreement. 

(b) Each Buyer’s Statement and each Billing Statement shall be conclusively 
presumed final and accurate and all associated claims for under- or overpayments shall be deemed 
waived unless such Buyer’s Statement or Billing Statement is objected to in writing, with adequate 
explanation and/or documentation, within two (2) years after the applicable Month of Energy 
delivery. 

(c) All retroactive adjustments shall be paid in full by the Party owing payment 
within 30 days of notice and substantiation of such inaccuracy.  If the Parties are unable to agree 
upon any retroactive adjustments requested by either Party within the time period specified in 
Section 14.5(b), then either Party may pursue any remedies available with respect to such 
adjustments at law or in equity.  Retroactive adjustments for payments made based on incorrect 
Buyer’s Statements or Billing Statements shall bear interest at the Default Rate from the date such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 26 

payment was made.  Buyer shall cause the Project Participant to comply with the provisions of 
Section 14.5(a) to the extent necessary to allow Seller to verify any amounts due under this 
Agreement. 

Section 14.6 Netting.  The Parties shall net all amounts due and owing, including 
any past due amounts (which, for the avoidance of doubt, shall include any accrued interest), 
arising under this Agreement such that the Party owing the greater amount shall make a single 
payment of the net amount to the other Party in accordance with this Article XIV.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, Seller shall not be entitled to net (i) any amounts that are in dispute or (ii) any 
payments due to Seller against (A) the Termination Payment if it becomes due, or (B) any 
payments due from Seller pursuant to Article IV, Article V or Exhibit C. 

ARTICLE XV. 
RECEIVABLES PURCHASES 

In accordance with the provisions of Exhibit G, Buyer shall put and Seller shall 
purchase certain Put Receivables (as defined in Exhibit G) from Buyer relating to payment defaults 
by the Specified Project Participant (as defined in Exhibit G). 

ARTICLE XVI. 
NOTICES 

Any notice, demand, or request required or authorized by this Agreement to be 
given by one Party to another Party shall be in writing and shall either be sent by electronic means, 
courier, or personally delivered (including overnight delivery service) to each of the notice 
recipients and addresses specified in Exhibit B for the receiving Party.  Any such notice, demand, 
or request shall be deemed to be given (i) on the date it is delivered by electronic means, or (ii) 
when actually received if delivered by courier or personal delivery (including overnight delivery 
service).  Each Party shall have the right, upon 10 days’ prior written notice to the other Party, to 
change its list of notice recipients and addresses in Exhibit B.  The Parties may mutually agree in 
writing at any time to deliver notices, demands or requests through alternate or additional methods.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Party may at any time notify the other Party that any notice, 
demand, statement or request to it must be provided by email transmission for a specified period 
of time or until further notice, and any communications delivered by means other than email 
transmission during the specified period of time shall be ineffective.   

ARTICLE XVII. 
DEFAULT; REMEDIES; TERMINATION 

Section 17.1 Seller Default.  Each of the following events shall constitute a 
“Seller Default” under this Agreement: 

(a) Seller fails to pay when due any amounts owed to Buyer pursuant to this 
Agreement and such failure continues for two Business Days after receipt by Seller of notice 
thereof, unless Morgan Stanley has made such payment under the Morgan Stanley Guarantee; 

(b) Seller: (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation 
or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in writing its 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 27 

inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes a general assignment, 
arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) institutes or has instituted 
against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under 
any bankruptcy or insolvency Law or other similar Law affecting creditors’ rights, or a petition is 
presented for its winding-up or liquidation, and, in the case of any such proceeding or petition 
instituted or presented against it, such proceeding or petition (A) results in a judgment of 
insolvency or bankruptcy or the entry of an order for relief or the making of an order for its 
winding-up or liquidation or (B) is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case 
within thirty (30) days of the institution or presentation thereof; (v) has a resolution passed for its 
winding-up, official management or liquidation (other than pursuant to a consolidation, 
amalgamation or merger); (vi) seeks or becomes subject to the appointment of an administrator, 
provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for 
all or substantially all of its assets; (vii) has a secured party take possession of all or substantially 
all of its assets or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other legal process levied, 
enforced or sued on or against all or substantially all of its assets and such secured party maintains 
possession, or any such process is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case 
within thirty (30) days thereafter; (viii) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, 
under the applicable Laws of any jurisdiction, has an analogous effect to any of the events specified 
in clauses (i) through (vii); or (ix) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, 
approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts; or 

(c) any representation or warranty made by Seller in this Agreement proves to 
have been incorrect in any material respect when made. 

Section 17.2 Buyer Default.  Each of the following events shall constitute a 
“Buyer Default” under this Agreement: 

(a) Buyer fails to pay when due any amounts owed to Seller pursuant to this 
Agreement and such failure continues for five Business Days after receipt by Buyer of notice 
thereof;  

(b) Buyer (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, 
amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in 
writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes a general assignment, 
arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) institutes or has instituted 
against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under 
any bankruptcy or insolvency Law or other similar Law affecting creditors’ rights, or a petition is 
presented for its winding-up or liquidation, and, in the case of any such proceeding or petition 
instituted or presented against it, such proceeding or petition (A) results in a judgment of 
insolvency or bankruptcy or the entry of an order for relief or the making of an order for its 
winding-up or liquidation or (B) is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case 
within 30 days of the institution or presentation thereof; (v) has a resolution passed for its winding-
up, official management or liquidation (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or 
merger); (vi) seeks or becomes subject to the appointment of an administrator, provisional 
liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or 
substantially all of its assets; (vii) has a secured party take possession of all or substantially all of 
its assets or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or other legal process levied, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 28 

enforced or sued on or against all or substantially all of its assets and such secured party maintains 
possession, or any such process is not dismissed, discharged, stayed or restrained, in each case 
within 30 days thereafter; (viii) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, under the 
applicable Laws of any jurisdiction, has an analogous effect to any of the events specified in 
clauses (i) through (vii); or (ix) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, 
approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts; or 

(c) any representation or warranty made by Buyer in this Agreement proves to 
have been incorrect in any material respect when made. 

Section 17.3 Non-Default Termination Events. 

(a) Each of the following events shall constitute an “Optional Non-Default 
Termination Event” under this Agreement: 

Termination 
Related to: 

Optional Non-Default 
Termination Event: 

Potential 
Terminating 

Party: 
   
Performance 
Prohibited by Law 

Any interpretation, enactment or change or 
amendment to any Governmental Approval or 
Law occurring after the Execution Date that 
results or would result in the performance of any 
obligation of Seller to deliver Energy or of Buyer 
to receive Energy under this Agreement being 
prohibited or unlawful. 

Each of Buyer or 
Seller 

   
   
Termination of 
Interest Rate Swap 
by Buyer 

Buyer designates an Early Termination Date (as 
defined in the Interest Rate Swap) pursuant to the 
terms of such Interest Rate Swap based on an 
Event of Default (as defined in such Interest Rate 
Swap) where Seller is the Defaulting Party. 

Buyer 

   
Termination of 
Interest Rate Swap 
by Buyer 

Buyer designates an Early Termination Date (as 
defined in the Interest Rate Swap) pursuant to such 
Interest Rate Swap for any reason other than that 
specified in the immediately preceding Optional 
Non-Default Termination Event. 

Buyer 

   
PSC Remarketing 
Election 

If the Project Participant makes a PSC 
Remarketing Elections for any Reset Period. 

Seller 

   
Termination of 
Power Supply 
Contract 

If the Power Supply Contract has been terminated 
or are otherwise no longer in effect as of the end 
of a Reset Period. 

Seller 

   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 29 

(b) Each of the following events shall constitute an “Automatic Non-Default 
Termination Event” under this Agreement: 

Termination 
Related to: 

Automatic Non-Default 
Termination Event: 

  
Termination of a Buyer 
Swap 

Both (A) an Early Termination Date (as defined in the Buyer Swap) 
is designated pursuant to the terms of the Buyer Swap for any reason 
or occurs automatically pursuant to the terms of the Buyer Swap 
based on an Event of Default or Termination Event (as each term is 
defined in the Buyer Swap), and (B) either the Seller Swap or the 
Buyer Swap is not replaced within the Swap Replacement Period. 

Termination of a Seller 
Swap for Seller Defaults 
and Termination Events 

Both (A) an Early Termination Date (as defined in the Seller Swap) 
is designated by the Swap Counterparty pursuant to the terms of the 
Seller Swap or occurs automatically pursuant to the terms of the 
Seller Swap based on an Event of Default where Seller is the 
Defaulting Party or a Termination Event where Seller is the sole 
Affected Party (as each term is defined in the Seller Swap), but 
excluding any termination as a result of the termination of this 
Agreement based on (i) a Buyer Default under Section 17.2 or (ii) an 
Optional Non-Default Termination Event under Section 17.3(a) 
where Seller is the Terminating Party and (B) except in the case of a 
Seller Specified Termination (as defined in Section 17.5(a) hereof), 
either such Seller Swap or the Buyer Swap is not replaced within the 
Swap Replacement Period. 

Termination of a Seller 
Swap for any Other 
Reason 

Both (A) an Early Termination Date is designated pursuant to the 
terms of the Seller Swap for any reason other than as specified in the 
immediately preceding Automatic Non-Default Termination Event 
and (B) either such Seller Swap or the Buyer Swap is not replaced 
within the Swap Replacement Period. 

Termination of Interest 
Rate Swap by Seller 

Seller designates an Early Termination Date (as defined in the 
Interest Rate Swap) for any reason under the Interest Rate Swap. 

  
Failed Remarketing A Failed Remarketing has occurred. 

Termination of Morgan 
Stanley Guarantee 

Both (A) Morgan Stanley has delivered a termination notice of the 
Morgan Stanley Guarantee pursuant to the terms thereof, and (B) no 
assignment has been effected pursuant to clause (c) of Article XIII 
prior to the end of the Reset Period during which such termination 
notice was delivered. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 30 

Termination 
Related to: 

Automatic Non-Default 
Termination Event: 

  
Morgan Stanley 
Guarantee Ceases to be 
in Full Force and Effect 

The Morgan Stanley Guarantee ceases to be in full force and effect 
or is declared to be null and void, or Morgan Stanley contests the 
validity or enforceability of the Morgan Stanley Guarantee; provided 
that, for avoidance of doubt, no such event will occur as a 
consequence of Morgan Stanley becoming subject to a receivership, 
insolvency, liquidation, resolution or similar proceeding. 

Remarketing 
Non-Default 
Termination Event 

The occurrence of a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event if, 
by the 90th day after such event, neither (i) Buyer and Seller have 
taken the actions described in Section 18.3(b), nor (ii) Buyer has 
otherwise received an Opinion of Bond Counsel (as defined in the 
Bond Indenture) that such event has not affected the tax-exempt 
status of the Bonds. 

  
Section 17.4 Remedies and Termination.  

(a) Default and Optional Non-Default Termination.  If at any time a Seller 
Default or a Buyer Default has occurred and is continuing or an Optional Non-Default Termination 
Event has occurred and is continuing, then the Terminating Party, by notice to the other Party 
specifying the relevant Seller Default, Buyer Default or Optional Non-Default Termination Event, 
may designate a day not earlier than the day such notice is deemed given under Article XVI as the 
Early Termination Date; provided, however, that: 

(i) an Early Termination Date shall occur as of the time immediately 
preceding the institution of the relevant proceeding or the presentation of the relevant 
petition upon the occurrence of a Seller Default specified in Section 17.1(b)(iv) or, to the 
extent analogous thereto, Section 17.1(b)(viii); 

(ii) with respect to an Optional Non-Default Termination Event related 
to the Buyer Swap, the Terminating Party may, at any time after the commencement of the 
Swap Replacement Period, conditionally designate an Early Termination Date, with such 
designation being conditioned upon (A) the termination and failure to replace either the 
Seller Swap or the Buyer Swap and (B) the Early Termination Date occurring no earlier 
than the end of such Swap Replacement Period; and 

(iii) with respect to an Optional Non-Default Termination Event related 
to the termination of the Power Supply Contract, if Seller exercises its termination right, 
the resulting Early Termination Date shall occur as of the end of the then-current Reset 
Period.  

(b) Automatic Non-Default Termination.  The Early Termination Date shall 
occur automatically upon the occurrence of any Automatic Non-Default Termination Event; 
provided, however, in the case of an Automatic Non-Default Termination Event resulting from a 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 31 

termination of the Morgan Stanley Guarantee, the Early Termination Date will occur as of the end 
of the last day in the then-current Reset Period. 

(c) Effect of Early Termination.  As of the Early Termination Date, (i) the 
Delivery Period shall end, (ii) the obligation of Seller to make any further deliveries of Energy to 
Buyer under this Agreement shall terminate, and (iii) the obligation of Buyer to receive deliveries 
of Energy from Seller under this Agreement will terminate. 

(d) Early Termination Payment Date.  (i) In the case of a Failed Remarketing, 
the last Business Day of the then-current Interest Rate Period, and (ii) in each other case, on the 
last Business Day of the first Month that commences after the Early Termination Date (the “Early 
Termination Payment Date”), Seller shall pay the Termination Payment to the Trustee pursuant to 
payment instructions issued by Buyer or, in the absence of such instructions, by wire transfer.  
Such amounts shall be paid together with interest thereon (before as well as after judgment) from 
(and including) the Early Termination Payment Date to (but excluding) the date such amount is 
paid, at the Default Rate.  The Parties acknowledge that it is impractical and difficult to assess 
actual damages as a result of a termination of this Agreement, and the Parties therefore agree that 
the payment of the Termination Payment is a fair and reasonable pre-estimate of the actual 
damages that would be incurred by Buyer as a result of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason and is not a penalty.  The obligation of Seller to pay the Termination Payment on the Early 
Termination Payment Date is unconditional, irrespective of the validity or enforceability of this 
Agreement or any other agreement contemplated hereby, any waiver or consent by Buyer or any 
other circumstances that might otherwise constitute a legal or equitable discharge of Seller or a 
defense of Seller to pay the Termination Payment.  Seller waives all rights to set-off, counterclaim, 
recoupment and any other defenses that might otherwise be available to Seller with regard to 
Seller’s obligation to pay the Termination Payment on the Early Termination Payment Date. 

(e) Exclusive Termination Rights.  Neither this Agreement nor the Delivery 
Period may be terminated for any reason except as specified in this Article XVII and in Section 
2.2.  Except with respect to amounts due for periods prior to termination, the payment of the 
Termination Payment shall be the sole and exclusive remedy for each Party upon the termination 
of the Delivery Period and this Agreement for any reason, including as a result of rejection of this 
Agreement by either Party in any bankruptcy proceedings. 

Section 17.5 Replacement of Swaps.  

(a) In the event that (i) any Buyer Swap or any Seller Swap terminates, (ii) any 
notice of termination is delivered by any party to a Buyer Swap or a Seller Swap, or (iii) any Buyer 
Swap or Seller Swap is otherwise reasonably anticipated to become subject to immediate 
termination, in each case for any reason other than a Seller Specified Termination or insolvency 
of either Buyer or Seller, then each Party whose swap is affected shall notify the other Party and 
the Parties shall cooperate in good faith for a period of 120 days (commencing no later than the 
date on which any notice of termination (or anticipated termination) is delivered by any party to a 
Buyer Swap or a Seller Swap) (such period, the “Swap Replacement Period”) to (x) cause the same 
Swap Counterparty whose Buyer Swap or Seller Swap has been terminated (or is anticipated to 
terminate) to terminate its unaffected Seller Swap or Buyer Swap, as applicable, and (y) locate 
replacement agreements with an alternate Swap Counterparty, to be mutually agreed upon by 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 32 

Buyer and Seller, to replace both the affected swap and the unaffected swap; provided, however, 
that neither Party shall be required to breach any obligation under the unaffected swap or to expend 
any amounts to cause the unaffected swap to be replaced or to cause an alternate counterparty to 
replace both swaps.  Neither Party shall terminate this Agreement as a result of the termination of 
any Seller Swap or any Buyer Swap without first complying with this Section 17.5. 

As used in this Section 17.5, the term “Seller Specified Termination” means a 
termination or potential termination of the Seller Swap due to (i) an Event of Default (as such term 
is defined in the Seller Swap) with respect to Seller pursuant to Section 5(a)(i) or 5(a)(iii) of the 
Seller Swap, in either case other than where (A) any such failure to pay or transfer was caused 
solely by error or omission of an administrative or operational nature; (B) funds were available to 
enable Seller to make such payment or transfer when due; and (C) such payment or transfer is 
made within two (2) Business Days of Seller’s receipt of written notice of its failure to pay or 
transfer, or (ii) an Event of Default (as such term is defined in the Seller Swap) with respect to 
Seller under Section 5(a)(viii) of the Seller Swap. 

(b) In the event of a termination (or anticipated termination) of the Seller Swap, 
if Seller (i) presents to Buyer a proposed alternate Swap Counterparty, (ii) requests in writing that 
Buyer enter into a replacement swap with such alternate Swap Counterparty, and (iii) agrees to 
pay Buyer’s reasonable expenses in connection therewith, Buyer shall (y) enter into a master 
agreement with such alternate Swap Counterparty and (z) either (A) terminate the Buyer Swap 
when permitted thereby and enter into a replacement transaction under such new master agreement 
to the same effect as the terminated Buyer Swap or (B) cause such Buyer Swap to be novated to 
such replacement Swap Counterparty, provided that, in each instance, such replacement Swap 
Counterparty, replacement master agreement and replacement transaction meet the requirements 
specified for such under the Bond Indenture.  Buyer shall not replace a Buyer Swap without 
Seller’s consent. 

(c) Each of Buyer and Seller agree that it will not enter into a replacement 
Buyer Swap or Seller Swap, as applicable, unless the other Party is replacing its Buyer Swap or 
Seller Swap, as applicable, with the same replacement Swap Counterparty. 

(d) In the event that the Seller Swap terminates or is no longer in effect and the 
MSES Payments Period (as defined in the Seller Custodial Agreement) is in effect, then, during 
such Prepaid Seller Payments Period, Seller shall comply with the terms of the Seller Custodial 
Agreement and make all payments as and when required under Section 3(e) of the Seller Custodial 
Agreement.  In the event that the Buyer Swap terminates or is no longer in effect and the Issuer 
Payments Period (as defined in the Buyer Custodial Agreement) is in effect, then, during such 
Issuer Payments Period, Buyer shall comply with the terms of the Buyer Custodial Agreement and 
make all payments as and when required under Section 3(e) of the Buyer Custodial Agreement.  
The Parties agree that during any MSES Payments Period (as defined in the Seller Custodial 
Agreement) and during any Issuer Payments Period (as defined in the Buyer Custodial 
Agreement), Seller shall act as calculation agent under the Seller Custodial Agreement or the 
Buyer Custodial Agreement, as applicable.  Seller agrees not to permit any amendment or other 
modification to the Seller Custodial Agreement that could adversely affect the right of Buyer to 
receive payments pursuant to Section 3(e) of the Seller Custodial Agreement.  Buyer agrees not to 
permit any amendment or other modification to the Buyer Custodial Agreement that could 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 33 

adversely affect the right of Seller to receive payments pursuant to Section 3(e) of the Buyer 
Custodial Agreement. 

Section 17.6 Limitation on Damages.  THE PARTIES CONFIRM THAT THE 
EXPRESS REMEDIES AND MEASURES OF DAMAGES PROVIDED IN THIS 
AGREEMENT SATISFY THE ESSENTIAL PURPOSES HEREOF.  FOR BREACH OF ANY 
PROVISION FOR WHICH AN EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES IS 
HEREIN PROVIDED, SUCH EXPRESS REMEDY OR MEASURE OF DAMAGES SHALL BE 
THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, THE OBLIGOR’S LIABILITY SHALL BE 
LIMITED AS SET FORTH IN SUCH PROVISION, AND ALL OTHER REMEDIES OR 
DAMAGES AT LAW OR IN EQUITY ARE WAIVED.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE 
LIABLE FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, OR INDIRECT 
DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS OR OTHER BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES, BY 
STATUTE, IN TORT OR CONTRACT, UNDER ANY INDEMNITY PROVISION, OR 
OTHERWISE.  IT IS THE INTENT OF THE PARTIES THAT THE LIMITATIONS HEREIN 
IMPOSED ON REMEDIES AND THE MEASURE OF DAMAGES BE WITHOUT REGARD 
TO THE CAUSE OR CAUSES RELATED THERETO, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION 
THE NEGLIGENCE OF EITHER PARTY, WHETHER SUCH NEGLIGENCE BE SOLE, 
JOINT OR CONCURRENT, OR ACTIVE OR PASSIVE.  TO THE EXTENT ANY DAMAGES 
REQUIRED TO BE PAID UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ARE LIQUIDATED, THE PARTIES 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE DAMAGES ARE DIFFICULT OR IMPOSSIBLE TO 
DETERMINE, OTHERWISE OBTAINING AN ADEQUATE REMEDY IS INCONVENIENT, 
AND THE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES CONSTITUTE A REASONABLE APPROXIMATION 
OF THE HARM OR LOSS.  IN DETERMINING THE APPROPRIATE MEASURE OF 
DAMAGES THAT WOULD MAKE THE PARTIES WHOLE, THE PARTIES HAVE 
THOROUGHLY CONSIDERED, INTER ALIA, THE UNCERTAINTY OF FLUCTUATIONS 
IN COMMODITY PRICES, THE ABILITY AND INTENTION OF THE PARTIES TO HEDGE 
SUCH FLUCTUATIONS, THE BARGAINED-FOR ALLOCATION OF RISK, THE 
KNOWLEDGE, SOPHISTICATION AND EQUAL BARGAINING POWER OF THE 
PARTIES, THE ARMS-LENGTH NATURE OF THE NEGOTIATIONS, THE SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS TRANSACTION, THE ACCOUNTING AND TAX 
TREATMENT OF THE TRANSACTION BY THE PARTIES, AND THE ENTERING INTO OF 
OTHER TRANSACTIONS IN RELIANCE ON THE ENFORCEABILITY OF THE 
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES PROVISIONS CONTAINED HEREIN.  THE PARTIES 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THIS IS A SALE OF GOODS SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 2 OF THE 
NEW YORK UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, §§ 
2-706(6), 2-711, 2-718, AND 2-719. 

Section 17.7 Option to Purchase Bonds.  In connection with any new Interest Rate 
Period established under the Bond Indenture after the initial Interest Rate Period, Seller shall have 
the option to purchase Bonds to be remarketed on the relevant Mandatory Purchase Date by 
delivering notice to Buyer and the Trustee no later than the last Business Day of the Reset Period 
that Seller will purchase a quantity of Bonds necessary to avoid the occurrence of a Failed 
Remarketing.  In the event that Seller exercises such option, (x) Seller will be obligated to pay the 
purchase price of such Bonds in immediately available funds on the Mandatory Purchase Date, 
and (y) to the extent a PSC Remarketing Election is in effect with respect to the Reset Period 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 34 

commencing immediately prior to such Interest Rate Period, then Seller shall be required to 
remarket the Contract Quantities associated with the PSC Remarketing Election, provided that: 

(a) Seller shall be entitled to purchase such Energy for its own account, 

(b) for all such Energy, regardless of how it is remarketed, Seller will pay Buyer 
the amount determined pursuant to Section 5(b)(v) of Exhibit C, and 

(c) to the extent that it is determined that interest on the Bonds purchased by 
Seller is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, Section 7 through 
Section 9 of Exhibit C shall not apply to any such remarketing. 

Section 17.8 Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule.  Seller shall prepare 
revisions to the then-current Exhibit D-1 (Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule) in 
connection with each successive Interest Rate Period pursuant to the terms of the Re-Pricing 
Agreement by delivering a revised Exhibit D-1 to Buyer no later than the last day of the applicable 
Reset Period, in which case such amendments will be effective as of the first day of the next 
Interest Rate Period. 

ARTICLE XVIII. 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 18.1 Indemnification Procedure.  With respect to each indemnification 
included in this Agreement, the indemnity is given to the fullest extent permitted by applicable 
Law and the following provisions shall be applicable.  The indemnified Party shall promptly notify 
the indemnifying Party in writing of any Claim and the indemnifying Party shall have the right to 
assume its investigation and defense, including employment of counsel, and shall be obligated to 
pay related court costs, attorneys’ fees and experts’ fees and to post any appeals bonds; provided, 
however, that the indemnified Party shall have the right to employ at its expense separate counsel 
and participate in the defense of any Claim.  The indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any 
settlement of a Claim without its express written consent thereto.  In order to prevent double 
recovery, the indemnified Party shall reimburse the indemnifying Party for payments or costs 
incurred in respect of an indemnity with the proceeds of any judgment, insurance, bond, surety or 
other recovery made by the indemnified Party with respect to a covered event. 

Section 18.2 Deliveries.  No later than delivery of the Prepayment, Buyer will 
deliver to Seller a copy of the Bond Indenture.  The following documents shall be delivered by the 
Parties contemporaneously with this Agreement (unless otherwise specified): 

(a) by Seller no later than the date of issuance of the Bonds, a Morgan Stanley 
Guarantee to Buyer guaranteeing Seller’s payment obligations under this Agreement to Buyer; 

(b) by Buyer, a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of Buyer 
setting forth (i) the resolutions of its governing body with respect to the authorization of Buyer to 
execute and deliver this Agreement, the Bond Indenture and the Power Supply Contract, (ii) the 
appropriate individuals who are authorized to sign such agreements, (iii) specimen signatures of 
such authorized individuals, and (iv) the organization documents of Buyer, certified as being true 
and complete;  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 35 

(c) by Seller, evidence reasonably satisfactory to Buyer of (i) Seller’s authority 
to execute and deliver this Agreement and (ii) the appropriate individuals who are authorized to 
sign this Agreement; and 

(d) at Seller’s request at any time, Buyer shall provide Seller with a valid sales 
tax exemption certificate and any other required exemption or resale certificate in jurisdictions 
where sales of Energy occur under this Agreement to the extent such a certificate can be obtained 
and is necessary for exemption from any relevant state taxes that may be levied against the Parties 
in relation to the transactions under, or pursuant, to this Agreement. 

Section 18.3 Entirety; Amendments.  

(a) This Agreement and the Re-Pricing Agreement, including the exhibits and 
attachments hereto and thereto, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes 
all prior discussions and agreements between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof 
and thereof.  There are no prior or contemporaneous agreements or representations affecting the 
same subject matter other than those expressed herein and in the Re-Pricing Agreement.  Except 
for any matters that, in accordance with the express provisions of this Agreement, may be resolved 
by oral agreement between the Parties, no amendment, modification or change herein shall be 
enforceable unless reduced to writing and executed by both Parties. 

(b) If a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event occurs, then Buyer and 
Seller may, upon mutual agreement in each Party’s sole discretion, amend this Agreement to 
reduce the Contract Quantity for one or more subsequent Months and to obligate Seller to pay the 
Trustee for the account of Buyer, an amount sufficient, together with other funds available under 
the terms of the Bond Indenture for such purpose, to pay the redemption price of the Bonds to be 
redeemed on such redemption date and any settlement payable by Buyer due to the corresponding 
amendment to the Buyer Swap and the Interest Rate Swap, and Buyer and Seller may 
simultaneously amend Exhibit D to reduce the Termination Payment for one or more such Months, 
but in each case only if Buyer and Seller have delivered to the Trustee: 

(i) An executed counterpart of such amendment; 

(ii) An executed counterpart of an amendment to the Power Supply 
Contract reducing the Contract Quantity to be sold and delivered thereunder in the same 
Months by the same quantities; 

(iii) An executed counterpart of an amendment to the Buyer Swap 
reducing the notional amounts thereunder for the same Months by the same quantities; 

(iv) An executed counterpart of an amendment to the Interest Rate Swap 
reducing the notional amounts thereunder in each subsequent Month by the amount by 
which the principal amount of the Bonds of the related series scheduled to remain 
outstanding in such Month will be reduced as a result of such redemption; 

(v) The revised schedules and notices required by Section 2.01(c) of the 
Bond Indenture in connection with any related partial redemption; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 36 

(vi) An Accountant’s Certificate (as defined in the Bond Indenture) to 
the effect that each of (A) the scheduled Termination Payments for this Agreement for each 
Month thereafter is equal to or exceeds the aggregate principal amount of and interest on 
the Bonds scheduled to remain outstanding at the beginning of such Month, assuming that 
the Bonds are redeemed in accordance with the Bond Indenture, less the scheduled balance 
of the Debt Service Fund (as defined in the Bond Indenture) at the end of such Month and 
(B) the expected cashflow to the Trust Estate (as defined in the Bond Indenture) is 
sufficient to meet the ongoing debt service for the Bonds scheduled to remain outstanding;  

(vii) The accompanying Opinion of Bond Counsel (as defined in the 
Bond Indenture) required by Section 2.03(c) of the Bond Indenture for such redemption; 
and 

(viii) A Rating Confirmation (as defined in the Bond Indenture) in respect 
of such amendments and redemption. 

Section 18.4 Governing Law.  THIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND 
DUTIES OF THE PARTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND 
CONSTRUED, ENFORCED AND PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF 
THE STATE OF NEW YORK, WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW 
PRINCIPLE THAT WOULD DIRECT THE APPLICATION OF ANOTHER JURISDICTION’S 
LAW; PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT THE AUTHORITY OF BUYER TO ENTER INTO 
AND PERFORM ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE 
DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA. 

Section 18.5 Non-Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any of the terms of this 
Agreement shall be effective unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the Party granting such 
waiver.  No waiver of any breach shall be deemed a waiver of any other subsequent breach. 

Section 18.6 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement, or the application 
thereof, shall for any reason be invalid or unenforceable, then to the extent of such invalidity or 
unenforceability, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to other 
Persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby, but rather shall be enforced to the maximum 
extent permissible under applicable Law, so long as the economic and legal substance of the 
transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any materially adverse manner as to either 
Party. 

Section 18.7 Exhibits.  Any and all Exhibits referenced in this Agreement are 
hereby incorporated herein by reference and shall be deemed to be an integral part hereof. 

Section 18.8 Winding Up Arrangements.  All indemnity and confidentiality 
obligations, audit rights, and other provisions specifically providing for survival shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement.  The expiration or termination of this Agreement shall 
not relieve either Party of (a) any unfulfilled obligation or undischarged liability of such Party on 
the date of such termination or (b) the consequences of any breach or default of any warranty or 
covenant contained in this Agreement.  All obligations and liabilities described in the preceding 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 37 

sentence of this Section 18.8, and applicable provisions of this Agreement creating or relating to 
such obligations and liabilities, shall survive such expiration or termination. 

Section 18.9 Relationships of Parties.  The Parties shall not be deemed to be in a 
relationship of partners or joint venturers by virtue of this Agreement, nor shall either Party be an 
agent, representative, trustee or fiduciary of the other, except that Seller shall act on behalf of 
Buyer in remarketing Energy pursuant to Exhibit C.  Neither Party shall have any authority to bind 
the other to any agreement.  This Agreement is intended to secure and provide for the services of 
each Party as an independent contractor. 

Section 18.10 Immunity.  Buyer represents and covenants to and agrees with Seller 
that it is not entitled to and shall not assert the defense of sovereign immunity with respect to its 
obligations or any Claims under this Agreement. 

Section 18.11 Rates and Indices.  

(a) Commodity Reference Prices. 

(i) Price Replacement Process for Energy.  If a Daily Commodity 
Reference Price for Energy is not available for any Hour but such Daily Commodity 
Reference Price has not permanently ceased to be published, then the Parties shall promptly 
endeavor to agree on an alternative source for determination of such Daily Commodity 
Reference Price for the applicable Hours.  If such agreement is not reached by the Parties 
within three (3) Business Days, the Parties shall request quotations for the applicable Daily 
Commodity Reference Price from four (4) recognized dealers in the applicable commodity 
(two (2) selected by each Party) for the period that such Daily Commodity Reference Price 
is expected to be unavailable.  If four (4) quotations are provided as requested, the 
applicable Daily Commodity Reference Price for the applicable Hours shall be the 
arithmetic mean of the quotations provided by each recognized dealer after disregarding 
the quotations having the highest and lowest values; provided that, if more than one (1) 
quotation has the same value, then one (1) of such quotations shall be disregarded.  If 
exactly three (3) quotations are provided, the applicable Daily Commodity Reference Price 
for the applicable Hours shall be the quotation provided by the relevant dealer that remains 
after disregarding the quotations having the highest and lowest values; provided that, if 
more than one (1) quotation has the same value, then the value of the two (2) quotations 
with the same value shall control.  If fewer than three (3) quotations are provided, the 
Parties shall seek additional quotations until at least three (3) have been received. 

(ii) Price Replacement Process for Non-Published Index.  If a Daily 
Commodity Reference Price is not available because it has permanently ceased to be 
published, then the Parties shall promptly endeavor to agree on an alternative source for 
determination of such Daily Commodity Reference Price, which may include agreeing 
upon a published index or a basket of published indices (“Daily Replacement Index”) from 
which to seek quotes for basis differentials as the replacement for the applicable Daily 
Commodity Reference Price.  If such agreement is not reached by the Parties within three 
(3) Business Days, then the Daily Replacement Index shall be selected by Seller, acting 
reasonably.  The Parties shall request quotations from four (4) recognized dealers in the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 38 

applicable commodity (two (2) selected by each Party) for a basis differential (“Daily Basis 
Differential”) between the Daily Replacement Index and physical prices at the relevant 
Delivery Point for the remaining term of this Agreement.  If four (4) quotations are 
provided as requested, the Daily Basis Differential will be the arithmetic mean of the 
quotations provided by each recognized dealer, after disregarding the quotations having 
the highest and lowest values; provided that, if more than one (1) quotation has the same 
value, then one (1) of such quotations shall be disregarded.  If exactly three (3) quotations 
are provided, the Daily Basis Differential shall be the quotation provided by the relevant 
dealer that remains after disregarding the quotations having the highest and lowest values; 
provided that, if more than one (1) quotation has the same value, then the value of the two 
(2) quotations with the same value shall control.  If fewer than three (3) quotations are 
provided, the Parties shall seek additional quotations until at least three (3) have been 
received.  The applicable Daily Commodity Reference Price shall be the Daily 
Replacement Index plus the Daily Basis Differential calculated in accordance with the 
provisions of this clause (iii). 

(b) Corrections.  If a value published for any rate or index used or to be used in 
this Agreement is subsequently corrected and the correction is published or announced by the 
Person responsible for that publication or announcement within thirty (30) days after the original 
publication or announcement, either Party may notify the other Party of (i) that correction and 
(ii) the amount (if any) that is payable as a result of that correction.  If, not later than thirty (30) 
days after publication or announcement of that correction, a Party gives notice that an amount is 
so payable, the Party that originally either received or retained such amount shall, not later than 
three (3) Business Days after the effectiveness of that notice, pay, subject to any other applicable 
provisions of this Agreement, to the other Party that amount, together with interest on that amount 
at the Default Rate for the period from and including the day on which a payment originally was 
(or was not) made to but excluding the day of payment of the refund or payment resulting from 
that correction. 

Section 18.12 Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
herein, all obligations of Buyer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations 
to make payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of Buyer payable solely 
from Trust Estate (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) as and to the extent provided in 
the Bond Indenture, including with respect to Operating Expenses (as such term is defined in the 
Bond Indenture).  Buyer shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from any source 
other than the Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) and other assets pledged 
under the Bond Indenture for any of the purposes in this Agreement mentioned.  Neither the faith 
and credit of Buyer nor the taxing power of the State of California or any political subdivision 
thereof is pledged to payments pursuant to this Agreement.  Buyer shall not be directly, indirectly, 
contingently or otherwise liable for any costs, expenses, losses, damages, claims or actions, of any 
conceivable kind on any conceivable theory, under or by reasons of or in connection with this 
Agreement, except solely to the extent Revenues (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) 
are received for the payment thereof and may be applied therefor pursuant to the terms of the Bond 
Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 39 

Section 18.13 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed and acknowledged 
in multiple counterparts and by the Parties in separate counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original and all of which shall be and constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 18.14 Rights of Trustee.  Pursuant to the terms of the Bond Indenture, 
Buyer has irrevocably appointed the Trustee as its agent to issue notices (including Remarketing 
Notices, Call Option Notices, Put Option Notices and Repurchase Offers) and, as directed under 
the Bond Indenture, to take any other actions that Buyer is required or permitted to take under this 
Agreement.  Seller may rely on notices or other actions taken by Buyer or the Trustee and Seller 
has the right to exclusively rely on any notices delivered by the Trustee that the Trustee is 
authorized to deliver under the Bond Indenture, regardless of any conflicting notices that it may 
receive from Buyer. 

Section 18.15 Waiver of Defenses.  Seller waives all rights to set-off, 
counterclaim, recoupment and any other defenses that might otherwise be available to Seller with 
regard to Seller’s obligations pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 18.16 U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties agree that (i) to the extent that 
prior to the date hereof the Parties hereto have adhered to the 2018 ISDA U.S. Resolution Stay 
Protocol (the “Protocol”), the terms of the Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this 
Agreement, and for such purposes this Agreement shall be deemed a Protocol Covered Agreement 
and each Party shall be deemed to have the same status as Regulated Entity or Adhering Party as 
applicable to it under the Protocol; (ii) to the extent that prior to the date hereof the Parties have 
executed a separate agreement the effect of which is to amend the qualified financial contracts 
between them to conform with the requirements of the QFC Stay Rules (the “Bilateral 
Agreement”), the terms of the Bilateral Agreement are incorporated into and form a part of this 
Agreement and for such purposes each Party shall be deemed to have the same status as “Covered 
Entity”, “Counterparty Entity” or “Client Entity” (or other similar term) as applicable to it under 
the Bilateral Agreement; or (iii) if clause (i) and clause (ii) do not apply, the terms of Section 1 
and Section 2 and the related defined terms (together, the “Bilateral Terms”) of the form of bilateral 
template entitled “Full-Length Omnibus (for use between U.S. G-SIBs and Corporate Groups)” or 
the “Agency Version of Omnibus Agreement (for use with U.S. G-SIBs)”, as applicable, published 
by ISDA on November 2, 2018 (currently available on the 2018 ISDA U.S. Resolution Stay 
Protocol page at www.isda.org), the effect of which is to amend the qualified financial contracts 
between the Parties thereto to conform with the requirements of the QFC Stay Rules, are hereby 
incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement, and for such purposes this Agreement shall 
be deemed a “Covered Agreement,” Seller shall be deemed a “Covered Entity” and Buyer shall be 
deemed a “Counterparty Entity” (or “Client Entity” for the Agency version, as applicable).  In the 
event that, after the date of this Agreement, the Parties hereto become adhering Parties to the 
Protocol, the terms of the Protocol will replace the terms of this section.  In the event of any 
inconsistencies between this Agreement and the terms of the Protocol, the Bilateral Agreement or 
the Bilateral Terms (each, the “QFC Stay Terms”), as applicable, the QFC Stay Terms will govern.  
Terms used in this paragraph without definition shall have the meanings assigned to them under 
the QFC Stay Rules.  For purposes of this paragraph, references to “this Agreement” include any 
related credit enhancements entered into between the Parties, directly or indirectly through an 
agent, or provided by one to the other.  In addition, the Parties agree that the terms of this paragraph 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 40 

shall be incorporated into any related covered affiliate credit enhancements, as applicable, with all 
references to Seller replaced by references to the covered affiliate support provider. 

“QFC Stay Rules” means the regulations codified at 12 C.F.R. 252.2, 252.81–8, 12 C.F.R. 382.1-
7 and 12 C.F.R. 47.1-8, which, subject to limited exceptions, require an express recognition of the 
stay-and-transfer powers of the FDIC under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act and the Orderly 
Liquidation Authority under Title II of the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act and the override of default rights related directly or indirectly to the entry of an 
affiliate into certain insolvency proceedings and any restrictions on the transfer of any covered 
affiliate credit enhancements.   

Section 18.17 Rate Changes.   

(a) Absent the agreement of the Parties to the proposed change, the standard of 
review for changes to any rate, charge, classification, term or condition of this Agreement, whether 
proposed by a Party (to the extent that any waiver in Section 18.17(b) below is unenforceable or 
ineffective as to such Party), a non-party or FERC acting sua sponte, shall solely be the “public 
interest” application of the “just and reasonable” standard of review set forth in United Gas Pipe 
Line Co. v. Mobile Gas Service Corp., 350 U.S. 332 (1956) and Federal Power Commission v. 
Sierra Pacific Power Co., 350 U.S. 348 (1956) and clarified by Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc. 
v. Public Util. Dist. No. 1 of Snohomish, 554 U.S. 527 (2008). 

(b) In addition, and notwithstanding Section 18.17(a), to the fullest extent 
permitted by applicable Law, each Party, for itself and its successors and assigns, hereby expressly 
and irrevocably waives any rights it can or may have, now or in the future, whether under Section 
205 and/or 206 of the Federal Power Act or otherwise, to seek to obtain from FERC by any means, 
directly or indirectly (through complaint, investigation or otherwise), and each hereby covenants 
and agrees not at any time to seek to so obtain, an order from FERC changing any section of this 
Agreement specifying the rate, charge, classification, or other term or condition agreed to by the 
Parties, it being the express intent of the Parties that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable 
Law, neither Party shall unilaterally seek to obtain from FERC any relief changing the rate, charge, 
classification, or other term or condition of this Agreement, notwithstanding any subsequent 
changes in applicable Law or market conditions that may occur.  In the event it were to be 
determined that applicable Law precludes the Parties from waiving their rights to seek changes 
from FERC to their market-based power sales contracts (including entering into covenants not to 
do so) then this Section 18.17(b) shall not apply, provided that, consistent with Section 18.17(a), 
neither Party shall seek any such changes except solely under the “public interest” application of 
the “just and reasonable” standard of review and otherwise as set forth in Section 18.17(a). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement to be duly executed and delivered by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized 
as of the date first above written. 

[Separate Signature Page(s) Attached] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

Signature Page to Prepaid Agreement 

MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 

By: _____________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

Signature Page to Prepaid Agreement 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

By: _____________________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

A-1 

EXHIBIT A-1 
BASE ENERGY HOURLY QUANTITIES 

[To come.]  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

A-2 

EXHIBIT A-2 
EPS ENERGY PERIOD MONTHLY QUANTITY 

[To come.]  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

A-3 

 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

B 

EXHIBIT B 

NOTICES 

 
IF TO SELLER: Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. 
 1585 Broadway 
 New York, NY 10036-8293 
  
General Notices: Attn:  Miscellaneous Notices 

Phone:  914-225-1548 
Email: [____] 

 

  
Scheduling: Attn: Natgas Schedulers, Steve Zanon 

Phone:  914-225-5483 
Mobile:  914-327-1543 
Email: natgas_schedulers@morganstanley.com 
Email: Steven.Zanon@morganstanley.com   

  
Payments/Invoicing/ 
Statements: 

Attn:  Manager, Natural Gas Ops 
Phone:  443-627-6673 
Fax:  914-750-1494 
Email:  physngsettle@morganstanley.com 

 

 
IF TO BUYER: California Community Choice Financing Authority 

1125 Tamalpais Avenue 
San Rafael, CA 94901 
Email: [____] 
 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-1 

EXHIBIT C 
 

COMMODITY REMARKETING 

Section 1. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this 
Exhibit shall have the meanings given to such terms in this Agreement, unless otherwise indicated.  
The following terms, when used in this Exhibit C and identified by the capitalization of the first 
letter thereof, have the respective meanings set forth below, unless the context otherwise requires: 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

“Daily Remarketing Notice” has the meaning specified in Section 3(c) of this Exhibit C. 

“Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund” means an account established under the Bond 
Indenture into which Buyer shall deposit the amounts specified in Section 5(b) of this Exhibit C. 

“Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger” has the meaning specified in Section 9(a) of 
this Exhibit C. 

“Expired Private Business Sales Ledger” has the meaning specified in Section 9(a) of this 
Exhibit C. 

“Ledger Entry” has the meaning specified in Section 7(d) of this Exhibit C. 

“Minimum Remarketing Sales Price” is an amount determined for Energy by the following 
formula: 

MRSP = RRPP - (RRPP x (RRF/CLB)) 

Where: 

MRSP = The Minimum Remarketing Sales Price for one MWh 

RRPP = The Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price for one MWh 

RRF = The balance of the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund 

CLB = The combined cash balance of the Non-Private Business Sales 
Ledger and the Private Business Sales Ledger 

“Monthly Discount” has the meaning specified in the Power Supply Contract. 

“Monthly Remarketing Notice” has the meaning specified in Section 3(b) of this Exhibit C. 

“Municipal Utility” means any Person that (a) (i) is a “governmental person” as defined in 
Treasury Regulation Section 1.141-1(b) and (ii) owns an electric distribution utility (or provides 
Energy at wholesale to entities described in clause (i) that own such utilities) or (b) is a community 
choice aggregator organized under the Laws of the State of California.  Buyer may from time to 
time revise the definition of “Municipal Utility” to conform to the applicable provisions of the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-2 

Code or Treasury Regulations by delivery of written notice to Seller setting forth the revised 
definition together with a Tax Opinion. 

“Net Participant Price” means, with respect to the Project Participant, the Contract Index 
Price less the Monthly Discount.  

“Non-Private Business Remarketing Proceeds” means all proceeds received by Buyer 
under Section 5 of this Exhibit C from Seller’s remarketing of Energy in any Non-Private Business 
Sale.  

“Non-Private Business Sale” means a sale (other than a Qualified Sale) of Energy to a 
“governmental person” as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.141-1(b) that in each case 
agrees in writing to not use any part of such Energy for a Private Business Use. 

“Non-Private Business Sales Ledger” has the meaning specified in Section 7(a) of this 
Exhibit C. 

“Non-Qualifying Remarketing Limit” means a quantity of Energy, in MWhs, equal to 10% 
of the total quantity of Energy, in MWhs, to be delivered hereunder, as such Non-Qualifying 
Remarketing Limit may be increased from time to time upon receipt by Buyer and Seller of a Tax 
Opinion setting forth a higher Non-Qualifying Remarketing Limit 

“Private Business Remarketing Limit” means a quantity of Energy in MWhs equal to (a) 
$15,000,000, divided by (b) the Specified Fixed Price, as such Private Business Remarketing Limit 
may be increased from time to time upon receipt by Buyer and Seller of a Tax Opinion setting 
forth a higher Private Business Remarketing Limit.  

“Private Business Remarketing Proceeds” means all proceeds received by Buyer under 
Section 5 of this Exhibit C from Seller’s remarketing of Energy in any Private Business Sale 
(including the purchase of such Energy by Seller for its own account). 

“Private Business Sale” means any sale of Energy other than in a Non-Private Business 
Sale or a Qualified Sale. 

“Private Business Sales Ledger” has the meaning specified in Section 7(b) of this 
Exhibit C. 

“Private Business Use” has the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 141 of the Code. 

“Qualified Sale” means the sale of Energy to a Municipal Utility that agrees in writing (i) 
to use all of such Energy for a Qualifying Use that is not a Private Business Use and (ii) not to 
count any purchase of such Energy towards any remediation obligations such Municipal Utility 
may have with respect to proceeds received from the sale of property purchased with tax-exempt 
financing proceeds. 

“Qualifying Use” with respect to Energy has the meaning ascribed to such term in Treasury 
Regulations Section 1.148-1(e)(2)(iii)(A)(2) or (B)(2), as applicable. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-3 

“Remarketing Fee” means the amount specified in Exhibit F of this Agreement. 

“Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event” has the meaning specified in Section 9(c) 
of this Exhibit C. 

“Remarketing Notice” means either a Daily Remarketing Notice or a Monthly Remarketing 
Notice. 

“Remediation Remarketing” means the remarketing of Energy in Qualified Sales by Seller 
pursuant to Section 8 of this Exhibit C in an effort to reduce to zero (0) any Ledger Entry balances 
in either the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger or the Private Business Sales Ledger. 

“Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price” has the meaning specified in Section 8(b)(ii) 
of this Exhibit C. 

“Tax Opinion” means an Opinion of Bond Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture) to 
the effect that an action proposed to be taken is not prohibited by the Bond Indenture or the Laws 
of the United States and will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes of interest on any Bonds the interest on which is intended to be excluded from 
such gross income under Section 103(a) of the Code. 

“Treasury Regulations” means the U.S. Treasury Regulations under the Code. 

Section 2. Buyer’s Right and Obligation to Request Remarketing.  Buyer may, and, if 
required to do so under the Bond Indenture or the terms of this Agreement shall, request Seller to 
remarket, pursuant to this Exhibit C, all or a specified part of the Contract Quantities for any 
Delivery Point. 

Section 3. Remarketing Notice. 

(a) Generally.  To request remarketing under this Exhibit C, Buyer must issue 
a Remarketing Notice, which Remarketing Notice must state as applicable (i) the portion of the 
Contract Quantity to be remarketed from each relevant Delivery Point, and (ii) the Delivery Hours 
in which such portion of the Contract Quantity is to be remarketed. 

(b) Monthly Remarketing Notice. Buyer may designate a Remarketing Notice 
as a “Monthly Remarketing Notice” if the Remarketing Notice is delivered to Seller not later than 
three (3) Business Days prior to the start of the first Month in which it applies and applies to a 
period of one (1) Month or more; provided furthermore that, in the event Seller is obligated to 
remarket Base Quantities under Section 3.3 of the Agreement, Buyer shall be deemed to have 
delivered a Monthly Remarketing Notice with respect thereto.   

(c) Daily Remarketing Notice. Buyer may designate a Remarketing Notice as 
a “Daily Remarketing Notice” if the Remarketing Notice is delivered to Seller not later than three 
(3) Business Days prior to the Business Day in which it applies.   

Section 4. Seller’s Remarketing Obligations Generally. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-4 

(a) All Energy remarketed by Seller pursuant to this Exhibit C shall be for the 
benefit of Buyer, meaning all remarketed Energy shall first be sold by Seller to Buyer and then 
resold by or for the account of Buyer pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Exhibit C. 

(b) Seller may act directly as principal to the remarketing buyer or may cause a 
supplier to Seller to act directly as principal to the remarketing buyer.  Neither Seller nor any 
Person acting on Seller’s behalf shall owe any fiduciary duties to Buyer with respect to the 
remarketing of any Energy.  Buyer acknowledges and agrees that Seller or a Person acting on 
Seller’s behalf in remarketing Energy may have other supplies of Energy available to sell to 
potential remarketing buyers, and Energy designated for remarketing shall not be entitled to any 
preference over any such other supplies of Energy. 

(c) Seller shall prepare, maintain and provide Monthly to Buyer accurate and 
complete records showing (i) the identity of each purchaser in a Qualified Sale, a Non-Private 
Business Sale, or a Private Business Sale undertaken by Seller on Buyer’s behalf, (ii) the aggregate 
amount of Energy remarketed under this Agreement in Qualified Sales, (iii) the aggregate amount 
of Energy remarketed under this Agreement in Non-Private Business Sales, and (iv) the aggregate 
amount of Energy remarketed under this Agreement in Private Business Sales. 

(d) Any amounts due to Buyer for Energy remarketed by Seller or purchased 
by Seller under this Exhibit C shall be remitted to Buyer pursuant to Section 14.2 of this Agreement 
in the Month following the Month in which such Energy is remarketed or purchased, as applicable. 

Section 5. Remarketing. 

(a) Remarketing of Assigned Energy.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary herein, if the Monthly Quantity of Energy exceeds the quantity of Assigned Energy 
actually delivered in any Month, then (i) Buyer will be deemed to have requested for Seller to 
remarket the Assigned Energy not delivered (regardless of whether a Monthly Remarketing Notice 
or Daily Remarketing Notice was delivered) and (ii) Seller shall sell such Energy or cause such 
Energy to be sold in a Private Business Sale at a price not less than (A) the Day-Ahead Market 
Price during the Initial EPS Energy Period and (B) the Day-Ahead Average Price during any EPS 
Energy Period subsequent to the Initial EPS Energy Period.  Seller shall pay Buyer for any such 
Month the product of (I) the Monthly Quantity of Energy, less the amount of Assigned Energy 
actually delivered, multiplied by (II) the applicable price (as determined under the immediately 
preceding sentence).  All such sales shall constitute a Private Business Sale and shall be reflected 
on the Private Business Sales Ledger.  Buyer shall notify Seller if and to the extent the proceeds 
from such Private Business Sales are applied to amounts owed by the Project Participant pursuant 
to Section 7.5 of the Power Supply Contract, and, to the extent so applied, such proceeds shall 
remediate such Private Business Sales and be entered as debits on the Private Business Sales 
Ledger. 

(b) Remarketing of Base Energy.  The following provisions shall apply to the 
remarketing of Base Energy by Seller: 

(i) Seller shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remarket or 
cause to be remarketed all Base Energy specified for remarketing.  In exercising such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-5 

Commercially Reasonable Efforts, Seller shall first attempt to remarket or cause to be 
remarketed all Energy specified in a Remarketing Notice in Qualified Sales and then, if 
Seller is unable to so remarket all of such Energy for such purposes, in Non-Private 
Business Sales.  If Seller is unable to remarket all or any portion of the Energy designated 
in a Remarketing Notice, then Seller shall purchase such Energy for its own account at the 
prices set forth in Section 5(b)(v) of this Exhibit C as if such Energy had been remarketed 
to it. 

(ii) Seller shall not be required to remarket any Base Energy at a net 
price to Seller (after deducting all transportation and transmission costs and all other costs) 
that is anticipated to be less than: 

A. the Day-Ahead Market Price applicable to such Energy in 
the case of a Monthly Remarketing Notice, or  

B. the Real-Time Market Price applicable to such Energy in the 
case of a Daily Remarketing Notice. 

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary herein, 
provided that (A) the Project Participant is not in default under its Power Supply Contract, 
(B) such Project Participant has exercised Commercially Reasonable Efforts (as 
determined by Special Tax Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture)) to obtain EPS 
Compliant Energy for delivery hereunder consistent with the Assignment Letter 
Agreement and (C) Seller is remarketing such Project Participant’s portion of the Contract 
Quantity because an EPS Energy Period is not in effect, then: 

A. Seller shall purchase Energy for its own account and shall 
pay Buyer the product of (A) the quantity of such Energy purchased for its own 
account and (B) the Day-Ahead Market Price; 

B. Proceeds received by Buyer under this Section 5(b)(iii) that 
exceed the amount Buyer would have received for the same quantity of Energy at 
the Net Participant Price shall be deposited in the Participant Rebate Account (as 
defined in the Bond Indenture) of the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund;  

C. the Project Participant shall be required under Section 7.5 of 
the Power Supply Contract to exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to 
purchase Energy for a Qualifying Use to remediate any Ledger Entry resulting from 
Seller’s purchase of Energy; and  

D. if any Ledger Entry has not been reversed within twelve 
Months of the date of any such Ledger Entry, Seller thereafter shall exercise 
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate any such Ledger Entry by making 
a Qualified Sale to the Project Participant or any other Municipal Utility; 

provided that, to the extent Special Tax Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture) 
determines at any time the Project Participant has failed to exercise Commercially 
Reasonable Efforts to obtain EPS Compliant Energy for delivery hereunder 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-6 

consistent with the applicable Assignment Letter Agreement, the provisions of this 
Section 5(b)(iii) shall not apply and any Ledger Entries resulting from Seller’s 
remarketing of Base Energy in such case may not be remediated by Project 
Participant. 

(iv) Proceeds from Qualified Sales and Non-Private Business Sales. 

A. For any Energy specified in a Monthly Remarketing Notice 
that Seller remarkets in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall 
deliver to Buyer the actual proceeds less the Remarketing Fee per MWh sold, 
provided that the aggregate amount delivered by Seller under this clause (A) for 
any Month shall not be less than the aggregate quantity so remarketed during such 
Month multiplied by the Net Participant Price. 

B. For any Energy specified in a Daily Remarketing Notice that 
Seller remarkets in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall 
deliver to Buyer the actual proceeds received with respect to such Energy less the 
Remarketing Fee per MWh sold provided that the aggregate amount delivered by 
Seller under this clause (B) for any such Energy shall not be less than the aggregate 
amount that would have been paid to Buyer under Section 5(b)(v)(B) of this Exhibit 
C (with respect to Energy specified in a Daily Remarketing Notice), in each case 
less the Monthly Discount per MWh. 

C. In the event the payment due date under a Qualified Sale or 
Non-Private Business Sale has not yet occurred prior to the date upon which 
payment is due under this Agreement for the applicable Month, the Parties shall 
nonetheless issue statements as if the full amount from such Qualified Sale or Non-
Private Business Sale had been paid and, if such full payment is not received prior 
to the next Monthly due date under this Agreement, the Parties shall issue the 
appropriate statements to reflect the actual proceeds received and true-up any 
difference. 

(v) Proceeds from Private Business Sales. 

A. For any Energy specified in a Monthly Remarketing Notice 
that is not remarketed in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall 
pay to Buyer the positive result determined by the following formula with respect 
to each Delivery Point to which such Monthly Remarketing Notice applied, 
provided that the aggregate amount delivered by Seller under this clause (A) for 
any Month shall not be less than the aggregate quantity so remarketed during such 
Month multiplied by the Net Participant Price: 

P = Q x (IP - RF) 

Where: 

P = The amount payable by Seller under this Section 5(b)(v)(A) 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-7 

Q = The quantity of such Energy remarketed with respect to such 
Delivery Point 

IP = The Contract Index Price for such Delivery Point 

RF = The Remarketing Fee 

B. For any Energy specified in a Daily Remarketing Notice that 
is not remarketed in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall pay 
to Buyer the positive result determined by the following formula with respect to 
each Delivery Point to which such Daily Remarketing Notice applied: 

P = Q x (IPL - RF) 

Where: 

P = The amount payable by Seller under this Section 5(b)(v)(B) 

Q = The quantity of such Energy remarketed with respect to such 
Delivery Point 

IPL = The Energy Real-Time Market Price for such Delivery Point 

RF = The Remarketing Fee 

(vi) Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund.  Any proceeds received by 
Buyer under this Section 5 for Energy remarketed in sales other than Qualified Sales that 
exceed the amount Buyer would have received for the same quantity of Energy at the Net 
Participant Price shall be deposited in the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund. 

Section 6. Reserved.   

Section 7. Tracking Remarketing Proceeds.  Seller shall maintain four (4) separate 
ledgers related to remarketing proceeds as described below: 

(a) One (1) ledger (the “Non-Private Business Sales Ledger”) shall include, 
(A) as dollar credits, the Non-Private Business Remarketing Proceeds, and (B) as a MWh credit, 
the MWhs corresponding to such Non-Private Business Remarketing Proceeds. 

(b) Another ledger (the “Private Business Sales Ledger”) shall include, (A) as 
dollar credits, Private Business Remarketing Proceeds, and (B) as a MWh credit, the MWhs 
corresponding to such Private Business Remarketing Proceeds. 

(c) The other two (2) ledgers shall be maintained as described in Section 9(a) 
of this Exhibit C. 

(d) The credits to be recorded in the ledgers described in Section 7(a) and (b) 
of this Exhibit C (collectively, the “Ledger Entries”) shall be dated as of the first day of the Month 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-8 

prior to the Month in which Buyer or Project Participant receives the proceeds corresponding to 
such Ledger Entries. 

(e) The four (4) ledgers described in this Section 7 of this Exhibit C and all 
debits and credits to such ledgers shall be kept on an aggregate basis for purposes of this Exhibit 
C. 

Section 8. Remediation Remarketing and Bond Redemptions. At any time that the net 
Ledger Entry balance of either the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger or the Private Business 
Sales Ledger is greater than zero (0): 

(a) Buyer shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to utilize the 
proceeds represented by the dollar balances of such Ledger Entries to purchase Energy for resale 
in Qualified Sales and shall promptly notify Seller following such purchase and sale. 

(b) Seller shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to locate 
opportunities for Buyer to purchase Energy to sell in Qualified Sales to remediate the proceeds 
represented by the dollar balances of the Ledger Entries.  In this regard, if Seller locates a 
Remediation Remarketing opportunity, then 

(i) Seller shall notify Buyer of such opportunity; 

(ii) Buyer shall, upon receipt of such notice, purchase Energy from 
Seller at a price determined by Seller in a Commercially Reasonable manner based upon 
applicable market prices at the location where the remarketing opportunity sale will occur 
(the “Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price”); 

(iii) Seller shall remarket such Energy on Buyer’s behalf in a Qualified 
Sale; 

(iv) Seller shall remit to Buyer the proceeds collected from such 
Qualified Sale, but in no event shall Seller remit less than the Minimum Remarketing Sales 
Price for the remarketing transaction; provided, however, that to the extent Seller does not 
receive the Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price from Buyer prior to the Remediation 
Remarketing described herein, Seller shall credit the proceeds collected from such 
remarketing sale against the Remediation Remarketing Purchase Price owed to Seller, and 
Seller shall be reimbursed from the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund to the extent 
necessary to make Seller whole for such Qualified Sale; and 

(v) Seller shall issue to Buyer a confirmation notice (including the 
dollar price and MWhs) of each purchase of Energy by or on behalf of Buyer, and each 
sale of Energy on Buyer’s behalf, under this Section 8, and amounts due from or to Buyer 
shall be separately stated on the Billing Statement for the Month in which such remarketing 
transactions occur. 

For the avoidance of doubt, Seller shall not sell, nor be required to sell, Energy to Buyer for a 
Remediation Remarketing if such Energy is to be remarketed by Seller on behalf of Buyer for less 
than the Minimum Remarketing Sales Price. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-9 

(c) Unless the terms of a Remediation Remarketing undertaken by Seller on 
Buyer’s behalf are specifically assumed by Buyer, Seller shall indemnify Buyer for any costs or 
liabilities associated with such Remediation Remarketing (other than costs related to the price at 
which such Energy is sold and the risk of collecting the sale proceeds from the remarketing buyer), 
including, without limitation, any cover or replacement costs; termination payments; fees, 
penalties, costs or charges (in cash or in kind) assessed by any Transmission Provider for failure 
to satisfy its balance or nomination requirements; Claims for breach of warranty; taxes, fees, levies, 
penalties, licenses or charges imposed by any Government Agency; and Claims from personal 
injury or property damages. 

(d) The total purchase price of any Energy purchased by Buyer or Seller 
pursuant to Section 8(b) of this Exhibit C will be entered by Seller as a dollar debit on (i) first, the 
Private Business Sales Ledger, if and to the extent such ledger has a positive balance and such 
Energy is remarketed in a Qualified Sale and (ii) second, on the Non-Private Business Sales 
Ledger, if and to the extent such ledger has a positive balance, the Private Business Sales Ledger 
has a zero (0) balance, and such Energy is remarketed in a Qualified Sale, with such debit in the 
case of (i) or (ii) dated as of the last day of the Month in which such Energy was purchased.  Each 
dollar debit shall offset and reverse an equal amount of the dollar credits to such ledger (that have 
not previously been transferred to the Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger or the Expired 
Private Business Sales Ledger) in the order in which they were made (beginning with the oldest 
credit not previously offset and reversed by any prior debit).  Whenever a debit is made to the 
dollar balance of the Ledger Entries of either such ledger, Seller shall also debit the Energy balance 
of the Ledger Entries of such ledger based on (i) such dollar debit divided by (ii) an average Energy 
price calculated from the net Ledger Entry then present on the relevant ledger being debited.  For 
the avoidance of doubt, neither the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger nor the Private Business 
Sales Ledger shall ever have a negative balance, and the same purchase transaction shall not result 
in a debit to more than one ledger except to the extent that a debit for the transaction causes one 
(1) ledger to have a zero (0) balance and the remaining portion of the permitted debit is made to 
the other ledger. 

(e) In addition to the ability of Seller or Buyer to engage in Remediation 
Remarketing to reduce the balances of any Ledger Entries through Qualified Sales of Energy, the 
proceeds represented by the dollar balances of such Ledger Entries may also be remediated through 
the purchase of natural gas that will be remarketed in Qualified Sales.  For the purposes of entering 
MMBtu debits for natural gas to the Ledger Entries in accordance with Section 8(d) of this Exhibit 
C for any Remediation Remarketing of natural gas, a quantity of MWhs will be debited based on 
(i) the total proceeds paid for such natural gas divided by (ii) an average Energy price calculated 
from the net Ledger Entry then present on the relevant ledger being debited.  

Section 9. Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event. 

(a)  In addition to the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger and the Private 
Business Sales Ledger described in Section 7(a) and (b) of this Exhibit C, above, Seller shall also 
maintain an “Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger” and an “Expired Private Business Sales 
Ledger.”  Whenever a credit to the dollar balance of the Ledger Entries of the Non-Private Business 
Sales Ledger has not been reversed in full within two (2) years of such credit by an offsetting dollar 
debit in accordance with Section 8(d) or (e) of this Exhibit C, then Seller shall (i) debit the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-10 

remaining portion of such dollar credit and the MWh balance of the Ledger Entries in the manner 
described in the penultimate sentence of Section 8(d) and (ii) record such debits as credits to the 
Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger.  Similarly, whenever a credit to the dollar balance of 
the Ledger Entries of the Private Business Sales Ledger has not been reversed in full within two 
(2) years of such credit by an offsetting dollar debit in accordance with Section 8(d) or (e) of this 
Exhibit C, then Seller shall (i) debit the remaining portion of such dollar credit and the MWh 
balance of the Ledger Entries in the manner described in the penultimate sentence of Section 8(d) 
and (ii) record such debits as credits to the Expired Private Business Sales Ledger.  Pursuant to 
Section 18.3(b) of this Agreement, upon any partial redemption of Bonds in accordance with the 
Bond Indenture, the dollar credits made to either the Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger 
or the Expired Private Business Sales Ledger shall be reduced (in the order of entry) by an 
aggregate amount corresponding to the principal amount of Bonds so redeemed, and the MWh 
credits to such ledgers shall be reduced by the contemporaneous MWh credits corresponding to 
the dollar credits so reduced. 

(b) No later than the tenth (10th) day of each Month, Seller shall provide to 
Buyer copies of the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger, the Private Business Sales Ledger, the 
Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger and the Expired Private Business Sales Ledger 
showing all credits and debits to each such ledger since the Execution Date. 

(c) A “Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event” shall occur if, at any 
time, either (i) (A) the sum of all Btu credits on the Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger 
and the Expired Private Business Sales Ledger exceeds (B) the Non-Qualifying Remarketing 
Limit, or (ii) (A) the sum of all Btu credits on the Expired Private Business Sales Ledger exceeds 
(B) the Private Business Remarketing Limit. 

(d) The occurrence of a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event and any 
remedies associated therewith in Article XVII of this Agreement shall be Buyer’s sole and 
exclusive remedies with respect to any inability by Seller to purchase and remarket Energy for 
Buyer pursuant to, or any breach by Seller of its obligations under, this Exhibit C. 

Section 10. Buyer Right to Request to Purchase Remarketed Energy.  Notwithstanding 
any other provision of this Exhibit C, Buyer may request in a Remarketing Notice delivered to 
Seller that Buyer be the remarketing buyer of the quantities of Energy described in such 
Remarketing Notice, in which case Seller will sell such remarketed Energy to Buyer at a price, at 
Delivery Point(s) and on date(s) to be mutually agreed (but the price, with respect to Energy 
remarketed pursuant to a Monthly Remarketing Notice, shall in no event be less than the Contract 
Index Price less the Monthly Discount) by the Parties, provided that Seller shall be obligated to 
remarket such Energy to Buyer only if all of the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) Buyer is not in default under any Transaction Document; 

(b) Buyer has certified to Seller in the Remarketing Notice that the condition in 
(a) above is true; 

(c) Buyer has provided such adequate assurances of Buyer’s performance, if 
any, as may have been reasonably requested by Seller;  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

C-11 

(d) there is a master agreement in effect between Buyer and Seller that will 
govern the remarketing transaction between Buyer and Seller; and 

(e) Buyer covenants to resell the Energy only in Qualified Sales. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

D-1 

EXHIBIT D 
 

TERMINATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

The Termination Payment for any Early Termination Payment Date will be the amount set forth 
on the attached table in the column corresponding to the month in which the Early Termination 
Date occurs, plus the product of (a) the Contract Quantity for such Month, minus the quantity of 
Energy required to have been delivered in such Month prior to the effectiveness of such Early 
Termination Date, multiplied by (b) the result of (i) the applicable Fixed Price for Energy (as 
defined in the Buyer Swap), minus (ii) the Specified Discount then in effect.    

 

 

  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

D-2 

SCHEDULE OF EARLY TERMINATION PAYMENTS 
 

[To be attached.] 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

D-1-1 

EXHIBIT D-1 
 

TERMINATION PAYMENT ADJUSTMENT SCHEDULE 

(To be attached pursuant to Section 17.8 as required.)

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

E-1-1 

 

EXHIBIT E 
 

FORM OF MORGAN STANLEY GUARANTEE 

 

 
1585 BROADWAY 

NEW YORK, NY 10036-8293 

[DATE] 

To:  California Community Choice Financing Authority 
 1125 Tamalpais Avenue 
 San Rafael, CA 94901 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In consideration of California Community Choice Financing Authority (hereinafter 
“Counterparty”) having entered into or entering into (i) that certain Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement, dated as of [____], 2022, with Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. (hereinafter 
“Obligor”) (the “Prepaid Agreement”) and (ii) that ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of [____], 
2022, the Schedule, dated as of [____], 2022, and Confirmation, dated as of [____], 2022, with 
Obligor (together with the Prepaid Agreement, the “Agreements”), Morgan Stanley, a Delaware 
corporation (hereinafter “Guarantor”), hereby irrevocably and unconditionally guarantees to 
Counterparty, with effect from the date of the Agreements, the due and punctual payment of all 
amounts payable by Obligor under the Agreements when the same shall become due and payable, 
whether on scheduled payment dates, upon demand, upon declaration of termination or otherwise, 
in accordance with, and subject to, the terms of the Agreements and giving effect to any applicable 
grace period. Upon failure of Obligor punctually to pay any such amounts, and upon written 
demand by Counterparty to Guarantor at its address set forth in the signature block of this 
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) (or to such other address as Guarantor may specify in writing), 
Guarantor agrees to pay or cause to be paid such amounts owed by Obligor; provided that delay 
by Counterparty in giving such demand shall in no event affect Guarantor's obligations under this 
Guarantee; provided further that any payment made by Guarantor hereunder will be made directly 
to The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee under the Bond Indenture (as 
defined in the Prepaid Agreement), or to any successor trustee under the Bond Indenture and that 
such payment shall be deemed to be a payment to Counterparty hereunder. This Guarantee is of 
payment and not of collection. 

Guarantor hereby agrees that its obligations hereunder shall be continuing and unconditional and 
will not be discharged except by complete payment of the amounts payable under the Agreements, 
irrespective of (1) any claim as to the Agreements’ validity, regularity or enforceability or the lack 
of authority of Obligor to execute or deliver the Agreements; or (2) any change in or amendment 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

E-1-2 

to the Agreements; or (3) any waiver or consent by Counterparty with respect to any provisions 
thereof; or (4) the absence or existence of any action to enforce the Agreements, or the recovery 
of any judgment against Obligor or of any action to enforce a judgment against Obligor under the 
Agreements; or (5) the dissolution, winding up, liquidation or insolvency of Obligor, including 
any discharge of obligations therefrom; or (6) any similar circumstance which might otherwise 
constitute a legal or equitable discharge or defense of a guarantor generally. 

Guarantor hereby waives diligence, presentment, demand on Obligor for payment or otherwise 
(except as provided hereinabove), filing of claims, requirement of a prior proceeding against 
Obligor and protest or notice, except as provided for in the Agreements with respect to amounts 
payable by Obligor.  If at any time payment under the Agreements is rescinded or must be 
otherwise restored or returned by Counterparty upon the insolvency, bankruptcy or reorganization 
of Obligor or Guarantor or otherwise, Guarantor's obligations hereunder with respect to such 
payment shall be reinstated upon such restoration or return being made by Counterparty. 

Guarantor represents to Counterparty, as of the date hereof, that: 

1. it is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its 
incorporation and has full power and legal right to execute and deliver this Guarantee and 
to perform the provisions of this Guarantee on its part to be performed; 

2. its execution, delivery and performance of this Guarantee has been and remains duly 
authorized by all necessary corporate action and does not contravene any provision of its 
certificate of incorporation or by-laws or any law, regulation or contractual restriction 
binding on it or its assets; 

3. all consents, authorizations, approvals and clearances (including, without limitation, any 
necessary exchange control approval) and notifications, reports and registrations requisite 
for its due execution, delivery and performance of this Guarantee have been obtained 
from or, as the case may be, filed with the relevant governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction and remain in full force and effect and all conditions thereof have been duly 
complied with and no other action by, and no notice to or filing with, any governmental 
authority having jurisdiction is required for such execution, delivery or performance; and 

4. this Guarantee is its legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against it in 
accordance with its terms except as enforcement hereof may be limited by applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of 
creditors' right or by general equity principles. 

Each of the provisions contained in this Guarantee shall be severable and distinct from one another 
and if one or more of such provisions are now or hereafter becomes invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this 
Guarantee shall not in any way be affected, prejudiced or impaired thereby. 
 
By accepting this Guarantee and executing the Agreements, Counterparty agrees that Guarantor 
shall be subrogated to all rights of Counterparty against Obligor in respect of any amounts paid by 
Guarantor pursuant to this Guarantee, provided that Guarantor shall be entitled to enforce or to 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

E-1-3 

receive any payment arising out of or based upon such right of subrogation only to the extent that 
it has paid all amounts payable by Obligor under the Agreements. 
This Guarantee shall expire or terminate, as applicable, on the earliest of (i) [____], 20[__] (ii) the 
earlier termination of the Prepaid Agreement and (iii) the last day of any Reset Period (as defined 
in the Prepaid Agreement) if Guarantor (A) has delivered to Counterparty a termination notice of 
this Guarantee, and (B) no assignment has been effected pursuant to clause (c) of Article XIII of 
the Prepaid Agreement prior to the end of the Reset Period during which such termination notice 
was delivered.  Such expiration or termination shall not, however, affect or reduce Guarantor's 
obligation hereunder for any liability of Obligor with respect to obligations and liabilities incurred 
prior to such expiration or termination. 
This Guarantee shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
New York, without reference to its choice of law doctrine. All capitalized terms not otherwise 
defined herein shall have the respective meanings assigned to them in the Agreements. 

MORGAN STANLEY 

By: 

Name: 
Title: 
Address:  1585 Broadway 
New York, NY 10036 
Attn:    Treasurer 
Fax No.:  212-762-0337 
Phone:     212-761-4000 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

F-1 

EXHIBIT F 
 

PRICING AND OTHER TERMS 

Delivery Period: The period beginning on [____], 2022 and ending on [____], 
20[__] or earlier upon the Early Termination Date 
 

Minimum Discount: $[___]/MWh for the Initial Reset Period (as defined in the Re-
Pricing Agreement), and thereafter an amount no less than 
$[___]/MWh 
 

Monthly Discount: $[___]/MWh during the Initial Reset Period (as defined in the 
Re-Pricing Agreement), and for each Month of a Reset Period 
thereafter, the Monthly Discount portion of the Available 
Discount for such Reset Period determined by the Calculation 
Agent (as defined in the Bond Indenture) pursuant to the 
Re-Pricing Agreement  
 

Prepayment: $[___] 
 

Prepayment Outside Date: [____], 2022 
 

Remarketing Fee: $0.50/MWh for any Energy remarketed pursuant to a Monthly 
Remarketing Notice 
 

Specified Fixed Price: $[___]/MWh 
 

Specified Discount: For Energy delivered [____], 2022 – [____], 20[__]: 
$[___]/MWh 
 
For Energy delivered [____], 20[__] – [____], 20[__]: to be 
the Available Discount (as defined in the Re-Pricing 
Agreement) for such Reset Period 
 

ESR Fee:  $[___]/MWh 
 

Swap Fee: $[___]/MWh 
 

 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



 

 

EXHIBIT G 

RECEIVABLES PURCHASES 

[To be attached.] 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15I



HB Draft 7 April 2022 

   
  

RE-PRICING AGREEMENT 

This RE-PRICING AGREEMENT, dated as of [____], 2022 (this “Agreement”), is entered 
into by and between Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C. (“MSES”) and California 
Community Choice Financing Authority (“Issuer”).  MSES and Issuer are sometimes referred to 
herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”  Capitalized terms used herein 
shall have the meanings set forth in Section 1. 

WHEREAS, Issuer is issuing the Series 2022A Bonds pursuant to the Indenture in order to 
provide funds to acquire the Energy Supply from MSES pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with its acquisition of the Energy Supply, Issuer has entered 
into the Power Supply Contract with the Project Participant providing for the sale of the Energy 
Supply by Issuer to the Project Participant; and 

WHEREAS, the price payable by the Project Participant for the Energy Supply includes a 
discount to the index price set forth in the applicable Power Supply Contract, which discount has 
been established for the Initial Reset Period therein and will be re-established for each subsequent 
Reset Period under the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Power Supply Contract, prior to each Reset Period after 
the Initial Reset Period, the Project Participant may elect to have its Energy Supply remarketed if 
the Available Discount established for such Reset Period is less than the Minimum Discount 
specified in the Power Supply Contract; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions.  When used herein, the following capitalized terms shall have 
the following meanings: 

“Additional Reduction Amount” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A.  

“Alternative Supplier” means any Person that (i) has a Credit Rating equal to or better than 
Morgan Stanley’s Credit Rating and (ii) agrees that, if the Prepaid Agreement and other related 
agreements entered into by Prepaid Supplier (the “Prepaid Supplier Documents”) are novated to 
it, it will deliver an opinion or opinions of counsel in a form acceptable to Issuer, Bond Counsel 
(as defined in the Bond Indenture) and Swap Counterparty (as defined in the Prepaid Contract) 
that each of the Prepaid Supplier Documents are duly authorized by and enforceable against it.  

“Available Discount” has the meaning specified in the Power Supply Contract and also 
means, for each Reset Period, the final amount determined by MSES as of the applicable Bond 
Pricing Date pursuant to Appendix A, expressed in cents per MWh (rounded down to the nearest 
one-half cent). 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 2   

  

“Bond Closing Date” means the date on which the Bonds are issued pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

“Bond Pricing Date” means, for any Reset Period, the date upon which the interest rate and 
yield on the Bonds is established pursuant to the applicable bond remarketing agreement or bond 
purchase agreement. 

“Bonds” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture. 

“Business Day” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture. 

“Contract Quantity” has the meaning set forth in the Prepaid Agreement. 

“Credit Rating” means the credit rating assigned by of Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and 
Fitch Ratings, Inc. (and any successors thereto) to a Person’s senior, unsecured long-term debt 
obligations (not supported by third party credit enhancements). 

“Delivery Period” has the meaning set forth in the Prepaid Agreement. 

“Delivery Period Implied Rate” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A.  

“Determination Month” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A.  

“Energy” has the meaning set forth in the Prepaid Agreement. 

“Energy Supply” means with respect to the Prepaid Agreement, the aggregate Contract 
Quantities of Energy to be delivered by MSES under the Prepaid Agreement.  

“Estimated Available Discount” has the meaning set forth in Section 5(a). 

“Excess Amount” is the positive difference, if any, of the Prior Remaining Energy Value 
less the New Remaining Delivery Cost. 

“Fixed Price” means $[___]/MWh. 

“Fixed Rate” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A. 

“Guarantor” means Morgan Stanley, a Delaware corporation, in its capacity as the 
guarantor of MSES’s payment obligations under the Prepaid Agreement. 

“Indenture” means the Trust Indenture, dated as of the first day of the month of the Bond 
Closing Date, between Issuer and the Trustee, as the same may be amended or supplemented from 
time to time pursuant to one or more Supplemental Indentures, or any other trust indenture under 
which refunding bonds are issued and secured. 

“Initial Reset Period” means the period from [____], 2022 – [____], 20[__]. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 3   

  

“Interest Rate Period” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture, provided that if the Bonds 
are Outstanding in two or more Series with separate, concurrent and co-terminus Interest Rate 
Periods, “Interest Rate Period” shall mean all such Interest Rate Periods collectively. 

“Mandatory Purchase Date” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture. 

“Minimum Discount” has the meaning set forth in the Power Supply Contract. 

“Monthly Contract Quantity” means, for any month, the aggregate Contract Quantities 
scheduled to be delivered by MSES to Issuer under the Prepaid Agreement for such month. 

“Monthly Discount” has the meaning set forth in Section 6(b). 

“Morgan Stanley Guarantee” has the meaning set forth in the Prepaid Agreement. 

“MSES” has the meaning set forth in the preamble. 

“MWh” means megawatt-hour. 

“New Remaining Delivery Cost” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A. 

“New Reset Period” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A.  

“Old Reset Period” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A.  

“Outstanding” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture. 

“Participant Notification Deadline Day” means, with respect to each Reset Period, the last 
day on which Issuer is permitted to provide a notice of the Estimated Available Discount to the 
Project Participant under the Power Supply Contract. 

“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, 
unincorporated organization, or government agency. 

“Prepaid Agreement” means the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, dated as of [____], 
2022, between MSES and Issuer, as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance 
with its terms. 

“Prepaid Supplier Documents” has the meaning specified in the definition of Alternative 
Supplier. 

“Prior Remaining Energy Value” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A. 

“Project Participant” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture. 

“Power Supply Contract” means, individually or collectively, any or all of the separate 
Energy Supply Agreements, relating to the Energy Project as defined in the Indenture, between 
Issuer and the Project Participant, as each may be amended from time to time. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 4   

  

“Re-pricing Date” means, for any Reset Period, any Business Day not earlier than ninety 
(90) days prior to the earlier of (i) the date on which the Bonds then Outstanding may be called for 
optional redemption in accordance with the Indenture and (ii) the day following the last day of the 
Reset Period then in effect. 

“Remaining Delivery Cost” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A. 

“Remaining Energy Value” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A. 

“Reset Period” means the Initial Reset Period and each period determined pursuant to 
Section 3. 

“Reset Period Implied Rate” has the meaning set forth in Appendix A. 

“Series” means Bonds designated as a Series and authorized to be issued by Issuer pursuant 
to Section 2.01 of the Indenture. 

“Series 2022A Bonds” has the meaning set forth in the Indenture. 

“SOFR” means the Secured Overnight Financing Rate administered by the Federal Reserve 
Bank of New York (or a successor administrator) and provided on the New York Fed’s Website. 

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture supplemental to or amendatory of the 
Indenture executed and delivered by Issuer and the Trustee in accordance with Article X of the 
Indenture. 

“Termination Payment” has the meaning set forth in the Prepaid Agreement. 

“Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule” has the meaning set forth in the Prepaid 
Agreement. 

“Trustee” means the trustee under the Indenture and its successors and assigns. 

Section 2. Purpose of Agreement and Intention of Parties.  The Parties are entering 
into this Agreement in connection with the execution and delivery of the Indenture, the Prepaid 
Agreement and the other transaction documents for the purpose of establishing the methodology 
for determining the Available Discount for each Reset Period following the Initial Reset Period. 

Section 3. Reset Periods.  Each Reset Period shall commence on the next day that 
follows the last day of the Initial Reset Period or, subsequently, the immediately prior Reset Period.  
The length of each Reset Period shall be the remaining term of the Delivery Period unless MSES 
elects, in its sole discretion following consultation with Issuer, a shorter period, which period may 
not be shorter than the lesser of (a) three (3) years or (b) the remaining term of the Delivery Period 
without Issuer’s consent; provided further that: 

(i) The Initial Reset Period and each subsequent Reset Period (other than the final 
Reset Period) shall end the last day of the month preceding the end of the applicable 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 5   

  

Interest Rate Period.  For example, if the Interest Rate Period ends October 31, the 
last day of the Reset Period would end September 30, and 

(ii) the final Reset Period shall end on the last day of the Delivery Period. 

Section 4. Morgan Stanley Guarantee.  The Morgan Stanley Guarantee terminates on 
the earliest of (i) the end of the Delivery Period; (ii) the earlier termination of the Prepaid 
Agreement (including through the date of any Termination Payment thereunder); and (iii) the last 
day of any Reset Period, if the Guarantor provides written notice of termination of the Morgan 
Stanley Guarantee.  Unless the Morgan Stanley Guarantee is terminated, the Morgan Stanley 
Guarantee shall remain in effect for the next Reset Period at the time of, or prior to, the delivery 
of any refunding or remarketing bonds. 

Section 5. Estimated Available Discount; Alternative Suppliers. 

(a) Initial Estimated Available Discount.   

(i) Initial Estimate by MSES.  Not later than (A) eight months prior to a Mandatory 
Purchase Date that occurs in in February, May, August or November and (B) seven 
months prior a Mandatory Purchase Date that occurs in any other month, MSES 
will provide an estimate of the length of such Reset Period, the Reset Period Implied 
Rate, the difference between the Reset Period Implied Rate and SOFR for such 
period and the Available Discount (the “Estimated Available Discount”) that are 
anticipated to apply to such Reset Period.  In determining the Estimated Available 
Discount, MSES shall utilize the methodology set forth in Appendix A.  After 
providing an initial estimate, MSES may provide updated estimates on its own 
initiative or upon a subsequent request from Issuer.   

(ii) Cooperation by MSES.  MSES acknowledges that Issuer will consult with its 
financial advisor in connection with the establishment of each Reset Period, and 
MSES agrees that it will reasonably cooperate with Issuer and its financial advisor 
in connection therewith consistent with the manner in which it has cooperated with 
Issuer and its financial advisor in connection with the establishment of the pricing 
for the Initial Reset Period. 

(b) Alternative Estimated Available Discounts; Achievement of Bond Pricing Date.   

(i) Estimates from Alternative Suppliers.  Only after having received the Estimated 
Available Discount from MSES, Issuer may at its discretion solicit Alternative 
Suppliers to provide Estimated Available Discounts for such Reset Period.  Not 
later than (A) 165 days prior to a Mandatory Purchase Date that occurs in in 
February, May, August or November and (B) 135 days prior to a Mandatory 
Purchase Date that occurs in any other month, Issuer may notify MSES that an 
Alternative Supplier has provided an Estimated Available Discount that materially 
exceeds MSES’s previously provided Estimated Discount Rate (an “Alternative 
Estimated Available Discount”), which notice must include (1) the identity of the 
Alternative Supplier, (2) the Alternative Estimated Available Discount, and (3) 
certification by Issuer’s financial advisor of a reasonable expectation of the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 6   

  

Alternative Supplier’s ability to deliver such a proposed Estimated Alternative 
Discount based on then-current market conditions and to achieve a successful Bond 
closing for such upcoming Reset Period.   

(ii) MSES Option to Match Alternative Estimated Available Discount.  Within 15 days 
of receiving notice of an Alternative Estimated Available Discount meeting the 
foregoing requirements, MSES will notify Issuer if Guarantor could, based on then-
current market conditions, match the Alternative Estimated Available Discount.  If 
MSES so notifies Issuer, MSES will thereafter exercise commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet or exceed the Alternative Estimated Alternative Discount as of the 
Bond Pricing Date for the next Reset Period and Issuer will reasonably cooperate 
with MSES in connection therewith; provided that Issuer acknowledges the actual 
Available Discount will be determined on such Bond Pricing Date based on then-
current market conditions but will remain subject to the Minimum Discount 
requirements.  

(iii) Conditional Novation to Alternative Supplier.  If MSES does not provide a notice 
of Guarantor’s ability to meet the Estimated Available Discount in accordance with 
the foregoing, then MSES shall cooperate with Issuer and the Alternative Supplier 
to cause the Prepaid Supplier Documents to be novated to the Alternative Supplier 
as of the first day of the next Reset Period, which novation must be conditionally 
binding not later than two months prior to the Mandatory Purchase Date, subject 
only to successful closing of the new Bonds.  Following the execution of such 
novation documents, MSES and Guarantor will have no obligations under any 
transaction documents for the next Reset Period other than those obligations that 
would have existed had the Prepaid Agreement terminated at the end of the then-
current Reset Period.  In the event of a Failed Remarketing (as defined in the 
Indenture) by the Alternative Supplier, MSES, may at its option and if all parties 
are in agreement, elect to attempt to remarket the transaction if MSES deems there 
is sufficient time to do so prior to the Mandatory Purchase Date. 

(c) Notices to Project Participant.  Issuer shall notify the Project Participant of the 
Estimated Available Discount and any updates thereto under the relevant provisions of the Power 
Supply Contract.  Unless MSES and Issuer otherwise agree, in any notice of Estimated Available 
Discount provided to a Project Participant prior to the Participant Notification Deadline Day, 
Issuer shall clearly indicate in such notice that the notice is provisional and is not intended to, and 
does not, trigger a Project Participant’s right to provide a Remarketing Notice (as defined in the 
Power Supply Contract). 

Section 6. Determination of Available Discount and Monthly Discount.   

(a) MSES shall determine on the Bond Pricing Date the Available Discount for such 
Reset Period (expressed in cents per MWh and rounded down to the nearest one-half cent) in 
accordance with the methodology set forth in Appendix A. 

(b) For each Reset Period after the Initial Reset Period, MSES shall determine the 
monthly discount portion of the Available Discount for such Reset Period (the “Monthly 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 7   

  

Discount”).  Issuer and MSES then shall mutually agree upon the projected Annual Refund (as 
defined in the Power Supply Contract) for such Reset Period, which shall be determined consistent 
with Section 3.2(c) of the Power Supply Contract and shall be the remaining portion of the 
Available Discount.  MSES and Issuer acknowledge that the purpose of retaining a portion of the 
Available Discount for distribution in the Annual Refund is to mitigate the risk to bondholders of 
reduced or lost investment income on any investments held under the Indenture. 

Section 7. Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule; Monthly Quantity Changes. 

(a) For any Reset Period, MSES may modify the Termination Payment Adjustment 
Schedule to reflect changes in the Remaining Energy Values set forth on Attachment 1 to 
Appendix A and otherwise, provided that such modifications are sufficient to meet the redemption 
requirements of the Bonds to be sold for such Reset Period. 

(b) Issuer and MSES agree that the Prepaid Agreement will be amended to reflect any 
reductions to Monthly Contract Quantities determined pursuant to Appendix A. 

Section 8. Timing.  The dates and time intervals stated in this Agreement may be 
waived or altered by the mutual agreement of the Parties. 

Section 9. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate automatically upon 
termination of the Prepaid Agreement for any reason, including but not limited to election by the 
Guarantor to terminate the Morgan Stanley Guarantee pursuant to its terms.  For the avoidance of 
doubt, nothing in this Agreement or any other agreement restricts the ability of Guarantor to 
terminate the Morgan Stanley Guarantee as set forth in the Morgan Stanley Guarantee, effective 
as of the end of a Reset Period, which election to terminate may be made by Guarantor in its sole 
and absolute discretion.  Any such termination shall not be considered a failure by MSES to act in 
good faith hereunder, regardless of whether the Parties have previously discussed pricing that may 
apply to any Reset Period or otherwise taken the steps required under this Agreement.  MSES shall 
not be required to provide estimates hereunder or otherwise take or continue the steps toward 
determining pricing hereunder for any Reset Period if the Guarantor exercises its right to terminate 
the Morgan Stanley Guarantee. 

Section 10. Communications. 

(a) All notices, requests and other communications shall be in writing (including 
facsimile, electronic mail or other electronic means) provided to the address and/or electronic mail 
address set forth below: 

MSES: As provided in the Prepaid Agreement 

Issuer: As provided in the Prepaid Agreement 

(b) Each Party may change the address for communications to it pursuant to the terms 
of the referenced agreement, which notice shall be effective when delivered at the address specified 
herein. 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 8   

  

Section 11. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Miscellaneous.  Article X [Dispute Resolution] and Sections 18.3 [Entirety; 
Amendments], 18.4 [Governing Law], 18.5 [Non-Waiver], 18.6 [Severability], 18.7 [Exhibits], 
18.9 [Relationship of Parties], 18.12 [Limitation of Liability] and 18.13 [Counterparts] of the 
Prepaid Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Agreement, mutatis mutandis, as if fully 
set forth herein. 

(b) Amendments to Power Supply Contract and Indenture.  Issuer shall not agree to or 
consent to any modification, supplement, amendment or waiver of any provision of the Power 
Supply Contract or the Indenture that affects the meaning of any defined term herein or the 
operation of any provision hereof. 

(c) Assignment.  This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, 
but neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be assigned 
by either Party hereto without the prior written consent of the other Party; provided that each Party 
acknowledges and agrees that the other Party shall assign all of its right, title and interest in, to and 
under this Agreement in connection with any assignment by either Party of its right, title and 
interest in, to and under the Prepaid Agreement to the assignee thereof, which assignment shall 
constitute a novation. 

[Separate Signature Page(s) Attached] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 

 Signature Page to Re-Pricing Agreement  
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed and delivered by their proper and duly authorized officers as of the date first above 
written. 

MORGAN STANLEY ENERGY 
STRUCTURING, L.L.C. 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
Name:_________________________ 
Title:__________________________ 
 
 
 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE 
FINANCING AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:____________________________ 
Name:_________________________ 
Title:__________________________ 

  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 

 Appendix A – Page 1  
  

Appendix A 

MSES will undertake the following steps in determining the Available Discount for any Reset 
Period (each, a “New Reset Period”): 

• Step 1: Determine the “Prior Remaining Energy Value”  
o MSES will determine the Remaining Energy Value for the last month of the 

current Reset Period (the “Old Reset Period”) based on Attachment 1 hereto, 
as such Attachment initially existed or was last updated at the beginning of the 
prior Reset Period (the “Prior Remaining Energy Value”). 

o “Remaining Energy Value” means, for any month, the amount set forth on 
Attachment 1 of Appendix A as the “Remaining Energy Value” for such 
month, as Attachment 1 may be updated pursuant to this Appendix A in 
connection with the establishment of any new Reset Period. 

• Step 2: MSES will specify the length of the New Reset Period pursuant to Section 3 
of the Agreement 

• Step 3: MSES will specify a Reset Period Implied Rate for the New Reset Period and 
a Delivery Period Implied Rate 

o “Reset Period Implied Rate” means, for any Reset Period other than the Initial 
Reset Period, a fixed rate offered by MSES in its sole and absolute discretion 
as of the Bond Pricing Date for such Reset Period at which MSES or Guarantor 
determines (in its sole discretion) that it would be able to acquire, as of the date 
of determination, funding from other sources comparable to the funding 
provided by the Prepaid Agreement as of the date of determination.  In 
determining such a rate, the Guarantor and MSES may consider all relevant 
factors, including (x) the nature of the source of funding provided by the 
Prepaid Agreement, including any applicable regulatory or capital charges, (y) 
the tenor and possibility of early termination of the Prepaid Agreement, and 
(z) any other unique attributes of the Prepaid Agreement funding relative to 
other sources available to the Guarantor.  

o “Delivery Period Implied Rate” means, for any remaining portion of the 
Delivery Period that is not covered by a Reset Period, a fixed rate determined 
by MSES in its sole and absolute discretion as of the Bond Pricing Date for 
such Reset Period which MSES or Guarantor determines (in its sole discretion) 
represents an appropriate taxable market discount rate as of the Bond Pricing 
Date.  

• Step 4: Determine the “New Remaining Delivery Cost” 
o MSES will determine the “Remaining Delivery Cost” for each month of the 

Delivery Period after the Old Reset Period.  The Remaining Delivery Cost for 
the first month of the New Reset Period is the “New Remaining Delivery 
Cost”. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



   
 

Appendix A – Page 2 

o “Remaining Delivery Cost” means, for the first month of any New Reset 
Period (the “Determination Month”), an amount calculated by MSES equal to 
the net present value of a stream of monthly payments equal to the Monthly 
Contract Quantities multiplied by the Fixed Price for the remainder of the 
Delivery Period (including such Determination Month), discounted at the 
Reset Period Implied Rate for the New Reset Period and the Delivery Period 
Implied Rate for the remainder of the Delivery Period after the New Reset 
Period. 

• Step 5: Additional Reduction Amount or changing Monthly Contract Quantities 
o If the Prior Remaining Energy Value is less than the New Remaining Delivery 

Cost: 
 If the Reset Period will go to the end of the Delivery Period, MSES will 

reduce the Monthly Contract Quantities to zero in as many months as 
necessary at the end of the Delivery Period (and, to the extent 
necessary, reduce the Monthly Contract Quantities in the last remaining 
month of the Reset Period to a quantity greater than zero) such that the 
Prior Remaining Energy Value is equal to the New Remaining Delivery 
Cost. 

 If the Reset Period will end prior to the end of the Delivery Period, 
MSES in its sole discretion may reduce the Monthly Contract 
Quantities as provided above. 

o If the Prior Remaining Energy Value is greater than the New Remaining 
Delivery Cost: 
 Subject to the following bullet, MSES will pay to Issuer the amount, if 

any, by which (A) the Prior Remaining Energy Value exceeds (B) the 
New Remaining Delivery Cost (the “Additional Reduction Amount”) 
on the first day of the contemplated Interest Rate Period, which 
payment shall be applied by Issuer to the retirement of Bonds. 

 Notwithstanding the immediately prior bullet, MSES may elect to 
retain a portion of the Excess Amount if (i) the Reset Period will end 
prior to the end of the Delivery Period, (ii) such retention does not 
reduce the Available Discount, and (iii) doing so is consistent with the 
amortization requirement of the Bonds.  If MSES elects to retain a 
portion of such Excess Amount pursuant to the foregoing proviso, the 
Additional Reduction Amount shall be the portion of such Excess 
Amount that MSES elects to pay. 

o Any Additional Reduction Amount or changes in Monthly Contract Quantities 
will then be included in calculating the New Remaining Delivery Cost.  An 
Additional Reduction Amount will reduce the Prior Remaining Energy Value 
for this purpose. 

o Once the New Reset Period goes into effect, Attachment 1 hereto will be 
amended such that the Remaining Energy Value for each month in the New 
Reset Period and the remainder of the Delivery Period is equal to the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



   
 

Appendix A – Page 3 

Remaining Delivery Cost for such month as determined under Step 4 and 
updated under this Step 5.  

• Step 6: Determine the Fixed Rate for the Bonds for the term of such contemplated 
Interest Rate Period 

o The remarketing agent or underwriter of the Bonds for such contemplated 
Interest Rate Period will specify the Fixed Rate. 

o “Fixed Rate” means, for any New Reset Period, the fixed rate or rates of 
interest payable by Issuer with respect to a Series of Bonds or, in the case of a 
Series of Variable Rate Bonds (as defined in the Indenture), the fixed rate 
payable by Issuer under the related fixed rate swap transaction, which Fixed 
Rates will be determined on the Bond Pricing Date at a rate sufficient to enable 
all the Bonds to be sold or remarketed on such Bond Pricing Date in accordance 
with the Indenture (which sale price may include a premium or discount to 
par), as determined based on market information then available. 

• Step 7: Determine Monthly Discount Portion of Available Discount 
o MSES will determine the Monthly Discount portion of the Available Discount 

for the Reset Period based on the expected differences between monthly 
revenues and monthly debt service and other obligations of the Energy Project 
(as defined in the Indenture). 

 
• Step 8: Determine Annual Refund Portion of Available Discount 

o MSES and Issuer shall mutually agree upon the projected Annual Refund (as 
defined in the Power Supply Contract) for the Reset Period, which shall be 
determined consistent with Section 3.2 of the Power Supply Contract and shall 
be the remaining portion of the Available Discount.   

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



 

Attachment 1 to Appendix A 

Attachment 1 to Appendix A 

Remaining Energy Values 

(To be attached.) 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15J



Chapman Draft 04.29.22 
 

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED [___________], 2022 

Th
is

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

O
ffi

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

he
re

in
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

or
 a

m
en

dm
en

t w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e.
  

U
nd

er
 n

o 
ci

rc
um

sta
nc

es
 s

ha
ll 

th
is 

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
St

at
em

en
t c

on
sti

tu
te

 a
n 

of
fe

r t
o 

se
ll 

or
 th

e 
so

lic
ita

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
of

fe
r t

o 
bu

y,
 n

or
 s

ha
ll 

th
er

e 
be

 a
ny

 s
al

e 
of

, t
he

se
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 in
 a

ny
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

of
fe

r, 
so

lic
ita

tio
n 

or
 s

al
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

la
w

fu
l p

rio
r t

o 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
or

 q
ua

lif
ic

at
io

n 
un

de
r t

he
 se

cu
rit

ie
s l

aw
s o

f a
ny

 su
ch

 ju
ris

di
ct

io
n.

 

NEW ISSUE - BOOK-ENTRY ONLY RATING:  (SEE “RATING” HEREIN) 

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to CCCFA, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, 
rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, 
interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is 
exempt from State of California personal income taxes.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference 
item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the 
ownership or disposition of, or the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein. 

 
[CCCFA LOGO]/[KESTRAL 

LOGO] 

$1,000,000,000* 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS 

 $________________ 
SERIES 2022A-1 (GREEN 

BONDS) 
(TERM RATE) 

$_____________ 
SERIES 2022A-2 (GREEN 

BONDS) 
(SIFMA INDEX RATE) 

$_______________ 
SERIES 2022A-3 
(GREEN BONDS) 

(SOFR INDEX RATE) 

DATED:  Date of Delivery DUE:  As shown on the inside cover 

California Community Choice Financing Authority (“CCCFA”) is issuing its Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-1 
(Green Bonds) (Term Rate) (the “Series 2022A-1 Bonds”), Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-2 (Green Bonds) (SIFMA Index 
Rate) (the “Series 2022A-2 Bonds”) and its Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-3 (Green Bonds) (SOFR Index Rate) (the “Series 
2022A-3 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2022A-1 Bonds and Series 2022A-2, the “Bonds”), under a Trust Indenture between CCCFA and The 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.  The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form through the facilities of The Depository 
Trust Company (“DTC”).  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form through DTC participants in denominations of $5,000 or any 
multiple thereof.  Payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made directly to DTC and will subsequently be 
disbursed to DTC participants and thereafter to Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, all as described herein.  Capitalized terms used and not otherwise 
defined on this cover page have the meanings set forth herein. 

From their Initial Issue Date to and including [________], 20[__]* (the “Initial Interest Rate Period”), the Series 2022A-1 Bonds will bear 
interest in a Term Rate Period, the Series 2022A-2 Bonds will bear interest in a SIFMA Index Rate Period and the Series 2022A-3 Bonds will bear 
interest in a SOFR Index Rate Period, as shown on the inside cover page and described herein.  During the Initial Interest Rate Period, interest on 
the Series 2022A-1 Bonds is payable semiannually on each [______] 1 and [______] 1, commencing [________] 1, 20[__]* and interest on the Series 
2022A-2 Bonds and the Series 2022A-3 Bonds is payable on the first Business Day of each month, commencing on the first Business Day of 
[______] 20[__]*.  The Bonds are subject to optional and extraordinary mandatory redemption during the Initial Interest Rate Period, and the Bonds 
of each Series maturing on [______] 1, 20[__] are subject to mandatory tender for purchase on [______] 1, 20[__]* (the “Mandatory Purchase 
Date”). 

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to prepay the costs of the acquisition of EPS Compliant Energy to be delivered over approximately 30 
years under a Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (the “Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement”), between Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a 
Delaware limited liability company (“MSES” or the “Energy Supplier”) and CCCFA.  “EPS Compliant Energy” means three-phase, 60-cycle 
alternating current electric energy (“Energy”) that a Project Participant (hereinafter defined) can contract for and purchase in compliance with the 
California’s Emissions Performance Standards (“EPS”), as set forth in Sections 8340 and 8341 of the California Public Utilities Code, as 
implemented and amended from time to time, and any successor Law, that are applicable to such Project Participant.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement, MSES is obligated to deliver specified quantities of EPS Compliant Energy to CCCFA (the “Prepaid Energy”), make certain 
payments for any Prepaid Energy not delivered, remarket quantities of Base Energy (defined herein) in respect of Prepaid Energy not taken by the 
Project Participant and make a Termination Payment upon any early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement in whole or in part.  Any 
such Termination Payment (defined herein) will be applied to the mandatory redemption of the Bonds in whole or in part, as applicable.  The payment 
obligations of MSES under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, including the Receivables Purchase Provisions therein, and the Interest Rate Swap 
are unconditionally guaranteed by Morgan Stanley, a Delaware corporation (“Morgan Stanley”). 

CCCFA will sell all of the Prepaid Energy acquired under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement to East Bay Community Energy Authority 
(“EBCE” or the “Project Participant”) under a Power Supply Contract (the “Power Supply Contract”) between CCCFA and the Project Participant.  
Under the terms of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and the Power Supply Contract, the Project Participant may assign its rights to the delivery 
of EPS Compliant Energy under existing and future power purchase agreements to Morgan Stanley Capital Group, Inc. (“MSCG”) for ultimate 
delivery of such EPS Compliant Energy from such agreements to the Project Participant.  The Project Participant has entered into a limited assignment 
agreement relating to specific power purchase agreement(s) as of the Date of Delivery. 

The Bonds have been designated “Green Bonds”. See “DESIGNATION OF BONDS AS GREEN BONDS” and Second Opinion by Kestrel Verifiers 
set forth herein. 

THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS IS NOT GUARANTEED BY THE ENERGY SUPPLIER, MSCG, MORGAN STANLEY, THE 
UNDERWRITER, CCCFA OR ITS MEMBERS, OR THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT.  THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE GENERAL 
OBLIGATIONS OR INDEBTEDNESS OF CCCFA, THE MEMBERS OF CCCFA, THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT, THE STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF CCCFA NOR THE 

 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

TAXING POWER OF THE STATE OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO PAYMENTS PURSUANT TO THE 
INDENTURE OR THE BONDS. THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF CCCFA, PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND 
SECURED SOLELY BY THE TRUST ESTATE, IN THE MANNER AND TO THE EXTENT PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE.  

This Official Statement describes the Bonds only during the Initial Interest Rate Period and must not be relied upon if the Bonds are 
converted to any other interest rate period.  The purchase and ownership of the Bonds involve investment risk and may not be suitable for all 
investors.  This cover page is not intended to be a summary of the terms of or the security for the Bonds.  Investors are advised to read this Official 
Statement in its entirety to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision with respect to the Bonds, giving particular 
attention to the matters discussed under “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS” herein. 

The Bonds are offered, when, as and if issued by CCCFA and accepted by the Underwriter, subject to the approval of validity by Orrick, 
Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel, and certain other conditions.  Certain legal matters will be passed upon for CCCFA by its General 
Counsel, for the Project Participant by Chapman and Cutler LLP; for the Energy Supplier by Haynes and Boone, LLP; and for the Underwriter by 
Nixon Peabody LLP.  It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC on or about [__________], 2022. 

Morgan Stanley 
This Official Statement is dated ________, 2022. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

$1,000,000,000* 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS 

MATURITY DATES, PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES, YIELDS AND CUSIP NUMBERS1 

$____________ SERIES 2022A-1 BONDS 
(TERM RATE) 

 
$_________ SERIAL BONDS 

 

MATURITY DATE 
PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

INTEREST 
RATE YIELD CUSIP 

     

     

     

     

     

 

$_________  ____% Term Bond due [______] 1, 20[__]2, Yield: ____%, CUSIP _________ 

$__________ SERIES 2022A-2 BONDS 
(SIFMA INDEX RATE) 

 
 

MATURITY DATE 
 

INDEX 
APPLICABLE 

SPREAD3 
 

CUSIP 
[______] 1, 20[__]2 SIFMA Index __ basis points ___________ 

    

$__________ SERIES 2022A-3 BONDS 
(SOFR INDEX RATE) 

MATURITY DATE 
APPLICABLE 

FACTOR4 INDEX 
APPLICABLE 

SPREAD3 CUSIP 

[______] 1, 20[__]
2
  SOFR Index   

 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

1 CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association.  The CUSIP numbers listed above have been provided by CUSIP Global Services, managed on 
behalf of the American Bankers Association by FactSet Research Systems Inc., and are included solely for the convenience of bondholders only.  CCCFA and the Underwriter 
make no representation with respect to such numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy.  The CUSIP numbers are subject to being changed after the issuance 
of the Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to a refunding in whole or in part of the Bonds.   

2 The Bonds of each Series maturing on [______] 1, 20[__] are required to be tendered for purchase on [_____] 1, 20[__]*. 

3 Applicable Spread means, (i) with respect to the Series 2022A-2 Bonds, the margin added to the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index to determine the SIFMA Index Rate and (ii) 
with respect to the Series 2022A-3 Bonds, the margin added to the product of the Applicable Factor and the SOFR Index to determine the Secured Overnight Financing Rate.  
The Applicable Spread will remain constant for the duration of the initial SIFMA Index Rate Period and the initial SOFR Index Rate Period.  See “THE BONDS – Series 
2022A-2 Bonds”  and “Series 2022A-3 Bonds” herein. 

4 Applicable Factor means the percentage or factor of the SOFR Index used to calculate the SOFR Index Rate for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds.  The Applicable Factor will 
remain constant for the duration of the initial SOFR Index Rate Period.  See “THE BONDS – Series 2022A-3 Bonds” herein. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

The information contained in this Official Statement has been obtained from CCCFA, the Project Participant, 
the Energy Supplier, MSCG, Morgan Stanley, the Commodity Swap Counterparty, DTC and other sources believed 
to be reliable.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the securities described herein and 
may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.  This Official Statement speaks only as of 
its date and the information contained in this Official Statement is subject to change without notice and neither the 
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made by means of it shall, under any circumstances, create any 
implication that there have not been changes in the affairs of any party since the date of this Official Statement. 

No broker, dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any 
representations other than those contained in this Official Statement in connection with the offering made hereby and, 
if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by CCCFA 
or the Underwriter.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or solicitation in any jurisdiction in which 
such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to 
do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. 

The Bonds will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and will not be listed on any 
stock or other securities exchange.  Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other federal, state, 
municipal or other government entity or agency has or will have passed upon the adequacy of this Official Statement 
or, except for CCCFA, approved the Bonds for sale. 

_____________________ 

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the terms of the offering, 
including the merits and risks involved.  These securities have not been recommended by any federal or state securities 
commission or regulatory authority.  No commission or authority has confirmed the accuracy or determined the 
adequacy of this document. 

_____________________ 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY ENGAGE IN 
TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE, MAINTAIN OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE MARKET PRICES OF THE 
BONDS.  SUCH TRANSACTIONS, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as a part of, its 
responsibility to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, 
but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

CCCFA and the Project Participant each maintain a website and certain social media accounts.  However, 
the information presented on such website and on such accounts is not part of this Official Statement and should not 
be relied upon in making investment decisions with respect to the Bonds.  References to web site addresses presented 
herein are for informational purposes only and may be in the form of a hyperlink solely for the reader’s convenience.  
Unless specified otherwise, such web sites and the information or links contained therein are not incorporated into, 
and are not part of, this Official Statement for purposes of, and as that term is defined in, Rule 15c2-12 of the United 
States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute “forward-
looking statements.”  Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used, such as “plan,” “project,” 
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar words.  The achievement of certain 
results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, 
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially 
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking 
statements.  CCCFA does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those forward-looking statements if or when 
its expectations or events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based occur. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY  

1125 TAMALPAIS AVENUE 
SAN RAFAEL, CA 94901 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Nick Chaset, Chair 

Girish Balachandran, Vice Chair 

Garth Salisbury, Member 

Tom Habashi, Member 

MANAGEMENT 

Garth Salisbury, Treasurer/Controller 

Michael Callahan, General Counsel 

 
MEMBERS 

Central Coast Community Energy 

East Bay Community Energy Authority 

Marin Clean Energy 

Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority 

PROJECT PARTICIPANT 

East Bay Community Energy Authority 

 

GREEN BONDS REVIEWER 

Kestrel Verifiers 

BOND COUNSEL PROJECT PARTICIPANT’S COUNSEL 

Orrick Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP Chapman and Cutler LLP 

  

TRUSTEE FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

(i) 
 

INTRODUCTION .......................................................................................................................... 1 

California Community Choice Financing Authority ............................................................... 1 
The Bonds ................................................................................................................................ 1 
Security for the Bonds ............................................................................................................. 2 
The Clean Energy Project ........................................................................................................ 3 
The Project Participant ............................................................................................................ 4 
The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement ..................................................................................... 4 
The Receivables Purchase Provisions ..................................................................................... 6 
The Power Supply Contract ..................................................................................................... 6 
Re-Pricing Agreement ............................................................................................................. 7 
Interest Rate Swap ................................................................................................................... 7 
Commodity Swaps ................................................................................................................... 7 
Morgan Stanley Guarantees ..................................................................................................... 8 
The Energy Supplier, MSCG and Morgan Stanley ................................................................. 8 
Certain Relationships ............................................................................................................... 9 

THE CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT ............................................................................................. 10 

Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements by the Project Participant ............................... 10 
Structure of the Clean Energy Project ................................................................................... 11 

CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT TRANSACTION STRUCTURE................................................. 13 

DESIGNATION OF BONDS AS GREEN BONDS .................................................................... 14 

Green Bonds Designation ...................................................................................................... 14 
Independent Second Party Opinion on Green Bond Designation and Disclaimer ................ 14 

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS ......................................................................................... 14 

Special and Limited Obligations ........................................................................................... 14 
Structure of the Clean Energy Project ................................................................................... 15 
Performance by Others .......................................................................................................... 15 
Energy Remarketing .............................................................................................................. 17 
Limitations on Exercise of Remedies .................................................................................... 17 
Enforceability of Contracts .................................................................................................... 17 
No Established Trading Market ............................................................................................. 18 
Loss of Tax Exemption on the Bonds.................................................................................... 18 
Certain Risks of SOFR Index Rate Bonds ............................................................................. 18 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS ................................................................................................... 19 

The Indenture ......................................................................................................................... 19 
Flow of Funds ........................................................................................................................ 21 
Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Account ........................................................................... 22 
Administrative Fee Fund ....................................................................................................... 23 
Commodity Swap Payment Fund .......................................................................................... 23 
Debt Service Fund - Redemption Account ............................................................................ 23 
Restriction on Additional Obligations ................................................................................... 23 
Amendment of Indenture ....................................................................................................... 23 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

(ii) 
 

Investment of Funds .............................................................................................................. 24 
Enforcement of Project Agreements ...................................................................................... 25 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ............................................................................................ 27 

THE BONDS ................................................................................................................................ 29 

General ................................................................................................................................... 29 
Interest ................................................................................................................................... 29 
Tender .................................................................................................................................... 34 
Redemption* .......................................................................................................................... 34 
Book-Entry System ................................................................................................................ 38 

THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT ..................................................................... 39 

Purchase and Sale .................................................................................................................. 39 
Delivery of Prepaid Energy ................................................................................................... 39 
Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements ......................................................................... 40 
Failure to Deliver or Receive Energy .................................................................................... 40 
Energy Remarketing .............................................................................................................. 41 
Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event ...................................................................... 42 
Payment Provisions ............................................................................................................... 42 
Force Majeure ........................................................................................................................ 42 
Assignment ............................................................................................................................ 43 
Termination ............................................................................................................................ 43 
Termination Payment ............................................................................................................. 45 
Security .................................................................................................................................. 45 
Receivables Purchase Provisions ........................................................................................... 45 

THE INTEREST RATE SWAP ................................................................................................... 46 

General ................................................................................................................................... 46 
Payments Under the Interest Rate Swap ................................................................................ 46 
Events of Default and Termination Events under the Interest Rate Swap ............................ 46 

THE RE-PRICING AGREEMENT .............................................................................................. 47 

General ................................................................................................................................... 47 

THE ENERGY SUPPLIER, MSCG AND MORGAN STANLEY ............................................. 48 

THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT ......................................................................................... 48 

General ................................................................................................................................... 48 
Pricing Provisions .................................................................................................................. 49 
Project Administration Fee .................................................................................................... 49 
Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements ......................................................................... 49 
Billing and Payment .............................................................................................................. 50 
Annual Refunds ..................................................................................................................... 50 
Covenants of the Project Participant ...................................................................................... 50 
Delivery Points; Title and Risk of Loss ................................................................................. 51 
Failure to Perform .................................................................................................................. 52 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

(iii) 
 

Remarketing of Energy .......................................................................................................... 52 
Force Majeure ........................................................................................................................ 52 
Default ................................................................................................................................... 52 
Assignment ............................................................................................................................ 53 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY ..................................... 53 

General ................................................................................................................................... 53 
Powers and Authority ............................................................................................................ 54 
Governance and Management ............................................................................................... 55 
Other CCCFA Projects .......................................................................................................... 55 
Separate Obligations .............................................................................................................. 56 
Limited Liability .................................................................................................................... 56 

COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATORS ............................................................................... 56 

General ................................................................................................................................... 56 
Establishment of Community Choice Aggregators ............................................................... 56 
Community Choice Service Model ....................................................................................... 56 
Service Contract Requirements and Registration with the Public Utilities Commission ...... 57 
Customer Participation and Opt-out Rights ........................................................................... 57 
Regulatory Compliance ......................................................................................................... 57 
Cost Recovery Related to Transfer of Customers to a CCA ................................................. 57 

THE COMMODITY SWAPS ...................................................................................................... 58 

CCCFA Commodity Swap .................................................................................................... 58 
Form of Commodity Swaps ................................................................................................... 58 
Payment ................................................................................................................................. 58 
Early Termination .................................................................................................................. 59 
Custodial Agreements ............................................................................................................ 63 

THE COMMODITY SWAP COUNTERPARTY........................................................................ 63 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE .................................................................................................... 64 

LITIGATION ................................................................................................................................ 65 

NO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................................................................... 65 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR .............................................................................................................. 65 

UNDERWRITING ....................................................................................................................... 65 

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS ..................................................................................................... 66 

RATING ....................................................................................................................................... 67 

TAX MATTERS ........................................................................................................................... 67 

APPROVAL OF LEGAL MATTERS.......................................................................................... 69 

MISCELLANEOUS ..................................................................................................................... 69 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 
 

(iv) 
 

APPENDIX A — THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT 
APPENDIX B — DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS 
APPENDIX C — SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 
APPENDIX D — FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
APPENDIX E — FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 
APPENDIX F — FORM OF SECOND PARTY OPINION REGARDING GREEN BOND DESIGNATION 
APPENDIX G — BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 
APPENDIX H — REDEMPTION PRICE OF THE BONDS 
APPENDIX I — SCHEDULE OF TERMINATION PAYMENTS 
APPENDIX J — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING SOFR INDEX RATE BONDS

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

$1,000,000,000* 
CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT REVENUE BONDS 
SERIES 2022 EBCE 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page and appendices attached hereto, contains 
information concerning (a) California Community Choice Financing Authority (“CCCFA” or the 
“Issuer”), (b) CCCFA’s Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-1 (Green Bonds) (Fixed 
Rate) (the “Series 2022A-1 Bonds”), CCCFA’s Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-2 
(Green Bonds) (SIFMA Index Rate) (the “Series 2022A-2 Bonds”) and CCCFA’s Clean Energy Project 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-3 (Green Bonds) (SOFR Index Rate) (the “Series 2022A-3 Bonds” and, 
together with the Series 2022A-1 Bonds and the Series 2022A-2 Bonds, the “Bonds”), being issued in the 
aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000,000* and (c) the Clean Energy Project (defined below) being 
financed with proceeds of the Bonds.  Capitalized terms used herein have the meanings shown in 
APPENDIX B. 

California Community Choice Financing Authority 

California Community Choice Financing Authority is a joint powers agency formed by the Project 
Participant, Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority, Marin Clean Energy, and Central Coast Community 
Energy, each a community choice aggregator organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
California (the “State”).  CCCFA is organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State with the power 
to issue the Bonds and enter into the transaction documents described herein.  CCCFA is authorized to 
undertake all actions permitted by Joint Exercise of Powers Act, constituting Chapter 5 of Division 7 of 
Title 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of the California Government Code, as amended and 
supplemented (the “Act”), including the purchase of the Prepaid Energy and the sale thereof to the Project 
Participant, and the entry into of the related agreements described herein (referred to herein as the “Clean 
Energy Project”).  See “CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY” and “COMMUNITY 
CHOICE AGGREGATORS” herein. 

The Bonds 

The Bonds will be issued in three separate Series: 

(a) $___________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-1 (Term Rate) (the 
“Series 2022A-1 Bonds”), 

(b) $___________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-2 (SIFMA Index 
Rate) (the “Series 2022A-2 Bonds”), and 

 
* Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

2 

(c) $___________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-3 (SOFR Index Rate) 
(the “Series 2022A-3 Bonds”). 

The Series 2022A-2 Bonds and the Series 2022A-3 Bonds are sometimes referred to herein as the “Index 
Rate Bonds.” 

From their Initial Issue Date to and including [______], 20[__]* (the “Initial Interest Rate Period”): 

(a) the Series 2022A-1 Bonds will bear interest in a Term Rate Period, with interest payable 
semiannually on each [______] 1 and [______] 1, commencing [______] 1, 20[__]*,  

(b) the Series 2022A-2 Bonds will bear interest at the SIFMA Index Rate in a SIFMA Index 
Rate Period, with interest payable on the first Business Day of each month, commencing 
on the first Business Day of [_______] 20[__]*, and 

(c) the Series 2022A-3 Bonds will bear interest at the SOFR Index Rate in a SOFR Index Rate 
Period, with interest payable on the first Business Day of each month, commencing on the 
first Business Day of [_______] 20[__]*; 

all as shown on the inside cover page and as described herein.  See “THE BONDS”. 

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption and extraordinary mandatory redemption during the 
Initial Interest Rate Period, and the Bonds maturing on [_______] 1, 20[__] are required to be tendered for 
purchase on [______] 1, 20[__]* (the “Mandatory Purchase Date”), which is the day following the end of 
the Initial Interest Rate Period.  The Purchase Price of Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date is equal to 
the principal amount thereof and is payable in immediately available funds.  Under the Indenture, a “Failed 
Remarketing” will occur if (a) there is a failure on the Mandatory Purchase Date to either (i) pay the 
Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on such date or (ii) redeem the Bonds in whole on 
such date (including from any funds required from an Assignment Payment to the Assignment Payment 
Fund) or (b) either (i) on the last day of the second calendar month preceding the Mandatory Purchase Date 
(i.e., the last day of the Initial Reset Period described below), CCCFA has not entered into a bond purchase 
agreement, firm remarketing agreement or similar agreement with respect to the remarketing or refunding 
of the Bonds, or (ii) the conditions described in (b)(i) are satisfied, but the Purchase Price of the Bonds 
required to be purchased on the Mandatory Purchase Date is not delivered into the Trust Estate by 12:00 
noon, New York City time, on the fifth Business Day preceding the Mandatory Purchase Date.  A Failed 
Remarketing will result in early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and the extraordinary 
redemption of the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date.  See “THE BONDS—Redemption” and “—
Tender—Mandatory Tender”. 

Security for the Bonds 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the authority contained in the Act and are issued and secured 
under a Trust Indenture, to be dated as of the first day of the month in which the Bonds are issued (the 
“Indenture”), between CCCFA and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (the 
“Trustee”).  The Bonds are special and limited obligations of CCCFA, are payable solely from and secured 

 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

3 

solely by the Trust Estate pledged by the Indenture and are expected to be paid from the Revenues of the 
Clean Energy Project. 

The Bonds and the Interest Rate Swap (hereinafter defined) are secured by a pledge of and lien on 
the Trust Estate established by the Indenture, which (among other things) includes CCCFA’s rights under 
the Power Supply Contract, the Revenues, any Termination Payment payable by the Energy Supplier under 
the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, CCCFA’s rights under the Receivables Purchase Provisions and the 
Pledged Funds.  The pledge of and lien on the Trust Estate in favor of the Bonds is subject to certain 
provisions of the Indenture.  The Bonds are expected to be paid from the Revenues which (among other 
things) include the revenues received by CCCFA from the sale of Prepaid Energy under the Power Supply 
Contract, Commodity Swap Receipts received under the CCCFA Commodity Swap and interest earnings 
on certain of the Funds and Accounts established by the Indenture.  The Revenues are to be applied in 
accordance with the priorities established under the Indenture, including the prior payment from the 
Revenues of the Operating Expenses of the Clean Energy Project.  The Indenture includes provisions for 
the application of various other amounts under Clean Energy Project that do not constitute Revenues. 

Among other funds and accounts, the Indenture establishes a Revenue Fund, an Operating Fund, a 
Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund and a Commodity Swap Payment Fund and establishes the 
funding requirements therefor.  Scheduled Debt Service Deposits are required to made into the Debt Service 
Account and will be invested pursuant to the Debt Service Account Investment Agreement described herein.  
See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS—Investment of Funds”. 

The amounts required to be on deposit in certain Funds and Accounts held by the Trustee under 
the Indenture are calculated to be sufficient to pay the Purchase Price or the Redemption Price of all Bonds 
on the Mandatory Purchase Date, assuming that MSES, or in the event of nonpayment by MSES, payment 
by Morgan Stanley pursuant to the Morgan Stanley Guarantees, and the Investment Agreement Provider 
pay and perform their respective contract obligations when due.  Any failure to pay the purchase price or 
the Redemption Price of all of the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date will result in an Event of Default 
under the Indenture.  See “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS” herein. 

THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OR INDEBTEDNESS OF 
CCCFA, THE MEMBERS OF CCCFA, THE STATE, THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT, THE STATE OR 
ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE.  THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED 
OBLIGATIONS OF CCCFA PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND SECURED SOLELY BY THE TRUST 
ESTATE, IN THE MANNER AND TO THE EXTENT PROVIDED FOR IN THE INDENTURE.  CCCFA 
HAS NO TAXING POWER.  SEE “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS”. 

The Clean Energy Project 

CCCFA is issuing the Bonds to finance the Clean Energy Project, which includes the cost of 
acquisition of a 30-year supply of EPS Compliant Energy (the “Prepaid Energy”) under a Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement between CCCFA and Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited 
liability company (the “Energy Supplier” or “MSES”) and the sale thereof to the Project Participant as 
hereinafter described.   The Clean Energy Project is structured to assist the Project Participant to procure a 
long-term supply of EPS Compliant Energy at attractive prices.  In order to do so, the Clean Energy Project 
includes a feature whereby the Project Participant will assign to the Energy Supplier, or to Morgan Stanley 
Capital Group Inc. (“MSCG”), a portion of the Project Participant’s rights and obligations (the “Assigned 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

4 

Rights and Obligations”) to receive certain quantities (“Assigned Quantities”) of EPS Compliant Energy 
(“Assigned Energy”), together with associated Green Attributes (as defined in APPENDIX B hereto), 
renewable energy credits (“RECs”), capacity, or other related products (collectively, “Assigned Products”) 
under existing and future power purchase agreements (“PPAs”).  With respect to any such assignment to 
MSCG, MSCG will redeliver such Assigned Energy and other Assigned Products to the Energy Supplier 
to meet the Energy Supplier’s obligations to deliver Prepaid Energy to CCCFA under the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement.  CCCFA will then deliver such Assigned Energy and other Assigned Products to the 
Project Participant under its Power Supply Contract. See “THE CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT”. 

The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Investment Agreement, the 
Commodity Swaps, the Interest Rate Swap, the Indenture, the Receivables Purchase Provisions, the Bonds 
and related agreements have been structured so that, assuming timely performance and payment by the 
Energy Supplier, Morgan Stanley, the Investment Agreement Provider and the Project Participant of their 
respective contractual obligations, the Revenues available to CCCFA from the Clean Energy Project are 
calculated to be sufficient at all times to provide for the timely payment of Operating Expenses and the 
scheduled Debt Service requirements on the Bonds and the payments due under the Interest Rate Swap and 
the CCCFA Commodity Swap.   

For a summary of certain terms and provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, see “THE 
PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT”. 

The Project Participant 

CCCFA has entered into a Power Supply Contract (the “Power Supply Contract”) for the sale of 
the Prepaid Energy with East Bay Community Energy Authority (“EBCE”), a joint powers authority and a 
community choice aggregator duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the 
“Project Participant”).  See “COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATORS” for certain information with respect 
to California community choice aggregators.  During the Delivery Period, the Project Participant will use 
the Prepaid Energy it purchases from CCCFA for sale to retail customers located in its established service 
area.  For a summary of certain terms and provisions of the Power Supply Contract, see “THE POWER 
SUPPLY CONTRACT”.  See APPENDIX A for certain information with respect to the Project Participant. 

The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement 

General.  During the Delivery Period, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement provides for the 
monthly delivery of the Prepaid Quantities of EPS Compliant Energy.  To the extent the Assigned 
Quantities delivered under the Initially Assigned PPAs or any future Assigned PPA for any month is less 
than Prepaid Quantity for such month, CCCFA will be deemed to have requested for the Energy Supplier 
to remarket the portion of the Assigned Quantities not delivered and the Energy Supplier will be obligated 
to make a payment to CCCFA equal to the quantity of Assigned Energy not delivered multiplied by the 
applicable assigned price.  Other than the Energy Supplier’s remarketing payment obligation, neither 
CCCFA nor the Energy Supplier will have any liability or other obligation to one another for any failure to 
schedule, receive or deliver Assigned Energy, as further discussed under “The Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement — Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements” herein.  To the extent that EPS Compliant 
Energy is not available for delivery pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES’s obligation to deliver the 
Assigned Products will be replaced with an obligation to deliver firm (LD) energy (“Base Energy”), and 
the Energy Supplier is obligated to remarket Base Energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

5 

remit the proceeds thereof to CCCFA.  The Energy Supplier is also obligated to make payments to CCCFA 
for Base Energy not delivered or remarketed under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, including for 
Force Majeure events. 

Replacement of Initially Assigned PPAs.  In the event of any expiration, termination or anticipated 
termination of the Initial Assigned Rights and Obligations, the Project Participant is required to use 
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to assign replacement Assigned Rights and Obligations to MSCG for 
delivery of Assigned Energy equal to the Prepaid Quantities (“Replacement Assigned Rights and 
Obligations”).  Assigned Rights and Obligations are expected to be in place for the entirety of the 
Initial Reset Period, and Base Energy is not expected to be delivered during the Initial Reset Period. 

Energy Remarketing. In the event Assigned Quantities equivalent to the Prepaid Quantities for any 
month are not delivered under an Assigned PPA, CCCFA will be deemed to have requested that the Energy 
Supplier remarket the portion of the Assigned Quantities not delivered, and the Energy Supplier will be 
obligated to make a payment to CCCFA equal to the quantity of Assigned Energy not delivered multiplied 
by the applicable index price (or the applicable fixed price with respect to Assigned Energy otherwise 
intended to be delivered to EBCE during the Initial EPS Energy Period).  Any such remarketing will be 
treated as a purchase by the Energy Supplier for its own account and will constitute a private-business use 
sale, and the Project Participant is obligated to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate the 
proceeds of such sales with other qualifying purchases of Energy.  To the extent the Project Participant has 
not remediated the proceeds of such sales within twelve months, MSES is required to use Commercially 
Reasonable Efforts to remediate such proceeds through Qualifying Sales to Municipal Utilities. 

In the event of any expiration or termination of an Assigned PPA, the Project Participant is required 
to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to enter into a new limited assignment agreement relating to one 
or more additional PPAs, providing for the assignment of its rights to delivery of quantities of EPS 
Compliant Energy equivalent to the Prepaid Quantities for the term of such assignment.  To the extent the 
Project Participant exercises Commercially Reasonable Efforts to enter into such a limited assignment but 
is unable to do so, then, subject to certain conditions, MSES shall be obligated remarket Base Energy and 
purchase such Base Energy for its own account at the applicable index price, and the Project Participant 
shall be obligated to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate the proceeds of such sales with 
other qualifying purchases of energy.  Otherwise, to the extent that the Project Participant has not exercised 
commercially reasonable efforts to enter into a limited assignment agreement for the redelivery of EPS 
Compliant Energy under its Power Supply Contract, MSES is required to use Commercially Reasonable 
Efforts to remarket equivalent quantities of Base Energy to Municipal Utilities for a Qualifying Use at a 
net price not less than the Contract Price.  See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT – Energy 
Remarketing” and “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT – Remarketing of Energy”. 

Base Energy is not expected to be delivered during the Initial Reset Period.   

Early Termination.  Various termination events are specified in the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement.  Upon the occurrence of certain of these events, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement may be 
terminated by CCCFA or MSES, and upon the occurrence of certain other events including a Failed 
Remarketing, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will terminate automatically.  If the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement is terminated, MSES will be required to pay a scheduled termination payment (the 
“Termination Payment”) to CCCFA.  Any termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will result 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

6 

in extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Bonds.  The amount of the Termination Payment declines 
over time as MSES performs its Energy delivery obligations under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

The amount of the Termination Payment, together with the amounts required to be on deposit in 
certain funds and accounts held by the Trustee, has been calculated to provide a sum at least sufficient to 
pay the Redemption Price of the Bonds, assuming that the Energy Supplier and the Investment Agreement 
Provider pay and perform their contract obligations when due, or in the event of nonpayment by the Energy 
Supplier, payment by Morgan Stanley under the Morgan Stanley Guarantees.  A payment shortfall from 
any one of these entities could result in a payment shortfall to Bondholders. 

See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT” and “THE BONDS — Redemption — 
Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption”.  A schedule of the monthly Termination Payment during the initial 
Reset Period under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement is attached as APPENDIX I.   

The Receivables Purchase Provisions 

The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement contains provisions (the “Receivables Purchase Provisions”) 
designed to mitigate the risk of non-payment by the Project Participant under the Power Supply Contract.  
Upon a payment default by the Project Participant, the Receivables Purchase Provisions require CCCFA to 
put, and require MSES, as Receivables Purchaser, to purchase the amount owed by the defaulting Project 
Participant (the “Put Receivables”) with a face value up to the amount due from the Project Participant for 
any two consecutive months.  Amounts received by the Trustee from the sale of Put Receivables will be 
deposited into the Revenue Fund and applied in accordance with the priorities established under the 
Indenture.  See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS—Flow of Funds”. 

See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Receivables Purchase Provisions”. 

The Power Supply Contract 

The Power Supply Contract provides for the sale to the Project Participant of the Prepaid Energy 
to be delivered to CCCFA over the term of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  Such Prepaid Energy will 
be comprised of the Assigned Quantities under Assigned PPAs and, to the extent such Assigned Quantities 
are less than the Prepaid Quantities for any month and MSES is otherwise unable to deliver make-up 
quantities of EPS Compliant Energy, Base Energy.  Under the Power Supply Contract, CCCFA has agreed 
to deliver, and the Project Participant has agreed to purchase, such Assigned Quantities and to cause the 
remarketing of any Base Energy during the Delivery Period. Base Energy is required to be remarketed 
under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, subject to the requirements set forth therein. In the event that 
the Energy Supplier is unable to remarket any such Base Energy, the Energy Supplier has agreed to purchase 
such Base Energy for its own account. 

The payments required to be made under the Power Supply Contract, together with any net 
amounts received by CCCFA under the CCCFA Commodity Swap and Interest Rate Swap described 
below, constitute the primary and expected source of the Revenues pledged to the payment of the 
Bonds.  The obligations of the Project Participant under the Power Supply Contract are payable 
solely from revenues of the Project Participant derived from its community choice aggregator power 
supply operations.  Under the Power Supply Contract, the Project Participant makes payments 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

7 

directly to the Trustee for deposit into the Revenue Fund.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY 
CONTRACT”. 

Re-Pricing Agreement 

On the initial issue date of the Bonds, CCCFA and the Energy Supplier will enter into a Re-Pricing 
Agreement (the “Re-Pricing Agreement”), which provides for (a) the determination of Energy Delivery 
Periods subsequent to the initial Delivery Period to correspond to the related Interest Rate Periods on the 
Bonds (“Reset Periods”) and (b) the determination of the amount of the discount (in US Dollars per MWh) 
to the Index Price that will be available for such Reset Period (the “Available Discount”) for sales to the 
Project Participant under the Power Supply Contract during each Reset Period. 

The Initial Reset Period under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement ends one month before the end 
of the Initial Interest Rate Period, and each subsequent Reset Period will end one month before the end of 
the corresponding Interest Rate Period.  The Initial Reset Period begins on the first day of [______] 20[__] 
and ends on the last day of [______] 20[__]*.  See “The RE-PRICING AGREEMENT”. 

Interest Rate Swap 

With respect to any Index Rate Bonds that are issued, CCCFA will enter into an interest rate swap 
agreement (the “Interest Rate Swap”) with MSES, as Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, in order to hedge 
its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the Index Rate Bonds and match its payment obligations on the 
Index Rate Bonds with the expected Revenues of the Clean Energy Project.  Under the Interest Rate Swap, 
CCCFA will pay amounts corresponding to the principal amount of the Index Rate Bonds at a fixed interest 
rate and will receive from MSES amounts corresponding to the principal amount of the Index Rate Bonds 
at a floating rate equal to the interest rates on the Index Rate Bonds.  The term of the Interest Rate Swap 
will extend for the term of the Initial Interest Rate Period.  See “THE INTEREST RATE SWAP”. 

Commodity Swaps 

CCCFA Commodity Swap.  CCCFA has entered into the CCCFA Commodity Swap under which 
CCCFA will pay a floating Energy price at a specified pricing point and will receive a fixed Energy price 
for the monthly notional quantities specified in the CCCFA Commodity Swap.    

MSES Commodity Swap.  MSES has entered into the MSES Commodity Swap with the same 
Commodity Swap Counterparty under which MSES pays a fixed price and the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty pays a floating price.  The notional energy quantities under the MSES Commodity Swap 
match those under the CCCFA Commodity Swap and, accordingly, those under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement. 

Term.  The Commodity Swaps extend for the term of the delivery period under the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement, but are subject to early termination upon the occurrence of certain events.  Termination 
of either of the Commodity Swaps without replacement by CCCFA and MSES will give rise to early 
termination rights under, and in some cases result in automatic termination of, the Prepaid Energy Sales 

 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

8 

Agreement, which would result in the extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Bonds pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

Commodity Swap Counterparty.  The swap counterparty is [____________]. For a description of 
certain provisions of the Commodity Swaps, see “THE COMMODITY SWAPS.”  For information regarding 
the Commodity Swap Counterparty, see “THE COMMODITY SWAP COUNTERPARTY.” 

Custodial Agreements.  CCCFA will enter into a Custodial Agreement (the “CCCFA Custodial 
Agreement”), with the Commodity Swap Counterparty and the Custodian to administer payments under the 
CCCFA Commodity Swap.  MSES will enter into a separate Custodial Agreement (the “MSES Custodial 
Agreement,” and together with the MSES Custodial Agreement, the “Custodial Agreements”), with the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty and the Custodian, to administer payments under MSES Commodity Swap.  
The Custodial Agreements contain provisions designed to mitigate risks to CCCFA and Bondholders 
resulting from a failure of the Commodity Swap Counterparty to make payments to CCCFA under the 
CCCFA Commodity Swap, and mitigate risks to MSES resulting from a failure of the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty to make payments to MSES under the MSES Commodity Swap.  See “The Commodity 
Swaps—Custodial Agreements.” 

Morgan Stanley Guarantees 

The payment obligations of MSES under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, including the 
Receivables Purchase Provisions therein, and the Interest Rate Swap are unconditionally guaranteed by 
Morgan Stanley under a guarantee agreement (the “Morgan Stanley Guarantee”).  See “THE PREPAID 
ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Security” and “THE INTEREST RATE SWAP—Morgan Stanley Guarantee”.  
The payment obligations of MSES under the MSES Commodity Swap are unconditionally guaranteed by 
Morgan Stanley under a separate guarantee agreement (the “Morgan Stanley Commodity Swap 
Guarantee”).  See “THE COMMODITY SWAPS—The MSES Commodity Swap”.  The Morgan Stanley 
Guarantee and the Morgan Stanley Commodity Swap Guarantee are referred to collectively herein as the 
“Morgan Stanley Guarantees.” 

The Energy Supplier, MSCG and Morgan Stanley 

The Energy Supplier is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.  The Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (the “FERC”) has granted the Energy Supplier market-based rate 
authorization for wholesale sales of electric energy, capacity and ancillary services at market-based rates.  
The Energy Supplier is not registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the “CFTC”) in 
any capacity, does not engage in swap dealing activities, and does not provide advisory or structuring 
services relating to swaps.  The payment obligations of the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement, the Interest Rate Swap and the MSES Commodity Swap are guaranteed by Morgan Stanley 
under the Morgan Stanley Guarantees. 

MSCG is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.  MSCG is engaged, among 
other things, in client facilitation and market-making activities in commodities and commodity derivative 
contracts.  MSCG is provisionally registered as a swap dealer with the CFTC. 

Morgan Stanley is a global financial services firm that, through its subsidiaries and affiliates, 
provides its products and services to a large and diversified group of clients and customers, including 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

9 

corporations, governments, financial institutions and individuals.  Morgan Stanley was originally 
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in 1981, and its predecessor companies date back to 
1924.  Morgan Stanley conducts its business from its headquarters in and around New York City, its 
regional offices and branches throughout the United States, and its principal offices in London, Tokyo, 
Hong Kong and other world financial centers.   

See “THE ENERGY SUPPLIER, MSCG AND MORGAN STANLEY” and “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES 
AGREEMENT—Security”. 

Certain Relationships 

MSES, which is the Energy Supplier, the Receivables Purchaser, the counterparty to the MSES 
Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate Swap provider, and MSCG, which is assignee under the Assignment 
Agreements are indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley.  The payment obligations of MSES 
under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the MSES Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate Swap, are 
unconditionally guaranteed by Morgan Stanley. 

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (“MS&Co.”) is serving as the Underwriter of the Bonds.  MS&Co. is 
a Delaware corporation (incorporated in 1969) and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. 

The relationships described above could create one or more conflicts of interest or the appearance 
of such conflicts. 

___________________ 

This Official Statement includes information regarding and descriptions of CCCFA, the Clean 
Energy Project, the Energy Supplier, MSCG, Morgan Stanley, the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the 
Project Participant and the Bonds, and summaries of certain provisions of the Indenture, the Power Supply 
Contract, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Commodity Swaps, the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, the Re-Pricing Agreement, the Investment Agreements, the Interest Rate Swap and the 
Custodial Agreements referred to herein.  Such descriptions and summaries do not purport to be complete 
or definitive, and such summaries are qualified by reference to such documents.  Certain of these documents 
are available to prospective investors during the initial offering period of the Bonds and thereafter to 
Bondholders, in each case upon request to CCCFA.  Descriptions of the Indenture, the Bonds, the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Commodity Swaps, the Investment Agreements, 
the Interest Rate Swap, the Custodial Agreements, the Receivables Purchase Provisions and the Re-Pricing 
Agreement, and are qualified by reference to bankruptcy laws affecting the remedies for the enforcement 
of the rights and security provided therein and the effect of the exercise of police and regulatory powers by 
federal and state authorities. 

This Official Statement describes the terms of the Bonds only during the Initial Interest Rate 
Period and must not be relied upon after the Bonds are converted to another Interest Rate Period.  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

10 

THE CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT 

CCCFA is issuing the Bonds to finance the Clean Energy Project, which includes the cost of 
acquisition of a 30-year supply of EPS Compliant Energy (the “Prepaid Energy”) under a Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement between CCCFA and Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited 
liability company (the “Energy Supplier” or “MSES”) and the sale thereof to the Project Participant as 
hereinafter described.  The term “EPS Compliant Energy” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current 
electric energy (“Energy”) that the Project Participant can contract for and purchase in compliance with the 
California’s Emissions Performance Standards (“EPS”), as set forth in Sections 8340 and 8341 of the 
California Public Utilities Code, as implemented and amended from time to time, and any successor Law, 
that are applicable to the Project Participant. 

Pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy Supplier is obligated to deliver 
specified quantities of Prepaid Energy to CCCFA each month (the “Prepaid Quantities”), make certain 
payments for any Prepaid Quantities not delivered, remarket Prepaid Quantities not taken by the Project 
Participant and make a Termination Payment upon any early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement in whole or in part.  Any such Termination Payment will be applied to the mandatory redemption 
of the Bonds in whole or in part, as applicable.  The payment obligations of the Energy Supplier under the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, including the Receivables Purchase Provisions therein, are 
unconditionally guaranteed by Morgan Stanley (“Morgan Stanley”).  For a summary of certain terms and 
provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, see “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT”. 

CCCFA has entered into a Power Supply Contract (the “Power Supply Contract”) for the sale of 
the Prepaid Energy with the Project Participant.  During the Delivery Period, the Project Participant will 
use the Prepaid Energy it purchases from CCCFA for sale to retail customers located in its established 
service area.  For a summary of certain terms and provisions of the Power Supply Contract, see “THE 
POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT”.  See APPENDIX A for certain information with respect to the Project 
Participant. 

Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements by the Project Participant 

California’s EPS regulations, codified as Senate Bill 1368 (2006) (“SB 1368”) prevents all 
California utilities, both privately and publicly owned, from signing long-term contracts from a specified 
source with a greenhouse gas emissions greater per unit of power than the emissions of greenhouse gases 
for combined-cycle natural gas baseload generation or from an unspecified source.  For baseload generation 
procured under contracts, a long-term commitment is a contract of five years or longer, and the Project 
Participant has adopted long-term plans for the procurement of EPS Compliant Energy. 

Right to Assign Existing and Future Power Purchase Agreements.  The Clean Energy Project is 
structured to assist the Project Participant to procure a long-term supply of EPS Compliant Energy at 
attractive prices.  In order to do so, the Clean Energy Project includes a feature whereby the Project 
Participant will assign to the Energy Supplier, or to Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc. (“MSCG”), a portion 
of the Project Participant’s rights and obligations (the “Assigned Rights and Obligations”) to receive certain 
quantities (“Assigned Quantities”) of EPS Compliant Energy (“Assigned Energy”), together with associated 
Green Attributes (as defined in APPENDIX B hereto), renewable energy credits (“RECs”), capacity, or other 
related products (collectively, “Assigned Products”) under existing and future power purchase agreements 
(“PPAs”).  With respect to any such assignment to MSCG, MSCG will redeliver such Assigned Energy and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

11 

other Assigned Products to the Energy Supplier to meet the Energy Supplier’s obligations to deliver Prepaid 
Energy to CCCFA under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  CCCFA will then deliver such Assigned 
Energy and other Assigned Products to the Project Participant under its Power Supply Contract.  Concurrent 
with the execution of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and the Power Supply Contract, the Project 
Participant has entered into a limited assignment agreement (each, an “Assignment Agreement”) relating to 
a specific PPA (an “Initially Assigned PPA”) among the Project Participant, the Energy Supplier and 
MSCG, as seller under each Initially Assigned PPA, to assign the Assigned Rights and Obligations (the 
“Initial Assigned Rights and Obligations”) to the Energy Supplier beginning [________ 1, 20__] and 
through [________, 20__]. 

In the event of any expiration, termination or anticipated termination of Assigned Rights and 
Obligations under the Assigned PPAs, the Project Participant is obligated to exercise Commercially 
Reasonable Efforts to assign Replacement Assigned Rights and Obligations to MSCG for delivery of EPS 
Compliant Energy to the Energy Supplier.  The Project Participant has or expects to have additional power 
purchase agreements pursuant to which it purchases or expects to purchase EPS Compliant Energy and 
wherein its rights and obligations thereunder could be assigned to MSCG. 

In the event of a termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the rights, title and interest 
under the Assigned PPAs will revert back to the Project Participant, who may continue to receive the EPS 
Compliant Energy delivered under such agreements at the price payable under the applicable Assigned 
PPA.  In the event of a termination of an Assignment Agreement and the reversion of the related Assigned 
Rights and Obligations under an Assigned PPA to the Project Participant, no termination payment other 
than payment for delivered Assigned Products will be required to be made by CCCFA, the Energy Supplier 
or MSCG. 

Structure of the Clean Energy Project 

The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Investment Agreement, the 
Commodity Swaps, the Interest Rate Swap, the Indenture, the Receivables Purchase Provisions, the Bonds 
and related agreements have been structured so that, assuming timely performance and payment by the 
Energy Supplier, Morgan Stanley, the Investment Agreement Provider and the Project Participant of their 
respective contractual obligations, the Revenues available to CCCFA from the Clean Energy Project are 
calculated to be sufficient at all times to provide for the timely payment of Operating Expenses and the 
scheduled Debt Service requirements on the Bonds and the payments due under the Interest Rate Swap and 
the CCCFA Commodity Swap.  These arrangements include: 

• The Energy Supplier is required to deliver Prepaid Energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement to CCCFA such that CCCFA can meet its obligations to the Project Participant 
under the Power Supply Contract.  In the event Assigned Quantities equivalent to the 
Prepaid Quantities are not delivered under the Assigned PPAs, and the Energy Supplier is 
unable to deliver make-up quantities of EPS Compliant Energy, the Energy Supplier is 
required to deliver equivalent quantities of Base Energy for remarketing.  In the event the 
Energy Supplier fails to deliver Base Energy for any reason, including force majeure 
events, it is required to pay certain specified amounts to CCCFA. 

• The Project Participant has agreed to pay for Prepaid Energy tendered for delivery under 
its Power Supply Contract at the Contract Price.  In the event the Project Participant fails 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

12 

to pay when due any amounts owed under its Power Supply Contract, CCCFA has 
covenanted in the Indenture to exercise its right under the Power Supply Contract to 
suspend further deliveries of Prepaid Energy to the Project Participant and to give notice 
to the Energy Supplier to follow the provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement 
with respect to Prepaid Energy for which delivery has been suspended. 

• In the event the Project Participant fails to pay for Prepaid Energy tendered for delivery by 
CCCFA or fails to pay damages for Prepaid Energy tendered by CCCFA and not taken, the 
Trustee is obligated to sell and MSES is obligated to purchase Put Receivables. 

• In the event of a suspension of Prepaid Energy deliveries to the Project Participant, the 
Energy Supplier will remarket Base Energy pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement. The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement requires specified payments for all Base 
Energy remarketed or purchased, less certain applicable fees. 

• If the Commodity Swap Counterparty does not make a required payment under the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap and such payment remains unpaid after the expiration of any grace 
period, the Custodian under the terms of the Energy Supplier Custodial Agreement will 
pay the amount that the Energy Supplier paid under the corresponding Energy Supplier 
Commodity Swap (or in the event of termination of such Energy Supplier Commodity 
Swap, the amount that the Energy Supplier paid into the applicable custodial account as if 
such Energy Supplier Commodity Swap were still in effect), which such amount is held in 
custody, to CCCFA, and such payment will be treated as a Commodity Swap Receipt. 

• If a Termination Event occurs under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy 
Supplier is required to pay the scheduled Termination Payment to CCCFA, as further 
described below. 

• [___________], as provider of the Debt Service Account Investment Agreement (the 
“Investment Agreement Provider”) is required to make timely payment of scheduled 
amounts due under the Investment Agreement which, together with other Revenues, 
provide sufficient monies to CCCFA to pay debt service. 

In the event the Energy Supplier fails to perform its material obligations under the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will terminate automatically in certain 
circumstances or CCCFA at its option may terminate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement in other 
circumstances.  Upon any termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy Supplier is 
required to pay the scheduled Termination Payment.  The payment of the Termination Payment is 
guaranteed by Morgan Stanley under the Morgan Stanley Guarantee.  In the event the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement is terminated, the Series 2022A-1 Bonds are to be redeemed at their Amortized Value and the 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 2022A-3 Bonds are to be redeemed at 100% of their principal amount (in 
each case plus accrued interest to the redemption date), regardless of reinvestment rates at the time.  See 
“THE BONDS—Redemption—Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.” 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

13 

CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT TRANSACTION STRUCTURE 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Transaction Overview 

Bond Issuance: CCCFA issues the Bonds to fund the prepayment for Energy, pay capitalized interest, and pay costs of issuance. The Bonds 
will bear interest at fixed interest rates (or at floating rates swapped to a fixed rate under the Interest Rate Swap) during the Initial Interest Rate 
Period.   

Prepayment: CCCFA will apply bond proceeds to prepay MSES for 30 years of Energy deliveries. Under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, 
MSES will be obligated to (a) deliver specified hourly quantities of Energy each month to CCCFA for 30 years; (b) make payments for Energy 
that (i) is remarketed based on the applicable index price, or (ii) is not delivered based on replacement cost or the index price, whichever is 
higher; and (c) make a termination payment upon any early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, including upon a Failed 
Remarketing, as described herein. 

MSES Commodity Swap: MSES enters into a Commodity Swap with the Commodity Swap Counterparty to facilitate MSES’s ability to purchase 
at index prices the specified Energy quantities required to be delivered each month throughout the term of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

CCCFA Commodity Swap: CCCFA enters into a Commodity Swap with the Commodity Swap Counterparty to facilitate its ability to sell specified 
Energy quantities required to be delivered to the Project Participant at index prices, creating the economic effect of fixing the discount below the 
index (market) price at which Energy is sold to the Project Participant. CCCFA Commodity Swap enables CCCFA to sell prepaid quantities to 
the Project Participant at index prices while ensuring that the net revenues from Project Participant payments and CCCFA Commodity Swap 
always equal or exceed debt service regardless of the index price of Energy at the time. Quantities, term, and delivery points for CCCFA 
Commodity Swap mirror those of the MSES Commodity Swap. 

Project Participant: Under the Energy Supply Contract, CCCFA will sell to the Project Participant all of the Energy delivered by MSES on a 
pay-as-you-go basis at an index price less specified discounts determined to ensure that the month’s net Energy sale revenues (net of swap 
payments and receipts) will enable CCCFA to make scheduled deposits to the Debt Service Account. 

Interest Rate Swap: CCCFA will enter into the Interest Rate Swap with MSES under which it will pay a fixed rate and receive a floating rate 
with respect to the interest rate on the Index Rate Bonds, as described herein. 

MS Guarantees: The payment obligations of MSES under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and the MSES Commodity Swap will be 
guaranteed by Morgan Stanley. 

Assigned PPAs: The Project Participant is expected to assign its rights to receive EPS Compliant Energy under existing and future PPAs to 
MSES in order for MSES to meet its obligation to delivery EPS Compliant Energy to CCCFA under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. To 
the extent a PPA is with MSCG, the Project Participant will assign the PPA to MSES.  

The cumulative effect of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the CCCFA Commodity Swap, the Power Supply Contract and related documents 
enables CCCFA to receive dependable Energy supplies at a discount below market prices for sale to the Project Participant.  The resulting 
monthly net revenues, regardless of changes in Energy prices, are expected to be adequate to pay Debt Service requirements on the Bonds 
and program expenses when due. 

Commodity 
Swap 

Counterparty 

1 

2 

3 

5 

6 

8 

4 

7 

Prepayment 
(Upfront) 

Commodity 
Swap 

Counterparty 

Project 
Participant 

Morgan Stanley MSES CCCFA 

3 4 

5 2 
7 

Fixed Price 
(Monthly) 

Index 
Price 

(Monthly) 

Index 
Price 

(Monthly) 
Energy 

(Monthly) 

Fixed Price 
(Monthly) 

Guarantee 
Payment 

Obligations 

Energy 
(Monthly) 

Index Price 
Less 

Discount 
(Monthly) 

Proceeds 
(Upfront) 

Debt Service 

1 

The Bonds 

3 

Assigned PPAs 

8 

6 
Fixed Rate 
(Monthly) MSCG 

Energy 
(Monthly) 

Index 
Price 

(Monthly) 

PPAs  

Energy 
(Monthly) 

Index 
Price 

(Monthly) 

Bond Rate 
(Monthly) 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

14 

DESIGNATION OF BONDS AS GREEN BONDS 

Green Bonds Designation 

Per the International Capital Market Association (“ICMA”), Green Bonds are any type of bond 
instrument where the proceeds will be exclusively applied to finance or re-finance, in part or in full, new 
and/or existing eligible Green Projects and which are aligned with the four core components of the Green 
Bond Principles. The four core components are: 1. Use of Proceeds; 2. Process for Project Evaluation and 
Selection; 3. Management of Proceeds; and 4. Reporting. 

Kestrel Verifiers has determined that the Bonds are in conformance with the four core components 
of the ICMA Green Bond Principles, as described in Kestrel Verifiers’ “Second Party Opinion”, which is 
attached hereto as Appendix F. 

Independent Second Party Opinion on Green Bond Designation and Disclaimer 

For over 20 years, Kestrel Verifiers has been consulting in sustainable finance. Kestrel Verifiers, a 
division of Kestrel 360, Inc. is an Approved Verifier accredited by the Climate Bonds Initiative and an 
Observer for the ICMA Green Bond Principles and Social Bond Principles. Kestrel Verifiers reviews 
transactions in all asset classes worldwide for alignment with ICMA Green Bond Principles, Social Bond 
Principles, Sustainability Bond Guidelines and the Climate Bonds Initiative Standards and criteria.  

The Second Party Opinion issued by Kestrel Verifiers does not and is not intended to make any 
representation or give any assurance with respect to any other matter relating to the bonds. Designations by 
Kestrel Verifiers are not a recommendation to any person to purchase, hold, or sell the bonds and such 
labeling does not address the market price or suitability of these bonds for a particular investor and does 
not and is not in any way intended to address the likelihood of timely payment of interest or principal when 
due. 

In issuing the Second Party Opinion, Kestrel Verifiers has assumed and relied upon the accuracy 
and completeness of the information made publicly available by CCCFA, the Project Participant, or that 
was otherwise made available to Kestrel Verifiers. 

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS 

The purchase of the Bonds involves certain investment considerations discussed throughout this 
Official Statement.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should make a decision to purchase the Bonds 
only after reviewing the entire Official Statement and making an independent evaluation of the information 
contained herein.  Certain of those investment considerations are summarized below.  This summary does 
not purport to be complete, and the order in which the following investment considerations are presented is 
not intended to reflect their relative significance. 

Special and Limited Obligations 

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of CCCFA and are payable solely from and secured 
solely by the Trust Estate pledged pursuant to the Indenture.  The Trust Estate includes only the proceeds, 
revenues, funds and rights related to the Clean Energy Project, as described under “SECURITY FOR THE 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

15 

BONDS — The Indenture” below and does not include any other revenues or assets of CCCFA.  The Bonds 
are not general obligations of CCCFA, and CCCFA has no taxing power. 

Only CCCFA is obligated to pay the Bonds.  The Project Participant is not obligated to make 
payments in respect of the debt service on the Bonds.  The Project Participant is obligated only to purchase 
and pay for Prepaid Energy tendered for delivery by CCCFA at the Contract Price set forth in the Energy 
Supply Contract.  None of the Energy Supplier, MSCG nor Morgan Stanley is obligated to make debt 
service payments on the Bonds, and none of them has guaranteed payment of the Bonds.  

Structure of the Clean Energy Project 

The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Power Supply Contract, the Investment Agreement, the 
Commodity Swaps, the Interest Rate Swap, the Indenture, the Receivables Purchase Provisions, the Bonds 
and related agreements have been structured so that, assuming timely performance and payment by the 
Energy Supplier, Morgan Stanley, the Investment Agreement Provider and the Project Participant of their 
respective contractual obligations, the Revenues available to CCCFA from the Clean Energy Project are 
calculated to be sufficient at all times to provide for the timely payment of Operating Expenses and the 
scheduled Debt Service requirements on the Bonds and the payments due under the Interest Rate Swap and 
the CCCFA Commodity Swap. See “THE CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT – Structure of the Clean Energy 
Project”. 

In the event the Energy Supplier fails to perform its material obligations under the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will terminate automatically in certain 
circumstances or CCCFA at its option may terminate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement in other 
circumstances.  Upon any termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy Supplier is 
required to pay the scheduled Termination Payment.  The payment of the Termination Payment is 
guaranteed by Morgan Stanley under the Morgan Stanley Guarantee.  In the event the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement is terminated, the Series 2022A-1 Bonds are to be redeemed at their Amortized Value and the 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds and the Series 2022A-3 Bonds are to be redeemed at 100% of their principal amount 
(in each case plus accrued interest to the redemption date), regardless of reinvestment rates at the time.  See 
“THE BONDS—Redemption—Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.” 

Performance by Others 

During the Initial Interest Rate Period, the ability of CCCFA to pay timely the scheduled debt 
service on the Bonds depends on the timely performance and payment by (a) MSES under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement, including the Receivables Purchase Provisions therein, the MSES Commodity 
Swap and the Interest Rate Swap, (b) Morgan Stanley under the Morgan Stanley Guarantees, and (c) the 
Investment Agreement Provider under the Investment Agreement.  The failure by any one or more of such 
parties to meet such obligations could materially and adversely affect the ability of CCCFA to pay timely 
the scheduled debt service on the Bonds, and to meet its other obligations under the Indenture, the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement, the Interest Rate Swap, the Power Supply Contract and, if applicable, the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

16 

The events and conditions that could result in either or both of (a) a default in the payment of Debt 
Service on the Bonds or (b) a Termination Event under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, which will 
cause the extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Bonds, include items that may be within or outside 
the control of CCCFA or the Energy Supplier (or both), such as: 

• failure by the Energy Supplier in the timely performance of its obligations under the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement to make payments of replacement cost damages for 
Prepaid Energy not delivered and for any remarketed Base Energy; 

• in the event of nonpayment by the Energy Supplier of its obligations under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement, the Receivables Purchase Provisions, the MSES Commodity 
Swap or the Interest Rate Swap, failure by Morgan Stanley in the timely payment of the 
guaranteed amounts under the Morgan Stanley Guarantees; 

• the prospects and financial and operational performance of the Energy Supplier, MSCG 
and Morgan Stanley and their continuing ability to meet their respective obligations under 
the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the MSES Commodity Swap, the Interest Rate Swap 
and the Morgan Stanley Guarantees, respectively, for their full terms; 

• failure by MSES to purchase Put Receivables required to be sold by the Trustee and 
purchased by MSES pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions in the event that the 
Project Participant fails to pay for Prepaid Energy tendered for delivery by CCCFA or fails 
to pay damages for Prepaid Energy tendered by CCCFA and not taken. 

• failure by the Energy Supplier in the performance of its remarketing obligations with 
respect to any Base Energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, including 
particularly its continuing ability to remarket Base Energy to Municipal Utilities; 

• failure by the Commodity Swap Counterparty in the timely performance of its obligations 
under the CCCFA Commodity Swap and the MSES Commodity Swap combined with a 
failure in the timely performance and enforcement of the Energy Supplier Custodial 
Agreement; 

• failure by the Energy Supplier and CCCFA in the timely performance of their respective 
obligations under the MSES Commodity Swap and the CCCFA Commodity Swap; 

• the inability of the Energy Supplier and CCCFA to replace timely any Commodity Swap 
that has been terminated; 

• failure by MSES or CCCFA in the timely performance of their respective obligations under 
the Interest Rate Swap; and 

• failure by the Investment Agreement Provider to make timely payment of the required 
amounts due or payable under the Investment Agreement. 

Upon early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy Supplier will be 
obligated to pay the scheduled Termination Payment.  The scheduled amount of the Termination Payment, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

17 

together with the amounts required to be on deposit in certain Funds and Accounts held by the Trustee, has 
been calculated to provide CCCFA with an amount at least sufficient to redeem all of the Bonds, assuming 
that the Energy Supplier and the Investment Agreement Provider pay and perform their contract obligations 
when due. 

In the case of a Failed Remarketing and a mandatory redemption of the Bonds on the Mandatory 
Purchase Date, the amounts required to be on deposit in certain Funds and Accounts held by the Trustee 
under the Indenture are calculated to be sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of all Bonds on the 
Mandatory Purchase Date, assuming that the Energy Supplier and the Investment Agreement Provider pay 
and perform their respective contract obligations when due, or in the event of nonpayment by the Energy 
Supplier, payment by Morgan Stanley pursuant to the Morgan Stanley Guarantee.  Any failure to pay the 
purchase price or the Redemption Price of all of the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date will result in 
an Event of Default under the Indenture. 

Energy Remarketing 

The Energy Supplier must remarket any Base Energy required to be delivered under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement.  In the event the Energy Supplier is unable to remarket such Base Energy, it has 
agreed to purchase such Base Energy for its own account.  The Energy Supplier is required to (a) enter all 
remarketing sales or purchases of Base Energy on a ledger system that tracks compliance with the 
requirements of the U.S. Treasury Regulations applicable to tax-exempt bonds that finance Prepaid Energy 
supplies, and (b) remediate any non-complying sales (i.e., non-qualifying use sales and private business use 
sales) through “qualifying use” sales within two years. See “INTRODUCTION – Energy Remarketing”, “THE 
PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT – Energy Remarketing”, and “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT – 
Remarketing of Energy”. 

Base Energy is not expected to be delivered during the Initial Reset Period. 

Limitations on Exercise of Remedies 

The remedies available to CCCFA under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement are limited to those 
described herein.  The remedies available to the Trustee, CCCFA and the Holders of the Bonds upon an 
Event of Default under the Indenture are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are often 
subject to discretion and delay.  Under existing constitutional and statutory provisions and judicial 
decisions, the remedies provided in the Indenture may not be readily available or may be limited. 

Enforceability of Contracts 

The enforceability of the various legal agreements relating to the Clean Energy Project may be 
limited by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other similar laws affecting the rights of 
creditors or secured parties generally, by the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general 
principles of equity and by principles of equity, public policy and commercial reasonableness.  The Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement and other agreements relating to the Clean Energy Project are executory contracts.  
If CCCFA, the Energy Supplier, Morgan Stanley, the Commodity Swap Counterparty, the Project 
Participant or any of the parties with which CCCFA has contracted under such agreements (including the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement) is involved in a bankruptcy proceeding, the relevant agreement could be 
discharged in return for a claim for damages against the party’s estate with uncertain value.  In the event 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

18 

that CCCFA is involved in an insolvency proceeding, the exercise of the remedies afforded to the Trustee 
under the Indenture may be stayed, and the availability of the Revenues necessary for the payment of the 
Bonds could be materially and adversely affected. 

No Established Trading Market 

The Bonds constitute a new issue with no established trading market.  The Bonds have not been 
registered under the Securities Act of 1933 in reliance upon exemptions contained therein.  Although the 
Underwriter has informed CCCFA that it currently intends to make a market in the Bonds, they are not 
obligated to do so and may discontinue any such market making at any time without notice.  There can be 
no assurance as to the development or liquidity of any market for the Bonds.  If an active public market 
does not develop, the market price and liquidity of the Bonds may be adversely affected. 

Loss of Tax Exemption on the Bonds 

As described below, the opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the exclusion of interest on the 
Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes is based on current legal authority, covers certain 
matters not directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper 
treatment of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service 
(the “IRS”) or the courts, and is not a guarantee of a result. 

The Indenture, CCCFA’s Tax Agreement with respect to the Bonds, the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement and the Power Supply Contract contain various covenants and agreements on the part of 
CCCFA, the Energy Supplier and the Project Participant that are intended to establish and maintain the tax-
exempt status of the Bonds.  CCCFA, the Energy Supplier and the Project Participant have each agreed to 
abide by the various covenants and agreements designed to protect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.  A 
failure by CCCFA, the Energy Supplier and the Project Participant to comply with such covenants and 
agreements could, directly or indirectly, adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. 

The IRS has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt obligations to determine whether, in the 
view of the IRS, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is includable in the gross income of the owners 
thereof for federal income tax purposes.  It cannot be predicted whether or not the IRS will commence an 
audit of the Bonds.  If an audit is commenced, under current procedures the IRS may treat CCCFA as a 
taxpayer and the Bondholders may have no right to participate in such procedure.  The commencement of 
an audit could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, 
regardless of the ultimate outcome. 

Any loss of the tax-exempt status of the Bonds could be retroactive to the date of issuance of the 
Bonds and could cause all of the interest on the Bonds to be includable in gross income for purposes of 
federal income taxation.  The loss of the tax-exempt status of the Bonds is not a termination event under the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and will not result in a mandatory redemption of the Bonds. See “THE 
PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT” and “TAX MATTERS”. 

Certain Risks of SOFR Index Rate Bonds 

The Series 2022A-3 Bonds will bear interest at the SOFR Index Rate described herein, which is 
based on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate reported on the website of the Federal Reserve Bank of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

19 

New York (the “SOFR Index”).  See “THE SERIES 2022A-3 BONDS—Interest—Series 2022A-3 Bonds” 
below and APPENDIX J for descriptions of the SOFR Index Rate and related matters. 

An investment in the Series 2022A-3 Bonds entails risks not associated with an investment in a 
fixed rate security or a debt security the interest rate on which is not based on the SOFR Index.  Investors 
should consult their own financial and legal advisors about the risks associated with an investment in the 
Series 2022A-3 Bonds and the suitability of an investment in the Series 2022A-3 Bonds considering their 
particular circumstances, and possible scenarios for economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect 
their investment. 

Because the SOFR Index is independently published by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
(the “NY Federal Reserve”) based on data received from other sources, CCCFA and the Calculation Agent 
have no control over its determination, calculation, or publication.  There can be no guarantee that the SOFR 
Index will not be discontinued or fundamentally altered in a manner that is materially adverse to the interests 
of investors in the Series 2022A-3 Bonds.  A change in the manner in which the SOFR Index is calculated 
may result in a reduction of the amount of interest payable on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds and/or the trading 
prices of the Series 2022A-3 Bonds.  If the rate at which interest on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds accrues on 
any day declines to zero or becomes negative, no interest will be payable on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds in 
respect of that day. 

The NY Federal Reserve began to publish the SOFR Index in April 2018 and has also published 
historical indicative data for the SOFR Index going back to August 2014.  Investors should not rely on any 
historical changes or trends in the SOFR Index as an indicator of future changes in the SOFR Index.  Also, 
since the SOFR Index is a relatively new market index, the Series 2022A-3 Bonds may have a limited 
trading market when issued, and an established trading market may never develop or may be illiquid.  
Market terms of debt securities indexed to the SOFR Index, such as the spread over the index reflected in 
the interest rate provisions, may evolve over time, and trading prices of the Series 2022A-3 Bonds may be 
lower than those of later-issued indexed debt securities as a result.  Similarly, if the SOFR Index does not 
prove to be widely used in securities similar to the Series 2022A-3 Bonds, the trading prices of the Series 
2022A-3 Bonds may be lower than those of bonds linked to indices that are more widely used.  Investors 
in the Series 2022A-3 Bonds may not be able to sell the Series 2022A-3 Bonds at all or may not be able to 
sell the Series 2022A-3 Bonds at prices that will provide them with a yield comparable to similar 
investments that have a developed secondary market, and may consequently suffer from increased pricing 
volatility and market risk. 

 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

The Indenture 

The Bonds are secured under the Indenture solely by a pledge of and lien on the “Trust Estate,” 
which is defined in the Indenture to include (a) the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, (b) all right, title and 
interest of CCCFA in, to and under the Power Supply Contract, except for the right to receive the Project 
Administration Fee, (c) the Revenues, (d) any Termination Payment or the right to receive such 
Termination Payment (e) all right, title and interest of CCCFA in, to and under the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, including payments received from the Energy Supplier pursuant thereto, (f) all right, title and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

20 

interest of CCCFA in, to and under the Morgan Stanley Guarantee, (g) all right, title and interest of CCCFA 
in, to and under each Interest Rate Swap and the Interest Rate Swap Receipts, (h) all right, title and interest 
of CCCFA in, to and under any Debt Service Fund Agreement and Debt Service Fund Agreement Guaranty 
and (i) the Pledged Funds (which does not include the Administrative Fee Fund, the Energy Remarketing 
Reserve Fund and the Bond Purchase Fund, and excluding Rebate Payments held in any Fund or Account), 
including the investment income, if any, thereof subject only to the provisions of the Indenture permitting 
the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth therein. 

The pledge of and lien on the Trust Estate in favor of the Bonds is subject to (x) the provisions of 
the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth 
therein, including the first charge on the Revenues to pay Operating Expenses of the Project, and (y) a prior 
pledge of and lien on the Commodity Swap Payment Fund and the amounts and investments on deposit 
therein in favor of the Commodity Swap Counterparty. 

The term “Revenues” is defined in the Indenture to include (a) all revenues, income, rents, user 
fees or charges, and receipts derived or to be derived by CCCFA from or attributable or relating to the 
ownership and operation of the Clean Energy Project, including all revenues attributable or relating to the 
Clean Energy Project or to the payment of the costs thereof received or to be received by CCCFA under 
the Power Supply Contract and the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or otherwise payable to the Trustee 
for the account of CCCFA for the sale and/or transmission of Energy or otherwise with respect to the Clean 
Energy Project, (b) interest received or to be received on any moneys or securities (other than moneys or 
securities held in the Project Fund, moneys or securities held in the Redemption Account in the Debt Service 
Fund or that portion of moneys in the Operating Fund required for Rebate Payments) held pursuant to this 
Indenture and paid or required to be paid into the Revenue Fund; and (c) any Commodity Swap Receipts 
received by the Trustee on behalf of CCCFA; provided that, the term “Revenues” shall not include: (i) any 
Termination Payment pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement; (ii) any amounts received from the 
Energy Supplier that are required to be deposited into the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund pursuant to 
the Indenture; (iii) any amounts paid by the Project Participant under the Prepaid Clean Energy Project 
Administration Agreement; (iv) any Assignment Payment received from the Energy Supplier; (v) Interest 
Rate Swap Receipts (which are to be deposited directly into the Debt Service Account) and (vi) amounts 
paid by the Project Participant in respect of the Project Administration Fee.  The Revenues are to be applied 
in accordance with the priorities established under the Indenture, including the prior payment from the 
Revenues of the Operating Expenses of the Project.  See “Flow of Funds” below. 

The term “Operating Expenses” is defined in the Indenture to mean, to the extent properly 
allocable to the Clean Energy Project: (a) CCCFA’s expenses for operation of the Clean Energy Project, 
including all Rebate Payments, costs, collateral deposits and other amounts (other than Commodity Swap 
Payments) necessary to maintain any Commodity Swap; and payments required under the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement (which may, under certain circumstances, include imbalance charges and other 
miscellaneous payments) or required to be incurred under or in connection with the performance of 
CCCFA’s obligations under the Power Supply Contract; (b) any other current expenses or obligations 
required to be paid by CCCFA under the provisions of the Indenture (other than Debt Service on the Bonds 
and deposits to the General Reserve Fund and the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund, or any Cost of 
Acquisition) or by law or required to be incurred under or in connection with the performance of CCCFA’s 
obligations under the Power Supply Contract; (c) fees payable by CCCFA with respect to any Remarketing 
Agreement; (d) the fees and expenses of the Fiduciaries; (e) reasonable accounting, legal and other 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

21 

professional fees and expenses incurred by CCCFA, and all other reasonable administrative and operating 
expenses of CCCFA which are incurred by CCCFA with respect to the Bonds, the Indenture, or the Clean 
Energy Project, including but not limited to those relating to the administration of the Trust Estate and 
compliance by CCCFA with its continuing disclosure obligations, if any, with respect to the Bonds; and (f) 
the costs of any insurance premiums incurred by CCCFA, including, without limitation, directors and 
officers liability insurance allocable to the Clean Energy Project; provided that, for purposes of the transfers 
from the Revenue Fund described in this section under the heading “Flow of Funds”, Operating Expenses 
shall not include any of the foregoing administrative expenses, fees or other costs described in the foregoing 
clauses (a) through (f) that are paid from funds on deposit in the Administrative Fee Fund.  Commodity 
Swap Payments, litigation judgments and settlements and indemnification payments in connection with the 
payment of any litigation judgment or settlement, and Extraordinary Expenses are not Operating Expenses. 

THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OR INDEBTEDNESS OF 
CCCFA, THE MEMBERS, THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT, THE STATE OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE.  THE BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF CCCFA 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND SECURED SOLELY BY THE TRUST ESTATE, IN THE MANNER 
AND TO THE EXTENT PROVIDED FOR IN THE INDENTURE.  CCCFA HAS NO TAXING POWER. 

THE OBLIGATION OF THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT TO MAKE PAYMENTS TO CCCFA 
UNDER THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT IS NOT, NOR SHALL IT BE CONSTRUED AS, A 
GUARANTY OR ENDORSEMENT OF OR A SURETY FOR, THE BONDS.  SUCH OBLIGATION OF 
THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT IS NOT A GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE PROJECT 
PARTICIPANT AND IS PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES DERIVED FROM SALES OF 
ENERGY TO THEIR CUSTOMERS.  THE INDENTURE DOES NOT MORTGAGE THE CLEAN 
ENERGY PROJECT OR ANY TANGIBLE PROPERTIES OR ASSETS OF CCCFA OR THE PROJECT 
PARTICIPANT. 

See APPENDIX B for definitions of certain terms and see APPENDIX C for a further description of 
certain provisions of the Indenture. 

Flow of Funds 

All Revenues are required by the Indenture to be deposited promptly by the Trustee upon receipt 
thereof into the Revenue Fund.  In each Month during which there is a deposit of Revenues into the Revenue 
Fund (but in no case later than the respective dates set forth below), the Trustee is required to apply the 
amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund, to the extent available, for credit or deposit to the Funds and 
Accounts indicated below, in the amounts described below (such application to be made in such a manner 
so as to assure good funds are available on the respective dates set forth below) in the following order of 
priority: 

 first, to the Operating Fund, not later than the twenty-fifth day of such Month (or, if such 
day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day), the amount, if any, required so that the 
balance therein shall equal the amount necessary for the payment of Operating Expenses coming due for 
such Month; 

second, subject to the provisos below, to the Debt Service Fund, not later than the twenty-
fifth day of such Month (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day) for the 
credit to the Debt Service Account, an amount equal to the greater of (A) the Scheduled Debt Service 
Deposit, as set forth in the Indenture, or (B) the amount necessary to cause an amount equal to the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

22 

cumulative unpaid Scheduled Debt Service Deposits due through such date to be on deposit therein (without 
credit for undisbursed Interest Rate Swap Receipts on deposit therein); 

 third, to the Commodity Swap Payment Fund, on or before the twenty-fifth day of such 
Month (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day), the amount required so 
that the balance therein shall equal the Commodity Swap Payments due for such Month; and 

 fourth, to the Energy Supplier, not later than the last Business Day of such Month, the 
amount, if any, required for the repurchase of Put Receivables and the payment of interest on all Put 
Receivables sold to the Energy Supplier pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions; 

provided, however, that if the Project Participant’s payment failure results in a Net Participant Shortfall 
Amount for such Month, the intent is that such payment failure be allocated between the amounts that 
otherwise would have been deposited to the Debt Service Fund and the Commodity Swap Payment Fund.  
Therefore, for any Month in which a Net Participant Shortfall Amount exists, the Trustee shall reduce the 
amount transferred under second above to the extent necessary such that the amount available for transfer 
under third above is not less than (a) the amount that would be required to fully fund the Commodity Swap 
Payments due for such Month, minus (b) the sum of all Net Participant Shortfall Amounts for such Month; 
and provided further, the amount required to be transferred to the Debt Service Account under second above 
shall be reduced by the amount of investment earnings scheduled to be deposited into the Debt Service 
Account on or before the last Business Day of such Month. 

If, after a scheduled monthly deposit to the Debt Service Account, the balance therein is below the 
cumulative Scheduled Debt Service Deposits for such month as specified in the Indenture, the Trustee shall 
immediately notify CCCFA of such deficiency and the Trustee shall (a) if CCCFA has not previously done 
so, cause CCCFA to suspend all deliveries of all quantities of Energy under a Power Supply Contract to 
any Project Participant that is in default thereunder, and (b) promptly give notice to the Energy Supplier to 
follow the remarketing provisions set forth in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

In each Month during which (a) there is a deposit of Revenues into the Revenue Fund and 
(b) payment of a Principal Installment is due, after making such transfers, credits and deposits as described 
in the first paragraph of this section “Flow of Funds,” and after the applicable Principal Installment payment 
date, the Trustee shall credit to the General Reserve Fund the remaining balance in the Revenue Fund.  See 
“Revenues and Revenue Fund” and “Payments into Certain Funds” in APPENDIX C. 

As noted above, certain amounts are pledged as a part of the Trust Estate but do not constitute 
Revenues and are not deposited into the Revenue Fund, including (a) any Termination Payment received 
under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, which is to be deposited directly into the Redemption Account, 
and (b) any Interest Rate Swap Receipts, which are to be deposited into the Debt Service Account, all as 
provided in the Indenture. 

Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Account 

The amounts deposited into the Debt Service Account, including the Capitalized Interest 
Subaccount therein, must be held in such Account and applied to the payment of Debt Service and Interest 
Rate Swap Payments payable on each Bond Payment Date.  Amounts on deposit in the Debt Service 
Account, including the Capitalized Interest Subaccount therein, will be invested pursuant to the Debt 
Service Account Investment Agreement, which will provide for scheduled withdrawals to pay debt service 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

23 

on the Bonds when due and, in the case of extraordinary redemption, to pay the Redemption Price without 
penalty or market value adjustments. 

The Capitalized Interest Subaccount of the Debt Service Account will be funded with a deposit of 
Bond proceeds on the Initial Issue Date of the Bonds.  The amount so deposited will be used to pay the 
interest coming due on the Bonds and the Interest Rate Swap through [______] 1, 20[__]*. 

Administrative Fee Fund 

All Project Administration Fees, together with any amounts paid by the Project Participant pursuant 
to the Prepaid Clean Energy Project Administration Agreement, shall be deposited by the Trustee into the 
Administrative Fee Fund.  The Trustee is required to apply amounts on deposit in the Administrative Fee 
Fund to pay Operating Expenses promptly upon receipt of a Written Request of CCCFA directing such 
payment.  In the event amounts on deposit in the Administrative Fee Fund are insufficient to make any 
payments directed in the Written Request of CCCFA, the Trustee shall promptly notify the Project 
Participant, at its address shown in the Indenture, of the fact and amount of such deficiency. 

Commodity Swap Payment Fund 

The amounts credited to the Commodity Swap Payment Fund shall be applied from time to time 
by the Trustee solely to the payment of Commodity Swap Payments when due. 

Any amount remaining in the Commodity Swap Payment Fund following the payment of the 
Commodity Swap Payment due in any Month and prior to any deposit therein for the following Month shall 
be transferred to the Revenue Fund for application as described above. 

Debt Service Fund - Redemption Account 

In the event of an early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, CCCFA will direct the 
Energy Supplier to pay the Termination Payment directly to the Trustee for the account of CCCFA into the 
Redemption Account.  Amounts deposited into the Redemption Account shall be applied by the Trustee to 
the extraordinary mandatory redemption of Outstanding Bonds as described below under “THE BONDS — 
Redemption — Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.” 

Restriction on Additional Obligations 

Other than the Bonds and any refunding bonds, no additional bonds or other obligations are 
authorized to be issued under the Indenture or for which payment is otherwise secured by a pledge or 
assignment of, or lien on, the Trust Estate. 

Amendment of Indenture 

CCCFA and the Trustee may, subject to the conditions and restrictions in the Indenture, enter into 
a Supplemental Indenture or Indentures without the consent of the Bondholders for certain purposes, and 
upon receipt of a Rating Confirmation if the Bonds affected by such change are rated by a Rating Agency.  

 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

24 

See “Supplemental Indenture Not Requiring Consent of Bondholders,” “General Provisions” and “Powers 
of Amendment” in Appendix C hereto. 

Investment of Funds 

General.  Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Funds and Accounts 
may be invested in, among other things, guaranteed investment contracts, forward delivery agreements, 
interest rate exchange agreements or similar agreements providing for a specified rate of return over a 
specified time period; provided, however, that guaranteed investment contracts, forward delivery 
agreements or similar agreements must be with providers that are rated (or whose financial obligations to 
the Issuer receive credit support from an entity rated) at least at the same credit rating level as the Energy  
Supplier (or if the Energy Supplier is not rated, the credit rating level of its guarantor).  See Appendix B—
Definitions of Certain Terms and “Investment of Certain Funds” in Appendix C. 

Debt Service Account Investment Agreement.  On the Initial Issue Date of the Bonds, it is expected 
that CCCFA or the Trustee will enter into an investment agreement (which may be in the form of an ISDA 
Master Agreement) with respect to the Debt Service Account, including the Capitalized Interest Subaccount 
therein (the “Debt Service Account Investment Agreement”).  The Debt Service Account Investment 
Agreement constitutes a “Debt Service Fund Agreement” as defined in the Indenture.  The Debt Service 
Account Investment Agreement will have a term coterminous with the Initial Interest Rate Period and is 
required to meet all of the criteria of a Qualified Investment under the Indenture and is expected to be bid 
out on the day of Bond pricing to qualified investment providers. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS— 
Investment of Funds”. 

Required qualifications for the initial Investment Agreement Provider include: (a) a minimum 
credit rating requirement for the Investment Agreement Provider (or its guarantor) of at least that of Morgan 
Stanley, which as of the date of this Official Statement is “A1” by Moody’s, and (b) a requirement that 
upon a credit rating withdrawal, suspension or downgrade of the Investment Agreement Provider (or its 
guarantor) below the lower of (i) “A1” by Moody’s or (ii) the then-current credit rating of Morgan Stanley, 
the Investment Agreement Provider will provide a credit remedy, such as providing credit support or 
posting eligible collateral, or CCCFA will have the right to terminate the agreement. 

Required qualifications for a Debt Service Account Investment Agreement that is a forward 
delivery agreement include: (a) the minimum credit rating requirement described in the clause (a) of the 
preceding paragraph, (b) the credit downgrade provisions described in clause (b) of the preceding 
paragraph, (c) opinions of counsel, domestic and foreign, where applicable, that the securities delivered in 
connection with the agreement do not constitute property of the forward delivery agreement provider under 
bankruptcy, and will not be subject to automatic stay, and (d) a limitation that the only securities the forward 
delivery agreement provider is allowed to deliver are non-callable, non-prepayable (i) direct obligations of 
the United States government or any of its agencies that are unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and 
interest by the United States of America, or (ii) senior debt obligations of any agency of the United States 
government. 

The Debt Service Account Investment Agreement will provide for a fixed interest rate to be paid 
on the funds invested and will provide for scheduled withdrawals in connection with certain Bond Payment 
Dates. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

25 

Upon transaction termination, whether by extraordinary mandatory redemption or final maturity, 
the funds invested under the Debt Service Account Investment Agreement will be used to pay the 
redemption price or debt service due on the Bonds.  If the Debt Service Account Investment Agreement 
terminates, all invested funds are required to be returned to the Trustee. 

Enforcement of Project Agreements 

Power Supply Contract.  CCCFA has covenanted in the Indenture that it will enforce the provisions 
of the Power Supply Contract, as well as any other contract or contracts entered into relating to the Clean 
Energy Project, and duly perform its covenants and agreements thereunder. 

CCCFA has also covenanted to exercise promptly its right to suspend all Energy deliveries under 
a Power Supply Contract if the Project Participant thereunder fails to pay when due any amounts owed to 
CCCFA thereunder and to promptly give notice to the Energy Supplier to follow provisions set forth in the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement for each Month of such suspension with respect to the quantities of Energy 
for which deliveries have been suspended. 

In the event that the Project Participant delivers a Remarketing Election Notice (as defined in each 
Power Supply Contract) in respect of any Reset Period, CCCFA will promptly give notice to the Energy 
Supplier to follow the provisions set forth in the Remarketing Exhibit to the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement for each month of such Reset Period with respect to any quantities of Energy that would 
otherwise have been delivered to such Project Participant.  See “THE RE-PRICING AGREEMENT”. 

CCCFA has further covenanted that it will not consent or agree to or permit any termination or 
rescission of, any assignment or novation (in whole or in part) by the Project Participant of, or amendment 
to or otherwise take any action under or in connection with any Power Supply Contract that will impair the 
ability of CCCFA to collect Revenues in each Fiscal Year which, together with the other amounts available 
therefor, shall provide an amount sufficient to pay the amounts set forth in the Indenture.  Under the 
Indenture, upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, including delivery of a Rating Confirmation from 
each rating agency then rating the Bonds, CCCFA may agree to the amendment of a Power Supply Contract 
or to the assignment of a Power Supply Contract by the Project Participant to another Municipal Utility. 

Enforcement of Agreements by the Trustee.  Under the Indenture, CCCFA has irrevocably pledged 
and collaterally assigned to the Trustee its rights to issue notices and to take any other actions that CCCFA 
is required or permitted to take in order to enforce performance under certain documents, including (a) the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, (b) the Receivables Purchase Provisions, (c) the Power Supply Contract, 
(d) the CCCFA Commodity Swap, (e) the Interest Rate Swap , and (f) the Morgan Stanley Guarantee.  
CCCFA has retained, in the absence of any conflicting action by the Trustee while an Event of Default has 
occurred and is continuing, the right and obligation to exercise any rights for which it has pledged and 
collaterally assigned to the Trustee as described in the preceding sentence; provided, however, if an Event 
of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee will have the right to notify CCCFA to cease 
exercising such rights, subject to certain rights of the Energy Supplier with respect to the Power Supply 
Contract. 

Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  CCCFA has covenanted in the Indenture that it will enforce the 
provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and that it will duly perform its covenants and 
agreements thereunder. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

26 

The Trustee will promptly notify CCCFA of any payment default that has occurred and is 
continuing on the part of the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  CCCFA will 
provide the Trustee with Written Notice of the Early Termination Payment Date (a) on the date on which a 
Failed Remarketing occurs, and (b) in all other cases, not more than five Business Days after such date is 
determined. 

CCCFA has further covenanted that it will not consent or agree to or permit any rescission of, 
assignment of or amendment to or otherwise take any action under or in connection with the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement which would in any manner materially impair or materially adversely affect its rights 
thereunder or the rights or security of the Bondholders under the Indenture; provided, that the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement may be assigned or amended without Bondholder consent upon receipt of a Rating 
Confirmation with respect to such assignment or amendment. 

CCCFA Commodity Swap.  Amounts due to CCCFA under the CCCFA Commodity Swap are 
payable directly to the Trustee.  Pursuant to the Indenture, Commodity Swap Receipts are to be deposited 
by the Trustee into the Revenue Fund.  CCCFA has covenanted in the Indenture that: 

• it will enforce the provisions of the CCCFA Commodity Swap and duly perform its 
covenants and agreements thereunder, 

• it will not consent or agree to or permit any termination or rescission of or amendment to 
or otherwise take any action under or in connection with the CCCFA Commodity Swap 
that will impair the ability of CCCFA to comply during the current or any future year with 
the provisions of the Indenture, and 

• it will not exercise any right to terminate the CCCFA Commodity Swap unless either (i) it 
has entered into a replacement CCCFA Commodity Swap that meets the requirements of 
the Indenture (described below) or (ii) CCCFA causes or permits the termination of the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement prior to or as of such early termination date. 

CCCFA may replace the CCCFA Commodity Swap (and any related guaranty of the Commodity 
Swap Counterparty’s obligations thereunder) with a similar agreement for the same hedging purposes with 
an alternate Commodity Swap Counterparty at any time upon delivery to the Trustee of a Rating 
Confirmation.  If the CCCFA Commodity Swap is subject to termination by either party in accordance with 
its terms, then (A) CCCFA may terminate the CCCFA Commodity Swap if CCCFA has the right to do so, 
and (B) CCCFA may enter into a replacement CCCFA Commodity Swap with an alternate Commodity 
Swap Counterparty without a Rating Confirmation, but only if the replacement CCCFA Commodity Swap 
is identical in all material respects to the existing CCCFA Commodity Swap, except for the identity of the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty, and (1) the replacement Commodity Swap Counterparty is then rated at 
least the lower of (a) the credit rating of the Energy Suppler or if the Energy Supplier is not rated, the 
guarantor of the Energy Supplier or (b)  the rating then assigned by each Rating Agency to the Bonds or 
(2) the Commodity Swap Counterparty provides such collateral and security arrangements as CCCFA 
determines to be necessary, and (3) in either case, the Commodity Swap Counterparty enters into a 
replacement Custodial Agreement with the Energy Supplier and the Custodian that is identical in all 
material respects to the existing Custodial Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

27 

In the event that the CCCFA Commodity Swap is terminated by CCCFA and is not replaced (a) 
within the 120-day replacement period provided for in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or (b) after six 
consecutive monthly payments have been received by CCCFA from the Custodian (instead of directly from 
the Commodity Swap Counterparty), CCCFA has covenanted in the Indenture that it will exercise its right 
to terminate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement in accordance with its terms.  Further, CCCFA has 
covenanted under the Indenture to terminate the CCCFA Commodity Swap (a) after 120 days if it is not 
receiving payments owed to it thereunder, or (b) after six consecutive monthly payments by the Custodian 
if CCCFA is receiving payments from the Custodian instead of directly from the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty, in order to replace both the CCCFA Commodity Swap and the MSES Commodity Swap. 

Interest Rate Swap.  Amounts due to CCCFA under the Interest Rate Swap are payable directly to 
the Trustee.  Pursuant to the Indenture, Interest Rate Swap Receipts are to be deposited by the Trustee in 
the Debt Service Account.  CCCFA has covenanted in the Indenture that: 

• it will enforce the provisions of the Interest Rate Swap and duly perform its covenants and 
agreements thereunder, 

• it will not consent or agree to or permit any termination or rescission of or amendment to 
or otherwise take any action under or in connection with the Interest Rate Swap that will 
impair the ability of CCCFA to comply during the current or any future year with the 
provisions of the Indenture, and 

• it will not exercise any right to terminate the Interest Rate Swap unless it either (i) has 
entered into a replacement Interest Rate Swap that meets requirements specified in the 
Indenture or (ii) in all other cases, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will terminate prior 
to or as of such early termination date. 

CCCFA may enter into a replacement Interest Rate Swap at any time by delivering a Rating 
Confirmation to the Trustee.  If the Interest Rate Swap is subject to termination by either party in accordance 
with its terms, then (A) CCCFA may terminate the Interest Rate Swap if CCCFA has the right to do so, and 
(B) CCCFA may enter into a replacement Interest Rate Swap with an alternate Interest Rate Swap 
Counterparty without a Rating Confirmation, but only if the replacement Interest Rate Swap is identical in 
all material respects to the existing Interest Rate Swap, except for the identity of the Interest Rate Swap 
Counterparty, and (1) the alternate Interest Rate Swap Counterparty (or its credit support provider under 
the Interest Rate Swap) is then rated at least the lower of (a) the credit rating of the Energy Supplier, or if 
the Energy Supplier is not rated, the guarantor of the Energy Supplier or (b) at least as highly as the rating 
then assigned by each Rating Agency to the Bonds, or (2) the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty provides 
such collateral and security arrangements as CCCFA shall determine to be necessary. 

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The sources and uses of funds in connection with the issuance of the Bonds are approximately as 
follows: 

SOURCES:  
Par Amount $ 
Original Issue Premium  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

28 

Total Sources $ 
USES:  

Deposit to Project Fund1 $ 
Costs of Issuance2  

Total Uses $ 

__________________ 
1 Includes the prepayment amount and capitalized interest on the Bonds (which will be transferred to the Debt Service 

Account). 
2 Includes underwriting, rating agency, Trustee, financial advisor, legal and other fees and other expenses related to 

the issuance of the Bonds and the acquisition of the Clean Energy Project. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

29 

THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds will mature (subject to redemption as described below) on the dates and in the principal 
amounts shown on the inside cover page of this Official Statement.  The Bonds will be initially issued in 
denominations of $5,000 and any integral multiples thereof (an “Authorized Denomination”).  The Bonds 
will be initially issued in book-entry only form through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York (“DTC”).  See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry System” and APPENDIX G for a 
description of DTC and its book-entry system. 

Interest 

During the Initial Interest Rate Period, the Bonds will bear interest as described below. 

Series 2022A-1 Bonds 

During the Initial Interest Rate Period, the Series 2022A-1 Bonds will bear interest in a Term Rate 
Period, with the Series 2022A-1 Bonds of each maturity bearing interest at the fixed rates shown on the 
inside cover page of this Official Statement.  During the Initial Interest Rate Period, interest on the Series 
2022A-1 Bonds will be payable semiannually on [______] 1 and [______] 1 of each year, commencing 
[_______] 1, 20[__]*.  During the Initial Interest Rate Period, interest on the Series 2022A-1 Bonds will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months. 

Series 2022A-2 Bonds 

The Initial Interest Rate Period for the Series 2022A-2 Bonds will be a SIFMA Index Rate Period, 
and the Series 2022A-2 Bonds will bear interest at the SIFMA Index Rate determined as described below 
during the SIFMA Index Rate Period. 

Interest Payments.  Interest on each Series 2022A-2 Bond is payable on the first Business Day of 
each month, commencing with the first Business Day of [_______] 20[__]*, and on the Mandatory Purchase 
Date.  Such interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year, as applicable, and the actual 
number of days elapsed. 

Determination of the SIFMA Index Rate.  One Business Day prior to the Initial Issue Date of the 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds, the SIFMA Index Rate shall be calculated by the Calculation Agent and shall be in 
effect from and including the Initial Issue Date to (but not including) the first Index Rate Reset Date.  
Thereafter, (A) the SIFMA Index Rate shall be determined by the Calculation Agent by 4:00 p.m., New 
York City time, on each Wednesday or, if such Wednesday is not a Business Day, the Business Day 
immediately succeeding such Wednesday, and (B) the SIFMA Index Rate shall be determined by the 
Calculation Agent at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, on each Index Rate Reset Date.  All 
percentages resulting from any step in the calculation of interest on the Series 2022A-2 Bonds while in the 
SIFMA Index Rate Period will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest ten-thousandth of a percentage point 
(i.e., to five decimal places) with five hundred thousands of a percentage point rounded upward, and all 
dollar amounts used in or resulting from such calculation of interest on the Series 2022A-2 Bonds will be 
rounded to the nearest cent (with one-half cent being rounded upward). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

30 

SIFMA Index Rate.  The SIFMA Index Rate is a variable per annum rate of interest equal to the 
sum of (i) the SIFMA Index then in effect plus (ii) the Applicable Spread. 

Applicable Spread.  The Applicable Spread for the Series 2022 EBCE-2 Bonds is the margin added 
to the SIFMA Index as shown on the inside cover page of this Official Statement for the Series 2022A-2 
Bonds.  The Applicable Spread shall remain constant for the duration of the SIFMA Index Rate Period. 

SIFMA Index.  “SIFMA Index” means the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index, which, for purposes of 
an Index Rate Reset Date for a Series of Bonds bearing interest at a SIFMA Index Rate, will be the level of 
such index which is issued weekly and which is compiled from the weekly interest rate resets of tax exempt 
variable rate issues included in a database maintained by Refinitiy which meet specific criteria established 
from time to time by SIFMA and issued on Wednesday of each week, or if any Wednesday is not a Business 
Day, the next succeeding Business Day, such date being the same day the SIFMA Swap Index is expected 
to be published or otherwise made available to the Calculation Agent.  If the SIFMA Index is not available 
as of any Index Rate Reset Date, the interest rate for such Index Rate Reset Date will be determined using 
a comparable substitute or replacement index for such Index Rate Reset Date selected and designated by 
CCCFA in compliance with the Indenture. 

Index Rate Reset Date.  The Index Rate Reset Date for the SIFMA Index Rate applicable to the 
Series 2022A-2 Bonds shall be Thursday of each week or, if the SIFMA Index is not issued on Wednesday 
of such week, the Business Day next succeeding the day on which the SIFMA Index for such week is issued. 

Series 2022A-3 Bonds 

The Initial Interest Rate Period for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds will be a SOFR Index Rate Period, 
and the Series 2022A-3 Bonds will bear interest at the SOFR Index Rate determined as described below 
during the SOFR Index Rate Period. 

Interest Payments.  Interest on each Series 2022A-3 Bond is payable on the first Business Day of 
each month, commencing with the first Business Day of [_______] 20[__]*, and on the Mandatory Purchase 
Date.  Such interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year, as applicable, and the actual 
number of days elapsed. 

Determination of the SOFR Index Rate.  One Business Day prior to the Initial Issue Date of the 
Series 2022A-3 Bonds, the SOFR Index Rate shall be calculated by the Calculation Agent and shall be in 
effect from and including the Initial Issue Date to (but not including) the first Index Rate Reset Date.  
Thereafter, (a) the SOFR Index shall be determined by the Calculation Agent by 4:00 p.m., New York City 
time, on each SOFR Publish Date and (b) the Calculation Agent shall determine and provide to the Trustee 
the SOFR Index Rate at or before 12:00 noon, New York City time, on each SOFR Effective Date.  All 
percentages resulting from any step in the calculation of interest on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds while in the 
SOFR Index Rate Period will be rounded, if necessary, to the nearest ten-thousandth of a percentage point 
(i.e., to five decimal places) with five hundred thousandths of a percentage point rounded upward, and all 
dollar amounts used in or resulting from such calculation of interest on the Series 2022 EBCE-3 Bonds will 
be rounded to the nearest cent (with one-half cent being rounded upward). 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

31 

SOFR Index Rate.  The SOFR Index Rate is a daily variable interest rate equal to the sum of (a) the 
product of the SOFR Index and the Applicable Factor plus (b) the Applicable Spread on each day of a 
SOFR Effective Period not to exceed the Maximum Rate. 

Applicable Factor.  The Applicable Factor is the percentage of the SOFR Index shown on the inside 
cover page of this Official Statement for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds.  The Applicable Factor will remain 
constant for the duration of the SOFR Index Rate Period. 

Applicable Spread.  The Applicable Spread for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds is the margin added to 
the product of the SOFR Index and the Applicable Factor shown on the inside cover page of this Official 
Statement.  The Applicable Spread will remain constant for the duration of the SOFR Index Rate Period. 

Business Day.  For purposes of determining the SOFR Index Rate, “Business Day” means any day 
other than (a) Saturday or Sunday, (b) or a day on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or 
the cities in which are located the designated corporate trust offices of the Trustee, the Custodian or a 
Calculation Agent or the operational office of CCCFA are authorized by law or executive order to close, 
(c) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. is closed, (d) a day on which the payment system 
of the Federal Reserve System is not operational, or (e) any day that the Securities Industry and Financial 
Markets Association recommends that the fixed income departments of its members be closed for the 
purposes of trading United States government securities. 

Index Rate Reset Date.  The Index Rate Reset Date for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds is each SOFR 
Effective Date. 

NY Federal Reserve’s Website is the website of the NY Federal Reserve currently at 
http://www.newyorkfed.org, or any successor website of the NY Federal Reserve. 

 
SOFR Accrual Period.  The SOFR Accrual Period is the number of actual days from, but not 

including, (a) the Initial Issue Date or the preceding SOFR Interest Calculation Date, whichever is most 
recent, to (and including) (b) the next succeeding regardless of the actual number of calendar days in any 
Month. 

SOFR Effective Date.  The SOFR Effective Date is each Business Day. 

SOFR Effective Period.  The SOFR Effective Period is the number of actual days from a SOFR 
Effective Date to the next SOFR Effective Date. 

SOFR Index.  The SOFR Index is the “Secured Overnight Financing Rate” reported on the NY 
Federal Reserve’s Website, or reported by any successor to the NY Federal Reserve as administrator of 
such Secured Overnight Financing Rate, as of 3:00 p.m. on each SOFR Publish Date representing the SOFR 
Index as of the SOFR Lookback Date, which will be used to calculate interest for the SOFR Effective Period 
beginning on the SOFR Effective Date.  For example, for purposes of determining the SOFR Index for a 
SOFR Effective Date of Thursday, [February 17, 2022], the Calculation Agent uses SOFR published on the 
SOFR Publish Date of Wednesday, [February 16, 2022], which is the SOFR Index for the SOFR Lookback 
Date of Monday, [February 14, 2022].  SOFR is published every Business Day at 8:00 a.m. and may be 
revised until 2:30 p.m., as described herein.  If the SOFR Index is not available as of any Index Rate Reset 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

http://www.newyorkfed.org/
http://www.newyorkfed.org/


 

32 

Date, the interest rate for such Index Rate Reset Date will be determined using a comparable substitute or 
replacement index for such Index Rate Reset Date designated by CCCFA in writing (with notice to, and 
which is available to, the Calculation Agent) in compliance with the Indenture. 

SOFR Interest Calculation Date.  The SOFR Interest Calculation Date is the last Business Day of 
each month. 

SOFR Lookback Date.  The SOFR Lookback Date is the third Business Day immediately preceding 
each SOFR Effective Date. 

SOFR Publish Date.  The SOFR Publish Date is the second Business Day immediately preceding 
each SOFR Effective Date. 

Additional Information Regarding SOFR.  The Secured Overnight Financing Rate (or SOFR) is 
published by the NY Federal Reserve and is intended to be a broad measure of the cost of borrowing cash 
overnight collateralized by Treasury securities.  The NY Federal Reserve reports that the Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate includes all trades in the Broad General Collateral Rate (as defined on the NY Federal 
Reserve’s Website), plus bilateral Treasury repurchase agreement transactions cleared through the delivery-
versus-payment service offered by the Fixed Income Clearing Corporation (the “FICC”), a subsidiary of 
the Depository Trust and Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  The Secured Overnight Financing Rate is 
filtered by the NY Federal Reserve to remove a portion of the foregoing transactions considered to be 
“specials” (as defined on the NY Federal Reserve’s Website). 

The NY Federal Reserve reports that the Secured Overnight Financing Rate is calculated as a 
volume- weighted median of transaction-level tri-party repo data collected from The Bank of New York 
Mellon as well as General Collateral Finance repurchase agreement transaction data and data on bilateral 
Treasury repurchase transactions cleared through the FICC’s delivery-versus-payment service.  The NY 
Federal Reserve notes that it obtains information from DTCC Solutions LLC, an affiliate of DTCC.  The 
NY Federal Reserve notes on its publication page for the Secured Overnight Financing Rate that use of the 
Secured Overnight Financing Rate is subject to important limitations and disclaimers, including that the 
Federal Reserve may alter the methods of calculation, publication schedule, rate revision practices or 
availability of the Secured Overnight Financing Rate at any time without notice. Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate rates are subject to revision until 2:30 p.m. on any date on which the Secured Overnight 
Financing Rate is published.  The description of the Secured Overnight Financing Rate herein is not and 
does not purport to be exhaustive. 

For a more complete description of the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, see the NY Federal 
Reserve’s Website at https://apps.newyorkfed.org/markets/autorates/sofr.  Such website is not incorporated 
by reference herein. 

For background information with respect to the SOFR Index and illustrative examples of the 
SOFR Effective Period and the accrual and calculation of interest at the SOFR Index Rate, see 
APPENDIX J — “Additional Information Regarding SOFR Index Rate Bonds.” 

For a summary of certain risks relating to SOFR Index Rate Bonds, see “Certain Risks of SOFR 
Index Rate Bonds” below. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

33 

 

Calculation Agent 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. will be appointed by CCCFA as Calculation 
Agent for any Series 2022A-2 Bonds and any Series 2022A-3 Bonds that are issued pursuant to the 
Indenture and a Calculation Agent Agreement between the parties. 

General 

After the Initial Interest Rate Period, the Outstanding Bonds may be remarketed into another Term 
Rate Period or Index Rate Period(s), as applicable, or may be remarketed or converted to one or more of a 
Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly Interest Rate Period, a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period or an 
Index Rate Period(s).  This Official Statement describes the terms of the Bonds only during the Initial 
Interest Rate Period and must not be relied upon after the Bonds have been converted to another Interest 
Rate Period. 

Interest on any Bond which is payable, and is punctually paid or duly provided for, on any Interest 
Payment Date, shall be paid to the Person in whose name that Bond is registered, with respect to the Series 
2022A-1 Bonds, at the close of business on the 15th day of the Month immediately preceding the Month in 
which such Interest Payment Date falls, or, with respect to the Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 2022A-3 
Bonds, the Business Day immediately preceding such Interest Payment Date (the “Regular Record Date”). 

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided, for on any 
Interest Payment Date (“Defaulted Interest”), shall forthwith cease to be payable to the Person who was 
the registered owner on the relevant Regular Record Date; and such Defaulted Interest shall be paid by 
CCCFA to the Persons in whose names the Bonds are registered at the close of business on a date (the 
“Special Record Date”) for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fixed in the following 
manner:  CCCFA shall notify the Bond Registrar in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed 
to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed payment, and at the same time CCCFA shall deposit 
with the Paying Agent an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in respect 
of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to and approved in writing by the Paying 
Agent for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment, such money when deposited to be held in 
trust for the benefit of the Persons entitled to such Defaulted Interest as provided in the Indenture.  
Thereupon the Bond Registrar will then fix a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted 
Interest which will be not more than 15 days or less than 10 days prior to the date of the proposed payment 
and not less than 10 days after the receipt by the Bond Registrar of the written notice of the proposed 
payment.  The Bond Registrar shall promptly notify CCCFA of such Special Record Date and, in the name 
and at the expense of CCCFA, will cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and 
the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, first class postage prepaid, to each Bondholder at its address 
as it appears upon the registry books, not less than 10 days prior to such Special Record Date. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

34 

Tender 

Mandatory Tender.  The Bonds of each Series maturing on [______] 1, 20[__] are required to be 
tendered for purchase on [______] 1, 20[__]* (the “Mandatory Purchase Date”), which is the day following 
the end of the Initial Interest Rate Period.  The Purchase Price of the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase 
Date is equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof and is payable in immediately available funds first 
from amounts on deposit in the Remarketing Proceeds Account established by the Indenture and second 
from amounts on deposit in Issuer Purchase Account established by the Indenture.  Accrued interest due on 
the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date, which is an Interest Payment Date, shall be paid from amounts 
in the Debt Service Account. 

The Purchase Price of each Bond on the Mandatory Purchase Date shall be payable only upon 
surrender of such Bond to the Trustee at its designated corporate trust office, accompanied by an instrument 
of transfer thereof in form satisfactory to the Trustee, executed in blank by the Owner thereof or by the 
Owner’s duly-authorized attorney, with such signature guaranteed by a commercial bank, trust company or 
member firm of the New York Stock Exchange at or prior to 10:00 a.m., New York City time, on the date 
specified for such delivery in a notice provided to the Owners by the Trustee, such notice to be given no 
less than 15 days prior to the applicable Mandatory Purchase Date.  In the event that any Owner of a Bond 
so subject to mandatory tender for purchase shall not surrender such Bond to the Trustee for purchase on 
the Mandatory Purchase Date, then such Bond shall be deemed to be an Undelivered Bond, and no interest 
shall accrue thereon on and after the Mandatory Purchase Date, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights 
under this Indenture other than to receive payment of the Purchase Price thereof. 

Failed Remarketing.  Under the Indenture, a “Failed Remarketing” means, (a) with respect to the 
Bonds on any Mandatory Purchase Date, a failure to either (i) pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds required 
to be purchased on such date (including from any funds required from an Assignment Payment to the 
Assignment Payment Fund) or (ii) redeem such Bonds in whole on such date, or (b) with respect to the 
Bonds (i) if, on the last day of the current Reset Period prior to a Mandatory Purchase Date, CCCFA has 
not entered into a bond purchase agreement, firm remarketing agreement or similar agreement with respect 
to the remarketing or refunding of the Bonds, or (ii) if the conditions of (b)(i) above are satisfied, but the 
Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on the Mandatory Purchase Date is not delivered to 
the Trustee by 12:00 noon, New York City time, on the fifth Business Day preceding such Mandatory 
Purchase Date.  A Failed Remarketing will result in early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement and the extraordinary redemption of the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date.  In the case of 
a Failed Remarketing, an extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Bonds will have the same economic 
effect on Bondholders as a mandatory tender of the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date. 

No Optional Tender.  The Bonds of each Series are not subject to optional tender by Bondholders 
during the Initial Interest Rate Period. 

Redemption* 

Optional Redemption of Series 2022A-1 Bonds.  The Series 2022A-1 Bonds are subject to 
redemption at the option of CCCFA in whole or in part (in such amounts and by such maturities as may be 

 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

35 

specified by CCCFA and by lot within a maturity) on any date prior to [______] 1, 20[__] at a Redemption 
Price, calculated by a quotation agent selected by CCCFA, equal to the greater of: 

(a) the sum of the present values of the remaining unpaid payments of principal and 
interest to be paid on the Series 2022A-1 Bonds to be redeemed from and including the date of 
redemption (not including any portion of the interest accrued and unpaid as of the redemption date) 
to the earlier of the stated maturity date of such Series 2022A-1 Bond or the Initial Mandatory 
Purchase Date, discounted to the date of redemption on a semiannual basis at a discount rate equal 
to the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate (described below) for such Series 2022A-1 
Bonds minus 0.25% per annum, and 

(b) the Amortized Value thereof (described below); 

in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. 

The Series 2022A-1 Bonds maturing on or after the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date are subject to 
redemption at the option of CCCFA in whole or in part (in such amounts and by such maturities as may be 
specified by CCCFA and by lot within a maturity) on any date on or after [______] 1, 20[__] at a 
Redemption Price, calculated by a quotation agent selected by CCCFA, equal to the Amortized Value 
thereof as of the first day of the month of redemption (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of 
the Series 2022A-1 Bonds to be redeemed), as follows: 

REDEMPTION PERIOD REDEMPTION PRICE 
(DATES INCLUSIVE) 20[__] MATURITY 20[__] MATURITY 

[__]/1/20[__] to [__]/1/20[__]   
[__]/1/20[__]  to [__]/1/20[__]   
[__]/1/20[__]  to [__]/1/20[__]   

in each case plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption. 

In lieu of redeeming the Series 2022A-1 Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, the Trustee may, upon 
the Written Direction of CCCFA, use such funds as may be available by CCCFA or as are otherwise 
available under the Indenture to purchase such Series 2022A-1 Bonds on the applicable redemption date at 
a Purchase Price equal to the applicable Redemption Price of such Series 2022A-1 Bonds.  Any Series 
2022A-1 Bonds so purchased may be remarketed in a new Interest Rate Period or may be cancelled by the 
Trustee, in either case as set forth in the Written Direction of the Issuer. 

The “Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate” means, for the Bonds of any maturity, the 
“Comparable AAA General Obligations” yield curve rate for the year of such maturity or Mandatory 
Purchase Date, as applicable, as published by Refinity at least one Business Day and not more than fifteen 
Business Days prior to the date that notice of redemption is required to be given pursuant to the Indenture.  
If no such yield curve rate is established for the applicable year, the “Comparable AAA General 
Obligations” yield curve rate for the two published maturities most closely corresponding to the applicable 
year shall be determined, and the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate will be interpolated or 
extrapolated from those yield curve rates on a straight-line basis.  This rate is made available daily by 
Refinity and is available to its subscribers through the internet address:  www.tm3.com.  In calculating the 
Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate, should Refinity no longer publish the “Comparable AAA 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

http://www.tm3.com/
http://www.tm3.com/


 

36 

General Obligations” yield curve rate, then the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate shall equal 
the Consensus Scale yield curve rate for the applicable year.  The Consensus Scale yield curve rate is made 
available daily by Municipal Market Analytics and is available to its subscribers through its internet 
address:  www.mma-research.com.  In the further event Municipal Market Advisors no longer publishes 
the Consensus Scale, the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate shall be determined by a major 
market maker in municipal securities, as the quotation agent, based upon the rate per annum equal to the 
annual yield to maturity, calculated using semi-annual compounding, of those tax-exempt general 
obligation bonds rated in the highest Rating Category by Moody’s and S&P with a maturity date equal to 
the stated maturity date or Mandatory Purchase Date, as applicable, of such Bonds having characteristics 
(other than the ratings) most comparable to those of such Bonds in the judgment of the quotation agent.  
The quotation agent’s determination of the Applicable Tax-Exempt Municipal Bond Rate shall be final and 
binding on all parties in the absence of manifest error and may be conclusively relied upon in good faith by 
the Trustee. 

“Amortized Value” means, with respect to Series 2022A-1 Bond to be redeemed during the Initial 
Interest Rate Period, the principal amount of such Series 2022A-1 Bond multiplied by the price of such 
Bond expressed as a percentage, calculated based on the industry standard method of calculating bond 
prices (as such industry standard prevailed on the date such Series 2022A-1 Bond began to bear interest at 
its current Term Rate), with a delivery date equal to the date of redemption of such Series 2022A-1 Bond, 
a maturity date equal to the earlier of (a) the stated maturity date of such Bond or (b) the Term Rate Tender 
Date and a yield equal to such Series 2022A-1 Bond’s original reoffering yield on the date such Series 
2022A-1 Bond began to bear interest at its current Term Rate (as set forth on the inside cover page of this 
Official Statement) which, in the case of the initial Term Rate Period for the Series 2022A-1 Bonds and 
certain dates, produces the amounts for all of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds set forth in the Indenture, provided 
that in the case of an optional redemption of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds on or after [______] 1, 20[__], the 
Amortized Value shall be determined as of the first day of the month of redemption (expressed as a 
percentage of the principal amount of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds to be redeemed).  The Amortized Value 
of the Bonds as of certain dates during the Initial Interest Rate Period is shown on Appendix H. 

Optional Redemption of Index Rate Bonds.  The Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 2022A-3 Bonds 
are subject to optional redemption by CCCFA in whole or in part (in such amounts and by such maturities 
as may be specified by CCCFA and at random within a maturity), on any day on or after the first day of the 
third month preceding the Initial Mandatory Purchase Date for the Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 
2022A-3 Bonds, as applicable, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption.  In lieu of redeeming the Series 
2022A-2 Bonds or Series 2022A-3 Bonds pursuant to this provision, the Trustee may, upon the Written 
Direction of CCCFA, use such funds as may be available by CCCFA or as are otherwise available under 
the Indenture to purchase such Series 2022A-2 Bonds or Series 2022A-3 Bonds on the applicable 
redemption date at a Purchase Price equal to the applicable Redemption Price of such Series 2022A-2 Bonds 
or Series 2022A-3 Bonds, as applicable.  Any Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 2022A-3 Bonds so 
purchased may be remarketed in a new Interest Rate Period. 

Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.  The Bonds shall be subject to mandatory redemption prior 
to maturity in whole, and not in part, on the first day of the Month following the Early Termination Payment 
Date, which redemption date in the case of a Failed Remarketing will be the same day as the current 
Mandatory Purchase Date, at the following Redemption Prices: (a) in the case of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds, 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

http://www.mma-research.com/
http://www.mma-research.com/


 

37 

the Amortized Value thereof, and (b) in the case of the Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 2022A-3 Bonds, 
100% of the principal amount thereof, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption 
date.  See Appendix H for a schedule showing the Redemption Price (excluding accrued interest) of all of 
the Bonds upon an extraordinary mandatory redemption following an Early Termination Payment Date that 
occurs during the Initial Interest Rate Period. 

CCCFA shall provide the Trustee with Written Notice of the Early Termination Payment Date (x) 
on the fifth business day preceding a Mandatory Purchase Date if an amount equal to the Purchase Price of 
the Bonds that are subject to such Mandatory Purchase Date has not been deposited with the Trustee and 
(y) in all other cases, not more than five days after such date is determined. 

Notice of Redemption.  In the case of every redemption of Bonds, the Trustee must give notice, in 
the name of CCCFA, of the redemption of such Bonds by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered 
owner of each Bond being redeemed, at its address as it appears on the bond registration books of the 
Trustee or at such address as such owner may have filed with the Trustee in writing for that purpose, as of 
the Regular Record Date, not less than 15 days prior to the redemption date in the case of an extraordinary 
mandatory redemption described above, not less than 30 days prior to the redemption date in the case of 
mandatory sinking fund redemption or optional redemption of the Series 2022A-1 Bonds, and not less than 
15 days prior to the redemption date in the case of mandatory sinking fund redemption or optional 
redemption of the Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 2022A-3 Bonds. 

Each notice of redemption must identify the Bonds to be redeemed and must state (i) the redemption 
date, (ii) the Redemption Price or the manner in which it will be calculated, (iii) that the Bonds called for 
redemption must be surrendered to collect the Redemption Price, (iv) the address at which the Bonds must 
be surrendered, and (v) that interest on the Bonds called for redemption ceases to accrue on the redemption 
date.  Failure of the registered owner of any Bonds which are to be redeemed to receive any such notice, or 
any defect in such notice, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bonds. 

In the event that the Bonds may be subject to extraordinary redemption as a result of a Failed 
Remarketing that could occur if the Trustee has not received the Purchase Price of the Bonds by noon New 
York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding a Mandatory Purchase Date, a notice of extraordinary 
redemption of the Bonds may be a conditional notice of redemption, delivered in each case not less than 15 
days prior to such Mandatory Purchase Date, stating that: (a) such redemption shall be conditioned upon 
the Trustee’s failure to receive, by noon New York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding such 
Mandatory Purchase Date, the Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on such Mandatory 
Purchase Date, and (b) if the full amount of the Purchase Price has been received by the Trustee by noon 
New York City time on the fifth Business Day preceding such Mandatory Purchase Date, the Bonds shall 
be purchased pursuant to a mandatory tender on such Mandatory Purchase Date rather than redeemed.  If 
the full amount of the Purchase Price has been received by the Trustee by noon New York City time on the 
fifth Business Day preceding such Mandatory Purchase Date, the Trustee shall withdraw such conditional 
notice of redemption prior to such Mandatory Purchase Date and the Bonds shall be purchased pursuant to 
the provisions of the Indenture relating to mandatory tender on such Mandatory Purchase Date rather than 
redeemed. 

With respect to any notice of optional redemption of Bonds, unless upon the giving of such notice 
such Bonds will be deemed to have been paid under the Indenture, such notice must state that such 
redemption will be conditioned upon the receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the date fixed for such 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

38 

redemption of money sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed, 
and that if such money shall not have been so received said notice will be of no force and effect, and CCCFA 
will not be required to redeem such Bonds.  In the event that such notice of redemption contains such a 
condition and such money is not so received, the redemption will not be made and the Trustee must within 
a reasonable time thereafter give notice, in the manner in which the notice of redemption was given, that 
such money was not so received and that such redemption was not made. 

Effect of Redemption.  On any redemption date, the Redemption Price of each Bond to be redeemed 
will become due and payable, and from and after such date, notice having been given and moneys available 
solely for such redemption being on deposit with the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of the 
Indenture governing redemption of such Bonds, then, notwithstanding that any Bonds called for redemption 
may not have been surrendered, no further interest will accrue on any of such Bonds.  From and after such 
date of redemption (such notice having been given and moneys available solely for such redemption being 
on deposit with the Trustee), the Bonds to be redeemed will not be deemed to be Outstanding under the 
Indenture. 

Partial Redemption of Bonds.  If less than all of the Bonds of a like series, tenor and maturity are 
called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds of such series, tenor and maturity to be 
redeemed must be selected by lot in such manner as the Trustee shall determine, in its sole discretion, from 
Bonds of such series, tenor and maturity not previously called for redemption; provided, however, that the 
portion of any Bond of a denomination of more than a minimum Authorized Denomination to be redeemed 
shall be in the principal amount of such minimum Authorized Denomination or a multiple thereof, and that, 
in selecting portions of such Bonds for redemption, the Trustee shall treat each such Bond as representing 
that number of Bonds of a minimum Authorized Denomination which is obtained by dividing by such 
minimum Authorized Denomination the principal amount of such Bond to be redeemed in part. 

Book-Entry System 

The Bonds will be initially issued in book-entry only form through the facilities of DTC.  The 
Bonds will be transferable and exchangeable as set forth in the Indenture and, when issued, will be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  DTC will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.  So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds are payable by wire transfer by the Trustee to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, 
which, in turn, will remit such amounts to DTC participants for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial 
Owners.  See APPENDIX G — “BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM”. 

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

Set forth in the following table are the Debt Service requirements on the Bonds, giving effect to the 
fixed interest rates payable by CCCFA under the Interest Rate Swap, in each bond year during the Initial 
Interest Rate Period, excluding the purchase price of the Bonds that mature on [______] 1, 20[__] that is 
payable on the Mandatory Purchase Date ([______] 1, 20[__]*)1. 
 

 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

39 

YEAR ENDING 
[_____] 1 

PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT 

 
INTEREST 

 
TOTAL 

    
    
    
    
    
    

TOTAL    
__________________________________ 
1. As of the Mandatory Purchase Date, $_____________ principal amount of the Bonds will remain outstanding and the Bonds 

outstanding are required to be purchased pursuant to mandatory tender. 

THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT 

Purchase and Sale 

Under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy Supplier agrees to deliver EPS Compliant 
Energy in the monthly quantities set forth in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (the “Prepaid Energy”) 
during the Delivery Period and CCCFA has agreed to make a lump sum advance payment to the Energy 
Supplier for all of the cost of the Prepaid Energy to be delivered during the Delivery Period.  The total 
quantity of expected Prepaid Energy to be delivered by the Energy Supplier during the initial Delivery 
Period is approximately [___] million MWh and is subject to change as described below under the heading 
“Aggregate Quantity”. 

For discussion of the Contract Price, see “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT — Pricing Provisions”. 

Delivery of Prepaid Energy 

Assigned Energy. Assigned Energy delivered under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement shall be 
Scheduled for delivery to and receipt at the delivery point specified in the applicable Assignment 
Agreement (an “Assigned Delivery Point”).  Scheduling and transmission of Assigned Energy shall be in 
accordance with the applicable Assignment Agreement. At the start of the Delivery Period, the Project 
Participant will assign the Initially Assigned PPAs, as described under “– Assignment of Power Purchase 
Agreements” below, for delivery of Assigned Energy equal to the Prepaid Energy required to be delivered 
by the Energy Supplier during the term of such assignments. 

Base Energy. If the Assigned Energy for any month is less than the quantity of Prepaid Energy 
required to be delivered that month, the Energy Supplier is required to deliver Base Energy for remarketing 
under the terms of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  Base Energy is not expected to be delivered during 
the Initial Reset Period. 

Title.  Title to and risk of loss of the Energy delivered under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement 
shall pass from the Energy Supplier to CCCFA at the applicable Delivery Point.  The transfer of title and 
risk of loss for all Assigned Energy shall be set forth in the applicable Assignment Agreement.   

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

40 

Aggregate Quantity. The aggregate quantity of Energy to be delivered during the term of the 
Delivery Period varies based on the quantities of Prepaid Energy CCCFA has agreed to deliver to the Project 
Participant under the Power Supply Contract.  The aggregate average monthly quantity of Prepaid Energy 
to be delivered under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement during the Initial Reset Period is approximately 
[______] MWh.  The average monthly quantity of electricity is preliminary and subject to adjustment at 
the time of the sale of the Bonds, based upon the amount of proceeds received by CCCFA.  

Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements 

The Project Participant has assigned its Initial Assigned Rights and Obligations to the Energy 
Supplier.  The Assigned Energy during the Initial EPS Energy Periods will be delivered from a portfolio of 
carbon free resources that includes large hydroelectric facilities located in Washington State and Idaho as 
well as generation from wind farms located in Washington State and Montana. The Initially Assigned PPAs 
allow for MSCG to add additional carbon free resources, upon written notice to the Project Participant in 
order to meet the guaranteed minimum delivery obligations thereunder. 

Failure to Deliver or Receive Energy 

Assigned Quantities.  Neither CCCFA nor the Energy Supplier shall have any liability or other 
obligation to one another for any failure to Schedule, receive, or deliver Assigned Quantities, except as 
described under the following subheading “— Energy Remarketing.”  

Base Energy.  Because CCCFA will have prepaid for all Energy to be delivered under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement, the Energy Supplier will be required to pay CCCFA for all Base Energy that the 
Energy Supplier fails to deliver or CCCFA fails to receive for any reason, including events of force majeure.  
The amount the Energy Supplier is required to pay is equal to the quantity that was not delivered or received 
multiplied by a price that is determined in a manner depending upon the reason for such failure: 

• If the Energy Supplier fails to deliver Base Energy for reasons other than force majeure or 
action or inaction by CCCFA, such quantity is referred to herein as a “Shortfall Quantity,” 
and the Energy Supplier is required to pay the higher of (a) the replacement price paid by 
CCCFA, or (b) the Day-Ahead Market Price applicable to the Hour and the Delivery Point 
for which the Shortfall Quantity arose, plus in either case an administrative fee of 
$0.50/MWh.  In such event, CCCFA will cause the Project Participant to exercise 
Commercially Reasonable Efforts to mitigate damages paid by the Energy Supplier under 
the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

• If CCCFA fails to receive all or any portion of Base Energy for reasons other than force 
majeure, for which CCCFA has previously issued a Remarketing Notice in accordance 
with the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, CCCFA shall be deemed to have issued a 
Deemed Remarketing Notice with respect to such portion. 

• If either the Energy Supplier fails to deliver all or any portion of Base Energy or CCCFA 
fails to receive all or any portion of Base Energy due to events of force majeure, the Energy 
Supplier is required to pay the applicable Contract Index Price for such portion of Base 
Energy. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

41 

The “Contract Index Price” is the day-ahead market price for the delivery point specified in the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement.  See “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT — Pricing Provisions”.  Base Energy is 
not expected to be delivered during the Initial Reset Period. 

Energy Remarketing 

In the event Assigned Quantities equivalent to the Prepaid Quantities for any month are not 
delivered under an Assigned PPA, CCCFA will be deemed to have requested for the Energy Supplier to 
remarket the portion of the Assigned Quantities not delivered and the Energy Supplier will be obligated to 
make a payment to CCCFA equal to the quantity of Assigned Energy not delivered multiplied by the 
applicable index price (or the applicable fixed price with respect to Assigned Energy otherwise intended to 
be delivered to EBCE during the Initial EPS Energy Period).  Any such remarketing will be treated as a 
purchase by the Energy Supplier for its own account and will constitute a private-business use sale, and the 
Project Participant is obligated to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate the proceeds of such 
sales with other qualifying purchases of Energy.  To the extent the Project Participant has not remediated 
the proceeds of such sales within twelve months, MSES is required to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts 
to remediate such proceeds through Qualifying Sales to Municipal Utilities. 

In the event of any expiration or termination of an Assigned PPA, the Project Participant is required 
to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to enter into a new limited assignment agreement relating to one 
or more additional PPAs, providing for the assignment of its rights to delivery of quantities of EPS 
Compliant Energy equivalent to the Prepaid Quantities for the term of such assignment.  If (i) the Project 
Participant exercises Commercially Reasonable Efforts to enter into a limited assignment agreement for the 
redelivery of EPS Compliant Energy under its Power Supply Contract and (ii) the Project Participant is not 
in default under its Power Supply Contract, then: 

• MSES shall be obligated remarket Base Energy and purchase such Base Energy for its own 
account at the applicable index price; 

• the Project Participant shall be obligated to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to 
remediate the proceeds of such sales with other qualifying purchases of energy; and 

• to the extent the Project Participant has not remediated the proceeds of such sales within 
twelve months, MSES is required to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate 
such proceeds through Qualifying Sales to Municipal Utilities. 

To the extent that the Project Participant (i) has not exercised commercially reasonable efforts to 
enter into a limited assignment agreement for the redelivery of EPS Compliant Energy under its Power 
Supply Contract, (ii) is in default under its Power Supply Contract or (iii) has experienced a loss of Energy 
load such that it has insufficient demand for Prepaid Quantities, then: 

• MSES is required to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remarket equivalent 
quantities of Base Energy to Municipal Utilities for a Qualifying Use at a net price not less 
than the Contract Price; and 

• to the extent MSES cannot remarket such quantities to Municipal Utilities for a Qualifying 
Use, it is required to purchase such quantities for its own account. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

42 

Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event 

MSES is required to use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remarket Base Energy first in 
Qualifying Sales and next in non-private business sales.  If MSES is unable to remarket Base Energy 
required to be remarketed under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement in Qualifying Sales or in non-private 
business sales, it will purchase such Base Energy for its own account. 

If after two years there are remaining remarketing proceeds from sales to purchasers other than 
Municipal Utilities or other qualified users, such balance will count against either a limit equivalent to a 
quantity of Energy, in MWh, equal to $15 million divided by a fixed price per MWh under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement (or such higher amount determined by Bond Counsel) or a limit of 10% of the 
original quantity of Energy purchased under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (or such higher amount 
determined by Bond Counsel), depending on the status of the purchaser at the time the proceeds are received 
by CCCFA.  Both limits apply in the aggregate over the term of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  Once 
either limit has been exceeded, a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event will be deemed to have 
occurred and the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will terminate automatically on the 90th day after such 
event unless CCCFA and MSES (a) (i) agree to reduce the daily quantity of energy purchased each month, 
(ii) take the actions necessary to remediate the necessary amount of the Bonds pursuant to their optional 
redemption provisions, and (iii) deliver to the Trustee amendments to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, 
Power Supply Contract and Commodity Swaps reflecting the corresponding reduction in Energy quantities, 
as well as revisions to certain schedules of the Indenture, an accountant’s verification, a Favorable Opinion 
of Bond Counsel and a Rating Confirmation, or (b) Bond Counsel otherwise provides an opinion that such 
event has not affected the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds.  The limits described above are 
mandated by certain tax requirements and are subject to increase based on revised tax requirements as well 
as any bond remediations undertaken by CCCFA outside of a termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement. 

Payment Provisions 

The prepayment from CCCFA to MSES will be due prior to the inception of the term of the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement.  To the extent any other amount becomes due to MSES or CCCFA thereunder 
(for example, as a result of remarketing or failure to deliver by MSES), such amount will be due to the other 
party on or before the 25th or 22nd day, respectively, of the month following the month in which such 
amount accrues. 

Force Majeure 

Each of CCCFA and MSES are excused from their respective obligations to receive and deliver 
Energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement to the extent prevented by force majeure, defined 
generally as any cause not within the reasonable control of the party claiming an excuse to its obligations 
and to include any declaration of force majeure by a PPA Seller.  Excuses to performance include such 
events as natural disasters, curtailment of electricity transmission, government actions, and strikes.  MSES 
is required to pay to CCCFA the Day Ahead Index Price (or the Assigned Fixed Price during the Initial 
EPS Energy Period) with respect to any Prepaid Quantities not delivered due to force majeure.  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

43 

Assignment 

Neither party may assign its rights under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement without the other 
party’s consent except: 

 (a) pursuant to the Indenture, CCCFA may transfer, sell, pledge, encumber or assign 
the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement to the Trustee in connection with a financing arrangement; 
provided that CCCFA may not assign its rights under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement unless, 
contemporaneously with the effectiveness of such assignment, CCCFA also assigns the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap and CCCFA Custodial Agreement to the same assignee; and 

 (b) MSES may assign the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement to an affiliate of MSES; 
provided that (i) the Morgan Stanley Guarantee continues to apply to the obligations of such 
assignee or (ii) the assignee provides CCCFA with a parent guarantee and a Rating Confirmation, 
which assignment constitutes a novation; and provided that MSES may not assign its rights under 
the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement unless, contemporaneously with the effectiveness of such 
assignment, MSES also assigns the MSES Commodity Swap and the MSES Custodial Agreement 
to the same assignee. 

CCCFA has certain rights to cause MSES to novate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement as of the 
commencement of a new Reset Period.  Upon any such novation, neither MSES nor Morgan Stanley will 
have any obligations (contingent or otherwise) or be required to make any payment under any of the 
transaction documents described above, the Morgan Stanley Guarantee or otherwise, other than obligations 
that would have existed or payments that would have been required (or guaranteed) had the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement terminated as of the end of the last Reset Period that commenced prior to such novation 
(the “Assignment Payment”). 

Termination 

CCCFA will have the right to terminate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement prior to the expiration 
of the term under the following circumstances: 

• MSES’s failure to pay when due any amounts owed to CCCFA pursuant to the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement within two Business Days after receiving notice of a late payment, 
unless Morgan Stanley has made such payment under the Morgan Stanley Guarantee; 

• MSES’s insolvency or bankruptcy; 

• any representation or warranty made by MSES in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement is 
proven to have been incorrect in any material respect when it was made; 

• any interpretation, enactment or change or amendment to any governmental approval or 
law occurring after the effective date of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement that results 
or would result in the performance of any obligation of MSES to deliver energy or CCCFA 
to receive energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement being prohibited or unlawful; 
or 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

44 

• the Interest Rate Swap is terminated by CCCFA. 

MSES will have the right to terminate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement prior to the expiration 
of the term under the following circumstances: 

• CCCFA’s failure to pay when due any amounts owed to MSES within five Business Days 
after receiving notice of a late payment; 

• CCCFA’s insolvency or bankruptcy; 

• any representation or warranty made by CCCFA in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement 
is proven to have been incorrect in any material respect when it was made; 

• any interpretation, enactment or change or amendment to any governmental approval or 
law occurring after the effective date of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement that results 
or would result in the performance of any obligation of MSES to deliver energy or CCCFA 
to receive energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement being prohibited or unlawful; 

• if the Project Participant makes a Remarketing Election for a Reset Period; or 

• if the Power Supply Contract has been terminated or is otherwise no longer in effect. 

The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will automatically terminate prior to the expiration of the 
term under the following circumstances: 

• the failure to replace, within 120 days, either the CCCFA Commodity Swap or the MSES 
Commodity Swap if the CCCFA Commodity Swap is terminated for any reason or 
termination occurs automatically under the CCCFA Commodity Swap as a result of an 
event of default or a termination event thereunder; 

• the failure to replace, within 120 days, the MSES Commodity Swap or the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap if the MSES Commodity Swap is terminated for any reason or 
termination occurs automatically under the MSES Commodity Swap as a result of an event 
of default or a termination event thereunder; 

• designation by MSES of an early termination date under the Interest Rate Swap; 

• a Failed Remarketing has occurred; 

• both (a) Morgan Stanley has delivered a termination notice of the Morgan Stanley 
Guarantee, and (b) no novation of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement has been effected 
(as described under THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Assignment” above) prior 
to the end of the Initial Reset Period or the then-current Reset Period during which such 
termination notice was delivered, in which case the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will 
terminate as of the end of the Initial Reset Period or the then-current Reset Period, as 
applicable; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

45 

• the Morgan Stanley Guarantee ceases to be in full force or effect or is declared to be null 
and void or Morgan Stanley contests the validity or enforceability of the Morgan Stanley 
Guarantee; provided that, for avoidance of doubt, no such event will occur as a 
consequence of Morgan Stanley becoming subject to a receivership, insolvency, 
liquidation, resolution or similar proceeding; or 

• the occurrence of a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event (as described under “THE 
PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event” 
above) and either (a) CCCFA and MSES fail to take the remedial actions required by the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or (b) CCCFA has not received an Opinion of Bond 
Counsel to the effect that such event has not affected the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, 
in either case within 90 days after the Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event has 
occurred. 

Termination Payment 

If the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement is terminated before the expiration of its stated term for any 
reason, MSES will be required to pay a scheduled Termination Payment to CCCFA.  The Termination 
Payment schedule is generally based on the unamortized portion of the prepayment proceeds that were 
received by MSES.  The amount of the Termination Payment, together with the amounts required to be on 
deposit in certain Funds and Accounts held by the Trustee, has been calculated to provide a sum at least 
sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of the Bonds, assuming that MSES and [____________], as 
Investment Agreement Provider, pay and perform their respective contract obligations when due.  See 
APPENDIX I for a schedule showing the Termination Payment due by month during the Initial Interest Rate 
Period. 

Security 

MSES’s payment obligations under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement are unconditionally 
guaranteed by Morgan Stanley under the Morgan Stanley Guarantee. 

The Morgan Stanley Guarantee will expire or terminate, as applicable, on the earliest of (i) the last 
day of the Delivery Period under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, (ii) the earlier termination of the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, and (iii) the last day of the Initial Reset Period or any Reset Period if 
Morgan Stanley delivers a termination notice to CCCFA, provided that the Morgan Stanley Guarantee will 
continue in full force and effect with respect to MSES’s accrued payment obligations under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement.  An election by Morgan Stanley to terminate the Morgan Stanley Guarantee 
(without a novation of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and certain other contracts as described under 
“THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Assignment”) is an automatic termination event under the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement as of the end of the Initial Reset Period or the then-current Reset Period 
and will result in the extraordinary mandatory redemption of the Bonds as described under “THE BONDS—
Redemption—Extraordinary Mandatory Redemption.” 

Receivables Purchase Provisions 

General.  Pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, 
MSES has agreed to purchase from CCCFA the rights to payment of net amounts owed by the Project 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

46 

Participant under the Power Supply Contract (the “Put Receivables”).  CCCFA is required to sell and 
MSES is required to purchase Put Receivables under the circumstances described below under “Put 
Receivables.” 

Put Receivables.  Upon a payment default by any Project Participant under its Power Supply 
Contract, CCCFA shall put to MSES and MSES shall purchase Put Receivables with a face value equal to 
the amount of the non-payment by such Project Participant.  CCCFA shall exercise its put option by 
delivering notice (the “Put Option Notice”) to MSES on the 21st day of the Month (or, if the 21st is not a 
Business Day, then on the next Business Day of the Month) in which the relevant payment default occurs.  
The Put Option Notice shall include a description of the Put Receivables (including the relevant Project 
Participant, aging information and face amount of the Put Receivables) to be sold to MSES (collectively, 
the “Put Identified Receivables”). 

THE INTEREST RATE SWAP 

General 

With respect to any Index Rate Bonds that are issued, CCCFA will enter into the Interest Rate Swap 
in order to hedge its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on such Index Rate Bonds and more closely match 
its payment obligations on such Index Rate Bonds with its expected Revenues from payments under the 
Power Supply Contract and the CCCFA Commodity Swap.  The Interest Rate Swap consists of a 2002 
ISDA Master Agreement, a schedule thereto and a confirmation.  The term of the Interest Rate Swap will 
extend for the term of the Initial Interest Rate Period. 
Payments Under the Interest Rate Swap 

Under the Interest Rate Swap, MSES, as Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, is obligated to pay 
CCCFA on the Business Day preceding each Interest Payment Date floating amounts equal to the amount 
of interest due on the Index Rate Bonds on such Interest Payment Date, and CCCFA is obligated to pay the 
Interest Rate Swap Counterparty fixed amounts calculated using a fixed rate and notional amounts equal to 
the principal amount of Index Rate Bonds then Outstanding. 

Interest Rate Swap Receipts received by CCCFA are deposited directly into the Debt Service 
Account.  Interest Rate Swap Payments owed by CCCFA are payable from amounts on deposit in the Debt 
Service Account.  Neither party will be obligated to make any payment (other than accrued and unpaid 
amounts) under the Interest Rate Swap upon early termination thereof. 

Events of Default and Termination Events under the Interest Rate Swap 

The Interest Rate Swap contains standard Events of Default and Termination Events set forth in 
the form of the 2002 ISDA Master Agreement (Multicurrency-Cross Border) published by the International 
Swap Dealers Association, Inc. (available at www.isda.org), subject to such modifications contained in the 
Schedule to such ISDA Master Agreement as are generally applied to municipal counterparties. 

The Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement provides that certain of such Events of Default and 
Termination Events will not apply or provides for a modification to the remedies available upon the 
occurrence of such an event.  The Events of Default not applicable to CCCFA are Section 5(a)(ii)(2) 
(Repudiation of Agreement), Section 5(a)(iii) (Credit Support Default), Section 5(a)(v) (Default under 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

47 

Specified Transaction) and Section 5(a)(vi) (Cross Default), and the Termination Event not applicable to 
CCCFA is Section 5(b)(ii) (Force Majeure Event).  Section 5(a)(ii)(2), Section 5(a)(iii), Section 5(a)(v), 
Section 5(a)(vi) and Section 5(b)(ii) are also not applicable to the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty.  Neither 
CCCFA nor the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty is required to pay any termination payment or other 
similar amount upon an early termination of the Interest Rate Swap. 

The Interest Rate Swap also contains Additional Termination Events that will occur (a) upon any 
amendment, supplement or modification to the Indenture that materially adversely affects the priority of or 
security for the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty’s obligation to make payments hereunder and (b) 
automatically upon the occurrence of an early termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

THE RE-PRICING AGREEMENT 

General 

CCCFA and MSES will enter into the Re-Pricing Agreement which provides for determination of 
Interest Rate Periods for the Bonds subsequent to the Initial Interest Rate Period and the corresponding 
Reset Periods.  The Initial Reset Period under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and the Power Supply 
Contract begins on [______] 1, 20[__] and ends on the last day of [______] 20[__]*.  The Initial Reset 
Period under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement ends one month before the end of the Initial Interest Rate 
Period, and each subsequent Reset Period will end one month before the end of the corresponding Interest 
Rate Period. 

The debt service requirements on the Bonds for each Reset Period will not be known until the 
interest rate on the Bonds has been determined for such Reset Period.  The Power Supply Contract includes 
provisions for the adjustment of the Energy sales price for each Reset Period so as to provide Revenues 
sufficient to enable CCCFA to meet the debt service requirements on the Bonds during each Reset Period.  
Accordingly, the Re-Pricing Agreement further provides for the calculation of the amount of the Available 
Discount (in US Dollars per MWh) for sales of Energy to the Project Participant under the Power Supply 
Contract during each Reset Period. 

In the event that the Available Discount for any Reset Period is less than the Minimum Discount 
specified in the Power Supply Contract (which includes both monthly discounts and any annual rebates), 
the Project Participant may elect not to take its contract quantities of Energy during the Reset Period, and 
to have such Energy remarketed for the duration of the Reset Period (a “Remarketing Election”) by giving 
notice of such election to CCCFA.  Any Energy that is covered by a Remarketing Election will be 
remarketed in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  
In the event that the Project Participant makes Remarketing Elections with respect the Energy to be 
delivered during a Reset Period, MSES will have the right to terminate the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement 
by notice to CCCFA.  See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Energy Remarketing” and 
“—Termination”. 

 
*  Preliminary; subject to change. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

48 

THE ENERGY SUPPLIER, MSCG AND MORGAN STANLEY 

Set forth below is certain information regarding the Energy Supplier, MSCG and Morgan Stanley 
that has been obtained from such persons and other sources believed to be reliable.  CCCFA assumes no 
responsibility for such information and cannot guarantee the accuracy thereof.  Under no circumstance is 
the Energy Supplier, MSCG or Morgan Stanley obligated to pay any amounts owed in respect of the Bonds. 

MSES.  The Energy Supplier is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.  The 
FERC has granted the Energy Supplier market-based rate authorization for wholesale sales of electric 
energy, capacity and ancillary services.  The Energy Supplier is not registered with the CFTC in any 
capacity, does not engage in swap dealing activities, and does not provide advisory or structuring services 
relating to swaps.  The payment obligations of the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement, the Interest Rate Swap and the MSES Commodity Swap are guaranteed by Morgan Stanley 
under the Morgan Stanley Guarantees described herein. 

MSCG.  MSCG is an indirect, wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.  MSCG is engaged, 
among other things, in client facilitation and market-making activities in commodities and commodity 
derivative contracts.  MSCG is provisionally registered as a swap dealer with the CFTC. 

Morgan Stanley.  Morgan Stanley is a global financial services firm that, through its subsidiaries 
and affiliates, provides a wide variety of products and services to a large and diversified group of clients 
and customers, including corporations, governments, financial institutions and individuals.  Morgan Stanley 
was originally incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in 1981, and its predecessor companies 
date back to 1924. Morgan Stanley is a financial holding company regulated by the Board of Governors of 
the Federal Reserve System under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended.  Morgan Stanley 
conducts its business from its headquarters in and around New York City, its regional offices and branches 
throughout the U.S., and its principal offices in London, Tokyo, Hong Kong and other world financial 
centers.  Morgan Stanley’s principal executive offices are at 1585 Broadway, New York, New York 10036, 
and its telephone number is (212) 761-4000. 

The senior unsecured long-term debt of Morgan Stanley is rated “A1” by Moody’s, “BBB+” by 
S&P, and “A” by Fitch. 

Morgan Stanley has provided the Morgan Stanley Guarantee to CCCFA pursuant to which it 
guarantees the Energy Supplier’s payment obligations under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and the 
Interest Rate Swap.  Morgan Stanley has also provided the Morgan Stanley Commodity Swap Guarantee 
to the Commodity Swap Counterparty pursuant to which it guarantees the Energy Supplier’s payment 
obligations to the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the MSES Commodity Swap.  Under no 
circumstance is the Energy Supplier or Morgan Stanley obligated to pay any amounts owed in respect of 
the Bonds. 

THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT 

General 

Under the Power Supply Contract, CCCFA has agreed to sell and deliver to the Project Participant, 
and the Project Participant has agreed to purchase and receive from CCCFA at the delivery point, quantities 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

49 

of EPS Compliant Energy, which shall be comprised of Assigned Energy and other EPS Compliant Energy 
delivered to CCCFA by the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

Each Power Supply Contract will remain in full force and effect for a primary term ending at the 
end of the Delivery Period under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement; provided, however, that if the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement is terminated, the Power Supply Contract will terminate on the 
Termination Date. 

For information regarding the Project Participant, see APPENDIX A. 

Pricing Provisions 

Contract Price.  For each MWh of Prepaid Energy delivered to a Project Participant, the Project 
Participant shall pay CCCFA the applicable Contract Price.  The Contract Price for Assigned Energy is 
inclusive of any amounts due in respect of other Assigned Products.  The “Initial EPS Energy Period” with 
respect to a Project Participant is defined in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement as the period 
corresponding the term of the assignment made by such Project Participant under its the Initially Assigned 
PPA.  The “Assigned Fixed Price” during such period is defined as the fixed price payable under the 
applicable Assigned PPA. 

If Base Energy is required to be delivered and remarketed pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement, the Energy Supplier will remarket such Base Energy at a price, inclusive of applicable fees, not 
less than the Contract Price.  See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT — Energy Remarketing”. 

Through the Clean Energy Project, the Project Participant anticipates realizing a discount to 
existing fixed price contract price or to market Energy prices.  No assurance can be given as to the total 
actual discount the Project Participant will realize. 

Project Administration Fee 

Under the Power Supply Contract, the Project Participant is required to pay to CCCFA annually a 
Project Administration Fee in an amount equal to its share of the Operating Expenses budgeted by CCCFA 
for the coming year, and to pay such additional amounts as and when required in the event amounts on 
deposit in the Administrative Fee Fund are at any time insufficient to Operating Expenses then due or which 
have accrued and will become payable prior to the next annual payment date of the Project Administration 
Fee.  The Project Administration Fee and such other amounts are payable to the Trustee on behalf of 
CCCFA and required to be deposited in the Administrative Fee Fund and applied by the Trustee to pay 
Operating Expenses upon receipt of an invoice therefor from CCCFA. 

Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements 

General.  Concurrently with the execution of its Power Supply Contract, the Project Participant 
will assign the Initial Assigned Rights and Obligations to the Energy Supplier for delivery under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement. 

Commencing six months prior to the expiration of any EPS Energy Period, or otherwise 
immediately upon the early termination or anticipated early termination of an EPS Energy Period, the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

50 

Project Participant shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to assign the Assigned Rights and 
Obligations under one or more Assigned PPAs, subject to MSCG’s consent thereto, and MSCG has the 
right to consent to, pursuant to which the Project Participant is purchasing EPS Compliant Energy and 
associated attributes, and MSCG will be obligated to sell and deliver Assigned Energy it receives under all 
Assigned Rights and Obligations to the Energy Supplier pursuant to the Energy Management Agreement, 
and the Energy Supplier will be obligated to deliver such EPS Compliant Energy and associated attributes 
to CCCFA pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. See “THE CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT - 
Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements by the Project Participant”. 

Failure to Obtain EPS Compliant Energy.  To the extent an EPS Energy Period terminates or 
expires and the Project Participant and the Energy Supplier have been unable to obtain EPS Compliant 
Energy for delivery, then the Energy Supplier shall remarket the Base Energy pursuant to the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement, the obligations of the Project Participant and the Energy Supplier described under 
this heading shall continue to apply and the Project Participant may not make any new commitment to 
purchase Priority Energy during such a remarketing. See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT – 
Energy Remarketing” and “THE POWER SUPPLY CONTRACT – Remarketing of Energy”. 

Billing and Payment 

Not later than ten days following the end of the month during the Delivery Period, CCCFA must 
provide a monthly billing statement of the amount due for Energy.  The due date for payment by the Project 
Participant will be the 20th day of the month following the month of delivery (or if such day is not a 
Business Day, the preceding Business Day).  If the Project Participant disputes the appropriateness of any 
charge or calculation in any billing statement, the Project Participant, within the time provided for payment, 
must notify CCCFA of the existence of and basis for such dispute and must pay all amounts billed by 
CCCFA, including any amounts in dispute.  If it is ultimately determined that the Project Participant did 
not owe the disputed amount, CCCFA must pay the Project Participant the disputed amount plus interest. 

Annual Refunds 

CCCFA has agreed to provide annual refunds to the Project Participant from amounts available for 
distribution pursuant to the Indenture.  In determining the amount of such refunds, CCCFA may reserve 
such funds as may be required under the terms of the Indenture or as it deems reasonably necessary and 
appropriate to cover anticipated costs and expenses to be incurred in the next succeeding bond year, with 
certain limitations. 

Covenants of the Project Participant 

Operating Expense.   The Project Participant covenants (a) to make the payments on its part due 
under the Power Supply Contract from the revenues of its electric utility system, and only from such 
revenues, as an item of operating expenses and a cost of purchase Energy and (b) that in any future bond 
issue, swap, or other financial transaction undertaken in connection with its electric system, it will not 
pledge or encumber its revenues through a gross revenue pledge or in any other way which creates a prior 
or superior obligation to its obligation to make payments under the Power Supply Contract. 

Maintenance of Rates and Charges.  The Project Participant has covenanted and agreed that it will 
establish, maintain, and collect rates and charges for its electric utility system so as to provide revenues 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

51 

sufficient, together with all available electric system revenues, to enable it to pay to CCCFA all amounts 
payable under its Power Supply Contract and to maintain required reserves. 

Qualifying Use.  The Project Participant has agreed that it will (a) provide such information with 
respect to its electric utility system as may be requested by CCCFA in order to establish the tax-exempt 
status of the Bonds, and (b) act in accordance with such written instructions as tax counsel to CCCFA may 
provide from time to time that are reasonably necessary to enable CCCFA to maintain the tax-exempt status 
of interest on the Bonds.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Project Participant has further agreed to sell 
or otherwise use the Energy purchased under the Power Supply Contract (a) in a “qualifying use” as defined 
in the applicable U.S. Treasury Regulation, (b) in a manner that will not result in any private business use 
of that Energy within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code, and (c) consistent with its Federal Tax 
Certificate (collectively, the “Qualifying Use Requirements”). 

In the event that the Project Participant remarkets the Energy it receives under the Power Supply 
Contract in a manner that does not comply with the Qualifying Use Requirements due to fluctuations in its 
commodity needs, the Project Participant agrees to exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to use the 
proceeds of such remarketing to purchase Energy (other than Priority Energy, which are described below) 
for use in compliance with such Qualifying Use Requirements.  The Project Participant further agrees to 
provide monthly reports to CCCFA with respect to the quantity of proceeds from sales of Energy that were 
sold in a transaction that does not comply with the Qualifying Use Requirements and that have not been 
remediated by applying such proceeds to purchase Energy that are used in compliance with the Qualifying 
Use Requirements.  The amount of any such unremediated proceeds will be entered on the ledger system 
maintained by MSES under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

Priority Energy.  The Project Participant agrees to purchase and receive the Base Energy and 
Assigned Quantities to be delivered under its Power Supply Contract (a) in priority over and in preference 
to all other Energy available to it that are not Priority Energy; and (b) on at least a pari passu and non-
discriminatory basis with other Priority Energy.  For purposes of this covenant and during the Delivery 
Period, “Priority Energy” means (a) Base Energy and Assigned Quantities, and (b) other Energy that the 
Project Participant is obligated to take under a long-term agreement that is purchased with or generated 
using capacity that was constructed using the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds, notes, or other obligations. 

Delivery Points; Title and Risk of Loss 

Assigned Energy. Assigned Energy delivered under the Power Supply Contract shall be Scheduled 
for delivery to and receipt at the applicable Assigned Delivery Point specified in the applicable Assignment 
Agreement.  All other Assigned Energy will be delivered pursuant to the terms of the applicable Assignment 
Agreement.  Scheduling and transmission of Assigned Energy shall be in accordance with the applicable 
Assignment Agreement. 

Title.  Title to and risk of loss of the Prepaid Energy delivered under each Power Supply Contract 
shall pass from the CCCFA to the Project Participant at the applicable Assigned Delivery Point.  The 
transfer of title and risk of loss for Assigned Energy shall be in accordance with the applicable Assignment 
Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

52 

Failure to Perform 

To the extent that quantities of Assigned Energy are not delivered to the Project Participant for 
reasons other than force majeure, the remarketing provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement shall 
apply.  See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT — Energy Remarketing”.  Neither the Project 
Participant nor CCCFA has any liability to one another for any failure to take or deliver Assigned Energy, 
except as described in this section under “— Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements.” 

Remarketing of Energy 

In the event the Project Participant does not require all or any portion of its contract quantity under 
its Power Supply Contract as a result of (i) insufficient demand by its retail customers, or (ii) a change in 
Law, the Project Participant may request that the Energy Supplier sell such portion of Base Energy or 
Assigned Energy as required under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  Under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement, CCCFA arranges for sales through the Energy Supplier in accordance with the remarketing 
provisions and procedures set forth in that agreement.  If the Energy Supplier successfully makes such a 
sale or sales, CCCFA must credit against the amount owed by the Project Participant to CCCFA the amount 
received from the Energy Supplier, such credit not to exceed the Contract Price for the Energy so sold. See 
“THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT — Energy Remarketing”. 

Force Majeure 

Except with regard to a party’s obligation to make payments under the Power Supply Contract, 
neither party shall be liable to the other for failure to perform its obligations under the Power Supply 
Contract to the extent such failure was caused by an event of “Force Majeure” (as defined in APPENDIX B). 

Default 

Each of the following is a default under the Power Supply Contract: 

(a) Any representation or warranty made by a party in the Power Supply Contract shall 
prove to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; and 

(b) A party fails to perform, observe or comply with any covenant, agreement or term 
contained in the Power Supply Contract, and such failure continues for more than thirty days (in 
the case of the CCCFA) or more than fifteen days (in the case of the Project Participant) following 
the receipt of written notice thereof. 

In addition, each of the following is a default by the Project Participant under the Power Supply 
Contract: 

(a) Failure by the Project Participant to pay when due any amounts owed to CCCFA 
under the Power Supply Contract, subject to certain grace periods; and 

(b) The insolvency or bankruptcy of the Project Participant. 

Upon the occurrence of a default by the Project Participant described in (b) above, the Power Supply 
Contract will automatically terminate and all amounts due to the non-defaulting party will be immediately 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

53 

due and payable.  Upon the occurrence of the other defaults described above, the non-defaulting party may 
terminate the Power Supply Contract and/or declare all amounts due to it to be immediately due and 
payable.  During the existence of a default, the non-defaulting party may exercise all other rights and 
remedies available to it at law or in equity, including without limitation mandamus, injunction and action 
for specific performance, to enforce any covenant, agreement or term of the Power Supply Contract. 

In addition to the remedies described above, during the existence of any default by the Project 
Participant, CCCFA may suspend its performance under the Power Supply Contract and discontinue the 
supply of all or any portion of the Energy otherwise to be delivered to the Project Participant under the 
Power Supply Contract. 

If CCCFA exercises its right to discontinue Energy deliveries to the Project Participant, such 
service may only be reinstated, as determined by CCCFA, upon (a) payment in full by the Project 
Participant of all amounts then due and payable under its Power Supply Contract and (b) unless otherwise 
agreed to by CCCFA, payment in advance by the Project Participant at the beginning of each month (for 
such time period as CCCFA deems appropriate) of amounts estimated by CCCFA to be due from the Project 
Participant for the future delivery of Energy for such month.  If the Project Participant fails to accept the 
Energy tendered, CCCFA has the right to sell the Energy to third parties. 

In the event of any default, the non-defaulting party may bring any suit, action, or proceeding at 
law or in equity, including without limitation mandamus, injunction, and action for specific performance. 

Assignment 

The provisions of the Power Supply Contract are binding on the successors and assigns of such 
contract.  Neither party may assign the Power Supply Contract to another party without the prior written 
consent of the other party, except that CCCFA may assign its interests to secure its obligations under the 
Indenture.  Prior to assigning all or any part of its interest in the Power Supply Contract, the Project 
Participant is required to deliver to CCCFA a Rating Confirmation from each rating agency then rating the 
Bonds.  Any applicable Assignment Agreement will terminate concurrent with the assignment of the Power 
Supply Contract. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY 

General 

CCCFA is a joint powers authority formed pursuant to the Act and the joint powers agreement (“the 
JPA Agreement”) made among those public agencies which are its members.  CCCFA was incorporated 
and organized in 2021 pursuant to by the members thereof, those being the Project Participant (East Bay 
Community Energy Authority), Silicon Valley Clean Energy, Marin Clean Energy and Central Coast 
Community Energy (each, a “Founding Member” and, together with any members which may later be 
added as parties to the JPA Agreement, a “Member”). 

Each Member is a community choice aggregator, and a public agency as defined in the Act, which 
operates a community choice aggregation program with the authority to group retail electricity customers 
to solicit bids, broker, and contract for electricity and energy services for those customers, and to enter into 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

54 

agreements for services to facilitate the sale and purchase of electricity and other related services, and to 
study, promote, develop, conduct, operate and manage energy-related programs.   

CCCFA was formed for, among other purposes, the purpose of financing energy prepayments 
which can be financed with tax advantaged bonds for the benefit of its Members. 

Powers and Authority 

Under the provisions of the Act, CCCFA has all of the powers common to the Members, and any 
and all power in connection with the financing or refinancing of energy prepayments that can be financed 
with tax advantaged bonds and other obligations, including: (i) the purchase and sale of electric energy and 
associated capacity and environmental attributes, (ii) the design, acquisition, maintenance, or operation of 
any Public Capital Improvement (as defined in the Act) or other facility or improvement, or the leasing 
thereof, (iii) the provision of working capital, and (iv) any other project, program, public capital 
improvement or purpose authorized by the Act or other law to be undertaken, financed, or refinanced by 
CCCFA, in connection with the financing or refinancing of energy prepayments that can be financed with 
tax advantaged bonds and other obligations (a “Prepayment Project”). CCCFA shall have the power to 
issue, incur, sell and deliver bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Act and other applicable laws 
for the purpose of acquiring, undertaking, financing, or refinancing one or more Prepayment Projects. 

Under the provisions of the JPA Agreement and the Act, CCCFA has (among others) the following 
powers: 

(a) to acquire, purchase, finance, operate, maintain, utilize and/or dispose of one or more 
Prepayment Projects and any facilities, programs or other authorized costs relating thereto;   

(b) to make and enter contracts (including without limitation interest rate, commodity, basis 
and similar hedging contracts intended to hedge payment, rate, cost or similar exposure); 

(c) to employ agents and employees; 

(d) to acquire, manage, maintain or operate any building, works or improvements; 

(e) to acquire, hold, lease or dispose of property; 

(f) to incur debts (including without limitation through the issuance or incurrence of bonds), 
liabilities or obligations (which shall not constitute debts, liabilities, or obligations of any of the Members); 

(g) to sue and be sued in its own name;  

(h) to receive gifts, contributions and donations of real or personal property, funds, services 
and other forms of assistance from any source; 

(i) to receive, collect, invest and disburse moneys;  

(j) to apply for, accept, and receive all licenses, permits, grants, loans or other aids from any 
federal, state, or local public agency;  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

55 

(k) to make and enter into service agreements relating to the provision of services necessary 
to plan, implement, operate and administer energy-related programs; 

(l) to defend, hold harmless, and indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, each 
Member from any liability, claims, suits, or other actions; 

(m) to exercise any other power and take any other action permitted by law to accomplish the 
purposes of the JPA Agreement. 

The JPA Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until terminated as provided in therein; 
provided, however, the JPA Agreement cannot be terminated while either (a) any bonds of CCCFA, 
including the Bonds, remain outstanding, or (b) CCCFA is the owner, lessor or lessee of any real or personal 
property financed from the proceeds of any bonds. 

Governance and Management 

Board of Directors.  CCCF is governed by a Board of Directors (the “Board”) consisting of one director 
for each Founding Member. The Board shall have the authority to provide for the general management and 
oversight of the affairs, property and business of CCCFA. The Board may appoint a part-time or full-time 
General Manager and may appoint one or more part-time or full-time Assistant General Managers. The General 
Manager would be responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of CCCFA. The names of the 
current directors of CCCFA are listed on the roster page at the front of this Official Statement. 

Management.  The Board has not appointed a General Manager or Assistant General Manager. 
CCCFA’s current management team consists of Garth Salisbury as Treasurer/Controller and Michael 
Callahan as General Counsel.   

Other CCCFA Projects  

[Describe 2021A and 2021B Projects] 

CCCFA may issue future bonds to purchase prepaid electricity supplies for sale to participating 
municipal utilities, with the revenues from such sales pledged to the payment of such bonds.  Such revenues 
will not be pledged, nor may such revenues be used, to pay amounts due with respect to the Bonds. 

In furtherance of its corporate and public purposes, CCCFA intends to acquire and finance supplies 
of electricity on a prepaid basis for sale to other community choice aggregators.  CCCFA is currently 
developing additional Clean Energy Projects under transaction and financing structures that are expected 
to be generally similar to the structure of the Clean Energy Project.  CCCFA can give no assurance as to 
the timing or terms of these projects or that they will be completed.  A range of factors that are outside of 
the control of CCCFA, including the final negotiation of transaction documents, the approval of commodity 
supply contracts by the prospective project participants, changes in market prices and rates, the receipt of 
bond ratings, and other factors could result in these transactions not being completed. 

Any additional Clean Energy Projects that may be undertaken by CCCFA will be separate and 
distinct transactions, and the bonds issued to finance these projects will be payable solely from the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

56 

commodity sales and other revenues pledged for their payment.  In no event will the Revenues and Trust 
Estate pledged to the payment of the Bonds be used to pay any other bonds of CCCFA. 

Separate Obligations 

THE BONDS, ANY FUTURE BONDS THAT MAY BE ISSUED BY CCCFA AND ANY 
FUTURE CONTRACTS THAT CCCFA MAY ENTER INTO TO ACQUIRE ADDITIONAL ENERGY 
OR ELECTRICITY ARE AND WILL BE SEPARATE AND DISTINCT OBLIGATIONS OF CCCFA.  
ANY FUTURE BONDS OR CONTRACTS WILL NOT BE SECURED BY OR PAYABLE FROM THE 
REVENUES PLEDGED BY THE INDENTURE TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS, AND THE 
BONDS WILL NOT BE SECURED BY OR PAYABLE FROM THE REVENUES DERIVED FROM 
ANY FUTURE PROJECT, CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT OR CONTRACT OF CCCFA. 

Limited Liability 

CCCFA DOES NOT HAVE THE POWER TO LEVY AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXES.  
ALL BONDS ISSUED BY CCCFA ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES AND 
RECEIPTS DERIVED FROM ITS ACTIVITIES PURSUANT TO ITS STATUTORY PURPOSES AND 
POWERS AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE FINANCING DOCUMENTS.  THE 
BONDS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND SECURED SOLELY BY THE TRUST ESTATE 
PLEDGED PURSUANT TO THE INDENTURE. 

COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATORS 

General 

The Project Participant is a “community choice aggregator” pursuant to Section 331.1 of the Public 
Utilities Code (a “CCA”).  See APPENDIX A for information with respect to the Project Participant. 

Establishment of Community Choice Aggregators 

A CCA may be established by any city, county, or city and county whose governing board elects 
to combine the loads of its residents, businesses, and municipal facilities in a community-wide Energy 
buyers’ program, and by any group of cities, counties, or cities and counties whose governing boards have 
elected to combine the loads of their programs, through the formation of a joint powers agency established 
under Joint Powers Act, provided in either case that the entity is not within the jurisdiction of a local publicly 
owned electric utility that provided electrical service as of January 1, 2003.  “Local publicly owned electric 
utility” means a municipality or municipal corporation operating as a “public utility” and certain municipal 
utility districts, public utility districts, irrigation districts, or joint powers authorities that include one or 
more of these agencies and that owns generation or transmission facilities or furnishes electric services over 
its own or its members’ electric distribution systems. 

Community Choice Service Model 

Once a community forms or joins a CCA, the CCA is the default energy provider in that 
community. The CCA procures energy for customers in that community, but the investor-owned utility for 
that community continues to provide transmission, distribution and billing services to customers.  Revenues 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

57 

from the sale of energy by the CCA are delivered by the investor-owned utility to the CCA as they are 
received over the course of the billing period. 

Service Contract Requirements and Registration with the Public Utilities Commission 

CCAs are required to have an operating service agreement with the applicable investor-owned 
utility prior to furnishing electric service to consumers within its jurisdiction.  The service agreement must 
include performance standards that govern the business and operational relationship between the CCA and 
the investor-owned utility.  CCAs are also required to register with the California Public Utilities 
Commission (the “PUC”), which may require additional information to ensure compliance with basic 
consumer protection rules and other procedural matters.  Once notified of a CCA program, the applicable 
investor-owned utility is required to transfer all applicable accounts to the CCA within a 30-day period 
from the date of the close of the utility’s normally scheduled monthly metering and billing process. 

Customer Participation and Opt-out Rights 

Participation in a CCA is voluntary.  Each local government seeking to form or join a CCA must 
adopt an appropriate authorizing resolution or ordinance.  When a community forms or joins a CCA, 
customers are given advance notice and have the choice to opt-out of the CCA program prior to or after 
transition to the CCA, and instead receive Energy from the applicable investor-owned utility.  Customers 
that do not opt-out are automatically enrolled in the program. 

Regulatory Compliance 

CCAs are “load-serving entities” and as such are required to comply with the renewable portfolio 
standards and reliability standards established by the PUC and the California Energy Commission (the 
“CEC”) and file integrated resource plans and other periodic reports with the PUC and the California Energy 
Commission. 

Cost Recovery Related to Transfer of Customers to a CCA 

Although investor-owned utilities do not purchase power for CCA customers, they continue to 
deliver the power. Investor-owned utilities also have the obligation to provide electric service to customers 
that opt out of CCA service as the “provider of last resort.”  In order to compensate investor-owned utilities 
for investments in power generation and long-term power purchase contracts associated with the loss of 
customers to CCAs, the PUC has established a “power charge indifference adjustment” (the “PCIA”) 
applicable to CCA customers.  The PCIA is calculated by taking the difference between (i) the “actual 
portfolio cost” related to utility’s power procurement (e.g., utility-owned generation and purchased power), 
and (ii) the “market value of the portfolio,” which is measured by the Market Price Benchmark (the “MPB”) 
and the megawatt hours of generation. 

The MPB is based on a PUC approved methodology for calculating the current market cost of 
renewables and natural gas-fueled power. If the investor-owned utility’s actual portfolio cost is above-
market value, the departing load customers pay their share of the difference in the form of a PCIA based 
on their power consumption.  The amount of the PCIA applicable to a CCA customer depends on when a 
customer left the investor-owned utility and what the investor-owned utility’s portfolio was at the time. 
Each departing load customer pays the assigned “vintage PCIA.” For example, a customer who departed in 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

58 

2019 pays the “2019 vintage PCIA” which only includes the above market costs of pre-2020 vintage power 
procured by the investor-owned utility. 

In addition to PCIA charges, CCA customers are required to pay certain other “non-bypassable 
departing load charges”, including a nuclear decommissioning charge, a public purpose charge and a cost 
allocation charge to pay for new resources needed for ongoing system reliability. 

THE COMMODITY SWAPS 

CCCFA Commodity Swap 

CCCFA has entered into the CCCFA Commodity Swap under which, over a 30 year term, CCCFA 
will pay a floating Energy price at a specified pricing point and will receive a fixed Energy price for the 
notional quantities specified in the CCCFA Commodity Swap for each month of such term.   

Under the CCCFA Commodity Swap, for each calendar month that the relevant floating price of 
Energy is greater than the fixed price specified in a CCCFA Commodity Swap, CCCFA will be obligated 
to pay to the Commodity Swap Counterparty an amount equal to (x) the difference between the floating 
price and the fixed price multiplied by (y) a notional quantity equal to the quantity of Prepaid Energy 
scheduled to be delivered during such month by the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement.  If the fixed price specified in the CCCFA Commodity Swap is greater than the relevant floating 
price of Prepaid Energy for a month, the Commodity Swap Counterparty will be obligated to pay CCCFA 
an amount equal to (x) the difference between the fixed price and floating price multiplied by (y) a notional 
quantity equal to the quantity of Prepaid Energy scheduled to be delivered during such month by the Energy 
Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement.  If the relevant floating price for a calendar month is 
equal to the specified fixed price, no payment will be owed by either party to the other under the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap. 

MSES Commodity Swap 

The Energy Supplier has entered into a comparable MSES Commodity Swap with the same 
Commodity Swap Counterparty under which the Energy Supplier pays a fixed Energy price and receives a 
floating Energy price for the same notional quantities at the same pricing points. The Energy Supplier’s 
payment obligations to the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the MSES Commodity Swap will be 
guaranteed under the Morgan Stanley Commodity Swap Guarantee. 

Form of Commodity Swaps 

The Commodity Swaps have been entered into as a confirmation under a 2002 ISDA Master 
Agreement with certain amendments and elections under the Master Agreement that have been agreed to 
by the parties. 

Payment 

For each month of scheduled deliveries and notional amounts, each party with a net obligation 
under a Commodity Swap (based on the relative values of the fixed price and relevant index prices) will 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

59 

pay that net obligation to the other party on the 25th day of the month (or next Business Day) the calendar 
month following the month to which the applicable day-ahead market prices relate. 

Early Termination 

General.  Each of the Commodity Swaps will be subject to early termination under certain 
circumstances.  This early termination can be triggered automatically or upon the election by the 
non-defaulting party as described below.  No settlement or other termination payment (other than previously 
accrued amounts) would be due to any party as a result of any early termination of either Commodity Swap, 
except that MSES agrees to pay a make-whole amount equal to the discounted present value of the fee the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty would have received for the remainder of the then-current Reset Period if 
the MSES Commodity Swap is terminated for certain reasons. 

Automatic Termination of Both Commodity Swaps.  The termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement for any reason would result in the automatic termination of both the CCCFA Commodity Swap 
and the MSES Commodity Swap; provided that, in the case of certain termination events for which MSES 
is the defaulting party under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, MSES, in addition to previously accrued 
unpaid amounts, shall owe the Commodity Swap Counterparty a make-whole amount equal to the 
discounted present value of the fee the Commodity Swap Counterparty would have received in the then-
current Reset Period (a “Termination Fee”). 

Automatic Termination of the CCCFA Commodity Swap.  MSES’s delivery of notice designating 
an early termination date under the MSES Commodity Swap results in the automatic termination of the 
CCCFA Commodity Swap. 

Elective Termination of the CCCFA Commodity Swap.  Each of the following events of default and 
termination events would provide the non-defaulting party or the non-affected party (or, in the case of tax 
indemnification, the party required to make an additional payment or receive a reduced payment) the right 
to terminate the CCCFA Commodity Swap if it is not cured within the applicable cure period: 

• the affected party’s failure to pay amounts due to the other party under the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap notwithstanding any payment from the Custodian to CCCFA under the 
MSES Custodial Agreement following the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s failure to pay 
any amounts when due; provided, however, a termination event will not occur (a) due to 
CCCFA’s failure to pay on or before the 120th day after notice of such failure is given to 
CCCFA (provided, however, if CCCFA did not, for any reason, receive payment for 
sufficient Put Receivables to avoid such payment failure, then on the third Business Day 
after notice of such failure is given to CCCFA), or (b) due to the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty’s failure to pay on or before the third Business Day after notice of such failure 
is given to the Commodity Swap Counterparty; 

• a representation made by the defaulting party proves to have been incorrect or misleading 
in any material respect; 

• if a party becomes subject to certain insolvency events; 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

60 

• if the defaulting party or its credit support provider participates in a merger or similar 
business combination (or, additionally, if such party is CCCFA, an entity such as an 
organization, board, commission, authority, agency or body succeeds to the principal 
functions of, or powers and duties granted to, CCCFA) and (a) the surviving entity does 
not assume the obligations of such party or its credit support provider under the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap, (b) the benefits of any credit support document fail to extend (without 
the consent of the other party) to the performance by such resulting, surviving, transferee 
or successor entity of its obligations under the CCCFA Commodity Swap, or (c) in the case 
of CCCFA, the Trust Estate is no longer available for the satisfaction of such surviving 
entity’s obligations to the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the CCCFA Commodity 
Swap; 

• if performance or receipt of performance of the CCCFA Commodity Swap becomes illegal 
for either party, such party would have the right to terminate the CCCFA Commodity 
Swap; 

• if a party becomes (or parties become) obligated to pay additional tax indemnification 
amounts or will receive payments that are lessened by tax indemnification amounts because 
of changed laws or corporate changes, including by way of merger or similar business 
combination, to a party, the party or parties impacted by the need for such additional 
payments or the receipt of reduced payments will have the right to terminate the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap unless the other party agrees to waive such indemnification requirement 
for increased payments or indemnifies the party for any reduced payments; 

• if the affected party participates in a merger or similar business combination and the 
creditworthiness of the surviving entity is materially weaker than the original party; 

• (a) any withdrawal of the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s Credit Rating or (b) any 
reduction in the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s Credit Rating below “Baa3” by 
Moody’s or below “BBB-” by S&P, where “Commodity Swap Counterparty’s Credit 
Rating” means the credit rating assigned by the applicable rating agency to the Commodity 
Swap Counterparty’s senior, unsecured long-term debt obligations (not supported by third 
party credit enhancements; 

• if certain provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement related to termination of the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or the Receivables Purchase Provisions are modified 
without the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s consent; 

• CCCFA fails to promptly exercise its right to suspend all energy deliveries under a Power 
Supply Contract to any Project Participant that fails to pay when due any amounts owed to 
CCCFA thereunder;  

• if the Indenture is modified in breach of the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s consent 
rights under the Indenture and such breach is not cured within 10 days of notice to the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty; and 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

61 

• upon CCCFA’s receipt of notice from MSES designating an early termination date under 
the MSES Commodity Swap. 

An event of default also exists for a party’s failure to comply with or perform any agreement or 
obligation under the CCCFA Commodity Swap other than payment obligations, except that such event does 
not give the non-defaulting party the right to designate an early termination date pursuant to the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap or to assert a claim for monetary damages as a result of such event of default.  Such an 
event of default permits the non-defaulting party to pursue such equitable remedies, including specific 
performance, as may be available to it. 

Elective Termination of the MSES Commodity Swap.  Each of the following events of default or 
termination events would provide the non-defaulting or non-affected party (or, in the case of tax 
indemnification, the party required to make an additional payment or receive a reduced payment) the right 
to terminate the MSES Commodity Swap if it is not cured within the applicable cure period: 

• the defaulting party’s failure to pay amounts due to the other party under the MSES 
Commodity Swap; 

• the defaulting party’s failure to comply with or perform any agreement or obligation under 
the MSES Commodity Swap other than payment obligations; 

• if MSES, the Commodity Swap Counterparty or Morgan Stanley fails to comply with or 
perform any agreement or obligation to be complied with or performed by it in accordance 
with the Credit Support Annex executed as part of the MSES Commodity Swap or the 
Morgan Stanley Commodity Swap Guarantee, as applicable (each of the Credit Support 
Annex and Morgan Stanley Commodity Swap Guarantee, a “Credit Support Document”), 
or the expiration or termination of a Credit Support Document or the failing or ceasing of 
such Credit Support Document to be in full force and effect (in either case other than in 
accordance with their terms) prior to the satisfaction of all obligations of such party under 
the MSES Commodity Swap without the written consent of the other party, or MSES, the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty or Morgan Stanley disaffirms, disclaims, repudiates or 
rejects, in whole or in part, or challenges the validity of, any such Credit Support 
Document; 

• a representation made by the defaulting party proves to have been incorrect or misleading 
in any material respect; 

• subject to a threshold, any payment default or default which results in acceleration of 
indebtedness by the defaulting party any indebtedness but (a) excluding with respect to 
Commodity Swap Counterparty deposits received in the ordinary course of banking 
business and (b) including MSES’s obligations under the Receivables Purchase Provisions 
to purchase Put Receivables; 

• if a party becomes subject to certain insolvency events; 

• if the defaulting party participates in a merger or similar business combination and the 
surviving entity does not assume the obligations under the MSES Commodity Swap, or the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

62 

benefits of a credit support document fail to extend to the performance of the defaulting 
party under the MSES Commodity Swap; 

• if performance or receipt of performance of the MSES Commodity Swap becomes illegal 
for either party, such party would have the right to terminate the MSES Commodity Swap;  

• if a party becomes (or parties become) obligated to pay additional tax indemnification or 
will receive payments that are lessened by tax indemnification amounts because of changed 
laws or corporate changes, including by way of merger or similar business combination, to 
a party, the party or parties impacted by the need for such additional payments or the receipt 
of reduced payments will have the right to terminate the MSES Commodity Swap unless 
the other party agrees to waive such indemnification requirement for increased payments 
or indemnifies the party for any reduced payments; 

• if the affected party participates in a merger or similar business combination and the 
creditworthiness of the surviving entity is materially weaker than the creditworthiness of 
the original party; 

• (a) any withdrawal of the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s Credit Rating or (b) any 
reduction in the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s Credit Rating below “Baa3” by 
Moody’s or below “BBB-” by S&P, with “Commodity Swap Counterparty’s Credit 
Rating” having the meaning described above under “Elective Termination of the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap”; 

• if certain provisions of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement related to termination of the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or the Receivables Purchase Provisions are modified 
without the Commodity Swap Counterparty’s consent, provided that, in such case MSES, 
in addition to previously accrued unpaid amounts, shall owe the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty a Termination Fee;  

• MSES may at its election deliver a notice of termination designating an early termination 
date under the MSES Commodity Swap, subject to the condition that the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap must terminate effective as of the same date (provided that, if no other 
Event of Default or Termination Event has occurred with respect to the Swap Counterparty, 
then MSES, in addition to previously accrued unpaid amounts, shall owe the Commodity 
Swap Counterparty a Termination Fee); and  

• if the rights and obligations of MSES under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement are 
assigned to another entity and such entity’s obligations under the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement are not guaranteed by a Morgan Stanley guarantee, unless either (a) the 
Commodity Swap Counterparty consents to such assignment or (b) all of MSES’s rights 
and obligations under the MSES Commodity Swap are assigned and novated to another 
entity pursuant to the MSES Commodity Swap; provided that, in the case of a termination 
due to an assignment that fails to comply with the foregoing requirements, MSES, in 
addition to previously accrued unpaid amounts, shall owe the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty a Termination Fee.  See “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—
Assignment” above. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

63 

Custodial Agreements 

The Energy Supplier will enter into a Custodial Agreement (the“Energy Supplier Custodial 
Agreement”), with the Commodity Swap Counterparty and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
N.A., as Trustee and as custodian (in such capacity, the “Custodian”), to administer payments under the 
MSES Commodity Swaps.  CCCFA will enter into a Custodial Agreement, dated as of the initial issue date 
of the Bonds (the “CCCFA Custodial Agreement,” and together with the Energy Supplier Custodial 
Agreement, the “Custodial Agreements”), with the Commodity Swap Counterparty and the Custodian, to 
administer payments under the CCCFA Commodity Swap.  The Custodial Agreements contain provisions 
designed to mitigate risks to CCCFA and Bondholders resulting from a failure of the Commodity Swap 
Counterparty to make payments to CCCFA under the CCCFA Commodity Swap and mitigate risks to the 
Energy Supplier resulting from a failure of the Commodity Swap Counterparty to make payments to the 
Energy Supplier under the MSES Commodity Swap. 

Payments made by the Energy Supplier under the MSES Commodity Swap will be made to a 
custodial account maintained by the Custodian under the Energy Supplier Custodial Agreements.  Such 
amounts will not be released until the Custodian has received confirmation that the amount payable to 
CCCFA by the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the CCCFA Commodity Swap for such month has 
been paid.  If the Commodity Swap Counterparty does not make a required payment under a CCCFA 
Commodity Swap and such payment remains unpaid after the expiration of any grace period, the Custodian 
will pay the amount that the Energy Supplier paid under the MSES Commodity Swap (which such amount 
is held in custody) to the Trustee for deposit in the Revenue Fund and that payment will be treated as a 
Commodity Swap Receipt.  Additionally, if the MSES Commodity Swap terminates, the Energy Supplier 
will continue to make payments to the custodial account as if such MSES Commodity Swap were still in 
effect until the earlier of (i) replacement of the Commodity Swaps in accordance with the requirements of 
the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and (ii) termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, and such 
payments will be used to ensure that CCCFA receives deposits in the Revenue Fund as described in the 
preceding sentence in the event that the Commodity Swap Counterparty does not make a required payment 
under the CCCFA Commodity Swap. 

Payments made by CCCFA under the CCCFA Commodity Swap will be made to a custodial 
account maintained by the Custodian under the CCCFA Custodial Agreement.  The amount in the custodial 
account will not be released until the Custodian has received confirmation that the amount payable to the 
Energy Supplier by the Commodity Swap Counterparty under the MSES Commodity Swap for such month 
has been paid.  If the Commodity Swap Counterparty does not make a required payment under the MSES 
Commodity Swap and such payment remains unpaid after the expiration of any grace period, the Custodian 
will pay the amount that CCCFA paid under the CCCFA Commodity Swap (which such amount is held in 
custody) to the Energy Supplier.  Additionally, if a CCCFA Commodity Swap terminates, CCCFA will 
continue to make payments to the custodial account as if the CCCFA Commodity Swap were still in effect 
until the earlier of (i) replacement of the Commodity Swaps in accordance with the requirements of the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and (ii) termination of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, and such 
payments will be withdrawn by the Custodian and paid to the Energy Supplier. 

THE COMMODITY SWAP COUNTERPARTY 

Set forth below is certain information regarding the Commodity Swap Counterparty.  CCCFA 
assumes no responsibility for such information and cannot guarantee the accuracy thereof.  Under no 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

64 

circumstance is the Commodity Swap Counterparty obligated to pay any amount owed in respect of the 
Bonds. 

[to come] 

 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

CCCFA.  CCCFA will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Undertaking”) for the 
benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide notice of 
certain events to the MSRB’s EMMA system for municipal securities disclosures, pursuant to the 
requirements of Section (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 (“Rule 15c2-12”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

A failure by CCCFA to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute an event of default under 
the Indenture or the Bonds and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds shall only be entitled to the remedies for 
any such failure described in the Undertaking.  A failure by CCCFA to comply with the Undertaking must 
be reported in accordance with Rule 15c2-12 and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal 
securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  
Consequently, such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their 
market price. 

The Undertaking and commitments of CCCFA described under this heading and in APPENDIX D 
hereto to furnish the above-described documents and information are agreements and commitments solely 
of CCCFA, and the Underwriter has no responsibility to ensure that CCCFA complies with any such 
Undertaking or commitment.  In addition, the Underwriter makes no representation that any such 
documents or information will be furnished, or that any such documents or information so furnished will 
be accurate or complete, or sufficient for the purposes for which they may be used. 

CCCFA has previously entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking pursuant to Rule 15c2-12.  
CCCFA has adopted a written policy that sets forth procedures for compliance with the federal tax and 
continuing disclosure requirements applicable to its bonds.  The policy includes, among other things, 
procedures that are intended to promote CCCFA’s compliance with the Undertaking. 

During the five-year period preceding the date of this Official Statement, CCCFA has determined 
that certain financial information relating to the Project Participant for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 
was filed late.  CCCFA subsequently filed such information on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
Electronic Municipal Market Access System.  CCCFA has engaged BLX Group to assist with its continuing 
disclosure obligations. 

Project Participant.  Pursuant to the Power Supply Contract, the Project Participant has agreed to 
provide to CCCFA certain annual operating and financial information, which information will enable 
CCCFA to comply with the Undertaking.  Failure of the Project Participant to provide such information is 
not a default under its Power Supply Contract, but any such failure entitles CCCFA to take such actions 
and to initiate such proceedings as shall be necessary to cause the Project Participant to comply with its 
undertaking as set forth in its Power Supply Contract. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

65 

LITIGATION 

There are no legal proceedings pending against CCCFA relating to the issuance, sale or delivery of 
the Bonds which could adversely affect the Clean Energy Project.  In addition, there is no litigation pending 
or, to the knowledge of CCCFA, threatened against or affecting CCCFA or in any way questioning or in 
any manner affecting the validity or enforceability against CCCFA of the Bonds, the Power Supply 
Contract, the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the CCCFA Commodity Swap, the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, the Investment Agreements, the Custodial Agreements, the Indenture, or the pledge of the Trust 
Estate under the Indenture. 

The Project Participant reports that there is no litigation pending or, to its knowledge, threatened 
against it questioning or in any manner affecting the validity or enforceability of the Power Supply Contract. 

NO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CCCFA was formed in 2021, and consequently CCCFA has not yet produced audited financial 
statements.  Pursuant to the Undertaking described under “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” above, CCCFA has 
agreed to file its audited financial statements, commencing with its audited financial statements for its fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2021, on the MSRB’s EMMA system described above. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

PFM Financial Advisors LLC (the “Financial Advisor”) has served as financial advisor to CCCFA 
in connection with Clean Energy Project and the Bonds.  Among other responsibilities, the Financial 
Advisor has provided advice and recommendations to CCCFA with respect to the structure, timing, terms 
of and similar matters relating to the Bonds, bond market conditions, costs of issuance and other matters 
relating to the Bonds and the Clean Energy Project.  The Financial Advisor has also provided advice and 
recommendations to CCCFA, and has served as CCCFA’s “qualified independent representative,” with 
respect to the CCCFA Commodity Swap.  The Financial Advisor has reviewed this Official Statement, but 
has not audited, authenticated or otherwise verified the information set forth herein, and makes no guaranty, 
warranty or representation with respect to the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in 
this Official Statement.  The Financial Advisor’s fees are contingent upon the sale and delivery of the 
Bonds, and are based, in part, on the proceeds of the Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

Pursuant to the purchase contract relating to the Bonds between CCCFA and Morgan Stanley & 
Co. LLC, as the underwriter of the Bonds (the “Underwriter”), the Underwriter has agreed, subject to 
certain conditions to purchase the Bonds from CCCFA at an aggregate purchase price of $____________ 
(representing the principal amount of the Bonds, plus original issue premium of $____________, less 
Underwriter’s discount of $__________).  The obligation of the Underwriter to purchase the Bonds is 
subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the purchase contract.  The Underwriter is obligated to 
purchase all the Bonds if any are purchased.  The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers and 
others at prices lower than the initial offering prices, and such initial offering prices may be changed from 
time to time by the Underwriter.  The Underwriter has no obligations other than those that are set forth in 
the purchase contract.  The payment of the Bonds is not guaranteed by the Underwriter. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

66 

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC has entered into a retail distribution arrangement with its affiliate 
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC. As part of the distribution arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC 
may distribute municipal securities to retail investors through the financial advisor network of Morgan 
Stanley Smith Barney LLC.  As part of this arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may compensate 
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the Bonds. 

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (together with its affiliates) is a full service financial institution 
engaged in various activities, which may include sales and trading, commercial and investment banking, 
advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, market making, 
brokerage and other financial and non-financial activities and services.  Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and its 
affiliates have provided, and may in the future provide, a variety of these services to CCCFA and to persons 
and entities with relationships with CCCFA, for which they received or will receive customary fees and 
expenses. 

In the ordinary course of its various business activities, the Underwriter and its affiliates, officers, 
directors and employees may purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade 
securities, derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps and other financial instruments 
for their own accounts and for the accounts of their customers, and such investment and trading activities 
may involve or relate to assets, securities and/or instruments of CCCFA (directly, as collateral securing 
other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and entities with relationships with CCCFA.  The 
Underwriter and its affiliates may also communicate independent investment recommendations, market 
color or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such assets, 
securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they should acquire, long 
and/or short positions in such assets, securities and instruments. 

The Underwriter is not acting as financial advisor to CCCFA in connection with the Bonds or the 
offering or sale of the Bonds. 

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS 

The Energy Supplier, which is also the Receivable Purchaser, the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty 
and a party to the MSES Commodity Swap is a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Morgan Stanley.  The 
payment obligations of the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the MSES 
Commodity Swap and the Interest Rate Swap are unconditionally guaranteed by Morgan Stanley under the 
Morgan Stanley Guarantees.  The Underwriter of the Bonds, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, is also a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. 

Neither the Energy Supplier nor Morgan Stanley has guaranteed or is responsible for the payment 
of the Bonds.  The obligations of the Energy Supplier and, by virtue of the Morgan Stanley Guarantees, 
Morgan Stanley are limited to those set forth in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, the MSES Commodity 
Swap, the Interest Rate Swap and the Debt Service Account Investment Agreement (if the Energy Supplier 
or an affiliate is the Investment Agreement Provider).  Neither the Energy Supplier nor Morgan Stanley 
takes any responsibility for the information set forth in this Official Statement other than the information 
relating to the Morgan Stanley Guarantees set forth under the captions “INTRODUCTION—Morgan Stanley 
Guarantees”, “THE PREPAID ENERGY SALES AGREEMENT—Security”, “THE INTEREST RATE SWAP—
Morgan Stanley Guarantee” and “THE COMMODITY SWAPS—The MSES Commodity Swap” and under the 
heading “THE ENERGY SUPPLIER AND MORGAN STANLEY”. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

67 

RATING 

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. is expected to assign a municipal bond rating of “___” to the 
Bonds. 

CCCFA has furnished to each rating agency that is expected to rate the Bonds certain information, 
including information not included in this Official Statement, about CCCFA and the Bonds.  Generally, a 
rating agency bases its ratings on that information and on independent investigations, studies and 
assumptions made by each rating agency.  A securities rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold 
securities.  There is no assurance that a rating, once obtained, will continue for any given period of time or 
that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely if, in the opinion of the rating agency, 
circumstances so warrant.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal could have an adverse effect on the 
marketability or market price of the Bonds.  CCCFA has not undertaken any responsibility after issuance 
of the Bonds to assure the maintenance of the ratings applicable thereto or to oppose any revision or 
withdrawal of such ratings. 

TAX MATTERS 

In the opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to CCCFA, based upon an 
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the 
accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986 (the “Code”) and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes.  Bond Counsel 
is of the further opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal alternative minimum tax.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences 
related to the ownership or disposition of, or the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.  A 
complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in APPENDIX E hereto. 

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at 
maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term 
of such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent 
properly allocable to each Beneficial Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is excluded 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and State of California personal income taxes.  For this 
purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount 
of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or 
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).  The original issue 
discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds 
on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between 
compounding dates).  The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to 
determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of 
such Bonds.  Beneficial Owners of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax 
consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of Beneficial 
Owners who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a 
substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the public. 

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their 
principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds”) will 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

68 

be treated as having amortizable bond premium.  No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond 
premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes.  However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a Beneficial 
Owner’s basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly 
allocable to such Beneficial Owner.  Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax 
advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their particular circumstances. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds.  CCCFA has 
made certain representations and covenanted to comply with certain restrictions, conditions and 
requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be included in federal gross income.  
Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the 
Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original 
issuance of the Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes the accuracy of these representations and 
compliance with these covenants.  Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) 
whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events occurring (or not occurring), or any other matters coming 
to Bond Counsel’s attention after the date of issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or 
the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.  Accordingly, the opinion of Bond Counsel is not intended to, and 
may not, be relied upon in connection with any such actions, events or matters. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes, the 
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may 
otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal, state or local tax liability.  The nature and extent of these 
other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial 
Owner’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other 
tax consequences. 

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court 
decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to federal 
income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent Beneficial 
Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest.  The introduction or 
enactment of any such legislative proposals, clarification of the Code or court decisions may also affect, 
perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds.  Prospective purchasers of the 
Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of any pending or proposed 
federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, , as to which Bond Counsel expresses no opinion. 

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not directly 
addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel’s judgment as to the proper treatment of the 
Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or the 
courts.  Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about the future 
activities of CCCFA, or about the effect of future changes in the Code, the applicable regulations, the 
interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS.  CCCFA has covenanted, however, to comply 
with the requirements of the Code. 

Bond Counsel’s engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and, 
unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend CCCFA or the Beneficial Owners 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

69 

regarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination by the IRS.  Under current 
procedures, parties other than CCCFA and its appointed counsel, such as the Beneficial Owners, would 
have little, if any, right to participate in the audit examination process.  Moreover, because achieving 
judicial review in connection with an audit examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an 
independent review of IRS positions with which CCCFA legitimately disagrees may not be practicable.  
Any action of the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result 
of such audit, or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues, may affect the market price for, or the 
marketability of, the Bonds, and may cause CCCFA or the Beneficial Owners to incur significant expense. 

APPROVAL OF LEGAL MATTERS 

The validity of the Bonds and certain other legal matters are subject to the approving opinion of 
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to CCCFA.  A complete copy of the proposed form of 
the opinion of Bond Counsel is contained in APPENDIX E to this Official Statement. 

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for CCCFA by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP; for 
the Project Participant by Chapman and Cutler LLP; for the Energy Supplier by its counsel, Haynes and 
Boone, LLP; and for the Underwriter by Nixon Peabody LLP. 

CCCFA will receive an opinion from counsel to the Project Participant on the date of original 
delivery of the Bonds, to the effect that the Power Supply Contract of the Project Participant has been duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by the Project Participant and constitutes the legal, valid and binding 
obligation of the Project Participant enforceable in accordance with its terms.  The enforceability of the 
Power Supply Contract may be limited by or subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, 
reorganization, other laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity, public 
policy and commercial reasonableness. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, estimates or forecasts, 
whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact.  The Appendices 
attached hereto are an integral part of this Official Statement and must be read in conjunction with the 
foregoing material.  This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between 
CCCFA and the purchasers or owners of the Bonds. 

The delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of 
CCCFA. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 

 
By:   ________________________________________  

Chair 
 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

A-1 

APPENDIX A 

THE PROJECT PARTICIPANT

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-1 

 

APPENDIX B 
DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS 

“Act” means the Joint Exercise of Powers Act constituting Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 
(commencing with Section 6500), as amended or supplemented from time to time. 

“Administrative Fee Fund” means the fund of that name created under the Indenture. 

“Applicable Factor” means (a) with respect to the initial issuance of a Series of Bonds bearing 
interest at a SOFR Index Rate, the percentage or factor of the SOFR Index determined by the Underwriter 
and specified in the Index Rate Determination Certificate for such Series of Bonds, or (b) with respect to a 
Series of Bonds for which the Interest Rate Period is being converted to a SOFR Index Rate Period 
(including a change in such Interest Rate Period from one SOFR Index Rate Period to another SOFR Index 
Rate Period), the percentage or factor of the SOFR Index determined by the Remarketing Agent and 
specified in the applicable Index Rate Determination Certificate or Index Rate Continuation Notice, 
provided in  each case that  CCCFA delivers to the Trustee a Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel addressing 
the selection of such percentage or factor.  The Applicable Factor shall be determined by the Underwriter 
or the Remarketing Agent, as applicable, in accordance with the Indenture and included in the applicable 
Index Rate Determination Certificate, and once determined shall remain constant for the duration of the 
applicable SOFR Index Rate Period. 

“Assigned Delivery Point” means the delivery point for Assigned Energy as set forth in the 
applicable Assignment Agreement. 

“Assigned Energy” means EPS Compliant Energy assigned pursuant to an Assignment Agreement. 

“Assigned Product” means, as applicable, PCC1 Product, Long-Term PCC1 Product, Assigned 
Energy, Assigned RECs and any other product included in an Assignment Agreement 

“Assigned RECs” means any RECs to be delivered to MSCG or the Energy Supplier pursuant to 
any Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Assigned Rights and Obligations” means a portion of the Project Participant’s rights and 
obligations under a power purchase agreement assigned pursuant to an Assignment Agreement. 

“Assignment Agreements” mean the Initial Assignment Agreements and any subsequent 
assignment agreement entered into consistent with the Assignment Letter Agreements. 

“Assignment Letter Agreements” means those certain Letter Agreements, dated as of the date of the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, by and among MSCG, the Energy Supplier, CCCFA and the Project 
Participant. 

“Assignment Payment” means any payment received from the Energy Supplier in connection with 
an assignment of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement to a replacement energy supplier. 

“Assignment Payment Fund” means the Assignment Payment Fund established under the 
Indenture. 

“Base Energy” means Firm (LD) Energy to be delivered to an Energy Delivery Point. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-2 

“Bond Counsel” means Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP or any other counsel of nationally 
recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states 
and their political subdivisions and instrumentalities, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest 
court of any state of the United States, and selected by CCCFA. 

“Bond Payment Date” means each date on which (a) interest on the Bonds is due and payable, 
(b) an Interest Rate Swap Payment is due, or (c) principal of the Bonds is payable at maturity or pursuant 
to Sinking Fund Installments. 

“Bond Purchase Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to the Indenture, 
including the Remarketing Proceeds Account and the Issuer Purchase Account.  

“Bond Registrar” means the Trustee and any other bank or trust company organized under the laws 
of any state of the United States of America or national banking association appointed by CCCFA to 
perform the duties of Bond Registrar under the Indenture. 

“Bondholder” or “Holder” or “Owner” means any Person who shall be the registered owner of any 
Bond or Bonds. 

“Business Day” means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday, (b) a day on which commercial 
banks in New York, New York, or the cities in which are located the designated corporate trust offices of 
the Trustee, the Custodian or a Calculation Agent or the operational office of CCCFA are authorized by 
law or executive order to close, (c) a day on which the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. is closed, (d) a day 
on which the payment system of the Federal Reserve System is not operational, (e) for purposes of 
determining the SIFMA Index Rate and the SOFR Index Rate, any day that SIFMA recommends that the 
fixed income departments of its members be closed for purposes of trading in United States government 
securities. 

“CAISO” means California Independent System Operator or its successor. 

“Calculation Agent” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Calculation 
Agent for the Series 2022A-2 Bonds and the Series 2022A-3 Bonds. 

“CCCFA Custodial Agreement” means that certain Custodial Agreement, dated as of the date of 
issuance of the Bonds, by and among the Swap Counterparty, CCCFA, and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee and custodian, as the same may be amended, modified or supplemented 
from time to time. 

“CCCFA Commodity Swap” means (i) the transaction confirmation entered into under the ISDA 
Master Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by CCCFA and the Swap Counterparty, and (ii) each 
replacement CCCFA Swap entered into pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Cede” means Cede & Co., the nominee of DTC, and any successor nominee of DTC with respect 
to the Bonds pursuant to Section 3.09. 

“Clean Energy Project” means, collectively, CCCFA’s purchase of Energy pursuant to the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement and related contractual arrangements and agreements, and the purchase of any 
Energy to replace Energy not delivered as required pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, and 
the sale of Energy to the Project Participant pursuant to the Power Supply Contract. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-3 

“Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period 
comprised of CP Interest Terms for the Bonds of such Series, during which CP Interest Term Rates are in 
effect for the Bonds of such Series. 

“Commercially Reasonable” or “Commercially Reasonable Efforts” means, with respect to any 
purchase or sale or other action required to be made, attempted or taken by the Project Participant, CCCFA 
or the Energy Supplier under the Power Supply Contract or the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, as 
applicable, such efforts as a reasonably prudent Person would undertake for the protection of its own interest 
under the conditions affecting such purchase or sale or other action, including without limitation, the 
amount of notice of the need to take such action, the duration and type of the purchase or sale or other 
action, the competitive environment in which such purchase or sale or other action occurs, and the risk to 
the Party required to take such action. 

“Commodity Swap Counterparty” means [___________], a [____________], and any other Person 
that becomes counterparty to CCCFA under the CCCFA Commodity Swap or to the Energy Supplier under 
a the Energy Supplier Swap, in each case pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Commodity Swap Payment Fund” means the Commodity Swap Payment Fund established 
pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Commodity Swap Payments” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap, the amount, if any, payable to the Commodity Swap Counterparty by CCCFA (including 
any such amount paid to the Custodian pursuant to the CCCFA Custodial Agreement). 

“Commodity Swap Receipts” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in the CCCFA 
Commodity Swap, the amount, if any, payable to CCCFA by the Commodity Swap Counterparty. 

“Commodity Swaps” means, collectively, the CCCFA Commodity Swap and the MSES 
Commodity Swap. 

“Contract Price” means, with respect to EBCE, (a) the Day-Ahead Average Price for the Month 
in which Energy is delivered, minus (b) the Monthly Discount.   The Contract Price for Assigned Energy 
is inclusive of any amounts due in respect of other Assigned Products. 

“Contract Quantity” means, with respect to each Month during the Delivery Period, (i) the 
Monthly Quantity of Assigned Energy set forth in the applicable exhibit to the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement for such Month and (ii) the Hourly Quantity of Base Energy set forth in the applicable exhibit 
to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement for such Month, as such exhibits shall be updated from time to time 
in accordance with the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Cost of Acquisition” means all costs of planning, financing, refinancing, acquiring, transmitting, 
storing and implementing the Clean Energy Project, including: 

 (a) the amount of the prepayment required to be made by CCCFA under the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement; 

 (b) the amount for deposit into the Capitalized Interest Subaccount of the Debt Service 
Account for capitalized interest on the Bonds, with such interest being calculated in accordance 
with the definition of “Debt Service;” 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-4 

 (c) the costs and expenses incurred in the issuance and sale of the Bonds, including, 
without limitation, legal, financial advisory, accounting, engineering, consulting, municipal 
advisory, financing, technical, fiscal agent and underwriting costs, fees and expenses, bond 
discount, rating agency fees, and all other costs and expenses incurred in connection with the 
authorization, sale and issuance of the Bonds and preparation of the Indenture; 

 (e) all other costs incurred in connection with and properly chargeable to, the 
acquisition or implementation of the Clean Energy Project; 

 (f) the allowance for working capital requirements of CCCFA with respect to the 
Clean Energy Project in such amounts as shall be deemed reasonably necessary by CCCFA; and 

 (g) with respect to any Series of Refunding Bonds, the amounts necessary to purchase, 
redeem and discharge Bonds being refunded, including the payment of the Purchase Price or the 
Redemption Price of such Bonds, any necessary deposits to the Debt Service Account, and all other 
costs and expenses incurred in connection with such Series of Refunding Bonds, including the costs 
and expenses described in (e) and (f) above. 

“CP Interest Term” means, with respect to a Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period for a Series 
of Bonds, each period established in accordance with the Indenture during which a CP Interest Term Rate 
is in effect for the Bonds of such Series. 

“CP Interest Term Rate” means, with respect to any Bond of a Series of Bonds in the  Commercial 
Paper Interest Rate Period, an interest rate established periodically for each CP Interest Term in accordance 
with the Indenture. 

“Custodial Agreements” means, collectively, the CCCFA Custodial Agreement and the Energy 
Supplier Custodial Agreement. 

“Custodian” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as Custodian under the 
Custodial Agreements and its successors and assigns. 

“Daily Interest Rate” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, the final daily interest rate for such 
Bonds determined by the Remarketing Agent by 11:00 a.m. New York City time pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Daily Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period during which 
a Daily Interest Rate is in effect for such Bonds. 

“Day-Ahead Average Price” means, for any Assigned Energy after the Initial EPS Energy Periods, 
the weighted average Day-Ahead Market Price for each Month during the applicable EPS Energy Period, 
with such weighted average calculated in accordance with the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement; provided 
that in no case shall the Day-Ahead Average Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

“Day-Ahead Market Price” means the Day Ahead Market or Locational Marginal Price for the 
Energy Delivery Point for each applicable hour as published by CAISO, or as such price may be corrected 
or revised from time to time by such independent system operator or other entity in accordance with its 
rules; provided that in no case shall the Day-Ahead Market Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

“Debt Service” means with respect to any Outstanding Bonds, for any particular period of time, an 
amount equal to the sum of: 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-5 

 (a) all interest payable during such period on such Bonds, but excluding any interest 
that is to be paid from Bond proceeds on deposit in the Debt Service Account, plus 

 (b) the Principal Installments payable during such period on such Bonds, calculated 
on the assumption that, on the day of calculation, such Bonds cease to be Outstanding by reason 
of, but only by reason of, payment either upon maturity or application of any Sinking Fund 
Installments required by the Indenture; 

provided that  (i) the interest on any Bonds with a related Interest Rate Swap shall be calculated on the basis 
of the fixed interest rate payable by CCCFA under the Interest Rate Swap, and (ii) principal and interest 
due on the first day of a Fiscal Year shall be deemed to have been payable and paid on the last day of the 
immediately preceding Fiscal Year. 

“Debt Service Account” means the Debt Service Account in the Debt Service Fund established 
under the Indenture. 

“Debt Service Fund” means the Debt Service Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Debt Service Fund Agreement” means any debt service fund agreement, that is a Qualified 
Investment, among the Trustee, CCCFA and a provider, or between CCCFA and a provider and assigned 
to the Trustee, relating to amounts deposited in the Debt Service Account of the Debt Service Fund.  The 
initial Debt Service Fund Agreement shall be the investment agreement (which may be in the form of an 
ISDA Master Agreement) with the Investment Agreement Provider with respect to the Debt Service 
Account, including the Capitalized Interest Subaccount therein, with a a term coterminous with the Initial 
Interest Rate Period, which is required to meet all of the criteria of a Qualified Investment under the 
Indenture and is expected to be bid out on the day of Bond pricing to qualified investment providers. 

“Debt Service Fund Agreement Guaranty” means any unconditional guaranty, in favor of CCCFA  
and the Trustee, guarantying the obligations of the provider under any Debt Service Fund Agreement. 

“Defeasance Securities” means (a) Government Obligations and (b) to the extent that such 
deposits or certificates of deposit are Qualified Investments, deposits in interest‑bearing time deposits or 
certificates of deposit which shall not be subject to redemption or repayment prior to their maturity or due 
date other than at the option of the depositor or holder thereof or as to which an irrevocable notice of 
redemption or repayment, or irrevocable instructions have been given to call for redemption or repayment, 
of such time deposits or certificates of deposit on a specified redemption or repayment date has been given 
and such time deposits or certificates of deposit are not otherwise subject to redemption or repayment prior 
to such specified date other than at the option of the depositor or holder thereof, and which are fully secured 
by Government Obligations to the extent not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

“Delivery Period” means the period commencing January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 2051. 

“Delivery Point” means (i) the applicable Assigned Delivery Point(s) for Assigned Energy and (ii) 
the applicable Energy Delivery Point for Base Energy, as set forth in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Depository” means any bank, trust company, national banking association, savings and loan 
association, savings bank or other banking association selected by CCCFA as a depository of moneys and 
securities held under the provisions of this Indenture, and may include the Trustee. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-6 

“Dissemination Agent” means that certain dissemination agent appointed by CCCFA, pursuant to 
the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and any successor Dissemination Agent appointed by CCCFA in 
accordance with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, and its successors and 
assigns. 

“Early Termination Date” means a date designated pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement upon which the Delivery Period will end and CCCFA’s and the Energy Supplier’s respective 
obligations to receive and deliver Energy under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement will terminate. 

“Early Termination Payment Date” means the date payment of a Termination Payment is required 
to be made by the Energy Supplier under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“EBCE” means East Bay Community Energy Authority, a joint powers authority organized 
pursuant to the Act. 

“Electronic Means” means the following communication methods: e‑mail, facsimile transmission, 
secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication 
keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system specified by a Responsible Officer of the Trustee 
as available for use in connection with its services hereunder. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system, the website currently maintained 
by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and any successor municipal securities disclosure website 
approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Energy” means three-phase, 60-cycle alternating current electric energy, expressed in MWhs. 

“Energy Delivery Point” means the delivery point for Base Energy specified in the Prepaid Energy 
Sales Agreement. 

“Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund” means the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund in established 
under the Indenture. 

“Energy Supplier” means Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability 
company. 

“Energy Supplier Commodity Swap” means (i) the transaction confirmation entered into under the 
ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of the date of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, by the Energy 
Supplier and the Swap Counterparty, and (ii) each replacement the Energy Supplier Swap entered into 
pursuant to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Energy Supplier Custodial Agreement” means that certain Custodial Agreement, dated as of the 
date of issuance of the Bonds, by and among the Swap Counterparty, the Energy Supplier and The Bank of 
New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A, as Trustee and custodian, as the same may be amended, modified 
or supplemented from time to time. 

“Energy Supplier Guaranty” means the Morgan Stanley Guarantee, as defined in the Prepaid 
Energy Sales Agreement. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-7 

“EPS” means California’s Emissions Performance Standards, as set forth in Sections 8340 and 
8341 of the California Public Utilities Code, as implemented and amended from time to time, and any 
successor Law. 

“EPS Compliant Energy” means Energy that the Project Participant can contract for and purchase 
in compliance with EPS requirements that are applicable to the Project Participant. 

“EPS Energy Period” means the Initial EPS Energy Periods and any subsequent EPS Energy 
Periods established by future assignments of power purchase agreements consistent with the Assignment 
Letter Agreements. 

“Extraordinary Expenses” means extraordinary and nonrecurring expenses. Termination payments 
under the Commodity Swap shall not be considered an Extraordinary Expense. 

“Failed Remarketing” means, (a) with respect to the Bonds on the Mandatory Purchase Date, a 
failure to either (i) pay the Purchase Price of the Bonds required to be purchased on such date or (ii) redeem 
such Bonds in whole on such date (including from any funds required from an Assignment Payment to the 
Assignment Payment Fund) or (b) with respect to the Bonds (i) if, on the last day of the current Reset Period 
prior to the Mandatory Purchase Date, CCCFA has not entered into a bond purchase agreement, firm 
remarketing agreement or similar agreement with respect to the remarketing or refunding of such existing 
Bonds, or (ii) if the conditions of (b)(i) above are satisfied, but the Purchase Price of the Bonds required to 
be purchased on the Mandatory Purchase Date is not delivered to the Trustee by noon New York City time 
on the fifth Business Day preceding such Mandatory Purchase Date. 

“Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that an 
action proposed to be taken is not prohibited by the Indenture and will not, in and of itself, cause interest 
on the applicable Bonds to be included in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation. 

“Fiduciary” or “Fiduciaries” means the Trustee, the Paying Agents, the Bond Registrar, the 
Calculation Agents, the Custodian, the tender agent or any or all of them, as may be appropriate. 

“Firm (LD)” means, with respect to the obligation to deliver Energy, that CCCFA or the Energy 
Supplier shall be relieved of its obligations to sell and deliver or purchase and receive without liability only 
to the extent that, and for the period during which, such performance is prevented by Force Majeure. 

“Fiscal Year” means (a) the twelve-month period beginning on January 1 of each year and ending 
on and including the next December 31, or (b) such other twelve-month period established by CCCFA from 
time to time, upon Written Notice to the Trustee, as its fiscal year. 

“Fitch” means Fitch Ratings, Inc., its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall no 
longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Fitch” shall be deemed to refer to any other 
nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by CCCFA in a Written Notice delivered to the 
Trustee. 

“Force Majeure” means an event or circumstance which prevents the Project Participant, CCCFA 
or the Energy Supplier from performing its obligations under this Agreement, which event or circumstance 
was not anticipated as of the Execution Date, which is not within the reasonable control of, or the result of 
the negligence of, the Claiming Party, and which, by the exercise of due diligence, the Claiming Party is 
unable to overcome or avoid or cause to be avoided.  Force Majeure shall not be based on (i) the loss of 
CCCFA’s or the Project Participant’s markets; (ii) CCCFA’s or the Project Participant’s inability 
economically to use or resell any Energy purchased under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or Power 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-8 

Supply Contract, respectively; (iii) the loss or failure of the Energy Supplier’s supply except if such loss or 
failure results from curtailment by a Transmission Provider; or (iv) the Energy Supplier’s ability to sell the 
Energy at a higher price.  No party may raise a claim of Force Majeure based in whole or in part on 
curtailment by a Transmission Provider unless (a) such party (or an upstream supplier with respect to the 
Energy Supplier or the Project Participant with respect to CCCFA) has contracted for firm transmission 
with such Transmission Provider for the Energy to be delivered to or received at the Energy Delivery Point 
and (b) such curtailment is due to “force majeure” or “uncontrollable force” or a similar term as defined 
under the Transmission Provider’s tariff; provided, however, that existence of the foregoing factors shall 
not be sufficient to conclusively or presumptively prove the existence of Force Majeure absent a showing 
of other facts and circumstances which in the aggregate with such factors establish that Force Majeure as 
defined in the first sentence hereof has occurred.  Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary 
herein, (I) to the extent that a PPA Supplier fails to deliver any Assigned Energy and claims force majeure 
with respect to such failure to deliver, then such event shall be deemed to constitute Force Majeure in 
respect of the Energy Supplier; and (II) to the extent that an Assignment Agreement is terminated early, 
such termination shall constitute Force Majeure with respect to the Energy Supplier until the earlier of (A) 
the commencement of an “Assignment Period” under a replacement Assignment Agreement, (B) the 
commencement of the delivery of EPS Compliant Energy procured by MSCG consistent with the 
Assignment Letter Agreement or (C) the end of the second Month following the Month in which such early 
termination occurs. 

“General Reserve Fund” means the General Reserve Fund established in Section 5.02. 

“Government Agency” means the United States of America, any state thereof, any municipality, or 
any local jurisdiction, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, including, but not limited to, 
courts, administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, bureaus, agencies, or instrumentalities. 

“Government Obligations” means: 

 (a) Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on 
the books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America, obligations 
unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America, and 
evidences of ownership interests in such direct or unconditionally guaranteed obligations; or 

 (b) Any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of 
any agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such state which:  (i) are not callable 
at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable notice has been given by 
the obligor to call such bonds or obligations on the date specified in the notice; (ii) are rated in the 
two highest Rating Categories of S&P and Moody’s; and (iii) are fully secured as to principal and 
interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting only of cash or obligations described 
in clause (a) above, which fund may be applied only to the payment of interest when due, principal 
of and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates 
thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable notice, as appropriate; 
or 

 (c) Any other bonds, notes or obligations of the United States of America or any 
agency or instrumentality thereof which, if deposited with the Trustee for the purpose described in 
the Indenture, will result in a rating on the Bonds which are deemed to have been paid pursuant to 
the Indenture that is in the same Rating Category of the obligations listed in subsection (a) above. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-9 

The determination as to whether any bond, note or other obligation constitutes a Government Obligation 
shall be made solely at the time of initial investment or purchase; provided that, the Trustee shall have no 
responsibility for determining whether any bond, note or other obligation is a Government Obligation. 

“Hour” means each 60-minute period commencing at 00:00 PPT on the first day of the Delivery 
Period. The term “Hourly” shall be construed accordingly. 

“Hourly Quantity” means, with respect to each Delivery Hour during a Delivery Period, the 
quantity (in MWh) of Base Energy set forth in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement for the Month in which 
such Delivery Hour occurs, as updated from time to time in accordance with the Prepaid Energy Sales 
Agreement. 

“Indenture” means this Trust Indenture as from time to time amended or supplemented by 
Supplemental Indentures in accordance with the terms hereof. 

“Index” means the SIFMA Index or the SOFR Index, as applicable. 

“Index Rate” means a SIFMA Index Rate or the SOFR Index Rate, as applicable. 

“Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, an Interest Rate Period during which 
the Bonds of such Series bear interest at an Index Rate. 

“Index Rate Reset Date” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds bearing interest at an Index Rate, 
each date on which the applicable Index Rate is determined by the Calculation Agent based on the change 
in the applicable Index as of such date, which shall be the date or dates so specified in the applicable Index 
Rate Determination Certificate with respect to such Index Rate Period (including, by way of example and 
not limitation, Thursday of each week, the first Business Day of each calendar month or the first Business 
Day of a calendar quarter). 

“Initial Assignment Agreements” means, for the Project Participant, a specific PPA between the 
Project Participant and MSCG, as seller. 

“Initial EPS Energy Periods” means the period during which the Initial Assignment Agreements 
are in effect, which commence on first day of the initial Delivery Period and end on [_______], 20[__]. 

“Initial Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to the Series 2022 EBCE Bonds, the period from 
the date of issuance of the Bonds to and including [______], 20[__]*. 

“Initial PPA Supplier” means MSCG. 

“Internal Revenue Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including the 
applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder.  

“Interest Accrual Date” means, with respect to any Bond (a) during any Daily Interest Rate Period 
or Weekly Interest Rate Period for such Bond, the first day thereof and, thereafter, each Interest Payment 
Date in respect thereof other than the last such Interest Payment Date during that Daily Interest Rate Period 
or Weekly Interest Rate Period, as applicable, (b) during any Index Rate Period for such Bond, the first day 
thereof and, thereafter each Interest Payment Date in respect thereof other than the last such Interest 
Payment Date during that Index Rate Period, except as otherwise provided in the Supplemental Indenture 
for such Bond, (c) during any Term Rate Period for such Bond, the first day thereof and, thereafter, each 
Interest Payment Date in respect thereof other than the last such Interest Payment Date during that Term 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-10 

Rate Period, and (d) for each CP Interest Term for such Bond within a Commercial Paper Interest Rate 
Period, the first day thereof. 

“Interest Payment Date” means (i) with respect to the Series 2022A-1 Bonds, each [______] 1 and 
[______] 1, commencing [______] 1, 20[__]*, and (ii) with respect to the Series 2022A-2 Bonds and Series 
2022A-3 Bonds, the first Business Day of each month, commencing with the first Business Day of [______] 
20[__]*. 

“Interest Rate Swap Payments” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in the Interest 
Rate Swap, the amount, if any, payable to the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty by CCCFA. 

“Interest Rate Swap Receipts” means, as of each scheduled payment date specified in the Interest 
Rate Swap, the amount, if any, payable to CCCFA by the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty. 

“Interest Rate Period” means a Daily Interest Rate Period, a Weekly Interest Rate Period, a 
Commercial Paper Interest Rate Period, a Term Rate Period or an Index Rate Period, each as defined in the 
Indenture.  All Bonds of a Series shall at all times bear interest in the same Interest Rate Period, and all 
Interest Rate Periods for all Series of Bonds shall terminate on the first to occur of the day prior to (a) the 
next occurring Mandatory Purchase Date or (b) the Final Maturity Date. 

“Interest Rate Swap” means the ISDA Master Agreement, the Schedule thereto and the 
Confirmation thereunder between the Issuer and the Interest Rate Swap Counterparty, and any replacement 
interest rate swap agreement permitted by the Indenture. 

“Interest Rate Swap Counterparty” means MSES. 

“Investment Agreement Provider” means ______________. 

“Law” means any statute, law, rule or regulation or any judicial or administrative interpretation 
thereof having the effect of the foregoing enacted, promulgated, or issued by a Government Agency whether 
in effect as of the execution date of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or at any time in the future. 

“Long-Term PCC1 Product” means bundled renewable energy and RECs meeting the 
requirements of Portfolio Content Category 1, and the California Long-Term Contracting Requirements, to 
be delivered to MSCG, the Energy Supplier or any successors thereto pursuant to any Assigned Rights and 
Obligations. 

“Mandatory Purchase Date” means [______] 1, 20[__]*. 

“Maturity Date” means each date upon which principal of the Bonds is due, as set forth in the 
Indenture. 

“Maximum Lawful Rate” means the maximum interest rate permitted by applicable law. 

“Maximum Rate” means the lesser of 12% per annum and the Maximum Lawful Rate. 

“Minimum Discount” has the meaning specified in the Power Supply Contract. 

“Month” means a calendar month.  The term “Monthly” shall be construed accordingly. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-11 

“Monthly Quantity” means, with respect to each Month of the Delivery Period, the quantity (in 
MWh) of Assigned Energy for such Month as set forth in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, as updated 
from time to time in accordance therewith. 

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., its successors and assigns, and, if such 
corporation shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’s” shall be deemed 
to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by CCCFA in a Written 
Notice delivered to the Trustee. 

“Morgan Stanley” means Morgan Stanley, a Delaware corporation. 

“Morgan Stanley Guarantee” means a guarantee of Morgan Stanley of the Energy Supplier’s 
payment obligations under this Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E. 

“MSCG” means Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation. 

“MWh” means a megawatt-hour. 

“Net Participant Shortfall Amount” means, for any Month in which the Project Participant fails to 
pay the full amount due under its Power Supply Contract in time for such amount to be credited to the 
Revenue Fund for application pursuant to the Indenture and the full amount due by such Project Participant 
is not otherwise paid by the Energy Supplier pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Provisions, an amount 
equal to the positive result (if any) of (i) such Project Participant’s Payment Deficiency Index Baseline for 
such Month minus (ii) the greater of (a) such Project Participant’s Payment Deficiency Fixed Baseline for 
such Month, and (b) the actual amount paid by such Project Participant for such Month, provided that if the 
foregoing does not result in a positive number, then no Net Participant Shortfall Amount will exist for such 
Project Participant for such Month. 

“NY Federal Reserve’s Website” means the website of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
currently at http://www.newyorkfed.org, or any successor website of the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York. 

“Operating Expenses” means, to the extent properly allocable to the Clean Energy Project, 
(a) CCCFA’s expenses for operation of the Clean Energy Project, including all Rebate Payments, costs, 
collateral deposits and other amounts (other than Commodity Swap Payments) necessary to maintain any 
Commodity Swap; and payments required under the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (which may, under 
certain circumstances, include imbalance charges and other miscellaneous payments) or required to be 
incurred under or in connection with the performance of CCCFA’s obligations under the Power Supply 
Contract; (b) any other current expenses or obligations required to be paid by CCCFA under the provisions 
of this Indenture (other than Debt Service on the Bonds and deposits to the General Reserve Fund and the 
Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund, or any Cost of Acquisition) or by law or required to be incurred under 
or in connection with the performance of CCCFA’s obligations under the Power Supply Contract; (c) fees 
payable by CCCFA with respect to any Remarketing Agreement; (d) the fees and expenses of the 
Fiduciaries; (e) reasonable accounting, legal and other professional fees and expenses, and all other 
reasonable administrative and operating expenses of CCCFA, which are incurred by CCCFA with respect 
to the Bonds, this Indenture, or the Clean Energy Project, including but not limited to those relating to the 
administration of the Trust Estate and compliance by CCCFA with its continuing disclosure obligations, if 
any, with respect to the Bonds; and (f) the costs of any insurance premiums incurred by CCCFA, including, 
without limitation, directors and officers liability insurance, allocable to the Clean Energy Project; provided 
that, for purposes of the transfers from the Revenue Fund described under the heading “Flow of Funds”, 
Operating Expenses shall not include any of the foregoing administrative expenses, fees or other costs 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-12 

described in the foregoing clauses (a) through (f) that are paid from funds on deposit in the Administrative 
Fee Fund  Commodity Swap Payments, litigation judgments and settlements and indemnification payments 
in connection with the payment of any litigation judgment or settlement, and Extraordinary Expenses are 
not Operating Expenses. 

“Operating Fund” means the Operating Fund established pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means a written opinion of either Bond Counsel or Special Tax 
Counsel (or written opinions of both of them) addressed to CCCFA and delivered to the Trustee. 

“Opinion of Counsel” means an opinion signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys (who may be 
counsel to CCCFA) selected by CCCFA. 

“Outstanding” when used with reference to Bonds, means as of any date, Bonds theretofore or 
thereupon being authenticated and delivered under this Indenture except: 

 (a) Bonds cancelled (or portions thereof deemed to have been cancelled) by the 
Trustee at or prior to such date; 

 (b) Bonds (or portions of Bonds) for the payment or redemption of which moneys, 
equal to the principal amount or Redemption Price thereof, as the case may be, with interest to the 
date of maturity or redemption date, shall be held in trust under this Indenture and set aside for such 
payment or redemption (whether at or prior to the maturity or redemption date), provided that if 
such Bonds (or portions of Bonds) are to be redeemed, notice of such redemption shall have been 
given or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice as 
provided in the Indenture; 

 (c) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been 
authenticated and delivered pursuant to the Indenture; 

 (d) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid as provided in the Indenture; and  

 (e) Bonds (or portions thereof) deemed to have been purchased pursuant to the 
provisions of any Supplemental Indenture in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated 
and delivered as provided in such Supplemental Indenture. 

“Paying Agent” means the Trustee, its successors and assigns, and any other bank or trust company 
organized under the laws of any state of the United States of America or any national banking association 
designated as paying agent for the Bonds, and its successor or successors hereafter appointed in the manner 
provided in this Indenture. 

“Payment Deficiency Fixed Baseline” means, for any Month and any Project Participant, the 
amount such Project Participant would have been required to pay for such Month under its Power Supply 
Contract if the Contract Price for such Month had been determined using an Index Price (as defined under 
its Power Supply Contract) for such Month equal to the Fixed Price (as defined under the Commodity 
Swap) for such Month. 

“Payment Deficiency Index Baseline” means, for any Month and any Project Participant, the 
amount required to be paid by such Project Participant for such Month under its Power Supply Contract. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-13 

“PCC1 Product” means bundled renewable energy and RECs meeting the requirements of 
Portfolio Content Category 1 to be delivered to MSCG, the Energy Supplier or any successors thereto 
pursuant to any Assigned Rights and Obligations. 

“Person” means any individual, limited liability company, corporation, partnership, joint venture, 
trust, unincorporated organization or Government Agency. 

“Pledged Funds” means (a) the Project Fund, (b) the Revenue Fund, (c) the Debt Service Fund, 
(d) the General Reserve Fund, (e) the Assignment Payment Fund and (f) the Commodity Swap Payment 
Fund, in each case including the Accounts in each of such Funds and in the case of the Commodity Swap 
Payment Fund, subject to the prior pledge thereof in favor of the Commodity Swap Counterparty. 

“Portfolio Content Category 1” means any Renewable Energy Credit associated with the 
generation of electricity from an “Eligible Renewable Energy Resource” consisting of the portfolio content 
set forth in California Public Utilities Code Section 399.16(b)(1), as may be amended from time to time or 
as further defined or supplemented by Law. 

“Power Supply Contract” means (a) the contract for the sale by CCCFA of Energy from or 
attributable to the Clean Energy Project to the Project Participant, as such contracts may be amended from 
time to time in accordance with the terms thereof and the Indenture, and (b) any other contract for the sale 
by CCCFA of Energy from or attributable to the Clean Energy Project entered into by a Person that becomes 
a Project Participant in accordance with the assignment and novation requirements set forth in the Indenture, 
as such contract may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof and the Indenture. 

“PPA Supplier” means the Initial PPA Supplier and any subsequent supplier who enters into an 
Assignment Agreement consistent with the Assignment Letter Agreements. 

“PPT” means Pacific Daylight Time when such time is applicable and otherwise means Pacific 
Standard Time. 

“Prepaid Clean Energy Project Administration Agreement” means the Prepaid Clean Energy 
Project Administration Agreement by and between CCCFA and the Project Participant, as the same may 
be amended from time to time. 

“Principal Installment” means, as of any date of calculation, (a) the principal amount of Bonds 
due on a certain future date for which no Sinking Fund Installments have been established, or (b) the 
unsatisfied balance of any Sinking Fund Installments due on a certain future date in a principal amount 
equal to said unsatisfied balance of such Sinking Fund Installments. 

“Project Administration Fee”  means the annual fee payable by the Project Participant under its 
Power Supply Contract for the payment of Operating Expenses of CCCFA. 

“Project Fund” means the Project Fund established under the Indenture. 

“Project Participant” means (a) ECBE and (b) any other Public Agency that enters into a Power 
Supply Contract with CCCFA in accordance with the assignment and novation requirements set forth in 
the Indenture. 

“PSC Remarketing Election” means, with respect to any Power Supply Contract, that the relevant 
Project Participant delivered a Remarketing Election Notice (as defined thereunder) for any Reset Period. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-14 

“Public Agency” means a state, a governmental or political subdivision of a state and a corporate 
instrumentality or public corporation of a state or a subdivision of a state, including without limitation any 
of their departments or agencies, counties, county boards of education, county superintendents of schools, 
cities, public corporations, public districts, public commissions or joint powers authorities. 

“Put Receivable” has the meaning set forth in the Receivables Purchase Provisions. 

“Qualified Investments” means any of the following investments, if and to the extent that the same 
are rated (or whose financial obligations to CCCFA receive credit support from an entity rated) at least at 
the credit rating of the Energy Supplier, or, if the Energy Supplier is not rated, the guarantor of the Energy 
Supplier (except for (c) below), and are at the time authorized for such purpose by law: 

 (a) Direct obligations of the United States government or any of its agencies; 

 (b) Obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States 
government or any of its agencies; 

 (c) Certificates of deposit, including those placed by a third party pursuant to an 
agreement between the Trustee and CCCFA, and other evidences of deposit at state and federally 
chartered banks, savings and loan institutions or savings banks, including the Trustee or any of its 
affiliates (each having the highest short term rating by each Rating Agency then rating the Bonds) 
deposited and collateralized as required by law; 

 (d) Repurchase agreements entered into with the United States or its agencies or with 
any bank, broker dealer or other such entity, including the Trustee and its affiliates, so long as the 
obligation of the obligated party is secured by a perfected pledge of obligations that meet the 
conditions set forth in the preamble to this definition of Qualified Investments; 

 (e) Guaranteed investment contracts, forward delivery agreements, interest rate 
exchange agreements or similar agreements providing for a specified rate of return over a specified 
time period; provided, however, that guaranteed investment contracts, forward delivery agreements 
or similar agreements shall meet the conditions set forth in the preamble to this definition of 
Qualified Investments; 

 (f) Direct general obligations of a state of the United States, or a political subdivision 
or instrumentality thereof, having general taxing powers; 

 (g) Obligations of any state of the United States or a political subdivision or 
instrumentality thereof, secured solely by revenues received by or on behalf of the state or political 
subdivision or instrumentality thereof irrevocably pledged to the payment of principal of and 
interest on such obligations and that meet the conditions set forth in the preamble to this definition 
of Qualified Investments; 

 (h) Money market funds registered under the federal Investment Company Act of 
1940, whose shares are registered under the federal Securities Act of 1933, and having a rating in 
the highest Rating Category by each Rating Agency at the time of investment, including money 
market funds of the Trustee and funds for which the Trustee or its affiliates (i) provide investment 
or other management services and (ii) serve as investment manager, administrator, shareholder, 
servicing agent and/or custodian or sub-custodian, notwithstanding that (A) the Trustee or its 
affiliate receives or collects fees from such funds for services rendered, and (B) services performed 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-15 

by the Trustee pursuant to this Indenture may at times duplicate those provided to such funds by 
the Trustee or its affiliate; or 

 (i) Any other investments permitted by applicable law for the investment of the funds 
of CCCFA and that meet the conditions set forth in the preamble to this definition of Qualified 
Investments; 

provided, that CCCFA shall monitor, or shall cause to be monitored, ratings and shall determine whether 
any investment made is or continues to be a Qualified Investment, and the Trustee shall have no 
responsibility whatsoever for monitoring ratings or determining whether any investment is or continues to 
be a Qualified Investment. 

“Rating Agency” means Fitch, Moody’s or S&P, or any other rating agency so designated in a 
Supplemental Indenture that, at the time, rates the Bonds. 

“Rating Category” means one or more of the generic rating categories of a Rating Agency, without 
regard to any refinement or gradation of such rating category or categories by a numerical modifier, a plus 
or minus, or otherwise. 

“Re-Pricing Agreement” means the Re-Pricing Agreement, dated as of the date of issuance of the 
Bonds, by and between CCCFA and the Energy Supplier. 

“Real-Time Market Price” means The Five Minute Market (FMM) Locational Marginal Price for 
the Energy Delivery Point for each applicable interval as published by CAISO, or as such price may be 
corrected or revised from time to time by such independent system operator or other entity in accordance 
with its rules; provided that in no case shall the Real-Time Market Price hereunder be less than $0.00/MWh. 

“Redemption Account” means the Redemption Account in the Debt Service Fund established in 
the Indenture. 

“Redemption Price” means, with respect to any Bond, the amount payable upon redemption thereof 
pursuant to such Bond or this Indenture. 

“Renewable Energy Credit” or “REC” has the meaning specified for “Renewable Energy Credit” 
in California Public Utilities Code Section 399.12(h), as may be amended from time to time or as further 
defined or supplemented by Law. 

“Reset Period” means each “Reset Period” under the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“Reset Period” means Initial Reset Period or Reset Period, as the case may be, each as defined in 
the Re-Pricing Agreement. 

“Responsible Officer” means, when used with respect to the Trustee, the Custodian or the 
Calculation Agent, as applicable, any managing director, president, vice president, senior associate, 
associate or other officer of the Trustee, the Custodian or the Calculation Agent, respectively, within its 
designated corporate trust office for delivery of notice specified in Section 12.11 (or any successor 
corporate trust office) customarily performing functions similar to those performed by the persons who at 
the time shall be such officers, respectively, or to whom any corporate trust matter is referred at such office 
because of such person’s knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject and having direct 
responsibility for the administration of this Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-16 

“Revenue Fund” means the Revenue Fund established under the Indenture. 

“Revenues” means: 

 (a) all revenues, income, rents, user fees or charges, and receipts derived or to be 
derived by CCCFA from or attributable or relating to the ownership and operation of the Clean 
Energy Project, including all revenues attributable or relating to the Clean Energy Project or to the 
payment of the costs thereof received or to be received by CCCFA under the Power Supply Contract 
and the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement or otherwise payable to the Trustee for the account of 
CCCFA for the sale and/or transmission of Energy or otherwise with respect to the Clean Energy 
Project; 

 (b) interest received or to be received on any moneys or securities (other than moneys 
or securities held in the Project Fund, moneys or securities held in the Redemption Account in the 
Debt Service Fund or that portion of moneys in the Operating Fund required for Rebate Payments) 
held pursuant to this Indenture and paid or required to be paid into the Revenue Fund; and 

 (c) any Commodity Swap Receipts received by the Trustee on behalf of CCCFA. 

provided that, the term “Revenues” shall not include: (u) any Termination Payment pursuant to the Prepaid 
Clean Energy Sales Agreement; (v) any amounts received from the Energy Supplier that are required to be 
deposited into the Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund; (w) any amounts paid by the Project Participant 
under a Prepaid Clean Energy Project Administration Agreement;  (x) any Assignment Payment received 
from the Energy Supplier; (y) Interest Rate Swap Receipts; and (z) amounts paid by the Project Participant 
in respect of the Project Administration Fee. 

“S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of S&P Global Inc., its successors and assigns, and, 
if such entity shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “S&P” shall be deemed to 
refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by CCCFA in a Written Notice 
delivered to the Trustee. 

“Schedule”, “Scheduled” or “Scheduling” means the actions of the Energy Supplier, CCCFA, the 
Project Participant and/or their designated representatives, including their respective Transmission 
Providers, if applicable, of notifying, requesting and confirming to each other the quantity of Energy to be 
delivered during any given portion of the Delivery Period at a specified Delivery Point. 

“Scheduled Debt Service Deposits” means the required monthly deposits to the Debt Service 
Account in the Debt Service Fund and the required cumulative deposits to the Debt Service Account in the 
Debt Service Fund in respect of the Debt Service coming due on the Bonds on each Bond Payment Date. 

“Securities Depository” means DTC, or its nominee, and its successors and assigns. 

“Series 2022 EBCE Bonds” means the Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A-1, 
Series 2022A-2 and Series 2022A-3. 

“SIFMA Index” means the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index, which, for purposes of an Index Rate 
Reset Date for a Series of Bonds bearing interest at a SIFMA Index Rate, will be the level of such index 
which is issued weekly and which is compiled from the weekly interest rate resets of tax exempt variable 
rate issues included in a database maintained by Refinity which meet specific criteria established from time 
to time by SIFMA and issued on Wednesday of each week, or if any Wednesday is not a Business Day, the 
next succeeding Business Day, such date being the same day the SIFMA Swap Index is expected to be 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-17 

published or otherwise made available to the Calculation Agent.  If the SIFMA Index is not available as of 
any Index Rate Reset Date, the interest rate for such Index Rate Reset Date will be determined using a 
comparable substitute or replacement index for such Index Rate Reset Date selected and designated by 
CCCFA in compliance with the Indenture. 

“SIFMA Index Rate” means a per annum rate of interest equal to the sum of (a) the SIFMA Index 
then in effect, plus (b) the Applicable Spread. 

“SIFMA Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, an Index Rate Period during 
which such Bonds bear interest at the SIFMA Index Rate. 

“Sinking Fund Installment” means, for the Series 2022 EBCE Bonds, the amounts so designated 
in the Indenture. 

“SOFR Accrual Period” means the number of actual days from )but not including) (a) the Initial 
Issue Date or the preceding SOFR Interest Calculation Date, whichever is most recent, to (and including) 
(b) the next succeeding SOFR Interest Calculation Date, regardless of the actual number of calendar days 
in any Month. 

“SOFR Effective Date” means each Business Day. 

“SOFR Effective Period” means the number of actual days from a SOFR Effective Date to the next 
SOFR Effective Date. 

“SOFR” or SOFR Index” means the Secured Overnight Financing Rate reported on the NY Federal 
Reserve’s Website, or reported by any successor to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York as administrator 
of such Secured Overnight  Financing Rate, as of 3:00 p.m. on each SOFR Publish Date representing SOFR 
as of the SOFR Lookback Date, which will be used to calculate interest for the SOFR Effective Period 
beginning on the SOFR Effective Date (for example, for purposes of determining the SOFR Index for a 
SOFR Effective Date of Thursday, [February 17, 2022], the Calculation Agent uses SOFR published on the 
SOFR Publish Date of Wednesday, [February 16, 2022], which is the SOFR Index for the SOFR Lookback 
Date of Monday, [February 14, 2022]).  If SOFR is not available as of any Index Rate Reset Date, the 
interest rate for such Index Rate Reset Date will be determined using a comparable substitute or replacement 
index for such Index Rate Reset Date designated by CCCFA in writing (with notice to, and which is 
available to, the Calculation Agent) in compliance with the Indenture. 

“SOFR Index Rate” means a daily variable interest rate equal to the sum of (1) the product of the 
SOFR and the Applicable Factor, plus (2) the Applicable Spread on each day of a SOFR Effective Period, 
not to exceed the Maximum Rate. 

“SOFR Index Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, an Index Rate Period during 
which such Bonds bear interest at the SOFR Index Rate. 

“SOFR Interest Calculation Date” means the last Business Day of each Month. 

“SOFR Lookback Date” means the third Business Day immediately preceding each SOFR Effective 
Date. 

“SOFR Publish Date” means the second Business Day immediately preceding each SOFR 
Effective Date. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-18 

“Special Tax Counsel” means Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP or any other counsel of 
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax exempt status of interest on obligations issued 
by states and their political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of 
any state of the United States, and selected by CCCFA.  Bond Counsel may serve as Special Tax Counsel. 

“Specified Discount” means the amount specified in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“State” means the State of California. 

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture supplemental to or amendatory of this Indenture 
executed and delivered by CCCFA and the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture. 

“Tax Agreement” means the Tax Certificate and Agreement of CCCFA with respect to the Bonds 
dated as of the initial issue date of the Bonds. 

“Termination Payment” means, with respect to any Early Termination Payment Date, the amount 
specified in the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement for the calendar month in which such Early Termination 
Payment Date occurs (as adjusted by any applicable Termination Payment Adjustment Amount) without 
any set-off or netting of amounts then due from CCCFA. 

“Trustee” means The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. and its successor or 
successors and any other corporation or national banking association which may at any time be substituted 
in its place pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Trust Estate” means (a) the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, (b) all right, title and interest of 
CCCFA in, to and under the Power Supply Contract, except for the right to receive the Project 
Administration Fee, (c) the Revenues, (d) any Termination Payment or the right to receive such 
Termination Payment (e) all right, title and interest of CCCFA in, to and under the Receivables Purchase 
Provisions, including payments received from the Energy Supplier pursuant thereto, (f) all right, title and 
interest of CCCFA in, to and under the Energy Supplier Guaranty, (g) all right, title and interest of CCCFA 
in, to and under each Interest Rate Swap and the Interest Rate Swap Receipts, (h) all right, title and interest 
of CCCFA in, to and under any Debt Service Fund Agreement and Debt Service Fund Agreement Guaranty 
and (i) the Pledged Funds (which does not include the Administrative Fee Fund, the Energy Remarketing 
Reserve Fund and the Bond Purchase Fund, and excluding Rebate Payments held in any Fund or Account), 
including the investment income, if any, thereof subject only to the provisions of this Indenture permitting 
the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

“Weekly Interest Rate” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, a variable interest rate established 
for such Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. 

“Weekly Interest Rate Period” means, with respect to a Series of Bonds, each period during which 
a Weekly Interest Rate is in effect for such Series of Bonds. 

“Written Certificate,” “Written Direction,” “Written Instrument,” “Written Notice,” “Written 
Request” and “Written Statement” of CCCFA means in each case an instrument in writing signed on behalf 
of CCCFA by an Authorized Officer thereof.  Any such instrument and any supporting opinions or 
certificates may, but need not, be combined in a single instrument with any other instrument, opinion or 
certificate, and the two or more so combined shall be read and construed so as to form a single instrument.  
Any such instrument may be based, insofar as it relates to legal, accounting or engineering matters, upon 
the opinion or certificate of counsel, consultants, accountants or engineers, unless the Authorized Officer 
signing such Written Certificate, Direction, Instrument, Notice, Request or Statement knows, or in the 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

B-19 

exercise of reasonable care should know, that the opinion or certificate with respect to the matters upon 
which such Written Certificate, Direction, Instrument, Notice, Request or Statement may be based, as 
aforesaid, is erroneous.  The same Authorized Officer, or the same counsel, consultant, accountant or 
engineer, as the case may be, need not certify to all of the matters required to be certified under any 
provision of this Indenture, but different Authorized Officers, counsel, consultants, accountants or 
engineers may certify to different facts, respectively.  Every Written Certificate, Direction, Instrument 
Notice, Request or Statement of CCCFA, and every certificate or opinion of counsel, consultants, 
accountants or engineers provided for herein shall include: 

 (a) a statement that the person making such certificate, direction, instrument, notice, 
request, statement or opinion has read the pertinent provisions of this Indenture to which such 
certificate, direction, notice, request, statement or opinion relates; 

 (b) a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation 
upon which the certificate, direction, instrument, notice, request, statement or opinion is based; 

 (c) a statement that, in the opinion of such person, he or she has made such 
examination or investigation as is necessary to enable him or her to express an informed opinion 
with respect to the subject matter referred to in the instrument to which his or her signature is 
affixed; and 

 (d) with respect to any statement relating to compliance with any provision hereof, a 
statement whether or not, in the opinion of such person, such provision has been complied with. 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

C-1 

APPENDIX C 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Indenture pertaining to the Bonds.  
Such summary does not purport to be complete and reference is made to the Indenture for full and complete 
statements of all provisions of the Indenture. 

[Orrick to provide prior to posting] 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-1 

APPENDIX D 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE INFORMATION 
UNDER SECTION (b)(5) OF RULE 15c2-12 

[closing date] 

This Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the “Agreement”) is executed and delivered by California 
Community Choice Financing Authority (“CCCFA”) in connection with the issuance of its 
$_____________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-1 (Green Bonds) (Fixed Rate), 
$_____________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-2 (Green Bonds) (SIFMA Index 
Rate), and $_____________ Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-3 (Green Bonds) (SOFR 
Index Rate) (collectively, the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust Indenture, dated 
as of _______ 1, 2022 (the “Indenture”), between CCCFA and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National 
Association, as trustee. 

In consideration of the issuance of the Bonds by CCCFA and the purchase of such Bonds by the 
beneficial owners thereof, CCCFA covenants and agrees as follows: 

1. Purpose of This Agreement.  This Agreement is executed and delivered by CCCFA as of 
the date set forth below, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the 
Participating Underwriter in complying with the requirements of the Rule (as defined below).  CCCFA 
represents that it will be the only “obligated person” within the meaning of the Rule with respect to the 
Bonds at the time the Bonds are delivered to the Participating Underwriter and that no other person is 
expected to become so committed at any time after the issuance of the Bonds. 

2. Definitions.  (a)  The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings in this 
Agreement, unless the context clearly otherwise requires. 

“Annual Financial Information” means the financial information and operating data described in 
Exhibit I. 

“Annual Financial Information Disclosure” means the dissemination of disclosure concerning 
Annual Financial Information and the dissemination of the Audited Financial Statements as set forth in 
Section 4. 

“Audited Financial Statements” means the audited financial statements of CCCFA prepared 
pursuant to the standards and as described in Exhibit I. 

“Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Dissemination Agent” means any agent designated as such in writing by CCCFA and which has 
filed with CCCFA a written acceptance of such designation, and such agent’s successors and assigns. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-2 

“EMMA” means the MSRB through its Electronic Municipal Market Access system for municipal 
securities disclosure or through any other electronic format or system prescribed by the MSRB for purposes 
of the Rule. 

“Energy Supplier” means Morgan Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability 
company and its successors and permitted assigns. 

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

“Final Official Statement” means the Final Official Statement dated _______, 2022, relating to the 
Bonds. 

“Financial Obligation” means (a) a debt obligation, (b) a derivative instrument entered into in 
connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation, 
or (c) a guarantee of an obligation or instrument described in clause (a) or (b) of this definition; provided 
however, the term Financial Obligation does not include municipal securities as to which a final official 
statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Monthly Ledger Report” means the copies of the ledgers maintained by the Energy Supplier 
pursuant to Exhibit C of the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement and delivered each month to CCCFA pursuant 
to Section 9(b)(i) of such Exhibit. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Non-Private Business Sales Ledger” and “Private Business Sales Ledger” have the meanings 
assigned to such terms in Exhibit C to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Participating Underwriter” means each broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer acting as an 
underwriter in the primary offering of the Bonds. 

“Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement” means the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement dated as of 
____________, 2022 between the Energy Supplier and CCCFA. 

“Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event” has the meaning assigned to such term in Exhibit 
C to the Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement. 

“Reportable Event” means the occurrence of any of the Events with respect to the Bonds set forth 
in Exhibit II. 

“Reportable Events Disclosure” means dissemination of a notice of a Reportable Event as set forth 
in Section 5. 

“Rule” means Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Commission under the Exchange Act, as the same may 
be amended from time to time. 

“Undertaking” means the obligations of CCCFA pursuant to Sections 4 and 5. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-3 

(b) Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings 
assigned to them in the Indenture. 

3. CUSIP Numbers.  The CUSIP Numbers of the Bonds are as follows: 

MATURITY 
(_________ 1) 

AMOUNT CUSIP 
NUMBER 

 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

CCCFA will include the CUSIP Numbers (or applicable CUSIP Number) in all disclosure 
described in Sections 4 and 5 of this Agreement. 

4. Annual Financial Information Disclosure.  Subject to Section 9 of this Agreement, CCCFA 
hereby covenants that it will disseminate or cause to be disseminated on its behalf its Annual Financial 
Information and the Audited Financial Statements (in the form and by the dates set forth in Exhibit I) to 
EMMA in such manner and format and accompanied by identifying information as is prescribed by the 
MSRB or the Commission at the time of delivery of such information and by such time so that such entities 
receive the information by the dates specified.  MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-
searchable PDF format.  This requirement extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including 
financial statements and other externally prepared reports. 

If any part of the Annual Financial Information can no longer be generated because the operations 
to which it is related have been materially changed or discontinued, CCCFA will disseminate a statement 
to such effect as part of the Annual Financial Information for the year in which such event first occurs. 

If any amendment or waiver is made to this Agreement, the Annual Financial Information for the 
year in which such amendment is made (or in any notice or supplement provided to EMMA) shall contain 
a narrative description of the reasons for such amendment and its impact on the type of information being 
provided. 

5. Reportable Events Disclosure.  Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, CCCFA hereby 
covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence 
of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure to EMMA in such manner and format and 
accompanied by identifying information as is prescribed by the MSRB or the Commission at the time of 
delivery of such information.  References to “material” in Exhibit II refer to materiality as it is interpreted 
under the Exchange Act.  MSRB Rule G-32 requires all EMMA filings to be in word-searchable PDF 
format.  This requirement extends to all documents to be filed with EMMA, including financial statements 
and other externally prepared reports.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of optional or unscheduled 
redemption of any Bonds or defeasance of any Bonds need not be given under this Agreement any earlier 
than the notice (if any) of such redemption or defeasance is given to the Bondholders pursuant to the 
Indenture. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-4 

6. Consequences of Failure of CCCFA to Provide Information.  CCCFA shall give notice in 
a timely manner to EMMA of any failure to provide Annual Financial Information Disclosure when the 
same is due hereunder. 

In the event of a failure of CCCFA to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the beneficial 
owner of any Bond may seek mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause CCCFA to comply 
with its obligations under this Agreement. The beneficial owners of 25% or more in principal amount of 
the Bonds outstanding may challenge the adequacy of the information provided under this Agreement and 
seek specific performance by court order to cause CCCFA to provide the information as required by this 
Agreement.  A default under this Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Indenture, 
and the sole remedy under this Agreement in the event of any failure of CCCFA to comply with this 
Agreement shall be an action to compel performance. 

7. Amendments; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, CCCFA 
by resolution authorizing such amendment or waiver, may amend this Agreement, and any provision of this 
Agreement may be waived, if: 

(a) (i) The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances 
that arises from a change in legal requirements, including without limitation pursuant to a “no-
action” letter issued by the Commission, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status 
of CCCFA, or type of business conducted; or 

(ii) This Agreement, as amended, or the provision, as waived, would have 
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking 
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in 
circumstances; and 

(b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the beneficial 
owners of the Bonds, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with CCCFA (such as the 
Trustee), or by approving vote of Bondholders pursuant to the terms of the Indenture at the time of 
the amendment. 

In the event that the Commission, the MSRB or other regulatory authority shall approve or require 
Annual Financial Information Disclosure or Reportable Events Disclosure to be made to a central post 
office, governmental agency or similar entity other than EMMA or in lieu of EMMA, CCCFA shall, if 
required, make such dissemination to such central post office, governmental agency or similar entity 
without the necessity of amending this Agreement. 

8. Termination of Undertaking.  The Undertaking of CCCFA shall be terminated hereunder 
if CCCFA no longer has any legal liability for any obligation on or relating to repayment of the Bonds 
under the Indenture.  CCCFA shall give notice to EMMA in a timely manner if this Section is applicable. 

9. Dissemination Agent.  CCCFA may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination 
Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, and may discharge any such 
Dissemination Agent with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. 

10. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent CCCFA 
from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Agreement or 
any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual Financial Information 
Disclosure or notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event, in addition to that which is required by this 
Agreement.  If CCCFA chooses to include any information from any document or notice of occurrence of 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-5 

a Reportable Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Agreement, CCCFA shall have 
no obligation under this Agreement to update such information or include it in any future disclosure or 
notice of occurrence of a Reportable Event.  If the name of CCCFA is changed, CCCFA shall disseminate 
such information to EMMA. 

11. Beneficiaries.  This Agreement has been executed in order to assist the Participating 
Underwriter in complying with the Rule; however, this Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of 
CCCFA, the Dissemination Agent, if any, and the beneficial owners of the Bonds, and shall create no rights 
in any other person or entity. 

12. Recordkeeping.  CCCFA shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information 
Disclosure and Reportable Events Disclosure, including the content of such disclosure, the names of the 
entities with whom such disclosure was filed and the date of filing such disclosure. 

13. Assignment.  CCCFA shall not transfer its obligations under the Indenture unless the 
transferee agrees to assume all obligations of CCCFA under this Agreement or to execute an Undertaking 
under the Rule. 

14. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING 
AUTHORITY 

By   _________________________________________  
Its 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-I-1 

EXHIBIT I 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND TIMING AND AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

“Annual Financial Information” means financial information and operating data with respect to the 
Clean Energy Project, including: 

(a) with respect to the Project Participant updated information under the headings 
“Customers – General,” “Customers – Customer Opt-Out Rate and Customer Retention,” “Service 
Rates – Current and Historical Rate Information,” “Sources of Energy – Energy Purchases,” 
“Financial Information – Results of Operations,” “Financial Information – Assets, Liabilities, 
Deferred Inflows or Resources and Net Position” and “Financial Information – Other Liquidity 
Sources” set forth APPENDIX A to the Official Statement; 

(b) the quantities of Energy from the Clean Energy Project sold by CCCFA, whether 
to the Project Participant or others; and 

(c) such other information and data as CCCFA may deem necessary in order to comply 
with the requirements of the Rule. 

“Audited Financial Statements” means the audited financial statements of CCCFA, in each case for 
the most recent fiscal year (commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021), in each case 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to comply with 
governmental entities from time to time (or such other accounting principles as may be applicable to 
CCCFA, as the case may be, in the future pursuant to applicable law). 

All or a portion of the Annual Financial Information and the Audited Financial Statements set forth 
above may be included by reference to other documents which have been submitted to EMMA or filed with 
the Commission.  If the information included by reference is contained in a final official statement, the final 
official statement must be available on EMMA.  The final official statement need not be available from the 
Commission.  CCCFA shall clearly identify each such item of information included by reference. 

Annual Financial Information with respect to the Project Participant will be submitted to EMMA 
by 200 days after end of the Project Participant’s  fiscal year (being June 30 for East Bay Community 
Energy Authority).  

Annual Financial Information with respect to CCCFA (i.e., the information described in clauses (b) 
and (c) of the definition of Annual Financial Information) will be submitted to EMMA by 200 days after 
end of CCCFA’s fiscal year. 

Audited Financial Statements as described above should be filed at the same times as the Annual 
Financial Information.  If Audited Financial Statements are not available when such Annual Financial 
Information is filed, unaudited financial statements shall be included.  Audited Financial Statements will 
be submitted to EMMA no later than 30 days after availability to CCCFA. 

If any change is made to the Annual Financial Information as permitted by Section 4 of the 
Agreement, CCCFA will disseminate a notice of such change as required by Section 4. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-II-1 

EXHIBIT II 

EVENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS 
FOR WHICH REPORTABLE EVENTS DISCLOSURE IS REQUIRED 

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies 

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material 

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties 

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties 

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform 

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material 
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other material events 
affecting the tax status of the security 

7. Modifications to the rights of security holders, if material 

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers 

9. Defeasances 

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material 

11. Rating changes 

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person∗ 

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the obligated person or the 
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other than in the ordinary course 
of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of 
a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material 

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material 

 
∗ This event is considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal 
agent or similar officer for the obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 
substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving 
the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court 
or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by 
a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of 
the obligated person. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

D-II-2 

15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the obligated person, if material, or agreement to covenants, 
events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the 
obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material 

16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events 
under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the obligated person, any of which reflect financial 
difficulties 

17. The receipt by CCCFA of a Monthly Ledger Report that includes a credit to any Non-Private 
Business Sales Ledger or any Private Business Sales Ledger that has not been reversed within 
twelve months of the date of such credit 

18. The receipt by CCCFA of a Monthly Ledger Report that shows that a Remarketing Non-Default 
Termination Event has occurred 

 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

E-1 

APPENDIX E 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

[Orrick to provide prior to posting] 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 
 Monica Reid, CEO 

monica.reid@kestrelverifiers.com 
+1 541-399-6806 

 April Strid, Lead ESG Analyst 
april.strid@kestrelverifiers.com  
+1 503-860-1125 

 Melissa Audrey, ESG Analyst 
melissa.audrey@kestrelverifiers.com  
+1 856-495-5003 

 

Kestrel Verifiers  |  www.kestrelverifiers.com  | +1 541-399-6806 
F-1 

APPENDIX F 

FORM OF SECOND PARTY OPINION REGARDING GREEN BOND DESIGNATION 

SECOND PARTY OPINION 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
ISSUER 
California Community Choice Financing Authority   

OPINION ON 
Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-1 (Green Bonds) 
Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-2 (Green Bonds) 
Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-3 (Green Bonds)  

GREEN STANDARD AND CATEGORY 

 

 Renewable Energy 

EVALUATION DATE 
[_________], 2022 

SUMMARY 
Kestrel Verifiers is of the opinion that the Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 EBCE Bonds 
(Green Bonds) conform with the four core components of the Green Bond Principles 2021 as follows: 

 Use of Proceeds 
California Community Choice Financing Authority (the “Issuer” or “CCCFA”) intends to issue Clean Energy 
Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-1 (Green Bonds), Series 2022A-2 (Green Bonds) and Series 2022A-
2 (Green Bonds) (“Bonds”) to finance prepayment for 30 years of renewable and carbon-free electricity to 
benefit East Bay Community Energy (“EBCE”). Proceeds will also finance capitalized interest, and costs of 
issuance. 

 Process for Project Evaluation and Selection 
CCCFA and EBCE have adopted planning documents and procedures that advance the expansion of 
renewable and carbon-free energy generation. Decision-making regarding bond-financed activities is 
overseen by CCCFA’s Board of Directors and the community choice aggregators’ Boards of Directors. 
EBCE has adopted Integrated Resource Plans that outline long-term planning priorities and strategies.  

 Management of Proceeds 
Bond proceeds shall be fully allocated to prepay contracts for renewable and carbon-free energy. A portion 
of proceeds will also be used to pay capitalized interest,  and pay costs of issuance. Temporary investment 
of these funds is limited to permittable, conservative investments pursuant to the Indenture with respect 
to the Bonds. 

 Reporting 
EBCE’s Integrated Resource Plans provide ongoing transparency and updates on the progress of 
community choice aggregators (“CCAs”) meeting statewide requirements for greenhouse gas emission 
reduction targets within the electricity sector. As required by the California Public Utilities Commission, 
CCAs also report annually on the power content and greenhouse gas emissions associated with energy 
supplied to customers. CCCFA will also post continuing financial disclosures to the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) annually through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system.  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

mailto:monica.reid@kestrelverifiers.com
mailto:april.strid@kestrelverifiers.com
mailto:melissa.audrey@kestrelverifiers.com
https://kestrelverifiers.com/


 

Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion Executive Summary F-2 

 Impact and Alignment with United Nation Sustainable Development Goals 
The Bonds support UN Sustainable Development Goals 7: Affordable and Clean Energy, 9: Industry, 
Innovation, and Infrastructure, 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities, and 13: Climate Action by 
financing renewable and carbon -free power purchase agreements as part of the Clean Energy Project. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

 
Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion  3 

F-3 

Second Party Opinion 
 
Issuer: California Community Choice Financing Authority 

Issue Description: Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-1 (Green Bonds) 

Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-2 (Green Bonds) 

Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds Series 2022A-3 (Green Bonds) 

Project: Clean Energy Project (East Bay Community Energy) 

Green Standard: Green Bond Principles 

Green Category: Renewable Energy 

Par:  $1,000,000,000* 

Evaluation Date: [_________], 2022 

*Preliminary, subject to change 

 

GREEN BONDS DESIGNATION 
Kestrel Verifiers, an Approved Verifier accredited by the Climate Bonds Initiative, conducted an independent 
external review of these bonds to evaluate conformance with the Green Bond Principles (June 2021) 
established by the International Capital Market Association. 

This Second Party Opinion reflects our review of the uses and allocation of proceeds and oversight and 
conformance of the bonds with the Green Bond Principles. In our opinion, the Clean Energy Project Revenue 
Bonds Series 2022A-1 (Green Bonds), Series 2022A-2 (Green Bonds) and Series 2022A-3 (Green Bonds) 
(“Bonds”) to be issued by the conduit entity California Community Choice Financing Agency for the benefit 
of one community choice aggregator, East Bay Community Energy, are aligned with the four core 
components of the Green Bond Principles and qualify for Green Bonds designation. 

ABOUT THE ISSUER 
The Issuer, California Community Choice Financing Agency (“CCCFA”), is a joint powers authority 
established in 2021 and is comprised of community choice aggregators including its founding members: 
East Bay Community Energy, Silicon Valley Clean Energy, Marin Clean Energy, and Central Coast 
Community Energy. CCCFA was incorporated and organized for a variety of purposes, including to issue 
tax-advantaged bonds to finance energy prepayments of clean energy. This innovative strategy can help 
community choice aggregators remain cost-competitive with other utilities.  

ABOUT THE BORROWER 
East Bay Community Energy is the beneficiary of the Bonds issued by CCCFA. It is a community choice 
aggregator and operates as a joint powers authority and nonprofit public agency. Community choice 
aggregators are locally controlled not-for-profit energy providers. The primary purpose is to provide 
communities with more clean energy options, meet climate action goals, ensure local transparency and 
accountability, and drive economic development. As of 2021, ten states have authorized community choice 
aggregators. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion  4 
F-4 

East Bay Community Energy  
East Bay Community Energy (“EBCE”) was formed in 2016 with the purpose of implementing the region’s 
community choice aggregation program. EBCE is governed by a Board of Directors with one representative 
from each participating jurisdiction and includes a non-voting member from the Community Advisory 
Committee. The Community Advisory Committee serves as a liaison between local community stakeholders 
and the Board.  

The primary objectives of EBCE are to provide lower-cost electric service than PG&E (the region’s primary 
electricity provider); reduce greenhouse gas emissions (“GHGs”) resulting from electricity use within 
Alameda and San Joaquin Counties; stimulate local renewable energy development; promote energy 
efficiency and demand reduction programs; drive greater investments into electrification of transportation 
and building infrastructure, prioritize equitable energy programs, and sustain long-term rate stability for 
residents and businesses through local control. 

Currently, EBCE provides electricity for approximately 1,700,000 residents and business in 15 communities 
in the County of Alameda and San Joaquin County. Customers may choose from three service options: 

 Renewable 100: 100% renewable California solar and wind power 
 Brilliant 100: Carbon-free plan, which is a mix of eligible renewable and hydropower1   
 Bright Choice: Minimum 41% renewable in 20212 

EBCE recently made a commitment to 100% clean energy by 2030, while continuing to emphasize 
investment in their community and local programs. The first few years of service have significantly reduced 
electricity bills for customers compared to what they would have paid on bills to PG&E. EBCE budgets 
annually to support local energy programs and regularly invests in local programs related to STEM, arts, 
athletics, and community needs.  

ALIGNMENT TO GREEN STANDARDS 
Green Bonds are any type of bond instrument where the proceeds will be exclusively applied to finance or 
re-finance, in part or in full, new and/or existing eligible Green Projects and which are aligned with the four 
core components of the Green Bond Principles (International Capital Market Association definition). 

Use of Proceeds 
The Bonds will be used to finance prepayment of renewable and carbon-
free electricity for the benefit of EBCE (the “CCA”). Proceeds will also 
finance capitalized interest and costs of issuance. The acquisition for the 
supply of approximately 30 years of energy for the CCA is referred to as 
the Clean Energy Project. The Clean Energy Project is an eligible project 
as defined by the Green Bond Principles in the project category of 
Renewable Energy.   

Transaction Structure 
The structure of the transaction allows the CCA to use tax-exempt financing opportunities to reduce the 
cost of energy procurement for participating customers. The Bonds present a model for the 24 other CCAs 
in California to follow and to further expand access to low-cost renewables for both residential and 
commercial customers. Further details on the financing structure are discussed in the Official Statement. 

The Clean Energy Project 
The Bonds will finance the procurement of long-term electricity supply at competitive prices for EBCE over 
two time periods: years 1-3 and years 4-30. The anticipated composition of power supplies acquired with 
proceeds of the Bonds is available in Table 1. Existing or prospective Power Purchase Agreements (“PPAs”) 
may be assigned to the prepayment and multiple PPAs may fulfill the agreements to supply energy over the 
defined terms. During the initial 1-3 year period, and at the time of bond pricing, the CCA will have entered 
into PPAs which will be assigned into the prepayment.  In the case of EBCE, the PPA will deliver a fixed 

 
1 All customers will transition off Brilliant 100 service by January 2022. 
2 Ramping up to 100% greenhouse gas free by 2030. 

Green Standard 

 
Eligible Project Category: 
 Renewable Energy 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion  5 
F-5 

annual quantity of energy supplied by specified wind and/or hydroelectric sources.  Under the terms of the 
PPAs, during the Year 1-3 period, the CCA is procuring annual quantities that are 100% carbon-free (but in 
neither instance are the CCAs procuring Renewable Energy Credits (RECs)).  

Table 1. Anticipated overall power content of PPAs under the Clean Energy Project 

Bond-Financed 
Activity 

Type Term 

Prepay for East Bay 
Community Energy 

Wind and/or Hydroelectric 1 – 3 
years 

Prepay for East Bay 
Community Energy 

Renewable and/or carbon-free PPAs 4 – 30 
years 

 
The CCA has committed to achieving a 100% renewable portfolio in 30 years and the proceeds will be 
allocated in alignment with these commitments. Both the Series 2022A-1 Bonds, the Series 2022A-2 Bonds 
and Series 2022A-3 Bonds will finance the Clean Energy Project.  

In the event that PPAs are not able to be assigned to the prepayment in the future (during all or part of the 
Year 4-30 period), the CCA will likely continue to purchase power under their existing procurement 
arrangement outside of the prepayment transaction) and may continue to receive the benefit of the discount 
from the prepayment under contractual remediation provisions.   

Process for Project Evaluation and Selection 
The CCA (EBCE) has adopted planning documents that ensure bond-financed activities align with its mission 
and guide decisions around PPAs assigned to prepayment contracts for the Bonds. EBCE has adopted 
Integrated Resource Plans (IRPs) which are primary planning documents that outline long-term priorities 
and strategies. IRP’s are mandated under SB 350 and are required every two years. IRPs are critical to 
energy resource selection and are integral to the evaluation and selection of PPAs to be associated with the 
Bonds. All California Public Utilities Commission jurisdictional load serving entities are required to submit 
an IRP to the CPUC for approval based on standardized methodologies. IRPs establish policy goals and 
evaluate resource choices to ensure CCAs are meeting statewide requirements for greenhouse gas emission 
reduction targets within the power sector and grid reliability mandates. In addition to IRPs, the CCA has 
additional priorities and processes established to fulfill its respective mission and provide oversight on the 
activities financed by the Bonds.  

East Bay Community Energy 
Bond proceeds support East Bay Community Energy’s commitment to innovative renewable energy projects 
and providing clean energy electricity options to local service areas. As discussed above, EBCE’s Integrated 
Resource Plan (2020) is the adopted plan that guides EBCE’s process for project selection and evaluation.3 
In line with the analysis and results in the Integrated Resource Plan (2020), EBCE’s 15-member Board of 
Directors committed to a 100% clean, carbon-free energy goal by 2030 and pursue a diverse energy portfolio 
consisting of solar energy, wind energy, hydropower, and more. EBCE holds regular Community Advisory 
Committee meetings that are open to the public. The Community Advisory Committee provides input on 
economic, environmental, and social impacts of EBCE projects on customers and communities. EBCE 
utilizes an internal scoring rubric, which considers financial risk and energy pricing benefits, project 
development risk, and local workforce development to guide decision-making around PPA authorization. 
EBCE’s Board ultimately approves PPAs. 

California Community Choice Financing Authority  
As a conduit entity, CCCFA holds the rights over financing and refinancing of the energy prepayment through 
tax-advantaged bonds and is not responsible for selecting or negotiating PPAs for specific members such as 
EBCE. CCCFA holds responsibility for this financing through the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act and 

 
3 East Bay Community Energy 2020 Integrated Resource Plan (Public Version), https://res.cloudinary.com/diactiwk7/image/upload/ 

fl_sanitize,q_auto/r2005003-public-verison-ebce-2020-irp-9-1-2020.pdf  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

https://res.cloudinary.com/diactiwk7/image/upload/fl_sanitize,q_auto/r2005003-public-verison-ebce-2020-irp-9-1-2020.pdf
https://res.cloudinary.com/diactiwk7/image/upload/fl_sanitize,q_auto/r2005003-public-verison-ebce-2020-irp-9-1-2020.pdf


 

Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion  6 
F-6 

is obligated to confirm eligibility of financed activities with an authorized list which includes purchase of 
energy with environmental attributes, facility improvements, provisions of working capital, and other 
renewable programs. Limits to the allowable uses of proceeds provide additional legal assurance that 
proceeds will be used for activities with positive environmental impacts. CCCFA is governed by a Board 
of Directors who have expertise in public utilities finance, clean energy policy, and sustainable energy 
projects, and are primarily responsible for CCCFA’s general management, business affairs, project 
oversight.  

Management of Proceeds 
Proceeds from the Bonds will solely be allocated to finance prepayment for renewable energy and carbon-
free energy, pay capitalized interest, and pay costs of issuance. Upon closing, CCCFA will immediately 
acquire a 30-year supply of renewable and carbon-free electricity through the energy supplier, Morgan 
Stanley Energy Structuring, L.L.C., for the sole benefit of EBCE. While proceeds delivered to Morgan Stanley 
Energy Structuring, L.L.C. will be comingled with other funds before payment to energy suppliers, the total 
amount is required to be paid to acquire eligible green energy supplies. In Kestrel’s view, this management 
of proceeds through a third party retains alignment with market standards and enables the expansion of 
renewable and carbon-free energy contracts. Ultimately, this transaction structure enables the financing of 
the acquisition of renewable and carbon-free electricity and is an exemplary, cost-saving model for CCAs 
to follow.   

Reporting 
CCCFA will submit annual continuing disclosures to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) 
through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system so long as the Bonds are outstanding.  

The CCAs intend to provide voluntary disclosures on the new and existing PPAs being assigned to the 
prepayment contracts, and provide information on the associated greenhouse gas emission reductions in 
accordance with calculation methodologies specified by the California Public Utilities Commission or other 
regulations.  

In California, CCAs such as EBCE, are considered Electric Load-Serving Entities and are therefore subject 
to specific reporting requirements, renewable portfolio standards, and reliability standards set forth by the 
California Public Utilities Commission and the California Energy Commission. EBCE regularly submits 
Integrated Resource Plans to the California Public Utilities Commission, which provide updates on the 
progress of CCAs toward meeting statewide requirements for greenhouse gas emission reduction targets 
within the electricity sector. As required by California Public Utilities Commission, the CCAs also report 
annually on the power content, or power mix, of the energy supplied to customers. Beginning in 2021, 
power content reporting will also include greenhouse gas emissions. These reports are available on California 
Energy Commission’s website: https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/power-source-
disclosure/power-content-label/annual-power-content-0 

IMPACT AND ALIGNMENT WITH UN SDGS 
Bond-financed activities support and advance the vision of the UN SDGs. A comprehensive list of targets 
and background on UN SDGs 7, 9, 11, and 13 are available on the United Nations website:  
www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment 

The Clean Energy Project financed by the Bonds, including prepayment of clean energy, support Targets 
7.1, 7.2, 9.4, and 11.6. The prepayment of renewable electricity for EBCE customers increases renewable 
energy supply and thus aligns with Targets 7.1, 7.2, and 9.1. The Clean Energy Project features renewable 
energy alternatives to avoid greenhouse gas emissions, which advances Target 13.2. CCCFA supports 
Target 9.4 by financing carbon-free energy to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and create clean energy 
production. The increased use of carbon-free and renewable energy helps improve air quality and thus 
supports Target 11.6. Target definitions are included in Appendix A.  

 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/power-source-disclosure/power-content-label/annual-power-content-0
https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/power-source-disclosure/power-content-label/annual-power-content-0
http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/


 

Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion  7 
F-7 

 

Affordable and Clean Energy (Target 7.1, 7.2) 

Possible Indicators 
 Renewable energy share in the total final energy consumption  
 Renewable energy produced  
 Metric tons of greenhouse gas emissions avoided 
 Number of people with access to renewable and carbon-free energy services  
 

  

  
  

 

Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure (Target 9.1, 9.4) 

Possible Indicators 
 CO2 emission per unit of value added  
 Reduction in fossil fuel use as a result of bond projects  
 Total renewable and carbon-free energy produced and distributed  

  

 

Sustainable Cities and Communities (Target 11.6) 

Possible Indicators 
 Annual mean levels of fine particulate matter in cities reduced  
 Metric tons of greenhouse gas emissions avoided 

  

 

Climate Action (Target 13.2) 

Possible Indicators 
 Metric tons of greenhouse gas emissions avoided 

CONCLUSION 
Based on our independent external review, the Bonds conform, in all material respects, with the Green Bond 
Principles (2021) and are in complete alignment with the Renewable Energy eligible project category. The 
Clean Energy Project is uniquely positioned to expand affordable access to renewable and carbon-free energy 
through community choice aggregators in California. 

 

© 2021 Kestrel 360, Inc. 

ABOUT KESTREL VERIFIERS 
For 20 years Kestrel has been a trusted consultant in sustainable finance. 
Kestrel Verifiers, a division of Kestrel 360, Inc. is a Climate Bonds Initiative 
Approved Verifier qualified to verify transactions in all asset classes 
worldwide. Kestrel is a US-based certified Women’s Business Enterprise. 

For more information, visit www.kestrelverifiers.com  

DISCLAIMER 
This Opinion aims to explain how and why the discussed financing meets the ICMA Green Bond Principles 
based on the information which was available to us during the time of this engagement (August 2021) only. 
By providing this Opinion, Kestrel Verifiers is not certifying the materiality of the projects financed by the 
Green Bonds. It was beyond Kestrel Verifiers’ scope of work to review for regulatory compliance and no 
surveys or site visits were conducted. Furthermore, we are not responsible for surveillance on the project 
or use of proceeds. Kestrel Verifiers relied on information provided by CCCFA and/or the CCAs and publicly 
available information. The Opinion delivered by Kestrel Verifiers does not address financial performance of 
the Green Bonds or the effectiveness of allocation of its proceeds. This Opinion does not make any 
assessment of the creditworthiness of CCCFA and/or the CCAs or the ability to pay principal and interest 
when due. This is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds. Kestrel Verifiers is not liable for 
consequences when third parties use this Opinion either to make investment decisions or to undertake any 
other business transactions. This Opinion may not be altered without the written consent of Kestrel Verifiers. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K

http://www.kestrelverifiers.com/


 

Kestrel Verifiers | Second Party Opinion  8 
F-8 

Kestrel Verifiers reserves the right to revoke or withdraw this Opinion at any time. Kestrel Verifiers certifies 
that there is no affiliation, involvement, financial or non-financial interest in CCCFA, CCAs, or the projects 
discussed. Language in the offering disclosure supersedes any language included in this Second Party 
Opinion. 

Use of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goal (SDG) logo and icons does not imply United Nations 
endorsement of the products, services or bond-financed activities. The logo and icons are not being used 
for promotion or financial gain. Rather, use of the logo and icons is primarily illustrative, to communicate 
SDG-related activities. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

F-9 

Appendix A. 
UN SDG TARGET DEFINITIONS  

 

Target 7.1 
By 2030, ensure universal access to affordable, reliable and modern energy services 
 
Target 7.2 
By 2030 increase the share of renewable energy in the global energy mix  
 
Target 9.1 
Develop quality, reliable, sustainable and resilient infrastructure, including regional and trans-border 
infrastructure, to support economic development and human well-being, with a focus on affordable and 
equitable access for all 
 
Target 9.4 
By 2030, upgrade infrastructure and retrofit industries to make them sustainable, with increased resource-
use efficiency and greater adoption of clean and environmentally sound technologies and industrial 
processes, with all countries taking action in accordance with their respective capabilities  
 
Target 11.6 
By 2030, reduce the adverse per capita environmental impact of cities, including by paying special attention 
to air quality and municipal and other waste management 
 
Target 13.2 
Integrate climate change measures into national policies, strategies and planning 
 

 
 
 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

G-1 

APPENDIX G 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository 
for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  One fully-registered bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the 
aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.  If, however, the aggregate 
principal amount of any maturity of the Bonds exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with 
respect to each $500 million of principal amount and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to 
any remaining principal amount of such maturity. 

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under 
the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, 
a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York 
Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from 
over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates 
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 
accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants 
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust 
& Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC 
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others 
such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly 
or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules 
applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information 
about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 
will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of 
each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as 
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished 
by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in 
the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

G-2 

by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name 
of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. 

DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only 
the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be 
the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account 
of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements 
as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to 
augment transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as 
redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For example, Beneficial 
Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to 
obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide 
their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of the notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity of the 
Bonds are being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct 
Participant in such maturity to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to CCCFA of securities as soon as possible after the record 
date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts such Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds and payments of principal and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & 
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice 
is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 
from CCCFA or the Trustee on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on 
DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions 
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or 
registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, CCCFA or 
the Trustee, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
Payment of redemption proceeds and principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of CCCFA or the Trustee, 
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement 
of such payments to Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by 
giving reasonable notice to CCCFA or the Trustee.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor 
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

G-3 

CCCFA may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or 
a successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered 
to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained 
from sources that CCCFA believes to be reliable, but CCCFA takes no responsibility for the accuracy 
thereof. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

H-1 

APPENDIX H 
 

REDEMPTION PRICE OF THE BONDS 

The following table sets forth the Redemption Price of the Bonds (being the Amortized Value of 
the Series 2022A-1 Bonds and 100% of the principal amount of the Index Rate Bonds, but excluding 
accrued interest which is payable from the amounts required to be on deposit in the Debt Service Account) 
upon an extraordinary mandatory redemption following an Early Termination Payment Date under the 
Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement, as of the redemption dates shown below during the Initial Interest Rate 
Period. 

REDEMPTION DATE REDEMPTION PRICE 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

I-1 

APPENDIX I 
 

SCHEDULE OF TERMINATION PAYMENTS 

The Termination Payment for any Early Termination Payment Date will be the amount set forth on 
the attached table in the column corresponding to the month in which the Early Termination Date occurs, 
plus the product of (a) the Contract Quantity for such Month, minus the quantity of Energy required to have 
been delivered in such Month prior to the effectiveness of such Early Termination Date, multiplied by 
(b) the result of (i) the applicable Fixed Price(s) for Energy (as defined in the CCCFA Commodity Swap), 
minus (ii) the Specified Discount then in effect. 

MONTH OF EARLY TERMINATION TERMINATION PAYMENT 

  

  

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

J-1 

APPENDIX J 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING SOFR INDEX RATE BONDS 

SECURED OVERNIGHT FINANCING RATE (SOFR) OVERVIEW 

According to the NY Federal Reserve’s Website, in 2014, the Federal Reserve convened the 
Alternative Reference Rates Committee (ARRC) and tasked the group with identifying an alternative to 
U.S. dollar LIBOR that was a robust, IOSCO compliant, transaction based derived from a deep and liquid 
market.  In 2017, the ARRC fulfilled this mandate by selecting the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, or 
“SOFR.”  SOFR is based on overnight transactions in the U.S. dollar Treasury repo market, the largest rates 
market at given maturity in the world.  National working groups in other jurisdictions have similarly 
identified overnight nearly risk free rates (RFRs) like SOFR as their preferred alternatives. 

SOFR has a number of characteristics that LIBOR and other similar rates based on wholesale term 
unsecured funding markets do not, including (a) SOFR is a rate produced by the Federal Reserve Bank of 
New York for the public good, (b) SOFR is derived from an active and well defined market with sufficient 
depth to make it extraordinarily difficult to ever manipulate or influence, (c) SOFR is produced in a 
transparent, direct manner and is based on observable transactions, rather than being dependent on 
estimates, like LIBOR, or derived through models, and (d) SOFR is derived from a market that was able to 
weather the global financial crisis and that the ARRC credibly believes will remain active enough in order 
that it can reliability be produced in a wide range of market conditions. 

SOFR is published on a daily basis by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in cooperation with 
the Office of Financial Research, and reflects the cost of overnight borrowing and lending in the U.S. 
Treasury repo market.  Borrowing in this market reflects the best measure of the private sector risk free 
rate, because it is collateralized with U.S. Treasury securities, which the lender returns once the borrower 
returns the cash borrowed.  SOFR is a fully transaction based rate and has the widest coverage of any 
Treasury repo rate available, incorporating tri party repo data, the Fixed Income Clearing Corporation’s 
(FICC) GCF Repo data, and the bilateral Treasury repo transactions cleared for FICC.  Throughout 2020, 
the average daily volume of transactions underlying SOFR was close to $1 trillion, representing the largest 
rates market at any given tenor in the United States. 

Because of its range of coverage, SOFR is a good representation of general funding conditions in 
the overnight Treasury repo market.  As such, it reflects an economic cost of lending and borrowing relevant 
to the wide array of market participants active in these markets, including not only broker dealers, but also 
money market funds, asset managers, insurance companies, securities lenders, and the range pension funds. 

SOFR is calculated as a volume weighted median of transaction level data observed over the course 
of a business day and is published on the NY Federal Reserve’s Website at approximately 8:00 a.m. ET on 
the next business day.  Looked at another way, SOFR is published on the day that overnight repo transaction 
is to be repaid, rather than on the day that transaction is entered into.  This publication schedule is due to 
the need to receive and fully vet the large amounts of data underlying SOFR before the rate is published.  
SOFR is published for the business days that the Treasury repo market is open on, which are generally U.S. 
government securities secondary market trading days as determined by SIFMA. 

Although SOFR is published at about 8:00 a.m. ET, if any errors are subsequently discovered in 
the transaction data in the calculation process that underlies it, or if any missing data subsequently became 
available, then SOFR may be republished on the same day.  In such cases, the affected rate may be 
republished at approximately 2:30 p.m. ET.  Rate Revisions will only be affected on the same day as initial 
publication and will only be republished if the change in the rate exceeds one basis point. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

J-2 

SOFR EFFECTIVE PERIOD 

SOFR may vary each SOFR Effective Date and will be applicable for each SOFR Effective Period.  
To illustrate how SOFR would be utilized in a SOFR Effective Period, below is an illustration of a portion 
of actual January 2022 SOFR rates as published on the NY Federal Reserve’s Website.  SOFR is shown as 
of each SOFR Lookback Date, or three Business Days immediately preceding the SOFR Effective Date, 
and are the values used to determine the SOFR Index Rate and related interest expense for the SOFR 
Effective Period beginning with each SOFR Effective Date shown below: 

SOFR EFFECTIVE DATE 
DAYS IN SOFR 

EFFECTIVE PERIOD(1) SOFR LOOKBACK DATE SOFR(2) 

Monday, January 3, 2022 1 day Wednesday, December 29, 2021 0.050 
Tuesday, January 4, 2022 1 day Thursday, December 30, 2021 0.050 

Wednesday, January 5, 2022 1 day Friday, December 31, 2021 0.050 
Thursday, January 6, 2022 1 day Monday, January 3, 2022 0.050 

Friday, January 7, 2022 3 days Tuesday, January 4, 2022 0.050 
Monday, January 10, 2022 1 day Wednesday, January 5, 2022 0.050 
[Remainder of SOFR Effective Periods in January 2022 intentionally omitted – see below for more detail] 
Friday, January 28, 2022 3 days Tuesday, January 25, 2022 0.050 

______________________________ 
(1) Actual days elapsed from each SOFR Effective Date to the following SOFR Effective Date. 
(2) Source: https://www.newyorkfed.org/markets/reference-rates/sofr. 

 

SOFR INTEREST CALCULATION 

The Calculation Agent will calculate and provide to CCCFA the amount of interest due and payable 
on each monthly Interest Payment Date for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds on the last Business Day of each 
Month (the “SOFR Interest Calculation Date”).  On each SOFR Interest Calculation Date, the Calculation 
Agent will determine the amount of interest due over the period from (but not including) the Initial Issue 
Date or the preceding SOFR Interest Calculation Date to and including such SOFR Interest Calculation 
Date (the “SOFR Accrual Period”), and payable in arrears on each SOFR Interest Payment Date.  With 
respect to the first SOFR Interest Calculation Date, interest will accrue from and including the Initial Issue 
Date. 

Below is an illustration demonstrating the SOFR Index Rate reset mechanics as well as the 
mechanics for which interest will be calculated on a SOFR Interest Calculation Date: 

       

  
 

SOFR Accrual Period 
Number of SOFR Effective Periods 
from the preceding SOFR Interest 

Calculation Date up to and 
including such SOFR Interest 

Calculation Date. 

SOFR Interest Calculation Date 
Calculation Agent determines 

monthly interest based on SOFR 
Index Rate for each SOFR 

Effective Period during the SOFR 
Accrual Period, payable in arrears. 

SOFR Interest Payment Date 
Payment for preceding SOFR 

Accrual Period due to bondholders 
one Business Day after SOFR 

Interest Calculation Date. 

Number SOFR Effective Periods during SOFR Accrual Period 

First Business Day 
Month A 

Last Business Day 
Month A 

First Business Day 
Month B 

[E
A

C
H

 A
 S

O
FR

 E
FF

EC
TI

V
E 

PE
R

IO
D

] 
 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

J-3 

 

Interest on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds will be calculated using simple interest.  Simple interest is a 
long standing convention where the additional amount of interest owed each day is calculated by applying 
the daily rate of interest to principal borrowed and the payment due at the end of the period is the sum of 
those amounts.  Simple interest does not consider the time value of money.  SOFR is a compounded interest 
rate, however for purposes of determining interest on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds, SOFR will be applied to 
calculate simple interest on the unpaid principal amount of the Series 2022A-3 Bonds.   Specifically, for 
the Series 2022A-3 Bonds, interest for each SOFR Effective Period (one or more days to include weekends 
and/or holidays) will be calculated as follows: 

Interest SOFR Effective Period = Principal x SOFR Index Rate SOFR Effective Period x Actual Days in SOFR Effective Period 
 
On the SOFR Interest Payment Date, the total amount of interest owed is the sum of the amount of 

interest owed for each SOFR Effective Period during the SOFR Accrual Period.  Specifically, each SOFR 
Accrual Period will be comprised of several SOFR Effective Periods from the first Business Day up to and 
including the last Business Day of the month.  Interest will accrue on the Series 2022A-3 Bonds from (but 
excluding) the preceding SOFR Interest Calculation Date up to and including the SOFR Interest Calculation 
Date for which interest is being calculated.  Specifically, for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds, interest on each 
SOFR Interest Calculation Date will be calculated as follows: 

Interest SOFR Accrual Period = ∑(Interest  First Business Day SOFR Effective Period + Interest n SOFR Effective Periods + Interest Last Business Day SOFR Effective Period) 

 
Where n SOFR Effective Periods is the number of SOFR Effective Periods between the first 

Business Day and last Business day of each month during a SOFR Accrual Period.  Interest will be paid to 
bondholders, in arrears, one Business Day following the SOFR Interest Calculation Date, or the first 
Business Day of the following month. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



 

J-4 

ILLUSTRATIVE JANUARY 2022 SOFR ACCRUAL PERIOD 

For informational purposes and to provide validation on calculation methodology being used for the Series 2022A-3 Bonds, a calculation of 
hypothetical interest that would have been owed on such Series 2022A-3 Bonds during January 2022 utilizing actual SOFR rates from January 2022 
is provided below.  NOTE THESE ARE HYPOTHETICAL VALUES THAT ARE FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY. 

ILLUSTRATIVE JANUARY 2022 SOFR ACCRUAL PERIOD 

SOFR 
Effective Date 

SOFR 
Effective 

Day 

SOFR 
Lookback 

Date 

SOFR 
Lookback 

Day SOFR(1) 
Applicable 

Factor 
Applicable 

Spread SOFR Index 

Days in 
SOFR 

Effective 
Period(2) 

Actual 
Days in 

Year 
Principal 

Outstanding Interest Due 
A    B C D E=BxC+D F G H E x (F/G) x H 
1/3/2022 Mon 12/29/2021 Wed 0.050    1 365   
1/4/2022 Tues 12/30/2021 Thurs 0.050    1 365   
1/5/2022 Wed 12/31/2021 Fri 0.050    1 365   
1/6/2022 Thu 1/3/2022 Mon 0.050    1 365   
1/7/2022 Fri 1/4/2022 Tues 0.050    3 365   

1/10/2022 Mon 1/5/2022 Wed 0.050    1 365   
1/11/2022 Tues 1/6/2022 Thurs 0.050    1 365   
1/12/2022 Wed 1/7/2022 Fri 0.050    1 365   
1/13/2022 Thu 1/10/2022 Mon 0.050    1 365   
1/14/2022 Fri 1/11/2022 Tues 0.050    4 365   
1/18/2022 Tues 1/12/2022 Wed 0.050    1 365   
1/19/2022 Wed 1/13/2022 Thurs 0.050    1 365   
1/20/2022 Thu 1/14/2022 Fri 0.050    1 365   
1/21/2022 Fri 1/18/2022 Tues 0.050    1 365   
1/24/2022 Mon 1/19/2022 Wed 0.050    3 365   
1/25/2022 Tues 1/20/2022 Thurs 0.040    1 365   
1/26/2022 Wed 1/21/2022 Fri 0.050    1 365   
1/27/2022 Thu 1/24/2022 Mon 0.040    1 365   
1/28/2022 Fri 1/25/2022 Tues 0.050    3 365   
1/31/2022 Mon 1/26/2022 Wed 0.040    1 365   

 
(1) Source: https://www.newyorkfed.org/markets/reference-rates/sofr 
(2) Actual days elapsed from the each SOFR Effective Date to the next SOFR Effective Date. 
(3) The SOFR Interest Calculation Date is the last Business Day of each month 
(4) Interest payable in arrears on the first Business Day after the SOFR Interest Calculation Date, or the first Business Day of the following month. 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15K



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) 
Date: April 18, 2022 

To: Howard Chang 
Chief Operating Officer  
East Bay Community Energy Authority 
hchang@ebce.org 
(510) 809-7458 
 
Garth Salisbury 
Treasurer/Controller 
California Community Choice Financing Authority  
gsalisbury@mcecleanenergy.org 
(415) 464-6037 
 

 
 

From: Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (“Morgan Stanley”) 

Re: California Community Choice Financing Agency Prepay Transaction on behalf of the East Bay 
Community Energy  

Overview 

The California Community Choice Financing Agency (“CCCFA” or the “Issuer”) seeks to procure a 
30-year supply of energy, through the issuance of Clean Energy Project Revenue Bonds (the 
"Bonds") issued by CCCFA. The CCCFA will sell all of the Prepaid Energy acquired from this 
transaction to the East Bay Community Energy Authority (“EBCE” or “Project Participant”). 

Rating Agency Fees and Green Bond Opinion Fee 

Rating Agency Fees and expenses (“Rating Agency Fees”) are paid from the proceeds of the 
Bonds, with underwriting fees and expenses calculated as a discount on the par amount of Bonds.  
All fees, including Rating Agency Fees, are payable from the Bonds’ proceeds.  

In the event that the Bonds are not issued due to market conditions and there remains a Rating 
Agency Fee payable to the rating agencies, Morgan Stanley and CCCFA agree to split this Rating 
Agency Fees on an equal basis. If the Bonds are not issued due to the CCCFA or the Project 
Participant’s unwillingness or inability to proceed, other than due to an inability to hit a minimum 
established target discount, the Rating Agency Fees will be their sole responsibility. To the extent 
that CCCFA incurs any Rating Agency Fees if the bonds are not issued, the Project Participant 
agrees that it will be liable for any costs and make direct payment to Moody’s for such fees.   

In the event a Green Bond Second Opinion is obtained and the Bonds are not issued (unless the 
Bonds are not issued due to the CCCFA or the Project Participant’s unwillingness or inability to 
proceed, other than due to an inability to hit a minimum established target discount) or the Green 
Bond Second Opinion is not used, the fee payable to the Second Opinion provider (the “Green Bond 
Fees”) shall be incurred by Morgan Stanley and in such event, to the extent the Green Bond Fees 
were already paid by the Project Participant or by CCCFA, Morgan Stanley agrees to reimburse the 
Project Participant or CCCFA as appropriate.   

Morgan Stanley shall have no responsibility for any fees or expenses incurred by CCCFA or the 
Project Participant, or their agents, employees, advisors or counsel, in connection with the issuance 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15L



of the Bonds and the purchase of the Prepaid Energy, other than Rating Agency Fees and Green 
Bond Fees as described in this MOU and as further described in the Bond Purchase Agreement 
(as defined herein). 

Miscellaneous 

The CCCFA and Project Participant each acknowledge and agree that: (i) the transaction 
contemplated by this MOU is, in each case, an arm’s length, commercial transaction between the 
CCCFA and the Underwriter and the Energy Supplier, as applicable, in which the Underwriter and 
the Energy Supplier are each acting solely as a principal and not acting as a municipal advisor, 
financial advisor or fiduciary to the CCCFA or the Project Participant; and (ii) the CCCFA and 
Project Participant will consult their own legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as 
applicable, to the extent each has deemed appropriate.   

The CCCFA acknowledges and agrees that Morgan Stanley is not making a commitment to extend 
credit, make a loan or otherwise fund the Bonds beyond the obligations contained in a mutually 
satisfactory bond purchase agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”).  The CCCFA 
acknowledges that the services provided under this MOU involve professional judgment on 
Morgan Stanley’s part and that the results cannot be, and are not, guaranteed. 

Nothing contained herein shall preclude the Underwriter from carrying on its customary and usual 
business activities.  The Underwriter specifically reserves the right, but is not obligated, to bid for 
and maintain secondary markets on any of CCCFA’s outstanding bonds subject to appropriate 
information barriers.  Services provided by the Underwriter in connection with this MOU shall not 
limit the Underwriter from providing services for the CCCFA or the Project Participant in conjunction 
with other services requested by the CCCFA or Project Participant except as limited by rule of law 
or regulation. 

In connection with services agreed to herein, it is understood that the Underwriter will render 
professional services as an independent contractor.  Neither the Underwriter nor any of its agents 
or employees shall be deemed an employee of the CCCFA or the Project Participant for any 
purpose. 

Except as described in this paragraph, this MOU is intended to be, and shall be construed only as, 
a non-binding MOU, intent on summarizing and evidencing discussions between the CCCFA, the 
Project Participant, and Morgan Stanley as of the date hereof.  Except as described below, any 
legally binding obligation of the parties with respect to the transaction described herein shall exist 
only upon the execution and delivery of definitive agreements related thereto, into which this MOU 
and all prior discussions shall merge.  It is expressly understood that this MOU is not a contract to 
execute any definitive agreements or to otherwise consummate the transactions described herein.  
The parties will cooperate in negotiating definitive agreements providing for the transactions 
contemplated by this MOU, but each party reserves the right of final approval or disapproval, for 
any reason, of the documentation relating to such agreements.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
provisions above under the headings “Rating Agency Fees and Green Bond Opinion Fee” shall be 
binding upon the parties.   

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15L



Sincerely, 

 

 

___________________________ 

Grant Fraunfelder, Executive Director 
MORGAN STANLEY & CO. LLC 

 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 

EAST BAY COMMUNITY ENERGY 

 

By:___________________________ 

Name:________________________ 

Date:_________________________ 

 

CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY CHOICE FINANCING AUTHORITY  

 

By:___________________________ 

Name:________________________ 

Date:_________________________ 

  

 

 

 

Attachment Staff Report Item 15L


	1. BOD_Agenda_05182022v2
	6. Consent Item 6 - EBCE BOD minutes for 040722 and 042022 - corrected
	Consent Item 6A - EBCE Board of Directors Special Meeting 4-7-22 - corrected
	Consent Item 6B - EBCE Board of Directors Meeting 4-20-22 - corrected

	7. Consent Item 7 - AB 361
	Consent Item 7 - Staff Report Imminent Risk Findings AB 361. April 2022. Final
	Consent Item 7A - Governor's Emergency Proclamation (1)
	Consent Item 7B - Alameda County Local Health Emergency Resolution (2)

	8. Consent Item 8  - Contracts entered into. May 2022 Final
	9. Consent Item 9 - Amendement to Rate Setting Protocol (Action Item)
	Consent Item 9 - Memo - Amendment to Rate setting protocol
	Consent Item 9A - Reso - Amendment to Rate Setting Protocol
	Consent Item 9B - Amended Rate Setting Protocol. Policy 14.2. Final

	10. Consent Item 10 - Amendment to Procurement Policy (Action Item)
	Consent Item 10 - Memo - Amendment to Procurement Policy
	Consent Item 10A - Reso - Amendment to Procurement Policy
	Consent Item 10B - 1.8 Admin Procure Policy (redline)
	Table 1
	Table 2
	Table 3
	Table 4
	Table 5

	Consent Item 10C - 1.8 Admin Procure Policy (CLEAN)
	Table 1
	Table 2
	Table 3
	Table 4
	Table 5


	11. Item 11 - CEO Report for 051822
	13. Item 13 - Legislative Positions (Action Item)
	Item 13 - Legislative Positions
	Item 13A1 - AB 2765 Fact Sheet
	Item 13A2 - SB 1020 Fact Sheet
	Item 13B - Leg Update - 05-18-2022
	Legislative�Update
	Legislative Highlights
	Key Deadlines for the 2022 Legislative Year
	Recommended Bill Positions
	Funding Programs Through Taxes Instead of Rates
	Why is it important?  Equity.
	Why is it important?  Electrification.
	Bill Tracker - Assembly
	Bill Tracker - Senate
	Next Steps


	14. Item 14 - Draft EBCE Budget FY 2022-2023
	Item 14 - Memo-Draft Budget FY2022-2023_FINAL
	Item 14A - DRAFT BUDGET FY2022-2023 PRESENTATION--MAY--BOD_FINAL
	Draft Budget Review for Fiscal Year 2022-2023
	Executive Summary 
	Summary Draft Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022
	Draft Budget Base Case Assumptions
	Draft Budget Proposed Surplus Allocations
	Energy Price Risk Scenarios
	Draft Budget Energy/Rate/PCIA Scenarios
	Energy Prices and Risk Bands (P5-P95)
	Draft Budget Operating Revenues
	COMPARISON OF CCA RATES OVER TIME 
	Value Proposition Changes
	Draft Budget Energy Expenses
	Draft Budget Overhead Expenses
	Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Personnel
	Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Marketing & Account Services
	Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Legal, Policy, & Regulatory Affairs
	Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—Other Professional Services
	Draft Budget Overhead Expenses—General & Administrative
	Draft Budget Non-Operating Activity
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Draft Budget: Local Development Fund
	Transportation Electrification
	Charging Infrastructure Deployment
	Electric Vehicle and eMobility Innovation Fund
	Community Resilience
	Energy Efficiency
	Building Electrification
	Community Grants
	Thank You!


	15. Item 15 - Energy Prepay Transaction #2
	Item 15 - Memo - Prepay Transaction #2 Request for Approval
	Item 15A - Reso - Prepay Transaction #2 Request for Approval
	1. Power Supply Contract between EBCE and the Issuer;
	2. Custodial Agreement by and among EBCE, Morgan Stanley Capital Group Inc., a Delaware corporation (“MSCG”), the Prepaid Supplier, the Issuer and the custodian to be named therein;
	3. Form of Limited Assignment Agreement, by and among EBCE, the counterparty to the power purchase agreement described therein, and MSCG;
	4. Letter Agreement among EBCE, the Prepaid Supplier and MSCG regarding matters relating to Assignment Agreements; and
	5. Prepaid Energy Project Administration Agreement, by and between EBCE and the Issuer; and
	WHEREAS, there have also been made available to the Board of Directors of EBCE forms of the following additional documents relating to the Project:
	1. Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”) between the Issuer and the trustee to be named therein, providing for, among other things, the issuance of and security for the Bonds;
	2. Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement (the “Prepaid Agreement”) between the Issuer and the Prepaid Supplier, providing for the delivery of the prepaid energy supply to the Issuer;
	3. Re-pricing Agreement (the “Re-pricing Agreement”) between the Issuer and the Prepaid Supplier providing for the remarketing or refunding of the Bonds from time to time and the establishment of the Monthly Discount available to EBCE under the Power ...
	4. Preliminary Official Statement (the “Preliminary Official Statement”), to be used in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds, including the information relating to EBCE included in Appendix A thereto (the Indenture, the Prepaid Agreement...

	Item 15B - Presentation - Prepay Transaction #2 Request for Approval
	Energy Prepay Transaction �#2 Request for Approval
	Proposed Follow-on Prepay Transaction
	Prepay Overview 
	Prepay Sizing and Discount
	EBCE Prepay Parties
	Documents Overview: EBCE Signs
	Documents Overview: CCCFA Signs
	Documents Overview: Other
	Requested Approval
	Appendix
	Existing Prepay Overview 
	Prepay Structure
	Market Statistics
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Key Risks

	Item 15C - 18. MS-EBCE 2022 - EBCE Power Supply Contract, 4878-8788-9432_4
	Article I  Definitions
	Section 1.1 Defined Terms
	Section 1.2 Definitions; Interpretation

	Article II  Execution Date and Delivery Period; Nature of Energy Project
	Section 2.1 Execution Date; Delivery Period
	Section 2.2 Termination Due to Failure to Issue Bonds or Provide Minimum Discount
	Section 2.3 Nature of Energy Project
	Section 2.4 Pledge of this Agreement

	Article III  Sale and Purchase
	Section 3.1 Sale and Purchase of Energy
	Section 3.2 Pricing
	(a) For each MWh of Energy delivered to Purchaser, Purchaser shall pay Issuer the applicable Contract Price.  With respect to each MWh delivered under this Agreement, “Contract Price” means:
	(b) Issuer shall bill and Purchaser shall pay in January of each year during the Delivery Period a “Project Administration Fee” equal to the result of (x) $[75,000.00] minus the balance of the Administrative Fee Fund (as defined in the Bond Indenture)...
	(c) During the term of this Agreement, promptly following completion of the annual audit of Issuer’s financial statements at the end of each fiscal year (currently the twelve-month period ending December 31), Issuer shall compare its revenues (as dete...

	Section 3.3 No Obligation to Take Base Energy
	Section 3.4 Reset Period Remarketing
	(a) Reset Period Notice.  For each Reset Period, Issuer shall provide to Purchaser, at least ten (10) days prior to the Remarketing Election Deadline, formal written notice setting forth (i) the duration of such Reset Period, (ii) the Estimated Availa...
	(b) Remarketing Election.  If the Reset Period Notice (or any update thereto) indicates that the Available Discount in such notice is not at least equal to the Minimum Discount for that Reset Period, then: (i) a “Potential Remarketing Event” shall be ...
	(c) Final Determination of Available Discount.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that the final Available Discount for any Reset Period following the Initial Reset Period will be determined on the applicable Re-Pricing Date (as defined in the Re-Pric...
	(i) the Available Discount for any Reset Period will not be less than the Minimum Discount applicable to such Reset Period, unless Issuer has provided notice of a Potential Remarketing Event to Purchaser in accordance with  Section 3.4(b); and
	(ii) if Purchaser receives notice of a Potential Remarketing Event and has not provided a Remarketing Election Notice prior to the applicable Remarketing Election Deadline, Purchaser shall be deemed to have elected to continue to purchase and receive ...

	(d) Resumption of Deliveries.  Notwithstanding the issuance of any Remarketing Election Notice for a Reset Period, Purchaser will (i) remain obligated to purchase the Contract Quantities hereunder for each subsequent Reset Period, unless Purchaser iss...
	(e) Reduction of Contract Quantity.  The Parties recognize and agree that the Contract Quantity may be reduced in a Reset Period pursuant to the re-pricing methodology described in the Re-Pricing Agreement if necessary to achieve a successful remarket...


	Article IV  Failure to Deliver or Take Energy
	Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, neither Purchaser nor Issuer shall have any liability or other obligation to one another for any failure to Schedule, take, or deliver Assigned Product.

	Article V  Transmission and Delivery; Communications
	Section 5.1 Delivery of Energy
	Section 5.2 Scheduling
	Section 5.3 Title and Risk of Loss
	Section 5.4 PCC1 Product and Long-Term PCC1 Product
	(a) Eligibility.  Seller, and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement that: (i) the Project qualifies and is certified by the CEC as an Eligible Renewable Energy Resource (“ERR”) as s...
	(b) Transfer of Renewable Energy Credits.  Seller and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement the renewable energy credits transferred to Buyer conform to the definition and attribute...
	(c) Tracking of RECs in WREGIS.  Seller warrants that all necessary steps to allow the Renewable Energy Credits transferred to Buyer to be tracked in the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System will be taken prior to the first delivery ...
	(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder shall be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of California, without regard to principles of conflicts of law. ...
	(e) Issuer Representations and Warranties.
	Issuer further represents and warrants to Purchaser that, to the extent that the Product sold by Issuer is a resale of part or all of a contract between Issuer and one or more third parties, Issuer represents, warrants and covenants that the resale co...
	(f) Subsequent Changes in Law.  In the event that the qualifications or requirements of the RPS program, PCC1 Product or the California Long-Term Contracting Requirements change, Issuer shall take commercially reasonable actions to meet the amended qu...
	(g) Limitations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Parties acknowledge and agree as follows:
	(i) Issuer has relied exclusively upon the representations and warranties of each respective seller set forth in the Assigned Agreements in making the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 5.4 and has not performed any independent i...
	(ii) MSES has agreed under the Prepaid Agreement to terminate or cause MSCG to terminate the applicable Assignment Period in the event that any representation or warranty in this Section 5.4 proves to be incorrect in any respect; and
	(iii) Purchaser agrees that its sole recourse for any breach of the provisions of this Section 5.4 shall be the termination of the applicable Assignment Period and Purchaser shall have no other recourse against Issuer or remedies under this Agreement.


	Section 5.5 Deliveries within CAISO or Another Balancing Authority
	Section 5.6 Assigned Products

	Article VI  Partial Assignments of PPAs
	Section 6.1 Future PPA Assignments
	Section 6.2 Updates to Exhibits A-1 and A-2
	(a) To the extent that an EPS Energy Period terminates or expires and Assigned Energy is not available for delivery immediately following (i) the end of the period for which Force Majeure is deemed to occur in the event of an early termination or (ii)...
	(b) In connection with the execution of any subsequent Assignment Agreement, the Parties shall update Exhibits A-1 and A-2 to reflect any changes in the Hourly Quantities of Base Energy and Monthly Quantities of Assigned Energy and any other changes i...


	Article VII  Use of Energy
	Section 7.1 Tax Exempt Status of the Bonds
	Section 7.2 Priority Energy
	Section 7.3 Remarketing Sales
	(a) Remarketing of Assigned Energy.  If notwithstanding Purchaser’s compliance with Section 7.1, a quantity of Assigned Energy less than the Monthly Quantity is delivered hereunder in any Month for any reason, then (i) MSCG shall remarket such undeliv...
	(b) Remarketing of Base Energy.  Consistent with Section 3.3, to the extent any portion of the Contract Quantity is Base Energy, Issuer shall cause MSES to remarket or purchase such Energy for the account of MSES under the remarketing provisions of th...
	(c) MSES Remarketing Fees.  Purchaser shall not in any case have an obligation to make a payment to Issuer with respect to any Remarketing Fee (as defined in the Prepaid Agreement) charged by MSES under the Prepaid Agreement

	Section 7.4 Qualifying Use
	Section 7.5 Remediation
	(a) MSES shall be obligated under the remarketing provisions of the Prepaid Agreement to purchase the remarketed Energy for its own account at the Day-Ahead Market Price (the proceeds of any such purchases, “Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds”), which ...
	(b) Purchaser shall (i) exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to use an amount equivalent to such Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds to purchase Non-Priority Energy and use such Non-Priority Energy in compliance with the Qualifying Use Requirements ...
	(c) in order to track compliance with Purchaser’s obligations under Section 7.5(b) above, Purchaser shall deliver a Remediation Certificate in the form of Exhibit H hereto to Issuer and MSES by the tenth day of the Month subsequent to any relevant Non...
	(d) for Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds remediated under this Section 7.5, Issuer shall pay Purchaser the Monthly Discount associated with such Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds on the last Business Day of the Month following the Month in which Purc...
	(e) to the extent any Disqualified Remarketing Proceeds are not remediated within twelve Months of the date on which such proceeds were received by Issuer, then MSES shall be obligated under the Prepaid Agreement to exercise Commercially Reasonable Ef...
	provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, to the extent Special Tax Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture) determines at any time that Purchaser has failed to exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain EPS Compliant Energy for delivery he...


	Article VIII  Representations and Warranties; Additional Covenants
	Section 8.1 Representations and Warranties of the Parties
	(a) For Issuer as the representing Party, Issuer is a is a joint powers authority organized pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 6500 et seq.) of the California Government Code;
	(b) For Purchaser as the representing Party, Purchaser is a joint powers authority organized pursuant to the provisions of Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1 (Section 6500 et seq.) of the California Government Code and a community choice aggreg...
	(c) it has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business, to own its properties and to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement;
	(d) there is no litigation, action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the best of such Party’s knowledge, threatened, before or by any Government Agency, which could reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the performa...
	(e) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party has been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Party and does not require any approval or consent of any security holder of such Party or any holder (or ...
	(f) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such Party by an appropriate officer or authorized Person of such Party and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against it in accordance wi...
	(g) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party shall not violate any provision of any Law, decree or other legal or regulatory determination applicable to it;
	(h) the execution, delivery and performance by such Party of this Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such Party of its financial obligations under this Agreement, shall not result in an...
	(i) to the best of the knowledge and belief of such Party, no consent, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or giving of notice to, obtaining of any license or permit from, or taking of any other action wit...
	(j) it enters this Agreement as a bona-fide, arm’s-length transaction involving the mutual exchange of consideration and, once executed by both Parties, considers this Agreement a legally enforceable contract.

	Section 8.2 Warranty of Title
	Section 8.3 Disclaimer of Warranties
	Section 8.4 Continuing Disclosure

	Article IX  Taxes
	Article X  Dispute Resolution
	Section 10.1 Arbitration
	Section 10.2 Judicial Reference.
	(a) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 10.1, if Section 10.1 is ineffective or unenforceable, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (...
	(b) Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the “Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Party (the “Responding Party”) with a written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue...
	(c) Applicability; Selection of Referees.
	(i) The Party that provides the Impasse Notice shall nominate one (1) referee at the same time it provides the Impasse Notice.  The other Party shall nominate one referee within 10 days of receiving the Impasse Notice.  The two (2) referees (the “Part...
	(ii) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of Cali...

	(d) Discovery; Proceedings.
	(i) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and...
	(ii) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing proced...
	(iii) Any matter before the Referees shall be governed by the substantive law of California, its Code of Civil Procedure, Rules of Court, and Evidence Code, except as otherwise specifically agreed by the Parties and approved by the Referees.  Except a...
	(iv) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the...

	(e) Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  T...
	(f) Expenses.  Each Party shall bear the compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally between the Parties.


	Article XI  Force Majeure
	Section 11.1 Applicability of Force Majeure
	Section 11.2 Settlement of Labor Disputes

	Article XII  Governmental Rules and Regulations
	Section 12.1 Compliance with Laws
	Section 12.2 Contests
	Section 12.3 Defense of Agreement

	Article XIII  Assignment
	Article XIV  Payments
	Section 14.1 Monthly Statements
	(a) No later than the 5th day of each Month during the Delivery Period (excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the Delivery Period, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer a statement (a “Purchaser’s State...
	(b) No later than the 10th day of each Month during the Delivery Period (excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the Delivery Period (the “Billing Date”), Issuer shall deliver a statement (a “Billing ...
	(c) Upon request by either Party, the other Party shall deliver such supporting documentation of the foregoing as such requesting Party may reasonably request.

	Section 14.2 Payment
	(a) If the Billing Statement indicates an amount due from Purchaser, then Purchaser shall remit such amount to the Trustee for the benefit of the Issuer by wire transfer (pursuant to the Trustee’s instructions), in immediately available funds, on or b...
	(b) If Purchaser fails to issue a Purchaser’s Statement with respect to any Month, Issuer shall not be required to estimate any amounts due to Purchaser for such Month, provided that Purchaser may include any such amount on subsequent Purchaser’s Stat...

	Section 14.3 Payment of Disputed Amounts; Correction of Index Price
	(a) If Purchaser disputes any amounts included in the Issuer’s Billing Statement, Purchaser shall (except in the case of manifest error) nonetheless pay any amount required by the Billing Statement in accordance with Section 14.2 without regard to any...
	(b) If a value published for any rate or index used or to be used in this Agreement is subsequently corrected and the correction is published or announced by the Person responsible for that publication or announcement within 30 days after the original...

	Section 14.4 Late Payment
	Section 14.5 Audit; Adjustments
	(a) A Party shall have the right, at its own expense, upon reasonable notice to the other Party and at reasonable times, to examine and audit and to obtain copies of the relevant portion of the books, records, and telephone recordings of the other Par...
	(b) Each Purchaser’s Statement and each Billing Statement shall be conclusively presumed final and accurate and all associated claims for under- or overpayments shall be deemed waived unless such Purchaser’s Statement or Billing Statement is objected ...
	(c) All retroactive adjustments shall be paid in full by the Party owing payment within thirty (30) days of notice and substantiation of such inaccuracy.  If the Parties are unable to agree upon any retroactive adjustments requested by either Party wi...

	Section 14.6 Netting; No Set-Off
	Section 14.7 Source of Purchaser’s Payments
	Section 14.8 Rate Covenant
	Section 14.9 Pledge of CCA Revenues
	Section 14.10 Financial Responsibility

	Article XV  [Reserved]
	Article XVI  Notices
	Article XVII  Default; Remedies; Termination
	Section 17.1 Issuer Default
	(a) any representation or warranty made by Issuer in this Agreement proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; or
	(b) Issuer fails to perform, observe or comply with any covenant, agreement or term contained in this Agreement, and such failure continues for more than thirty (30) days following the earlier of (i) receipt by Issuer of notice thereof or (ii) an offi...

	Section 17.2 Purchaser Default
	(a) Purchaser fails to pay when due any amounts owed to Issuer pursuant to this Agreement and such failure continues for one (1) Business Day following the earlier of (i) receipt by Purchaser of notice thereof or (ii) an officer of Purchaser becoming ...
	(b) Purchaser (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) make...
	(c) any representation or warranty made by Purchaser in this Agreement proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made; or
	(d) Purchaser fails to perform, observe or comply with any covenant, agreement or term contained in this Agreement, and such failure continues for more than fifteen (15) days following the earlier of (i) receipt by Purchaser of notice thereof or (ii) ...

	Section 17.3 Remedies Upon Default
	(a) Termination.  If at any time an Issuer Default or a Purchaser Default has occurred and is continuing, then the non-defaulting Party may do any or all of the following (i) by notice to the defaulting Party specifying the relevant Issuer Default or ...
	(b) Additional Remedies.  In addition to the remedies set forth in Section 17.3(a) (and without limiting any other provisions of this Agreement), during the existence of any Purchaser Default, Issuer may suspend its performance hereunder and discontin...
	(c) Effect of Early Termination.  As of the effectiveness of any termination date in accordance with clause (i) of Section 17.3(a), (i) the Delivery Period shall end, (ii) the obligation of Issuer to make any further deliveries of Energy to Purchaser ...

	Section 17.4 Termination of Prepaid Agreement
	Section 17.5 Limitation on Damages

	Article XVIII  Miscellaneous
	Section 18.1 Indemnification Procedure
	Section 18.2 Deliveries
	(a) as of the date hereof, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer a fully executed Federal Tax Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D;
	(b) on the Bond Closing Date, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer an opinion of counsel to Purchaser in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E;
	(c) on the Bond Closing Date, Purchaser shall deliver to Issuer a Closing Certificate in substantially the form set forth hereto as Exhibit G.

	Section 18.3 Entirety; Amendments
	Section 18.4 Governing Law
	Section 18.5 Non-Waiver
	Section 18.6 Severability
	Section 18.7 Exhibits
	Section 18.8 Winding Up Arrangements
	Section 18.9 Relationships of Parties
	Section 18.10 Immunity
	Section 18.11 Rates and Indices
	Section 18.12 Limitation of Liability
	Section 18.13 Counterparts
	Section 18.14 Third Party Beneficiaries; Rights of Trustee
	Section 18.15 Waiver of Defenses

	EXHIBIT A-1 BASE ENERGY HOURLY QUANTITIES
	[To come.]
	EXHIBIT A-2 EPS ENERGY PERIOD MONTHLY QUANTITY
	[To come.]

	Item 15D - 19. MS-EBCE 2022 - Letter Agreement re PPA Assignments, 4871-6699-3432_4
	ULETTER AGREEMENT
	[____], 2022
	(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws...
	(b) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shal...
	(c) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 8(b), if Section 8(b) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, br...
	i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the “Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such is...
	ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees.
	(A) Within ten days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of MSCG and Project Participant shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the “Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”).  The Party-Appoi...
	(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third Referee within forty-five (45) Days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior C...

	iii. Discovery; Proceedings.
	(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and...
	(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing procedu...
	(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other questions that arise ...
	(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the ...

	iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  T...
	v. Expenses.  Each of MSCG and Project Participant shall bear the compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally ...


	[Signature Pages to Follow]
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	1. Definitions.
	2. Transfer and Undertakings.
	(a) PPA Buyer hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to MSCG all right, title and interest in and to the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to receive delivery of the Assigned Product during the Assignment Period.  In connection with this assignment, PP...
	(b) PPA Seller hereby consents and agrees to PPA Buyer’s assignment, transfer and conveyance of all right, title and interest in and to the Assigned Product and Assigned Rights and Obligations to MSCG and the exercise and performance by MSCG of the As...
	(c) MSCG hereby accepts such assignment, transfer and conveyance of the Assigned Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period and agrees to perform any such Assigned Rights and Obligations due from it during the Assignment Period to the extent ...

	3. Limited Assignment.
	(a) Limited to Delivered Product Payment Obligation; Invoicing.
	i. MSCG’s sole obligation to PPA Seller will be to pay the Assigned Product Price (as defined in the PPA) to PPA Seller for the Assigned Product delivered during each Month of the Assignment Period on each applicable payment date under Section [__] of...
	ii. PPA Buyer shall remain solely responsible for any payment obligations other than the Delivered Product Payment Obligation due under the PPA during the Assignment Period (the “Retained Payment Obligation”).  Any Claims arising or existing in connec...
	iii. Promptly following PPA Buyer’s receipt of each monthly invoice from PPA Seller during the Assignment Period and, in any event, no later than seven days thereafter, PPA Buyer shall deliver (i) a copy of such monthly invoice and the related support...

	(b) Scheduling.  All scheduling of Electricity associated with Assigned Product and other communications related to the PPA shall take place between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller pursuant to the terms of the PPA; provided that (i) title to Assigned Product...
	(c) Amendments.  PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide written notice (including copies thereof) of any amendment, waiver, supplement, modification, or other changes to the PPA to MSCG relating to the Assigned Rights and Obligations, and the Parties h...
	(d) Setoff of Receivables.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES has agreed to purchase the rights to payment of the net amounts owed by PPA Buyer under the Prepay Power Supply Contract (“Receivables”) in the case of non-payment by PPA Buyer.  To t...

	4. Forward Contract.
	The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” and that the Parties shall constitute “forward contract merchants” within the meaning of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
	5. Assignment Period; Assignment Early Termination.
	(a) Assignment Period.  The “Assignment Period” shall begin on the Assignment Period Start Date and extend until the Assignment Period End Date; provided that in no event shall the Assignment Period extend past an Assignment Early Termination Date.
	(b) Early Termination.  An “Assignment Early Termination Date” will occur under the following circumstances and as of the dates specified below:
	i. the assignment of the Prepay Power Supply Contract by PPA Buyer or Issuer pursuant to Article XIII thereof, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of such assignment;
	ii. the suspension, expiration, or termination of performance of the PPA by either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller for any reason other than the occurrence of Force Majeure under and as defined in the PPA, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur i...
	iii. the election of MSCG in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date as a result of (a) any event or circumstance that would give either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller the right to terminate or suspend performance under the PPA (r...
	iv. termination or suspension of deliveries for any reason other than force majeure under the Prepaid Agreement or Prepay Power Supply Contract, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of the last deliveries unde...
	v. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date if MSCG fails to pay when due any amounts owed to PPA Seller in respect of any Delivered Product Payment Obligation and such failure cont...
	vi. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date if either (a) an involuntary case or other proceeding is commenced against MSCG seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with...
	vii. either MSCG or PPA Buyer may designate an Assignment Early Termination Date with written notice to the other Parties to the extent that MSCG and PPA Buyer have mutually agreed upon a replacement Assignment Agreement (as defined in the Prepay Powe...
	viii. PPA Buyer may deliver written notice of termination to the other Parties if any change, event or effect occurs, including but not limited a change in applicable laws or regulations, any issues with the PPA Seller or the PPA, a dispute under the ...

	(c) Reversion of Assigned Rights and Obligations.  The parties acknowledge and agree that upon the occurrence of an Assignment Early Termination Date the Assigned Rights and Obligations will revert from MSCG to PPA Buyer.  Any Assigned Rights and Obli...

	6. Representations and Warranties.
	(a) Copy of PPA.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSCG that a true, complete, and correct copy of the PPA is attached hereto as Appendix 3.
	(b) No Default.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSCG that no event or circumstance exists (or would exist with the passage of time or the giving of notice) that would give either of them the right to terminate the PPA or suspend per...
	(c) Other.  Each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller represents and warrants to each other and to MSCG that:
	i. it has made no prior transfer (whether by way of security or otherwise) of any interest in the Assigned Rights and Obligations; and
	ii. all obligations of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller under the PPA required to be performed on or before the Assignment Period Start Date have been fulfilled.

	(d) Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties:
	i. Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good standing.
	ii. Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this Agreeme...
	iii. No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in...
	iv. Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government Agency...
	v. Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms (subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or simil...
	vi. Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such advi...
	vii. Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also c...
	viii. Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement.


	7. Counterparts.
	8. Costs and Expenses.
	9. Amendments.
	10. Notices.
	11. Miscellaneous.
	(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws...
	(b) U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties hereby confirm that they are adherents to the ISDA 2018 U.S. Resolution Stay Protocol (“ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol”), the terms of the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement,...
	(c) Reserved.
	(d) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shal...
	(e) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 11(d), if Section 11(d) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, ...
	i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the “Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such is...
	ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees.
	(A) Within 10 days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of MSCG and PPA Buyer shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the “Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, together with the Party-Appo...
	(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of Calif...

	iii. Discovery; Proceedings.
	(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and...
	(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing procedu...
	(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other questions that arise ...
	(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the ...

	iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  T...
	v. Expenses.  Each of MSCG and PPA Buyer shall bear the compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally between MS...


	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	1. Definitions.
	2. Transfer and Undertakings.
	(a) PPA Buyer hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to MSES all right, title and interest in and to the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to receive delivery of the Assigned Product during the Assignment Period.  In connection with this assignment, PP...
	(b) PPA Seller hereby consents and agrees to PPA Buyer’s assignment, transfer and conveyance of all right, title and interest in and to the Assigned Product and Assigned Rights and Obligations to MSES and the exercise and performance by MSES of the As...
	(c) MSES hereby accepts such assignment, transfer and conveyance of the Assigned Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period and agrees to perform any such Assigned Rights and Obligations due from it during the Assignment Period to the extent ...

	3. Limited Assignment.
	(a) Limited to Delivered Product Payment Obligation; Invoicing.
	i. MSES’s sole obligation to PPA Seller will be to pay the Assigned Product Price to PPA Seller for the Assigned Product delivered during each Month of the Assignment Period on each applicable payment date under Section [4.2] of the Confirmation to th...
	(A) the PPA provides for the delivery of the Assigned Quantity on an annual basis, but, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Assigned Quantity shall be settled on a monthly basis by multiplying the [Hourly Quantity (as defined in the PPA)] the number CA...
	(B) regardless of the Assigned Quantity actually delivered in any month during the Assignment Period, (I) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation shall be an amount equal to the result of (x) the Settlement Monthly Quantity, multiplied by (y) the Ass...
	(C) to the extent that (I) an amount less than the Annual Quantity (as defined in the PPA) has been delivered as of the end of December for any year during the Assignment Period or (II) an Assignment Early Termination Date occurs and the Assigned Quan...

	ii. PPA Seller shall deliver each monthly invoice and related supporting data during the Assignment Period to each of PPA Buyer and MSES, and each such invoice shall indicate (A) the total amount due to PPA Seller under the PPA for such Month (the “Mo...

	(b) Retained Rights and Obligations.  Any Claims (other than the Delivered Product Payment Obligation or a failure to perform the same) arising or existing in connection with or related to the PPA, whether related to performance by PPA Seller, PPA Buy...
	(c) Scheduling.  All scheduling of Electricity associated with Assigned Product and other communications related to the PPA shall take place between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller pursuant to the terms of the PPA; provided that (i) title to Assigned Product...
	(d) Amendments.  PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide written notice (including copies thereof) of any amendment, waiver, supplement, modification, or other changes to the PPA to MSES relating to the Assigned Rights and Obligations, and the Parties h...
	(e) Setoff of Receivables.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES has agreed to purchase the rights to payment of the net amounts owed by PPA Buyer under the Prepay Power Supply Contract (“Receivables”) in the case of non-payment by PPA Buyer.  To t...
	(f) Joinder to Intercreditor Agreement.  In connection with the execution of this Agreement and as a condition precedent to the effectiveness hereof, Issuer shall execute a joinder to the Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement (as defined in th...

	4. Forward Contract.
	The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” and that the Parties shall constitute “forward contract merchants” within the meaning of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
	5. Assignment Period; Assignment Early Termination.
	(a) Assignment Period.  The “Assignment Period” shall begin on the Assignment Period Start Date and extend until the Assignment Period End Date; provided that in no event shall the Assignment Period extend past an Assignment Early Termination Date.
	(b) Early Termination.  An “Assignment Early Termination Date” will occur under the following circumstances and as of the dates specified below:
	i. the assignment of the Prepay Power Supply Contract by PPA Buyer or Issuer pursuant to Article XIII thereof, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of such assignment;
	ii. the suspension, expiration, or termination of performance of the PPA by either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller for any reason other than the occurrence of Force Majeure under and as defined in the PPA, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur i...
	iii. the election of MSES in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date as a result of (a) any event or circumstance that would give either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller the right to terminate or suspend performance under the PPA (r...
	iv. termination or suspension of deliveries for any reason other than force majeure under the Prepaid Agreement or Prepay Power Supply Contract, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of the last deliveries unde...
	v. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date if MSES fails to pay when due any amounts owed to PPA Seller in respect of any Delivered Product Payment Obligation and such failure cont...
	vi. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date if either (a) an involuntary case or other proceeding is commenced against MSES seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with...
	vii. either MSES or PPA Buyer may designate an Assignment Early Termination Date with written notice to the other Parties to the extent that MSES and PPA Buyer have mutually agreed upon a replacement Assignment Agreement (as defined in the Prepay Powe...
	viii. PPA Buyer may deliver written notice of termination to the other Parties if any change, event or effect occurs, including but not limited a change in applicable laws or regulations, any issues with the PPA Seller or the PPA, a dispute under the ...

	(c) Reversion of Assigned Rights and Obligations.  The parties acknowledge and agree that upon the occurrence of an Assignment Early Termination Date the Assigned Rights and Obligations will revert from MSES to PPA Buyer.  Any Assigned Rights and Obli...

	6. Representations and Warranties.
	(a) Copy of PPA.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that a true, complete, and correct copy of the PPA is attached hereto as Appendix 3.
	(b) No Default.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that no event or circumstance exists (or would exist with the passage of time or the giving of notice) that would give either of them the right to terminate the PPA or suspend per...
	(c) Other.  Each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller represents and warrants to each other and to MSES that:
	i. it has made no prior transfer (whether by way of security or otherwise) of any interest in the Assigned Rights and Obligations; and
	ii. all obligations of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller under the PPA required to be performed on or before the Assignment Period Start Date have been fulfilled.

	(d) Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties:
	i. Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good standing.
	ii. Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this Agreeme...
	iii. No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in...
	iv. Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government Agency...
	v. Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms (subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or simil...
	vi. Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such advi...
	vii. Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also c...
	viii. Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement.


	7. Counterparts.
	8. Costs and Expenses.
	9. Amendments.
	10. Notices.
	11. Miscellaneous.
	(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws...
	(b) U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties hereby confirm that they are adherents to the ISDA 2018 U.S. Resolution Stay Protocol (“ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol”), the terms of the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement,...
	(c) Reserved.
	(d) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shal...
	(e) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 11(d), if Section 11(d) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, ...
	i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the “Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such is...
	ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees.
	(A) Within 10 days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the “Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, together with the Part...
	(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of Calif...

	iii. Discovery; Proceedings.
	(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and...
	(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing procedu...
	(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other questions that arise ...
	(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the ...

	iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  T...
	v. Expenses.  Each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall bear the compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally betw...

	(f) Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all  obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations to make payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of I...


	Item 15E - 22. MS-EBCE 2022 - Limited Assignment Agreement (MSCG PPA), 4855-4504-2968_2
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	1. Definitions.
	2. Transfer and Undertakings.
	(a) PPA Buyer hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to MSES all right, title and interest in and to the rights of PPA Buyer under the PPA to receive delivery of the Assigned Product during the Assignment Period.  In connection with this assignment, PP...
	(b) PPA Seller hereby consents and agrees to PPA Buyer’s assignment, transfer and conveyance of all right, title and interest in and to the Assigned Product and Assigned Rights and Obligations to MSES and the exercise and performance by MSES of the As...
	(c) MSES hereby accepts such assignment, transfer and conveyance of the Assigned Rights and Obligations during the Assignment Period and agrees to perform any such Assigned Rights and Obligations due from it during the Assignment Period to the extent ...

	3. Limited Assignment.
	(a) Limited to Delivered Product Payment Obligation; Invoicing.
	i. MSES’s sole obligation to PPA Seller will be to pay the Assigned Product Price to PPA Seller for the Assigned Product delivered during each Month of the Assignment Period on each applicable payment date under Section 5.2 of the Confirmation to the ...
	(A) the PPA provides for the delivery of the Assigned Quantity on an annual basis, but, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Assigned Quantity shall be settled on a monthly basis by multiplying the [Hourly Quantity (as defined in the PPA)] the number CA...
	(B) regardless of the Assigned Quantity actually delivered in any month during the Assignment Period, (I) the Delivered Product Payment Obligation shall be an amount equal to the result of (x) the Settlement Monthly Quantity, multiplied by (y) the Ass...
	(C) to the extent that (I) an amount less than the Annual Quantity (as defined in the PPA) has been delivered as of the end of December for any year during the Assignment Period or (II) an Assignment Early Termination Date occurs and the Assigned Quan...

	ii. PPA Seller shall deliver each monthly invoice and related supporting data during the Assignment Period to each of PPA Buyer and MSES, and each such invoice shall indicate (A) the total amount due to PPA Seller under the PPA for such Month (the “Mo...

	(b) Retained Rights and Obligations.  Any Claims (other than the Delivered Product Payment Obligation or a failure to perform the same) arising or existing in connection with or related to the PPA, whether related to performance by PPA Seller, PPA Buy...
	(c) Scheduling.  All scheduling of Electricity associated with Assigned Product and other communications related to the PPA shall take place between PPA Buyer and PPA Seller pursuant to the terms of the PPA; provided that (i) title to Assigned Product...
	(d) Amendments.  PPA Buyer and PPA Seller will provide written notice (including copies thereof) of any amendment, waiver, supplement, modification, or other changes to the PPA to MSES relating to the Assigned Rights and Obligations, and the Parties h...
	(e) Setoff of Receivables.  Pursuant to the Prepaid Agreement, MSES has agreed to purchase the rights to payment of the net amounts owed by PPA Buyer under the Prepay Power Supply Contract (“Receivables”) in the case of non-payment by PPA Buyer.  To t...
	(f) Joinder to Intercreditor Agreement.  In connection with the execution of this Agreement and as a condition precedent to the effectiveness hereof, Issuer shall execute a joinder to that certain Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated a...

	4. Forward Contract.
	The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement constitutes a “forward contract” and that the Parties shall constitute “forward contract merchants” within the meaning of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
	5. Assignment Period; Assignment Early Termination.
	(a) Assignment Period.  The “Assignment Period” shall begin on the Assignment Period Start Date and extend until the Assignment Period End Date; provided that in no event shall the Assignment Period extend past an Assignment Early Termination Date.
	(b) Early Termination.  An “Assignment Early Termination Date” will occur under the following circumstances and as of the dates specified below:
	i. the assignment of the Prepay Power Supply Contract by PPA Buyer or Issuer pursuant to Article XIII thereof, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of such assignment;
	ii. the suspension, expiration, or termination of performance of the PPA by either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller for any reason other than the occurrence of Force Majeure under and as defined in the PPA, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur i...
	iii. the election of MSES in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date as a result of (a) any event or circumstance that would give either PPA Buyer or PPA Seller the right to terminate or suspend performance under the PPA (r...
	iv. termination or suspension of deliveries for any reason other than force majeure under the Prepaid Agreement or Prepay Power Supply Contract, which Assignment Early Termination Date shall occur immediately as of the time of the last deliveries unde...
	v. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date if MSES fails to pay when due any amounts owed to PPA Seller in respect of any Delivered Product Payment Obligation and such failure cont...
	vi. the election of PPA Seller or PPA Buyer in its sole discretion to declare an Assignment Early Termination Date if either (a) an involuntary case or other proceeding is commenced against MSES seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief with...
	vii. either MSES or PPA Buyer may designate an Assignment Early Termination Date with written notice to the other Parties to the extent that MSES and PPA Buyer have mutually agreed upon a replacement Assignment Agreement (as defined in the Prepay Powe...
	viii. PPA Buyer may deliver written notice of termination to the other Parties if any change, event or effect occurs, including but not limited a change in applicable laws or regulations, any issues with the PPA Seller or the PPA, a dispute under the ...

	(c) Reversion of Assigned Rights and Obligations.  The parties acknowledge and agree that upon the occurrence of an Assignment Early Termination Date the Assigned Rights and Obligations will revert from MSES to PPA Buyer.  Any Assigned Rights and Obli...

	6. Representations and Warranties.
	(a) Copy of PPA.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that a true, complete, and correct copy of the PPA is attached hereto as Appendix 3.
	(b) No Default.  PPA Seller and PPA Buyer represent and warrant to MSES that no event or circumstance exists (or would exist with the passage of time or the giving of notice) that would give either of them the right to terminate the PPA or suspend per...
	(c) Other.  Each of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller represents and warrants to each other and to MSES that:
	i. it has made no prior transfer (whether by way of security or otherwise) of any interest in the Assigned Rights and Obligations; and
	ii. all obligations of PPA Buyer and PPA Seller under the PPA required to be performed on or before the Assignment Period Start Date have been fulfilled.

	(d) Representations.  Each Party represents to each of the other Parties:
	i. Status.  It is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good standing.
	ii. Powers.  It has the power to execute this Agreement and any other documentation relating to this Agreement to which it is a party, to deliver this Agreement and any other documentation relating to this Agreement that it is required by this Agreeme...
	iii. No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such Party of its obligations under this Agreement, will not result in...
	iv. Consents.  All consents, approvals, orders or authorizations of, registrations, declarations, filings or giving of notice to, obtaining of any licenses or permits from, or taking of any other action with respect to, any Person or Government Agency...
	v. Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Agreement constitute its legal, valid and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms (subject to applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or simil...
	vi. Non-Reliance.  It is acting for its own account, and it has made its own independent decisions to enter into this Agreement and as to whether this Agreement is appropriate or proper for it based upon its own judgment and upon advice from such advi...
	vii. Assessment and Understanding.  It is capable of assessing the merits of and understanding (on its own behalf or through independent professional advice), and understands and accepts, the terms, conditions and risks of this Agreement. It is also c...
	viii. Status of Parties.  None of the other Parties is acting as a fiduciary for or an adviser to it in respect of this Agreement.


	7. Counterparts.
	8. Costs and Expenses.
	9. Amendments.
	10. Notices.
	11. Miscellaneous.
	(a) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties under this Agreement will be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of New York, without reference to any conflicts of laws...
	(b) U.S. Resolution Stay.  The Parties hereby confirm that they are adherents to the ISDA 2018 U.S. Resolution Stay Protocol (“ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol”), the terms of the ISDA U.S. Stay Protocol are incorporated into and form a part of this Agreement,...
	(c) Reserved.
	(d) Arbitration.  Any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including the determination of the scope of this agreement to arbitrate, shal...
	(e) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 11(d), if Section 11(d) is deemed ineffective or unenforceable in any respect, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, ...
	i. Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the “Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Parties (the “Responding Parties”) with a written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such is...
	ii. Applicability; Selection of Referees.
	(A) Within 10 days of the delivery of an Impasse Notice, each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall nominate one (1) referee.  The two (2) referees (the “Party-Appointed Referees”) shall appoint a third referee (the “Third Referee”, together with the Part...
	(B) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of Calif...

	iii. Discovery; Proceedings.
	(A) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and...
	(B) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing procedu...
	(C) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other questions that arise ...
	(D) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the ...

	iv. Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  T...
	v. Expenses.  Each of PPA Seller and PPA Buyer shall bear the compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally betw...

	(f) Limitation of Liability.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, all  obligations of Issuer under this Agreement, including without limitation all obligations to make payments of any kind whatsoever, are special, limited obligations of I...


	Item 15F - EBCE - 2022 Project Administration Agreement
	Item 15G - 14. MS-EBCE 2022 - Front-End Custodial Agreement, 4888-7518-9272_2
	1. Defined Terms.  Any capitalized term used herein and not otherwise defined herein (including in the recitals) shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Indenture.
	2. Appointment of Custodian.  The Issuer and the Swap Counterparty hereby appoint The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. as Custodian under this Custodial Agreement, with such rights and obligations as are specifically set forth herein.  The ...
	3. Payments Account.
	(a) With respect to any net payments required to be made by Issuer to the Swap Counterparty under the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement, there is hereby established with the Custodian, a payments account designated as the “[____]”, bearing the Custod...
	For the avoidance of doubt, payments required to be made by the Swap Counterparty to the Issuer pursuant to the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement, payments required to be made by the Swap Counterparty to MSES pursuant to the Back-End Commodity Swap A...
	(b) Amounts deposited in the Issuer Payments Account shall be held in trust for the benefit of Issuer until applied as set forth in paragraph 3(c) below, and there is hereby granted to Issuer a lien on and security interest in the Issuer Payments Acco...
	(d) Notwithstanding Section 2(a)(iii) of the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement or the exercise by or on behalf of MSES of any right of early termination of the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement, in the event that any amount due to MSES under Section 2...
	(e) If at any time the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement terminates or otherwise ceases to be in effect for any reason, then during the period commencing on the date when the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement terminates or ceases to be in effect unt...
	4. Custodian.  The Custodian shall have (a) no liability under any agreement other than this Custodial Agreement and (b) no duty to inquire as to the provisions of any agreement other than this Custodial Agreement, the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreemen...
	5. Succession.  The Custodian may resign and be discharged from its duties or obligations hereunder by giving not less than 30 days’ advance notice in writing of such resignation to the other parties hereto specifying a date when such resignation shal...
	6. Fees.  Issuer agrees to (a) pay the Custodian reasonable compensation for the services to be rendered hereunder, which compensation shall be $[____] for each year that this Custodial Agreement is in effect, and (b) pay or reimburse the Custodian up...
	7. Reimbursement.  Issuer agrees to reimburse the Custodian and its directors, officers, agents and employees for any and all loss, liability or expense (including the fees and expenses of in-house or outside counsel and experts and their staffs and a...
	8. Taxpayer Identification Numbers; Tax Matters. Issuer and the Swap Counterparty each represent that its correct taxpayer identification number assigned by the Internal Revenue Service or any other taxing authority is set forth on the signature page ...
	9. Notices.  All communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly given and received (a) upon delivery if delivered personally, upon confirmed transmittal if by facsimile and as set forth in the final paragraph of this Secti...
	Any party may provide a new or different address for such notices if furnished to the other parties in writing by registered mail, return receipt requested.  Notwithstanding the above provisions of this Section 9, in the case of communications deliver...
	The Custodian shall have the right to accept and act upon directions given pursuant to this Custodial Agreement, or any other document reasonably relating to the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement, the Back-End Commodity Swap Agreement or other matter...
	As used herein, “UElectronic MeansU” shall mean the following communications methods: e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys issued by the Custodia...
	Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, a party may at any time notify the other parties in accordance with this Custodial Agreement that any subsequent notice or other communication hereunder must be provided by e-mail transmission for a spe...
	10. Miscellaneous.
	(a) The provisions of this Custodial Agreement may be waived, altered, amended or supplemented, in whole or in part, only by a writing signed by all of the parties hereto.
	(b) Neither this Custodial Agreement nor any right, title or interest hereunder may be assigned in whole or in part by any party, without the prior written consent of the other parties, except as provided in Section 5; provided that, notwithstanding t...

	(c) This Custodial Agreement and the rights and duties of the parties hereunder shall be governed by and construed, enforced, and performed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without regard to any conflicts of law principle that wou...
	(d) Each party hereto irrevocably waives any objection on the grounds of venue, forum non-conveniens or any similar grounds and irrevocably consents to service of process by mail or in any other manner permitted by applicable law and consents to the j...
	(e) No party to this Custodial Agreement shall be liable to any other party hereto for losses due to, or if it is unable to perform its obligations under the terms of this Custodial Agreement because of, acts of God, fire, war, terrorism, floods, stri...
	(f) This Custodial Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  All signatures of the parties to this Custodial Agreement may...
	11. Compliance with Court Orders.  In the event that any amount held by the Custodian hereunder shall be attached, garnished or levied upon by any court order, or the delivery thereof shall be stayed or enjoined by an order of a court, or any order, j...
	12. Term; Winding Up.  This Custodial Agreement will expire at the later of (i) the receipt of written notice from either Issuer or the Swap Counterparty to the other parties that the Front-End Commodity Swap Agreement has terminated in accordance wit...
	13. Indemnification.  Issuer and the Swap Counterparty, jointly and severally, agree to protect, indemnify, defend and hold harmless, the Custodian, and its affiliates, and each person who controls the Custodian from and against all claims, damages, l...
	14. Patriot Act.  Issuer and the Swap Counterparty acknowledge that the Custodian is subject to federal laws, including the Customer Identification Program (“CIP”) requirements under the USA PATRIOT Act and its implementing regulations, pursuant to wh...

	Item 15H - MS-EBCE-2022 - Trust Indenture 4151-0817-6694 v.2
	Item 15J - 03. MS-EBCE 2022 - Re-Pricing Agreement, 4885-5109-6856_2
	RE-PRICING AGREEMENT
	Section 1. Definitions.  When used herein, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:
	Section 2. Purpose of Agreement and Intention of Parties.  The Parties are entering into this Agreement in connection with the execution and delivery of the Indenture, the Prepaid Agreement and the other transaction documents for the purpose of establ...
	Section 3. Reset Periods.  Each Reset Period shall commence on the next day that follows the last day of the Initial Reset Period or, subsequently, the immediately prior Reset Period.  The length of each Reset Period shall be the remaining term of the...
	(i) The Initial Reset Period and each subsequent Reset Period (other than the final Reset Period) shall end the last day of the month preceding the end of the applicable Interest Rate Period.  For example, if the Interest Rate Period ends October 31, ...
	(ii) the final Reset Period shall end on the last day of the Delivery Period.

	Section 4. Morgan Stanley Guarantee.  The Morgan Stanley Guarantee terminates on the earliest of (i) the end of the Delivery Period; (ii) the earlier termination of the Prepaid Agreement (including through the date of any Termination Payment thereunde...
	Section 5. Estimated Available Discount; Alternative Suppliers.
	(a) Initial Estimated Available Discount.
	(i) Initial Estimate by MSES.  Not later than (A) eight months prior to a Mandatory Purchase Date that occurs in in February, May, August or November and (B) seven months prior a Mandatory Purchase Date that occurs in any other month, MSES will provid...
	(ii) Cooperation by MSES.  MSES acknowledges that Issuer will consult with its financial advisor in connection with the establishment of each Reset Period, and MSES agrees that it will reasonably cooperate with Issuer and its financial advisor in conn...

	(b) Alternative Estimated Available Discounts; Achievement of Bond Pricing Date.
	(i) Estimates from Alternative Suppliers.  Only after having received the Estimated Available Discount from MSES, Issuer may at its discretion solicit Alternative Suppliers to provide Estimated Available Discounts for such Reset Period.  Not later tha...
	(ii) MSES Option to Match Alternative Estimated Available Discount.  Within 15 days of receiving notice of an Alternative Estimated Available Discount meeting the foregoing requirements, MSES will notify Issuer if Guarantor could, based on then-curren...
	(iii) Conditional Novation to Alternative Supplier.  If MSES does not provide a notice of Guarantor’s ability to meet the Estimated Available Discount in accordance with the foregoing, then MSES shall cooperate with Issuer and the Alternative Supplier...

	(c) Notices to Project Participant.  Issuer shall notify the Project Participant of the Estimated Available Discount and any updates thereto under the relevant provisions of the Power Supply Contract.  Unless MSES and Issuer otherwise agree, in any no...

	Section 6. Determination of Available Discount and Monthly Discount.
	(a) MSES shall determine on the Bond Pricing Date the Available Discount for such Reset Period (expressed in cents per MWh and rounded down to the nearest one-half cent) in accordance with the methodology set forth in Appendix A.
	(b) For each Reset Period after the Initial Reset Period, MSES shall determine the monthly discount portion of the Available Discount for such Reset Period (the “Monthly Discount”).  Issuer and MSES then shall mutually agree upon the projected Annual ...

	Section 7. Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule; Monthly Quantity Changes.
	(a) For any Reset Period, MSES may modify the Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule to reflect changes in the Remaining Energy Values set forth on Attachment 1 to Appendix A and otherwise, provided that such modifications are sufficient to meet the ...
	(b) Issuer and MSES agree that the Prepaid Agreement will be amended to reflect any reductions to Monthly Contract Quantities determined pursuant to Appendix A.

	Section 8. Timing.  The dates and time intervals stated in this Agreement may be waived or altered by the mutual agreement of the Parties.
	Section 9. Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate automatically upon termination of the Prepaid Agreement for any reason, including but not limited to election by the Guarantor to terminate the Morgan Stanley Guarantee pursuant to its terms.  Fo...
	Section 10. Communications.
	(a) All notices, requests and other communications shall be in writing (including facsimile, electronic mail or other electronic means) provided to the address and/or electronic mail address set forth below:
	(b) Each Party may change the address for communications to it pursuant to the terms of the referenced agreement, which notice shall be effective when delivered at the address specified herein.

	Section 11. Miscellaneous.
	(a) Miscellaneous.  Article X [Dispute Resolution] and Sections 18.3 [Entirety; Amendments], 18.4 [Governing Law], 18.5 [Non-Waiver], 18.6 [Severability], 18.7 [Exhibits], 18.9 [Relationship of Parties], 18.12 [Limitation of Liability] and 18.13 [Coun...
	(b) Amendments to Power Supply Contract and Indenture.  Issuer shall not agree to or consent to any modification, supplement, amendment or waiver of any provision of the Power Supply Contract or the Indenture that affects the meaning of any defined te...
	(c) Assignment.  This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns, but neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or...
	Appendix A
	Appendix A
	Appendix A
	Appendix A


	Item 15K - EBCE - 2022 POS
	Maturity Dates, Principal Amounts, Interest Rates, Yields and CUSIP NumbersP2F
	Introduction
	California Community Choice Financing Authority
	The Bonds
	Security for the Bonds
	The Clean Energy Project
	The Project Participant
	The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement
	The Receivables Purchase Provisions
	The Power Supply Contract
	Re-Pricing Agreement
	Interest Rate Swap
	Commodity Swaps
	Morgan Stanley Guarantees
	The Energy Supplier, MSCG and Morgan Stanley
	Certain Relationships

	THE CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT
	Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements by the Project Participant
	Structure of the Clean Energy Project

	CLEAN ENERGY PROJECT TRANSACTION STRUCTURE
	DESIGNATION OF BONDS AS GREEN BONDS
	Green Bonds Designation
	Independent Second Party Opinion on Green Bond Designation and Disclaimer

	Investment Considerations
	Special and Limited Obligations
	Structure of the Clean Energy Project
	Performance by Others
	Energy Remarketing
	Limitations on Exercise of Remedies
	Enforceability of Contracts
	No Established Trading Market
	Loss of Tax Exemption on the Bonds
	Certain Risks of SOFR Index Rate Bonds

	Security for the Bonds
	The Indenture
	Flow of Funds
	Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Account
	Administrative Fee Fund
	Commodity Swap Payment Fund
	Debt Service Fund - Redemption Account
	Restriction on Additional Obligations
	Amendment of Indenture
	Investment of Funds
	Enforcement of Project Agreements

	Sources and Uses of Funds
	The Bonds
	General
	Interest
	SOFR Accrual Period.  The SOFR Accrual Period is the number of actual days from, but not including, (a) the Initial Issue Date or the preceding SOFR Interest Calculation Date, whichever is most recent, to (and including) (b) the next succeeding regard...

	Tender
	Redemption11F*
	Book-Entry System

	DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
	The Prepaid Energy Sales Agreement
	Purchase and Sale
	Delivery of Prepaid Energy
	Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements
	Failure to Deliver or Receive Energy
	Energy Remarketing
	Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event
	Payment Provisions
	Force Majeure
	Assignment
	Termination
	Termination Payment
	Security
	Receivables Purchase Provisions

	The INTEREST RATE SWAP
	General
	Payments Under the Interest Rate Swap
	Events of Default and Termination Events under the Interest Rate Swap

	The Re-Pricing Agreement
	General

	The ENERGY SUPPLIER, MSCG AND MORGAN STANLEY
	The Power Supply Contract
	General
	Pricing Provisions
	Project Administration Fee
	Assignment of Power Purchase Agreements
	Billing and Payment
	Annual Refunds
	Covenants of the Project Participant
	Delivery Points; Title and Risk of Loss
	Failure to Perform
	Remarketing of Energy
	Force Majeure
	Default
	Assignment

	California Community Choice Financing Authority
	General
	Powers and Authority
	Governance and Management
	Other CCCFA Projects
	Separate Obligations
	Limited Liability

	COMMUNITY CHOICE AGGREGATORS
	General
	Establishment of Community Choice Aggregators
	Community Choice Service Model
	Service Contract Requirements and Registration with the Public Utilities Commission
	Customer Participation and Opt-out Rights
	Regulatory Compliance
	Cost Recovery Related to Transfer of Customers to a CCA

	The Commodity Swaps
	CCCFA Commodity Swap
	Form of Commodity Swaps
	Payment
	Early Termination
	Custodial Agreements

	The Commodity Swap Counterparty
	Continuing Disclosure
	Litigation
	No Financial Statements
	Financial Advisor
	Underwriting
	Certain Relationships
	Rating
	Tax Matters
	Approval of Legal Matters
	Miscellaneous
	1. Purpose of This Agreement.  This Agreement is executed and delivered by CCCFA as of the date set forth below, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the requireme...
	1. Purpose of This Agreement.  This Agreement is executed and delivered by CCCFA as of the date set forth below, for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the requireme...
	2. Definitions.  (a)  The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings in this Agreement, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.
	2. Definitions.  (a)  The terms set forth below shall have the following meanings in this Agreement, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.
	(b) Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Indenture.

	3. CUSIP Numbers.  The CUSIP Numbers of the Bonds are as follows:
	4. Annual Financial Information Disclosure.  Subject to Section 9 of this Agreement, CCCFA hereby covenants that it will disseminate or cause to be disseminated on its behalf its Annual Financial Information and the Audited Financial Statements (in th...
	4. Annual Financial Information Disclosure.  Subject to Section 9 of this Agreement, CCCFA hereby covenants that it will disseminate or cause to be disseminated on its behalf its Annual Financial Information and the Audited Financial Statements (in th...
	5. Reportable Events Disclosure.  Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, CCCFA hereby covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure...
	5. Reportable Events Disclosure.  Subject to Section 8 of this Agreement, CCCFA hereby covenants that it will disseminate in a timely manner (not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the Reportable Event) Reportable Events Disclosure...
	6. Consequences of Failure of CCCFA to Provide Information.  CCCFA shall give notice in a timely manner to EMMA of any failure to provide Annual Financial Information Disclosure when the same is due hereunder.
	6. Consequences of Failure of CCCFA to Provide Information.  CCCFA shall give notice in a timely manner to EMMA of any failure to provide Annual Financial Information Disclosure when the same is due hereunder.
	7. Amendments; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, CCCFA by resolution authorizing such amendment or waiver, may amend this Agreement, and any provision of this Agreement may be waived, if:
	7. Amendments; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, CCCFA by resolution authorizing such amendment or waiver, may amend this Agreement, and any provision of this Agreement may be waived, if:
	(a) (i) The amendment or waiver is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, including without limitation pursuant to a “no-action” letter issued by the Commission, change in law, or change in t...
	(ii) This Agreement, as amended, or the provision, as waived, would have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in ...

	(b) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with CCCFA (such as the Trustee), or by approving vote of Bondholders pursuant to the terms of the...

	8. Termination of Undertaking.  The Undertaking of CCCFA shall be terminated hereunder if CCCFA no longer has any legal liability for any obligation on or relating to repayment of the Bonds under the Indenture.  CCCFA shall give notice to EMMA in a ti...
	8. Termination of Undertaking.  The Undertaking of CCCFA shall be terminated hereunder if CCCFA no longer has any legal liability for any obligation on or relating to repayment of the Bonds under the Indenture.  CCCFA shall give notice to EMMA in a ti...
	9. Dissemination Agent.  CCCFA may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent with or without appointing a successor Dis...
	9. Dissemination Agent.  CCCFA may, from time to time, appoint or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Agreement, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent with or without appointing a successor Dis...
	10. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent CCCFA from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other ...
	10. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent CCCFA from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other ...
	11. Beneficiaries.  This Agreement has been executed in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the Rule; however, this Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of CCCFA, the Dissemination Agent, if any, and the beneficial o...
	11. Beneficiaries.  This Agreement has been executed in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with the Rule; however, this Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of CCCFA, the Dissemination Agent, if any, and the beneficial o...
	12. Recordkeeping.  CCCFA shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information Disclosure and Reportable Events Disclosure, including the content of such disclosure, the names of the entities with whom such disclosure was filed and the date of f...
	12. Recordkeeping.  CCCFA shall maintain records of all Annual Financial Information Disclosure and Reportable Events Disclosure, including the content of such disclosure, the names of the entities with whom such disclosure was filed and the date of f...
	13. Assignment.  CCCFA shall not transfer its obligations under the Indenture unless the transferee agrees to assume all obligations of CCCFA under this Agreement or to execute an Undertaking under the Rule.
	13. Assignment.  CCCFA shall not transfer its obligations under the Indenture unless the transferee agrees to assume all obligations of CCCFA under this Agreement or to execute an Undertaking under the Rule.
	14. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.
	(a) with respect to the Project Participant updated information under the headings “Customers – General,” “Customers – Customer Opt-Out Rate and Customer Retention,” “Service Rates – Current and Historical Rate Information,” “Sources of Energy – Energ...
	(b) the quantities of Energy from the Clean Energy Project sold by CCCFA, whether to the Project Participant or others; and
	(c) such other information and data as CCCFA may deem necessary in order to comply with the requirements of the Rule.
	Green Bonds Designation
	About the Issuer
	About the Borrower
	East Bay Community Energy

	Alignment to Green Standards
	Use of Proceeds
	Transaction Structure
	The Clean Energy Project

	Process for Project Evaluation and Selection
	East Bay Community Energy
	California Community Choice Financing Authority

	Management of Proceeds
	Reporting

	Impact and Alignment with UN SDGs
	Conclusion
	About Kestrel Verifiers
	Disclaimer

	Appendix A. UN SDG Target Definitions

	Item 15L - CCCFA Prepay (EBCE) Morgan Stanley MOU (As of 4-18-2022) (1)
	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”)
	Overview
	Rating Agency Fees and Green Bond Opinion Fee
	Miscellaneous

	Item 15I - 01. MS-EBCE 2022 - Prepaid Agreement, 4895-8728-6552_4.pdf
	Article I.  Definitions
	Section 1.1 Defined Terms
	Section 1.2 Definitions; Interpretation

	Article II.  Execution Date and Delivery Period
	Section 2.1 Execution Date; Delivery Period
	Section 2.2 Termination by Seller Prior to Prepayment

	Article III.  Sale And Purchase
	Section 3.1 Sale and Purchase of Energy
	Section 3.2 Prepayment
	Section 3.3 No Obligation to Take Base Energy
	Section 3.4 Reduction of Contract Quantity

	Article IV.  Failure to Deliver or Take Energy
	Section 4.1 Assigned Product
	Section 4.2 Failure to Deliver or Take Due to Force Majeure
	(a) Buyer fails to take or Seller fails to deliver all or any portion of the Contract Quantity at any Delivery Point pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; and
	(b) such failure is due to Force Majeure claimed by either Party,


	Article V.  Transmission and Delivery; Communications
	Section 5.1 Delivery of Energy
	(a) Assigned Product.  All Assigned Energy delivered under this Agreement shall be Scheduled at the applicable Assigned Delivery Point and in accordance with the terms of the applicable Assignment Agreement.  All other Assigned Product shall be delive...
	(b) Updates to Exhibits.  Buyer and Seller may, upon mutual agreement, update Exhibit A-1 to modify the Delivery Points thereunder, provided that the Parties shall promptly notify any Swap Counterparty of any such updates and furthermore shall update ...

	Section 5.2 Scheduling
	Section 5.3 Title and Risk of Loss
	Section 5.4 PCC1 Product and Long-Term PCC1 Product
	(a) Eligibility.  Seller, and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement that: (i) the Project qualifies and is certified by the CEC as an Eligible Renewable Energy Resource (“ERR”) as s...
	(b) Transfer of Renewable Energy Credits.  Seller and, if applicable, its successors, represents and warrants that throughout the Delivery Term of this Agreement the renewable energy credits transferred to Buyer conform to the definition and attribute...
	(c) Tracking of RECs in WREGIS.  Seller warrants that all necessary steps to allow the Renewable Energy Credits transferred to Buyer to be tracked in the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System will be taken prior to the first delivery ...
	(d) Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder shall be governed by and construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the state of California, without regard to principles of conflicts of law. ...
	(e) Seller Representations and Warranties.
	Seller further represents and warrants to Buyer that, to the extent that the Product sold by Seller is a resale of part or all of a contract between Seller and one or more third parties, Seller represents, warrants and covenants that the resale compli...
	(f) Subsequent Changes in Law.  In the event that the qualifications or requirements of the RPS program, PCC1 Product or the California Long-Term Contracting Requirements change, Seller shall take commercially reasonable actions to meet the amended qu...
	(g) Limitations.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Parties acknowledge and agree as follows:
	(i) Seller has relied exclusively upon the representations and warranties of each respective seller set forth in the Assigned Agreements in making the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 5.4 and has not performed any independent i...
	(ii) Seller agrees that it will terminate or cause MSCG to terminate the applicable Assignment Period in the event that any representation or warranty in this Section 5.4 proves to be incorrect in any respect;
	(iii) Buyer agrees that its sole recourse for any breach of the provisions of this Section 5.4 shall be the termination of the applicable Assignment Period and Buyer shall have no other recourse against Seller or remedies under this Agreement; and
	(iv) Section 5.4(d) shall only apply to the provisions of this Section 5.4 and all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain subject to and interpreted in accordance with Section 18.4.


	Section 5.5 Deliveries within CAISO or Another Balancing Authority
	Section 5.6 Assigned Products

	Article VI.  Partial Assignments of PPAs
	Section 6.1 Future PPA Assignments
	Section 6.2 Updates to Exhibits A-1 and A-2
	(a) To the extent that an EPS Energy Period terminates or expires and Assigned Energy is not available for delivery immediately following (i) the end of the period for which Force Majeure is deemed to occur in the event of an early termination or (ii)...
	(b) In connection with the execution of any subsequent Assignment Agreement, the Parties shall update Exhibits A-1 and A-2 to reflect (i) appropriate decreases in the Hourly Quantities of Base Energy and increases in the Monthly Quantities of Assigned...


	Article VII.  Energy Remarketing
	Article VIII.  Representations and Warranties
	Section 8.1 Representations and Warranties
	(a) it is duly organized and validly existing under the Laws of the state in which it is organized;
	(b) it has all requisite power and authority to conduct its business, to own its properties and to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement;
	(c) there is no litigation, action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the best of such Party’s knowledge, threatened, before or by any Government Agency, which could reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the performa...
	(d) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party has been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of such Party and does not require any approval or consent of any security holder of such Party or any holder (or ...
	(e) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of such Party by an appropriate officer or authorized Person of such Party and constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against it in accordance wi...
	(f) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such Party shall not violate any provision of any Law, decree or other legal or regulatory determination applicable to it;
	(g) the execution, delivery and performance by such Party of this Agreement, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, including the incurrence by such Party of its financial obligations under this Agreement, shall not result in an...
	(h) to the best of the knowledge and belief of such Party, no consent, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or giving of notice to, obtaining of any license or permit from, or taking of any other action wit...
	(i) it enters this Agreement as a bona-fide, arm’s-length transaction involving the mutual exchange of consideration and, once executed by both Parties, considers this Agreement a legally enforceable contract.

	Section 8.2 Additional Representations and Warranties of Buyer
	(a) Buyer is entering into this Agreement for the purpose of acquiring Energy for sale to its Project Participant pursuant to the Power Supply Contract;
	(b) any amounts payable by Buyer under this Agreement shall (i) other than the Prepayment, be payable as an item of Operating Expense under (and as defined in) the Bond Indenture, and (ii) not constitute an indebtedness or liability of Buyer within th...
	(c) Buyer will promptly alert Seller of any notice received by Buyer alleging a breach under the Bond Indenture or of any covenant of Buyer in the agreements entered into by Buyer in connection with the Energy Project;
	(d) Buyer shall not (i) enter into any Bond Documents (excluding any contracts applicable to Energy being resold by Buyer or the Project Participant (or a related joint powers authority selling Energy to the Project Participant)), (ii) consent to, wai...
	(e) Buyer shall collect and forthwith cause to be deposited in the relevant funds pursuant to the Bond Indenture all amounts payable to it pursuant to the Power Supply Contract.  Buyer shall enforce the provisions of the Power Supply Contract, as well...
	(f) Buyer shall keep or cause to be kept with respect to the Energy Project proper books of record and account (separate from all other records and accounts) in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as such may be modified by the p...
	(g) Buyer shall from time to time duly pay and discharge, or cause to be paid and discharged, all taxes, assessments and other governmental charges, or required payments in lieu thereof, lawfully imposed upon the properties of Buyer or upon the rights...
	(h) Buyer shall at all times maintain its existence and shall do and perform or cause to be done and performed all acts and things required to maintain its existence; and
	(i) Buyer shall not consolidate or amalgamate with, or merge with or into, or transfer all or substantially all its assets to, or reorganize, reincorporate or reconstitute into or as, another entity unless (i) prior to such event, Buyer receives confi...

	Section 8.3 Warranty of Title

	Article IX.  Taxes
	Article X.  Dispute Resolution
	Section 10.1 Arbitration
	Section 10.2 Dispute Resolution.
	(a) Judicial Reference.  Without limiting the provisions in Section 10.1, if Section 10.1 is ineffective or unenforceable, any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its performance, breach, or termination (...
	(b) Notice of Dispute.  Prior to initiating the Reference Proceeding, a Party (the “Disputing Party”) shall provide the other Party (the “Responding Party”) with a written notice of each issue in dispute, a proposed means for resolving each such issue...
	(c) Applicability; Selection of Referees.
	(i) The Party that provides the Impasse Notice shall nominate one referee at the same time it provides the Impasse Notice.  The other Party shall nominate one referee within 10 days of receiving the Impasse Notice.  The two referees (the “Party-Appoin...
	(ii) If the Party-Appointed Referees are unable to agree on the Third Referee within 45 days from delivery of the Impasse Notice, then the Third Referee shall be appointed pursuant to CCP Section 640(b) in an action filed in the Superior Court of Cali...

	(d) Discovery; Proceedings.
	(i) The Parties agree that time is of the essence in conducting the Reference Proceeding. Accordingly, the referees shall be requested, subject to change in the time periods specified herein for good cause shown, to (i) set the matter for a status and...
	(ii) Discovery and other pre-hearing procedures shall be conducted as agreed to by the Parties, or if they cannot agree, as determined by the Third Referee after discussion with the Parties regarding the need for discovery and other pre-hearing proced...
	(iii) Except as expressly set forth herein, the Third Referee shall determine the manner in which the Reference Proceeding is conducted, including the time and place of hearings, the order of presentation of evidence, and all other questions that aris...
	(iv) All proceedings and hearings conducted before the referees, except for trial, shall be conducted without a court reporter, except that when any Party so requests, a court reporter will be used at any hearing conducted before the referees, and the...

	(e) Decision.  The referees shall render a written statement of decision setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law.  The decision shall be entered as a judgment in the court in accordance with the provisions of CCP Sections 644 and 645.  T...
	(f) Expenses.  Each Party shall bear the compensation and expenses of its respective Party-Appointed Referee, own counsel, witnesses, consultants and employees.  All other expenses of judicial reference shall be split equally between the Parties.


	Article XI.  Force Majeure
	Section 11.1 Applicability of Force Majeure
	Section 11.2 Settlement of Labor Disputes

	Article XII.  Governmental Rules and Regulations
	Section 12.1 Compliance with Laws
	Section 12.2 Contests
	Section 12.3 Defense of Agreement

	Article XIII.  Assignment
	(c) if either (A) Seller notifies Buyer that the Morgan Stanley Guarantee will be terminated as of the end of any Interest Rate Period; (B) Seller is unable to provide, under the Re-Pricing Agreement, an estimated Available Discount (as defined in the...

	Article XIV.  Payments
	Section 14.1 Monthly Statements
	(a) No later than the 5th day of each Month during the Delivery Period (excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the Delivery Period, Buyer shall deliver to Seller a statement (a “Buyer’s Statement”) l...
	(b) No later than the 10th day of each Month during the Delivery Period (excluding the first Month of the Delivery Period) and the first Month following the end of the Delivery Period (the “Billing Date”), Seller shall deliver a statement (a “Billing ...
	(c) Upon request by either Party, the other Party shall deliver such supporting documentation of the foregoing as such requesting Party may reasonably request.

	Section 14.2 Payment
	(a) If the Billing Statement indicates an amount due from Buyer, then Buyer shall remit such amount to Seller by wire transfer (pursuant to Seller’s instructions), in immediately available funds, on or before the later of (i) the 25th day of the Month...
	(b) If Buyer fails to issue a Buyer’s Statement with respect to any Month, Seller shall not be required to estimate any amounts due to Buyer for such Month, provided that Buyer may include any such amount on subsequent Buyer’s Statements issued within...

	Section 14.3 Payment of Disputed Amounts
	Section 14.4 Late Payment
	Section 14.5 Audit; Adjustments
	(a) A Party shall have the right, at its own expense, upon reasonable notice to the other Party and at reasonable times, to examine and audit and to obtain copies of the relevant portion of the books, records, and telephone recordings of the other Par...
	(b) Each Buyer’s Statement and each Billing Statement shall be conclusively presumed final and accurate and all associated claims for under- or overpayments shall be deemed waived unless such Buyer’s Statement or Billing Statement is objected to in wr...
	(c) All retroactive adjustments shall be paid in full by the Party owing payment within 30 days of notice and substantiation of such inaccuracy.  If the Parties are unable to agree upon any retroactive adjustments requested by either Party within the ...

	Section 14.6 Netting

	Article XV.  Receivables Purchases
	In accordance with the provisions of Exhibit G, Buyer shall put and Seller shall purchase certain Put Receivables (as defined in Exhibit G) from Buyer relating to payment defaults by the Specified Project Participant (as defined in Exhibit G).

	Article XVI.  Notices
	Article XVII.  Default; Remedies; Termination
	Section 17.1 Seller Default
	(a) Seller fails to pay when due any amounts owed to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement and such failure continues for two Business Days after receipt by Seller of notice thereof, unless Morgan Stanley has made such payment under the Morgan Stanley Guar...
	(b) Seller: (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes ...
	(c) any representation or warranty made by Seller in this Agreement proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made.

	Section 17.2 Buyer Default
	(a) Buyer fails to pay when due any amounts owed to Seller pursuant to this Agreement and such failure continues for five Business Days after receipt by Buyer of notice thereof;
	(b) Buyer (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts or fails or admits in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes a ...
	(c) any representation or warranty made by Buyer in this Agreement proves to have been incorrect in any material respect when made.

	Section 17.3 Non-Default Termination Events
	(a) Each of the following events shall constitute an “Optional Non-Default Termination Event” under this Agreement:
	(b) Each of the following events shall constitute an “Automatic Non-Default Termination Event” under this Agreement:

	Section 17.4 Remedies and Termination
	(a) Default and Optional Non-Default Termination.  If at any time a Seller Default or a Buyer Default has occurred and is continuing or an Optional Non-Default Termination Event has occurred and is continuing, then the Terminating Party, by notice to ...
	(i) an Early Termination Date shall occur as of the time immediately preceding the institution of the relevant proceeding or the presentation of the relevant petition upon the occurrence of a Seller Default specified in Section 17.1(b)(iv) or, to the ...
	(ii) with respect to an Optional Non-Default Termination Event related to the Buyer Swap, the Terminating Party may, at any time after the commencement of the Swap Replacement Period, conditionally designate an Early Termination Date, with such design...
	(iii) with respect to an Optional Non-Default Termination Event related to the termination of the Power Supply Contract, if Seller exercises its termination right, the resulting Early Termination Date shall occur as of the end of the then-current Rese...

	(b) Automatic Non-Default Termination.  The Early Termination Date shall occur automatically upon the occurrence of any Automatic Non-Default Termination Event; provided, however, in the case of an Automatic Non-Default Termination Event resulting fro...
	(c) Effect of Early Termination.  As of the Early Termination Date, (i) the Delivery Period shall end, (ii) the obligation of Seller to make any further deliveries of Energy to Buyer under this Agreement shall terminate, and (iii) the obligation of Bu...
	(d) Early Termination Payment Date.  (i) In the case of a Failed Remarketing, the last Business Day of the then-current Interest Rate Period, and (ii) in each other case, on the last Business Day of the first Month that commences after the Early Termi...
	(e) Exclusive Termination Rights.  Neither this Agreement nor the Delivery Period may be terminated for any reason except as specified in this Article XVII and in Section 2.2.  Except with respect to amounts due for periods prior to termination, the p...

	Section 17.5 Replacement of Swaps
	(a) In the event that (i) any Buyer Swap or any Seller Swap terminates, (ii) any notice of termination is delivered by any party to a Buyer Swap or a Seller Swap, or (iii) any Buyer Swap or Seller Swap is otherwise reasonably anticipated to become sub...
	(b) In the event of a termination (or anticipated termination) of the Seller Swap, if Seller (i) presents to Buyer a proposed alternate Swap Counterparty, (ii) requests in writing that Buyer enter into a replacement swap with such alternate Swap Count...
	(c) Each of Buyer and Seller agree that it will not enter into a replacement Buyer Swap or Seller Swap, as applicable, unless the other Party is replacing its Buyer Swap or Seller Swap, as applicable, with the same replacement Swap Counterparty.
	(d) In the event that the Seller Swap terminates or is no longer in effect and the MSES Payments Period (as defined in the Seller Custodial Agreement) is in effect, then, during such Prepaid Seller Payments Period, Seller shall comply with the terms o...

	Section 17.6 Limitation on Damages
	Section 17.7 Option to Purchase Bonds
	(a) Seller shall be entitled to purchase such Energy for its own account,
	(b) for all such Energy, regardless of how it is remarketed, Seller will pay Buyer the amount determined pursuant to Section 5(b)(v) of Exhibit C, and
	(c) to the extent that it is determined that interest on the Bonds purchased by Seller is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, Section 7 through Section 9 of Exhibit C shall not apply to any such remarketing.

	Section 17.8 Termination Payment Adjustment Schedule

	Article XVIII.  Miscellaneous
	Section 18.1 Indemnification Procedure
	Section 18.2 Deliveries
	(a) by Seller no later than the date of issuance of the Bonds, a Morgan Stanley Guarantee to Buyer guaranteeing Seller’s payment obligations under this Agreement to Buyer;
	(b) by Buyer, a certificate of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of Buyer setting forth (i) the resolutions of its governing body with respect to the authorization of Buyer to execute and deliver this Agreement, the Bond Indenture and the Power Sup...
	(c) by Seller, evidence reasonably satisfactory to Buyer of (i) Seller’s authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and (ii) the appropriate individuals who are authorized to sign this Agreement; and
	(d) at Seller’s request at any time, Buyer shall provide Seller with a valid sales tax exemption certificate and any other required exemption or resale certificate in jurisdictions where sales of Energy occur under this Agreement to the extent such a ...

	Section 18.3 Entirety; Amendments
	(a) This Agreement and the Re-Pricing Agreement, including the exhibits and attachments hereto and thereto, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the Parties with respect to the...
	(b) If a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event occurs, then Buyer and Seller may, upon mutual agreement in each Party’s sole discretion, amend this Agreement to reduce the Contract Quantity for one or more subsequent Months and to obligate Seller ...
	(i) An executed counterpart of such amendment;
	(ii) An executed counterpart of an amendment to the Power Supply Contract reducing the Contract Quantity to be sold and delivered thereunder in the same Months by the same quantities;
	(iii) An executed counterpart of an amendment to the Buyer Swap reducing the notional amounts thereunder for the same Months by the same quantities;
	(iv) An executed counterpart of an amendment to the Interest Rate Swap reducing the notional amounts thereunder in each subsequent Month by the amount by which the principal amount of the Bonds of the related series scheduled to remain outstanding in ...
	(v) The revised schedules and notices required by Section 2.01(c) of the Bond Indenture in connection with any related partial redemption;
	(vi) An Accountant’s Certificate (as defined in the Bond Indenture) to the effect that each of (A) the scheduled Termination Payments for this Agreement for each Month thereafter is equal to or exceeds the aggregate principal amount of and interest on...
	(vii) The accompanying Opinion of Bond Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture) required by Section 2.03(c) of the Bond Indenture for such redemption; and
	(viii) A Rating Confirmation (as defined in the Bond Indenture) in respect of such amendments and redemption.


	Section 18.4 Governing Law
	Section 18.5 Non-Waiver
	Section 18.6 Severability
	Section 18.7 Exhibits
	Section 18.8 Winding Up Arrangements
	Section 18.9 Relationships of Parties
	Section 18.10 Immunity
	Section 18.11 Rates and Indices
	(a) Commodity Reference Prices.
	(i) Price Replacement Process for Energy.  If a Daily Commodity Reference Price for Energy is not available for any Hour but such Daily Commodity Reference Price has not permanently ceased to be published, then the Parties shall promptly endeavor to a...
	(ii) Price Replacement Process for Non-Published Index.  If a Daily Commodity Reference Price is not available because it has permanently ceased to be published, then the Parties shall promptly endeavor to agree on an alternative source for determinat...

	(b) Corrections.  If a value published for any rate or index used or to be used in this Agreement is subsequently corrected and the correction is published or announced by the Person responsible for that publication or announcement within thirty (30) ...

	Section 18.12 Limitation of Liability
	Section 18.13 Counterparts
	Section 18.14 Rights of Trustee
	Section 18.15 Waiver of Defenses
	Section 18.16 U.S. Resolution Stay.
	Section 18.17 Rate Changes
	(a) Absent the agreement of the Parties to the proposed change, the standard of review for changes to any rate, charge, classification, term or condition of this Agreement, whether proposed by a Party (to the extent that any waiver in Section 18.17(b)...
	(b) In addition, and notwithstanding Section 18.17(a), to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, each Party, for itself and its successors and assigns, hereby expressly and irrevocably waives any rights it can or may have, now or in the futur...


	EXHIBIT A-1 BASE ENERGY HOURLY QUANTITIES
	[To come.]
	EXHIBIT A-2 EPS ENERGY PERIOD MONTHLY QUANTITY
	[To come.]
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C   COMMODITY REMARKETING
	Section 1. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Exhibit shall have the meanings given to such terms in this Agreement, unless otherwise indicated.  The following terms, when used in this Exhibit C and identified by ...
	Section 2. Buyer’s Right and Obligation to Request Remarketing.  Buyer may, and, if required to do so under the Bond Indenture or the terms of this Agreement shall, request Seller to remarket, pursuant to this Exhibit C, all or a specified part of the...
	Section 3. Remarketing Notice.
	(a) Generally.  To request remarketing under this Exhibit C, Buyer must issue a Remarketing Notice, which Remarketing Notice must state as applicable (i) the portion of the Contract Quantity to be remarketed from each relevant Delivery Point, and (ii)...
	(b) Monthly Remarketing Notice. Buyer may designate a Remarketing Notice as a “Monthly Remarketing Notice” if the Remarketing Notice is delivered to Seller not later than three (3) Business Days prior to the start of the first Month in which it applie...
	(c) Daily Remarketing Notice. Buyer may designate a Remarketing Notice as a “Daily Remarketing Notice” if the Remarketing Notice is delivered to Seller not later than three (3) Business Days prior to the Business Day in which it applies.

	Section 4. Seller’s Remarketing Obligations Generally.
	(a) All Energy remarketed by Seller pursuant to this Exhibit C shall be for the benefit of Buyer, meaning all remarketed Energy shall first be sold by Seller to Buyer and then resold by or for the account of Buyer pursuant to the terms and provisions ...
	(b) Seller may act directly as principal to the remarketing buyer or may cause a supplier to Seller to act directly as principal to the remarketing buyer.  Neither Seller nor any Person acting on Seller’s behalf shall owe any fiduciary duties to Buyer...
	(c) Seller shall prepare, maintain and provide Monthly to Buyer accurate and complete records showing (i) the identity of each purchaser in a Qualified Sale, a Non-Private Business Sale, or a Private Business Sale undertaken by Seller on Buyer’s behal...
	(d) Any amounts due to Buyer for Energy remarketed by Seller or purchased by Seller under this Exhibit C shall be remitted to Buyer pursuant to Section 14.2 of this Agreement in the Month following the Month in which such Energy is remarketed or purch...

	Section 5. Remarketing.
	(a) Remarketing of Assigned Energy.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the Monthly Quantity of Energy exceeds the quantity of Assigned Energy actually delivered in any Month, then (i) Buyer will be deemed to have requested for Seller...
	(b) Remarketing of Base Energy.  The following provisions shall apply to the remarketing of Base Energy by Seller:
	(i) Seller shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remarket or cause to be remarketed all Base Energy specified for remarketing.  In exercising such Commercially Reasonable Efforts, Seller shall first attempt to remarket or cause to be remarketed...
	(ii) Seller shall not be required to remarket any Base Energy at a net price to Seller (after deducting all transportation and transmission costs and all other costs) that is anticipated to be less than:
	A. the Day-Ahead Market Price applicable to such Energy in the case of a Monthly Remarketing Notice, or
	B. the Real-Time Market Price applicable to such Energy in the case of a Daily Remarketing Notice.

	(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary herein, provided that (A) the Project Participant is not in default under its Power Supply Contract, (B) such Project Participant has exercised Commercially Reasonable Efforts (as determi...
	A. Seller shall purchase Energy for its own account and shall pay Buyer the product of (A) the quantity of such Energy purchased for its own account and (B) the Day-Ahead Market Price;
	B. Proceeds received by Buyer under this Section 5(b)(iii) that exceed the amount Buyer would have received for the same quantity of Energy at the Net Participant Price shall be deposited in the Participant Rebate Account (as defined in the Bond Inden...
	C. the Project Participant shall be required under Section 7.5 of the Power Supply Contract to exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to purchase Energy for a Qualifying Use to remediate any Ledger Entry resulting from Seller’s purchase of Energy; and
	D. if any Ledger Entry has not been reversed within twelve Months of the date of any such Ledger Entry, Seller thereafter shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to remediate any such Ledger Entry by making a Qualified Sale to the Project Parti...
	provided that, to the extent Special Tax Counsel (as defined in the Bond Indenture) determines at any time the Project Participant has failed to exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain EPS Compliant Energy for delivery hereunder consistent ...

	(iv) Proceeds from Qualified Sales and Non-Private Business Sales.
	A. For any Energy specified in a Monthly Remarketing Notice that Seller remarkets in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall deliver to Buyer the actual proceeds less the Remarketing Fee per MWh sold, provided that the aggregate am...
	B. For any Energy specified in a Daily Remarketing Notice that Seller remarkets in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall deliver to Buyer the actual proceeds received with respect to such Energy less the Remarketing Fee per MWh s...
	C. In the event the payment due date under a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale has not yet occurred prior to the date upon which payment is due under this Agreement for the applicable Month, the Parties shall nonetheless issue statements as ...

	(v) Proceeds from Private Business Sales.
	A. For any Energy specified in a Monthly Remarketing Notice that is not remarketed in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall pay to Buyer the positive result determined by the following formula with respect to each Delivery Point ...
	B. For any Energy specified in a Daily Remarketing Notice that is not remarketed in a Qualified Sale or Non-Private Business Sale, Seller shall pay to Buyer the positive result determined by the following formula with respect to each Delivery Point to...

	(vi) Energy Remarketing Reserve Fund.  Any proceeds received by Buyer under this Section 5 for Energy remarketed in sales other than Qualified Sales that exceed the amount Buyer would have received for the same quantity of Energy at the Net Participan...


	Section 6. Reserved.
	Section 7. Tracking Remarketing Proceeds.  Seller shall maintain four (4) separate ledgers related to remarketing proceeds as described below:
	(a) One (1) ledger (the “Non-Private Business Sales Ledger”) shall include, (A) as dollar credits, the Non-Private Business Remarketing Proceeds, and (B) as a MWh credit, the MWhs corresponding to such Non-Private Business Remarketing Proceeds.
	(b) Another ledger (the “Private Business Sales Ledger”) shall include, (A) as dollar credits, Private Business Remarketing Proceeds, and (B) as a MWh credit, the MWhs corresponding to such Private Business Remarketing Proceeds.
	(c) The other two (2) ledgers shall be maintained as described in Section 9(a) of this Exhibit C.
	(d) The credits to be recorded in the ledgers described in Section 7(a) and (b) of this Exhibit C (collectively, the “Ledger Entries”) shall be dated as of the first day of the Month prior to the Month in which Buyer or Project Participant receives th...
	(e) The four (4) ledgers described in this Section 7 of this Exhibit C and all debits and credits to such ledgers shall be kept on an aggregate basis for purposes of this Exhibit C.

	Section 8. Remediation Remarketing and Bond Redemptions. At any time that the net Ledger Entry balance of either the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger or the Private Business Sales Ledger is greater than zero (0):
	(a) Buyer shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to utilize the proceeds represented by the dollar balances of such Ledger Entries to purchase Energy for resale in Qualified Sales and shall promptly notify Seller following such purchase and sale.
	(b) Seller shall exercise Commercially Reasonable Efforts to locate opportunities for Buyer to purchase Energy to sell in Qualified Sales to remediate the proceeds represented by the dollar balances of the Ledger Entries.  In this regard, if Seller lo...
	(i) Seller shall notify Buyer of such opportunity;
	(ii) Buyer shall, upon receipt of such notice, purchase Energy from Seller at a price determined by Seller in a Commercially Reasonable manner based upon applicable market prices at the location where the remarketing opportunity sale will occur (the “...
	(iii) Seller shall remarket such Energy on Buyer’s behalf in a Qualified Sale;
	(iv) Seller shall remit to Buyer the proceeds collected from such Qualified Sale, but in no event shall Seller remit less than the Minimum Remarketing Sales Price for the remarketing transaction; provided, however, that to the extent Seller does not r...
	(v) Seller shall issue to Buyer a confirmation notice (including the dollar price and MWhs) of each purchase of Energy by or on behalf of Buyer, and each sale of Energy on Buyer’s behalf, under this Section 8, and amounts due from or to Buyer shall be...

	(c) Unless the terms of a Remediation Remarketing undertaken by Seller on Buyer’s behalf are specifically assumed by Buyer, Seller shall indemnify Buyer for any costs or liabilities associated with such Remediation Remarketing (other than costs relate...
	(d) The total purchase price of any Energy purchased by Buyer or Seller pursuant to Section 8(b) of this Exhibit C will be entered by Seller as a dollar debit on (i) first, the Private Business Sales Ledger, if and to the extent such ledger has a posi...
	(e) In addition to the ability of Seller or Buyer to engage in Remediation Remarketing to reduce the balances of any Ledger Entries through Qualified Sales of Energy, the proceeds represented by the dollar balances of such Ledger Entries may also be r...

	Section 9. Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event.
	(a)  In addition to the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger and the Private Business Sales Ledger described in Section 7(a) and (b) of this Exhibit C, above, Seller shall also maintain an “Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger” and an “Expired Priva...
	(b) No later than the tenth (10th) day of each Month, Seller shall provide to Buyer copies of the Non-Private Business Sales Ledger, the Private Business Sales Ledger, the Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger and the Expired Private Business Sale...
	(c) A “Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event” shall occur if, at any time, either (i) (A) the sum of all Btu credits on the Expired Non-Private Business Sales Ledger and the Expired Private Business Sales Ledger exceeds (B) the Non-Qualifying Rema...
	(d) The occurrence of a Remarketing Non-Default Termination Event and any remedies associated therewith in Article XVII of this Agreement shall be Buyer’s sole and exclusive remedies with respect to any inability by Seller to purchase and remarket Ene...

	Section 10. Buyer Right to Request to Purchase Remarketed Energy.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Exhibit C, Buyer may request in a Remarketing Notice delivered to Seller that Buyer be the remarketing buyer of the quantities of Energy des...

	Exhibit D   TERMINATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	The Termination Payment for any Early Termination Payment Date will be the amount set forth on the attached table in the column corresponding to the month in which the Early Termination Date occurs, plus the product of (a) the Contract Quantity for su...
	Exhibit E   FORM OF MORGAN STANLEY GUARANTEE
	Exhibit F   PRICING AND OTHER TERMS





